
           
  

City Council Study Session
 

Monday, June 10, 2024
6:00 p.m.

 

Chandler City Council Chambers
88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ

 

  



  
Our Vision
We are a world class City that provides an exceptional
quality of life.
 

Our Brand
A safe, diverse, equitable and inclusive community that
connects people, chooses innovation and inspires
excellence.

Innovative Focus
Innovation is the lifeblood of our community. The
introduction of new ideas and methods is rooted in
Chandler's culture and heritage. This thread of innovation
embodies how we connect, plan and serve our city to be a
contemporary, financially responsible and safe place to live
and work. 

Pursuant to Resolution No. 4464 of the City of Chandler and to A.R.S. 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the
members of the Chandler City Council and to the general public that the Chandler City Council will hold a STUDY
SESSION open to the public on Monday, June 10, 2024, at 6:00 p.m., in the Chandler City Council Chambers, 88
E. Chicago Street, Chandler, Arizona. One or more members of the Chandler City Council may attend this meeting
by telephone.

Persons with disabilities may request a reasonable modification or communication aids and services by contacting
the City Clerk’s office at 480-782-2181 (711 via AZRS). Please make requests in advance as it affords the City
time to accommodate the request.

Agendas are available in the Office of the City Clerk, 175 S. Arizona Avenue.
 

Page 2 of 14 Council Study Session



           

Study Session Agenda   

 

 

Call to Order
 

Roll Call
 

Scheduled Public Appearances
 

1. Service Recognitions   

 

2. Proclamation - NXP Innovation Month   

 

3. Recognition - Degrees of Freedom (DoF) Robotics Team   

 

4. Recognition - Chandler Huskies Women's Lacrosse Team   

 

Consent Agenda
Items listed on the Consent Agenda may be enacted by one motion and one vote. If a discussion is required by
members of the governing body, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion and
determination will be made if the item will be considered separately.
 

Page 3 of 14 Council Study Session



Airport
 
 

1. Construction Agreement No. AI2206.401, with Rural Electric, Inc., for the
Automated Weather Observing System (AWOS) Replacement

  Move City Council award Construction Agreement No. AI2206.401 to Rural Electric,
Inc., for the Automated Weather Observing System (AWOS) replacement, in an amount
not to exceed $225,800.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

City Clerk
 
 

2. Approval of Minutes
  Move City Council approve the Council meeting minutes of the Special Meeting -

Budget Briefing of April 26, 2024; the Special Meeting of May 20, 2024; the Study
Session of May 20, 2024; the Work Session of May 23, 2024; the Regular Meeting of
May 23, 2024; and the Special Meeting of June 3, 2024.

 

City Manager
 
 

3. Resolution No. 5813 Authorizing the Execution of a License Agreement with Salt

Page 4 of 14 Council Study Session



3. Resolution No. 5813 Authorizing the Execution of a License Agreement with Salt
River Project (SRP), Granting the City Access to SRP Property on the Northwest
Corner of Frye Road and the Consolidated Canal for the Construction,
Maintenance, and Operation of Frye Road Collector Street Improvements

  Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5813 authorizing the execution of a
license agreement with Salt River Project (SRP), granting the city access to SRP
property on the northwest corner of Frye Road and the Consolidated Canal for the
construction, maintenance, and operation of Frye Road collector street improvements.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

Community Services
 
 

4. Professional Services Agreement No. PR2205.451, with Dibble CM, LLC, for the
Brooks Crossing Park Improvements Construction Management Services

  Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. PR2205.451 to Dibble
CM, LLC, for the Brooks Crossing Park Improvements Construction Management
Services, in an amount not to exceed $131,480.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

5. Resolution No. 5811 Authorizing an Intergovernmental Agreement with Chandler
Unified School District No. 80

  Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5811 authorizing an
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between Chandler Unified School District (CUSD)
No. 80 and the City of Chandler for the shared use of City and District property and the
waiver of facility fees and defined development-related fees.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

Page 5 of 14 Council Study Session



           

6. Job Order Project Agreement No. PR2205.401 with DNG Construction, LLC,
Pursuant to Job Order Master Agreement No. JOC2420, for the Brooks Crossing
Park Improvements

  Move City Council award Job Order Project Agreement No. PR2205.401 to DNG
Construction, LLC, Pursuant to Job Order Master Agreement No. JOC2420, for the
Brooks Crossing Park Improvements, in an amount not to exceed $1,987,588.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

Development Services
 
 

7. Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 5099, Rezoning PLH23-0056 Viviendo, Located at
the Southeast Corner of Ocotillo and McQueen Roads

  Rezoning
Move City Council adopt Ordinance No. 5099 approving PLH23-0056 Viviendo,
Rezoning from PAD for Neighborhood Commercial and congregate care to PAD for
single-family residential, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning and
Zoning Commission.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

8. Introduction and Tentative Adoption of Ordinance No. 5101, Rezoning,
PLH23-0070 Guerrero Residence, 943, 953 and 963 North Mill Avenue, Generally
Located ½ Mile East of the Southeast Corner of Kyrene and Ray Roads

  Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 5101
approving PLH23-0057 Guerrero Residence, Rezoning from Agricultural District
(AG-1) to Planned Area Development (PAD) for Single-Family Residential with
reduced setbacks, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning and Zoning
Commission.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

Page 6 of 14 Council Study Session



9. Introduction and Tentative Adoption of Ordinance No. 5102, Rezoning,
PLH23-0070 Chandler Palms Medical Offices, located at 500 N. Juniper Drive,
Generally Located 1/2 Mile North and West of Chandler Boulevard and McClintock
Drive

  Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 5102 approving
PLH23-0070 Chandler Palms Medical Offices, amending the existing PAD to allow
medical office uses, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning and Zoning
Commission.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

10. Introduction and Tentative Adoption of Ordinance No. 5103, Annexation,
ANX23-0003, Approving the Annexation of Approximately 13.57 Acres of Land
South of the Southeast Corner of Arizona Avenue and Germann Road

  Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 5103 approving
ANX23-0003 Annexation of 13.57 acres located at the southeast corner of Arizona Ave
and Germann Road, as recommended by Planning staff.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

11. Preliminary Plat PLT23-0039 Chandler Innovation Center, Generally Located 1/4
Mile South of the Southeast Corner of Arizona Avenue and Germann Road

  Move City Council approve Preliminary Plat PLT23-0039 Chandler Innovation Center,
subject to conditions as recommended by the Planning and Zoning Commission.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

12. Use Permit and Entertainment Use Permit, PLH24-0004 The Forum, for a Time
Extension for a Series 6 Bar License and an Entertainment Use Permit for Live
Music Inside and on an Outdoor Patio at 2301 South Stearman Drive, Generally
Located South of the Southwest Corner of Gilbert and Germann Roads

  Move City Council approve Use Permit and Entertainment Use Permit, PLH24-0004
The Forum, subject to the conditions recommended by Planning and Zoning
Commission.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

Page 7 of 14 Council Study Session



Facilities and Fleet
 
 

13. Agreement No. FS2-928-4310, Amendment No. 3, for Auto Body Repair Services
  Move City Council approve Agreement No. FS2-928-4310, Amendment No. 3, with

Allard Collision, LLC, for auto body repair services, for an amount not to exceed
$250,000, for the period of July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2025. 

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

Information Technology
 
 

14. Agreement No. 4506, Amendment No. 4, with WalkMe, Inc., for the Digital
Adoption Platform

  Move City Council approve Agreement No. 4506, Amendment No. 4, with WalkMe, Inc.,
for the Digital Adoption Platform, in an amount not to exceed or total $161,700, for the
period of one year, beginning June 30, 2024, through June 29, 2025.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

Page 8 of 14 Council Study Session



           

15. Agreement No. 4730, for Permitting Software and Support Services
  Move City Council approve Agreement No. 4730, with Accela, Inc., for permitting

software and support services, for a period of five years, in an amount not to exceed
$754,654 in the first year.  

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

16. Purchase of Upgrade for Virtual Meeting Hardware and Software 
  Move City Council approve the purchase of Cisco Webex room kit upgrades, from

Sentinel Technologies, Inc., utilizing the 1GPA Agreement No. 22-02PV-18, in an
amount not to exceed $695,000.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

17. Purchase of Information Technology Research Subscription Services
  Move City Council approve the purchase of information technology research

subscription services, from Gartner, Inc., utilizing the State of Arizona Contract No.
CTR053240, in an amount not to exceed $244,873, for the period of one year,
beginning July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2025.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

18. Purchase of Information Technology Temporary Staffing Services
  Move City Council approve the purchase of information technology temporary staffing

services, from Computer Aid, Inc., utilizing the Sourcewell Contract No. 071321-CAI, in
an amount not to exceed $7,129,534, for a period of one year, beginning July 1, 2024,
through June 30, 2025.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

19. Purchase of Oracle Annual Support and Maintenance
  Move City Council approve the purchase of Oracle annual support and maintenance,

from Mythics, Inc., utilizing the Omnia Partners Contract No. R190801, in the amount of
$408,635, for a period of one year, beginning August 1, 2024, through July 31, 2025.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

Page 9 of 14 Council Study Session



Management Services
 
 

20. Resolution No. 5799 Authorizing Submittal of an Indian Gaming Revenue Sharing
Grant Application from Dignity Health Foundation - East Valley to Ak-Chin Indian
Community

  Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5799 authorizing the submittal of a
$206,648 pass-through Indian Gaming Revenue Sharing Grant Application from the
Dignity Health Foundation – East Valley to the Ak-Chin Indian Community for a Pilot
Behavioral Health Program.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

21. Agreement No. IT1-918-4343, Amendment No. 3, for Business License Portal
Applications and Managed Support Services

  Move City Council approve Agreement No. IT1-918-4343, Amendment No. 3, with
Parsus Solutions, LLC, for business license portal applications and managed support
services, in an amount not to exceed $300,000, for the period of one year, beginning
June 15, 2024, through June 14, 2025.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

22. New License Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License Application for Wade Alan
Stooks, Agent, Gravity Solutions Chandler, LLC, DBA Slick City Action Park

  Move for recommendation to the State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for
approval of the State Liquor Job No. 282704, a Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License,
for Wade Alan Stooks, Agent, Gravity Solutions Chandler, LLC, DBA Slick City Action
Park, located at 845  N. 54th Street, and approval of the City of Chandler, Series 12,
Restaurant Liquor License No. 306816.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

Page 10 of 14 Council Study Session



Neighborhood Resources
 
 

23. Resolution No. 5810, Approving and Authorizing Agreements with Recovery
Cafe Arizona and EMPACT-Suicide Prevention Center for the Provision of Opioid
Treatment and Prevention Services

  Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5810, approving and authorizing
agreements with Recovery Cafe Arizona and EMPACT-Suicide Prevent Center, for the
provision of Opioid treatment and prevention services, in the aggregate amount of
$100,000.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

24. Resolution No. 5814, Approving Amendment No. 1 to Intergovernmental
Agreement No. CC-22-24-037-X-00 for Housing Stability Services

  Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5814 approving Amendment No. 1 to
Intergovernmental Agreement No. CC-22-24-037-X-00 between Maricopa County,
administered by its Human Services Department, and the City of Chandler to accept
Community Services Block Grant funds in the amount of $150,000 for Housing Stability
Services; authorizing the City Manager to assign all related documents and assurances
on behalf of the City of Chandler; and authorizing the City Manager to take all action
necessary or prudent to implement the grant.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

Page 11 of 14 Council Study Session



Police Department
 
 

25. Purchase of Handheld Narcotics Analyzers
  Move City Council approve the purchase of handheld narcotics analyzers, from Thermo

Scientific Portable Analytical Instruments, Inc., in the amount of $152,527.49.
 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

Public Works and Utilities
 
 

26. Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 5098 Granting a Non-Exclusive Underground
High Voltage Power Easement to Salt River Project Agricultural Improvement and
Power District to Accommodate the Installation of Electric Vehicle Charging
Stations on the Amazon Site at 3405 S. McQueen Road, Chandler, Arizona

  Move City Council approve final adoption of Ordinance No. 5098 granting a
Non-Exclusive Underground High Voltage Power Easement to SRP, in consideration
for the payment of $18,500.00 to accommodate the installation of electric vehicle
charging stations on the Amazon site at 3405 S. McQueen Road, Chandler, Arizona.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

27. Introduction and Tentative Adoption of Ordinance No. 5100 Authorizing a
Contract and Grant of Easement with the United States of America for Irrigation
Facilities Located at the Northwest Corner of Dobson Road and Pecos Road

  Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 5100 authorizing the
City of Chandler to enter into a Contract and Grant of Easement with the United States
of America for irrigation facilities located at the northwest corner of Dobson Road and
Pecos Road in consideration for payment of the market value of the property from
CRP/Sparrow Chandler Owner, LLC.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

Page 12 of 14 Council Study Session



 

28. Agreement No. PW0-745-4183, Amendment No. 9, with M.R. Tanner
Development and Construction, Inc., for Street Maintenance Repaving,
Surface Seal, and Repair Services

  Move City Council approve Agreement No. PW0-745-4183, Amendment No. 9,
with M.R. Tanner Development and Construction, Inc., for street maintenance
repaving, surface seal, and repair services, increasing the spending limit by $400,000. 

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

29. Professional Services Agreement No. WA2103.452, Amendment No. 1, with
Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc., for the Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant
SCADA Upgrades - Programming

  Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. WA2103.452,
Amendment No.1, to Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc., for the Pecos Surface Water
Treatment Plant SCADA Upgrades - Programming, increasing the agreement amount
by $1,398,805.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

30. Professional Services Agreement No. WA2103.451, Amendment No. 4, with
Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc., for the Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant
SCADA Upgrades Construction Management Services

  Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. WA2103.451,
Amendment No. 4, to Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc., for the Pecos Surface Water
Treatment Plant SCADA Upgrades Construction Management Services, increasing the
agreement amount by $1,286,450.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

31. Construction Manager at Risk Construction Services Agreement No. WA2103.402,
with Archer Western Construction, for the Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant
SCADA Upgrades GMP-2

  Move City Council award CMAR Construction Services Agreement No. WA2103.402, to
Archer Western Construction, for the Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant SCADA
Upgrades GMP-2, in an amount not to exceed $8,360,342.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

Page 13 of 14 Council Study Session



           

32. Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR) Construction Services Agreement No.
WW2210.401, Change Order No. 1, with B&F Contracting, Inc., for the Price Road
Frontage Road Sewer Rehabilitation

  Move City Council award CMAR Construction Services Agreement No. WW2210.401,
Change Order No. 1, to B&F Contracting, Inc., for the Price Road Frontage Road Sewer
Rehabilitation, in an amount not to exceed $1,064,143.72.

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

Public Hearing
 

33. Public Hearing on Adoption of the FY 2024-25 Annual Budget, 2025-2034 Capital
Improvement Program (CIP), and Setting the FY 2024-25 Property Tax Levies

  1. Open Public Hearing
2. Staff Presentation
3. Council Discussion
4. Discussion from the Audience
5. Close Public Hearing

 

  Council Focus Area(s):
 

Informational
 

34. Special Event Liquor Licenses and Temporary and Permanent Extensions of
Liquor License Premises Administratively Approved

 

35. May 1, 2024, Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes
 

Adjourn
 

Page 14 of 14 Council Study Session



ITEM  1 

City Council Memorandum      Airport  Memo No. CP21-152
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Andy Bass, Deputy City Manager
Ryan Reeves, Airport Manager
Daniel Haskins, Capital Projects Division Manager

From: Rachel Marx, Engineer
Subject:Construction Agreement No. AI2206.401, with Rural Electric, Inc., for the

Automated Weather Observing System (AWOS) Replacement

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council award Construction Agreement No. AI2206.401 to Rural
Electric, Inc., for the Automated Weather Observing System (AWOS)
replacement, in an amount not to exceed $225,800.

Background/Discussion:
The Airport Weather Observing System (AWOS) at the Chandler Municipal Airport
serves the flying public as a critical item for aviation safety.  AWOS provides pilots
data such as cloud ceiling and sky conditions, runway surface conditions,
precipitation, visibility, temperature, dew point, and altimeter setting, as well as
the wind speed, gusts, and wind direction. The existing AWOS equipment,
installed in 2012, is nearing the end of its useful life, and the manufacturer's
supply of replacement components is limited.  This project will greatly reduce the
ongoing maintenance costs of the aging AWOS currently installed.

The project scope of work includes the replacement of the existing AWOS with a
new system that adds precipitation identification, intensity, and
thunderstorm/lightning reporting (AWOS III-PT) equipment on the existing
AWOS facility foundations and towers located at the Chandler Municipal Airport.

The agreement completion time is 300 calendar days following notice to proceed. 



Evaluation:
Three (3) bids were opened on April 9, 2024. The bid results were as follows: 
Contractor Bid Total
Rural Electric, Inc. $225,800.00
Pavex Corp $244,154.00
Scenic Electric, Inc. $298,246.00

Financial Implications:
This project is principally funded through federal and state grants.  The city's local
match will be $10,093.26 from the Airport Operating Fund.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program Name Dollar

Amount
CIP
Funded
Y/N

417.4110.6910.0000.6AI661Capital
Grant Fund

Automated
Weather
Observation
Syste

$215,706.74 Y

635.4110.6910.0000.6AI661Airport
Operating
Fund

Automated
Weather
Observation
Syste

$10,927.20 Y

Attachments
Location Map 
Contract 



ELLIOT RD

WARNER RD

RAY RD

CHANDLER BL

PECOS RD

GERMANN RD

QUEEN CREEK RD

OCOTILLO RD

CHANDLER HEIGHTS RD

RIGGS RD

HUNT HWV
A

L V
IS

TA
 D

R

LIN
D

S
A

Y
 R

D

G
ILB

E
R

T
 R

D

C
O

O
P

E
R

 R
D

M
C

Q
U

E
E

N
 R

D

A
R

IZ
O

N
A

 A
V

A
LM

A
 S

C
H

O
O

L R
D

D
O

B
S

O
N

 R
D

P
R

IC
E

 R
D

M
C

C
LIN

T
O

C
K

 D
R

R
U

R
A

L R
D

K
Y

R
E

N
E

 R
D

56T
H

 S
T

AI
RP

O
RT

 B
L

CO
O

PE
R 

RD

QUEEN CREEK RD

AWOS REPLACEMENT

MEMO NO. CP24-152

AWOS REPLACEMENT
PROJECT NO. AI2206.401

NTS

F:\ENGINEER\GENSERV\_ArcGISPro_Shared\Map Requests\Capital Projects\2024\CP24-152\CP24-152.aprx 4/17/2024 StevenStu



Project Name: AUTOMATED WEATHER OBSERVING SYSTEM (AWOS) REPLACEMENT Page 1 
Project No.: AI2206-401; FAA 3-04-0008-033-2023  
Rev. 1/16/2024 

 
 

CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA 
 

AUTOMATED WEATHER OBSERVING SYSTEM (AWOS) REPLACEMENT 
City Project No. AI2206.401 

FAA Project No. 3-04-0008-033-2023 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 
 

Date: March 15, 2024 
 
1. Bidder must acknowledge the receipt of this addendum on the Proposal 
Acknowledgement page of the BID SUBMITTAL.  This addendum, containing 1 page, is hereby 
incorporated into the Construction Agreement by this reference.   
 
2. Site visit will be held at The Chandler Municipal Airport on Friday March 22nd, 2024, 
at 2380 S Stinson Way, Chandler, AZ 85286, Chandler, Arizona 85286 from 1:30PM local 
Arizona time to 2:30PM local Arizona time.  Make sure to arrive promptly in the terminal building 
lobby. 
 
 
If you have any questions, please e-mail: raquel.diaz@chandleraz.gov. 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Daniel Haskins, P.E. 
CIP City Engineer 
Public Works & Utilities Dept. – Capital Projects 

DanielH
Snapshot



Project Name: AUTOMATED WEATHER OBSERVING SYSTEM (AWOS) REPLACEMENT Page 1 
Project No.: AI2206-401; FAA 3-04-0008-033-2023   
Rev. 1/16/2024 

 
 

CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA 
 

AUTOMATED WEATHER OBSERVING SYSTEM (AWOS) REPLACEMENT 
City Project No. AI2206.401 

FAA Project No. 3-04-0008-033-2023 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 2 
 

Date: March 27, 2024 
 
1. Bidder must acknowledge the receipt of this addendum on the Proposal 
Acknowledgement page of the BID SUBMITTAL.  This addendum, containing 2 pages, is hereby 
incorporated into the Construction Agreement by this reference.   
 
2. Questions: 
 

1. Project specification requires a secondary Ultrasonic wind sensor on AWOS tower, 
where will the secondary wind sensor data display? 

 
Answer 1: The secondary wind sensor data will display in the ATC cab.  Note: The 
Ultrasonic brand is not required, and other brands are acceptable, provided the 
brand will communicate with the tower equipment. 

 
2. Existing RM Young Skyvane (wind sensor) tower location appears to have an 

additional sensor, the additional sensor is located at approximately 8 feet on the 
tower. Please clarify, is the contractor to provide a like system?  If so, what are the 
specifications of the 2nd wind sensor system?   

 
Answer 2: The intent is for the wind sensor and dew point sensor (and associated 
comm/power) to be relocated to the AWOS tower.  Contractor is to provide similar 
system. 

 
3. Tower is using an ATIS system with an ATIS VHF radio, the ATIS radio is considered 

primary and used for the AWOS via an ATIS switch.  Project specification requires 
AWOS VHF radio, will the AWOS VHF radio be used as a spare, what is the City’s 
intention, please clarify VHF radio requirement. 

 
  Answer 3: The VHF radio is to be used as a spare. 
 
 
 



Project Name: AUTOMATED WEATHER OBSERVING SYSTEM (AWOS) REPLACEMENT Page 2 
Project No.: AI2206-401; FAA 3-04-0008-033-2023   
Rev. 1/16/2024 

If you have any questions, please e-mail: raquel.diaz@chandleraz.gov. 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Daniel Haskins, P.E. 
CIP City Engineer 
Public Works & Utilities Dept. – Capital Projects 

DanielH
Snapshot



 

 

 

City of Chandler, Arizona 
Public Works & Utilities Department  
Capital Projects Division 

 
 

CONSTRUCTION BID 
 
 

AUTOMATED WEATHER OBSERVING 
SYSTEM (AWOS) REPLACEMENT 

 
CITY PROJECT NO.:  AI2206.401 

FAA PROJECT NO.: 3-04-0008-033-2023 
 

MAYOR 
Kevin Hartke 

 
VICE MAYOR 

OD Harris 
 

COUNCIL 
Matt Orlando     Christine Ellis 

Mark Stewart     Angel Encinas     Jane Poston 
 
 
 

__________________________________________________ 

Daniel Haskins, P.E. 
CIP City Engineer 

DanielH
Snapshot



     

CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA 
 

CONSTRUCTION BID 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

INVITATION TO BID 
 

BID SUBMITTAL LIST 
 

CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT 
 

PROJECT SPECIFIC SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 
 

GIS/GPS DATA DELIVERY REQUIREMENTS 
(if applicable) 

 
FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

(if applicable) 



LEGAL AD DEPARTMENT        
 
 

 
 

INVITATION TO BID 
 

AUTOMATED WEATHER OBSERVING SYSTEM (AWOS) REPLACEMENT 

CITY PROJECT NO.: AI2206-401 
FAA PROJECT NO: 3-04-0008-033-2023 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that sealed bids will be received and date/time stamped by the City of Chandler 
Capital Projects Office, 215 East Buffalo Street, Chandler, Arizona 85225 until the bid submission date 
specified below.   
 
All firms must be registered on the Arizona Procurement Portal (https://app.az.gov/) vendor registration 
system prior to submitting a Bid.   Non-registered firms will not receive addenda notifications.  Download 
the Bid Documents and any Addenda at www.chandleraz.gov/business/vendor-services/capital-
projects/construction-bids.  It is the contractor's sole responsibility to obtain all addenda from the City 
website prior to submitting their bid proposal, and to acknowledge receipt and acceptance of the addenda 
in their bid proposal submittal.  No separate notification of addenda will be issued. The City recommends 
Contractors regularly check the website for updated information. 
 

 
PRE-BID CONFERENCE: 

 

 
THERE WILL BE NO PRE-BID CONFERENCE 
 

  
SOLICITATION QUESTIONS DUE DATE: 

March 26, 2024 
5:00 p.m. 
Arizona time 

All solicitation questions must be emailed to raquel.diaz@chandleraz.gov with the 
subject line of “AI2206.401 - AUTOMATED WEATHER OBSERVING SYSTEM (AWOS) 
REPLACEMENT BID QUESTION”.  Questions received after the due date and time 
will NOT be considered. 

  
BID SUBMISSION: 

April 9, 2024 
3:00 p.m. 
Arizona time 

Sealed bids must be delivered to the City of Chandler Capital Projects Office located 
at 215 East Buffalo Street, Chandler, Arizona, 85225.  Bids must be received on or 
before date and time specified.  At that time, bids will be publicly opened and read 
aloud in the South Atrium Conference Room.  Bids received after the due date and 
time will be returned unopened without consideration.   
 
All bids must be submitted in a sealed envelope plainly marked as follows: 
 
 BID OF _____________________________, CONTRACTOR 
 
 FOR: “AUTOMATED WEATHER OBSERVING SYSTEM (AWOS) REPLACEMENT”  
  “CITY PROJECT NO.: AI2206.401; FAA PROJECT NO.: 3-04-0008-033-2023” 

mailto:raquel.diaz@chandleraz.gov


 
 

Work under this Agreement includes replacement of the existing Automated Weather Observing System with 
Precipitation Identification, Intensity, and Thunderstorm/Lightning Reporting (AWOS III-PT) equipment on 
existing foundations and towers located at the Chandler Municipal Airport.  Work must be completed within 
300 consecutive calendar days from the Notice to Proceed.  The Engineer’s Estimate range is $100,000- 
$750,000.   
 
This is a Federal Funded Project with DBE requirements.  Full Environmental Report is available upon request. 
Mitigation Measures are not subject to change without prior written approval from the Federal Highway 
Administration. 
 
Bids must be submitted on the Proposal Form provided and be accompanied by the Bid Bond for not less 
than ten percent (10%) of the total bid, payable to the City of Chandler, Arizona, or a certified or cashier's 
check. PERSONAL OR INDIVIDUAL SURETY BONDS ARE NOT ACCEPTABLE. 
 

The successful bidder will be required to execute the standard form of agreement for construction prior to 
Council award 
 

The successful bidder must furnish a Payment Bond and Performance Bond in the amount equal to one 
hundred percent (100%) of the Agreement Price. 
 

The right is hereby reserved to accept or reject any or all bids or parts thereto, to waive any informalities in 
any proposal and reject the bids of any persons who have been delinquent or unfaithful to any agreement 
with the City of Chandler.   
 

All Bids will remain open for 90 days after the Bid opening day, but the City may, in its sole discretion, release 
any Bid and return the bid security prior to that date.  No Bidder may withdraw his Bid during this period 
without written permission from the City. 
 

Find PRELIMINARY BID RESULTS at: https://www.chandleraz.gov/business/vendor-services/capital-projects 

Protest Policy - A protest of a proposed award must be filed WITH THE PURCHASING OFFICE within 5 calendar 
days of the first posting of the award recommendation. Award recommendations are posted on the Capital 
Projects web site or the City Clerk web site. If the due date occurs on a weekend or holiday the protest must 
be filed the next business day.  
A Protest must include: 

• The name, address and telephone number of the protester; 
• The signature of the protester or its representative; 
• Identification of the project and the solicitation or agreement number; 
• A detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of the protest including copies of relevant 

documents; and 
• The form of relief requested. 
 

City will review the protest and issue a written response. 
 

PUBLISHED DATE: March 12, 2024 
March 19, 20224 
Arizona Republic 

AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION 
 

https://www.chandleraz.gov/business/vendor-services/capital-projects


Rev. 7/20/2022 
1   

 

 

DO NOT DOUBLE-SIDE ANY PART OF THE BID SUBMITTAL  

PROJECT NAME:  AUTOMATED WEATHER OBSERVING  
SYSTEM (AWOS) REPLACEMENT  

 
CITY PROJECT NO.: AI2206-401 
FAA PROJECT NO:  3-04-0008-033-2023 

***THIS IS A FEDERAL FUNDED PROJECT*** 
 

PLEASE INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING ITEMS IN YOUR SUBMITTAL ACCORDING TO THE DATE 
AND TIME LISTED IN THE INVITATION TO BID ADVERTISEMENT: 

A. Bid Bond (Original – with Seal) 

B. Signed Proposal Acknowledgement, and licenses 

C. Bid Schedule 

D. Subcontractor’s List Form 

E. Non-Collusion Bidding Certificate  

F. Certificate of Insurability and Bonding 

G. Arizona Department of Revenue Privilege Tax License 

H. FAA FEDERAL DOCUMENTS (FAA Federal Provisions Section): Buy American Certification of 
Compliance 

I. FAA FEDERAL DOCUMENTS: Verifications Statement 

J. FAA FEDERAL DOCUMENTS: Bidders List  

 
 

Please refer to the federal documents section for additional federal documents 

submittals requirement.  

BID SUBMITTAL LIST 
This list may not include all required bid submission items.  It is the Contractor’s 
responsibility to read the entire bid and determine all items required by the submission 
date and time. 

 







































Project Name: Automated Weather Observing System (AWOS) Replacement  Page i 
City Project No.: AI2206.401; FAA Project No.: 3-04-0008-033-2023 
Rev.10/23/23 
    
 

 
 

CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA 
PUBLIC WORKS & UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 

CAPITAL PROJECTS DIVISION 
 

CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT 
 

AUTOMATED WEATHER OBSERVING SYSTEM 
(AWOS) REPLACEMENT 

 
CITY PROJECT NO.: AI2206.401 

FAA PROJECT NO.: 3-04-0008-033-2023 
 

MAYOR 
Kevin Hartke 

 

VICE MAYOR 
OD Harris  

 

COUNCIL 
Matt Orlando     Christine Ellis 

Mark Stewart     Angel Encinas     Jane Poston 
 

 
 

__________________________________________________ 
Daniel Haskins, P.E. 

CIP City Engineer 

DanielH
Snapshot



 

Project Name: Automated Weather Observing System (AWOS) Replacement  Page 1 
City Project No.: AI2206.401; FAA Project No.: 3-04-0008-033-2023 
Rev 10/23/23 
 

CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA 
 

AUTOMATED WEATHER OBSERVING SYSTEM (AWOS) REPLACEMENT 
 

CITY PROJECT NO.: AI2206.401 
FAA PROJECT NO.: 3-04-0008-033-2023 

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 
 PARTICIPANTS AND PROJECT .......................................................................... C-2 

 AGREEMENT DOCUMENTS .............................................................................. C-4 

 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES ............................................................................... C-4 

 CITY RESPONSIBILITIES .................................................................................... C-4 

 AGREEMENT TIME ............................................................................................ C-6 

 AGREEMENT PRICE ........................................................................................... C-7 

 PAYMENT .......................................................................................................... C-7 

 CHANGES TO THE AGREEMENT ....................................................................... C-7 

 SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION .................................................................. C-7 

 INSURANCE AND BONDS ............................................................................... C-7 

 INDEMNIFICATION ......................................................................................... C-8 

 DISPUTE RESOLUTION ................................................................................... C-8 

 FORCED LABOR OF ETHNIC UYGHURS PROHIBITED .................................. C-8 

 

EXHIBIT A – PROJECT SPECIFIC SPECIAL PROVISIONS ..................................................... SP-1 
EXHIBIT B – GENERAL CONDITIONS ................................................................................ GC-1 
EXHIBIT C – TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS ........................................................................ TS-1 
EXHIBIT D – GIS / GPS DATA DELIVERY REQUIREMENTS (IF APPLICABLE) ................... GIS-1 
EXHIBIT E – FEDERAL PROVISIONS (IF APPLICABLE) ....................................................... FP-1 
EXHIBIT F – SUBCONTRACTOR DOCUMENTS WITH CONTRACTOR (IF APPLICABLE) ... SUB-1 



 

Project Name: Automated Weather Observing System (AWOS) Replacement  Page 2 
City Project No.: AI2206.401; FAA Project No.: 3-04-0008-033-2023 
Rev 10/23/23 

 

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES AGREEMENT 

CITY PROJECT NO.: AI2206.401 

FAA PROJECT NO.: 3-04-0008-033-2023 

 

This Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into on the _______ day of 

_________________, 2024, by and between City of Chandler, an Arizona municipal corporation, 

hereinafter called “City” and Rural Electric, Inc. the “Contractor” designated below (City and 

Contractor may individually be referred to as “Party” and collectively referred to as “Parties”). 
 

City and Contractor agree as follows: 
 

 PARTICIPANTS AND PROJECT 

 

CITY:  CIP City Engineer: Daniel Haskins, P.E. 

 Public Works & Utilities Department 

 P.O. Box 4008, Mail Stop 407   Chandler, AZ  85244-4008 

 Phone:  480-782-3335     Email:    Daniel.haskins@chandleraz.gov 
 

CITY:  Construction Project Manager: Raymond Potts 

 Public Works & Utilities Department 

 P.O. Box 4008, Mail Stop 407   Chandler, AZ  85244-4008 

 Phone:  480-782-3326     Email:    raymond.potts@chandleraz.gov 

Contractor: Legal Company Name:   Rural Electric, Inc. 

 
Mailing Address:   9502 E. Main Street, Mesa, AZ 85207 

 
Physical Address:   9502 E. Main Street, Mesa, AZ 85207 

 
Arizona Roc No.:   ROC0704573 

 
Federal Tax Id No.:    86-0360401 

 
State Where Organized:    Arizona 

 
Business Organization:    Electrical Contractor 

 
Statutory Agent Name:    Bonding & Insurance Solutions, LLC 

 
Statutory Agent Mailing Address:  

301 SE Doulas Street, Ste 201, Lee’s Summit, 

MO 64063 
 

Statutory Agent Physical Address:    
301 SE Doulas Street, Ste 201, Lee’s Summit, 

MO 64063 
 

Contractor’s Authorized Project Representative:   

 
Name: Kief Hough 

 
Title: Division Manager 

 
Phone: 602-768-3644 

 
Email: kiefh@ruralelectric.com 

 



 

Project Name: Automated Weather Observing System (AWOS) Replacement  Page 3 
City Project No.: AI2206.401; FAA Project No.: 3-04-0008-033-2023 
Rev 10/23/23 

 

 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

 

This project includes the replacement of the existing Automated Weather Observing System with 

Precipitation Identification, Intensity, and Thunderstorm/Lightning Reporting (AWOS III-PT) 

equipment on existing foundations and towers located at the Chandler Municipal Airport. 

 

PROJECT LOCATION: 

 

2380 South Stinson Way, Chandler, AZ, 85286. 



 

Project Name: Automated Weather Observing System (AWOS) Replacement  Page 4 
City Project No.: AI2206.401; FAA Project No.: 3-04-0008-033-2023 
Rev 10/23/23 

 

 AGREEMENT DOCUMENTS 

 

2.1 AGREEMENT DOCUMENTS 

 The Agreement between City and Contractor will consist of the following Agreement 

Documents: 

 

1. This Construction Services Agreement and all of its Exhibits, including Project 

Plans and Technical Specifications. 

2. General Conditions and General Conditions Appendices, incorporated by 

reference. 

3. Project Specific Special Provisions as set forth in Exhibit A, incorporated by 

reference. 

4. Project Bid Proposal. 

 

2.2 In the event of any inconsistency, conflict, or ambiguity between or among the 

Agreement Documents, the Agreement Documents will take precedence as described 

in Section 14.1.4 of the General Conditions. 

 

2.3 DEFINITIONS 

 The definitions in Section 2 of the General Conditions apply to all the Agreement 

Documents, including this Agreement. 

 

 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 

 

3.1 GENERAL 

 

3.1.1 Scope of Work.  All terms and conditions are set forth in the Agreement. Any terms 

and conditions and exceptions noted in the Contractor’s proposal or other 

documents do not apply unless agreed to in this Agreement or an approved 

addendum. 

 

3.1.2 Contractor agrees this is a Unit Price Agreement. Contractor agrees at its own cost and 

expense, to do all Work necessary required to fully, timely and properly complete 

the construction of the Project in strict accordance with the Agreement Documents 

in a good and workmanlike manner, free and clear of all claims, liens, and charges 

whatsoever, in the manner and under the conditions specified, within the Agreement 

time. 

 

3.1.3 Contractor must provide all of the labor and materials and perform the Work in 

accordance with Section 4 of the General Conditions. Some, but not all, of the major 

components of the Construction Services and the corresponding subsections of 

Section 4 of the General Conditions are set forth below. 

 

3.1.4 At all times relevant to this Agreement and performance of the Work, the Contactor 

must fully comply with all Laws, Regulations, or Legal Requirements applicable to City, 



 

Project Name: Automated Weather Observing System (AWOS) Replacement  Page 5 
City Project No.: AI2206.401; FAA Project No.: 3-04-0008-033-2023 
Rev 10/23/23 

 

the Project and the Agreement, including, without limitation, those set forth on 

attached Exhibit A. 

 

3.1.5 Contractor must perform the Work under this Agreement using only those firms, 

team members and individuals designated by Contractor consistent with 

Contractor’s accepted Bid, or otherwise, approved by City pursuant to the General 

Conditions. No other entities or individuals may be used without the prior written 

approval of the Project Manager. 

 

3.1.6 Contractor must comply with all terms and conditions of the General Conditions. 

 

3.1.7 In the event of a conflict between this Agreement and the General Conditions or an 

exhibit hereto or appendix thereto, the terms of this Agreement will control. 

 

3.1.8 Ownership of Work Product.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this 

Agreement, all Work Product prepared or otherwise created in connection with the 

performance of this Agreement, including the Work, are to be and remain the 

property of City. For purposes of this provision, “Work Product” will include all designs, 

drawings, plans, specifications, ideas, renderings and other information or matter, in 

whatever form created (e.g., electronic or printed) and in all media now known or 

hereinafter created. All Work Product will be considered Work Made for Hire as 

defined in the United States Copyright Act 17 U.S.C. § 101 (Copyright Act). If for any 

reason, any such Work is found not to be a Work Made for Hire, Contractor hereby 

transfers and assigns ownership of the copyright in such Work to City. The rights in 

this Section are exclusive to City in perpetuity. 

 

3.2 CONTRACTOR’S PRE-AGREEMENT AND PRE-WORK DELIVERABLES 

 

3.2.1 The Contractor must provide the Deliverables in accordance with Section 4.2 of 

the General Conditions. 

 

3.3 PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE 

 Contractor must attend the Pre-Construction Conference in accordance with Section 

4.3 of the General Conditions. 

 

3.4 PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK (INCLUDING FIELD MEASUREMENTS, 

SUBCONTRACTORS, AND SUPPLIERS) 

 Contractor must perform the Work in accordance with Section 4.4 of the General 

Conditions. 

 

3.5 CONTROL OF THE PROJECT SITE 

 Contractor must control and maintain the Project Site in accordance with Section 4.5 

of the General Conditions. 

 



 

Project Name: Automated Weather Observing System (AWOS) Replacement  Page 6 
City Project No.: AI2206.401; FAA Project No.: 3-04-0008-033-2023 
Rev 10/23/23 

 

3.6 PROJECT SAFETY 

 Contractor must implement and enforce Project safety in accordance with Section 4.6 

of the General Conditions. 

 

3.7 MATERIALS QUALITY, SUBSTITUTIONS AND SHOP DRAWINGS 

 Contractor must provide materials testing and submit substitute materials and Shop 

Drawings in accordance with Section 4.7 of the General Conditions. 

 

3.8 PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS 

 Contractor must maintain and make available the Project Record Documents in 

accordance with Section 4.8 of the General Conditions. 

 

3.9 WARRANTY AND CORRECTION OF DEFECTIVE WORK 

 Contractor must provide warranties and correct defective Work in accordance with 

Section 4.9 of the General Conditions. 

 

 CITY RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

4.1 City will have the responsibilities, and provide the information specified in, and 

subject to the conditions set forth in, Section 5 of the General Conditions. 

 
 

 AGREEMENT TIME 

 

5.1 GENERAL 

 

5.1.1 The total Agreement Duration is 300 Calendar Days (including Substantial Completion 

by 240 Calendars Days and Final Acceptance by 300 Calendar Days). 

 

5.1.2 The Agreement Time will start with the Notice to Proceed (NTP) and end with 

Final Acceptance, as set forth in Article 5.4 below. 

 

5.1.3 The Agreement Time will be as set forth in the Project Schedule. Contractor agrees 

that it will commence performance of the Work and complete the Project through 

Final Acceptance within the Agreement Time. 

 

5.1.4 Time is of the essence of this Agreement for the Project, and for each phase and 

designated Milestone thereof. 

 

5.1.5 Failure on the part of Contractor to adhere to the approved Project Schedule will 

be deemed a material breach and sufficient grounds for termination of this 

Agreement by City. 

 

 



 

Project Name: Automated Weather Observing System (AWOS) Replacement  Page 7 
City Project No.: AI2206.401; FAA Project No.: 3-04-0008-033-2023 
Rev 10/23/23 

 

5.2 PROJECT SCHEDULE 

 

5.2.1 The Project Schedule will be updated and maintained throughout Contractor’s 

performance under this Agreement in accordance with Section 6.2 of the General 

Conditions. 

 

5.2.2 Work must be completed to meet the following milestones after the Notice to 

Proceed: 
 

 Milestone  Time Liquidated damages for delay 

1. n/a within n/a n/a per calendar day 

 

5.3 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 

 Substantial Completion must be achieved no later than the Substantial Completion 

Date set forth in the Project Schedule.  Substantial Completion will be determined in 

accordance with Section 6.3 of the General Conditions. 

 

5.4 FINAL ACCEPTANCE 

 

5.4.1 Final Acceptance will be obtained within the time period set forth in the Project 

Schedule. 

 

5.4.2 Final Acceptance will be issued pursuant to Section 6.5 of the General Conditions. 

 

5.5 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 

 

5.5.1 Substantial Completion Liquidated Damages. Contractor acknowledges and agrees 

that if Contractor fails to obtain Substantial Completion of the Work within the 

Agreement Time, City will sustain extensive damages and serious loss as a result of 

such failure. The exact amount of such damages will be extremely difficult to 

ascertain. Therefore, City and Contractor agree that if Contractor fails to achieve 

Substantial Completion of the Work within the Agreement Time, City will be entitled 

to retain or recover from Contractor, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, 

the sum per calendar day as indicated in MAG § 108.9. 

 

5.5.2 Final Acceptance Liquidated Damages. For the same reasons set forth in Article 5.5.1 

above, City and Contractor further agree that if Contractor fails to achieve Final 

Acceptance of the Work within the Agreement Time, City will be entitled to retain or 

recover from Contractor, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, the sum per 

calendar day as indicated in MAG § 108.9 commencing from the actual date of 

Substantial Completion or Final Acceptance as required under the Agreement. 

 

5.5.3 MAG Liquidated Damages. Liquidated damages provisions in MAG § 108.9 will apply. 

 



 

Project Name: Automated Weather Observing System (AWOS) Replacement  Page 8 
City Project No.: AI2206.401; FAA Project No.: 3-04-0008-033-2023 
Rev 10/23/23 

 

5.5.4 City may deduct liquidated damages described in this Article 5.5 from any unpaid 

amounts then or thereafter due Contractor under this Agreement. Any liquidated 

damages not so deducted from any unpaid amounts due Contractor will be payable 

to City at the demand of City, together with interest from the date of the demand at 

the highest lawful rate of interest payable by Contractor. 

 

5.6 MUTUAL WAIVER OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ONLY 

 

5.6.1 Contractor and City waive claims against each other for consequential damages 

arising out of or relating to this Agreement. This mutual waiver includes. 

 

1. Damages incurred by City for rental expenses, for losses of use, income, profit, 

financing, business and reputation, and for loss of management or employee 

productivity or of the services of such persons; and 

 

2. Damages incurred by Contractor for principal office expenses including the 

compensation of personnel stationed there, for losses of financing, business and 

reputation, and for loss of profit except anticipated profit arising directly from the 

Work. 

 

5.6.2 This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential damages 

due to either party’s termination of this Agreement. Nothing contained in this 

Article 5 .6 will be deemed to preclude an award of liquidated damages, when 

applicable, in accordance with Article 5.5 above. 

 

5.6.3 Nothing herein will be deemed to constitute a waiver of any other remedy available 

to City in the event of Contractor’s default under this Agreement prior to full 

performance of the Work including, as applicable, specific performance or 

completion of the Work on behalf of Contractor, the cost and expense of which will 

be offset against any monies then or thereafter due to Contractor (if any) and 

otherwise immediately reimbursed to City by Contractor. 

 

 AGREEMENT PRICE 

 

6.1 AGREEMENT PRICE 

 

6.1.1 In exchange for Contractor’s full, timely, and acceptable performances and 

construction of the Work under this Agreement, and subject to all of the terms of 

this Agreement, City will pay Contractor the “Agreement Price,” which is $225,800. 

 

6.1.2 The Agreement Price is all-inclusive and specifically includes all fees, cost, insurance 

and bond premiums, and taxes of any type necessary to fully, properly and timely 

perform and construct Work. 

 



 

Project Name: Automated Weather Observing System (AWOS) Replacement  Page 9 
City Project No.: AI2206.401; FAA Project No.: 3-04-0008-033-2023 
Rev 10/23/23 

 

6.2 CHANGES TO AGREEMENT PRICE 

Shall be determined under Section 9 of the General Conditions. 

 

 PAYMENT 

Payments will be made to Contractor in accordance with Section 8 of the General Conditions. 

 

 CHANGES TO THE AGREEMENT 

Changes to the Agreement may be made in strict accordance with Section 9 of the 

General Conditions. 

 

 SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION 

This Agreement may be suspended or terminated in accordance with Section 10 of the 

General Conditions. 

 

 INSURANCE AND BONDS 

 

10.1 Contractor must provide insurance in accordance with Sections 11.1 through 11.3 

of the General Conditions. Contractor must provide proof of such insurance and all 

required endorsements in forms acceptable to City prior to commencing any Work 

under this Agreement. 

 

10.2 Contractor must provide performance and payment bonds to City in Accordance with 

Section 11.4 of the General Conditions and A.R.S. § 34-222. 

 

10.3 Failure to provide proof of insurance and the required endorsements, or the 

required bonds, in forms acceptable to City, will be a material breach and grounds 

for termination for cause of this Agreement. 

 

 INDEMNIFICATION 

Contractor must have and assume the indemnity obligations set forth in Section 12 of the 

General Conditions. 

 

 DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

Any claims or disputes relating to this Agreement will be resolved according to the dispute 

resolution process set forth in Section 13 of, and Appendix 6 to, the General Conditions. 

 

 FORCED LABOR OF ETHNIC UYGHURS PROHIBITED  By entering into this 

Agreement, Contractor certifies and agrees Contractor does not currently use and will not 

use for the term of this Agreement: (i) the forced labor of ethnic Uyghurs in the People's 

Republic of China; or (ii) any goods or services produced by the forced labor of ethnic 

Uyghurs in the People's Republic of China; or (iii) any contractors, subcontractors or 

suppliers that use the forced labor or any goods or services produced by the forced labor 

of ethnic Uyghurs in the People's Republic of China. 



DanielH
Snapshot



EXHIBIT A 

Project Name: Automated Weather Observing System (AWOS) Replacement A-1 
City Project No.: AI2206.401; FAA Project No.: 3-04-0008-033-2023 
Rev. 10/23/23 

PROJECT SPECIFIC 
SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

 
 
4.2.7 Aerial Construction Photography 
General Conditions Section 4 Subsections 4.2.7.1 & 4.2.7.2 are not applicable to this project. 
 
4.2.8 Government Approvals and Permits 
General Conditions Section 4 Subsection 4.2.8.1, City permit fees will be paid internally by the 
City and all other fees will be the responsibility of the Contractor. 
 
Subletting of Agreement 
Contractor must perform, with his own organization, work amounting to not less than 50 percent 
of the total Agreement cost. 
 
Failure to submit Subcontractor’s List Form, demonstrating self-performance not less than 50 
percent of the total Agreement cost, will cause the bid to be deemed non-responsive.  
 
Bidders should contact the Arizona Registrar of Contractors for information on license 
requirements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DonnaRy
Highlight

DonnaRy
Text Box



EXHIBIT B 

Project Name: Automated Weather Observing System (AWOS) Replacement B-1 
City Project No.: AI2206.401; FAA Project No.: 3-04-0008-033-2023 
Rev. 10/23/23 

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approved date: July 20, 2022 
 



Revised: 7/20/2022  GC-2 of 75 

 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
SECTION 1 - SCOPE OF THESE GENERAL CONDITIONS ............................................................................... 3 

SECTION 2 - GENERAL DEFINITIONS ............................................................................................................ 3 

SECTION 3 - STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND DETAILS ........................................................................... 7 

SECTION 4 - CONT R ACT OR’S R ES PONS IBILIT IES FOR CONST RUCT ION SE RVIC ES .................................. 8 

SECTION 5 - CITY RESPONSIBILITIES .......................................................................................................... 27 

SECTION 6 - AGREEMENT TIME ................................................................................................................... 29 

SECTION 7 - AGREEMENT PRICE .................................................................................................................. 35 

SECTION 8 - PAYMENT ................................................................................................................................. 35 

SECTION 9 - CHANGES TO THE AGREEMENT ............................................................................................. 40 

SECTION 10 - SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION ...................................................................................... 43 

SECTION 11 - INSURANCE AND BONDS ..................................................................................................... 44 

SECTION 12 - INDEMNIFICATION ............................................................................................................... 49 

SECTION 13 - DISPUTE RESOLUTION .......................................................................................................... 49 

SECTION 14 - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS ............................................................................................ 50 

SECTION 15 - PROVISIONS APPLICABLE SOLELY TO GMP AND COST-BASED AGREEMENTS, CHANGE 
ORDERS, AND JOB ORDERS ......................................................................................................................... 57 

SECTION 16 - PROVISIONS APPLICABLE SOLELY TO JOB ORDER AGREEMENTS (JOC) ........................ 61 

SECTION 17 - PROVISIONS APPLICABLE SOLELY TO PRE-CONSTRUCTION SERVICES FOR 
CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK .......................................................................................................... 66 

SECTION 18 - APPENDICES ...................................................................................................... APP-1 of 30 

 

Appendix 1 – Policy Statement for Calculating Delays and Damages 
Appendix 2 – Cost Reduction Incentive Proposals for Design Bid Build Agreements  
Appendix 3 – Contractor’s Affidavit Regarding Settlement of Claims 
Appendix 4 – Forms of Performance Bond 
Appendix 5 – Forms of Payment Bond 
Appendix 6 – Dispute Resolution 
Appendix 7 – Certificate of Completion 
Appendix 8 – Construction Sign Detail 
Appendix 9 – Cost of the Work (Applicable solely to Construction Manager at Risk and 
Job Order Contracting) 
Appendix 10 Landscape Establishment Period 

 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-3 of 75  

SECTION 1 - SCOPE OF THESE GENERAL CONDITIONS 

These General Conditions encompass provisions that apply, and are incorporated into all 
construction Agreements entered into by the City of Chandler, unless otherwise specifically excluded in 
the executed Agreement.  
 
SECTION 2 - GENERAL DEFINITIONS 
 
Allowance :  A specific amount for a specific item of Work, if any, that City agrees has not been sufficiently 
designed, detailed, or selected (including design changes from 90% to 100% as authorized by and at 
the discretion of the City) at the time the Agreement Price is agreed to for Contractor to provide a definitive 
price.  
 
Alternate Systems Evaluations or Alternative Analysis:  Alternatives for design, means and methods or 
other scope considerations that are evaluated using value analysis principles and have the potential to 
reduce construction costs while still delivering a quality and functional Project that meets City 
requirements. 
 
Change Order:  A written instrument issued after execution of the Agreement Documents signed by 
City and Contractor, stating their agreement upon all of the following: the addition, deletion or revision 
in the scope of services or deliverables; the amount of the adjustment to the Agreement Price, the 
extent of the adjustment to the Agreement Time, or modifications of other agreement terms. The 
Agreement Price and the Agreement Time may be changed only by Change Order. 
 
Consultant:  Person or firm that provides professional services. 
 
City (Owner or OWNER):  City of Chandler, a municipal corporation, with whom Contractor has entered 
into the Agreement and for whom the Work or Services are to be provided pursuant to the Agreement(s). 
 
Contingent Bid Items:  This is a minor bid item which is likely, but not certain, to occur during the course 
of work. If the Engineer determines that this work is required, the Contractor will accomplish the work 
and payment will be made based on the contingent unit bid price included in the proposal. Since the 
quantity listed in the proposal is primarily for bid comparison, the amount of work required by the 
Engineer may vary materially from this. 
 
Agreement:  The written agreement executed between City and Contractor, including all of the Agreement 
Documents. 
 
Agreement Documents:  The documents which together form the Agreement between City and 
Contractor, as identified in Article 2 of the Agreement, or are otherwise incorporated into the 
Agreement, including the Agreement, the exhibits thereto, these General Conditions, any Notice to 
Proceed, and any Job Order (if applicable), the Plans and Specifications, Project Schedule, written 
and properly executed Change Orders, MAG Specifications and City’s amendments thereto, and any 
other documents so designated in the Agreement. 
 
Agreement Price:  The agreed-upon price to be paid to Contractor for full, timely, and acceptable 
completion of the Work or Services under the terms of the Agreement. 
 
Agreement Time(s):  The number of calendar days or the dates related to the applicable phase, 
Substantial Completion, or Final Acceptance as stated in Agreement Documents. Agreement Time starts 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-4 of 75  

with the Notice to Proceed (NTP) and ends with Final Acceptance. The Agreement Time is set forth in 
the Agreement and is based upon the Project Schedule agreed to by City in writing. 
 
Contractor:  The person or business association with whom City has entered into an agreement for 
construction related Work or Services in relation to the Project at issue.  
 
Contractor Payment Request:  The form that is accepted by City and used by Contractor in requesting 
progress payments or final payment and which must include such supporting documentation as is 
required by the Agreement Documents or City. 
 
Construction Budget:  The City’s budget for construction of the Project. 
 
Construction Documents:  The Plans, Specifications, and Drawings prepared and issued by the Design 
Professional and approved by City for construction, meaning the documents are sealed by the 
Design Professional (as required), acceptable for permitting and incorporated into the Agreement by 
this reference. All amendments and modifications to the Construction Documents must be approved in 
writing by City prior to incorporation into the Agreement. 
 
Cost of the Work:  The term Cost of the Work will mean costs necessarily incurred by Contractor in the 
proper performance of the Work. Such costs will be at rates not higher than the standard paid at the 
place of the Project except with prior consent of City. 
 
Critical Path Method (CPM):  A scheduling technique which identifies the logical sequence of the activities 
occurring in a Construction Project, the anticipated time required to complete each activity in the 
Project, and the activities that must be completed on schedule to finish the Project within the anticipated 
time. Typically, activities are arranged in a network that shows both activities and their dependencies. 
CPM is also used as a management technique which enables contracting parties to predict when 
activities may occur so that resources can be effectively used and limitations can be identified.  
 
Critical Path:  Critical Path is the sequence of project network activities which add up to the longest overall 
duration. Once established in the Project Schedule, the Critical Path for the Project must not be 
changed without prior written approval of City. 
 
Day:  Calendar day(s) unless otherwise specifically stated in the Agreement Documents. 
 
Design Professional:  The qualified, licensed person, firm or corporation who furnishes design and 
construction administration services required under the Agreement Documents. These services may 
include, but are not limited to: development of Construction Drawings and Documents, review of 
Contractor Submittal(s), review of and response to Requests for Information, approval and 
certification of progress payment applications, construction administration, and construction 
agreement close out. 
 
Differing Site Conditions:  Concealed or latent physical conditions or subsurface conditions at the Site 
that, (i) materially differ from the conditions indicated in the Agreement Documents, or (ii) are of an 
unusual nature, differing materially from the conditions ordinarily encountered and generally recognized 
as inherent in the Work at the general area of the Site. Caliche, rock, hard-digging or sandy/silty soil 
encountered on a project is not considered a “Differing Site Condition.” 
 
Drawings (Plans):  Documents, which visually represent the scope, extent and character of the Work to 
be furnished and performed by Contractor during the construction phase and which have been prepared 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-5 of 75  

or approved by the Design Professional and City.  These documents include Drawings that have reached 
a sufficient state of completion and released by Design Professional solely for the purposes of review 
and use in performing constructability or bid-ability reviews by Contractor and in preparing cost 
estimates (e.g. Master Planning and Programming, Schematic Design, Design Development, and 
Construction Drawings), but “not for construction.” Shop Drawings are not Drawings as so defined. 
 
Final Acceptance:  The City’s acceptance of the facility or project from the Contractor after all Work is 
completed, tested, and inspected in accordance with the Agreement requirements. Final Acceptance 
results in a Letter of Acceptance (LOA). 
 
Fixed Price:  A fixed price or amount for an Agreement Price, Scope of Work, materials, or other item 
under an Agreement, Change Order, or other agreement, which City agrees, in writing, to pay instead 
of the actual cost.  
 
Float:  The number of Days by which an activity can be delayed without lengthening the Critical Path and 
extending the Agreement Time. Unless otherwise expressly agreed in writing, all Float belongs to City. 
 
Laws, Regulations, or Legal Requirements:  Any and all applicable laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, 
codes and orders applicable to the Project of any and all governmental bodies, agencies, authorities 
and courts having jurisdiction and any applicable provisions of the Development Agreement for the 
Project (if any), including, without limitation, those provisions relating to the design and construction 
of the Project. 
 
Line Item:  The individual elements of Work identified on a bid or other schedule and associated with a 
price or a unit price and quantity particular to that individual element of the Work. Also refers to 
individual items of work within the Schedule of Values. 
 
Liquidated Damages:  Designated damages for the City to collect as compensation upon a specific breach 
(example: late delivery). 
 
Long-Lead Item:  Long-lead item refers to the equipment, product, or system that is identified at the 
earliest stage of a project to have a delivery time long enough to affect directly the Critical Path/the overall 
lead time of the project. 
 
MAG:  The Maricopa Association of Governments. 
 
MAG Specifications:  The most current version of the Uniform Standard Specifications for Public Works 
Construction published by MAG. 
 
MAG Standard Details:  The most current version of the Uniform Standard Details as published by MAG. 
 
Minor change:  A change in the Work having no impact on cost or time or the City-approved design intent, 
as determined by City. 
 
Notice to Proceed (NTP):  A written notice given by City to Contractor fixing the date on which 
Contractor will start to perform Contractor’s obligations under the Agreement. 
 
Project:  The Project specified in the Agreement (including a Job Order). 
 
Project Manager:  The Project Manager designated in Article 1 of the Agreement, or any successor thereto 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-6 of 75  

designated by City. The Project Manager has the authority to act on behalf of City, as delineated and 
limited by the Agreement Documents and applicable law. And City will communicate with Contractor 
through the Project Manager. However, the Project Manager has no authority to bind City or City 
Council in contravention of any City code, State or Federal statute or regulation, or these General 
Conditions. 
 
Project Schedule:  The schedule for the completion of the Project agreed to and required by City. 
 
Project Specific Conditions:  Additional conditions which apply to the specific Project and Scope of Work 
which are set forth in Exhibit D of the Agreement. 
 
Project Team:  The Project Team consisting of the Design Professional, Contractor, Project Manager, and 
such others as City may designate. 
 
Punch List:  The list initially prepared by Contractor pursuant to the Agreement Documents, reviewed 
and supplemented by the Project Manager (and at the sole option of the Project Manager, the Design 
Professional) and approved by City containing items of incomplete work not impacting Substantial 
Completion, if allowed for under the Agreement, and to be completed or corrected by Contractor after 
Substantial Completion and before Final Acceptance in accordance with the Agreement Documents. 
 
Quality Assurance (QA) Testing:  Testing performed to verify the accuracy and applicability of the QC 
testing results and to ascertain that the materials installed meet the specified levels of quality in 
accordance with the Agreement Documents. 
 
Quality Control (QC) Testing:  Testing performed to assure that the materials installed comply with the 
requirements in the Agreement Documents. 
 
Requests for Information (RFIs):  Formal written request from Contractor to City or Design Professional 
for the Project seeking clarification or additional information needed for Contractor to properly 
complete the Work or Services under the Agreement. City may require RFI’s to be submitted on a specific 
form or in a specified format. 
 
Schedule of Values (SOV):  The specified document prepared by Contractor, and approved and accepted 
by City, which divides the Agreement Price into pay items, such that the sum of all pay items equals 
the Agreement Price for the construction phase Work, or for any portion of the Work having a separate 
specified Agreement Price. 
 
Scope of Work:  The scope of work agreed to or required by City and incorporated into the Agreement as 
Exhibit A. 
 
Shop Drawings:  All drawings, diagrams, schedules and other data specifically prepared for the Work 
by Contractor or a Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor, manufacturer, supplier or distributor to 
illustrate some portion of the Work. 
 
Site:  The land or premises on which the Project is located. 
 
Specifications:  The part(s) of the Agreement Documents for the construction phase consisting of written 
technical descriptions of materials, equipment, construction systems, standards and workmanship as 
applied to the Work and certain administrative details applicable thereto. Where specified, the Project 
must be constructed using the current Uniform Standard Specifications and Details for Public Works 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-7 of 75  

Construction as furnished by the Maricopa Association of Governments, as amended by City. 
 
Subconsultant:  A person, firm or corporation having an Agreement with Consultant/Contractor to 
furnish services required as its independent professional associate or consultant with respect to the 
Project. 
 
Subcontractor:  An individual or firm having a direct Agreement with Contractor or any other individual or 
firm having an Agreement with the aforesaid contractors at any tier, who undertakes to perform a part 
of pre-construction services or construction phase Work at the Site for which Contractor is responsible. 
Subcontractors must be selected through the Subcontractor selection process described in the 
Agreement Documents, if any. 
 
Substantial Completion:  The date when the City determines that the Work (or separable units of Phases 
as provided in the Agreement Documents) is essentially and satisfactorily complete in accordance with 
the Agreement Documents such that the Project is ready for use by the City for its intended purpose, 
opening to the general public, full occupancy or use by City (including, without limitation, all separate 
units, or rooms, facilities, access, income-generating areas, and all areas serving the general public, as 
applicable, must be ready for full operation without material inconvenience or discomfort), including, to 
the extent applicable to the Work, the following: all materials, equipment, systems, controls, features, 
facilities, accessories, and similar elements are installed in the proper manner and in operating 
condition, inspected, and approved; surfaces have been painted; masonry and concrete cleaned with 
any sealer or other finish applied; utilities and systems connected and functioning; site work 
complete; permanent heating, ventilation, air conditioning, vertical transportation, and other systems 
properly operating with proper controls; lighting and electrical systems installed, operable and 
controlled; paving completed, signage installed, and other work as applicable, has been performed to 
a similar state of essential and satisfactory completion. 
 
Supplier:  A manufacturer, fabricator, distributor, or vendor having a direct Agreement with Contractor 
or with any Subcontractor to furnish materials or equipment to be incorporated in the construction 
phase Work by Contractor or any Subcontractor. 
 
Total Float:  Number of Days by which pre-construction services or construction phase Work or any part 
of the same may be delayed without necessarily extending a pertinent Agreement Time or schedule 
milestone in the Project Schedule. 
 
Work:  The entire completion of construction or the various separately identifiable parts thereof, 
required to be furnished during the construction phase. Work includes and is the result of performing 
or furnishing labor and furnishing and incorporating materials, resources and equipment into the 
construction, and performing or furnishing services and documents as required by the Agreement 
Documents for the construction phase. 
 
Writing:  Typing, printing, photography and other modes of representing or reproducing words in a 
visible form, including email, and expressions. 
 
SECTION 3 - STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND DETAILS 

3.1 City operates under the latest revision of the MAG Specifications and MAG Standard 
Detai ls  as amended by City.  City’s current amendment to the MAG Specifications, part of 
the City’s Unified Development Manual, may be found and downloaded from City’s website 
at http://www.chandleraz.gov.   



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-8 of 75  

3.2 Copies of the MAG Specifications and MAG Standard Details are available at the 

Maricopa Association of Governments office, 302 N. 1st Avenue, Suite 300, Phoenix, 
Arizona.  They may also be downloaded from their website at: 
http://www.azmag.gov/Newsroom/Publications 

3.3 The MAG Specifications and Standard Details and City’s amendments thereto are 
incorporated into the Agreement by this reference. 

 
SECTION 4 - CONT R ACT OR’S R ES PONS IBILIT IES FOR CONST RUCT ION SE RVIC ES  

4.1 GENERAL 

4.1.1 Contractor must construct the Work in accordance with the Agreement Documents and as 
outlined in Exhibit A of the Agreement to the satisfaction of City, exercising the degree of 
professional care, skill, diligence, quality and judgment that a professional construction 
manager engaged, experienced and specializing in the construction management of 
construction and facilities of similar scope, function, size, quality, complexity and detail in 
urban areas throughout the United States comparable to Chandler, Arizona would exercise 
at such time, under similar conditions. Contractor must, at all times, perform the Work in 
conformance with sound and generally accepted engineering principles and construction 
management and construction contracting practices. 

4.1.2 If Contractor observes errors, discrepancies or omissions in the Agreement Documents, 
Contractor must promptly notify the Design Professional and City and request clarification. 
If Contractor, with the exercise of reasonable care, should have recognized such error, 
inconsistency, omission, or difference and fails to report it to City, and if Contractor 
proceeds with the Work affected by such observed errors, discrepancies or omissions, 
without receiving such clarifications, Contractor does so at its own risk and will be liable to 
City for damages resulting from proceeding without clarification. 

4.1.3 Project Team and agents of each of them, testing agencies and governmental agencies with 
jurisdictional interests will be provided access to the Work at reasonable times for their 
observation, inspection, and testing.  Contractor must provide proper and safe conditions 
for such access. 

4.1.4 Contractor must comply with, and require all Subcontractors to comply with, the Arizona 
Contractors’ license laws, including all requirements with respect to being duly registered 
and licensed. 

4.1.5 Contractor must ensure that all employees performing any Work for which Contractor is 
responsible have a legal right to live and work in the United States. In addition, all 
compensation of any such employee must meet all applicable requirements of the Fair Labor 
Standards Act (FLSA) and Federal Minimum Wage laws. 

4.1.6 Contractor must comply with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (IRCA).  
Contractor understands and acknowledges the applicability of the IRCA activities.  
Contractor agrees to comply with the IRCA while performing their work and to permit City 
inspection of Contractor personnel records to verify such compliance. 

4.1.7 Pursuant to MAG Specifications §§ 107.4, Contractor must report immediately any discovery 
of archeological ruins or artifacts.  Excavation must stop immediately so that City can decide 
on the pertinent steps to follow such discovery. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-9 of 75  

4.1.8 All property owners that may be affected by the proposed construction activities must be 
notified of the scope, duration of the construction activities and possible interference with 
their day-to-day activities by Contractor prior to start of construction.  In addition, individual 
residential or commercial interferences, such as driveway restrictions, water outages, and 
all other Work adjacent to residence/business, require 48-hour notification in advance of 
specific adjoining Work.  Notification may be through door hangers or other procedures 
approved by the City. 

4.1.9 Access must be maintained to adjacent properties at all times during construction. Where 
property has more than one point of access, no more than one access will be restricted or 
closed at any one time. Access to adjacent private driveways will be maintained during all 
non-working hours. 

4.1.10 Contractor must furnish and erect construction signs in accordance with Project 
Specifications. The signs must be professionally prepared and subject to approval by City, 
must be maintained by Contractor for the duration of the project, and must be removed by 
Contractor during the final project clean up.  

4.1.11 The number of signs required, the size, shape, installation requirements and information to 
be included for construction signs is established on the detail sheet, provided, however, 
signs must be a minimum of 4 foot by 8 foot and must be installed so that the bottom of 
the sign is at least 4 foot above grade.  No direct payment will be made for furnishing and 
erecting construction signs. The cost thereof must be included in other items for which 
direct payment is made. Sign locations will be determined by City. 

4.1.12 All required construction signs must be installed by Contractor within 7 Days of Notice to 
Proceed.   

4.1.13 The Work to be accomplished under these Agreement Documents has been designed for 
City by a Design Professional retained by City for this purpose.  It is understood that normal 
construction Administration for the purpose of interpretation of the Agreement Documents 
is provided by City. Should any services of the Design Professional be required to assist in 
the corrections of errors or omissions by Contractor, or services of the Design Professional 
be required because of changes in structure or equipment where Contractor has requested 
approval of substitute methods or material, or any other items detailed herein below, those 
services will be provided by the Design Professional at the standard hourly rates previously 
negotiated with City and must be paid for by the Contractor. 

4.1.14 Contractor must reimburse City for costs incurred by the Design Professional for additional 
services to the Project through no fault of City or the Design Professional including, but not 
limited to, the following conditions: 

a. Additional Site visits, investigations, inspections, design work or reports by 
the Design Professional which are required due to damages to existing 
facilities or completed Work caused by the Contractor in his performance, 
Contractor’s negligence, or Contractor’s Work which is rejected as defective 
or as failing to conform to the Agreement Documents; 

b. Design Professional construction phase services rendered on the project 
during the time the project remains incomplete after the Agreement date of 
final completion will be charged to Contractor at a rate previously negotiated 
City; and 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-10 of 75  

c. All retesting required due to the failure of Contractor’s Work to meet the 
requirements of the Agreement Documents will be at Contractor’s expense.  
All standby and travel time by the City’s testing lab, the Design Professional 
or City due to Contractor’s inability to be prepared for testing at the agreed 
upon time will be at the Contractor’s expense. 

4.1.15 City may withhold from any payment otherwise due to Contractor any amounts necessary 
to pay the Design Professional for such additional services as provided herein above.   

4.1.16 Contractor will not be required to bear additional costs incurred by City due to errors by the 
Design Professional. 

4.2  CONTRACTOR’S PRE-AGREEMENT AND PRE-WORK DELIVERABLES 

4.2.1 Prior to award of the Agreement, Contractor must execute Agreement and deliver to City.  
Failure to do so may delay Agreement award.  Contractor must a l s o  provide to City its 
Contractor’s License classification and number and its Federal Tax I.D. number. 

4.2.2 Before beginning any Work under the Agreement, Agreement must be fully executed by 
City.  

4.2.3 After Agreement award, City will issue to Contractor an award letter.  At that time Contractor 
must deliver to City such bonds and certificates of insurance with endorsements in such 
amounts (and other evidence of insurance requested by City) required under Section 11 of 
these General Conditions, and as the Agreement requires. 

4.2.4 As evidence of Workmen’s Compensation Insurance, Contractor must, upon request, 
provide a letter of certification from the Industrial Commission of Arizona that Contractor 
is insured by the State Compensation Fund or is an authorized self-insurer or a certificate 
of insurance issued by an insurance company authorized by the Insurance Department 
of Arizona to write Workmen’s Compensation and Occupational Disease Insurance in the 
State of Arizona. 

4.2.5 Within 10 Days of the date of the executed Agreement letter issued by City, Contractor must 
submit to City for review and acceptance the following items: 

4.2.5.1 Comprehensive construction Project Schedule including a Critical Path Method (CPM) 
diagram schedule as described in Section 6.2.  Project Schedule must be in Microsoft Project 
standard file format.  Within 10 Days of receipt of City’s comments, Contractor must make 
all required corrections, adjustments, and additions to complete the Project Schedule and 
resubmit to City for review.   

4.2.5.2 Preliminary schedule of submittals and Shop Drawings.  Within 10 Days of receipt of City’s 
comments, Contractor must submit the corrected and completed schedule of Shop 
Drawings submissions for approval.  Contractor’s schedule of Shop Drawings and sample 
submittals will be acceptable to City if it provides a workable arrangement for reviewing and 
processing the required submittals.   

4.2.5.3 Schedule of Values in a form specified by City reflecting the subcontracts and other 
categories that will be used to submit Pay Applications for the Work. The total amount of 
the Schedule of Values must not be greater than the Agreement Price. The Schedule of 
Values will be reviewed at the Pre-Construction Conference and revised by Contractor within 
10 Days after Pre-Construction Conference in response to comments and questions from 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-11 of 75  

City. Once accepted by City in writing, the Schedule of Values for the Project must not be 
changed without the prior written approval of City. 

4.2.6 Video Recording Requirement. Prior to performing any Work, Contractor must document 
the existing conditions of the Site, all other areas where Work will occur and all adjacent 
areas that may be impacted by the Work via digital video format.  Contractor must video 
record and index all areas, features, buildings and other public and private improvements 
that could potentially be impacted by the Work.  Video recording must be coordinated with 
City.  When video recording private property, Contractor must also coordinate the video 
recording with the private property owner, if possible.  Contractor must provide City with a 
copy of said digital video format prior to performing any Work. 

4.2.7 Aerial Drone Construction Photography. 

4.2.7.1 If Agreement duration is greater than 90 calendar days, Contractor must engage a 
professional unmanned aerial vehicle (UAV) aerial pilot to photograph the Site prior to 
construction mobilization, at three-month intervals during construction, and following final 
inspection.  Drone camera specifications must meet the following minimum requirements:  

a. 1-inch CMOS 

b. Pixels: 20M 

c. FOV 84  8.8 mm/24 mm (35 mm format equivalent) f/2.8-f/11 auto focus at 1 m-   

d. For photographing: 16.9 Aspect Ratio: 5472x3078 

e. For video shooting: MP4/MOV/H.264 

f. FHD: 1920x1080 120p @100Mbps 

g. File format: High Definition (HD) JPEG for digital photos and HD MPEG 4 for 
digital video. 

h. All metadata to be recorded including GPS data and preserved with photographs 
provided.   

 
Interval JPEG 
3 month intervals At an altitude (AGL) between 

70-90 ft. 
3 month intervals Images to be taken every 50-

100 ft. to be determined based 
on project scope. 

4.2.7.2 Drone photos to be taken in sequential geographical order and then organized and provided in 
the same manner unless otherwise specified.   

4.2.7.3 Photos to be provided digitally via an online file share service and/or by a USB drive to contractor. 

4.2.7.4 Drone pilots to obey ALL local (city, county, state) UAV regulations as well as FAA UAV 
guidelines including, but not limited to, conducting all flights during daylight hours, not exceeding 
maximum altitude ceilings (depending on area), not flying over people, yielding to other aircraft. 

4.2.7.5 Drone pilots must fly drone within visual line of sight (VSOL) and have visual spotter when 
needed. Drone pilots only to operate in favorable weather conditions when minimum visibility is 
3 miles or greater. 

4.2.7.6 Drone pilots to conduct a preflight checklist and visually inspect the entire flight path prior to flying 
to ensure a safe flight. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-12 of 75  

4.2.7.7 Airspace Authorizations. Operations in Class G airspace are allowed without air traffic control 
(ATC) permission. Operations in Class B, C, D and E airspace need ATC authorization. Drone 
pilots to schedule each flight in advance and based on airspace if required will notify nearby 
airports/control towers, etc. 

4.2.8 Government Approvals and Permits. 

4.2.8.1 Contractor must obtain all necessary permits for the Work and pay all applicable fees, 
unless otherwise noted on the Plans and in the Specifications. City permit fees will be paid 
internally by City. For bidding purposes, an allowance for all permit fees is included in the 
bid schedule under the item “allowance for permit fees.” The Contractor will be paid for 
the actual cost of the permit fees upon submitting a receipt showing the fee Contractor 
has paid. Excluded from the above allowance are items such as all costs incurred by the 
Contractor in securing the permit except for the actual permit fee established by the 
agency, cost for all shutdowns or outages, cost for pole bracing, cost of permits for 
construction water, cost of construction water, cost for any additional insurance 
requirements, cost for any licenses, and other similar type costs. Contractor is specifically 
notified of the need to obtain the necessary environmental permits or file the necessary 
environmental and regulatory permit notices. 

4.2.8.2 Copies of all permits and the associated notices must be provided to City prior to starting 
the permitted activity. 

4.3 PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE 

4.3.1 Prior to the commencement of any Work, City will schedule a Pre-Construction Conference. 

4.3.2 The purpose of this Conference is to establish a working relationship between Contractor, 
the utility firms, and various City agencies. The agenda will include critical elements of the 
Work schedule, submittal schedule, cost breakdown of major lump sum items, Payment 
Requests and processing, coordination with the involved utility firms, and emergency 
telephone numbers for all representatives involved in the course of construction. 

4.3.3 Minimum attendance by Contractor at any mandatory meeting with City must be (1) 
Contractor’s Representative, who is authorized to execute and sign documents on behalf 
of the firm, (2) Contractor’s on-site Superintendent, and (3) Contractor’s Safety Office, 
or other employee responsible for safety. 

4.4 PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK (INCLUDING FIELD MEASUREMENTS, 
SUBCONTRACTORS, AND SUPPLIERS) 

4.4.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Agreement Documents to be the responsibility of City or a 
separate Contractor, Contractor must provide through itself or Subcontractors the 
necessary supervision, labor, inspection, testing, start-up, material, equipment, machinery, 
temporary utilities and other temporary facilities to permit Contractor to complete the 
Work consistent with the Agreement Documents. 

4.4.2 Contractor must perform all construction activities efficiently and with the requisite 
expertise, skill and competence to satisfy the requirements of the Agreement Documents. 
Contractor must at all times exercise complete and exclusive control over the means, 
methods, safety, sequences and techniques of construction. 

4.4.3 Contractor’s Superintendent must be present at the Site at all times that material Work 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-13 of 75  

under this Agreement is taking place. Contractor’s Superintendent or designee must be 
present at the Site at all times any other Work under this Agreement is taking place.  
Superintendent must not be replaced without written notice to City.  Whenever the 
Superintendent is not present at a particular part of the Work where the City or Design 
Professional may desire to inform the Contractor relative to interpretation of the Drawings 
and Specifications or to disapproval or rejection of materials or Work performed, the City 
or Design Professional may provide such information in writing to the foreman or other 
worker in charge of the particular part of the Work in reference to which the information is 
given.  Information so given will be as binding as if given to the Superintendent. 

4.4.4 All elements of the Work must be under the direct supervision of a foreman or his 
designated representative on the Site who must have the authority to take actions required 
to properly carry out that particular element of the Work. 

4.4.5 Working Hours.  Except in connection with the safety or protection of persons or the Work 
or property at the Site or adjacent thereto, and except as otherwise indicated, all Work at 
the Site must be performed during regular working hours, and Contractor will not permit 
overtime work or the performance of Work on Saturday, Sunday or any legal holiday without 
City’s written consent given after prior written notice to City.  If it will become absolutely 
necessary to perform Work at night or on Saturdays, Sundays or legal holidays, the City 
must be informed at least 24 hours in advance of the beginning of performance of such 
Work.  Only such Work will be done at night as can be done satisfactorily as determined by 
the City.  Good lighting and all other necessary facilities for carrying out and inspecting the 
Work must be provided and maintained at all points where such Work is being done.  
Further, unless such non-normal work hours are performed at City’s request or required by 
the Agreement Documents, Contractor must pay to City all additional costs incurred by City 
by reason of such non-normal working hours.  Expenses incurred by City for overtime 
compensation must be reimbursed by Contractor as follows: (i) City staff at the rate set forth 
in current City Fee Schedule as published on City website, (ii) Design Professional and staff 
at the standard hourly rates previously negotiated with City, and (iii) all others at actual cost 
plus ten percent administrative overhead.  Such costs may be deducted by City from any 
payments due to Contractor.  Provided, however, if overtime work or work during other 
than normal hours is at the request of City and not due to Contractor delay, City will pay the 
cost of City overtime expenses. 

4.4.6 Where the Agreement Documents require that a particular product be installed or applied 
by an applicator approved by the manufacturer, it is Contractor’s responsibility to ensure 
the Subcontractor employed for such work is approved by the manufacturer.  All materials 
and equipment must be stored, applied, installed, connected, erected, used, cleaned and 
conditioned in accordance with the instructions of the applicable manufacturer, fabricator, 
supplier or distributor, except as otherwise provided in the Agreement Documents; but no 
provisions of any such instructions will be effective to impose on City of Design Professional 
responsibility for the means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of 
construction or for safety precautions incident thereto. 

4.4.7 Before starting the Work, Contractor must carefully study and compare the various 
Plans, Drawings, other Agreement Documents, and Specifications relative to that portion 
of the Work, as well as the information furnished by City, must take field measurements of 
any existing conditions related to that portion of the Work and must observe any conditions 
at the Site affecting it. The exactness of grades, elevations, dimensions, or locations given 
on any Drawings, or the Work installed by other contractors, is not guaranteed by City. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-14 of 75  

4.4.8 Before ordering materials or doing Work, Contractor and each Subcontractor must verify 
measurements at the Site and will be responsible for the correctness of such 
measurements. No extra charge or compensation will be allowed because of differences 
between actual dimensions and the dimensions indicated on the Agreement Documents, 
including the Drawings. 

4.4.9 Ground Level Construction Photography. 

4.4.9.1 The Contractor must furnish progress photographs of the project.  The photographer 
selected by the Contractor must be approved by the City and must be either a commercial 
photographer or an individual experienced and equipped for such photography.   

4.4.9.2 The Contractor must deliver to City all photographs taken during that period with each 
application for payment.  If the current photographs do not accompany the application, the 
application will not be reviewed and will be returned to the Contractor as incomplete. 

4.4.9.3 Photographs must be identified by use of typewritten labels affixed to the back of the 
photograph.  The label must provide a description of the view, the direction from which the 
photograph was taken, the name of the project, City’s project number, the name of 
Contractor and the date of the photography.  The stationing must also be included for all 
pipeline installations.   

4.4.9.4 Photographs must be taken during the construction period and must be of aesthetic 
composition and depict the progress of the Work from the beginning of construction 
through and including the finished product.  City may vary the specified frequency so that 
significant progress or changes can be recorded on the photographs.  

4.4.10 Underground Facilities. 

4.4.10.1 The existence and number of facilities as shown on the Plans are estimated from 
information furnished by the particular utility.  Contractor is responsible for field verification 
and location of all utilities prior to the start of construction.  No field work will be allowed to 
start until Contractor has contacted Arizona 811 and all affected utilities have been located.  
In addition, Contractor must expose and physically locate all potentially conflicting utilities 
prior to construction.  The actual locations of the utilities must be compared to locations 
shown on the Plans and any required changes in alignment and grade must be made at the 
time of construction in consultation with Project Manager.  It is generally recognized and 
Contractor should anticipate that information from Arizona 811 or information from utility 
companies during project design, frequently fails to disclose all underground facilities.  The 
fact that more utility lines or other underground facilities are located in the Project Site than 
shown on the Project Plans does not constitute an “unforeseen Condition” and such 
undisclosed underground facilities do not differ materially from the conditions which 
Contractor should expect. The provisions of Sections 105.4, 105.6, 107.11 and 109.8.1 of the 
MAG Uniform Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction apply and are 
incorporated herein by this reference.   

4.4.10.2 Contractor is responsible for all coordination with utility companies.  The provisions of 
Sections 105.4, 105.6, 107.11 and 109.8.1 of the MAG Uniform Standard Specifications for 
Public Works Construction strictly apply and no additional compensation will be paid to 
Contractor for delays due to utility work on the project.  

4.4.11 Relocation of Existing Water Meters.  When a service line has been extended and a line 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-15 of 75  

setter installed in a meter box, City forces will re-install meter.  No compression fittings will 
be utilized. 

4.4.12 Water Turn-On or Turn-Off. 

4.4.12.1 Contractor must coordinate all water line turn-ons and turn-offs through the City.  
Application must be made to the Municipal Utility Division and Contractor must pay the 
established charges.  The City will close existing valves, but will not guarantee a bone-dry 
Shutdown. 

4.4.12.2 Contractor must notify all customers affected by the turn-off not less than 48 hours in 
advance.  Notification must be in writing, must give the reason for the turn-off and must 
give the estimated time and duration that water service will be interrupted. Contractor is 
also notified that water turn-off will not be permitted on the Day before and after 
Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. 

4.4.12.3 No direct payment will be made to Contractor for turn-ons or turn-offs. Costs associated 
therewith will be included in other items for which direct payment is made. 

4.4.13 Tests and Inspections. 

4.4.13.1 Contractor must give City timely (at a minimum, twenty-four hours) notice of readiness of 
the Work for all required inspections, tests or approvals.  Contractor must give timely notice 
to City in advance of backfilling or otherwise covering any part of the Work so that city 
representative may, if desired, observe such part of the Work before it is concealed.  
Whenever Contractor varies the normal period during which Work or any portion of it is 
carried on each Day, Contractor must give timely notice to City so that city representative 
may, if desired, be present to observe the Work in progress.  If Contractor fails to give such 
timely notice, any Work done in the absence of city representative will be subject to 
rejection.  If Contractor gives such notice to City, but then is not ready for such inspections, 
tests, approvals or observations at the time so noticed, Contractor must reimburse City for 
all costs incurred by the attendance of city representatives.   

4.4.13.2 If any law, ordinance, rule, regulation, code, or orders of any public body having jurisdiction 
requires any Work (or part thereof) to be inspected, tested or approved, Contractor (unless 
another party is specified in the Agreement Documents) must assume full responsibility 
therefor, pay all costs in connection therewith and furnish City the required certificates of 
inspection, testing, or approval. Contractor must also be responsible for and must pay all 
costs in connection with any inspection or testing required by the Specifications in 
connection with City's acceptance of a manufacturer, fabricator, supplier or distributor of 
materials or equipment proposed to be incorporated in the Work, or of materials or 
equipment submitted for approval prior to Contractor's purchase thereof for incorporation 
in the Work. The cost of all other inspections, tests and approvals required by the 
Agreement Documents will be paid by City (unless otherwise specified). 

4.4.13.3 All inspections, tests or approvals other than those required by law, ordinance, rule, 
regulation, code or order of any public body having jurisdiction must be performed by 
organizations acceptable to City and by the Design Professional if so specified. 

4.4.13.4 Neither observations by City, the Design Professional nor inspections, tests or approvals by 
others will relieve Contractor from their obligations to perform the Work in accordance with 
the Agreement Documents. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-16 of 75  

4.4.14 Uncovering Work.  If any Work that is to be observed, inspected, tested or approved is 
covered without written concurrence of City, it must, if requested by City be uncovered for 
observation. Unless Contractor has given City timely notice of Contractor's intention to 
cover such Work and City has not acted with reasonable promptness in response to such 
notice, Contractor must furnish all necessary labor, material and bear all the expenses of 
such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection and testing and of satisfactory 
reconstruction, including compensation for additional professional services, and an 
appropriate deductive Change Order will be issued. 

4.4.15 In all cases of interconnection of its Work with existing or other Work, Contractor must verify 
at the Site all dimensions relating to such existing or other Work.  Any errors due to 
Contractor’s failure to so verify all such grades, elevations, locations or dimensions must 
be promptly rectified by Contractor without any increase in the Agreement Price. Any 
design errors or omissions noted by Contractor during this review must be reported 
promptly to City. 

4.4.16 Contractor must establish and maintain all construction grades, lines, levels, and 
benchmarks, and will be responsible for accuracy and protection of same. This Work 
must be performed or supervised by a licensed civil engineer or surveyor in the State of 
Arizona. 

4.4.17 Contractor must photograph all buried piping of greater than four (4) inches in diameter 
prior to backfill.   

4.4.18 Contractor is responsible for the proper performance of the work of Subcontractors and any 
acts and omissions in connection with such performance. Nothing in the Agreement 
Documents is intended or deemed to create any legal or contractual relationship 
between City and any Subcontractor or Sub-Subcontractor, including but not limited to any 
third-party beneficiary rights. 

4.4.19 Contractor must coordinate the activities of all Subcontractors. Contractor must 
coordinate performance of the Work with City’s Public Works & Utilities Department and 
other departments or agencies within City. The Design Professional and other contractors 
or parties involved in the Project. If City performs other work on the Project or at the Site with 
separate contractors under City’s control, Contractor agrees to cooperate and coordinate 
its activities with those of such separate contractors so that the Project can be completed 
in an orderly and coordinated manner without unreasonable disruption. 

4.4.20 Contractor will not substitute or change any Subcontractor or Supplier without the prior 
written approval of City. Any substitute or replacement Subcontractor or Supplier must 
be required to meet the same qualifications and selection criteria and process as the 
original Subcontractor or Supplier. If a Subcontract/Supplier selection plan has been 
approved by City, Contractor will follow that plan unless otherwise approved by City in 
writing. 

4.4.21 Contractor must not change or replace any members of its Project team, including 
Contractor’s Representative, Project Manager, or Superintendent, without an explanation for 
the change being given to City, and receiving prior written approval of the change from City, 
which approval will not be unreasonably withheld. 

4.4.22 Subcontractors whose scope of work has a value greater than 15% of the total Agreement 
Price are required to furnish performance and payment bonds to Contractor, unless 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-17 of 75  

otherwise approved in writing by City. 

4.4.23 Contractor must comply with MAG Specification § 108.2 (E) unless otherwise specified in 
Agreement Documents. 

4.5 CONTROL OF THE PROJECT SITE 

4.5.1 Throughout all phases of construction, including suspension of Work, Contractor must keep 
the Site reasonably free from debris, trash and construction wastes to permit Contractor to 
perform its construction services efficiently, safely and without interfering with the use of 
adjacent land areas. Prior to Final Acceptance of the Work, or a portion of the Work, 
Contractor must remove all debris, trash, construction wastes, materials, equipment, 
machinery and tools arising from the Work or applicable portions thereof to permit City 
to occupy the Project or a portion of the Project for its intended use. 

4.5.2 Contractor must take whatever steps, procedures or means necessary to prevent dust 
nuisance due to construction operations. The dust control measures must be maintained 
at all times to the satisfaction of City and in accordance with the requirements of the 
Maricopa County Bureau of Air Pollution Control Rules and Regulations. 

4.5.3 Contractor must maintain Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and American National 
Standards Institute (ANSI) accessibility requirements during construction activities, 
including without limitation compliance with the 2010 regulations governing 
implementation of the ADA to the extent applicable. ADA and ANSI accessibility 
requirements must include, but not be limited to, parking, building access, areas of refuge, 
and emergency exit paths of travel. Contractor i s  responsible for the coordination of all 
Work to minimize disruption to residents and the public. 

4.5.4 Only materials and equipment used directly in the Work will be brought to and stored on the 
Site by Contractor. When equipment is no longer required for Work, it must be removed 
promptly from the Site. Protection of construction materials and equipment stored at the 
Site from weather, theft, damage and all other adversity is solely the responsibility of the 
Contractor. 

4.5.5 Contractor agrees all persons working on the Site must act at all times in the best interest 
of the Project and will comply with all applicable rules and regulations reasonably set forth 
by City related to the Site. Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything in this Agreement to 
the contrary, City may remove from the Site any individual who City deems in their 
reasonable discretion to be creating a disturbance or causing any problem on the Site. 

4.5.6 Contractor will be responsible to City for the acts and omissions of Contractor’s employees, 
Subcontractors and their agents and employees, and any other person performing any of 
the Work under an Agreement with Contractor, or claiming by, through or under Contractor, 
for all damages, losses, costs and expenses resulting from such acts or omissions. 

4.5.7 City may conduct criminal, drive history, and all other requested background checks of 
Contractor and Subcontractor personnel performing Work or who have access to City’s 
information, data, or facilities in accordance with City’s current background check policies, 
or the provisions of the Project Specific Conditions. Any officer, employee or agent that 
fails to background check must be replaced immediately. 

4.5.8 City will have a final authority, based upon security reasons: (i) to determine when 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-18 of 75  

security clearance of Contractor’s and Subcontractor’s personnel is required; (ii) to determine 
the nature of the security clearance, up to and including fingerprinting personnel; and 
(iii) to determine whether or not any individual or entity may provide Services or perform 
Work under the Agreement. 

4.5.9 If City objects to any personnel for any reasonable cause, then Contractor must, upon notice 
from City, remove such individual from the Project. 

4.6 PROJECT SAFETY 

4.6.1 The Project and all Work performed in relation thereto is governed by applicable provisions 
of the federal laws, including but not limited to, the latest amendments of the following: 

a. Williams-Steiger Occupational Safety & Health Act of 1970, Public Law, 91-596. 

b. Part 1910 and Part 1926 – Occupational Safety and Health Standards, 
Chapter XVII of Title 29, Code of Federal Regulations. 

c. Part 1518 – Safety and Health Regulations for Construction, Chapter XIII of 
Title 29, Code of Federal Regulations. 

4.6.2 Contractor is responsible for safety of the job Site for employees of Contractor as well 
as for members of the general public and others who may drive or walk through or be at 
the Site.  

4.6.3 Contractor recognizes the importance of performing the Work in a safe manner so as to 
prevent damage, injury or loss to: (i) all individuals at the Site, whether working or visiting; 
(ii) the Work, including materials and equipment incorporated into the Work and stored On-
Site or Off-Site; and (iii) all other property at the Site or adjacent thereto, including trees, 
shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, structures and utilities not designated for 
removal, relocation or replacement in the course of construction; and (iv) the owners or 
tenants of adjacent property and their patrons, employees and invitees. 

4.6.4 Contractor assumes responsibility for implementing and monitoring all safety precautions 
and programs related to the performance of the Work. 

4.6.5 Contractor must provide a “competent person’ as required by O.S.H.A regulations. The 
“competent person” must be identified at the Pre-Construction Conference with City 
advised in writing of any changes. 

4.6.6 The “competent person” must make routine daily inspections of the Site and must hold 
weekly safety meetings with Contractor’s personnel, Subcontractors and others as 
applicable. 

4.6.7 Contractor and Subcontractors must comply with all legal and regulatory requirements 
relating to safety, as well as any City specific safety requirements set forth in the Agreement 
Documents, provided that such City-specific requirements do not violate any applicable 
legal and regulatory requirements. 

4.6.8 Contractor will immediately report in writing any safety-related injury, loss, damage or 
accident arising from the Work to Project Manager and, to the extent mandated by Legal 
Requirements, to all government or quasi-government authorities having jurisdiction over 
safety-related matters involving the Project or the Work. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-19 of 75  

4.6.9 Contractor’s responsibility for safety under this Section is not intended in any way to 
relieve Subcontractors and Sub-Subcontractors of their own contractual and legal 
obligations and responsibility for (i) complying with all Legal Requirements, including those 
related to health and safety matters, and (ii) taking all necessary measures to implement 
and monitor all safety precautions and programs to guard against injury, losses, damages 
or accidents resulting from their performance of the Work. 

4.6.10 As between City and Contractor, Contractor is responsible to City for any and all the safety 
issues relating to the Work on the Project. Contractor must administer and manage the 
safety program. This will include, but not necessarily be limited to review of the safety 
programs of each Subcontractor. Contractor must monitor the establishment and 
execution of compliance with all applicable regulatory and advisory agency construction 
safety standards. Contractor’s responsibility for review, monitoring, and coordination of the 
Subcontractor’s safety programs will not extend to direct control over execution of the 
Subcontractors’ safety programs. Notwithstanding Contractor’s safety obligations to City, 
it is agreed and understood that each individual Subcontractor will remain controlling 
employer responsible for the safety programs and precautions applicable to its own work 
and the activities of other’s work in areas designated to be controlled by such Subcontractor 
for purposes of workers compensation insurance coverage. 

4.6.11 Nothing in this agreement will relieve Contractor of his responsibility to maintain traffic, 
structures, etc., as noted on the Plans, Specifications, and Project Specific Conditions. 
Contractor is responsible to provide all necessary shoring, bracing and trench support as 
is necessary to maintain traffic structures, etc., as stipulated in the Plans, Specifications, and 
Special Provisions. If the stability of adjoining building, walls, roadways, etc., is endangered 
by Contractor’s excavation, shoring, bracing, or under pinning must be provided as 
necessary to ensure project safety. Cost for shoring, bracing, underpinnings, and trench 
support will be included in the appropriate items listed in the Agreement Price, and no 
additional payment will be made for this work. 

4.7 MATERIALS QUALITY, SUBSTITUTIONS, AND SHOP DRAWINGS 

4.7.1 Quality Control and Quality Assurance Testing. 

4.7.1.1 All construction materials to be used or incorporated in the Project are subject to 
inspection, Quality Control & Quality Assurance Testing, and approval or rejection by City. 
Any material rejected by City must be removed immediately and replaced in an acceptable 
manner to City at no additional cost to City. When QC/QA tests indicate noncompliance 
with the Agreement Documents, retesting must be performed by the same testing 
laboratory that performed the tests that indicated noncompliance. 

4.7.1.2 The Contractor must establish, provide, and maintain an effective Quality Control Testing 
Program (QCTP). The Contractor must develop his own program or procure the services of 
a consultant. In either case, the party performing the tests must be currently certified by the 
National Bureau of Standards in the National Voluntary Laboratory Accreditation Program 
(NVLAP) for construction services or the AASHTO Accreditation Plan (AAP) for Soils, 
Asphalt and Concrete. The Contractor must provide all support necessary to perform QC 
and QA testing and sampling (i.e. shoring for testing trench backfill, backhoes, motor 
graders, loaders, etc. to facilitate testing and sampling). The City will perform the QA testing. 

4.7.1.3 The Contractor must submit a written QCTP to the City as a required submittal. The 
Contractor must not begin Work until the Quality Control Program has been reviewed and 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-20 of 75  

accepted by the City. Resumes of all personnel that will be associated directly or indirectly 
with the QCTP must be included. 

4.7.1.4 The QCTP must include, but not be limited to, on-site/field and laboratory testing of all 
material delivered to the Site and any existing materials or conditions pertinent to the 
project. 

4.7.1.5 All testing must be under the direction of a Professional Engineer registered in the State of 
Arizona, knowledgeable in Materials Testing. All “Test Report” forms must be stamped by 
said Engineer. 

4.7.1.6 The written QCTP will set forth the responsibilities of the engineer, project manager, 
supervisory personnel and each technician assigned to this project. Substitutions or 
replacement of personnel must require prior written approval by the City. All personnel must 
be proficient within their assigned duties and possess certification(s) commensurate with 
their position and responsibilities. The minimum certification(s) for each technician must 
be NICET Level II, Arizona Technical Testing Institute, American Concrete Institute, or other 
nationally recognized program applicable to the project and approved by the City of 
Chandler. The written QCTP must include a description of the required field and 
construction materials laboratory tests, including required frequencies that meet the 
minimums established herein. 

4.7.1.7 The Contractor must establish a system to record and report all material test results.  The 
daily test reports must include, but not be limited to: 

a. Test designation; 

b. Date of test; 

c. Name of tester; 

d. Location of test/sample (station and offset); 

e. Product suppliers and product codes (as applicable); 

f. Depth/elevation of test/sample; 

g. Test result; 

h. Control requirement(s); 

i. Cause of rejection (if applicable); 

j. Results of retests (if applicable); and 

k. Remedial action (if applicable). 

4.7.1.8 The Contractor must submit test results to the designated City representative.   

4.7.1.9 The Contractor must also submit a weekly report to the City summarizing the testing 
and construction activities completed by emailing the report to the email addresses noted 
above. All weekly reports must be submitted simultaneously to the Contractor and the 
City of Chandler. The report must include individual summary sheets for each utility line, 
structure, and portion of the pavement section. Cores must be numbered sequentially 
throughout the Project. Re-cores must reference the original core by number and must 
contain the averaged values for thickness and density. Total pavement thickness must be 
reported. Vertical location of tests for underground utilities must indicate the depth of the 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-21 of 75  

excavation at the location of the test (i.e., cut to flow line [if applicable], depth to bottom 
or top of pipe, etc.). Density tests must be numbered sequentially. If the minimum number 
of tests has not been performed per the written QCTP, this must be stated in the weekly 
summary report with an explanation of the circumstances. 

4.7.1.10 The City will maintain a copy of the Project test results and weekly reports in the Project 
file. In cases where quality control activities do not comply with the Agreement provisions, 
the City may: 

a. Order the Contractor to replace ineffective or unqualified quality control 
personnel. 

b. Order the Contractor to stop operations until appropriate corrective action is 
taken. 

4.7.1.11 Although minimum testing requirements are specified herein, the Contractor bears full 
responsibility for the quality of the materials and their installation and may elect to 
perform additional testing beyond the requirements set forth herein to ensure compliance. 

4.7.1.12 The Quality Control requirements contained in this Section are in addition to and separate 
from Quality Assurance Testing, which will be performed by the City of Chandler or its 
representative. If the Quality Assurance test results are not in agreement with the Quality 
Control test results, the Contractor will have the option to retain a third party consultant for 
referee tests. The third party consultant must meet the same requirements as the 
consultant performing the Quality Control Testing. The results of the third party will be 
binding. All cost incurred by the referee testing will be the Contractor’s expense. If the 
Contractor elects not to retain a third party for referee testing, the City of Chandler test 
results will prevail. 

4.7.1.13 Except as otherwise noted within this Section, Work or materials required by this Section are 
non- pay items. Per MAG Section 101, a non-pay item is an item of Work for which no 
separate payment will be made, the cost of which is to be included as an incidental cost 
for associated item(s) included on the Bid Schedule or Schedule of Values. 

4.7.2 Trade Names and Substitutions. 

4.7.2.1 Substitutions prior to bid will only be considered if in compliance with Arizona Revised 
Statute § 34-104. 

4.7.2.2 Contractor, if requested by City, must submit Samples or any additional information that 
may be necessary to evaluate the acceptability of the substitution. 

4.7.2.3 City will make the final decision and will notify Contractor in writing as to whether the 
substitution has been accepted or rejected. 

4.7.2.4 If City does not respond within 15 working days, Contractor must continue to perform the 
Work in accordance with the Agreement Documents and the substitution will be considered 
rejected. 

4.7.3 Shop Drawings. 

4.7.3.1 Contractor must prepare and submit Shop Drawings which show details of all Work to insure 
proper installation of the Work using those materials and equipment specified under the 
approved Plans and Specifications. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-22 of 75  

4.7.3.2 Contractor must submit a schedule of Shop Drawing submissions, which avoids bulk 
submissions to the extent reasonably possible, with the Project Schedule for City approval.  
The schedule of Shop Drawing submissions must include all of the items for which Shop 
Drawings are required by the Agreement Documents, including the Specifications. Unless 
otherwise noted, Shop Drawings will not be required for items specified or detailed in 
the Uniform Standard Specifications and Details or the Technical Specifications.  

4.7.3.3 Shop Drawings must be numbered consecutively for each Specification section and must 
accurately and distinctly present the following: 

a. All working and erection dimensions. 

b. Arrangements and sectional views. 

c. Necessary details, including complete information for making connections 
between work under this Agreement and work under other Agreements. 

d. Kinds of materials and finishes. 

e. Parts list and description thereof. 

4.7.3.4 Each Drawing or page must include: 

a. Project Name, City of Chandler Project Number and descriptions. 

b. Submittal date and space for revision dates. 

c. Identification of equipment, product or material. 

d. Name of Contractor and Subcontractor. 

e. Name of Supplier and Manufacturer. 

f. Relation to adjacent structure of material. 

g. Physical dimensions clearly identified. 

h. ASTM and Federal Specifications references. 

i. Identification of and justification for deviations from the Agreement 
Documents. 

j. Contractor’s stamp, initialed or signed, dated and certifying the review 
of submittal, certification of field measurements and compliance with 
Agreement. 

k. Location at which the equipment or materials are to be installed. 

4.7.3.5 Location will mean both physical location and location relative to other connected or 
attached material. City will return unchecked any submittal, which does not contain 
complete data on the Work and full information on related matters. 

4.7.3.6 Stock or standard drawings will not be accepted for review unless full identification and 
supplementary information is shown thereon in ink or typewritten form. 

4.7.3.7 Contractor must schedule, prepare and submit all Shop Drawings in accordance with a time-
table that will allow its suppliers and manufacturers sufficient time to fabricate, 
manufacture, inspect, test and deliver their respective products to the project Site in a 
timely manner so as to not delay the complete performance of the Work. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-23 of 75  

4.7.3.8 If the Shop Drawings show departures from the Agreement requirements, Contractor 
must make specific mention thereof in the Letter of Transmittal; otherwise review of such 
submittals by City will not constitute review of the departure. Review of the Drawings will 
constitute review of the specific subject matter for which the Drawings were submitted 
and not of any other structure, material, equipment, or apparatus shown on the Drawings. 

4.7.3.9 The review of Shop Drawings will be general and will not relieve Contractor of responsibility 
for the accuracy of such Drawings, nor for the proper fitting and construction of the Work, 
nor for the furnishing of materials or Work required by the Agreement. No construction 
called for by Shop Drawings will be initiated until such Drawings have been reviewed and 
approved by City. 

4.7.3.10 The procedure in seeking review of the Shop Drawings will be as follows: 

a. Contractor must submit complete sets of Shop Drawings and other 
descriptive data as specified in this Section. 

b. After Contractor’s submittal or resubmittal of Shop Drawings, if Contractor 
has submitted Shop Drawings in accordance with the City-approved 
submittal schedule, or upon resubmission, City will be provided with three 
(3) calendar weeks for review. Should City require additional review time 
above and beyond the three (3) calendar weeks, Contractor may ask for a 
time extension or monetary compensation, if they can present valid, factual 
evidence that actual damages were incurred by Contractor. City will 
determine the amount of the time extension or the monetary 
compensation to be awarded Contractor, if any, in accordance with City’s 
Policy Statement for Calculating Delays and Damages, Appendix 1. 

4.7.3.11 Contractor will be responsible for all extra costs incurred by City caused by Contractor’s 
failure to comply with the procedure outline above. 

4.7.4 Long Lead Time Items. Contractor must submit Shop Drawings, as required by the Engineer, 
on all long lead items to be furnished and installed as part of the project within 10 Days 
after the date of the executed Agreement letter issued by City. In addition, 
Contractor must order all long lead items to be furnished and installed as part of this 
Project within 3 Days after receiving approved Shop Drawings. For all long lead times for 
which Shop Drawings are not required, Contractor must order said long lead items within 
15 Days after the date of the executed Agreement letter issued by City. Within 2 Days 
after ordering long lead items, Contractor must supply copies of all purchase orders, 
along with an accurate delivery schedule from the supplier. 

4.7.5 Construction Water. If Contractor uses water from City’s water system for construction 
water, Contractor must obtain a fire hydrant meter from City of Chandler Utility Services 
(480-782-2280) and all construction water must be obtained through the hydrant meter. 
Contractor must pay all fees related to the hydrant meter and all water bills for construction 
water. All cost for meters and construction water will be included in the Agreement Price. 

4.8 PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS 

4.8.1 During the construction period, Contractor must maintain at the jobsite a full-size set of 
prints of the Construction Document Drawings and Shop Drawings for Project Record 
Document purposes. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-24 of 75  

4.8.2 Contractor must mark these Drawings to indicate the actual installation where the installation 
varies from the original Construction Documents. Contractor must give particular attention 
to information on elements that will be concealed, which would be difficult to identify or 
measure and record later. Items required to be marked include but are not limited to: 

a. Dimensional changes to the Drawings. 

b. Revisions to details shown on Drawings. 

c. Locations and depths of underground utilities. 

d. Revisions to routing of piping and conduits. 

e. Actual equipment locations. 

f. Changes made by Change Order or Addendum. 

g. Details not on original Agreement Drawings. 

4.8.3 Contractor must mark completely and accurately Project Record Drawing sets of 
Construction Documents. 

4.8.4 Contractor must mark Project Record Drawings sets with red erasable colored pencil. 

4.8.5 Contractor must note Request for Information (RFI) Numbers and Change Order numbers, 
etc., as required to identify the source of the change to the Construction Documents. 

4.8.6 Contractor must submit Project Record Drawing sets and Shop Drawings to City or its 
representative for review and comment. 

4.8.7 Upon receipt of the reviewed Project Record Drawings from City, Contractor must correct 
any deficiencies and omissions to the Drawings and submit the final original of the Project 
Record Drawings to City prior to Final Payment. 

4.8.8 Project Manager will review the Project Record Drawings monthly prior to the date 
established for the Payment Request and will be the sole judge of acceptance of these 
Drawings. 

4.9 WARRANTY AND CORRECTION OF DEFECTIVE WORK 

4.9.1 Contractor warrants to City that the construction, including all materials and equipment 
furnished as part of the Work, will be new unless otherwise specified in the Agreement 
Documents, of good quality, and free of defects in materials and workmanship.  Contractor’s 
warranty obligation excludes defects caused by abuse, alterations, or unreasonable failure 
to maintain the construction by persons other than Contractor, subcontractors, or others 
under Contractor’s control.  Nothing in this warranty will limit any manufacturer’s warranty 
which provides City with greater warranty rights than set forth herein or in the Agreement.  
Contractor will provide City with all manufacturers’ warranties and operation and 
maintenance manuals upon substantial completion of the Work.  Contractor’s warranty 
must be for one (1) year, in accordance with MAG Specification § 108.8, and will commence 
for all portions of the Work upon Final Acceptance of the entire Work as determined by City 
under the Agreement.  All statutory or other warranties, express or implied, related to latent 
defects will remain in force and are not limited by this provision. 

4.9.2 City May Stop the Work.  If the Work is defective, or Contractor fails to supply sufficient 
skilled workmen or suitable materials or equipment, City may order Contractor to stop the 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-25 of 75  

Work without cost to City, or any portion thereof, until the cause for such order has been 
eliminated; however, this right of City to stop the Work will not give rise to any duty on the 
part of City to exercise this right for the benefit of Contractor or any other party. 

4.9.3 Correction or Removal of Defective Work. 

4.9.3.1 If required by City, Contractor must promptly, without cost to City and as specified by City, 
either correct any defective Work, whether or not fabricated, installed or completed, or, if 
the Work has been rejected by City, remove it from the Site and replace it with non-defective 
Work. Contractor must correct any Work which may be displaced in correcting, removing or 
replacing defective Work. No compensation will be allowed Contractor for such removal, 
replacement or remedial Work.  Contractor must reimburse City for costs incurred by City 
due to such correction or removal including but not limited to additional expenses for 
inspection, testing or observation and for repeated reviews by the City or Design 
Professional.   

4.9.3.2 Upon failure on the part of the Contractor to comply within a reasonably prompt time with 
any written order of City to correct or remove defective Work, City has authority to cause 
nonconforming materials or rejected Work to be remedied, removed, or replaced at the 
Contractor's expense and to deduct the costs from any moneys due or to become due the 
Contractor. 

4.9.4 City May Correct Defective Work.  If Contractor fails within a reasonable time after written 
notice of City to proceed to correct defective Work or to remove and replace rejected Work 
as required by City or if Contractor fails to perform the Work in accordance with the 
Agreement Documents (including any requirements of the progress schedule), City may, 
after 7 Days' written notice to Contractor, correct and remedy any such deficiency.  To the 
extent necessary to complete corrective and remedial action, City may exclude Contractor 
from all or part of the Work, and suspend Contractor's services related thereto, take 
possession of Contractor's tools, appliances, construction equipment and machinery at the 
Site and incorporate in the Work all materials and equipment stored at the Site or for which 
City has paid Contractor, but which are stored elsewhere. Contractor must allow City, city 
representatives, agents and employees such access to the Site as may be necessary to 
enable City to exercise City’s rights under this Section.  All direct and indirect costs of City in 
exercising such rights will be charged against Contractor in an amount verified by City 
representative, and a Change Order will be issued incorporating the necessary revisions in 
the Agreement Documents and a reduction in the Agreement Price.  Such direct and indirect 
costs will include, in particular but without limitation, compensation for additional 
professional services required and all costs of repair and replacement of Work or others 
destroyed or damaged by correction, removal or replacement of Contractor's defective 
Work. Contractor will not be allowed an extension of the Agreement Time because of any 
delay in Contractor’s performance of the Work attributable to the exercise by City or City's 
rights hereunder. 

4.9.5 Correction or Removal of Unauthorized Work. 

4.9.5.1 Any Work done beyond the lines and grades shown on the Drawings or established by the 
Design Professional or any changes in, additions to, or deductions from the Work done 
without written authority will be considered as unauthorized and will not be paid for. Work 
so done may be ordered remedied, removed, or replaced at the Contractor's expense. 

4.9.5.2 Upon failure on the part of the Contractor to comply promptly with any order of the City, 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-26 of 75  

City will have authority to cause unauthorized Work to be remedied, removed, or replaced 
at the Contractor's expense and to deduct the costs from any moneys due or to become 
due the Contractor. 

4.9.6 Correction Period - One Year Guarantee. 

4.9.6.1 If, within one year after the date of Final Acceptance, or such longer period of time as may 
be prescribed by law or by the terms of any applicable special guarantee required by the 
Agreement Documents, or by any specific provision of the Agreement Documents, any Work 
is found to be defective, Contractor must promptly, without cost to City and in accordance 
with City's written instructions, either correct such defective Work, or, if it has been rejected 
by City, remove it from the Site and replace it with non-defective Work. If Contractor does 
not promptly comply with the terms of such instructions, or in an emergency where delay 
would cause serious risk of loss or damage, City may have the defective Work corrected or 
the rejected Work removed and replaced, and all direct and indirect costs of such removal 
and replacement, including compensation for additional professional services, must be paid 
by Contractor. Such action by the City will not relieve the Contractor of the guarantees 
required by this Section or elsewhere in the Agreement Documents.  

4.9.6.2 If, in the opinion of the City, defective Work creates a dangerous condition or requires 
immediate correction or attention to prevent further loss to the City or to prevent 
interruption of operation of the City, the City will attempt to give the notice required by this 
Section.  If the Contractor cannot be contacted or does not comply with the City's request 
for correction within a reasonable time as determined by the City, the City may, 
notwithstanding the provisions of this Section, proceed to make such correction or provide 
such attention; and the costs of such correction or attention will be charged against the 
Contractor.  Such action by the City will not relieve the Contractor of the guarantees 
required by this Section or elsewhere in the Agreement Documents. 

4.9.6.3 This Section does not in any way limit the guarantee on any items for which a longer 
guarantee is specified or on any items for which a manufacturer or supplier gives a 
guarantee for a longer period. The Contractor agrees to act as co-guarantor with such 
manufacturer or supplier and must furnish the City all appropriate guarantee or warranty 
certificates upon completion of the Project.  No guarantee period, whether provided for in 
this Section or elsewhere, will in any way limit the liability of Contractor or their sureties or 
insurers under the indemnity or insurance provisions of these General Conditions and the 
Project Specific Special Conditions. 

4.9.7 Acceptance of Defective Work. 

4.9.7.1 If, instead of requiring correction or removal and replacement of defective Work, City may 
accept Work when in the best interest of the City to do so with appropriate monetary credit 
from Contractor.  If any such acceptance occurs prior to final payment, a Change Order will 
be issued incorporating the necessary revisions in the Agreement Documents, including 
appropriate reduction in the Agreement Price; or, if the acceptance occurs after final 
payment, an appropriate amount must be paid by Contractor to City. 

4.9.7.2 Alternatively, City may require Contractor to furnish at Contractor's expense, a special 
performance guarantee or other surety prior to acceptance of defective work. 

4.9.8 The Warranty period begins on the Final Acceptance date noted in the Certificate of 
Completion, irrespective of early completion by some Subcontractors of their work. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-27 of 75  

4.9.9 Contractor’s warranty obligation must be in accordance with MAG Specifications. 

4.9.10 Nothing in the warranties contained in the Agreement Documents are intended to limit any 
manufacturer’s warranty which provides City with greater warranty rights than set forth 
in this Section or the Agreement Documents. Contractor must provide City with all 
manufacturers’ warranties prior to Substantial Completion, if applicable, or Final 
Acceptance. 

4.9.11 Contractor agrees that it will be responsible to manage and administer the correction of any 
Work that is not in conformance with the Agreement Documents during the warranty 
periods set forth in this Section, or during any longer periods to the extent required by the 
Agreement Documents. A progress payment, or partial or entire use or occupancy of the 
Project by City, will not constitute acceptance of Work not in accordance with the Agreement 
Documents. 

4.9.12 When notified of a warranty issue, Contractor must respond in writing within 48-hours and 
must perform warranty Work as soon as material for said repairs are available (as judged 
solely by City), and in any event Contractor must, take immediate steps to commence and 
complete correction of nonconforming Work no later than the time period set forth in 
City’s written notification in accordance with the Agreement Documents. This includes the 
correction, removal or replacement of the nonconforming Work and any damage caused 
to other parts of the Work affected by the nonconforming Work. If defects develop which 
are determined by City to be an emergency, City will notify Contractor, via the most 
expeditious means regarding the nature and condition of the defects. In turn, Contractor 
must immediately dispatch necessary forces to correct the defect or the emergency 
condition in accordance with Agreement Documents. 

4.9.13 The time periods referenced in this Section apply only to Contractor’s obligation to 
correct nonconforming Work and is not intended to constitute a period of limitations for any 
other rights or remedies that City may have regarding Contractor’s other obligations under 
the Agreement Documents. 

4.9.14 Without limiting the foregoing or anything in these General Conditions or the Agreement 
to the contrary, Contractor must obtain and provide to City all warranties for any portion 
of the Project offered by the manufacturer, installer or provider thereof. City and the user 
of the facility will have the right to the full value and benefit of all such warranties. 
Contractor must ensure all such warranties are fully transferrable to facilitate the full value 
of this Section. 

4.9.15 Contractor’s warranty excludes damages or defects caused by abuse, alterations to the Work 
not executed by or through Contractor, improper or insufficient maintenance, improper 
operation, or normal wear and tear and normal usage. 

4.9.16 In the event of any noncompliance with this entire Section 4, City may require Contractor to 
stop or suspend the Work in whole or in part. 

  
SECTION 5 - CITY RESPONSIBILITIES 

5.1 CITY PROJECT MANAGER AND INSPECTORS 

5.1.1 Project Manager is responsible for providing City-supplied information and approvals in a 
timely manner to assist Contractor to fulfill its obligations under the Agreement Documents. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-28 of 75  

5.1.2 Project Manager will also provide Contractor with prompt notice when it observes any 
failure on the part of Contractor to fulfill its contractual obligations, including any default 
or defect in the Project or non-conformance with the Drawings and Specifications. 

5.1.3 City may utilize Field Inspectors to assist Project Manager during construction in 
observing performance of Contractor. City’s use of Inspectors is for the purpose of assisting 
Project Manager. 

5.1.4 The Inspectors are authorized to inspect all Work and materials furnished. Such inspections 
may extend to all or part of the Work and to preparation, fabrication or manufacture of the 
materials to be used.  The Inspectors have the authority to issue instructions contrary to 
the Construction Documents if approved and coordinated with the directions of Project 
Manager. 

5.1.5 The Inspectors have the authority to reject work or materials until any questions at issue can 
be decided by Project Manager. 

5.1.6 The use of Inspectors by City will not make City responsible for or give City control 
over construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures or for safety 
precautions or programs or responsibility for Contractor’s failure to perform the Work in 
accordance with Agreement Documents. The Inspectors are not authorized to direct any of 
Contractor’s activities, employees or Subcontractors. 

5.2 DESIGN PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
City may contract separately with one or more Design Professionals to provide 
construction administration of the Project. The Design Professional’s Agreement, as well as 
other firms hired by City may be furnished to Contractor. Contractor does not have the right 
to limit or restrict or reject any Agreement modifications that are mutually acceptable to City 
and Design Professional. 

5.3  CIT Y ’S SEP AR AT E CONT R ACT ORS 
City is responsible for all work performed on the Project or at the Site by separate 
contractors retained by City. City will contractually require its separate contractors to 
reasonably cooperate with, and reasonably coordinate their activities so as not to interfere 
with Contractor in order to enable Contractor to timely complete the Work consistent with 
the Agreement Documents. Contractor must immediately notify the Project manager, 
and address the matter in the next monthly status report, if any activities of such separate 
contractors are expected to interfere, or are interfering, with Contractor and such 
interference will or could result in any delay in Contractor’s performance of the Work. 

5.4 PERMIT REVIEW AND INSPECTIONS 

5.4.1 If requested by Contractor, Project Manager will provide assistance and guidance in 
obtaining necessary reviews, permits and inspections. 

5.4.2 The regulating agencies of City, such as Development and Sustainability, Fire and 
Planning Departments, enforce legal requirements. The enforcement activities of City are 
independent and separate from this Agreement. 

5.5 PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS TO THE CONTRACTOR.   
Contractor will be provided up to five copies of the Agreement Documents as are 
reasonably necessary for the execution of the Work.  Additional copies will be furnished, 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-29 of 75  

upon request, at the cost of reproduction.   
 
SECTION 6 - AGREEMENT TIME 

6.1 AGREEMENT TIME 

6.1.1 The Agreement Time will start with the Notice to Proceed (“NTP”) and end with Final 
Acceptance.  

6.1.2 Beginning on the date of the NTP, Contractor must begin to fulfill Contractor’s obligations 
under the Agreement. Contractor’s obligations include providing City and other 
agencies with any submittals required by the Project Specific Special Provisions, including 
but not limited to, an approved Project Schedule, Traffic Control Plans, and a Stormwater 
Pollution Prevention Plan. Contractor must submit all such required submittals before 
any physical construction work commences on the Site. NTP does not authorize 
construction work until all a greement insurance, bonds, and schedules are submitted to 
and accepted by the City. 

6.1.3 The Agreement Time will be as set forth in the Project Schedule. Contractor agrees that 
it will commence performance of the Work and complete the Project through both 
Substantial Completion and Final Acceptance within the Agreement Time. 

6.1.4 Time is of the essence of this Agreement, for the Project, for the Work, and for each phase 
and designated Milestone thereof. 

6.1.5 Failure of Contractor to perform any covenant or condition contained in the Agreement 
Documents within the time periods specified herein, will constitute a material breach of this 
Agreement entitling City to terminate the Agreement unless Contractor applies for and 
receives an extension of time, in accordance with the procedures set forth in the Agreement 
Documents. 

6.1.6 Failure of City to insist upon the performance of any covenant or condition within the time 
periods specified herein, will not constitute a waiver of Contractor’s duty to perform every 
other covenant or condition within the designated periods, unless a specific waiver is 
granted in writing for each such covenant or condition. 

6.1.7 City’s agreement to waive a specific time provision or to extend the time for performance 
will not constitute a waiver of any other time provisions contained in the Agreement 
Documents.  Failure of Contractor to complete performance promptly within the additional 
time authorized in the waiver or extension of time agreement constitutes a material breach 
of this Agreement entitling City to all the remedies set forth herein or provided by law. 

6.2 PROJECT SCHEDULE 

6.2.1 The Project Schedule must be in Microsoft Project standard file format, must be updated and 
maintained throughout the Agreement Time, and must contain the following: 

6.2.1.1 Detailed representation of all activities for the project, both on-site construction and major 
procurement.  All significant activities together with the resource loading requirements for 
each and all items appearing on the schedule of values or bid schedule for progress 
payments must be shown on the Project Schedule or in attached transmittal letter as 
described in Section 6.2.8. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-30 of 75  

6.2.1.2 Dependencies between activities must be indicated so that it may establish as to the effect 
the progress of any one activity would have on other activities and on the Schedule. 

6.2.1.3 Activities for submission, review, and approval of all required submittals. 

6.2.1.4 An amount of time will be established prior to the final completion date for “punch list and 
cleanup”.  No other activities will be scheduled during this period.  Punch list and cleanup 
must be shown on the Project Schedule and must be entirely completed prior to the 
expiration of the Agreement Time. 

6.2.2 Within 10 Days of receipt of City’s comments, Contractor must make all required 
corrections, adjustments, and additions to complete the Project Schedule and resubmit to 
City for review.  City’s review of and response to the Project Schedule is for the purpose of: 
(1) City planning and staffing for the Project as may be required from time to time; (2) 
ensuring Contractor’s general conformance with the scheduling requirements of the 
Agreement Documents and completion of the Project within the Agreement Time; and (3) 
monitoring and evaluating the construction status for purposes of approving monthly 
progress payments. Acceptance of a submitted schedule by City should in no way be 
construed as an affirmation or admission that the schedule is reasonable or workable by 
Contractor. The responsibility for completing the Work on the Project within the 
Agreement Time remains the obligation of Contractor. City’s review  does not relieve 
Contractor from compliance with the requirements of the Agreement Documents or 
be construed as relieving Contractor of its complete and exclusive control over the 
means, methods, sequences and techniques for executing the work. 

6.2.3 The Project Schedule must show milestones, including milestones for City-furnished 
information, and must include activities for City-furnished material and construction by 
other contractors when those activities are interrelated with Contractor activities. 

6.2.4 The Project Schedule must be revised as required by conditions and progress of the Work, 
but such revisions do not relieve Contractor of its obligations to complete the Work 
within the Agreement Time, as adjusted in accordance with the Agreement Documents. 
No modification to the Agreement Documents or the Agreement Time will be effective 
unless approved in advance by City. 

6.2.5 For all items of materials and equipment that are critical or may require long lead times to 
acquire, the Project Schedule must show dates for submission, review and approval of 
submittals, ordering, and delivery. 

6.2.6 An updated Project Schedule must be submitted monthly to City as part of the Payment 
Request. The monthly submittal must include one full size plot of the entire schedule and 
one electronic copy containing the schedule in Microsoft Project standard file format. In 
addition, Contractor must, upon request by City, provide a copy of all submitted schedule 
data in electronic format which must be clearly labeled with the Project description, 
scheduling program name and version number, and schedule print/data date. 

6.2.7 Contractor must provide City with a monthly status report with each Project Schedule 
detailing the progress of the Work, including: (i) if the Work is proceeding according to 
schedule, (ii) any discrepancies, conflicts, or ambiguities found to exist in the Agreement 
Documents that require resolution, and (iii) other information detailing items that require 
resolution so as not to jeopardize the ability to complete the Work in the Agreement Time. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-31 of 75  

6.2.8 With each Project Schedule submittal, Contractor must include a transmittal letter 
including the following: 

a. Description of problem tasks, referenced to field instructions or requests 
for information (RFI’s), as appropriate. 

b. Current and anticipated delays including: 

(i) Cause of the delay. 

(ii) Corrective action and schedule adjustments to correct the delay. 

(iii) Known or potential impacts and their delay on other activities, 
milestones, and their impact on the Substantial Completion and 
Final Acceptance dates. 

(iv) Changes in construction sequence. 

c. Pending items and status thereof including but not limited to: 

(i) Time Extension requests; 

(ii) Substantial Completion date status; 

(iii) Final Acceptance date status. 

d. If ahead of schedule, the number of calendar Days ahead. 

e. If behind schedule, the number of calendar Days behind. 

f. Other Project or scheduling concerns. 

6.2.9 Critical Path Method (CPM). 

6.2.9.1 Unless otherwise specified in the Agreement, the Project Schedule must include a Critical 
Path Method (CPM) diagram schedule showing the sequence of activities, the 
interdependence of each activity and identifies the Critical Path. 

6.2.9.2 The CPM diagram schedule must be in calendar Days and indicate duration, earliest and 
latest start and finish dates for all activities, and total Float Times for all activities except 
critical activities. The CPM diagram must be presented in a time scaled graphical format for 
the Project as a whole. 

6.2.9.3 The CPM diagram schedule must indicate all relationships between activities. 

6.2.9.4 The activities making the Project Schedule must contain sufficient detail to assure that 
adequate planning has been done for proper execution of the Work and such that it provides 
an appropriate basis for monitoring and evaluation the progress of the Work. Individual 
activities must not exceed 30 Days in length, in most cases. 

6.2.9.5 The CPM diagram schedule must be based upon activities, which coincide with the Schedule 
of Values. 

6.2.9.6 The CPM diagram schedule must show all submittals associated with each work activity and 
the review time for each submittal. 

6.2.10 Float Time. 

6.2.10.1 The total Float Time within the overall schedule is for the exclusive use of City, but City 
may approve Contractor’s use of Float as needed to meet Agreement Milestones and 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-32 of 75  

the Project completion date. 

6.2.10.2 Contractor will not be allowed to sequence, hide, or reallocate Float Time through 
such strategies, as extending activity duration estimates to consume available Float, using 
preferential logic, or using extensive crew/resource sequencing, tec. No time extensions 
will be granted nor delay damages paid until a delay occurs which extends the Work beyond 
the Agreement Time. 

6.2.11 City-Caused Delays.  City-caused delays on the Project, if any, may be offset by City-caused 
time savings (i.e., Critical Path submittals returned in less time than allowed by the 
Agreement, approval of substitution requests and credit changes which result in savings of 
time to Contractor, etc.) In such an event, Contractor will not be entitled to receive a time 
extension or delay damages until all City-caused time savings are exceeded and the 
Agreement Time is also exceeded. 

6.2.12 Rain-Related Delays.  Contractor is required, in preparing the Project Schedule to take into 
account all relevant weather conditions, including normal rainfall and distribution. No 
additional compensation will be given for any rain-related delays or impacts on the Work 
or the Project Schedule. No time extension will be granted in the Project Schedule unless 
the rainfall during the construction of Work is unusually severe, was not reasonably 
anticipated, and the total rainfall was significantly in excess of the normal rainfall for the 
Project Site location. Normal rainfall for the Project will be determined from the 10-year 
average rainfall for the Site as measured by the National Oceanic and Atmospheric 
Administration or comparable source of reliable information for rainfall in Chandler, 
Arizona. In addition, the excessive rainfall must have actually impacted Work activities on 
the Critical Path and caused delay beyond any remaining Float at the time of the rain- caused 
delay. The burden of documenting normal rainfall, the excessive rainfall and the impact on 
Critical Path activities is on Contractor. All other provisions in the Agreement Documents 
relating to claims, including without limitation notice requirements, apply to any claim by 
Contractor for a rain delay. 

6.2.13 City’s “Policy Statement for Calculating Delays and Damages,” Appendix 1  to these 
General Conditions, will apply to all claims of delay and delay damages. 

6.2.14 Force Majeure.  If Contractor is delayed or prevented from the performance of any Work 
required under this Agreement by reason of acts of God or other causes beyond the control 
and without fault of Contractor (financial inability excepted), performance of that Work will 
be excused, but only for the period of the delay.  The time for performance of the Work will 
be extended for a period equivalent to the period of delay. In addition, the parties agree if 
Contractor’s delayed or suspended performance directly arises out of or directly results 
from the COVID-19 pandemic, Contractor’s delayed or suspended performance may be 
excused as set forth in this clause. Provided, however; Contractor must give the City written 
notice within 30 days of the occurrence of the event giving rise to COVID-19 pandemic 
related delayed or suspended performance. For COVID-19 pandemic related delay or 
suspended performance, the parties must agree in writing to the length of the excused 
delay or suspended performance. Further, Contractor must obtain the City’s written 
approval to use any allowance established as part of the project for delays and costs related 
to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

6.3 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 

6.3.1 When Contractor considers that the Work, phase or a portion thereof, which City agrees in 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-33 of 75  

writing to accept separately, is substantially complete, City will prepare and submit to 
Contractor a comprehensive Punch List of items to be completed or corrected prior to Final 
Acceptance and Final Payment. Failure to include an item on such Punch List does not alter 
the responsibility of Contractor to complete all Work in accordance with the Agreement 
Documents. 

6.3.2 Upon receipt of Contractor’s Punch List, Project Manager will make an inspection to 
determine whether the Work or designated portion thereof is substantially complete. 
Project Manager may, at Project Manager’s sole option, be assisted in such inspection by 
the Design Professional for the Project. If the inspection by the Project Manager discloses 
any item, whether or not included on Contractor’s Punch List, which is not sufficiently 
completed in accordance with the Agreement Documents so that City can occupy or utilize 
the Work, phase or designated portion thereof for its intended use, Contractor must, 
before issuance of the Certificate of Substantial Completion, complete or correct such 
item upon notification by Project Manager. In such case, Contractor must then submit a 
request for another inspection by Project Manager to determine Substantial Completion. 

6.3.3 Certificate of Substantial Completion. 

6.3.3.1 The Project Manager will not issue a Certificate of Substantial Completion unless and until 
the Work (or separable units or Phases as provided in the Agreement Documents) is 
essentially and satisfactorily complete in accordance with the Agreement Documents, such 
that the Project is ready for use by City for its intended purpose, opening to the general 
public, full occupancy or use by City (including, without limitation, all separate units, or 
rooms, facilities, access, income-generating areas, and all areas serving the general public, 
as applicable, must be ready for full-operation without material inconvenience or 
discomfort), including, to the extent applicable to the Work, the following: all materials, 
equipment, systems, controls, features, facilities, accessories and similar elements are 
installed in the proper manner and in operating condition, inspected and approved; 
surfaces have been painted; masonry and concrete cleaned with any sealer or other finish 
applied; utilities and systems connected and functioning; site work complete; permanent 
heating, ventilation, air condition, vertical transportation and other systems properly 
operating with proper controls; lighting and electrical systems installed, operable and 
controlled; paving completed, signage installed, and other Work as applicable, has 
been performed to a similar state of essential and satisfactory completion. A minor 
amount of Work, as determined by and at the discretion of the Project Manager, such 
as installation of minor accessories or items, a minor amount of painting, minor 
replacement of defective work, minor adjustment of controls or sound systems, or 
completion or correction of minor exterior work that cannot be completed as a result of 
weather conditions, will not delay determination of Substantial Completion. If prior 
written approval is obtained from City for purposes of Substantial Completion, specified 
areas of the entire Work or Project may be individually certified as Substantially 
Complete. In no event will Substantial Completion be deemed to have occurred unless 
and until: (i) a temporary certificate of occupancy has been issued by the appropriate 
Governmental Authorities (as applicable) and (ii) all terms and Work required under this 
Agreement have been fulfilled by Contractor and same will have also been approved and 
accepted by City, subject only to the Punch List items. 

6.3.3.2 If requested by City, Contractor must complete and turn-over to City the Project on a phased 
basis. Each phase will have a separate inspection by the Project Manager, a Punch List 
generated, and then an inspection by City with final approval and acceptance only after the 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-34 of 75  

Project Manager’s Punch List. 

6.4 PARTIAL UTILIZATION 

6.4.1 City at City’s option may use and occupy any substantially completed parts of the Work 
which has specifically been identified in the Agreement Documents, or which City, the 
Design Professional and Contractor agree constitutes a separately functioning and usable 
part of the Work that can be used by City for its intended purpose, without significant 
interference with Contractor’s performance of the remainder of the Work, provided, 
however, if the portion of the Work to be used or occupied has not been found to be 
substantially complete, City must do so in accordance with Section 6.3 prior to such 
occupancy.   

6.4.2 In lieu of the issuance of a Certificate of Substantial Completion as to part of the Work, City 
may take over operation of a facility constituting part of the Work whether or not it is 
substantially complete if such facility is functionally and separately usable; provided that 
prior to any such takeover, City and Contractor agree in writing as to the division of 
responsibilities between City and Contractor for security, operation, safety, maintenance, 
correction period, heat, utilities and insurance with respect to such facility. 

6.4.3 Substantial Completion of or City's beneficial occupancy of a part of the Project will not alter 
the fact that the one-year warranty for the whole Project starts at the date of Final 
Completion of the whole Project. 

6.5 FINAL ACCEPTANCE 

6.5.1 Unless otherwise expressly agreed to in writing by City, Final Acceptance must be obtained 
by no later than 30 Days (60 Days for federally funded agreements) after the date of Substantial 
Completion. Failure to timely obtain Final Acceptance will be a material breach of the 
Agreement. 

6.5.2 Upon receipt of written notice that the Work is ready for final inspection and acceptance, City 
and Contractor will jointly inspect to verify that the remaining items of Work have been 
completed. There will be no partial acceptance. Final Acceptance will not occur until all 
items of Work, including Punch List Items, have been completed to City’s satisfaction as 
reflected in the written Final Acceptance. 

6.5.3 Final Payment will not be due, owing, or paid by City until Final Acceptance is issued. 

6.5.4 Landscape Establishment Period. Unless otherwise expressly agreed to in writing by City, the 
Landscape Establishment Period will begin on the date of Final Acceptance of the Project and 
will run 90 Calendar Days thereafter. Landscape Establishment Period requirements are 
detailed in General Conditions Appendices, attached herein. 

6.6 CONTINUATION OF WORK 

6.6.1 Permitting Contractor to continue and finish the Work or any part of it after the time fixed 
for its completion (whether milestone, phase, Substantial Completion or Final Acceptance) 
or after the date to which the time fixed for any completion may have been extended, does 
not operate as a waiver by City of any rights under the Agreement Documents, law or equity. 

6.6.2 Furthermore, the timely completion of the Work being of the utmost importance under 
this Agreement, notwithstanding the existence of one or more disputes between the parties 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-35 of 75  

concerning the scope of the Work, the Project Schedule, Agreement Time, payments or any 
other matter, and further notwithstanding a party’s invocation of the Dispute Resolution 
provisions specified in Appendix 6  of these General Conditions, unless City suspends 
the Agreement or Contractor’s performance pursuant to Section 10 of these General 
Conditions, Contractor will continue to prosecute the Work, including any Change Order 
work or Extra Work Orders, in a diligent and timely manner and not stop, slow down or 
impede by action or inaction the progress of the Work, including commencing performance 
of and thereafter completing any additional work called out in any Change Order or Extra 
Work Order issued by Project Manager with the approval of City, so long as City makes 
payment to Contractor in accordance with Section 8 of these General Conditions. 

 
SECTION 7 - AGREEMENT PRICE 

7.1 UNIT PRICE AGREEMENTS 

7.1.1 The Agreement Price for all Unit Price Agreements will be the amount set forth in the 
Agreement or Change Order multiplied by the verified quantity provided. 

7.1.2 Measurements of quantities to determine the total Agreement Price must be in accordance 
with MAG Specification §§ 109.1 and 109.2. 

7.1.3 The Unit Price may only be changed as set forth in Section 9 below. 

7.2 CHANGE ORDERS 

7.2.1 Unit Price Change Orders.  The Change Order Price for all Unit Price Change Orders will be 
the amount set forth in the Change Order multiplied by the verified quantity provided. 

7.2.2 Measurements of quantities to determine the total Change Order Price must be in 
accordance with MAG Specifications §§ 109.1 and 109.2. 

7.2.3 The Unit Price may only be changed as set forth in Section 9 below. 
 
7.2.4 MAG Specification § 109.4.1 is modified as follows: Before § 109.4.1, the following is added:  

Any deduction or increase in the Agreement Price must be supported by a signed, 
written Change Order fully executed by City, and supported by such backup as the Project 
Manager may require.  

7.3 SALES TAX 
Contractor is required to pay all applicable sales tax in accordance with the law of the state of 
Arizona and this cost must be included in all Agreement Prices.  When equipment, materials 
or supplies generally taxable to Contractor are eligible for a tax exemption due to the nature 
of the Project, Contractor must assist City in applying for and obtaining such tax credits and 
exemptions which will be paid or credited to City.   

 
SECTION 8 - PAYMENT 

8.1 PAYMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 

8.1.1 Payment for the Work will be made in accordance with MAG Standard Specification § 109 
as amended below.  

8.1.2 Contractor must submit to City for review a completed Contractor Payment Request signed 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-36 of 75  

by Contractor, covering the Work completed as of the date of the Request and accompanied 
by such supporting documentation as is required by the Agreement Documents and also 
as City may reasonably require.  A Contractor Payment Request will not be considered 
complete unless it is accompanied by an updated Project Schedule and a certification that 
the on-site, red lined, as built Drawings are up to date.  If payment is requested on the basis 
of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work but delivered and suitably, 
securely stored at the Site or at another location (such as a bonded warehouse) agreed to 
in writing, the Contractor Payment Request must also be accompanied by such data, 
satisfactory to City, as will establish City's title to the material and equipment and protect 
City's interest therein, including applicable insurance. Each subsequent Contractor Payment 
Request must include an affidavit of Contractor stating that all previous progress payments 
received on account of the Work have been applied to discharge in full all of Contractor's 
obligations reflected in prior Contractor Payment Requests.  

8.1.3 Except for Work performed under a JOC Agreement, the Contracting Agency will retain 10 
percent of all estimates as a guarantee for complete performance of the Agreement in 
accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes Section 34-221 or 34-607.  The Contractor may 
elect to deposit securities in lieu of retention in accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes 
Section 34-221, Paragraph C.5. or 34-607, Paragraph B.5. 

8.1.4 The payment process functions as follows: Prior to the payment cycle date, Contractor must 
send a draft Contractor Payment Request to Project Manager.  The Project Team will review 
the Request and agree upon any necessary adjustments.  Contractor must certify the final 
Request by signing and returning to Project Manager. 

8.1.5 When construction of the Project is fifty percent (50%) completed, Contractor may 
request payment of one-half of the retention pursuant to A.R.S. § 34-609(B)(3), subject to all 
of City’s rights to withhold or offset payments, and other rights of City, under the Agreement. 

8.1.6 City reserves the right under A.R.S. § 34-609(B)(3) to reinstate the ten percent (10%) retention 
if City determines that satisfactory progress is not being made. 

8.1.7 Contractor’s Warranty of Title. 

8.1.7.1 Contractor warrants and guarantees that title to all Work, materials and equipment covered 
by any Contractor Payment Request, whether incorporated in the Project or not, will pass 
to City at the time of payment, free and clear of all liens, claims, security interests, and 
encumbrances, provided that this will not preclude the Contractor from installing metering 
devices or other equipment of utility companies or municipalities, the title of which is 
commonly retained by the utility company or municipality. 

8.1.7.2 No materials, supplies, or equipment for the Work under this Agreement will be purchased 
subject to any chattel mortgage or under a conditional sale contract or other agreement by 
which an interest therein, or any part thereof, is retained by the seller or supplier. 

8.1.7.3 Nothing contained in this Section will defeat or impair the right of such persons furnishing 
materials or labor under any bond given by the Contractor for their protection, or any right 
under any law permitting such persons to look to funds due the Contractor in the hands of 
the City. The provisions of this Section must be inserted in all subcontracts and material 
agreements, and notices of its provision must be given to all persons furnishing materials 
for the Work when no formal agreement is entered into for such materials. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-37 of 75  

8.2 PAYMENT UPON SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 

8.2.1 No payment will be made upon Substantial Completion, except for a regularly-scheduled 
monthly progress payment, as allowed by Section 8.2.2. 

8.2.2 No further payments will be made to Contractor until Final Acceptance. 

8.3 FINAL PAYMENT 

8.3.1 Subject to all of City’s rights to withhold or offset payment, and other rights under the 
Agreement, Final Payment including remaining retainage will be paid only after: 

a. Work has been fully completed (including completion of all incorrect or 
incomplete work items) and the written Final Acceptance has been issued by 
City; 

b. Necessary operating manuals, any excess materials and supplies necessary 
for matching materials and supplies incorporated into the Work, 
acceptable sewer video results (if applicable), and complete “as-built” 
Drawings (including the Building Information Model, if required by the 
Agreement Documents) have been delivered to City, as specified in this 
Section 8.3; 

c. Full and unconditional lien waivers and releases by Contractor and any 
person performing labor or supplying material, machinery, fixtures, or tools 
for the Work have been delivered to Contractor; 

d. All conditions and requirements imposed by City or any financing entity 
for the corresponding disbursement have been met; and 

e. Contractor delivers to City a Contractor Payment Request requesting Final 
Payment. 

8.3.2 Contractor must also submit a signed copy of Contractor’s Affidavit Regarding Settlement 
of Claims, Appendix 3 to these General Conditions, and Certificate of Completion, Appendix 7 
to these General Conditions, prior to Final Payment. 

8.3.3 In addition, if required under the Project Specific Special Provisions, Contractor must 
compile a complete equipment list and maintenance manual to be submitted to City 
as a precondition to Final Payment. The list must include the following items for all 
equipment supplied under the Plumbing, Electrical, Air Conditioning, Elevator, and other 
Special Equipment Specifications: 

a. Name, Model and Manufacturer. 

b. Complete parts lists and Drawings. 

c. Local source of supply for replacement parts along with suppliers’ telephone 
numbers. 

d. Local service organizations serving the equipment and their telephone 
numbers. 

e. All tags, inspection slips, instruction packages, etc., removed from 
equipment must be properly identified as to pieces of equipment from 
which they were taken. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-38 of 75  

8.3.4 Contractor must also deliver to City, prior to Final Payment, one (1) digital (in the format 
specified by City), and if requested by City, one (1) hard copy, of any applicable 
Maintenance manuals. Each manual must include all manufacturer’s operation and 
maintenance instructions and “as-built” Drawings with the list herein specified. It must also 
include all other diagrams and instructions necessary to properly operate and maintain the 
equipment, the name, address and telephone number of Contractor and all Subcontractors 
involved. 

8.4  CIT Y ’S RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT 
City may withhold payment to such extent as may be necessary in City’s opinion to protect 
City from loss for which Contractor is responsible, including, without limitation, if any of 
the following conditions exist: 

a. Defective Work not remedied; 

b. Third party claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of 
such claims unless security acceptable to City is provided by Contractor; 

c. Failure of Contractor to make payments properly to Subcontractors or for 
labor, materials or equipment; 

d. Reasonable evidence that the Work cannot be completed for the unpaid 
balance of the Agreement Price; 

e. Damage to City or another Contractor; 

f. Reasonable evidence that the Work will not be completed within the 
Agreement Time, and that the unpaid balance would not be adequate to 
cover actual or liquidated damages for the anticipated delay; 

g. Failure to carry out the Work in accordance with the Agreement Documents; 
or 

h. Contractor is in default of any of its other obligations under the Agreement 
Documents. 

8.5 JOINT/DIRECT CHECKS 
To promote the timely completion and progress of the Work or when appropriate and 
necessary, payments to Contractor may be made jointly to Contractor and its employees, 
agents, Subcontractors and suppliers, or any of them.  For federally funded agreements, 
see federal provisions for additional requirements for the joint check process. 

8.6 PAYMENT NOT A WAIVER 
No payment (nor use or occupancy of the Project by City) will be deemed acceptance or 
approval of the Work or as a waiver of any claims, rights, or remedies of City. 

8.7 LIENS AND BOND CLAIMS 
Contractor must make all payments, in the time required, of all labor and materials 
furnished to Contractor in the course of the Work and must promptly furnish evidence of 
such payments as City may require. Contractor must pay when due all claims arising out of 
performance of the Work covered by this Agreement for which a lien may be filed either 
against the real estate or leasehold interest of City, or against payments due from City to 
Contractor, or for which a claim may be made against any payment or performance bond 
or both. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor agrees that no liens or other 
claims in the nature of a lien against the real estate, leasehold, or other interest of City, 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-39 of 75  

against payment due from City to Contractor, or against any payment or performance 
bond, must be filed or made in connection with the Work by any party who has supplied 
professional services, labor, materials, machinery, fixtures, tools, or equipment used in or 
in connection with the performance of this Agreement, and Contractor agrees to remove or 
to cause to be removed any such liens or claims in the nature of a lien or bond claim within 
10 Days upon receiving notice or obtaining actual knowledge of the existence of such liens 
or claim. In addition, Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless City 
from and against any and all such liens and claims. This paragraph does not apply to claims 
and liens of Contractor due to non-payment for work performed. 

8.8  FIN AN CI AL R ECORDKE EPI NG AND C IT Y ’S AUD I T RIGHT  

8.8.1 Records for all Agreements between City and Contractor must, upon reasonable notice, be 
open to inspection and subject to audit, scanning, and reproduction during normal 
business working hours. Such audits may be performed by any City’s representative or any 
outside representative engaged by City for the purpose of examining such records. City or 
its designee may conduct such audits or inspections throughout the term of this Agreement 
and for a period of five years after Final Payment or longer if required by law. City’s 
representatives may (without limitation) conduct verifications such as counting employees 
at the Site, witnessing the distribution of payroll, verifying information and amounts through 
interviews and written confirmations with Contractor employees, field and agency labor, 
Subcontractors, and vendors. 

8.8.2 Contractor’s “records” must include any and all information, materials and data of every kind 
and character, including without limitation, records, books, papers, documents, 
subscriptions, recordings, agreements, purchase orders, leases, contracts, commitments, 
arrangements, notes daily diaries, superintendent reports, drawings, receipts, vouchers and 
memoranda, and any and all other agreements, sources of information and matters that 
may in City’s judgment have any bearing on or pertain to any matters, rights, duties or 
obligations under or covered by any Agreement Document. Such records must include (hard 
copy, as well as computer readable data if it can be made available), written policies and 
procedures; time sheets; payroll registers; payroll records; cancelled payroll checks; 
subcontract files (including proposals of successful and unsuccessful bidders, bid recaps, 
negotiation notes, etc.); original bid estimates; estimating work sheets; correspondence; 
Change Order files (including documentation covering negotiated settlements); back-
charge logs and supporting documentation; invoices and related payment documentation; 
general ledger, information detailing cash and trade discounts earned, insurance rebates 
and dividends; and any other Contractor records which may have a bearing on matters of 
interest to City or the Project in connection with Contractor’s dealings with City or the 
Project (all foregoing hereinafter referred to as “records”) to the extent necessary to 
adequately permit evaluation and verification of any or all of the following: 

a. Compliance with Agreement requirements for deliverables; 

b. Compliance with approved Plans and Specifications; 

c. Compliance with § 14.9 below; 

d. Compliance with Agreement provisions regarding the pricing of Change 
Orders; 

e. Accuracy of Contractor representations regarding the pricing of invoices; or 

f. Accuracy of Contractor representations related to claims submitted by 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-40 of 75  

Contractor or any of their employees. 

8.8.3 Contractor must require all payees (examples of payees include Subcontractors, Suppliers, 
Insurance Carriers, etc.) to comply with the provisions of this Section by including the 
requirements hereof in a written agreement between Contractor and payee. Contractor will 
ensure that all payees (including those entering into lump sum agreements) have the same 
right to audit provisions contained in this Agreement included in their agreements with 
Contractor. 

8.8.4 City’s authorized representative(s) (including, without limitation, Project Manager) must have 
reasonable access to Contractor’s facilities, must be allowed to interview all current or former 
employees to discuss matters pertinent to the performance of this Agreement and must be 
provided adequate and appropriate work space, in order to conduct audits in compliance 
with this Section. 

8.8.5 If an audit inspection or examination in accordance with this Section, discloses overpricing 
or overcharges to City (of any nature) by Contractor or Contractor’s Subcontractors in excess 
of $100,000 in addition to making adjustments for the overcharges, the reasonable actual 
cost of City’s audit must be reimbursed to City by Contractor. Any adjustments or payments 
which must be made as a result of any such audit or inspection of Contractor’s invoices or 
records must be made within a reasonable amount of time (not to exceed 90 Days) from 
presentation of City’s findings to Contractor. 

8.8.6 In addition to the normal paperwork documentation Contractor typically furnishes to City, 
Contractor agrees to furnish, upon written request from City, any of the documentation 
necessary for City to exercise its audit rights under this Section 8.8 in computer readable file 
formats (Word, Excel, or .pdf), as City may designate. 

8.8.7 City, its authorized representative, and the appropriate agency, reserve the right to 
audit Contractor’s records in compliance with local, state or federal policies, statutes 
or at City’s discretion, within three (3) years of Final Acceptance of the Work. 

 
SECTION 9 - CHANGES TO THE AGREEMENT 

9.1 FIELD ORDERS 
City may authorize minor changes in the Work not involving an adjustment in the 
Agreement Price or the Agreement Times, which are consistent with the overall intent of 
the Agreement Documents.  These may be accomplished by a written Field Order on the 
standard form approved and executed by City.  Such Field Orders must be binding and 
Contractor must perform the change promptly. If Contractor believes that a Field Order 
justifies an increase in the Agreement Price or Agreement Time, Contractor may make a 
claim therefor as provided in Section 7.2. 

9.2 EXTRA WORK/CHANGES IN THE WORK 

9.2.1 City reserves the right to make such changes in the Plans and Specifications for the Work, 
as it may deem appropriate and any such change as set forth in a written Change Order 
must be deemed a part of this Agreement as if originally incorporated herein. 

9.2.2 In the event City and Contractor cannot agree on the terms of a Change Order, or 
when circumstances otherwise require, the Project Manager has the authority to direct the 
Contractor to perform extra work, if the work in question is an item not provided for in the 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-41 of 75  

Agreement as awarded. The Project Manager will have the authority to determine, based 
upon factual evidence presented by the Contractor, whether the work in question is an 
item not provided for in the Agreement as awarded. If the Project Manager directs the 
Contractor to perform extra work, the Project Manager’s instructions will include a price 
that the Contractor cannot exceed in charging the City for the extra work. Upon receipt of 
the Project Manager’s directions to perform extra work, the Contractor must promptly 
proceed with the extra work and document the actual cost thereof. Contractor’s right to 
payment for extra work will be determined under Subsection 9.2.4 below. The Contractor is 
responsible to manage the extra work to ensure that the price limits set by the Project 
Manager are not exceeded. Contractor must perform the extra work and submit 
documentation for the actual cost of the extra work to the City. A Change Order will be 
issued to cover this work. 

9.2.3 Contractor will not be entitled to payment for extra work unless a written Change Order, in 
form and content prescribed by City, has been executed by City. On all requests for Change 
Orders, Contractor must specify the increased or decreased costs and whether it 
believes any extensions of time will be necessary to complete its Work as modified by the 
Change Order. If extra work is performed under Subsection 9.2.2 above, a corresponding 
Change Order will be prepared, approved and processed by City before payment can be 
made to Contractor. 

9.2.4 In general, pricing for Change Orders will include the same mark-up percentages that were 
in effect when the Agreement was awarded. The cost or credit to the City resulting from a 
change in the Work is subject to Appendix 1 (Policy Statement for Calculating Delays and 
Damages) and will be determined, based on the type of pricing for the Agreement involved, 
as follows: 

a. By mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized in a form acceptable 
to City; 

b. By unit prices stated in the Agreement Documents; 

c. When the City determines that a Unit Price Book Job Order associated with 
a Job Order Agreement requires a Change Order, by using the same Total 
Cost Data and CCI that are in effect when the Change Order is anticipated to 
be issued; or 

d. By actual cost and a percentage fee covering overhead and profit, as follows: 

(i) Contractor will perform the extra work and be compensated for actual 
cost of labor, materials and equipment. 

(ii) Contractor will have the right to add the fee percentage applicable 
to the Work under the Agreement, or if no such fee has been agreed 
to by the parties, not more than five percent (5%) to the 
Subcontractor’s prices for authorized extra work performed solely 
by Subcontractors. Such percentage will include all of Contractor’s 
charges for overhead, profit, administration and supervision. 

(iii) Contractor or Subcontractor will have the right to add the fee 
percentage applicable to Work under the Agreement for self-
performed extra work, or if no such fee has been agreed to by the 
parties, Contractor’s or Subcontractor’s maximum total allowable 
additions for overhead, profit, administration and supervision will 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-42 of 75  

not exceed ten percent (10%) of actual verifiable labor, materials 
and equipment for such self- performed extra work. 

9.2.5 Any agreement which modifies the terms of the Agreement (including Change Orders) 
will be approved in writing by the Project Manager. Once properly executed by both 
parties, these modifications to the Agreement will have the same effect as if they had been 
included in the original Agreement. 

9.3 ACCURACY OF CHANGE ORDER PRICING INFORMATION 

9.3.1 Subject to Sections 9.3.2 through 9.3.4, signature by the contracting parties constitutes full 
accord and satisfaction between City and Contractor for all costs, damages, and expenses 
of whatever kind of nature, including delay, impact or acceleration damages, which may be 
occasioned by a Change Order of other modification of the Agreement agreed to in writing. 

9.3.2 Accurate Change Order Pricing Information: Contractor agrees that it is responsible for 
submitting accurate cost and pricing data to City to support its Fixed Price, Unit Price, or 
Cost Plus Change Order Proposals or other Agreement Price adjustments under the 
Agreement. Contractor further agrees to submit Change Order proposals with cost and 
pricing data which is accurate, complete, current, and in accordance with the terms of 
the Agreement with respect to pricing of change orders. Contractor agrees that any “buy-
out savings” on Change Orders will accrue 100% to Owner. “Buy-out savings” are defined 
as any savings negotiated by the Contractor with a Subcontractor or a Material Supplier 
after receiving approval of a Change Order amount that was designated to be paid to a 
specific Subcontractor or Supplier for the Approved Change Order work. 

9.3.3 Right to Verify Change Order Pricing Information: Contractor agrees that City, through 
its designated representative, will have the right to examine, copy, and scan the records 
of the Contractor, Subcontractor or Sub-Subcontractor’s records (during the Agreement 
period and up to three years after final payment is made on the Agreement) to verify 
the accuracy and appropriateness of the pricing data used to price all Change Order 
proposals or claims. Contractor agrees that if City determines the cost and pricing data 
submitted (whether approved or not) was inaccurate, incomplete, not current, or not in 
compliance with the terms of the Agreement regarding pricing of Change Orders, an 
appropriate Agreement Price adjustment will be made. Such post-approval Contact Price 
adjustments will apply to all levels of contractors and Subcontractors and to all types of 
Change Order proposals, specifically including Fixed Price, Unit Price, and Cost Plus Change 
Orders. 

9.3.4 Requirements for Detailed Change Order Pricing Information: Contractor agrees to 
provide a detailed breakdown of allowable labor and labor burden cost (i.e., base wage 
rate of applicable classifications of workers, payroll taxes, and insurance and benefits 
costs).  This information will be used to evaluate the potential cost of labor and labor burden 
related to Change Order work. It is intended that this information represent an accurate 
estimate of the Contractor’s actual labor and labor burden cost components. Information 
is not intended to establish fixed billing or Change Order pricing labor rates. However, at the 
time Change Orders are priced, the submitted cost data for labor rates may be used to price 
Change Order work. The accuracy of any such agreed upon labor rate cost components 
used to price Change Orders will be subject to later audit. Approved Change Order 
amounts may be adjusted later to correct the impact of inaccurate labor cost 
components if the agreed upon labor cost components are determined to be inaccurate. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-43 of 75  

9.4 EMERGENCIES 
In any emergency affecting the safety of persons or property, Contractor will act, at its 
discretion, to prevent threatened damage, injury or loss. Any change in the Agreement Price 
or Agreement Time resulting from emergency work will be determined as provided in this 
Section. 

9.5 DIFFERING SITE CONDITIONS 

9.5.1 If Differing Site Conditions are encountered at the Project Site, then notice by the observing 
party must be given to the other party promptly before conditions are disturbed (to the extent 
practicable) and in no event later than 14 Days after first observance of the conditions. 
City will promptly investigate such conditions and, if City determines that Differing Site 
Conditions exist and they materially cause an increase in the cost of, or time required for, 
performance of any part of the Work, Contractor will be entitled to equitable adjustment 
in the Agreement Price or Construction Schedule (and other time requirements), or both. 
If it is determined by City that the conditions at the Project Site are not Differing Site 
Conditions and no change is justified, then City will so notify Contractor in writing, stating the 
reasons. Claims in opposition to such determination must be made within 14 Days after 
City has given notice of its decision. If City and Contractor cannot agree on an adjustment 
in the Agreement Price or Construction Schedule (and other time requirements), the 
adjustment may be submitted to dispute resolution as provided these General Conditions. 

9.6 CHANGES IN LAWS, REGULATIONS, OR LEGAL REQUIREMENTS OR TAXES 
In the event of a material change in applicable Laws, Regulations, or Legal Requirements, or 
taxes subsequent to the date of the Agreement by the parties, Contractor may be entitled 
to a Change Order, in City’s discretion, to the extent Contractor can document to the 
satisfaction of City that such change significantly increases Contractor’s actual cost of 
performance of the Work. 

 
SECTION 10 -SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION 

10.1 SUSPENSION 
City may suspend the Agreement and Contractor’s performance in accordance with MAG 
Specifications § 105.1 and 108.7. 

10.2 TERMINATION BY THE CITY FOR CAUSE 

10.2.1 MAG Specifications § 108.11 applies to the Agreement. 

10.2.2 City may also terminate the Agreement if City determines, in its sole discretion that 
Contractor has: 

a. After prior written notice, refused or failed to supply enough properly skilled 
workers or proper materials; 

b. After prior written notice, failed to make payment to Subcontractors for 
materials or labor in accordance with the respective agreements between 
Contractor and the Subcontractors; 

c. After prior written notice, disregards laws, ordinances, or rules, regulations or 
orders of a public authority having jurisdiction;  

d. After prior written notice, repeatedly failed to comply with written directives 
from City; 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-44 of 75  

e. Is adjudged as bankrupt or insolvent; 

f. Made a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; 

g. Appointed a trustee or receiver for itself or any of its property; 

h. Filed a petition to take advantage of any debtor's act, or to reorganize under 
the bankruptcy or similar laws; or 

i. Otherwise breached a provision of the Agreement Documents or any other 
Agreement between City and Contractor. 

10.2.3 When any of the above reasons exist, City may terminate the Agreement, without prejudice 
to any other rights or remedies of City, after giving Contractor and Contractors’ surety, if 
any, 7 Days written notice of City’s intent to terminate the Agreement and Contractor’s 
failure to cure any such reasons. Upon such termination, City may: (1) take possession of 
the Site and of all materials thereon owned by Contractor; or (2) finish the Work by whatever 
reasonable method City may deem expedient. When City terminates the Agreement for one 
of the reasons state above, Contractor will not be entitled to receive further payment until 
the Work is finished. If the unpaid balance of the Agreement Price existing at the time of 
such termination exceeds the costs and expenses of finishing the Work and any other 
damages incurred by City, such excess will be paid to Contractor. If such costs, expenses 
and damages exceed such unpaid balance, Contractor must pay the difference to City. This 
obligation for payment will survive termination of the Agreement. 

10.3 TERMINATION BY CITY FOR CONVENIENCE 
City may also terminate the Agreement at any time for its convenience upon 7 Days written 
notice to Contractor specifying the termination date. In the event of termination which is 
not the fault, in whole or in part, of Contractor, City will pay to Contractor only such 
compensation, including reimbursable expenses, due for Work properly performed on 
the Project prior to the termination date. Upon any termination of the Agreement, no 
further payments will be due from City to Contractor. 

10.4 A.R.S. § 38-511 
The Agreement is subject to, and may be terminated by City in accordance with, the 
provisions of A.R.S. § 38-511. 

 
SECTION 11 -INSURANCE AND BONDS 

11.1 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

11.1.1 After Agreement award, the Contractor must furnish the City a certificate of insurance on a 
standard insurance industry ACORD form.  The ACORD form must be issued by an insurance 
company authorized to transact business in the State of Arizona possessing a current A.M. 
Best, Inc. rating of A-7, or better and legally authorized to do business in the State of Arizona 
with policies and forms satisfactory to City.  Provided, however, the A.M. Best rating 
requirement may not be deemed to apply to required Worker’s Compensation coverage. 

11.1.2 The Contractor and any of its Subcontractors must procure and maintain, until all of their 
obligations have been discharged, including any warranty periods under this Agreement are 
satisfied, the insurances set forth below. 

11.1.3 The insurance requirements set forth below are minimum requirements for this Agreement 
and in no way limit the indemnity covenants contained in this Agreement. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-45 of 75  

11.1.4 The City in no way warrants that the minimum insurance limits contained in this Agreement 
are sufficient to protect Contractor from liabilities that might arise out of the performance 
of the Agreement services under this Agreement by Contractor, its agents, representatives, 
employees, or Subcontractors and the Contractor is free to purchase any additional 
insurance as may be determined necessary. 

11.1.5 Failure to demand evidence of full compliance with the insurance requirements in this 
Agreement or failure to identify any insurance deficiency will not relieve the Contractor 
from, nor will it be considered a waiver of its obligation to maintain the required insurance 
at all times during the performance of this Agreement. 

11.1.6 Use of Subcontractors:  If any Work is subcontracted in any way, the Contractor must 
execute a written agreement with Subcontractor containing the same Indemnification 
Clause and Insurance Requirements as the City requires of the Contractor in this 
Agreement.  The Contractor is responsible for executing the Agreement with the 
Subcontractor and obtaining Certificates of Insurance and verifying the insurance 
requirements. 

11.2 MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE 

11.2.1 The Contractor must provide coverage with limits of liability not less than those stated 
below. 

11.2.1.1 Commercial General Liability-Occurrence Form.  Contractor must maintain “occurrence” 
form Commercial General Liability insurance with a limit of not less than $2,000,000 for each 
occurrence, $4,000,000 aggregate.  Said insurance must also include coverage for products 
and completed operations, independent contractors, personal injury and advertising injury. 
If any Excess insurance is utilized to fulfill the requirements of this paragraph, the Excess 
insurance must be “follow form” equal or broader in coverage scope than underlying 
insurance. 

11.2.1.2 Automobile Liability-Any Automobile or Owned, Hired and Non-Owned Vehicles.  Contractor 
must maintain Business/Automobile Liability insurance with a limit of $1,000,000 each 
accident on Contractor owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles assigned to or used in the 
performance under this Agreement.  If any Excess or Umbrella insurance is utilized to fulfill 
the requirements of this paragraph, the Excess  or Umbrella insurance must be “follow 
form” equal or broader in coverage scope than underlying insurance. 

11.2.1.3 Workers Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance.  Contractor must maintain 
Workers Compensation insurance to cover obligations imposed by federal and state 
statutes having jurisdiction of Contractor employees engaged in the performance of Work 
under this Agreement and must also maintain Employers’ Liability insurance of not less than 
$1,000,000 for each accident and $1,000,000 disease for each employee.  

11.2.1.4 Builders’ Risk/Installation Floater Insurance.  The Contractor bears all responsibility for loss 
to all equipment or Work under construction.  Unless waived in writing by the City the 
Contractor will purchase and maintain in force Builders’ Risk/Installation Floater insurance 
on the entire Work until completed and accepted by the City.  This insurance will be Special 
Causes of Loss policy form, (minimally including perils of fire, flood, lightning, explosion, 
windstorm and hail, smoke, aircraft and vehicles, riot and civil commotion, theft, vandalism, 
malicious mischief, and collapse), completed value, replacement cost policy form equal to 
the Agreement Price and all subsequent modifications.  The Contractor’s Builders’ 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-46 of 75  

Risk/Installation Floater insurance must be primary and not contributory. 

a. Builders’ Risk/Installation Floater insurance must cover the entire Work 
including reasonable compensation for architects and engineers’ services 
and expenses and other “soft costs” made necessary by an insured loss.  
Builders’ Risk/Installation Floater insurance must provide coverage from the 
time any covered property comes under the Contractor’s control and or 
responsibility, and continue without interruption during course of 
construction, renovation and or installation, including any time during which 
any Project property or equipment is in transit, off Site, or while on Site for 
future use or installation.  Insured property must include, but not be limited 
to, scaffolding, false work, and temporary buildings at the Site.  This 
insurance must also cover the cost of removing debris, including demolition 
as may be legally required by operation of any law, ordinance, regulation or 
code. 

b. The Contractor must also purchase and maintain Boiler and Machinery 
insurance with the same requirements as Builders’ Risk/Installation Floater 
insurance cited above if the Work to be performed involves any exposures 
or insurable property normally covered under a Boiler and Machinery 
insurance policy or made necessary as required by law or testing 
requirements in the performance of this Agreement.  The Contractor will be 
responsible for any and all deductibles under these policies and the 
Contractor waives all rights of recovery and subrogation against the City 
under the Contractor- Builders’ Risk/Installation Floater insurance described 
herein. 

c. Builders’ Risk/Installation Floater Insurance must be maintained until 
whichever of the following first occurs: (i) final payment has been made; or, 
(ii) until no person or entity, other than the City, has an insurable interest in 
the property required to be covered. 

d. The Builders’ Risk/Installation Floater insurance must be endorsed so that 
the insurance will not be canceled or lapse because of any partial use or 
occupancy by the City. 

e. The Builders Risk/Installation Floater insurance must include as named 
insureds, the City, the Contractor, and all tiers of Subcontractors and others 
with an insurable interest in the Work who will be named as additional 
insureds unless they are able to provide the same level of coverage with the 
City and Contractor named as additional insureds. Certificates must contain 
a provision that the insurance will not be canceled or materially altered 
without at least 30 Days advance notice to the City.  The City must also be 
named as a Loss Payee under the Builders’ Risk/Installation Floater coverage. 

f. The Builders Risk/Installation Floater insurance must be written using the 
Special Causes of Loss policy form, replacement cost basis. 

g. All rights of subrogation under the Builders Risk/Installation Floater 
insurance are, by this Agreement, waived against the City, its officers, 
officials, agents and employees. 

h. The Contractor is responsible for payment of all deductibles under the 
Builders’ Risk/Installation Floater insurance policy. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-47 of 75  

11.2.1.5 Pollution Liability Insurance (Including Errors and Omissions).  For Job Orders, Pollution 
Liability Insurance is only required if applicable and determined on a project specific basis.  
Contractor must maintain Pollution Liability Insurance with a limit of not less than 
$5,000,000 per loss, $5,000,000 aggregate for losses caused by pollution conditions 
including coverage for bodily injury, property damage, defense costs, clean-up costs, and 
completed operations that arise from the operations of Contractor as described in this 
Agreement.  

a. The policy must provide for complete professional service coverage, 
including coverage for pollution liability that is a result of a breach of 
professional duties. 

b. The policy must provide for protection again claims for third-party bodily 
injury, property damage, or environmental damage caused for pollution 
conditions resulting from general contracting activities for which Contractor 
is legally liable. 

c. The policy must provide for cleanup costs when mandated by governmental 
entities, when required by law, or as a result of third-party claims. 

d. Completed Operations Coverage must be kept in place for up to the statute 
of repose. 

e. The policy must be endorsed to include the following additional insured 
language: “City, its elected officials, trustees, employees, agents, and 
volunteers must be named as additional insureds with respect to liability 
arising out of the activities performed by, or on behalf of Contractor”.   

f. If Work under this Agreement requires the transportation of any hazardous 
material or regulated substances, Contractor must carry Auto Liability with a 
CA 9948 endorsement or equivalent.   

g. If Work under this Agreement requires the disposal of any hazardous 
materials from the job site, Contractor must obtain a certificate of insurance 
for Pollution Legal Liability from the disposal site operator with a limit of not 
less than $5,000,000 per loss, $5,000,000 aggregate. 

11.3 ADDITIONAL POLICY PROVISIONS REQUIRED 

11.3.1 Self-Insured Retentions or Deductibles.  Any self-insured retentions and deductibles must 
be declared and approved by the City.  If not approved, the City may require that the insurer 
reduce or eliminate any deductible or self-insured retentions with respect to the City, its 
officers, officials, agents, employees, and volunteers. 

11.3.2 The Contractor’s insurance must contain broad form contractual liability coverage. 

11.3.3 The Contractor's insurance coverage must be primary insurance with respect to the City, its 
officers, officials, agents, and employees.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by 
the City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees will be in excess of the coverage 
provided by the Contractor and must not contribute to it. 

11.3.4 The Contractor's insurance must apply separately to each insured against whom claim is 
made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability. 

11.3.5 Coverage provided by the Contractor must not be limited to the liability assumed under the 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-48 of 75  

indemnification provisions of this Agreement. 

11.3.6 The policies must contain a severability of interest clause and waiver of subrogation against 
the City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, for losses arising from Work 
performed by the Contractor for the City. 

11.3.7 The Contractor, its successors and or assigns, are required to maintain Commercial General 
Liability insurance as specified in this Agreement for a minimum period of 3 years following 
completion and acceptance of the Work.  The Contractor must submit a Certificate of 
Insurance evidencing Commercial General Liability insurance during this 3 year period 
containing all the Agreement insurance requirements, including naming the required 
Additional Insureds set forth herein. 

11.3.8 If a Certificate of Insurance is submitted as verification of coverage, the City will reasonably 
rely upon the Certificate of Insurance as evidence of coverage but this acceptance and 
reliance will not waive or alter in any way the insurance requirements or obligations of this 
Agreement.   

11.3.9 Insurance Cancellation During Agreement Term.   

11.3.9.1 If any of the required policies expire during the life of this Agreement, the Contractor must 
forward renewal or replacement Certificates to the City within 10 Days after the renewal 
date containing all the required insurance provisions. 

11.3.9.2 Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Agreement must provide 
the required coverage and must not be suspended, voided or canceled except after 30 Days 
prior written notice has been given to the City, except when cancellation is for non-payment 
of premium, then 10 Days prior notice may be given.  Such notice must be sent directly to 
Chandler Law-Risk Management Department, Post Office Box 4008, Mailstop 628, Chandler, 
Arizona  85225. If any insurance company refuses to provide the require notice, the 
Contractor or its insurance broker must notify the City of any cancellation, suspension, non-
renewal of any insurance within 7 Days of receipt of insurers’ notification to that effect. 

11.3.10 City as Additional Insured.  The above-referenced policies are to contain, or be endorsed to 
contain, the following provisions: 

11.3.10.1 The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policies are to contain, or be 
endorsed to contain, the following provisions:  The City, its officers, officials, agents, and 
employees are additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of activities performed 
by, or on behalf of, the Contractor including the City's general supervision of the Contractor; 
Products and Completed Operations of the Contractor; and automobiles owned, leased, 
hired, or borrowed by the Contractor. 

11.3.10.2 The City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees must be additional insureds to the full 
limits of liability purchased by the Contractor even if those limits of liability are in excess of 
those required by this Agreement. 

11.4 BONDS AND OTHER PERFORMANCE SECURITY 

11.4.1 After Agreement award, Contractor must provide a Performance Bond and a Payment 
Bond, each in an amount equal to the full amount of the Agreement Price. 

11.4.2 Each such bond must be executed by a surety company or companies holding a Certificate 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-49 of 75  

of Authority to transact surety business in the State of Arizona, issued by the Director of the 
Arizona Department of Insurance and must be named in the current list of "Companies 
Holding Certificates of Authority as Acceptable Sureties on Federal Bonds and as Acceptable 
Reinsuring Companies" as published in Circular 570 (amended) by the Audit Staff Bureau of 
Accounts, U.S. Treasury Department. A copy of the Certificate of Authority must accompany 
the bonds. The Certificate must have been issued or updated within two (2) years prior to 
the execution of this Agreement. The bonds must be written or countersigned by an 
authorized representative of the surety who is either a resident of the state of Arizona or 
whose principal office is maintained in this state, as by law required. 

11.4.3 The bonds must be made payable and be acceptable to City. The bond forms for the 
performance and payment bonds must be in the forms required under A.R.S. § 34-221, et. 
Seq., as in Appendices 4  and 5 of these General Conditions. 

11.4.4 Upon the request of any person or entity appearing to be a potential beneficiary of bonds 
covering payment of obligations arising under the Agreement Documents, Contractor must 
promptly furnish a copy of the bonds or must permit a copy to be made. 

11.4.5 All bonds submitted for this Project must be provided by a company which has been rated AM 
Best rating of A- or better for the prior four quarters by the latest edition of the ‘Results 
Best’s Key Rating Guide (Property/Casualty)” published by the A.M. Best Company. 

11.4.6 Personal or individual bonds are not acceptable. 

11.4.7 If the surety on any Bond furnished by Contractor is declared a bankrupt or becomes 
insolvent, or Contractor’s right to do business is terminated in any state where any part of 
the Project is located, or it ceases to meet the requirements of this Section 11.4, Contractor 
must within 5 Days thereafter substitute another Bond and surety, both of which must be 
acceptable to City. 

 
SECTION 12 - INDEMNIFICATION 

12.1 To the extent permitted by law, the Contractor and its owners, officers, directors, agents, 
employees, and subconsultants (collectively "lndemnitor") must indemnify, save, and hold 
harmless the City and its officers, officials, agents, and employees (collectively "lndemnitee") 
from any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses (including court 
costs, attorneys' fees, and costs of claim processing, investigation, and litigation) (collectively 
"Claims") caused or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent, reckless, 
wrongful, or willful acts, errors, or omissions of Indemnitor in connection with this 
Agreement. This indemnity includes any Claim or amount arising out of or recovered under 
workers' compensation laws or on account of Indemnitor's failure to conform to any federal, 
state, or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation, or court decree. Indemnitor must 
indemnify lndemnitee from and against any and all Claims, except those arising solely from 
lndemnitee's own negligent, reckless, wrongful, or willful acts, errors, or omissions. 
Indemnitor is responsible for primary loss investigation, defense, and judgment costs where 
this indemnification applies. In consideration of the award of this Agreement, Indemnitor 
agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against lndemnitee for losses arising from or 
related to this Agreement. Indemnitor's obligations under this provision survive the 
termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

 
SECTION 13 -DISPUTE RESOLUTION 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-50 of 75  

13.1 All disputes arising out of or relating to the Agreement, the Work or the Project, other than 
termination under Section 10, will be resolved pursuant to the Dispute Resolution 
process set forth in Appendix 6 of these General Conditions, and not pursuant to MAG 
Specifications § 110. 

13.2 Contractor agrees that during any dispute between the parties, Contractor will continue to 
perform its obligations under the Agreement until such dispute is resolved. 

13.3 Notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement, City has the right to immediately file 
in court and pursue an action for a temporary restraining order and injunctive relief against 
Contractor if City determines that such action is necessary to protect its interests under the 
Agreement, to obtain specific performance of any provision of the Agreement, to advance 
the completion of the Project, or to protect health, welfare and safety. 

 
 
SECTION 14 - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

14.1 AGREEMENT DOCUMENTS 

14.1.1 The Agreement Documents are intended to permit the parties to complete the Work 
and all obligations required by the Agreement Documents within the Agreement Times for 
the Agreement Price. The Agreement Documents are intended to be complementary and 
interpreted in harmony so as to avoid conflict, with words and phrases interpreted in a 
manner consistent with construction and design industry standards. 

14.1.2 It is the intent of the Agreement Documents to describe a functionally complete Project (or 
part thereof) to be constructed in accordance with the Agreement Documents.  Any labor, 
documentation, services, materials, or equipment that may reasonably be inferred from the 
Agreement Documents or from prevailing custom or trade usage as being required to 
produce the intended result must be provided by Contractor whether or not specifically 
called for at no additional cost to City.   

14.1.3 The Agreement Documents establish the rights and obligations of the parties and include 
the Agreement, Addenda (which pertain to the Agreement Documents), Contractor's Bid or 
Proposal (including documentation accompanying the Bid and any post-Bid documentation 
submitted prior to Agreement award) when attached as an exhibit to the Agreement, the 
accepted Project Schedule, the Notice to Proceed, the Performance Bond, the Payment 
Bond, Project Design, Engineering and Specifications, these General Conditions, the Project 
Specific Special Provisions, Technical Specifications, Agreement Drawings, as the same may 
be more specifically identified in the Agreement, Change Orders, Work Change Directives, 
Field Orders and the written interpretations and clarifications of the Design Professional or 
City representative and Modifications issued after execution of the Agreement.  Approved 
Shop Drawings and the reports and drawings of subsurface and physical conditions are not 
Agreement Documents.   

14.1.4 In the event of any inconsistency, conflict, or ambiguity between or among the Agreement 
Documents, the Agreement Documents will take precedence as follows from highest to 
lowest: Change Orders, Addenda, Agreement, Project Specific Special Provisions, General 
Conditions, Technical Specifications, Drawings/Plans, Chandler Amendments to MAG 
Standard Specifications and Chandler Standard Details, and MAG Uniform Standard 
Specifications and Details for Public Works Construction.  If applicable to this Agreement, 
Federal Provisions prevail. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-51 of 75  

14.1.5 On the Drawings, given dimensions will take precedence over scaled measurements and 
large scale drawings over small-scale drawings.  

14.1.6 Clarifications and interpretations of the Agreement Documents will be issued by the Design 
Professional through the City. 

14.1.7 The headings used in this Agreement or any other Agreement Documents, are for ease of 
reference only and must not in any way be construed to limit or alter the meaning of any 
provision. 

14.1.8 The Agreement Documents form the entire agreement between City and Contractor. 
No oral representations or other agreements have been made by the parties except as 
specifically stated in the Agreement Documents. 

14.1.9 The Agreement Documents may not be changed, altered, or amended in any way except in 
writing signed by a duly authorized representative of each party in the form of a Change 
Order. 

14.1.10 Re-Use of Documents.  Neither Contractor nor any Subcontractor, manufacturer, fabricator, 
supplier or distributor will have or acquire any title to or ownership rights in any of the 
Drawings, Specifications or other documents (or copies of any thereof) prepared by or 
bearing the seal of the Design Professional; and they must not re-use any of them on 
extensions of the Project or any other project without written consent of City and the Design 
Professional and specific written verification or adaptation by the Design Professional. 

14.2 REFERENCE STANDARDS 

14.2.1 Reference to standards, specifications, manuals, or codes of any technical society, 
organization, or association, or to Laws or Regulations, whether such reference be specific 
or by implication, will mean the standard, specification, manual, code, or Laws or 
Regulations in effect at the time of opening of Bids (or on the Effective Date of the 
Agreement if there were no Bids), except as may be otherwise specifically stated in the 
Agreement Documents. 

14.2.2 The provisions of any such standard, specification, manual or code, or any instruction of a 
Supplier will not change the duties or responsibilities of City, Contractor, Design 
Professional or Project Manager, or any of their Subcontractors, consultants, agents, or 
employees from those set forth in the Agreement Documents, nor will any such provision 
or instruction assign to City, Contractor, Design Professional, or any of their agents, or 
employees any duty or authority to supervise or direct the performance of the Work or any 
duty or authority to undertake responsibility inconsistent with the provisions of the 
Agreement Documents. 

14.3 COMPLIANCE WITH ARIZONA LAW AND FEDERAL LAW 

14.3.1 Compliance with A.R.S. § 41-4401.  Pursuant to the provisions of A.R.S. § 41-4401, the 
Contractor hereby warrants to the City that the Contractor and each of its subcontractors 
(“Subcontractors”) must comply with all Federal Immigration laws and regulations that 
relate to the immigration status of their employees and the requirement to use E-Verify set 
forth in A.R.S. §23-214(A).   

14.3.2 A breach of the Contractor Immigration Warranty constitutes a material breach of this 
Agreement and subject to penalties up to and including termination of this Agreement. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-52 of 75  

14.3.3 The City retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any Contractor or Subcontractor 
employee who works on this Agreement to ensure that the Contractor or Subcontractor is 
complying with the Contractor Immigration Warranty.  The Contractor agrees to assist the 
City in the conduct of any such inspections.  

14.3.4 The City may, at its sole discretion, conduct random verifications of the employment records 
of the Contractor and any Subcontractors to ensure compliance with Contractors 
Immigration Warranty.  The Contractor agrees to assist the City in performing any such 
random verifications.  

14.3.5 The provisions of this Article must be included in any agreement the Contractor enters into 
with any and all of its subcontractors who provide services under this Agreement or any 
subcontract.  “Services” are defined as furnishing labor, time or effort in the State of Arizona 
by a contractor or subcontractor.  Services include construction or maintenance of any 
structure, building or transportation facility or improvement to real property.  

14.4 HAZARDOUS ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS 

14.4.1 Contractor will not be responsible for any Hazardous Environmental Condition uncovered 
or revealed at the Site which was not shown or indicated in Drawings or Specifications or 
identified in the Agreement Document to be within the scope of the Work.  Contractor will 
be responsible for a Hazardous Environmental Condition created with any materials 
brought to the Site by Contractor, Subcontractors, Suppliers, or anyone else for whom 
Contractor is responsible. 

14.4.2 If Contractor encounters a Hazardous Environmental Condition or if Contractor or anyone 
for whom Contractor is responsible creates a Hazardous Environmental Condition. 
Contractor must immediately:  

a. Secure or otherwise isolate such condition; 

b. Stop all Work in connection with such condition and in any area affected 
thereby; and 

c. Notify City and promptly thereafter confirm such notice in writing. 

14.4.3 City will promptly retain a qualified expert to evaluate such condition or take corrective 
action, if any. 

14.4.4 Contractor will be responsible for any and all civil or criminal penalties, fines, damages, or 
other charges imposed by any regulatory agency or court for sewage discharges that are in 
violation of applicable statutes and laws and that are a result, direct or indirect, of work 
performed under this Agreement.  Contractor will also be responsible for reimbursement 
to City for administration, reporting, and tracking expenses required as a result of any spill 
event.  In the event the regulatory agency or court imposes a probationary period, 
Contractor must post bond for the probationary period to ensure that all such costs are 
reimbursed to City.  This responsibility will apply whether penalties are imposed directly on 
Contractor or any of its Subcontractors, or the City of Chandler.  Contractor must defend 
and indemnify City against such penalties.  Regulatory agencies may include, but are not 
limited to, the Arizona Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) and the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA). 

14.5 COOPERATION AND FURTHER DOCUMENTATION 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-53 of 75  

Contractor agrees to provide City such other duly executed documents as may be 
reasonably requested by City to implement the intent of the Agreement Documents. 

14.6 ASSIGNMENT 
Neither Contractor nor City will, without the written consent of the other assign, transfer or 
sublet any portion of this Agreement or part of the Work or the obligations required by 
the Agreement Documents, any such assignment will be void, will transfer no rights to the 
purported assignee, and would be a material breach of the Agreement. 

14.7 SUCCESSORS 
Contractor and City intend that the provisions of the Agreement Documents are binding 
upon the parties, their employees, agents, heirs, successors and assigns. 

14.8 LAWFUL PRESENCE 
Pursuant to A.R.S. §§ 1-501 and 1-502, City is prohibited from awarding an agreement to any 
natural person who cannot establish that such person is lawfully present in the United 
States.  To establish lawful presence, a person must produce qualifying identification and 
sign a City-provided affidavit affirming the identification provided is genuine.  This 
requirement will be imposed at the time of agreement award.  This requirement does not 
apply to business organizations such as corporations, partnerships, or limited liability 
companies. 

14.9 NO BOYCOTT OF ISRAEL CERTIFICATION 
By Contractor's signature on this Agreement, Contractor certifies under A.R.S. § 35-393.01 
that Contractor is not currently engaged in and for the duration of this Agreement will not 
engage in a boycott of Israel. 

14.10 NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY 
Nothing under the Agreement Documents will be construed to give any rights or benefits 
in the Agreement Documents to anyone other than City and Contractor, and all duties and 
responsibilities undertaken pursuant to the Agreement Documents will be for the sole and 
exclusive benefit of City and Contractor and not for the benefit of any other party, unless 
otherwise expressly set forth in the Agreement Documents. 

14.11 GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE 
The Agreement and all Agreement Documents will be deemed to be made under, and will 
be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Arizona without 
regard to the conflicts or choice of law provisions thereof.  Any court action to enforce any 
provision of the Agreement or to obtain any remedy with respect hereto must be brought 
in the Superior Court, Maricopa County, Arizona, and for this purpose, each party hereby 
expressly and irrevocably consents to the jurisdiction and venue of such Court. 

14.12 SEVERABILITY 
If any provision of the Agreement Documents or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance will be invalid, illegal or unenforceable to any extent, the remainder of the 
affected provision, the remainder of the Agreement Documents, and the application 
thereof will not be affected and will be enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

14.13 LEGAL REQUIREMENTS 
At all times relevant to its entry into this Agreement and performance of the Services and 
the Work, Contractor must fully comply with all Laws, Regulations, or Legal Requirements 
applicable to City, the Project, and the Agreement, including, without limitation, those set 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-54 of 75  

forth on Exhibit C of the Agreement. 

14.14 PARTIAL INVALIDITY 
If any provision of the Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, 
void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will nevertheless continue in full force 
without being impaired or invalidated in any way. 

14.15 ATTORNEYS' FEES 
Should either party to the Agreement bring an action to enforce any provision of the 
Agreement, the prevailing party will be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys' fees and 
costs in connection therewith. 

14.16 CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

14.16.1 Contractor agrees to disclose any financial or economic interest with the Project property, 
or any property affected by the Project, existing prior to the execution of the Agreement. 
Further, Contractor agrees to disclose any financial or economic interest with the Project 
property, or any property affected by the Project, if Contractor gains such interest during 
the course of this Agreement. If Contractor gains financial or economic interest in the 
Project during the course of this Agreement, this may be grounds for terminating this 
Agreement. Any decision to terminate the Agreement must be at the sole discretion of City. 

14.16.2 Contractor will not engage the services on this Agreement of any present City employee who 
was involved as a decision maker in the selection or approval processes, or who negotiated 
or approved billings or Agreement Modifications for this Agreement. 

14.16.3 Contractor agrees that it will not perform services on this Project for a contractor, 
subcontractor, or any supplier, not covered under this Agreement. 

14.17 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
Contractor is and must be an independent contractor. Any provisions in the Agreement 
Documents that may appear to give City the right to direct Contractor as to the details of 
accomplishing the Work or to exercise a measure of control over the Work means that 
Contractor must follow the wishes of City as the results of the Work only. These results 
must comply with all applicable laws and ordinances. 

14.18 NOTICE OF INJURY 
Should City or Contractor suffer injury or damage to their person or property because of 
any error, omission or act of the other party or of any of the other party's employees or 
agents or others for whose acts the other party is legally liable, claim must be made in 
writing to the other party within 7 Days of the first observance of such injury or damage. 

14.19 CONFIDENTIALITY 
Contractor, for the benefit of City, hereby agrees it will not release or cause or permit 
to be released to the public any press notices, publicity (oral or written) or advertising 
promotion relating to, any statement regarding, or any other public announcement or 
disclosure or cause or permit to be publicly announced or disclosed, in any manner 
whatsoever, the specific terms and conditions of this Agreement or any comment relating 
to the Project or the Site. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Contractor will be entitled to 
disclose the terms of the Agreement to the extent required by law or in the course of 
enforcing or defending a claim or action hereunder. Contractor must give City reasonably 
prompt notice of any disclosure or statement made pursuant to this provision. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-55 of 75  

14.20 DATA CONFIDENTIALITY 

14.20.1 As used in the Agreement, “data” means all information, whether written or verbal, including 
plans, specifications, renderings, photographs, studies, investigations, audits, analyses, 
samples, reports, calculations, internal memos, meeting minutes, data field notes, work 
product, proposals, correspondence and any other similar documents or information 
prepared by, obtained by, or transmitted to the City in the performance of this Agreement. 

14.20.2 Contractor agrees that all data, regardless of form, including originals, images, and 
reproductions, prepared by, obtained by, or transmitted to City in connection with the 
Contractor’s performance of this Agreement is confidential and proprietary information 
belonging to City. 

14.20.3 Except as specifically provided in this Agreement, Contractor or its Subcontractors must not 
divulge data to any third party without prior written consent of City.  Contractor or its 
Subcontractors must not use data for any purposes except to perform Work required under 
this Agreement.  These prohibitions will not apply to the following data provided Contractor 
has first given the required notice to City: 

a. Data which was known to Contractor or its Subcontractors prior to its 
performance under this Agreement unless such data was acquired in 
connection with Work performed for City; 

b. Data which was acquired by Contractor or its Subcontractors in its 
performance under this Agreement and which was disclosed to Contractor 
or its Subcontractors by a third party, who to the best of Contractor’s or its 
Subcontractor’s knowledge and belief, had the legal right to make such 
disclosure and Contractor or its Subcontractors are not otherwise required 
to hold such data in confidence; or  

c. Data which is required to be disclosed by virtue of law, regulation, or court 
order, to which the Contractor or its Subcontractors are subject. 

14.20.4 In the event the Contractor or its Subcontractors are required or requested to disclose data 
to a third party, or any other information to which the Contractor or its Subcontractors 
became privy as a result of any other agreement with City, the Contractor must first notify 
City as set forth in this Section of the request or demand for the data.  The Contractor or its 
Subcontractors must give City sufficient facts so that City can be given an opportunity to 
first give its consent or take such action that City may deem appropriate to protect such 
data or other information from disclosure. 

14.20.5 Unless prohibited by law, within 10 Days after completion of services for a third party on 
real or personal property owned or leased by City, the Contractor must promptly deliver, as 
set forth in this Section, a copy of all data to City.  All data will continue to be subject to the 
confidentiality agreements of this Agreement.  

14.20.6 Contractor or its Subcontractors assume all liability for maintaining the confidentiality of 
the data in its possession and agree to compensate City if any of the provisions of this 
Section are violated by Contractor, its employees, agents, or Subcontractors.  Solely for the 
purposes of seeking injunctive relief, it is agreed that a breach of this Section will be deemed 
to cause irreparable harm that justified injunctive relief in court.  Contractor agrees that the 
requirements of this Section will be incorporated into all subcontracts entered into by 
Contractor.  A violation of this Section may result in immediate termination of this 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-56 of 75  

Agreement without notice.   

14.21 SURVIVAL 
All warranties, representations and indemnifications by Contractor must survive the 
completion or termination of this Agreement. 

14.22 COVENANTS AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES 
Contractor warrants that no person has been employed or retained to solicit or secure 
this Agreement upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, 
brokerage, or contingent fee, and that no member of City Council, or any employee of 
City has any interest, financially, or otherwise, in the firm. For breach or violation of this 
warrant, City will have the right to annul the Agreement without liability or at its discretion 
to deduct from the Agreement Price or consideration, the full amount of such commission, 
percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee. 

14.23 NO WAIVER 
The failure of either party to enforce any of the provisions of the Agreement Documents or 
to require performance of the other party of any of the provisions hereof must not be 
construed to be a waiver of such provisions, nor will it affect the validity of the Agreement 
Documents or any part thereof, or the right of either party to thereafter enforce each and 
every provision. 

14.24 NONEXCLUSIVE REMEDIES 
The remedies set forth in this Agreement are cumulative and not exclusive, and failure to 
exercise any remedy (including, without limitation, any right to terminate) will not preclude 
any party from exercising any other right in seeking any other remedy available to it at law 
or in equity. 

14.25 PROJECT COMMUNICATIONS 

14.25.1 All communications concerning the performance of the Work or the Project will be provided 
to the designated Project Manager and Contractor’s Representative set forth in Article 1 
of the Agreement. City may change the designated Project Manager and, subject to 
Section 4.4.20 of these General Conditions, Contractor may change Contractor 
Representative, by written notice to the other. 

14.25.2 Project communications may be exchanged by e-mail, but email communications cannot 
change the terms of the Agreement or the Scope of Work, or effectuate any change that 
requires a written Change Order. 

14.25.3 When any provisions of the Agreement Documents requires Contractor or the Design 
Professional to give written notice to City, it will be deemed to have been validly given if 
delivered in person or if delivered at or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, 
to the Parties indicated in Agreement Article 1, incorporated by reference.   

14.25.4 When any provisions of the Agreement Documents requires City, Project Manager, or the 
Design Professional to give written notice to Contractor, it will be deemed to have been 
validly given if delivered in person to the person designated in the Agreement Documents 
as Contractor’s Resident Superintendent, or if delivered at or sent by registered or certified 
mail, postage prepaid, to Contractor at the last address in the Agreement Documents or 
such substitute address which Contractor designates in writing, or to the business address 
known to the giver of notice. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-57 of 75  

14.26 DRUG FREE WORKPLACE PROGRAM 

14.26.1 City has adopted a policy establishing a drug free workplace for itself and as a requirement 
for Contractors doing business with City, to ensure the safety and health of employees 
working on City projects. 

14.26.2 Contractor must require a drug free workplace for all employees working under the 
Agreement. Specifically, all employees of Contractor who are working under an 
agreement with City must be notified, in writing, by Contractor that they are prohibited 
from the manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or unlawful use of a 
controlled substance in the workplace. 

14.27 Failure to require a drug free workplace in accordance with the City’s policy may result 
in termination of the Agreement and possible debarment form bidding on future City 
projects. 

SECTION 15 - PROVISIONS APPLICABLE SOLELY TO GMP AND COST-BASED AGREEMENTS, 
CHANGE ORDERS, AND JOB ORDERS 

15.1 ADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS 
The definitions set forth in Section 2 apply to GMP and Cost-Based Agreements, Change 
Orders, and Job Orders, together with the additional definitions set forth below. 

 
Baseline Cost Model – 
A breakdown and estimate of the scope of the Project developed by CM@Risk pursuant to Section 17.5 
of these General Conditions. 

 

CM@Risk or Construction Manager at Risk – 
The person or firm selected by City to provide pre-construction and/or construction services as 
detailed in a Construction Manager at Risk Agreement with City. In these General Conditions, the 
term “Contractor” includes CM@Risk under both Pre-Construction and Construction Services 
Agreements. 
CM@Risk Fee or Contractor’s Fee – 
An agreed to percentage in an accepted GMP that represents the Contractor’s fee for performance of 
the Work. 

 

Agreement Documents – 
Where compensation under the Agreement is based upon a GMP accepted by City, the term 
“Agreement Documents” also includes the accepted GMP Proposal. 

 

Agreement Price – 
Where compensation under the Agreement based upon a GMP accepted by City, the term 
“Agreement Price” refers to the GMP. 

 

Cost-Based Agreement, Change Order, or Job Order – 
A Agreement, Change Order, or Job Order where the Agreement Price is based upon the actual 
cost of performing the Work, subject to the terms of the Agreement Documents, including this 
Section 15. These would include those generally referred to as “Cost of the Work plus a Fee with 
a GMP,” “Time and Materials,” or “Cost Plus a Fee.” 

 

Cost of the Work – 
The direct costs necessarily incurred by Contractor in the proper, timely, and complete performance 
on the Work. The Cost of the Work will include only those costs set forth in Section 15.2 of these 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-58 of 75  

General Conditions. 
 

Deliverables – 
The work products prepared by Contractor in performing the scope of work described in the 
Agreement. Some of the major deliverables to be prepared and provided by Contractor during pre-
construction may include but are not limited to: the Baseline Cost Model and Schedule that validate 
City’s plan and budget, Construction Management Plan, Detailed Project Schedule, Schedule of Values, 
alternative system evaluations, procurement strategies and plans, Detailed Cost Estimates, 
construction market surveys, cash flow projections, GMP Proposals, Subcontractor procurement plan, 
Subcontractor agreements, Subcontractor bid packages, Supplier agreements, Constructability 
Review, Cost Control Log, Traffic control and phasing plans and others as indicated in this Agreement 
or required by the Project Team. 
 
Pre-Construction Services Agreement – 
The Agreement entered into between City and the CM@Risk for Pre-Construction Services to be 
provided by the CM@Risk, including, without limitation, the generation of a GMP Proposal. If the GMP 
Proposal is accepted by City and a Construction Agreement is entered into between City and CM@Risk, 
the duties, obligations and warranties of the CM@Risk under the Pre-Construction Services 
Agreement survive and are incorporated into the resulting Construction Agreement. 
 
Pre-Construction Services – 
The services to be provided under the Pre-Construction Services Agreement, including Section 17 of 
these General Conditions. 
 
Detailed Project Schedule – 
The Detailed Project Schedule developed by the CM@Risk for the review and approval of the Project 
Manager in accordance with Section 17.3 of these General Conditions, if applicable. 
 
General Conditions Costs – 
Those costs set forth in Section 4 of Appendix 9 to these General Conditions. 
 
GMP Plans and Specifications – 
The plan and specifications upon which the Guaranteed Maximum price Proposal is based. 
 
GMP Proposal – 
The proposal of Contractor submitted pursuant to Section 17.7 of these General Conditions for the 
entire Work and/or portion (phases) of the Work. 
 
Guaranteed Maximum Price or GMP – 
The Guaranteed Maximum Price set forth in the Agreement, Change Order, or Job Order if applicable. 

15.2 AGREEMENT PRICE 

15.2.1 The Agreement Price for all Agreements, Change Orders, and Job Orders based upon 
payment of the Cost of the Work plus a Fee with a GMP, time and materials, or cost-plus a 
fee will be the Cost of the Work incurred plus the Fee agreed to in writing by City, limited to 
the amount of the GMP, if agreed to. Unless otherwise expressly provided in the Agreement, 
Change Order, or Job Order, all Cost Based pricing will be subject to and limited to GMP. 

15.2.2 The Agreement Price may only be changed as set forth in Section 9 above. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-59 of 75  

15.2.3 Only costs specifically designated as reimbursable costs are eligible for payment by City or 
may be charged against the Agreement Price. All other costs will not be paid by City and will 
not be chargeable against the Agreement Price. 

15.2.4 Cost-Based Agreements. For Agreements, Change Orders, or Job Orders, reimbursable 
costs must be determined pursuant to Appendix 9 to these General Conditions, Cost of the 
Work, and not by MAG Specifications §109.5. 

15.3 ALLOWANCES 

15.3.1 Contractor must include in the Agreement Price all Allowances stated in the Agreement 
Documents and agreed to in writing by City. Items covered by these Allowances must be 
supplied for such amounts and by such persons as City may direct, provided Contractor will 
not be required to employ persons against whom Contractor makes a reasonable objection. 
Materials, labor, and equipment under an Allowance will be selected by City in accordance 
with a schedule to be mutually agreed upon by City, Design Professional and Contractor or 
otherwise in reasonably sufficient time to avoid delay in the Work. 

15.3.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Agreement Documents: 

15.3.2.1 These Allowances must cover the cost to Contractor, less any applicable trade discount, of 
the materials, labor, and equipment required by the Allowances, delivered at the Site, and 
all applicable taxes; 

15.3.2.2 Contractor’s costs for unloading and handling on the Site, labor, installation costs, overhead, 
profit and other expenses relating to materials, labor, and equipment required by the 
Allowance must be included in the Agreement Sum and not in the Allowance; and 

15.3.2.3 Whenever the cost is more or less than the Allowance, the Agreement Sum must be 
adjusted accordingly by Change Order, the amount of which will recognize the difference 
between actual costs for an Allowance item and the amount of the Allowance item and 
changes, if any, in handling costs on the Site, labor, installation costs, overhead, profit and 
other expenses. 

15.4 CONTINGENCY 
An agreed to amount in the GMP that may only be used in accordance with the terms set 
forth in these General Conditions and with prior written approval by the City. 

15.4.1 Construction Contingency.  This GMP includes a dollar amount listed as a Construction 
Contingency which will be readily available for increased costs for subcontractors, material, 
and equipment subject to prior approval of City, which approval will not be withheld 
unreasonably.  The Construction Contingency may also be used, at the discretion of City, to 
reimburse CM@Risk for unexpected costs due to (a) scope gaps between trade 
subcontractors; (b) agreement default by trade subcontractors; (c) unforeseen field 
conditions, but only as defined in Section 9.5 above; (d) work completed to meet the intent 
of the design, but which was not indicated on the plans; (e) costs overruns not covered by 
allowances; (f) costs of corrective work not provided for elsewhere; and (g) implementation 
of any Recovery Plan.  Cost for which CM@Risk desires to be paid from the Construction 
Contingency must be documented by CM@Risk on a time and materials basis and are 
subject to verification by City.  If agreed to by City, a “Use of Contingency” form will be 
executed by both parties authorizing the actual cost of the work to be paid and included in 
the Work Item Direct Costs.  The Construction Contingency is not allocated to any particular 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-60 of 75  

item of the Project but may be used for any portion of the work as determined above.  Any 
amount not used in the Construction Contingency will belong to City and will reduce the 
GMP.  

15.4.2 Owner’s Contingency.  This GMP also includes a dollar amount listed as an Owner’s 
Contingency which may be used only by the City (owner department) for upgrades and 
changes in scope or other changes not already included within the intent of the Project 
Program.  City will provide CM@Risk with a Work Change Directive authorizing CM@Risk to 
perform the additional work and to transfer funds from the Owner’s Contingency to the 
Work Item Direct Costs category to be paid with such direct costs.  These additional costs 
will be in an amount mutually agreed upon by CM@Risk and City or will be documented by 
CM@Risk on a time and materials basis and are subject to verification by City.  Any amount 
not used in the Owner’s Contingency will belong to the City and will reduce the GMP. 

15.5 REDUCTION IN RETENTION 
If the Agreement Price is based upon a GMP, in order to receive payment of one-half of the 
retention as set forth in Section 8.1.5 above, Contractor must also submit to the Project 
Manager a complete accounting of the Actual Reimbursable Cost of the Work to date, 
including all such documentation (including, without limitation, invoices, subcontract, 
subcontractor change orders, purchase orders, records of payment, etc.) as City may require, 
to establish whether the payments made to Contractor equal, exceed, or are less than the 
actual reimbursable Cost of the Work to date. Any excess payments by City, as determined 
by the Project Manager, will be deducted from the one-half retention payment to be made 
to Contractor, and any additional excess amounts paid to Contractor will be refunded by 
Contractor to City. The Project Manager’s determinations as to Actual Reimbursable Cost 
of the Work will be the basis of payment until final Project Closeout and Final Payment 
under the Agreement. 

15.6 FINAL PAYMENT 
If the Agreement Price is based upon a GMP, as a further condition precedent to Final 
Payment by City, Contractor must submit to the Project Manager a complete final 
accounting of the Actual Reimbursable Cost of the Work, including all such documentation 
(including, without limitation, invoices, subcontracts, subcontractor change orders, 
purchase orders, records of payment, etc.) as City may require, to establish whether the 
payments made to Contractor equal, exceed, or are less than the Actual Reimbursable Cost 
of the Work to date. Any excess payments by City, as determined by the Project Manager, 
will be deducted from the one-half retention payment to be made to Contractor, and any 
additional excess amounts paid to Contractor will be refunded by Contractor to City. 
Disputes relating to the Final Cost of the Work will be subject to City’s audit rights under 
Sections 8.8 above and 15.7 below, and the dispute resolution process under Section 13 
above. 

15.7 OPEN BOOK 
On any GMP-based or Cost-Based Agreement, Job Order, or Change Order, City may attend 
any and all meetings or discussions pertaining to the Project, including bid openings, and 
must have access to all books, invoices, accounts, memoranda, correspondence, and 
written communications or records of any kind pertaining to the Project, including without 
limitation, those stored in electronic format. 

15.8 DIFFERING SITE CONDITIONS AND/OR CHANGE IN LAWS 
A Change Order for increased costs under Section 9.5 or 9.6 above will only be considered 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-61 of 75  

or granted by City to the extent such actual, documented costs are justified. 
 
SECTION 16 - PROVISIONS APPLICABLE SOLELY TO JOB ORDER AGREEMENTS (JOC) 

16.1 ADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS 
The definitions set forth in Sections 2 and below will apply to all Job Order Agreements and 
Job Orders. In addition, the definitions set forth in Section 15.1 above will apply to all Cost-
Based Job Orders. 

 
Agreement – 
Includes the Job Order Master Agreement and Job Order Project Agreements issued and agreed to by City 
and JOC Contractor. 

 
JOC Contractor’s Coefficient – 
A numerical factor that represents JOC Contractor total costs (indirect and direct costs, sales tax, 
profit, etc.) and other adjustments for market conditions. 
 
Job Order Request for Proposal (RFP) – 
The Request for Proposals issued by City for each Job Order Project Agreement relating to a specific 
Project. 
 
Job Order Cost Proposal – 
The Proposal submitted by JOC Contractor in response to a Job Order Request for Proposal (RFP) issued 
by City to develop a Job Order Project Agreement for a specific Project. 
 
Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) Job Order – 
Job Order under which JOC Contractor is compensated for actual costs incurred. 
 
Job Order Project Agreement (Job Order) – 
The agreement for a specific project, as it may be modified by all Change Orders, executed by the 
Parties, which incorporates the terms and conditions of the Job Order Master Agreement.  

16.2 ORDERING AND PROCESSING PROCEDURES FOR JOB ORDERS 

16.2.1 The process for developing and issuing a Job Order for a particular Project consists of three 
(3) procedures: (1) issuance of a RFP by City; (2) JOC Contractor’s response to the RFP in the 
form of JOC Contractor’s Job Order Cost Proposal; and (3) Issuance of a Job Order by City, as 
set for below. 

16.2.2 RFP’s For Job Orders 

16.2.2.1 City will provide to JOC Contractor RFP with a Scope of Work (SOW) describing the Work to 
be performed, which may include special instructions and conditions, material submittal 
requirements, and, if applicable, a complete set of sketches, construction drawings and 
specifications for the Job Order. 

16.2.2.2 Some Job Order RFP’s will be issued by City without detailed sketches, drawing and 
specifications and will rely on JOC Contractor to produce them for City review and approval 
and is considered to be Pre-Construction and incidental design services included in JOC 
Contractor’s overhead for GMP Job Orders. In addition JOC Contractor will not be 
reimbursed for any Pre-Job Order costs, including proposal preparation, attendance during 
negotiations, or site visits. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-62 of 75  

16.2.3 JOC Contractor’s Job Order Cost Proposal 

16.2.3.1 JOC Contractor must respond within ten (10) calendar days of the RFP date or site visit, 
whichever is later or as otherwise indicated on a case-by-case basis, by submitting JOC 
Contractor’s Job Order Cost Proposal to the City representative. 

16.2.3.2 Unless otherwise required under the terms of the RFP, JOC Contractor’s Job Order Cost 
Proposal must include the following. 

a. JOC Contractor’s Job Order Cost Proposal in PDF and electronic format; 

b. A Project Schedule and schedule of values that reflects the costs of each work 
element on the schedule. The schedule must show all milestones (e.g., 
permits, submittals, ordering materials, demolition, work phases, closeout 
and completion date); and 

c. Necessary documentation will be required to indicate that adequate scoping, 
layout, setup and planning to accomplish the Work has been done. 
Examples of documentation that might reasonably be expected include 
sketches, drawings, calculations, catalog cuts and specifications produced 
to a level of detail and skill that could be expected of experienced, 
competent Project Managers with five or more periods experience in their 
respective trade. 

16.2.3.3 JOC Contractor must select Subcontractors based on qualifications alone or on a 
combination of qualifications and price and must not select Subcontractors based on 
price alone. A qualifications and price selection may be a one-step selection based on 
a combination of qualifications and price or two-step selection. In a two-step selection, 
the first step must be based on qualifications alone and the second step may be based or 
a combination of qualifications and price or on price alone. 

16.2.3.4 Upon request, JOC Contractor must provide City with copies of Subcontractor quotes and 
the basis for selection of each Subcontractor. 

16.2.3.5 If City objects to a selected Subcontractor, City will make the objection and the reasons for 
the objection known to the JOC Contractor. JOC Contractor must then present an 
acceptable Subcontractor for the applicable discipline. City will not unreasonably object 
to or withhold approval of a Subcontractor. 

16.2.3.6 For self-performed work, the City retains the right to have the JOC Contractor establish JOC 
Contractor’s costs by bidding their costs against at least three (3) other interested trade 
Contractors. No self- performed work will be allowed to be performed on a lump sum basis. 

16.2.4 Issuance of Job Order 

16.2.4.1 City Representative will compare the JOC Contractor’s Job Order Cost Proposal with the City’s 
estimate, schedules and other requirements, and then, if the City Representative 
determines it is in the best interest of City, arrange a meeting with JOC Contractor, at which 
time the JOC Contractor’s Job Order Cost Proposal will be discussed and negotiated. 

16.2.4.2 If the City Representative determines that it is in the best interest of the City, City will then 
issue a Job Order to JOC Contractor for execution. 

16.2.4.3 Specific Job Orders may vary, but unless agreed to by City in writing otherwise, the content 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-63 of 75  

of Job Orders under the Agreement will generally be as follow, all of which will be signed 
and/or initialed by JOC Contractor’s designated representative: 

a. The description of the Scope of the Work and Project Schedule (attached as 
Exhibit A to the Job Order); 

b. The address or location of the Work; 

c. The Agreement Price for Work (Construction) included in the Project 
(attached as Exhibit B to the Job Order); 

d. The name of the JOC Contractor representative for the Project; 

e. The Drawings and Specifications for the Project; 

f. If any shop drawings, project date and/or samples are required for the Job 
Order, the date for delivery of each required item (included in the Project 
Schedule, Exhibit A to the Job order); and 

g. Project Specific Provisions, if any, in Exhibit A  to the Job Order, 
including, without limitation, whether any of the following are required: 
Pre-Construction Conference, weekly progress meetings, field office, 
storage enclosure, materials and equipment handling facility, submittals, 
shop drawings, product data, equipment list, samples, project manual, 
schedule of values, Construction progress schedule, narrative reports, 
progress report, progress charts, progress photographs, materials status 
report, Construction diagram, Construction status report, operation and 
maintenance data, operating maintenance instructions and parts list, and 
as-build drawings. 

16.2.5 Job Order Intent. Each Job Order will be interpreted to include all items reasonably 
necessary to complete the Project under that Job Order as described in the scope of the 
Work in that Job Order. All Work must be performed in a professional manner and all 
materials used must be new and of the highest quality and of the type best adapted to 
their purpose, unless otherwise specified. The Notice to Proceed date, and the award date 
established therein, will be deemed an integral part of the Job Order the same as if set forth 
therein. 

16.3 INCIDENTAL DESIGN SERVICES 

16.3.1 This effort includes all “extensions of design” for systems that are typically specified in 
a performance oriented manner by consultants and designers. Examples include: fire 
sprinkler systems, fire alarm and sprinkler systems, DDC controls, control systems, 
prefabricated metal building and similar situations. These designs are normally provided 
under submittals as a shop drawing with engineering backup and as appropriate, seals of 
registered engineers specializing in the particular system. 

16.3.2 Incidental design includes all documents, sketches, schematic diagrams, floor plan 
layouts, equipment schedules and other documents produced by the JOC Contractor to 
define the work required for projects that the City does not develop formal or abbreviated 
designs requiring a seal by a registered engineer. Incidental design does not include 
preparation of designs requiring an architect or engineer seal. 

16.3.3 JOC Contractor represents, covenants, and agrees, and contractually assumes the 
obligation to furnish, all of the required Design Services through properly licensed and 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-64 of 75  

experienced Design Professionals in complete accordance with all of the duties imposed 
on a Design Professional under the Agreement Documents, Laws, Regulations, or Legal 
Requirements, and the common law. 

16.3.4 All Design Documents (and all other Project-related documents, models, computer 
drawings and other electronic expression, photographs and other expressions CADD, and 
BIM files and images included) that JOC Contractor and/or JOC Contractor’s Design 
Professional(s) prepare in connection with a Job Order and the copyrights therein 
(collectively, the “Instruments of Service”) will be the property of City. JOC Contractor 
covenants and agrees to execute any additional document reasonably requested by City 
to confirm such assignment without any additional compensation. 

16.4 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 

16.4.1 The following subsections of this Section 16.4 set forth requirements beyond those set forth 
in Section 4 above which apply to Construction Services performed under a Job Order. 

16.4.2 JOC Contractor must perform the Work using only those firms, team members and 
individuals designated by JOC Contractor consistent with each Job Order or otherwise 
approved by City pursuant to the General Conditions. No other entities or individuals may 
be used without the prior written approval of the Project Manager. 

16.4.3 Construction Phasing 

16.4.3.1 City use of the facilities is anticipated while the Work is being performed. The Work must 
be planned and accomplished so that there will be a minimum of interference and 
inconvenience to occupants in the building and agencies in the vicinity and to other 
craftsmen who may have to do work in the affected facilities. Any blockage of building 
exits or driveways must be coordinated in advance. 

16.4.3.2 If applicable, furniture, portable office equipment and wall appurtenances not rigidly 
fastened to the walls must be moved by JOC Contractor, protected from damage and 
replaced to the original position upon completion of the work. If the work required by 
the Job Order will not allow furniture and portable office equipment to be replaced to its 
original position, new locations will be designated by City. Incidental costs associated with 
moving one-piece furnishings up to approximately 150 pounds to perform such tasks as 
painting, carpet or tile replacement, etc., are considered a general cost of building 
renovation and must be included in the JOC Contractor’s Coefficient. Costs for large scale 
or wholesale removal and replacement of large quantities of desks or modular 
workstations, copiers, multiple full file cabinets, etc. to another location or storage outside 
the work space, or disassembly and reassembly of modular furniture is not considered 
part of the JOC Contractor’s Coefficient and will be priced separately. 

16.4.3.3 The work must, so far as practicable, be done in definite sections or divisions and confined 
to limited areas which must be completed before work in other sections or divisions are 
begun. 

16.4.4 Work Site Conflicts. In the event of a conflict between JOC Contractor and others in an 
occupied facility or where other Contractors are performing work on the same facility 
under other Agreements, City will decide to dispute and that decision will be final. 

16.4.5 Ownership of Work Product. Work Product prepared or otherwise created in connection 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-65 of 75  

with the performance of this Agreement, including the Work, are to be and remain the 
property of City. For purposes of this provision, “Work Product” will include all designs, 
drawings, plans, specifications, ideas, renderings and other information or matter, in 
whatever form created (e.g., electronic or printed) and in all media now known or 
hereinafter created. All Work Product will be considered Work Made for Hire as defined 
in the United States Copyright Act 17 U.S.C. §101 (Copyright Act). If for any reason any such 
Work is found not to be a work for hire, JOC Contractor hereby transfers and assigns 
ownership of the copyright in such Work to City. The rights in this Section are exclusive to 
City in perpetuity. 

16.5 OPTIONAL LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 

16.5.1 Specific Job Orders. City will have the right to assess liquidated damages in relation to 
any specific JOC Project Agreement as set forth below. 

16.5.2 Substantial Completion Liquidated Damages. JOC Contractor acknowledges and agrees 
that if JOC Contractor fails to obtain Substantial Completion of the Work within the 
Agreement Time, City will sustain extensive damages and serious loss as a result of such 
failure. The exact amount of such damages will be extremely difficult to ascertain. 
Therefore, City and JOC Contractor agree that if JOC Contractor fails to achieve Substantial 
Completion of the Work within the Agreement Time, City will be entitled to retain or 
recover from JOC Contractor, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, the sum per 
calendar day as indicated in MAG § 108.9. 

16.5.3 Final Acceptance Liquidated Damages. For the same reasons set forth in Section 16.5.2 
above, City and JOC Contractor further agree that if JOC Contractor fails to achieve Final 
Acceptance of the Work within the Agreement Time, City will be entitled to retain or recover 
from JOC Contractor, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, the sum per calendar 
day as indicated in MAG § 108.9 commencing from the actual date of Substantial 
Completion or Final Acceptance as required under any specific JOC Project Agreement. 

16.5.4 MAG Liquidated Damages. Liquidated damages provisions in MAG § 108.9 may apply to any 
specific JOC Project Agreement.   

16.5.5 City may deduct liquidated damages assessed pursuant to this Section 16.5 from any 
unpaid amounts then or thereafter due JOC Contractor under the Agreement or any 
specific JOC Project Agreement between JOC Contractor and City. Any liquidated damages 
not so deducted from any unpaid amounts due JOC Contractor must be payable to City 
at the demand of City, together with interest from the date of the demand at the highest 
lawful rate of interest payable to JOC Contractor. 

16.6 PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT 

16.6.1 Performance Assessment. After the Final Acceptance of Work under each Job Order, City 
will complete a written evaluation of the performance of JOC Contractor on the Job Order. 

16.6.2 Consideration in Assignment of Work. JOC Contractor’s record of cost, schedule and 
quality performance and comparative assessments will be significant considerations in 
City’s determination whether to award future Job Orders. JOC Contractor agrees that any 
determination by City not to not award future Job Orders or Option periods based on 
performance will be at the sole discretion of City. 

 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-66 of 75  

SECTION 17 - PROVISIONS APPLICABLE SOLELY TO PRE-CONSTRUCTION SERVICES FOR 
CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK 

17.1 ADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS 

The definitions set forth in Section 2 and 15.1 above will apply to all Pre-Construction 
Services Agreements. 

17.2 GENERAL 

17.2.1 CM@Risk must perform the  Services required by, and in accordance with the Agreement 
Documents and as outlined in Exhibit A of the Agreement to the satisfaction of the 
Project Manager, exercising the degree of care, skill, diligence and judgment a professional 
construction manager experienced in the performance of such services for construction 
and/or facilities of similar scope, function, size, quality, complexity and detail to the 
Project in urban areas throughout the United States, would exercise at such time, under 
similar conditions. CM@Risk must, at all times, perform the required services consistent 
with sound and generally accepted engineering principles and construction management 
and construction contracting practices. 

17.2.2 As a participating member of the Project Team, CM@Risk must provide to City and Design 
Professional a written evaluation of City’s Project Program and budget, each in terms of 
the other, with recommendations as to the appropriateness of each. CM@Risk must 
prepare a Baseline Cost Model that validates City’s budget. The Baseline Cost Model must 
include all assumptions and basis of estimates in enough detail so that the Project Team 
can compare future detail estimates to the Baseline Cost model for variances. City and 
Design Professional will provide all the reasonably required data that is available in 
order to reach agreement between the team members that the Baseline Cost Model is an 
accurate projection of the costs of the Project. 

17.2.3 CM@Risk must attend Project Team meetings, which may include, but are not limited to, 
bi- weekly Project management meetings, Project workshops, special Project meetings, 
construction document rolling reviews, public meetings and partnering sessions. CM@Risk 
attendance at design or other meetings in which CM@Risk is provided the opportunity but 
does not actively participate and/or is not properly prepared is not acceptable. Repeated 
instances of non-participation and/or lack of preparedness will be grounds for termination 
of CM@Risk Agreement for default. 

17.2.4 CM@Risk must provide Pre-Construction Services, described herein, in a timely manner 
and consistent with the intent of the most current Drawings and Specifications. CM@Risk 
must promptly notify City in writing whenever CM@Risk determines any Drawings or 
Specifications are inappropriate for the Project and/or cause changes in the scope of Work 
that deviates more than the allowed contingencies within the Baseline Cost Model or 
requires an adjustment in the Baseline Cost Model, Detailed Cost Estimate, Detailed 
Project Schedule, GMP Proposals and/or in the Agreement Time for the Work, to the extent 
such as established. 

17.2.5 CM@Risk when requested by City, must attend, make presentations and participate as may 
be appropriate in public agency and or community meetings, relevant to the Project. 
CM@Risk must provide drawings, schedule diagrams, budget charges and other materials 
describing the Project when their use is required or appropriate in any such public agency 
meetings. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-67 of 75  

17.2.6 Ownership of Work Product. All Work Product prepared or otherwise created in connection 
with the performance of this Agreement, including the Work, are to be and remain the 
property of City. For purposes of this provision, “Work Product” will include all designs, 
drawings, plans, specifications, ideas, renderings and other information or material, in 
whatever form created (e.g., electronic or printed) and in all media now know or hereinafter 
created. All Work Product will be considered Work Made for Hire as defined in the United 
States Copyright Act 17 U.S.C. 

§101 (Copyright Act). If for any reason any such Work is found not to be a work for 
hire, Contractor hereby transfers and assigns ownership of the copyright in such Work to 
City. The rights in this Section are exclusive to City in perpetuity. 

17.2.7 CM@Risk represents to City in completing Pre-Construction Services and providing the 
reports and analysis required thereunder, that Work can be properly and timely 
constructed within the GMP Proposal, if accepted. CM@Risk does not assume any design 
responsibilities unless specifically called for in the scope of work, but CM@Risk will be 
responsible for their errors, omissions or inconsistencies included in the Work. 

17.3 DETAILED PROJECT SCHEDULE 

17.3.1 The fundamental purpose of the Detailed Project Schedule is to identify, coordinate and 
record the tasks and activities to be performed by all of the Project Team members and 
then for the Project Team to utilize that Deliverable as a basis for managing and 
monitoring all member’s compliance with the schedule requirements of the Project. 
Each Project Team member is responsible for its compliance with the Detailed Project 
Schedule requirements. CM@Risk must, however, develop and maintain the Detailed 
Project Schedule on behalf of and to be used by the Project Team based on input from the 
other Project Team members. The Baseline Project Schedule must be developed as part 
of the Baseline Cost Model. The Detailed Project Schedule must use the Critical Path 
method (“CPM”) technique, unless required otherwise, in writing by City. CM@Risk must 
use scheduling software acceptable to City to develop the Detailed Project Schedule. 
The Detailed Project Schedule must be presented in graphical and tabular reports as 
agreed upon by the Project Team. If Project phasing as described below is required, the 
Detailed Project Schedule must indicate milestone dates for the phases once 
determined. As part of construction phase, City may require CM@Risk to prepare a 
“resource loaded” schedule for all work, including work performed by Subcontractors, 
detailing each of the project tasks and the required/anticipated number of personnel per 
day for each task. CM@Risk must also indicate on the schedule its ability to meet said 
required/anticipated personnel requirements. 

17.3.2 CM@Risk must include and integrate in the Detailed Project Schedule the services and 
activities required of City, Design Professional and CM@Risk including all construction 
phase activities based on the input received from City and the Design Professional. 
The Detailed Project Schedule must define activities as determined by City to the extent 
required to show: (a) the coordination between preliminary design and various pre-
construction documents, (b) any separate long-lead procurements, (c) any permitting 
issues, (d) any land, right-of-way, or easement acquisition, (e) bid packaging strategy and 
awards to Subcontractors and Suppliers, (f) major stages of construction, (g) start-up and 
commissioning, and (h) occupancy of the completed Work by City. The Detailed Project 
Schedule must include by example and not limitation, proposed activity sequences and 
durations for design, procurement, construction and testing activities, milestone dates for 
actions and decisions by the Project Team, preparation and processing of shop drawings 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-68 of 75  

and samples, delivery of materials or equipment requiring long-lead time procurement (if 
any), milestone dates for various construction phases, Total Float for all activities to the 
extent authorized by City, relationships between the activities, City’s occupancy 
requirements showing portions of the Project having occupancy priority, and proposed 
dates for Final Acceptance. 

17.3.3 A Baseline Project Schedule must be initiated with the project Baseline Cost Model and 
agreed to by the project team at the same time. CM@Risk must update and maintain a 
detailed Project Schedule throughout pre-construction such that it will not require major 
changes at the start of the construction phase to incorporate CM@Risk’s plan for the 
performance of the construction phase Work. CM@Risk must provide updates and/or 
revisions to the Detailed Project Schedule for use by the Project Team, whenever required, 
but no less often than at the Project Team meetings. CM@Risk must include with such 
submittals a narrative describing its analysis of the progress achieved to-date vs. the 
Baseline Project Schedule, including any concerns regarding delays or potential delays, and 
any recommendations regarding mitigating actions. 

17.3.4 If phased construction is deemed appropriate at the time of developing the Baseline Cost 
Model or during the development of the Detailed Project Schedule, and City approves, 
CM@Risk must review the design and make recommendations regarding the phased 
issuance of Construction Documents to facilitate phased construction of the Work, with 
the objective of reducing the Project Schedule and/or Cost of the Work. CM@Risk must take 
into consideration such factors as natural and practical lines of work severability, 
sequencing effectiveness, access and availability constraints, total time for completion, 
construction market conditions, labor and materials availability, and any other factors 
pertinent to saving time and cost. 

17.3.5 Long Lead Time Items. As part of developing the Detailed Project Schedule, CM@Risk must 
identify all long lead time materials, fabrications, equipment, or other items which may 
impact the Project Schedule and may require early action on the part of the Project Team. 
Dates for selecting and ordering long lead time items will be included and highlighted 
in the Detailed Project Schedule 

17.3.6 Equipment Plan. Contractor must develop an Equipment Plan that addresses all rental 
and owned equipment, regardless of whether such equipment will be provided by 
CM@Risk or subcontractor(s), that will be necessary to construct the Project and the cost 
of which will be included as a Cost of the Work in the GMP Proposal. The Equipment Plan 
will seek to minimize the cost of the equipment to City and maximize the efficient and 
coordinated use of the equipment for completion of the Project. The Equipment Plan will 
not only include the costs and allowable lease rates for the equipment, but will also include 
an equipment schedule that will be incorporated into the Detailed Project Schedule and the 
Schedule of Values submitted with the GMP Proposal. 

17.4 DESIGN DOCUMENT REVIEWS 

17.4.1 CM@Risk must evaluate periodically the availability of labor, materials/equipment, cost- 
sensitive aspects of the design; and other factors that may create an unacceptable variance 
to the Baseline Cost Model and/or Baseline Project Schedule. 

17.4.2 CM@Risk must recommend, in conjunction with the Project Team, those additional surface 
and subsurface investigations that, in its professional opinion, are required to provide the 
necessary information for CM@Risk to construct the Project. These additional 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-69 of 75  

investigations, if agreed to be necessary by the Project Manager and the Design 
Professional, will be acquired by City and copies of the reports will be provided to CM@Risk. 

17.4.3 CM@Risk must meet with the Project Team as required to review designs during their 
development. CM@Risk must familiarize itself with the evolving documents through 
pre- construction. CM@Risk must proactively advise the Project Team and make 
recommendations on factors related to construction costs, and concerns pertaining to the 
feasibility and practicality of any proposed means and methods, selected materials, 
equipment and building systems, and, labor and material availability. CM@Risk must 
furthermore advise the Project Team on proposed site improvements, excavation and 
foundation considerations, as well as, concerns that exist with respect to coordination of 
the Drawings and Specifications. CM@Risk must use established value analysis principles 
in recommending cost effective alternatives. 

17.4.4 CM@Risk must routinely conduct constructability and bid-ability reviews of the Drawings 
and Specifications as necessary to satisfy the needs of the Project Team. The reviews must 
attempt to identify all discrepancies and inconsistencies in the Construction Documents 
especially those related to clarity, consistency, completeness and coordination of Work of 
Subcontractors and Suppliers. 

17.4.4.1 CM@Risk must evaluate whether: (a) the Drawings and Specifications are configured to 
enable efficient construction; (b) design elements are standardized; (c) construction 
efficiency is properly considered in the Drawings and Specifications; (d) 
module/preassembly design is prepared to facilitate fabrication, transport and installation; 
(e) sequences of Work required by or inferable from the Drawings and Specifications are 
practicable; (f) the design has taken into consideration efficiency issues concerning access 
and entrance to the site, laydown and storage of materials, staging of site facilities, 
construction parking, and other similar pertinent issues; and (g) the design maintains 
continued operation of the existing City systems and maintains traffic on adjacent 
roadways. CM@Risk must also review the Drawings and Specifications to ensure that what 
is depicted therein can be constructed as designed and must promptly inform the Project 
Team of any issues. 

17.4.4.2 CM@Risk must check cross-reference and complementary Drawings and sections within 
the Specifications and in general evaluate whether: (a) the Drawings and Specifications 
are sufficiently clear and detailed to minimize ambiguity and to reduce scope interpretation 
discrepancies; (b) named materials and equipment are commercially available and are 
performing well, or otherwise, in similar installations; (c) Specifications include alternatives 
in the event a requirement cannot be met in the field; and (d) in its professional opinion, the 
Project is likely to be subject to Differing Site Conditions. 

17.4.4.3 The results of the reviews must be provided to Project Team in formal, written reports 
clearly identifying all reviewed documents and the discovered discrepancies and 
inconsistencies in the Drawings and Specifications with notations and recommendations 
made on the Drawings, Specifications and other documents. CM@Risk must meet with 
Project Team to discuss any findings and review reports. 

17.4.4.4 CM@Risk’s reviews must be from a Contractor’s perspective, and though it will serve to 
eliminate/reduce the number of RFIs) and changes during the construction phase, 
responsibility for the Drawings and Specifications will remain with the Design Professional 
and not CM@Risk. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-70 of 75  

17.4.5 It is CM@Risk’s responsibility to assist the Design Professional in ascertaining that, in 
CM@Risk’s professional opinion, the Construction Documents are in accordance with 
applicable Laws, Regulations, or Legal Requirements, building codes, sound engineering 
principle’s rules and regulations. If CM@Risk recognizes that portions of the Construction 
Documents are at variance with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, building codes, 
sound engineering principle’s rules and regulations, it must promptly notify the Project Team 
in writing, describing the apparent variance of deficiency. However, the Design Professional 
is ultimately responsible for the compliance of the Drawings and Specifications with those 
laws, statutes, ordinances, building codes, rules and regulations. 

17.4.6 The Project Team will routinely identify and evaluate using value analysis principles and 
alternate systems, approaches, design changes that have the potential to reduce Project 
costs while still delivering a high quality and fully functional Project consistent with 
the Project Program. If the Project Team agrees, CM@Risk in cooperation with the Design 
Professional, will perform a cost/benefit analysis of the alternatives and submit such in 
writing to the Project Team. City, through the Project Manager, will direct which alternatives 
will be incorporated into the Project. The Design Professional will have full design 
responsibility for the review and incorporation of CM@Risk suggested alternatives into 
the Drawings and Specifications. CM@Risk must analyze the costs and schedule impacts of 
the alternatives against the Baseline Cost Model and Schedule and provide a 
recommendation for the Project Team’s consideration and City’s approval prior to the 
establishment of the GMP. 

17.5 BASELINE COSTS MODEL, DETAILED COST ESTIMATES, AND SCHEDULE OF VALUES 

17.5.1 At the conclusion of the Master Planning and Programming, if required, CM@Risk will 
review all available information regarding the design and scope of the Project using 
CM@Risk’s experience in performing similar work, knowledge of similar projects and 
current and projected construction costs and, based upon that review, must develop a 
Baseline Cost Model for review by the Project Team and approval by City.  Once approved 
by City, the Baseline Cost Model will be continually referenced as detailed estimates are 
created as the design progresses throughout Pre-Construction until the final GMP for the 
entire Project is established.  A final GMP for the entire Project must be established and 
approved by City prior to the start of construction. It is the responsibility of CM@Risk 
to ensure City has sufficient information to evaluate  and  approve  a  final  GMP  prior  to  
the  time  necessary to  start  construction  so construction can be completed within the 
Agreement Time.  The Project Detailed Cost Estimate will be the best representation from 
CM@Risk of what the complete functional Project’s construction costs will be as indicated 
by the most current available documents and will be constantly checked against the 
Baseline Cost Model. CM@Risk must communicate to the Project Team and assumptions 
made in preparing the Baseline Cost Model. The Baseline Cost Model must support 
CM@Risk’s Detailed Cost Estimates and may be broken down initially as dictated by the 
available information, as required by City. 

17.5.2 After receipt of the Design Professional’s most current documents from certain specified 
pre- construction milestones, CM@Risk must provide a draft Detailed Cost Estimate 
including a detailed written report detailing any variances to the Baseline Cost Model and 
Baseline Project Schedule. The Design Professional and CM@Risk will reconcile any 
disagreements on the estimate to arrive at an agreed upon Detailed Cost Estimate for the 
construction costs based on the scope of the Project through that specified pre-
construction milestone. Pre-Construction milestones applicable to this paragraph are: 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-71 of 75  

Master Planning and Programming, Schematic Design, 50% Design Development, 100% 
Design Development, and 50% Construction Drawings, If no consensus is reached, City will 
make the final determination. If the Project Team requires additional updates of the 
Detailed Cost Estimate beyond that specified in this paragraph, CM@Risk must provide the 
requested information in a timely manner. 

17.5.3 If at any point the Detailed Cost Estimate submitted to City exceeds the previously 
accepted Baseline Cost Model or previously approved Detailed Cost Estimate agreed to as 
set forth in Section 17.5.2 above, CM@Risk must make appropriate recommendations to 
project Team on means/methods, materials, and or other design elements that it 
believes will reduce the estimated construction costs, such that it is equal to or less than 
the established Project Team’s Baseline Cost Model. 

17.5.4 Unless other levels of completion are agreed to in writing in the Construction Documents, 
at 50% Construction Drawings and included with the associated report, CM@Risk must 
also submit to the Project Team for review and approval a Schedule of Values that complies 
with the following requirements. The Schedule of Values must be based on City standard 
bid schedule and highlight significant variances from any previously submitted Schedule 
of Values. The Schedule of Values must be directly related to the breakdowns reflected in 
the Detailed Project Schedule and CM@Risk’s Detailed Cost Estimate.  In addition, the 
Schedule of Values must:  (a) detail unit prices and quantity take-offs, (b) detail all other 
contingencies and unit price Work shown and specified in the detailed design documents. 

17.5.5 CM@Risk is to track, estimate/price and address the Project Team’s overall project cost issues 
that arise outside of the Baseline Cost Model and the latest approved Detailed Cost 
Estimate such as: City generated changes, Project Team proposed changes, alternate 
system analysis, constructability items and value engineering analysis. The system used 
to implement this process will be referred to as the Design Evolution Log. This is to be 
addressed between the Baseline Cost Model and the Master Planning and Programming 
Detailed Cost Estimate, and then (unless other levels of completion are agreed to in writing 
in the Construction Documents) between the Detailed Cost Estimates for each of the pre-
construction milestones thereafter, Schematic Design, 50% Design Development, 100% 
Design Development, and 50% Construction Documents, and the bid packages for all 
Phases. 

17.5.6 Upon request by City, CM@Risk must submit to City a cash flow projection for the Project 
based on the current updated/revised Detailed Project Schedule and the anticipated level of 
payments for CM@Risk during the design and construction phases. In addition, if requested 
by City and based on information provided by City, CM@Risk must prepare a cash flow 
projection for the entire Project based on historical records for similar types of projects 
to assist City in the financing process. 

17.5.7 Construction Water. CM@Risk must estimate the quantity of water to be used and include 
the cost thereof in each Detailed Cost Estimate and GMP Proposal provided by City. 

17.6 SUBCONTRACTOR AND MAJOR SUPPLIER SELECTIONS 

17.6.1 There are two ways to select Subcontractors and major Suppliers prior to submission of a 
GMP Proposal: (1) qualifications-based selection; or (2) a combination of qualifications 
and price. Except as noted below, the selection of Subcontractors/Suppliers is the sole 
responsibility of CM@Risk. In any case, CM@Risk is solely responsible for the performance 
of the selected Subcontractors/Suppliers, and for compliance with the requirements of 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-72 of 75  

Title 34 of the Arizona Revised Statutes in the selection of a Subcontractors/Suppliers, 
to the extent applicable. CM@Risk must comply with its Subcontractor Selection Plan 
submitted with its Statement of Qualifications. 

17.6.2 City may approve the selection of a Subcontractor(s) or Suppliers(s) based only on their 
qualifications when CM@Risk can demonstrate it is in the best interest of the Project. All 
Work that is performed, after such a qualifications-based selection, for a price that is 
negotiated by CM@Risk will be billed in accordance with the GMP for actual costs and may 
be subject to audit by City. 

17.6.2.1 Qualifications based selection of a Subcontractor(s)/Supplier(s) should only occur prior to 
the submittal of the GMP Proposal. 

17.6.2.2 If a Subcontractor/Supplier selection plan was submitted and agreed to by City, CM@Risk 
must apply the plan in the evaluation of the qualifications of a Subcontractor(s) or 
Supplier(s) and provide City with its review and recommendations. 

17.6.2.3 CM@Risk must receive written City approval for each selected Subcontractor(s) and 
Supplier(s). 

17.6.2.4 CM@Risk must negotiate costs for services/supplies from each Subcontractor/Supplier 
selected under this method. 

17.6.3 All Work must be competitively bid unless a Subcontractor or Supplier was selected pursuant 
to Section 17.6.2 above. 

17.6.3.1 CM@Risk must develop Subcontractor and Supplier interest, submit the names of a 
minimum of three qualified Subcontractors or Suppliers for each trade in the Project for 
approval by City and solicit bids for the various Work categories. If there are not three 
qualified Subcontractors/Suppliers available for a specific trade or there are extenuating 
circumstances warranting such, CM@Risk may request approval by City to submit less 
than three names. Without prior written notice to City, no change in the recommended 
Subcontractors/Supplies will be allowed. 

17.6.3.2 If City objects to any nominated Subcontractor/Supplier or to any self-performed Work for 
good reason, CM@Risk must nominate a substitute Subcontractor/Supplier that is 
acceptable to City. 

17.6.3.3 CM@Risk must distribute Drawings and Specifications, and when appropriate, conduct a 
Pre- Bid Conference with prospective Subcontractors and Suppliers. 

17.6.3.4 If CM@Risk desires to self-perform certain portions of the Work, it must request to be one of 
the approved Subcontractor bidders for those specific bid packages. CM@Risk’s bid will 
be evaluated in accordance with the process identified below. If events warrant and City 
concurs that it is necessary in order to ensure compliance with the Project Schedule 
and/or the most recent Detailed Cost Estimate, CM@Risk may be authorized to self-
perform Work without bidding or rebidding the Work. When CM@Risk self-performs work 
without bidding, only the actual costs associated with performing the Work in accordance 
with the approved GMP will be billed and may be subject to audit by City. 

17.6.3.5 CM@Risk must receive, open, record and evaluate the bids; provided, however, that if 
CM@Risk or one of its affiliates is bidding to self-perform the Work that is the subject of the 
bid, then the bids must be received, opened, recorded and evaluated by Project Manager 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-73 of 75  

instead of CM@Risk. Bids for each category of Work must be opened and recorded at a 
pre-determined time. The apparent low bidders must be interviewed to determine the 
responsiveness of their proposals. In evaluating the responsiveness of bid proposals 
CM@Risk, in addition to bid price, may consider the following factors: past performance 
on similar projects, qualifications and experience of personnel assigned, quality 
management plan, approach or understanding of the Work to be performed, and 
performance schedule to complete the Work. The final evaluation of 
Subcontractor/Supplier bids must be done with Project Manager in attendance to observe 
and witness the process. CM@Risk must resolve any Subcontractor/Supplier bid withdrawal, 
protest or disqualification in connection with the award at no increase in the Cost of Work. 

17.6.4 CM@Risk will be required to prepare two different reports on the subcontracting process. 

17.6.4.1 Within fifteen days after each major Subcontractor/Supplier bid opening process; 
CM@Risk must prepare a report for City’s review and approval identifying the 
recommended Subcontractors/Supplier for each category of Work. The report must detail: 
(a) the name of the recommended Subcontractor/Supplier and the amount of the 
Subcontractor/Supplier bid for each sub-agreement; (b) the sum of all recommended 
Subcontractor/Supplier bids received; (c) and trade work and its cost that CM@Risk intends 
to self-perform, if any. 

17.6.4.2 Upon completion of the Subcontractor/Supplier bidding process, CM@Risk must submit 
a summary report to City of the entire Subcontractor/Supplier selection process. The report 
must indicate, by bid process, all Subcontractors/Suppliers contacted to determine 
interest, the Subcontractors/Suppliers solicited, the bids received and costs negotiated, 
and the recommended Subcontractors/Suppliers for each category of Work. 

17.6.5 The approved Subcontractors/Suppliers will provide a Schedule of Values with their bid 
proposals, which will be used to create the overall Project Schedule of Values. 

17.6.6 If after receipt of sub-bids or after award to Subcontractors and Suppliers, City objects to 
any nominated Subcontractor/Supplier or to any self-performed Work without any 
reasonable basis, CM@Risk must nominate a substitute Subcontractor or Supplier, 
preferably if such option is still available, from those who submitted Subcontractor bids 
for the Work affected.  Once such substitute Subcontractors and Suppliers are consented 
to by City, CM@Risk’s proposed GMP for the Work or portion thereof must be 
correspondingly adjusted to reflect any higher or lower costs form any such substitution. 

17.7 GMP PROPOSAL 

17.7.1 When a GMP Proposal is submitted for a phase of the Work, the GMP will have a Detailed Cost 
Estimate of the Costs of the Work (as set forth in Section 15.2) in each phase of the Work 
that is being proposed plus the current estimate for all other Work. City will not approve 
the GMP for the phase of work without a total estimate for the complete Project. City may 
request a GMP Proposal for all or any portion of the Project and at any time during pre-
construction. Any GMP Proposals submitted by CM@Risk must be based on and consistent 
with Baseline Cost Model and the current update/revised Detailed Cost Estimate at the 
time of the request and include any clarifications or assumptions upon which the GMP 
Proposal(s) are based. 

17.7.2 A GMP Proposal for the entire Project will be the sum of the Cost of the Work, CM@Risk Fee, 
and General Conditions Cost. CM@Risk guarantees to complete the Project at or less than 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-74 of 75  

the final GMP Proposal amount plus approved Change Orders. CM@Risk will be responsible 
for any costs for expenses that would cause the Cost of the Work actually incurred, 
including the Construction Fee and General Conditions Costs, to exceed the GMP. 

17.7.3 CM@Risk must prepare its GMP Proposal in accordance with City’s request for GMP Proposal 
requirements based on the most current completed Drawings and Specifications at that 
time, which unless otherwise directed by City in writing, will be at 100% Construction 
Drawings. CM@Risk must mark the face of each document of each set upon which its GMP 
Proposal is based. These documents must be identified as the GMP Plans and 
Specifications. CM@Risk must send one set of those documents to the Project Manager, 
keep one set and return the third set to the Design Professional. 

17.7.4 An updated/revised Detailed Project Schedule, Equipment Plan, and Schedule of Values 
must be included in any GMP Proposal(s), all of which must reflect the GMP Plans and 
Specifications the Detailed Project Schedule must be shown in relationship to the Project 
Schedule and identify any variance to the Baseline Project Schedule. Any such Detailed 
Project Schedule updates/revisions must continue to comply with the requirements of 
Section 17.3.1 through 17.3.5. 

17.7.5 GMP Proposals(s) Review and Approval 

17.7.5.1 CM@Risk must meet with the Project Team to review the GMP Proposal(s) and the written 
statement of its basis. In the event the Project Team discovers inconsistencies or 
inaccuracies in the information presented, CM@Risk must make adjustments as 
necessary to the GMP Proposal. 

17.7.5.2 If during the review and negotiation of GMP Proposals design changes are required, City 
may authorize and cause the Design Professional to revise the GMP Plans and Specifications 
to the extent necessary to reflect the agreed-upon assumptions and clarifications contained 
in the final approved GMP Proposal. Such revised GMP Plans and Specification will be 
furnished to CM@Risk. CM@Risk must promptly notify the Project Team in writing if any 
such revised GMP Plans and Specifications are inconsistent with the agreed upon 
assumptions and clarifications. 

17.7.6 All portions of or items comprising the GMP Proposal are subject to audit by City, as 
deemed appropriate by City, including, without limitation, any based upon unit prices or 
Work to be self- performed by CM@Risk, or its affiliates. 

17.8 PAYMENT PROCEDURE FOR PRE-CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 

17.8.1 Requests for monthly payments by CM@Risk for Pre-Construction Services must be 
submitted monthly and must be accompanied by a progress report, detailed invoices 
and receipts, if applicable. Any requests for payment must include, as a minimum, a 
narrative description of the tasks accomplished during the billing period, a listing of any 
Deliverables submitted, and copies of any Subconsultants’ requests for payment, plus 
similar narrative and listings of Deliverables associated with their Work. Payment for 
services negotiated as a lump sum will be made in accordance with the percentage of work 
completed during the preceding month. 

17.8.2 In no event will City pay more than seventy-five (75%) of the Agreement Price until 
acceptance of ALL Pre-Construction Services and award of the final approved Construction 
Services Agreement for the entire Project by City Council. If CM@Risk does not prepare a 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-75 of 75  

GMP Proposal that is acceptable to City, or the GMP Proposal exceeds the City’s 
Construction Budget, then CM@Risk understands and acknowledges that it will forfeit any 
right to receive the 25% of the Agreement Price being retained by City. 

17.8.3 CM@Risk agrees that no charges or claims for costs or damages of any type will be made by 
it for any delays or hindrances beyond the reasonable control of City during the progress of 
any portion of Pre-Construction Services specified in this Agreement. Such delays or 
hindrances, if any, will be solely compensated for by an extension of time for such 
reasonable period and may be mutually agreed between the parties. It is understood 
and agreed, however, that permitting CM@Risk to proceed to complete any such Services, 
in whole or in part after the date to which the time of completion may have been extended, 
will in no way act as a waiver on the part of City of any of their respective legal rights herein. 

17.8.4 No compensation to CM@Risk will be allowed contrary to Article I, Chapter I, Title 34 of the 
Arizona Revised Statutes. 

17.8.5 If any service(s) executed by CM@Risk is abandoned or suspended in whole or in part, for 
a period of more than 180 days through no fault of CM@Risk, CM@Risk is to be paid for 
the services performed prior to the abandonment or suspension. 

17.9 SURVIVAL OF THE DESIGN SERVICES AGREEMENT, DUTIES, OBLIGATIONS AND 
WARRANTIES 
If the GMP Proposal is accepted by City and a Construction Agreement is entered into 
between City and CM@Risk, the duties, obligations and warranties of CM@Risk under the 
Pre- Construction Services Agreement survive and are incorporated into the resulting 
Construction Agreement. 

 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-1 of 33 

 

General Conditions Appendices 
 

 
 

SECTION 15 – APPENDICES 
 

The following Appendices attached hereto are referenced in the General Conditions and 
are incorporated herein. 
 

 
Appendix 1 – Policy Statement for Calculating Delays and Damages 
Appendix 2 – Cost Reduction Incentive Proposals for Design Bid Build Agreements 
Appendix 3 – Contractor’s Affidavit Regarding Settlement of Claims 
Appendix 4 – Forms of Performance Bond 
Appendix 5 – Forms of Payment Bond 
Appendix 6 – Dispute Resolution 
Appendix 7 – Certificate of Completion 
Appendix 8 – Construction Sign Detail 
Appendix 9 – Cost of the Work (Applicable solely to Construction Manager at Risk and 

Job Order Contracting) 
Appendix 10 Landscape Establishment Period 
 

 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-2 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 1  

 

 
CALCULATING DELAYS AND DAMAGES 

 
 
The purpose of this policy statement is to establish guidelines and procedures for negotiation 
between the Contractor and City of Chandler relating to compensation for delays pursuant to 
Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) 34-221(F). This policy statement contains notice requirements in 
addition to those set forth in the Agreement Documents, and will be the Agreement Provision 
contemplated by that statute. 

 
NOTE: As used herein, the term “Engineer” will refer to the City of Chandler City Engineer or 
his/her designated representative. Nothing in this Policy Statement will be construed to void any 
provision in the Agreement which requires timely notice of delays or provides for arbitration or 
any other procedure for settlement or provides for liquidated damages. 

 
I. TYPES OF DELAYS: 

 
For the purposes of this document, there are essentially four types of delays encountered by 
City of Chandler Construction Contractors; excusable/compensable, excusable/non-
compensable, non- excusable, and concurrent. Only delays that extend Agreement 
Completion Time set forth in the Agreement Document will be considered for issues 
relating to Agreement extensions or additional compensation. All other delays are 
considered to be activity delays and do not entitle the Contractor to either time 
extensions or additional compensation. Agreement Completion Time will be defined as the 
date set forth in Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) Uniform Standard Specification 
Section 101 and as may be modified by the Agreement Documents. 

 
A. Excusable/Compensable: 

 
These are delays caused solely by the City’s actions or inactions, are unreasonable 
under the circumstances, and which were not within the contemplation of the 
parties to the Agreement at or prior to the time of execution of the 
Agreement. Since the Contractor presumably has no control over the events 
causing the delay, he may be entitled to both Agreement time extensions and 
additional compensation for delay damages. Further, he/she may be entitled to 
additional compensation from the impact of that delay on other work. Examples of 
excusable/compensable (E/C) delays include: failure to properly locate an 
underground City-owned utility within 2 feet of the actual location; failure to 
relocate City-owned utilities far enough in advance of construction in an area 
where the Contractor is scheduled to work that it delays start or completion of 
the Contractor’s regularly scheduled work; failure to provide City-furnished 
equipment or materials in a timely manner if required by the Agreement; failure 
to acquire necessary Right-of-Way or Public Utility Easements prior to the Contractor 
beginning Work in the area; failure to timely return Shop Drawings or other 
Agreement Submittals in accordance with the Agreement; unreasonable delay by 
the City in making decisions which affect critical activities; surveying errors when the 
City is contractually responsible for providing Project Surveying. This list is not meant 
to be all inclusive, but is intended merely as examples of the type of City action or 
inaction which can result in a Contractor’s claim for additional time and 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-3 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 1  

 

compensation. 
 
 

B. Excusable/Non-compensable: 
 

These are delays over which neither the City nor the Contractor had control. Since 
both parties to the Agreement have been potentially damaged by the delay, but 
neither have caused it, only Time Extensions are warranted. Examples of excusable, 
non-compensable (E/N) delays include: unusually severe weather; fire; acts of God; 
failure of non-City owned utilities (SRP, CenturyLink, Cable TV, Southern Pacific 
Railroad, and Southwest Gas, etc.) to properly or timely locate accurately; failure of 
non-City owned utilities to relocate in advance of construction; the voluntary or 
involuntary filing for Bankruptcy protection by a Supplier or Subcontractor which 
causes the Supplier/Subcontractor to fail to meet a contractual deadline provided 
the Contractor can provide documentation that he/she executed the required 
Purchase Orders/Subcontract Agreements and received delivery schedules which, 
if met, would have eliminated the delay; delays as a result of an incomplete 
shutdown of a City or non-City owned utility main (the City does not guarantee a 
complete shutdown). This list also is not necessarily all inclusive but merely 
indicative of type and class of E/N delays. 

 
C. Non-excusable/Non-compensable: 

 
These are delays caused by the actions or inactions of Contractor or an officer, 
employee, agent, Subcontractor, Supplier or any other party for whom the 
Contractor is responsible. Since the Contractor has assumed responsibility for the 
risks associated with the events that caused the delay, he/she are not entitled to 
either time extensions or monetary delay damages. All non-excusable delays are 
also non-compensable. Examples of non- excusable, non-compensable (N/N) 
delays include: failure to perform by the Contractor, its Subcontractors and/or 
Suppliers (except as noted in section I.B above); failure to provide adequate 
labor, materials, and/or equipment on the Project; failure to perform 
contractually-required coordination with utilities, agencies and other Contractors; 
failure to notify the Engineer, in writing, of delay impacts within two working days, 
as required by MAG 104.2.3, or the next work day, as required by MAG 109.8.2; 
failure to timely submit Shop Drawings; failure to pothole or otherwise visually locate 
utilities sufficiently ahead of the Work to allow the Engineer to direct corrective 
action when necessary; delays due to retesting of previously failed work, re-
inspection, and/or restaking resulting from faulty workmanship, poor quality 
control, or lack of compliance with Agreement Specifications. Again, this list is not 
necessarily all inclusive. 

 
D. Concurrent: 

 
When two or more delays occur simultaneously or overlap, each delay is 
analyzed separately to determine its impact on the overall project completion date 
based on when that delay started. Once again, only those delays which actually 
extend the Agreement completion time are considered as delays. The 
concurrent delay is considered an additional delay only to the extent it prolongs 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-4 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 1  

 

the delay to the Agreement Completion Time beyond the date that the one it is 
concurrent with had already delayed that date. For example, if two delays are 
concurrent, and one is five days long and the second is seven days long, the second 
concurrent delay will only extend the Agreement Completion Time by two days. The 
same method of analysis is used when there are multiple concurrent delays. Only 
those extending the Project Completion Date are considered to be delays for the 
purposes of this policy. The portion of each concurrent delay that delays the 
completion of the work is classified in the same manner as described previously for 
individual delays and being either E/C, E/N or N/N. 

 

An example of a concurrent delay is where the City delays furnishing material, 
but the Contractor could not have installed it anyway due to unusually severe 
weather. The effect of the first delaying activity will extend for the full duration 
and will be considered controlling on the Contractor’s schedule. A subsequent, 
concurrent delay will thereafter only be considered to effect the project completion 
(if at all) once the first delaying activity has ceased to impact the project completion. 
In this case, if the unusually severe weather continued and delayed the work after 
the material was delivered, the first portion of the delay would be classified E/C 
(delay for material) and the second as E/N (delay due to unusually severe weather). 
Using the procedure set forth above, the entire concurrent portion would be 
considered E/C as shown in the chart which follows. 

 
Example of a Concurrent Delay: 

 
 
 
 

E/C Delay E/N Delay 
 
 
 

City Related Material Delay 
 

 
 

Rain Delay 
 
 
 
 
 
II. ANALYZING THE DELAY: 

 
The Contractor must provide all documents required or requested by the Engineer to analyze the 
delay(s). It is important to understand that, prior to the delay analysis, delays and their impacts are 
alleged issues. The information the Contractor provides will be compared with the Inspector’s Daily 
Log, Schedules and other available Project information and together they will support or refute that 
delays occurred and, if so, how they impact other work and the overall project completion. The 
Contractor’s delay in providing these documents will be considered prima facie evidence that either 
the delay did not occur or it did not impact the Project Completion Date and any claim for time 
extension or damages will be denied. 

 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-5 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 1  

 

The Engineer will accept delay analyses in CPM format, as these may demonstrate to his/her 
satisfaction whether or not Project Completion has been impacted by a specific event. If the 
Contractor chooses not to use CPM scheduling procedures, then the burden will be on the 
Contractor to prove to the Engineer’s satisfaction that the Project Completion has been 
impacted. The procedures below assume that the Contractor is using CPM scheduling methods. 
As a minimum the Contractor must provide the following materials to the Engineer: 

 
A. As-Planned Schedule. The initial construction schedule, required by the Agreement 

Documents, will be considered the baseline schedule. It is to the Contractor’s 
advantage that the As-Planned (baseline) Schedule be as detailed as possible in 
order for delays, as they occur, to be incorporated into the schedule in 
representative locations. It is also to the Contractor’s advantage to use a computer 
software program to generate the schedule since updated schedules are required 
monthly by the Agreement Documents and since updated schedules are 
required to support delays and requests for additional compensation for delays. 
The As-Planned (baseline) Schedule must be presented in network format which 
clearly shows the interrelationships of the activities. The Contractor must also 
provide a printout of the activities showing early start, early finish, late start, late 
finish, duration and float. The activity list printout must also indicate predecessor 
and successor activities. 

 
B. As-Built Schedules. The as planned (baseline) schedule must be updated with 

complete progress-to-date information (actualized) up to the date of the start of the 
alleged delay. Each updated schedule will serve as the as-built schedule for analyzing 
the alleged delay and provide a new baseline as-planned schedule for the next delay. 
This process must be repeated for each alleged delay as it occurs. In updating the 
baseline schedule, the alleged delay must be treated as an activity and inserted into 
the schedule as a predecessor to the impacted activity (ies). When an activity that 
has already started is impacted, it is preferable to divide this activity into two 
parts and show the impact affecting the second part. For schedules which 
incorporate a time line (or data date), the delay activity must be inserted at the time 
it actually occurred. Some software scheduling programs have a PAUSE-RESUME 
feature that can be used to facilitate the requirements. The updated schedule must 
also be accompanied by a listing of activities as with the baseline schedule. This 
activities list must contain the alleged delay as an activity showing the duration and 
the activities which are predecessors and successors to it. When computer 
generated schedules are used, the Contractor must provide, in electronic media 
format, the complete data files for the updated schedule that included the delay 
activity, preferably either in Suretrak or in Microsoft Project. Each electronic media 
must contain a label identifying the Project name, Contractor’s name, program 
name and version number, data date and project finish date. 

 
C. Other Documents: In order to determine the amount of the alleged delay and if 

it is compensable, the Contractor must provide all backup documentation relevant to 
the issue and as required by the Engineer. This documentation must include copies 
of such items as: purchase orders; delivery schedules; correspondence; memoranda 
of telephone calls; force account daily worksheets (initialed by the Inspector); 
payroll data; estimating (bid) worksheets; and any other materials which may be 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-6 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 1  

 

requested by the Engineer. 
 

D. Procedure: Only after receipt of sufficient documentation will the Engineer analyze 
each alleged delay and determine if it is supported or refuted. If supported, the 
Engineer will determine if it is excusable or non-excusable, compensable or non-
compensable. If the Engineer determines that the delay did not affect the Project 
Completion, the as-planned schedule, which has been updated to the date of the 
alleged delay, must be revised to indicate this. If the Engineer determines the delay 
did occur but was N/N, then no time extension will be granted. It is imperative that 
an actualized schedule be submitted as soon as the occurrence of the alleged delay 
is known. In no event will the Contractor submit an actualized updated schedule 
later than 60 days after the occurrence of the alleged delay becomes known. 

 
If the Engineer determines the delay did occur and was excusable but, due to a 
reason listed in section I.B. is non-compensable, he/she will determine the length 
of the E/N delay and prepare a Change Order to add that time to the Agreement. 
The Engineer’s decision will be final. 

 
If the Engineer determines the delay was excusable and compensable, he/she will 
determine the length of the E/C delay and proceed to review the Contractor’s 
damage calculations in accordance with Section III. The Engineer will check the 
Contractor’s calculations, review the backup documentation provided, and prepare a 
Change Order to cover both the additional compensation and the time extension. 
The Engineer’s decision on both the time extension and additional compensation for 
the delay will be final. 

 
If the issue involves a concurrent delay, the Engineer will analyze available data 
to determine the portions which are E/C, E/N, and/or N/N as described above. The 
Engineer will proceed to determine the length of E/C delay and verify the Contractor’s 
delay damage calculations, if any are provided. Upon completion of this review, the 
Engineer will prepare a Change Order for the Contractor’s review and signature. 
The Engineer’s decision regarding excusable delay and additional compensation for 
the delay is final. 

 
The amount of time the Engineer will require to analyze the alleged delay(s) will 
depend upon the Engineer’s workload, the complexity of the delay analysis, 
availability of supporting data, extent of cooperation by the Contractor, and other 
factors beyond the Engineer’s control. It is entirely possible other delay(s) may 
occur while the Engineer is analyzing particular claim for delay(s). The Engineer’s 
failure to respond to the Contractor in a set period of time will not be used as the 
basis for a further delay claim or as justification for extending and existing delay 
claim. The time required for delay analysis by the Engineer will not be counted 
against the time allotted for processing Final Payment as required by (MAG Section 
109.7(B)) or the release of retention and Final Payment as prescribed by A.R.S. 
Arizona Revised Statutes §34-221. 

 
III. CALCULATING MONETARY DELAY DAMAGES: 

 
Additional compensation for delay, when authorized by the Engineer, will be calculated in accordance 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-7 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 1  

 

with MAG Section 109.5 ACTUAL COST WORK with the following exceptions: 
 

A. No additional compensation or other monetary damages will be awarded or paid for 
any loss of anticipated profits by the Contractor, Subcontractors or Suppliers. 

 
B. No additional compensation or other monetary damages will be awarded for home 

office overhead or non-project general conditions of the Contractor, Subcontractors 
or Suppliers. 

 
C. Equipment: 

 
1. Contractor-owned equipment rate calculations must be computed in 

accordance with Section 109.04(D)(3), Arizona Department of Transportation 
“Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction,” 2008 or latest 
edition and as modified herein. Year and regional adjustment factors must 
be based on the most recent publications of the Rental Rate Blue Book for 
Construction Equipment, published by the Equipment Guide-Book 
Company, San Jose, CA, same as provided by ADOT and in print as of the 
date of alleged delay. In no event will the compensation for Contractor-
owned equipment exceed the purchase price, including tax, paid by the 
Contractor for the equipment. Compensation will not be allowed for small 
tools or equipment that show a daily equipment rental rate of less than $5.00 
per day or for unlisted equipment that has a value of less than for 
hundred dollars ($400.00). 

2. For leased and rented equipment or equipment not otherwise listed in the 
Blue Book, rental contracts, or other supporting data will be used to establish 
the hourly rate. No hourly operating expense will be allowed for delay on 
standby equipment. In no case will equipment be considered for rental which 
exceeds the hourly rate for the first eight hours and the daily rate 
divided by eight for all additional hours as compared with similar 
equipment listed in the Blue Book. The hourly standby rate must be 
computed as the lesser of: 

 
a. Dividing the monthly invoice or rental value by 176 hours 

per month when the equipment is utilized by the Contractor 
for more than three weeks; 

 
b. Dividing the monthly invoice or rental value by 40 hours per 

week when the equipment is utilized by the Contractor for 
more than three days. 

 
In no event will compensation be paid for delay at more than 
8 hours per day or 40 hours per week. 

 
3. Except for vehicles used by supervisory personnel, all equipment will be paid 

at the “standby” rate during the delay period. 
 

4. Equipment brought solely to mitigate the delay (such as pumps, light plants, 
etc.) may be paid in accordance with ADOT section 109.04(D) (3). 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-8 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 1  

 

 
5. The Blue Book regional adjustment will apply in determining rental rates. 

 
D. Material: 

 
Allowable material charges may include, in addition to material incorporated in the 
work material used to mitigate the delay such as barricades, plates, shoring, cold 
mix, etc. Except in emergencies the Contractor will not employ such material 
without the prior written approval of the Engineer. 

 
E. Labor: 

 
1. Except for Supervisory Personnel (Superintendent, Project Engineer, and 

Foremen), labor wages will not be paid after the first one-half day of 
claimed delay or impact. It is expected the Contractor will reassign or 
layoff unneeded employees. 

 
2. For Foreman wages to be included, that Foreman must have been 

actively employed on the project prior to the commencement of the delay 
and be directly responsible for the activity being delayed. 

 
3. Labor burden must be actual amounts incurred but must not exceed the 

ADOT approved rate. 
 

F. All costs (equipment, material, and labor) must be substantiated by the City of 
Chandler’s Daily Work Reports. 

 
IV. DOCUMENT REQUIRED FOR CLAIM ANALYSIS: 

 
For purposes of reviewing the Contractor’s request for additional compensation, it will be required 
that the Contractor submit the following listed information. Information requested must be prepared 
on forms which are substantially similar to the City of Chandler’s Daily Work Report form, a copy of 
which is attached as an exhibit. 

 
A. Labor: 

 
For each employee, laborer, and foreman, for which compensation is requested: 
Name, classification, dates of work performed, daily hours worked, total hours worked, 
labor rates, labor burden rates, overtime or premium time charges. Further, the 
Contractor must make available for inspection and copying to the Engineer the 
following listed documentation. 

 
1. Certified payroll reports for the period of work claimed. 
2. Accounting of Fringe Benefits – certified by a CPA. 
3. Contractor’s and Subcontractor’s daily field reports and daily diaries. 

 
B. Materials: 

 
For all materials for which compensation is requested, if any, total quantities of 
materials, prices, extensions and transportation costs must be provided on a daily 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-9 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 1  

 

basis. Further, the Contractor must make available for inspection and copying to the 
Engineer the following listed documentation. 

 
1. Invoices for all materials incorporated. 
2. Weigh tickets. 
3. Purchase orders. 
4. Delivery schedules. 
5. Quotes or proposals from manufacturers or supplier. 
6. Freight bills, Bills of Lading, or other documentation to show transportation 

costs. 
7. Restocking charges-invoices from vendor. 

 
C. Equipment: 

 
For all equipment, the Contractor must provide the Engineer with the designation, 
dates and hours of usage, dates and hours of standby, if any, daily hours, total hours, 
rental rates and extension for each unit of equipment and machinery. Rental 
rates will be as established in Section III. Further, the Contractor must make 
available for inspection and copying to the Engineer the following listed 
documentation. 

 
1. Owned: 

a. Purchase contracts(s). 
b. Depreciation schedule(s). 
c. Invoices for fuel, lube, repairs and other operating costs. 

 
2. Leased: 

a. Lease agreement with hourly rate, overtime rate, double shift rate, etc. 
b. Invoices or other documentation showing hours worked on a daily 

basis. 
 

D. Subcontractors/Owner-Operators: 
 

In the event the Contractor submits a claim which includes requests for 
compensation for Subcontractors of Owner-Operators, the same information 
requested of the Contractor must be provided by the Subcontractor/Owner-
Operator. Further, the Contractor must make available for inspection and copying 
to the Engineer the following listed documentation. 

 
1. Bid/Estimate work sheets and/or spreadsheets. 
2. Subcontract Agreements or Agreements with Owner-Operator. 
3. All invoices and billing statements received from the Subcontractor/Owner- 

Operator which relates to the amount requested. 
 

E. Miscellaneous: 
 

Further, the Contractor must make available for inspection and copying to the 
Engineer the following listed documentation. 

 
1. Evidence of payment for bonds and insurance premiums (MAG 109.5.6). 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-10 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 1  

 

2. Taxes – unless the Contractor can show otherwise, taxes are reimbursable at 
65% of the total cost (less bonds and insurance). 

 
V. TIME LIMIT ON SUBMISSIONS OF CLAIM FOR DELAY OR IMPACT DAMAGES: 

 
No claims for delay or impact damages will be considered or allowed more than 45 days after the 
event or occurrence which the Contractor claims gives rise to the delay or impact. In no event will 
a claim for delay or impact damages be considered after submission by the Contractor of the Final 
Payment Request. 

 
 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-11 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 2 
 

 

 

 
COST REDUCTION INCENTIVE PROPOSALS 

FOR DESIGN BID BUILD AGREEMENTS 
 

 
The Contractor may submit to the Engineer proposals for modifying the Plans, Specifications, or 
other requirements of the Agreement for the sole purpose of reducing the total cost of Project 
construction. The proposals must not impair in any manner the essential functions or characteristics 
of the project; including but not limited to service life, economy of operations, ease of maintenance, 
desired appearance, compatibility with existing or planned equipment, standardization of 
systems, or  design and safety standards. 

 
It must not be inferred from this Policy that the Engineer is required to consider any proposal 
submitted. 

 

Submissions that propose changes in the basic design of a bridge, propose changes in pipe line 
size, materials, bedding conditions, pipe specifications; or that propose any change in pavement 
design will not be considered. 

 
Proposals submitted pursuant to this Policy will be identified as Cost Reduction Incentive Proposals. 
They must be submitted in writing and, at a minimum, contain the following. 

 
1. Complete the attached or similar cost reduction incentive proposal form. 

 

2. A description of both the existing Agreement Requirements for performing the work 
and the proposed changes. 

 
3. All Engineering Drawings and computations necessary for the thorough and 

expeditious evaluation. 
 

4. An itemization of the existing Agreement Requirements that must be changed if the 
Proposal is adopted and a recommendation as to the manner in which the change 
should be made. 

 
5. A detailed estimate of the cost of performing the Work under the existing 

Agreement and under the proposed changes, including the cost of developing 
and implementing the changes. 

 
6. The Agreement items affected by the proposed changes and any variations in 

quantities resulting from the changes. 
 

7. An objective estimate of any effects the proposal will have on collateral cost to the 
City, costs of related items, and cost of maintenance and operation. 

 
8. A statement as to the effect that the Proposal will have on the time for the 

completion of the Project. 
 

9. A statement as to the time by which a Change Order adopting the Proposal must 
be executed or when the Engineer must have given verbal approval. 

 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-12 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 2 
 

 

 

Proposals will be processed expeditiously; however, the City will not be liable for any delay in acting 
upon any Proposal nor for any failure to accept any Proposal pursuant to this Special Provision. 

 
The Engineer will be the sole judge of the acceptability of a Proposal and of the estimated net 
savings in construction costs from the adoption of all or any part of the Proposal. The Contractor 
will be notified in writing by the Engineer as to whether his/her Proposal has been accepted. The 
decision by the Engineer is final. 

 

When the City deems such action to be appropriate, it reserves the right to require the Contractor to 
share equally in the cost to the City of investigating, evaluating, and processing the proposal as a 
condition for the consideration of such Proposal. Such cost must be shared whether the Proposal is 
accepted or rejected. When such a condition is imposed, the City will estimate these costs and the 
Contractor must indicate his acceptance thereof in writing. Such acceptance will authorize the City 
to deduct the Contractor’s share of the costs from any monies due or that may become due to the 
Contractor under the Agreement. 

 
If the Contractor’s Proposal is accepted in whole or in part, the necessary Agreement 
Modifications and Agreement Price Adjustments will be affected by the execution of a Change Order 
which will specifically state that it is executed pursuant to this Special Provision. 

 
The Contractor must continue to perform the work in accordance with the requirements of the 
Agreement until a Change Order incorporating the Proposal has been executed or until he/she 
has been given verbal approval by the Engineer that his/her Proposal has been accepted. If the 
Change Order has not been executed or he/she has not been given verbal approval on or before the 
date specified on the attached cost reduction incentive proposal form or on or before such other date 
as the Contractor may have subsequently specified in writing, the Proposal may be deemed to be 
rejected. 

 
The executed Change Order will incorporate the changes in the Plans, Specifications, or other 
requirements of the Agreement which are necessary to permit the Proposal, or such part of it which 
has been accepted, to be put into effect, and will include any condition – upon which the City’s 
approval thereof is based, if such approval is conditional. The executed Change Order may also 
extend the time for the completion of the Agreement if such an extension has been deemed to be 
warranted by the Engineer as a result of his evaluation of the Proposal. 

 
The executed Change Order will also establish the estimated net savings in the cost of performing 
the Work attributable to the Proposal effectuated by the Change Order. In determining the net 
savings, the right is reserved to the Engineer to disregard the Agreement bid prices if, in his/her 
judgment, such prices do not represent a fair measure of the value of the Work to be performed or 
to be deleted. The net savings will be established by determining the Contractor’s cost of performing 
the Work, taking into account his/her cost of developing the Proposal and implementing the 
change, and reducing  this amount by any ascertainable collateral costs to the City. The executed 
Change Order may provide that the Contractor be paid 50 percent of the estimated net savings 
amount. 

 
The executed Change Order may also provide for the adjustment in Agreement prices. Agreement 
prices may be adjusted by subtracting the City’s share of the accrued net savings. 

 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-13 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 2 
 

 

 

The amount specified to be paid to the Contractor in the executed Change Order which effectuates a 
Cost Reduction Proposal will constitute full compensation to the Contractor for the Cost Reduction 
Proposal and the performance of the work thereof pursuant to the said Change Order. 

 
Upon acceptance of a Cost Reduction Incentive Proposal, any restrictions imposed by the 
Contractor on its use or on disclosure of the information will become void, and the City thereafter 
will have the right to use all or any part of the Proposal without obligation or compensation of any 
kind to the Contractor. 

 
 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-14 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 2 
 

 

 

 
 

COST REDUCTION INCENTIVE PROPOSAL FORM 
 
 
 TO: CIP City Engineer 
 
 FROM:  
 
 PROJECT NAME: [TITLE] 
 
 CITY PROJECT NUMBER: [####] 
 
 DATE:  
 

Summary of Change (Brief description of proposed change including advantages and disadvantages): 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ESTIMATED COST SUMMARY (Attached detailed estimate): 
 

 
 
A. 

 
 

Original Cost: 

   
 

$    
B. Proposed Cost:   $    
C. Construction Savings (A-B):   $    
D. Gross Savings (Included OH %, Bond %) $    
E. Contractor Implementing 

 
  $_   

F. City Implementing Cost:   $_   
Reduction in Agreement Price (C+D-E-F) x 50%: $    

 
 
 
 

Date by which a Change Order must be issued so as to obtain maximum cost reduction: 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-15 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 3  

 

 
 

 
CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA 

PUBLIC WORKS & UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
 

CONTRACTOR'S AFFIDAVIT REGARDING SETTLEMENT OF CLAIMS 
 
 

________________________, Arizona 
Date ____________________________ 

 
Project Name:  [TITLE] 
City Project No.:  [####] 

To the City of Chandler, Arizona 

Gentlemen: 

This is to certify that all lawful claims for materials, rental of equipment and labor used in connection 
with the construction of the above project, whether by subcontractor or claimant in person, have been 
duly discharged. 
 
The undersigned, for the total compensation of $________________________, as set out in the final pay 
application, as full and complete payment under the terms of the Agreement, hereby waives and 
relinquishes any and all further claims or right of lien under, in connection with, or as a result of the 
above described project.  The undersigned further agrees to indemnify and save harmless the City of 
Chandler against any and all liens, claims or liens, suits, actions, damages, charges and expenses 
whatsoever, which said City may suffer arising out of the failure of the undersigned to pay for all labor 
performances and materials furnished for the performance of said installation. 
 
Signed and dated at ________________, this _________ day of _______________ 20_____. 
 
 

__________________________________ 
CONTRACTOR 

 
By _______________________________ 

STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF MARICOPA ) 
 
The foregoing instrument was subscribed and sworn to before me this __________ day of 
__________________ 20 _________. 
 

___________________________________ 
     Notary Public 
 

___________________________________ 
     My Commission Expires 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-16 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 4 

 

 

 
 

PERFORMANCE BOND 
 

ARIZONA STATUTORY PERFORMANCE BOND 
PURSUANT TO TITLES 28, 34, AND 41, ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES 

(Penalty of this bond must be 100% of the Agreement amount) 
 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS THAT:___________________________________________________ 
 
(hereinafter "Principal"), and __________________________________________________________ (hereinafter "Surety"), a 
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of ______________ with its principal office in the City 
of _____________________________, holding a certificate of authority to transact surety business in Arizona issued by 
the Director of Insurance pursuant to Title 20, Chapter 2, Article 1, as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto 
__________________________(hereinafter "Obligee") in the amount of __________________________________________ 
(Dollars) ($___________), for the payment whereof, Principal and Surety bind themselves, and their heirs, 
administrators, executors, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 
 

WHEREAS, the Principal has entered into a certain written Agreement with the Obligee, dated  
 
the ____________ day of _______________________, 20___ for construction of [TITLE], [####] which Agreement is hereby 
referred to and made a part hereof as fully and to the same extent as if copies at length herein. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that if the Principal faithfully performs 
and fulfills all the undertakings, covenants, terms, and conditions of the Agreement during the original term of the 
Agreement and any extension of the Agreement, with or without notice of the Surety, and during the life of any 
guaranty required under the Agreement, and also performs and fulfills all the undertakings, covenants, terms, 
conditions, and agreements of all duly authorized modifications of the Agreement that may hereafter be made, 
notice of which modifications to the Surety being hereby waived, the above obligation is void.  Otherwise it 
remains in full force and effect. 
 

PROVIDED, HOWEVER that this bond is executed pursuant to the provisions of Title 34, Chapter 2, Article 2, 
Arizona Revised Statutes, and all liabilities on this bond will be determined in accordance with the provisions of 
Title 34, Chapter 2, Article 2, Arizona Revised Statutes, to the same extent as if it were copied at length in this 
Agreement. 
 

The prevailing party in a suit on this bond may recover as part of the judgment reasonable attorney fees 
that may be fixed by a judge of the court. 
 

Witness our hands this ________________ day of ____________________, 20__. 
  

 
 
 
____________________________________ 
PRINCIPAL          SEAL 

___________________________________ 
              AGENT OF RECORD 

  
 
By _________________________________ 
 
 
____________________________________ 
SURETY   SEAL 

 
___________________________________ 
                AGENT ADDRESS 
 

  
 

 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-17 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 5  

 

 
PAYMENT BOND 

 
 

ARIZONA STATUTORY PAYMENT BOND 
PURSUANT TO TITLES 28, 34, AND 41, OF THE ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES 

(Penalty of this Bond must be 100% of the Agreement amount) 
 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS THAT:________________________________________________  
 
(hereinafter "Principal"), as Principal, and _________________________________________(hereinafter "Surety"), a 
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of __________________   with its principal office in the 
City of __________________, holding a certificate of authority to transact surety business in Arizona issued by the 
Director of the Department of Insurance pursuant to Title 20, Chapter 2, Article 1, as Surety, are held and firmly 
bound unto ________________________  (hereinafter "Obligee") in the amount of 
______________________________________________ (Dollars) ($___________), for the payment whereof, the Principal and 
Surety bind themselves, and their heirs, administrators, executors, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, 
firmly by these presents. 
 
WHEREAS, the Principal has entered into a certain written Agreement with the Obligee, dated the _________ day of 
_______________________, 20___ for construction of [TITLE], [####] which Agreement is hereby referred to and made 
a part hereof as fully and to the same extent as if copied at length herein. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that if the Principal promptly pays all 
moneys due to all persons supplying labor or materials to the Principal or the Principal's subcontractors in the 
prosecution of the work provided for in said Agreement, this obligation is void. Otherwise it remains in full force 
and effect. 
 

PROVIDED, HOWEVER that this bond is executed pursuant to the provisions of Title 34, Chapter 2, Article 2 
Arizona Revised Statutes, and all liabilities on this bond will be determined in accordance with the provisions, 
conditions and limitations of Title 34, Chapter 2, Article 2, Arizona Revised Statutes, to the same extent as if it were 
copied at length in this Agreement. 
 

The prevailing party in a suit on this bond may recover as part of the judgment reasonable attorney fees 
that may be fixed by a judge of the court. 
 

Witness our hands this ________________ day of ____________________, 20__. 
   

 
____________________________________ 
PRINCIPAL          SEAL 

___________________________________ 
                  AGENT OF RECORD 

  
 
By _________________________________ 
 
 
____________________________________ 
SURETY   SEAL 

 
___________________________________ 
                   AGENT ADDRESS 

  
 

 
 
 
 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-18 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 6 

 

 

 
 

DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 

A. INFORMAL DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 

The parties to the Agreement agree that time is of the essence in relation to 
performance of the Agreement and completion of the Project, therefore any and all 
disputes in relation to the Agreement will initially be referred to the Project 
Manager, the Design Professional Representative and/or the Contractor 
Representative as applicable to the dispute, for immediate resolution. If, after 
good faith efforts to reach a resolution, none is reached, any party to the dispute 
may submit the dispute to the Dispute Resolution Representative (“DRR”) process 
set forth below, which is intended to be an expedited process. 

 
B. DISPUTE RESOLUTION REPRESENTATIVE (“DRR”) PROCESS 

 
1. The Parties under the Agreement agree that all claims and disputes in relation 

to the Project which are not resolved in the ordinary course of the Project 
(“Claim” or “Claims”) will, as a prerequisite to any mediation, or litigation of 
the Claim, first be submitted for resolution between the designated 
Dispute Resolution Representatives of the Parties as set forth herein (the 
“DRR Process”). 

 
2. The DRR Process will be initiated through service of a DRR Notice as set 

forth below: 
 

a. For claims by the Contractor or the Design Professional, the DRR 
Process will be initiated by the party asserting the claim serving 
written notice on the City setting forth in detail: (i) the basis for the 
claim; (ii) the effect of the Claim upon the construction of, and/or 
Project Schedule for, the Project; 
(iii) the specific relief requested, the amount thereof, and how such 
was calculated; (iv) the parties involved in the Claim, and how 
they are involved; (v) the specific Agreement provisions in the 
Agreement Documents (including, if applicable, drawings and 
specifications) which apply; and (vi) efforts made to date to resolve 
the Claim. 

 
b. For claims by the City, the DRR process will be initiated by the 

City providing written notice to the other parties of the basis and 
amount of its claim, the parties involved in the Claim, and how they 
are involved, the provisions in the Agreement Documents that apply, 
and the relief requested. 

 
c. The DRR Notice will be hand-delivered and e-mailed to the other 

parties’ designated Dispute Resolution Representatives. 
 

3. The other parties will respond in writing to the DRR Notice (“DRR 
Response”) within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of the DRR Notice, setting 
forth those items set forth in the DRR Notice that they agree with, dispute, 
and/or have questions concerning. The DRR Response will be hand-delivered 
and e-mailed to the other parties’ Dispute Resolution Representatives. 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-19 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 6 

 

 

 
4. The designated Dispute Resolution Representatives for the Parties to the 

claim will then meet as soon as possible and in any event within twenty (20) 
calendar days of submission of the DRR Notice (regardless of whether a 
DRR Response has been submitted by all parties involved in the dispute), at 
a mutually agreed upon time and place, to attempt to resolve the Claim 
based upon the DRR Notice and DRR Response. 

 
5. At any time after the first meeting required above, either party may 

terminate the DRR Process by written notice to the other party. 
 

6. The parties may agree, in writing, to extend or modify the time limits or 
other provisions of the DRR process in relation to a specific pending Claim. 

 
7. Unless otherwise designated in a written notice to the other parties, the City 

and the representatives of the Contractor and of the Design Professional will 
act as the parties’ designated Dispute Resolution Representatives. 

 
8. If a resolution of the Claim is reached, that resolution must be set forth in 

writing and must be signed by the Parties’ designated Dispute Resolution 
Representative. If the resolution involves a change in any Agreement 
Documents, the Agreement Price, the Project Schedule, or any other change 
requiring a written Change Order or Amendment, the parties must execute 
an appropriate written Change Order or Amendment pursuant to the terms 
of the Agreement Documents. 

 
C. MEDIATION 

 
1. Unless extended by written agreement of the parties involved in the dispute, 

any Claim not resolved through the DRR process set forth above within 
five (5) calendar days after the meeting required under B (4) above, or after 
the DRR is terminated pursuant to B (5) above, whichever is earlier, will be 
submitted to mediation as a condition precedent to litigation by either party. 

 
2. The mediation will be commenced by written demand upon the other party 

for mediation. If the parties cannot agree upon a mediator within ten (10) 
calendar days of the written demand, either party may make a request to the 
Civil Presiding Judge of the Maricopa County Superior  Court to appoint a 
mediator. The mediation will occur within forth (40) calendar days of the 
written demand for mediation, unless the parties agree, in writing, to a 
longer period of time. 

 
3. The qualifications for the mediator will be that he/she be: (a) an 

experienced mediator, arbitrator or litigator of construction disputes; and (b) 
having engaged a significant portion of his/her time involving and/or 
resolving construction disputes for at least the past five (5) years. 

 
4. Each party will provide to the other party and the mediator all of the 

information and documentation required under B(1) and (2) above, together 
with any additional information and documentation which the party believes 
relevant. In addition, the parties will exchange, and provide to the mediator 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-20 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 6 

 

 

such additional memoranda, information and/or documentation, as the 
mediator may request, and in the form and at such times, as the mediator 
may direct. 

 
5. The parties will share the mediator’s fee and any filing fees equally. The 

mediation will be held in Chandler, Arizona, unless another location is 
mutually agreed upon.  Agreements reached in mediation will be specifically 
enforceable in any court having jurisdiction thereof. 

 
D. LITIGATION 

 
Any claim arising out of or related to the Agreement, except Claims relating to 
aesthetic effect and except those claims waived as provided for in the Agreement 
Documents, must be resolved through litigation in the Maricopa County, Arizona 
Superior Court. 

 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-21 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 7 

 

 

 
 

CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA 
PUBLIC WORKS & UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 

 
CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION 

 
 

PROJECT NAME: [TITLE] 

CITY PROJECT NO.: [####] 

If Federally Funded:  

FEDERAL NO.:  ADOT NO:  

 
 (This section to be completed by Prime) 
I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT ALL GOODS AND/OR SERVICES REQUIRED BY CITY OF CHANDLER FOR THIS 
PROJECT HAVE BEEN DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE AGREEMENT DOCUMENTS AND BID 
SPECIFICATIONS AND ALL ACTIVITIES REQUIRED BY THE AGREEMENTOR UNDER THE AGREEMENT 
HAVE BEEN COMPLETED AS OF THE COMPLETION DATE LISTED HERE: 
 

FINAL ACCEPTANCE DATE:  

 
PRIME CONTRACTOR: 

FIRM NAME:  

PRINCIPAL:  

TITLE:  

SIGNATURE:  DATE:  

 
 
 
CERTIFIED BY [INSERT NAME AND TITLE OF PARTY THAT OVERSEES CONSTRUCTION]: 

FIRM NAME:  

SIGNATURE:  DATE:  

 
 
 
 
PROJECT ACCEPTED BY CITY OF CHANDLER: 

NAME:  

SIGNATURE:  DATE:  

 

 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-22 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 8 

 

 

 
CONSTRUCTION SIGN DETAIL 

 
 8' 
     3"    
  CITY OF CHANDLER   5"   

     3"   
  PUTTING YOUR FUNDS TO WORK   5"   

     3"   
  PROJECT TITLE:   5"   

 4'     3"   
  PROJECT NUMBER:   3"   
     2"   
  PROJECT COST:   3"   
     2"   
  CONTRACTOR:   3"   
     2"   
  MANAGED BY: PUBLIC WORKS & UTILITIES DEPARTMENT   3"   
   CAPITAL PROJECTS DIVISION   3"   
     
 
 

 
 

 
                               <--- 4" X 4" POSTS ---> 

 
 

 
 
NOTES: 
 
SIGN(S) MUST BE FURNISHED AND ERECTED PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION.  POSTS 
MUST BE ANCHORED A MINIMUM OF TWO FEET INTO THE GROUND. BOTTOM OF SIGN MUST BE A 
MINIMUM OF FOUR FEET ABOVE THE GROUND. 
 
TYPICAL PROJECT IDENTIFICATION SIGN FOR GENERAL PROJECTS MUST BE NON-REFLECTORIZED 
GREEN BACKGROUND, AND NON-REFLECTORIZED WHITE LETTERS AND NUMERALS. 
 
ONE SIGN MUST BE ERECTED FOR BUILDINGS AND OTHER LIMITED AREA SINGLE SITES.  FOR MULTIPLE 
SITES, ONE SIGN MUST BE ERECTED AT EACH SITE. 
 
FOR LINEAR PROJECTS ONE HALF MILE OR LONGER, PLACE ONE SIGN AT EACH END OF THE PROJECT. 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-23 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 9 – CM@Risk & JOC 

 

 

 
COST OF THE WORK 

(APPLICABLE SOLELY TO CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK AND JOB ORDER CONTRACTING) 

SECTION 1 – COSTS TO BE REIMBURSED 

1.1 Cost of the Work 

The term Cost of the Work will mean costs necessarily incurred by Contractor in the proper 
performance of the Work. Such costs must be at rates not higher than the standard paid at the place 
of the Project except with prior consent of City. The Cost of the Work will include only the items set 
forth in this Section 1. 

 
1.2 Labor Costs 

1.2.1 Wages of construction workers directly employed by the Contractor to perform the 
construction of the Work at the site or, with City’s approval, at off-site workshops. Cost to 
be reimbursed will be the actual wages paid to the individuals performing the work. 

 
1.2.2 Wages or salaries of the Contractor’s supervisory and administrative personnel when 

stationed at the site with City’s approval. No Contractor personnel stationed at the 
Contractor’s home or branch offices will be charged to the Cost of the Work. Non-field 
office based Contractor management and support personnel are expected to provide 
service and advice from time to time throughout the job and his/her time devoted to 
Project matters is considered to be covered by the Contractor’s Fee. 

 
1.2.3 Wages and salaries of Contractor’s supervisory or administrative personnel who would 

normally be stationed at the field office in accordance with Section 1.2.2 but who become 
engaged, at factories, workshops or on the road, in expediting the production or 
transportation of materials or equipment required for the Work, but only for that portion 
of his/her time required for the Work. Employee bonuses and/or costs associated with 
Employee Stock Ownership Plans (“ESOP”) will not be considered reimbursable labor or 
labor burden costs and will be considered non-reimbursable costs considered to be covered 
by the Contractor’s Fee. 

 
1.2.4 Costs paid or incurred by Contractor for taxes, insurance, contributions, assessments and 

benefits required by law or collective bargaining agreements and, for personnel not 
covered by such agreements, customary benefits such as sick leave, medical and health 
benefits, holiday, vacations and pensions, provided such costs are based on wages and 
salaries included in the Cost of the Work under Subparagraphs 1.2.1 through 1.2.3. 

 
1.2.4.1 Cost of the Work will include the actual net cost to Contractor for worker’s 

compensation insurance attributable to the wages chargeable to the Cost of Work per this 
Agreement. The actual net cost of worker’s compensation must take into consideration 
all cost adjustments due to experience modifiers, premium discounts, policy dividends, 
retrospective rating plan premium adjustments, assigned risk pool rebates, any 
applicable weekly maximums, etc. Contractor may charge an estimated amount for 
worker’s compensation insurance costs, but will make appropriate cost adjustments to 
actual costs within 45 days of receipt of actual cost adjustments from the insurance 
carrier. 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-24 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 9 – CM@Risk & JOC 

 

 

 
1.2.4.3 Overtime wages paid to salaried personnel (if approved in advance in writing by City) 

will be reimbursed at the actual rate of overtime pay paid to the individual. No time 
charges for overtime hours worked on the Project will be allowed if the individual is not paid 
for the overtime worked. 

 
1.2.4.4 Any overtime premium or shift differential expense to be incurred by Contractor for hourly 

workers will require City’s advance written approval before the incremental cost of the 
overtime premium or shift differential will be considered a reimbursable cost. If the 
Contractor is required to work overtime as a result of an inexcusable delay or other 
coordination problems caused by the Contractor or anyone he/she is responsible for, 
the overtime premium and/or shift differential expense portion of the payroll expense 
and related labor burden costs will be considered as cost not to be reimbursed. 

 
1.2.4.5 Reimbursable labor burden costs will be limited to payroll taxes, worker’s compensation 

insurance, the employer’s portion of union benefit costs for union employees working on the 
Project, and the actual verifiable fringe benefit costs incurred by Contractor for non-union 
individuals working on the Project subject to the following maximum percentages for the 
following reimbursable non-union fringe benefit costs. The following maximums (as a 
percentage of reimbursable actual wages by individual) will apply for each of the following 
types of fringe benefit costs specifically attributable to each of the non-union personnel 
working on the Project: 

 

• Medical Insurance, Dental, Life & AD&D Insurance: 12.00% 
• Holiday, vacation and other paid time not worked: 10.00% 
• Pension Plan Contributions to Vested Employee Account, 

Simplified Employee Pension Plans, or 401K matching plans 
(Note: ESOP related costs are covered by the Contractor Fee) 

 
 

10.00% 

For non-union personnel, no other fringe benefit costs (other than the three specific 
categories listed immediately above, will be considered reimbursable Cost of Work. Any 
labor burden costs that are in excess of the amounts considered reimbursable or are 
otherwise not considered reimbursable under the terms of this agreement are intended to 
be covered by the Contractor Fee. 

 
1.3 Subcontract Costs 

1.3.1 Payments made by Contractor to Subcontractors in accordance with the requirements of 
the subcontracts. 

 
1.3.2 For Scope of Work Bid Packages typically performed by Subcontractors, Contractor may 

“self- perform” such work on an actual cost basis subject to an agreed upon Guaranteed 
Maximum Price for the “self-performed work”. The Contractor must, unless agreed to by City 
in writing, bid his/her proposed guaranteed Maximum Price for the work to be “self-
performed” against at least three other interested trade Contractors. All savings under 
any such Subcontract for “self-performed work” must be applied to reduce the Cost of Work 
under the Agreement and the Guaranteed Maximum Price. For purposes of defining “self-
performed work” subject to this provision, any division of Contractor, or any separate 
Contractor or Subcontractor that is partially owned or wholly owned by the Contractor or 
any of his/her employees or employee’s relatives will be considered a related party entity 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-25 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 9 – CM@Risk & JOC 

 

 

and will be subject to this provision regarding “self-performed work”. No self-performed work 
will be allowed to be performed on a Fixed Price basis. 

 
1.3.3 Contractor (with respect to its Suppliers, Subcontractors and all lower tier Subcontractors) 

must provide City advance written notice and must obtain City’s approval for any proposed 
Subcontract Change Order, Material Purchase Order, or other financial commitment in an 
amount in excess of $5,000 prior to placing such order or entering into such agreement 
(regardless of whether or not any such commitment will affect the prime Agreement 
Guaranteed Maximum Cost). It is agreed that sums applicable to any Subcontract Change 
Order, Purchase Order or other financial commitment entered into in violation of the above 
notice and approval requirement will not be included in the amounts owning to Contractor, 
Subcontractors or Suppliers whether as Costs of the Work or as reasonable termination 
costs in the event of termination. 

 
1.4 Costs of Material and Equipment Incorporated in the Completed Construction 

1.4.1 Costs, including transportation and storage, of materials and equipment incorporated or 
to be incorporated in the completed construction. 

 
1.4.2 Costs of materials described in the preceding Subparagraph 1.4.1 in excess of those 

actually installed to allow for reasonable waste and spoilage. Unused excess materials, in 
any, will become City’s property at the completion of the Work or, at City’s option, may be 
sold by the Contractor. Any amounts realized from such sales must be credited to City as a 
deduction from the Cost of Work. 

 
1.4.3 Proceeds from the sale of recyclable materials, scrap, waste, etc. will be credited to job cost. 

 
1.5 Costs of Other materials and Equipment, Temporary Facilities and Related Items 

1.5.1 Costs, including transportation and storage, installation, maintenance, dismantling and 
removal of materials, supplies, temporary facilities, machinery, equipment and hand tools 
not customarily owned by construction workers, that are provided by the Contractor at the 
site and fully consumed in the performance of the Work; and cost (less salvage value) of such 
items if not fully consumed, whether sold to others or retained by Contractor. Cost for 
items previously used by Contractor will mean fair market value. 

 
1.5.2 Rental charges for temporary facilities, machinery, equipment, and hand tools not 

customarily owned by construction workers that are provided by Contractor at the site, 
whether rented from Contractor or others, and costs of transportation, installation, minor 
repairs and replacements, dismantling and removal thereof. Rates and quantities of 
equipment rented will be subject to City’s prior written approval. 

 
1.5.2.1 The Projected usage for each piece of equipment to be rented for use on the Project and 

the estimated total rentals must be considered by Contractor before the piece of 
equipment is rented so that an appropriate rent versus buy decision can be made. 
Purchased equipment must be considered “job owned”. At the completion of the Project, 
Contractor must transfer title and possession of all remaining job-owned equipment to 
City, or Contractor may keep any such equipment for an appropriate fair market value 
credit to job cost, which will be mutually agreed to by City and Contractor. 

 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-26 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 9 – CM@Risk & JOC 

 

 

1.5.2.2 Each piece of equipment to be rented must have hourly, daily, weekly and monthly rates 
and the most economical rate available will be reimbursed based on the circumstances of 
actual need and usage of the piece of equipment while it is stationed at the jobsite. 
When the piece of equipment is no longer needed for the work, no rental charges will be 
reimbursed if the piece of equipment remains at the jobsite for the convenience of 
Contractor. 

 
1.5.2.3 Equipment Rental Rates 

1.5.2.3.1 Compensation for equipment used on the Project will be paid in accordance with the 
Equipment Plan submitted by Contractor in the accepted GMP Proposal and no payments 
will be made in excess of the rates set forth in the Equipment Plan, or actual 
documented costs, whichever is less. 

 
1.5.2.3.2 All equipment rental rates and costs are subject to City’s right to audit when submitted as 

part of Equipment Plan and/or at any time during the Project. 
 
1.5.2.4 The aggregate rentals chargeable for each piece of Contractor owned tools or equipment 

must not exceed 50% of the fair market value of such equipment at the time of its 
commitment to the Work. The original purchase price and date of purchase of the equipment 
will be documented with a copy of the purchase invoice for the piece of equipment. Such 
aggregate limitations will apply and no further rentals will be charged even if a piece of 
equipment is taken off the job and is later replaced by a similar piece of equipment. For 
purposes of computing the aggregate rentals applicable to aggregate rental limitations, 
rental charges for similar pieces of equipment will be combined if the pieces of equipment 
were not used at the same time. 

 
1.5.2.5 Fair market value for used material and equipment as referred to in the Agreement 

Documents will mean the estimated price a reasonable purchaser would pay to purchase 
the used material or equipment at the time it was initially needed for the job. Note: This is 
usually lower than the price a reasonable purchaser would pay for similar new construction 
material or construction equipment. 

 
1.5.2.6 All losses resulting from lost, damaged or stolen tools and equipment will be the sole 

responsibility of Contractor, and not City, and the cost of such losses will not be 
reimbursable under the Agreement. 

 
1.5.2.7 Contractor will be required to maintain a detailed equipment inventory of all job-owned 

equipment (either purchased and charged to job cost or job-owned through aggregate 
rentals) and such inventory must be submitted to City each month. For each piece of 
equipment, such inventory should contain at a minimum (1) original purchase price or 
acquisition cost (2) acquisition date (3) approved Fair Market Value at the time the piece of 
equipment was first used on the job and (4) final disposition. 

 
1.5.2.8 All costs incurred for minor maintenance and repairs will be reimbursed at actual cost. Such 

costs include routine and preventative maintenance, minor repairs and other incidental 
costs. Repairs and/or replacement of a capital nature are considered to be covered by the 
rental rates. Major repairs and overhauls are not considered routine and ordinary; 
consequently such costs are not reimbursable and are intended to be covered by the rental 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-27 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 9 – CM@Risk & JOC 

 

 

rates. 
 
1.5.3 Costs of removal of debris from the Site. 

 
1.5.4 Costs of document reproductions, facsimile transmissions and long-distance telephone 

calls, postage and parcel delivery charges, telephone service at the site and reasonable 
petty cash expenses of the site office. 

 
1.5.5 That portion of the reasonable expenses of Contractor’s personnel incurred while 

traveling in discharge of duties connected with the Work. 
 
1.5.5.1 No travel expenses will be reimbursed to Contractor’s representatives unless Project related 

travel required them to travel to a destination more than 100 miles from the Project 
location. Any travel involving airfare will require advance written approval by an authorized 
City’s representative. 

 
1.5.6 Costs of materials and equipment suitably stored off the site at a mutually acceptable 

location, if approved in advance by the City. 
 
1.5.7 Reproduction costs will be the actual costs of reproduction subject to a maximum of five 

cents ($.05) per square foot for prints and a maximum of five cents ($.05) per 8 ½ by 11-
inch page for offset print or photo copied agreement documents, specifications, etc. 
Telephone costs will be the actual costs paid to the third party telephone company for the 
field office telephone. 

 
1.6 Miscellaneous Costs 

1.6.1 That portion of insurance and bond premiums that can be directly attributed to the 
Agreement. The City will reimburse Contractor for contractually required bond at time of first 
pay application for GMP and Cost-Based Agreements upon receipt of proof of payment 
from the Contractor. If the Contractor completes Work for less than the Agreement Price, 
Contractor must credit the City a pro- rated amount for the unused portion of the bond 
payment 

 
1.6.1.1 Contractor’s actual cost for insurance will be considered to be included within the Maximum 

limit for General Conditions Costs. All premiums for any insurance and bonds required for 
the Project must reflect the net actual costs to Contractor after taking into consideration cost 
adjustments due to experience modifiers, premium discounts, policy dividends, 
retrospective rating plan premium adjustments, assigned risk pool rebates, refunds, etc. 

 
1.6.1.2 The amount to be reimbursed to Contractor for all contractually required insurance will be 

actual costs not to exceed a total of 2% of the Agreement Value, unless Contractor 
establishes to City’s satisfaction that the actual cost is higher and City agrees to such actual 
higher cost in writing. If Contractor’s cost of contractually required insurance is greater 
than the amount agreed to be reimbursed per this Agreement Provision, the difference 
will be considered to be covered by the Contractor’s Fee.  The City will reimburse 
Contractor for contractually required insurance on a monthly basis for GMP and Cost-
Based Agreements. If Contractor can demonstrate substantial savings by paying for all 
insurance in advance, the City may agree to reimburse all insurance costs at time of first pay 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-28 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 9 – CM@Risk & JOC 

 

 

application for GMP and Cost-Based Agreements with proof of payment from Contractor. 
 
1.6.2 Sales, use or similar taxes imposed by a governmental authority that are related to the Work. 

 
1.6.3 Fees and assessments for the building permit and for other permits, licenses and 

inspections for which Contractor is required by the Agreement Documents to pay. 
 
1.6.4 Fees of laboratories for tests required by the Agreement Documents, except those related to 

defective or nonconforming Work and which do not fall within the scope of ¶ 1.7.3 below. 
 
1.6.5 Royalties and license fees paid for the use of a particular design, process or product 

required by the Agreement Documents; the cost of defending suites or claims for 
infringement of patent rights arising from such requirement of the Agreement Documents; 
and payments made in accordance with legal judgments against Contractor resulting from 
such suites or claims and payments of settlements made with City’s consent. However, 
such costs of legal defenses, judgments and settlements must not be included in the 
calculation of the Contractor’s Fee or subject to the Guaranteed Maximum Price. 

 
1.6.6 Data processing costs related to the Work. However, any such data processing costs will be 

limited to the cost of personal computer hardware used at the field office in the 
normal day to day administration, management and control of the Project. The 
aggregate charges for any such hardware must not exceed the Fair Market Value of the 
hardware at the time it was brought to the field office. If the total charges for any particular 
piece of hardware reach an amount equal to the Fair Market Value, that particular piece of 
hardware must be turned over to City whenever it is no longer needed for the Project. If 
Contractor elects to keep the particular piece of hardware, the job costs must be credited 
with a mutually agreeable amount which will represent the Fair Market Value of the 
particular piece of hardware at the time it was no longer needed for the job. Software or 
other costs associated with the use of computer programs will not be considered to be a 
reimbursable cost and will be considered to be covered by the Contractor’s Fee. 

 
1.6.7 Deposits lost for causes other than Contractor’s negligence or failure to fulfill a specific 

responsibility to City as set forth in the Agreement Documents. 
 
1.6.8 Legal, mediation and arbitration costs, including attorneys’ fees, other than those arising 

from disputes between City and Contractor, reasonably incurred by Contractor in the 
performance of the Work and with City’s prior written approval; which approval will not be 
unreasonably withheld. 

 
1.6.9 Expenses incurred in accordance with Contractor’s standard personnel policy for relocation 

and temporary living allowances of personnel required for the Work, if pre-approved by City 
in writing. If City authorizes the reimbursement of relocation costs, the reimbursable 
relocation expenses will be limited to a maximum of $50,000 per person. Any relocation 
cost incurred by Contractor in excess of the amount reimbursed by City will be considered to 
be covered by the Contractor’s Fee. 

 
1.7 Other Costs and Emergencies 

1.7.1 Other costs incurred in the performance of the Work if and to the extent approved in 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-29 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 9 – CM@Risk & JOC 

 

 

advance in writing by City. 
 
1.7.2 Costs due to emergencies incurred in taking action to prevent threatened damage, injury or 

loss in case of an emergency affecting the safety of persons and property. 
 
1.7.3 Costs of repairing or correcting damaged or nonconforming Work executed by Contractor, 

Subcontractors or Suppliers, provided that such damaged or nonconforming Work was not 
caused by negligence or failure to fulfill a specific responsibility of Contractor and only to the 
extent that the cost of repair or correction is not recoverable by Contractor from 
insurance, sureties, Subcontractors or Suppliers. 

 
1.8 Related Party Transactions 

1.8.1 The term “related party” will mean a parent, subsidiary, affiliate or other entity having 
common ownership or management with Contractor; any entity in which any stockholder in, 
or management employee of, Contractor owns any interest in excess of ten percent in the 
aggregate; or any person or entity which has the right to control the business or affairs of 
Contractor. The term “related party” includes any member of the immediate family of any 
person identified above. 

 
1.8.2 If any of the costs to be reimbursed arise from a transaction between Contractor and a 

related party, Contractor must notify City in writing of the specific nature of the 
contemplated transaction, including the identity of the related party and the anticipated 
cost to be incurred, before any such transaction is consummated or cost incurred. If City, 
after such notification, authorizes in writing the proposed transaction, then the cost 
incurred will be included as a cost to be reimbursed, and Contractor must procure the Work, 
equipment, goods or service from the related party, as a Subcontractor. If City fails to 
authorize the transaction, Contractor must procure the Work, equipment, goods or 
service from some person or entity other than a related party. 

 
SECTION 2 – COSTS NOT TO BE REIMBURSED 

 

2.1 The Cost of Work must not include: 
 

2.1.1 Salaries and other compensation of Contractor’s personnel stationed at Contractor’s principal 
office or offices other than the site office, except as specifically provided in Subparagraphs 
1.2.2 and 1.2.3. 

 
2.1.2 Expenses of Contractors’ principal office and offices other than the site office. 

 
2.1.3 Overhead and general expenses, except as may be expressly included in Section 1. 

 
2.1.3.1 Costs of Contractor’s home office computer services or other outside computer processing 

services will be considered overhead and general expense. Accordingly, Contractor should 
not plan to perform any such computer related services or alternatives at the field office 
when such services or functions can be performed at Contractor’s home or branch offices, 
or other outside service locations. 

 
2.1.4 Contractor’s capital expenses, including interest on Contractor’s capital employed for the Work. 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-30 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 9 – CM@Risk & JOC 

 

 

 
2.1.5 Rental costs of machinery and equipment, except as specifically provided in subparagraph 

1.5.2. 
 
2.1.6 Except as provided in Subparagraph 1.7.3 of the Agreement, costs due to the negligence or 

failure to fulfill a specific responsibility of Contractor, Subcontractors and Suppliers or 
anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts of them may be 
liable. 

 
2.1.7 Any cost not specifically and expressly described in Section 1. 

 
2.1.8 Costs, other than costs included in Change Orders approved by City that would cause the 

GMP to be exceeded. 
 
SECTION 3 – DISCOUNTS, REBATES, REFUNDS AND SAVINGS 

 

3.1 Cash discounts obtained on payments made by Contractor will accrue to City if (1) before 
making the payment, Contractor included them in an Application for Payment and 
received payment therefore from City, or (2) City has deposited funds with Contractor with 
which to make payments; otherwise, cash discounts will accrue to Contractor. Trade 
discounts, rebates, refunds and amounts received from sales or surplus materials and 
equipment wil l  accrue to City, and Contractor must make provisions so that they can be 
secured. 

 
3.1.1 Cost of the Work will be credited with all insurance policy discounts, performance and 

payment bond rebates or refunds, refunds or return premiums from any Subcontractor 
default insurance, refunds or rebates from any Contractor controlled insurance programs 
applicable to the Project, merchandise rebates of any nature, refunds of any nature, 
insurance dividends; and a portion of any volume rebates or free material credits earned 
with purchase of material or other goods and services charged to the job. 

 
3.1.2 “Cash” discounts which may accrue to Contractor will be limited to a maximum of 1.5% of 

invoice cost. Any portion of “Cash” discounts greater than 1.5% will automatically accrue 
to City if Contractor is eligible to take advantage of the discounts. 

 
3.2 Amounts that accrue to City in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 3.1 will be 

credited to City as a deduction from the Cost of the Work. 
 
3.3 Any and all savings on the GMP, or any separately guaranteed items comprising the GMP, 

will belong to City, subject to any express right in the Agreement for Contractor to share 
in savings. Savings are subject to City’s right to audit, and may be audited separately. 

 
SECTION 4 – GENERAL CONDITIONS COSTS 

 

4.1 General Conditions Costs may include, but are not limited to, the following types of costs 
incurred by Contractor during construction of the Work to the extent they are reimbursable 
Costs of the Work as delineated above: payroll costs for Work conducted at the site, payroll 
costs for the superintendent and full-time general foremen, payroll costs for management 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-31 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 9 – CM@Risk & JOC 

 

 

personnel resident and working on the site workers not included as direct labor costs 
engaged in support (e.g. loading/unloading, clean-up, etc.), administrative office personnel, 
costs of offices and temporary facilities including office materials, office supplies, office 
equipment, minor expenses, utilities, fuel, sanitary facilities and telephone services at the 
site, costs of liability insurance premiums not included in labor burdens for direct labor 
costs, costs of bond premiums, costs of consultants not in the direct employ of Contractor 
or Subcontractors, fees for permits and licenses. 

 
4.2 General Conditions Costs may be paid on a percentage of the Agreement Price or on a 

lump/stipulate sum basis as set forth in the Agreement. All costs included in the General 
Conditions Costs will not be separately invoiced to or paid by City. 

 
4.3 The total amount of General Conditions Costs for the Work may be divided by the number of 

days allowed for performance of the Work, to determine a fixed daily rate for General 
Conditions Costs that may be used in computing the General Conditions Costs allocated to 
any period of time, or for any adjustments in the General Conditions Costs agreed to in  

 writing by City.



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-32 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 10 

 

 

LANDSCAPE ESTABLISHMENT PERIOD 
 
Section 1 – Description and General 

Contractor is in direct control of work performed under the Landscape Establishment Period. If work 
is subcontracted, a representative of the Contractor will be present at the site of the work for all 
hours that the subcontractor works. Subcontracting of Landscape Establishment work will be 
permitted for weed eradication with herbicides, because of special licensing. A licensed temporary 
service may be used to supply labor to Contractor if Contractor has received approval from City 
Representatives.  Contractor will submit the required subcontract documentation. 
 
Contractor must provide adequate personnel to accomplish the required maintenance of the plant 
materials at intervals acceptable to City Representatives. 
 
If not healthy at the end of the maintenance period, the maintenance must be continued until the 
plant material is approved by City. 
 
1.1 Time and Schedule 
Unless otherwise expressly agreed to in writing by City, the Landscape Establishment Period will be 
per General Conditions Section 6.5.4.   

 
1.2 Planted Stock and Seeding Establishment 

1.2.1 Tree planting and staking must be per City of Chandler Standard Detail C-801.  

1.2.2 All trees will stand erect on their own without stakes when brought to this site. If the tree 
cannot stand on its own when nursery stakes are removed, the tree will be removed and 
replaced. 

 
1.3 Pre-Emergent Herbicide and Weed Control 

1.3.1 Contractor will provide three applications of an approved pre-emergent herbicide on all 
unpaved areas of the project, as directed by City Representatives, to control weed growth in 
all areas of the project. The number of applications may be increased as directed by the City 
Representative, and at no additional cost to City, if the City Representative deems additional 
applications are required to control weed growth. 

1.3.2 Application sequence will be approved in advance by City. The first application of pre-
emergent will be completed prior to the application of Decomposed Granite and will be 
included with the cost of the Decomposed Granite as specified and part of the Construction 
Phase portion of work. The second application of pre-emergent will be completed after 
installation of the Decomposed Granit and no later than half-way through the Landscape 
Establishment Period. The third and final application of pre-emergent will be applied 15 
days prior to completion of the Landscape Establishment portion of the project. The second 
and third pre-emergent applications will be included with the cost of Landscape 
Establishment. Watering will be completed in accordance with the manufacturer’s 
recommendations, as included and as related to each application. 

1.3.3 The pre-emergent herbicide will be applied in accordance with the Technical Specifications 
and the recommendations of the pre-emergent herbicide manufacturer, as approved by 
City Representatives. 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-33 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 10 

 

 

1.3.4 The control of weeds will be accomplished by the use of herbicides. Manual removal of 
weeds will be required, after herbicides have taken affect. 

1.3.5 Contractor is responsible for the removal and disposal of all trash and debris that during 
the Landscape Establishment Period. Contractor will keep the project in a neat and orderly 
manner during the duration of the Landscape Establishment Period. 

 
1.4 Water 
The water used during Landscape Establishment to properly maintain the plant material will be 
furnished by City, at designated sources from within the project limits, at no charge to Contractor. 
Contractor will be responsible for all equipment, materials and labor necessary to load, transport and 
unload water for watering purposes. 

 

1.5 Plant Material Replacements 
The plant material replacement will be considered as included in the work for Landscape 
Establishment, and will be made at no charge to the City. 

1.5.1 Shrub and Plant Replacement - During the second half of the Landscaping Establishment 
period, Contractor will provide, where required, plant replacements as follows: 

 

Original Size Replacement Size 

1 gallon 5 gallon 

5 gallon 15 gallon 

15 gallon 24-inch box 

36-inch box 48-inch box 

 

1.5.2 Tree Replacement – During the second half of the Landscape Establishment Period, 
Contractor will provide plant material replacements for existing plants that die as follows: 

 

Existing Plant Material Sizes Replacement Size 

Trees:  

2-inch Caliper 24-inch box 

4-inch Caliper 36-inch box 

6-inch Caliper and greater 54-inch box 

Shrubs:  

All Existing Shrubs 15 gallon 
 

1.6 Measurement and Payment 
See Technical Specifications for Measurement Payment provisions. 



EXHIBIT C 

Project Name: Automated Weather Observing System (AWOS) Replacement C-1 
City Project No.: AI2206.401; FAA Project No.: 3-04-0008-033-2023 
Rev. 10/23/23 

 

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 

 



AWOS Replacement 

    

 Authority Project No. AI2206.401  

 

 

Table of Contents Page TOC-i  

 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

DESCRIPTION                                                                                                                                   SPEC        PAGE 

 

DIVISION I – TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 

C-105 Mobilization/Demobilization ....................................................................... C-105 1-2 

L-100 Electrical General Requirements…………………………………………………………….. L-100  1-10 

L-126 AWOS Equipment ...... ………………………………………………………………………………L-126 1-11 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



AWOS Replacement 

             

 Authority Project No. AI2206.401  

 

Item C-105 Mobilization C-105-1 

Item C-105 Mobilization/Demobilization 

BID ITEM 1: MOBILIZATION / DEMOBILIZATION 

 

105-1 Description. This item of work shall consist of, but is not limited to, work and operations necessary for the 

movement of personnel, equipment, airport security and safety items, material and supplies to and from the 

project site for work on the project except as provided in the contract as separate pay items.  

105-2 Posted notices. Prior to commencement of construction activities, the Contractor must post the following 

documents  in a prominent and accessible place where they may be easily viewed by all employees of the prime 

Contractor and by all employees of subcontractors engaged by the prime Contractor: Equal Employment 

Opportunity (EEO) Poster “Equal Employment Opportunity is the Law” in accordance with the Office of Federal 

Contract Compliance Programs Executive Order 11246, as amended; Davis Bacon Wage Poster (WH 1321) - 

DOL “Notice to All Employees” Poster; and Applicable Davis-Bacon Wage Rate Determination.  These notices 

must remain posted until final acceptance of the work by the Owner. 

METHOD OF MEASUREMENT 

105-3 Basis of measurement and payment. Based upon the contract lump sum price for “Mobilization” partial 

payments will be allowed as follows:  

 a. With first pay request, 25%.  

b. When 25% or more of the original contract is earned, an additional 25%.  

c. When 50% or more of the original contract is earned, an additional 40%.  

d. After Final Inspection, Staging area clean-up and delivery of all Project Closeout materials as required by 

Section 90, paragraph 90-11, Contractor Final Project Documentation, the final 10%. 

 

BASIS OF PAYMENT 

105-4 Payment will be made under: 

Item C-105  Mobilization / Demobilization – per lump sum 

 

REFERENCES 

The publications listed below form a part of this specification to the extent referenced. The publications are 

referred to within the text by the basic designation only. 

Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs (OFCCP) 

Executive Order 11246, as amended 

EEOC-P/E-1 – Equal Employment Opportunity is the Law Poster 



AWOS Replacement 

             

 Authority Project No. AI2206.401  

 

Item C-105 Mobilization C-105-2 

United States Department of Labor, Wage and Hour Division (WHD) 

WH 1321 – Employee Rights under the Davis-Bacon Act Poster 

END OF ITEM C-105 



AWOS Replacement 

           

Authority Project No. AI2206.401 

 

Item L-100 Electrical General Requirements L-100-1 

ITEM L-100 ELECTRICAL GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

BID ITEM 2: AWOS SYSTEM DEMOLITION AND SALVAGE 

DESCRIPTION 

100-2.1 SCOPE.  This Item includes furnishing and installing all material, equipment and apparatus, 

and all labor, tools, services and equipment required for the following: 

 
a. The demolition/salvage of the existing AWOS sensors, tower, foundation and auxiliary equipment.  

Installation shall be in accordance with Specifications FAA-C-1217 and FAA-C-1391, except as specified herein.  

Perform all work not included in the FAA Specifications in accordance with the National Electrical Code, 

applicable local and City of Chandler standards and regulations. 

100-2.2 RELATED DOCUMENTS.  The General Provisions of the Contract, including General and Special 

Conditions, apply to work specified in this Item. 

a. See 060 SUPPLEMENTAL CONDITIONS for liquidated damages and the sequence of construction.  

b. See Item P-151, Clearing and Grubbing for specifics of demolition and adjustment of existing facilities. 

c. Conflicts between Drawing and Specifications (Contract Documents ) and between Contract Documents 

and references within the Contract Documents:  Prospective Contractors shall, as part of their proposals, 

enumerate, identify and list conflicts they find to exist within the Contract Documents, and between these 

Documents and the rules, regulations, standards and codes of the authority having jurisdiction (Aviation 

Department, City, County, etc.), local Utility companies and local, County or State governing bodies. 

100-2.3 SPECIFICATIONS AND STANDARDS.  As a supplement to the installation requirements of this 

item, the following standard specifications and regulations of the issues in effect on the date of this solicitation are 

incorporated herein by reference and are made a part hereof for electrical work and installation and splicing of 

underground cables. 

NEC The latest adopted edition of the National Electrical 

Code 

FAA-STD-019 Lightning Protection, Grounding, Bonding and 

Shielding Requirements for Facilities 

FAA-C-1217 Electrical Work, Interior 

FAA-C-1391 Installation and Splicing of Underground Cables 

Utility Company Rules and 

Regulations 

SRP 

Local Governing Bodies' Codes 

and Regulations 

City of Chandler  



AWOS Replacement 

           

Authority Project No. AI2206.401 

 

Item L-100 Electrical General Requirements L-100-2 

100-2.4 SHOP DRAWINGS AND MATERIAL LISTS.  Prior to the installation of any material and 

equipment and within thirty (30) days of contract award, the Contractor shall submit to the Owner for approval 

one (1) electronic copy, in pdf format, of manufacturers' brochures containing complete dimensional and 

performance characteristics, wiring diagrams, installation and operation instructions, etc., for the equipment listed 

in the individual L-Series specification Items. 

A materials list shall be submitted listing each specification paragraph number and stating whether the materials 

proposed are as specified or are substitutions.  If the item is a substitute item, a complete submittal as described in 

the above paragraph shall be provided for that item. 

Unless otherwise coordinated with the Engineer, the submittal shall be complete and made in one submission in 

electronic pdf form.  Partial submissions will not be reviewed or considered. 

Submittal data shall be presented in a clear, precise and thorough manner. Original catalog sheets are preferred. 

Photocopies are acceptable provided they are as good a quality as the original. Clearly and boldly mark each copy 

to identify pertinent products or models applicable to this project. Indicate all optional equipment and delete non-

pertinent data.  Submittals for components of electrical equipment and systems shall identify the equipment for 

which they apply on each submittal sheet. Markings shall be boldly and clearly made with arrows or circles 

(highlighting is not acceptable). Contractor is solely responsible for delays in project accruing directly or 

indirectly from late submissions or resubmissions of submittals. 

100-2.5 AIRFIELD LIGHTING SYSTEM SWITCHOVER BETWEEN CONSTRUCTION STAGES.  

Not applicable. 

100-2.6 SPARE FIXTURE INVENTORY REPLACEMENT.  Not Applicable. 

100-2.7 AIRFIELD LIGHTING SYSTEM OPERATIONAL TESTS.  Not Applicable. 

100-2.8 OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE (O&M) INSTRUCTIONS: 

a. At the completion of the project, at such time as designated by the Engineer, an operational and 

maintenance instruction period for Owner shall take place.  The Contractor shall have present during this 

entire period his superintendent, foremen of various portions of the project, and manufacturer's service 

representatives (factory trained) for all equipment requiring periodic maintenance.  All operational and 

maintenance instructions shall be presented under direct supervision of the Engineer.  Prior to the O&M 

instruction period, all systems shall be started up and inspected by the Contractor, and shall be fully 

operational. 

b. Contractor shall provide sign-in sheet and shall be responsible for having all present parties sign in.  

After instruction is complete and accepted by Owner, Contractor shall provide Owner a letter indicating that 

the instructions have been accepted and Owner shall sign same.  Provide line items for each system 

demonstrated.  Both parties shall initial each item.  Copies shall be sent to the Engineer. 

c. Unless otherwise specifically trained as such by the manufacturer, the Contractor's personnel do not 

qualify as factory trained representatives. 

100-2.9 OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE MANUALS: 

a. The contractor shall prepare and submit Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Manuals for mechanical 

systems provided under this contract.  Comply with General Requirements for procedures and requirements 

for preparation and submittal of manuals. 



AWOS Replacement 

           

Authority Project No. AI2206.401 

 

Item L-100 Electrical General Requirements L-100-3 

b. Manual binder shall have permanent lettering of a contrasting color.  Information to be included on the 

binder is as follows: 

The front cover shall be lettered as follows: 

ELECTRICAL  

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE MANUAL 

(PROJECT NAME) 

(CITY AND STATE) 

(YEAR) 

OWNER: (NAME) 

ELECTRICAL ENGINEER:  (NAME) 

MECHANICAL ENGINEER: (NAME) 

GENERAL CONTRACTOR: (NAME) 

ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR: (NAME) 

MECHANICAL CONTRACTOR: (NAME) 

The spine shall be lettered as follows: 

ELECTRICAL  

O&M MANUAL 

(PROJECT NAME) 

c. Provide a master index at beginning of Manual showing items included.  Use plastic tab indexes for 

sections of Manual. 

d. Cover section shall consist of name, address, and phone number of Project Engineer, General 

Contractor, Electrical and/or Mechanical Engineer, Electrical and/or Mechanical Contractor and all 

Electrical and/or Mechanical Sub-Contractors. 

e. Provide a separate section for each section of the specifications.  Provide index for each section listing 

equipment included.  Include all items specified in the L-Series Sections.  Provide a list of equipment 

suppliers with address and phone number. 

f. Include in each section a copy of the approved submittal, followed by descriptive literature 

(manufacturer’s O&M data) of each manufactured item.  Literature shall show all information listed below, 

and any data not relevant to the specific equipment installed shall be lined out.  Data sheets shall be original 

or very clear photocopies. 



AWOS Replacement 

           

Authority Project No. AI2206.401 

 

Item L-100 Electrical General Requirements L-100-4 

g. One (1) electronic copy of the manual shall be submitted for review and approval by the Engineer.  

After approval, submit three (3) hardcopies and (1) electronic copy of the manual to the Owner for approval 

unless otherwise directed by Division 1 requirements.  Information to be included in the manual: 

(1) Description of function, normal operating characteristics and limitations, performance curves, 

engineering data and tests, and complete nomenclature and commercial numbers of all 

replaceable parts. 

(2) Manufacturer’s printed operating procedures to include start-up, break-in, routing and normal 

operating instructions; regulation, control, stopping shut-down, and emergency instructions; 

and summer and winter operating instructions. 

(3) Maintenance procedures for routine preventative maintenance and troubleshooting; 

disassembly, repair, and reassembly; aligning and adjusting instructions. 

(4) Servicing instructions and lubrication charts and schedules. 

(5) Schematic control diagrams (as-built status) for each automatic control system.  Mark correct 

operating setting for each control instrument on these diagrams. 

(6) Electrical Equipment Test Results:  Cable megger tests. hh 

(7) Test records and certifications. 

(8) Instruction period checklist. 

(9) Warranty information. 

(10) ALCMS Owner Acceptance Report  

(11) Factory startup certification sheets 



AWOS Replacement 

           

Authority Project No. AI2206.401 

 

Item L-100 Electrical General Requirements L-100-5 

 

EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS 

100-3.1 GENERAL 

a. Airport lighting equipment and materials covered by advisory circulars (ACs) must be certified and 

listed in AC 150/5345-53, Airport Lighting Equipment Certification Program, current edition. 

b. All other equipment and materials covered by other referenced specifications shall be subject to 

acceptance through manufacturer’s certification of compliance with the applicable specification when 

requested by the Engineer. 

c. All equipment and materials furnished and installed in this section shall be guaranteed against defects in 

materials and workmanship for at least twelve (12) months from the date of final acceptance by the Owner. 

The defective materials and/or equipment shall be repaired or replaced, at the Owner’s discretion, with no 

additional cost to the Owner.  Replacement equipment for the equipment that fails within the guarantee 

period shall be provided with an extended five (5) year warranty from the date of replacement. 

100-3.2 EQUIPMENT.  Conduits, conduit fittings, conductors, connectors, boxes, wiring devices, 

panelboards, and circuit breakers shall meet requirements of Specification FAA-C-1217. 

100-3.3 CONDUIT, EXTERIOR.  Conduits in concrete slabs, in block walls or exterior exposed shall be 

rigid galvanized steel (RGS).  Conduits run on the exterior of the building above or below the grade for the earth 

grounding system shall be rigid zinc-coated steel. Radius of bends in RGS shall be minimum 12 nominal pipe 

diameters.  Rigid galvanized steel conduit run in concrete or below slab on grade, or in the ground, shall be field 

wrapped or shall have factory-applied coating as required in Specification FAA-C-1217. Field-made joints, 

fittings, abrasions and holidays shall be coated or wrapped with material equal to the original coating or wrapping. 

100-3.4 600 VOLT WIRE.  600V cable shall be as specified in Item L-108, Underground Power Cable for 

Airports.  

100-3.5 CONDUIT FITTINGS.  Each conduit and nipple entrance to junction boxes, panelboards, 

disconnect switches, duct, raceway, equipment cabinets, and other such electrical enclosures shall be fitted with 

double locknuts (one each side of metal penetrated) and insulating bushing.  Bushings on 1-1/4 inch and larger 

conduits shall be insulated metallic, type OZ/Gedney Cat. No. IBC Series, or equal; bushings for 3/4 inch and 1 

inch shall be plastic insulated T&B rated for 150 °C, or equal.  All openings where conduits enter junction boxes, 

other enclosures and shelters shall be sealed weathertight.  The conduit shall be capped, if left empty, or sealed 

with Ducseal, or equal, around the conductors for exterior conduits. 

100-3.6 OTHER ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT.  Cutouts, relays, terminal blocks, transfer relays, circuit 

breakers, and all other regularly used commercial items of electrical equipment not covered by FAA equipment 

specifications shall conform to the applicable rulings and standards of the Institute of Electrical and Electronic 

Engineers (IEEE) or the National Electrical Manufacturers Association (NEMA). When specified, test reports 

from a testing laboratory indicating that the equipment meets the specifications shall be supplied.  In all cases, 

equipment shall be new and a first-grade product. This equipment shall be supplied in the quantities required for 

the specific project and shall incorporate the electrical and mechanical characteristics specified in the specification 

and plans.  

CONSTRUCTION METHODS 

100-4.1 EXISTING UTILITIES.  Prior to any excavation or trenching, provide utility locator and verify any 

existing cables and utilities which will be crossed by the trench. Ensure these utilities are permanently 



AWOS Replacement 

           

Authority Project No. AI2206.401 

 

Item L-100 Electrical General Requirements L-100-6 

disconnected if they are going to be demolished. The existing service lines shall be exposed by hand-digging in 

those areas that will be crossed and shall be protected from any possible damage. If any damage occurs, it shall be 

the Contractor's responsibility to immediately repair such damage with materials and methods approved by the 

Owner and in compliance with applicable codes and standards, at no additional cost to the Owner.   

100-4.2 DEMOLITION AND SALVAGE.   

a. Demolition. Removal of existing AWOS and auxiliary equipment not deemed salvageable by the airport 

as follows: 

(1) Remove indicated power and communication cables from conduits and ducts. 

(2) Remove demolished material from site and dispose of according to local regulations.  

b. Salvage. Removal and salvage of AWOS sensors and computer equipment is included under this Item 

shall include the intent, but not be limited to the specific elements, of the following: 

(1) AWOS sensors. 

(2) Computers 

(3) Antenna and radio equipment 

(4) Salvageable material and equipment slated for reinstallation shall be stored securely for 

reinstallation as noted on drawings. 

(5) Salvageable material and equipment not slated for reinstallation, and deemed salvageable by the 

Airport shall be removed and salvaged to the Airport as directed by appropriate Airport 

personnel. 

(6) All equipment deemed non-salvageable by the Airport shall become the property of the 

Contractor and shall be removed from the site.   

100-4.3 CIRCUIT BREAKERS.  Not used. 

100-4.4 CONDUCTORS.  Installation of underground 5 kV conductors is specified in Item L-108 of these 

specifications. 

100-4.5 GROUNDING.  All metal support structures and metal enclosures shall be grounded in accordance 

with the requirements of the Specifications FAA-C-1217, FAA-C-1391, and FAA-STD-019, and as indicated on 

the drawings. 

100-4.6 GROUND RODS.  Grounding rods shall be 3/4-inch diameter by 10 feet long copper-jacketed steel.  

Grounding connections shall be by the exothermic weld process, Cadweld or equal.  Extruded, drawn or stamped-

type ground clamps will not be acceptable unless otherwise noted.  The resistance to ground shall not exceed 25 

ohms. 

100-4.7 GROUND CONDUCTORS.  Equipment grounding conductors shall be insulated copper, except 

where shown on the project drawings to be bare, and sized as shown on the project drawings; and all grounds will 

be shown in accordance with Article 250-95 of the National Electrical Code and with FAA-STD-019.  

Attachment of wire to supports, boxes, etc., shall be accomplished using approved ground lug attached with a 

separate stainless steel screw, lock washer and nut.  Screws used for support of the electrical enclosure shall not 

be used for connection of the ground wire. Pipe straps shall not be used for ground purposes. 



AWOS Replacement 

           

Authority Project No. AI2206.401 

 

Item L-100 Electrical General Requirements L-100-7 

COLOR CODING OF GROUND CONDUCTORS 

 

TYPE OF GROUND CONDUCTOR COLOR OF INSULATION 

Grounding Electrode Conductor Bare - No Insulation 

Equipment Grounding Conductor Green (safety) 

*Multipoint Ground (Frame) Green with bright orange tracer 

*Signal Ground Green with bright yellow tracer 

*Where these cables are concealed and not color coded, an exposed portion of the cable and each end of the cable 

for a minimum length of 2 feet shall be color coded with green tape overlaid with a bright orange or yellow to 

form a tracer.  Where routed through raceways or wireways, the color coding shall be such that by removing or 

opening any one cover, the coding will be visible. Where conductors are routed through cable trays, color coding 

shall be accomplished at intervals not exceeding 3 feet. 

The multi-ground system supplements but does not replace the equipment grounding conductor required by the 

National Electrical Code.  

Each of these separate ground conductors is insulated in order to keep it distinct and not allow contact with any 

other conductor. 

Electrical continuity of cable armor or shield shall be maintained.  Grounding of the cable armor or shield shall be 

required at all terminations and shall be accomplished by connecting a #6 AWG solid bare copper wire to the 

cable armor or shield by means of a compression-type ground clamp installed within the terminating enclosure.  

Armor or shield ground wire shall be connected to the ground electrode conductor using split bolt connector, 

Burndy or equal.  Grounding of direct earth burial (DEB) armored power and shielding control cable shall be at 

each end in accordance with FAA-C-1391. 

100-4.8 IDENTIFICATION.  Handhole, manhole, fixture and sign identification shall be as detailed on the 

drawings and as indicated in the associated “L” series Items.  Cable tagging and markers shall be identified as per 

FAA-C-1391, Sections 3.5.1 and 2.   

100-4.9 NOTIFICATION OF TESTING.  The Contractor shall notify the project Resident Project 

Representative (RPR) and the owner (PMGAA) a minimum of 48 hours in advance of system, or partial system, 

testing, including but not limited to, installed cable megger testing, operational testing of any modified lighting 

circuit and fixture and signs photometric testing. 

 

METHOD OF MEASUREMENT 

100-5.1 AWOS SYSTEM DEMOLITION AND SALVAGE.  This Item consists of the removal of 

indicated portions of the AWOS system, including, if deemed acceptable by the airport, the salvage to the airport, 

of selected equipment not already indicated to be salvaged for reinstallation.  This work also includes the removal 

of all conductors which are not to remain in service from ducts or conduits accessed under this project.  Conduit, 

duct banks, fixture bases and concrete handholes are to be selectively demolished as part of the grading and 

excavation or abandoned in place. 

BASIS OF PAYMENT 

100-6.1 AWOS SYSTEM DEMOLITION AND SALVAGE.   Payment will be made at the contract Lump 

Sum price for the demolition, removal and salvage services completed and accepted.  This price shall be full 

compensation for furnishing all materials and for all labor, equipment, tools, and incidentals necessary to 

complete this Item as accepted by the Owner. 



AWOS Replacement 

           

Authority Project No. AI2206.401 

 

Item L-100 Electrical General Requirements L-100-8 

Payment will be made under: 

Item L-100-5.1 AWOS System Demolition and Salvage – per Lump Sum 

 

END OF ITEM L-100 

 



AWOS Replacement 

             

 Authority Project No. AI2206.401  

 

Item L-126 AWOS Equipment L-126-1 

AWOS EQUIPMENT 

BID ITEM 3: AWOS SYSTEM LEVEL III PT FURNISH, INSTALL, AND COMMISSIONING 

DESCRIPTION 

126-1.1 This item shall consist of furnishing and installing a FAA-approved Level III-PT Automated Weather 

Observation System (AWOS) with Precipitation Sensors (Present Weather) and Lightning Location Sensors in 

accordance with this specification and the FAA Advisory Circular No. 150/5220-16E latest edition.  The system 

shall be installed at the specified location and in accordance with the dimensions and details shown in the plans 

and FAA Order No. 6560.20B for Siting Criteria. This item shall include furnishing all equipment, materials, 

services, and incidentals necessary to place the system in operation as a completed unit to the satisfaction of the 

Inspector and ready for commissioning by the Federal Aviation Administration. 

EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS 

126-2.1 General. 

a. The Automated Weather Observing System and other equipment and material covered by FAA 

specifications shall have the approval of the Federal Aviation Administration, Washington, D.C., 20591, 

as listed in the Advisory Circular 150/5345-1, latest edition prior to bid opening. 

b. All other equipment and materials covered by other referenced specifications shall be subject to 

acceptance through the manufacturer's certification of compliance with the applicable specification. 

126-2.3 General Performance Standards 

a. Input Power. AWOS equipment shall operate from a 120V AC (± 5 percent), 60 Hz (± 5 Hz), 3-wire 

single phase service. The maximum service required shall be 10 amps.  The Data Collection Platform 

(DCP) enclosure shall be mounted to the AWOS tower in accordance with the manufacturer's 

specifications.   

b. Loss of Power.  The AWOS system will return to normal operation without human intervention after a 

power outage.  When power is restored, the system will not output erroneous data.  The system shall have 

the capability of operating from a one hour Uninterruptible Power Supply (UPS) should one be required. 

126-2.4 Operating Environment.  The AWOS equipment shall meet the requirements for operating in a 

Class 1 environment, as defined in the FAA Advisory Circular 150/5220-16E.  

126-2.5 AWOS System and Sensor Specifications.  The AWOS System provided for this project shall meet 

the specifications and performance guidelines defined in AC 150/5220–16E and outlined in the following 

paragraphs.   

126-2.5.1 Wind Speed Sensor.  The wind speed sensor shall be an ultrasonic type with an output frequency, 

which is proportional to wind speed.  Periodic calibration shall not be required. 

a. Range: 0 – 146 knots (0 – 168 mph) 

b. Accuracy: +/- 0.02 knots or 2%, whichever is greater  

c. Resolution: 0.02 knots  

d. Threshold: 0.02 knots 



AWOS Replacement 

             

 Authority Project No. AI2206.401  

 

Item L-126 AWOS Equipment L-126-2 

126-2.5.2 Wind Direction Sensor.  The wind direction sensor shall be an ultrasonic type and shall not require 

periodic calibration. This contractor shall align the sensor true north.  The sensor shall be able to withstand a wind 

speed of 85 knots without damage. 

a. Range:  0 degrees to 360 degrees in azimuth. 

b. Accuracy: +/- 2 degrees 

c. Resolution: 1 degree 

d. Dead Band Direction: None. 

126-2.5.3 Ambient Temperature Sensor.  The sensor shall be thermally isolated in a motor aspirated radiation 

shield to accurately measure air temperature. 

a. Range:  From -40 degrees to +60 degrees C (-40 degrees to +140 degrees F). 

b. Accuracy: +/- 0.3 degrees C 

c. Resolution: One (1) degree F. 

d. Time Constant. Not greater than two (2) minutes. 

126-2.5.4 Dew Point.  Dew point shall be derived using temperature and relative humidity data. Algorithms 

within the AWOS Data Collection Platform (DCP) shall perform this derivation. The relative humidity sensor 

shall be thermally isolated in a motor aspirated radiation shield to accurately measure the atmospheric dew point 

temperature.  

a. Operating Range:  From -40 degrees to +60 degrees C (-40 degrees to +140 degrees F), 0 to 100% RH 

(Relative Humidity). 

b. Resolution: One (1) degree F 

c. Time Constant. Not greater than two (2) minutes 

d. Accuracy: Accuracy is as follows: 

1. 2 degrees F dew point for dry bulb temperature of +30 degrees F to +90 degrees F (80% to 100% 

RH), with a maximum error of 3 degrees F at any dry bulb temperature. 

2. 3 degrees F dew point for dry bulb temperature of +30 degrees F to +120 degrees F (15% to 75% 

RH) with a maximum error of 4 degrees F at any dry bulb temperature. 

3. 4 degrees F dew point for dry bulb temperature of -20 degrees F to +20 degrees F (25% to 95% 

RH) with a maximum error of 5 degrees F at any dry bulb temperature. The minimum dew point 

requires is -30 degrees F.  

126-2.5.5 Pressure Sensor.  Two pressure sensors shall be provided, with provisions to accommodate a third as 

a backup.  The sensors shall not require heaters. Pressure sensors shall be vented to the atmosphere using a quad-

plate pressure port.  Each sensor shall have an independent venting interface (from separate outside vents through 

dedicated piping) to the sensors. 



AWOS Replacement 

             

 Authority Project No. AI2206.401  

 

Item L-126 AWOS Equipment L-126-3 

a. Range:  From 15.00 to 32.00 inHg. The system shall be capable of reporting altimeter settings between 

28.00 and 31.00 inHg when installed at the airport.   

b. Accuracy: +/- 0.01 inHg. 

c. Resolution: 0.001 inHg. 

d. Differential Accuracy:  The sensor shall exhibit a maximum differential accuracy of 0.01 inHg or less 

between any two pressure measurements taken from the same sensor 3 hours apart. 

e. Maximum Drift with Time:  Each sensor shall be stable and continuously accurate within 0.01 inHg for a 

period of not less than 6 months.   

126-2.5.6 Cloud Height Sensor.  The cloud height sensor shall be capable of detecting clouds up to 12,500 ft. 

The sensor shall provide an output of three cloud layers representative of the sky conditions when surface 

visibilities are equal to or greater than ¼ mile. 

a. Range:  The sensor shall measure cloud heights and the heights of obscuring phenomena aloft to 12,500 

ft.  

b. Accuracy.  +100 ft or 5%, whichever is greater 

c. Resolution:  Not greater than: 50 ft surface to 5,500 ft; 250 ft from 5,501 to 10,000 ft; 500 ft above 10,000 

ft. 

d. Sampling.  The sensor shall provide an output of cloud height at least once every 30 seconds when clouds 

are present.  The sampling rate may be reduced to at least one sample every 3 minutes when no clouds are 

detected for the preceding 15 minutes. 

e. Detection Performance Accuracy.  Meet or exceed the requirements of FAA Advisory Circular 150/5220-

16E, latest edition. 

f. Eye Safety.  The cloud height indicator sensor shall be designed to conform to ANSI-Z 136.1, Acceptable 

Emission Limits for Laser Radiation, with Class 3b maximum accessible emission level applied to direct 

viewing without optical instruments (excluding ordinary eyeglasses).  An interlock device in the laser 

power circuit shall be proved to disable the laser during maintenance thereby preventing inadvertent 

exposure of the laser emission to the eyes of the technician or other. 

g. Optics Contamination.  An air blower shall be used to reduce the contamination of sensor optics.  A 

signal shall be generated to indicate the amount of optics contamination, thereby indicating the need for 

optics cleaning. 

1. Snow.  The ceilometer window shall remain clear of snow when subject to precipitation rate of 

two (2) inches per hour for one hour at a temperature of 20 degrees F. 

2. Ice.  The window shall remain clear of ice for 60 minutes under conditions of freezing, rain, 

equivalent to buildup of 1/2 inch per hour thickness of clear ice. 

126-2.5.7 Visibility Sensor. The visibility sensor shall be of the 2-headed design using the forward-scatter 

method of measurement. A method of calibration traceable to the FAA approved standards shall be provided.  

a. Range:  The visibility sensor shall determine visibilities from 30 ft to 10 miles.  



AWOS Replacement 

             

 Authority Project No. AI2206.401  

 

Item L-126 AWOS Equipment L-126-4 

b. Resolution:  In terms of equivalent visibility, the sensor shall provide data to report visibility values as 

follows (in statute miles); less than 1/4, 1/4, 1/2, 3/4, 1, 1-1/4, 1-1/2, 2, 2-1/2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 8, 9, and 10 miles. 

c. Time Constant:  The time constant shall not exceed 3 minutes. 

d. Accuracy:  The sensor shall agree with a transmissometer standard as follows: 

Visibility Sensor Accuracy Requirements (All values in statute miles) 

Reference Transmissometer Reading Acceptable Sensor Variance 

1/4 through 1-1/4 ± ¼ 

1-1/2 through 1-3/4 + 1/4, -1/2 

2 through 2-1/2 ± ½ 

3 through 3-1/2 +1/2, -1 

4 and greater than 4 ± 1 

 

e. Ambient Light Sensor.  The visibility sensor shall contain an ambient light sensor (i.e. photocell) to 

measure the ambient luminance within its field of view, and to generate a signal to the visibility sensor to 

indicate whether the ambient light level is day or night. It shall indicate day for increasing illumination 

between 0.5 and 3 footcandles (FC), and night for decreasing illumination between 3 and 0.5 FC.  This 

sensor may be exposed to ambient light levels as high as 50 FC. 

126-2.5.8 Precipitation Accumulation Sensor. The sensor should be capable of measuring the precipitation 

amount with a range of 0.01 to 5 inches per hour. Precipitation amount is the liquid equivalent of all precipitation 

forms, i.e., liquid, freezing, frozen, or combinations thereof.  

a. Resolution.  0.01 inches 

b. Accuracy.  The accuracy shall be 0.02 inches per hour (RMSE), or 4 percent of actual, whichever is 

greater. 

126-2.5.9 Precipitation Sensors (Present Weather).  The AWOS Level III-P includes a present weather 

(precipitation) detection device which shall report fog, haze, drizzle, rain, snow, and intensity as per the 

specifications for Automated Weather Observing Systems as contained in FAA Advisory Circular (AC) 

150/5220-16, latest edition.  

126-2.5.10 Thunderstorm Detection Sensor.  This stand-alone sensor will detect the presence of a 

thunderstorm in the vicinity of an airport, locate the thunderstorm and provide this data in such a form that the 

information can be incorporated into the AWOS voice and data weather message. The Data will also be displayed 

on the operator terminal. 

The sensor will meet the following Performance Standards: 

1. Range and direction: Thunderstorms within 30 nautical miles (nm) of the reference point on the 

airport should be reported. Direction is expressed in compass octants for distances from 10 to 30Nnm. 

2. Resolution: The thunderstorm location should be defined within one nm of the location of the actual 

location of the thunderstorm/lightning.  



AWOS Replacement 

             

 Authority Project No. AI2206.401  

 

Item L-126 AWOS Equipment L-126-5 

3. Accuracy: The standard detects strikes within 30 nm of the reference point. 

126-2.5.11 AWOS Data Processor.  The AWOS data processor shall be a Pentium PC, 100MHz (or greater), 

16MB RAM with a 1.0 GB or greater hard disk and perform the following functions; data acceptance; data 

reduction; data processing and product dissemination (digital and voice).  

a. The processor shall be capable of attaining AWOS IV configuration by adding the requisite sensors and 

software only. No major upgrade of the data processor will be required. 

b. The processor shall provide a computer-generated voice weather observation to a ground-to-air radio for 

transmission to aircraft. 

c. Number of Sensors.  The processor shall be able to receive inputs from up to an unlimited number of 

sensors.   

d. The processor shall contain an operating system working in an open system architecture capable of 

remote software upgrades.  

e. Data Reduction.  The data reduction function shall pre-process information prior to meteorological 

algorithm processing. The AWOS data reduction software shall include quality control checks to ensure 

that the data received is accurate and complete and that the associated equipment is working properly 

before the weather algorithms are performed. If data from any sensor is erroneous or missing (e.g. sensor 

power loss, etc.), the parameter and all other parameters derived from the missing parameter shall be 

reported “missing” in the weather observation. The processor shall continue to sample data, and if the 

error condition is corrected, the weather parameter shall be reinserted in the AWOS report.  

1. The processor shall periodically check reference of calibration points which correspond to the normal 

operating limits of the sensor. 

2. The processor shall set upper and lower limits on the sensor output which correspond to the normal 

operating limits of the sensor. 

f. Weather Algorithms.  The system processor shall implement algorithms provided by the FAA to generate 

the elements of the weather observation.  An observation shall be generated each minute. 

g. System Output.  The system shall generate the outputs: computer generated voice transmitted to pilots; 

telephone port for dial-up service and software updates; output port for a video display; input/output ports 

for up to 8 remote display terminals, and an output to the national weather network. 

h. Real Time Clock.  The system shall report date and time.  This information will be used in system 

displays, computer generated voice output, etc.  The day shall be expressed in Gregorian Calendar. Hours 

and minutes shall be indicated numerically from 0000 to 2359.  The clock function shall be accurate 

within 15 seconds a month.  The clock shall be backed with a battery which will operate the clock for a 

minimum of 30 days.  The system shall be delivered with the clock set to UTC (Universal Time 

Constant). 

i. Power Outage.  The system shall return to normal operation without human intervention after a power 

outage.  The system shall not output erroneous data when power is restored. 

j. Data Archiving.  The processor shall retain 1-year worth of weather reports and system maintenance 

activity and have download capability to a USB drive, for use by accident investigators. The interval 

between archived reports shall be 5 minutes or less.   



AWOS Replacement 

             

 Authority Project No. AI2206.401  

 

Item L-126 AWOS Equipment L-126-6 

A method shall be provided for the retrieval of archive reports, and the operator shall be able to suspend 

the updates or archived weather reports to freeze the data until retrieval may be accomplished.  The event 

of power loss, the archive data shall be retained within the processor hard disk. 

k. System Constants.  The following system constants shall be stored in data files on the hard disk drive. 

1. Elevation of the pressure sensors at the installation site (MSL). 

2. Magnetic variation of the installation site, to the nearest degree. 

3. AWOS facility identification. 

4. Constants required to convert pressure to altimeter setting.  

5. System configuration parameters (Sensors, peripherals, interface, port assignments, etc.) 

126-2.5.12 Operator Terminal (OT).   

a. Product Editing.  The Operator Terminal shall have the capability to do product editing.  This function 

allows an authorized observer to initiate or change any observation product.  A specific "editing" 

password shall control access to this function.  Manual entries of weather phenomena not automatically 

observed shall be placed in the remarks section of the observation and will not be included in the voice 

message.  In the case of sensor failure or an incorrect AWOS output, an operator shall have the capability 

to replace the incorrect parameter value with a missing symbol. 

The operator terminal shall consist of a video display monitor with keyboard. All necessary interface 

equipment, video display monitor, detachable keyboard and audio output equipment shall be supplied.  

b. Security.  The system shall require the operator to enter a security code in response to system queries 

prior to allowing the operator to proceed with the entry of data. 

c. Telephone Hook-up. The telephone hook-up shall provide an audio output on an assigned dial-up 

telephone number. The telephone line shall be provided by others. The phone line shall be terminated at 

the data processor location.  

d. Periodic Data Validation.  Where an OT is used to modify the report, all manually entered data shall be 

automatically timed tagged by the system.  The data shall be valid until the next hourly or manually 

entered observation. In order to retain the manually entered data in the system, the operator shall be 

required to revalidate his entries hourly.  The data shall be retained in the observation until the "on-the-

hour" observation, when it must be revalidated. 

e. Remote Maintenance Monitoring. Remote maintenance monitoring shall be accomplished over the voice 

line at a minimum baud rate of 9600.  

126-2.5.13 Voice Subsystem.  The voice subsystem shall provide high quality computer-generated speech for 

output of the AWOS observation.  A high-level error-checking scheme shall be incorporated to prevent erroneous 

outputs. The voice subsystem shall provide the speech for the local ground-air radio broadcast and for telephone 

dial-up users.   

The voice subsystem shall have the capability for the addition of the addition of up to two (ninety seconds each) 

manually input voice messages. These messages will be voiced at the end of the computer-generated voice 

message. The programming of the manual input voice messages shall be accomplished using a microphone. 



AWOS Replacement 

             

 Authority Project No. AI2206.401  

 

Item L-126 AWOS Equipment L-126-7 

Security access code shall prevent unauthorized use. The system shall automatically play back the recorded 

message and allow the user to reprogram, delete or accept the messages.  

A. The voice subsystem shall have the following features: 

a. The voice signal shall deliver a minimum of 1 milliwatt of power into a balanced 600 ohm line.  The 

output amplitude shall be adjustable to nominal 0 db. 

b. The voice message shall be output continuously with approximately a 5-second delay between the 

completion of one message and the beginning of the next. 

c. If the voice message is in process of output when the new AWOS observation is received, the output 

message will be completed without interruption; voice transmission of the new AWOS observation will 

begin upon completion of the next delay time. 

d. The quality of the automated speech shall provide clear reception from telephone and ground-air radio 

receivers. 

e. The format and sequence of the voice message shall be in accordance with FAA order 7110.10, Flight 

Services Handbook.  When any weather parameter is reported missing due to a disabled or inoperative 

sensor, as determined by internal AWOS checks, the voice report shall be "(parameter) missing", e.g., 

"wind speed missing", "cloud height missing", etc.  The UCT time of the observation will be given after 

the location identification. 

f. If a valid data update is not received prior to the start of the next voice transmission, the last valid data set 

received shall be used to compose the voice message. Failure to receive a data update for more than five 

minutes shall result in the termination of the voice output and generation of a failure message.  In this 

event, the AWOS shall output the message "(station identification) automated weather observing system 

temporarily inoperative". 

g. The system shall contain an automatic telephone answering device that will permit user access to the 

voice message via the public telephone system. The incoming call shall be answered prior to completion 

of the second ring, and the audio signal in progress at the time the call is received shall be placed online.  

The voice subsystem shall automatically disconnect when the weather observation has been completely 

transmitted twice. 

h. Hook-up for telephone audio output on an assigned dial-up telephone number shall be provided by others. 

i. The system shall contain a handset or speaker for monitoring the voice output. 

126-2.5.14 VHF Transmitter. It is FAA policy that the output of the AWOS will be transmitted on an existing 

navigational aid voice outlet whenever possible. If there is no navigational aid available, then the output will be 

broadcast via a separate VHF transmitter. The transmitter operates in the 118-136 MHz band. The transmitter 

must have an FCC type acceptance and have the following operational parameters: 

a. Channel spacing: 25 kHz 

b. RF Power Outlet: 10 W maximum  

c. Frequency Stability: +/- 0.001% (-30 degrees C to +60 degrees C) 

d. Emission Type: 6K00A3E (formerly 6A3E) 



AWOS Replacement 

             

 Authority Project No. AI2206.401  

 

Item L-126 AWOS Equipment L-126-8 

e. Spurious and Harmonic Emissions: 80 db minimum up to 90% modulation  

126-2.5.14 Control and Communication Interface.  The Control and Communication Interface shall acquire 

the data via the AWOS communications line from the central data processor peripheral interface, encapsulate it 

and broadcast it over the internet for remote users to view the weather data using a standard web browser.  All 

Weather Inc. AWOS Net 2211 or equivalent. 

126-2.6 Equipment Enclosure.  AWOS components not designed for outdoor use shall be located in the 

terminal building with the central processing unit. All outdoor enclosures will be aluminum NEMA 4X 

enclosures.  All outdoor hardware is to be stainless steel. 

126-2.7 Conduit.  Conduit shall be used between the AWOS tower and sensors for both power and signal 

cables. The conduit shall meet the requirements of the national electrical code and local code.   

126-2.8 Wire and Control Cable.  Wire and control cables shall meet the requirements of the national 

electric code, local electric code and AWOS equipment manufacturer's recommendation. Control cables shall be 

the manufacturer's required number of pairs plus two spare pair.  All cables are to be individually shielded and 

suitable for direct earth burial. 

126-2.9 AWOS Data Link. The AWOS shall use a land-line or wireless technology for transmitting AWOS 

data from the tower and sensors to the video display and audio output. The data shall originate at the tower site 

and broadcast via UHF discreet transmitter or land-line communications. 

126-2.10 Uninterruptible Power Supply (Ups).  The contractor shall provide a UPS to regulate power and 

provide a back-up power supply for power outages.  The UP shall be capable of powering the AWOS system a 

minimum of 1 hour.  The AWOS system shall also have a battery backed up memory with the capability to 

archive weather data for period of 5 days. 

126-2.13 Tower.  All new sensors and enclosures shall be mounted on the existing AWOS tower with dual L-

810 LED obstruction lights at the top. All mounting hardware shall conform to the AWOS manufacturer 

recommendations. 

126-2.14 Painting.  Paint and aviation colors referenced to in the specifications should conform to Federal 

Standards FED-STD-595, Colors as follows: 

Orange Number 12197 (Aviation Surface Orange). 

White Number 17875 (Aviation White). 

The tower shall be primed in accordance with the manufacturer's specifications prior to painting. 

126-2.15 Obstruction Light.  Dual L-810 LED steady burn obstruction light at the top of the tower. L-810 

obstruction light shall operate at 120V, 60Hz. The two lamps on the L-810 shall be wired in parallel on a 

dedicated circuit. 

126-2.16 Electromagnetic Interference (Emi) Protection.  The AWOS is to be designed to minimize 

susceptibility to EMI and to operate successfully in the complex electromagnetic environment of an airport.  

126-2.17 Transient and Lightning Protection.  AWOS equipment shall be protected against damage or 

operational upset due to lighting - induced surges on all sensor-input lines.  Sensor supply lines and incoming 

power and data communication lines.  Equipment and personnel shall be protected from lightning surges and 

voltages, from power line transients and charges.  Lightning protection systems shall be designed and installed in 



AWOS Replacement 

             

 Authority Project No. AI2206.401  

 

Item L-126 AWOS Equipment L-126-9 

accordance with the Lightning Protection Code, NFPA 7B, and manufacturer's recommendations for all 

equipment structures. 

126-2.18 Nadin Interface.  The AWOS manufacturer shall provide an AWOS system that has the necessary 

hardware i.e., modems, interface boards, modules, and the required software to link up with a vendor that is 

approved to download information into the FAA's NADIN system or equivalent to put the AWOS data into the 

Weather Message Switching Center.  The second-Tier vendor's services are not part of this requirement. 

126-2.19 Test Equipment.  The Contractor shall provide the Owner with necessary test equipment to maintain 

the AWOS equipment according to the manufacturer's FAA approved maintenance plan. This test equipment 

includes all standards as specified in the AWOS manufacturer's Operations and Maintenance Manual and shall 

include any replacement or recalibration of testing equipment for the duration of the maintenance agreement. 

126-2.20 Spare Components.  The Contractor shall provide the Owner with the manufacturers recommended 

spare components necessary to restore the AWOS to service following a malfunction. 

126-2.22 Maintenance Agreement.  The Contractor shall provide a three (3) year maintenance agreement.  An 

agreement from the Manufacturer to the Owner is acceptable for providing this service.  The agreement shall 

begin on the date of FAA commissioning and shall include all required inspections as defined by the AWOS 

manufacturer.  At a minimum, the maintenance agreement shall include Tri-Annual Preventative Maintenance 

Checks and an annual verification check in accordance with AC 150/5220-16 (current edition). A twenty-four 

(24) hour call back response time of reported failure shall be provided in the maintenance agreement.  Response 

time does not include the time required to arrive on site or complete the repair.  The maintenance agreement shall 

include remote maintenance monitoring (RMM) of the AWOS to determine problems and provide information to 

the manufacturer.  .  The agreement shall include any hardware or software updates necessary to maintain the 

system. 

126-2.23 Warranty.  The Contractor shall warranty the AWOS for one year from the completion and 

acceptance of AWOS site.  The warranty shall include all materials and labor necessary for replacing any item 

that fails during the warranty period. 

126-2.24 Operator Training.  The AWOS manufacturer shall provide a training session on site for the 

Owner’s representatives.  

CONSTRUCTION METHODS 

126-3.1 General.  The installation and testing of the equipment shall be completed in accordance with the 

national electric code, local electric code, AWOS equipment manufacturers and FAA guidelines.  The Contractor 

or manufacturer shall have a certified technician available and present for the checkout and commissioning of the 

system. The technician should have previous experience in commissioning an AWOS III system. 

126-3.2 Electrical Power.  The Contractor shall connect to the service disconnect for the AWOS electronics, 

sensors and obstruction light..  

METHOD OF MEASUREMENT 

126-4.1 AWOS SYSTEM LEVEL III PT FURNISH, INSTALL AND COMMISSIONING. The 

Contractor shall furnish and install the AWOS III PT tower, foundations, sensors, power and control cable 

(including phone lines unless provided by others), peripheral equipment, UPS, EMI and lighting protection, 

communication cable to peripherals, connection to equipment, and other incidentals for a turnkey installation. The 

AWOS system equipment installed by the Contractor shall be measured as a lump sum, complete, in-place unit 

ready for operation, properly installed and accepted by the Inspector ready for FAA commissioning. 



AWOS Replacement 

             

 Authority Project No. AI2206.401  

 

Item L-126 AWOS Equipment L-126-10 

No Separate measurement will be made for: test equipment, spare components, maintenance agreement, warranty, 

or operator training.  These items shall be considered incidental to the lump sum bid of "AWOS System Level III 

PT". 

BASIS OF PAYMENT 

126-5.1 AWOS SYSTEM LEVEL III PT FURNISH, INSTALL AND COMMISSIONING. Payment will 

be made at the contract unit price for the complete AWOS III PT system, power and control system installed in-

place by the Contractor and accepted by the Inspector and manufacturer.  This price shall be full compensation for 

furnishing all materials, site preparation, assembly and installation of these materials, labor, equipment, tools and 

incidentals necessary to complete this item. 

Specified AWOS III PT Equipment: 

a. AWOS data processor shall include all enclosures, connecting cables and mounting hardware. 

b. Sensor simulation for on-site diagnostics. 

c. Remote maintenance monitoring capability. 

d. Wind speed sensor and wind-direction sensor. 

e. Temperature and Humidity sensors with aspirated shielding. 

f. Dual barometers. 

g. Visibility sensor. 

h. Day/night sensor. 

i. Cloud-height sensor. 

j. Rain Sensor 

k. Present Weather Sensor 

l. Thunderstorm/Lightning Detector 

m. NADIN interface equipment. 

n. Installation of complete AWOS III system as specified including any incidentals. 

Payment will be made under: 

L-126-5.1 AWOS System Level III PT Furnish, Install and Commissioning - per lump sum 

 

END OF ITEM L-126 



EXHIBIT D 

Project Name: Automated Weather Observing System (AWOS) Replacement D-1 
City Project No.: AI2206.401; FAA Project No.: 3-04-0008-033-2023 
Rev. 10/23/23 

GIS / GPS DATA DELIVERY REQUIREMENTS 

 

N/A 



EXHIBIT E 

Project Name: Automated Weather Observing System (AWOS) Replacement E-1 
City Project No.: AI2206.401; FAA Project No.: 3-04-0008-033-2023 
Rev. 10/23/23 

FEDERAL PROVISIONS



 
 

FAA FEDERAL DOCUMENTS 

This Contract has a DBE Race Neutral 0% DBE Goal 

 

IMPORTANT NOTE: 
 
This Contract has a DBE Race Neutral DBE Goal of 0%. 

The City of Chandler has a Race Neutral DBE Goal of 11.57% for 2022 to 

2024. The City of Chandler recommends the utilization of DBE’s. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



FAA FEDERAL DOCUMENTS FOR CONTRACT 2024-04-27 
 

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
FOR 

FAA FEDERAL DOCUMENTS 
FAA CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

 
SECTION 1:  FAA FEDERAL GUIDE FOR CONTRACTORS/SUBCONTRACTORS 
 
SECTION 2:  FAA FEDERAL PROVISIONS 
 Access to Records and Reports ........................................................................... Pg 1 of 35 
 Affirmative Action Requirement ............................................................................ Pg 2 of 35 
 Breach of Contract Terms ..................................................................................... Pg 3 of 35 
 Buy American Preference / Build America-Buy America (BABA) FAA ............. Pg 4 of 35 
  Certification of Compliance  ........................................................................... Pg 5-6 of 35 
 Civil Rights .............................................................................................................. Pg 7of 35 
 Civil Rights – Title VI .............................................................................................. Pg 8-9 of 35 
 Clean Air and Water Pollution Control ................................................................. Pg 10 of 35 
 Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act Requirements ....................... Pg 11 of 35 
 Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act .............................................................................. Pg 12 of 35 
 Davis Bacon Requirements ................................................................................... Pg 13-16 of 35 
 Debarment and Suspension .................................................................................. Pg 17 of 35 
 Disadvantaged Business Enterprise/ Prompt Pay Provisions .......................... Pg 18 of 35 
 Distracted Driving ................................................................................................... Pg 19 of 35 
 Domestic Preferences for Procurements ............................................................. Pg 20 of 35 
 Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO): Clause & Specifications ..................... Pg 21-25 of 35 
 Federal Fair Labor Standards Act (Federal Minimum Wage) ............................. Pg 26 of 35 
 Foreign Trade Restriction Certification ................................................................ Pg 27 of 35 
 Lobbying and Influencing Federal Employees .................................................... Pg 28 of 35 
 Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 ....................................................... Pg 29 of 35 
 Prohibition of Segregated Facilities ..................................................................... Pg 30 of 35 
 Procurement of Recovered Materials ................................................................... Pg 31 of 35 
 Tax Delinquency and Felony Convictions  .......................................................... Pg 32 of 35 
 Telecommunications/Video Surveillance Serv/Equip Prohibition ..................... Pg 33 of 35 
 Termination of Contract ......................................................................................... Pg 34 of 35 
 Veteran’s Preference .............................................................................................. Pg 35 of 35 
 
SECTION 3:  JOBSITE POSTER REQUIREMENTS 
 
SECTION 4:  DAVIS BACON WAGE DECISION (for this contract) 
 
SECTION 5:  VERIFICATIONS STATEMENT  
  
SECTION 6:  BIDDERS LIST  
  
 
  



 
 

SECTION 1: 

FAA FEDERAL GUIDE FOR 

CONTRACTORS & SUBCONTRACTORS 

  



    

FAA Federal Funded Contract Guide for Contractors – Rev 2023-09-21               pg 1 of 2                                                                                                         

 
Federal Funded Contract Guide for Contractors/Subcontractors 

 
This is an FAA federal funded project. 

 
1. THIS IS AN FAA FEDERAL FUNDED CONTRACT / PROJECT.  There is a ZERO TOLERANCE for compliance 

of the FAA Federal Requirements. FAA can take back federal funds for non-compliance. 
 

2. RECORD RETENTION REQUIREMENTS: Records must be maintained for five (5) years following completion. 
 

3. SUBCONTRACTORS 
a. Subcontractors must be approved prior to working on site. 
b. City of Chandler will provide required documents that must be included in subcontracts and applicable 

forms AFTER Award, as well as any other forms that may be needed. 
c. DBE Subcontracts must be submitted prior to construction start. 
d. All subcontractors must have an ROC license unless business type does not require. 
e. All subcontractors must be registered in the AZ UTracs System. 
f. DBE Subcontractors will be required to submit the DBE Final Payment Cert form no later than the 

contract end date. 
 

4. PAYROLL, CERTIFIED PAYROLL REPORTING, FRINGE BENEFITS 
a. Certified Payrolls Reporting is a requirement to work on this project. 
b. City of Chandler requires the use of LCPTracker system for transmitting certified payroll reports. 

i. Website: www.lcptracker.com 
ii. Note: City of Chandler holds the subscription, but contractors and subcontractors must be registered 

and have a profile on this system. Create an account/sign on/profile – (tip: maintain user 
name/password for future company use). Your account number (which is usually your telephone 
number will be required to add you to the system for this contract and for submitting payrolls. 

c. Certified Payroll Reporting 
i. Required WEEKLY for both working and non-working weeks from the first day a 

contractor/subcontractor starts work until their contract work is complete and finalized. 
ii. Payroll due to laborers/mechanics is required weekly, no more than 7 days from end of work week. 
iii. Certified Payroll Report is due in LCPTracker no later than 7 days from pay date. 

d. Penalties for Late or non-submitted payroll reports:  
i. City of Chandler may assess penalty retainer of $2,500 for each non-submitted payroll and/or 

discrepancy payroll reports submitted and rejected AND CAN BE PASSED TO SUBCONTRACTOR. 
ii. City of Chandler can stop subcontract work until compliance is met.  

e. ALL LABORERS /MECHANICS ON FEDERAL FUNDED PROJECTS MUST BE PAID WEEKLY 
   Contractor Penalty for not paying weekly -$5,000 Fine and/or up to five (5) years in Prison. 

i. If Contractor lies/falsifies Certified Payroll, penalty can be up to 15 years in Jail.  
ii. Underpaying employees – subcontract may be terminated, contractor/subcontractor can be 

debarred from working on federal funded contracts for up to 3 years. 
a. A project-specific Davis Bacon Wage Decision is included in your contract. Not all Wage Decisions are 

the same and are "Project Specific".  You must pay all certified payroll employees at or above the 
specified Davis Bacon Wage Decision rates for this project. 

b. Site of Work: includes project site, and other areas where significant portion of the building or work is 
constructed provided that:  1) such site is established specifically for the contract and no other work, and 
2) is located adjacent or virtually adjacent to the site of the work (within visual). This could include Site 
Yard, Batch Plant, a location designated to assemble construction items.  

c. Company-Employee Benefits Plans:  If Contractors / Subcontractors pay fringe benefits in lieu of cash 
(that you will be counting towards the required wage rate – medical, dental, vacation, etc.), the company-
employee benefits plan must be submitted to City of Chandler, reviewed and approved by the City of 
Chandler Federal Compliance.  **YOU MUST RECEIVE APPROVAL. 

http://www.lcptracker.com/


    

FAA Federal Funded Contract Guide for Contractors – Rev 2023-09-21               pg 2 of 2                                                                                                         

d. Employee Deductions – Other:  City of Chandler calls this an EDA form (employee deduction 
authorization). Other known names in the industry are Wage Deduction Form, EAD. If there will be 
deduction(s) dollars listed in the “other” box such as 401K, medical, child support, Christmas fund, etc. an 
EDA Form must be provided. You may use your own form or request a form from the City of Chandler 
and/or the Prime Contractor. These must be submitted to Janece.ray@chandleraz.gov, Do not 
submit through LCPTracker.  Your certified payroll will be rejected for this non-compliance. 

e. Classification Requests (also known as Conformance Requests): If no classification matches a 
task/employee work classification from the wage decision for this contract, YOU WILL NEED TO SUBMIT 
A Classification Request SF1444 (City of Chandler Form). 

f. Important Classification Tips from Department of Labor:   
i. Recommended ratio for Laborers to Skilled Trades is 3 Laborers to 1 Skilled Trades person.   
ii. General Laborer is NOT to be used as the default classification. 

g. Important Overtime Tip from Department of Labor: The overtime rate must be 1.5 x the Base Rate on 
the Wage Decision or 1.5 x a higher wage rate that you already pay,  (you cannot pay 1.5 OT rate on 
the base rate if you are paying a lower base rate due to higher fringe rate).  
 

5. EMPLOYEE INTERVIEWS 
a. Employee Interviews process is a Department of Labor federal requirement on federal funded projects.  

This is to ensure employees are being paid correctly for the tasks they are working.   
b. Per DOL, interviews are confidential.  Employers cannot have access to interviews. 

 
6. PAYMENT REPORTING 

a. Monthly reporting of payments made/received is required by Prime and all subcontractors. 
i. Prime payments to Subcontractors 
ii. Subcontractor payments to a lower tier Subcontractor 

b. Contractors and Subcontractors will receive instructions on how to submit this reporting. 
 

7. PROMPT PAY  
a. Prime must pay subcontractors within 14 days of receiving payment from City of Chandler. 
b. Subcontractors must pay lower tiers within 14 days of receiving payment from Prime. 
c. Prime Contractor must return retainage payments to each subcontractor within 30 days of subcontractor’s 

work being satisfactorily completed.  SEE PROMPT PAY PROVISION IN FEDERAL DOCUMENTS OF THE 
CONTACT/SUBCONTRACT. 

 
8. BUY AMERICAN / BUILD AMERICA-BUY AMERICA REQUIREMENTS FOR MATERIAL 

a. Communicate this section clearly with suppliers, vendors, and subcontractors. It is recommended that the 
Contractor and Subcontractors provide a copy of the Buy American Federal Document Section so that 
vendors and material suppliers have the FAA Federal Requirements. 

b. Materials used on this project must follow the 'BUY AMERICAN' AND ‘BUILD AMERICA BUY AMERICA’ 
requirements in the project's Federal Documents included in the Prime Contract and all Subcontracts.  
Suppliers, vendors, and subcontractors must provide material certifications at the time of delivery 
on the project site.  

c. For Material requirement Buy American/Build America-Buy America requirements:  
NO INSTALLATION/CONSTRUCTION OF THAT MATERIAL WILL BE PERMITTED WITHOUT 
APPROVED MATERIAL CERTIFICATION.     

d. For all other material (material that does not require Buy American/Build America-Buy America): 
NO PAYMENTS FOR ANY MATERIALS WITHOUT APPROVED MATERIAL CERTIFICATIONS  

e. FAA IS “BUY AMERICAN”.  (FHWA / FTA Funded Projects- BUY AMERICA). 
f. FAA, FTA, FHWA ALL FOLLOW THE BUILD AMERICA BUY AMERICA. 

mailto:Janece.ray@chandleraz.gov


 
 

SECTION 2 

FAA FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

  



Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 1 of 35 

ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS  
2 CFR § 200.334; 2 CFR § 200.337; FAA Order 5100.38 
 

The Contractor must maintain an acceptable cost accounting system. The Contractor agrees to provide the Owner, the 
Federal Aviation Administration and the Comptroller General of the United States or any of their duly authorized 
representatives access to any books, documents, papers and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to 
the specific contract for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts and transcriptions. The Contractor agrees to 
maintain all books, records and reports required under this contract for a period of not less than three years after final 
payment is made and all pending matters are closed. 



Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 2 of 35 

 

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION REQUIREMENT  
41 CFR Part 60-4; Executive Order 11246  

NOTICE OF REQUIREMENT FOR AFFIRMATIVE ACTION TO 
ENSURE EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 

1. The Offeror’s or Bidder’s attention is called to the “Equal Opportunity Clause” and the “Standard Federal Equal 
Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications” set forth herein. 

2. The goals and timetables for minority and female participation, expressed in percentage terms for the Contractor’s 
aggregate workforce in each trade on all construction work in the covered area, are as follows: 

Timetables 

Goals for minority participation for each trade: 0% Race Neutral 
Goals for female participation in each trade:  6.9% 
 
These goals are applicable to all of the Contractor’s construction work (whether or not it is Federal or federally 
assisted) performed in the covered area.  If the Contractor performs construction work in a geographical area located 
outside of the covered area, it shall apply the goals established for such geographical area where the work is actually 
performed.  With regard to this second area, the Contractor also is subject to the goals for both its federally involved 
and non-federally involved construction. 

The Contractor’s compliance with the Executive Order and the regulations in 41 CFR Part 60-4 shall be based on its 
implementation of the Equal Opportunity Clause, specific affirmative action obligations required by the specifications 
set forth in 41 CFR 60-4.3(a) and its efforts to meet the goals. The hours of minority and female employment and 
training must be substantially uniform throughout the length of the contract, and in each trade, and the Contractor 
shall make a good faith effort to employ minorities and women evenly on each of its projects. The transfer of minority 
or female employees or trainees from Contractor to Contractor or from project to project for the sole purpose of 
meeting the Contractor’s goals shall be a violation of the contract, the Executive Order and the regulations in 41 CFR 
Part 60-4.  Compliance with the goals will be measured against the total work hours performed. 

3. The Contractor shall provide written notification to the Director of the Office of Federal Contract Compliance 
Programs (OFCCP) within 10 working days of award of any construction subcontract in excess of $10,000 at any tier 
for construction work under the contract resulting from this solicitation.  The notification shall list the name, address, 
and telephone number of the subcontractor; employer identification number of the subcontractor; estimated dollar 
amount of the subcontract; estimated starting and completion dates of the subcontract; and the geographical area in 
which the subcontract is to be performed. 

4. As used in this notice and in the contract resulting from this solicitation, the “covered area” is CITY OF 
CHANDLER, MARICOOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 3 of 35 

 

BREACH OF CONTRACT TERMS 
2 CFR Part 200, Appendix II(A)  

 

Any violation or breach of terms of this contract on the part of the Contractor or its subcontractors may result in the 
suspension or termination of this contract or such other action that may be necessary to enforce the rights of the 
parties of this agreement.  

Owner will provide Contractor written notice that describes the nature of the breach and corrective actions the 
Contractor must undertake in order to avoid termination of the contract.  Owner reserves the right to withhold 
payments to Contractor until such time the Contractor corrects the breach or the Owner elects to terminate the 
contract. The Owner’s notice will identify a specific date by which the Contractor must correct the breach.  Owner 
may proceed with termination of the contract if the Contractor fails to correct the breach by the deadline indicated in 
the Owner’s notice. 

The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the rights and remedies available thereunder 
are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available 
by law. 

 

  



 

Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 4 of 35 

 

BUY AMERICAN PREFERENCE – FAA 
 
The Contractor certifies that its bid/offer is in compliance with 49 USC § 50101, BABA and other related Made in 
America Laws,1 U.S. statutes, guidance, and FAA policies, which provide that Federal funds may not be obligated 
unless all iron, steel and manufactured goods used in AIP funded projects are produced in the United States, unless 
the Federal Aviation Administration has issued a waiver for the product; the product is listed as an Excepted Article, 
Material Or Supply in Federal Acquisition Regulation subpart 25.108; or is included in the FAA Nationwide Buy 
American Waivers Issued list.  

The bidder or offeror must complete and submit the certification of compliance with FAA’s Buy American Preference, 
BABA and Made in America laws included herein with their bid or offer. The Airport Sponsor/Owner will reject as 
nonresponsive any bid or offer that does not include a completed certification of compliance with FAA’s Buy 
American Preference and BABA. 

The bidder or offeror certifies that all constructions materials, defined to mean an article, material, or supply other 
than an item of primarily iron or steel; a manufactured product; cement and cementitious materials; aggregates such 
as stone, sand, or gravel; or aggregate binding agents or additives that are or consist primarily of: non-ferrous 
metals; plastic and polymer-based products (including polyvinylchloride, composite building materials, and polymers 
used in fiber optic cables); glass (including optic glass); lumber; or drywall used in the project are manufactured in 
the U.S. 

 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

1 Per Executive Order 14005 “Made in America Laws” means all statutes, regulations, rules, and Executive Orders 
relating to federal financial assistance awards or federal procurement, including those that refer to “Buy America” or 
“Buy American,” that require, or provide a preference for, the purchase or acquisition of goods, products, or materials 
produced in the United States, including iron, steel, and manufactured products offered in the United States 

 

  

 

 

 







 

Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 7 of 35 

 

CIVIL RIGHTS PROVISIONS 
49 USC § 47123 
 

In all its activities within the scope of its airport program, the Contractor agrees to comply with pertinent statutes, 
Executive Orders, and such rules as identified in Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities to 
ensure that no person shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin (including limited English proficiency), 
creed, sex (including sexual orientation and gender identity), age, or disability be excluded from participating in any 
activity conducted with or benefiting from Federal assistance.  

This provision is in addition to that required by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 

The above provision binds the Contractor and subcontractors from the bid solicitation period through the completion 
of the contract.  

  



 

Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 8 of 35 

 

CIVIL RIGHTS TITLE VI 
49 USC § 47123 
 

Title VI Solicitation Notice: 

The CITY OF CHANDLER, in accordance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252, 
42 USC §§ 2000d to 2000d-4) and the Regulations, hereby notifies all bidders or offerors that it will affirmatively 
ensure that for any contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement, [select businesses, or disadvantaged 
business enterprises or airport concession disadvantaged business enterprises] will be afforded full and fair 
opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and no businesses will be discriminated against on the grounds 
of race, color, national origin (including limited English proficiency), creed, sex (including sexual orientation and gender 
identity), age, or disability in consideration for an award. 

Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities 
During the performance of this contract, the Contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Contractor”) agrees to comply with the following non-discrimination statutes and 
authorities; including but not limited to: 

• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252) (prohibits discrimination on the 
basis of race, color, national origin); 

• 49 CFR part 21 (Non-discrimination in Federally-Assisted programs of the Department of Transportation—
Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964); 

• The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 USC § 4601) 
(prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired because of Federal or 
Federal-aid programs and projects); 

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC § 794 et seq.), as amended (prohibits discrimination on 
the basis of disability); and 49 CFR part 27 (Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability in Programs or 
Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance); 

• The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 USC § 6101 et seq.) (prohibits discrimination on the 
basis of age); 

• Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982 (49 USC § 47123), as amended (prohibits discrimination based 
on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex); 

• The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 (PL 100-259) (broadened the scope, coverage and applicability of 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms “programs or activities” to include all of the 
programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, sub-recipients and contractors, whether such programs or 
activities are Federally funded or not); 

• Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 USC § 12101, et seq) (prohibit discrimination 
on the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of 
public accommodation, and certain testing entities) as implemented by U.S. Department of Transportation 
regulations at 49 CFR parts 37 and 38; 

• The Federal Aviation Administration’s Nondiscrimination statute (49 USC § 47123) (prohibits discrimination on 
the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex); 

• Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-
Income Populations (ensures nondiscrimination against minority populations by discouraging programs, 
policies, and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effects on 
minority and low-income populations); 

• Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency, and 
resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination because of limited English 
proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP 
persons have meaningful access to your programs [70 Fed. Reg. 74087 (2005)]; 

• Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from discriminating because 
of sex in education programs or activities (20 USC § 1681, et seq). 

 

 
  



 

Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 9 of 35 

 

 

Compliance with Nondiscrimination Requirements: 
During the performance of this contract, the Contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Contractor”), agrees as follows: 

1. Compliance with Regulations:  The Contractor (hereinafter includes consultants) will comply with the 
Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities, as they may be amended from time to 
time, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract. 

2. Nondiscrimination:  The Contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract, will not 
discriminate on the grounds of race, color, national origin (including limited English proficiency), creed, sex 
(including sexual orientation and gender identity), age, or disability in the selection and retention of 
subcontractors, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment.  The Contractor will not 
participate directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by the Nondiscrimination Acts and 
Authorities, including employment practices when the contract covers any activity, project, or program set 
forth in Appendix B of 49 CFR part 21.  

3. Solicitations for Subcontracts, including Procurements of Materials and Equipment:  In all 
solicitations, either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the Contractor for work to be performed 
under a subcontract, including procurements of materials, or leases of equipment, each potential 
subcontractor or supplier will be notified by the Contractor of the contractor’s obligations under this 
contract and the Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities on the grounds of race, color, or national origin.   

4. Information and Reports:  The Contractor will provide all information and reports required by the Acts, 
the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto and will permit access to its books, records, 
accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the Sponsor or the 
Federal Aviation Administration to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Nondiscrimination Acts 
and Authorities and instructions.  Where any information required of a contractor is in the exclusive 
possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish the information, the Contractor will so certify to the 
Sponsor or the Federal Aviation Administration, as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has made 
to obtain the information. 

5. Sanctions for Noncompliance:  In the event of a Contractor’s noncompliance with the non-discrimination 
provisions of this contract, the Sponsor will impose such contract sanctions as it or the Federal Aviation 
Administration may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to: 

a. Withholding payments to the Contractor under the contract until the Contractor complies; and/or 

b. Cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract, in whole or in part. 

6. Incorporation of Provisions:  The Contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs one through six in 
every subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the 
Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto.  The Contractor will take action with respect 
to any subcontract or procurement as the Sponsor or the Federal Aviation Administration may direct as a 
means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance.  Provided, that if the 
Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with litigation by a subcontractor, or supplier because of 
such direction, the Contractor may request the Sponsor to enter into any litigation to protect the interests 
of the Sponsor.  In addition, the Contractor may request the United States to enter into the litigation to 
protect the interests of the United States. 

  



 

Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 10 of 35 

 

CLEAN AIR AND WATER POLLUTION CONTROL  
2 CFR Part 200, Appendix II(G); 42 USC § 7401, et seq;33 USC § 1251, et seq 
 
 
Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, and regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air 
Act (42 USC §§ 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 USC §§ 1251-1387). The 
Contractor agrees to report any violation to the Owner immediately upon discovery. The Owner assumes 
responsibility for notifying the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the Federal Aviation Administration.  

Contractor must include this requirement in all subcontracts that exceed $150,000. 

  



 

Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 11 of 35 

 

CONTRACT WORKHOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT REQUIREMENTS 
2 CFR Part 200, Appendix II(E); 2 CFR § 5.5(b); 40 USC § 3702; 40 USC § 3704 
 

1. Overtime Requirements. 

No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the 
employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and 
guards, in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such 
workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the 
basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek. 

2. Violation; Liability for Unpaid Wages; Liquidated Damages.  

In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this clause, the Contractor and any 
subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and 
subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia 
or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages.  Such liquidated damages shall be 
computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation 
of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this clause, in the sum of $29 for each calendar day on which such 
individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of 
the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this clause. 

3. Withholding for Unpaid Wages and Liquidated Damages. 

The Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) or the Owner shall upon its own action or upon written request of an 
authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on 
account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract 
with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and 
Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary 
to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in 
the clause set forth in paragraph (2) of this clause. 

4. Subcontractors.  

The Contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) 
and also a clause requiring the subcontractor to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts.  The prime 
contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set 
forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) of this clause. 

  



 

Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 12 of 35 

 

COPELAND “ANTI-KICKBACK” ACT 
2 CFR Part 200, Appendix II(D); 29 CFR Parts 3 and 5 
 

 

Contractor must comply with the requirements of the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (18 USC 874 and 40 USC 3145), 
as supplemented by Department of Labor regulation 29 CFR part 3.  Contractor and subcontractors are prohibited 
from inducing, by any means, any person employed on the project to give up any part of the compensation to which 
the employee is entitled.  The Contractor and each Subcontractor must submit to the Owner, a weekly statement on 
the wages paid to each employee performing on covered work during the prior week. Owner must report any 
violations of the Act to the Federal Aviation Administration. 

  



 

Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 13 of 35 

 

DAVIS-BACON REQUIREMENTS  
2 CFR Part 200, Appendix II(D); 29 CFR Part 5; 49 USC § 47112(b); 40 USC §§ 3141-3144, 3146, and 3147 
 
1. Minimum Wages. 

(i)  All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work will be paid unconditionally and not 
less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll 
deductions as are permitted by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR Part 3)), the full amount of 
wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalent thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less 
than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part 
hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the Contractor and such 
laborers and mechanics.  

Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-
Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to 
the provisions of paragraph (1)(iv) of this section; also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a 
weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs which cover the particular weekly 
period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such laborers and mechanics 
shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification of work 
actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR § 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics 
performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for 
the time actually worked therein: Provided, that the employer’s payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in 
each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional classification and 
wage rates conformed under (1)(ii) of this section) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all 
times by the Contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it 
can easily be seen by the workers. 

(ii)(A) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is not 
listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance 
with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and 
fringe benefits therefore only when the following criteria have been met: 

(1) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage 
determination;  

(2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and 

(3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage 
rates contained in the wage determination. 

(B) If the Contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their 
representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount 
designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer 
to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, DC 20210.  The 
Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification 
action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-
day period that additional time is necessary. 

(C) In the event the Contractor, the laborers, or mechanics to be employed in the classification, or their 
representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the 
amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions, including 
the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Administrator for 
determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt 
and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time 
is necessary.  

(D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to subparagraphs (1)(ii) (B) or 
(C) of this paragraph, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the 
first day on which work is performed in the classification. 



 

Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 14 of 35 

 

(iii) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a 
fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the 
wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof. 

(iv) If the Contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the Contractor may consider as part 
of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe 
benefits under a plan or program, Provided, that the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the 
Contractor, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require 
the Contractor to set aside in a separate account, assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program.  

2. Withholding. The Federal Aviation Administration or the Sponsor shall upon its own action or upon written request 
of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from the Contractor 
under this contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted 
contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor, so much 
of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including 
apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed by the Contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages 
required by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or 
helper, employed or working on the site of the work, all or part of the wages required by the contract, the Federal 
Aviation Administration may, after written notice to the Contractor, Sponsor, Applicant, or Owner, take such action as 
may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such 
violations have ceased. 

3. Payrolls and Basic Records. 

(i) Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the Contractor during the course of the work and 
preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work. Such 
records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker; his or her correct 
classification; hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe 
benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act); daily and weekly 
number of hours worked; deductions made; and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found 
under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably 
anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the 
Contractor shall maintain records that show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the 
plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the 
laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual costs incurred in 
providing such benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain 
written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration 
of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.  

(ii)(A) The Contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a copy of all 
payrolls to the Federal Aviation Administration if the agency is a party to the contract, but if the agency is not such a 
party, the Contractor will submit the payrolls to the applicant, Sponsor, or Owner, as the case may be, for 
transmission to the Federal Aviation Administration. The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely 
all of the information required to be maintained under 29 CFR § 5.5(a)(3)(i), except that full social security numbers 
and home addresses shall not be included on weekly transmittals. Instead, the payrolls shall only need to include an 
individually identifying number for each employee (e.g., the last four digits of the employee’s social security number). 
The required weekly payroll information may be submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH–347 is available 
for this purpose from the Wage and Hour Division Web site at http://www.dol.agencies/whd/government-
contracts/construction/payroll-certification or its successor site. The prime contractor is responsible for the 
submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors. Contractors and subcontractors shall maintain the full social 
security number and current address of each covered worker and shall provide them upon request to the Federal 
Aviation Administration if the agency is a party to the contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the Contractor 
will submit them to the applicant, Sponsor, or Owner, as the case may be, for transmission to the Federal Aviation 
Administration, the Contractor, or the Wage and Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an 
investigation or audit of compliance with prevailing wage requirements. It is not a violation of this section for a prime 

http://www.dol.agencies/whd/government-contracts/construction/payroll-certification
http://www.dol.agencies/whd/government-contracts/construction/payroll-certification


 

Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 15 of 35 

 

contractor to require a subcontractor to provide addresses and social security numbers to the prime contractor for its 
own records, without weekly submission to the sponsoring government agency (or the applicant, Sponsor, or Owner). 

(B) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the Contractor or 
subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the contract 
and shall certify the following: 

(1) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be provided under 29 CFR 
§ 5.5(a)(3)(ii), the appropriate information is being maintained under 29 CFR § 5.5 (a)(3)(i), and that such information 
is correct and complete; 

(2) That each laborer and mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract during 
the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no 
deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions 
as set forth in Regulations, 29 CFR Part 3;  

(3) Each laborer/mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash 
equivalents for classification work performed, as specified in the wage determination incorporated into the contract. 

(C) The weekly submission of properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH-347 
shall satisfy the requirement for submission of Statement of Compliance required in this section. 

(D) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the Contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal 
prosecution under Section 1001 of Title 18 and Section 231 of Title 31 of the United States Code. 

(iii) The Contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph (3)(i) of this section available 
for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the Sponsor, the Federal Aviation 
Administration, or the Department of Labor and shall permit such representatives to interview employees during 
working hours on the job. If the Contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them 
available, the Federal agency may, after written notice to the Contractor, Sponsor, applicant, or Owner, take such 
action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. 
Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records available may be grounds 
for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR § 5.12. 

4.  Apprentices and Trainees. 

(i) Apprentices. Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they performed 
when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered 
with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Office of Apprenticeship Training, 
Employer and Labor Services, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, or if a person is 
employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, 
who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the Office of Apprenticeship Training, 
Employer and Labor Services or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary 
employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft 
classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under the 
registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise 
employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the 
classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the 
ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage 
determination for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality 
other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the 
journeyman’s hourly rate) specified in the Contractor’s or subcontractor’s registered program shall be observed. 
Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice’s level 
of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage 
determination. Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship 
program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of 
fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator determines that a 
different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that 



 

Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 16 of 35 

 

determination. In the event the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or a State 
Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the Contractor 
will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work 
performed until an acceptable program is approved. 

(ii) Trainees. Except as provided in 29 CFR § 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the 
predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a 
program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, 
Employment and Training Administration. The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than 
permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every trainee must be paid at not 
less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee’s level of progress, expressed as a percentage of 
the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in 
accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, 
trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of 
the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding 
journeyman wage rate on the wage determination that provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices.  Any 
employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate that is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by 
the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage 
determination for the classification of work actually performed.  In addition, any trainee performing work on the job 
site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate 
on the wage determination for the work actually performed.  In the event the Employment and Training Administration 
withdraws approval of a training program, the Contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the 
applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved. 

(iii)  Equal Employment Opportunity.  The utilization of apprentices, trainees, and journeymen under this part shall be 
in conformity with equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246 and 29 CFR Part 30. 

5. Compliance with Copeland Act Requirements. The Contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 
3, which are incorporated by reference in this contract. 

6. Subcontracts. The Contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in 29 CFR 
§§ 5.5(a)(1) through (10) and such other clauses as the Federal Aviation Administration may by appropriate 
instructions require, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier 
subcontracts.  The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier 
subcontractor with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR § 5.5. 

7. Contract Termination: Debarment. A breach of the contract clauses in paragraph 1 through 10 of this section may 
be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 
CFR § 5.12. 

8. Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act Requirements. All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon 
and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract. 

9. Disputes Concerning Labor Standards. Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall 
not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract.  Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the 
procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR Parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this 
clause include disputes between the Contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the contracting agency, the U.S. 
Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives. 

10. Certification of Eligibility.  (i) By entering into this contract, the Contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) 
nor any person or firm who has an interest in the Contractor’s firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded 
Government contracts by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR § 5.12(a)(1). 

(ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract 
by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR § 5.12(a)(1). 

(iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 USC § 1001. 

  



 

Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 17 of 35 

 

DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION  
2 CFR Part 180 (Subpart B); 2 CFR Part 200, Appendix II(H); 2 CFR Part 1200; DOT Order 4200.5; Executive Orders 
12549 and 12689 
 

CERTIFICATION OF OFFEROR/BIDDER REGARDING DEBARMENT 

By submitting a bid/proposal under this solicitation, the bidder or offeror certifies that neither it nor its principals are 
presently debarred or suspended by any Federal department or agency from participation in this transaction. 

 

 

SUBCONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS 

CERTIFICATION OF LOWER TIER CONTRACTORS REGARDING DEBARMENT 

The successful bidder, by administering each lower tier subcontract that exceeds $25,000 as a “covered transaction”, 
must confirm each lower tier participant of a “covered transaction” under the project is not presently debarred or 
otherwise disqualified from participation in this federally-assisted project.  The successful bidder will accomplish this 
by: 

Checking the System for Award Management at website:  http://www.sam.gov. 

Collecting a certification statement similar to the Certification of Offeror /Bidder Regarding Debarment, above. 

Inserting a clause or condition in the covered transaction with the lower tier contract. 

If the Federal Aviation Administration later determines that a lower tier participant failed to disclose to a higher tier 
participant that it was excluded or disqualified at the time it entered the covered transaction, the FAA may pursue any 
available remedies, including suspension and debarment of the non-compliant participant.  

  



 

Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 18 of 35 

 

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE AND PROMPT PAY PROVISION 
49 CFR Part 26Sponsors that are not required to have a DBE program on file with the FAA are not required to include 
DBE provisions and clauses. 
 

The requirements of 49 CFR part 26 apply to this contract. It is the policy of the CITY OF CHANDLER  to practice 
nondiscrimination based on race, color, sex, or national origin in the award or performance of this contract and 
encourages participation by all firms qualifying under this solicitation regardless of business size or ownership.  

Contract Assurance (49 CFR § 26.13  
The Contractor, subrecipient or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex 
in the performance of this contract. The Contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR part 26 in the 
award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the Contractor to carry out these requirements is a 
material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the 
recipient deems appropriate, which may include, but is not limited to: 

-Withholding monthly progress payments; 
-Assessing sanctions; 
-Liquidated damages; and/or 
-Disqualifying the Contractor from future bidding as non-responsible. 
 

Termination of DBE Subcontracts (49 CFR § 26.53(f); acceptable/sample text provided) –  
The prime contractor must not terminate a DBE subcontractor (or an approved substitute DBE firm) without prior 
written consent of THE CITY OF CHANDLER. This includes, but is not limited to, instances in which the prime 
contractor seeks to perform work originally designated for a DBE subcontractor with its own forces or those of an 
affiliate, a non-DBE firm, or with another DBE firm. 

The prime contractor shall utilize the specified approved DBE Subcontractor if submitted and approved, to perform the 
work and supply the materials for which each is listed on approved subcontract unless the contractor obtains written 
consent from THE CITY OF CHANDLER. Unless THE CITY OF CHANDLER consent is provided, the prime contractor 
shall not be entitled to any payment for work or material unless it is performed or supplied by the approved DBE.  Such 
written consent only if for good cause. 

Before transmitting request to terminate and/or substitute a DBE subcontractor, the prime contractor must give notice 
in writing to the DBE subcontractor, with a copy to THE CITY OF CHANDLER, of its intent to request to terminate 
and/or substitute, and the reason for the request. 

The prime contractor must give the DBE five days to respond to the prime contractor's notice and advise THE CITY OF 
CHANDLER  why it objects to the proposed termination of its subcontract and why THE CITY OF CHANDLER should 
not approve the prime contractor's action. If required in a particular case as a matter of public necessity (e.g., safety), 
DBE subcontractor may provide a response period shorter than five days. 

In addition to post-award terminations, the provisions of this section apply to pre-award deletions of or substitutions for 
DBE firms put forward by offerors in negotiated procurements. 

PROMPT PAYMENT PROVISION  
49 CFR § 26.29 
 
The prime contractor agrees to pay each subcontractor under this prime contract for satisfactory performance of its 
contract NO LATER THAN 14 DAYS from the receipt of each payment the prime contractor receives from THE CITY 
OF CHANDLER. The prime contractor agrees further to return retainage payments to each subcontractor within 30 
days after the subcontractor’s work is satisfactorily completed. Any delay or postponement of payment from the 
above referenced time frame may occur only for good cause following written approval of THE CITYOF CHANDLER. 
This clause applies to both DBE and non-DBE subcontractors. 
 
  



 

Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 19 of 35 

 

DISTRACTED DRIVING 
Executive Order 13513; DOT Order 3902.10 
 

 

TEXTING WHEN DRIVING 

In accordance with Executive Order 13513, “Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving”, 
(10/1/2009) and DOT Order 3902.10, “Text Messaging While Driving”, (12/30/2009), the Federal Aviation 
Administration encourages recipients of Federal grant funds to adopt and enforce safety policies that decrease 
crashes by distracted drivers, including policies to ban text messaging while driving when performing work related to 
a grant or subgrant.  

In support of this initiative, the Owner encourages the Contractor to promote policies and initiatives for its employees 
and other work personnel that decrease crashes by distracted drivers, including policies that ban text messaging 
while driving motor vehicles while performing work activities associated with the project.  The Contractor must include 
the substance of this clause in all sub-tier contracts exceeding $10,000 that involve driving a motor vehicle in 
performance of work activities associated with the project. 

 



 

Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 20 of 35 

 

DOMESTIC PREFERENCES FOR PROCUREMENTS 
2 CFR § 200.322; 2 CFR Part 200, Appendix II(L) 
 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DOMESTIC PREFERENCES FOR PROCUREMENTS 

The Bidder or Offeror certifies by signing and submitting this bid or proposal that, to the greatest extent practicable, 
the Bidder or Offeror has provided a preference for the purchase, acquisition, or use of goods, products, or materials 
produced in the United States (including, but not limited to, iron, aluminum, steel, cement, and other manufactured 
products) in compliance with 2 CFR § 200.322. 

  



 

Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 21 of 35 

 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY (EEO) 
2 CFR Part 200, Appendix II(C); 41 CFR § 60-1.4; 41 CFR § 60-4.3; Executive Order 11246 
 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY CLAUSE 
During the performance of this contract, the Contractor agrees as follows: 

(1) The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, 
religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. The Contractor will take affirmative action to 
ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their 
race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identify, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be 
limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff, 
or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The 
Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to 
be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. 

(2) The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, 
state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, 
sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. 

(3) The contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because such employee or applicant has inquired about, discussed, or disclosed the compensation of the 
employee or applicant or another employee or applicant. This provision shall not apply to instances in which an 
employee who has access to the compensation information of other employees or applicants as a part of such 
employee's essential job functions discloses the compensation of such other employees or applicants to individuals 
who do not otherwise have access to such information, unless such disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or 
charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, including an investigation conducted by the 
employer, or is consistent with the contractor's legal duty to furnish information. 

(4) The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which it has a collective bargaining 
agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided by the agency contracting officer, advising the 
labor union or workers’ representative of the Contractor’s commitments under this section 202 of Executive Order 
11246 of September 24, 1965, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and 
applicants for employment. 

(5) The Contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and of the rules, 
regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. 

(6) The Contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, 
and by the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his 
books, records, and accounts by the contracting agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to 
ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders. 

(7) In the event of the Contractor’s noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with any 
such rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and 
the Contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts in accordance with procedures authorized 
in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked 
as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of 
Labor, or as otherwise provided by law. 

(8) The Contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every subcontract or purchase order 
unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of 
Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or 
vendor. The Contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as may be directed by 
the Secretary of Labor as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, 
however, that in the event the contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or 
vendor as a result of such direction, the Contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to 
protect the interests of the United States. 

  



 

Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 22 of 35 

 

EEO SPECIFICATION 
 
1. As used in these specifications:  

a.  “Covered area” means the geographical area described in the solicitation from which this contract resulted; 

b.  “Director” means Director, Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs (OFCCP), U.S. Department of 
Labor, or any person to whom the Director delegates authority; 

c.  “Employer identification number” means the Federal social security number used on the Employer’s 
Quarterly Federal Tax Return, U.S. Treasury Department Form 941; 

d.  “Minority” includes:  

(1)  Black (all persons having origins in any of the Black African racial groups not of Hispanic origin); 

(2)  Hispanic (all persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish 
culture or origin, regardless of race); 

(3)  Asian and Pacific Islander (all persons having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, 
Southeast Asia, the Indian Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands); and 

(4)  American Indian or Alaskan native (all persons having origins in any of the original peoples of North 
America and maintaining identifiable tribal affiliations through membership and participation or community 
identification). 

2. Whenever the Contractor, or any subcontractor at any tier, subcontracts a portion of the work involving any 
construction trade, it shall physically include in each subcontract in excess of $10,000 the provisions of these 
specifications and the Notice which contains the applicable goals for minority and female participation and which is 
set forth in the solicitations from which this contract resulted. 

3. If the Contractor is participating (pursuant to 41 CFR part 60-4.5) in a Hometown Plan approved by the U.S. 
Department of Labor in the covered area either individually or through an association, its affirmative action 
obligations on all work in the Plan area (including goals and timetables) shall be in accordance with that Plan for 
those trades which have unions participating in the Plan. Contractors must be able to demonstrate their participation 
in and compliance with the provisions of any such Hometown Plan.  Each contractor or subcontractor participating in 
an approved plan is individually required to comply with its obligations under the EEO clause and to make a good 
faith effort to achieve each goal under the Plan in each trade in which it has employees.  The overall good faith 
performance by other contractors or subcontractors toward a goal in an approved Plan does not excuse any covered 
contractor’s or subcontractor’s failure to take good faith efforts to achieve the Plan goals and timetables. 

4. The Contractor shall implement the specific affirmative action standards provided in paragraphs 7a through 7p of 
these specifications.  The goals set forth in the solicitation from which this contract resulted are expressed as 
percentages of the total hours of employment and training of minority and female utilization the Contractor should 
reasonably be able to achieve in each construction trade in which it has employees in the covered area. Covered 
construction contractors performing construction work in a geographical areas where they do not have a Federal or 
federally assisted construction contract shall apply the minority and female goals established for the geographical 
area where the work is being performed.  Goals are published periodically in the Federal Register in notice form, and 
such notices may be obtained from any Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs office or from Federal 
procurement contracting officers.  The Contractor is expected to make substantially uniform progress in meeting its 
goals in each craft during the period specified. 

5. Neither the provisions of any collective bargaining agreement, nor the failure by a union with whom the Contractor 
has a collective bargaining agreement, to refer either minorities or women shall excuse the Contractor’s obligations 
under these specifications, Executive Order 11246, or the regulations promulgated pursuant thereto. 

6. In order for the nonworking training hours of apprentices and trainees to be counted in meeting the goals, such 
apprentices and trainees must be employed by the Contractor during the training period, and the Contractor must 
have made a commitment to employ the apprentices and trainees at the completion of their training, subject to the 
availability of employment opportunities.  Trainees must be trained pursuant to training programs approved by the 
U.S. Department of Labor. 



 

Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 23 of 35 

 

7. The Contractor shall take specific affirmative actions to ensure equal employment opportunity.  The evaluation of 
the Contractor’s compliance with these specifications shall be based upon its effort to achieve maximum results from 
its actions.  The Contractor shall document these efforts fully, and shall implement affirmative action steps at least as 
extensive as the following:  

a. Ensure and maintain a working environment free of harassment, intimidation, and coercion at all sites, and in 
all facilities at which the Contractor’s employees are assigned to work.  The Contractor, where possible, will 
assign two or more women to each construction project. The Contractor shall specifically ensure that all foremen, 
superintendents, and other onsite supervisory personnel are aware of and carry out the Contractor’s obligation to 
maintain such a working environment, with specific attention to minority or female individuals working at such 
sites or in such facilities. 

b. Establish and maintain a current list of minority and female recruitment sources, provide written notification to 
minority and female recruitment sources and to community organizations when the Contractor or its unions have 
employment opportunities available, and maintain a record of the organizations’ responses. 

c. Maintain a current file of the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of each minority and female off-the-
street applicant and minority or female referral from a union, a recruitment source, or community organization 
and of what action was taken with respect to each such individual.  If such individual was sent to the union hiring 
hall for referral and was not referred back to the Contractor by the union or, if referred, not employed by the 
Contractor, this shall be documented in the file with the reason therefor, along with whatever additional actions 
the Contractor may have taken. 

d. Provide immediate written notification to the Director when the union or unions with which the Contractor has a 
collective bargaining agreement has not referred to the Contractor a minority person or woman sent by the 
Contractor, or when the Contractor has other information that the union referral process has impeded the 
Contractor’s efforts to meet its obligations. 

e. Develop on-the-job training opportunities and/or participate in training programs for the area which expressly 
include minorities and women, including upgrading programs and apprenticeship and trainee programs relevant 
to the Contractor’s employment needs, especially those programs funded or approved by the Department of 
Labor.  The Contractor shall provide notice of these programs to the sources compiled under 7b above. 

f.  Disseminate the Contractor’s EEO policy by providing notice of the policy to unions and training programs and 
requesting their cooperation in assisting the Contractor in meeting its EEO obligations; by including it in any 
policy manual and collective bargaining agreement; by publicizing it in the company newspaper, annual report, 
etc.; by specific review of the policy with all management personnel and with all minority and female employees 
at least once a year; and by posting the company EEO policy on bulletin boards accessible to all employees at 
each location where construction work is performed. 

g. Review, at least annually, the company’s EEO policy and affirmative action obligations under these 
specifications with all employees having any responsibility for hiring, assignment, layoff, termination, or other 
employment decisions including specific review of these items with onsite supervisory personnel such 
superintendents, general foremen, etc., prior to the initiation of construction work at any job site.  A written record 
shall be made and maintained identifying the time and place of these meetings, persons attending, subject 
matter discussed, and disposition of the subject matter. 

h. Disseminate the Contractor’s EEO policy externally by including it in any advertising in the news media, 
specifically including minority and female news media, and providing written notification to and discussing the 
Contractor’s EEO policy with other contractors and subcontractors with whom the Contractor does or anticipates 
doing business. 

i. Direct its recruitment efforts, both oral and written, to minority, female, and community organizations, to schools 
with minority and female students and to minority and female recruitment and training organizations serving the 
Contractor’s recruitment area and employment needs.  Not later than one month prior to the date for the 
acceptance of applications for apprenticeship or other training by any recruitment source, the Contractor shall 
send written notification to organizations such as the above, describing the openings, screening procedures, and 
tests to be used in the selection process. 



 

Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 24 of 35 

 

j. Encourage present minority and female employees to recruit other minority persons and women and, where 
reasonable, provide after school, summer, and vacation employment to minority and female youth both on the 
site and in other areas of a contractor’s work force. 

k. Validate all tests and selection requirements where there is an obligation to do so under 41 CFR part 60-3. 

l. Conduct, at least annually, an inventory and evaluation at least of all minority and female personnel, for 
promotional opportunities and encourage these employees to seek or to prepare for, through appropriate 
training, etc., such opportunities. 

m. Ensure that seniority practices, job classifications, work assignments, and other personnel practices do not 
have a discriminatory effect by continually monitoring all personnel and employment related activities to ensure 
that the EEO policy and the Contractor’s obligations under these specifications are being carried out. 

n. Ensure that all facilities and company activities are nonsegregated except that separate or single-user toilet 
and necessary changing facilities shall be provided to assure privacy between the sexes. 

o. Document and maintain a record of all solicitations of offers for subcontracts from minority and female 
construction contractors and suppliers, including circulation of solicitations to minority and female contractor 
associations and other business associations.  

p. Conduct a review, at least annually, of all supervisor’s adherence to and performance under the Contractor’s 
EEO policies and affirmative action obligations. 

8. Contractors are encouraged to participate in voluntary associations, which assist in fulfilling one or more of their 
affirmative action obligations (7a through 7p).  The efforts of a contractor association, joint contractor-union, 
contractor-community, or other similar group of which the Contractor is a member and participant may be asserted as 
fulfilling any one or more of its obligations under 7a through 7p of these specifications provided that the Contractor 
actively participates in the group, makes every effort to assure that the group has a positive impact on the 
employment of minorities and women in the industry, ensures that the concrete benefits of the program are reflected 
in the Contractor’s minority and female workforce participation, makes a good faith effort to meet its individual goals 
and timetables, and can provide access to documentation which demonstrates the effectiveness of actions taken on 
behalf of the Contractor.  The obligation to comply, however, is the Contractor’s and failure of such a group to fulfill 
an obligation shall not be a defense for the Contractor’s noncompliance. 

9.  A single goal for minorities and a separate single goal for women have been established.  The Contractor, 
however, is required to provide equal employment opportunity and to take affirmative action for all minority groups, 
both male and female, and all women, both minority and non-minority.  Consequently, the Contractor may be in 
violation of the Executive Order if a particular group is employed in a substantially disparate manner (for example, 
even though the Contractor has achieved its goals for women generally, the Contractor may be in violation of the 
Executive Order if a specific minority group of women is underutilized). 

10. The Contractor shall not use the goals and timetables or affirmative action standards to discriminate against any 
person because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. 

11.  The Contractor shall not enter into any subcontract with any person or firm debarred from Government contracts 
pursuant to Executive Order 11246. 

12.  The Contractor shall carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of these specifications and of the Equal 
Opportunity Clause, including suspension, termination, and cancellation of existing subcontracts as may be imposed 
or ordered pursuant to Executive Order 11246, as amended, and its implementing regulations, by the Office of 
Federal Contract Compliance Programs. Any contractor who fails to carry out such sanctions and penalties shall be 
in violation of these specifications and Executive Order 11246, as amended. 

13. The Contractor, in fulfilling its obligations under these specifications, shall implement specific affirmative action 
steps, at least as extensive as those standards prescribed in paragraph 7 of these specifications, so as to achieve 
maximum results from its efforts to ensure equal employment opportunity. If the Contractor fails to comply with the 
requirements of the Executive Order, the implementing regulations, or these specifications, the Director shall proceed 
in accordance with 41 CFR part 60-4.8. 



 

Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 25 of 35 

 

14. The Contractor shall designate a responsible official to monitor all employment related activity to ensure that the 
company EEO policy is being carried out, to submit reports relating to the provisions hereof as may be required by 
the Government, and to keep records.  Records shall at least include for each employee, the name, address, 
telephone numbers, construction trade, union affiliation if any, employee identification number when assigned, social 
security number, race, sex, status (e.g., mechanic, apprentice, trainee, helper, or laborer), dates of changes in 
status, hours worked per week in the indicated trade, rate of pay, and locations at which the work was performed.  
Records shall be maintained in an easily understandable and retrievable form; however, to the degree that existing 
records satisfy this requirement, contractors shall not be required to maintain separate records. 

15.  Nothing herein provided shall be construed as a limitation upon the application of other laws which establish 
different standards of compliance or upon the application of requirements for the hiring of local or other area 
residents (e.g. those under the Public Works Employment Act of 1977 and the Community Development Block Grant 
Program).



 

Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 26 of 35 

 

FEDERAL FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT (FEDERAL MINIMUM WAGE) 
29 USC § 201, et seq; 2 CFR § 200.430 
 
All contracts and subcontracts that result from this solicitation incorporate by reference the provisions of 
29 CFR part 201, et seq, the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA), with the same force and effect as if given in 
full text.  The FLSA sets minimum wage, overtime pay, recordkeeping, and child labor standards for full and part-time 
workers. 

The Contractor has full responsibility to monitor compliance to the referenced statute or regulation.  The Contractor 
must address any claims or disputes that arise from this requirement directly with the U.S. Department of Labor – 
Wage and Hour Division. 



 

Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 27 of 35 

 

FOREIGN TRADE RESTRICTION CERTIFICATION 
49 USC § 50104; 49 CFR Part 30 
 
By submission of an offer, the Offeror certifies that with respect to this solicitation and any resultant contract, the 
Offeror – 

1) is not owned or controlled by one or more citizens of a foreign country included in the list of countries that 
discriminate against U.S. firms as published by the Office of the United States Trade Representative (USTR); 

2) has not knowingly entered into any contract or subcontract for this project with a person that is a citizen or 
national of a foreign country included on the list of countries that discriminate against U.S. firms as published 
by the USTR; and  

3) has not entered into any subcontract for any product to be used on the Federal project that is produced in a 
foreign country included on the list of countries that discriminate against U.S. firms published by the USTR. 

This certification concerns a matter within the jurisdiction of an agency of the United States of America and the 
making of a false, fictitious, or fraudulent certification may render the maker subject to prosecution under Title 18 
USC § 1001. 

The Offeror/Contractor must provide immediate written notice to the Owner if the Offeror/Contractor learns that its 
certification or that of a subcontractor was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of 
changed circumstances.  The Contractor must require subcontractors provide immediate written notice to the 
Contractor if at any time it learns that its certification was erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 

Unless the restrictions of this clause are waived by the Secretary of Transportation in accordance with 49 CFR § 
30.17, no contract shall be awarded to an Offeror or subcontractor:  

1) who is owned or controlled by one or more citizens or nationals of a foreign country included on the list of 
countries that discriminate against U.S. firms published by the USTR; or  

2) whose subcontractors are owned or controlled by one or more citizens or nationals of a foreign country on 
such USTR list; or  

3) who incorporates in the public works project any product of a foreign country on such USTR list. 

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to 
render, in good faith, the certification required by this provision.  The knowledge and information of a contractor is not 
required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business 
dealings. 

The Offeror agrees that, if awarded a contract resulting from this solicitation, it will incorporate this provision for 
certification without modification in all lower tier subcontracts. The Contractor may rely on the certification of a 
prospective subcontractor that it is not a firm from a foreign country included on the list of countries that discriminate 
against U.S. firms as published by USTR, unless the Offeror has knowledge that the certification is erroneous. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when making an award.  If it is 
later determined that the Contractor or subcontractor knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, the Federal 
Aviation Administration (FAA) may direct through the Owner cancellation of the contract or subcontract for default at 
no cost to the Owner or the FAA. 

  



 

Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 28 of 35 

 

LOBBYING AND INFLUENCING FEDERAL EMPLOYEES 
31 USC § 1352 – Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment; 2 CFR Part 200, Appendix II(I); 49 CFR Part 20, Appendix A 
 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING 

The Bidder or Offeror certifies by signing and submitting this bid or proposal, to the best of his or her knowledge and 
belief, that: 

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Bidder or Offeror, to any 
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with 
the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the 
entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.  

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for 
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an 
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal 
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-
LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.  

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for 
all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and 
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made 
or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed 
by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil 
penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

  



 

Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 29 of 35 

 

OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ACT OF 1970 
29 CFR Part 1910 
 
 
All contracts and subcontracts that result from this solicitation incorporate by reference the requirements of 
29 CFR Part 1910 with the same force and effect as if given in full text.  The employer must provide a work 
environment that is free from recognized hazards that may cause death or serious physical harm to the employee. 
The employer retains full responsibility to monitor its compliance and their subcontractor’s compliance with the 
applicable requirements of the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (29 CFR Part 1910).  The employer must 
address any claims or disputes that pertain to a referenced requirement directly with the U.S. Department of Labor – 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration.  

  



 

Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 30 of 35 

 

PROHIBITION OF SEGREGATED FACILITIES  
2 CFR Part 200, Appendix II(C); 41 CFR Part 60-1 
 
 
(a) The Contractor agrees that it does not and will not maintain or provide for its employees any segregated facilities 
at any of its establishments, and that it does not and will not permit its employees to perform their services at any 
location under its control where segregated facilities are maintained. The Contractor agrees that a breach of this 
clause is a violation of the Equal Employment Opportunity clause in this contract.  

(b) “Segregated facilities,” as used in this clause, means any waiting rooms, work areas, rest rooms and wash rooms, 
restaurants and other eating areas, time clocks, locker rooms and other storage or dressing areas, parking lots, 
drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, transportation, and housing facilities provided for employees 
that are segregated by explicit directive or are in fact segregated on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, or national origin because of written or oral policies or employee custom. The term does 
not include separate or single-user rest rooms or necessary dressing or sleeping areas provided to assure privacy 
between the sexes. 

(c) The Contractor shall include this clause in every subcontract and purchase order that is subject to the Equal 
Employment Opportunity clause of this contract. 

  



 

Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 31 of 35 

 

PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS 
2 CFR § 200.323; 2 CFR Part 200, Appendix II(J); 40 CFR Part 247;  
42 USC § 6901, et seq (Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA)) 
 

Contractor and subcontractor agree to comply with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the 
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, and the regulatory provisions of 40 CFR Part 247.  In the performance of 
this contract and to the extent practicable, the Contractor and subcontractors are to use products containing the 
highest percentage of recovered materials for items designated by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) under 
40 CFR Part 247 whenever: 

 The contract requires procurement of $10,000 or more of a designated item during the fiscal year; or 

 The contractor has procured $10,000 or more of a designated item using Federal funding during the previous 
fiscal year. 

The list of EPA-designated items is available at www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-guidelines-
construction-products. 

Section 6002(c) establishes exceptions to the preference for recovery of EPA-designated products if the contractor 
can demonstrate the item is: 

a)  Not reasonably available within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract performance schedule;  
b) Fails to meet reasonable contract performance requirements; or  
c)  Is only available at an unreasonable price.  

  

http://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-guidelines-construction-products
http://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-guidelines-construction-products


 

Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 32 of 35 

 

**THIS SECTION COVERS A REQUIREMENT BY FAA AND REQUIRES A VERIFICATION 
SIGNATURE. THE CITY OF CHANDLER PROVIDES A SEPARATE DOCUMENT WITH BID 
AND MUST BE FILLED OUT, SIGNED AND SUBMITTED WITH BID.  
SEE “VERIFICATIONS STATEMENT” 
 
ADDITIONALLY, THE “VERIFICATIONS STATEMENT” IS ALSO A REQUIRED DOCUMENT 
TO BE FILLED OUT, SIGNED AND SUBMITTED WITH ALL SUBCCONTRACTS/LOWER TIER 
SUBCONTRACTS FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL. 
 
 

 
TAX DELINQUENCY AND FELONY CONVICTIONS  
Section 8113 of the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2022 (Public Law 117-103) and similar provisions in subsequent 
appropriations acts. 
DOT Order 4200.6 – Appropriations Act Requirements for Procurement and Non-Procurement Regarding Tax 
Delinquency and Felony Convictions 

 

CERTIFICATION OF OFFEROR/BIDDER REGARDING TAX DELINQUENCY AND FELONY CONVICTIONS 

City of Chandler provides a Verification Statement that must be submitted with bid to cover the requirements of this 
section.  Applicant/Bidder/Contractors/Subcontractors/Consultants/Subconsultants cannot have any been convicted 
of a criminal violation under any federal law within the preceding 24 months and cannot have any unpaid Federal tax 
liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted or have 
lapsed, and that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for 
collecting the tax liability.  Additionally, the Verifications Statement must be included, signed and submitted to the 
City of Chandler with all subcontracts and lower tier subcontracts for review and approval. 

The City has provided in this bid a “Verifications Statement” that must be signed and submitted with bid. 

 

 

Note 

If an applicant responds in the affirmative to either of the above representations, the applicant is ineligible to receive an award 
unless the Sponsor has received notification from the agency suspension and debarment official (SDO) that the SDO has 
considered suspension or debarment and determined that further action is not required to protect the Government’s interests.  The 
applicant therefore must provide information to the owner about its tax liability or conviction to the Owner, who will then notify the 
FAA Airports District Office, which will then notify the agency’s SDO to facilitate completion of the required considerations before 
award decisions are made. 

Term Definitions 

Felony conviction: Felony conviction means a conviction within the preceding twenty four (24) months of a felony criminal 
violation under any Federal law and includes conviction of an offense defined in a section of the U.S. Code that specifically 
classifies the offense as a felony and conviction of an offense that is classified as a felony under 18 USC § 3559. 
 
Tax Delinquency: A tax delinquency is any unpaid Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and 
administrative remedies have been exhausted, or have lapsed, and that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an 
agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability. 
 
  



 

Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 33 of 35 

 

 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND VIDEO SURVEILLANCE SERVICES OR EQUIPMENT PROHIBITION 
2 CFR § 200, Appendix II(K); 2 CFR § 200.216 
 
 
Contractor and Subcontractor agree to comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to use and 
procurement of certain telecommunications and video surveillance services or equipment in compliance with the 
National Defense Authorization Act [Public Law 115-232 § 889(f)(1)]. 

 

  



 

Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 34 of 35 

 

TERMINATION OF CONTRACT 
2 CFR Part 200, Appendix II(B) 
FAA Advisory Circular 150/5370-10, Section 80-09  
 
 
Termination for Convenience 
The Owner may terminate this contract in whole or in part at any time by providing written notice to the Contractor.  
Such action may be without cause and without prejudice to any other right or remedy of Owner. Upon receipt of a 
written notice of termination, except as explicitly directed by the Owner, the Contractor shall immediately proceed 
with the following obligations regardless of any delay in determining or adjusting amounts due under this clause:  

1. Contractor must immediately discontinue work as specified in the written notice. 
2. Terminate all subcontracts to the extent they relate to the work terminated under the notice. 
3. Discontinue orders for materials and services except as directed by the written notice. 
4. Deliver to the Owner all fabricated and partially fabricated parts, completed and partially completed work, 

supplies, equipment and materials acquired prior to termination of the work, and as directed in the written 
notice. 

5. Complete performance of the work not terminated by the notice. 
6. Take action as directed by the Owner to protect and preserve property and work related to this contract that 

Owner will take possession. 
Owner agrees to pay Contractor for:  

1. Completed and acceptable work executed in accordance with the contract documents prior to the effective 
date of termination; 

2. Documented expenses sustained prior to the effective date of termination in performing work and furnishing 
labor, materials, or equipment as required by the contract documents in connection with uncompleted work; 

3. Reasonable and substantiated claims, costs, and damages incurred in settlement of terminated contracts 
with Subcontractors and Suppliers; and 

4. Reasonable and substantiated expenses to the Contractor directly attributable to Owner’s termination action. 
Owner will not pay Contractor for loss of anticipated profits or revenue or other economic loss arising out of or 
resulting from the Owner’s termination action. 

The rights and remedies that this clause provides are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or 
under this contract. 

 

Termination for Default – for Cause 

Section 80-09 of FAA Advisory Circular 150/5370-10 establishes standard language for conditions, rights, and 
remedies associated with Owner termination of this contract for cause due to default of the Contractor.   

  



 

Federal Provisions FAA Issued May 24, 2023 – Page 35 of 35 

 

VETERAN’S PREFERENCE  
49 USC § 47112(c) 
 

In the employment of labor (excluding executive, administrative, and supervisory positions), the Contractor and all 
sub-tier contractors must give preference to covered veterans as defined within Title 49 United States Code Section 
47112.  Covered veterans include Vietnam-era veterans, Persian Gulf veterans, Afghanistan-Iraq war veterans, 
disabled veterans, and small business concerns (as defined by 15 USC § 632) owned and controlled by disabled 
veterans.  This preference only applies when there are covered veterans readily available and qualified to perform 
the work to which the employment relates. 



 
 

SECTION 3 

JOBSITE POSTER REQUIREMENTS 

  



Jobsite Posters Requirements Reference 2024-01-09 

CONSTRUCTION BID / CONTRACT FEDERAL DOCUMENTS SECTION 
JOBSITE POSTER REQUIREMENTS REFERENCE 
Jobsite Poster Requirements Section – Requirements are subject to changes.  Prime Contractor will be provided with an 
updated checklist and updated screen shots or copies from websites as needed or requested. It is required to have the most 
current poster revisions. 
 

  



Jobsite Posters Requirements Reference 2024-01-09 

 
#1 

 
#2A 

 
 
  



Jobsite Posters Requirements Reference 2024-01-09 

#2B 

 
 
#2C 

 
 
 



Jobsite Posters Requirements Reference 2024-01-09 

#3 
 

 
 
 
#4 

 
 
 



Jobsite Posters Requirements Reference 2024-01-09 

#5 

 
#6 

 
 
 
 
 



Jobsite Posters Requirements Reference 2024-01-09 

#7 

 
 
 
#8 
 

 
 
 
 



Jobsite Posters Requirements Reference 2024-01-09 

#9 

 
 
#10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Jobsite Posters Requirements Reference 2024-01-09 

#11 

 
 
#12 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Jobsite Posters Requirements Reference 2024-01-09 

#13 
 

 
 
#14 

  



Jobsite Posters Requirements Reference 2024-01-09 

#15 
DAVIS BACON WAGE DECISION 

PICTURED HERE IS ONLY THE FIRST TWO PAGES (Page 1&2) OF A DAVIS BACON WAGE 
DECISION FOR REFERENCE ONLY. CONTRACTOR REQUIRED TO DISPLAY/PROVIDE THE ENTIRE 
DAVIS BACON WAGE DECISION THAT IS IN THE CONTRACT FOR THIS PROJECT ON THE 
JOBSITE POSTERS BOARD.   **note: City of Chandler recommends maintaining the last blank page 
of the Davis Bacon Wage Decision to post any additional added classifications that occur during 
the course of the project. 
 

 
 
 
END OF JOBSITE POSTERS REQUIREMENTS SECTION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   



 
 

SECTION 4 

DAVIS BACON WAGE DECISION 

  



          "General Decision Number: AZ20240008 01/19/2024

Superseded General Decision Number: AZ20230008

State: Arizona

Construction Type: Highway

Counties: Coconino, Maricopa, Mohave, Pima, Pinal, Yavapai 
and Yuma Counties in Arizona.

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS

Note: Contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act are generally
required to pay at least the applicable minimum wage rate
required under Executive Order 14026 or Executive Order 13658.
Please note that these Executive Orders apply to covered
contracts entered into by the federal government that are
subject to the Davis-Bacon Act itself, but do not apply to
contracts subject only to the Davis-Bacon Related Acts,
including those set forth at 29 CFR 5.1(a)(1).

______________________________________________________________
|If the contract is entered    |. Executive Order 14026      |
|into on or after January 30,  |  generally applies to the   |
|2022, or the contract is      |  contract.                  |
|renewed or extended (e.g., an |. The contractor must pay    |
|option is exercised) on or    |  all covered workers at     |
|after January 30, 2022:       |  least $17.20 per hour (or  |
|                              |  the applicable wage rate   |
|                              |  listed on this wage        |
|                              |  determination, if it is    |
|                              |  higher) for all hours      |
|                              |  spent performing on the    |
|                              |  contract in 2024.          |
|______________________________|_____________________________|
|If the contract was awarded on|. Executive Order 13658      |
|or between January 1, 2015 and|  generally applies to the   |
|January 29, 2022, and the     |  contract.                  |
|contract is not renewed or    |. The contractor must pay all|
|extended on or after January  |  covered workers at least   |
|30, 2022:                     |  $12.90 per hour (or the    |
|                              |  applicable wage rate listed|
|                              |  on this wage determination,|
|                              |  if it is higher) for all   |
|                              |  hours spent performing on  |
|                              |  that contract in 2024.     |
|______________________________|_____________________________|

The applicable Executive Order minimum wage rate will be
adjusted annually. If this contract is covered by one of the
Executive Orders and a classification considered necessary for
performance of work on the contract does not appear on this
wage determination, the contractor must still submit a
conformance request.

Additional information on contractor requirements and worker
protections under the Executive Orders is available at
http://www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Modification Number     Publication Date
          0              01/05/2024



          1              01/19/2024

 CARP0408-005 07/01/2023

                                  Rates          Fringes

CARPENTER (Including Cement   
Form Work).......................$ 34.50            14.17
----------------------------------------------------------------
 ENGI0428-001 06/01/2023

                                  Rates          Fringes

POWER EQUIPMENT OPERATOR  
     Group 1.....................$ 31.69            13.52
     Group 2.....................$ 34.96            13.52
     Group 3.....................$ 36.04            13.52
     Group 4.....................$ 37.07            13.52

POWER EQUIPMENT OPERATORS CLASSIFICATIONS:  

  GROUP 1: A-frame boom truck, air compressor, Beltcrete,
  boring bridge and texture, brakeman, concrete mixer (skip
  type), conductor,   conveyor, cross timing and pipe float,
  curing machine, dinky (under 20 tons), elevator hoist
  (Husky and similar), firemen, forklift, generator (all),
  handler, highline cableway signalman, hydrographic mulcher,
  joint inserter, jumbo finishing machine, Kolman belt
  loader, machine conveyor, multiple power concrete saw,
  pavement breaker, power grizzly, pressure grout machine,
  pump, self-propelled chip spreading machine, slurry seal
  machine (Moto paver driver), small self-propelled compactor
  (with blade-backfill, ditch operation), straw blower,
  tractor (wheel type), tripper, tugger (single drum),
  welding machine, winch truck

  GROUP 2:
  ALL COUNTIES INCLUDING MARICOPA: Aggregate Plant, Asphalt
  plant Mixer, Bee Gee, Boring Machine, Concrete Pump,
  Concrete Mechanical Tamping-Spreading Finishing Machine,
  Concrete Batch Plant, Concrete Mixer (paving & mobile),
  Elevating Grader (except as otherwise classified), Field
  Equipment Serviceman, Locomotive Engineer (including Dinky
  20 tons & over), Moto-Paver, Oiler-Driver, Operating
  Engineer Rigger, Power Jumbo Form Setter, Road Oil Mixing
  Machine, Self-Propelled Compactor (with blade-grade
  operation), Slip Form (power driven lifting device for
  concrete forms), Soil Cement Road Mixing Machine,
  Pipe-Wrapping & Cleaning Machine (stationary or traveling),
  Surface Heater & Planer, Trenching Machine, Tugger (2 or
  more drums).

  MARICOPA COUNTY ONLY: Backhoe < 1 cu yd, Motor Grader
  (rough), Scraper (pneumatic tired), Roller (all types
  asphalt), Screed, Skip Loader (all types 3<6 cu yd),
  Tractor (dozer, pusher-all).

  GROUP 3: 
  ALL COUNTIES INCLUDING MARICOPA: Auto Grade Machine, Barge,
  Boring Machine (including Mole, Badger & similar type
  directional/horizontal), Crane (crawler & pneumatic 15>100
  tons), Crawler type Tractor with boom attachment & slope
  bar, Derrick, Gradall, Heavy Duty Mechanic-Welder,
  Helicopter Hoist or Pilot, Highline Cableway, Mechanical
  Hoist, Mucking Machine, Overhead Crane, Pile Driver



  Engineer (portable, stationary or skid), Power Driven Ditch
  Lining or Ditch Trimming Machine, Remote Control Earth
  Moving Machine, Slip Form Paving Machine (including
  Gunnert, Zimmerman & similar types), Tower Crane or similar
  type.

  MARICOPA COUNTY ONLY: Backhoe<10 cu yd, Clamshell < 10 cu yd,
  Concrete Pump (truck mounted with boom only), Dragline <10
  cu yd, Grade Checker, Motor Grader (finish-any type power
  blade), Shovel < 10 cu yd.

  GROUP 4:  Backhoe 10 cu yd and over, Clamshell 10 cu yd and
  over, Crane (pneumatic or crawler  100 tons & over),
  Dragline 10 cu yd and over, Shovel 10 cu yd and over.

  All Operators, Oilers, and Motor Crane Drivers on equipment
  with Booms, except concrete pumping truck booms, including
  Jibs, shall receive $0.01 per hour per foot over 80 ft in
  addition to regular rate of pay

  Premium pay for performing hazardous waste removal $0.50 per
  hour over base rate.

----------------------------------------------------------------
* IRON0075-004 10/01/2023

COCONINO, MARICOPA, MOHAVE, YAVAPAI & YUMA COUNTIES

                                  Rates          Fringes

Ironworker, Rebar................$ 32.00            18.91

Zone 1:  0 to 50 miles from City Hall in Phoenix or Tucson
Zone 2:  050 to 100 miles - Add $4.00
Zone 3:  100 to 150 miles - Add $5.00
Zone 4:  150 miles & over - Add $6.50

----------------------------------------------------------------
 LABO1184-008 06/01/2023

                                  Rates          Fringes

Laborers:  
     Group 1.....................$ 24.18             7.59
     Group 2.....................$ 25.82             7.59
     Group 3.....................$ 26.68             7.59
     Group 4.....................$ 27.65             7.59
     Group 5.....................$ 28.75             7.59

LABORERS CLASSIFICATIONS:  

  GROUP 1:  All Counties: Chipper, Rip Rap Stoneman.  Pinal
  County Only: General/Cleanup Laborer.  Maricopa County
  Only: Flagger.

  GROUP 2:   Asphalt Laborer (Shoveling-excluding Asphalt Raker
  or Ironer), Bander, Cement Mason Tender, Concrete Mucker,
  Cutting Torch Operator, Fine Grader, Guinea Chaser, Power
  Type Concrete Buggy

  GROUP 3:  Chain Saw, Concrete Small Tools, Concrete Vibrating
  Machine, Cribber & Shorer (except tunnel), Hydraulic Jacks
  and similar tools, Operator and Tender of Pneumatic and
  Electric Tools (not herein separately classified), Pipe
  Caulker and Back-Up Man-Pipeline, Pipe Wrapper, Pneumatic



  Gopher, Pre-Cast Manhole Erector, Rigger and Signal
  Man-Pipeline

  GROUP 4:  Air and Water Washout Nozzleman; Bio-Filter,
  Pressman, Installer, Operator; Scaffold Laborer; Chuck
  Tender; Concrete Cutting Torch; Gunite; Hand-Guided
  Trencher; Jackhammer and/or Pavement Breaker; Scaler (using
  boson's chair or safety belt); Tamper (mechanical all
  types).

  GROUP 5: AC Dumpman, Asbestos Abatement, Asphalt Raker II,
  Drill Doctor/Air Tool Repairman, Hazardous Waste Removal,
  Lead Abatement, Lead Pipeman, Process Piping Installer,
  Scaler (Driller), Pest Technician/Weed Control, Scissor
  Lift, Hydro Mobile Scaffold Builder.

----------------------------------------------------------------
 PAIN0086-001 04/01/2017

                                  Rates          Fringes

PAINTER  
     PAINTER (Yavapai County 
     only), SAND BLASTER/WATER 
     BLASTER (all Counties)......$ 19.58             6.40

  ZONE PAY: More than 100 miles from Old Phoenix Courthouse
  $3.50 additional per hour.

----------------------------------------------------------------
*  SUAZ2009-001 04/20/2009

                                  Rates          Fringes

CEMENT MASON.....................$ 19.28             3.99
  
ELECTRICIAN......................$ 22.84             6.48
  
IRONWORKER (Rebar)  
     Pima County.................$ 23.17            14.83
     Pinal County................$ 20.27             8.35
  
LABORER  
     Asphalt Raker...............$ 15.49 **          3.49
     Compaction Tool Operator....$ 14.59 **          2.91
     Concrete Worker.............$ 13.55 **          3.20
     Concrete/Asphalt Saw........$ 13.95 **          2.58
     Driller-Core, diamond, 
     wagon, air track............$ 16.94 **          3.12
     Dumpman Spotter.............$ 14.99 **          3.16
     Fence Builder...............$ 13.28 **          2.99
     Flagger
      Coconino, Mohave, Pima, 
      Pinal, Yavapai & Yuma......$ 12.35 **          1.59
     Formsetter..................$ 16.09 **          3.97
     General/Cleanup Laborer
      Coconino, Maricopa, 
      Mohave, Pima, Yavapai & 
      Yuma.......................$ 14.54 **          3.49
     Grade Setter (Pipeline).....$ 17.83             5.45
     Guard Rail Installer........$ 13.28 **          2.99
     Landscape Laborer...........$ 11.39 **              
     Landscape Sprinkler 
     Installer...................$ 15.27 **              
     Pipelayer...................$ 14.81 **          2.96



     Powderman, Hydrasonic.......$ 16.39 **          2.58
  
OPERATOR:  Power Equipment  
     Asphalt Laydown Machine.....$ 21.19             6.05
     Backhoe < 1 cu yd
      Coconino, Mohave, Pima, 
      Pinal, Yavapai & Yuma......$ 17.37             3.85
     Backhoe < 10 cu yd
      Coconino, Mohave, Pima, 
      Pinal, Yavapai & Yuma......$ 18.72             3.59
     Clamshell < 10 cu yd
      Coconino, Mohave, Pima, 
      Pinal, Yavapai & Yuma......$ 18.72             3.59
     Concrete Pump (Truck 
     Mounted with boom only)
      Coconino, Mohave, Pima, 
      Pinal, Yavapai & Yuma......$ 19.92             7.10
     Crane (under 15 tons).......$ 21.35             7.36
     Dragline (up to 10 cu yd)
      Coconino, Mohave, Pima, 
      Pinal, Yavapai & Yuma......$ 18.72             3.59
     Drilling Machine 
     (including Water Wells).....$ 20.58             5.65
     Grade Checker
      Coconino, Mohave, Pima, 
      Pinal, Yavapai & Yuma......$ 16.04 **          3.68
     Hydrographic Seeder.........$ 15.88 **          7.67
     Mass Excavator..............$ 20.97             4.28
     Milling Machine/Rotomill....$ 21.42             7.45
     Motor Grader (Finish-any 
     type power blade)
      Coconino, Mohave, Pima, 
      Pinal, Yavapai & Yuma......$ 21.92             4.66
     Motor Grader (Rough)
      Coconino, Mohave, Pima, 
      Pinal, Yavapai & Yuma......$ 20.07             4.13
     Oiler.......................$ 18.15             8.24
     Power Sweeper...............$ 16.76 **          4.44
     Roller (all types Asphalt)
      Coconino, Mohave, Pima, 
      Pinal, Yavapai & Yuma......$ 18.27             3.99
     Roller (excluding asphalt)..$ 15.65 **          3.32
     Scraper (pneumatic tired)
      Coconino, Mohave, Pima, 
      Pinal, Yavapai & Yuma......$ 17.69             3.45
     Screed
      Coconino, Mohave, Pima, 
      Pinal, Yavapai & Yuma......$ 17.54             3.72
     Shovel < 10 cu yd
      Coconino, Mohave, Pima, 
      Pinal, Yavapai & Yuma......$ 18.72             3.59
     Skip Loader (all types <3 
     cu yd)......................$ 18.28             5.30
     Skip Loader (all types 3 < 
     6 cu yd)
      Coconino, Mohave, Pima, 
      Pinal, Yavapai & Yuma......$ 18.64             4.86
     Skip Loader (all types 6 < 
     10 cu yd)...................$ 20.15             4.52
     Tractor (dozer, pusher - 
     all)
      Coconino, Mohave, Pima, 
      Pinal, Yavapai & Yuma......$ 17.26             2.65
  
PAINTER  



     Coconino, Maricopa, 
     Mohave, Pima, Pinal & Yuma..$ 15.57 **          3.92
  
TRUCK DRIVER  
     2 or 3 Axle Dump or 
     Flatrack....................$ 16.27 **          3.30
     5 Axle Dump or Flatrack.....$ 13.97 **          2.89
     6 Axle Dump or Flatrack (< 
     16 cu yd)...................$ 17.79             6.42
     Belly Dump..................$ 14.67 **              
     Oil Tanker Bootman..........$ 22.03                 
     Self-Propelled Street 
     Sweeper.....................$ 13.11 **          5.48
     Water Truck 2500 < 3900 
     gallons.....................$ 18.14             4.55
     Water Truck 3900 gallons 
     and over....................$ 15.92 **          3.33
     Water Truck under 2500 
     gallons.....................$ 15.94 **          4.16
----------------------------------------------------------------

WELDERS - Receive rate prescribed for craft performing
operation to which welding is incidental.

================================================================

** Workers in this classification may be entitled to a higher
minimum wage under Executive Order 14026 ($17.20) or 13658
($12.90).  Please see the Note at the top of the wage
determination for more information. Please also note that the
minimum wage requirements of Executive Order 14026 are not
currently being enforced as to any contract or subcontract to
which the states of Texas, Louisiana, or Mississippi, including
their agencies, are a party.

Note: Executive Order (EO) 13706, Establishing Paid Sick Leave
for Federal Contractors applies to all contracts subject to the
Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any
solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2017.  If this
contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must provide
employees with 1 hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours
they work, up to 56 hours of paid sick leave each year.
Employees must be permitted to use paid sick leave for their
own illness, injury or other health-related needs, including
preventive care; to assist a family member (or person who is
like family to the employee) who is ill, injured, or has other
health-related needs, including preventive care; or for reasons
resulting from, or to assist a family member (or person who is
like family to the employee) who is a victim of, domestic
violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  Additional information
on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO
is available at
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/government-contracts.

Unlisted classifications needed for work not included within
the scope of the classifications listed may be added after
award only as provided in the labor standards contract clauses
(29CFR 5.5 (a) (1) (iii)).

----------------------------------------------------------------

The body of each wage determination lists the classification
and wage rates that have been found to be prevailing for the



cited type(s) of construction in the area covered by the wage
determination. The classifications are listed in alphabetical
order of ""identifiers"" that indicate whether the particular
rate is a union rate (current union negotiated rate for local),
a survey rate (weighted average rate) or a union average rate
(weighted union average rate).

Union Rate Identifiers

A four letter classification abbreviation identifier enclosed
in dotted lines beginning with characters other than ""SU"" or
""UAVG"" denotes that the union classification and rate were
prevailing for that classification in the survey. Example:
PLUM0198-005 07/01/2014. PLUM is an abbreviation identifier of
the union which prevailed in the survey for this
classification, which in this example would be Plumbers. 0198
indicates the local union number or district council number
where applicable, i.e., Plumbers Local 0198. The next number,
005 in the example, is an internal number used in processing
the wage determination. 07/01/2014 is the effective date of the
most current negotiated rate, which in this example is July 1,
2014.

Union prevailing wage rates are updated to reflect all rate
changes in the collective bargaining agreement (CBA) governing
this classification and rate.

Survey Rate Identifiers

Classifications listed under the ""SU"" identifier indicate that
no one rate prevailed for this classification in the survey and
the published rate is derived by computing a weighted average
rate based on all the rates reported in the survey for that
classification.  As this weighted average rate includes all
rates reported in the survey, it may include both union and
non-union rates. Example: SULA2012-007 5/13/2014. SU indicates
the rates are survey rates based on a weighted average
calculation of rates and are not majority rates. LA indicates
the State of Louisiana. 2012 is the year of survey on which
these classifications and rates are based. The next number, 007
in the example, is an internal number used in producing the
wage determination. 5/13/2014 indicates the survey completion
date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

Survey wage rates are not updated and remain in effect until a
new survey is conducted.

Union Average Rate Identifiers

Classification(s) listed under the UAVG identifier indicate
that no single majority rate prevailed for those
classifications; however, 100% of the data reported for the
classifications was union data. EXAMPLE: UAVG-OH-0010
08/29/2014. UAVG indicates that the rate is a weighted union
average rate. OH indicates the state. The next number, 0010 in
the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage
determination. 08/29/2014 indicates the survey completion date
for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

A UAVG rate will be updated once a year, usually in January of
each year, to reflect a weighted average of the current
negotiated/CBA rate of the union locals from which the rate is
based.



----------------------------------------------------------------

                   WAGE DETERMINATION APPEALS PROCESS

1.) Has there been an initial decision in the matter? This can
be:

*  an existing published wage determination
*  a survey underlying a wage determination
*  a Wage and Hour Division letter setting forth a position on
   a wage determination matter
*  a conformance (additional classification and rate) ruling

On survey related matters, initial contact, including requests
for summaries of surveys, should be with the Wage and Hour
National Office because National Office has responsibility for
the Davis-Bacon survey program. If the response from this
initial contact is not satisfactory, then the process described
in 2.) and 3.) should be followed.

With regard to any other matter not yet ripe for the formal
process described here, initial contact should be with the
Branch of Construction Wage Determinations.  Write to:

            Branch of Construction Wage Determinations
            Wage and Hour Division
            U.S. Department of Labor
            200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
            Washington, DC 20210

2.) If the answer to the question in 1.) is yes, then an
interested party (those affected by the action) can request
review and reconsideration from the Wage and Hour Administrator
(See 29 CFR Part 1.8 and 29 CFR Part 7). Write to:

            Wage and Hour Administrator
            U.S. Department of Labor
            200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
            Washington, DC 20210

The request should be accompanied by a full statement of the
interested party's position and by any information (wage
payment data, project description, area practice material,
etc.) that the requestor considers relevant to the issue.

3.) If the decision of the Administrator is not favorable, an
interested party may appeal directly to the Administrative
Review Board (formerly the Wage Appeals Board).  Write to:

            Administrative Review Board
            U.S. Department of Labor
            200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
            Washington, DC 20210

4.) All decisions by the Administrative Review Board are final.

================================================================

          END OF GENERAL DECISION"

        



 
 

SECTION 5 

VERIFICATIONS STATEMENT 

  





 
 

SECTION 6 

BIDDERS LIST 





 
 

END 

OF 

FEDERAL DOCUMENTS 

 



EXHIBIT F 

Project Name: Automated Weather Observing System (AWOS) Replacement F-1 
City Project No.: AI2206.401; FAA Project No.: 3-04-0008-033-2023 
Rev. 10/23/23 

SUBCONTRACTOR DOCUMENTS WITH CONTRACTOR 

 
 

Any subcontractor assumptions, clarifications, exclusions, terms & conditions, signature 
blocks, etc. included are strictly between the Contractor and their subcontractors, and do 
not apply to the Agreement between the Contractor and the City. 

DonnaRy
Text Box
N/A



ITEM  2 

City Council Memorandum      City Clerk's Office  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor  and Council
From: Dana DeLong, City Clerk 
Subject: Approval of Minutes

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the Council meeting minutes of the Special Meeting -
Budget Briefing of April 26, 2024; the Special Meeting of May 20, 2024; the Study
Session of May 20, 2024; the Work Session of May 23, 2024; the Regular
Meeting of May 23, 2024; and the Special Meeting of June 3, 2024.

Attachments
Minutes of the Special Meeting - Budget Briefing of April 26, 2024 
Minutes of the Special Meeting of May 20,2024 
Minutes of the Study Session of May 20, 2024 
Minutes of the Work Session of May 23, 2024 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of May 23, 2024 
Minutes of the Special Meeting of June 3, 2024 



Meeting Minutes 
City Council Special Meeting 

Budget Briefing 
 

April 26, 2024 | 8:15 a.m. 
Chandler City Council Chambers 
88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ 
 
 

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Kevin Hartke at 8:15 a.m. 
 

Roll Call 
Council Attendance 
Mayor Kevin Hartke       
Vice Mayor OD Harris       
Councilmember Angel Encinas      
Councilmember Christine Ellis      
Councilmember Mark Stewart     
Councilmember Matt Orlando     
*Councilmember Jane Poston 
 
*Councilmember Poston attended telephonically.  
 
Staff in Attendance  
Josh Wright, City Manager 
Tadd Wille, Assistant City Manager 
Andy Bass, Deputy City Manager 
Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager / Chief Financial Officer 
Matt Dunbar, Budget and Policy Director 
Catherine Dixon, Budget and Research Principal Analyst 
Savana Martinez, Budget and Research Senior Analyst 
Helen Parker, Budget and research Principal Analyst 
Enrique Sandoval, Budget and Research Senior Analyst 
 

 
  



Page 2 of 28 
 

Discussion 
 
1.  Opening Remarks 
 
MAYOR HARTKE thanked the City Manager, budget team, and department directors for their time and 
preparation of the budget presentation. He provided comments regarding the robust conversations 
about the 2024-2025 budget and CIP.  
 
2.  Introduction 
 
JOSHUA WRIGHT, City Manager, presented the following presentation. 

• What Makes Chandler Different 
• “Making it Happen” Ensuring Fiscal Strength and Low-Cost Services 
• Budgeting to Meet Strategic Framework Focus Areas 
• Budget Direction 
• FY 2024-25 Proposed Budget 
• Operating Budget Highlights 
• FY 2024-25 Proposed Budget Drivers (all funds) 
• FY 2024-25 Ongoing Decision Package Recommendations (All Funds) 
• Council Priorities for One-Time Dollars 
• FY 2024-25 One-Time Decision Package Recommendations (All Funds) 

 
3.   Overview of Proposed Operating and Capital Budgets 
 
DAWN LANG, Deputy City Manager / CFO, presented the following presentation.  

• Overview of FY 2024-25 Annual Proposed Budget 
• Total Annual Proposed Revenue Budget (-1.6%) All Funds (in millions) 

 
COUNCILMEMBER STEWART asked why the general fund balance increases so much year after year.  
 
MS. LANG said this slide will provide an explanation.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER STEWART questioned if without the carryforward, there was lower inflation, then it 
would have been lower budget.  
 
MS. LANG said that was correct. In Arizona, if any capital improvement project is still underway if 
previously approved, the appropriation rolls forward and must be reapproved in the next year. The 
fund balance is vital to continue with projects.  
 
MS. LANG continued the presentation.  

• Total Annual Proposed Expenditure Budget (-1.6%) All Funds (in millions) 
• Total Actual Expenditures Compared to Adopted or Proposed Budget 

 



Page 3 of 28 
 

MATT DUNBAR, Budget and Policy Manager continued the presentation. 
• Total Annual Proposed Revenue Budget (-5.4%) General Fund (in millions) 
• Total Annual Proposed Expenditure Budget (-5.4%) General Fund (in millions) 
• Modified Zero Based Budgeting (MZBB) 
• Modified Zero Based Budgeting (MZBB) results 

 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if individual cost centers were reviewed bottoms-up. 
 
MR. DUNBAR clarified if he meant a zero-base budget.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said yes. 
 
MR. DUNBAR said research through the Government Finance Officer Association yielded the result 
that true zero-base delivers little value. Most line items are core services that will be considered 
anyways. With a modified zero-base budget, line items with underspending or overspending are 
considered and quantified if lines can be reduced or increased due to historical trends. Any anomalies 
are examined to make changes to the budget.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said this makes sense and asked what the budget is modelled against. 
 
MR. DUNBAR said there is not an industry standard between divisions. It is on an individual division 
basis. Moving forward, the team will be able to better quantify sample statistics over time and adjust 
accordingly.  
 
MS. LANG continued the presentation. 

• General Fund 5-Year Ongoing Forecast and Fund Balance Projections 
• Revenue and Expenditure Assumptions 

 
MAYOR HARTKE suggested that PSPRS payment could be better labeled as the City has paid off the 
unfunded liability.  
 
MS. LANG said it can be labelled differently. 
 
MS. LANG continued the presentation. 

• 5-Year General Fund Ongoing Forecast Revenues vs Expenditures 
• Proposed 5-Year One-Time General Fund Balance Projection 
• Proposed 5-Year Enterprise Funds Fund Balance Projection 
• Average Residential Cost Comparison for Water, Wastewater and Solid Waste 
• Average Annual Residential Cost Comparison for Direct Services 
• Impact of Tax Rate Reduction on Median Value Homeowner 
• Breakdown of $1 of Typical Chandler Property Tax Bill 

 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if a decrease in property tax is anticipated, and what is new from 
Economic Development that can maintain this rate.  



Page 4 of 28 
 

MS. LANG answered that the assumptions about property tax revenue were that it would increase by 
4% per year. Most of the increase in assessed value is due to new property. The current increase is 
due more to appreciation rather than new property. The secondary tax collected has gone up 4% or 
more per year. Primary tax collected has not increased as much due to the rate reductions 
implemented.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said new builds were considered, even though cities are behind in seeing 
results from assessed values.  
 
MS. LANG confirmed the projection shows as almost two years behind on assessed values – what is 
happening today is a result of what happened two years ago. Another year of higher appreciation 
despite new property is expected. New property is considered in this revenue projection.  
 
MR. DUNBAR continued the presentation. 

• 2025-2034 Proposed Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 
• Capital & Debt Management 
• 2025-2034 CIP Process 
• History of 10-Year CIP (in millions) 
• 2025-2034 CIP Highlights 
• Summary of Proposed Key General Government Capital Projects in the 1st 5-Years 
• General Voter Bond Authorization 
• Proposed FY 2024-25 CIP Appropriation (all funds) 

 
4.  Departments Operating and Capital Budget Presentations 
 
MR. DUNBAR continued the presentation. 

• Department Operating and CIP Presentations 
 
Information Technology 
SANDIP DHOLAKIA, Chief Information Officer, presented the following presentation. 

• Top 5 FY 2023-24 Accomplishments 
• Financial Highlights: Operating Proposed Budget  
• Financial Highlights: Operating Funding Sources 
• Decision Packages 

 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked for more detail on the support analyst role.  
 
MR. DHOLAKIA responded that this role would reside on the support team, the primary function is 
working on virtual meetings and Office365. Office365 features are currently being rolled out to all 
departments. The position would also assist in the help desk and support role.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if this was a former contract position or brand new.  
 



Page 5 of 28 
 

MR. DHOLAKIA said this is a new position and the department will be reducing the number of 
contractors that we have by one to accommodate.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said the conversion is from a one-time cost every year for a contractor 
to an FTE position.  
 
MR. DHOLAKIA said yes.  
 
MR. DHOLAKIA continued the presentation.  

• Decision Packages 
• Decision Packages 

 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked for more information with the information security analyst FTE.  
 
MR. DHOLAKIA said this position is for incident response triage. This would allow the department to 
have one FTE to fully focus on vulnerability management like policies, procedures, and standards for 
security.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if this is proactive. 
 
MR. DHOLAKIA explained that vulnerability management is the proactive aspect, the incident 
management is reactive.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if this was previously contracted or is a new position.  
 
MR. DHOLAKIA said it was previously contracted being transferred to FTE.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER STEWART asked if this helps with our ransom insurance cost.  
 
MR. DHOLAKIA said the position is not correlated to the cybersecurity insurance; the insurance 
coverage will be raised the end of this fiscal year due to multifactor authentication being implemented.  
 
MR. DHOLAKIA continued the presentation.  

• Decision Packages 
• 2025-2034 CIP – Information Technology 
• 2025-2034 CIP – Information Technology 

 
Communication & Public Affairs 
MATT BURDICK, Communication and Public Affairs Director, presented the following presentation.  

• Top 5 FY 2023-24 Accomplishments 
• Financial Highlights: Operating Proposed Budget  
• Financial Highlights: Operating Funding Sources 
• Decision Packages 

 



Page 6 of 28 
 

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS asked if the position currently exists.  
 
MR. BURDICK said correct, it has been funded previously with one-time funds.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS said one-time positions are being converted into ongoing. 
 
MR. BURDICK said correct. Funds have been allocated; at this point the ask is to convert to ongoing. 
The number of staff will increase from three to four.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO noted it will be an expansion of services as well.  
 
MR. BURDICK said with the upgrades to the studio set, the quality of production will increase. Having 
staff to utilize technology and help other department use will help. This was part of the vision of the 
capital project. The upgrade is to a full digital media production studio.  
 
MAYOR HARTKE asked about the $100 one-time amount for the digital media producer. 
 
MR. BURDICK said staff will provide that information (followed up that day).  
 
MR. BURDICK continued the presentation.  

• Decision Packages 
• Decision Packages 

 
Community Services 
COREY POVAR, Assistant Community Services Director, presented the following presentation.  

• Top 5 FY 2023-24 Accomplishments 
• Financial Highlights: Operating Proposed Budget  
• Financial Highlights: Operating Funding Sources 
• Decision Packages 

 
COUNCILMEMBER STEWART asked what contributes to the number of calls for service for security 
services at the Downtown Library. 
 
MR. POVAR said the proximity of the library to the downtown area contributes to the number of calls 
for service. Other locations attached to school systems are served by school resource officers.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER STEWART asked for more information on these calls for service.  
 
MR. WRIGHT said the information will be provided.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER POSTON asked if this is a full-time position. 
 
MR. POVAR said it will be a temporary full time security officer.  
 



Page 7 of 28 
 

COUNCILMEMBER POSTON requested more information on security officers throughout the city. 
 
MR. WRIGHT said that we have worked with departments that use contracted security services. We 
learned that it varies by department how contracted security services are obtained. The focus is to 
standardize the process across departments.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER POSTON said it is important to have someone familiar with the building location 
and that can work cohesively with other departments.  
 
MAYOR HARTKE noted that any information requested will be provided to all councilmembers.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS asked if we have seen an increase in disturbances during summer due to sites 
being used as heat relief cooling centers.  
 
MR. POVAR said we will come back with that information.  
 
MR. POVAR continued the presentation.  

• Decision Packages 
 
MAYOR HARTKE requested the results of the tree study.  
 
MR. POVAR said we will come back with that information.  
 
MR. POVAR continued the presentation.  

• Decision Packages 
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked about the item for the Chandler Nature Center Owl’s Nest Store.  
 
MR. POVAR said this is the gift shop that is at the Chandler Nature Center which is a revenue offset. 
The items for the store have increased in price.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER STEWART asked if the store is profitable.  
 
MR. POVAR said the cost is to account for increased expenses for goods sold at the store.  
 
MR. DUNBAR said that the store must have appropriation to purchase store inventory, this is to allow 
the store to bulk up inventory and anticipate more sales. This is intended to be 100% revenue offset. 
 
MR. POVAR continued the presentation.  

• Decision Packages 
 
COUNCILMEMBER POSTON asked if Chandler shares pool chemical costs with the school district.  
 
MR. POVAR said the cost is not shared. The city owns and operates the sites with utilities shared.  



Page 8 of 28 
 

MR. POVAR continued the presentation.  
• Decision Packages 

 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if of the two new FTE, the one new FTE who will staff the new 
Tumbleweed Multi-Gen Expansion will be at a new entrance.  
 
MR. POVAR said there will be a separate front desk at the multi-gen area.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked for elaboration behind the second desk.  
 
MR. POVAR said there will be separate programming and different activities within the expansion. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if these costs may be offset by increased revenues due to the 
expansion.  
 
MR. POVAR said that our goal is for the expansion to lead to greater programming opportunities and 
revenue offset with enhanced programming.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ENCINAS asked what the maintenance service on the trees is.  
 
MR. POVAR said the tree item is a separate service than regular park maintenance. This will be specific 
to professional services focused on tree care only. Parks staff have worked on trees historically, but 
the goal is to enhance the level of care.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ENCINAS asked what requires this level of care.  
 
MR. POVAR said there are a variety of tree species. Part of tree care is removal or replanting. This 
contract crew can assess, make recommendations on retention, then decide on removal and 
replanting. This is more holistic way to assess tree health. 
 
MAYOR HARTKE asked about tree watering schedules.  
 
MR. POVAR said our urban forester position keeps track of tree watering schedules. The whole team 
hopes to address this on a large scale, as water is one of the most valuable assets in parks and 
recreation.  
 
MICKEY OHLAND, Community Services Planning Manager, continued the presentation.  

• 2025-2034 CIP – Community Services 
 
MAYOR HARTKE mentioned that the Sunset Park improvements are a great addition.  
 
MR. OHLAND said that it is a great example of ADA improvements, landscape conversions, and 
upgrades.  
 



Page 9 of 28 
 

MR. OHLAND continued the presentation.  
• 2025-2034 CIP – Community Services 
• 2025-2034 CIP – Community Services 

 
COUNCILMEMBER STEWART thanked staff for their work on Snedigar turf improvements.  
 
MR. OHLAND said staff has done a great job on these improvements.  
 
MR. OHLAND continued the presentation.  

• 2025-2034 CIP – Community Services 
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said that the desire for cricket sporting locations has been increasing.  
 
MR. OHLAND agreed and noted that the department is looking into long term parks improvements.  
 
MAYOR HARTKE noted the first Chandler cricket tournament took place last year.  
 
Neighborhood Resources 
LEAH POWELL, Neighborhood Resources Director, presented the following presentation.  

• Top 5 FY 2023-24 Accomplishments 
• Financial Highlights: Operating Proposed Budget  
• Financial Highlights: Operating Funding Sources 
• Decision Packages 

 
RIANN BALCH, Community Resources Senior Manager, continued the presentation.  

• Decision Packages 
 
VICE MAYOR HARRIS asked how the navigator program measures success. How many interactions 
does it take for a navigator to be able to transition an unhoused community member into housing. 
 
MS. BALCH said there is not a solid number, as it varies on a case-by-case basis. One of the most 
important things the navigators do is establish trust with that person. The navigators’ working 
relationship with community members helps build pathways to housing and resources.  
 
VICE MAYOR HARRIS asked how effectiveness is measured.  
 
MS. BALCH said effectiveness is measured in multiple ways. Staff has their own methods of 
documentation within our homeless management information system, their supervisor monitors their 
work performance. The department uses standardized measures by the Department of Housing and 
Urban Development that are measured locally and nationally. Exit rates are standardized in the 
industry.  
 
VICE MAYOR HARRIS asked what a navigator’s typical day looks like. 
 



Page 10 of 28 
 

MS. BALCH invited councilmembers to a ride along with a navigator. The navigator’s work is an iterative 
process and can take many different forms. Seven navigators and one supervisor are a right size, which 
allows seven days of service throughout the city.  
 
MAYOR HARTKE asked what the average cost of an individual living on the streets was.  
 
MS. BALCH said estimates are about five years old, but industry numbers indicate that it takes $15,000-
$20,000 to house someone for one year in affordable housing but can cost up to $250,000 in services 
per year to serve one individual living on the street, which includes public safety, medical, 
environmental services, behavioral health and more. It is financially effective to house individuals.  
 
VICE MAYOR HARRIS said our community wants to know about the transfer that happens into housing.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS asked if these positions would be part time.  
 
MS. BALCH said the goal is to eventually convert to full time employees, but at this the request is for 
onetime funding for the supervisor position.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER STEWART asked what the grant funding was.  
 
MS. BALCH said it was federal COVID-specific funding that is now coming to an end.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER STEWART asked if the transition is now to general fund dollars to support this 
service.  
 
MS. BALCH said yes.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS asked what happened to the two jobs remaining from the consolidation into 
one position.  
 
MS. BALCH said when this started, it was three people due to the high demand. Since settling, these 
activities have rolled into one position. These calls come from all over the city, residents, social service 
agencies. One position can take care of the demand at this time.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS asked if the other positions were released, and if they continued working in 
the city.  
 
MS. BALCH said the individuals are employed in the city, for example one is now a senior management 
analyst.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER POSTON asked if we partner with non-profit services. 
 



Page 11 of 28 
 

MS. BALCH said we partner with every possible resource. Staff works with other partners in the valley. 
A lot of what we do is referrals for service, but calls start in the city. We still serve in a navigation 
position to make the connection and ensure they get they service they need.  
 
MS. BALCH continued the presentation.  

• Decision Packages 
 
COUNCILMEMBER ENCINAS asked about the total number of units and percentage of occupancy.  
 
MS. BALCH said there are two contracts with room providers, one for 10 two-bedroom units, and one 
for 15 one-bedroom units. The occupancy rate is high due to high demand, at a 99.9% occupancy rate 
nightly.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER STEWART asked if there have been any immigration issues.  
 
MS. BALCH said there has been no immigration issues. The intake criteria are specific.  
 
MS. POWELL continued the presentation.  

• Decision Packages 
 
COUNCILMEMBER STEWART asked how illegal dumping is investigated or enforced.  
 
MS. POWELL said it is difficult to determine responsibility. Under current code, the property owner is 
responsible for maintenance, even though owners are rarely responsible for illegal dumping. It takes 
a great deal of staff effort to investigate the issue, a hauling contractor can take care of the issue 
quickly. Analysis of alley maintenance found that a hauling contract was an economical choice.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS asked what can be done to discourage illegal dumping behavior.  
 
MS. POWELL said that having a dedicated staff member can identify hotspots and begin identification 
of hotspots around Chandler. Signage and monitoring cameras can help staff react depending on the 
circumstances.  
 
VICE MAYOR HARRIS asked to see more collaboration with police about the illegal dumping issue.  
 
MS. POWELL continued the presentation.  

• Decision Packages 
 
Fire 
TOM DWIGGINS, Fire Chief, presented the following presentation.  

• Top 5 FY 2023-24 Accomplishments 
• Financial Highlights: Operating Proposed Budget  
• Financial Highlights: Operating Funding Sources 
• Decision Packages 



Page 12 of 28 
 

COUNCILMEMBER STEWART commented that it is great to hear about the effectiveness of the cancer 
screenings and asked how we can expand this program. Councilmember Stewart asked what is being 
solved with changes in fire code and fee changes. 
 
CHIEF DWIGGINS responded that over last year’s inspections, 70% of last year’s inspections were 
reinspections. Inspectors are not able to complete all categories of inspections due to the amount of 
reinspections. Most of the time code violations are minor and are resulting from regular service needs 
and annual checks. Fire code inspectors need to enforce any violations they may see otherwise the 
liability would fall upon the city. Inspectors advocate for the business to find sensible solutions 
especially when it comes to costs for small businesses.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER STEWART thanked staff.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS said the cancer screening program is working to save firefighters’ lives, to 
hear that 94% of the department takes advantage of the program is great so it should be continued.  
Councilmember Ellis commented that fire code inspection is important to save lives and the focus is 
on educating the community.  
 
CHIEF DWIGGINS noted that the employee buy-in has been great.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked about the 28 new firefighter positions. 
 
CHIEF DWIGGINS said this was from the current budget year, the firefighters were completing the 
academy. The eight rover positions allow for fulltime employees to take time off. If a firefighter is 
leaving their position early, a new firefighter is enrolled in the academy to anticipate the vacancy ahead 
of time.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO thanked and congratulated retiring employees.  
 
Law 
KELLY SCHWAB, City Attorney presented the following presentation.  

• Top 5 FY 2023-24 Accomplishments 
• Financial Highlights: Operating Proposed Budget  
• Financial Highlights: Operating Funding Sources 
• Decision Packages 

 
MS. SCHWAB and DANA DELONG, City Clerk presented this presentation.  

• Top 5 FY 2023-24 Accomplishments Records Management – Law Department and City Clerk 
 
City Clerk 
MS. DELONG presented the following presentation.  

• Top 5 FY 2023-24 Accomplishments 
• Financial Highlights: Operating Proposed Budget  
• Financial Highlights: Operating Funding Sources 



Page 13 of 28 
 

• Decision Packages 
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO thanked the departments and looked forward to sharing the Archived 
Records Search with residents.  
 
City Magistrate 
ALICIA SKUPIN, City Magistrate, presented the following presentation.  

• Top 5 FY 2023-24 Accomplishments 
• Financial Highlights: Operating Proposed Budget  
• Financial Highlights: Operating Funding Sources 
• Decision Packages 

 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said the night court services save a great deal of funds.  
 
JUDGE SKUPIN explained that there has been a small court historically, having afternoon jail court 
reduces the time spent in detention, and allows officers to process individuals quicker. These 
accommodations are a great benefit to the city.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO encouraged the expansion of these programs.  
 
City Manager and Organizational Support 
City Manager 
STEVEN TURNER, Sustainability and Performance Officer, presented the following presentation.  

• City Manager Team 
• Top 5 FY 2023-24 Accomplishments 
• Financial Highlights: Operating Proposed Budget  
• Financial Highlights: Operating Funding Sources 
• Decision Packages 
• 2025-2034 CIP – Non-departmental  

 
Diversity, Equity and Inclusion 
NIKI TAPIA, Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Officer, presented the following presentation. 

• Top 5 FY 2023-24 Accomplishments 
• Financial Highlights: Operating Proposed Budget  
• Financial Highlights: Operating Funding Sources 
• Decision Packages 

 
MAYOR HARTKE noted the Sister Cities program has returned and looked forward to where it goes 
with new leadership.  
 
Council recessed at 11:29 p.m. 
Council reconvened at 12:18 p.m. with all members present.  
 
  



Page 14 of 28 
 

Human Resources 
RAE LYNN NIELSEN, Human Resources Director, presented the following presentation. 

• Top 5 FY 2023-24 Accomplishments 
• Financial Highlights: Operating Proposed Budget  
• Financial Highlights: Operating Funding Sources 
• Decision Packages 

 
Economic Development 
MICAH MIRANDA, Economic Development Director, presented the following presentation.  

• Top 5 FY 2023-24 Accomplishments 
• Financial Highlights: Operating Proposed Budget  
• Financial Highlights: Operating Funding Sources 
• Decision Packages 
• 2025-2034 CIP – Economic Development 

 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS asked about the progress of the infill development program.  
 
MR. MIRANDA said the program is active. A roundtable will be hosted with experts to push the project 
out. There are not any formal contracts at this time but will continue to work to gain traction.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS asked about Maricopa Community College scholarships. 
 
MR. MIRANDA said the funds have been placed, our workforce development project manager 
published these with the school district and worked to understand student needs. The scholarship 
program is accepting applications. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS expressed excitement to hear more about the scholarship once awarded. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked to hear more about the workforce development position in the 
department.  
 
MR. MIRANDA said the new position was hired in October. The first few months we met with 
stakeholders to understand their needs from the business and education side. Formal partnerships 
with other organizations met to discuss each need. The delivery of the scholarship program targets 
advanced manufacturing jobs, and the plan is to move forward to implement the website with CGCC 
and pair up students with companies in demand. This allows a single point of contact for these 
workforce development questions. It has proven to be very useful with local businesses.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked to see objectives, metrics, and how we measure success.  
 
MR. MIRANDA said the metrics are in development which will be different focus areas with these 
partners. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked when Council can anticipate seeing results. 



Page 15 of 28 
 

MR. MIRANDA answered that after the website is implemented in May.   
 
COUNCILMEMBER STEWART asked if the goal is business retention in the city. 
 
MR. MIRANDA said that is one of the goals is to serve as a community connector to connect supply 
and demand between employees and employers. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER STEWART asked if this is considered a pilot program. 
 
MR. MIRANDA said yes. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER POSTON asked what we are doing to reach K-12 students.  
 
MR. MIRANDA said the department works with CUSD with their workforce development team and CTE 
professionals to share these opportunities. At the K-12 level, exposure is difficult. It depends on a 
company-by-company basis.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER POSTON thanked staff for their work with educational partners.  
 
MAYOR HARTKE noted that the STEAM night at Hancock Elementary was impressive with our different 
partners and engaging students.  
 
VICE MAYOR HARRIS added that it is important to incorporate local companies into the Innovation Fair 
and other activities.  
 
Building and Facilities 
MICHAEL HOLLINGSWORTH, Facilities & Fleet Manager, presented the following presentation.  

• Top 5 FY 2023-24 Accomplishments 
• Financial Highlights: Operating Proposed Budget  
• Financial Highlights: Operating Funding Sources 
• Decision Packages 
• 2025-2034 CIP General Government – Building & Facilities 
• 2025-2034 CIP General Government – Building & Facilities 

 
MAYOR HARTKE asked about the mezzanine area in City Hall.  
 
MR. HOLLINGSWORTH answered that the plan is to convert it into an enclosed exercise and employee 
activity area, event hosting, and food preparation area.  
 
MAYOR HARTKE asked if this will require HVAC improvements. 
 
MR. HOLLINGSWORTH replied that HVAC, electrical, and audio-visual improvements will be made.  
 
MAYOR HARKE asked if this was the first time this item was being presented. 



Page 16 of 28 
 

MR. WRIGHT said this item has appeared before, but staff are still reviewing plans. This will come 
before Council later. 
 
MR. HOLLINGSWORTH clarified we are still in design development. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said the original idea behind this was to rent out the space for a revenue 
stream. 
 
MR. HOLLINGSWORTH said that is still a possibility.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said the city is short on meeting spaces and rooms and asked to 
research this. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER STEWART asked about the right size study of city buildings. 
 
MR. HOLLINGSWORTH said improvements in City Hall are being made. In regard to the IT building, the 
expense to move the systems out of the building was costly and would not have been effective. There 
are other efficiencies to improve within existing buildings.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER STEWART requested more information. 
 
MR. WRIGHT said the study is to find ways to offload real estate and avoid need for future real estate. 
Current renovations are to make better use of space as the city grows. There are some facilities being 
investigated to see if they can be consolidated with other areas. One challenge is due to the systems 
within the buildings, such as the IT data center, relocation costs were high.  
 
MR. HOLLINGSWORTH said there are other examples of systems which are expensive to relocate. 
 
MAYOR HARTKE said part of the Tumbleweed expansion was to repurpose the existing senior center, 
and asked what the current philosophy behind the expansion was.  
 
MR. HOLLINGSWORTH responded that this is still underway.  
 
MR. WRIGHT mentioned that there are decision points about these buildings coming forward in the 
future – the community center and senior center are linked with each other. The buildings were built 
in 1986 and have been updated, but once the multigenerational center is functioning at Tumbleweed, 
that would be a good time to see how people use these services and survey options.  
 
Fleet Services 
MR. HOLLINGSWORTH presented the following presentation.  

• Top 5 FY 2023-24 Accomplishments 
• Financial Highlights: Operating Proposed Budget  
• Financial Highlights: Operating Funding Sources 
• Decision Packages 



Page 17 of 28 
 

MAYOR HARTKE asked how the remote solar charging stations are coming along. 
 
MR. HOLLINGSWORTH said it was purchased two years ago, it is effective and works great.   
 
Airport 
RYAN REEVES, Airport Manager, presented the following presentation.  

• Top 5 FY 2023-24 Accomplishments 
• Financial Highlights: Operating Proposed Budget  
• Financial Highlights: Operating Funding Sources 
• Decision Packages 
• Decision Packages 
• 2025-2034 CIP – Airport 
• 2025-2034 CIP – Airport 
• 2025-2034 CIP – Airport 
• 2025-2034 CIP – Airport 

 
MAYOR HARTKE asked about future Airport Days. 
 
MR. REEVES said the plan moving forward is to host Airport Days biannually. Smaller events are in 
development with local airport-based community group organizations.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked to communicate with the public clearly that the runway 
improvements are in a planning phase and will have public input with open communication.  
 
MR. REEVES agreed, the study is underway to look at the FAA requirements. The study looks at 
environmental studies which studies residential interaction. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked about the hangar maintenance program item, are these owned 
or leased hangars.  
 
MR. REEVES said these are the city-owned hangars that are leased monthly to tenants. The other 
hangars are on long term development lease agreements with the city for exclusive use of hangars. 
The department currently has operating budget funding to replace mechanicals within hangars on an 
as-needed basis. This item is for the structural steel of the hangars that are corroding.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if this would cause the lease rent to increase. 
 
MR. REEVES said the first strategic plan is underway; the financial analysis is in progress and taking 
community input.  
 
MAYOR HARTKE requested more information on the enterprise fund covering the operational budget. 
 
  



Page 18 of 28 
 

Transportation Policy 
RYAN PETERS, Strategic Initiatives Director, presented the following presentation.  

• Top 5 FY 2023-24 Accomplishments 
• Financial Highlights: Operating Proposed Budget  
• Financial Highlights: Operating Funding Sources 
• Decision Packages 
• Decision Packages 
• Decision Packages 
• 2025-2034 CIP General Government – Transportation Policy 
• 2025-2034 CIP General Government – Transportation Policy 
• 2025-2034 CIP General Government – Transportation Policy 

 
Management Services 
MS. LANG presented the following presentation.  

• Top 5 FY 2023-24 Accomplishments 
• Financial Highlights: Operating Proposed Budget  
• Financial Highlights: Operating Funding Sources 
• Financial Highlights: Non-Departmental 
• Decision Packages 
• Decision Packages – Non-Departmental  

 
Development Services 
ANDY BASS, Deputy City Manager / Acting Development Services Director, presented the following 
presentation.  

• Top 5 FY 2023-24 Accomplishments 
• Financial Highlights: Operating Proposed Budget  
• Financial Highlights: Operating Funding Sources 
• Decision Packages 
• 2025-2034 CIP – Development Services 

 
COUNCILMEMBER POSTON asked for an overview of what expenses are involved in a general plan 
update. 
 
MR. BASS mentioned that the expenses are from hiring a consultant to lead the process and public 
meetings. Staff has reached out to surrounding cities who have recently updated their general plans 
to get this cost estimate.  
 
MAYOR HARTKE added that Council will discuss this at our next Council meeting retreat. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said there has been a lot of focus on fiber, independent hubs serve as a 
backchannel. 
 
MR. BASS said it is a redundant system.  
 



Page 19 of 28 
 

Cultural Development 
KIM MOYERS, Cultural Development Director, presented the following presentation.  

• Top 5 FY 2023-24 Accomplishments 
• Financial Highlights: Operating Proposed Budget  
• Financial Highlights: Operating Funding Sources 
• Decision Packages 
• 2025-2034 CIP – Cultural Development 
• 2025-2034 CIP – Cultural Development 
• 2025-2034 CIP – Cultural Development 

 
MAYOR HARTKE asked what the percentage of occupancy of use of facility rentals are.  
 
MR. WRIGHT said that information will be provided.  
 
MAYOR HARTKE asked when the Dr. A. J. Chandler Park item would be up for Council discussion. 
 
MR. WRIGHT said there will be a work session in May to discuss the park improvements.  
 
MAYOR HARTKE asked when the start date for downtown construction begin. 
 
MS. MOYERS said the project will start in May, from San Marcos hotel to California St. through the 
summer. This item is a different project which will occur later. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER STEWART asked about communication with business owners. 
 
MS. MOYERS said staff has been working with businesses downtown communicating about 
construction changes.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked to hear about the Arts and Economic Development event that was 
just hosted. 
 
MS. MOYERS said the results would be shared with council. 
 
Public Works & Utilities  

JOHN KNUDSON, Public Works and Utilities Director, presented the following presentation.  

• Top 5 FY 2023-24 Accomplishments 
• Financial Highlights: Operating Proposed Budget  
• Financial Highlights: Operating Funding Sources 
• Decision Packages 

 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked where the chargeback is charged to for the project manager. 
 



Page 20 of 28 
 

MR. KNUDSON said there is a 2% staff charge included in budgets. 80% of salary comes from CIP 
accounts, not drawn directly from general fund.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if the department pays the percentage. 
 
MR. KNUDSON said that is correct.  
 

• 2025-2034 CIP – Streets  
• 2025-2034 CIP – Streets  
• 2025-2034 CIP – Streets  
• 2025-2034 CIP – Streets  
• 2025-2034 CIP – Streets  

 
MAYOR HARTKE asked about how improvements are made in collaboration with businesses.  
 
MR. KNUDSON said staff works with businesses closely during design and construction of 
intersections.  
 
MR. WRIGHT said other information will be presented.  
 
MR. KNUDSON continued the presentation.  

• 2025-2034 CIP – Streets  
• 2025-2034 CIP – Streets  

 
MAYOR HARTKE asked when the turf to xeriscape program study will be complete.  
 
MR. KNUDSON said it is in design. There are 56 acres to investigate. Some neighborhoods do use these 
retention basins, so the number of areas up for the conversion may reduce. There is a time limit on 
the grant, so the program will advance to see construction next year, after public outreach. 
 
MAYOR HARTKE asked to see more information. 
 
MR. WRIGHT said this will come back for a construction contract as well.  
 
MR. KNUDSON continued the presentation.  
 

• 2025-2034 CIP – Streets  
 
MAYOR HARTKE asked when will the Queen Creek Road project be pushed back due to other 
construction.  
 
MR. KNUDSON said there is not a direct link between the I-10 and Price interchange projects. A safety 
study of the intersection is underway; work is still years out.  
 



Page 21 of 28 
 

MAYOR HARTKE asked if there is a timeline for state work. 
 
MR. KNUDSON said a timeline is unknown.  
 
MR. KNUDSON continued the presentation.  
 

• 2025-2034 CIP – Streets  
 
JEREMY ABBOTT, Public Works and Utilities Assistant Director, continued the presentation.  

• Decision Packages 
• Decision Packages 

 
VICE MAYOR HARRIS mentioned that the principal engineer job position needs to be competitive in 
this job market.  
 
MR. ABBOTT with the recent HR class and comp study, the principal engineer is right sized for the 
experience and licensing needed.  
 
MR. ABBOTT continued the presentation.  

• Decision Packages 
 
COUNCILMEMBER STEWART asked how the payback of the Ocotillo Brine Reduction Facility works.  
 
MR. ABBOTT explained that Intel receives a monthly bill and plans their budget in close coordination 
with the city to ensure the fees are paid monthly.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER STEWART said Intel is aware of the increase and asked if all the cost will be 
recovered.  
 
MR. ABBOTT said yes, and all the cost will be recovered.  
 
MR. ABBOTT continued the presentation. 

• Decision Packages 
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if the FTE onboard here is due to the expansion of physical 
services like repair and increase services for residents.  
 
MR. ABBOTT said some of the positions are related to infrastructure and provide an increased level of 
service.  
 
MR. ABBOTT continued the presentation.  

• Decision Packages 
• 2025-2034 CIP – Wastewater 
• 2025-2034 CIP – Wastewater 



Page 22 of 28 
 

• 2025-2034 CIP – Wastewater 
• 2025-2034 CIP – Wastewater 

 
MAYOR HARTKE asked where the Santan Freeway 66-inch sewer line is.  
 
MR. ABBOTT said it is located between Dobson and Price roads.  
 
MR. ABBOTT continued the presentation. 

• 2025-2034 CIP – Water 
• 2025-2034 CIP – Water 

 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked about the water treatment plant improvements.  
 
MR. ABBOTT said there are no changes, this year and next year there is a significant CIP. Currently 
testing to see how the system is performing in treating water from the SRP system is being conducted. 
This includes the rehab of existing filters, and identification of the need for additional filters, and any 
additional treatment processes to meet our water quality.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said this is not an expansion of the plant, but rather adapting to 
anticipated different kinds of water.  
 
MR. ABBOTT said yes, the capacity is not increasing, the treatment processes can just handle different 
water quality.  
 
MR. ABBOTT continued the presentation.  

• 2025-2034 CIP – Water 
• 2025-2034 CIP – Water 

 
MAYOR HARTKE asked if the automatic meter infrastructure would provide real-time updates.  
 
MR. ABBOTT said the reality is that the system can be programmed based on number of meters – the 
end results will not be second-to-second, but in set intervals of relaying water use information.  
 
MR. ABBOTT continued the presentation.  

• 2025-2034 CIP – Water 
 
COUNCILMEMBER STEWART asked if this is connected to the fire department emergency operations 
center.  
 
MR. ABBOTT say it is similar, the same technology for communication would be implemented and 
would allow for redundancy. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER STEWART asked what this accomplishes in case of emergency.  
 



Page 23 of 28 
 

MR. ABBOTT explained that the department needs a central location to communicate with department 
staff in case of an emergency. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER STEWART asked if there is currently a location that would serve the department in 
an emergency.   
 
MR. ABBOTT said there is not.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER STEWART asked what else is needed.  
 
MR. ABBOTT explained that the ability to communicate with the outside world, such as satellite phones 
to communicate with staff. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER STEWART requested more information later.  
 
MR. ABBOTT continued the presentation.  

• 2025-2034 CIP – Water 
• 2025-2034 CIP – Solid Waste 

 
Police 
MELISSA DEANDA, Acting Police Chief, presented the following presentation. 

• Top 5 FY 2023-24 Accomplishments 
• Financial Highlights: Operating Proposed Budget  
• Financial Highlights: Operating Funding Sources 
• Decision Packages 

 
MAYOR HARTKE said there has been recent investment in cameras, would this be accessible into the 
real time crime center.  
 
CHIEF DEANDA said the goal is for the new cameras to be integrated into the real time crime center to 
support our officers and our community.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked about the progress on hiring for the two FTE. 
 
CHIEF DEANDA said two FTE are in the hiring process, the ask is for two additional.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said there will be two new FTE after July 1.  
 
CHIEF DEANDA confirmed.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if the technology is on backorder and asked about the operational 
timeline. 
 
CHIEF DEANDA said the technology has been ordered. The goal is to be operational shortly.  



Page 24 of 28 
 

CHIEF DEANDA continued the presentation.  
• Decision Packages 

 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS asked if there are three Solari counselors.  
 
CHIEF DEANDA said there is one counselor working 20 hours a week.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS asked if there is anyone taking calls.  
 
CHIEF DEANDA said they assist personnel with triaging 911 calls.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS thought there were three counselors. 
 
CHIEF DEANDA said there is one counselor embedded in the department. There has been multiple 
Solari employees over time working in the department, one at a time.   
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS asked if this is a part time employee.  
 
CHIEF DEANDA said this is a part time employee that works 20 hours per week.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS asked if this is one-time funding. 
 
CHIEF DEANDA said yes.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS asked if there was enough support for the demand.  
 
MR. WRIGHT requested clarification from staff.  
 
CHIEF DEANDA explained that this employee helps triage incoming 911 calls and helps train all 
communications staff to ensure our staff has the knowledge on these calls when the counselor is not 
there. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS asked if the goal to phase out the Solari employee after training 
communication staff.  
 
CHIEF DEANDA said the goal is to phase the program. There are many vacancies in our 
communications center. The need will be assessed on a yearly basis.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS mentioned looking for a mental health services background when hiring new 
employees.  
 
CHIEF DEANDA said our communications division will continue Solari training.  
 



Page 25 of 28 
 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if the intention was to relieve dispatchers from calls for mental 
health services.  
 
CHIEF DEANDA said this is occurring. The partnership with Solari allows staff to hand off calls to a 
Solari counselor. Solari takes these calls away from our communications center, we can also respond 
appropriately with a crisis response team or other resources.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if calls are transferred if the Solari counselor is not there.  
 
CHIEF DEANDA said the Solari counselor is embedded in the division, but staff can also transfer calls 
at any time. The Solari liaison helps triage and transfer calls.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked for more discussion on this.  
 
MAYOR HARTKE said this pilot program was to build the relationship with Solari to build mental health 
resources within the communication staff to work collaboratively as well as the embedded employee.  
 
CHIEF DEANDA said the department wants to be able to partner with mental health services to better 
serve our community.  
 
DAVID RAMER, Assistant Police Chief, continued the presentation.  

• Decision Packages 
 
MAYOR HARTKE commented that the savings from LED light conversions should not be the language 
used to communicate about these FTE.  
 
MR. WRIGHT said the messaging is about the general plan funds.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS asked about the embedded clinician contract services.  
 
CHIEF RAMER said the department is working with a company that may have many clinicians.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS asked if this is a continuation of the mental health services in the department.  
 
CHIEF RAMER said this is specifically to identify a clinician that supports personnel.  
 
CHIEF RAMER continued the presentation.  

• Decision Packages 
• Decision Packages 

 
MAYOR HARTKE asked how many over hires are there.  
 
CHIEF RAMER said there are ten ARPA funded and 15 over hires in the current year.  
 



Page 26 of 28 
 

MAYOR HARTKE asked if we are short any of the authorized amount. 
 
CHIEF RAMER said we are short of the authorized amount considering vacancies. The total count is 
363 officers. 
 
CHIEF RAMER continued the presentation.  

• Decision Packages 
 
MAYOR HARTKE asked about the outcome of the School Education Engagement Program.  
 
CHIEF RAMER said the department is happy with the results. This is an engagement opportunity with 
this generation to teach safety skills.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS asked if School Education officers are available to present at other community 
events.  
 
CHIEF RAMER said that can be arranged.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS said this is an opportunity engage the community at conferences and events.  
 
CHIEF RAMER said we love to engage the community.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if it is easier to hire officers now that the program has kicked off.  
 
CHIEF RAMER said it depends on the officers; it is easy to do an internal transfer.  
 
JASON SIECZKOWSKI, Acting Assistant Police Chief, continued the presentation.  

• Decision Packages 
• 2025-2034 CIP – Police  

 
COUNCILMEMBER STEWART asked if there is potential to combine with other municipalities to work 
on the Forensic Services Facility.  
 
MR. WRIGHT said staff is actively discussing partnerships with other municipalities.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER STEWART said this is a great opportunity.  
 
MR. WRIGHT said it is in discussion. 
 
VICE MAYOR HARRIS requested more information on the business plan for this facility.  
 
MR. WRIGHT said they are working on design now, with construction to follow later.  
 
VICE MAYOR HARRIS said it is not uncommon to share facilities like this.  



Page 27 of 28 
 

CHIEF SIECZKOWSKI continued the presentation.  
• 2025-2034 CIP – Police  
• 2025-2034 CIP – Police  

 
5.  Wrap-up 
 
MR. DUNBAR presented the following presentation. 

• Final Comments 
• Thank you! 

 
MR. WRIGHT thanked Mayor and Council. The effort to put together the budget is a huge undertaking, 
and thanked budget staff for this work.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER STEWART commented that the city continually invests better services and better 
value for our neighbors.  
 
VICE MAYOR HARRIS noted that this budget is very fiscally sound and represents the people of 
Chandler.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS said our work done daily serves our residents, and it is important to be able 
to share budget information.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ENCINAS said this is one of the most important duties of a councilmember with our 
commitment to our residents.  
 
MAYOR HARTKE thanked staff for their work on the budget presentation. Mayor Hartke thanked 
Council for their diligence to create a great budget that represents our city.  
 

Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 3:12 p.m. 
 
 
 
ATTEST:  _______________________  ______________________________ 
                       City Clerk                                                   Mayor 
 
 
Approval Date of Minutes:  June 13, 2024 
 
 
  



Page 28 of 28 
 

 

Certification 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Special 
Meeting of the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, held on the 26th day of April 2024.  I further 
certify that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 
 
DATED this _______ day of June, 2024. 
 
      __________________________ 
                                                                    City Clerk 



Meeting Minutes 
City Council Special Meeting 

 

May 20, 2024 | 4:00 p.m. 
Council Chambers Conference Room 
88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ 
 
 

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Kevin Hartke at 4:00 p.m. 
 

Roll Call 
Council Attendance     Appointee Attendance 
Mayor Kevin Hartke      Joshua Wright, City Manager 
Vice Mayor OD Harris     Kelly Schwab, City Attorney  
Councilmember Angel Encinas     Dana DeLong, City Clerk 
Councilmember Christine Ellis      
Councilmember Mark Stewart     
Councilmember Matt Orlando     
Councilmember Jane Poston, attended telephonically 
 

Set an Executive Session 
1. Property--A.R.S. Section 38-431.03(A)(3) and (A)(7) - Discussion and consultation with legal 

counsel for legal advice and with designated representatives of the City in order to consider its 
position and instruct its representatives regarding negotiations for the purchase of real 
property for development. 

  
2. Contracts, Property--A.R.S. Section 38-431.03(A)(3) and (A)(7) - Discussion and consultation with 

legal counsel for legal advice and with designated representatives of the City in order to 
consider its position and instruct its representatives regarding negotiation of a development 
agreement for public housing sites and potential property acquisition. 

 

Action Agenda Motion and Vote 
Councilmember Stewart moved to hold an Executive Session Meeting immediately following the 
Special Meeting; Seconded by Vice Mayor Harris.  
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

Motion carried unanimously (7-0). 
 

Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:01 pm. 
 
 
 
ATTEST:  _______________________  ______________________________ 
                       City Clerk                                                   Mayor 
 
 
Approval Date of Minutes:  June 13, 2024 
 
 
 

Certification 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Special 
Meeting of the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, held on the 20th day of May 2024.  I further 
certify that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 
 
DATED this _______ day of June, 2024. 
 
      __________________________ 
                                                                    City Clerk 



Meeting Minutes 
City Council Study Session 

 

May 20, 2024 | 6:00 p.m. 
Chandler City Council Chambers  
88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ 
 
 

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Kevin Hartke at 6:00 p.m. 
 

Roll Call 
Council Attendance     Appointee Attendance 
Mayor Kevin Hartke      Joshua Wright, City Manager 
Vice Mayor OD Harris     Kelly Schwab, City Attorney  
Councilmember Angel Encinas     Dana DeLong, City Clerk 
Councilmember Christine Ellis      
Councilmember Mark Stewart     
Councilmember Matt Orlando     
Councilmember Jane Poston 
 

Scheduled Public Appearances 
MAYOR HARTKE invited Vice Mayor Harris to join him for the recognitions. 
 
1. Recognition - Science Olympiad Team - Paragon Science Academy 
MAYOR HARTKE recognized the Science Olympiad Team-Paragon Science Academy, Coach Ms. 
Colo, the students, and their mentors for placing first at the 2024 Arizona Science Olympiad State 
Championship.  
 
2. Recognition - Czaryna Lingat - Paragon Science Academy 
MAYOR HARTKE recognized Czaryna Lingat for her honorable mention in the C-SPAN Student Cam 
documentary competition.  
 
3. Recognition - We the People Academic Competition - Hamilton High School 
MAYOR HARTKE recognized Hamilton High We the People group, representing Arizona at the We 
the People Academic Competition National Finals in Leesburg, Virginia.  



Page 2 of 9 
 

Consent Agenda and Discussion 
Discussion was held on items 15 and 19. 
 
Airport 
1. Job Order Project Agreement No. AI2403.401 with DNG Construction, LLC, 
 Pursuant to Job Order Master Agreement No. JOC2403.401, for the Taxiway C 
 Lighting & Cable Replacement 
 Move City Council award Job Order Project Agreement No. AI2403.401 to DNG 
 Construction, LLC, Pursuant to Job Order Master Agreement No. JOC2403.401, for 
 the Taxiway C Lighting & Cable Replacement, in an amount not to exceed $495,479. 
 
City Clerk 
2. April 2024 City Council Minutes  

Move to approve the Council meeting minutes of the Work Session of April 19, 2024, Study 
Session of April 19, 2024, the Special Meeting - Micro Retreat of April 21, 2024, the Special 
Meeting of April 22, 2024, and the Regular Meeting of April 22, 2024. 
 

3. Board and Commission Member Appointments 
 Move City Council approve the Board and Commission appointments as recommended. 

    
City Manager 
4. Resolution No. 5806 Authorizing the Execution of an Intergovernmental 
 Agreement for the Platinum Program between the Regional Public 
 Transportation Authority (RPTA) and the City of Chandler 
 Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5806 authorizing the execution of an 
 Intergovernmental Agreement for the Platinum Program between the Regional Public 
 Transportation Authority and the City of Chandler. 
 
Development Services  
5. Resolution No. 5805 Amending Section 23 Area Plan, Introduction and Tentative 
 Adoption of Ordinance No. 5099, Rezoning, Preliminary Development Plan, and 
 Preliminary Plat, PLH24-0012/PLH23-0056/PLT23-0022 Viviendo, Located at the Southeast 
 Corner of Ocotillo and McQueen Roads 
 Area Plan 
 Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5805 Section 23 Area Plan amendment, 
 PLH24-0012, as recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
 Rezoning 
 Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 5099 approving PLH23-
 0056 Viviendo, Rezoning from PAD for Neighborhood Commercial and congregate care to 



Page 3 of 9 
 

 PAD for single-family residential, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning 
 and Zoning Commission. 
 
 Preliminary Development Plan  
 Move City Council approve Preliminary Development Plan PLH23-0056 Viviendo for 
 sudivision layout and housing product, subject to the conditions as recommended by 
 Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
 Preliminary Plat 
 Move City Council approve Preliminary Plat PLT23-0022 Viviendo, subject to the conditions 
 as recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission. 
     
6. Use Permit, PLH23-0067 All Copy, Allowing Office/Warehouse Uses, at the Northwest 
 Corner of Chicago Street and Beck Avenue, Generally Located ¼ Mile East and South of 56th 
 Street and Chandler Boulevard 
 Move City Council approve Use Permit PLH23-0067 All Copy, subject to the conditions 
 recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission. 
  
7. Use Permit, PLH24-0005 Gold Trust Realty, to Allow Operation of a Real Estate 
 Office in a Single-family Residential Home at 200 S. Dobson Road, Generally 
 Located North of the Northwest Corner of Dobson and Frye Roads 
 Move City Council approve Use Permit PLH24-0005, subject to the conditions 
 recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission. 
  
Management Services 
8. Agreement No. MS1-926-4312, Amendment No. 3, for Emergency Environmental Response 
 and Remediation Services 
  Move City Council approve Agreement No. MS1-926-4312, Amendment No. 3, with 
 Emergency Environmental Services; GrayMar Environmental Services, Inc.; and Kary 
 Environmental Services, for emergency environmental response and remediation services, 
 in a combined amount not to exceed $150,000, for the period of one year, beginning July 1, 
 2024, through June 30, 2025.  
  
9. Purchase of Janitorial and Sanitation Supplies 
 Move City Council approve the purchase of janitorial and sanitation supplies, from Waxie 
 Sanitary Supply, utilizing the City of Tucson Contract No. 202329-01, in an amount not to 
 exceed $250,000, for the period of June 1, 2024, through May 31, 2025.  
  
10. Agreement No. WH3-890-4597, Amendment No. 1, for Waterworks Supplies 
 Move City Council approve Agreement No. WH3-890-4597, Amendment No. 1, with Core 
 and Main, LP, and Ferguson Enterprises, LLC, for waterworks supplies, in an amount not to 
 exceed $650,000, for the period of June 1, 2024, through May 31, 2025.  



Page 4 of 9 
 

  
11. New License Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License Application for David Adam Tipp, Agent, 
 Divit, Inc., DBA Beauty Lounge Bar 
 Move for recommendation to the State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for 
 approval of the State Liquor Job No. 288925, a Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License, for 
 David Adam Tipp, Agent, Divit, Inc., DBA Beauty Lounge Bar, located at 1655 W. Chandler 
 Boulevard, Suite 1, and approval of the City of Chandler, Series 12, Restaurant Liquor 
 License No. 200781. 
   
Police Department 
12. Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 5096, Repealing and Replacing Section 11-16 of Chapter 
 11 of the Code of the City of Chandler in its Entirety and Retitling as "Unruly Gathering" 
 Move City Council adopt Ordinance No. 5096, amending the Code of the City of Chandler, 
 Chapter 11, Curfew, Graffiti, Smoking and Miscellaneous Offenses, by repealing and 
 replacing Section 11-16 in its entirety; retitling Section 11-16 as "Unruly Gathering"; 
 providing for repeal of conflicting ordinances; providing for severability, and providing for 
 penalities.  
  
13. Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 5097, Amending Chapter 11 of the Code of the City of 
 Chandler by Adding Section 11-18 "Brass Knuckles" 
  Move City Council adopt Ordinance No. 5097, amending the Code of the City of Chandler, 
 Chapter 11, Curfew, Graffiti, Smoking and Miscellaneous Offenses, by adding Section 11-18 
 "Brass Knuckles"; providing for repeal of conflicting ordinances; providing for severability, 
 and providing for penalties. 
  
14. Resolution No. 5808 Accepting a Grant from the Fentanyl Prosecution, Diversion and 
 Testing Funding Program in the Amount of $152,527.49 
 Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5808 accepting a grant award from the 
 State of Arizona Department of Public Safety Fentanyl Prosecution, Diversion and Testing 
 Funding Program in the amount of $152,527.49 and authorizing the Chief of Police, as 
 designated by the City Manager, to conduct all negotiations and to execute and submit all 
 documents necessary in connection with such program. 
 
Public Works and Utilities  
15. Introduction of Ordinance No. 5098 Granting a Non-Exclusive Underground High 
 Voltage Power Easement to Salt River Project Agricultural Improvement and 
 Power District (SRP) to Accommodate the Installation of Electric Vehicle 
 Charging Stations on the Amazon Site at 3405 S. McQueen Road, Chandler, Arizona 
 Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 5098 granting a Non-
 Exclusive Underground High Voltage Power Easement to SRP, in consideration for the 
 payment of $18,500.00 to accommodate the installation of electric vehicle charging stations 
 on the Amazon site at 3405 S. McQueen Road, Chandler, Arizona. 



Page 5 of 9 
 

 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO expressed concerns about the traffic delays and truck rerouting 
outside the neighborhood.  
 
JOHN KNUDSON, Public Works and Utilities Director, explained that the easement related to the 
SRP work is necessary to bring additional power onto the Amazon property. SRP has a contract 
with Amazon to install additional cabling into the facility to power up more car charging or truck 
charging stations. The conduit is already in the ground, so the hard part is done. SRP will come in 
and run cabling through these conduits, which is minimally invasive and will not require any road 
closures. There will be a few necessary excavations, including one near Queen Creek Road to tie 
the cabling into the existing cabinets, and potentially some small excavations at right-angle 
corners. However, this will not affect major traffic routes. The work is expected to be completed 
by October 4 and will take place between July and October. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO commented that there had been issues with going into the 
neighborhoods and wants to ensure that everything is good.  
    
16. Professional Services Agreement No. ST2403.101, with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., for 
 the McQueen Road Improvements (Warner Road to Pecos Road) Pre-Design Services 
 Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. ST2403.101, to Kimley-Horn 
 and Associates, Inc., for the McQueen Road Improvements (Warner 
 Road to Pecos Road) Pre-Design Services, in an amount not to exceed $328,565. 
  
17. Construction Agreement No. WA1903.401 & WA1908.401, Change Order No. 6, with Achen-
 Gardner Construction, LLC, for the Arrowhead Water Production Facility Rehabilitation and 
 Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant Surge System 
 Move City Council award Construction Agreement No. WA1903.401 & WA1908.401, Change 
 Order No.6, to Achen-Gardner Construction, LLC, in the amount of $353,512.43. 
  
18. Professional Services Agreement No. WW2302.451, with Dibble & Associates 
 Consulting Engineers, Inc., dba Dibble, for the Price Road 66-inch Sewer 
 Interceptor Rehabilitation Construction Management Services 
 Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. WW2302.451 to Dibble & 
 Associates Consulting Engineers, Inc., dba Dibble, for the Price Road 66-inch Sewer 
 Interceptor Rehabilitation Construction Management Services, in an amount not to exceed 
 $1,526,019.50. 
  
19. Construction Manager at Risk Construction Services Agreement No. WW2302.401, with B&F 
 Contracting, Inc., for the Price Road 66-Inch Sewer Interceptor Rehabilitation 
 Move City Council award CMAR Construction Services Agreement No. WW2302.401 to B&F 
 Contracting, Inc., for the Price Road 66-Inch Sewer Interceptor Rehabilitation, in an amount 
 not to exceed $43,696,207.25. 



Page 6 of 9 
 

 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO inquired about the construction on item 19, asking if it did not 
involve the construction of a small side road.  
 
MR. KNUDSON mentioned that the upcoming project is going to be difficult. The work involves 
installing a liner in the largest pipe in the Price Road Corridor, which runs from 202 South to Queen 
Creek Road. This 66-inch wastewater line carries up to 15 million gallons daily, about half of the 
city's wastewater. The pipe was installed in the late 1980s and it is time for maintenance. The 
project is scheduled for 2027 but needs to be completed before the wastewater facility lease 
expires. Once the lease expires, some flows can be diverted to another facility, reducing the need 
for bypass pumping. The staff engineers have worked closely with consultants and contractors to 
plan the least disruptive way to complete this project. Instead of excavating and replacing the 
entire pipe, a liner will be installed inside the existing pipe. This method is far less invasive and will 
extend the life of the pipe by 50 to 100 years. The project will begin with minor excavations and 
set up in July, followed by full-scale work in August. During the project, two to three lanes out of 
the six will be occupied, moving from north to south as the work progresses to Queen Creek Road. 
The aim is to minimize the impact on traffic as much as possible. 
 
MAYOR HARTKE asked how many months this project will run.  
 
MR. KNUDSON said that the major work will begin in August and continue until October 2025. 
Cleanup activities, including repaving and striping, will follow until January. The major work should 
be completed by October 2025.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO mentioned the restricted lane moving.  
 
MR. KNUDSON said they will try to minimize the width of the restriction as the different processes 
occur.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO mentioned the communication going out to all the businesses in the 
area and how it will work.  
 
MR. KNUDSON responded that the communications consultant has already started reaching out 
to the residents and businesses in the area. Communication will continue throughout the process, 
and a website has been provided to everyone, updated daily. Additionally, there will be email 
updates as the project continues. This will be a comprehensive communication effort. 
  
COUNCILMEMBER POSTON asked for an outline of the benefits in terms of the cost of doing the 
project this way instead of putting in a brand-new pipe, including the cost to the taxpayers and 
the construction timing.  
 



Page 7 of 9 
 

MR. KNUDSON pointed out several advantages. First, the corridor is already crowded with various 
underground lines, so digging to install a new pipe could be very challenging and costly. The 
alternative method involves lining the existing pipe, which would be much more cost-effective and 
time efficient. According to the contractor, a full replacement could cost around $80-100 million, 
but it could be much more due to potential complications. Additionally, the open-cut method for 
installing a new pipe could take up to two years to complete, while the interceptor lining method 
seems to be the best option for this project, despite its challenges.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER POSTON said the result is close to a new pipe in terms of the length. 
 
MR. KNUDSON said, essentially an epoxy-lined pipe when complete.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS asked about the potential consequences of not proceeding with the 
project.  
 
MR. KNUDSON said that the task does not have to be completed by tomorrow. However, the Lone 
Butte facility will no longer be available for use after 2027. Delaying the task until after 2027 may 
increase costs for upgrading the discharge piping, underground piping, and pumping systems. 
Additionally, there has been a 20% increase in the price of the lining process and materials over 
the past year. If this trend continues, the estimated cost of $43 million will continue to rise, 
presenting a significant challenge.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS commented that the people of Chandler deserve better and need to 
move forward to provide a way to get waste out of their homes.  
 
MR. KNUDSON responded that the difficulty with this line is that it is a single line.  
 
MAYOR HARTKE asked about the project's end treatment stations.    
 
MR. KNUDSON said it heads towards the Ocotillo Water Reclamation facility on the Southeast 
corner of that location at Queen Creek and Price Road. This is where the pipe ends and enters the 
treatment process at that location.  
 

Public Hearing  
20. Public Hearing for Annexation ANX23-0003 of Approximately 13.57 Acres of 
 Land South of the Southeast Corner of Arizona Avenue and Germann Road 

1. Open Public Hearing 
2. Staff Presentation 
3. Council Discussion 
4. Discussion from the Audience 
5. Close Public Hearing 



Page 8 of 9 
 

 

Public Hearing and Action Item  
21. Public Hearing for Resolution No. 5804 Approving the Fiscal Year 2024-2025    
 Annual Assessment for the City of Chandler, Arizona, Downtown Chandler Enhanced 
 Municipal Services District 
 
 1. Open Public Hearing 
 2. Staff Presentation 
 3. Council Discussion 
 4. Discussion from the Audience 
 5. Close Public Hearing 
  
22.  Resolution No. 5804 Approving the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Annual Assessment for the City 
 of Chandler, Arizona, Downtown Chandler Enhanced Municipal Services District 
 Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5804 approving the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 
 Annual Assessment for City of Chandler, Arizona, Downtown Chandler Enhanced Municipal 
 Services District. 
 

Action Agenda 
23. Resolution No. 5800, Adopting the Fiscal Year (FY) 2024-25 Tentative Budget and 
 2025-2034 Tentative Capital Improvement Program (CIP) and Giving Notice of the 
 Dates and Times for Hearing Taxpayers for Final Adoption of the Budget and for Setting the 
 Tax Levies and Tax Rates 
 Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5800, adopting the FY 2024-25 Tentative 
 Budget and 2025-2034 Tentative CIP and giving notice of the dates and times for hearing 
 taxpayers for final adoption of the budget and for setting the tax levies and tax rates. 
 

Informational 
24. Contracts and Agreements Administratively Approved, Month of April 2024 
 

Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:22 p.m. 
 
 
ATTEST:  _______________________  ______________________________ 
                       City Clerk                                                   Mayor 
 
 
Approval Date of Minutes:  June 13, 2024 
 



Page 9 of 9 
 

 
 

Certification 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Study 
Session of the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, held on the 20th day of May 2024.  I further certify 
that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 
 
DATED this _______ day of June, 2024. 
 
      __________________________ 
                                                                    City Clerk 
 



Meeting Minutes 
City Council Work Session 

 

May 23, 2024 | 4:00 p.m. 
Council Chambers Conference Room 
88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ 
 
 

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Kevin Hartke at 4:00 p.m. 
 

Roll Call 
Council Attendance     Appointee Attendance 
Mayor Kevin Hartke      Joshua Wright, City Manager 
Vice Mayor OD Harris     Kelly Schwab, City Attorney  
Councilmember Angel Encinas     Dana DeLong, City Clerk 
Councilmember Christine Ellis       
Councilmember Matt Orlando     
Councilmember Jane Poston, attended telephonically 
 
Absent/Excused 
Councilmember Stewart  
 
Staff in Attendance  
Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager / Chief Financial Officer  
Andy Bass, Deputy City Manager  
John Knudson, Public Works and Utilities Director  
Dana Alvidrez, City Transportation Engineer 
Daniel Haskins, Capital Projects Manager  
Toni Smith, Marketing and Communications Manager 
Ryan Peters, Strategic Initiatives Director  
Dennis Aust, Telecommunications and Utilities Franchise Manager  
Melanie Sikes, Principal Engineer 
Alexis Apodaca, Mayor & Council Public Affairs Senior Manager 
Matt Burdick, Communications & Public Affairs Director 
  



Page 2 of 11 
 

Discussion 
1. Coordination and Communication of Road Construction Projects in Chandler 

 
MAYOR HARTKE called for a staff presentation.  
 
JOSHUA WRIGHT, City Manager, introduced the item and discussed the challenges of construction 
and traffic in Chandler. He highlighted the aging infrastructure, the impact of private development, 
and increased construction activity due to federal funding. The presentation aims to update the 
Council on current management strategies and offer recommendations for improvement. 
 
JOHN KNUDSON, Public Works and Utilities Director, presented the following presentation.  
• Coordination and Communication for Road Construction Projects in Chandler 
 
MAYOR HARTKE asked for a comparative timeline, such as one year ago or five years ago, to 
illustrate what this would have been. 
 
MR. KNUDSON said the 700 - 900 range and was surprised by the significant involvement of SRP 
and PS in replacing old wires and restringing wires in older neighborhoods.  
 
DENNIS AUST, Telecommunications and Utilities Franchise Manager, said that while the number 
of permits has not increased much, the size of projects have. There are now larger infrastructure 
projects impacting larger parts of the neighborhoods, such as the two 30 kV lines, the nitrogen 
line running down to Chandler Boulevard, and the fiber installations for homes. So, although the 
total number of projects remains similar, they now consist of smaller projects than in the past. 
 
MAYOR HARTKE noted it was a bigger impact with roughly the same number. 
 
MR. KNUDSON continued the presentation.  
• Agenda 

o Current construction control and coordination  
o Current communication initiatives for road construction projects 
o Current and near future projects that affect Chandler streets 
o Common questions received 
o Staff recommendations 

• Why does the City Complete Projects within the Roadways? 
o Infrastructure maintenance and improvement: keep systems safe and functional for 

residents. Maintenance prolongs life of assets and create less cost over the life of the 
asset, which keeps costs lower for residents.  

o Enhanced mobility and accessibility: improve utility, communications, and 
transportation network for residents.  

o Safety improvements: Traffic signals, street lighting, crosswalks. 



Page 3 of 11 
 

o Community revitalization: Revitalize neighborhoods and commercial districts(e.g. 
Galveston Neighborhood). 

• Current Construction Control Policies and Coordination 
• City Policies 

o Holiday Moratorium: No work surrounding major retailers from the week before 
Thanksgiving until after New Years Day.  

o Financial penalties for street cuts on roads paved within six years.  
o Required Right-of-Way Encroachment Permits: Allows and documents all work in the 

city’s ROW, including detour routes.  
o Avoid city CIP road projects on adjacent arterial roads (does not include utility and other 

projects).  
o Police officers at major intersections during construction.  

 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS asked if officers were required to stay in the car or if just the police car 
presence was needed. 
 
MR. KNUDSON said the policy requires an officer and a car to manage traffic signals, direct traffic 
if needed, and handle accidents. Staffing has been an issue due to the extra police overtime during 
COVID. 
 
VICE MAYOR HARRIS asked how the city deals with potholes and the associated risks, especially 
with ongoing construction projects and heavy trucks causing road damage. He also inquired about 
the possibility of reimbursement for such issues. 
 
MR. KNUDSON mentioned that the streets department has a small group that includes a first 
responder who looks for potholes. When potholes are reported, the first responder or the asphalt 
crew swiftly takes care of them. If a vehicle is damaged due to a pothole, there is a claims process 
through the legal department. Each claim is handled on its own merit, and while such claims are 
received occasionally, they are not very frequent. 
 
KELLY SCHWAB, City Attorney, stated that claims for that kind of damage are rare. They usually 
occur in relation to active construction projects and are directed to the responsible contractor or 
utility entity. Random potholes are reported only occasionally, every few years. 
 
VICE MAYOR HARRIS inquired about the nails and debris on the road. 
 
MS. SCHWAB stated that each claim for road incidents is evaluated independently. Sometimes, 
drivers are responsible, or other entities may be at fault. It is difficult to prove where a nail was 
picked up. If the city is negligent, it takes responsibility, but it also considers other negligent 
parties. 
 



Page 4 of 11 
 

MR. KNUDSON mentioned the city's rigorous street sweeping program, which includes twice-
monthly sweeps of main roads and monthly sweeps of residential areas. Despite the challenges, 
the city is committed to maintaining cleanliness through its street sweeping program. 
 
MR. KNUDSON continued the presentation.  
• Current Construction Control Policies and Coordination Efforts  
• City CIO Project Process 

o Typical CIP Projects take multiple years from scratch to finish 
o Contractor required to have all material procured before receiving their notice to 

proceed from the city 
o Coordination with other agencies, developers, and contractors 
o City team holds resolution meetings with all affected stakeholders 
o Night and weekend work considered whenever practical  
o Milestones built into contracts to control work sequence and timing of lane/road 

closures 
• Current Construction Control Policies and Coordination Efforts  
• City Communication and Coordination  

o City contractor performs public outreach and business liaison for city projects. 
o Communication starts during design phase until end of construction (multi-year 

process) 
• Design Phase: 

o Prepares and distributes mailers to residents, stakeholders, and business in the area 
notifying them of the project and upcoming public meetings.  

o Prepares, facilitates, and captures feedback at two public meetings held at 30% and 90% 
design milestones.  

o Creates and maintains project webpage.  
• Construction Phase:  

o Mailers are sent to residents, stakeholders, and businesses in the area notifying them 
of the upcoming project construction.  

o Project webpage updated (continuously, approximately every three weeks). 
o E-blast begins (project updates emailed to individuals, stake holders, city staff, etc., sent 

out approximately every three weeks). 
o Variable message boards and static project information boards are posted at the extent 

of the project. Variable message boards are routinely updated.  
o Project hotline for phone calls 

 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS inquired whether local firms are hired or if regional firms are considered. 
 
MR. KNUDSON responded that the intent is to hire locally. Chandler has two or three firms that 
the city frequently collaborates with. 
 



Page 5 of 11 
 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked whether these funds were intended solely for city projects or 
for the CIP transition as well.  
 
MR. KNUDSON responded that it is regarding CIP. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER ENCINAS inquired about the timing of initial communication from these firms. 
 
MR. KNUDSON responded that it is project-dependent, depending on the size, impact, location, 
and other factors.  
 
MAYOR HARTKE asked if the city engages with community-specific platforms like Nextdoor for 
construction updates.  
 
MR. KNUDSON mentioned that the city does not use a lot of social media for construction updates, 
but it has been recommended. 
 
MATT BURDICK, Communications & Public Affairs Director, mentioned that the use of social media 
platforms depends on the specific project. The city does use social media for some of their larger 
projects, with Nextdoor being one platform they commonly use. 
 
MR. KNUDSON continued the presentation.  
• Current Construction Control Policies and Coordination Efforts  
• City Communication and Coordination:  

o Traffic restrictions project map on chandleraz.gov 
o Streets division sends weekly schedule info news blasts  
o Traffic management center coordinates traffic signal timing, including real-time 

adjustments 
o Major arterials/federal projects get “no conflict letter” from utility companies  
o Designer and developer/utility companies review and sign each other plans to verify 

coordination  
o WAZE traffic app 

• City’s Current and Near Future Projects  
• Current Projects Under Construction  
 
MR. KNUDSON discussed the handout listing current and upcoming capital improvement projects.  
 
VICE MAYOR HARRIS asked if the handout was posted online. 
 
MR. KNUDSON responded that there was more information to share.  
 
MR. KNUDSON continued the presentation.  
• Street Rehabilitation Projects Map  



Page 6 of 11 
 

• Current CIP Construction Projects Map  
• Future CIP Construction Projects Map  
• Outside Agencies/Private Development Projects  
• Non-City Projects Map  
• Coordination Of Non-City Projects  

o Federal pre-emption prohibits the city from preventing non-city utility work. 
o Development Services Policy (DSP-201) “Public Notification for Non-City Utility Projects” 

requires notification to residents, businesses, and HOAs a minimum of 7 days’ notice 
within 300 feet of non-city utility construction.  

o Coordination with other agencies, developers, and contractors.  
o City team holds resolution meetings with all affected stakeholders.  
o CIP hosts monthly Transportation Coordination meetings with City staff  
o Traffic control plans are reviewed and monitored by City Traffic Engineering Specialists 

to ensure that approved traffic control plans are implemented and maintained correctly.  
o Overlapping Traffic Control Plans are not permitted.  
o Traffic Management Center coordinates traffic signal timing making real-time 

adjustments, as needed.  
• Traffic data Related to Road Construction Projects  
• Chandler Traffic Engineering Data  

o Sensors on stoplights report time it takes to travel between arterial intersection  
o Data provided gives the ability to calculate average speed of drivers  
o Identification gives the ability to calculate average speed of drivers 
o Identification of problem areas and allows historical data to be compared  
o According to the data, 2% of arterials have seen significant decreases in traffic speed 

43% experience non-noticeable decreases in speed and 55% saw increase in speed 
o Neak known construction locations (e.g., Price frontage road, previously at 

Dobson/Chandler), traffic speeds were much slower  
o Vast majority of residents are experiencing similar commute times to last year.  

 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO inquired if the data was a snapshot of morning peak hours or a total 
period. 
 
DANA ALVIDREZ, City Transportation Engineer, said the data is a snapshot of morning peak hours.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked what time the data was collected.  
 
MS. ALVIDREZ responded between 7:00 a.m. and 9:00 a.m., occurring from 7:00 a.m. to 8:00 a.m. 
on a weekday.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO inquired if there was any data from the afternoon or evening.  
 



Page 7 of 11 
 

MS. ALVIDREZ responded that traffic data is actively monitored in the traffic control center. This is 
a snapshot to illustrate what can be seen and what is being examined. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked what other solutions can be pursued to control high traffic 
areas.  
 
MS. ALVIDREZ explained that the traffic division can communicate with traffic signals to identify 
areas with issues.  
 
MAYOR HARTKE inquired about what the colors indicate on the data. 
 
MR. KNUDSON mentioned that the gray data is unavailable, and the yellow data is 0 to 25% slower.  
 
MR. KNUDSON continued the presentation.  
• Commonly Asked Questions 
• Why do traffic control barricades remain up during non-working periods?  

o Safer conditions – provides consistency in driver expectations  
o Barricades in place for possible night work  
o Excavations or other hazards that can’t be removed or covered  
o Efficiency in construction – fewer hours spent setting barricades means more time spent 

working  
o Removal and resetting barricades daily would increase time for the project by up to 35% 
o Overall cost of projects would increase due to extended time, plus increased cost of 

traffic control  
o Barricade companies not available for this type of service  
o Only barricade companies with IMSA/ATSSA certification and insurance can perform 

work in right of way  
o Typically, non-city utility contractors are required to remove traffic control  

 
COUNCILMEMBER POSTON asked if the city could control the situation where barricades dictate 
traffic. 
 
MR. KNUDSON responded that it would be discussed shortly.  
 
MR. KNUDSON continued the presentation.  
• Why don’t we do more construction work at night?  
• Night and weekend work is allowed and sometimes mandated on some projects  
• City’s noise ordinance prohibits construction work after hours within 500 feet of residences 

(weekdays 5 a.m. – 10 p.m., weekends 7 a.m. – 7 p.m. with some permitted exceptions) 
• Reduced access to material and project supervision for the contractor and city staff  
• Work efficiency can drop to 10-20%, lengthening the project schedule therefore increasing 

project cost 



Page 8 of 11 
 

• Worker safety issues 
• If day and night work were required, the schedule may decrease, but the project cost would 

likely increase significantly (up to 40% increase likely) 
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO inquired about Price Road, asking if the construction is limited to 
daytime or if it can also operate at night. 
 
MELANIE SIKES, Principal Engineer, explained that despite using lights, visibility at night is 
challenging due to the depth of the excavation and the existing utilities. This was evident during 
previous work on Dobson and Chandler with two crews. 
 
MR. KNUDSON mentioned that pushing the liners when pulled is important to ensure safety. 
 
MS. SIKES responded that similar to the work done on the 42-inch Northbound Price Road, the 
operations run all day.  
 
MS. SIKES added that there would be some day, night, and weekend work.  
 
MR. KNUDSON pointed out that many contractors are unprepared for 24/7 work. Adjusting 
contracts and budgets can help, but there are challenges like safety and staffing issues. Projects 
have experienced situations where entire crews left or there were not enough workers to finish 
the job, especially with the current high workload. 
 
MR. KNUDSON continued the presentation.  
• Recommendations 
• New Communication Procedures for Non-City Projects T 

o One-stop destination page on city website for construction projects that restrict or close 
city streets in Chandler (in progress)  

o Leverage city communication channels to promote awareness of projects and significant 
construction activities  

o Select firm to serve as a neighborhood and business liaison during Loop 202 
construction to supplement ADOT’s outreach efforts (potentially other non-city projects 
also)  

• New Notification Procedures for ADA/Street Maintenance Work  
o Notification to HOAs affected by the ADA/street work (via mail/email) 
o Notification to “ALL” property owners affected by the work (not just driveway impacted 

residents) via additional door hangers and/or emails (currently 5-7 days). 
o Include notification to residents of upcoming schedule (ADA in Year 1, mill and overlay 

in Year 2). 
o General project signs will be set approximately 30 days prior to work, notifying residents 

in general vicinity of the upcoming work and shall remain until work is complete. 
 



Page 9 of 11 
 

VICE MAYOR HARRIS inquired whether the city's coordination with the WAZE app includes 
updating information about construction projects. If barricades are put up without the city's 
knowledge, the WAZE app may not reflect this change, potentially causing confusion for drivers. 
 
MR. KNUDSON explained that the standard procedure involves obtaining encroachment and 
traffic control permits, logging the information into a database, and then transferring it to waste 
management. If someone sets up barricades on the road without following the proper process, 
the barricades will not show up. However, if they go through the correct process and the 
information is added to the city's database, it will appear on the WAZE app.  
 
VICE MAYOR HARRIS stated that if an individual travels down a road and uses the WAZE app and 
sees barricades that are not showing up on WAZE, it means that the construction company is 
doing something they are not supposed to. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER ENCINAS inquired about making information on current construction projects 
available to residents. He suggested using QR codes to provide easy access to project details for 
residents who are driving by. This would allow them to access project information directly from 
their vehicles, making it a more proactive and useful approach to engaging residents. 
 
MR. KNUDSON suggested adding a QR code to the construction sign; speaking for traffic 
engineers, the desire is to avoid drive-by pictures to scan the QR code for safety reasons. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS asked about the last bullet point in the first section. She inquired whether 
a new firm will be hired and if the cost will be shared between ADOT and the city, or if the city will 
absorb the entire cost. 
 
MR. BURDICK mentioned the city will cover the costs and supplement ADOT's efforts for a 
significant project impacting ramps and freeway-to-freeway energy closures. The city plans to use 
the same firm they use for CIP projects to inform residents, property management companies, 
retail centers, and businesses about the upcoming changes. 
 
MAYOR HARTKE mentioned that when working on the two 30 kV lines, there were communication 
issues with a power company, leading to blame being placed on the city. To address frustrations 
and phone calls directed at them, they aim to mitigate complaints and improve partnerships with 
these companies. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO mentioned that despite some communication issues, the residents 
were happy with the quality of work and professionalism of the staff involved in the ADA project.  
 
VICE MAYOR HARRIS asked for regular debris to keep constituents and partners informed as the 
plans progress. More communication will help advance the conversation and prevent 
misunderstandings. 



Page 10 of 11 
 

 
MR. WRIGHT assured that communications plan's full scope and timeline regarding the upcoming 
ADOT work will be shared. Staff will provide talking points and updates to ensure Councilmembers 
are prepared for incoming calls. 
 
MR. KNUDSON continued the presentation.  
• Recommendations  
• Lane Rental Fees – Incentives and Disincentives 
• Options  

o Charge per lane per day. Collect fee up front.  
o Charge per lane per day. Collect deposit up front and provide rebate if completed early.  
o Create penalty fees for projects not completed on time.  
o Can do one or all of the options  

• Other agencies have lane rental fees that range from $75 to $200 per day.  
• City inspectors enforce each day and a charge for a Traffic Control Inspection Fee is applied. 
• Questions 
 
VICE MAYOR HARRIS inquired about integrating information into the Chandler city app. 
 
MR. KNUDSON mentioned that it may be included in the Chandler PublicStuff app, which has 
various sections, including one for reporting potholes. 
 
MAYOR HARTKE mentioned that business owners often express frustration when construction 
obstructs entrances and exits. Efforts have been made to minimize disruption, such as removing 
barriers over weekends. It is important to be sensitive to businesses affected by construction. 
 
MR. KNUDSON suggested making road project entrances more accessible during weekends and 
off-work times by adjusting barricades to give the appearance of openness. This could reduce 
driver anxiety and provide a sense of freedom. Construction provides extra signage to direct traffic 
to businesses and he suggested developing a general statement encouraging businesses to open 
entrances during non-work hours. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS asked whether businesses could also put up signs. If there's construction, 
would the upcoming policy allow businesses to put up their own signs to help direct traffic. 
 
MS. SCHWAB said the city needs to address that.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER POSTON suggested that when the city does construction at an intersection that 
has a major impact on all four corners, the consideration should be to add extra shifts or work 
overnight to minimize disruption. 
 



Page 11 of 11 
 

MR. KNUDSON mentioned that future projects will be challenging and time-consuming, with a 
particularly difficult one coming up at Ray and Dobson in about eight years. Some work must be 
done at night, but it must comply with the noise ordinance. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO inquired about the status of the Alma School Road project that was 
already scoped and awarded near Alma School and Loop 202. He expressed curiosity about 
finding a way to motivate the timely installation of barriers in that area, which he believes would 
be beneficial.  
 
DANIEL HASKINS, Capital Projects Manager, responded that he is trying to get permission to use 
CMAR with federally funded projects, but it is a whole new process. There is no guarantee, so he 
did not want to promise that. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO thanked the staff for their great ideas and acknowledged their 
challenges. He expressed appreciation for their efforts in improving the situation. 
 

Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:29 p.m. 
 
 
 
ATTEST:  _______________________  ______________________________ 
                       City Clerk                                                   Mayor 
 
 
Approval Date of Minutes:  June 13, 2024 
 
 

Certification 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Work 
Session of the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, held on the 23rd day of May 2024.  I further certify 
that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 
 
DATED this _______ day of June, 2024. 
 
      __________________________ 
                                                                    City Clerk 



Meeting Minutes 
City Council Regular Meeting 

 

May 23, 2024 | 6:00 p.m. 
Chandler City Council Chambers  
88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ 
 
 

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Kevin Hartke at 6:00 p.m. 
 

Roll Call 
Council Attendance     Appointee Attendance 
Mayor Kevin Hartke      Joshua Wright, City Manager 
Vice Mayor OD Harris     Kelly Schwab, City Attorney  
Councilmember Angel Encinas     Dana DeLong, City Clerk 
Councilmember Christine Ellis      
*Councilmember Mark Stewart     
Councilmember Matt Orlando     
*Councilmember Jane Poston 
 
*Councilmember Stewart and Councilmember Poston attended telephonically.  
  

Invocation 
The invocation was given by Susan Stevens-Clarke, Spiritual Assembly of Baha’is of Chandler.  
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Councilmember Ellis.  
 

Consent Agenda and Discussion 
Airport 
1. Job Order Project Agreement No. AI2403.401 with DNG Construction, LLC, 
 Pursuant to Job Order Master Agreement No. JOC2403.401, for the Taxiway C 
 Lighting & Cable Replacement 
 Move City Council award Job Order Project Agreement No. AI2403.401 to DNG 



Page 2 of 16 
 
 

 

 Construction, LLC, Pursuant to Job Order Master Agreement No. JOC2403.401, for 
 the Taxiway C Lighting & Cable Replacement, in an amount not to exceed $495,479. 
 
City Clerk 
2. April 2024 City Council Minutes  

Move to approve the Council meeting minutes of the Work Session of April 19, 2024, Study 
Session of April 19, 2024, the Special Meeting - Micro Retreat of April 21, 2024, the Special 
Meeting of April 22, 2024, and the Regular Meeting of April 22, 2024. 
 

3. Board and Commission Member Appointments 
 Move City Council approve the Board and Commission appointments as recommended. 

    
City Manager 
4. Resolution No. 5806 Authorizing the Execution of an Intergovernmental 
 Agreement for the Platinum Program between the Regional Public 
 Transportation Authority (RPTA) and the City of Chandler 
 Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5806 authorizing the execution of an 
 Intergovernmental Agreement for the Platinum Program between the Regional Public 
 Transportation Authority and the City of Chandler. 
 
Development Services  
5. Resolution No. 5805 Amending Section 23 Area Plan, Introduction and Tentative 
 Adoption of Ordinance No. 5099, Rezoning, Preliminary Development Plan, and 
 Preliminary Plat, PLH24-0012/PLH23-0056/PLT23-0022 Viviendo, Located at the Southeast 
 Corner of Ocotillo and McQueen Roads 
 Area Plan 
 Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5805 Section 23 Area Plan amendment, 
 PLH24-0012, as recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
 Rezoning 
 Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 5099 approving PLH23-
 0056 Viviendo, Rezoning from PAD for Neighborhood Commercial and congregate care to 
 PAD for single-family residential, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning 
 and Zoning Commission. 
 
 Preliminary Development Plan  
 Move City Council approve Preliminary Development Plan PLH23-0056 Viviendo for 
 sudivision layout and housing product, subject to the conditions as recommended by 
 Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
 Preliminary Plat 



Page 3 of 16 
 
 

 

 Move City Council approve Preliminary Plat PLT23-0022 Viviendo, subject to the conditions 
 as recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
Item No. 5 was moved to the action agenda.  
     
6. Use Permit, PLH23-0067 All Copy, Allowing Office/Warehouse Uses, at the Northwest 
 Corner of Chicago Street and Beck Avenue, Generally Located ¼ Mile East and South of 56th 
 Street and Chandler Boulevard 
 Move City Council approve Use Permit PLH23-0067 All Copy, subject to the conditions 
 recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission. 
  
7. Use Permit, PLH24-0005 Gold Trust Realty, to Allow Operation of a Real Estate 
 Office in a Single-family Residential Home at 200 S. Dobson Road, Generally 
 Located North of the Northwest Corner of Dobson and Frye Roads 
 Move City Council approve Use Permit PLH24-0005, subject to the conditions 
 recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission. 
  
Management Services 
8. Agreement No. MS1-926-4312, Amendment No. 3, for Emergency Environmental Response 
 and Remediation Services 
  Move City Council approve Agreement No. MS1-926-4312, Amendment No. 3, with 
 Emergency Environmental Services; GrayMar Environmental Services, Inc.; and Kary 
 Environmental Services, for emergency environmental response and remediation services, 
 in a combined amount not to exceed $150,000, for the period of one year, beginning July 1, 
 2024, through June 30, 2025.  
  
9. Purchase of Janitorial and Sanitation Supplies 
 Move City Council approve the purchase of janitorial and sanitation supplies, from Waxie 
 Sanitary Supply, utilizing the City of Tucson Contract No. 202329-01, in an amount not to 
 exceed $250,000, for the period of June 1, 2024, through May 31, 2025.  
  
10. Agreement No. WH3-890-4597, Amendment No. 1, for Waterworks Supplies 
 Move City Council approve Agreement No. WH3-890-4597, Amendment No. 1, with Core 
 and Main, LP, and Ferguson Enterprises, LLC, for waterworks supplies, in an amount not to 
 exceed $650,000, for the period of June 1, 2024, through May 31, 2025.  
  
11. New License Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License Application for David Adam Tipp, Agent, 
 Divit, Inc., DBA Beauty Lounge Bar 
 Move for recommendation to the State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for 
 approval of the State Liquor Job No. 288925, a Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License, for 
 David Adam Tipp, Agent, Divit, Inc., DBA Beauty Lounge Bar, located at 1655 W. Chandler 



Page 4 of 16 
 
 

 

 Boulevard, Suite 1, and approval of the City of Chandler, Series 12, Restaurant Liquor 
 License No. 200781. 
   
Police Department 
12. Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 5096, Repealing and Replacing Section 11-16 of Chapter 
 11 of the Code of the City of Chandler in its Entirety and Retitling as "Unruly Gathering" 
 Move City Council adopt Ordinance No. 5096, amending the Code of the City of Chandler, 
 Chapter 11, Curfew, Graffiti, Smoking and Miscellaneous Offenses, by repealing and 
 replacing Section 11-16 in its entirety; retitling Section 11-16 as "Unruly Gathering"; 
 providing for repeal of conflicting ordinances; providing for severability, and providing for 
 penalities.  
  
13. Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 5097, Amending Chapter 11 of the Code of the City of 
 Chandler by Adding Section 11-18 "Brass Knuckles" 
  Move City Council adopt Ordinance No. 5097, amending the Code of the City of Chandler, 
 Chapter 11, Curfew, Graffiti, Smoking and Miscellaneous Offenses, by adding Section 11-18 
 "Brass Knuckles"; providing for repeal of conflicting ordinances; providing for severability, 
 and providing for penalties. 
 
BRIDGET VEGA, Gilbert, thanked Council for their support in creating a safer community and 
promoting accountability. Ms. Vega commented that brass knuckles of all materials should be 
included in this regulation. Ms. Vega noted the importance of accountability and transparency 
moving forward.   
 
MAYOR HARTKE asked if the term brass knuckles included materials other than brass or metal.  
 
MS. SCHWAB said the ordinance covers brass knuckles and knuckles of any metal.  
 
MAYOR HARTKE noted that if amendments are needed, they can be brought forward after this 
ordinance is passed.  
 
Ms. SCHWAB agreed that amendments can be made after this ordinance has passed if there is a 
need to amend.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO commented that Chandler’s process of doing a second read of an 
ordinance is unique.  
 
MAYOR HARTKE added that doing a second read of an ordinance is being investigated as a 
possible charter amendment.  
 



Page 5 of 16 
 
 

 

CONNOR JARNAGAN, Chandler, shared his experience with an injury from brass knuckles. Mr. 
Jarnagan thanked Mayor and Council for their support in standing up to teen violence.  
 
STEPHANIE JARNAGAN, Chandler, thanked Mayor and Council for their support in getting involved 
to make a positive change in the community. This is a starting point for change and a deterrent 
for crime.  
  
14. Resolution No. 5808 Accepting a Grant from the Fentanyl Prosecution, Diversion and 
 Testing Funding Program in the Amount of $152,527.49 
 Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5808 accepting a grant award from the 
 State of Arizona Department of Public Safety Fentanyl Prosecution, Diversion and Testing 
 Funding Program in the amount of $152,527.49 and authorizing the Chief of Police, as 
 designated by the City Manager, to conduct all negotiations and to execute and submit all 
 documents necessary in connection with such program. 
 
Public Works and Utilities  
15. Introduction of Ordinance No. 5098 Granting a Non-Exclusive Underground High 
 Voltage Power Easement to Salt River Project Agricultural Improvement and 
 Power District (SRP) to Accommodate the Installation of Electric Vehicle 
 Charging Stations on the Amazon Site at 3405 S. McQueen Road, Chandler, Arizona 
 Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 5098 granting a Non-
 Exclusive Underground High Voltage Power Easement to SRP, in consideration for the 
 payment of $18,500.00 to accommodate the installation of electric vehicle charging stations 
 on the Amazon site at 3405 S. McQueen Road, Chandler, Arizona. 
    
16. Professional Services Agreement No. ST2403.101, with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., for 
 the McQueen Road Improvements (Warner Road to Pecos Road) Pre-Design Services 
 Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. ST2403.101, to Kimley-Horn 
 and Associates, Inc., for the McQueen Road Improvements (Warner 
 Road to Pecos Road) Pre-Design Services, in an amount not to exceed $328,565. 
  
17. Construction Agreement No. WA1903.401 & WA1908.401, Change Order No. 6, with Achen-
 Gardner Construction, LLC, for the Arrowhead Water Production Facility Rehabilitation and 
 Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant Surge System 
 Move City Council award Construction Agreement No. WA1903.401 & WA1908.401, Change 
 Order No.6, to Achen-Gardner Construction, LLC, in the amount of $353,512.43. 
  
18. Professional Services Agreement No. WW2302.451, with Dibble & Associates 
 Consulting Engineers, Inc., dba Dibble, for the Price Road 66-inch Sewer 
 Interceptor Rehabilitation Construction Management Services 



Page 6 of 16 
 
 

 

 Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. WW2302.451 to Dibble & 
 Associates Consulting Engineers, Inc., dba Dibble, for the Price Road 66-inch Sewer 
 Interceptor Rehabilitation Construction Management Services, in an amount not to exceed 
 $1,526,019.50. 
  
19. Construction Manager at Risk Construction Services Agreement No. WW2302.401, with B&F 
 Contracting, Inc., for the Price Road 66-Inch Sewer Interceptor Rehabilitation 
 Move City Council award CMAR Construction Services Agreement No. WW2302.401 to B&F 
 Contracting, Inc., for the Price Road 66-Inch Sewer Interceptor Rehabilitation, in an amount 
 not to exceed $43,696,207.25. 
 

Consent Agenda Motion and Vote  
Councilmember Orlando moved to approve the Consent Agenda Item Nos. 1-19, with the 
exception of Item No. 5, of the May 23, 2024, Regular City Council Meeting; Seconded by 
Councilmember Ellis.  
 
Motion carried unanimously (7-0). 
  

Action Item No. 5 
5. Resolution No. 5805 Amending Section 23 Area Plan, Introduction and Tentative 
 Adoption of Ordinance No. 5099, Rezoning, Preliminary Development Plan, and 
 Preliminary Plat, PLH24-0012/PLH23-0056/PLT23-0022 Viviendo, Located at the Southeast 
 Corner of Ocotillo and McQueen Roads 
 Area Plan 
 Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5805 Section 23 Area Plan amendment, 
 PLH24-0012, as recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
 Rezoning 
 Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 5099 approving PLH23-
 0056 Viviendo, Rezoning from PAD for Neighborhood Commercial and congregate care to 
 PAD for single-family residential, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning 
 and Zoning Commission. 
 
 Preliminary Development Plan  
 Move City Council approve Preliminary Development Plan PLH23-0056 Viviendo for 
 sudivision layout and housing product, subject to the conditions as recommended by 
 Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
 Preliminary Plat 



Page 7 of 16 
 
 

 

 Move City Council approve Preliminary Plat PLT23-0022 Viviendo, subject to the conditions 
 as recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
RIZWAN RASHEED, 4190 S. Jesse St., spoke about the new development and shared that he 
enjoyed the quiet neighborhood and welcomed a residential neighborhood. The new 
development has many homes. Mr. Rasheed suggested a buffer zone between the new 
development and the existing neighborhood for privacy.   
 
JENNIFER ALVEY, 1154 E. Grand Canyon Dr., spoke about Chandler's livable, family-friendly 
community. Ms. Alvey recognized the developer for listening to residents’ concerns and making 
adaptations. Ms. Alvey suggested a buffer zone between the new development and the existing 
neighborhood for privacy and spoke about traffic and safety concerns related to the proposal due 
to the intersection. As Cooper Road does not continue north, Gilbert and McQueen Roads take on 
more northbound traffic. For the safety of existing communities in the area, Ms. Alvey requested 
city traffic support at McQueen and Alamosa Roads or a gated entry at a different location.   
 
MAYOR HARTKE invited the developer to address these statements. 
 
RALPH PEW, 1744 S. Val Vista, K. Hovanian Homes, spoke about the Viviendo development. 
Initially, in plans, there was to be a walkable trail on the south and east sides of the development 
backing the already existing neighborhood. In further conversations, the trail could not be 
properly monitored to address safety and security concerns. The trail was removed from the plan, 
and the space was put into the home lots to accommodate larger yards and setbacks. The Alamosa 
Drive entrance has been under discussion as the Traffic Division advised that an entrance on 
McQueen would be inadequate. The gate on Alamosa is only for residents. The other access point 
on Ocotillo would be used for more open access. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER ENCINAS asked how tall the backyard fence is.  
 
MR. PEW answered that the fence height would be six feet.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ENCINAS asked if the fence height could be increased.  
 
MS. SCHWAB answered that six feet is standard per city code. Increasing the height of the fence 
may cause other concerns.  
 
KEVIN MAYO, Planning Administrator, answered that the city code allows fence heights up to seven 
feet. The existing homes have a six-foot block wall. The code does not allow for dual walls to be 
constructed. If the Council directed increasing the height, the existing six-foot wall would be 
removed, and a new seven-foot wall would be built for the new development and existing 
residents.  



Page 8 of 16 
 
 

 

 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS clarified that the existing six-foot wall would be removed, and a new 
seven-foot wall would be built for the new development and existing residents and asked what 
else is required.  
 
MR. MAYO answered that the construction would require temporary construction easements 
from each homeowner to access the property to build the new wall.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS asked to see the map. 
 
MR. MAYO said around nine to ten homes would adjoin the wall.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS asked about the feasibility of adjusting the height of the wall. 
 
MR. PEW said the discussion on wall height is just coming up tonight; it has not been heard in 
previous discussions with this neighborhood. Single-story new homes are matched up with 
existing single-story homes to mitigate privacy concerns.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS commented that the development plan was well-thought-through.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked about gate access.  
 
MR. PEW said there is a gate on Alamosa that would serve only residents and not be used for other 
traffic, such as visitors or deliveries. A gate on Ocotillo would serve the entire neighborhood with 
more access. One request was to move the gate on Alamosa further east to discourage travel 
through the Alamosa Estates neighborhood.  
 
MR. MAYO noted that moving the gate to a different location would create private streets where 
the responsibility for care would be on the homeowners through the HOA. It would be between 
the city and the HOA to gate a previously public street. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO commented that police presence to monitor traffic and safety is 
common to support this area with the school and neighborhood needs. Councilmember Orlando 
asked when the Cooper bike lanes will come forward to Council. 
 
MR. WRIGHT answered the Cooper Insight Loop Bike Lanes Project is in design.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO asked if this would relieve some of the traffic. 
 
MR. WRIGHT said this would partly connect northbound traffic to Gilbert.  
 



Page 9 of 16 
 
 

 

MR. PEW added that this land is rezoned for commercial use. The traffic impact is expected to be 
significantly less than the previously anticipated commercial use. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said the consensus from the neighborhood is that a residential 
community is preferred rather than apartments or commercial businesses. Councilmember 
Orlando asked about the signage prohibiting left turns into the existing neighborhood.  
 
DANA ALVIDREZ, City Transportation Engineer, said posting signage is possible.  
 
MAYOR HARTKE asked for clarification on the Alamosa gate. 
 
MR. PEW said the prohibition would be for those traveling south on Spring Drive, exiting the gated 
community, and turning left into the Alamosa Estates or Geneva Estates neighborhoods.  
 
MS. ALVEY said the concern is the compounding traffic from residents leaving for work or school 
in the morning.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER POSTON asked if there were any concerns about blocking Geneva Estates.  
 
MAYOR HARTKE clarified that neighborhood access from McQueen would not be affected.  
 
VICE MAYOR HARRIS said he wanted to move forward with signage prohibiting left turns.  
 
MR. PEW said that is possible.  
 

Action Agenda No. 5 Motion and Vote  
Councilmember Orlando moved to pass and adopt Resolution No. 5805 Section 23 Area Plan 
amendment, PLH24-0012, as recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission; introduce and 
tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 5099 approving PLH23-0056 Viviendo, Rezoning from PAD for 
Neighborhood Commercial and congregate care to  PAD for single-family residential, subject to 
the conditions as recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission; approve Preliminary 
Development Plan PLH23-0056 Viviendo for sudivision layout and housing product, subject to the 
conditions as recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission; approve Preliminary Plat 
PLT23-0022 Viviendo, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning and Zoning 
Commission; with the addition of PDP Stipulation 11, “The applicant shall work with staff regarding 
appropriate signage to direct south bound traffic at the Alamosa Drive exit”; Seconded by 
Councilmember Ellis.  
 
Motion carried unanimously (7-0). 
 



Page 10 of 16 
 
 

 

Public Hearing No. 20 
20. Public Hearing for Annexation ANX23-0003 of Approximately 13.57 Acres of 

Land South of the Southeast Corner of Arizona Avenue and Germann Road 
 
Open Public Hearing 
MAYOR HARTKE opened the public hearing at 6:44 p.m. 
 
Staff Presentation 
DARSY OMER, Associate Planner, presented the following presentation. 

• Public Hearing – Annexation ANX23-0003 
• Location: South of the Southeast Corner of Arizona Avenue and Germann Road 
• Surrounding Land Uses: 

o North: IND-2 and C-2 (unincorporated Maricopa County) 
o South: PAD for industrial uses 
o East: railroad 
o West: Arizona Ave, then RU-43 (unincorporated Maricopa County) 

• Background: 
o Approximately 13.57 acres 
o Zoned Planned Industrial Zoning District (IND-1) and Light Industrial Zoning District 

(IND-2) within Maricopa County 
o Initial City Zoning will be Planned Industrial District (I-1) 

• Administrative Design Review has been reviewed and approved by staff for three industrial 
buildings 

• General Plan Designation of Employment 
o There are public water and sewer facilities in the vicinity of the project. The City of 

Chandler will provide water, wastewater, and reclaimed services to the subject 
property. 

o Staff has circulated the request to City departments and no negative comments have 
been received.  

• Questions? 
 
Council Discussion 
None.  
 
Discussion from the Audience 
None.  
 
Close Public Hearing 
MAYOR HARTKE closed the public hearing at 6:46 p.m. 
 



Page 11 of 16 
 
 

 

Public Hearing and Action Item No. 22 
21. Public Hearing for Resolution No. 5804 Approving the Fiscal Year 2024-2025    
 Annual Assessment for the City of Chandler, Arizona, Downtown Chandler Enhanced 

Municipal Services District 
 
Open Public Hearing 
MAYOR HARTKE opened the public hearing at 6:46 p.m. 
 
Staff Presentation 
LAUREN KOLL, Downtown Redevelopment Program Manager, presented the following 
presentation.  

• Enhanced Municipal Services District 
• Enhanced Municipal Services District (EMSD) Overview 

o Created in 2005 – 19th Year 
o Covers 61.4 Acres & Over 1 million square feet of commercial space 
o Formed to provide public services over and above typical services elsewhere in the 

City 
o Services are provided by the Downtown Chandler Community Partnership (DCCP) 

through an annual contract with the City 
• EMSD Process & next Steps 

o Process 
 Assessment was authorized by property owners 
 100% of assessment proceeds paid to the District 
 City Council officially enables the District  
 District must be renewed each year 

o Next Steps 
 Contract with DCCP bring forward at June 24 Council Meeting 

• Voluntary City contribution: $130,981 
• Questions? 

 
Council Discussion 
None.  
 
Discussion from the Audience 
None.  
 
Close Public Hearing 
MAYOR HARTKE closed the public hearing at 6:49 p.m. 
 
 



Page 12 of 16 
 
 

 

Action Agenda No. 22 Motion and Vote  
 
22.  Resolution No. 5804 Approving the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Annual Assessment for the City 

of Chandler, Arizona, Downtown Chandler Enhanced Municipal Services District 
 Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5804 approving the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 

Annual Assessment for City of Chandler, Arizona, Downtown Chandler Enhanced Municipal 
Services District. 

 
Vice Mayor Harris moved to pass and adopt Resolution No. 5804 approving the Fiscal Year 2024-
2025 Annual Assessment for City of Chandler, Arizona, Downtown Chandler Enhanced Municipal 
Services District; Seconded by Councilmember Ellis.  
 
Motion carried unanimously (7-0). 
 

Action Agenda No. 23 
23. Resolution No. 5800, Adopting the Fiscal Year (FY) 2024-25 Tentative Budget and 
 2025-2034 Tentative Capital Improvement Program (CIP) and Giving Notice of the 
 Dates and Times for Hearing Taxpayers for Final Adoption of the Budget and for Setting the 
 Tax Levies and Tax Rates 
 Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5800, adopting the FY 2024-25 Tentative 
 Budget and 2025-2034 Tentative CIP and giving notice of the dates and times for hearing 
 taxpayers for final adoption of the budget and for setting the tax levies and tax rates. 
 
DAWN LANG, Deputy City Manager / CFO, presented the following presentation.  

• Tentative Budget Adoption 
• Statutory Budget Process 

o Adopt a tentative budget that sets forth the different amounts that will be required 
to meet the political subdivision’s public expense for the fiscal year 
 Enter into the minutes or the governing body 
 Prepare according to forms supplied by the auditor general 
 Publish on the website for public review 
 Once tentatively adopted, budget cannot increase 

o After tentative adoption, a public hearing shall be had wherein any taxpayer may be 
heard in favor of or against any proposed expenditure or tax levy (set for June 13, 
2024) 

o Hold Special meeting after public hearing to adopt the Budget 
o Adopt final tax rate on or before 14 days before taxes are levied, but after the public 

hearing (set for June 27, 2024) 
• FY 2024-25 Proposed Budget 

o Total Budget $1,629,072,684 | Total General Fund: $577,776,840 



Page 13 of 16 
 
 

 

o Proposed Budget 
 Adheres to financial policies and is structurally balanced 

• Ongoing for ongoing and one-time for one-time 
 Uses Strategic Framework to guide decisions 
 Provides for cost-effective, quality services 
 Maintains long-term financial sustainability 
 Resident engagement through input opportunities 

• Kickoff, Resident Budget Survey & Three Workshops 
• All-day Budget Briefing 
• Tentative and Final Adoption in May/June 

o 1.6% decrease overall all Funds 
 $752.5M operating (-5.9%) 
 $876.5M capital (+2.3%) 

o 5.4% decrease in General Fund 
 $577.8M operating (-9.1%) 
 $139M capital (+8.6%) 

• FY 2024-25 Proposed Budget Drivers (all funds) 
o Revenues 

 Revenues reflect actual economic environment with additional analysis on 
sustainable level 

 Increases coming from continued development & decrease from Residential 
Rental revenue 

 State Shared revenues updated with latest projections using State and League 
forecasts 

o Expenditures 
 Funding to convert one-time funded positions to ongoing, maintain service 

delivery after adjusting for inflation, and ensure enhancements are in strategic 
focus areas 

 Personnel costs increasing to invest in city workforce and retain employees; 
market, merit, and healthcare.  Reflects ongoing savings from PSPRS employer 
contribution 

 Capital projects increased to address aging infrastructure, inflation and new 
infrastructure 

o Grants 
 Continued focus on finding Grant opportunities and having “shovel ready” 

projects that may qualify 
o Debt & Actions Reducing Cost 

 Maintain AAA bond rating to minimize cost of borrowing for capital projects 
 Maintain funded status of Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) 

to ensure unfunded liability does not grow 



Page 14 of 16 
 
 

 

 Solar energy investment for utility cost savings 
 Turf to Xeriscape capital project for utility cost savings 

• Operating Budget Highlights 
o Reduces city primary property tax rate, no change to Transaction Privilege Tax (TPT) 

rates 
o No planned Water, Wastewater, or Solid Waste rate changes in the new Fiscal Year 
o Budget maintains existing service levels and enhances  programs tied to Strategic 

Framework 
o Adds funding for new labor association commitments and general employee 

merit/market 
o Continues debt elimination: $7M in one-time funding for pay-off maintenance of 

PSPRS 
o Maintains strong reserves including 15% General Fund contingency and $10M 

budget stabilization reserve 
• Total Annual Proposed Budget All Funds (in millions) 
• Average Annual Residential Cost Comparison for Direct Services 
• Average Residential Cost Comparison for Water, Wastewater and Solid Waste 
• 2025-2034 CIP Highlights  

o 2025-2034 CIP total is $2,488,884,031  
o ($525M more than the 2024-2033 CIP)  
o Updated to reflect additional utility projects and project costs to current values 
o Increased focus on aging infrastructure 
o Voter Bond authorization to support capital plan is shortened by inflation 

• Proposed FY 2024-25 CIP Appropriation (all funds) 
o Capital Carryforward $637.1M 
o Contingency & Reserves $0.45M 
o New Funding $238.9M 
o $876.5M Total CIP Appropriation 

• Key Budget Dates 
• For your consideration, Res. #5800 approves the Tentative Budget. Questions?  

 

Action Agenda No. 23 Motion and Vote  
Vice Mayor Harris moved to pass and adopt Resolution No. 5800, adopting the FY 2024-25 
Tentative Budget and 2025-2034 Tentative CIP and giving notice of the dates and times for hearing 
taxpayers for final adoption of the budget and for setting the tax levies and tax rates; Seconded 
by Councilmember Ellis.  
 
Motion carried unanimously (6-0), Councilmember Poston absent.  



Page 15 of 16 
 
 

 

 

Informational 
24. Contracts and Agreements Administratively Approved, Month of April 2024 
 

Unscheduled Public Appearances 
None. 
 

Current Events 
Mayor's Announcements 
MAYOR HARTKE noted the upcoming Chandler Chamber Awards on May 30 will provide an 
opportunity to celebrate businesses, educators, residents, and public servants that make 
Chandler great.  
 
MAYOR HARTKE noted the DCCP Annual Meeting was a great opportunity to connect with 
Downtown Chandler businesses and hear many exciting updates. 
 
MAYOR HARTKE congratulated Chandler’s class of 2024 high school graduates.  
 
MAYOR HARTKE wished everyone a happy Memorial Day.  

 
Council's Announcements 
COUNCILMEMBER ENCINAS wished Chandler graduates a happy graduation and a happy 
Memorial Day, honoring our service members.   
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS commented that she joined Neighborhood Resources staff in celebrating 
three years of the Golden Neighbors Program. Councilmember Ellis thanked Neighborhood 
Resources staff for contributing to three years of success in this program.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS noted that the Community Services Department has worked to achieve 
certified autism center designation through the work of Parks and Recreation staff to make 
interactions with residents safe, positive, and inclusive.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS shared that she had the opportunity to talk with media trailblazers about 
breaking barriers in the industry, improving communication, and how mentorship empowers 
young women.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS recognized one of her mentees for passing her NCLEX exam.  
 
VICE MAYOR HARRIS said he will speak at the Memorial Day Observance at Valley of the Sun 
Memorial on May 30.  



Page 16 of 16 
 
 

 

 
VICE MAYOR HARRIS thanked community members for their involvement in condemning teen 
violence.  
 
City Manager's Announcements 
None.  
 

Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:14 p.m. 
 
 
ATTEST:  _______________________  ______________________________ 
                       City Clerk                                                   Mayor 
 
 
Approval Date of Minutes:  June 13, 2024 
 
 

Certification 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of Regular 
Meeting of the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, held on the 23rd day of May 2024.  I further 
certify that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 
 
DATED this _______ day of June, 2024. 
 
      __________________________ 
                                                                    City Clerk 



Meeting Minutes 
City Council Special Meeting 

 

June 3, 2024 | 5:30 p.m. 
Council Chambers Conference Room 
88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ 
 
 

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Kevin Hartke at 5:30 p.m. 
 

Roll Call 
Council Attendance     Appointee Attendance 
Mayor Kevin Hartke      Joshua Wright, City Manager 
Vice Mayor OD Harris     Kelly Schwab, City Attorney  
Councilmember Angel Encinas     Dana DeLong, City Clerk 
Councilmember Christine Ellis      
Councilmember Matt Orlando     
Councilmember Jane Poston 
 
Absent/Excused 
Councilmember Mark Stewart     
 

Set an Executive Session 
1. Executive Session pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.03(A)(3) and (4) - Discussion and 

consultation with the City Attorney for legal advice and to consider its position and instruct its 
Attorneys regarding the City’s position in pending or contemplated litigation or in settlement 
discussions conducted in order to avoid or resolve litigation in the matter of Andres Ramirez, 
Jr. and Normalicia Ramirez, et al. vs. City of Chandler, et al. 

  

Action Agenda Motion and Vote 
Vice Mayor Harris moved to hold an Executive Session Meeting immediately following the Special 
Meeting; Seconded by Councilmember Ellis.  
 
Motion carried unanimously (6-0), Councilmember Stewart absent. 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:31 pm. 
 
 
 
ATTEST:  _______________________  ______________________________ 
                       City Clerk                                                   Mayor 
 
 
Approval Date of Minutes:  June 13, 2024 
 
 
 

Certification 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Special 
Meeting of the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, held on the 3rd day of June 2024.  I further certify 
that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 
 
DATED this _______ day of June, 2024. 
 
      __________________________ 
                                                                    City Clerk 



ITEM  3 

City Council Memorandum      Government Relations & Transportation
Policy  Memo No. TP24-19
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Ryan Peters, Strategic Initiatives Director
From: Jason Crampton, Transportation Planning Manager
Subject:Resolution No. 5813 Authorizing the Execution of a License Agreement with

Salt River Project (SRP)

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5813 authorizing the execution
of a license agreement with Salt River Project (SRP), granting the city access to
SRP property on the northwest corner of Frye Road and the Consolidated Canal
for the construction, maintenance, and operation of Frye Road collector street
improvements.

Background:
East Frye Road (see Attachment 1) terminates at the Consolidated Canal, but
there are currently no road improvements at this terminus other than asphalt. The
2024-2033 Capital Improvement Program includes funding to make collector
street improvements to this section of Frye Road, with construction programmed
for Fiscal Year 2027-28.  Since the city will be making improvements in this area
through the Frye Road Protected Bike Lanes Project in Fiscal Year 2024-25, there
is an opportunity to incorporate the collector street improvements project into the
Frye Road Protected Bike Lanes Project, which will begin construction in early
2025.

The Frye Road collector street improvements include adding a small cul-de-sac,
sidewalk and lighting.  The new sidewalk will provide an important connection to
the Paseo Trail.  A portion of the proposed new sidewalk will be within an SRP
parcel on the north side of Frye Road (see Attachment 2).  The proposed land use
license agreement will allow the city to construct, maintain and operate this



sidewalk within SRP land.  Additionally, since the cul-de-sac is too small for
emergency vehicle turnaround, the proposed license agreement would allow city
emergency vehicles to use the SRP driveway on the north side of Frye Road to
turn vehicles around.

Attachments
1. Existing Conditions 
2. Proposed Improvements 
3. Resolution 5813 
4. Agreement with Salt River Project 



Attachment 1: Existing Conditions 

 

View to the east 

 

 

View to the north 

 



christopher.milner
Polygon

Jason Crampton
Stamp



christopher.milner
Polygon

Jason Crampton
Stamp



RESOLUTION NO. 5813   
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING A LICENSE AGREEMENT BETWEEN SALT 
RIVER PROJECT AGRICULTURAL IMPROVEMENT AND POWER 
DISTRICT (SRP) AND THE CITY OF CHANDLER TO AUTHORIZE THE 
CITY TO CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN, AND OPERATE ROADWAY 
IMPROVEMENTS WITHIN A PARCEL OWNED BY SRP 
 

WHEREAS, SRP owns Parcel 303-02-022A, adjacent to Frye Road; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City plans to construct improvements to Frye Road as a part of the City’s Frye 
Road Protected Bike Lanes project; and 
 
WHEREAS, Frye Road improvements will create an end-of-road turnaround for passenger 
vehicles and a sidewalk for pedestrians to connect to the Paseo Trail; and  
 
WHEREAS, a portion of these improvements will be made within Parcel 303-02-022A; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City will be responsible for the operation and maintenance of the roadway and 
sidewalk improvements; and  
 
WHEREAS, a license agreement with SRP is required to authorize the City to conduct 
construction, operation, and maintenance activities within SRP property.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, 
as follows: 
 
Section 1. Approving the License Agreement between SRP and the City of Chandler for the 

construction, maintenance, and operation of roadway improvements within Parcel 
303-02-022A.  

 
Section 2. Authorizing the Mayor of the City of Chandler to execute the License Agreement 

on behalf of the City of Chandler. 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, this _____ day of 
June, 2024. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________  ________________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 
 
 



Resolution No. 5813 
Page 2 

CERTIFICATION 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 5813 was duly passed and adopted by the 
Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting held on the 
___ day of June, 2024 and that a quorum was present thereat. 

_________________________________ 
CITY CLERK 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

________________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY 



 

 

SALT RIVER PROJECT 

 LICENSE 

 

 

 Salt River Project License No.:        LJ88368 

                                                                                                 Salt River Project File No.:   0680.8836 

 Effective Date: June 1, 2024 

 Agent:             HDL 

 

1. License Granted 

 

 The SALT RIVER PROJECT AGRICULTURAL IMPROVEMENT AND POWER DISTRICT, an 

agricultural improvement district organized and existing under the laws of the State of Arizona (“District”), 

and the Salt River Valley Water User’s Association (“Association”), Licensor, grants CITY OF 

CHANDLER, an Arizona Municipal Corporation ("Licensee"), a revocable License conveying the 

nonexclusive right and privilege to enter upon and use certain real property, the Licensed Property, under the 

following terms and conditions. 

 

2. Purpose 

 

 Licensee shall use the Licensed Property only for drive turnaround area, landscaping, art panel, and 

sidewalk as referenced in the approved plans. Licensee shall not use the Licensed Property for any other 

purpose without the prior written approval of Licensor.  Licensee acknowledges that, but for this License, it 

has no rights to use or occupy the Licensed Property, and represents that it makes no claim to such rights. 

 

3. Licensed Property 

 

 The Licensed Property shall mean: that portion of land located in the NE Quarter of Section 35, 

Township 01S, Range 05E of the Gila and Salt River Meridian, Maricopa County, Arizona, more particularly 

described on Exhibit A attached hereto and part of hereof.  

 

4. Compensation 

  

 4.1 Except as stipulated in this Section 4, Licensee shall not be obligated to pay a fee or rent for the 

use and occupation of the Licensed Property in accordance with this License. 

 

 4.2 Licensee shall reimburse Licensor, for all federal, state and local excise, sales, privilege, gross 

receipts and other similar taxes lawfully imposed on and paid by Licensor as a result of the consideration 

received by Licensor under this License; provided, however, that this Section shall not apply to income taxes.  

Licensee shall pay all property taxes, if any, levied on the Licensed Property. 

 

 4.3 All amounts paid by Licensee to Licensor as a result of damages, costs, expenses and sums 

incurred by Licensor hereunder as a result of Licensee's default shall be deemed to be additional License Fees. 

 

 4.4 Any payment due unpaid under this License shall bear interest from the date payment is due at 

the rate of eighteen percent (18%) per annum.  Licensor shall have all the rights and remedies provided herein 

and by law for Licensee's failure to pay any of the compensation specified in this Section 4. 



 

 

 

 4.5 Within 30 days of Licensor’s delivery of an invoice therefore, Licensee shall pay any 

incremental increase in Licensor's operation and maintenance costs on the Licensed Property resulting from 

Licensee's exercise of its rights hereunder, Licensor shall incur no liability for any costs of repairing or 

replacing Licensee's improvements within the Licensed Property, damaged as a result of Licensor's operation 

and maintenance of its facilities, unless due to negligent or willful acts or omissions of Licensor or its agents 

or employees. 

 

5. Term 

 

 The term of this license shall be from June 1, 2024 (the "Effective Date") through May 30, 2034, or 

until terminated subject to Section 7 hereof. 

 

6. Assignment and Sub-Licensing 

 

 Licensee shall neither assign this License nor sub-license all or any portion of the Licensed Property 

and any such assignment or sub-license shall be void. 

 

7. Termination of the License 

 

7.1 If a party (the "Defaulting Party") fails (i) to make payment required herein by its due date 

or (ii) perform an obligation under this License within 30 days after written notice is given to the Defaulting 

Party of its failure to perform such obligation on the date when such performance was due (or, if such 

default cannot reasonably be cured within 30 days, then within such longer period as is determined by the 

non-defaulting party to be necessary to cure such default, provided the Defaulting Party commences to cure 

such default within the 30 day period), then, upon the expiration of the applicable cure period, the non-

defaulting party may terminate this License upon not less than 30 days prior written notice to the Defaulting 

Party (such notice of termination must be in addition to the notice of default). 

 

7.2 Either party may terminate this License without cause upon not less than ninety (90) days 

written notice. 

 

 7.3 In the event either party terminates this License, or upon expiration of the License term, 

Licensee’s rights to use and occupy the Licensed Property hereunder shall cease at the date of termination; 

provided however, Licensee may enter upon the Licensed Property for a period of three hundred and sixty 

(360) days thereafter, for the sole purpose of removing Licensee’s improvements and restoring the Licensed 

Property to the condition that existed prior to its improvements thereon.  If Licensee has failed to remove any 

of its improvements or restore the Licensed Property within such three hundred and sixty (360) day period, 

Licensee shall reimburse Licensor for the reasonable costs incurred by Licensor for the removal or storage of 

Licensee's improvements and restoration of the Licensed Property. Licensee shall release and indemnify 

against all claims, Licensor, Association, and U.S.A. from all damages resulting to Licensee as a result of such 

removal, storage, or restoration.  The provisions of this Section 7.3 shall survive termination of this License. 

 

8. Maintenance of Licensed Property & Interface with Licensor's Use of Licensed Property 

 

 8.1 Subject to the conditions set forth herein, Licensor reserves to itself, and the Association, a right 

of access to the Licensed Property for the construction, use, operation, maintenance, relocation and removal of 

any existing and future electric or water distribution or transmission facilities.  Any such construction, use, 



 

 

operation, maintenance, relocation or removal shall be performed in a manner designed to avoid, to the extent 

feasible, disturbance to the improvements and Licensee's use and enjoyment of the Licensed Property.  Licensor 

shall give Licensee at least ninety (90) days prior written notice of any such construction, use, operation, 

maintenance, relocation or removal that would materially disrupt the improvements or Licensee's use and 

enjoyment of the Licensed Property or the improvements; provided, however, that such notice may be given 

in such shorter period as Licensor determines to be reasonable under prevailing circumstances, or with no 

notice in the event of an emergency where no notice is feasible.  Nothing in this License shall be construed to 

deny or lessen the powers and privileges granted Licensor by the laws of the State of Arizona and the U.S.A.  

Licensor shall not be liable to Licensee for any damage to public or private property or to installations located 

upon the Licensed Property, unless due to negligent or willful acts or omissions of Licensor or its agents or 

employees.   

 

 8.2 Licensee, at its own expense, shall maintain all of the Licensed Property in reasonably good, 

sanitary and safe condition.  If Licensee defaults in the performance of the obligations set forth herein, and 

Licensor gives notice of the default, Licensee shall correct such default to the reasonable satisfaction of 

Licensor within the required period of time set forth in the notice of default (the "Correction Period"), which 

period of time shall be reasonable under the circumstances.  If Licensee fails to correct the default within the 

Correction Period, Licensor may take any action reasonably determined by Licensor to be necessary to correct 

such default, including without limitation making any repair or modification to or removing any of the 

improvements.  Licensee shall reimburse Licensor for the reasonable costs of correcting such default incurred 

and paid by Licensor within thirty (30) calendar days after Licensor presents Licensee with a statement of such 

costs.  Licensee shall release Licensor, Association and U.S.A. from all damages resulting to Licensee from 

the correction of such default, including, without limitation, those damages arising from all repairs or 

modifications to or removal of any of the improvements. 

 

9.   Nonexclusive Rights 

 

 This License is nonexclusive and nothing herein shall be construed to prevent or restrict Licensor from 

granting other privileges to use the Licensed Property in a manner not inconsistent with Licensee's use of the 

Licensed Property in accordance with this License. 

 

10.   Existing Easements and Licenses 

 

 This License is subject to all existing encumbrances of record, including easements and licenses. It 

shall be Licensee's obligation and responsibility to ascertain the rights of all third parties in the Licensed 

Property.  Licensor consents only to the use of the Licensed Property for the purposes described herein.  

Nothing in this License shall be construed as Licensor's representation, warranty, approval or consent regarding 

rights in the Licensed Property held by other parties.  Licensee shall indemnify and hold Licensor harmless 

from any liability arising out of any dispute or claim regarding actual or alleged interests in the Licensed 

Property, affecting Licensee's interests created herein.  

 

11.   Indemnification 

 

 To the extent not prohibited by law, Licensee, its successors and assigns, shall indemnify, release, and 

hold harmless Licensor, Association and the United States of America, and the directors, officers, employees, 

agents, successors and assigns thereof, for, from and against any damage claim, demand, lawsuit or action of 

any kind for damages or loss, whether such damage or loss is to person or property, arising in whole or in part 

out of: (a) negligent or otherwise wrongful acts or omissions of Licensee, its agents, officers, directors, or 



 

 

employees; (b) Licensee's use or occupancy of the Licensed Property for the purposes contemplated by this 

License, including but not limited to claims by third parties who are invited or permitted onto the Licensed 

Property, either expressed or implied, by Licensee or by the nature of Licensee's development or other use of 

the Licensed Property pursuant to this License; or (c) Licensee's failure to comply with or fulfill its obligations 

established by this License or by law.  Such obligation to indemnify shall extend to and encompass all costs 

incurred by Licensor in defending against such claims, demands, lawsuits or actions, including but not limited 

to attorney, witness and expert fees, and any other litigation related expenses.   Licensee's obligation pursuant 

to this Section 11 shall not extend to claims, demands, lawsuits or actions for liability attributable to the sole 

exclusive negligence or willful action of Licensor, its directors, officers, employees, agents, successors or 

assigns. The provisions of this Section shall survive termination of this License. 

 

12.   Insurance 

 

 Without limiting any liabilities or any other obligations of Licensee, Licensee shall provide and 

maintain, with forms and insurers acceptable to Licensor, and until all obligations under the License are 

satisfied, the minimum insurance coverages, as follows: 

 

 12.1 Worker's compensation insurance to cover obligations imposed by applicable federal and state 

statutes and employer's liability insurance with a minimum limit of One Million and No/100 Dollars 

($1,000,000.00). 

 

 12.2 Commercial general liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit of Two Million 

and No/100 Dollars ($2,000,000.00) each occurrence.  The policy shall include coverage for bodily injury 

liability, property damage liability, personal injury liability, and contractual liability for liability assumed under 

this License.  The policy shall contain a severability of interests provision. 

 

 12.3 If applicable, comprehensive automobile liability insurance with a combined single limit for 

bodily injury and property damage of not less than Two Million and No/100 Dollars ($2,000,000.00) each 

occurrence with respect to Licensee's vehicle, whether owned, hired or non-owned, assigned to or used in the 

performance of the work. 

 

 12.4 The policies required by Sections 12.2 and 12.3 hereof shall be endorsed to include Licensor, 

members of its governing bodies, its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds and shall stipulate 

that the insurance afforded for Licensor, members of its governing bodies, its officers, agents and employees 

shall be primary insurance and that any insurance carried by Licensor, members of its governing bodies, its 

officers, agents or employees shall be excess and not contributory insurance. 

 

 12.5 Licensee shall waive their rights of recovery and require its insurers providing the required 

coverages to waive all rights of subrogation against Licensor and members of its governing bodies, its officers, 

agents and employees for matters arising out of this License. 

 

 12.6 Upon execution of this License, Licensee shall furnish Licensor with Certificates of Insurance 

as evidence that policies providing the required coverages, conditions and limits are in full force and effect.  

Such certificates shall provide that not less than thirty (30) days advance notice of cancellation, termination, or 

alteration shall be sent directly to Licensor addressed as follows: 
 

  Manager, Land Rights Management, PAB10W 

  Salt River Project 



 

 

  P.O. Box 52025 

  Phoenix, Arizona 85072-2025 

13.  Construction 

 

 13.1 Prior to making any installations on the Licensed Property, Licensee shall submit to Licensor 

for its approval final construction documents and plan showing the location of any such installations.  Licensor 

shall approve or disapprove such documents and plans within 30 days. Construction on the Licensed Property 

shall be performed only in accordance with approved construction documents and plan.  At least ten (10) days 

prior to the beginning of any construction on the Licensed Property, Licensee shall give Licensor notice of the 

date that construction will begin and a schedule listing all construction activities and the dates when such 

construction activities will be performed.  Licensee shall give Licensor written notice of all changes in the 

schedule and delays in construction immediately upon it being reasonably foreseeable that such change or delay 

will occur. 

 

 13.2 Licensee's improvements constructed, installed, operated and maintained on the Licensed 

Property shall not interfere with Licensor's use of Licensor's existing or any future irrigation or electric facilities 

on or adjacent to the Licensed Property. 

 

 13.3 Licensor may request Licensee to alter the scheduling of construction undertaken pursuant to 

Section 13.1 but only when and to the extent necessary to prevent any material interference with Licensor's use 

of the Licensed Property, and if such improvements do interfere with Licensor's use, Licensor may request 

Licensee to relocate Licensee's material, facilities and improvements as deemed necessary by Licensor. 

 

 13.4 If relocation of Licensee's materials, facilities, or improvements is necessitated by Licensor's 

use of existing facilities or the construction of improvements by or on behalf of Licensor, Licensee shall bear 

the entire actual cost of relocating said materials, facilities and improvements. 

 

 13.5 Licensor shall not exercise its right to require relocation of Licensee's facilities, materials, and 

improvements in an unreasonable or arbitrary manner. Licensor warrants to Licensee that as of the date of this 

License, relocation of Licensee’s facilities, materials, and improvements is not expected or anticipated as a 

result of Licensor’s existing plans for the Licensed Property.”  
 

14.   Permits, Statutes and Codes 

 

 Licensee shall comply with all requirements of all statutes, acts, ordinances, regulations, codes, and 

standards of legally constituted authorities with jurisdiction applicable to Licensee's use of the Licensed 

Property.  Licensee shall obtain or cause to be obtained at its expense, all permits, approvals and authorizations 

required by Licensee's actions pursuant to this License. 

 

15. Licensor's Right to Inspect 

 

 15.1 Licensor may enter any part of the Licensed Property at all reasonable times to make an 

inspection thereof.  During any construction by Licensee, Licensor may inspect all trenching, backfilling and 

other related construction activity that potentially affects Licensor's facilities, and require conformance with all 

Licensor's requirements and specifications related thereto. 

 

 15.2 Licensee shall release Licensor, Association and the U.S.A. from any claims for damages 

arising out of any reasonable or unforeseeable delay caused by Licensor in permitting or inspecting any work 



 

 

on the Licensed Premises.  The provisions of this Section shall survive termination of this License. 

 

 

 

16.  Service of Notice 

 

 All notices, demands and invoices required or permitted by this License shall be in writing and shall be 

considered to have been properly delivered: (i) if mailed, three (3) business days after deposit in the U.S. mail, 

postage prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed as follows; (ii) if sent by overnight delivery service, on the 

next business day after deposit with such service, addressed as follows; or (iii) if personally delivered, on the 

date of delivery service to: 

 

Mail 

Notices to Licensor  Notices to Licensee 

Attn:  Manager, PAB10W  Attn: Transportation Planning Manager 

SALT RIVER PROJECT  City of Chandler 

Land Rights Management  P.O. Box 4008/ Mail Stop 412 

P.O. Box 52025  Chandler, AZ 85244 

Phoenix, AZ  85072-2025   

 

Hand /Certified Delivery 

Notices to Licensor  Notices to Licensee 

Attn:  Manager, PAB10W  Attn: Transportation Planning Manager 

SALT RIVER PROJECT  City of Chandler 

Land Rights Management  P.O. Box 4008/ Mail Stop 412 

2727 E. Washington Street  Chandler, AZ 85244 

Phoenix, AZ 85034-1422   

 

 Either party may change its address or the designated person to receive notification hereunder by giving 

notice of such change in the manner provided above. 
 

17.  Waiver 

 

 This License may not be modified or any provision waived except by written agreement executed by 

both Licensor and Licensee. The waiver by either party of any breach or failure to provide full performance 

under any of the terms and conditions of this License, or the failure of a party to exercise, or any delay in 

exercising, any rights or remedies provided herein or by law, or the failure of a party to notify the other properly 

in the event of a breach hereunder shall not be construed as a waiver of any other term of condition herein, or 

of any subsequent or continuing breach of the same or any other term or condition. 

 

18. Attorneys' Fees Upon Default 

 

 If either party brings or defends any legal action, suit or proceeding based on rights or obligations 

arising from this License, the successful party shall be entitled to recover reasonable litigation expenses, court 

costs and reasonable attorneys' fees, as determined by a court, in any such action, suit or proceeding.  The 

foregoing shall not in any way limit or restrict any other right or remedy at law or equity otherwise available 

to such party. 

 



 

 

19. Force Majeure  

 

 If either party is rendered unable, wholly or in part, by force majeure to carry out its obligations under 

this License, other than the obligation of Licensee to make payments of amounts due hereunder, then the 

obligations of both Licensee and Licensor, so far as they are affected by such force majeure, shall be suspended 

during the continuance of any inability so caused, but for no longer period, and such cause shall so far as 

possible be remedied within a reasonable time.  The term "force majeure" as employed in this License shall 

mean acts of God, strikes, lockouts, or other industrial disturbances, acts of public enemies, wars, blockades, 

insurrections, riots, epidemics, landslides, lightning, earthquakes, fires, storms, floods, washouts, interruptions 

by government not due to the fault of the parties, civil disturbances, explosions, or unforeseeable action or 

nonaction by governmental bodies in approving the applications for approvals or permits or any material 

change in circumstances arising out of legislation, regulation or litigation.  Nothing in this Section shall require 

Licensor to settle a strike. 

 

20. Entire Agreement; Changes After Execution 

 

 This License, including its specified addenda and exhibits, if any, constitutes the entire agreement 

between the parties, and any amendment hereto must be in writing, signed by both parties. 
 

21. Governing Law, Venue and Waiver of Trial by Jury 

 

 This License shall be interpreted, governed by, and constructed in accordance with the substantive and 

procedural laws of the State of Arizona, without regard to conflicts of law principles.  Licensor and Licensee 

agree that any action, suit, or proceeding arising out of, or in any way connected with this License, shall be 

initiated and prosecuted in a state or federal court of competent jurisdiction located in Maricopa County, 

Arizona, and the parties irrevocably submit to the jurisdiction and venue of such court. To the fullest extent 

permitted by law, each party hereby irrevocably waives any and all rights to a trial by jury and covenants and 

agrees that it will not request a trial by jury with respect to any legal proceeding arising out of or in any way 

connected with this License.  
 

22. Water Damage 

 

 Except when the result of the negligent or willful act or omission of Licensor, or its directors, officers, 

employees, agents or assigns, neither Licensor, Association nor the U.S.A. shall be liable for any loss sustained 

by Licensee, its officers, employees, agents or invitees on the Licensed Property because of water damage 

resulting from any source whatsoever, including, but not limited to, flood, drainage or run-off, irrespective of 

any prior knowledge by Licensor of the possibility of such flood, drainage or run-off, arising from or in 

connection with the operation or maintenance of any Salt River Reclamation Project dam, canal or other 

facility.  

 

23. Reservation of Remedies 

 

 Unless otherwise provided herein, each party shall have available to it, all remedies provided by law or 

equity. 

 

24. Archaeological and Environmental Compliance 

 

 24.1 Licensee shall notify Licensor's staff archaeologist should any cultural resources or human 



 

 

remains be found on the Licensed Property, and when appropriate, shall be responsible for other notifications 

and legal requirements as required by the Archeological Resource Protection Act and the Native American 

Graves Protection and Repatriation Act and ensuing 43 CFR 10 regulations.  All related costs to comply with 

the above requirements are the responsibility of the Licensee. 

 

 24.2 Licensee hereby assumes and accepts all liability and responsibility for initiation and 

completion of response, cleanup, and corrective and remedial action, and the cost thereof, required on the 

Licensed Property and any other affected premises due to any action taken by Licensee or its contractors, 

subcontractors, agents, or representatives during use of the Licensed Property that results in release or 

threatened release of any hazardous substance within the meaning of the Federal Comprehensive 

Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act -- 42 U.S.C. § 9601 et seq., or the Arizona 

Environmental Quality Act -- A.R.S. § 49-101 et seq., as such laws may have been or may be amended from 

time to time, or regulated substance within the meaning of Subtitle I of the Federal Resource Conservation and 

Recovery Act (Underground Storage Tanks) -- 42 U.S.C. § 6991a et seq., or the Arizona Underground Storage 

Tank Law -- A.R.S. § 49-1001 et seq., as such laws may have been or may be amended from time to time.  

This Section 24.2 shall survive termination of this License. 

 



LICENSOR: 

SALT RIVER PROJECT AGRICULTURAL IMPROVEMENT AND 

POWER DISTRICT 

Signature: ____________________________________ 

Print: ________________________________________ 

Its: __________________________________________ 

Dated: _______________________________________ 

LICENSEE: 

CITY OF CHANDLER 

Signature: ____________________________________ 

Print: ________________________________________ 

Its: __________________________________________ 

Dated: _______________________________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

_________________________________
City Attorney

ATTEST:

________________________________
City Clerk



 
1201 E. Jefferson St., Suite 3 
         Phoenix, AZ  85034 

 
303-02-022A SRP LICENSE 

EXHIBIT “A” 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

SRP LICENSE 

303-02-022A 

 

That portion of the Northeast quarter of Section 35, Township 1 South, Range 5 East of 

the Gila and Salt River Base and Meridian, Maricopa County, Arizona, more particularly 

described as follows; 

 

COMMENCING at the Southwest corner of Lot 3 of MINOR LAND DIVISION MAP, 

recorded in Book 590 of maps, Page 46, being a point on the Northerly right-of-way line 

of Frye Road; 

 

Thence North 89° 18' 24" East, along the North right-of-way line of said Frye Road, a 

distance of 18.54 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 

Thence departing said North line, North 00° 41' 36" West, a distance of 40.00 feet; 

 

Thence North 89° 18' 24" East, a distance of 32.00 feet; 

 

Thence South 00° 41' 36" East, a distance of 25.00 feet; 

 

Thence North 89° 18' 24" East, a distance of 153.00 feet; 

 

Thence South 00° 41' 36" East, a distance of 15.00 feet to a point on said North right-of-

way line of Frye Road; 

 

Thence South 89° 18' 24" West, along said North right-of-way line, a distance of 185.00 

feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 

Containing 3,575.00 square feet (0.0821 acres), more or less. 



L1
L2

L3
L4

L5L6

N89° 18' 24"E  18.54'

LINE TABLE

LINE

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5

L6

BEARING

N00° 41' 36"W

N89° 18' 24"E

S00° 41' 36"E

N89° 18' 24"E

S00° 41' 36"E

S89° 18' 24"W

DISTANCE

40.00'

32.00'

25.00'

153.00'

15.00'

185.00'

C O N S U L T I N G

TC# 220104, DATE: 05/24/2024

T.1S.     R.5E.

SCALE: NTS

0 5/24 / 2
4

APN 303-02-022A
SRPAI & PD

33
'

R/
W

EXISTING PROPERTY LINE
EXISTING R/W LINE

LEGEND
EXISTING MONUMENT LINE

NEW SRP LICENSE
NEW SRP LICENSE LINE

APN 303-02-003F
CHANDLER ADAM WADE

/ KELLY ANNE TR
LOT 3, BK. 590, PG. 46,

MCR.

33
'

R/
W

SOUTHEAST CORNER
LOT 3, BK. 590,

PG. 46, MCR.
P.O.C.

P.O.B.

POINT OF BEGINNING
POINT OF COMMENCEMENT

P.O.B.
P.O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
t

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
d

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
g

AutoCAD SHX Text
i

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANDERSEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
RICHARD L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
36559

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
Z

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C 

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
F 

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXHIBIT A - APN 303-02-022A

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRYE ROAD



Parcel Map Check Report  

 
Parcel Name: 303-02-022A - SRP LICENSE  
 

North:836,520.80' East:732,696.70' 

    

Segment# 1: Line   

Course: N0° 41' 36"W Length: 40.00' 

North: 836,560.79' East: 732,696.22' 

    

Segment# 2: Line   

Course: N89° 18' 24"E Length: 32.00' 

North: 836,561.18' East: 732,728.22' 

    

Segment# 3: Line   

Course: S0° 41' 36"E Length: 25.00' 

North: 836,536.18' East: 732,728.52' 

    

Segment# 4: Line   

Course: N89° 18' 24"E Length: 153.00' 

North: 836,538.04' East: 732,881.51' 

    

Segment# 5: Line   

Course: S0° 41' 36"E Length: 15.00' 

North: 836,523.04' East: 732,881.69' 

    

Segment# 6: Line   

Course: S89° 18' 24"W Length: 185.00' 

North: 836,520.80' East: 732,696.70' 

    

Perimeter: 450.00' Area: 3,575.00Sq.Ft. 

Error Closure: 0.00 Course: N90° 00' 00"W 

Error North : 0.000 East: 0.000 

    

Precision 1: 450,000,000.00   

 







ITEM  4 

City Council Memorandum      Community Services  Memo No. CP24-128
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Dawn Lange, Deputy City Manager - CFO
John Sefton, Community Services Director
Daniel Haskins, Capital Projects Division Manager

From: Alyssa Siqueiros, Construction/Design Project Manager
Subject:Professional Services Agreement for the Brooks Crossing Park Improvements 

Construction Management Services

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. PR2205.451 to
Dibble CM, LLC, for the Brooks Crossing Park Improvements Construction
Management Services, in an amount not to exceed $131,480.

Background/Discussion:
Originally developed in 1986, Brooks Crossing Park is an 8.1-acre neighborhood
park located at 1345 West Calle del Norte.  This park primarily serves the
recreational needs for the residents living in the square mile bordered by Warner,
Alma School, Ray, and Dobson roads. Existing amenities include a basketball
court, playground, lighted walking paths, sand volleyball court, and open space.

This construction management agreement will oversee improvements to the park,
including converting the existing park area lighting from high pressure sodium
(HPS) to Light Emitting Diode (LED) lighting, replacement of play structures,
additional shade structures, exercise stations, site furnishings, removing the sand
volleyball court and replacing it with a lighted pickleball court, ADA-compliant
concrete walkways, and landscape/irrigation renovations. The project scope of
work consists of pre-construction assistance, construction management services,
construction inspection, and record drawings.

The agreement completion time is 575 calendar days following Notice to Proceed.



A related Construction Agreement with DNG Construction, LLC, for the Brooks
Crossing Park Improvements, is also scheduled for this City Council meeting.

Evaluation:
The selection process was conducted in accordance with city policy and
procedure and state law. This project is being performed under the On-Call
Consultant Pre-Qualified List for Construction Management Services. Staff
recommends approval of this agreement with Dibble CM, LLC, based on
qualifications, relevant firm experience, team experience, project understanding,
and project approach.

Financial Implications:
This project is funded from General Fund dollars reallocated from the receipt
of American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) monies.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program Name Dollar

Amount
CIP
Funded
Y/N

401.4580.6110.6PR049General
Government
Capital Projects

Existing
Neighborhood
Park Improvem

$131,480.00 Y

Attachments
Location Map 
Agreement - Dibble CM 



ELLIOT RD

WARNER RD

RAY RD

CHANDLER BL

PECOS RD

GERMANN RD

QUEEN CREEK RD

OCOTILLO RD

CHANDLER HEIGHTS RD

RIGGS RD

HUNT HWVAL VISTA DR

LINDSAY RD

GILBERT RD

COOPER RD

MCQUEEN RD

ARIZONA AV

ALMA SCHOOL RD

DOBSON RD

PRICE RD

MCCLINTOCK DR

RURAL RD

KYRENE RD

56TH ST

BROOKS CROSSING PARK IMPROVEMENTS 
PROJECT NO. PR2205.451

°
NTS

GILA LN

CALLE DEL NORTE 

POST RD

MA
NO

R S
T

CE
NT

RA
L D

R

LO
NG

MO
RE

 ST

AR
RO

WH
EA

D D
R

CE
NT

RA
L D

R

MANOR ST

LO
NG

MO
RE

 ST

PROJECT LOCATION

MEMO NO. CP24-128

F:\ENGINEER\GENSERV\_ArcMap_Shared\Map Requests\Capital Projects\CP23-086 BROOKS CROSSING PARK REBUILD\CP23-086.mxd 12/15/2022 MARICELAH



Project Name: Brooks Crossing Park Improvements Page 1 

Project No.: PR2205.451 
 Rev. 1/12/2024  
 

 

 
 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Construction Management Services 

BROOKS CROSSING PARK IMPROVEMENTS 

Project No. PR2205.451 

Council Date: June 13, 2024 
 

 

This Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into on the ______ day of_________________, 2024 

(“Effective Date”), by and between City of Chandler, an Arizona municipal corporation, ("City''), 

and Dibble CM, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, ("Consultant") (City and Consultant 

may individually be referred to as “Party” and collectively referred to as “Parties”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. City proposes to engage Consultant to provide Construction Management Services for 

BROOKS CROSSING PARK IMPROVEMENTS project as more fully described in Exhibit "A", 

which is attached to and made a part of this Agreement by this reference. 

 

B. Consultant is ready, willing, and able to provide the services described in Exhibit “A” for 

the compensation and fees set forth and as described in Exhibit ”B”, which is attached to 

and made a part of this Agreement by this reference. 

 

C. City desires to enter into an Agreement with Consultant to provide these services under 

the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual promises contained in this 

Agreement, City and Consultant agree as follows: 

 

SECTION I--CONSULTANT’S SERVICES 

 

Consultant must perform the services described in Exhibit “A” to City’s satisfaction within the 

terms and conditions of this Agreement and within the care and skill that a person who 

provides similar services in Chandler, Arizona exercises under similar conditions. All work or 

services furnished by Consultant under this Agreement must be performed in a skilled and 

workmanlike manner.  All fixtures, furnishings, and equipment furnished by Consultant as 

part of the work or services under this Agreement must be new, or the latest model, and of 

the most suitable grade and quality for the intended purpose of the work or service.  

 



Project Name: Brooks Crossing Park Improvements Page 2 

Project No.: PR2205.451 
 Rev. 1/12/2024  
 

 

SECTION II--PERIOD OF SERVICE 

 

Consultant must perform the services described in Exhibit “A” for the term of this 

Agreement.  Unless amended in writing by the Parties, the Agreement term expires 575 

calendar days after the Notice to Proceed (NTP) Date. 

 

SECTION III--PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION AND FEES 

 

Unless amended in writing by the Parties, Consultant’s compensation and fees as more fully 

described in Exhibit “B” for performance of the services approved and accepted by City 

under this Agreement must not exceed $131,480 for the full term of the Agreement. 

Consultant may not increase any compensation or fees under this Agreement without the 

City’s prior written consent. Consultant must submit monthly requests for payment of 

services approved and accepted during the previous billing period and must include, as 

applicable, detailed invoices and receipts, a narrative description of the tasks accomplished 

during the billing period, a list of any deliverables submitted, and any subconsultant’s or 

supplier’s actual requests for payment plus similar narrative and listing of their work. 

Consultant must submit an Application and Certification for Payment Sheet with the monthly 

request for payment to: CapitalProjects.Payables@chandleraz.gov. Payment for those 

services negotiated as a lump sum will be made in accordance with the percentage of the 

work completed during the preceding billing period. Services negotiated as a not-to-exceed 

fee will be paid in accordance with the work effort expended on the service during the 

preceding month. All requests for payment must be submitted to City for review and 

approval. City will make payment for approved and accepted services within 30 calendar days 

of City’s receipt of the request for payment. Consultant bears all responsibility and liability for 

any and all tax obligations that result from Consultant’s performance under this Agreement.  

 

SECTION IV--CITY'S OBLIGATIONS 

 

As part of Consultant’s services under this Agreement, City will provide furnished items, 

services, or obligations as detailed in Exhibit “D”. 

 

SECTION V--GENERAL CONDITIONS 

 

5.1 Notices. Unless otherwise provided herein, demands under this Agreement must be in 

writing and will be deemed to have been duly given and received either (a) on the date of 

service if personally served on the party to whom notice is to be given, or (b) on the third day 

after the date of the postmark of deposit by first class United States mail, registered or 

certified, postage prepaid and properly addressed as follows: 

  



Project Name: Brooks Crossing Park Improvements Page 3 

Project No.: PR2205.451 
 Rev. 1/12/2024  
 

 

 
 

To City: City of Chandler - Public Works & Utilities Department 

Attn:  CIP City Engineer: Daniel Haskins, P.E. 

P.O. Box 4008, Mail Stop 407 

Chandler, AZ 85244-4008 

Phone:  480-782-3335         Email:  Daniel.haskins@chandleraz.gov 
 

With a copy to: City of Chandler - Public Works & Utilities Department 

Attn: Raymond Potts, Project Manager 

P.O. Box 4008, Mail Stop 407, Chandler, AZ 85244-4008 

Phone: 480-782-3326               Email: raymond.potts@chandleraz.gov 

To Consultant: 
LEGAL COMPANY NAME: Dibble CM, LLC 

Mailing Address:  3020 E. Camelback Rd., Suite 201, Phoenix, AZ 85016 

Physical Address:   3020 E. Camelback Rd., Suite 201, Phoenix, AZ 85016 

Statutory Agent Name: KC Brandon 

Statutory Agent Mailing Address: 

3020 E. Camelback Rd., Suite 201, 

Phoenix, AZ 85016 

Statutory Agent Physical Address: 

3020 E. Camelback Rd., Suite 201, 

Phoenix, AZ 85016 

CONSULTANT’S AUTHORIZED PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE  

Name: KC Brandon 

Title: President 

Phone:  602-957-3936 

Email: kcbrandon@dibblecm.com 

 

5.2 Records/Audit. Records of Consultant’s direct personnel payroll, reimbursable expenses 

pertaining to this Agreement and records of accounts between City and Consultant must be 

kept on the basis of generally accepted accounting principles and must be made available to 

City and its auditors for up to three years following City’s final acceptance of the services 

under this Agreement (this requirement is increased to five years if construction of this 

project is federally funded). City, its authorized representative, or any federal agency, 

reserves the right to audit Consultant’s records to verify the accuracy and appropriateness of 

all cost and pricing data, including data used to negotiate this Agreement and any 

amendments. City reserves the right to decrease the total amount of Agreement price or 

payments made under this Agreement or request reimbursement from Consultant following 

final Agreement payment on this Agreement if, upon audit of Consultant’s records, the audit 

discloses Consultant has provided false, misleading, or inaccurate cost and pricing data. 

Consultant will include a similar provision in all of its Agreements with subconsultants who 

provide services under the Agreement to ensure that City, its authorized representative, or 

the appropriate federal agency, has access to the subconsultants’ records to verify the 



Project Name: Brooks Crossing Park Improvements Page 4 

Project No.: PR2205.451 
 Rev. 1/12/2024  
 

 

accuracy of all cost and pricing data. City reserves the right to decrease Agreement price or 

payments made on this Agreement or request reimbursement from Consultant following 

final payment on this Agreement if the above provision is not included in subconsultant 

agreements, and one or more subconsultants refuse to allow City to audit their records to 

verify the accuracy and appropriateness of all cost and pricing data. If, following an audit of 

this Agreement, the audit discloses Consultant has provided false, misleading, or inaccurate 

cost and pricing data, and the cost discrepancies exceed 1% of the total Agreement billings, 

Consultant will be liable for reimbursement of the reasonable, actual cost of the audit. 

 

5.3 Alteration in Character of Work. Whenever an alteration in the character of work results 

in a substantial change in this Agreement, thereby materially increasing or decreasing the 

scope of services, cost of performance, or Project schedule, the work will be performed as 

directed by City. However, before any modified work is started, a written amendment must 

be approved and executed by City and Consultant. Such amendment must not be effective 

until approved by City. Additions to, modifications, or deletions from this Agreement as 

provided herein may be made, and the compensation to be paid to Consultant may 

accordingly be adjusted by mutual agreement of the Parties. It is distinctly understood and 

agreed that no claim for extra services or materials furnished by Consultant will be allowed 

by City except as provided herein, nor must Consultant do any work or furnish any materials 

not covered by this Agreement unless such work is first authorized in writing. Any such work 

or materials furnished by Consultant without prior written authorization will be at 

Consultant’s own risk, cost, and expense, and Consultant hereby agrees that without written 

authorization Consultant will make no claim for compensation for such work or materials 

furnished. 

 

5.4 Termination. City and Consultant hereby agree to the full performance of the covenants 

contained herein, except that City reserves the right, at its discretion and without cause, to 

terminate or abandon any service provided for in this Agreement, or abandon any portion of 

the Project for which services have been performed by Consultant. In the event City abandons 

or suspends the services, or any part of the services as provided in this Agreement, City will 

notify Consultant in writing and immediately after receiving such notice, Consultant must 

discontinue advancing the work specified under this Agreement. Upon such termination, 

abandonment, or suspension, Consultant must deliver to City all drawings, plans, 

specifications, special provisions, estimates and other work entirely or partially completed, 

together with all unused materials supplied by City. Consultant must appraise the work 

Consultant has completed and submit Consultant’s appraisal to City for evaluation. City may 

inspect Consultant’s work to appraise the work completed. Consultant will receive 

compensation in full for services performed to the date of such termination. The fee will be 

paid in accordance with Section Ill of this Agreement, and as mutually agreed upon by 

Consultant and City. If there is no mutual agreement on payment, the final determination will 

be made in accordance with the "Disputes" provision in this Agreement. However, in no event 

may the fee exceed the fee set forth in Section Ill of this Agreement nor as amended in 

accordance with Section "Alteration in Character of Work." City will make the final payment 

within 60 days after Consultant has delivered the last of the partially completed items and 

the Parties agree on the final fee. If City is found to have improperly terminated the 

Agreement for cause or default, the termination will be converted to a termination for 

convenience in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. 

 



Project Name: Brooks Crossing Park Improvements Page 5 

Project No.: PR2205.451 
 Rev. 1/12/2024  
 

 

5.5 Indemnification. To the extent permitted by law, the Consultant ("lndemnitor") must 

indemnify, save and hold harmless City and its officers, officials, agents and employees 

("lndemnitee") from any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses or expenses 

(including court costs, attorneys' fees and costs of claim processing, investigation and 

litigation) ("Claims") caused or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the wrongful, 

negligent or willful acts, or errors or omissions of Consultant or any of its owners, officers, 

directors, agents, employees, or subconsultants in connection with this Agreement. This 

indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under workers' 

compensation law or on account of the failure of Consultant to conform to any federal, state 

or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree. Consultant must indemnify 

lndemnitee from and against any and all Claims, except those arising solely from 

lndemnitee's own negligent or willful acts or omissions. Consultant is responsible for primary 

loss investigation, defense and judgment costs where this indemnification applies. In 

consideration of the award of this Agreement, Consultant agrees to waive all rights of 

subrogation against lndemnitee for losses arising from or related to this Agreement. The 

obligations of Consultant under this provision survive the termination or expiration of this 

Agreement. 

 

5.6 Insurance Requirements. Consultant must procure insurance under the terms and 

conditions and for the amounts of coverage set forth in Exhibit “C” against claims that may 

arise from or relate to performance of the work under this Agreement by Consultant and its 

agents, representatives, employees, and subconsultants. Consultant and any subconsultant 

must maintain this insurance until all of their obligations have been discharged, including any 

warranty periods under this Agreement. These insurance requirements are minimum 

requirements for this Agreement and in no way limit the indemnity covenants contained in 

this Agreement. City in no way warrants that the minimum limits stated in Exhibit “C” are 

sufficient to protect Consultant from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of the 

work under this Agreement by Consultant, Consultant’s agents, representatives, employees, 

or subconsultants. Consultant is free to purchase such additional insurance as may be 

determined necessary. 

 

5.7 Cooperation and Further Documentation. Consultant agrees to provide City such other 

duly executed documents as may be reasonably requested by City to implement the intent 

of this Agreement. 

 

5.8 Successors and Assigns. City and Consultant each bind itself, its partners, successors, 

assigns, and legal representatives to the other party to this Agreement and to the partners, 

successors, assigns, and legal representatives of such other party in respect to all covenants 

of this Agreement. Neither City nor Consultant may assign, sublet, or transfer its interest in 

this Agreement without the written consent of the other party. In no event may any 

contractual relation be created between any third party and City. 

 

5.9 Disputes. In any dispute arising out of an interpretation of this Agreement or the duties 

required not disposed of by agreement between Consultant and City, the final determination 

at the administrative level will be made by City Engineer. 

 

5.10 Completeness and Accuracy of Consultant’s Work. Consultant must be responsible for 

the completeness and accuracy of Consultant’s services, data, and other work prepared or 



Project Name: Brooks Crossing Park Improvements Page 6 

Project No.: PR2205.451 
 Rev. 1/12/2024  
 

 

compiled under Consultant’s obligation under this Agreement and must correct, at 

Consultant’s expense, all willful or negligent errors, omissions, or acts that may be discovered.  

Correction of errors disclosed and determined to exist during any construction of the project on 

architectural or engineering drawings and specifications must be accomplished by Consultant.  

The cost of the design necessary to correct those errors attributable to Consultant and any 

damage incurred by City as a result of additional construction costs caused by such engineering 

or architectural errors will be chargeable to Consultant and will not be considered a cost of the 

Work.  The fact that City has accepted or approved Consultant’s work will in no way relieve 

Consultant of any of Consultant’s responsibilities. 

 

5.11 Reporting. Written monthly reports, along with updated work schedules, will be made by 

Consultant in the format prescribed by City.  These reports will be delivered to City per schedule.  

When requested by City, Consultant will attend Council meetings and provide finished documents 

including correspondence for Council action, supporting charts, graphs, drawings and colored 

slides of same. 

 

5.12 Withholding Payment. City reserves the right to withhold funds from Consultant’s 

payments up to the amount equal to the claims City may have against Consultant until such 

time that a settlement on those claims has been reached. 

 

5.13 City's Right of Cancellation. The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement is subject to 

cancellation by City under the provisions of Section 38-511, Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.). 

 

5.14 Independent Consultant. For this Agreement Consultant constitutes an independent 

contractor. Any provisions in this Agreement that may appear to give City the right to direct 

Consultant as to the details of accomplishing the work or to exercise a measure of control 

over the work means that Consultant must follow the wishes of City as to the results of the 

work only. These results must comply with all applicable laws and ordinances. 

 

5.15 Project Staffing. Prior to the start of any work under this Agreement, Consultant must 

submit to City detailed resumes of key personnel that will be involved in performing services 

prescribed in the Agreement. City hereby acknowledges its acceptance of such personnel to 

perform services under this Agreement. At any time hereafter that Consultant desires to 

change key personnel while performing under the Agreement, Consultant must submit the 

qualifications of the new personnel to City for prior approval. Key personnel include, but are 

not limited to, principals-in-charge, project manager, and project Consultant. Consultant will 

maintain an adequate and competent staff of qualified persons, as may be determined by 

City, throughout the performance of this Agreement to ensure acceptable and timely 

completion of the Scope of Services. If City objects, with reasonable cause, to any of 

Consultant’s staff, Consultant must take prompt corrective action acceptable to City and, if 

required, remove such personnel from the Project and replace with new personnel agreed to 

by City. 

 

5.16 Consultants or Subconsultants. Prior to beginning the work, Consultant must furnish City 

for approval the names of consultants or subconsultants to be used under this Agreement. 

Any subsequent changes are subject to City’s written prior approval. 

 

5.17 Force Majeure. If either party is delayed or prevented from the performance of any act 



Project Name: Brooks Crossing Park Improvements Page 7 

Project No.: PR2205.451 
 Rev. 1/12/2024  
 

 

required under this Agreement by reason of acts of God or other cause beyond the control 

and without fault of the Party (financial inability excepted), performance of that act may be 

excused, but only for the period of the delay, if the Party provides written notice to the other 

Party within ten days of such act. The time for performance of the act may be extended for a 

period equivalent to the period of delay from the date written notice is received by the other 

Party. 

 

5.18 Compliance with Federal Laws. Consultant understands and acknowledges the 

applicability of the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act 

of 1986 and the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1989 to it. Consultant agrees to comply with these 

laws in performing this Agreement and to permit City to verify such compliance. 

 

5.19 No Israel Boycott. By entering into this Agreement, Consultant certifies that Consultant 

is not currently engaged in, and agrees for the duration of the Agreement, not to engage in a 

boycott of Israel as defined by state statute. 

 

5.20 Legal Worker Requirements. A.R.S. § 41-4401 prohibits City from awarding an Agreement 

to any consultant who fails, or whose subconsultants fail, to comply with A.R.S. § 23-214(A). 

Therefore, Consultant agrees Consultant and each subconsultant it uses warrants their 

compliance with all federal immigration laws and regulations that relate to their employees 

and their compliance with § 23-214, subsection A. A breach of this warranty will be deemed a 

material breach of the Agreement and may be subject to penalties up to and including 

termination of the Agreement. City retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any 

Consultant’s or subconsultant’s employee who provides services under this Agreement to 

ensure that Consultant and subconsultants comply with the warranty under this provision. 

 

5.21 Lawful Presence Requirement. A.R.S. §§ 1-501 and 1-502 prohibit City from awarding an 

Agreement to any natural person who cannot establish that such person is lawfully present 

in the United States. To establish lawful presence, a person must produce qualifying 

identification and sign a City-provided affidavit affirming that the identification provided is 

genuine. This requirement will be imposed at the time of Agreement award. This requirement 

does not apply to business organizations such as corporations, partnerships, or limited 

liability companies. 

 

5.22 Covenant Against Contingent Fees. Consultant warrants that no person has been 

employed or retained to solicit or secure this Agreement upon an agreement or 

understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, and that no 

member of the Chandler City Council, or any City employee has any interest, financially, or 

otherwise, in Consultant’s firm. For breach or violation of this warrant, City may annul this 

Agreement without liability or, at its discretion, to deduct from the Agreement price or 

consideration, the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee. 

 

5.23 Non-Waiver Provision. The failure of either Party to enforce any of the provisions of this 

Agreement or to require performance of the other Party of any of the provisions hereof must 

not be construed to be a waiver of such provisions, nor must it affect the validity of this 

Agreement or any part thereof, or the right of either Party to thereafter enforce each and 

every provision. 

 



Project Name: Brooks Crossing Park Improvements Page 8 

Project No.: PR2205.451 
 Rev. 1/12/2024  
 

 

5.24 Disclosure of Information Adverse to City’s Interests. To evaluate and avoid potential 

conflicts of interest, Consultant must provide written notice to City, as set forth in this Section, 

of any work or services performed by Consultant for third parties that may involve or be 

associated with any real property or personal property owned or leased by City. Such notice 

must be given 7 business days prior to commencement of the services by Consultant for a 

third party, or 7 business days prior to an adverse action as defined below. Written notice 

and disclosure must be sent in accordance with Section 6.7 above.  An adverse action under 

this Agreement includes, but is not limited to: (a) using data as defined in the Agreement 

acquired in connection with this Agreement to assist a third party in pursuing administrative 

or judicial action against City; or (b) testifying or providing evidence on behalf of any person 

in connection with an administrative or judicial action against City; or (c) using data to produce 

income for Consultant or its employees independently of performing the services under this 

Agreement, without the prior written consent of City. Consultant represents that except for 

those persons, entities, and projects identified to City, the services performed by Consultant 

under this Agreement are not expected to create an interest with any person, entity, or third 

party project that is or may be adverse to City’s interests. Consultant’s failure to provide a 

written notice and disclosure of the information as set forth in this Section constitute a 

material breach of this Agreement. 

 

5.25 Data Confidentiality and Data Security. As used in the Agreement, "data" means all 

information, whether written or verbal, including plans, photographs, studies, investigations, 

audits, analyses, samples, reports, calculations, internal memos, meeting minutes, data field 

notes, work product, proposals, correspondence and any other similar documents or 

information prepared by, obtained by, or transmitted to Consultant or its subconsultants in 

the performance of this Agreement. The Parties agree that all data, regardless of form, 

including originals, images, and reproductions, prepared by, obtained by, or transmitted to 

Consultant or its subconsultants in connection with Consultant’s or its subconsultant’s 

performance of this Agreement is confidential and proprietary information belonging to City. 

Except as specifically provided in this Agreement, Consultant or its subconsultants must not 

divulge data to any third party without City’s prior written consent. Consultant or its 

subconsultants must not use the data for any purposes except to perform the services 

required under this Agreement. These prohibitions do not apply to the following data 

provided to Consultant or its subconsultants have first given the required notice to City: (a) 

data which was known to Consultant or its subconsultants prior to its performance under this 

Consultant or its subconsultants by a third party, who to the best of Consultant’s or its 

subconsultants’ knowledge and belief, had the legal right to make such disclosure and 

Consultant or its subconsultants are not otherwise required to hold such data in confidence; 

or (c) data which is required to be disclosed by virtue of law, regulation, or court order, to 

which Consultant or its subconsultants are subject. In the event Consultant or its 

subconsultants are required or requested to disclose data to a third party, or any other 

information to which Consultant or its subconsultants became privy as a result of any other 

Agreement with City, Consultant must first notify City as set forth in this Section of the request 

or demand for the data. Consultant or its subconsultants must give City sufficient facts so 

that City can be given an opportunity to first give its consent or take such action that City may 

deem appropriate to protect such data or other information from disclosure. All data must 

continue to be subject to the confidentiality agreements of this Agreement. Consultant or its 

subconsultants assume all liability to maintain the confidentiality of the data in its possession 

and agrees to compensate City if any of the provisions of this Section are violated by 



Project Name: Brooks Crossing Park Improvements Page 9 

Project No.: PR2205.451 
 Rev. 1/12/2024  
 

 

Consultant, its employees, agents or subconsultants. Solely for the purposes of seeking 

injunctive relief, it is agreed that a breach of this Section must be deemed to cause irreparable 

harm that justifies injunctive relief in court. Consultant agrees that the requirements of this 

Section must be incorporated into all subagreements entered into by Consultant. A violation 

of this Section may result in immediate termination of this Agreement without notice. 

 

5.26 Personal Identifying Information-Data Security. Personal identifying information, 

financial account information, or restricted City information, whether electronic format or 

hard copy, must be secured and protected at all times by Consultant or its subconsultants. At 

a minimum, Consultant or its subconsultants must encrypt or password-protect electronic 

files. This includes data saved to laptop computers, computerized devices, or removable 

storage devices. When personal identifying information, financial account information, or 

restricted City information, regardless of its format, is no longer necessary, the information 

must be redacted or destroyed through appropriate and secure methods that ensure the 

information cannot be viewed, accessed, or reconstructed. In the event that data collected or 

obtained by Consultant or its subconsultants in connection with this Agreement is believed 

to have been compromised, Consultant or its subconsultants must immediately notify City 

contact. Consultant agrees to reimburse City for any costs incurred by City to investigate 

potential breaches of this data and, where applicable, the cost of notifying individuals who 

may be impacted by the breach. Consultant agrees that the requirements of this Section must 

be incorporated into all subcontracts entered into by Consultant. It is further agreed that a 

violation of this Section must be deemed to cause irreparable harm that justifies injunctive 

relief in court. A violation of this Section may result in immediate termination of this 

Agreement without notice. The obligations of Consultant or its subconsultants under this 

Section must survive the termination of this Agreement. 

 

5.27 Jurisdiction and Venue. This Agreement is made under and must be construed in 

accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Arizona without regard to the 

conflicts or choice of law provisions thereof. Any action to enforce any provision of this 

Agreement or to obtain any remedy with respect hereto must be brought in the courts 

located in Maricopa County, Arizona, and for this purpose, each Party hereby expressly and 

irrevocably consents to the jurisdiction and venue of such court. 

 

5.28 Survival. All warranties, representations, and indemnifications by Consultant must 

survive the completion or termination of this Agreement. 

 

5.29 Modification. Except as expressly provided herein to the contrary, no supplement, 

modification, or amendment of any term of this Agreement will be deemed binding or 

effective unless in writing and signed by the Parties.  

 

5.30 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement or the application to any person or 

circumstance may be invalid, illegal or unenforceable to any extent, the remainder of this 

Agreement and the application will not be affected and will be enforceable to the fullest 

extent permitted by law. 

 

5.31 Integration. This Agreement contains the full agreement of the Parties. Any prior or 

contemporaneous written or oral agreement between the Parties regarding the subject 

matter is merged and superseded. 



Project Name: Brooks Crossing Park Improvements Page 10 

Project No.: PR2205.451 
 Rev. 1/12/2024  
 

 

 

5.32 Time is of the Essence. Time of each of the terms, covenants, and conditions of this 

Agreement is hereby expressly made of the essence. 

 

5.33 Date of Performance. If the date of performance of any obligation or the last day of any 

time period provided for should fall on a Saturday, Sunday, or holiday for City, the obligation 

will be due and owing, and the time period will expire, on the first day after which is not a 

Saturday, Sunday or legal City holiday. Except as may otherwise be set forth in this 

Agreement, any performance provided for herein will be timely made if completed no later 

than 5:00 p.m. (Chandler time) on the day of performance. 

 

5.34 Third Party Beneficiary. Nothing under this Agreement will be construed to give any 

rights or benefits in the Agreement to anyone other than City and Consultant, and all duties 

and responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement will be for the sole and exclusive 

benefit of City and Consultant and not for the benefit of any other party. 

 

5.35 Conflict in Language. All work performed must conform to all applicable City of Chandler 

codes, ordinances, and requirements as outlined in this Agreement. If there is a conflict in 

interpretation between provisions in this Agreement and those in Exhibit "A", the provisions 

in this Agreement prevail. 

 

5.36 Document/Information Release. Documents and materials released to Consultant, 

which are identified by City as sensitive and confidential, are City’s property. The 

document/material must be issued by and returned to City upon completion of the services 

under this Agreement. Consultant secondary distribution, disclosure, copying, or duplication 

in any manner is prohibited without City’s prior written approval. The document/material 

must be kept secure at all times. This directive applies to all City documents, whether in 

photographic, printed, or electronic data format.  

 

5.37 Exhibits. The following exhibits are made a part of this Agreement and are incorporated 

by reference: 
 
    Exhibit A - Scope of Services / Schedule 

Exhibit B - Compensation and Fees 

Exhibit C - Insurance Requirements 

Exhibit D - Special Conditions 

Exhibit E – Subconsultant Documents with Consultant (if applicable) 

Exhibit F - Federal Requirements (if applicable)  

 

5.38 Special Conditions. As part of the services Consultant provides under this Agreement, 

Consultant agrees to comply with and fully perform the special terms and conditions set forth 

in Exhibit “D”, which is attached to and made a part of this Agreement. 

 

5.39 Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment Laws. Consultant must comply with all 

applicable City, state, and federal non-discrimination and anti-harassment laws, rules, and 

regulations. 

 

5.40 Licenses and Permits. Beginning with the Effective Date and for the full term of this 



Project Name: Brooks Crossing Park Improvements Page 11 

Project No.: PR2205.451 
 Rev. 1/12/2024  
 

 

Agreement, Consultant must maintain all applicable City, state, and federal licenses and 

permits required to fully perform Consultant’s services under this Agreement. 

 

5.41 Warranties. Consultant must furnish a one-year warranty on all work and services 

performed under this Agreement. Consultant must furnish, or cause to be furnished, a two-

year warranty on all fixtures, furnishings, and equipment furnished by Consultant, 

subconsultants or suppliers under this Agreement. Any defects in design, workmanship, or 

materials that do not comply with this Agreement must be corrected by Consultant (including, 

but not limited to, all parts and labor) at Consultant’s sole cost and expense. All written 

warranties and redlines for as-built conditions must be delivered to City on or before City’s 

final acceptance of Consultant’s services under this Agreement.  

 

5.42 Cooperative Purchasing Agreement (S.A.V.E. – Strategic Alliance for Volume 

Expenditures).  In addition to City of Chandler and with the approval of Consultant, this 

Agreement may be extended for use by other municipalities, school districts, and government 

agencies of the State.  Any such usage by other entities must be in accordance with the 

ordinance, charter, or procurement rules and regulations of the respective political entity.   

 

5.43 Budget Approval into Next Fiscal Year.  This Agreement will commence on the Effective 

Date and continue in full force and effect until it is terminated or expires in accordance with 

the provisions of this Agreement.  The Parties recognize that the continuation of this 

Agreement after the close of the City's fiscal year, which ends on June 30 of each year, is 

subject to the City Council's approval of a budget that includes an appropriation for this item 

as an expenditure.  The City does not represent that this budget item will be actually adopted. 

This determination is solely made by the City Council. 

 

5.44 Forced Labor of Ethnic Uyghurs Prohibited.  By entering into this Agreement, Contractor 

certifies and agrees Contractor does not currently use and will not use for the term of this 

Agreement: (i) the forced labor of ethnic Uyghurs in the People's Republic of China; or (ii) any 

goods or services produced by the forced labor of ethnic Uyghurs in the People's Republic of 

China; or (iii) any contractors, subcontractors or suppliers that use the forced labor or any 

goods or services produced by the forced labor of ethnic Uyghurs in the People's Republic of 

China. 

 

5.45 License to City for Reasonable Use. With this Agreement, Consultant and its 

subconsultants hereby grant a license to City, its agents, employees, and representatives for 

an indefinite period of time to reasonably use, make copies, and distribute as appropriate 

the Documents, works or deliverables developed or created as a result of the Project and this 

Agreement. This license also includes the making of derivative works.  

 
  



Project Name: Brooks Crossing Park Improvements Page 12 

Project No.: PR2205.451

 Rev. 1/12/2024 
 

This Agreement will be in full force and effect only when it has been approved and executed 

by the duly authorized City officials. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date. 

“CITY” CITY OF CHANDLER 

MAYOR 

RECOMMENDED BY: 

Daniel Haskins, P.E. 

CIP City Engineer   

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

City Attorney 

ATTEST: 

 City Clerk  Seal 

“CONSULTANT” 

DIBBLE CM, LLC 

Signature  Date 

Print Name 

Title 

Signer Email Address 

5/3/2024

KC Brandon

President

kcbrandon@dibblecm.com

DanielH
Snapshot



 

 

Project Name: Brooks Crossing Park Improvements Page A-1  

Project No.: PR2205.451 

Rev. 1/12/2024 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 

SCOPE OF SERVICES/SCHEDULE 
 

 



 

 

 
 
 
February 13, 2024 
 
City of Chandler 
 
Attn: Mr. Raymond Potts 
 Construction Project Manager 
 Public Works and Utilities 
 Capital Projects Division 
 
Re: Project No. PR2205.451 
 Brooks Crossing Park 
 Construction Management and Inspection Services Proposal 
  
Dear Mr. Potts, 
 
Dibble CM is pleased to submit our construction management and inspection services proposal for this project. 
This proposal is based on a total project duration of 180 calendar days, 150 days for construction and 30 days 
for project closeout. Following is a summary of services we will provide: 

Construction Administration Activities 
• Monitor job progress and document quantities of work completed. 
• Review contractor’s pay requests and make recommendations to the city. 
• Monitor the Contractor’s progress in relation to the approved project schedule.  Notify the 

Contractor and City of any deviations from the approved schedule which may cause a delay to 
the scheduled completion date.  Request schedule recovery plans and revised schedules when 
needed, to show progress in conformance with contract requirements.  Review and provide 
comments to schedule updates submitted by the Contractor. 

• Evaluate Contractor requests for extra cost work, or construction contract time extensions and 
make recommendations to the City regarding approval or rejection.  Prepare Change Orders and 
“Contract Contingency Allowance” approval documents for processing and final contract change 
order based on approved requests. 

• Conduct progress meetings to review the current schedule and work progress and to facilitate 
resolution of construction issues. Prepare minutes of the meetings and distribute them to the 
attendees and project stakeholders. 

• Maintain files and documentation of all information related to the project including 
correspondence, submittals, RFIs, inspection reports, test reports, pay applications, progress 
schedules, meeting minutes, change orders, and job photos.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
Construction Inspection Activities 

• Provide part-time (30 hrs. per week) construction inspection and surveillance of the 
contractor’s work. 

• Measure and document pay quantities. 
• Monitor Contractor’s Quality Control field testing, review materials test reports, and notify the 

Contractor of deficiencies in the work as indicated in the tests and reports.  
• Observe and document unforeseen conditions, changed conditions, and extra work activities 

performed by the contractor.    
 
Dibble CM appreciates this opportunity.  Please let me know if you have any questions or comments regarding 
this proposal.    
 
Respectfully, 
 
Marc Stern 
 
Marc Stern 
Construction Manager 
Dibble CM 
 
 
All services are provided as T & M Not-To-Exceed Total Proposal. Only actual hours for services provided will 
be billed.  
• Unit Prices are all-inclusive. No additional charges for mileage or other incidental expenses.  
• Proposal is based on 30 hours per week for inspection services.  
• Additional Inspection coverage that is required due to delayed schedules will require a commensurate 
   adjustment in fee.  
 



 

1 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

PR2205.451 – Brooks Crossing Park Improvements 
 
PROJECT TASKS 
 
1. PRE-CONSTRUCTION ASSISTANCE 

A. Task 1.1 Preconstruction Assistance  
i. Consultant must attend the pre-construction meeting.  

2. CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT  
A. Task 2.1 Weekly Construction Meetings 

i. Consultant must generate meeting agendas and conduct weekly construction 
meetings.  Each meeting includes agenda to be sent prior to meeting and 
minutes after meeting has concluded; Request for Information (RFI); Shop 
Drawing; Request for Information (RFI); Field Directive (FD); Material 
Certification; and Allowance Logs. Consultant assumes 20 weekly meetings will 
be held. 

B. Task 2.2 CPM Schedule 
i. Consultant must review and evaluate Contractor’s initial CPM schedule and 

provide recommendations for acceptance.  
ii. Consultant must review Contractor’s monthly CPM schedule updates 

submitted with each payment application, identify CPM tasks behind schedule 
that may affect critical path items, project substantial and final completion 
dates, and initiate correspondence to City regarding those tasks. Consultant 
assumes 5 reviews of updated CPM schedule.  

C. Task 2.3 Requests for Information (RFI’s) 
i. Consultant must prepare and maintain a log of all RFI’s. 

D. Task 2.4 Shop Drawing Submittals 
i. Consultant must maintain a log of all submittals. 

E. Task 2.5 Requests for Proposal (RFP) 
i. Consultant must prepare Requests for Proposal (RFP) documents detailing 

requested additional work tasks; review and evaluate Contractor RFP 
responses (cost deviations) with approval recommendations; and prepare and 
maintain a log of all RFP’s. Consultant assumes 6 RFPs.   

F.  Task 2.6 Field Directives (FD’s) 
i. Consultant must prepare Field Directive (FD) documents detailing requested 

additional work tasks; review and evaluate Contractor FD responses with 
approval recommendations; and prepare and maintain a log of all FD’s. 
Consultant assumes 6 FD’s.   

G. Task 2.7 Contractor Payment Applications 
i. Consultant must review and evaluate Contractor monthly payment 

applications and make recommendation for payment; maintain a weekly 
record of constructed pay quantities and compile monthly totals; and 
coordinate payment application with the City quantity report and the 



 

2 
 

inspectors’ daily logs. Consultant assumes a maximum of 5 payment 
applications, with 2 reviews each. 

3. CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION 
A. Task 3.1 Inspection Services 

i. Consultant must provide weekly construction inspection to verify materials 
and installations conform to construction documents; prepare daily inspection 
reports documenting Contractor construction activities and progress during 
field inspection visits; and perform intermittent erosion control inspections. 
Consultant assumes 1 inspector part time 30-hours per week for duration of 
project. 

B. Task 3.2 Project Closeout    
i. Consultant must compile non-conformance list prior to Substantial 

Completion; schedule and conduct Substantial Completion inspection; 
prepare Substantial Completion punch list generated from Substantial 
Completion inspection; track items on punch list and note completed items; 
and complete and distribute Substantial Completion certificates. 

ii. Consultant must schedule and conduct Final Completion inspection; and 
complete and distribute Final Completion certificates. 

iii. Consultant must provide all documents in an electronic version that matches 
the City’s filing system, so it can be imported into City’s files. 

4. MATERIALS TESTING 
A. Task 4.1 Quality Control (QC) Test Program 

i. Consultant must review and verify Contractor’s Quality Control material test 
type and frequencies are consistent with City and MAG; review and evaluate 
Contractor’s QC test schedule and provide recommendations on acceptance; 
and review and evaluate all Contractor sampling, test, and inspection results 
for conformance with construction documents.  

5. RECORD DRAWINGS  
A. Task 5.1 Record Drawings 

i.  Review and monitor Contractor’s monthly updates on red-line drawing set. 
 

ASSUMPTION, CLARIFICATIONS, AND EXCLUSIONS 

1. Application fees for City reviews and permits will be paid by CITY. 

2. The Owner’s Allowance will only be utilized with prior written approval from the City 

representative. 

3. The Direct Expense Allowance will be used for normal reimbursable expenses on the project.  

Items must be billed at cost and backup must be provided with pay applications. 



 

 

Project Name: Brooks Crossing Park Improvements Page B-1 

Project No.: PR2205.451  

Rev. 1/12/2024  
 

EXHIBIT “B” 

COMPENSATION AND FEES 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Task Cost

1
1.1 350.00$  

350.00$  

2
2.1 9,700.00$  

2.2 1,650.00$  

2.3 2,755.00$  

2.4 2,755.00$  

2.5 2,755.00$  

2.6 2,755.00$  

2.7 2,425.00$  

24,795.00$  

3
3.1 93,960.00$  

3.2 4,175.00$  

98,135.00$  

4
4.1 1,550.00$  

1,550.00$  

6
5.1 1,650.00$  

1,650.00$  

-$  
-$  
-$  

Project Closeout

RECORD DRAWINGS

SUBCONSULTANTS

SUBTOTAL TASK 5:

QC Test Program (Task per Exibit A Materials Testing Task 4.1.i)
MATERIALS TESTING

Inspection Services

SUBTOTAL TASK 3:

Record Drawings

PRE-CONSTRUCTION ASSISTANCE

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT

SUBTOTAL TASK 6:

Subconsultant Name

Subconsultant Name
Subconsultant Name

Field Directive (FD)

SUBTOTAL TASK 1:

CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION

SUBTOTAL TASK 2:

Contractor Payment Applications

EXHIBIT "B"
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT

SCOPE OF SERVICES
FEE SCHEDULE

PR2205.451 - Brooks Crossing Park Improvements

Description

Requests for Proposal (RFP)

CPM Schedule

Requests for Information (RFI)

Shop Drawing Submittals

Pre-Construction Assistance

Weekly Construction Meetings



-$                             
-$                            

5,000.00$                   
-$                             

5,000.00$                  

131,480.00$     

Owner's Allowance
SUBTOTAL ALLOWANCES:

PROJECT TOTAL:

SUBTOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS:
Subconsultant Name

ALLOWANCES
Direct Expense Allowance



 

 

Project Name: Brooks Crossing Park Improvements Page C-1 

Project No.: PR2205.451 

Rev. 1/12/2024  
 

EXHIBIT “C” 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 

1. General. 

 

1.1 At the same time as execution of this Agreement, Consultant must furnish City a certificate 

of insurance on a standard insurance industry ACORD form.  The ACORD form must be 

issued by an insurance company authorized to transact business in the State of Arizona 

possessing a current A.M. Best, Inc. rating of A-7, or better and legally authorized to do 

business in the State of Arizona with policies and forms satisfactory to City.  Provided, 

however, the A.M. Best rating requirement will not be deemed to apply to required Workers’ 

Compensation coverage.  

 

1.2 Consultant and any of its subconsultants must procure and maintain, until all of their 

obligations have been discharged, including any warranty periods under this Agreement are 

satisfied, the insurances set forth below. 

 

1.3 The insurance requirements set forth below are minimum requirements for this Agreement 

and in no way limit the indemnity covenants contained in this Agreement. 

 

1.4 City in no way warrants that the minimum insurance limits contained in this Agreement are 

sufficient to protect Consultant from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of 

the Agreement services under this Agreement by Consultant, its agents, representatives, 

employees, subconsultants, and Consultant is free to purchase any additional insurance as 

may be determined necessary. 

 

1.5 Failure to demand evidence of full compliance with the insurance requirements in this 

Agreement or failure to identify any insurance deficiency will not relieve Consultant from, 

nor will it be considered a waiver of its obligation to maintain the required insurance at all 

times during the performance of this Agreement. 

 

1.6 Use of subconsultants:  If any work is subcontracted in any way, Consultant must execute a 

written Agreement with subconsultant containing the same Indemnification Clause and 

Insurance Requirements as City requires of Consultant in this Agreement. Consultant is 

responsible for executing the Agreement with the subconsultant and obtaining Certificates 

of Insurance and verifying the insurance requirements. 
 

2. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance.  Consultant must provide coverage with limits of 

liability not less than those stated below. 

 

2.1 Professional Liability.  If the Agreement is the subject of any professional services or work 

performed by Consultant, or if Consultant engages in any professional services or work 

adjunct or residual to performing the work under this Agreement, Consultant must maintain 

Professional Liability insurance covering errors and omissions arising out of the work or 

services performed by Consultant, or anyone employed by Consultant, or anyone whose 

acts, mistakes, errors and omissions Consultant is legally liable, with a liability limit of 

$1,000,000 each claim and $2,000,000 all claims.  In the event the Professional Liability 

insurance policy is written on a “claims made” basis, coverage must extend for 3 years past 



 

 

Project Name: Brooks Crossing Park Improvements Page C-2 

Project No.: PR2205.451 

Rev. 1/12/2024  
 

completion and acceptance of the work or services, and Consultant, or its selected Design 

Professional will submit Certificates of Insurance as evidence the required coverage is in 

effect.  The Design Professional must annually submit Certificates of Insurance citing that the 

applicable coverage is in force and contains the required provisions for a 3 year period. 

 

2.2 Commercial General Liability-Occurrence Form.  Consultant must maintain “occurrence” form 

Commercial General Liability insurance with a limit of not less than $2,000,000 for each 

occurrence, $4,000,000 aggregate.  Said insurance must also include coverage for products 

and completed operations, independent contractors, personal injury and advertising injury. 

If any Excess insurance is utilized to fulfill the requirements of this paragraph, the Excess 

insurance must be “follow form” equal or broader in coverage scope than underlying 

insurance. 

 

2.3 Automobile Liability-Any Auto or Owned, Hired and Non-Owned Vehicles  

 Vehicle Liability:  Consultant must maintain Business/Automobile Liability insurance with a 

limit of $1,000,000 each accident on Consultant owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles 

assigned to or used in the performance of Consultant’s work or services under this 

Agreement.  If any Excess or Umbrella insurance is utilized to fulfill the requirements of this 

paragraph, the Excess or Umbrella insurance must be “follow form” equal or broader in 

coverage scope than underlying insurance. 

 

2.4 Workers Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance:  Consultant must maintain Workers 

Compensation insurance to cover obligations imposed by federal and state statutes having 

jurisdiction of Consultant employees engaged in the performance of work or services under 

this Agreement and must also maintain Employers’ Liability insurance of not less than 

$1,000,000 for each accident and $1,000,000 disease for each employee. 

 

3. Additional Policy Provisions Required. 

 

3.1 Self-Insured Retentions or Deductibles.  Any self-insured retentions and deductibles must be 

declared and approved by City.  If not approved, City may require that the insurer reduce or 

eliminate any deductible or self-insured retentions with respect to City, its officers, officials, 

agents, employees, and volunteers. 

 

3.1.1. Consultant’s insurance must contain broad form contractual liability coverage. 

 

3.1.2. Consultant’s insurance coverage must be primary insurance with respect to City, its 

officers, officials, agents, and employees.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained 

by City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees will be in excess of the coverage 

provided by Consultant and must not contribute to it. 

 

3.1.3. Consultant’s insurance must apply separately to each insured against whom claim is 

made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability. 

 

3.1.4. Coverage provided by Consultant must not be limited to the liability assumed under 

the indemnification provisions of this Agreement. 

 



 

 

Project Name: Brooks Crossing Park Improvements Page C-3 

Project No.: PR2205.451 

Rev. 1/12/2024  
 

3.1.5. The policies must contain a severability of interest clause and waiver of subrogation 

against City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, for losses arising from Work 

performed by Consultant for City. (Does not apply to Professional Liability coverage.) 

 

3.1.6. Consultant, its successors and or assigns, are required to maintain Commercial 

General Liability insurance as specified in this Agreement for a minimum period of 3 

years following completion and acceptance of the Work.  Consultant must submit a 

Certificate of Insurance evidencing Commercial General Liability insurance during this 

3-year period containing all the Agreement insurance requirements, including 

naming City of Chandler, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials and 

employees as Additional Insured as required. 

 

3.1.7. If a Certificate of Insurance is submitted as verification of coverage, City will 

reasonably rely upon the Certificate of Insurance as evidence of coverage, but this 

acceptance and reliance will not waive or alter in any way the insurance requirements 

or obligations of this Agreement.   

 

3.2.  Insurance Cancellation During Term of Agreement.  

3.2.1. If any of the required policies expire during the life of this Agreement, Consultant 

must forward renewal or replacement Certificates to City within 10 days after the 

renewal date containing all the required insurance provisions. 

 

3.2.2. Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Agreement must 

provide the required coverage and must not be suspended, voided or canceled 

except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to City, except when 

cancellation is for non-payment of premium, then ten (10) days prior notice may be 

given.  Such notice must be sent directly to Chandler Law-Risk Management 

Department, Post Office Box 4008, Mailstop 628, Chandler, Arizona 85225. If any 

insurance company refuses to provide the required notice, Consultant or its 

insurance broker must notify City of any cancellation, suspension, non-renewal of any 

insurance within seven (7) days of receipt of insurers’ notification to that effect.  

 

3.3 City as Additional Insured.  The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following 

provisions: 

3.3.1. The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policies are to contain, or 

be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:  City, its officers, officials, agents, 

and employees are additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of activities 

performed by, or on behalf of, Consultant; Products and Completed operations of 

Consultant; and automobiles owned, leased, hired, or borrowed by Consultant. 

 

3.3.2. City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees must be additional insureds to the 

full limits of liability purchased by Consultant even if those limits of liability are in 

excess of those required by this Agreement. 



 

 

Project Name: Brooks Crossing Park Improvements Page D-1 

Project No.: PR2205.451 

Rev. 1/12/2024  
 

EXHIBIT “D” 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

 

 

N/A 

 



 

 

Project Name: Brooks Crossing Park Improvements E-1 

Project No.: PR2205.451 

Rev. 1/12/2024  
 

 

EXHIBIT “E” 

SUBCONSULTANT DOCUMENTS WITH CONSULTANT 

 

 

Any subconsultant assumptions, clarifications, exclusions, terms & conditions, 

signature blocks, etc. included are strictly between the Consultant and their 

subconsultants, and do not apply to the Agreement between the Consultant and 

the City. 

 

N/A 

 



 

 

Project Name: Brooks Crossing Park Improvements Page F-1 

Project No.: PR2205.451  

Rev. 1/24/2024  
 

 

EXHIBIT “F” 

FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS 

 

 

N/A 



5/6/2024

Farmer Woods Group
919 North 1st Street

Phoenix AZ 85004

Drake Hollenback
(602)264-0566 (602)277-4706

drake-hollenback@leavitt.com

Dibble CM, LLC
3020 E Camelback Rd
Ste 201
Phoenix AZ 85016

Selective Insurance Company of America 12572
Underwriters at Lloyd's, London 15792
Hiscox Insurance Company Inc 10200

24/25

A

X

X

X X X

X Y S2504924 1/27/2024 1/27/2025

1,000,000

500,000

15,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

A
X

X Y S2504924 1/27/2024 1/27/2025

1,000,000

A

X X

S2504924 1/27/2024 1/27/2025

5,000,000

5,000,000

B Errors and Ommissions B0621PDIBB000224 3/14/2024 3/14/2025 Each Claim $2,000,000 Agg $4,000,000

C Cyber Liability HCXCYBP505635923 06/12/2023 06/12/2024 Per Claim/Aggregate $3,000,000

RE: PR2205.451  Brooks Crossing Park Improvements
City of Chandler, its officers, officials, agents & employees is Additionally insured on a
primary-noncontributory basis & waiver of subrogation apply as required in written contract per the
attached forms. Umbrella follows form. Seperation of Insureds (Severability Clause) provided per the
CG0001 04/13 (attached)

City of Chandler Public Works
& Utilities Department
P.O. Box 4008, Mail Stop 407
Chandler, AZ  85244-4008

Paula.Brown@chandleraz.gov

D Hollenback/DRHOLL

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2014/01)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

CANCELLATION

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

LOCJECT
PRO-

POLICY

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

OCCURCLAIMS-MADE

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $
DAMAGE TO RENTED

EACH OCCURRENCE $

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GENERAL AGGREGATE $

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $

$RETENTIONDED

CLAIMS-MADE

OCCUR

$

AGGREGATE $

EACH OCCURRENCE $UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MM/DD/YYYY)

POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS

PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

$

$

$

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

(Mandatory in NH)
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y / N

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

ALL OWNED SCHEDULED

HIRED AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS AUTOS

AUTOS

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

PROPERTY DAMAGE $

$

$

$

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSD
ADDL

WVD
SUBR

N / A

$

$

(Ea accident)

(Per accident)

OTHER:

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed.  If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

INSURED

PHONE
(A/C, No, Ext):

PRODUCER

ADDRESS:
E-MAIL

FAX
(A/C, No):

CONTACT
NAME:

NAIC #

INSURER A :

INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INS025  (201401)



drake-hollenback
Typewritten text
Policy number: S250492401













drake-hollenback
Typewritten text
Policy number: S250492401





















GENERAL AGGREGATE LIMIT PER PROJECT 
 
 
 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 
CG 79 97 11 16 

 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 
 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 
 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
 
 
The General Aggregate Limit under SECTION III — Limits Of Insurance applies separately to each of your projects away 
from premises owned by or rented to you. 

Copyright, 2016 Selective Insurance Company of America. All rights reserved. CG 79 97 11 16 
Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission. Page 1 of 1 

drake-hollenback
Typewritten text
Policy number: S250492401



































SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED

ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

5/6/2024

Greyling Ins Brokerage/EPIC
3780 Mansell Road, Suite 370
Alpharetta GA 30022

ACEC Certificate Specialist
7706705355 678.824.8554

ACECcertificates@greyling.com

Sentinel Insurance Company, Ltd. 11000
DIBBASS

Dibble & Associates Consulting
3020 E. Camelback Rd., Ste. 201
Phoenix AZ 85016

414977219 23-24

A X

N

20WEGBA7Z71 11/1/2023 11/1/2024

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

Re: City of Chandler. Brooks Crossing Park Improvements. Project No. PR 2205.451 City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees are named as Additional
Insureds with respects to General Liability where required by written contract.

City of Chandler - Public Works Utilities Department
P.O. Box 4008, Mail Stop 407
Chandler AZ 85244-4008



ITEM  5 

City Council Memorandum      Community Services  Memo No. 
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager - CFO
John Sefton, Community Services Director

From: Sandy Popovich, Management Analyst
Subject:Resolution No.5811 Authorizing an Intergovernmental Agreement with

Chandler Unified School District No. 80

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5811 authorizing an
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between Chandler Unified School District
(CUSD) No. 80 and the City of Chandler for the shared use of City and District
property and the waiver of facility fees and defined development-related fees.

Background/Discussion:
The City and CUSD No. 80 ("District") have a long-standing history of working
together to provide the best service to Chandler residents. In April 2001, the City
entered a Facilities Use and Fees Agreement with the District governing the use
of each entity's facilities by the other party, as well as the waiver of certain
development-related fees for the construction of District facilities. There also
exists documentation of mutual collaboration on similar issues between the City
and the District dating back to the mid-1970s.  

This agreement will provide continued operation and use of two (2) lighted ball
fields at Andersen Junior High and four (4) lighted fields at Bogle Junior High; the
field light structures at these facilities are owned by the City. This agreement also
enables City use of District facilities such as gymnasiums, multipurpose rooms,
and classrooms, which will allow the Community Services Department to host and
expand programming opportunities to residents as facility scheduling permits. The
District will waive all fees related to facility use by the City. In exchange, the City
will make available to the District certain City-owned recreation and community



facilities for District professional, recreation, and educational programs, as available.

Additionally, the City will waive fees related to plan review, building permits, and
building inspections, excluding system development (impact) fees and
water/wastewater meters or where prohibited by state law.  The agreement
establishes an effective term of five (5) years, with successive five (5) year
renewals upon both governing bodies' approval.

Financial Implications:
Because this IGA waives fees for both the District and the City, it is projected to
have a positive fiscal impact. By waiving fees, both parties can save on
administrative and billing/accounts payable expenses in relation to the
development and use of facilities.  Additionally, the agreement is expected to
foster collaboration and resource sharing, allowing for more efficient use of
facilities and services across the city.  Per the agreement, each party will remain
responsible for covering costs to repair any damage from use beyond normal wear
and tear. 

Attachments
Resolution 5811_IGA CUSD Fees/Facility Use 
IGA CUSD Fees/Facility Use 



RESOLUTION NO. 5811 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF CHANDLER AND CHANDLER UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT NO. 80 FOR SHARED USE OF CITY AND DISTRICT PROPERTY 
AND WAIVER OF FEES.  
 

WHEREAS, Chandler Unified School District No. 80 (the “District”) and the City of Chandler 
(the “City”) have a long-standing history of joint resource utilization for the benefit of Chandler 
residents; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City and District previously executed an intergovernmental agreement (“IGA”) 
that provided for cooperative use of City and District facilities and a mutual waiver of use fees as 
well as a waiver of the City’s General Fund plan review, building permit and inspection fees, 
excluding development impact fees and water/wastewater meters, (“Review Fees”) where 
permitted by Arizona law; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City and District wish to continue to collaborate regarding use of facilities and 
waive associated use fees as well as Review Fees where permitted by Arizona law by executing a 
new IGA; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City is authorized to enter into IGAs with other public agencies pursuant to Ariz. 
Rev. Stat. § 11-952. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, 
as follows: 
 
Section 1. Approving the terms and conditions of the IGA with Chandler Unified School 

District No. 80 in substantially the form attached as Exhibit “A” to this Resolution 
and incorporated herein by reference.  

 
Section 2. Authorizing the Mayor of the City of Chandler to execute the IGA on behalf of the 

City of Chandler. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, this _____ day 
of _____________, 2024. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 
 
 

 



Resolution 5811 
Page 2 

CERTIFICATION 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Resolution No. 5811 was duly passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting held on the 
_____ day of ______________, 2024 and that a quorum was present thereat. 

______________________________ 
CITY CLERK 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

______________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY 



 

EXHIBIT “A” 



 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN THE CITY OF CHANDLER 

AND 
CHANDLER UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 80 

 
 

THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into this 
_____ day of _________, 2024 (“Effective Date”), by and between the CITY OF CHANDLER, 
an Arizona municipal corporation (“City”), and CHANDLER UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NO. 80, a political subdivision of the State of Arizona located in Maricopa County (“District”).  
City and District are referred to collectively in this Agreement as “Parties” and each may be 
referred to individually as a “Party.” 

 

 

RECITALS 

A. Arizona Revised Statutes §§ 11-951 through 11-954 authorize the Parties to enter 
into this Agreement.   

B. The Chandler City Council has passed and adopted a resolution authorizing the 
Mayor of the City of Chandler to execute this Agreement on behalf of City.  

C. District’s governing board authorizes the District Superintendent to execute this 
Agreement on behalf of District.   

D. The Parties have for many years and wish to continue to collaborate and provide 
mutual assistance where possible to provide services and facilities to the Chandler community. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and representations set forth 
in this Agreement, including without limitation the Recitals, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

AGREEMENT 

1. Fees. 

1.1 For District development projects, the City agrees, where permitted by 
Arizona law, to: 

1.1.1 Waive fees related to General Fund plan review. 

1.1.2 Waive fees related to building permit issuance, excluding 
development impact fees and water/wastewater meters. 



2 
 

1.1.3 Waive fees related to building inspections. 

1.2 For City use of District facilities, District agrees to: 

1.2.1 Waive school facility use rental fees, including related utilities, for 
rental of all District facilities.   

1.2.2 Waive fees related to school facility use for District personnel 
(support staff, custodial, AV support, etc.), equipment.    

 
1.3 For District use of City facilities, City agrees to: 

1.3.1 Waive fees related to District-sponsored programs and events. 

2. Lights. 

2.1 The City agrees to: 

2.1.1 Maintain and repair city-installed outdoor field/amenity lighting 
located on school grounds as identified in Exhibit “A” attached 
hereto and as may be amended from time to time. 
 

2.1.2 Work collaboratively with District to identify future sites for 
installation of lighting where partnerships are mutually beneficial.  

2.2 District agrees to: 

2.2.1 Maintain and repair district-installed outdoor field/amenity lighting 
located on school grounds. 

2.2.2 Provide and fund operational utility services on existing lighted sites 
and potential future District sites.  

3. Facilities Use and Priority Scheduling. 

3.1.1 The City agrees to make available at no charge to the District those 
park facilities that can be used for recreational/educational programs 
and other community activities in second priority to City use.   

3.1.2 The District agrees to make available at no charge to the City those 
school facilities that can be used for recreational and other 
community activities in second priority to District use.   

3.1.3 The respective owner of the facility will be responsible for ordinary 
maintenance.  Any special maintenance needed for a particular event 
will be performed by the party using the facility. 



3 
 

3.1.4 Any City use of District facilities during the school year must occur 
outside of the normal school operating hours and cannot interfere or 
conflict with any District or school functions.   

3.1.5 Each party is responsible for the protection of the facilities and the 
safety of any participants while using the other party’s facilities. 

3.1.6 Each party is responsible for any damage beyond normal wear and 
tear resulting to the other party’s facilities during use. 

3.1.7 Each party will work in collaboration to establish facility schedules 
that afford the most advanced planning as feasibly possible. (ex. 
Early planning for programming and public notice needs). 
 

3.1.8 The City will coordinate and schedule the use of City-installed lights 
on school grounds.  

3.1.9 District will make available a school campus location for a four- to 
five-week Adaptive Recreation Summer Camp during the summer 
break as determined by the District’s applicable school calendar. 
 

4. Public Notice and Communications 

4.1.1 Parties may, in collaboration, work to provide improved public 
education and communications pertaining to events, programs, 
public meetings, City and District initiatives, etc. by sharing 
appropriate resources, tools, and platforms. 
  

5.  Administrative Scopes of Work (SOW) Agreements 

5.1.1 When administratively deemed appropriate, parties may establish 
supplemental SOW to further clarify or define specifics related to a 
project, program, or facility schedule as governed by this IGA.  (See 
Exhibit B for example framework.)  

5.1.2 SOW will be reviewed at least annually and authorized by the City 
Manager and District Superintendent or authorized delegates.     

 

6. Term.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date be 
effective for a period of five (5) years and may be renewed for successive five (5) year periods 
upon approval of the parties’ respective governing bodies unless sooner terminated.   

7. Cancellation.  Either Party may cancel this Agreement upon sixty (60) days’ written 
notice to the other Party as provided for herein. 



4 
 

8. Notices.   Unless otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement, or unless 
written notice of a change of address has been previously given under this Section, all notices, 
demands or other communication given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have 
been duly delivered upon (A) personal delivery, (B) delivery by a recognized overnight courier 
(e.g., FedEx, UPS) for next business day delivery, or (C) as of the fifth business day after mailing 
by United States certified mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 

   To City:  Community Services Director 
      City of Chandler 
      P. O. Box 4008 
      Mail Stop 500 
      Chandler, AZ  85244-4008 
      Phone: (480) 782-2707 
   
   To District:  Chandler Unified School District #80 
      Attn: Chief Financial Officer  
      1525 West Frye Road 
      Chandler, Arizona 85224 
       
      Phone: (480) 812-7660    

9. Disputes.  Arizona law shall govern this Agreement and any dispute arising out of 
this Agreement.  The Parties agree to engage in good faith negotiation and/or mediation in an effort 
to resolve all disputes prior to initiating any formal enforcement action. 

10. Conflict of Interest.  This Agreement is subject to the provisions of A.R.S. § 38-
511.  

11. Indemnification.  City and District (each as an “Indemnitor”) agree to indemnify, 
defend, and hold  harmless the other Party (each as an “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all 
claims, losses, liability, costs, or expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees) (hereinafter 
collectively referred to as “Claims”) arising out of bodily injury of any person (including death) 
or property damage, but only to the extent that such Claims are caused by the act, omission, 
negligence, misconduct, or other fault of the Indemnitor, its officers, officials, agents, employees, 
volunteers, or contractors. The extent of the indemnity contained in this paragraph is limited to 
those Claims that arise out of or are related to the subject matter of this Agreement. 

12. Severability.  In the event that any provision or portion of this IGA is held invalid, 
illegal, or unenforceable, such provision or portion shall be severed from this IGA and shall have 
no effect on the remaining provisions, which shall remain in full force and effect. 

13. Failure to Enforce.  The failure to exercise any right, power or privilege under this 
Agreement will not constitute a waiver thereof, nor shall a single or partial exercise thereof 
preclude any other or further exercise of that or any right, power or privilege. 



5 
 

14. Amendments.  This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the 
Parties and may not be changed, modified, or amended, except in writing, signed by all Parties. 

15. Non-discrimination.  In carrying out the terms of this IGA, the Parties agree to 
comply with Executive 2009-09 prohibiting discrimination in employment, the provisions of 
which are incorporated by reference. 

16. Relationship.  It is not intended by this Agreement to, and nothing contained in this 
Agreement shall, create any partnership, joint venture or other arrangement between the Parties.  
No term or provision of this Agreement is intended to, or shall, be for the benefit of any person, 
firm, organization, or corporation not a Party hereto, and no such other person, firm, organization, 
or corporation shall have any right or cause of action hereunder. 

 
[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

  



6 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on this ____ day of 
_____________, 2024. 

CITY OF CHANDLER 

By ______________________________ 
    Mayor Kevin Hartke 

CHANDLER UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT NO. 80 

By ______________________________ 
      District Superintendent 

ATTEST: 

By ______________________________ 
       City Clerk 

ATTEST: 

By _______________________________ 
 Clerk of the Board 

APPROVAL OF THE CHANDLER CITY ATTORNEY 

Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes § 11-951 through § 11-954, I have reviewed the 
foregoing intergovernmental agreement between Chandler Unified School District No. 80 and the 
City of Chandler, and declare this Agreement to be in proper form and within the powers and 
authority granted to the City under the laws of the State of Arizona. 

No opinion is expressed as to the authority of the other Parties to enter into this Agreement. 

DATED this __________ day of ________________, 2024. 

__________________________________ 
Kelly Y. Schwab 
Chandler City Attorney 



7 
 

APPROVAL OF CHANDLER UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT COUNSEL 
 

 Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute § 11-952, I have reviewed the foregoing 
intergovernmental agreement between Chandler Unified School District No. 80 and the City of 
Chandler, and declare this Agreement to be in proper form and within the powers and authority 
granted to the District under the laws of the State of Arizona. 
 
 No opinion is expressed as to the authority of the other Parties to enter into this Agreement. 
 
 DATED this __________ day of ________________, 2024. 
 
        
        Sims Mackin, Ltd 
 
 
 
       By _________________________________ 
            Kristin Mackin 
             Counsel for Chandler Unified School 
             District



 
       

EXHIBIT “A” 

City Installed Lighting at CUSD Grounds  

School Site Address Amenity Install Year 

Andersen Jr. High 1255 N Dobson Rd, 
Chandler, AZ 85224 

Tennis Courts 
2 diamond fields 

1990 

Bogle Jr. High 1600 W Queen Creek 
Rd, Chandler, AZ 

85248 

4 diamond fields 1993 

    

    

 

  



 
 

 EXHIBIT “B”  

SAMPLE SCOPE OF WORK 

 



 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE SCOPE OF WORK AGREEMENT 
CHANDLER UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT & CITY OF CHANDLER 

 
This Administrative Scope of Work Agreement (“SOW”) is issued pursuant to the ________, 2024 
Intergovernmental Agreement between the City of Chandler (“CoC”) and the Chandler Unified School 
District (“CUSD”), collectively the “Parties”, and is effective as of the date of last signature on the 
signature page below (“Effective Date”). 

 
This SOW applies to: __________________. 

 
1. Project Scope. Parties will use all reasonable efforts to perform the services as specified in the 

Exhibits that follow and accompanying documents, which outline the specific tasks, deliverables, and 
general processes. 

 
2. Estimated Cost.   Identify the approximate market cost for the project, program, or facility use.  This 

section is only used for internal review and record. The IGA intends to afford for equitable value 
exchange between CUSD and Chandler. 

3. Project/Program/Facility Use Duration. The project will commence as of the Effective Date of the 
SOW and will conclude on _____________.   

4. Final Project Deliverables.  
a.   
b.   
c.   

 
5. Tentative/Typical Project Milestones. Where appropriate a timeline is applicable. 

All timelines set forth in this SOW are tentative and subject to change 
 

6.  Key Personnel and Administration of the Project. The following personnel will serve as the 
respective points of contact for this project. The Parties agree that the day-to-day administration of 
the Project will be the joint responsibility of CoC and CUSD. 

 
a. CoC Personnel 

NAME, EMAIL, PHONE  
  
Responsibilities: 

 
•  
•  
•   

b. CUSD Personnel  
NAME, EMAIL, PHONE  
  
Responsibilities: 

 
•  
•  
•   
 

 
* * * Signature Page Follows * * * 

Week Project Activity/Milestones 
Week 1 – 3   
Week 3 – 5   
Week 7 – 10   
Week 11 – 12   
Week 12 – 13   



 

 

BY SIGNATURE BELOW, BOTH PARTIES have executed this Scope of Work Agreement to be 
effective as of _______________________. 
 
 
 
CITY OF CHANDLER 
 
 
 

By ______________________________ 
    City Manager 
   

CHANDLER UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NO. 80 
 
 
By ______________________________ 
      District Superintendent 
 

 

 



ITEM  6 

City Council Memorandum      Community Services  Memo No. CP24-127
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Dawn Lange, Deputy City Manager - CFO
John Sefton, Community Services Director
Daniel Haskins, Capital Projects Division Manager

From: Alyssa Siqueiros, Construction/Design Project Manager
Subject: Job Order Project Agreement for the Brooks Crossing Park Improvements

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council award Job Order Project Agreement No. PR2205.401 to DNG
Construction, LLC, Pursuant to Job Order Master Agreement No. JOC2420, for
the Brooks Crossing Park Improvements, in an amount not to exceed $1,987,588.

Background/Discussion:
Originally developed in 1986, Brooks Crossing Park is an 8.1-acre neighborhood
park located at 1345 West Calle del Norte. This park primarily serves the
recreational needs of the residents living in the square mile bordered by Warner,
Alma School, Ray, and Dobson roads.  Existing amenities include a basketball
court, playground, lighted walking paths, sand volleyball court, and open space. 

This construction contract includes converting the existing park area lighting from
high pressure sodium (HPS) to Light Emitting Diode (LED) lighting, replacement of
play structures, additional shade structures, exercise stations, site furnishings,
removing the sand volleyball court and replacing it with a lighted pickleball court,
ADA-compliant concrete walkways, and landscape/irrigation renovations. The
agreement completion time is 210 calendar days following Notice to Proceed.

As with all park development projects, neighborhood input is important to the
future improvements for this park. Community surveys and two virtual meetings
were held in May and August 2022 to understand how nearby residents use the
park and what improvements they would like to see. Community feedback



concluded that the residents who use Brooks Crossing Park preferred to remove
the existing sand volleyball court and replace it with a lighted pickleball court. The
residents that participated in the public input process were supportive of the project.

A related Professional Services Agreement for Construction Management services
with Dibble CM, LLC, for the Brooks Crossing Park Improvements, is also
scheduled for this City Council meeting.

Evaluation:
The selection process was conducted in accordance with city policy and
procedure and state law. The costs proposed for this project have been evaluated
by staff and determined to be reasonable.

Financial Implications:
This project is funded from General Fund dollars reallocated from the receipt
of American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) monies.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program Name Dollar

Amount
CIP
Funded
Y/N

401.4580.6110.6PR049General
Government
Capital Projects

Existing
Neighborhood
Park Improvem

$1,987,588 Y

Attachments
Location Map 
Brooks Crossing Park JOC Contract 



ELLIOT RD

WARNER RD

RAY RD

CHANDLER BL

PECOS RD

GERMANN RD

QUEEN CREEK RD

OCOTILLO RD

CHANDLER HEIGHTS RD

RIGGS RD

HUNT HWVAL VISTA DR

LINDSAY RD

GILBERT RD

COOPER RD

MCQUEEN RD

ARIZONA AV

ALMA SCHOOL RD

DOBSON RD

PRICE RD

MCCLINTOCK DR

RURAL RD

KYRENE RD

56TH ST

BROOKS CROSSING PARK IMPROVEMENTS 
PROJECT NO. PR2205.401

°
NTS

GILA LN

CALLE DEL NORTE 

POST RD

MA
NO

R S
T

CE
NT

RA
L D

R

LO
NG

MO
RE

 ST

AR
RO

WH
EA

D D
R

CE
NT

RA
L D

R

MANOR ST

LO
NG

MO
RE

 ST

PROJECT LOCATION

MEMO NO. CP24-127

F:\ENGINEER\GENSERV\_ArcMap_Shared\Map Requests\Capital Projects\CP23-086 BROOKS CROSSING PARK REBUILD\CP23-086.mxd 12/15/2022 MARICELAH



 

Project Name: Brooks Crossing Park Improvements Page 1 

Project No.: PR2205.401 

Rev. 3/19/2024 
 

 
 

CITY OF CHANDLER 

JOB ORDER PROJECT AGREEMENT  
 

BROOKS CROSSING PARK IMPROVEMENTS 

 

Project No. PR2205.401 

Council Date: June 13, 2024 

 

This JOB ORDER PROJECT AGREEMENT (”Job Order”) is made this _____ day of _____________ 2024 

(“Effective Date”), by and between the City of Chandler, an Arizona municipal corporation, (“City”) 

and DNG Construction, LLC, an Arizona limited liability company, (“JOC Contractor”) and is 

entered into pursuant to Job Order Master Agreement No. JOC2420.401 (“JOC Master Agreement”). 

City and JOC Contractor may be referred to individually as “Party” or collectively as “Parties”). 

 

City and JOC Contractor, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein set forth, agree as 

follows:   

 

RECITALS 

 

A. On or about February 16, 2024, the Parties entered into the JOC Master Agreement, which 

terms and conditions are made a part of and incorporated into this Job Order Project Agreement 

by this reference. 

 

B. City proposes to engage JOC Contractor for construction services as more fully described in 

Article 1 and Exhibit "A", which is attached to and made a part of this Job Order by this reference. 

 

C. JOC Contractor is ready, willing, and able to provide the services described in Exhibit “A” for 

the compensation and fees set forth and as described in Exhibit ”B”, which is attached to and 

made a part of this Agreement by this reference. 

 

ARTICLE 1.  DESCRIPTION OF WORK 

 

The Parties enter into this Job Order Project Agreement for the BROOKS CROSSING PARK 

IMPROVEMENTS, Project Number PR2205.401.  The scope of work consists of renovation of the 

existing neighborhood park including LED lighting, play structures, shade structures, exercise 

stations, site furnishings, ADA compliant concrete walkways, and landscape/irrigation, all as more 

particularly set forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

 



 

Project Name: Brooks Crossing Park Improvements Page 2 

Project No.: PR2205.401 

Rev. 3/19/2024 
 

The JOC Contractor will not accept any change of scope, or change in Agreement provisions, unless 

issued in writing, as a Agreement amendment or change order and signed by the authorized 

signatories for each party. 

 

Performance and Payment Bonds, as set forth in Exhibit “C” and Exhibit “D” respectively attached 

hereto and incorporated herein by reference, will be due prior to execution of each Job Order 

Project Agreement in the full amount of each Job Order. 

 

At project completion, JOC Contractor must complete Contractor's Affidavit Regarding Settlement 

of Claims and Certificate of Completion, as set forth in Exhibit “E” and Exhibit “F” respectively 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

 

ARTICLE 2.  PROJECT PRICE 

 

City will pay JOC Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the JOC Master 

Agreement a fee not to exceed the Guaranteed Maximum Price of $1,987,588 Dollars determined 

and payable as set forth in JOC Master Agreement and Exhibit “B” attached hereto and made a 

part hereof by reference.  

 

ARTICLE 3.  AGREEMENT TIME & SCHEDULE 

 

JOC Contractor agrees to complete all Construction within 210 calendar days from the Notice to 

Proceed (NTP) Date.  

 

ARTICLE 4.  JOB ORDER CONTACTS 

 

The following parties serve in the capacity below for this Job Order Project. 

 

CITY:  Construction Project Manager:  Raymond Potts 

 Phone: 480-782-3326 

 Email: raymond.potts@chandleraz.gov 

 

JOC CONTRACTOR: DNG Construction, LLC  

 3933 E. La Salle Street, Phoenix, AZ 85040 

 JOC Contractor Representative:  Dominic DeMark 

 Phone: 480-361-9137 

 Email: ddemark@dngllc.com 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Project Name: Brooks Crossing Park Improvements Page 3 

Project No.: PR2205.401 

Rev. 3/19/2024 
 

ARTICLE 5. FORCED LABOR OF ETHNIC UYGHURS PROHIBITED   

 

By entering into this Agreement, Contractor certifies and agrees Contractor does not currently use 

and will not use for the term of this Agreement: (i) the forced labor of ethnic Uyghurs in the 

People's Republic of China; or (ii) any goods or services produced by the forced labor of ethnic 

Uyghurs in the People's Republic of China; or (iii) any contractors, subcontractors or suppliers that 

use the forced labor or any goods or services produced by the forced labor of ethnic Uyghurs in 

the People's Republic of China 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW 

  



Project Name: Brooks Crossing Park Improvements Page 4 

Project No.: PR2205.401 

Rev. 3/19/2024 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Job Order as of the Effective Date. 

“CITY” CITY OF CHANDLER 

MAYOR 

RECOMMENDED BY: 

Daniel Haskins, P.E. 

CIP City Engineer   

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

City Attorney 

ATTEST: 

 City Clerk  Seal 

“JOC CONTRACTOR” 

DNG CONSTRUCTION, LLC 

Signature  Date 

Print Name 

Title 

Signer Email Address 

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text
Dominic DeMark

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text
President

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text
ddemark@dngllc.com	

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text
5/1/24

DanielH
Snapshot



 

Project Name: Brooks Crossing Park Improvements Page A-1 

Project No.: PR2205.401 

Rev. 3/19/2024 

 

EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF WORK 

 

 
 

 



3933 E. La Salle St.

Phoenix, AZ 85040

Phone- 480-361-9137

AZ ROC- 282951, 288968

dngcontruction.com

Raymond Potts

Construction/Design Project Manager

City of Chandler/Public Works & Utilities

Dear Raymond, 

Sincerley, 

Dominic DeMark

President

DNG Construction, LLC submits our proposal for the Brooks Crossing Park.

Our proposal includes new PT Pickleball court, resurfacing of an existing basketball court, fitness area, (2) 

Ramadas, Playstructures, site furniture, LED area lighting, new park entryway, MDF, hardscape and landscape 

improvements based on the plans and specifications sealed November 20, 2023.

Our proposal includes general conditions, overhead & fee, sales tax and insurances and all related 

constructions costs.  Our total proposal amount is  $1,987,588 which includes $150,000 in owners allowance 

and our project fee is $111,307.  We anticipate the project to last about 5 months. 

Please let us know if you have any concerns or comments relating to our proposal and look forward to 

commencing work. 

EXHIBIT "A"

JOB ORDER COST PROPOSAL

COVER SHEET

PR2205: Brooks Crossing Park

04/04/24



EXHIBIT A1 

PROJECT SPECIFIC  

SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

 

Project Name: Brooks Crossing Park Improvements  Page A1-1 

Project No.: PR2205.401  

Rev. 3/19/2024 

  

 

 

Plant Warranty and Guarantee 

At no additional cost to City, Contractor will warranty all installed trees and saguaros for a period 

of one year after final acceptance of the project against defects including death and unsatisfactory 

growth, except for defects resulting from neglect by City, vandalism, force majeure, abuse or 

damage by others, or incidents which are beyond Contractor’s control. Shrubs groundcovers, and 

cactus varieties will be warranted through the duration of the plant establishment period. Remove 

and replace plant material found to be dead or in unhealthy condition at any time during the Plant 

Establishment Period or warranty period as applicable, or as directed by Engineer. Replace plant 

material that is in doubtful condition at the end of warranty period, unless, in the opinion of 

Engineer, it is advisable to delay replacement. If a replacement is delayed, another inspection will 

be conducted, at an agreed upon date, to determine acceptance or rejection. Only one 

replacement (per tree, shrub, or cacti) will be required during the warranty period, except for loss 

or replacements due to failure to comply with the specified requirements.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



EXHIBIT B 

FEE SCHEDULE 

 

Project Name: Brooks Crossing Park Improvements  Page B-1 

Project No.: PR2205.401  

Rev. 3/19/2024 

  

 

 
 



3933 E. La Salle St.

Phoenix, AZ 85040

Phone- 480-361-9137

AZ ROC- 282951, 288968

dngcontruction.com

Negotiated Prices

1,459,686$             

-$                        

130,412$                

-$                        

-$                        

SUBTOTAL (NEGOTIATED PRICES): 1,590,098$             

7% 111,307$                

TOTAL (NEGOTIATED PRICES + OVERHEAD & PROFIT): 1,701,405$             

Sales Tax, Material Only (Current Tax Rate) 5.07% 86,261$                  

General Liability Insurance Percentage (Actual Cost per Job Order) 22,970$                  

Builder's Risk Insurance Percentage (Actual Cost per Job Order) 9,938$                    

Payment Bond (Actual Cost per Job Order) 17,014$                  

Performance Bond (Actual Cost per Job Order) Included

SUBTOTAL (INSURANCE, BONDS, & TAXES): 136,183$                

COMBINED TOTAL (TOTAL + INSURANCE, BONDS, & TAXES): 1,837,588$             

City's Allowance 150,000$                

TOTAL JOB ORDER: 1,987,588$     

Per the Job Order Master Agreement - This Fee Table includes all fees, costs, insurance and bond premiums, allowances, construction 

contingency, and taxes of any type necessary to fully, propertly and timely perform and construct the Work.  Also per the Job Order Master 

Agreement - For any portion of the Work which, either through this Contract, Change Order or otherwise, is performed and paid for on a 

cost, or time and materials basis, the costs may be reimbursed to JOC Contractor and chargeable against the Contract Price will be 

determined as set forth in MAG 109.5.

Construction Labor (if applicable)

Insurance, Bonds, & Taxes

Price of Subcontractor(s)

Price of Subconsultant(s)

General Conditions

Preconstruction Labor (if applicable)

ENTER TAX % HERE:

EXHIBIT "B"

JOB ORDER COST PROPOSAL

SUMMARY SHEET

Overhead and Profit (Coefficient per Job Order Master Agreement)

PR2205: Brooks Crossing Park Rebuild



DATE: 04/05/24

PROJECT: PREP. BY: DD/JT
LOCATION: CHK'D BY:

QTY. UNITS UNIT COST TOTAL COST
200 HRLY 102.50$           20,500$                   
800 HRLY 95.25               76,200                     

0 HRLY 76.50               -                          
0 HRLY 42.25               -                          
0 HRLY 56.50               -                          
0 LS -                  -                          
1 LS 1,500.00          1,500                       
2 SETS 75.00               150                          
1 EA 125.00             125                          
5 MONTHS 85.00               425                          
0 LS -                  -                          
0 LS -                  -                          
5 MONTHS 875.00             4,375                       
1 EA 500.00             500                          
5 MONTHS 75.00               375                          
5 MONTHS 475.00             2,375                       
0 MONTHS -                  -                          
0 EA -                  -                          
0 MONTHS -                  -                          
0 MONTHS -                  -                          
5 MONTHS 125.00             625                          
0 WKS -                  -                          

1063 LF 5.75                 6,112                       
0 EA -                  -                          
1 LS 2,500.00          2,500                       
0 EA -                  -                          
1 LS 625.00             625                          
0 MONTHS -                  -                          
0 MHRS -                  -                          
5 LS 450.00             2,250                       
0 LS -                  -                          
5 TRIPS 525.00             2,625                       
5 MONTHS 875.00             4,375                       
0 LS -                  -                          
0 LS -                  -                          
0 MONTHS -                  -                          
5 MONTHS 955.00             4,775                       

130,412$               

EQUIPMENT / TOOL RENTAL
EQUIPMENT FUEL
PROJECT SAFETY
TOTAL GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

DUST CONTROL / PALLIATION
STREET SWEEPER
PROJECT SIGNAGE AND BARRICADES
FIRE PROTECTION AND SAFETY SUPPLIES
PROGRESSSIVE CLEAN UP
CONCRETE WASH OUT
FINAL CLEANING
TRASH DISPOSAL
PROJECT PICKUP TRUCK
MISC. SMALL TOOLS AND SUPPLIES

MOBILE PHONE USAGE
PROJECT SECURITY / WATCHMAN
TEMPORARY FENCE
TEMPORARY ROADS AND ENTRANCES

DRINKING WATER
TEMPORARY TOILETS / SANITARY FACILITIES
TEMPORARY POWER
TEMPORARY WATER - HYDRANT METER FEES
WATER CONSUMED 
POWER CONSUMED

FIELD COMPUTER SERVICE
SITE COMPUTER - HARDWARE / SOFTWARE
DESIGN & ENGINEERING SERVICES
PROJECT FIELD OFFICE/STORGAE CONTAINTER
FIELD OFFICE SET-UP / REMOVAL

CARPENTER
BUILDING PERMIT
DUST CONTROL / ENVIRONMENTAL PERMIT
BLUEPRINTS, COPIES AND REPRODUCTION
POSTAGE & DELIVERY SEVICE

PROJECT SUPERINTENDENT
FIELD ENGINEER
LABORER

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS ESTIMATE

PR2205: Brooks Crossing Park
CHANDLER, AZ

DESCRIPTION
PROJECT MANAGER



PR2205: Brooks Crossing Park

MH Unit Cost QTY Unit Cost QTY Unit Cost QTY Unit Cost MH Unit Cost

2.05 4,500$           
2.10 8,942$           
2.12 74,450$         
2.22 13,750$         
2.30 Underground 23,500$         
2.45 77,774$         
2.50 259,874$       
2.60 Site Amenities 92,842$         
3.10 314,258$       
3.20 Basketball/Pickle Courts 59,000$         

11.40 Playground Equipment 208,925$       
12.25 Ramadas/Shade Canopy 68,361$         
12.32 Fitness Equipment 25,710$         
15.10 21,275$         
16.10 203,025$       
19.90 3,500$           

1,459,686$    

Exerplay
Competitive Edge

Harcon

Structural Inspection Allow CTS
WAV

Fencing/Masonry

6k SWPPP
NorthStar

Vulcan

Exerplay
Exerplay
Above All

Exerplay

 Materials/DISPOSAL Subcontractors Subcontractor,  Supplier, 
SBE

SCHEDULE OF VALUES

Bid Item Bid Item Description Qty Unit Labor Equipment/Tools Tools & Supplies

Rick Engineering

Concrete

Plumbing
Electrical

SWPP

Survey
Material Testing RAMM
Demo/Earthwork Redd Construction

Redd ConstructionLandscape 



PROJECT: PR2205: Brooks Crossing Park PAGE:

TRADE: Survey BY: DD

DATE: 04/05/24

COST CODE SUBCONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION QTY UNITS
UNIT COST 

LABOR
TOTAL LABOR

UNIT COST 

MATERIAL
TOTAL MATERIAL

UNIT COST 

EQUIPMENT

TOTAL 

EQUIPMENT
UNIT COST SUB. TOTAL SUB. TOTAL COST

Selected Subcontractor

Rick Engineering 1         EA 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00

Verify horizontal & vertical control points 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Pavement/Curb cuts for removals 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Stakes for sidewalk 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Stakes for waterline/drywells/basins/rip-rap culverts 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Stakes for Ramadas & site amenities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Stakes for site grading 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Stakes for new light poles 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Asbuilts 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Subcontractors

TOTAL THIS SHEET 4,500.00

GENERAL ESTIMATE



PROJECT: PR2205: Brooks Crossing Park PAGE:

TRADE: MATERIAL TESTING BY: DD

DATE: 04/05/24

COST CODE SUBCONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION QTY UNITS
UNIT COST 

LABOR
TOTAL LABOR

UNIT COST 

MATERIAL
TOTAL MATERIAL

UNIT COST 

EQUIPMENT

TOTAL 

EQUIPMENT
UNIT COST SUB. TOTAL SUB. TOTAL COST

Selected Subcontractor

RAMM 1         EA 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,942.00 8,942.00 8,942.00

Compaction Testing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Concrete Cylindars 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Special Inspections 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Subcontractors

TOTAL THIS SHEET 8,942.00

GENERAL ESTIMATE



PROJECT: PR2205: Brooks Crossing Park PAGE:

TRADE: Demo_Earthwork BY: DD

DATE: 04/05/24

COST CODE SUBCONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION QTY UNITS
UNIT COST 

LABOR
TOTAL LABOR

UNIT COST 

MATERIAL
TOTAL MATERIAL

UNIT COST 

EQUIPMENT

TOTAL 

EQUIPMENT
UNIT COST SUB. TOTAL SUB. TOTAL COST

Selected Subcontractor

Redd Construction 1         EA 0.00 0.00 0.00 61,950.00 61,950.00 61,950.00

Concrete demo 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Demo playground structure 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Demo Site amenities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Demo volleyball court 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Demo landscape/trees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Remove dirt (New Containment area) 1         0.00 0.00 0.00 12,500.00 12,500.00 12,500.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Subcontractors

M&J 88,000.00

Buesing 79,500.00

TOTAL THIS SHEET 74,450.00

GENERAL ESTIMATE



PROJECT: PR2205: Brooks Crossing Park PAGE:

TRADE: SWPPP BY: DD

DATE: 04/05/24

COST CODE SUBCONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION QTY UNITS
UNIT COST 

LABOR
TOTAL LABOR

UNIT COST 

MATERIAL
TOTAL MATERIAL

UNIT COST 

EQUIPMENT

TOTAL 

EQUIPMENT
UNIT COST SUB. TOTAL SUB. TOTAL COST

Selected Subcontractor

6k 1         EA 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,750.00 13,750.00 13,750.00

Waddels 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Signage 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Monthly Inspections 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Log Book 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Subcontractors

Desert Services 16,780.00

TOTAL THIS SHEET 13,750.00

GENERAL ESTIMATE



PROJECT: PR2205: Brooks Crossing Park PAGE:

TRADE: Underground BY: DD

DATE: 04/05/24

COST CODE SUBCONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION QTY UNITS
UNIT COST 

LABOR
TOTAL LABOR

UNIT COST 

MATERIAL
TOTAL MATERIAL

UNIT COST 

EQUIPMENT

TOTAL 

EQUIPMENT
UNIT COST SUB. TOTAL SUB. TOTAL COST

Selected Subcontractor

NorthStar 1         EA 0.00 0.00 0.00 23,500.00 23,500.00 23,500.00

1" Water Service & Meter 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1" Backflow Prevention Assembly 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Subcontractors

LJL 31,850.00

TOTAL THIS SHEET 23,500.00

GENERAL ESTIMATE



PROJECT: PR2205: Brooks Crossing Park PAGE:

TRADE: Fencing BY: DD

DATE: 04/05/24

COST CODE SUBCONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION QTY UNITS
UNIT COST 

LABOR
TOTAL LABOR

UNIT COST 

MATERIAL
TOTAL MATERIAL

UNIT COST 

EQUIPMENT

TOTAL 

EQUIPMENT
UNIT COST SUB. TOTAL SUB. TOTAL COST

Selected Subcontractor

Vulcan 1         EA 0.00 0.00 0.00 77,774.00 77,774.00 77,774.00

Wire mesh 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

CMU Pillar & Steel Trellis 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Pickleball fencing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Ramada CMU columns 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Park sign structure 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Subcontractors

Steiger 85,000.00

TOTAL THIS SHEET 77,774.00

GENERAL ESTIMATE



PROJECT: PR2205: Brooks Crossing Park PAGE:

TRADE: Landscaping BY: DD

DATE: 04/05/24

COST CODE SUBCONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION QTY UNITS
UNIT COST 

LABOR
TOTAL LABOR

UNIT COST 

MATERIAL
TOTAL MATERIAL

UNIT COST 

EQUIPMENT

TOTAL 

EQUIPMENT
UNIT COST SUB. TOTAL SUB. TOTAL COST

Selected Subcontractor

Redd Construction 1         EA 0.00 0.00 0.00 259,874.00 259,874.00 259,874.00

Trees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Shrubs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Boulders 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

DG 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Curbing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Turf 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Backflow Preventer 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Grouted Rip Rap 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Subcontractors

Sunburst 305,000.00

DTR 325,000.00

TOTAL THIS SHEET 259,874.00

GENERAL ESTIMATE



PROJECT: PR2205: Brooks Crossing Park PAGE:

TRADE: Site Amenities BY: DD

DATE: 04/05/24

COST CODE SUBCONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION QTY UNITS
UNIT COST 

LABOR
TOTAL LABOR

UNIT COST 

MATERIAL
TOTAL MATERIAL

UNIT COST 

EQUIPMENT

TOTAL 

EQUIPMENT
UNIT COST SUB. TOTAL SUB. TOTAL COST

Selected Subcontractor

Exerplay 1         EA 0.00 0.00 56,620.50 56,620.50 0.00 56,620.50

Trash Receptacle (15) 1         0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Benches (13) 1         0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Tables (4) 1         0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Bike Racks (2) 1         0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Grills (2) 1         0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Mats (7) 1         0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Pet Stations (5) 1         1,775.00 1,775.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 6,775.00

Wood Fiber 1         6,800.00 6,800.00 11,750.00 11,750.00 0.00 0.00 18,550.00

Install 1 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,896.00 10,896.00 10,896.00

Other Subcontractors

TOTAL THIS SHEET 92,841.50

GENERAL ESTIMATE



PROJECT: PR2205: Brooks Crossing Park PAGE:

TRADE: Concrete BY: DD

DATE: 04/05/24

COST CODE SUBCONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION QTY UNITS
UNIT COST 

LABOR
TOTAL LABOR

UNIT COST 

MATERIAL
TOTAL MATERIAL

UNIT COST 

EQUIPMENT

TOTAL 

EQUIPMENT
UNIT COST SUB. TOTAL SUB. TOTAL COST

Selected Subcontractor

Competitive Edge 1         EA 0.00 0.00 0.00 314,258.00 314,258.00 314,258.00

Sidewalk 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Flucuation Ramps 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Turf curbing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Containment Headers 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Slabs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

CMU wall 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Light pole bases 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Sandblasting 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Scuppers 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

CMU seat walls 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Ramada Footing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Subcontractors

HD Concrete 350,150.00

Harcon Incomplete Bid

TOTAL THIS SHEET 314,258.00

GENERAL ESTIMATE



PROJECT: PR2205: Brooks Crossing Park PAGE:

TRADE: PT Courts BY: DD

DATE: 04/05/24

COST CODE SUBCONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION QTY UNITS
UNIT COST 

LABOR
TOTAL LABOR

UNIT COST 

MATERIAL
TOTAL MATERIAL

UNIT COST 

EQUIPMENT

TOTAL 

EQUIPMENT
UNIT COST SUB. TOTAL SUB. TOTAL COST

Selected Subcontractor

Harcon 1         EA 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Pickle Ball Court (1) 1         0.00 0.00 0.00 23,400.00 23,400.00 23,400.00

Pickle Ball & Basketball Resurface 1         0.00 0.00 0.00 25,500.00 25,500.00 25,500.00

Basketball & Pickle Ball Equipment 1         0.00 0.00 0.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 7,500.00

Grade Prep 1         0.00 0.00 0.00 2,600.00 2,600.00 2,600.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Subcontractors

General Acrylics 66,540.00

TOTAL THIS SHEET 59,000.00

GENERAL ESTIMATE



PROJECT: PR2205: Brooks Crossing Park PAGE:

TRADE: Playground Equip BY: DD

DATE: 04/05/24

COST CODE SUBCONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION QTY UNITS
UNIT COST 

LABOR
TOTAL LABOR

UNIT COST 

MATERIAL
TOTAL MATERIAL

UNIT COST 

EQUIPMENT

TOTAL 

EQUIPMENT
UNIT COST SUB. TOTAL SUB. TOTAL COST

Selected Subcontractor

Exerplay 1         EA 0.00 0.00 208,925.00 208,925.00 0.00 208,925.00

2-5 Years 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5-12 Years 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Spinners 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Rider 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Saddle Spinner 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Design 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Frieight 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Install 0.00 0.00 0.00 41,320.00 0.00 0.00

Other Subcontractors

TOTAL THIS SHEET 208,925.00

GENERAL ESTIMATE



PROJECT: PR2205: Brooks Crossing Park PAGE:

TRADE: Ramada_Shade Struct BY: DD

DATE: 04/05/24

COST CODE SUBCONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION QTY UNITS
UNIT COST 

LABOR
TOTAL LABOR

UNIT COST 

MATERIAL
TOTAL MATERIAL

UNIT COST 

EQUIPMENT

TOTAL 

EQUIPMENT
UNIT COST SUB. TOTAL SUB. TOTAL COST

Selected Subcontractor

Exerplay 1         EA 0.00 0.00 68,361.00 68,361.00 0.00 68,361.00

16' x 16' CRS (2) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Shade Stucture 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Engineering 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Install 0.00 0.00 0.00 31,455.00 0.00 0.00

Shipping 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Subcontractors

TOTAL THIS SHEET 68,361.00

GENERAL ESTIMATE



PROJECT: PR2205: Brooks Crossing Park PAGE:

TRADE: Fitness Equip BY: DD

DATE: 04/05/24

COST CODE SUBCONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION QTY UNITS
UNIT COST 

LABOR
TOTAL LABOR

UNIT COST 

MATERIAL
TOTAL MATERIAL

UNIT COST 

EQUIPMENT

TOTAL 

EQUIPMENT
UNIT COST SUB. TOTAL SUB. TOTAL COST

Selected Subcontractor

Exerplay 1         EA 0.00 0.00 25,710.00 25,710.00 0.00 25,710.00

Ab Crunch 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Balance Steps 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Stepper 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Chest/Back Press 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Intro Sign 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Engineering 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Install 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,887.00 0.00 0.00

Freight 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Subcontractors

TOTAL THIS SHEET 25,710.00

GENERAL ESTIMATE



PROJECT: PR2205: Brooks Crossing Park PAGE:

TRADE: Plumbing BY: DD

DATE: 04/05/24

COST CODE SUBCONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION QTY UNITS
UNIT COST 

LABOR
TOTAL LABOR

UNIT COST 

MATERIAL
TOTAL MATERIAL

UNIT COST 

EQUIPMENT

TOTAL 

EQUIPMENT
UNIT COST SUB. TOTAL SUB. TOTAL COST

Selected Subcontractor

Above All 1         EA 0.00 0.00 0.00 21,275.00 21,275.00 21,275.00

MDF 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Sump 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Backflow Preventer 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1" water line 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Subcontractors

TOTAL THIS SHEET 21,275.00

GENERAL ESTIMATE



PROJECT: PR2205: Brooks Crossing Park PAGE:

TRADE: Electrical BY: DD

DATE: 04/05/24

COST CODE SUBCONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION QTY UNITS
UNIT COST 

LABOR
TOTAL LABOR

UNIT COST 

MATERIAL
TOTAL MATERIAL

UNIT COST 

EQUIPMENT

TOTAL 

EQUIPMENT
UNIT COST SUB. TOTAL SUB. TOTAL COST

Selected Subcontractor

WAV 1         EA 0.00 0.00 0.00 203,025.00 203,025.00 203,025.00

Power to MDF & irrigation control 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Relocation existing poles 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Salvage Poles 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Ramada light & recpt 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

LED Fixtures 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Subcontractors

Kimbrell 371,000.00

Rural Electric No bid- See Solicitation

Hawkeye No bid- See Solicitation

TOTAL THIS SHEET 203,025.00

GENERAL ESTIMATE











 

EXHIBIT E 

 

  

Project Name: Brooks Crossing Park Improvements Page E-1 

Project No.: PR2205.401 

Rev. 3/19/2024 

CONTRACTOR'S AFFIDAVIT REGARDING SETTLEMENT OF CLAIMS 

 

 

________________________, Arizona 

 

Date ____________________________ 

 

Project Name: BROOKS CROSSING PARK IMPROVEMENTS 

Project No.:   PR2205.401 

To the City of Chandler, Arizona 

Gentlemen: 

This is to certify that all lawful claims for materials, rental of equipment and labor used in 

connection with the construction of the above project, whether by subcontractor or claimant in 

person, have been duly discharged. 

 

The undersigned, for the consideration of $________________________, as set out in the final pay 

estimate, as full and complete payment under the terms of the Agreement, hereby waives and 

relinquishes any and all further claims or right of lien under, in connection with, or as a result of 

the above described project.  The undersigned further agrees to indemnify and save harmless 

the City of Chandler against any and all liens, claims or liens, suits, actions, damages, charges 

and expenses whatsoever, which said City may suffer arising out of the failure of the 

undersigned to pay for all labor performances and materials furnished for the performance of 

said installation. 

 

Signed and dated at ________________, this _________ day of _______________ 20_____. 

 

 

__________________________________ 

                       CONTRACTOR 

 

By _______________________________ 

STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 

) SS 

COUNTY OF MARICOPA ) 

 

The foregoing instrument was subscribed and sworn to before me this __________ day of 

__________________ 20 _________. 

___________________________________ 

     Notary Public 

___________________________________ 

     My Commission Expires



 

EXHIBIT F 

 

  

Project Name: Brooks Crossing Park Improvements Page F-1 

Project No.: PR2205.401 

Rev. 3/19/2024 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION 

Project: BROOKS CROSSING PARK IMPROVEMENTS   

Project No.: PR2205.401 

(TO BE COMPLETED BY CONTRACTOR) 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT ALL GOODS AND/OR SERVICES REQUIRED BY CITY OF CHANDLER PROJECT NO. 

PR2205.401 HAVE BEEN DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE AGREEMENT DOCUMENTS AND BID 

SPECIFICATIONS AND ALL ACTIVITIES REQUIRED BY THE CONTRACTOR UNDER THE AGREEMENT HAVE BEEN 

COMPLETED AS OF ____________________________. 

  (Date) 

 

FIRM NAME: ________________________________ 

 

PRINCIPAL: ________________________________ 

         (Name) 

 

________________________________ 

      (Signature) 

 

________________________________ DATE: ___________________ 

          (Title) 

 

CERTIFIED BY ENGINEER/CONSULTANT (IF APPLICABLE): 

 

_________________________________  DATE: ____________________ 

      (Signature) 

 

_________________________________  

        (Firm Name) 

  
PROJECT ACCEPTED BY USER DEPARTMENT 

 

_________________________________  DATE: ____________________ 

         (Signature) 

 

_________________________________  

          (Dept. /Div.) 

 

_______________ Date of Final Walk-Through 

 

_______________ Date As-Built Received 

 

_______________ City As-Built Number 



 

EXHIBIT G 

 

  

Project Name: Brooks Crossing Park Improvements Page G-1 

Project No.: PR2205.401 

Rev. 3/19/2024 

SUBCONTRACTOR DOCUMENTS WITH JOC CONTRACTOR 

 

Any subcontractor assumptions, clarifications, exclusions, terms & conditions, 

signature blocks, etc. included are strictly between the JOC Contractor and their 

subcontractors, and do not apply to the Agreement between the JOC Contractor and 

the City. 

 



March 1st, 2024

Dominic DeMark, CPA 
DNG Construction, LLC 

3933 East La Salle Street 

Phoenix, AZ  85040 

SUBJECT: Brooks Crossing Park - City of Chandler 

Dear Dominic: 

Rick Engineering Company is pleased to submit this proposal to provide professional survey services on 

the above referenced project. We look forward to working with you on this project. 

SCOPE OF WORK: 

Control/Removals 

• Verify existing horizontal and vertical control and establish new control for site staking.

• Provide pavement and curb cuts for removals

Site Staking 

• Provide stakes for new sidewalk/at 50 foot intervals/25 foot intervals for arcs

• Provide stakes for new site curbing/landscape curb at 25 foot intervals.

• Provide stakes for new waterline.

• Provide stakes for new fencing at 50 foot intervals

• Provide stakes for new ramadas/play structures/sports courts/exercise/playground equipment

• Provide stakes for rough site grading, including new basins and berms

• Provide stakes for new light poles

Asbuilts 

• Perform field and office work to prepare asbuilts including:

1. Grading

• Provide elevations of grade breaks and driveway entry returns (including

curb and gutter at said locations).

Note:  The contractor will note any changes made during the construction phase and provide 

dimensions to the surveyor before completion of final asbuilts are submitted.  Should the 

following be required by the governing municipality, the contractor shall notify the project 

surveyor before back-filling water, fire line, sewer, storm drain facilities or other underground 

pipelines and utilities in order that the surveyor may verify the asbuilt location and elevation of 

said utilities. 

Calculations, Coordination and Project Management 

• Onsite preconstruction meetings to coordinate field staking for synergistic operation with

construction subcontractors (not to exceed one meeting).  Additional meetings will be

conducted on a time and materials basis per Fee Schedule.

• Point staking calculation for items contained in this proposal.

• Correspondence to client and subcontractors (i.e. cutsheets, staking progress

memorandums, etc).



Page 2 of  9 

22425 N 16TH Street, Suite 1, Phoenix, AZ   85024 
C:\RICK\Departments\Survey\PHX\_Pursuits\PROPOSALS\DNG - Laveen Heritage Park.doc 

FEE: 

Rick Engineering will provide the above services for a TOTAL FEE of $4,5000.00. The attached 
Provisions of Agreement between DNG Construction (CLIENT) and RICK are incorporated hereunto and 
made a part of this proposal. Any printing is extra and not a part of this agreement. 

EXCLUSIONS: 

The following items are specifically excluded from the Scope of Work and budget and, if required, 

will either be prepared by others or will be covered by separate agreement between Rick Engineering 

Company and CLIENT. 

a) Boundary Discrepancies

b) Soils Reports

c) Staking for Finish Landscape Irrigation

d) Any items not listed in the “Scope of Work”

If the above meets with your approval, please execute where indicated below, and return to our 

office for our files.  If there are any questions or concerns, please feel free to contact our office. 

Sincerely, 

RICK ENGINEERING COMPANY 

Randall R. Hager, RLS 

Associate – Construction Survey Manager 

ACCEPTED THIS    DAY OF   , 2023 

BY: ________________________________________________________________ 

      CLIENT 

 

 

 

Invoices for this project to be addressed & emailed to: 

Company:  _______________________________________________________________________ 

Address:  ________________________________________________________________________ 

City/State/Zip:  __________________________________________________________________ 

Telephone:  ____________________________Email (REQUIRED): ________________________ 

Contact person:  __________________________________________________________________ 

Please complete, sign and return a copy to RICK ENGINEERING COMPANY 

Dominic DeMark
Rectangle



Page 3 of  9 

22425 N 16TH Street, Suite 1, Phoenix, AZ   85024 
C:\RICK\Departments\Survey\PHX\_Pursuits\PROPOSALS\DNG - Laveen Heritage Park.doc 

STANDARD PROVISIONS: ARIZONA 2023 

The Client and Consultant agree that the following provisions shall be a part of their Agreement: 

1. This Agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, partners, successors, executors, administrators and assigns of the Client and Consultant. 

2. In the event of any increase of costs due to the granting of wage increases and/or other employee benefits to field or office employees due to 

the terms of any labor agreement, rise in the cost of living, or increase in any applicable prevailing wage during the lifetime of this Agreement, 
such increase shall be applied to all remaining compensation.  For services provided on a time and materials or hourly rate basis, increases in the 

applicable rates will be reflected in the billing statement or invoice for the month following the increase. 

3. Should litigation at law or equity arising out of this Agreement, including but not limited to an action for declaratory relief, be brought to
enforce or interpret any term or provision of this Agreement, or to collect any portion of the amount payable under this Agreement or litigation 

commenced either directly or by way of a cross-complaint whether arising out of contract or tort, including a cross-complaint for indemnity, for 

failure or alleged failure to perform or for errors, omissions, or negligence, the prevailing party shall be entitled, in addition to any other award, to 
all litigation and collection expenses, any and all costs of defense, including attorney's fees, expert witness fees, witness fees and court costs and 

any and all other expenses incurred.  

4. Neither the Client nor Consultant shall assign his interest in this Agreement without the written consent of the other.

5. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Arizona.  This Agreement contains the entire

agreement between Client and Consultant relating to the project and the provision of services by Consultant to the project.  Any agreements, 

promises, negotiations or representations not expressly set forth herein, are of no force or effect.  Subsequent modifications to this Agreement 

shall be in writing and signed by both Client and Consultant. 

6.  Conditions or representations, alterations, detractions from or to the terms hereof, including delineations hereon, shall not be valid unless they

are in writing and signed by both Client and Consultant. 

7.  Client agrees that the Consultant is not responsible for damages arising directly or indirectly from any delays for causes beyond the

Consultant's control. For purposes of this Agreement, such causes include, but are not limited to, strikes or other labor disputes; severe weather 

disruptions or other natural disasters; fires, riots, war or other emergencies or acts of God; failure of any government agency to act in timely 
manner; failure of performance by the Client or the Client's contractors or consultants; issuance of regulations, orders or other governmental 

actions that limit, restrict or delay the ability of Consultant or Consultant’s workforce to perform; or discovery of any hazardous substances or 

differing site conditions. In addition, if the delays resulting from any such causes increase the cost or time required by the Consultant to perform 

its services in an orderly and efficient manner, the Consultant shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in schedule and/or compensation. 

8. In the event litigation is instituted under the terms and conditions of this Agreement, such litigation is to be brought and tried in the

appropriate court in the state and county in which the project is located and the parties waive the right to have brought, tried in, or removed to any 

other county or judicial jurisdiction. 

9.  Client acknowledges that Consultant is not responsible for the performance of work by third parties, including, but not limited to, the 

construction contractor(s), subcontractors, governmental agencies, construction managers, architects, or other consultants.  

10.  Consultant shall only act as an advisor in all governmental relations. Consultant shall not be liable for damages resulting from the actions or 

inactions of governmental agencies including, but not limited to, permit processing, environmental impact reports, dedications, general plans and 

amendments thereto, zoning matters, annexations or consolidations, use or conditional use permits, project or plan approvals and building 

permits. 

11.  Consultant makes no warranty, either express or implied, as to the findings, recommendations, plans, specifications, or professional advice.

Consultant shall perform in accordance with generally accepted engineering and/or surveying practices or standards in effect at the time of 

performance in the locale where the services are rendered. 

12.  Consultant makes no representation, guarantee, warranty, express or implied concerning estimated cost figures made in connection with

maps, plans, specifications, or drawings, other than that all such figures are estimates only.  Consultant shall not be responsible for fluctuations in 

cost factors. 

13.  Consultant makes no representations concerning estimates of areas.  Estimates of areas are estimates only and are not to be considered

precise unless Consultant specifically agrees to provide the precise determination of such areas. 

14.  Client and Consultant agree to cooperate in any and every way or manner on project.

15.  Consultant makes no representation, either express or implied, concerning soils or geological surveys or subsurface soil tests or general soils 

testing and reporting. 

16. Upon written request, each of the parties hereto shall execute and deliver, or cause to be executed and delivered, such additional instruments

and documents which may be necessary and proper to carry out the terms of this Agreement. 

17.  The terms and provisions of this Agreement shall not be construed to alter, waive, or affect any lien or stop notice rights which the 

Consultant may have for the performance of services under this Agreement. 



Page 4 of  9 

22425 N 16TH Street, Suite 1, Phoenix, AZ   85024 
C:\RICK\Departments\Survey\PHX\_Pursuits\PROPOSALS\DNG - Laveen Heritage Park.doc 

18. One or more waivers of any term, condition or covenant by a party shall not be construed as a waiver of subsequent breach of the same or 

any other term, condition, or covenant. 

19. In the event Client fails to pay Consultant promptly or within sixty (60) days after invoices are rendered, then Client agrees that Consultant

shall have the right to consider said default a total breach of this Agreement and, upon written notice, the duties, obligations and responsibilities 

of the Consultant under this Agreement are terminated.  In such event, Client shall then promptly pay the Consultant for all the fees, charges, and 

services performed to date by Consultant. 

20. In the event any term, condition, covenant or provision of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining

terms, conditions, covenants and provisions of this Agreement shall be valid and binding on the parties hereto. 

21.  The Client agrees it will require that the Contractor hold harmless, indemnify and defend the Client, the Architect, the Consultant and its 

subconsultants, and each of their officers, directors, principals, employees and agents, from any and all liability claims, losses or damages arising 

or alleged to arise from the performance of the work described herein, but not including the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the Client, 

the Architect or the Consultant or their respective subconsultants, officers directors, principals, employees and agents. 

22.  The Client shall indemnify and hold Consultant harmless with regard to all liability or claims of any kind, including all investigation and

defense costs, connected directly or indirectly with this project, which liabilities or claims do not result from the sole negligence or willful 

misconduct of the Consultant. 

23.  Consultant has a right to complete all services agreed to be rendered pursuant to this Agreement. In the event this Agreement is terminated

before the completion of all services, unless Consultant is responsible for such early termination, Client agrees to release Consultant from all 

liability for services performed. 

24. In the event work prepared or partially prepared by the Consultant be suspended, abandoned, or terminated, the Client shall pay the

Consultant for all work, fees, deposits, charges and services provided, not to exceed any maximum amount specified herein.  Client 
acknowledges if project work is suspended and restarts, there may be additional charges due to suspension which shall be paid by Client as extra 

work. 

25.  Client agrees that if Client requests services not specified pursuant to the scope of services described within this Agreement, Client agrees to

pay all such additional services as extra work if authorized in writing. 

26.  Consultant shall be entitled to immediately, and without notice, suspend the performance of any and all of its obligations pursuant to this 

Agreement if Client files a voluntary petition seeking relief under the United States Bankruptcy Code or if there is an involuntary bankruptcy 

petition filed against Client in the United States Bankruptcy Court, and that petition is not dismissed fifteen (15) days after its filing.  Any 

suspension of services made pursuant to the provisions of this Paragraph shall continue until such time as this Agreement has been fully and 
properly assumed or adequate assurance provided in accordance with the applicable provisions of the United States Bankruptcy Court and in 

compliance with the final order or judgments issued by the Bankruptcy Court. 

27. If payment for Consultant's services is to be made on behalf of Client by a third party, Client agrees that Consultant shall not be required to

indemnify the third party, in the form of an endorsement or otherwise, as a condition of receiving payment for services. 

28.  Client agrees to purchase and maintain, during construction, builder's liability special peril or other similar insurance which will name 

Consultant as an additional insured.  Client also agrees to require the contractor or contractors to purchase and maintain liability insurance, 
including broad form general liability coverage, comprehensive bodily injury, broad form property damage, independent contractors insurance, 

completed operations and contractual liability coverage, and the exclusions for explosion, collapse or underground coverage shall be deleted; 

automobile including bodily injury, property damage, owned, non-owned and hired vehicles; and worker's compensation insurance including 
employers liability coverage, all of which shall name the Client and Consultant as additional insureds. Certificates of such insurance shall be 

provided to Consultant and the certificate(s) shall include provisions that the above policies are primary and non-contributory with Consultant's 

insurance and that coverage will not be canceled unless at least thirty days prior written notice has been given to Consultant. 

29. In the event that the plans, specifications, and/or field work covered by this Agreement are those required by various governmental agencies 

and one or more such governmental agency changes its policies, ordinances, procedures or requirements after the date of this Agreement, any 

additional office or field work required, shall be paid by Client as extra work.  

30. Services provided within the Agreement are for the exclusive use of the Client.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to be

for the benefit of any person not a party to this Agreement and no third-party beneficiary rights are created. 

31. All original papers, drawings, notes, documents and other work product of Consultant, and copies thereof, produced as a result of the 
Agreement represent professional services, shall remain the property of the Consultant, and Consultant shall retain all copyright and other 

ownership interests.  Client shall have a nonexclusive license to use Consultant’s work product and any items in which Consultant maintains 

ownership and/or copyright interest so long as all fees to be paid under this Agreement have been paid.  Any nonexclusive license Client obtains 
under this Agreement terminates upon the termination of this Agreement.  Consultants work product may be used by Consultant without consent 

of the Client.  

32. In the event that any changes are made in the plans and/or specifications by the Client or persons other than the Consultant, and such changes
are not consented to in writing by Consultant, Client acknowledges that the changes and their effects are not the responsibility of Consultant and 



Page 5 of  9 

22425 N 16TH Street, Suite 1, Phoenix, AZ   85024 
C:\RICK\Departments\Survey\PHX\_Pursuits\PROPOSALS\DNG - Laveen Heritage Park.doc 

Client agrees to release Consultant from all liability arising from the use of such changes and agrees to defend, indemnify and hold Consultant, its 

officers, directors, principals, agents and employees harmless from and against all claims, demands, damages or costs arising from the changes. 

33.  Client agrees not to use or permit any other person to use plans, drawings or other work product prepared by Consultant, which plans,

drawings or other work product are not signed and stamped or sealed by Consultant and/or are not final.  Client agrees to be liable and 

responsible for any use of non-final plans, drawings or work product or plans, drawings or work product not signed, and stamped or sealed by 
Consultant and waives liability against Consultant for their use.  Client further agrees that final plans, drawings, and other work products are for 

the exclusive use of Client and may be used by Client only for the project described in this Agreement. 

34. In the event that any staking is destroyed, damaged, or disturbed by an act of God or parties other than Consultant, the cost of re-staking shall
be paid for by the Client as extra work.  If the scope of services provided for pursuant to this Agreement does not include construction staking by 

Consultant, Client acknowledges that changes, clarifications, adjustments, and modifications may be necessary because of changed field or other 

conditions.  Client will indemnify and defend Consultant for construction staking by others and from claims arising from changes, clarifications, 

adjustments and modifications which may be necessary to reflect changed field or other conditions, except claims caused by the sole negligence 

or willful misconduct of Consultant. 

35. Questions concerning location or changes in construction stakes or questions concerning information on plans and specifications must be

called to the attention of the Consultant upon discovery and before corrective remedy. 

36.  The Consultant shall be notified 24 hours in advance, so that he may check forms, for grade and alignment only, prior to the pouring of 

concrete for cast-in-place concrete structures, thrust blocks, electrical boxes, bridge abutments or piers, or any similar structures staked by 

Consultant.  Consultant can assure compliance to proper grade and alignment only when it has been advised to check in advance. 

37.(a)  If the scope of services to be provided by Consultant pursuant to the terms of this Agreement include the preparation of engineering 

drawings but exclude construction staking services, Client acknowledges that such services normally include coordinating civil engineering 
services and the preparation of as-built drawings pursuant to Uniform Building Code Chapter 70 and/or other statutes, ordinances or laws, and 

Client will be required to retain such services from another consultant or pay Consultant  pursuant to this Agreement for such services as extra 

work. 

   (b) If the scope of services to be provided by Consultant pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, include construction staking services, but 

exclude the preparation of the engineering drawings to be used for construction and construction staking, Client acknowledges the coordination of 
civil engineering services and the preparation of as-built drawings as required by statute, ordinance or law may require the retention by Client of 

another consultant or the original consultant responsible for the design, or pay Consultant pursuant to this Agreement for such services as extra 

work.  Client acknowledges that if Consultant is retained to prepare as-built drawings of plans prepared by others, Client will indemnify, defend 
and hold Consultant harmless from any and all liability in connection with the plans and specifications prepared by others, and the performance 

of work by Consultant on this project as set forth in Paragraph 44. 

38. In the event Client discovers or becomes aware of apparent errors or omissions, field conditions or discrepancies during the construction
phase of the project, which apparent errors or omissions, field conditions or discrepancies are resolvable by Consultant, Client agrees to notify 

Consultant and engage Consultant to resolve the problem before construction activities commence or further construction activity proceeds.  

Further, Client agrees to have a provision in its construction contracts for the project which require the contractor to notify Client of any such 
apparent errors or omissions, field conditions or discrepancies so that Client may, in turn, notify Consultant pursuant to the provisions of this 

Paragraph. 

39.  Client shall pay the costs of checking and inspection fees, zoning and annexation application fees, assessment fees, soils engineering fees,
soil testing fees, aerial topography fees, and other fees and deposits, permits, bond premiums, title company charges, blueprints and 

reproductions, and all other charges not specifically covered by the terms of this Agreement.  

40. All fees and other charges will be billed monthly as the work progresses and the net amount shall be due at the time of billing. 

41. A late payment CHARGE will be computed by the Consultant at the periodic rate of 1.5% per month, not to exceed the maximum legal rate,

which will be applied to any unpaid balance commencing thirty (30) days after the date of the original billing. 

42.  Client agrees that the balance as stated on the billings from Consultant to Client are correct, conclusive and binding on the Client unless 
Client within forty-five (45) days from the date of receipt of such billing, notifies Consultant in writing of the particular items that are alleged to 

be incorrect. 

43. In consideration of the Consultant's fee for services, the Client agrees that the Consultant will perform no onsite construction review,
construction management, supervision of construction of engineering structures or other construction supervision for this project unless 

specifically contracted for; that such services will be provided by others; and that the Client shall defend, indemnify and hold the Consultant, its 

officers, directors, principals, agents and employees harmless from any and all liability, real or alleged, arising or resulting from the performance 
of construction review, construction management, supervision of construction of engineering structures or supervision by others.  Further, Client 

acknowledges that Consultant will be unable to correct errors or omissions in the plans which customarily become apparent and resolvable during 

construction review.    

44.  Client agrees that, in accordance with generally accepted construction practices, the construction contractor will be required to assume sole 

and complete responsibility for job site conditions during the course of construction of the project, including safety of all persons and property; 

that this requirement shall be made to apply continuously and not be limited to normal working hours.  The Client further agrees to defend, 



Page 6 of  9 

22425 N 16TH Street, Suite 1, Phoenix, AZ   85024 
C:\RICK\Departments\Survey\PHX\_Pursuits\PROPOSALS\DNG - Laveen Heritage Park.doc 

indemnify, and hold the Consultant harmless from any and all liability in connection with the performance of work on this project, excepting 

liability arising from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the Consultant. 

45.  Client agrees to limit the liability of Consultant, its principals and employees to the Client, all contractors and subcontractors on the project, 

due to professional  negligent  acts, errors  or  omissions  of  the  Consultant, breach of contract or any other cause of action however pled to the 

sum of $50,000 or the Consultant's fee, whichever is greater; except that if the contract amount, including any addenda or other contracts 
pertaining to or covering services related to the project, exceeds $150,000, the liability of Consultant shall not exceed $150,000.  Client further 

agrees to notify any contractor and subcontractor who may perform work in connection with any design, report or study prepared by Consultant 

of such limitation of liability, and to require as a condition precedent to their performing their work, a like indemnity of liability on their part as 

against the Consultant. 

46.  The Client hereby agrees to bring no claim for negligence, breach of contract, indemnity or otherwise against the Consultant, its principals,

employees and agents if such claim, in any way, would involve the Consultant's services for the investigation, detection, abatement, replacement, 

use or specification, or removal of products, materials or processes containing asbestos, asbestos cement pipe, and/or hazardous materials (as 

defined by state, federal and/or local laws or ordinances).  Client further agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless Consultant, its officers, 

directors, principals, employees and agents from any asbestos, asbestos cement pipe, and/or hazardous waste material related claims that may be 
brought by third parties as a result of the services provided by the Consultant pursuant to this Agreement except claims caused by the sole 

negligence or willful misconduct of the Consultant. 

47.  Client acknowledges that Consultant's scope of services for this project does not include any services related, in any way, to asbestos and/or 
hazardous waste.  Should Consultant or any other party encounter such materials on the job site, or should it in any way become known that such 

materials are present or may be present on the job site or any adjacent or nearby areas which may affect Consultant's services, Consultant may, at 

its option, terminate work on the project until such time as Client retains a specialist contractor to abate and/or remove the asbestos and/or 

hazardous waste materials and warrant that the job site is free from any hazard which may result from the existence of such materials. 

48. Digital data files shall be provided to Client only if such delivery has been specified in the scope of services set forth in this Agreement.  If 

the scope of services does not specify that digital data files shall be delivered, all costs associated with delivery of digital data files shall be paid 
by Client.   Client agrees that all digital data files delivered by Consultant are to be used exclusively to fulfill the scope of this Agreement.  Client 

agrees to hold Consultant harmless for any use by client of this data outside or beyond the scope of this Agreement. 

49.  Consultant makes the following representations as to the compatibility of digital data files: 

   (a) All data files are to be used with compatible hardware and software versions as used by Consultant at the time file copies were created. 

   (b) Consultant makes no representation as to the compatibility of any data files other than for the hardware and software versions used by 

Consultant to create the data files. 

   (c) Client agrees to hold Consultant harmless for any use of data files on any hardware or software versions other than those which were used 

by Consultant to create them. 

   (d) If Client requires or requests any special or specific file structure, format or software that is different from those used by Consultant at the 

time Consultant is performing the services set forth in this Agreement, unless otherwise specified in this Agreement, all costs associated with 

creating the file structure or format, and/or acquiring necessary software and/or hardware, shall be the responsibility of Client. 

50. After the time final data files have been delivered per terms of this Agreement, Consultant will not be held responsible for maintaining copies

of any digital data related to this Agreement. 

51.  Client agrees that if formats for deliverables of digital files are not specified in this Agreement, they will be delivered using the standards and

versions of Consultant at the time of creation. 

52.  Client agrees not to use any digital files (drawing or data file), in whole or in part, for any purpose or project other than the project which is 

the subject of this Agreement.  Client waives any and all claims against Consultant resulting in any way from any changes not authorized and/or 
authored by Consultant and/or reuse of the drawings or data for any other project without the express written consent by Consultant.  The transfer 

of drawings or data in electronic media or format shall not be deemed a sale, and Consultant makes no warranties, either express or implied, of 

merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose. 

53.  Because data stored on electronic media can deteriorate undetected or be modified without the Consultant’s knowledge, the Client agrees that

it will accept responsibility for the completeness, correctness, or readability of the electronic media after an acceptance period of 30 days after 

delivery of the electronic files, and that upon the expiration of this acceptance period, client will indemnify and save harmless the Consultant for 
any and all claims, losses, costs, damages, awards or judgments arising from use of the electronic media files or output generated from them.  The 

Consultant agrees that it is responsible for the accuracy of the sealed drawings that accompany the submittal, and that such accuracy is defined as 

the care and skill ordinarily used by members of the Consultants profession practicing under similar conditions at the same time and in the same 

locality.  Consultant makes no warranties, express or implied, under this Agreement or otherwise, in connection with the Consultant’s services. 

54. Prior to the commencement of any legal action, in an effort to resolve any conflicts that arise during the design or construction of the project

which is the subject of this Agreement, or following completion of the project, Client and Consultant agree that all disputes between them arising 
out of or relating to this Agreement, the services performed pursuant to this Agreement, or relating in any way to the project, shall be submitted to 

nonbinding mediation unless the parties mutually agree otherwise.  Each party shall be represented at the mediation by a person or persons with 



Page 7 of  9 

22425 N 16TH Street, Suite 1, Phoenix, AZ   85024 
C:\RICK\Departments\Survey\PHX\_Pursuits\PROPOSALS\DNG - Laveen Heritage Park.doc 

the authority to bind the party to any agreement, obligation or resolution resulting from the mediation.  Each of the parties agrees to include a 

similar mediation provision in all agreements with any other contractors and consultants retained for the project and to require such contractors 
and consultants to include a similar provision in all agreements with subcontractors, sub-consultants, suppliers or fabricators, thereby providing 

mediation as the primary method for dispute resolution between the parties to those agreements. 





Dominic DeMark
Rectangle



Date:
Job Name:
Location:

To: Attention:
Email:

Labor, Equipment & Materials

26 Qty $ 650 16,900.00$      
64 Qty $ 300 19,200.00$      

733 Qty $ 24 17,592.00$      

48 Qty $ 38 1,824.00$         

121 Qty $ 50 6,050.00$         

50000 Qty $ 0.28 14,000.00$      

3/8 minus Arizona Gold 10 Tons $ 80 800.00$     
30 Yards $ 125 3,750.00$         

450 Tons $ 125 56,250.00$      
150 Tons $ 125 18,750.00$      

30 Tons $ 130 3,900.00$         
Grouted Rip Rap Arizona Gold 4 Tons $ 475 1,900.00$         

550 Lf $ 18 9,900.00$         

2500 Sqft $ 1 2,500.00$         
1 Qty $ 85,259 85,258.57$      
2 Qty $ 5000 10,000.00$      
1 Qty $ 1200 1,200.00$         

*** Includes 90 Day Maintenance

Subtotal 269,774.57$    

Alt Adds

1 Qty $ 6000 6,000.00$         

15280 Sqft $
Demo Playground structure Sheet LD 4.0 2 Qty $
Gather enginered wood fiber Sh LD 4.0 1 Qty $

2.5 $     45,700.00 
2000       $       4,000.00 
1500         $        1,500.00

Demo Dog Stations Sh LD 4.0 3 Qty $ 200 600.00$     
Demo Trash Recepticles Sh LD 4.0 12 Qty $ 100 1,200.00$         
Demo Bollards Sh LD 4.0 7 Qty $ 150 1,050.00$         
Demo Volley Ball Court Sh LD 4.0 1 Qty $ 4500 4,500.00$         
Demo Drinking Fountain Sh LD 4.0 1 Qty $ 600 600.00$     
Demo Sign Sh LD 4.0 1 Qty $ 600 600.00$     
Demo Grass Sh LD 4.0 1.1 Ac $ 2000 2,200.00$         

Alt Adds Subtotal $      67,950.00

We hereby agree to provide and professionally install the specified above at this price: $    337,924.57

Proposal is good for 30 days
Grade to be within .10 by General Contractor

Demo concrete, saw cutting, haul off and 
dump fees per Cilvil Sheet CI 2.0

1" Backflow with pad and inclosure with sch 
80 1" line per sheet on civil plans C.I 3.0

Demo of trees and palm

Proposal NO. 134

3/21/2024
Brooks crossing Redd Construction

We propose to provide the materials and labor listed below to complete the landscape install for this job per the landscape 
architects specs and plans. Scope of work to be as follows:

Chandler Az 11311 E Germann Road
Chandler, Az 85286

480-857-2621(o) / 480-220-0454(m)

DNG
ddemark@dngllc.com

Dominic DeMark

Title:

Date: 3/21/2024

Signature:
Date of Acceptance:

Trees
36" Box Tree
24" Box Tree

Shrubs
5 Gal Shrub

Granite

1" Arizona Gold

Irrigation
Mobilization

Cacti
5 Gal Cacti

Agave
5 Gal Agave

Boulders
Lbs

Mulch
1/2" Arizona Gold

Rip Rap Arizona Gold

Curbing
8" x 8"

Turf
Mid Iron

Dominic DeMark
Line

Dominic DeMark
Oval

Dominic DeMark
Rectangle

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text
Plumbing scope

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text
Concrete scope

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text
Haul off dirt	                           				  $     12,500.00

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text

Dominic DeMark
Line

Dominic DeMark
Line

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text
$259,874

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text

Dominic DeMark
Oval



PROPOSAL: #23509

PROJECT: Brooks Crossing Park

PROPOSAL CREATED ON: 3/5/24

ITEM DESCRIPTION OF WORK COST

A Create SWPPP Plan and electronic SWPPP book for the project compliant with EPA. 

Includes assistance in filing NOI and NOT. (Does not include $350 permit fee) $1,050.00

B
Provide Inspections every 2 weeks and after rainfall events of 0.5" or more. Assume 6 

Months @ $350 per month $2,100.00

C
Assistance with creating applications and plans to obtain Dust Control Permit in 

Maricopa County (Does not include permit fee)
$475.00 

D Generate and install 4'x8' SWPPP/DUST sign, for compliance with AZPDES policy $690.00 

E Install Hydrosock as the primary control measure - 3,500' @ $2.35/foot $8,225.00

F Provide 2.4 cy concrete washout. Estimated 4 months on-site with 1 cleanouts $1,210.00

TOTAL $13,750.00

Respectfully Submitted,

Carl Bloomfield

President

6K SWPPP, LLC

*Please see the attached "Terms and Conditions" for additional information pertaining to this proposal.

ACCEPTED BY:

Signature

Name/Title

To whom it may concern,

6K is pleased to submit this proposal for providing stormwater compliance services and control measures for the 

Laveen Heritage Park project in Phoenix, Arizona. The following is 6K's proposed scope of services:   

6K appreciates the opportunity to submit this proposal for providing stormwater compliance services and control 

measure implementation & maintenance of the SWPPP for the Laveen Heritage Park project run by your company.  

Please contact 6K should you have any questions at 480-664-8592.

6K will accept this signed proposal as a notice to proceed on the work specified herein.

This proposal includes the items we believe will keep you compliant.  Please select the items you would like us to 

do. It is not an "all or none" proposal. 

 5235 E. Southern Ave.,Suite D106-144 ·  Mesa, Arizona  85206 

Phone: 480-278-2567 ·  Email: quinn@6kllc.com

ROC251348

Dominic DeMark
Oval



PROPOSAL: #23509

Terms and Conditions - Dust Control, SWPPP and Erosion Control
1. Additional services are defined as services, which are not expressly written or implied in this agreement.  6K will not proceed with any
additional services without a negotiated fee agreement and written authorization from CLIENT.  Services provided on a time and material 
basis will be based on the 6K Fee Schedule in effect at the time that the services are provided.  Updated rate schedules will be provided on 
request. Changes in item quantities by the CLIENT may result in increased unit prices.

2. Invoices will be submitted monthly and shall be due and payable upon receipt.  All amounts past due over 30 days will incur a finance
charge of 1-1/2% per month past due.

3. CLIENT or 6K can terminate this agreement by giving thirty days written notice to the other party.  If this agreement is terminated,
CLIENT agrees to pay 6K, at the end of the thirty day notice period, for all work previously authorized and performed and all fees earned 
prior to the date of the termination.  Any previously identified Retainer will be applied towards the cost of any unpaid services at time of 
final billing.

4. It is understood and agreed that 6K Companies (“6K”) provides the services herein only on a consultation basis.  6K personnel have no
authority to exercise any control over CLIENT, any construction contractor, any other entity, or their employees in connection with their 
work.  6K will not be held liable for any penalties or fines incurred by the CLIENT that are the result of negligent acts or omissions on the 
part of the CLIENT, any construction contractor, any other entity, or their employees.

5. The cost for these services excludes taxes, permits, bonds, water source and all other water charges, hard dig conditions, dust control
during BMP installation, gravel backfill, and any other service not specifically identified herein.

6. 6K may propose to provide on-site Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (“SWPPP”) and/or Dust Control inspection services for the
aforementioned Project.  Included will be services to travel to the site, complete a thorough inspection of the site, complete SWPPP/Dust 
Control inspection forms provided by 6K, update on-site SWPPP/Dust Control Log Books, update on-site SWPPP/Dust Control maps, 
maintain electronic copies of completed inspection forms at 6K office, and consult with on-site operator regarding inspection findings and 
recommendations.  6K may offer to train site personnel instead of providing site inspections (see proposal for specifics).

7. 6K will provide SWPPP inspection services for the identified inspection fee (if specified).  6K will provide inspections every 14 days or
within twenty-four (24) hours after a storm event where it has rained 0.5 inches or more.  Inspections occurring on holidays and/or 
weekends are subject to an additional $50.00 per inspection. It is the responsibility of the CLIENT to terminate inspections.

8. 6K will provide and install either a 2' x 2'  SWPPP Sign in conformance with the AZPDES or NPDES Permit or a Combination 4' x 8' Dust
Control and SWPPP Sign in conformance with the AZPDES and local air quality posting requirements.  See proposal for type of signage to be 
installed.

9. 6K will provide services to write the SWPPP report for this project.  Included will be services to gather information from the CLIENT for
the property, including plans, reports, etc necessary to allow the report to be prepared.  This proposal is based off of having all files deliver 
to 6K from Client, including a copy of the base CADD files (all drawing files must be in AutoCAD format). 6K will provide two (2) reports for 
use on the property.  

10. 6K will file the Notice of Intent (NOI) and Notice of Termination (NOT) with the EPA/ADEQ for the CLIENT at the appropriate time and
as directed by the CLIENT, unless specifically excluded from contract.

11. 6K will not create a SWPPP Plan for the Project if there is an existing, acceptable plan.

12. This proposal is valid for thirty (30) days from date of issuance.

13. Unless specifically stated or included within this proposal, the following items/costs are excluded from this contract: Permit Fees, Road
Closures, Abnormal Soil Conditions, All Sales and/or Privilege Taxes, Bonds, Import Fill, Export, Work not Specified as a Bid Item, Clean Up 
of Excess Materials/Debris Left by Other Contractors, Slurry Backfill, Engineering, Water Meter and Water Fees, Utility Conflicts, Dry Wells, 
and Final Utility Adjustments.

 5235 E. Southern Ave.,Suite D106-144 ·  Mesa, Arizona  85206 

Phone: 480-278-2567 ·  Email: quinn@6kllc.com

ROC251348

PROJECT: Brooks Crossing Park



 March 13, 2024 

1435 East Guadalupe Road 

Tempe, Arizona 85283 

(480) 804-1660 

BROOKS CROSSING PARK 

DOMESTIC WATER: 

1 LS 

1 LS 

1” WATER SERVICE & WATER METERCOPPER 
1" Backflow Prevention Assembly

DOMESTIC WATER TOTAL: $ 23,500.00 

BID EXCLUDES: PERMITS, TAXES, CITY FEES-INCLUDING BARRICADE FEES / TRAFFIC CONTROL FEES, BONDS, STAKING, CONFLICTS  

WITH EXISTING UTILITIES, FINAL ADJUSTMENTS, METERS, HARD DIG, DIRT THAT WILL NOT HOLD A VERTICAL EDGE, PAINTING &  

SIGNAGE, DRYWELLS, HAUL-OFF, TESTING OF EXISTING UTILITIES, TAMPER DEVICES, SCREENING MATERIAL, OVERTIME, IMPORTED FILL, 

WATERLINES DEEPER THAN 5', STORM WATER MANAGEMENT, SPECIAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS, BIM, APP 4.01, CONSTRUCTION  

WATER, WATER HAULING, POLLUTION LIABILITY INSURANCE, PREVAILING WAGES, DOMESTIC WATER FROM MAIN TO METER,  

DRINKING FOUNTAINS, METER VAULT, AND THE REMOVAL & REPLACEMENT OF CONCRETE, PAVEMENT & LANDSCAPING. 

1. MATERIAL PRICES QUOTED AT THE TIME OF BID, BY ACCEPTING THIS BID; YOU AGREE TO PAY FOR ALL COST INCREASES. 

2. BID INCLUDES ITEMS AND QUANITITIES SPECIFICALLY LISTED ONLY. 

3. BID CONTINGENT ON NORTH STAR’S SCHEDULE. 

4. BID FROM CIVIL PLANS DATED: 3/22/23. 

5. SOME MATERIALS HAVE A SIGNIFICANT LEAD TIME. 

Dominic DeMark
Oval



VALID FOR 30 DAYS

DATE

Contractor PROJECT

Job Address

Addenda(s) noted ALTERNATE BID

NONE

QTY UNIT PRICE LINE TOTAL

120 $135.00 $16,200.00

1 $3,800.00 $3,800.00

1 $22,000.00 $22,000.00

199 $175.00 $34,825.00

173 $96.50 $16,694.50

8 $2,385.00 $19,080.00

199 $60.25 $11,989.75

199 $66.35 $13,203.65

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

SUBTOTAL $137,792.90

SALES TAX $0.00

$137,792.90

6' tall chain link black vinyl , top & bottom rail $12,500

4' tall chain link fence black vinyl Top & bottom rail $8,400

16" x 4" Poured in place seat cap 

CHAIN LINK ALTERNATE BELOW 

Cmu Pillar park signage with steel trellis (City of chandler sign provided by others) 

24" tall cmu seat walls (CMU ONLY) 

4' tall iron fence @ pickleball court See Dtl 9 sheet LH3.4

24" sq x 8' tall Cmu columns around ramada post (No footings) 

30"x10" footing at seat walls 

10' tall chain link Black vinyl top ,Middle&  bottom rail $28,025

8' tall chain link black vinyl , Top & Bottom rail $22,500

Brooks Crossings Park 

March 19, 2024

Phone: (602) 715.2510

Chandler , AZ 85224

Fax : (602)946-4802

1345 W Calle Del Norte 

DNG 

Brooks Crossing Lettering mounted to entry fence 

DESCRIPTION

3' tall wire mesh fence @ Entry see LH3.5 dtl 1 & 3

BASE BID ALTERNATE BID 2

QUOTE

Licensed ,Bonded ,Insured 
ROC 339036

*EXCLUSIONS: grading, staking, taxes, permits, bonds, fire dept. locks/ boxes, signs, mow curbs, saw cutting, core 

drilling, electrical, conduit, data, security entry systems, concrete mounting pads, cmu footers, stucco and veneer 

Contact: Manuel Armenta 602.200.4273

Manuel@VulcanFenceAZ.com 

DNGadmin
Line

DNGadmin
Line

DNGadmin
Line

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text
$77,774

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text

Dominic DeMark
Oval



Date:
Job Name:
Location:

To: Attention:
Email:

Labor, Equipment & Materials

26 Qty $ 650 16,900.00$      
64 Qty $ 300 19,200.00$      

733 Qty $ 24 17,592.00$      

48 Qty $ 38 1,824.00$         

121 Qty $ 50 6,050.00$         

50000 Qty $ 0.28 14,000.00$      

3/8 minus Arizona Gold 10 Tons $ 80 800.00$     
30 Yards $ 125 3,750.00$         

450 Tons $ 125 56,250.00$      
150 Tons $ 125 18,750.00$      

30 Tons $ 130 3,900.00$         
Grouted Rip Rap Arizona Gold 4 Tons $ 475 1,900.00$         

550 Lf $ 18 9,900.00$         

2500 Sqft $ 1 2,500.00$         
1 Qty $ 85,259 85,258.57$      
2 Qty $ 5000 10,000.00$      
1 Qty $ 1200 1,200.00$         

*** Includes 90 Day Maintenance

Subtotal 269,774.57$    

Alt Adds

1 Qty $ 6000 6,000.00$         

15280 Sqft $
Demo Playground structure Sheet LD 4.0 2 Qty $
Gather enginered wood fiber Sh LD 4.0 1 Qty $

2.5 $     45,700.00 
2000       $       4,000.00 
1500         $        1,500.00

Demo Dog Stations Sh LD 4.0 3 Qty $ 200 600.00$     
Demo Trash Recepticles Sh LD 4.0 12 Qty $ 100 1,200.00$         
Demo Bollards Sh LD 4.0 7 Qty $ 150 1,050.00$         
Demo Volley Ball Court Sh LD 4.0 1 Qty $ 4500 4,500.00$         
Demo Drinking Fountain Sh LD 4.0 1 Qty $ 600 600.00$     
Demo Sign Sh LD 4.0 1 Qty $ 600 600.00$     
Demo Grass Sh LD 4.0 1.1 Ac $ 2000 2,200.00$         

Alt Adds Subtotal $      67,950.00

We hereby agree to provide and professionally install the specified above at this price: $    337,924.57

Proposal is good for 30 days
Grade to be within .10 by General Contractor

Demo concrete, saw cutting, haul off and 
dump fees per Cilvil Sheet CI 2.0

1" Backflow with pad and inclosure with sch 
80 1" line per sheet on civil plans C.I 3.0

Demo of trees and palm

Proposal NO. 134

3/21/2024
Brooks crossing Redd Construction

We propose to provide the materials and labor listed below to complete the landscape install for this job per the landscape 
architects specs and plans. Scope of work to be as follows:

Chandler Az 11311 E Germann Road
Chandler, Az 85286

480-857-2621(o) / 480-220-0454(m)

DNG
ddemark@dngllc.com

Dominic DeMark

Title:

Date: 3/21/2024

Signature:
Date of Acceptance:

Trees
36" Box Tree
24" Box Tree

Shrubs
5 Gal Shrub

Granite

1" Arizona Gold

Irrigation
Mobilization

Cacti
5 Gal Cacti

Agave
5 Gal Agave

Boulders
Lbs

Mulch
1/2" Arizona Gold

Rip Rap Arizona Gold

Curbing
8" x 8"

Turf
Mid Iron

Dominic DeMark
Line

Dominic DeMark
Oval

Dominic DeMark
Rectangle

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text
Plumbing scope

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text
Concrete scope

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text
Haul off dirt	                           				  $     12,500.00

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text

Dominic DeMark
Line

Dominic DeMark
Line

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text
$259,874

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text

Dominic DeMark
Oval



Proposal

Q000964

Please Issue Purchase Order to: Proposal Date Salesperson

3/11/2024 Kevin Solomon
480-323-0337

kevin@exerplay.com

Exerplay, Inc
PO Box 1160, Cedar Crest, NM 87008

fax to 505-281-0155

Chandler, City of; Brooks Crossing Park

Quantity Item Code Description Unit Price DISC. Total Extended

LANDSCAPE STRUCTURES, INC.

1 LSI DESIGN Weevos (2-5 years), Design 1166130-01-05 36,100.00 36,100.00

1 LSI DESIGN Hedra (5-12 years), Design 1166130-01-05 96,050.00 96,050.00

1 LSI DESIGN CP034306   •   SKYWAYS EXTENDED HIP 6 Columns + 1 HDPE Top / 35' x 46' w/ 
14' Entry & Templates,  Design 1166130-01-05

23,115.00 23,115.00

2 247179A Curva Spinner (DB Only),  Design 1166130-01-05 2,395.00 4,790.00

1 164075B Bobble Rider, Double Direct Bury,  Design 1166130-01-05 2,645.00 2,645.00

2 152179A Saddle Spinner 12"-16", DB,  Design 1166130-01-05 1,305.00 2,610.00

1 194663B ZipKrooz 50' w/Aluminum Posts DB,  Design 1166130-01-05 18,105.00 18,105.00

1 196213B ZipKrooz Assisted Additional Bay 50' w/Aluminum Posts DB,  Design 1166130-
01-05

15,630.00 15,630.00

1 278557A Hedra Swing Frames with Hedra Swing Frame Spacer Set, (2) Belt Seats, (2) 
Bucket Seats and (1) Friendship Swing with ProGaurd Chaings, Design 1166130-
01-05

15,835.00 15,835.00

1 192451A HealthBeat Ab Crunch/Leg Lift Direct Bury, Design 1166130-01-05 3,210.00 3,210.00

1 192454A HealthBeat Balance Steps Direct Bury,  HealthBeat Ab Crunch/Leg Lift Direct 
Bury, Design 1166130-01-05

3,890.00 3,890.00

1 192455A HealthBeat Cardio Stepper Direct Bury, HealthBeat Ab Crunch/Leg Lift Direct 
Bury, Design 1166130-01-05

9,730.00 9,730.00

1 192456A HealthBeat Chest/Back Press Direct Bury, HealthBeat Ab Crunch/Leg Lift Direct 
Bury, Design 1166130-01-05

7,790.00 7,790.00

1 192464A HealthBeat Intro Sign Direct Bury, Design 1166130-01-05 1,090.00 1,090.00

1 ENGINEERING Shade Engineering Charge 1,250.00 1,250.00

1 FREIGHT Freight/shipping charges or PG Equipment (150-24-286) 17,160.00 17,160.00

1 FREIGHT Freight/shipping charges or Shade Equipment (150-24-287) 4,797.00 4,797.00

CLASSIC RECREATION SYSTEMS

2 SHELTER 16' x 16' Denver.  Medallion-Lok Roof, 4:12 Roof Pitch, 7’2” Eave Height, Tube 
Steel Fascia, 4 Columns with Embed Plates for Masonry Column, TGIC Poly 
Powder Coat w/ Zinc Rich Primer (Standard colors only **Upcharge for custom 
colors).

18,097.00 36,194.00

Provision for Electrical: 1 Ea Outlet, 1 Ea Light  - NOTE - Lead time for Ramadas 
is approximately 26 weeks, anchor bolts and permits by others.

1 ENGINEERING Structural Calculations (Includes 3 sets - 24" x 36" copies) - NOTE - Lead time 
for Structural Calcs is approximately 3-4 weeks

1,250.00 1,250.00

1 FREIGHT Freight/shipping charges (123565) 1,755.00 1,755.00

SITE FURNISHINGS

15 TR32CLASSIC 32 Gallon Classic Standard Trash Receptacle, Receptacle Only 670.00 10,050.00

15 FLATTOP32-HW Flat Top for 32 Gallon Receptacles 187.00 2,805.00

P.O. BOX 1160 Cedar Crest, NM 87008 1-800-457-5444 Exerplay.com Fax 505-281-0155

Page: 1 of 4

http://www.exerplay.com
Dominic DeMark
Rectangle

Dominic DeMark
Rectangle

Dominic DeMark
Rectangle

Dominic DeMark
Rectangle

Dominic DeMark
Rectangle

Dominic DeMark
Rectangle

Dominic DeMark
Rectangle

Dominic DeMark
Rectangle

Dominic DeMark
Rectangle

Dominic DeMark
Rectangle

Dominic DeMark
Rectangle

Dominic DeMark
Rectangle



Proposal

Q000964

Please Issue Purchase Order to: Proposal Date Salesperson

3/11/2024 Kevin Solomon
480-323-0337

kevin@exerplay.com

Exerplay, Inc
PO Box 1160, Cedar Crest, NM 87008

fax to 505-281-0155

Chandler, City of; Brooks Crossing Park

Quantity Item Code Description Unit Price DISC. Total Extended

15 LINER32-BLACK Plastic Liner - Black Color 83.20 1,248.00

15 TR-SM-HW Surface Mounting Kit for All Models 93.50 1,402.50

13 SITE FURNISHINGS B6WBCLASSIC   •   6 Ft. Bench with Contoured Back and Arms, Ribbed Steel, 
Cast Aluminum Frames, Portable or Surface Mt.

1,927.00 25,051.00

4 SITE FURNISHINGS TSRCHDCPALT  •  8Ft. Table, 2 Attached 6Ft. Seats Centered, Rounded Corners, 
3/4" #9 Expanded Metal, Two 2 3/8" Legs, Portable

1,485.00 5,940.00

1 FREIGHT Freight/shipping charges (QUO0280015) 6,012.00 6,012.00

2 130-20/S-2 2-3/8 O.D. Multi Loop Bike Rack, 2 Peaks - Surface Plate 383.00 766.00

2 21-00 Grill For Embedment 400.00 800.00

1 FREIGHT Freight/shipping charges (753-149701-24A) 663.00 663.00

SAFETY SURFACING

555 SURFACING Engineered Wood Fiber, priced per cu/yd 25.00 13,875.00

6 FREIGHT Freight/shipping charges, Priced per truck load (14507) 1,260.00 7,560.00

7 SITE FURNISHINGS APS-SwingMat   •   3' x 5' x 2" Swing Wear Mat - Black 189.00 1,323.00

1 FREIGHT Freight/shipping charges (69083) 560.00 560.00

THIS PROPOSAL IS SUBJECT TO THE ATTACHED TERMS AND CONDITIONS
Taxes subject to change

Subtotal 381,051.50

Tax Total: 26,523.47

Total 407,574.97
Proposal prepared by: Ashley Gonzales

Accepted by:

Print Name: Signature: Date:

P.O. BOX 1160 Cedar Crest, NM 87008 1-800-457-5444 Exerplay.com Fax 505-281-0155

Page: 2 of 4

http://www.exerplay.com
Dominic DeMark
Rectangle

Dominic DeMark
Rectangle



Proposal

Q000964

General Terms and Conditions:

Pricing for all listed items is good for 14 days from date of quote.  ExerPlay reserves the right to revise pricing if any quote approvals are received after the 14-day 
timeframe, or if any portion of the quote is changed or removed.  This may result in a delay in ordering materials for this project.

Pricing is for the listed items only and unless specifically shown on the quote, does not include freight, installation, engineering, offloading, storage, security, site 
preparation, permitting, security/temporary fencing, hard dig conditions, saw cutting, core drilling, field painting, electrical, concrete slabs, masonry work, ABC 
compaction, curbing, hand digging, excavation, spoil & waste removal, certification classes, background checks/badging, private line locating, or any applicable taxes or 
bonds. To obtain a performance/payment bond, please add 3.5% of the total to this quote.

Any necessary permits (federal, state, and/or local building) or special inspections are the responsibility of the General Contractor or End Owner.

Any applicable taxes shown on the quote are calculated based on state, city or county rates and project-specific requirements.  Any Requests to remove taxes are subject 
to approval and MUST include an applicable tax-exempt certificate.

Please provide a signed quote, Purchase Order, or Contract to request an order.  Further information such as shipping, colors, contact info, etc., may be needed before an 
order can be placed. Contract terms are subject to review and approval.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in any Contract Documents, ExerPlay shall have no duty to defend or indemnify Owner, Customer, or any other party for that 
portion of any claim arising out of the sole negligence of the indemnified party.

Owner or General Contractor understands that estimated shipment times for materials are subject to change due to manufacturer lead times. Please communicate your 
project schedule, including any liquidated damages, to ExerPlay prior to ordering. ExerPlay shall not be liable for any loss caused by the timing of delayed shipments.

Billing and Payment Terms:

Current Customers: Unless otherwise negotiated and agreed upon, ExerPlay's payment terms are         Net 30 from the date of the invoice, with approved credit; and Net 
45 for contracted projects. ExerPlay's process is to bill the customer when the equipment ships. Surfacing and installation are billed upon completion. Bonds are billed 
when ordered.  Late payments may be subject to finance fees and/or legal action.

New Customers:  New customers may be required to pay a deposit on equipment at time of order. Deposit amount to be determined, based on credit. The remainder of 
that equipment, including freight, will be billed when it ships. Surfacing and installation are billed upon completion. Bonds are billed when ordered.

If paying by credit card, there will be a 3.5% fee added to the invoice.

Installation Terms:

If installation is included on the quote, the following guidelines must be followed:
1. It is recommended that any Landscape Structures Equipment be installed by a certified Landscape Structures installer, and that all other equipment be installed by a 
CPSI Certified installer. ExerPlay reserves the right to request proof of certification.
2. Playground equipment MUST be installed over ADA compliant wood fiber or rubber surfacing.  This area is not ADA compliant without surfacing and an accessible route 
up to and into the playground area.  Please contact us for more information.
3. Installation price does NOT include prevailing wages, Davis-Bacon wages, or TERO wages unless otherwise specified.  Any changes in wage requirements at time of order 
are subject to updated pricing.
4. Installation price is based on normal soil conditions. Unusual or hard dig soil conditions that require the use of a jack hammer, or other such equipment, will incur 
additional charges by reason of such conditions and supervisory fee, and for an extension of the time of completion. Installation price does not include removal of anything 
which may hinder installation of equipment, unless otherwise specified on our quote.
5. If Hard Dig conditions are known, please advise so we can quote accordingly to avoid any delays or additional fees. Hard Dig conditions will be considered anything that 
cannot be excavated with a standard Bobcat mounted hydraulic auger. Hard Dig conditions will require a change order at a Time & Material rate. If an auger truck is 
required to complete digging, it will be at the expense of the General Contractor or Owner, if a spoil report is not provided at the time of quoting.

P.O. BOX 1160 Cedar Crest, NM 87008 1-800-457-5444 Exerplay.com Fax 505-281-0155

Page: 3 of 4

http://www.exerplay.com


Proposal

Q000964

6. Finish grade is to be provided by others prior to arrival of installer.
7. Installer must have free and clear access to the install location(s). The installer is not responsible for damage done to existing surfacing/
landscaping that may occur when equipment & vehicles are being used in the normal course of construction. Reasonable access to the job site 
for a Bobcat is assumed as a part of this quote.
8. Line-item pricing is for informational purposes only and is based upon being awarded the total project. All items are to be installed concurrently 
if specific areas are not ready for installation, and an additional mobilization fee will be required via Change order unless otherwise specified on 
the quote.
9. If any materials need to be unloaded on site by the installer, unloading must be coordinated at the same time as the installation. If special 
arrangements need to be made, an additional trip charge for unloading may apply.
10. Our installation team will call 811 to conduct a line location service; however, often-times they do not mark lines on the actual property where 
the installation will be done. The owner is responsible for blue-staking the job site and staking out any underground utilities prior to installation. 
Owner is responsible should damage occur.
11.Neither ExerPlay nor Installers are responsible for vandalism, theft of equipment or subsequent repairs or replacement. Security fencing can be 
provided upon request and added to the quote.
12. The job site MUST be ready, and area leveled, when the installer arrives to begin the job, unless specifically noted on the quote. Any downtime 
or site delays caused by Owner or General Contractor will incur additional fees.
13. If equipment is to be shipped to the installer’s yard, it will be held for a maximum of 6 months from delivery, with intent to install in that time 
frame; otherwise, storage fees may occur.

General Contractor is responsible for:

1. Adequate storage and layout area as well as security of equipment while on site.
2. Water, power, sanitary facilities, and trash container on site.
3. Free and clear vehicle access to site and all areas under the scope of work.
4. Movement of any utilities conflicting with the installation of the equipment (installer is not responsible for landscape irrigation).
5. Once the installers are on site, any delays or additional work incurred by the installation crew and caused by others (owners or other contractors) will be charged on a 
cost-plus basis.
6. Any additional costs, i.e. demolition, relocation, excavation, surfacing materials, and labor due to abnormal soil conditions, are not included in price.
7. Please notify ExerPlay of any changes immediately. If any changes are made which we are not aware of, and which alter the installation, then all additional costs will be 
passed on to the GC.

P.O. BOX 1160 Cedar Crest, NM 87008 1-800-457-5444 Exerplay.com Fax 505-281-0155

Page: 4 of 4

http://www.exerplay.com


Pricing valid for up to 90 days or otherwise stated and may be revised for changes in scope of work. CEC reserves the right to update pricing if project is 
not schedulable within 90 days of the issuance of a purchase order or if installation cannot occur within one year of issuance of a purchase order. CEC is 

not liable for damage occurring to stored equipment more than 90 days after delivery.
Page 1 of 3

Competitive Edge Contracting Inc
PO Box 21192

Phoenix, AZ  85036

+1 6028127104

showard@azcec.us

 

Estimate
ADDRESS
DNG Construction, LLC
3933 E La Salle Street
Phoenix, AZ  85040

SHIP TO
1640 W Calle Del Norte
Chandler AZ 85224

ESTIMATE 09560
DATE 03/21/2024
EXPIRATION 
DATE

06/20/2024

JOB NAME
Chandler Brooks Crossing

 
 

 
 

ACTIVITY QTY AMOUNT

Install Bike Rack (SM)
Ultra site #5308 OAE
LH3.3 DTL 4

2 532.00

Install BBQ Grill (DB)
Superior  GSP20
LH3.3 DTL 2

1 217.00

Install Bench (SM)
Superior #B6WBCLASSIC OAE
LH3.3 DTL 6

13 3,458.00

Install Table, Picnic w/ Benches (SM)
Webcoat #TRCHDCPALT OAE or Wabash Valley Signature Series #SG115
LH3.4 DTL 2

4 1,764.00

Install Trash Receptacle (SM)
Webcoat TR32 Classic w/ Flattop OAE or Wabash Valley #LR32

15 3,150.00

Install Fountain, Drinking w/ Pet (SM)
MDF 10145-18 SMSS Chilled, above ground mounting only
*Excludes Sump/Winterization pit. Plumbing ,electrical connections by others.
LH3.3 DTL 5

1 497.00

Install Pet Waste Station (DB)
Installation of sign and mounting of City of Chandler faces only.
Sign faces and hardware provided by others
LH3.3 DTL 3

5 1,775.00

Install LSI Hedra Play Structure
LSI Design 220103F

1 23,100.00

Install LSI Zipkrooz 50'
LSI Design 220103F

1 3,962.00

Install LSI Weevos Play Structure
2-5 Structure, LSI Design 220103F

1 7,929.00

Install Swing, LSI Hedra, 3-Bay
LSI Design 220103F

1 2,619.00

Install LSI Spin, Curva
LSI Design 220103F

2 1,372.00

Install LSI Spring Rider, Bobble (double) 1 798.00

Dominic DeMark
Rectangle

Dominic DeMark
Rectangle



Pricing valid for up to 90 days or otherwise stated and may be revised for changes in scope of work. CEC reserves the right to update pricing if project is 
not schedulable within 90 days of the issuance of a purchase order or if installation cannot occur within one year of issuance of a purchase order. CEC is 

not liable for damage occurring to stored equipment more than 90 days after delivery.
Page 2 of 3

LSI Design 220103F

Install LSI Spin, Saddle
LSI Design 220103F

2 952.00

Install Wear Mat 7 588.00

Install LSI HealthBeat Balance Steps
192454

1 1,568.00

Install LSI HealthBeat Ab Crunch/Leg-Lift
192451

1 1,386.00

Install LSI HealthBeat Chest/Back Press
192456

1 1,568.00

Install LSI HealthBeat Cardio Stepper
192455

1 1,365.00

Install CRS Ramada
16'x16'x8e  CRS Denver, standing seam, 4:12 pitch, (4) columns, (SM) to masonry columns
(Footings/Surrounds/Electric, CMU Columns by others)
LH3.2

2 9,057.00

Install Shade Structure
46'x35'x15'e Hip shade (6)  footings up to 30"x84", over Hedra Swing

1 22,398.00

Install LSI Tuff Timber Access Ramp
LSI Tuff Timber #130799 @ sides of concrete fluctuation ramp
LS3.1 DTL 2

2 1,120.00

Form/Pour Concrete Fluctuation Ramp
LS3.1 DTL 2, medium broom finish, 3000 psi

1 2,832.00

Install Sign
Park Entry Sign
Relocate to new site, mount new face.
New sign face furnished by others
LH3.3 DTL 1

1 970.00

Sandblast
Concrete "Welcome Mat" Sandblasted Logo
Blasted depth to be 1/8" to 3'16"
High resolution CAD file provided by others

1 3,288.00

Services
Sandblast Mockup
Concrete "Welcome Mat" Sandblasted Logo
Blasted depth to be 1/8" to 3'16"
High resolution CAD file provided by others

1 5,000.00

Form/Pour Concrete Header (LF)
LF of 8"x8" header with #3 continuous rebar control joints @ 5'
LH3.04 DTL 3

534 17,622.00

Install Sub-Base Fill (SF)
4" depth 
*Site to be compacted and subgrade ready at +/- .1" Subbase furnished by others.

0.75 12,728.25

Form/Pour Turndown (LF)
18" Playground turndown CIP with pin in rebar up to 4' horizontal @ 24" spacing (both playgrounds) 
LH3.04 DTL 4

355 26,625.00

Form/Pour Sidewalk (SF)
Varying widths, Mag A 3000 psi, medium broom finish, sawcut 8'0" OC max, includes additional 2"x6" turndowns 
at perimeter
495'x4'x4"
66'x5'x4"
1570'x8'x4"

15,860 146,705.00



Pricing valid for up to 90 days or otherwise stated and may be revised for changes in scope of work. CEC reserves the right to update pricing if project is 
not schedulable within 90 days of the issuance of a purchase order or if installation cannot occur within one year of issuance of a purchase order. CEC is 

not liable for damage occurring to stored equipment more than 90 days after delivery.
Page 3 of 3

110'x9'x4"
LH3.4 DTL 8, Mag DTL 230

Form/Pour 4" Concrete Slab (SF)
Large Slabs
Varying dimensions, Mag A 3000 psi, non-reinforced medium broom finish, sawcut 8'0", includes additional 2"x6" 
turndowns at perimeter
(1) Ramada Slab, 350 SF
(1) Ramada Slab, 626 SF
LH3.4 DTL 2

976 8,784.00

Form/Pour Concrete
Small Slabs
Varying dimensions, Mag A 3000 psi, non-reinforced medium broom finish, sawcut 8'0", includes additional 2"x6" 
turndowns at perimeter
(1) BBQ Slab, 13 SF
(1) Bench Slab, 88 SF
(11) Bench Slab, 44 SF
LH3.4 DTL 2

135 1,640.25

Drill/Pour Pier Footing
Light Poles
24"x78" w/ cages
Anchor bolts, conduits and ground wires furnished by others
SE3.1 Arial Light Struct. DTL SK1

3 4,716.00

Construct CMU Seatwall
(6) Seat Walls, Priced by (LF)
16"x18" CMU reinforced with #5 bar @ 48" O.C. centered in each block, Mesastone Black Canyon CMU, 1" 
weephole where soil is greater than 16"
16"x4" Custom cast-in-place concrete cap with Davis Dark Grey color, anti-skate integral notches 48" O.C., 
rebar dowel connection to concrete core
10"x2'6" Footing, #5 at 16" O.C., (3) #5 continuous centered in footing
*Excludes Weep hole pea gravel and filter fabric wrap, waterproofing and protection board.
LH 3.4 DTL 5

175 62,125.00

*Excludes all demolition, excavation, and disposal. Site to be compacted and subgrade ready to within +/- .1".
*Excludes DB/prevailing wage rates, certified payroll, OCIP and any additional insurance not currently satisfied 
by CEC's current insurance policies.

*Unless noted otherwise: Project site must have “tailgate access” and be 
subgrade ready. Digging based upon good soil conditions (hard-dig, 
collapsing soil excluded). Customer to provide water onsite. All work to be 
performed in a single, concurrent mobilization. Excludes prevailing wage 
rates, payment management services, site fence/security, irrigation repair, 
permitting, fees, insurance requirements not included in CEC’s current 
insurance policies, requirement of ready-mix truck concrete for playground 
and site furnishings. CEC is not responsible for damage to existing 
surfaces during the normal course of construction. Material price increases 
in excess of 5% after issuance of estimate or purchase order may require 
revised pricing. All required taxes included.

SUBTOTAL 384,210.50

TAX 0.00

TOTAL $384,210.50

Accepted By

Accepted Date



Pricing valid for up to 90 days or otherwise stated and may be revised for changes in scope of work. CEC reserves the right to update pricing if project is 
not schedulable within 90 days of the issuance of a purchase order or if installation cannot occur within one year of issuance of a purchase order. CEC is 

not liable for damage occurring to stored equipment more than 90 days after delivery.
Page 1 of 3

Competitive Edge Contracting Inc
PO Box 21192

Phoenix, AZ  85036

+1 6028127104

showard@azcec.us

 

Estimate
ADDRESS
DNG Construction, LLC
3933 E La Salle Street
Phoenix, AZ  85040

SHIP TO
1640 W Calle Del Norte
Chandler AZ 85224

ESTIMATE 09560
DATE 03/21/2024
EXPIRATION 
DATE

06/20/2024

JOB NAME
Chandler Brooks Crossing

 
 

 
 

ACTIVITY QTY AMOUNT

Install Bike Rack (SM)
Ultra site #5308 OAE
LH3.3 DTL 4

2 532.00

Install BBQ Grill (DB)
Superior  GSP20
LH3.3 DTL 2

1 217.00

Install Bench (SM)
Superior #B6WBCLASSIC OAE
LH3.3 DTL 6

13 3,458.00

Install Table, Picnic w/ Benches (SM)
Webcoat #TRCHDCPALT OAE or Wabash Valley Signature Series #SG115
LH3.4 DTL 2

4 1,764.00

Install Trash Receptacle (SM)
Webcoat TR32 Classic w/ Flattop OAE or Wabash Valley #LR32

15 3,150.00

Install Fountain, Drinking w/ Pet (SM)
MDF 10145-18 SMSS Chilled, above ground mounting only
*Excludes Sump/Winterization pit. Plumbing ,electrical connections by others.
LH3.3 DTL 5

1 497.00

Install Pet Waste Station (DB)
Installation of sign and mounting of City of Chandler faces only.
Sign faces and hardware provided by others
LH3.3 DTL 3

5 1,775.00

Install LSI Hedra Play Structure
LSI Design 220103F

1 23,100.00

Install LSI Zipkrooz 50'
LSI Design 220103F

1 3,962.00

Install LSI Weevos Play Structure
2-5 Structure, LSI Design 220103F

1 7,929.00

Install Swing, LSI Hedra, 3-Bay
LSI Design 220103F

1 2,619.00

Install LSI Spin, Curva
LSI Design 220103F

2 1,372.00

Install LSI Spring Rider, Bobble (double) 1 798.00



Pricing valid for up to 90 days or otherwise stated and may be revised for changes in scope of work. CEC reserves the right to update pricing if project is 
not schedulable within 90 days of the issuance of a purchase order or if installation cannot occur within one year of issuance of a purchase order. CEC is 

not liable for damage occurring to stored equipment more than 90 days after delivery.
Page 2 of 3

LSI Design 220103F

Install LSI Spin, Saddle
LSI Design 220103F

2 952.00

Install Wear Mat 7 588.00

Install LSI HealthBeat Balance Steps
192454

1 1,568.00

Install LSI HealthBeat Ab Crunch/Leg-Lift
192451

1 1,386.00

Install LSI HealthBeat Chest/Back Press
192456

1 1,568.00

Install LSI HealthBeat Cardio Stepper
192455

1 1,365.00

Install CRS Ramada
16'x16'x8e  CRS Denver, standing seam, 4:12 pitch, (4) columns, (SM) to masonry columns
(Footings/Surrounds/Electric, CMU Columns by others)
LH3.2

2 9,057.00

Install Shade Structure
46'x35'x15'e Hip shade (6)  footings up to 30"x84", over Hedra Swing

1 22,398.00

Install LSI Tuff Timber Access Ramp
LSI Tuff Timber #130799 @ sides of concrete fluctuation ramp
LS3.1 DTL 2

2 1,120.00

Form/Pour Concrete Fluctuation Ramp
LS3.1 DTL 2, medium broom finish, 3000 psi

1 2,832.00

Install Sign
Park Entry Sign
Relocate to new site, mount new face.
New sign face furnished by others
LH3.3 DTL 1

1 970.00

Sandblast
Concrete "Welcome Mat" Sandblasted Logo
Blasted depth to be 1/8" to 3'16"
High resolution CAD file provided by others

1 3,288.00

Services
Sandblast Mockup
Concrete "Welcome Mat" Sandblasted Logo
Blasted depth to be 1/8" to 3'16"
High resolution CAD file provided by others

1 5,000.00

Form/Pour Concrete Header (LF)
LF of 8"x8" header with #3 continuous rebar control joints @ 5'
LH3.04 DTL 3

534 17,622.00

Install Sub-Base Fill (SF)
4" depth 
*Site to be compacted and subgrade ready at +/- .1" Subbase furnished by others.

0.75 12,728.25

Form/Pour Turndown (LF)
18" Playground turndown CIP with pin in rebar up to 4' horizontal @ 24" spacing (both playgrounds) 
LH3.04 DTL 4

355 26,625.00

Form/Pour Sidewalk (SF)
Varying widths, Mag A 3000 psi, medium broom finish, sawcut 8'0" OC max, includes additional 2"x6" turndowns 
at perimeter
495'x4'x4"
66'x5'x4"
1570'x8'x4"

15,860 146,705.00

Dominic DeMark
Rectangle

Dominic DeMark
Rectangle

Dominic DeMark
Rectangle



Pricing valid for up to 90 days or otherwise stated and may be revised for changes in scope of work. CEC reserves the right to update pricing if project is 
not schedulable within 90 days of the issuance of a purchase order or if installation cannot occur within one year of issuance of a purchase order. CEC is 

not liable for damage occurring to stored equipment more than 90 days after delivery.
Page 3 of 3

110'x9'x4"
LH3.4 DTL 8, Mag DTL 230

Form/Pour 4" Concrete Slab (SF)
Large Slabs
Varying dimensions, Mag A 3000 psi, non-reinforced medium broom finish, sawcut 8'0", includes additional 2"x6" 
turndowns at perimeter
(1) Ramada Slab, 350 SF
(1) Ramada Slab, 626 SF
LH3.4 DTL 2

976 8,784.00

Form/Pour Concrete
Small Slabs
Varying dimensions, Mag A 3000 psi, non-reinforced medium broom finish, sawcut 8'0", includes additional 2"x6" 
turndowns at perimeter
(1) BBQ Slab, 13 SF
(1) Bench Slab, 88 SF
(11) Bench Slab, 44 SF
LH3.4 DTL 2

135 1,640.25

Drill/Pour Pier Footing
Light Poles
24"x78" w/ cages
Anchor bolts, conduits and ground wires furnished by others
SE3.1 Arial Light Struct. DTL SK1

3 4,716.00

Construct CMU Seatwall
(6) Seat Walls, Priced by (LF)
16"x18" CMU reinforced with #5 bar @ 48" O.C. centered in each block, Mesastone Black Canyon CMU, 1" 
weephole where soil is greater than 16"
16"x4" Custom cast-in-place concrete cap with Davis Dark Grey color, anti-skate integral notches 48" O.C., 
rebar dowel connection to concrete core
10"x2'6" Footing, #5 at 16" O.C., (3) #5 continuous centered in footing
*Excludes Weep hole pea gravel and filter fabric wrap, waterproofing and protection board.
LH 3.4 DTL 5

175 62,125.00

*Excludes all demolition, excavation, and disposal. Site to be compacted and subgrade ready to within +/- .1".
*Excludes DB/prevailing wage rates, certified payroll, OCIP and any additional insurance not currently satisfied 
by CEC's current insurance policies.

*Unless noted otherwise: Project site must have “tailgate access” and be 
subgrade ready. Digging based upon good soil conditions (hard-dig, 
collapsing soil excluded). Customer to provide water onsite. All work to be 
performed in a single, concurrent mobilization. Excludes prevailing wage 
rates, payment management services, site fence/security, irrigation repair, 
permitting, fees, insurance requirements not included in CEC’s current 
insurance policies, requirement of ready-mix truck concrete for playground 
and site furnishings. CEC is not responsible for damage to existing 
surfaces during the normal course of construction. Material price increases 
in excess of 5% after issuance of estimate or purchase order may require 
revised pricing. All required taxes included.

SUBTOTAL 384,210.50

TAX 0.00

TOTAL $384,210.50

Accepted By

Accepted Date

Dominic DeMark
Rectangle



ESTIMATE

Harcon Concrete Inc

PO Box 28156
Scottsdale, AZ 85255

sami@harconinc.com
+1 (480) 387-7754
www.harconinc.com

DNG Construction

Bill to

Jose Torres
DNG Construction
3933 E. La Salle St.
Phoenix, AZ 85040 USA

Ship to

Jose Torres
DNG Construction
3933 E. La Salle St.
Phoenix, AZ 85040 USA

Estimate details

Estimate no.: 1361 - Chandler Brook
Estimate date: 03/20/2024
Expiration date: 04/20/2024

City: Chandler
Project Name: Chandler Brook Crossing Park

# Date Product or service SKU Qty Rate Amount

1. Demo 1 $0.00 $0.00

no bid - need more time if needed.

2. Sidewalk 17960 $7.25 $130,210.00

Concrete Walkway Sidewalk 5" Broom Finish, No color, No ABC - SF

3. Concrete 1 $0.00 $0.00

Concrete “Welcome Mat” Sandblast Logo

4. ADA Ramp 2 $1,350.00 $2,700.00

at Tot lots

5. Vertical Curb 0 $0.00 $0.00

8"x8" Vertical Curb - Landscape curb - excluded - usually picked up by landscaper

6. Turndown at Tot-lots 600 $38.50 $23,100.00

Concrete Turn-Down at Play Area and exercise equipment (18” Deep)

7. Footing 240 $65.00 $15,600.00

CMU concrete bench footing only - 2'6"x10" including excavation

8. Concrete 1 $1,950.00 $1,950.00

Concrete sidewalk scupper

9. Concrete 1 $4,500.00 $4,500.00

Entry Monument Sign footing per detail - ADD $600 for footing excavation

mailto:sami@harconinc.com
tel:4803877754
http://www.harconinc.com/


10. Pickleball Court 2080 $11.25 $23,400.00

Pickleball Court - 7" post tension, concrete with turndown - with engineered shop drawing - concrete only - no ABC ADD
$1.25/SF for 4" ABC

11. Pickleball Court 1 $7,000.00 $7,000.00

Pickleball Court - Acrylic Surfacing and Striping

12. Ramada Footings 8 $1,750.00 $14,000.00

Standard Size 4.5x4.5x2 - ALT: ADD $300/footing for excavation

13. Ramada Pad 760 $9.50 $7,220.00

5" Ramada Pad David Dark Gray with acid etch finish - no ABC - SF

14. Concrete 775 $9.50 $7,362.50

New Accent Paving 5" Davis Dark Gray Color w. Acid Etch finish - No ABC - different locations

15. Bench pad 1 $650.00 $650.00

Bench by others - 13x4

16. Trash Pad 1 $350.00 $350.00

3x3 trash pad

17. Basketball court 1 $18,500.00 $18,500.00

BB Court - Acrylic Surfacing and striping

18. Vertical Curb 76 $40.50 $3,078.00

6" x18" Vertical Curb at exercise equipment

19. Mobilization 1 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

one mobilization

Note to customer
Assumptions and Clarifications:
1. Excludes Tax, Bonds, Permits, Testing, ABC, bench and trash
steel, grading and excavation, sidewalk reinforcements, turndowns.
2. All concrete slabs/sidewalk are tool jointed. Sawcutting is
excluded unless otherwise stated on the proposal.
3. Grade to be +/- 0.1’ with spec’d moisture and compaction
4. GC to supply a water truck or equal.
5. Assume concrete can be tailgated from the truck (no planting was
installed) at time of concrete scope.
6. Assume one mobilization is needed, additional mobilization add
$2000.
7. Actual quantities will be site measured up on completion.
8. Material escalation will be passed to the GC.

Total $262,120.50

Expiry
date

04/20/2024

Dominic DeMark
Rectangle

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text
$1.25 x 2080= $2,600

Dominic DeMark
Typewritten Text

Dominic DeMark
Rectangle

Dominic DeMark
Rectangle

Dominic DeMark
Rectangle



Pricing valid for up to 90 days or otherwise stated and may be revised for changes in scope of work. CEC reserves the right to update pricing if project is 
not schedulable within 90 days of the issuance of a purchase order or if installation cannot occur within one year of issuance of a purchase order. CEC is 

not liable for damage occurring to stored equipment more than 90 days after delivery.
Page 1 of 3

Competitive Edge Contracting Inc
PO Box 21192

Phoenix, AZ  85036

+1 6028127104

showard@azcec.us

 

Estimate
ADDRESS
DNG Construction, LLC
3933 E La Salle Street
Phoenix, AZ  85040

SHIP TO
1640 W Calle Del Norte
Chandler AZ 85224

ESTIMATE 09560
DATE 03/21/2024
EXPIRATION 
DATE

06/20/2024

JOB NAME
Chandler Brooks Crossing

 
 

 
 

ACTIVITY QTY AMOUNT

Install Bike Rack (SM)
Ultra site #5308 OAE
LH3.3 DTL 4

2 532.00

Install BBQ Grill (DB)
Superior  GSP20
LH3.3 DTL 2

1 217.00

Install Bench (SM)
Superior #B6WBCLASSIC OAE
LH3.3 DTL 6

13 3,458.00

Install Table, Picnic w/ Benches (SM)
Webcoat #TRCHDCPALT OAE or Wabash Valley Signature Series #SG115
LH3.4 DTL 2

4 1,764.00

Install Trash Receptacle (SM)
Webcoat TR32 Classic w/ Flattop OAE or Wabash Valley #LR32

15 3,150.00

Install Fountain, Drinking w/ Pet (SM)
MDF 10145-18 SMSS Chilled, above ground mounting only
*Excludes Sump/Winterization pit. Plumbing ,electrical connections by others.
LH3.3 DTL 5

1 497.00

Install Pet Waste Station (DB)
Installation of sign and mounting of City of Chandler faces only.
Sign faces and hardware provided by others
LH3.3 DTL 3

5 1,775.00

Install LSI Hedra Play Structure
LSI Design 220103F

1 23,100.00

Install LSI Zipkrooz 50'
LSI Design 220103F

1 3,962.00

Install LSI Weevos Play Structure
2-5 Structure, LSI Design 220103F

1 7,929.00

Install Swing, LSI Hedra, 3-Bay
LSI Design 220103F

1 2,619.00

Install LSI Spin, Curva
LSI Design 220103F

2 1,372.00

Install LSI Spring Rider, Bobble (double) 1 798.00

Dominic DeMark
Rectangle



Pricing valid for up to 90 days or otherwise stated and may be revised for changes in scope of work. CEC reserves the right to update pricing if project is 
not schedulable within 90 days of the issuance of a purchase order or if installation cannot occur within one year of issuance of a purchase order. CEC is 

not liable for damage occurring to stored equipment more than 90 days after delivery.
Page 2 of 3

LSI Design 220103F

Install LSI Spin, Saddle
LSI Design 220103F

2 952.00

Install Wear Mat 7 588.00

Install LSI HealthBeat Balance Steps
192454

1 1,568.00

Install LSI HealthBeat Ab Crunch/Leg-Lift
192451

1 1,386.00

Install LSI HealthBeat Chest/Back Press
192456

1 1,568.00

Install LSI HealthBeat Cardio Stepper
192455

1 1,365.00

Install CRS Ramada
16'x16'x8e  CRS Denver, standing seam, 4:12 pitch, (4) columns, (SM) to masonry columns
(Footings/Surrounds/Electric, CMU Columns by others)
LH3.2

2 9,057.00

Install Shade Structure
46'x35'x15'e Hip shade (6)  footings up to 30"x84", over Hedra Swing

1 22,398.00

Install LSI Tuff Timber Access Ramp
LSI Tuff Timber #130799 @ sides of concrete fluctuation ramp
LS3.1 DTL 2

2 1,120.00

Form/Pour Concrete Fluctuation Ramp
LS3.1 DTL 2, medium broom finish, 3000 psi

1 2,832.00

Install Sign
Park Entry Sign
Relocate to new site, mount new face.
New sign face furnished by others
LH3.3 DTL 1

1 970.00

Sandblast
Concrete "Welcome Mat" Sandblasted Logo
Blasted depth to be 1/8" to 3'16"
High resolution CAD file provided by others

1 3,288.00

Services
Sandblast Mockup
Concrete "Welcome Mat" Sandblasted Logo
Blasted depth to be 1/8" to 3'16"
High resolution CAD file provided by others

1 5,000.00

Form/Pour Concrete Header (LF)
LF of 8"x8" header with #3 continuous rebar control joints @ 5'
LH3.04 DTL 3

534 17,622.00

Install Sub-Base Fill (SF)
4" depth 
*Site to be compacted and subgrade ready at +/- .1" Subbase furnished by others.

0.75 12,728.25

Form/Pour Turndown (LF)
18" Playground turndown CIP with pin in rebar up to 4' horizontal @ 24" spacing (both playgrounds) 
LH3.04 DTL 4

355 26,625.00

Form/Pour Sidewalk (SF)
Varying widths, Mag A 3000 psi, medium broom finish, sawcut 8'0" OC max, includes additional 2"x6" turndowns 
at perimeter
495'x4'x4"
66'x5'x4"
1570'x8'x4"

15,860 146,705.00

Dominic DeMark
Rectangle



Pricing valid for up to 90 days or otherwise stated and may be revised for changes in scope of work. CEC reserves the right to update pricing if project is 
not schedulable within 90 days of the issuance of a purchase order or if installation cannot occur within one year of issuance of a purchase order. CEC is 

not liable for damage occurring to stored equipment more than 90 days after delivery.
Page 3 of 3

110'x9'x4"
LH3.4 DTL 8, Mag DTL 230

Form/Pour 4" Concrete Slab (SF)
Large Slabs
Varying dimensions, Mag A 3000 psi, non-reinforced medium broom finish, sawcut 8'0", includes additional 2"x6" 
turndowns at perimeter
(1) Ramada Slab, 350 SF
(1) Ramada Slab, 626 SF
LH3.4 DTL 2

976 8,784.00

Form/Pour Concrete
Small Slabs
Varying dimensions, Mag A 3000 psi, non-reinforced medium broom finish, sawcut 8'0", includes additional 2"x6" 
turndowns at perimeter
(1) BBQ Slab, 13 SF
(1) Bench Slab, 88 SF
(11) Bench Slab, 44 SF
LH3.4 DTL 2

135 1,640.25

Drill/Pour Pier Footing
Light Poles
24"x78" w/ cages
Anchor bolts, conduits and ground wires furnished by others
SE3.1 Arial Light Struct. DTL SK1

3 4,716.00

Construct CMU Seatwall
(6) Seat Walls, Priced by (LF)
16"x18" CMU reinforced with #5 bar @ 48" O.C. centered in each block, Mesastone Black Canyon CMU, 1" 
weephole where soil is greater than 16"
16"x4" Custom cast-in-place concrete cap with Davis Dark Grey color, anti-skate integral notches 48" O.C., 
rebar dowel connection to concrete core
10"x2'6" Footing, #5 at 16" O.C., (3) #5 continuous centered in footing
*Excludes Weep hole pea gravel and filter fabric wrap, waterproofing and protection board.
LH 3.4 DTL 5

175 62,125.00

*Excludes all demolition, excavation, and disposal. Site to be compacted and subgrade ready to within +/- .1".
*Excludes DB/prevailing wage rates, certified payroll, OCIP and any additional insurance not currently satisfied 
by CEC's current insurance policies.

*Unless noted otherwise: Project site must have “tailgate access” and be 
subgrade ready. Digging based upon good soil conditions (hard-dig, 
collapsing soil excluded). Customer to provide water onsite. All work to be 
performed in a single, concurrent mobilization. Excludes prevailing wage 
rates, payment management services, site fence/security, irrigation repair, 
permitting, fees, insurance requirements not included in CEC’s current 
insurance policies, requirement of ready-mix truck concrete for playground 
and site furnishings. CEC is not responsible for damage to existing 
surfaces during the normal course of construction. Material price increases 
in excess of 5% after issuance of estimate or purchase order may require 
revised pricing. All required taxes included.

SUBTOTAL 384,210.50

TAX 0.00

TOTAL $384,210.50

Accepted By

Accepted Date



Pricing valid for up to 90 days or otherwise stated and may be revised for changes in scope of work. CEC reserves the right to update pricing if project is 
not schedulable within 90 days of the issuance of a purchase order or if installation cannot occur within one year of issuance of a purchase order. CEC is 

not liable for damage occurring to stored equipment more than 90 days after delivery.
Page 1 of 3

Competitive Edge Contracting Inc
PO Box 21192

Phoenix, AZ  85036

+1 6028127104

showard@azcec.us

 

Estimate
ADDRESS
DNG Construction, LLC
3933 E La Salle Street
Phoenix, AZ  85040

SHIP TO
1640 W Calle Del Norte
Chandler AZ 85224

ESTIMATE 09560
DATE 03/21/2024
EXPIRATION 
DATE

06/20/2024

JOB NAME
Chandler Brooks Crossing

 
 

 
 

ACTIVITY QTY AMOUNT

Install Bike Rack (SM)
Ultra site #5308 OAE
LH3.3 DTL 4

2 532.00

Install BBQ Grill (DB)
Superior  GSP20
LH3.3 DTL 2

1 217.00

Install Bench (SM)
Superior #B6WBCLASSIC OAE
LH3.3 DTL 6

13 3,458.00

Install Table, Picnic w/ Benches (SM)
Webcoat #TRCHDCPALT OAE or Wabash Valley Signature Series #SG115
LH3.4 DTL 2

4 1,764.00

Install Trash Receptacle (SM)
Webcoat TR32 Classic w/ Flattop OAE or Wabash Valley #LR32

15 3,150.00

Install Fountain, Drinking w/ Pet (SM)
MDF 10145-18 SMSS Chilled, above ground mounting only
*Excludes Sump/Winterization pit. Plumbing ,electrical connections by others.
LH3.3 DTL 5

1 497.00

Install Pet Waste Station (DB)
Installation of sign and mounting of City of Chandler faces only.
Sign faces and hardware provided by others
LH3.3 DTL 3

5 1,775.00

Install LSI Hedra Play Structure
LSI Design 220103F

1 23,100.00

Install LSI Zipkrooz 50'
LSI Design 220103F

1 3,962.00

Install LSI Weevos Play Structure
2-5 Structure, LSI Design 220103F

1 7,929.00

Install Swing, LSI Hedra, 3-Bay
LSI Design 220103F

1 2,619.00

Install LSI Spin, Curva
LSI Design 220103F

2 1,372.00

Install LSI Spring Rider, Bobble (double) 1 798.00



Pricing valid for up to 90 days or otherwise stated and may be revised for changes in scope of work. CEC reserves the right to update pricing if project is 
not schedulable within 90 days of the issuance of a purchase order or if installation cannot occur within one year of issuance of a purchase order. CEC is 

not liable for damage occurring to stored equipment more than 90 days after delivery.
Page 2 of 3

LSI Design 220103F

Install LSI Spin, Saddle
LSI Design 220103F

2 952.00

Install Wear Mat 7 588.00

Install LSI HealthBeat Balance Steps
192454

1 1,568.00

Install LSI HealthBeat Ab Crunch/Leg-Lift
192451

1 1,386.00

Install LSI HealthBeat Chest/Back Press
192456

1 1,568.00

Install LSI HealthBeat Cardio Stepper
192455

1 1,365.00

Install CRS Ramada
16'x16'x8e  CRS Denver, standing seam, 4:12 pitch, (4) columns, (SM) to masonry columns
(Footings/Surrounds/Electric, CMU Columns by others)
LH3.2

2 9,057.00

Install Shade Structure
46'x35'x15'e Hip shade (6)  footings up to 30"x84", over Hedra Swing

1 22,398.00

Install LSI Tuff Timber Access Ramp
LSI Tuff Timber #130799 @ sides of concrete fluctuation ramp
LS3.1 DTL 2

2 1,120.00

Form/Pour Concrete Fluctuation Ramp
LS3.1 DTL 2, medium broom finish, 3000 psi

1 2,832.00

Install Sign
Park Entry Sign
Relocate to new site, mount new face.
New sign face furnished by others
LH3.3 DTL 1

1 970.00

Sandblast
Concrete "Welcome Mat" Sandblasted Logo
Blasted depth to be 1/8" to 3'16"
High resolution CAD file provided by others

1 3,288.00

Services
Sandblast Mockup
Concrete "Welcome Mat" Sandblasted Logo
Blasted depth to be 1/8" to 3'16"
High resolution CAD file provided by others

1 5,000.00

Form/Pour Concrete Header (LF)
LF of 8"x8" header with #3 continuous rebar control joints @ 5'
LH3.04 DTL 3

534 17,622.00

Install Sub-Base Fill (SF)
4" depth 
*Site to be compacted and subgrade ready at +/- .1" Subbase furnished by others.

0.75 12,728.25

Form/Pour Turndown (LF)
18" Playground turndown CIP with pin in rebar up to 4' horizontal @ 24" spacing (both playgrounds) 
LH3.04 DTL 4

355 26,625.00

Form/Pour Sidewalk (SF)
Varying widths, Mag A 3000 psi, medium broom finish, sawcut 8'0" OC max, includes additional 2"x6" turndowns 
at perimeter
495'x4'x4"
66'x5'x4"
1570'x8'x4"

15,860 146,705.00

Dominic DeMark
Rectangle



Pricing valid for up to 90 days or otherwise stated and may be revised for changes in scope of work. CEC reserves the right to update pricing if project is 
not schedulable within 90 days of the issuance of a purchase order or if installation cannot occur within one year of issuance of a purchase order. CEC is 

not liable for damage occurring to stored equipment more than 90 days after delivery.
Page 3 of 3

110'x9'x4"
LH3.4 DTL 8, Mag DTL 230

Form/Pour 4" Concrete Slab (SF)
Large Slabs
Varying dimensions, Mag A 3000 psi, non-reinforced medium broom finish, sawcut 8'0", includes additional 2"x6" 
turndowns at perimeter
(1) Ramada Slab, 350 SF
(1) Ramada Slab, 626 SF
LH3.4 DTL 2

976 8,784.00

Form/Pour Concrete
Small Slabs
Varying dimensions, Mag A 3000 psi, non-reinforced medium broom finish, sawcut 8'0", includes additional 2"x6" 
turndowns at perimeter
(1) BBQ Slab, 13 SF
(1) Bench Slab, 88 SF
(11) Bench Slab, 44 SF
LH3.4 DTL 2

135 1,640.25

Drill/Pour Pier Footing
Light Poles
24"x78" w/ cages
Anchor bolts, conduits and ground wires furnished by others
SE3.1 Arial Light Struct. DTL SK1

3 4,716.00

Construct CMU Seatwall
(6) Seat Walls, Priced by (LF)
16"x18" CMU reinforced with #5 bar @ 48" O.C. centered in each block, Mesastone Black Canyon CMU, 1" 
weephole where soil is greater than 16"
16"x4" Custom cast-in-place concrete cap with Davis Dark Grey color, anti-skate integral notches 48" O.C., 
rebar dowel connection to concrete core
10"x2'6" Footing, #5 at 16" O.C., (3) #5 continuous centered in footing
*Excludes Weep hole pea gravel and filter fabric wrap, waterproofing and protection board.
LH 3.4 DTL 5

175 62,125.00

*Excludes all demolition, excavation, and disposal. Site to be compacted and subgrade ready to within +/- .1".
*Excludes DB/prevailing wage rates, certified payroll, OCIP and any additional insurance not currently satisfied 
by CEC's current insurance policies.

*Unless noted otherwise: Project site must have “tailgate access” and be 
subgrade ready. Digging based upon good soil conditions (hard-dig, 
collapsing soil excluded). Customer to provide water onsite. All work to be 
performed in a single, concurrent mobilization. Excludes prevailing wage 
rates, payment management services, site fence/security, irrigation repair, 
permitting, fees, insurance requirements not included in CEC’s current 
insurance policies, requirement of ready-mix truck concrete for playground 
and site furnishings. CEC is not responsible for damage to existing 
surfaces during the normal course of construction. Material price increases 
in excess of 5% after issuance of estimate or purchase order may require 
revised pricing. All required taxes included.

SUBTOTAL 384,210.50

TAX 0.00

TOTAL $384,210.50

Accepted By

Accepted Date



Pricing valid for up to 90 days or otherwise stated and may be revised for changes in scope of work. CEC reserves the right to update pricing if project is 
not schedulable within 90 days of the issuance of a purchase order or if installation cannot occur within one year of issuance of a purchase order. CEC is 

not liable for damage occurring to stored equipment more than 90 days after delivery.
Page 1 of 3

Competitive Edge Contracting Inc
PO Box 21192

Phoenix, AZ  85036

+1 6028127104

showard@azcec.us

 

Estimate
ADDRESS
DNG Construction, LLC
3933 E La Salle Street
Phoenix, AZ  85040

SHIP TO
1640 W Calle Del Norte
Chandler AZ 85224

ESTIMATE 09560
DATE 03/21/2024
EXPIRATION 
DATE

06/20/2024

JOB NAME
Chandler Brooks Crossing

 
 

 
 

ACTIVITY QTY AMOUNT

Install Bike Rack (SM)
Ultra site #5308 OAE
LH3.3 DTL 4

2 532.00

Install BBQ Grill (DB)
Superior  GSP20
LH3.3 DTL 2

1 217.00

Install Bench (SM)
Superior #B6WBCLASSIC OAE
LH3.3 DTL 6

13 3,458.00

Install Table, Picnic w/ Benches (SM)
Webcoat #TRCHDCPALT OAE or Wabash Valley Signature Series #SG115
LH3.4 DTL 2

4 1,764.00

Install Trash Receptacle (SM)
Webcoat TR32 Classic w/ Flattop OAE or Wabash Valley #LR32

15 3,150.00

Install Fountain, Drinking w/ Pet (SM)
MDF 10145-18 SMSS Chilled, above ground mounting only
*Excludes Sump/Winterization pit. Plumbing ,electrical connections by others.
LH3.3 DTL 5

1 497.00

Install Pet Waste Station (DB)
Installation of sign and mounting of City of Chandler faces only.
Sign faces and hardware provided by others
LH3.3 DTL 3

5 1,775.00

Install LSI Hedra Play Structure
LSI Design 220103F

1 23,100.00

Install LSI Zipkrooz 50'
LSI Design 220103F

1 3,962.00

Install LSI Weevos Play Structure
2-5 Structure, LSI Design 220103F

1 7,929.00

Install Swing, LSI Hedra, 3-Bay
LSI Design 220103F

1 2,619.00

Install LSI Spin, Curva
LSI Design 220103F

2 1,372.00

Install LSI Spring Rider, Bobble (double) 1 798.00



Pricing valid for up to 90 days or otherwise stated and may be revised for changes in scope of work. CEC reserves the right to update pricing if project is 
not schedulable within 90 days of the issuance of a purchase order or if installation cannot occur within one year of issuance of a purchase order. CEC is 

not liable for damage occurring to stored equipment more than 90 days after delivery.
Page 2 of 3

LSI Design 220103F

Install LSI Spin, Saddle
LSI Design 220103F

2 952.00

Install Wear Mat 7 588.00

Install LSI HealthBeat Balance Steps
192454

1 1,568.00

Install LSI HealthBeat Ab Crunch/Leg-Lift
192451

1 1,386.00

Install LSI HealthBeat Chest/Back Press
192456

1 1,568.00

Install LSI HealthBeat Cardio Stepper
192455

1 1,365.00

Install CRS Ramada
16'x16'x8e  CRS Denver, standing seam, 4:12 pitch, (4) columns, (SM) to masonry columns
(Footings/Surrounds/Electric, CMU Columns by others)
LH3.2

2 9,057.00

Install Shade Structure
46'x35'x15'e Hip shade (6)  footings up to 30"x84", over Hedra Swing

1 22,398.00

Install LSI Tuff Timber Access Ramp
LSI Tuff Timber #130799 @ sides of concrete fluctuation ramp
LS3.1 DTL 2

2 1,120.00

Form/Pour Concrete Fluctuation Ramp
LS3.1 DTL 2, medium broom finish, 3000 psi

1 2,832.00

Install Sign
Park Entry Sign
Relocate to new site, mount new face.
New sign face furnished by others
LH3.3 DTL 1

1 970.00

Sandblast
Concrete "Welcome Mat" Sandblasted Logo
Blasted depth to be 1/8" to 3'16"
High resolution CAD file provided by others

1 3,288.00

Services
Sandblast Mockup
Concrete "Welcome Mat" Sandblasted Logo
Blasted depth to be 1/8" to 3'16"
High resolution CAD file provided by others

1 5,000.00

Form/Pour Concrete Header (LF)
LF of 8"x8" header with #3 continuous rebar control joints @ 5'
LH3.04 DTL 3

534 17,622.00

Install Sub-Base Fill (SF)
4" depth 
*Site to be compacted and subgrade ready at +/- .1" Subbase furnished by others.

0.75 12,728.25

Form/Pour Turndown (LF)
18" Playground turndown CIP with pin in rebar up to 4' horizontal @ 24" spacing (both playgrounds) 
LH3.04 DTL 4

355 26,625.00

Form/Pour Sidewalk (SF)
Varying widths, Mag A 3000 psi, medium broom finish, sawcut 8'0" OC max, includes additional 2"x6" turndowns 
at perimeter
495'x4'x4"
66'x5'x4"
1570'x8'x4"

15,860 146,705.00

Dominic DeMark
Rectangle



Pricing valid for up to 90 days or otherwise stated and may be revised for changes in scope of work. CEC reserves the right to update pricing if project is 
not schedulable within 90 days of the issuance of a purchase order or if installation cannot occur within one year of issuance of a purchase order. CEC is 

not liable for damage occurring to stored equipment more than 90 days after delivery.
Page 3 of 3

110'x9'x4"
LH3.4 DTL 8, Mag DTL 230

Form/Pour 4" Concrete Slab (SF)
Large Slabs
Varying dimensions, Mag A 3000 psi, non-reinforced medium broom finish, sawcut 8'0", includes additional 2"x6" 
turndowns at perimeter
(1) Ramada Slab, 350 SF
(1) Ramada Slab, 626 SF
LH3.4 DTL 2

976 8,784.00

Form/Pour Concrete
Small Slabs
Varying dimensions, Mag A 3000 psi, non-reinforced medium broom finish, sawcut 8'0", includes additional 2"x6" 
turndowns at perimeter
(1) BBQ Slab, 13 SF
(1) Bench Slab, 88 SF
(11) Bench Slab, 44 SF
LH3.4 DTL 2

135 1,640.25

Drill/Pour Pier Footing
Light Poles
24"x78" w/ cages
Anchor bolts, conduits and ground wires furnished by others
SE3.1 Arial Light Struct. DTL SK1

3 4,716.00

Construct CMU Seatwall
(6) Seat Walls, Priced by (LF)
16"x18" CMU reinforced with #5 bar @ 48" O.C. centered in each block, Mesastone Black Canyon CMU, 1" 
weephole where soil is greater than 16"
16"x4" Custom cast-in-place concrete cap with Davis Dark Grey color, anti-skate integral notches 48" O.C., 
rebar dowel connection to concrete core
10"x2'6" Footing, #5 at 16" O.C., (3) #5 continuous centered in footing
*Excludes Weep hole pea gravel and filter fabric wrap, waterproofing and protection board.
LH 3.4 DTL 5

175 62,125.00

*Excludes all demolition, excavation, and disposal. Site to be compacted and subgrade ready to within +/- .1".
*Excludes DB/prevailing wage rates, certified payroll, OCIP and any additional insurance not currently satisfied 
by CEC's current insurance policies.

*Unless noted otherwise: Project site must have “tailgate access” and be 
subgrade ready. Digging based upon good soil conditions (hard-dig, 
collapsing soil excluded). Customer to provide water onsite. All work to be 
performed in a single, concurrent mobilization. Excludes prevailing wage 
rates, payment management services, site fence/security, irrigation repair, 
permitting, fees, insurance requirements not included in CEC’s current 
insurance policies, requirement of ready-mix truck concrete for playground 
and site furnishings. CEC is not responsible for damage to existing 
surfaces during the normal course of construction. Material price increases 
in excess of 5% after issuance of estimate or purchase order may require 
revised pricing. All required taxes included.

SUBTOTAL 384,210.50

TAX 0.00

TOTAL $384,210.50

Accepted By

Accepted Date



March 25, 2024 

DNG Construction 

3933 East La Salle St. 

Phoenix, Az. 85040 

. 

ATTN: Dominic Demark 

RE: BROOKS CROSSING PARK  PLUMBING PROPOSAL 

ADDENDA: 

INCLUSIONS:   Per sheets LH 2.0 & LH 3.3 dated 8/12/22 and CI 3.0 dated 11/20/23 
 Excavation and backfill 
 Pouring backflow pad 
 Supply and connect waste and water to (1) MDF Fountain  
 Waste (pvc) to dry well +/- 40’ from Fountain 
 Water (schedule 80 pvc) +/- 415’ underground piping from bfp to Mdf 
 Fixtures and trim: (1) MDF Fountain 

 (1) BFP w/cage 

EXCLUSIONS: Permits, taxes, fees, material and spoil haul off (placed in GC supplied 
receptacle), meters, hard dig, and off work hours 

 TOTAL PROPOSED:    $21,275.00 

Thank you for the opportunity of providing a proposal for this project. Should you have any questions 
please call. 

Sincerely, 

Scott Miller 

Estimator / Project Manager 

   1040        

1215 S. Park Lane  Suite #3   Tempe,   AZ   85281   Tel : 602-414-0880   

w

Above All Plumbing 

Services 

 

Dominic DeMark
Oval



Date:

Cell: 480-708-6377

Item Description Item Description Item Description

Plans and Specifications Listed Clarifications

X Local Codes X Comments Above

Alternates:

1. $

2. $

3. $

1.  THIS PROPOSAL IS FIRM FOR 10 DAYS

2.  INSTALLATION IS GUARANTEED FOR ONE YEAR

3.  ALTERNATE ADDER FOR SALES TAX: $

Provide new concrete light pole bases

XXX XXX

Lamp(s) Recycle WR Equipment Connection(s)

Trace & Label Devices WR J-Box(s)

Receptacle & Back Box(s)

XXX

XXX Lamps & Ballast(s)

XXX

Job Storage / Office XXX

Site Contact:

XXX

Trenching / Backfill

Jackhammer concrete pole base, backfill to grade & landscape note 5 & 6

XXX Light Fixture(s)

Site Lighting

XXX Specialty Tools 

TBD

1345 W Calle Del Norte, Chandler AZ 85224

XXX

INCLUDED

Rental Equipment XXX

XXX

XXX

XXX

XXX

Concrete / Asphalt Patch back

Coring Wall / Floor / Saw Cutting

Concrete Encasement 

Landscape Repair(s) or Remediation

VFD Installation

XXX

XXXSecondary Service

XXX

XXXPanel Breaker(s)

Switchgear / Panelboard(s)Primary Service XXX

OWNER APPROVAL SIGNATURE

Telco Service XXX AC Unit Connection(s) XXX Voice/Data Cable and Termination XXX

We propose to furnish and install all labor & material required for a complete electrical installation in accordance with:

BASE BID PROPOSED AMOUNT $203,025.00

WAV ELECTRIC AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

WE QUOTE ELECTRICAL / 16000 ELECTRICAL 

PLANS/SPECS (if provided)

XXX

Dumpster For Demo

Make Safe / Demo

Troubleshooting

Overtime

XXX

Copper Conductors

Conduit & Fittings

XXX

XXX MC Cable & Fittings

XXX

XXX

XXX

XXX

Transmitted to:

Repair/replace electrical items found to be deficient outside of this scope. 

Javier Lopez

Company Phone: 480-361-9137

EXCLUDED

XXX

Paint electrical SES or electrical raceway 

Auger and provide rebar cage 

INCLUDED EXCLUDED

Material Sales Tax

             Please See Page # 2 For Inclusions

WR GFCI Receptacle(s) XXX

XXX

Lighting Control(s) XXX

Roof Patching

WAV ELECTRIC, LLC

Engineered Electrical drawings.

Overtime or off hours work. 

Email:

Jose Torres

jtorres@dngllc.com

4/5/2024 Reference: Brooks Crossing Park

SPECIFIC INCLUSIONS/CLARIFICATIONS: SPECIFIC EXCLUSIONS:

Company Name: DNG Construction LLC

Email:

From:

Javier.wavelectric@gmail.com

Site Address:

City or County Permits, Payment Bonds, Performance Bonds.

2329 W Mescal St. #305 Phoenix, AZ 85029  -  PH: (623) 398-6644  -  ROC #317626 - ROC #325665   

TBD Site Contact Phone:

Temporary Power XXX In-line pole Fuse(s) XXX Low Voltage Stub Up & Back Box(s) XXX

INCLUDED EXCLUDED

XXX

Permit(s)

Javier Lopez

mailto:jtorres@dngllc.com
mailto:jtorres@dngllc.com
mailto:jtorres@dngllc.com
mailto:jtorres@dngllc.com
mailto:jtorres@dngllc.com
mailto:jtorres@dngllc.com
mailto:jtorres@dngllc.com
mailto:jtorres@dngllc.com
mailto:jtorres@dngllc.com
mailto:jtorres@dngllc.com
mailto:Javier.wavelectric@gmail.com
mailto:Javier.wavelectric@gmail.com
mailto:Javier.wavelectric@gmail.com
mailto:Javier.wavelectric@gmail.com
mailto:Javier.wavelectric@gmail.com
mailto:Javier.wavelectric@gmail.com
mailto:Javier.wavelectric@gmail.com
mailto:Javier.wavelectric@gmail.com
mailto:Javier.wavelectric@gmail.com
mailto:Javier.wavelectric@gmail.com
mailto:Javier.wavelectric@gmail.com
mailto:Javier.wavelectric@gmail.com
mailto:Javier.wavelectric@gmail.com
mailto:jtorres@dngllc.com
mailto:Javier.wavelectric@gmail.com
Dominic DeMark
Oval



Date:

Cell: 480-708-6377

WAV ELECTRIC, LLC

4/5/2024 Reference: Brooks Crossing Park

2329 W Mescal St. #305 Phoenix, AZ 85029  -  PH: (623) 398-6644  -  ROC #317626 - ROC #325665   

Transmitted to: Jose Torres

Email: jtorres@dngllc.com Javier.wavelectric@gmail.com

From: Javier Lopez

Email:

Demo existing light fixture pole heads (salvaged & return to the City of Chandler)

Company Name: DNG Construction LLC

TBD TBD

1345 W Calle Del Norte, Chandler AZ 85224

INCLUSIONS:

DEMO:

Make safe electrical for demo

Trace existing underground conduits and identify circuit before demo 

Company Phone: 480-361-9137

Site Contact: Site Contact Phone:

Provide/install electrical raceway w/wire for Ramadas per (SE2.0 & details  #5,#7 & #8 SE3.2)

Provide/install electrical raceway w/wire for drinking fountain per note #3 (SE2.0 & detail #3 SE3.1)

Install (9) existing light poles with new LED heads to new (Concrete base by others)

Undermining sidewalks to cross electrical raceway

Materials sales tax (taxed at the time of purchase)

Intercept/undermine electrical conduit to existing SES

Provide/install (3) 2" spare electrical conduit with caps to existing SES up to 5ft and mark (detail 1A SE2.1)

Provide trenching & backfill for electrical raceway with wire per (wire & conduit table SE2.0/SE2.1)

Provide/install (6) inground J-boxes per Notes #3 and install per detail (#2 SE3.0)

Identify, Intercept conduit to add (9) new inground j-boxes and extend electrical raceway to new pole locations per (#6 SE2.0/SE2.1)

Site Address:

Provide new light pole anchors bolts 

Remove existing lights push button & provide/install new with a ADA push button to existing pole per (note #7 SE2.0 detail #6 SE3.2

Provide circuit tags, labels and updated panel schedule per panel schedule (SE3.0)

Provide final connections and voltage check

Provide/install Light package per (light Fixture Schedule SE1.0)

Remove (9) existing light pole and save & protect to be reuse at new location

POWER/LIGHTING:

mailto:jtorres@dngllc.com
mailto:jtorres@dngllc.com
mailto:jtorres@dngllc.com
mailto:jtorres@dngllc.com
mailto:jtorres@dngllc.com
mailto:jtorres@dngllc.com
mailto:jtorres@dngllc.com
mailto:jtorres@dngllc.com
mailto:jtorres@dngllc.com
mailto:jtorres@dngllc.com
mailto:Javier.wavelectric@gmail.com
mailto:Javier.wavelectric@gmail.com
mailto:Javier.wavelectric@gmail.com
mailto:Javier.wavelectric@gmail.com
mailto:Javier.wavelectric@gmail.com
mailto:Javier.wavelectric@gmail.com
mailto:Javier.wavelectric@gmail.com
mailto:Javier.wavelectric@gmail.com
mailto:Javier.wavelectric@gmail.com
mailto:Javier.wavelectric@gmail.com
mailto:Javier.wavelectric@gmail.com
mailto:Javier.wavelectric@gmail.com
mailto:Javier.wavelectric@gmail.com
mailto:jtorres@dngllc.com
mailto:Javier.wavelectric@gmail.com


 

EXHIBIT H 

 

  

Project Name: Brooks Crossing Park Improvements Page H-1 

Project No.: PR2205.401 

Rev. 3/19/2024 

 

BUILDERS RISK INSURANCE 

 
 

 



ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS

HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $

PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N

N / A
(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION    DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.    NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY  REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION  OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,  THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS  CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A  MATTER  OF  INFORMATION  ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE  DOES  NOT  AFFIRMATIVELY  OR  NEGATIVELY  AMEND,  EXTEND  OR  ALTER  THE  COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.    THIS  CERTIFICATE  OF  INSURANCE  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  A  CONTRACT  BETWEEN  THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:    If  the  certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If  SUBROGATION  IS  WAIVED,  subject  to  the  terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

5/2/2024

(480) 924-1200 (480) 924-1211

12572

DNG Construction LLC
3933 E. La Salle Street
Phoenix, AZ 85040

20443

A 1,000,000

S  2324645 12/31/2023 12/31/2024 500,000

15,000

1,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

1,000,000A

S  2324645 12/31/2023 12/31/2024

10,000,000A
S  2324645 12/31/2023 12/31/2024 10,000,000

0
A

WC 9075846 12/31/2023 12/31/2024 1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

B Installation / Build 6072518965 12/31/2023 Limit 5,700,000

C PROF/Pollution Liab PPK2502749 12/31/2023 12/31/2024 Aggregate Limit 5,000,000

REFERENCE: Project - PR1105.401, Brooks Crossing Park Improvements - The City of Chandler is named as an additional insured with respect to Liability, 
Builder's Risk, & Professional Liability arising out of the activities performed by, or on behalf of the contractor, including completed operations & including 
automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the contractor. Severability of Interest applies in regards to the General Liability.

City of Chandler
PO Box 4008
Mail Stop 407
Chandler, AZ 85225

DNGCONS-01 OWEAB1

Southwest Risk Management, LLC
4801 E McKellips
Mesa, AZ 85215 service@southwestrisk.com

SELECTIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
Continental Casualty Company
Philadelphia Insurance Company

X

12/31/2024

X
X

X

X

X

X

X

































































































ITEM  7 

City Council Memorandum      Development Services  Memo No. 24-021FA
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Andy Bass, Deputy City Manager & Acting Development Services Director 
From: Lauren Schumann, Planning Senior Program Manager 
Subject: PLH23-0056 Viviendo 

Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 5099
Request: Rezoning from Planned Area Development (PAD) for Neighborhood

Commercial and congregate care to PAD for single-family residential
 

Location: Southeast corner of Ocotillo and McQueen roads
Applicant:Ralph Pew, Pew and Lake, PLC 

Proposed Motion:
Rezoning
Move City Council adopt Ordinance No. 5099 approving PLH23-0056 Viviendo,
Rezoning from PAD for Neighborhood Commercial and congregate care to PAD
for single-family residential, subject to the conditions as recommended by
Planning and Zoning Commission.

Background Data:
2000: Subject site zoned under 120-acre Geneva Lake Estates plan as PAD
for Neighborhood Commercial (C-1) and congregate care/office.
Approved for major anchor center with free-standing pads and congregate
care on southern portion along McQueen Road; commercial development
never occurred 
2020: QuikTrip submitted rezoning application to develop fuel station,
convenience store, and Sun Devil automotive repair shop at immediate
corner. Case was withdrawn due to opposition from surrounding neighbors.
Southeast Chandler Area Plan (SECAP) sets a maximum density of 3.5
du/ac; approved 1999
Geneva Estates contains 268 single-family homes on approximately 97



acres (2.76 du/ac) 
The request uses aggregate density for the overall Geneva Estates, changing
vacant commercial to 76 single-family lots; total aggregate density is 3.06
du/ac 

Surrounding Land Use Data:
North Ocotillo Road, then residential

condos
South Alamosa Drive, then single-family

residential 
East Single-family residential  West McQueen Road, then commercial

shops

General Plan and Area Plan Designations:
Plan  Existing Proposed
General Plan Neighborhoods No Change
Southeast Chandler Area Plan
(SECAP) 

Traditional Suburban
Character 

No Change 

Section 23 Area Plan  Neighborhood Commercial  Residential 

Proposed Development
  Single-family Subdivision 
Number of Lots 76 single-family lots
Density  15.33 net acres

Isolated density: 4.96 du/ac
Aggregate Density (including overall Geneva Estates master
planned area): 3.06 du/ac 

Building
Setbacks 

Front: 20 ft. back of sidewalk to garage; 13 ft. to liveable/porch

Sides: 5 ft. & 5 ft. 

Rear: 10 ft., with reduced setback for accessory building at 5 ft. 
Lots 10, 16, 32, 37, 44, 47, 49, 58, 60,67, 70, & 76 second
story feature shall be set back 40 ft. from rear 

Lot Size  4,922 square feet 
45 ft. x 107 ft. 

Lot Coverage 60%



Building Height Mix 1 and 2-story homes
Max. height 30 ft. 

Architectural
Themes 

Contemporary, Spanish Modern, Hacienda 

Number of
Elevations 

12

House Size  2,084 to 3,352 square feet 
Number of Floor
Plans 

4 floor plans

Parking  Each lot provides a two-vehicle garage with a driveway for two
additional vehicles; each garage pre-wired for electric vehicles
(240V) 

Gated subdivision; on-street parking provided on one side of
street

Review and Recommendation
The General Plan allows medium-density residential (3.5-12 du/ac) to be
considered as a transitional land use on infill parcels when located adjacent to an
arterial street. The subject site has been zoned for commercial uses since 2000
and remains vacant. Aggregate density can be considered if the proposed
development is a part of a larger master planned development. Through
aggregate density, the proposal may be considered if designed appropriately and
compatible with surrounding lots. 

Since the site is located within the SECAP, design elements are required in order
to achieve a density greater than 2.5 du/ac. The request is for a density of 4.96
du/ac, with overall proposed aggregate density of Geneva Estates totaling 3.06
du/ac. When the SECAP was adopted, the design requirements provided options,
such as common area lakes that were intended for larger residential
developments. The proposed development will include a common ramada seating
area, tot lot, and secured dog park for residents, meeting the intent of the SECAP.
 Due to the infill nature of the site, the Residential Development Standards (RDS)
for subdivision layout are not applicable. However, the RDS guidelines remain
applicable to the architectural design of the homes. The proposed single family
residential subdivision meets the intent of the development standards, residential
design guidelines, and the SECAP. 

The proposed housing provides one, two, and combination one/two story
detached single-family homes to provide a variety of housing types within the



proposed subdivision. The adjacent subdivision has a mix of one and two-story
homes. Therefore, the home builder has indicated which lots are limited to
single-story and combination one/two story homes to match and buffer existing
homes in the adjacent Geneva Estates lots and to create variety along the arterial
streets. 

Planning staff has reviewed the request and supports the proposal, citing
consistency with the General Plan. The proposal is consistent with the policies of
the General Plan, which call for a variety of housing choices and a compatible mix
of housing types within the Neighborhoods designation. Furthermore, the site is
located at an arterial intersection and is an infill parcel with an appropriate
transition between land uses of different intensities. The General Plan encourages
the development of underutilized commercial properties to be developed for other
uses. Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval subject to
conditions.

Public / Neighborhood Notification
This request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the
Chandler Zoning Code.
A neighborhood meeting sign was posted on the site and on social media via 
NextDoor.
The applicant conducted a neighborhood meeting prior to submitting the
rezoning application to receive comments from surrounding residents; staff
was not in attendance.
A formal neighborhood meeting was held on December 14, 2023. The
applicant's team, staff, and approximately 14 residents attended the
in-person neighborhood meeting. Residents were concerned about an
increase in traffic from the new development and, more specifically, the
secondary access proposed south to Alamosa Drive, which is currently used
as a collector street to McQueen Road for two separate subdivisions.
Attendees raised concerns regarding the proposed density, use of existing
greenbelts in adjacent subdivisions, and overburdening the school's capacity
for new families. Following the neighborhood meeting, K. Hovnanian reduced
the amount of homes from 84 to 76 lots and added single-story floor plans.
The applicant conducted additional community outreach through door-to-door
meetings with the surrounding neighbors. 
As of the writing of this memo, Planning staff is aware of surrounding property
owners in support and against the project. Residents in support of the
proposal prefer to see the property develop as residential in lieu of intense
commercial development. Residents against the request state the
development is too dense and will increase traffic in the area. Attached to this
memo are four letters in opposition, three letters in support, and one with



memo are four letters in opposition, three letters in support, and one with
general comments. 

Planning and Zoning Commission Vote Report
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, May 1, 2024
Motion to Approve

In Favor: 6     Opposed: 0 

At the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, three residents spoke in
opposition with concerns regarding an increase in traffic, more specifically along
Alamosa Drive, and cut-through traffic through their subdivisions to the
neighborhood schools. Two of the residents own lots that adjoin the property and
were concerned with the amount of homes that back up to their properties; the two
existing homes are two-story homes. Commission moved the item to action to
discuss traffic and allow the applicant to respond to the concerns.  The applicant
explained how the proposed development would not have two-story homes built
next to existing single-story homes. Staff explained that the best practice for
traffic is to use local collector streets to feed traffic to arterial streets, in this case
the use of Alamosa Drive to the south as a gated resident-only access to the
development in lieu of providing a second access to McQueen Road.

Recommended Conditions of Approval
Ordinance No. 5099 was introduced and tentatively adopted on May 23,
2024.  

Rezoning 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends the City Council approve the
Rezoning from PAD for Neighborhood Commercial and congregate care to PAD
for single-family residential, subject to the following conditions: 

Development shall be in substantial conformance with the Development
Booklet, entitled “Viviendo,” and kept on file in the City of Chandler Planning
Division, in File No. PLH23-0056, modified by such conditions included at the
time the Booklet was approved by the Chandler City Council and/or as
therefore amended, modified, or supplemented by Chandler City Council. 
 

1.

Uses permitted shall be single-family dwellings, with a minimum lot size of
4,500 square feet. 
 

2.

Completion of the construction of all required off-site street improvements3.



including but not limited to paving, landscaping, curb, gutter and sidewalks,
median improvements, and street lighting to achieve conformance with City
codes, standard details, and design manuals.
 
The landscaping in all private open-spaces shall be maintained by the
property owner or property owners' association, and shall be maintained at a
level consistent with or better than at the time of planting. 
 

4.

The landscaping in all rights-of-ways shall be maintained by the adjacent
property owner or property owners' association. 
 

5.

The developer shall be required to install landscaping in the arterial street
median(s) adjoining this project. In the event that the landscaping already
exists within such median(s) the developer shall be required to upgrade such
landscaping to meet current City Standards. 
 

6.

Right-of-way dedications to achieve full half-widths, including turn lanes and
deceleration lanes, per the standards of the Chandler Transportation Plan. 
 

7.

Lot coverage shall not exceed sixty percent (60%) of each lot area.
 

8.

Minimum setbacks shall be as provided below and further detailed in the
Development Booklet: 
Property Line  Building Setback 
Front Yard  20 ft. from back of sidewalk to garage door

13 ft. from property line to livable
Side Yards  5 ft. for each side
Rear Yard 10 ft.; Accessory buildings 5 ft. 

9.

Attachments
Ordinance No. 5099 
Vicinity Maps 
2004 Approved Geneva Estates Plan 
Viviendo- Site Plan 
Development Booklet 
Public Comments 



 
  

ORDINANCE NO.  5099 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA, AMENDING 
THE ZONING CODE AND MAP ATTACHED THERETO, BY REZONING A 
PARCEL FROM PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT (PAD) FOR 
NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL AND CONGREGATE CARE TO 
PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT (PAD) FOR SINGLE-FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL IN CASE PLH23-0056 (VIVIENDO) LOCATED AT THE 
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF OCOTILLIO AND MCQUEEN ROADS WITHIN 
THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA; 
PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; AND 
PROVIDING FOR PENALTIES. 

 
WHEREAS, an application for rezoning certain property within the corporate limits of Chandler, 
Arizona, has been filed in accordance with Article XXVI of the Chandler Zoning Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, the application has been published in a local newspaper with general circulation in 
the City of Chandler, giving fifteen (15) days’ notice of the time, place, and date of public hearing; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, a notice of such hearing was posted on the property at least seven (7) days prior to 
the public hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the probable impact of this ordinance on the cost to 
construct housing for sale or rent; and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held by the Planning and Zoning Commission as required by 
the Zoning Code. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, 
as follows: 
 
Section 1. Legal Description of Property:  
   

EXHIBIT ‘A’ 
 
Said parcel is hereby rezoned from PAD for Neighborhood Commercial and 
congregate care to PAD for single-family residential and a City Park, subject to 
the following conditions: 
 

  
1. Development shall be in substantial conformance with the Development 

Booklet, entitled, “Viviendo” and kept on file in the City of Chandler Planning 
Division, in File No. PLH23-0056, modified by such conditions including at the 
time the Booklet was approved by the Chandler City Council and/or as therefore 
amended, modified, or supplemented by Chandler City Council.  



Ordinance No. 5099 
Page 2 of 6 

 
2. Uses permitted shall be single-family dwelling, with a minimum lot size of 4,500 

square feet.  
 

3. Completion of the construction of all required off-site street improvements 
including but not limited to paving, landscaping, curb, gutter and sidewalks, 
median improvements, and street lighting to achieve conformance with City 
codes, standard details, and design manuals. 

 
4. The landscaping in all private open spaces shall be maintained by the property 

owner or property owners’ association, and shall be maintained at a level 
consistent with or better than at the time of planting.  

 
5. The landscaping in all rights-of-ways shall be maintained by the adjacent 

property owner or property owners’ association.  
 

6. The developer shall be required to install landscaping in the arterial street 
median(s) adjoining this project. In the event that the landscaping already exists 
within such median(s) the developer shall be required to upgrade such 
landscaping to meet current City Standards.  

 
7. Right-of-way dedications to achieve full half-widths, including turn lanes and 

deceleration lanes, per the standards of the Chandler Transportation Plan.  
 

8. Lot coverage shall not exceed sixty percent (60%) of each lot area.  
 
9. Minimum setbacks shall be as provided below and further detailed in the 

Development Booklet: 
 

Property Line  Building Setback 

Front Yard  20 ft. from back of sidewalk to garage door 
13 ft. from property line to livable 

Side yard setbacks 5 ft. for each side  

Rear Yard  10 ft.; Accessory buildings 5 ft.  

 
Section 2. The Planning Division of the City of Chandler is hereby directed to enter such 

changes and amendments as may be necessary upon the Zoning Map of said Zoning 
Code in compliance with this Ordinance.  

 
Section 3. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance, or any parts hereof, are hereby repealed. 
 



Ordinance No. 5099 
Page 3 of 6 

 
Section 4. In any case, where any building, structure, or land is used in violation of this 

Ordinance, the Planning Division of the City of Chandler may institute an 
injunction or any other appropriate action in proceeding to prevent the use of such 
building, structure, or land.  

 
Section 5. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance is 

for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of 
competent jurisdiction, then this entire ordinance is invalid and shall have no force 
or effect. 

 
Section 6. A violation of this Ordinance shall be a Class 1 misdemeanor subject to the 

enforcement and penalty provisions set forth in Section 1-8.3 of the Chandler City 
Code.  Each day a violation continues, or the failure to perform any act or duty 
required by this Ordinance or the Zoning Code, shall constitute a separate offense. 

 
 
INTRODUCED AND TENTATIVELY APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, 
Arizona, this ____ day of ______________, 2024. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, this _____ day 
of _______________, 2024. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance No. 5099 
Page 4 of 6 

 
CERTIFICATION 

 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Ordinance No. 5099 was duly passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting held on the 
____ day of _____________, 2024, and that a quorum was present thereat. 
 
      __________________________ 
       CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
      
CITY ATTORNEY 
 
Published: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance No. 5099 
Page 5 of 6 

 
Exhibit “A” 

 

 



Ordinance No. 5099 
Page 6 of 6 

 

 
 

 
 
                                                                                                                       



S M
CQ

UE
EN

 R
DE OCOTILLO RD

S 1
19

TH
 S

T

S LAUREL WY
S 1

18
TH

 S
T

E KAIBAB PL

E NON-DEDICATED

S J
ES

SE
 S

T

S LANTANA RANCH BL

S CROSSCREEK DR

S KERBY WY

E IRIS DR

E ALAMOSA DR

E ZION WY

E GRAND CANYON DR

E REDWOOD DR

E ALOE DR

S B
ED

FO
RD

 D
R

S S
PR

IN
GS

 D
R

E KAIBAB PL
S C

RO
SS

CR
EE

K D
R

S B
ED

FO
RD

 D
R

City of Chandler Planning Division

Mc
Qu

ee
n R

d.

Proposed Project Details
Area PlanAmendment/Rezone/PDP/Pre-Plat
15.33 Acres
76 Lot Single Family Subdivision

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Ocotillo Rd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH24-0012/PLH23-0056/PLT23-0022 Viviendo ´

^

PAD
Paseo Vista Village

PAD
Lantana Ranch

Project Site

PAD
Alamosa Estates

PAD
Geneva Estates

COUNTY

PAD
Estates at McQueen

PARK
Paseo Vista

Recreational Area
PAD

PAD
Lantana
Village

PAD
Kerby

Estates PAD

PAD
PAD



S M
CQ

UE
EN

 R
DE OCOTILLO RD

S 1
19

TH
 S

T

S LAUREL WY
S 1

18
TH

 S
T

E KAIBAB PL

E NON-DEDICATED

S J
ES

SE
 S

T

S LANTANA RANCH BL

S CROSSCREEK DR

S KERBY WY

E IRIS DR

E ALAMOSA DR

E ZION WY

E GRAND CANYON DR

E REDWOOD DR

E ALOE DR

S B
ED

FO
RD

 D
R

S S
PR

IN
GS

 D
R

E KAIBAB PL
S C

RO
SS

CR
EE

K D
R

S B
ED

FO
RD

 D
R

City of Chandler Planning Division

Mc
Qu

ee
n R

d.

Proposed Project Details
Area PlanAmendment/Rezone/PDP/Pre-Plat
15.33 Acres
76 Lot Single Family Subdivision

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Ocotillo Rd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH24-0012/PLH23-0056/PLT23-0022 Viviendo ´

^

PAD
Paseo Vista Village

PAD
Lantana Ranch

Project Site

PAD
Alamosa Estates

PAD
Geneva Estates

COUNTY

PAD
Estates at McQueen

PARK
Paseo Vista

Recreational Area
PAD

PAD
Lantana
Village

PAD
Kerby

Estates PAD

PAD
PAD



Approved Geneva Estates 2004



© 2023 Microsoft Corporation © 2023 Maxar ©CNES (2023) Distribution Airbus DS 

Copyright RVi

L:\23003921-VIVIEN
D

A (KH
O

V)\06 PLAN
N

IN
G

\02 C
AD

\03 SITE PLAN
S\R

Vi-3921-5TH
-VIVIEN

D
O

 PLAN
N

ED
 AR

EA D
EVELO

PM
EN

T.dw
g

4900 N. Scottsdale Rd. Suite 1200
Scottsdale, Arizona 85251
Tel: 480.994.0994
www.rviplanning.com

Information furnished regarding this property
is from sources deemed reliable.  RVi has
not made an independent investigation of
these sources and no warranty is made as to
their accuracy or completeness.  This plan is
conceptual, subject to change, and does not
represent any regulatory approval.

2024-04-16

23003921

CHANDLER, AZ

K.HOVNANIAN

 

 • SITE PLANVIVIENDO

Aerial Photography Date:

0 100' 200'

SCALE:  1" = 200'-0"

E GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DR

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

E ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DR

E OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RD

AMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITY

LEGEND
GROSS SITE AREA: 18.8 AC.
NET SITE AREA: 15.33 AC.
PROPOSED ZONING: PAD
# OF LOTS: 76
NET SITE DENSITY: 4.9 DU/AC
MIN. LOT SIZE: 46'X106'

GENEVA ESTATES AREA: 97.02 + 15.33 = 112.35 AC
PROP. TOTAL LOT COUNT: 268 + 76 = 344 UNITS
PROP. OVERALL DENSITY: 344 / 112.35 = 3.06 DU/AC
REQ. USEABLE O/S
PER SECAP: 17.5%(2.7 AC)
PROV. USEABLE O/S: 18% (2.8 AC)
PROV. TOTAL O/S: 23% (3.5 AC)

SETBACKS:
FRONT: 20' FROM BACK OF S/W TO FACE OF GARAGE,

13' FROM P.L. TO LIVABLE
REAR: 10', 5' FOR AN ACCESSORY BUILDING
SIDE: 5'-5'

COMMUNITY MAILBOX

LOTS W/ SINGLE-STORY RESTRICTION

LOTS W/ 40' MIN. REAR STBK TO 2ND 
STORY ELEMENTS

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 
 
 

Pew & Lake, P.L.C. 
Ralph Pew 

1744 South Val Vista Drive Suite 217 
Mesa, AZ  85204 

Phone: (480) 461-4670 

 
 

RVi Planning + Landscape Architecture 
Alex Stedman 

120 South Ash Avenue Suite 201 
Tempe, AZ 85281 

Phone: (480) 994-0994 
 

 

On Behalf of: 

K. Honvanian Homes 
20830 N Tatum Blvd Suite 250 

Phoenix, AZ 85050 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROJECT NARRATIVE 
PLH23-0056 & PLH24-0012 

 
 

April 16, 2024 

Viviendo – K. Hovnanian Homes 
SEC McQueen & Ocotillo 

 

 



 
 Page 2 

Introduction 
Pew & Lake PLC., on behalf of our client, K. Hovnanian Homes, is pleased to submit this request 
for a single-family residential development on approximately 15.33 net acres of property located 
at the southeast corner of Ocotillo Road and McQueen Road.  The overall project site is shown 
below, outlined in blue. It is currently vacant and zoned PAD in support of Commercial uses in the 
City of Chandler. 

Figure 1 – Site Aerial 

 
Request 
 The Applicant requests the following to the City of Chandler: 

1. Rezoning from PAD in support of Commercial uses to PAD in support of Single-Family 
Residential with a Preliminary Development Plan (PDP). 

 

Existing Site Conditions 
The property is currently vacant and surrounded by complementary residential and commercial 
uses. Immediately to the west is the McQueen Village Square commercial shopping center. To the 
north is a single-family condo subdivision and public park. To the east is the Geneva Estates 
residential community. The south boundary is Alamosa Estates residential community.  

Table 1 – Relationship to Surrounding Properties 
Direction Existing Use 

North Park/Residential 
East Residential 

South Residential 
West Church/Commercial 

Project Site Vacant 



 
 Page 3 

Figure 2 – Existing Zoning  

 
 

General Plan Designation 
The City of Chandler General Plan land use designation for this site is “Neighborhood”.  The 
adopted 2016 General Plan provides flexibility in the Neighborhood Land Use Classification for a 
range of residential densities. Furthermore, the City has matured and has now grown to the point 
where large developable land parcels are few and infill or redevelopment is how most future 
development will occur.  
 

Additionally, the site is within the Southeast Area Plan which allows a maximum density of 3.5 
du/ac. Currently, Geneva Estates is 97.02 net acres with 268 lots. With the addition of the Viviendo 
15.33 net acres and 76 lots, the overall net area will become 112.42 acres offering 344 lots. The 
result of the added acreage and lots is an aggregate density of 3.06 du/ac. Therefore, the proposed 
rezoning is consistent with the Southeast Area Plan designations.  
 
The consideration of medium-density single-family residential in this location is warranted as can 
be demonstrated with the following elements and policies of the City’s General Plan: 
 

 Medium-density residential (3.5-12 dwelling units per acre) can be considered for 
infill parcels in areas located between land uses of different intensities where a 
transitional use or density gradation is advisable, or as a component of a mixed-use 
development. Medium-density residential may be located along arterial roads, 
freeway corridor, adjacent to employment and commercial areas, regional parks, 
or major recreation facilities, or as part of an approved neighborhood or area plan 
where compatibility, transition, or other justification warrant approval.  

 



 
 Page 4 

Viviendo is located along two arterials, McQueen and Ocotillo Roads, and surrounded by a range 
of densities and uses. The community offers compatible and complimentary residential use 
adjacent to single-family subdivisions.  
 

 Land Use & Development Policy 1.1.1(f) Encourage compatible infill projects.  
 
 Housing & Neighborhoods Policy 1.1.2 (a), 1.1.2 (b) Provide for a variety of housing 

choices for all income levels and promote a compatible mix of housing types in infill 
areas.  

 
 Growth Areas: It is important to note that there are infill lots and parcels that will 

be redeveloped outside of these growth areas. Chandler encourages infill and 
redevelopment to occur in appropriate areas throughout Chandler.  

 
 Infill: Development of vacant lands in predominantly built-up portions of the 

community or redevelopment of properties that are underutilized so as to make 
the most efficient use of existing infrastructure and attain higher economic return 
from real estate.  

 
The proposed development offers a housing product at 4.9 DU/AC (gross density) which is truly an 
asset to the City by bringing to the market the highly demanded, but often overlooked “Missing 
Middle” housing option. Most residential development either focuses on single-family at or just 
below 4 DU/AC or multi-family over 12 DU/AC. There is a gap in the housing that should be 
provided and is needed. As an infill parcel, this development is at a great location and provides an 
appropriate transition.  

Figure 3 – General Plan Map  

 
 



 
 Page 5 

Section 23 Area Plan Amendment 
To accommodate the proposed residential project, the applicant is requesting to amend the Section 23 
Area Plan. Currently, the Section 23 Area Plan includes Neighborhood Commercial at the intersection of 
Ocotillo and McQueen Roads and Office / Congregate Care along McQueen Road. The balance of the site 
is designated as residential. The request to amend the area plan includes changing the Neighborhood 
Commercial and Office / Congregate Care to residential. Figure 4 below illustrates the Section 23 Area 
Plan Amendment.  
 

Figure 4 – Section 23 Area Plan Amendment 

 
 
Residential Development Standards 
Viviendo has been thoughtfully designed in compliance with the City’s Residential Design 
Standards. The proposal consists of 76 residential lots on 15.33 gross acres, with the primary gated 
entry on Ocotillo Road and the secondary gated entry along Alamosa Drive. The relatively small 
parcel is located near developed residential neighborhoods, but the physical barriers of the 
surrounding area preclude expansion making it a prime location for infill.  
 

The community offers 23% open space with an amenity park centrally located in the project and 
a walking trail throughout with access to the arterials. The lots are a minimum of 4,922 square feet 
and offer a detached single family housing product. Front setbacks are 13 feet minimum to livable 
space; 20 feet minimum to front facing garage from back of sidewalk. Side setbacks are 5 feet 
minimum and rear setbacks are a minimum of 10 feet and 5 feet for an accessory building. Lots 
10, 37, 32, 41, 47, 49, 58, 60, 67, 70, 76, will offer a rear yead setback of 40 feet for the second 
story elements.  
 

The subdivision offers 39-foot-wide private streets, which will accommodate ample guest parking 
on one side of the street. In addition, each home will provide two car garages and two car 
driveways accommodating four parking spaces for each home.  
 

Entry, walls, signage  
A primary entry monument shall be located on Ocotillo Road and the secondary entry monument 
will be on Alamosa Drive. The monument shall incorporate a variety of materials including split 
face block, smooth face block, and founders finish block. Ground mounted lighting shall be 
provided to illuminate the monument as well as accent larger box trees immediately adjacent.  



 
 Page 6 

 
Along the western, northern and southern perimeters/entries of the project, theme walls will 
separate the development from the arterial roads. Theme walls are also provided throughout the 
community.  A dooley wall is proposed within the community between lots 18 and 19. A seat wall 
is proposed in the amenity area. Additionally, the amenity area will offer retaining walls with partial 
view fencing. The partial view fence will be constructed to provide 3.5 ft of exposed retaining wall 
below a 6-foot wall. The 6-foot wall will be 4 feet of block with 2 feet of view fencing on top.  
 

Amenities & Open Space  
Over 3 acres of open space is provided, and the community is thoughtfully landscaped (see 
landscape plan). The amenity area will include a tot lot, ramada, and grass area. A dog park has 
been designed in the northwest corner near the McQueen Road and Ocotillo Road intersection. 
 

Landscaping  
As seen on the included landscape plan, the Viviendo community will provide perimeter 
landscaping along McQueen Road and Ocotillo Road and a passive open space / retention area is 
located near the intersection, the main entrance, between lots 49 and 50, and along Alamosa 
Drive.  
 

Subdivision Layout Diversity 
As further described below, Viviendo demonstrates that the residential proposal incorporates 
several of the Subdivision Diversity Elements. The plan satisfies six of the required Subdivision 
Diversity Elements and three of the optional Diversity Elements, see in the table on the next page. 

  



 
 Page 7 

Table 2 – Subdivision Diversity Elements 
Element 
Number 

Required Diversity Element Explanation  

1 Sense of neighborhood arrival Project monumentation will be provided at both 
entrances to the community.  These elements will 
include material and color themes that are prevalent 
throughout the community 

2 Distinctive project themes Thematic elements found throughout the 
community include expression of rural themes 
including red brick and color tones that are common 
throughout the area. 

5 Irregular shaped retention basins Because the project is located on a site that was 
originally planned for commercial uses creativity 
with open space is limited. However, the project 
contains multiple locations that are irregularly 
shaped retention areas, long narrow amenity 
shaped retention area. 

6 Design and improve retention areas 
to be useable and accessible  

The dog park has been designed with the retention 
basin in the NWC 

7 Provide a minimum 10- foot 
landscape parkway from ROW link to 
fence in a common are when lots 
back onto an arterial street and 5 
feet when backed to a local collector 

The landscape parkway along the arterial streets is 
greater than 10’ 

8 Provide staggers or other visual 
breaks in perimeter fence walls 
adjoining arterial streets 

The rear lot walls along the perimeter are staggered 
5’ every couple of lots. 

Element 
Number 

Optional Diversity Element Explanation 

6 Provide different lot widths (at least 
5-ft differential) 

All lots are 46’ wide. 

7 Widen corner lots by at least 10 feet 
more than interior lots on same block 
or include a 10-foot-wide landscape 
tract on the street side of the lot.  

10’ landscape tracts are provided throughout. 

20 Provide a minimum 20-foot 
landscape parkway along arterial 
streets, measured from the ROW line 
to the fence.  

This standard is met and, in many places, exceeded. 

 
Development Standards 
Below are the development standards proposed for the Viviendo residential subdivision. The lots 
are a minimum of 4,922 square feet with typical dimensions of 46 feet wide by 107 feet deep. 
Each garage is proposed to be pre-wired to provide 240V electrical capacity necessary to 
accommodate future electric vehicle charging equipment. The table on the next page outlines the 
proposed development standards. 
 
 



 
 Page 8 

Table 3- Proposed Development Standards 
Standard Proposed PAD 
Front Setback  20’ from Back of Sidewalk to garage. 13’ 

from livable/porch 
Rear Setback*The rear yard setback for an 
accessory building shall be a minimum of 5 feet. 

10’  

Homes on lots 10, 37, 32, 41, 47, 49, 58, 60, 
67, 70 and 76 
Rear Setback*The rear yard setback for an 
accessory building shall be a minimum of 5 feet. 

 
40’ Minimum rear setback to second 
story elements 

Side Setback 5’-5’ 
Building Height 30’ 
Density (Maximum) 6.0 du/ac 
Common Open Space 20% 
Lot coverage 60% 

 
Housing Product Architecture 
The proposed Viviendo subdivision will provide high quality architecture that represents a combination of 
Contemporary, Spanish Modern, and Hacienda styles. Four-sided architecture has been provided on all 
homes throughout the community. Each style has three different design options provided to further 
enhance the character and uniqueness of the community. Additionally, each architectural style will 
incorporate specific details, some examples of the details are window trim, shutters, board and batten 
siding, masonry veneer, corbels, parapets, window girds, and stuccos control joints.  
 

The homes will be one or two stories and range in size from approximately 2,084 SF to approximately 3,352 
SF. All home designs include front doors and covered entry/porches that are visible from the street. The 
garage styles, locations, and coach lights further diversify the design and de-emphasize garage fronts. The 
image below illustrates the diversity of design and the unique collection of architectural styles.  
 

 
 
As previously discussed, the proposed housing product meets the City’s Architectural Diversity Standards 
and is demonstrated by specifically meeting the following elements outlined in the tables on the next pages.  
 



 
 Page 9 

  

ARCHITECTURAL DIVERSITY STANDARDS - REQUIRED 9 ELEMENTS 

1. Provide four-sided architecture 
especially for portions of building 
visible from arterial street 

Four-sided architectural design has been provided on all 
homes/elevations by incorporating design elements 
including stucco window popouts, window mullions, 
shutters, stucco control joints, gable vents, varied roof and 
massing designs, and soffit treatments to all side/rear 
elevations.  

2. De-emphasize garage fronts 
The home designs de-emphasize the garages by providing livable and 
porch elements in front of the garage massing. Furthermore there are 
varying garage massing, roof lines, garage door designs, and coach lights 
to promote diversity and de-emphasizing garage fronts. 

3. Front door or courtyard entry to be 
visible from street 

All home designs include front doors and covered 
entry/porches that are visible from the street. 

4. Single-story or combination one- 
and two-story homes on all corner lots 

Combination of one and two story homes are proposed on 
corner lots.  

5. Enhanced rear elevations along 
arterial and collector streets and open 
spaces 

All homes/elevations include four-sided architecture that 
represent the style of architecture from all sides and 
vantage points. 

6. Variety of roofing colors, textures, 
and shapes 

Each elevation character will have style specific color 
schemes and roof tile colors and profiles including both 
concrete S and flat tiles. The varied use of gables and hips 
promote building mass diversity. 

7. Durable exterior materials and 
finishes (brick, masonry, stone, stucco 
facades) 

Durable exterior finishes include stucco, engineered wood 
composite board and batten siding, masonry veneer, and 
concrete roof tiles. 

8. Box-on-box (two-story) homes to 
include a single-story element on rear 
elevations or second story plan 
changes or multiple roof designs 

All home designs include single story elements, mass 
offsets, and varied roof designs at the rear elevations. 

9. Standard covered rear patios on all 
floor plans 

All home designs include a standard covered patio at the rear 
of the home. 



 
 Page 10 

ARCHITECTURAL DIVERSITY STANDARDS - OPTIONAL ELEMENTS (MINIMUM REQUIRED - 7 POINTS) 

1. Provide at least 3 significant architectural 
style differences 

Three architectural styles are proposed in Spanish 
Modern, Hacienda, and Contemporary elevation 
characters. 

2. Prohibit the same front elevation on 
adjoining homes or across the street 

To promote street scene diversity, no identical plan and 
elevation will be allowed adjacent to or across from one 
another regardless of color scheme.  

3. Standard feature stone, brick, or accent 
façade material on at least one elevation for 
each floor plan available 

Masonry veneer will be standard on the Craftsman 
elevations, board and batten siding is a standard material 
on Farmhouse elevations, masonry veneer and horizontal 
siding is a standard material on the Contemporary 
elevations. 

4. Provide distinctive architectural details on 
all elevations; covered front porches, covered 
front entries, door & window details, roof 
features, etc. 

Each architectural style incorporates style specific details, 
materials, colors, and massing. Examples include window 
trim, shutters, board and batten siding, masonry veneer, 
corbels, window grids, stucco control joints among 
others. 

5. Provide screening or other accommodation 
for trash bins, recycling bins, household tools 
and equipment 

Trash/recycle bins will be stored in garage or behind the 
side yard gate. A/C condensers are also located behind 
the side yard fence return. 

10. Provide a variety of front yard landscape 
packages installed by builder 

K. Hovnanian will offer a choice of (3) three distinct front 
yard landscape packages available to the buyer and 
installed by the builder. 

12. Provide four-sided architecture 
throughout subdivision 

Four-sided architectural design has been provided on all 
homes/elevations throughout the community. 

 
Conclusion 
With the development of this property, K Hovnanian will introduce a new type of housing product into this 
established part of Chandler.  The applicant and K. Hovnanian look forward to working with the City of 
Chandler Planning and Engineering staff to design an outstanding community for the City of Chandler.  
 
 
 



EXISTING GENEVA ESTATES PAD DENSITY 

DEVELOPMENT 
MARICOPA COUNTY 

RECORDING 
NUMBER 

NUMBER 
OF LOTS 

NET 
ACREAGE 

DENSITY 
(DU/NET 

AC) 

ACREAGE 
OF OPEN 

SPACE 

PERCENT 
OPEN 
SPACE 

GENEVA ESTATES BOOK 761 PAGE 9 268 97.02 2.76 18.0 19% 

       
       

PROPOSED GENEVA ESTATES PAD DENSITY 

DEVELOPMENT 
MARICOPA COUNTY 

RECORDING 
NUMBER 

NUMBER 
OF LOTS 

NET 
ACREAGE 

DENSITY 
(DU/NET 

AC) 

ACREAGE 
OF OPEN 

SPACE 

PERCENT 
OPEN 
SPACE 

GENEVA ESTATES BOOK 761 PAGE 9 268 97.02 2.76 18.0 19% 
VIVIENDO N/A 76 15.33 4.96 3.5 23% 

TOTAL   344 112.35 3.06 21.5 19% 
 



© 2023 Microsoft Corporation © 2023 Maxar ©CNES (2023) Distribution Airbus DS 

Copyright RVi

L:\23003921-VIVIEN
D

A (KH
O

V)\06 PLAN
N

IN
G

\02 C
AD

\03 SITE PLAN
S\R

Vi-3921-5TH
-VIVIEN

D
O

 PLAN
N

ED
 AR

EA D
EVELO

PM
EN

T.dw
g

4900 N. Scottsdale Rd. Suite 1200
Scottsdale, Arizona 85251
Tel: 480.994.0994
www.rviplanning.com

Information furnished regarding this property
is from sources deemed reliable.  RVi has
not made an independent investigation of
these sources and no warranty is made as to
their accuracy or completeness.  This plan is
conceptual, subject to change, and does not
represent any regulatory approval.

2024-04-16

23003921

CHANDLER, AZ

K.HOVNANIAN

 

 • SITE PLANVIVIENDO

Aerial Photography Date:

0 100' 200'

SCALE:  1" = 200'-0"

E GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DR

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

E ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DR

E OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RD

AMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITY

LEGEND
GROSS SITE AREA: 18.8 AC.
NET SITE AREA: 15.33 AC.
PROPOSED ZONING: PAD
# OF LOTS: 76
NET SITE DENSITY: 4.9 DU/AC
MIN. LOT SIZE: 46'X106'

GENEVA ESTATES AREA: 97.02 + 15.33 = 112.35 AC
PROP. TOTAL LOT COUNT: 268 + 76 = 344 UNITS
PROP. OVERALL DENSITY: 344 / 112.35 = 3.06 DU/AC
REQ. USEABLE O/S
PER SECAP: 17.5%(2.7 AC)
PROV. USEABLE O/S: 18% (2.8 AC)
PROV. TOTAL O/S: 23% (3.5 AC)

SETBACKS:
FRONT: 20' FROM BACK OF S/W TO FACE OF GARAGE,

13' FROM P.L. TO LIVABLE
REAR: 10', 5' FOR AN ACCESSORY BUILDING
SIDE: 5'-5'

COMMUNITY MAILBOX

LOTS W/ SINGLE-STORY RESTRICTION

LOTS W/ 40' MIN. REAR STBK TO 2ND 
STORY ELEMENTS

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)



 PRIMARY
 GATED ACCESS

 RESIDENT ONLY
 GATED ACCESS

115'-0"

115'-0"

115'-0"

61'-1"

57'-4"

53'-4"

46'-3"

26'-5"

42'-0"44'-7"40'-10"43'-0"25'-3"

103'-7"

1

656667

68

69

70
71

23456789

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29 30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41 42 43 44

7675747372

45 46 47 48 49

50

51

52

53

54

55

64 63 62 61 60

59

58

57

56

Copyright RVi

L:\23003921-VIVIEN
D

A (KH
O

V)\06 PLAN
N

IN
G

\02 C
AD

\03 SITE PLAN
S\R

Vi-3921-5TH
-VIVIEN

D
O

 PLAN
N

ED
 AR

EA D
EVELO

PM
EN

T.dw
g

4900 N. Scottsdale Rd. Suite 1200
Scottsdale, Arizona 85251
Tel: 480.994.0994
www.rviplanning.com

Information furnished regarding this property
is from sources deemed reliable.  RVi has
not made an independent investigation of
these sources and no warranty is made as to
their accuracy or completeness.  This plan is
conceptual, subject to change, and does not
represent any regulatory approval.

2024-04-16

23003921

CHANDLER, AZ

K.HOVNANIAN

 

 • SITE PLANVIVIENDO

Aerial Photography Date:

0 100' 200'

SCALE:  1" = 200'-0"

LEGEND

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43) E GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DR

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

GROSS SITE AREA: 18.8 AC.
NET SITE AREA: 15.33 AC.
PROPOSED ZONING: PAD
# OF LOTS: 76
NET SITE DENSITY: 4.9 DU/AC
MIN. LOT SIZE: 46'X106'

GENEVA ESTATES AREA: 97.02 + 15.33 = 112.35 AC
PROP. TOTAL LOT COUNT: 268 + 76 = 344 UNITS
PROP. OVERALL DENSITY: 344 / 112.35 = 3.06 DU/AC
REQ. USEABLE O/S
PER SECAP: 17.5%(2.7 AC)
PROV. USEABLE O/S: 18% (2.8 AC)
PROV. TOTAL O/S: 23% (3.5 AC)

SETBACKS:
FRONT: 20' FROM BACK OF S/W TO FACE OF GARAGE,

13' FROM P.L. TO LIVABLE
REAR: 10', 5' FOR AN ACCESSORY BUILDING
SIDE: 5'-5'

COMMUNITY MAILBOX

LOTS W/ SINGLE-STORY RESTRICTION

LOTS W/ 40' MIN. REAR STBK TO 2ND 
STORY ELEMENTS

E ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DR

E OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RD

AMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITY

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)



© 2023 Microsoft Corporation © 2023 Maxar ©CNES (2023) Distribution Airbus DS 

Copyright RVi

L:\23003921-VIVIEN
D

A (KH
O

V)\06 PLAN
N

IN
G

\02 C
AD

\03 SITE PLAN
S\R

Vi-3921-5TH
-VIVIEN

D
O

 PLAN
N

ED
 AR

EA D
EVELO

PM
EN

T.dw
g

4900 N. Scottsdale Rd. Suite 1200
Scottsdale, Arizona 85251
Tel: 480.994.0994
www.rviplanning.com

Information furnished regarding this property
is from sources deemed reliable.  RVi has
not made an independent investigation of
these sources and no warranty is made as to
their accuracy or completeness.  This plan is
conceptual, subject to change, and does not
represent any regulatory approval.

2024-04-16

23003921

CHANDLER, AZ

K.HOVNANIAN

 

 • LANDSCAPE PLANVIVIENDO

Aerial Photography Date:

0 100' 200'

SCALE:  1" = 200'-0"

E GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DR

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

E ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DR

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

PLANT PALETTE
TREES

BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME
Acacia mulga Mulga
Acacia stenophylla Shoestring Acacia
Caesalpinia mexicana Mexican Bird-of-Paradise
Prosopis glandulosa 'Maverick' Texas Honey Mesquite
Prosopis chilensis 'Leslie Roy' Thornless Mesquite
Pistacia x 'Red Push' Red Push Pistache
Quercus virginiana 'Joan Lionetti' Joan Lionetti Live Oak
Sophora secundiflora 'Silver Peso' Silver Texas Mountain Laurel
Ulmus parvifolia Chinese Evergreen Elm

SHRUBS & ACCENTS
BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME
Caesalpinia pulcherrima Red Bird-of-Paradise
Calliandra californica Baja Fairy Duster
Dodonaea viscosa 'Purpurea' Purple Hopseed Bush
Eremophilia hygrophana Blue Bells
Eremophilia maculate 'Valentine' Valentine Emu Bush
Hesperaloe parvilora Red Yucca
Leucophyllum langmaniae 'Lynn's Legacy' Lynn's Legacy Sage
Leucophyllum zygophyllum Blue Ranger
Muhlenbergia capillaris 'Regal Mist' Regal Mist Muhly
Muhlenbergia linheimeri 'Autumn Glow' Autumn Glow Muhly
Russelia equisetiformis Firecracker Plant
Tecoma stand 'Gold Star' Gold Star Tecoma

GROUNDCOVER
BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME
Acalypha monstachya Raspberry Fuzzies
Baccharis x 'Starn' Dwarf Coyote Bush
Eremphila glabra 'Mingenew Gold' Outback Sunrise Emu Bush
Lantana x 'New Gold' New Gold Lantana
Lantana montevidensis Purple Trailing Lantana
Rosmarinus officinalis 'Huntington Carpet' Trailing Rosemary
Ruellia brittoniana x 'Katie'                                Katie Ruellia

10' LANDSCAPE TRACT1

TRAFFIC CALMING

DOG PARK

PERIMETER THEME WALL

2

3

4

5

6

7

5' SIDEWALK

LANDSCAPE KEYNOTES

PRIMARY ENTRY MONUMENTATION

TOT LOT

8

MAILBOX

SECONDARY ENTRY MONUMENTATION9

PRIMARY ENTRY - SWING GATE10

RESIDENT ONLY ACCESS - SWING GATE11

PEDESTRIAN GATE12

PLANTERS13

E OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RD

1

3

4

4

4

6

2

5

5

5

10

11

8

7

6

12

1
12

9

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

13



Copyright RVi

L:\23003921-VIVIEN
D

A (KH
O

V)\06 PLAN
N

IN
G

\02 C
AD

\03 SITE PLAN
S\R

Vi-3921-5TH
-VIVIEN

D
O

 PLAN
N

ED
 AR

EA D
EVELO

PM
EN

T.dw
g

4900 N. Scottsdale Rd. Suite 1200
Scottsdale, Arizona 85251
Tel: 480.994.0994
www.rviplanning.com

Information furnished regarding this property
is from sources deemed reliable.  RVi has
not made an independent investigation of
these sources and no warranty is made as to
their accuracy or completeness.  This plan is
conceptual, subject to change, and does not
represent any regulatory approval.

2024-04-16

23003921

CHANDLER, AZ

K.HOVNANIAN

 

 • LANDSCAPE PLANVIVIENDO

Aerial Photography Date:

0 100' 200'

SCALE:  1" = 200'-0"

E GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DR

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

PLANT PALETTE
TREES

BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME
Acacia mulga Mulga
Acacia stenophylla Shoestring Acacia
Caesalpinia mexicana Mexican Bird-of-Paradise
Prosopis glandulosa 'Maverick' Texas Honey Mesquite
Prosopis chilensis 'Leslie Roy' Thornless Mesquite
Pistacia x 'Red Push' Red Push Pistache
Quercus virginiana 'Joan Lionetti' Joan Lionetti Live Oak
Sophora secundiflora 'Silver Peso' Silver Texas Mountain Laurel
Ulmus parvifolia Chinese Evergreen Elm

SHRUBS & ACCENTS
BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME
Caesalpinia pulcherrima Red Bird-of-Paradise
Calliandra californica Baja Fairy Duster
Dodonaea viscosa 'Purpurea' Purple Hopseed Bush
Eremophilia hygrophana Blue Bells
Eremophilia maculate 'Valentine' Valentine Emu Bush
Hesperaloe parvilora Red Yucca
Leucophyllum langmaniae 'Lynn's Legacy' Lynn's Legacy Sage
Leucophyllum zygophyllum Blue Ranger
Muhlenbergia capillaris 'Regal Mist' Regal Mist Muhly
Muhlenbergia linheimeri 'Autumn Glow' Autumn Glow Muhly
Russelia equisetiformis Firecracker Plant
Tecoma stand 'Gold Star' Gold Star Tecoma

GROUNDCOVER
BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME
Acalypha monstachya Raspberry Fuzzies
Baccharis x 'Starn' Dwarf Coyote Bush
Eremphila glabra 'Mingenew Gold' Outback Sunrise Emu Bush
Lantana x 'New Gold' New Gold Lantana
Lantana montevidensis Purple Trailing Lantana
Rosmarinus officinalis 'Huntington Carpet' Trailing Rosemary
Ruellia brittoniana x 'Katie'                                Katie Ruellia

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

E OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RD

10' LANDSCAPE TRACT1

TRAFFIC CALMING

DOG PARK

PERIMETER THEME WALL

2

3

4

5

6

7

5' SIDEWALK

LANDSCAPE KEYNOTES

PRIMARY ENTRY MONUMENTATION

TOT LOT

8

MAILBOX

SECONDARY ENTRY MONUMENTATION9

PRIMARY ENTRY - SWING GATE10

RESIDENT ONLY ACCESS - SWING GATE11

PEDESTRIAN GATE12

PLANTERS13

E ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DR

1

3

4

4

4

6

2

5

5

5

10

11

8

7

6

12

1
12

9

13



Copyright RVi

L:\23003921-VIVIEN
D

A (KH
O

V)\06 PLAN
N

IN
G

\02 C
AD

\03 SITE PLAN
S\R

Vi-3921-5TH
-VIVIEN

D
O

 PLAN
N

ED
 AR

EA D
EVELO

PM
EN

T.dw
g

4900 N. Scottsdale Rd. Suite 1200
Scottsdale, Arizona 85251
Tel: 480.994.0994
www.rviplanning.com

Information furnished regarding this property
is from sources deemed reliable.  RVi has
not made an independent investigation of
these sources and no warranty is made as to
their accuracy or completeness.  This plan is
conceptual, subject to change, and does not
represent any regulatory approval.

2024-04-16

23003921

CHANDLER, AZ

K.HOVNANIAN

 

 • WALL PLANVIVIENDO

Aerial Photography Date:

0 100' 200'

SCALE:  1" = 200'-0"

LEGEND

THEME WALL

DOOLEY WALL

PARTIAL VIEW FENCE

DOG PARK FENCE

SEAT WALL

PRIMARY
ENTRY MONUMENT

SECONDARY
ENTRY MONUMENT

MAILBOX

PEDESTRIAN GATE

DECORATIVE COLUMM

PLANTERS

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43)

MARICOPA
COUNTY
(RU-43) E GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DRE GRAND CANYON DR

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

PASEO VISTA VILLAGE
(PAD)

E ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DRE ALAMOSA DR

AMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITYAMENITY

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

ALAMOSA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

GENEVA ESTATES
(PAD)

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

S 
M

C
Q

UE
EN

 R
D

E OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RDE OCOTILLO RD

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)

MCQUEEN VILLAGE
SQUARE (PAD)





Copyright RVi

VIVIENDO  •  SITE FURNISHING EXHIBIT
Chandler, Arizona
April 08, 2024
23003921
K. Hovnanian

PAGE 1

Aerial photography circa MM-DD-YYYY

Information furnished regarding this 
property is from sources deemed reliable. 
RVi has not made an independent 
investigation of these sources and no 
warranty is made as to their accuracy or 
completeness. This plan is conceptual, 
subject to change, and does not represent 
any regulatory approval.

1900 N Scottsdale Rd
Suite 1200
Scottsdale, Arizona 85251
Tel: 480.994.0994
www.rviplanning.com

Wainwright 6’ Contour Bench
Anova Furnishings
Item#RCPWC6
Color: Brown Frame, Cedar Slats

Wainwright 6’ Picnic Table and Benches Set
Anova Furnishings
Item#RCPWT63
Color: Brown Frame, Cedar Slats

Wainwright 45 Gallon Trash Receptacle
Anova Furnishings
Item#RCPWCT
Color: Brown Frame, Cedar Slats

Mesa Ramada
Classic Recreation Systems Inc.
Model: Mesa
Color: RAL 7022 for Ramada, RAL 7030 for Frame



Copyright RVi

VIVIENDO  •  SITE FURNISHING EXHIBIT
Chandler, Arizona
April 08, 2024
23003921
K. Hovnanian

PAGE 2

Aerial photography circa MM-DD-YYYY

Information furnished regarding this 
property is from sources deemed reliable. 
RVi has not made an independent 
investigation of these sources and no 
warranty is made as to their accuracy or 
completeness. This plan is conceptual, 
subject to change, and does not represent 
any regulatory approval.

1900 N Scottsdale Rd
Suite 1200
Scottsdale, Arizona 85251
Tel: 480.994.0994
www.rviplanning.com

Saddle Spinner
Landscape Structures
Model#152179
Color: Limon Frame, Denim Chairpiece

Stand-Up Seesaw
Landscape Structures
Model#148638
Color: Tangerine

Curva Spinner
Landscape Structures
Model#247179 
Color: Limon 



Copyright RVi

VIVIENDO  •  SITE FURNISHING EXHIBIT
Chandler, Arizona
April 08, 2024
23003921
K. Hovnanian

PAGE 3

Aerial photography circa MM-DD-YYYY

Information furnished regarding this 
property is from sources deemed reliable. 
RVi has not made an independent 
investigation of these sources and no 
warranty is made as to their accuracy or 
completeness. This plan is conceptual, 
subject to change, and does not represent 
any regulatory approval.

1900 N Scottsdale Rd
Suite 1200
Scottsdale, Arizona 85251
Tel: 480.994.0994
www.rviplanning.com

Grill 21
DuMor 
Model#21-00 

Playbooster Design #3733
Landscape Structures
Palette: AG, Shade Sail: Denim

Dog Waste Station
Dog Waste Depot
SKU: Depot 006-B-GRN
Color: Matte Green (as seen above)



Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architecture02/02/2024 of 45

Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ

35' MARKET RATE :: SP-2

1

35' MARKET RATE :: SP-2
2   • PRODUCT MATRIX
3   • SETBACK EXHIBIT :: BASE CONDITION
4   • ELEVATION MATRIX :: FRONT, SIDES & REAR
10 • TYP. STREET SCENES :: FRONT & REAR
11 • STREET SCENES :: LOT SETBACK EXHIBIT
12 • PLAN 1 - CORK - 8047 :: 2,084 S.F.
19 • PLAN 2 - OBAN - 7890 :: 2,554 S.F.
27 • PLAN 3 - REINE - 8065 :: 2,846 S.F.
35 • PLAN 4 - SEAVIEW - 8083  :: 3,352 S.F.
43 • SPANISH MODERN DETAILS
44 • HACIENDA DETAILS
45 • CONTEMPORARY DETAILS

Design Review | (75) 46' x 106' 109' 112' Lots   

Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ 
02/02/2024



Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architecture02/02/2024 of 45

Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ

35' MARKET RATE :: SP-2

2

PRODUCT MATRIX



8
2

1
0

4
0

S
E
T
B
A
C

K
 F

O
R
 T

W
O

 S
T
O

R
Y
 E

LE
M

E
N

T
S



FRONT ELEVATION MATRIX

4

PLAN 1 - CORK (#8047) PLAN 2 - OBAN (#7890) PLAN 3 - REINE (#8065) PLAN 4 - VIENNE (#8083)

Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architectureof 45

35' MARKET RATE :: SP-2

Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ
02/02/2024

SPANISH MODERN (FORM - UA)

CONTEMPORARY (FORM - ZA)

HACIENDA (FORM - XA)



RIGHT ELEVATION MATRIX

5

PLAN 1 - CORK (#8047) PLAN 2 - OBAN (#7890)

Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architectureof 45

35' MARKET RATE :: SP-2

Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ
02/02/2024

SPANISH MODERN (FORM - UA)

CONTEMPORARY (FORM - ZA)

HACIENDA (FORM - XA)



RIGHT ELEVATION MATRIX

6

PLAN 3 - REINE (#8065) PLAN 4 - VIENNE (#8083)

Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architectureof 45

35' MARKET RATE :: SP-2

Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ
02/02/2024

SPANISH MODERN (FORM - UA)

CONTEMPORARY (FORM - ZA)

HACIENDA (FORM - XA)



REAR ELEVATION MATRIX

7

PLAN 1 - CORK (#8047) PLAN 2 - OBAN (#7890) PLAN 3 - REINE (#8065) PLAN 4 - VIENNE (#8083)

Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architectureof 45

35' MARKET RATE :: SP-2

Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ
02/02/2024

SPANISH MODERN (FORM - UA)

CONTEMPORARY (FORM - ZA)

HACIENDA (FORM - XA)



LEFT ELEVATION MATRIX

8

PLAN 1 - CORK (#8047) PLAN 2 - OBAN (#7890)

Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architectureof 45

35' MARKET RATE :: SP-2

Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ
02/02/2024

SPANISH MODERN (FORM - UA)

CONTEMPORARY (FORM - ZA)

HACIENDA (FORM - XA)



LEFT ELEVATION MATRIX

9

PLAN 3 - REINE (#8065) PLAN 4 - VIENNE (#8083)

Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architectureof 45

35' MARKET RATE :: SP-2

Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ
02/02/2024

SPANISH MODERN (FORM - UA)

CONTEMPORARY (FORM - ZA)

HACIENDA (FORM - XA)



Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architecture02/02/2024 of 45

Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ

35' MARKET RATE :: SP-2

10

STREET SCENE - FRONT
SCALE = NTS

STREET SCENE - REAR
SCALE = NTS

OBAN
PLAN 2 - #7890

FORM XA - HACIENDA
2,554 SQ. FT. :: TWO STORY

REINE
PLAN 3 - #8065

FORM ZA - CONTEMPORARY
2,846 SQ. FT. :: TWO STORY

CORK
PLAN 1 - #8047

FORM UA - SPANISH MODERN
2,084 SQ. FT. :: SINGLE STORY

VIENNE
PLAN 4 - #8083

FORM UA - SPANISH MODERN
3,352 SQ. FT. :: TWO STORY

OBAN
PLAN 2 - #7890

FORM XA - HACIENDA
2,554 SQ. FT. :: TWO STORY

REINE
PLAN 3 - #8065

FORM ZA - CONTEMPORARY
2,846 SQ. FT. :: TWO STORY

CORK
PLAN 1 - #8047

FORM UA - SPANISH MODERN
2,084 SQ. FT. :: SINGLE STORY

VIENNE
PLAN 4 - #8083

FORM UA - SPANISH MODERN
3,352 SQ. FT. :: TWO STORY

CORK
PLAN 1 - #8047

FORM ZA - CONTEMPORARY
2,084 SQ. FT. :: SINGLE STORY

CORK
PLAN 1 - #8047

FORM ZA - CONTEMPORARY
2,084 SQ. FT. :: SINGLE STORY



Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architecture02/02/2024 of 45

Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ

35' MARKET RATE :: SP-2

11

STREET SCENE - FRONT
SCALE = NTS

OBAN
PLAN 2 - #7890

FORM XA - HACIENDA
2,554 SQ. FT. :: TWO STORY

REINE
PLAN 3 - #8065

FORM ZA - CONTEMPORARY
2,846 SQ. FT. :: TWO STORY

CORK
PLAN 1 - #8047

FORM UA - SPANISH MODERN
2,084 SQ. FT. :: SINGLE STORY

VIENNE
PLAN 4 - #8083

FORM UA - SPANISH MODERN
3,352 SQ. FT. :: TWO STORY

PL
B.O.W.

20
'-0

"

20'-0" FRONT 
FACING GARAGE 
SETBACK TO 
B.O.W.

13
'-0

"

13'-0" LIVABLE/ 
PORCH SETBACK 
TO P.L.



Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architecture02/02/2024 of 45

Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ

35' MARKET RATE :: SP-2

12

PLAN 1

FIRST FLOOR  PLAN 
UA - SPANISH MODERN

WIC
19 LF

L

60x42

OPT FS 
TUB

PRIMARY 
BATH

PRIMARY SUITE
12'-4"x15'-1" 

PC

3'
-6

"

10
'-

0"

3'
-0

"

4x8

6'-0" 4'-0"

GREAT ROOM
16'-8"x14'-5" 

DINING AREA
11'-5" x 13'-1"

KITCHEN

4'
-4

"
8'

-0
"

HALL 
BATH I29x60

LAUN

BEDROOM 2
10'-7" x 10'-6"

BEDROOM 3
10'-6" x 11'-6"

STOR

2-CAR GARAGE
20'-0"x20'-2"/24'-0"

HALL 
BATH II FOYER 

8'-11" x 12'-5"

BEDROOM 4/ 
OPT ESP

10'-0" x 13'-1"

60x34

HOME 
OFFICE/OPT 

BED 5 
10'-2" x 12'-11"

L

15
'-

5"

6'-8 1/2"

3'
-2

 1
/2

"

3'-9"

3'-9"

PC

COVERED PATIO
17'-0"x8'-0"

TANKLESS 
WH

OPT FS 
TUB

COV'D 
ENTRY

78
'-

11
"

35'-11"

16'-9 1/2"

8'
-0

"
70

'-
11

"

17'-0" 17'-11"

2'-9"

9'-6" 10'-6"

13'-5"

13
'-

1"

EXT.
FOYER 

4'-5" x 16'-0"

78
'-

11
"

19'-1 1/2"

4'-9"

3:12 INTERIOR VAULT

3:12 EXTERIOR VAULT

GREAT ROOM
16'-8"x14'-5" 

COVERED PATIO
17'-0"x8'-0"

4 (OPT 5)
3
2

10'
8'

VITAL STATS
BEDROOM
BATH
CAR
CEILING
WINDOW HDR

2,084
2,084

457

66 
164
83

136

-
-
-

2,841

LIV. SF:
PLAN W x D:
PLAN #:
SCALE:
PLAN NAME:

2,084
34'-11" x 78'-11"

6506
1/8" = 1'-0"

CORK

LOT COVERAGE |2,841 /5,152  = 55.1%

TYP LOT SIZE | 46'x112' ( SF)
LOT COVERAGE ALLOWED |  60.0%

STATUS | NTL PORTFOLIO PLAN

AREA S.F. BREAKDOWN 
MAX. LIVABLE (A):
(A) 1ST FLR LIVABLE:
(B) 2 CAR GARAGE:
(C) COVERED ENTRY:

ELEVATION UA:
ELEVATION XA:
ELEVATION ZA:

(D) COVERED PATIO:
(E) ARCH. PROJECTION:
             ELEVATION UA:

ELEVATION XA:
ELEVATION ZA:

MAX FOOTPRINT:

52
'-

6"
24

'-
5"

2'
-0

"

35'-11"

1'-0"



Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architecture02/02/2024 of 45

Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ

35' MARKET RATE :: SP-2

13

PLAN 1

BEDROOM 4/ 
OPT ESP

10'-0" x 13'-1"

COVERED 
PORCH

FLOOR  PLAN 
XA - HACIENDA

FLOOR  PLAN 
ZA -CONTEMPORARY

BEDROOM 4/ 
OPT ESP

10'-0" x 13'-1"
COV'D 
ENTRY

80
'-

11
" 

TO
 R

EA
R
 O

F 
H

O
M

E
84

'-
11

" 
TO

 R
EA

R
 O

F 
H

O
M

E

4'
-0

"
76

'-
11

" 
TO

 R
EA

R
 O

F 
H

O
M

E

1'
-1

0"
13

'-
6 

1/
2"

2'
-7

"

35'-11"

9'-3" 7'-5" 19'-3"

4'-9"

4'-9"

2'
-0

"
2'

-0
"

8'
-0

"
76

'-
11

" 
TO

 R
EA

R
 O

F 
H

O
M

E

6'
-0

"
13

'-
4 

1/
2"

2'
-7

"

6'
-0

"
2'

-0
"

35'-11"

16'-2" 19'-9"

10'-7" 5'-7"

VITAL STATS
BEDROOM
BATH
CAR
CEILING
WINDOW HDR

LIV. SF:
PLAN W x D:
PLAN #:
SCALE:
PLAN NAME:

2,084
34'-11" x 78'-11"

6506
1/8" = 1'-0"

CORK

STATUS | NTL PORTFOLIO PLAN

AREA S.F. BREAKDOWN 
MAX. LIVABLE (A):
(A) 1ST FLR LIVABLE:
(B) 2 CAR GARAGE:
(C) COVERED ENTRY:

ELEVATION UA:
ELEVATION XA:
ELEVATION ZA:

(D) COVERED PATIO:
(E) ARCH. PROJECTION:
             ELEVATION UA:

ELEVATION XA:
ELEVATION ZA:

MAX FOOTPRINT:

4 (OPT 5)
3
2

10'
8'

2,084
2,084

457

66 
164
83

136

-
-
-

2,841

LOT COVERAGE |2,841 /5,152  = 55.1%

TYP LOT SIZE | 46'x112' ( SF)
LOT COVERAGE ALLOWED |  60.0%

2-CAR GARAGE
20'-0"x20'-2"/24'-0"

2-CAR GARAGE
20'-0"x20'-2"/24'-0"



Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architecture02/02/2024 of 45

Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ

35' MARKET RATE :: SP-2

14

60x42

OPT FS 
TUB

PRIMARY 
BATH

OPT FS 
TUB

EXT.
FOYER 

4'-5" x 16'-0"

GREAT ROOM
16'-8"x14'-5" 

BEDROOM 5
10'-2" x 12'-11"

COVERED PATIO
17'-0"x8'-0"

PRIMARY SUITE
12'-4"x15'-1" 

LAUN

13
'-

1"

13
'-

2 
1/

2"
2'

-8
"

2'-9"

PLAN 1 (OPTIONS)

OPTION :: 12080 MULTI-SLIDE DOOR
OPTION :: FREESTANDING TUB AT PRIMARY BATH
OPTION :: FREESTANDING TUB AT LAUNDRY
OPTION :: BEDROOM 5 ILO HOME OFFICE
OPTION :: BEAMS AT GREAT ROOM CEILING

FLOOR  PLAN OPTIONS
UA - SPANISH MODERN

VITAL STATS
BEDROOM
BATH
CAR
CEILING
WINDOW HDR

LIV. SF:
PLAN W x D:
PLAN #:
SCALE:
PLAN NAME:

2,084
34'-11" x 78'-11"

6506
1/8" = 1'-0"

CORK

STATUS | NTL PORTFOLIO PLAN

AREA S.F. BREAKDOWN 
MAX. LIVABLE (A):
(A) 1ST FLR LIVABLE:
(B) 2 CAR GARAGE:
(C) COVERED ENTRY:

ELEVATION UA:
ELEVATION XA:
ELEVATION ZA:

(D) COVERED PATIO:
(E) ARCH. PROJECTION:
             ELEVATION UA:

ELEVATION XA:
ELEVATION ZA:

MAX FOOTPRINT:

4 (OPT 5)
3
2

10'
8'

2,084
2,084

457

66 
164
83

136

-
-
-

2,841

LOT COVERAGE |2,841 /5,152  = 55.1%

TYP LOT SIZE | 46'x112' ( SF)
LOT COVERAGE ALLOWED |  60.0%



5:12 

LEFT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

RIGHT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

REAR ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

FRONT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

FORM UA - SPANISH MODERN
FRONT VIEW: N.T.S.

PLAN 1
LIV. SF: 2094
PLAN WxD:
PLAN #:
PLAN NAME:
FORM UA - SPANISH MODERN

ROOF PLAN | SCALE: N.T.S. 

STYLE LEGEND:
1 PROMINENT GABLES

2 CONCRETE 'FLAT' TILES

3 FLUSH RAKES 12" EAVES

4 DECORATIVE SHUTTERS

5 DECORATIVE GANBLE DETAILS

6 PLATE HEIGHT - 10'-1" A.F.F.

 7 WINDOW HEADER - 8'-0" A.F.F.

6

7

15

T.O. RIDGE

18
'-

6"

2,084
34'-11' x 78'-11"

8047
CORK

5:
12

 

5:
12

 

Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architectureof 45

35' :: MKT SPEC2

AZD Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ
02/02/2024



ROOF PLAN | SCALE: N.T.S. 

STYLE LEGEND:
1 PROMINENT GABLES

2 CONCRETE 'S' TILES

3 12" RAKES AND EAVES

4 DECORATIVE CORBELS

5 DECORATIVE SHUTTERS

6 PLATE HEIGHT - 12'-1" A.F.F.

 7 PLATE HEIGHT - 10'-1" A.F.F.

8 WINDOW HEADER - 8'-0" A.F.F.

PLAN 1
LIV. SF:
PLAN WxD:
PLAN #:
PLAN NAME:
FORM XA - HACIENDA

5:
12

 

5:
12

 

16

5:12 

2,084
34'-11' x 84'-11"

8047
CORK

LEFT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

RIGHT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

REAR ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

FRONT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

6

8

T.O. RIDGE

FORM XA - HACIENDA
FRONT VIEW: N.T.S.

19
'-

2" 7

5:
12

 

5:
12

 
5:

12
 

5:
12

 

5:12 

Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architectureof 45

35' :: MKT SPEC2

AZD Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ
02/02/2024



LEFT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

RIGHT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

REAR ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

FRONT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

7

8

T.O. RIDGE

18
'-

5"

ROOF PLAN | SCALE: N.T.S. 

STYLE LEGEND:
1 PROMINENT HIPS

2 CONCRETE 'FLAT' TILES

3 12" EAVES

4 DECORATIVE SIDING

5 DECORATIVE STONE VENEER

6 PLATE HEIGHT - 14'-1" A.F.F.

 7 PLATE HEIGHT - 10'-1" A.F.F.

8 WINDOW HEADER - 8'-0" A.F.F.

FORM ZA - CONTEMPORARY
FRONT VIEW: N.T.S.

PLAN 1
LIV. SF: 
PLAN WxD:
PLAN #:
PLAN NAME:
FORM ZA - CONTEMPORARY

5:12 

5:
12

 

5:
12

 

17

2,084
34'-11' x 80'-11"

8047
CORK

6

5:12 

Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architectureof 45

35' :: MKT SPEC2

AZD Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ
02/02/2024



FORM ZA - CONTEMPORARY REAR ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'0"

FORM XA - HACIENDA REAR ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'0"

FORM UA - SPANISH MODERN REAR ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'0"

18

PLAN 1 (OPTIONS)
LIV. SF: 
PLAN WxD:
PLAN #:
PLAN NAME:
OPT. MULTI-SGD

2,084
34'-11' x 78'-11"

8047
CORK

Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architectureof 45

35' :: MKT SPEC2

AZD Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ
02/02/2024



Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architecture02/02/2024 of 45

Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ

35' MARKET RATE :: SP-2

19

PLAN 2
LIV. SF:
PLAN W x D:
PLAN #: 
SCALE:
PLAN NAME:

2,554
34'-11" x 60'-11"

7890
1/8" = 1'-0"

OBAN

STATUS | NTL PORTFOLIO PLAN

2,554
1,175
1,379

470

50 
146
66

198

98
96
64

2,020

AREA S.F. BREAKDOWN 
MAX. LIVABLE (A)+(B):
(A) 1ST FLR LIVABLE:
(B) 2ND FLR LIVABLE:
(C) 2 CAR GARAGE:
(D) COVERED ENTRY:

ELEVATION UA:
ELEVATION XA:
ELEVATION ZA:

(E) OPT. COVERED PATIO:
(F) ARCH. PROJECTION:
             ELEVATION UA:

ELEVATION XA:
ELEVATION ZA:

MAX FOOTPRINT:

VITAL STATS
BEDROOM
BATH
CAR
CEILING
WINDOW HDR

3 (OPT. 5)
3
2

9' | 9'
8' | 8'

SECOND FLOOR  PLAN 
UA - SPANISH MODERN

FIRST FLOOR  PLAN 
UA - SPANISH MODERN

2-CAR GARAGE
20'-0"x22'-7"

COV'D 
ENTRY

 EXTRA SUITE
10'-0"x12'-11" 

FOYER
6'-8"x12'-7"

LAUN

WIC
14 LF

P

GREAT ROOM
16'-0"x16'-6" 

DINING AREA
9'-9" x 16'-6"

KITCHEN

4x6.5

COVERED PATIO
20'-0" x 10'-0"

Hov
Hall

3'
-6

"

E.S. 
BATH

60x34

WIC

PRIMARY 
BATH

42x60

OPT FS 
TUB

L

WIC
11 LF

PRIMARY SUITE
14'-2"x18'-4" 

OPEN TO BELOW

HALL 
BATH 

29x60

BEDROOM 2
10'-8"x12'-1" BEDROOM 3

10'-0"x12'-1" 

LOFT
17'-2"x11'-3" 

STUFF
OF LIFE

L

DN

UP

3'
-6

"
3'

-1
0 

1/
2"

3'-8"

3'
-6

"

4'-2"

4'-0" 5'-6"9'-9 1/2"14'-10 1/2"

4'
-1

/2
"

8'
-6

"
6'

-4
 1

/2
"

3x3

3'
-6

"

3'
-6

"

OPT FS 
TUB

PC

3x3

STUFF
 OF LIFESTUFF

 OF LIFE

2'-9"

3'
-6

"

5'-4 1/2"

4'-2 1/2" 3'-3 1/2"

3'-10" 3'-10"

LOT COVERAGE |2,020 /5,152  = 39.2%

TYP LOT SIZE | 46'x112' ( SF)
LOT COVERAGE ALLOWED |  60.0%

14'-11" 20'-0"

60
'-

11
"

10
'-

0"
23

'-
7"

23
'-

4"
2'

-0
"

2'
-0

"

60
'-

11
"

8'
-0

"
50

'-
11

"
2'

-0
"

35'-11"

10'-7" 6'-0" 19'-4"

60
'-

11
"

8'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

46
'-

11
"

1'
-0

"
3'

-0
"

34'-11"

15'-11" 19'-0"
60

'-
11

"

8'
-0

"
50

'-
11

"
2'

-0
"

34'-11"

10'-7" 11'-4" 13'-0"

35'-11"
1'-0"

TANKLESS 
WH

V
A

LET



Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architecture02/02/2024 of 45

Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ

35' MARKET RATE :: SP-2

20

PLAN 2
LIV. SF:
PLAN W x D:
PLAN #: 
SCALE:
PLAN NAME:

2,554
34'-11" x 64'-11"

7890
1/8" = 1'-0"

OBAN

STATUS | NTL PORTFOLIO PLAN

AREA S.F. BREAKDOWN 
MAX. LIVABLE (A)+(B):
(A) 1ST FLR LIVABLE:
(B) 2ND FLR LIVABLE:
(C) 2 CAR GARAGE:
(D) COVERED ENTRY:

ELEVATION UA:
ELEVATION XA:
ELEVATION ZA:

(E) OPT. COVERED PATIO:
(F) ARCH. PROJECTION:
             ELEVATION UA:

ELEVATION XA:
ELEVATION ZA:

MAX FOOTPRINT:

VITAL STATS
BEDROOM
BATH
CAR
CEILING
WINDOW HDR

3 (OPT. 5)
3
2

9' | 9'
8' | 8'

SECOND FLOOR  PLAN 
XA - HACIENDA

FIRST FLOOR  PLAN 
XA - HACIENDA

2,554
1,175
1,379

470

50 
146
66

198

98
96
64

2,020

LOT COVERAGE |2,020 /5,152  = 39.2%

TYP LOT SIZE | 46'x112' ( SF)
LOT COVERAGE ALLOWED |  60.0%

14'-11" 20'-0"

10
'-

0"
23

'-
7"

23
'-

4"

8'
-0

"
50

'-
11

"

8'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

34'-11"

15'-11" 19'-0"

8'
-0

"
50

'-
11

"

64
'-

11
"

2'
-0

"
4'

-0
"

64
'-

11
"

64
'-

11
"

6'
-0

"

2'
-0

"
6'

-0
"

64
'-

11
"

35'-11"

16'-2" 19'-9"

46
'-

11
"

1'
-0

"
3'

-0
"

4'
-0

"

34'-11"

10'-7" 13'-2" 11'-2"

2-CAR GARAGE
20'-0"x22'-7"

COV'D 
ENTRY

 EXTRA SUITE
10'-0"x12'-11" 

FOYER
6'-8"x12'-7"

LAUN

WIC
14 LF

P

GREAT ROOM
16'-0"x16'-6" 

DINING AREA
9'-9" x 16'-6"

KITCHEN

4x6.5

COVERED PATIO
20'-0" x 10'-0"

Hov
Hall

3'
-6

"

E.S. 
BATH

60x34

WIC

PRIMARY 
BATH

42x60

OPT FS 
TUB

L

WIC
11 LF

PRIMARY SUITE
14'-2"x18'-4" 

OPEN TO BELOW

HALL 
BATH 

29x60

BEDROOM 2
10'-8"x12'-1" BEDROOM 3

10'-0"x12'-1" 

LOFT
17'-2"x11'-3" 

STUFF
OF LIFE

L

DN

UP

3'
-6

"
3'

-1
0 

1/
2"

3'-8"

3'
-6

"

4'-2"

4'-0" 5'-6"9'-9 1/2"14'-10 1/2"

4'
-1

/2
"

8'
-6

"
6'

-4
 1

/2
"

3x3

3'
-6

"

3'
-6

"

OPT FS 
TUB

PC

3x3

STUFF
 OF LIFESTUFF

 OF LIFE

2'-9"

3'
-6

"

5'-4 1/2"

4'-2 1/2" 3'-3 1/2"

3'-10" 3'-10"

35'-11"
1'-0"

TANKLESS 
WH

V
A

LET



Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architecture02/02/2024 of 45

Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ

35' MARKET RATE :: SP-2

21

PLAN 2
LIV. SF:
PLAN W x D:
PLAN #: 
SCALE:
PLAN NAME:

2,554
34'-11" x 60'-11"

7890
1/8" = 1'-0"

OBAN

STATUS | NTL PORTFOLIO PLAN

AREA S.F. BREAKDOWN 
MAX. LIVABLE (A)+(B):
(A) 1ST FLR LIVABLE:
(B) 2ND FLR LIVABLE:
(C) 2 CAR GARAGE:
(D) COVERED ENTRY:

ELEVATION UA:
ELEVATION XA:
ELEVATION ZA:

(E) OPT. COVERED PATIO:
(F) ARCH. PROJECTION:
             ELEVATION UA:

ELEVATION XA:
ELEVATION ZA:

MAX FOOTPRINT:

VITAL STATS
BEDROOM
BATH
CAR
CEILING
WINDOW HDR

3 (OPT. 5)
3
2

9' | 9'
8' | 8'

SECOND FLOOR  PLAN 
ZA - CONTEMPORARY

FIRST FLOOR  PLAN 
ZA - CONTEMPORARY

2,554
1,175
1,379

470

50 
146
66

198

98
96
64

2,020

LOT COVERAGE |2,020 /5,152  = 39.2%

TYP LOT SIZE | 46'x112' ( SF)
LOT COVERAGE ALLOWED |  60.0%

14'-11" 20'-0"

10
'-

0"
23

'-
7"

23
'-

4"

8'
-0

"
50

'-
11

"

8'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

34'-11"

15'-11" 19'-0"

8'
-0

"
50

'-
11

"
2'

-0
"

47
'-

11
"

1'
-0

"
2'

-0
"

60
'-

11
"

60
'-

11
"

34'-11"

10'-9" 11'-3" 12'-11"

60
'-

11
"

2'
-0

"

4'
-0

"
60

'-
11

"

35'-11"

8'-7" 8'-0" 19'-4"

2-CAR GARAGE
20'-0"x22'-7"

COV'D 
ENTRY

 EXTRA SUITE
10'-0"x12'-11" 

FOYER
6'-8"x12'-7"

LAUN

WIC
14 LF

P

GREAT ROOM
16'-0"x16'-6" 

DINING AREA
9'-9" x 16'-6"

KITCHEN

4x6.5

COVERED PATIO
20'-0" x 10'-0"

Hov
Hall

3'
-6

"

E.S. 
BATH

60x34

WIC

PRIMARY 
BATH

42x60

OPT FS 
TUB

L

WIC
11 LF

PRIMARY SUITE
14'-2"x18'-4" 

OPEN TO BELOW

HALL 
BATH 

29x60

BEDROOM 2
10'-8"x12'-1" BEDROOM 3

10'-0"x12'-1" 

LOFT
17'-2"x11'-3" 

STUFF
OF LIFE

L

DN

UP

3'
-6

"
3'

-1
0 

1/
2"

3'-8"

3'
-6

"

4'-2"

4'-0" 5'-6"9'-9 1/2"14'-10 1/2"

4'
-1

/2
"

8'
-6

"
6'

-4
 1

/2
"

3x3

3'
-6

"

3'
-6

"

OPT FS 
TUB

PC

3x3

STUFF
 OF LIFESTUFF

 OF LIFE

2'-9"

3'
-6

"

5'-4 1/2"

4'-2 1/2" 3'-3 1/2"

3'-10" 3'-10"

35'-11"
1'-0"

TANKLESS 
WH

V
A

LET



Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architecture02/02/2024 of 45

Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ

35' MARKET RATE :: SP-2

PLAN 2 (OPTIONS)

22

EXTRA SUITE
10'-0"x12'-11" 

FOYER
6'-8"x12'-7"

DINING AREA
9'-9" x 16'-6"

KITCHEN

COVERED PATIO
20'-0" x 10'-0"

PRIMARY 
BATH

42x60

OPT FS 
TUB

PRIMARY SUITE
14'-2"x18'-4" 

BEDROOM 5
10'-0"x11'-4" 

SECOND FLOOR OPTIONS
UA - SPANISH MODERN

FIRST FLOOR OPTIONS
UA - SPANISH MODERN

OPTION :: 15080 MULTI-SLIDE DOOR
OPTION :: EXTRA SUITE ILO HOME OFFICE
OPTION :: FREESTANDING TUB AT PRIMARY BATH
OPTION :: FREESTANDING TUB AT LAUNDRY
OPTION :: BEDROOM 5 ILO LOFT

OPT FS 
TUB

LIV. SF:
PLAN W x D:
PLAN #:
SCALE:
PLAN NAME:

2,554
34'-11" x 60'-11" 

7890
1/8" = 1'-0" 

OBAN

STATUS | NTL PORTFOLIO PLAN

AREA S.F. BREAKDOWN 
MAX. LIVABLE (A)+(B):
(A) 1ST FLR LIVABLE:
(B) 2ND FLR LIVABLE:
(C) 2 CAR GARAGE:
(D) COVERED ENTRY:

ELEVATION UA:
ELEVATION XA:
ELEVATION ZA:

(E) OPT. COVERED PATIO:
(F) ARCH. PROJECTION:
             ELEVATION UA:

ELEVATION XA:
ELEVATION ZA:

MAX FOOTPRINT:

VITAL STATS
BEDROOM
BATH
CAR
CEILING
WINDOW HDR

3 (OPT. 5)
3
2

9' | 9'
8' | 8'

2,554
1,175
1,379

470

50 
146
66

198

98
96
64

2,020

LOT COVERAGE |2,020 /5,152  = 39.2%

TYP LOT SIZE | 46'x112' ( SF)
LOT COVERAGE ALLOWED |  60.0%

13
'-

2 
1/

2"
2'

-0
"

17
'-

10
 1

/2
"

2'
-8

"

10'-7"

3'-3 1/2" 4'-0" 3'-3 1/2"

11
'-

11
 1

/2
"

8'
-4

"
3'

-7
 1

/2
"

10'-3 1/2" 2'-8"

LAUN



5:12 

LEFT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

RIGHT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

REAR ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

FRONT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

FORM UA - SPANISH MODERN
FRONT VIEW: N.T.S.

PLAN 2
LIV. SF: 
PLAN WxD:
PLAN #:
PLAN NAME:
FORM UA - SPANISH MODERN

6

7

23

T.O. RIDGE

28
'-

1"

2,554
34'-11' x 60'-11"

7890
OBAN

5:
12

 

5:
12

 

6

7

ROOF PLAN | SCALE: N.T.S. 

STYLE LEGEND:
1 PROMINENT GABLES

2 CONCRETE 'FLAT' TILES

3 FLUSH RAKE 12" EAVES

4 DECORATIVE GABLE DETAILS

5 DECORATIVE RECESSED 
WINDOWS

6 PLATE HEIGHT - 9'-1"A.S.F.F. / 9'-
1"A.F.F.

 7 WINDOW HEADER - 8'-0" / 8'-0" 
A.F.F.

3:12 

5:12

Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architectureof 45

35' :: MKT SPEC2

AZD Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ
02/02/2024



PLAN 2
LIV. SF: 
PLAN WxD:
PLAN #:
PLAN NAME:
FORM XA - HACIENDA

24

2,554
34'-11' x 64'-11"

7890
OBAN

LEFT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

RIGHT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

REAR ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

FRONT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

6

7

T.O. RIDGE

28
'-

1"

6

7

ROOF PLAN | SCALE: N.T.S. 

STYLE LEGEND:
1 PROMINENT GABLES, HIPS & CLIPS

2 CONCRETE 'S' TILES

3 12" RAKES AND 12" EAVES

4 DECORATIVE GABLE DETAILS

5 DECORATIVE STONE ACCENTS

6 PLATE HEIGHT - 9'-1"A.S.F.F. / 9'-
1"A.F.F.

 7 WINDOW HEADER - 8'-0" / 8'-0" 
A.F.F.

FORM XA - HACIENDA
FRONT VIEW: N.T.S.

5:12 

5:
12

 

5:
12

 

5:12 

3:12

4'-0"

4'-0"

3:12 

Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architectureof 45

35' :: MKT SPEC2

AZD Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ
02/02/2024



ROOF PLAN | SCALE: N.T.S. 

STYLE LEGEND:
1 PROMINENT HIPS

2 CONCRETE 'FLAT' TILES

3 12" EAVES

4 DECORATIVE SIDING

5 DECORATIVE STONE ACCENTS

6 PLATE HEIGHT - 9'-1"A.S.F.F. / 9'-
1"A.F.F.

 7 WINDOW HEADER - 8'-0" / 8'-0" 
A.F.F.

LEFT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

RIGHT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

REAR ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

FRONT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

6

7

T.O. RIDGE

28
'-

1"

6

7

FORM ZA - CONTEMPORARY
FRONT VIEW: N.T.S.

PLAN 2
LIV. SF: 
PLAN WxD:
PLAN #:
PLAN NAME:
FORM ZA - CONTEMPORARY

25

5:12

2,554
34'-11' x 60'-11"

7890
OBAN

5:12 

5:
12

 

5:
12

 

5:125:12

5:12 

4'-0"

3:12 

Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architectureof 45

35' :: MKT SPEC2

AZD Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ
02/02/2024



FORM ZA - CONTEMPORARY REAR ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'0"

FORM XA - HACIENDA REAR ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'0"

FORM UA - SPANISH MODERN REAR ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'0"

26

PLAN 2 (OPTIONS)
LIV. SF: 
PLAN WxD:
PLAN #:
PLAN NAME:
OPT. MULTI SGD

2,554
34'-11' x 60'-11"

7890
OBAN

Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architectureof 45

35' :: MKT SPEC2

AZD Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ
02/02/2024



Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architecture02/02/2024 of 45

Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ

35' MARKET RATE :: SP-2

27

PRIMARY 
BATH

GREAT ROOM
11'-8" x 15'-7"

2-CAR GARAGE
20'-0" x 20'-1"

DINING AREA
10'-0" x 15'-7"

KITCHEN

BEDROOM 2
11'-7" x 13'-1"

WIC
21LF

HALL 
BATH

FOYER
5'-9" x 8'-2"

PRIMARY SUITE
12'-4"x15'-7"

LAUNDRY

PLAN 3

VITAL STATS
BEDROOM
BATH
CAR
CEILING
WINDOW HDR

STATUS | NTL PORTFOLIO PLAN

AREA S.F. BREAKDOWN 
MAX. LIVABLE (A):
(A) 1ST FLR LIVABLE:
(B)  2ND FLR LIVABLE:
(C) 2 CAR GARAGE:
(D) COVERED ENTRY:

ELEVATION UA:
ELEVATION XA:
ELEVATION ZA:

(E) COVERED PATIO:
(F) ARCH. PROJECTION:

ELEVATION UA:
             ELEVATION XA:

ELEVATION ZA:

(UA)MAX FOOTPRINT:

LIV. SF:
PLAN W x D:
PLAN #: 
SCALE:
PLAN NAME:

2,846
34'-11" x 72'-11"

8065
1/8" = 1'-0"

REINE

LOFT
15'-0" x 11'-11"

STUFF 
OF LIFE

P

42x60

OPT. 
FS TUB

DN

SECOND FLOOR  PLAN 
UA - SPANISH MODERN

FIRST FLOOR  PLAN 
UA - SPANISH MODERN

EXTRA SUITE
10'-0" x 11'-1"

EXTRA 
SUITE 
BATH

HALF
BATH

BEDROOM 3
11'-8" x 12'-1"

L

OPT. 
FS TUB

COVERED PATIO
22'-0" x 9'-0"

5
3.5

2
9' | 9'
8' | 8'

3x3

TYP LOT SIZE | 46'x112' ( SF)
LOT COVERAGE ALLOWED |  60.0%

35'-11"

8'-8" 8'-7" 18'-8"

35'-11"

8'-8" 8'-7" 6'-8" 11'-0"

1'-0"

35'-11"

34'-11" 1'-0" 12'-11" 22'-0"

72
'-

11
"

72
'-

11
"

29
'-

4 
1/

2"
3'

-0
"

4'
-5

 1
/2

"

5'
-5

 1
/2

"

31
'-

4 
1/

2"
36

'-
1"

34
'-

1"

68
'-

11
"

2'
-0

"

72
'-

11
"

1'
-3

"

20
'-

10
"

41
'-

10
"

9'
-0

"

23'-0"11'-11" 1'-0"

2,846
1,820
1,026

420

63
149
62

200

48
26
22

2,589

LOT COVERAGE |2,589 /5,152  = 50.3%

Hov
Hall

VALET

Hov
HUB

EXT. 
FOYER

4'-5" x 15'-6"

PC

L

60x34

HOME OFFICE
10'-2" x 10'-1"

BEDROOM 4
10'-6" x 12'-1"

L

WIC
11LFWIC

11LF
WIC
10LF

UP

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

32x60

TANKLESS 
WH



Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architecture02/02/2024 of 45

Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ

35' MARKET RATE :: SP-2

27
SECOND FLOOR  PLAN 

XA - HACIENDA
FIRST FLOOR  PLAN 

XA - HACIENDA

PLAN 3

VITAL STATS
BEDROOM
BATH
CAR
CEILING
WINDOW HDR

STATUS | NTL PORTFOLIO PLAN

LIV. SF:
PLAN W x D:
PLAN #: 
SCALE:
PLAN NAME:

2,846
34'-11" x 76'-11"

8065
1/8" = 1'-0"

REINE

5
3.5

2
9' | 9'
8' | 8'

AREA S.F. BREAKDOWN 
MAX. LIVABLE (A):
(A) 1ST FLR LIVABLE:
(B)  2ND FLR LIVABLE:
(C) 2 CAR GARAGE:
(D) COVERED ENTRY:

ELEVATION UA:
ELEVATION XA:
ELEVATION ZA:

(E) COVERED PATIO:
(F) ARCH. PROJECTION:

ELEVATION UA:
             ELEVATION XA:

ELEVATION ZA:

(UA)MAX FOOTPRINT:

TYP LOT SIZE | 46'x112' ( SF)
LOT COVERAGE ALLOWED |  60.0%

2,846
1,820
1,026

420

63
149
62

200

48
26
22

2,589

LOT COVERAGE |2,589 /5,152  = 50.3%

35'-11"

34'-11" 1'-0" 12'-11" 22'-0"

36
'-

1 
1/

2"

34
'-

1"

41
'-

10
"

9'
-0

"

23'-0"11'-11"

1'-0"

20
'-

10
"

5'
-3

"

35'-11"

17'-2" 18'-9"

76
'-

11
"

2'
-0

"
68

'-
11

"
6'

-0
"

76
'-

11
"

34'-11"

8'-7" 8'-7" 17'-9"

29
'-

4 
1/

2"
11

'-
6"

31
'-

4 
1/

2"
9'

-6
"

76
'-

11
 1

/2
"

2'
-0

"

PRIMARY 
BATH

GREAT ROOM
11'-8" x 15'-7"

2-CAR GARAGE
20'-0" x 20'-1"

DINING AREA
10'-0" x 15'-7"

KITCHEN

BEDROOM 2
11'-7" x 13'-1"

WIC
21LF

HALL 
BATH

FOYER
5'-9" x 8'-2"

PRIMARY SUITE
12'-4"x15'-7"

LAUNDRY

LOFT
15'-0" x 11'-11"

STUFF 
OF LIFE

P

42x60

OPT. 
FS TUB

DN

EXTRA SUITE
10'-0" x 11'-1"

EXTRA 
SUITE 
BATH

HALF
BATH

BEDROOM 3
11'-8" x 12'-1"

L

OPT. 
FS TUB

COVERED PATIO
22'-0" x 9'-0"

3x3

Hov
Hall

VALET

Hov
HUB

EXT. 
FOYER

4'-5" x 15'-6"

PC

L

60x34

HOME OFFICE
10'-2" x 10'-1"

BEDROOM 4
10'-6" x 12'-1"

L

WIC
11LFWIC

11LF
WIC
10LF

UP

32x60

TANKLESS 
WH



Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architecture02/02/2024 of 45

Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ

35' MARKET RATE :: SP-2

29

PLAN 3

VITAL STATS
BEDROOM
BATH
CAR
CEILING
WINDOW HDR

STATUS | NTL PORTFOLIO PLAN

LIV. SF:
PLAN W x D:
PLAN #: 
SCALE:
PLAN NAME:

SECOND FLOOR  PLAN 
ZA - CONTEMPORARY

FIRST FLOOR  PLAN 
ZA - CONTEMPORARY

2,846
34'-11" x 72'-11"

8065
1/8" = 1'-0"

REINE

5
3.5

2
9' | 9'
8' | 8'

AREA S.F. BREAKDOWN 
MAX. LIVABLE (A):
(A) 1ST FLR LIVABLE:
(B)  2ND FLR LIVABLE:
(C) 2 CAR GARAGE:
(D) COVERED ENTRY:

ELEVATION UA:
ELEVATION XA:
ELEVATION ZA:

(E) COVERED PATIO:
(F) ARCH. PROJECTION:

ELEVATION UA:
             ELEVATION XA:

ELEVATION ZA:

(UA)MAX FOOTPRINT:

2,846
1,820
1,026

420

63
149
62

200

48
26
22

2,589

LOT COVERAGE |2,589 /5,152  = 50.3%

TYP LOT SIZE | 46'x112' ( SF)
LOT COVERAGE ALLOWED |  60.0%

35'-11"

34'-11" 1'-0" 12'-11" 22'-0"

34
'-

1"

34
'-

1"

41
'-

10
"

9'
-0

"

23'-0"11'-11"

1'-0"

8'-7 1/2" 8'-7 1/2" 6'-7" 11'-1"

1'-0"35'-11"

29
'-

4 
1/

2"
7'

-5
 1

/2
"

72
'-

11
"

2'
-0

"

31
'-

4 
1/

2"
5'

-5
 1

/2
"

72
'-

11
"

20
'-

10
"

1'
-3

"
72

'-
11

"

72
'-

11
"

2'
-0

"
68

'-
11

"

2'
-0

"

35'-11"

8'-7 1/2" 8'-7 1/2" 18'-8"

PRIMARY 
BATH

GREAT ROOM
11'-8" x 15'-7"

2-CAR GARAGE
20'-0" x 20'-1"

DINING AREA
10'-0" x 15'-7"

KITCHEN

BEDROOM 2
11'-7" x 13'-1"

WIC
21LF

HALL 
BATH

FOYER
5'-9" x 8'-2"

PRIMARY SUITE
12'-4"x15'-7"

LAUNDRY

LOFT
15'-0" x 11'-11"

STUFF 
OF LIFE

P

42x60

OPT. 
FS TUB

DN

EXTRA SUITE
10'-0" x 11'-1"

EXTRA 
SUITE 
BATH

HALF
BATH

BEDROOM 3
11'-8" x 12'-1"

L

OPT. 
FS TUB

COVERED PATIO
22'-0" x 9'-0"

3x3

Hov
Hall

VALET

Hov
HUB

EXT. 
FOYER

4'-5" x 15'-6"

PC

L

60x34

HOME OFFICE
10'-2" x 10'-1"

BEDROOM 4
10'-6" x 12'-1"

L

WIC
11LFWIC

11LF
WIC
10LF

UP

32x60

TANKLESS 
WH



Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architecture02/02/2024 of 45

Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ

35' MARKET RATE :: SP-2

OPTION :: 15080 SGD WITH COVERED PATIO
OPTION :: FREESTANDING TUB AT PRIMARY BATH
OPTION :: FREESTANDING TUB AT LAUNDRY
OPTION :: BEAMS AT GREAT ROOM CEILING

30

VITAL STATS
BEDROOM
BATH
CAR
CEILING
WINDOW HDR

STATUS | NTL PORTFOLIO PLAN

LIV. SF:
PLAN W x D:
PLAN #: 
SCALE:
PLAN NAME:

2,846
34'-11" x 72'-11"

8065
1/8" = 1'-0"

REINE

PLAN 3 (OPTIONS)

FIRST FLOOR  OPTIONS
UA - SPANISH MODERN

5
3.5

2
9' | 9'
8' | 8'

AREA S.F. BREAKDOWN 
MAX. LIVABLE (A):
(A) 1ST FLR LIVABLE:
(B)  2ND FLR LIVABLE:
(C) 2 CAR GARAGE:
(D) COVERED ENTRY:

ELEVATION UA:
ELEVATION XA:
ELEVATION ZA:

(E) COVERED PATIO:
(F) ARCH. PROJECTION:

ELEVATION UA:
             ELEVATION XA:

ELEVATION ZA:

(UA)MAX FOOTPRINT:

TYP LOT SIZE | 46'x112' ( SF)
LOT COVERAGE ALLOWED |  60.0%

13
'-

1"

2,846
1,820
1,026

420

63
149
62

200

48
26
22

2,589

LOT COVERAGE |2,589 /5,152  = 50.3%

PRIMARY 
BATH

GREAT ROOM
11'-8" x 15'-7"

DINING AREA
10'-0" x 15'-7"

OPT. 
FS TUB

COVERED PATIO
22'-0" x 9'-0"

LAUNDRY

OPT. 
FS TUB



5:12 

LEFT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

RIGHT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

REAR ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

FRONT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

FORM UA - SPANISH MODERN
FRONT VIEW: N.T.S.

PLAN 3
LIV. SF: 
PLAN WxD:
PLAN #:
PLAN NAME:
FORM UA - SPANISH MODERN

6

7

31

T.O. RIDGE

2,846
34'-11' x 70'-11"

8065
REINE

5:
12

 

5:
12

 

6

7

ROOF PLAN | SCALE: N.T.S. 

STYLE LEGEND:
1 PROMINENT GABLES

2 CONCRETE 'FLAT' TILES

3 FLUSH RAKE 12" EAVES

4 DECORATIVE GABLE DETAILS

5 DECORATIVE RECESSED 
WINDOWS

6 PLATE HEIGHT - 9'-1"A.S.F.F. / 9'-
1"A.F.F.

 7 WINDOW HEADER - 8'-0" / 8'-0" 
A.F.F.

26
'-

7 
1/

2"

5:12 

5:12

Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architectureof 45

35' :: MKT SPEC2

AZD Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ
02/02/2024



PLAN 3
LIV. SF: 
PLAN WxD:
PLAN #:
PLAN NAME:
FORM XA - HACIENDA

32

2,846
34'-11' x 74'-11"

8065
REINE

LEFT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

RIGHT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

REAR ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

FRONT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

6

7

T.O. RIDGE

6

7

ROOF PLAN | SCALE: N.T.S. 

STYLE LEGEND:
1 PROMINENT GABLES, HIPS & CLIPS

2 CONCRETE 'S' TILES

3 12" RAKES AND 12" EAVES

4 DECORATIVE GABLE DETAILS

5 DECORATIVE STONE ACCENTS

6 PLATE HEIGHT - 9'-1"A.S.F.F. / 9'-
1"A.F.F.

 7 WINDOW HEADER - 8'-0" / 8'-0" 
A.F.F.

FORM XA - HACIENDA
FRONT VIEW: N.T.S.

5:12 

5:
12

 

5:
12

 

5:12 

5:12

3'-0"

26
'-

7"

5:12

5:12

5:12

Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architectureof 45

35' :: MKT SPEC2

AZD Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ
02/02/2024



ROOF PLAN | SCALE: N.T.S. 

STYLE LEGEND:
1 PROMINENT HIPS

2 CONCRETE 'T' TILES

3 12" EAVES

4 DECORATIVE SIDING

5 DECORATIVE STONE ACCENTS

6 PLATE HEIGHT - 9'-1"A.S.F.F. / 9'-
1"A.F.F.

 7 WINDOW HEADER - 8'-0" / 8'-0" 
A.F.F.

LEFT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

RIGHT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

REAR ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

FRONT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

6

7

T.O. RIDGE

26
'-

7"

6

7

FORM ZA - CONTEMPORARY
FRONT VIEW: N.T.S.

PLAN 3
LIV. SF: 
PLAN WxD:
PLAN #:
PLAN NAME:
FORM ZA - CONTEMPORARY

33

2,846
34'-11' x 70'-11"

8065
REINE

5:12 

5:
12

 

5:
12

 

5:125:12

5:12 

3'-0"

5:
12

 

5:
12

 

5:12 

Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architectureof 45

35' :: MKT SPEC2

AZD Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ
02/02/2024



34

FORM ZA - CONTEMPORARY REAR ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'0"

FORM XA - HACIENDA REAR ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'0"

FORM UA - SPANISH MODERN REAR ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'0"

PLAN 3 (OPTIONS)
LIV. SF:
PLAN WxD:
PLAN #:
PLAN NAME:
OPT. MULTI SGD

2,846
34'-11' x 70'-11"

8065
REINE

Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architectureof 45

35' :: MKT SPEC2

AZD Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ
02/02/2024



Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architecture02/02/2024 of 45

Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ

35' MARKET RATE :: SP-2

35

PLAN 4

VITAL STATS
BEDROOM
BATH
CAR
CEILING
WINDOW HDR

STATUS | NTL PORTFOLIO PLAN

6
4.5

2
9' | 9'
8' | 8'

LIV. SF:
PLAN W x D:
PLAN #: 
SCALE:
PLAN NAME:

3,352
34'-11" x 75'-11"

8083
1/8" = 1'-0"

VIENNE

SECOND FLOOR  PLAN 
UA - SPANISH MODERN

FIRST FLOOR  PLAN 
UA - SPANISH MODERN

AREA S.F. BREAKDOWN 
MAX. LIVABLE (A):
(A) 1ST FLR LIVABLE:
(B)  2ND FLR LIVABLE:
(C) 2 CAR GARAGE:
(D) COVERED ENTRY:

ELEVATION UA:
ELEVATION XA:
ELEVATION ZA:

(E) COVERED PATIO:
(F) ARCH. PROJECTION:

ELEVATION UA:
             ELEVATION XA:

ELEVATION ZA:

(UA)MAX FOOTPRINT:

3,352
1,903
1,449

420

60
60
60

244

80
80
87

2,627

LOT COVERAGE |2,627 /5,152  = 50.9%

TYP LOT SIZE | 46'x112' ( SF)
LOT COVERAGE ALLOWED |  60.0%

35'-11"

17'-11" 17'-0" 1'-0"

34'-11"

17'-0" 17'-11"

35'-11"

16'-7" 19'-4"

75
'-

11
"

75
'-

11
"

14
'-

4"
39

'-
4"

20
'-

10
"

1'
-5

"

53
'-

11
"

12
'-

4"
9'

-8
"

35'-11"

21'-11" 13'-0"

1'-0"

53
'-

11
"

12
'-

4"
9'

-8
"

2'
-0

"
49

'-
11

"
2'

-0
"

PRIMARY 
BATH

GREAT ROOM
18'-7" x 15'-0"

2-CAR GARAGE
20'-0" x 20'-1"

DINING AREA
13'-7" x 11'-1"

KITCHEN

BEDROOM 2
11'-4" x 12'-8"

WIC
25LF

HALL 
BATH

FOYER
6'-1" x 10'-2"

PRIMARY SUITE
17'-4"x14'-2"

LAUNDRY

LOFT
22'-6" x 12'-8"

STUFF 
OF LIFE P

42x60

OPT. 
FS TUB

DN

EXTRA SUITE
10'-0" x 10'-0"

EXTRA 
SUITE 
BATH

HALF
BATH

BEDROOM 3
11'-6" x 12'-6"

L

OPT. 
FS TUB

COVERED PATIO
17'-0" x 14'-4"

3x3

Hov
Hall V

A
LET

EXT. 
FOYER

4'-6" x 10'-5"

PC

60x34

HOME OFFICE
10'-1" x 10'-4"

BEDROOM 4
11'-6" x 13'-1"

L

WIC
11LF

UP

34x60

BEDROOM 5
11'-6" x 13'-4"

BED 5 
BATH STUFF 

OF LIFE

STUFF 
OF LIFE

WIC
8LF

WIC
8LF

WIC
11LF

32x60

OPEN TO BELOW

TANKLESS 
WH



Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architecture02/02/2024 of 45

Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ

35' MARKET RATE :: SP-2

36

PLAN 4

VITAL STATS
BEDROOM
BATH
CAR
CEILING
WINDOW HDR

STATUS | NTL PORTFOLIO PLAN

6
4.5

2
9' | 9'
8' | 8'

LIV. SF:
PLAN W x D:
PLAN #: 
SCALE:
PLAN NAME:

3,352
34'-11" x 75'-11"

8083
1/8" = 1'-0"

VIENNE

SECOND FLOOR  PLAN 
XA - HACIENDA

FIRST FLOOR  PLAN 
XA - HACIENDA

AREA S.F. BREAKDOWN 
MAX. LIVABLE (A):
(A) 1ST FLR LIVABLE:
(B)  2ND FLR LIVABLE:
(C) 2 CAR GARAGE:
(D) COVERED ENTRY:

ELEVATION UA:
ELEVATION XA:
ELEVATION ZA:

(E) COVERED PATIO:
(F) ARCH. PROJECTION:

ELEVATION UA:
             ELEVATION XA:

ELEVATION ZA:

(UA)MAX FOOTPRINT:

3,352
1,903
1,449

420

60
60
60

244

80
80
87

2,627

LOT COVERAGE |2,627 /5,152  = 50.9%

TYP LOT SIZE | 46'x112' ( SF)
LOT COVERAGE ALLOWED |  60.0%

17'-11" 17'-0"

34'-11"

17'-0" 17'-11" 14
'-

4"

12
'-

4"

12
'-

4"
2'

-0
"

35'-11"

51
'-

11
"

9'
-8

"

75
'-

11
"

53
'-

11
"

9'
-8

"

75
'-

11
"

2'
-0

"
73

'-
11

" 39
'-

4"
20

'-
10

"

1'
-5

"

35'-11"
9'-2" 7'-4 1/2" 19'-4"35'-11"

9'-2" 13'-1" 12'-8"

1'-0"

PRIMARY 
BATH

GREAT ROOM
18'-7" x 15'-0"

2-CAR GARAGE
20'-0" x 20'-1"

DINING AREA
13'-7" x 11'-1"

KITCHEN

BEDROOM 2
11'-4" x 12'-8"

WIC
25LF

HALL 
BATH

FOYER
6'-1" x 10'-2"

PRIMARY SUITE
17'-4"x14'-2"

LAUNDRY

LOFT
22'-6" x 12'-8"

STUFF 
OF LIFE P

42x60

OPT. 
FS TUB

DN

EXTRA SUITE
10'-0" x 10'-0"

EXTRA 
SUITE 
BATH

HALF
BATH

BEDROOM 3
11'-6" x 12'-6"

L

OPT. 
FS TUB

COVERED PATIO
17'-0" x 14'-4"

3x3

Hov
Hall V

A
LET

EXT. 
FOYER

4'-6" x 10'-5"

PC

60x34

HOME OFFICE
10'-1" x 10'-4"

BEDROOM 4
11'-6" x 13'-1"

L

WIC
11LF

UP

34x60

BEDROOM 5
11'-6" x 13'-4"

BED 5 
BATH STUFF 

OF LIFE

STUFF 
OF LIFE

WIC
8LF

WIC
8LF

WIC
11LF

32x60

OPEN TO BELOW

TANKLESS 
WH

75
'-

11
"



Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architecture02/02/2024 of 45

Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ

35' MARKET RATE :: SP-2

37

PLAN 4

VITAL STATS
BEDROOM
BATH
CAR
CEILING
WINDOW HDR

STATUS | NTL PORTFOLIO PLAN

6
4.5

2
9' | 9'
8' | 8'

LIV. SF:
PLAN W x D:
PLAN #: 
SCALE:
PLAN NAME:

3,352
34'-11" x 75'-11"

8083
1/8" = 1'-0"

VIENNE

SECOND FLOOR  PLAN 
ZA - CONTEMPORARY

FIRST FLOOR  PLAN 
ZA - CONTEMPORARY

AREA S.F. BREAKDOWN 
MAX. LIVABLE (A):
(A) 1ST FLR LIVABLE:
(B)  2ND FLR LIVABLE:
(C) 2 CAR GARAGE:
(D) COVERED ENTRY:

ELEVATION UA:
ELEVATION XA:
ELEVATION ZA:

(E) COVERED PATIO:
(F) ARCH. PROJECTION:

ELEVATION UA:
             ELEVATION XA:

ELEVATION ZA:

(UA)MAX FOOTPRINT:

3,352
1,903
1,449

420

60
60
60

244

80
80
87

2,627

LOT COVERAGE |2,627 /5,152  = 50.9%

TYP LOT SIZE | 46'x112' ( SF)
LOT COVERAGE ALLOWED |  60.0%

17'-11" 17'-0"

34'-11"

17'-0" 17'-11" 14
'-

4"

12
'-

4"

12
'-

4"
2'

-0
"

35'-11"

49
'-

11
"

1'
-0

"
2'

-0
"

8'
-8

"

75
'-

11
"

54
'-

11
"

8'
-8

"

35'-11"

9'-2" 13'-0" 12'-9"

1'-0"

75
'-

11
"

2'
-0

"
73

'-
11

" 39
'-

4"
20

'-
10

"

1'
-5

"

35'-11"

9'-2" 7'-4 1/2" 19'-4"

75
'-

11
"

PRIMARY 
BATH

GREAT ROOM
18'-7" x 15'-0"

2-CAR GARAGE
20'-0" x 20'-1"

DINING AREA
13'-7" x 11'-1"

KITCHEN

BEDROOM 2
11'-4" x 12'-8"

WIC
25LF

HALL 
BATH

FOYER
6'-1" x 10'-2"

PRIMARY SUITE
17'-4"x14'-2"

LAUNDRY

LOFT
22'-6" x 12'-8"

STUFF 
OF LIFE P

42x60

OPT. 
FS TUB

DN

EXTRA SUITE
10'-0" x 10'-0"

EXTRA 
SUITE 
BATH

HALF
BATH

BEDROOM 3
11'-6" x 12'-6"

L

OPT. 
FS TUB

COVERED PATIO
17'-0" x 14'-4"

3x3

Hov
Hall V

A
LET

EXT. 
FOYER

4'-6" x 10'-5"

PC

60x34

HOME OFFICE
10'-1" x 10'-4"

BEDROOM 4
11'-6" x 13'-1"

L

WIC
11LF

UP

34x60

BEDROOM 5
11'-6" x 13'-4"

BED 5 
BATH STUFF 

OF LIFE

STUFF 
OF LIFE

WIC
8LF

WIC
8LF

WIC
11LF

32x60

OPEN TO BELOW

TANKLESS 
WH



Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architecture02/02/2024 of 45

Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ

35' MARKET RATE :: SP-2

FIRST FLOOR  OPTIONS
UA - SPANISH MODERN

OPTION :: 12080 MULTI-SLIDE

38

PLAN 4 (OPTIONS)

VITAL STATS
BEDROOM
BATH
CAR
CEILING
WINDOW HDR

STATUS | NTL PORTFOLIO PLAN

6
4.5

2
9' | 9'
8' | 8'

LIV. SF:
PLAN W x D:
PLAN #: 
SCALE:
PLAN NAME:

3,352
34'-11" x 75'-11"

8083
1/8" = 1'-0"

VIENNE

AREA S.F. BREAKDOWN 
MAX. LIVABLE (A):
(A) 1ST FLR LIVABLE:
(B)  2ND FLR LIVABLE:
(C) 2 CAR GARAGE:
(D) COVERED ENTRY:

ELEVATION UA:
ELEVATION XA:
ELEVATION ZA:

(E) COVERED PATIO:
(F) ARCH. PROJECTION:

ELEVATION UA:
             ELEVATION XA:

ELEVATION ZA:

(UA)MAX FOOTPRINT:

3,352
1,903
1,449

420

60
60
60

244

80
80
87

2,627

LOT COVERAGE |2,627 /5,152  = 50.9%

TYP LOT SIZE | 46'x112' ( SF)
LOT COVERAGE ALLOWED |  60.0%

13
'-

11
"

OPTION :: FREESTANDING TUB AT PRIMARY BATH
OPTION :: FREESTANDING TUB AT LAUNDRY



5:12 

LEFT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

RIGHT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

REAR ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

FRONT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

FORM UA - SPANISH MODERN
FRONT VIEW: N.T.S.

PLAN 4
LIV. SF: 
PLAN WxD:
PLAN #:
PLAN NAME:
FORM UA - SPANISH MODERN

6

7

39

T.O. RIDGE

28
'-

1"

3,352
34'-11' x 75'-11"

8083
VIENNE

5:
12

 

5:
12

 

6

7

ROOF PLAN | SCALE: N.T.S. 

STYLE LEGEND:
1 PROMINENT GABLES

2 CONCRETE 'FLAT' TILES

3 FLUSH RAKE 12" EAVES

4 DECORATIVE GABLE DETAILS

5 DECORATIVE RECESSED 
WINDOWS

6 PLATE HEIGHT - 9'-1"A.S.F.F. / 9'-
1"A.F.F.

 7 WINDOW HEADER - 8'-0" / 8'-0" 
A.F.F.

3:12
5:12

5:12

5:12 

3:12 

Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architectureof 45

35' :: MKT SPEC2

AZD Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ
02/02/2024



PLAN 4
LIV. SF: 
PLAN WxD:
PLAN #:
PLAN NAME:
FORM XA - HACIENDA

40

3,352
34'-11' x 75'-11"

8083
VIENNE

LEFT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

RIGHT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

REAR ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

FRONT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

6

7

T.O. RIDGE

28
'-

1"

6

7

ROOF PLAN | SCALE: N.T.S. 

STYLE LEGEND:
1 PROMINENT GABLES, HIPS & CLIPS

2 CONCRETE 'S' TILES

3 12" RAKES AND 12" EAVES

4 DECORATIVE GABLE DETAILS

5 DECORATIVE STONE ACCENTS

6 PLATE HEIGHT - 9'-1"A.S.F.F. / 9'-
1"A.F.F.

 7 WINDOW HEADER - 8'-0" / 8'-0" 
A.F.F.

FORM XA - HACIENDA
FRONT VIEW: N.T.S.

5:12 

5:
12

 

5:
12

 

5:12 

3:12

3'-0"

3'-0"
5:12

3:12

3:12 

Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architectureof 45

35' :: MKT SPEC2

AZD Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ
02/02/2024



ROOF PLAN | SCALE: N.T.S. 

STYLE LEGEND:
1 PROMINENT HIPS

2 CONCRETE 'T' TILES

3 12" EAVES

4 DECORATIVE SIDING

5 DECORATIVE STONE ACCENTS

6 PLATE HEIGHT - 9'-1"A.S.F.F. / 9'-
1"A.F.F.

 7 WINDOW HEADER - 8'-0" / 8'-0" 
A.F.F.

LEFT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

RIGHT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

REAR ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

FRONT ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

6

7

T.O. RIDGE

28
'-

1"

6

7

FORM ZA - CONTEMPORARY
FRONT VIEW: N.T.S.

PLAN 4
LIV. SF: 
PLAN WxD:
PLAN #:
PLAN NAME:
FORM ZA - CONTEMPORARY

41

5:12

3,352
34'-11' x 75'-11"

8083
VIENNE

5:12 

5:
12

 

5:
12

 

5:12
5:12

5:12 

3:12 

3'-0"

5:125:12

Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architectureof 45

35' :: MKT SPEC2

AZD Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ
02/02/2024



FORM ZA - CONTEMPORARY REAR ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'0"

FORM XA - HACIENDA REAR ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'0"

FORM UA - SPANISH MODERN REAR ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'0"

42

PLAN 4 (OPTIONS)
LIV. SF: 
PLAN WxD:
PLAN #:
PLAN NAME:
OPT. MULTI SGD

3,352
34'-11' x 75'-11"

8083
VIENNE

Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architectureof 45

35' :: MKT SPEC2

AZD Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ
02/02/2024



SPANISH MODERN EXTERIOR DETAILS
SCALE: NTS 

43

U10 U7 U4 GABLE DETAIL 1-TILE U1

U11 U8 U5

TAPER RECESSED GABLE DETAIL

U2

U9 U6 U3

U14

U15

2'
-0

"
1'

-0
"

6"

-2"

+0"

+2"

+2"

+0"

+2"
-12"

+2"

+0"

+0
NOTE: RECESS VARIES PER 
PLAN (3" OR GREATER)

STUCCO TRIM @ (2)WINDOW

STUCCO TRIM @ (1)WINDOW W/SUTTERS

RECESSED (2)WINDOW

STUCCO TRIM @ (1)WINDOW

2'
-0

"
8"

GABLE DETAIL 2-TILE

4"

3'-0"

V
ER

IE
S
 P

ER
 S

PE
C

S
EE

 F
LO

O
R
 P

LA
N

V
ER

IE
S
 P

ER
 S

PE
C

S
EE

 F
LO

O
R
 P

LA
N

4"

3'-0" 6" 3'-0"

+0"

1'-6" 3'-0" 1'-6"

V
ER

IE
S
 P

ER
 S

PE
C

S
EE

 F
LO

O
R
 P

LA
N

4"

6"
V
ER

IE
S
 P

ER
 S

PE
C

S
EE

 F
LO

O
R
 P

LA
N

6" 3'-0"6" 6"

1'
-4

"
8"

6"
8"

3'-0"

7'-6"

4"
6"

RECESSED WINDOW W/SHUTTERS

6"3'-0"6"

4"
6"

V
ER

IE
S
 P

ER
 S

PE
C

S
EE

 F
LO

O
R
 P

LA
N

6"

2'-0"2'-0"4 1/2"

EQ EQ

6'
-8

"

+2"

-2"

+0"

16'-0" GARAGE DOOR

RECESSED GARAGE DOOR

4 1/2"

6"
8'

-0
"

ENTRY DOOR 

+2"

1/2"

8'
-0

"

ENTRY DOOR

3'-0"

3"
8'

-0
"

U12ENTRY DOOR W/TRANSOM

+2"

3'-0"

2'
-0

"
1'

-0
"

8'
-0

"
6"

02/02/2024 Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architectureof 45

AZD Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ



44

HACIENDA EXTERIOR DETAILS
SCALE: NTS 

X10 X7 X4 CORBEL DETAIL X1

X11 X8 X5

CORBEL DETAIL @ GABLE END

X2

X12 X9 X6 X3

X14

X15

+2"

+0"

+2"

+0"

+2"

-12"

+2"

+0"

+0

+2"

+2"

7"

4"
4"

8"

6" 6"

+2"

+2"

+18"

+18"

NOTE: RECESS VARIES PER 
PLAN (3" OR GREATER)

RECESSED WINDOW W/STONE

4 1/2"

EQ EQ

6'
-8

"

+2"

4"16'-0" GARAGE DOOR

-2"

RECESSED GARAGE DOOR W/STONE

+2"

-12"

+2

+3"

+3"

NOTE: RECESS VARIES PER 
PLAN (3" OR GREATER)

STUCCO TRIM @ (2)WINDOW

STUCCO TRIM @ (1)WINDOW W/SUTTERS

RECESSED WINDOW W/SHUTTERS STUCCO TRIM @ (1)WINDOW

+0"

+0"

1'-2"4"

4"
4"

1'-6"

6"

8"

2'-0"4'-0"

CORBEL DETAIL @ GABLE  

ENTRY DOOR W/TRANSOM

3'-0"

8'
-0

"

4"

4"
+2"

V
A
R
IE

S
 P

ER
FL

O
O

R
 P

LA
N

8"
4'

-0
"

3"

4 1/2"
4"

6"

2'-0"

6"3'-0"6"

6"
V
A
R
IE

S
 P

ER
 S

PE
C

S
EE

 F
LO

O
R
 P

LA
N

4"

6"
3'-0"6"

4"
V
A
R
IE

S
 P

ER
 S

PE
C

S
EE

 F
LO

O
R
 P

LA
N

6"

V
A
R
IE

S
 P

ER
 S

PE
C

S
EE

 F
LO

O
R
 P

LA
N

6"
4"

6"3'-0"6"3'-0"6"

6'-6"

4"
V
A
R
IE

S
 P

ER
 S

PE
C

S
EE

 F
LO

O
R
 P

LA
N

6"

3'-0" 6"6"

6"
6"

4"

6" 3'-0" 6"6"6"4"
6"

V
A
R
IE

S
 P

ER
 S

PE
C

S
EE

 F
LO

O
R
 P

LA
N

6"
6"

NOTE: DOOR HARDWARE PER 
SPECS

FACIA

1'-6"

6"6"

ENTRY DOOR W/TRANSOM

3'-0"

2'
-0

"
1'

-0
"

8'
-0

"
6"

4"

4"
+2"

+2"

4"

11
'-

0"

02/02/2024 Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architectureof 45

AZD Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ



CONTEMPORARY EXTERIOR DETAILS
SCALE: NTS 

Z10RECESSED GARAGE DOOR Z7 Z4 Z1

Z11 Z8 Z5 Z2

Z12 Z9 Z6 Z3

Z14

Z15

+0"

+2"

+0"

6"

EQ EQ

6'
-8

"

16'-0" GARAGE DOOR

NOTE: RECESS VARIES PER PLAN 
(2" DEEP RECESS CONDITION)

STUCCO TRIM @ (2)WINDOW

(2050 SH) WINDOW W/SUTTERS

RECESSED WINDOW

STUCCO TRIM @ (1)WINDOW

V
ER

IE
S
 P

ER
 S

PE
C

S
EE

 F
LO

O
R
 P

LA
N

V
ER

IE
S
 P

ER
 S

PE
C

S
EE

 F
LO

O
R
 P

LA
N

1'-6" 1'-6"

V
ER

IE
S
 P

ER
 S

PE
C

S
EE

 F
LO

O
R
 P

LA
N

-2"

+2"

+0"

+2"

+0"

(2040 SH) WINDOW W/SUTTERS

V
ER

IE
S
 P

ER
 S

PE
C

S
EE

 F
LO

O
R
 P

LA
N

+2"

+0"

(2030 SH) WINDOW W/SUTTERS

V
ER

IE
S
 P

ER
 S

PE
C

S
EE

 F
LO

O
R
 P

LA
N

+3"
-3"
+0

NOTE: RECESS VARIES PER 
PLAN (3" DEEP OR GREATER)

TAPERED RECESSED WINDOW

6"
V
ER

IE
S
 P

ER
 S

PE
C

S
EE

 F
LO

O
R
 P

LA
N

3'-0" 3'-0"6"
7'-4"

4 1/2"

4" 6"
3'-0"3'-0"

6'-0"

1'-0" 2'-0" 1'-0"

4'-0"

6"
3"

V
ER

IE
S
 P

ER
 S

PE
C

S
EE

 F
LO

O
R
 P

LA
N

3'-0" 3'-0"6"
7'-0"

3" 3"

3"

+3"
-2"
+0

ENTRY DOOR W/TRANSOM

3'-0"

8'
-0

"

4" +2"

3'-0" 6" 3'-0"
2'-0" 1'-0"1'-0"

16'-0"4 1/2"

45

ENTRY DOOR W/TRANSOM

3'-0"

2'
-0

"
1'

-0
"

8'
-0

"

4"
8"

+2"

02/02/2024 Corporate Product Development :: West Group Architectureof 45

AZD Viviendo :: Chandler, AZ

















From: Stephanie Barton
To: Sarah Prince
Cc: harley.mehlhorn@chandleraz.gov
Subject: Case PLH23-0056
Date: Friday, December 15, 2023 6:24:32 AM

Hello,

I am writing because I was not able to attend last nights meeting. I live in Alamosa Estates and I reviewed your
rendering for the proposed neighborhood and strongly encourage you to add additional exits not just one single exit
onto Alamosa. Currently two developments feed onto this street, There should be an exit out onto McQueen or
Ocotillo but not a single exit for traffic to back up two other developments. I am asking you to reconsider your
design, this will cause traffic and vehicles cutting through our quiet development where many young children play
and put us at a safety risk!!

Thank you,
Stephanie Barton

mailto:stephbarton314@gmail.com
mailto:sarah.prince@pewandlake.com
mailto:harley.mehlhorn@chandleraz.gov


1

Lauren Schumann

From: jay keck <jkeck627@outlook.com>
Sent: Sunday, March 31, 2024 9:05 AM
To: Lauren Schumann
Subject: Public Hearing PLH24-0012/PLH23-0056/PLT23-0022

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Categories: Need to Log

I wanted to voice my strong support for the rezoning of the land located at the southeast corner of Ocotillo and 
McQueen roads. I live within ¼ radius of the site and would welcome the current vacant land (and eyesore) to be 
built out into a nice subdivision.  
 
Thank you,  
Jay Keck 
3931 S Laurel Way 
Chandler, AZ 
 
 

CAUTION: This Email is from an EXTERNAL source. Ensure you trust this sender before clicking on any links or 
attachments. 

 
  
 



1

Lauren Schumann

From: Mark Keller <makeller01@cox.net>
Sent: Sunday, March 31, 2024 4:41 PM
To: Lauren Schumann
Subject: PLH24-0012/PLH23-0056/PLT23-0022 Viviendo- Ocotillo and McQueen Roads

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Categories: Red category, Public Outreach

Hello Ms. Schumann, 
 
This parcel has been vacant for well over 25 years. It is time to develop this parcel with a needed single-family 
housing development. The neighborhood needs to complete one of the remaining parcels in this area. The 
planning of this parcel has gone though many iterations and diƯerent types of development. A 76-lot subdivision 
would be congruent to the neighborhood and is needed to address the current housing shortage.  Would the 
access point on Alamosa Drive be a secondary and emergency ingress/egress? If not, this collector street would 
have three ingress/egress points for three subdivisions. Could result in a significant amount of traƯic. Overall, this 
subdivision appears to be a great fit with the adjacent neighborhoods. Thanks. 
 
Mark Keller 
1203 East Coconino Drive 
Chandler, AZ 85249 
 
 

CAUTION: This Email is from an EXTERNAL source. Ensure you trust this sender before clicking on any links or 
attachments. 

 
  
 



1

Lauren Schumann

From: Richard January <DickJ912@outlook.com>
Sent: Friday, March 29, 2024 9:54 PM
To: Lauren Schumann
Subject: PLH24-0012/PLH23-0056/PLT23-0023 VIVIENDO

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

How can I get a look at the plan for this development?  A 76 lot subdivision on 15.4 acres seems 
inconsistent with the surrounding area. 
 
Thank you for your assistance. 
 
Richard January 
1413 East Zion Way 
Geneva Estates 
  (603)831-8883 (cell) 
Sent from my iPad 
 
 
 
 
CAUTION: This Email is from an EXTERNAL source. Ensure you trust this sender before clicking on any 
links or attachments. 
 
 
 



1

Lauren Schumann

From: Ronald Palmer <deadman1075@hotmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, April 2, 2024 11:32 AM
To: Lauren Schumann
Subject: PLH24-0012/PLH23-0056/PLT23-0022

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Ms. Schumann, 
My comments are not meant to have any reflection on you. I’m disappointed the city of Chandler 
would entertain this subdivision when infrastructure concerns abound. I would certainly rather have a 
commercial entity at that location than more single-family residences, apartments, townhomes, 
condos, etc. More people mean more traffic congestion and diminution of services. Traffic on 
McQueen is already horrible with the addition of Amazon and other businesses south of Queen Creek 
Road. I opposed that but my opposition obviously had little impact. I can’t imagine what the future 
traffic on Alamosa and in the neighborhood would be. Not to mention the drain on public safety 
services, such as police and fire. Not everyone that moves in will have stellar credentials. Crime will 
rise in the form of burglaries and vehicle thefts to start. I’m retired Chicago PD and have been in law 
enforcement since 1971. Still working full time for the County Attorney. 
  
My late wife found our house on Coconino in 2013 while I was working as a DOD contractor in 
Virginia. She bid on the property and the former owners accepted. I first saw the house in person 
when I came home for my daughter’s graduation from pharmacy school. I have completed some 
significant renovations in the house, and I have no current plans to sell it. My wife loved the house 
and Chandler in general. We previously lived in Scottsdale with the ‘hundred-dollar millionaires’ who 
are all flash and no substance. Chandler is about family and community and still has a small-town 
vibe. I would hate to be forced out by congestion. I’m originally from Chicago and congestion was 
constant. 
  
The horrible edifices by the 202 and McQueen are emblematic of what this new community will 
represent. The houses and townhouses on the south side of Ocotillo west of the canal are also 
horrible appearing structures. It seems like the city council and the mayor sold out the current 
residents to promote a larger tax base.  They use the funds to promote their DEI agenda which I 
believe is un-American. America became great because of meritocracy, not pandering to special 
interests. Whoever is the best candidate for a position should get the job, regardless of race. 
  
Thanks for being my sounding board, Ms. Schumann. Please don’t take my screed personally. I just 
want to live whatever time I have left in my current home. I’m 75 and the thought of moving is not very 
appealing. 
  
Respectfully, 
Ronald Palmer 
1013 E. Coconino Dr. 
 
 
 
 



2

 
 
 
 
 
For wisdom is more precious than rubies, and nothing you desire can compare with her. 
Proverbs, Chapter 8, Verse 11 
 

 

 
 
 

CAUTION: This Email is from an EXTERNAL source. Ensure you trust this sender before clicking on any links or 
attachments. 

 
  
 



1

Lauren Schumann

From: Peggy <peggyphil@cox.net>
Sent: Wednesday, April 17, 2024 10:48 AM
To: Lauren Schumann
Subject: Public Hearing - VIVIENDO

Ms. Schumann, 
     I’m writing to express my concern about the public hearing to rezone the southeast corner of Ocotillo and McQueen 
roads.  76 single family lots is a very dense population for 15 acres.  Additionally, the northeast corner of that 
intersection already contains a densely populated apartment/condo complex.  Please express my concerns to the 
planning and zoning commission to reconsider so many lots. 
                                                                      Sincerely,  Peggy Denisuk 
                                                                                480-276-3233 
 
 
Sent from Mail for Windows 
 
 
 

CAUTION: This Email is from an EXTERNAL source. Ensure you trust this sender before clicking on any links or 
attachments. 

 
  
 



1

Lauren Schumann

From: kjhickman13 <kjhickman13@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, April 30, 2024 5:18 PM
To: Lauren Schumann
Subject: RE: Chandler Zoning Case: PLH23-0056 VIVIENDO

Hello, 
 
I support the rezoning to residential with the current proposed design. I believe there will be less traffic with houses vs 
being commercial. I didn't notice significant increase in traffic when the condos across the street were built. I live in 
Geneva and my house backs up to the lot in question. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Krista Hickman  
4010 S Crosscreek Circle  
 
 
 
Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone 
 
 
 

CAUTION: This Email is from an EXTERNAL source. Ensure you trust this sender before clicking on any links or 
attachments. 

 
  
 



1

Lauren Schumann

From: Thomas Schlegel <teschlegel@yahoo.com>
Sent: Wednesday, May 1, 2024 2:54 AM
To: Lauren Schumann
Subject: Fwd: PLH24-0012/PLH23-0056/PLT23-0022 VIVIENDO

 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: Thomas Schlegel <teschlegel@yahoo.com> 
Date: April 30, 2024 at 7:26:28 PM MST 
To: lauren.schumann@chandlersz.gov 
Subject: PLH24-0012/PLH23-0056/PLT23-0022 VIVIENDO 

We planned to attend this meeting in person, but have been called away by a family matter.  We 
continue to oppose this plan for a variety of reasons.  First, 76 houses on this acreage is too many even 
though it is a reduction from the original 99.  Like everyone who has attended meetings with the 
developer, we have no objection to a plan that is consistent with the lot and house sizes in  Alamosa and 
Geneva Estates.  Second, according to someone who knocked on doors in our community, the city does 
not want to use the existing  cutout on McQueen, but rather establish a new exit onto Alamosa from the 
lot.  This means a significant increase in traffic to even try to get onto McQueen from both existing 
communities.  Traffic on McQueen is bad enough because no work around has been implemented to 
connect Cooper to the 202 and development of new housing areas on Chandler Heights and further 
south continues.  Third, we’re sure the school of choice for this proposed community will be Santan K-8, 
which will increase traffic through our community because it is the most direct path to the 
school.  Fourth, although we have not seen the newest proposal, at the previous meetings the “park” 
was a postage stamp compared to Alamosa and Geneva, leading us to believe our green belts will the 
alternative for some if the “park” is not enlarged.  Finally, we saw no retention ponds at all on the 
drawings at the last meeting, which is a concern for both of the existing communities.  This proposed 
community reflects the developers business model.  With all the jobs people and money flowing into the 
state and this area, surely a development consistent with the existing communities is possible.   
 
 
Darla Orndorff and Tom Schlegel, 1180 E. Kaibab Place, Chandler 
Sent from my iPad 

 
 

CAUTION: This Email is from an EXTERNAL source. Ensure you trust this sender before clicking on any links or 
attachments. 

 
  
 



ITEM  8 

City Council Memorandum      Development Services  Memo No. 24-030
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua Wright, City Manager

Andy Bass, Deputy City Manager and Acting Development Services Director
From: Mikayela Liburd, Associate Planner
Subject: PLH23-0057 Guerrero Residence 

Introduction and Tentative Adoption of Ordinance No. 5101
 

Request: Rezone from Agricultural District (AG-1) to Planned Area Development
(PAD) for Single-Family Residential with reduced setbacks.

Location: 943, 953 and 963 North Mill Avenue. Generally located ½ mile east of the
southeast corner of Kyrene and Ray roads

Applicant: Jesse and Laurie Guerrero

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 5101
approving PLH23-0057 Guerrero Residence, Rezoning from Agricultural District
(AG-1) to Planned Area Development (PAD) for Single-Family Residential with
reduced setbacks, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning and
Zoning Commission.

Background Data:
The subject site is part of the Guerrero Estates Subdivision.
The property is currently zoned Agricultural District (AG-1).
The subject site is comprised of three parcels totaling approximately
2.75 acres.
Rezoning to PAD is required to allow for reduced setbacks.

Surrounding Land Use Data:
North Single-Family Residential  South Single-Family Residential 



East Canal, then Single-Family Residential West Single-Family Residential 

General Plan and Area Plan Designations:
  Existing Proposed
General Plan Neighborhoods No Change

Proposed Development
Total Subject Site Acreage Approximately 2.75 Acres
Lot 2 51,924 sq ft.
Lot 3 37,767 sq ft.
Lot 4 30,276 sq ft.
Proposed Building Setbacks Front: 20'

Sides: 10' & 10'
Rear: 10'

Review and Recommendation
The subject site is made up of three parcels, two of which are vacant and one with
an existing home.  All three parcels are currently zoned Agricultural District (AG-1).

The current request is to approve a rezoning from AG-1 to PAD for a single-family
residence. As part of this request, the applicant is requesting deviations from the
required 30 ft. side yard and 40 ft. rear yard setbacks required for properties
zoned AG-1. Proposed setbacks of 10 ft. on both side yards and 10 ft. from the
rear yard are being requested. This request is consistent with other single family
developments in the area as well as others that have recently been approved by
the City Council.

Planning staff has reviewed the request and supports the proposal, citing
consistency with the General Plan and Zoning Code. The proposal is consistent
with the policies of the General Plan, which call for a variety of housing choices
and a compatible mix of housing choices within the Neighborhood Designation.
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval subject to conditions. 

Public / Neighborhood Notification
This request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the



This request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the
Chandler Zoning Code.
A neighborhood meeting was held on February 28, 2024. In addition to the
applicant and city staff, two residents were in attendance.
As of the writing of this memo, Planning staff is not aware of any opposition
to the request

Planning and Zoning Commission Vote Report
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, May 15, 2024

Motion to Approve

In Favor: 5     Opposed: 0     Absent: 1 (Lopez)

Recommended Conditions of Approval
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval of Rezoning from
AG-1 to PAD for Single-Family Residential with reduced setbacks, subject to the
following conditions:

1. Uses permitted on the property shall be those permitted in the Single-Family
(SF-33) zoning district, except as modified by conditions herein. 

2. Minimum setbacks shall be as provided below:
  
Property Line Building Setback
Front Yard 20 ft.
Side Yard 10 ft. each side
Rear Yard 10 ft. 

3. Development standards in the City of Chandler Zoning Code for SF-33-Single
Family District shall apply, except as modified by conditions herein. 

4. Developer shall provide all required right-of-way dedications and/or easements
as determined by the Development Services Director at the time of construction
plan review.

5. Developer shall complete construction of all required off-site street
improvements including but not limited to paving, landscaping, curb, gutter and
sidewalks, median improvements and street lighting to achieve conformance with
City codes, standard details, and design manuals.



City codes, standard details, and design manuals.

6. Landscaping in all rights-of-way shall be maintained by the adjacent property
owner.  Additionally, hardscape improvements located behind the sidewalk and
within the right-of-way shall be maintained by the adjacent property owner.

Attachments
Ordinance 5101 
Vicinity Maps 
Narrative 
Site Plan 



 
  

ORDINANCE NO.  5101 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, 
ARIZONA, AMENDING THE ZONING CODE AND MAP ATTACHED 
THERETO, BY REZONING A PARCEL FROM AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT 
(AG-1)  TO PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT (PAD) FOR SINGLE-FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL WITH REDUCED SETBACKS IN CASE PLH23-0057 
(GUERRERO RESIDENCE) LOCATED AT 943, 952, AND 963 NORTH MILL 
AVENUE, WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
CHANDLER, ARIZONA; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF CONFLICTING 
ORDINANCES; AND PROVIDING FOR PENALTIES. 

 
WHEREAS, an application for rezoning certain property within the corporate limits of Chandler, 
Arizona, has been filed in accordance with Article XXVI of the Chandler Zoning Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, the application has been published in a local newspaper with general circulation in 
the City of Chandler, giving fifteen (15) days’ notice of the time, place, and date of public hearing; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, a notice of such hearing was posted on the property at least seven (7) days prior to 
the public hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the probable impact of this ordinance on the cost to 
construct housing for sale or rent; and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held by the Planning and Zoning Commission as required by 
the Zoning Code. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, 
as follows: 
 
Section 1. Legal Description of Property:  
   

EXHIBIT ‘A’ 
 

Said parcel is hereby rezoned from AG-1 to PAD for single-family residential with 
reduced setbacks, subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. Uses permitted on the property shall be those permitted in the Single-Family 

(SF-33) zoning district, except as modified by conditions herein.  
 

2. Minimum setbacks shall be as provided below:  
 

Property Line Building Setback 
Front Yard 20 ft. 
Side Yard 10 ft. for each side 



Ordinance No. 5101 
Page 2 

 
Rear Yard 10 ft. 

 
 
3. Development standards in the City of Chandler Zoning Code for SF-33-Single 

Family District shall apply, except as modified by conditions herein.  
 

4. Developer shall provide all required right-of-way dedications and/or easements 
as determined by the Development Services Director at the time of                   
construction plan review. 

 
5.  Developer shall complete construction of all required off-site street 

improvements including but not limited to paving, landscaping, curb, gutter and 
sidewalks, median improvements and street lighting to achieve conformance 
with City codes, standards details, and design manuals. 

 
6. Landscaping in all rights-of-way shall be maintained by the adjacent property 

owner.  Additionally, hardscape improvements located behind the sidewalk and 
within the right-of-way shall be maintained by the adjacent property owner. 

 
Section 2. The Planning Division of the City of Chandler is hereby directed to enter such 

changes and amendments as may be necessary upon the Zoning Map of said Zoning 
Code in compliance with this Ordinance.  

 
Section 3. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance, or any parts hereof, are hereby repealed. 
 
Section 4. In any case, where any building, structure, or land is used in violation of this 

Ordinance, the Planning Division of the City of Chandler may institute an 
injunction or any other appropriate action in proceeding to prevent the use of such 
building, structure, or land.  

 
Section 5. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Ordinance is 

for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of 
competent jurisdiction, then this entire ordinance is invalid and shall have no force 
or effect. 

 
Section 6. A violation of this Ordinance shall be a Class 1 misdemeanor subject to the 

enforcement and penalty provisions set forth in Section 1-8.3 of the Chandler City 
Code.  Each day a violation continues, or the failure to perform any act or duty 
required by this Ordinance or the Zoning Code, shall constitute a separate offense. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance No. 5101 
Page 3 

 
INTRODUCED AND TENTATIVELY APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, 
Arizona, this ____ day of ______________, 2024. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, this _____ day 
of _______________, 2024. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Ordinance No. 5101 was duly passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting held on the 
____ day of _____________, 2024, and that a quorum was present thereat. 
 
      __________________________ 
       CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
      
CITY ATTORNEY 
 
Published: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance No. 5101 
Page 4 

 
 
 
 

Exhibit “A” 
 

Lot 2, Guerrero Estates, according to Book 471 of Maps, Page 36, records of Maricopa County, 
Arizona 
 
Lot 3, Guerrero Estates, according to Book 471 of Maps, Page 36, records of Maricopa County, 
Arizona 
 
Lot 4, Guerrero Estates, according to Book 471 of Maps, Page 36, records of Maricopa County, 
Arizona 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                                                       



W RAY RD

N 
RU

RA
L R

D

N 
MI

LL
 AV

N 
PO

ND
ER

OS
A A

V

W DEL RIO ST

N 
PIN

EV
IEW

 D
R

W IVANHOE ST

W LINDA LN

W HARRISON ST

N 
DE

AN
 S

T

W JOSHUA BL

N 
JE

NT
ILL

Y L
N

N 
BR

AD
LE

Y D
R

W LAREDO ST

W DUBLIN CT

W ORCHID LN

W GAIL DR

W PARK AV

W DUBLIN LN

W ROSS DR

W GARY DR

W MONTEREY ST

W MEGAN ST

N 
FIR

 S
T

W HARRISON CT

W IVANHOE CT

N 
DE

L P
UE

BL
O 

ST

W SHANNON CT N 
HA

RM
ON

 D
R

N 
RU

SH
 S

T

W LAREDO CT

W SHANNON ST

W DEL RIO CT

N JENTILLY CT

W GARY DR

W IVANHOE ST

N 
BR

AD
LE

Y D
R

N 
MI

LL
 AV

W DUBLIN LN

W IVANHOE CT

N 
RU

SH
 S

T

W LINDA LN

W HARRISON CT

N 
FIR

 S
T

W DEL RIO ST

W LINDA LN

N 
RU

SH
 S

T

City of Chandler Planning Division

Ru
ral

 R
d.

Proposed Project Details
943, 953, 963 N Mill Ave. 
Rezoning from AG-1 to Single-Family Residential
with reduced setbacks

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Ray Rd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

City of Tempe

PLH23-0057 Guerro Residence ´

^

SF-8.5
Suggs
Corona
Village

PAD
Harmon Ranch

PARK
Country
Brook

Apartments

C-2/PAD

AG-1

PAD
Warner
Ranch

PAD

PAD
San Brisas

PAD
Village Court

at Gila Springs

Project Site

PAD
Northlake

PAD
Wellington

Estates

PAD
Pineridge

PAD
Pineview

SCHOOL
Kyrene de la Mirada

PARK
Pine ShadowsPpark

PAD
Daybreak

Vista

PAD
Joshua
Village



W RAY RD

N 
RU

RA
L R

D

N 
MI

LL
 AV

N 
PO

ND
ER

OS
A A

V

W DEL RIO ST

N 
PIN

EV
IEW

 D
R

W IVANHOE ST

W LINDA LN

W HARRISON ST

N 
DE

AN
 S

T

W JOSHUA BL

N 
JE

NT
ILL

Y L
N

N 
BR

AD
LE

Y D
R

W LAREDO ST

W DUBLIN CT

W ORCHID LN

W GAIL DR

W PARK AV

W DUBLIN LN

W ROSS DR

W GARY DR

W MONTEREY ST

W MEGAN ST

N 
FIR

 S
T

W HARRISON CT

W IVANHOE CT

N 
DE

L P
UE

BL
O 

ST

W SHANNON CT N 
HA

RM
ON

 D
R

N 
RU

SH
 S

T

W LAREDO CT

W SHANNON ST

W DEL RIO CT

N JENTILLY CT

W GARY DR

W IVANHOE ST

N 
BR

AD
LE

Y D
R

N 
MI

LL
 AV

W DUBLIN LN

W IVANHOE CT

N 
RU

SH
 S

T

W LINDA LN

W HARRISON CT

N 
FIR

 S
T

W DEL RIO ST

W LINDA LN

N 
RU

SH
 S

T

City of Chandler Planning Division

Ru
ral

 R
d.

Proposed Project Details
943, 953, 963 N Mill Ave. 
Rezoning from AG-1 to Single-Family Residential
with reduced setbacks

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Ray Rd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

City of Tempe

PLH23-0057 Guerro Residence ´

^

SF-8.5
Suggs
Corona
Village

PAD
Harmon Ranch

PARK
Country
Brook

Apartments

C-2/PAD

AG-1

PAD
Warner
Ranch

PAD

PAD
San Brisas

PAD
Village Court

at Gila Springs

Project Site

PAD
Northlake

PAD
Wellington

Estates

PAD
Pineridge

PAD
Pineview

SCHOOL
Kyrene de la Mirada

PARK
Pine ShadowsPpark

PAD
Daybreak

Vista

PAD
Joshua
Village



February 7, 2024

PLH23-0057 Guerrero Residence Rezone,
APN 301-87-978
943, 953, 963 North Mill Avenue
Chandler Arizona, 85226

A rezoning change is being requested from agriculture to PAD for reduced setbacks on Parcel 301-87-978 at
943 N. Mill Ave, Parcel 301-87-797 at 953 N. Mill Ave and Parcel 301-87-980 at 963 N. Mill Ave. The site is
fully developed with a gated entry and private drive, fully landscaped with a variety of trees and shrubs. The
three lots are odd shaped. There is a home built on 943 N. Mill Ave. Currently, 953 and 963 are vacant. Due to
the irregular shape of lots, it is in the best interest of the subdivision to rezone from agricultural to PAD
allowing for reduction of the setbacks. The current site plan hinders the new construction from developing a
home that is equal to the home located at 943 N. Mill Ave. With current set backs, we will not achieve
community cohesion and will not be feasible to build accordingly. As a result there is a detriment to the
neighborhood and loss of development uniformity. The attempt is to preserve standards and not change the
character of the neighborhood. The goal is to memorialize the level of quality custom home and conformity of
the subdivision. The plan is to rezone the area and include setbacks to expand the buildable envelope.

Sincerely,

Laurie Guerrero

https://us05web.zoom.us/j/86162280189?pwd=a8dEXQBbPe52W48Q2PRbpofYbBKCuq.1
mailto:lauriemg@q.com








ITEM  9 

City Council Memorandum      Development Services  Memo No. 24-027
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua Wright, City Manager

Andy Bass, Deputy City Manager and Acting Development Services Director
From: Benjamin Cereceres, Planner
Subject: PH23-0070 Chandler Palms Medical Offices 

Introduction and Tentative Adoption of Ordinance No. 5102
 

Request: Amend the existing Planned Area Development (PAD) zoning district by
allowing medical office uses in addition to the uses currently allowed, which
include industrial, office and warehouse. The site consists of two (2) existing
buildings.

Location: 500 N. Juniper Drive, generally located 1/2 mile north and west of Chandler
Boulevard and McClintock Drive

Applicant:Casandra Zeitlin, HAM Chandler Palms LLC / HAM Papago LLC / HAM
Fairway LLC

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 5102 approving
PLH23-0070 Chandler Palms Medical Offices, amending the existing PAD to allow
medical office uses, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning and
Zoning Commission.

Background Data:
The subject site is currently zoned PAD for industrial, general office, and
warehouse.
Per the current zoning, medical office uses are not permitted.
A PAD amendment is required to allow for medical uses.

Surrounding Land Use Data:



North Public Park, Desert Breeze
Blvd, then elementary school

South Vacant parcel owned by City of
Chandler, then storage facility 

East Industrial Buildings  West Public Park (Desert Breeze)

General Plan and Area Plan Designations:
  Existing Proposed
General Plan Employment  No Change

Proposed Development
Building I 70,573 Square-Feet
Building II 70,573 Square-Feet
Building I & II Total Square-Footage 141,146 Square-Feet
Parking Provided 936
Parking Required 941

Review and Recommendation
The property was zoned Planned Area Development (PAD) for limited warehouse,
industrial and general office in 1988 through zoning case Z88-018 as part of a
larger development, Chandler Corporate Center. For this portion of the
development, medical office was not a permitted use. Preliminary Development
Plan PDP05-0009 Chandler Corporate Center was approved in 2005 for a
mixed-use development including industrial, warehouse and office uses. The
buildings are currently occupied by general office uses.

The applicant is requesting to allow limited medical uses that generate less
demand for parking than general-care medical office uses, such as pediatrics,
dentists or optometrists, which will be prohibited. Such limited medical uses would
be required to submit a parking study to demonstrate the services provided will not
generate demand for parking that exceeds 1 space per every 250 square feet, the
same parking ratio that is required for general office. Staff supports adding limited
medical uses given that the parking demand would not increase. Section 35-1804
of the City of Chandler's parking regulations dictates that medical office uses
should be parked at one (1) space per one hundred fifty (150) square feet and
general office at one (1) space per two hundred fifty (250) square feet. The site
currently contains a total 936 parking spaces on-site; a total of 941 parking
spaces are required. 

No changes are proposed to the site. A copy of the Chandler Corporate Center



preliminary development plan booklet (approved in 2005) is attached for
reference only as it will continue to regulate development within the proposed
amended PAD. A copy of the current PAD, approved via Ordinance No. 1968, is
also attached for reference. Planning staff has reviewed the request and finds it to
be consistent with the General Plan and Zoning Code requirements.

Public / Neighborhood Notification
This request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the
Chandler Zoning Code.
A neighborhood meeting sign was posted on the site and on social media via
NextDoor.
A neighborhood meeting was held on May 1, 2024. One business
representative, an existing tenant located in one of the subject buildings, was
in attendance and had concerns regarding the proposed medical office use.
As of the writing of this memo, Planning staff is aware of one business in
opposition to the request.

Planning and Zoning Commission Vote Report
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, May 15, 2024
Motion to Approve

In Favor: 4     Opposed: 0     Absent: 1 (Lopez)     Abstain: 1 (Heumann)

One (1) current business tenant of the subject site spoke in opposition to the
request, stating that they did not feel that medical use is a compatible land use
and that they do not desire to share the common areas of the buildings with
potential medical office clients/tenants.  

Recommended Conditions of Approval
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends the City Council approve the
requested PAD amendment, subject to the followng conditions: 

Development shall be in substantial conformance with the exhibits and
representation entitled "Chandler Corporate Center" kept on file in the City of
Chandler's Planning Division in file No. PDP05-0009, modified by such
conditions included at the time the exhibits were approved by City Council
and/or as thereafter amended, modified or supplemented by the City Council.
 

1.

Uses permitted shall be limited to light industrial, general office, and
warehouse. Additionally, medical uses, such as but not limited to counseling
services and medical specialists, shall be permitted subject to providing a

2.



parking study that demonstrates the services provided generate a parking
demand that does not exceed one (1) space per two hundred and fifty (250)
square-feet. More intense medical uses, such as but not limited to general
practitioners, pediatricians, dental and optometrists, shall be prohibited. 
 
All employees and clients shall park on-site.
 

3.

The site shall be maintained in a clean and orderly manner.
 

4.

The landscaping in all open-spaces shall be maintained by the property
owner or property owners' association, and shall be maintained at a level
consistent with or better than at the time of planting. 

5.

Attachments
Ordinance No. 5102 
Vicinity Maps 
Narrative & Exhibits 
Ordinance No, 1968 
PDP05-0009 Chandler Corporate Center Development Booklet 



 
  

ORDINANCE NO.  5102 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, 
ARIZONA, AMENDING THE ZONING CODE AND MAP ATTACHED 
THERETO, BY AMENDING AN EXISTING PLANNED AREA 
DEVELOPMENT (PAD) ZONING DISTRICT TO ALLOW MEDICAL OFFICE 
USES IN ADDITION TO THE USES CURRENTLY ALLOWED AT AN 
EXISTING PARCEL LOCATED AT 500 NORTH JUNIPER DRIVE AS 
REPRESENTED IN CASE PLH23-0070 (CHANDLER PALMS MEDICAL 
OFFICES),  WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
CHANDLER, ARIZONA; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF CONFLICTING 
ORDINANCES; AND PROVIDING FOR PENALTIES. 

 
WHEREAS, an application for rezoning certain property within the corporate limits of Chandler, 
Arizona, has been filed in accordance with Article XXVI of the Chandler Zoning Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, the application has been published in a local newspaper with general circulation in 
the City of Chandler, giving fifteen (15) days’ notice of the time, place, and date of public hearing; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, a notice of such hearing was posted on the property at least seven (7) days prior to 
the public hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the probable impact of this ordinance on the cost to 
construct housing for sale or rent; and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held by the Planning and Zoning Commission as required by 
the Zoning Code. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, 
as follows: 
 
Section 1. Legal Description of Property:  
   

EXHIBIT ‘A’ 
 
Said parcel is hereby rezoned from Planned Area Development (PAD) for 
industrial, office and warehouse to Planned Area Development (PAD) for 
industrial, office, and warehouse, including limited medical office uses, subject to 
the following conditions: 
 

 
 
 
  



Ordinance No. 5102 
Page 2 

 
1. Development shall be in substantial conformance with exhibits and representation 

entitled “Chandler Corporate Center” kept on file in the City of Chandler’s 
Planning Division in file No. PDP05-0009, modified by such conditions included 
at the time the exhibits were approved by City Council and/or thereafter amended, 
modified or supplemented by the City Council. 

 
2. Uses permitted shall be limited to light industrial, general office, and warehouse. 

Additionally, medical uses, such as but not limited to counseling services and 
medical specialists, shall be permitted subject to providing a parking study that 
demonstrates the services provided generate a parking demand that does not exceed 
one (1) space per two hundred and fifty (250) square-feet. More intense medical 
uses, such as but not limited to general practitioners, pediatricians, dentists, and 
optometrists shall be prohibited.  

 
3. All employees and clients shall park on-site. 

 
4. The site shall be maintained in a clean and orderly manner. 

 
5. The landscaping in all open spaces shall be maintained by the property owner or 

property owners’ association, and shall be maintained at a level consistent with or 
better than at the time of planting.  

 
Section 2. The Planning Division of the City of Chandler is hereby directed to enter such 

changes and amendments as may be necessary upon the Zoning Map of said Zoning 
Code in compliance with this Ordinance.  

 
Section 3. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance, or any parts hereof, are hereby repealed. 
 
Section 4. In any case, where any building, structure, or land is used in violation of this 

Ordinance, the Planning Division of the City of Chandler may institute an 
injunction or any other appropriate action in proceeding to prevent the use of such 
building, structure, or land.  

 
Section 5. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Ordinance is 

for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of 
competent jurisdiction, then this entire ordinance is invalid and shall have no force 
or effect. 

 
Section 6. A violation of this Ordinance shall be a Class 1 misdemeanor subject to the 

enforcement and penalty provisions set forth in Section 1-8.3 of the Chandler City 
Code.  Each day a violation continues, or the failure to perform any act or duty 
required by this Ordinance or the Zoning Code, shall constitute a separate offense. 

 
 
INTRODUCED AND TENTATIVELY APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, 



Ordinance No. 5102 
Page 3 

 
Arizona, this ____ day of ______________, 2024. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, this _____ day 
of _______________, 2024. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Ordinance No. 5102 was duly passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting held on the 
____ day of _____________, 2024, and that a quorum was present thereat. 
 
      __________________________ 
       CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
      
CITY ATTORNEY 
 
Published: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance No. 5102 
Page 4 

 
Exhibit A 

Legal Description 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



W CHANDLER BL
N 

MC
CL

IN
TO

CK
 D

R

N 
JU

NI
PE

R 
DR

N DESERT BREEZE BL E
N 

DE
SE

RT
 BR

EE
ZE

 BL
 W

N 
LA

VE
EN

 D
R

W LAREDO ST

W BART DR

W GALVESTON ST

W ERIE ST

W TYSON ST

W FLINT ST

W DETROIT ST N 
EN

TE
RP

RI
SE

 P
L

N A
LD

ER
 D

R
W BINNER DR

N KENNETH PL

W TOLEDO ST

N 
79

TH
 S

T
N 

BU
TT

E A
V

W MONTEREY ST

N 
GA

LA
XY

 D
R

W BEECHCRAFT PL

N 
EN

TR
AD

A S
TN 

WI
LL

OW
 ST

N 
DI

AN
E 

CT

N 
JU

NI
PE

R 
DR

W TYSON ST

W ERIE ST

N 
KE

NN
ET

H 
PL

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Mc
Cl

int
oc

k D
r.

Proposed Project Details
500 N. Juniper Dr.
Rezoning to allow for Medical Office Uses

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Chandler Blvd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH23-0070 Chandler Palms Medical Offices ´

^

PAD
Stellar Airpark Estates

PAD
Carrillo Ranch

AG-1

AG-1
PAD

SF-8.5
Pepperwood

PAD

PARK
Desert

Breeze Park

SCHOOL
Kyrene

de la
Brisas PAD

Park Promenade

PAD

PAD

SF-8.5
GlenviewEstates

PAD
I-1

SF-8.5
Pueblo

Alto

PAD
Wild Tree

PAD
Copperfield

Estates

PAD
Townes

at
South

Meadows

PAD
Joshua Village

PA
D



W CHANDLER BL
N 

MC
CL

IN
TO

CK
 D

R

N 
JU

NI
PE

R 
DR

N DESERT BREEZE BL E
N 

DE
SE

RT
 BR

EE
ZE

 BL
 W

N 
LA

VE
EN

 D
R

W LAREDO ST

W BART DR

W GALVESTON ST

W ERIE ST

W TYSON ST

W FLINT ST

W DETROIT ST N 
EN

TE
RP

RI
SE

 P
L

N A
LD

ER
 D

R
W BINNER DR

N KENNETH PL

W TOLEDO ST

N 
79

TH
 S

T
N 

BU
TT

E A
V

W MONTEREY ST

N 
GA

LA
XY

 D
R

W BEECHCRAFT PL

N 
EN

TR
AD

A S
TN 

WI
LL

OW
 ST

N 
DI

AN
E 

CT

N 
JU

NI
PE

R 
DR

W TYSON ST

W ERIE ST

N 
KE

NN
ET

H 
PL

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Mc
Cl

int
oc

k D
r.

Proposed Project Details
500 N. Juniper Dr.
Rezoning to allow for Medical Office Uses

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Chandler Blvd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH23-0070 Chandler Palms Medical Offices ´

^

PAD
Stellar Airpark Estates

PAD
Carrillo Ranch

AG-1

AG-1
PAD

SF-8.5
Pepperwood

PAD

PARK
Desert

Breeze Park

SCHOOL
Kyrene

de la
Brisas PAD

Park Promenade

PAD

PAD

SF-8.5
GlenviewEstates

PAD
I-1

SF-8.5
Pueblo

Alto

PAD
Wild Tree

PAD
Copperfield

Estates

PAD
Townes

at
South

Meadows

PAD
Joshua Village

PA
D



Page 1 of 13 
 

CHANDLER PALMS: 
REZONING 

NARRATIVE AND EXHIBITS 

(Updated 3/27/2024) 

 

i. PARCEL NO.: 301-86-316A (“Parcel”), a diagram of the Parcel is attached hereto as Exhibit A 
and the legal description is attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

 
ii. ADDRESSES: 585 North Juniper Drive, Chandler, AZ 85226 (“Building I”) 

  500 North Juniper Drive, Chandler, AZ 85226 (“Building II”) 
 

iii. BUILDING I: Existing two-story building, 70,573 sq. ft. A depiction of the existing floor plate is 
attached hereto as Exhibit C.  

 
iv. BUILDING II: Existing two-story building, 70,573 sq. ft. A depiction of the existing floor plate is 

attached hereto as Exhibit D. 
 

v. TOTAL SQUARE FOOTAGE OF BUILDING I & II: 141,146 sq. ft., zoning and building code 
compliance sheet, attached hereto as Exhibit E. 

 
vi. EXISTING PARCEL ZONING: PAD zoned, permitting Industrial/Office/Warehouse uses.  

 
vii. REQUEST AND PURPOSE: The request is for an amendment to the PAD to include Medical Office 

uses on the Parcel. No intense general-care medical office uses, such as pediatrics or urgent care 
facilities, are intended for the Parcel. The intended purpose of the rezone is to permit less-intense 
medical office uses on the Parcel, such as those providing narrow or specialized care (i.e., 
dermatology, podiatry, mental health, etc.).  

 
Applicant agrees that approval of this rezone application will be on the condition of not leasing to 
intense general-care medical office uses until such time as the Parcel complies with now-current or 
then-current parking ratio requirements for medical uses, whichever requirement is lesser.  

 
viii. PARCEL TOTAL PARKING SPACES: 936. Total Ratio: 6.64/1,000. ALTA surveys, attached hereto 

as Exhibit F.  
 

ix. LETTER OF AUTHORIZATION, attached hereto as Exhibit G. 
 

 
 



Page 2 of 13 
 

Exhibit A 
 

 
 

  

Total Parking Spaces: 936



Page 3 of 13 
 

Exhibit B 

Legal Description 
 

LOTS 1 & 2 CHANDLER CORPORATE CENTER NORTH MCR 919-49.



Page 4 of 13 
 

Exhibit C 

Building I – 70,573 sq. ft. total 

(First Floor) 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 5 of 13 
 

Exhibit C – cont’d 
 

(Building I – Second Floor) 
 
 



Page 6 of 13 
 

Exhibit D 

Building II – 70,573 sq. ft. total 

(First Floor) 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 7 of 13 
 

Exhibit D – cont’d 
 

(Building II – Second Floor) 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Page 8 of 13 
 

Exhibit E 

Zoning/Building Compliance Sheet  



Page 9 of 13 
 

Exhibit F

 



Page 10 of 13 
 

 

 
 



Page 11 of 13 
 

 

 



Page 12 of 13 
 

 

 
 



Page 13 of 13 
 

Exhibit G 

 







































































































































































ITEM  10 

 

City Council Memorandum      Development Services  Memo No. 24-028
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Andy Bass, Deputy City Manager & Acting Development Services Director
From: Darsy Omer, Associate Planner
Subject: ANX23-0003 Annexation of 13.57 acres SEC of Arizona Ave and Germann

Rd
Introduction and Tentative Adoption of Ordinance No. 5103

Request: Annexation of approximately 13.57 acres located at the southeast corner of
Arizona Avenue and Germann Road

Location: South of the Southeast Corner of Arizona Ave and Germann Rd
Applicant:Matt Krison, Balmer Architectural Group

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 5103 approving
ANX23-0003 Annexation of 13.57 acres located at the southeast corner of Arizona
Ave and Germann Road, as recommended by Planning staff.

Background Data:
Located south of the southeast corner of Arizona Ave and Germann Rd
Zoned Planned Industrial Zoning District (IND-1) and Light Industrial Zoning
District (IND-2) within unincorporated Maricopa County
Approximately 13.57 acres
Upon annexation, the initial City Zoning will be Planned Industrial District (I-1)
An administrative design review for three industrial buildings has been
reviewed and approved (attached). The proposed project combines the area
within this annexation request with adjacent parcels already within the
Chandler city limits.
Annexation public hearing conducted by City Council on May 23, 2024



Surrounding Land Use Data:
North  IND-2 and C-2 uses

(unincorporated Maricopa
County) 

South  PAD for industrial uses

East  Railroad West  Arizona Ave, then RU-43
(unincorporated Maricopa County) 

General Plan and Area Plan Designations:
General Plan Employment
Airpark Area Plan Innovation and Industrial 

Utility Service
There are public water and sewer facilities in the vicinity of the above-referenced
project. The City of Chandler will provide water, wastewater, and reclaimed
services to the subject property. 

Staff Comments
Staff circulated this request among City departments and received no negative
comments relative to the property's annexation.

Attachments
Ordinance No. 5103 
Vicinity Maps 
Approved Design 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 5103 
 

   AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, 
ARIZONA, EXTENDING AND INCREASING THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF 
THE CITY PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF ARIZONA REVISED 
STATUTES TITLE 9, CHAPTER 4, ARTICLE 7, BY ANNEXING THERETO 
TERRITORY COMPRISING APPROXIMATELY 13.57 ACRES, AND 
AMENDING THE ZONING CODE AND MAP ATTACHED THERETO, BY 
ESTABLISHING INITIAL CITY ZONING BY DESIGNATING THE NEWLY 
ANNEXED TERRITORY AS A PLANNED INUSTRIAL DISTRICT (I-1), 
LOCATED SOUTH OF THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF ARIZONA AVENUE 
AND GERMANN ROAD. 

 
WHEREAS, a petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of Chandler signed by the 
property owners of at least one-half of the value of the real and personal property as would be subject 
to taxation by the City in the event of annexation and by more than one-half of the property owners 
within the territory and land hereinafter described as shown by the last assessment of said property, 
asking that the property be annexed to the City of Chandler; and 
 
WHEREAS, the territory proposed for annexation is contiguous to the City of Chandler and not now 
embraced within its limits; and 
 
WHEREAS, a blank petition was filed on April 25, 2024, with the Maricopa County Recorder, the 
30-day waiting period ended on May 25, 2024, a Public Hearing was held on May 23, 2024, after 
proper notice was given, and the petition was circulated thereafter and signed; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to comply with the petition and extend the corporate limits of 
the City to include the proposed territory; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the petition sets forth a true and correct description of all the exterior boundaries of the 
entire area proposed to be annexed by the City and had attached thereto at all times an accurate map 
of the territory proposed to be annexed; and, 
  
WHEREAS, no additions or alterations increasing or decreasing the territory sought to be annexed 
have been made after the petition had been signed by any owner of real and/or personal property in 
the territory; and, 
 
WHEREAS, proper and sufficient certification and proof of the foregoing facts are now on file in the 
Office of the City Clerk, together with the original petition; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City may elect to provide regular fire department services to a newly annexed area 
under A.R.S. § 48-813(A). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, as 
follows: 
 



Ordinance No. 5103 
Page 2 

 
 

 Section 1. That the following described territory is annexed to the City of Chandler and that the 
present corporate limits are extended and increased to include the following described 
territory contiguous to the present City limits: 

 
See Attached Exhibit ‘A’ Annexation Map and Legal Description 

 
Section 2. Pursuant to A.R.S. § 48-813(A), the City will provide fire department services to 

the property depicted in Exhibit A as is generally provided to other residents within 
the city.  The services shall take effect on the first day of July following the date on 
which this annexation becomes final as set forth in Section 6 below, without further 
action by the City Council. 

 
Section 3. The existing zoning of the territory annexed is Planned Industrial Zoning District 

(IND-1) and Light Industrial District (IND-2) in Maricopa County, and the territory 
upon annexation is hereby zoned Planned Industrial District (I-1) within the City of 
Chandler, which provides for densities and uses no greater than those permitted 
within the IND-1 of Maricopa County.  

 
Section 4. The Clerk is hereby instructed to file and record a copy of this Ordinance, together 

with an accurate map of the annexed territory, certified by the Mayor, in the Office 
of the County Recorder of Maricopa County, Arizona. 

 
Section 5. The Development Services Department of the City of Chandler is hereby directed to 

enter such changes and amendments as may be necessary upon the Zoning Map of the 
Zoning Code in compliance with this ordinance. 

 
Section 6. This ordinance shall take effect, and the annexation of the subject property shall 

become final, 30 days after this Ordinance is adopted. 
 

INTRODUCED AND TENTATIVELY APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, 
Arizona, this _____ day of ___________ 2024. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________   __________________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR  
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona this _____ day 
of _____________________, 2024. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________   __________________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 



Ordinance No. 5103 
Page 3 

 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Ordinance No. 5103 was duly passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting held on the 
_____ day of _____________________, 2024, and that a quorum was present thereat. 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       CITY CLERK 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
____________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY      
 
 
Published in the Arizona Republic on: 
  



PAGE 1 OF 1 

Bowman • 1600 N Desert Drive, Suite 210 • Tempe, Arizona 85288 • P: 480.629.8830 

September 22, 2023 
Project # 051343-01-001 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
ANNEXATION BOUNDARY 

THAT PORTION OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 10, TOWNSHIP 2 SOUTH, RANGE 5 EAST OF THE 
GILA AND SALT RIVER BASE AND MERIDIAN, MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 10, FROM WHICH POINT THE WEST QUARTER 
CORNER OF SAID SECTION 10 BEARS SOUTH 00°31’15” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 2645.29 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 00°31’15” EAST, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER, A DISTANCE OF 
1322.65 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER 
OF SAID SECTION 10; 

THENCE NORTH 88°54’42” EAST, ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 10, A DISTANCE OF 33.00 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST 33 
FEET OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER, SAID POINT BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 

THENCE NORTH 00°31'15" WEST, ALONG SAID EAST LINE, A DISTANCE OF 102.51 FEET TO A POINT ON THE 
NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF AN ABANDONED RAILROAD SPUR, AS DESCRIBED IN BOOK 101 OF 
DEEDS, PAGE 256, MARICOPA COUNTY RECORDS, SAID POINT BEING THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENT 
CURVE TO THE LEFT, CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY AND HAVING A RADIUS POINT WHICH BEARS NORTH 
16°22'16" WEST, A RADIAL DISTANCE OF 1879.91 FEET; 

THENCE EASTERLY ALONG SAID ABANDONED RIGHT-OF-WAY AND  
THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 35°22'52", 
AN ARC DISTANCE OF 1160.88 FEET TO A POINT; 

THENCE NORTH 88°54'12" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 371.39 FEET TO THE 
WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE SOUTHERN PACIFIC RAILROAD, 
ACCORDING TO BOOK 189 OF DEEDS, PAGE 363, 
MARICOPA COUNTY RECORDS; 

THENCE SOUTH 00°09'20" EAST, ALONG SAID WESTERLY 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 299.76 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 88°54'12" WEST, ALONG SAID WESTERLY 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 4.42 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 00°17'47" EAST, ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 424.69 FEET 
TO THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 10; 

THENCE SOUTH 88°54'42" WEST, ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE, A DISTANCE OF 1315.72 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING. 

CONTAINING 591,348 SQ.FT. OR 13.5755 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

ThomasA
Typewritten Text
     Exhibit A Ordinance 5103



33' 

NORTHWEST CORNER 

( 

SECTION 10, T2S, R5E 
FOUND BCF 

i 

I 

N88"54'12"E 371.39' 

112 

I�
.....

NORTHWESTERLY R/W OF 
ABANDONED RAILROAD SPUR 

BOOK 101 OF DEEDS, PAGE 256 

·�"'

•"\,"' 

�
'\JS 

�� 
�'?,Cf;

o�\'o 

S88"54'12"W 4.42' 

N16'22'16"W 
RADIAL 

i " 

�Qr::,'!3 
�-.;. 

WEST R/W LINE 
SOUTHERN PACIFIC RAILROAD 

BOOK 189 OF DEEDS, PAGE 363 

N88"54' 42"E 
33.00' 

S88"54' 42"W 1315. 72' 

WEST QUARTER CORNER 
SECTION 10, T2S, R5E 

SOUTH LINE 
NW4 NW4 

\ FOUND BCF 

Lu 
= 

� (0� r-,..en p en
o en
ON
(/) 

Lu 
= 

r-,.. 
'<t

r---

0
(/)

N.T.S. 

!I! EXHIBIT 

B 
1800 N Desert Drive, •210 

� �o ANNEXATION BOUNDARY

ovvrnan 
Tempe. AZ 86288 

_. � � >-8-Y:_D_T�C-HK-: -�Q-C:-�--------< Phone, (480) 828-8830 
!ii ';:3-·· Fax■ (480) 828-8841 

u,1 BCG PROJECT NO: 051343-01 TASK : 001 
C O N 5 U L T I N G www.bowman.com _. CLIENT REF NO: 



Exhibit A

4
A n n e x a t i o n   M a p

Unincorporated Area

Incorporated Area

South of the Southeast Corner of
Arizona Avenue and Germann Road

0 180 360 540 72090
Feet

Proposed Annexation

City of Chandler 12/18/2023

Ar
izo

na
 A

ve
.

2s5esec3

2s5esec10

2s5esec4

2s5esec9

Proposed Annexation

Germann Rd.

Ordinance No. 5103



Exhibit A

4
A n n e x a t i o n   M a p

Unincorporated Area
Incorporated Area

South of the Southeast Corner of
Arizona Avenue and Germann Road

0 180 360 540 72090
Feet

Proposed Annexation

City of Chandler 12/18/2023

Ar
izo

na
 A

ve
.

2s5esec3

2s5esec10

2s5esec4

2s5esec9

Proposed Annexation

Germann Rd.

Ordinance No. 5103



Exhibit A

4
A n n e x a t i o n   M a p

Unincorporated Area
Incorporated Area

South of the Southeast Corner of
Arizona Avenue and Germann Road

0 180 360 540 72090
Feet

Proposed Annexation

City of Chandler 12/18/2023

Ar
izo

na
 A

ve
.

2s5esec3

2s5esec10

2s5esec4

2s5esec9

Proposed Annexation

Germann Rd.

Ordinance No. 5103



 
 

Mailing Address Development Services Department Location 
Mail Stop 105       Planning Division      215 E. Buffalo Street 

PO Box 4008 Telephone (480) -782-3050   Chandler, Arizona 85225 

Chandler, AZ 85244-4008 www.chandleraz.gov 

April 8, 2024 

 

 

RE: PLA24-0057 Chandler Innovation Center  

 South of the SEC of Arizona Avenue & Germann Road 

 APN’s: 303-33-007M / 303-33-013M / 303-33-013N 

    303-33-13P / 303-33-013Q / 303-33-013R 

    303-33-987 / 303-33-988 

 

Matt Krison:  

 

The Administrative Design Review application identified above for (3) three new industrial buildings  

is approved subject to the following conditions:  

 

1. The development shall be in substantial conformance with the exhibits attached herein. 

2. Any signage shall be processed under a separate permit. 

3. Annexation must be processed prior to any Building or Civil permits being issued.  

NOTE: 

THIS ADMINISTRATIVE DESIGN REVIEW APPROVAL COVERS THE CONCEPTUAL ARCHITECTURAL 

BUILDING DESIGN AND CONCEPTUAL SITE LAYOUT FOR THIS PROJECT ONLY. 

  

SUBMITTAL OF DEVELOPMENT PLANS FOR TECHNICAL PLAN REVIEW AND PERMITTING WILL 

RESULT IN ADDITIONAL PLAN REVIEW COMMENTS FROM; BUILDING SAFETY, CIVIL 

ENGINEERING AND SITE DEVELOPMENT THAT ARE BEYOND THE SCOPE OF THE 

ADMINISTRATIVE DESIGN REVIEW PROCESS.  

 

A copy of the approved conceptual exhibits will be kept on file for future reference.   

 

If you have additional questions or concerns, do not hesitate to ask.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Benjamin Cereceres, City Planner 

City of Chandler Planning Division 

Phone: (480) 782-3063 

Email: Benjamin.cereceres@chandleraz.gov  

mailto:Benjamin.cereceres@chandleraz.gov




2425 E CAMELBACK ROAD  SUITE 1150   PHOENIX ARIZONA  85016   T602.954.6718    F602.468.9680 
ARCHITECTURE    PLANNING    INTERIORS                      COMMERCIAL   HOSPITALITY   INDUSTRIAL 

 

 

 

 

 

 
1-9-2024 

 

CHANDLER INNOVATION CENTER 
 

A. Introduction 
 

i. Request 
 
  Chandler Innovation Center is located on the east side of Arizona Avenue  

between Germann and Ryan. The land is currently partly on a County Island and 
partly on Industrial zoned land in the City of Chandler.  An Annexation request is 
simultaneously being submitted with this Application and I-1 zoning within the 
Airport Overlay District will be requested. 
 
Applicant is requesting a hard zoning of the subject property to I-1 zoning and 
intends to meet the Chandler Zoning standards to develop 3 Flex, Once Story 
Speculative Buildings on the vacant lots. 

 
ii. Site Context 

 
 The site is an irregular shaped property bounded on the north by an 
abandoned rail spur curve, small industrial buildings and vacant land. The vacant 
land to the south  is currently in process of site development approvals for a similar 
use.  Arizona Ave is on the west border and a rail track on the east. 
 
 

 
iii. Chandler Airpark Overlay Area Plan 

 
 This site is an Industrial zoned county Island which lies in the 
southwestern portion of the Chandler Airpark Overlay Area Plan and is 
designated as a Commercial / Office / Business Park zone as referenced 
on the Final Land Use Plan.   

 
The request is consistent with the Chandler Airpark Overlay Area Plan in 
that it proposes a Innovation based mix of business, light industrial, 
warehousing, back office and limited showroom retail uses, which will 
serve as a transition area between the adjacent land uses.   

 
The development may serve the needs of a single user for each building 
on the site, or multi-tenant users in one or all building(s), or any 
combination thereof.  All scenarios address the need to be flexible based 
on market conditions and support employment opportunities that are 
consistent with the City’s plan for the airpark area.  
 
 
 

 
 



2425 E CAMELBACK ROAD  SUITE 1150   PHOENIX ARIZONA  85016   T602.954.6718    F602.468.9680 
ARCHITECTURE    PLANNING    INTERIORS                      COMMERCIAL   HOSPITALITY   INDUSTRIAL 

 

 

 

 

 

B. Proposed Land Uses 
 

All uses permitted under the I-1 District on the “Table of Permitted Uses for 
Nonresidential Districts” in chapter 35 of the City of Chandler Code of Ordinances, 
which are designated by an “X” are allowed within the Development. 
 
The applicant is requesting a hard zoning of (I-1) and intends to meet the Chandler 
Airpark Area Plan standards. 

 
C. Project Description 

 
The site consists of three concrete tilt buildings which fronts face east and west, 
and a smaller flex building faces west on Arizona Ave.  A central, screened truck 
yard is shared by building 2 and 3. 

 
The building #1 fronting Arizona Avenue is 39,387 square feet, building #2 at the 
middle of the site is 99,222 square feet, and building #3 at the east side of the site 
is 189,167 square feet; for a total of 327,776 +- square feet.  The approximate site 
area is 21.38 acres (net), which results in a lot coverage of 35.26%. 

 
Parking is located on the perimeter of the building with a total of 623 parking 
spaces, which exceeds base zoning requirements.  Accessible parking spaces are 
scattered throughout the site, and each building has its own bicycle parking area.  
Two electric vehicle (EV) charging spaces are provided on site with power stubs 
for an additional 4 charging spaces.  
 

D. Commercial Design Standards 
 

The following sections outline the development standards for Chandler Innovation 
Center 

 
i.     Development Standards 
 

a. Building Height:  Maximum of 45’; two stories. 
Some Architectural elements may project 
higher to create skyline character 
 

b. Front Yard (west):  50’ from the right of way line. 
 
c. Side Yard (south):  10’ from the property line. 

 
d. Side Yard (north):  30’ from the property line. 
 
e. Rear Yard (east):  10’ from the rear property line. 
 
f. Intensity of Lot Use:  40% of the lot area maximum. 

 
g. Building separation:  Per City of Chandler Building Code. 

 
h. Drive aisles:  24’ minimum-26’ at Fire Lanes 

 
i. Required Parking: Minimum parking shall be 2/1000 as spec. 
j. Accessible Parking Spaces: Quantity to be equivalent to the current  

    minimum ADA Accessibility Guidelines. 
 

k. Parking Space Size 
 Standard Space: 9’ x 19’ (16.5’ with 2.5’ overhang),   



2425 E CAMELBACK ROAD  SUITE 1150   PHOENIX ARIZONA  85016   T602.954.6718    F602.468.9680 
ARCHITECTURE    PLANNING    INTERIORS                      COMMERCIAL   HOSPITALITY   INDUSTRIAL 

 

 

 

 

 

j. Accessible Parking Spaces: Quantity to be equivalent to the current  
    minimum ADA Accessibility Guidelines. 

 
k. Parking Space Size 
 Standard Space: 9’ x 19’ (16.5’ with 2.5’ overhang),   
 Accessible Space: 11’ x 19’ (16.5’ with 2.5’ overhang) with  
    shared 5’ access aisle 
 
l. Bicycle Parking:  4 spaces per building 
 

 
 
 Landscape Design 

 
The development will provide a landscape palette that is sensitive to the 
existing environment through the use of regionally appropriate, low water 
use plant materials.   

 
 Building Design and Materials 

 
Architectural façade elements such as glass entries with horizontal metal 
accents, metal soffit faces above glass and an articulated roof line. Walls 
will be concrete tilt panel construction with architectural scoring and 
contrasting colors 

 
Parking screen walls are made of single score concrete  masonry units  

 
 

   Color Palette 
 

Four complementary paint colors are planned for the development.  All of 
the buildings, and the parking screening will share the same color and 
material palette to unify the design theme on site.   

 
a. Glass & Frame 

    Viracon – 1” insulated glass and matching spandrel glass, or equal 
    Clear anodized aluminum frame, 2” x 4.5” outside glazed  

  
 

Retention 
 

The initial intent of the development is to provide a combination of surface 
retention and drywells for the project.  This is accomplished through a 
combination of retained water on asphalt paving areas and retention 
basins.  Multiple drywells will be located in the base of the retention basins 
and in asphalt areas.  Due to the flood plain impact on the site, retention 
will be in excess of normal quantities.    

  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2425 E CAMELBACK ROAD  SUITE 1150   PHOENIX ARIZONA  85016   T602.954.6718    F602.468.9680 
ARCHITECTURE    PLANNING    INTERIORS                      COMMERCIAL   HOSPITALITY   INDUSTRIAL 

 

 

 

 

 

Traffic & Circulation 
 

The main traffic flow will be from Arizona Avenue, primarily from the north. 
There is a shared drive on  the south that will be reconfigured to match the 
current submittal to enhance traffic flow.  A northern drive easement is 
provided to allow secondary emergency access / exit thru the adjacent 
property (under different ownership) to Arizona Avenue. This access will 
be reworked to City standards for emergency vehicle access. 

   
Pedestrian access to the site is provided from Arizona Ave.  All buildings 
will be interconnected. 

 
 

E. Development Schedule 
 
  All buildings and all onsite and offsite improvements are anticipated to be built  
  simultaneously.  Under current market conditions, the project is anticipated to be  
  started within eighteen months of City approvals of the ADR applications. 
 
 

F. Signage 
 

Signage shall be per a Master Signage Program and City of Chandler Standards, 
under separate request. 
 
 

G. Analysis of Probable Impact of the proposed rezoning to the cost of 
constructing housing. 

 
We anticipate minimal to no impact on the average cost to construct housing for 
sale or rent within the zoning district because home construction in the area 
typically utilizes different construction materials & methods of construction. 
 
This estimate is based on typical industry standards that are well known and 
established in this area. 
 
There are no less costly or restrictive alternative methods available, we have  
proposed the most appropriate materials. 
 
 
 



























ITEM  11 

City Council Memorandum      Development Services  Memo No. 24-026
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua Wright, City Manager

Andy Bass, Deputy City Manager and Acting Development Services Director
From: Benjamin Cereceres, Planner
Subject: PLT23-0039 Chandler Innovation Center
Request: Preliminary Plat Approval
Location: located 1/4 mile south of the southeast corner of Arizona Avenue and

Germann Road
Applicant: Jeffrey Rybarczyk, Bowman Consulting

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve Preliminary Plat PLT23-0039 Chandler Innovation
Center, subject to conditions as recommended by the Planning and Zoning
Commission.

Background Data:
Site is approximately 23.45 acres
The northern portion of the plat is located within unincorporated Maricopa
County and is zoned IND-1 (Planned Industrial).
An annexation is being processed to annex the northern section of the land
and provide initial City zoning of I-1 (Planned Industrial District), which is
consistent with the current zoning of the southern portion of the land that is
currently within the City of Chandler's jurisdiction.
City staff has reviewed and processed an Administrative Design Review
application for the development of three industrial buildings totaling 327,776
square feet. The proposed development complies with all Zoning Code
standards.
The plat creates the lots and the tracts, establishes the necessary
easements, and dedicates the required right-of-way.



Planning and Zoning Commission Vote Report
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting of May 15, 2024
Motion to Approve

In Favor: 5     Opposed: 0     Absent: 1 (Lopez) 

Recommended Conditions of Approval
1.    Approval by the City Engineer and Planning Administrator with regard to the
details of all submittals required by code or condition.

Attachments
Vicinity Maps 
Preliminary Plat 



S A
RI

ZO
NA

 AV

E RYAN RD

E GERMANN RD

S H
AM

ILT
ON

 ST

E CANARY WY

W RYAN RD

E PIONEER PW

W MACAW DR

W GERMANN RD

W ORIOLE WY

S A
NV

IL 
DR

W RAVEN DR

S PIONEER PW

W GOLDFINCH WY

W CANARY WY

W CARDINAL WY

S S
UN

LA
ND

 D
R

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Ar
izo

na
 A

ve
.

Project Details
Zoning Case-PLA24-0057 Chandler Innovation Center
23.45 Acres (Net)
3 Industrial Lots

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLT23-0039 Chandler Innovation Center (Pre-Plat) ´

^

Germann Rd.



S A
RI

ZO
NA

 AV

E RYAN RD

E GERMANN RD

S H
AM

ILT
ON

 ST

E CANARY WY

W RYAN RD

E PIONEER PW

W MACAW DR

W GERMANN RD

W ORIOLE WY

S A
NV

IL 
DR

W RAVEN DR

S PIONEER PW

W GOLDFINCH WY

W CANARY WY

W CARDINAL WY

S S
UN

LA
ND

 D
R

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Ar
izo

na
 A

ve
.

Project Details
Zoning Case-PLA24-0057 Chandler Innovation Center
23.45 Acres (Net)
3 Industrial Lots

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLT23-0039 Chandler Innovation Center (Pre-Plat) ´

^

Germann Rd.



Vegetation

Ground Obscured

Vegetation

Ground Obscured

BIN

BIN

BIN

BIN

BIN

BIN

BIN

BIN

BIN

BIN

BIN

TRANS.

S.E.S.

BUILDING '1'

LOADING

A
R

IZ
O

N
A

 A
V

E
N

U
E

Site

VICINITY MAP

PRELIMINARY PLAT
CHANDLER INNOVATION CENTER

CHANDLER, ARIZONA
LOCATED IN THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 10, TOWNSHIP 2 SOUTH, RANGE 5 EAST

OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER BASE AND MERIDIAN, MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA

ARCHITECTS
BALMER ARCHITECTURAL GROUP INC.
2425 E CAMELBACK RD STE. 775
PHOENIX, ARIZONA 85016
PH: 602.954.6718
CONTACT: WESLEY BALMER
EMAIL: WBALMER@BAG-INC.COM

BASIS OF BEARING

THE BASIS OF BEARING IS SOUTH 00°31'15" EAST ALONG
THE WEST LINE OF SECTION 10, TOWNSHIP 2 SOUTH,
RANGE 5 EAST OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN
ACCORDING TO BOOK 589 OF SURVEYS, PAGE 48
MARICOPA COUNTY RECORDS.

PROJECT DATA:

ADDRESS: SOUTH OF THE SEC OF ARIZONA &
GERMANN ROAD

APN: 303-33-007M
303-33-013M
303-33-013N
303-33-013P
303-33-013Q
303-33-013R
303-33-987 
303-33-988

SITE AREA (GROSS): 1,021,448  SF / 23.45 AC
SITE AREA (NET); 1,021,448  SF / 23.45 AC
EXISTING ZONING: IND-1, IND-2 & I-1
PROPOSED ZONING: I-1
TOTAL LOTS: 3

DEVELOPER
CHANDLER INNOVATION PARK, LLC
7800 EAST UNION AVENUE
SUITE 800
DENVER, COLORADO  80237
PH: 720.528.3344
CONTACT: TONY KILL
EMAIL: TKILL@DPCCOMPANIES.COM

FLOOD ZONE CERTIFICATION

FLOOD INSURANCE MAP NUMBER 04013C2743M EFFECTIVE ON 11/04/2015

ZONE AH, FLOOD DEPTHS OF 1 TO 3 FEET (USUALLY AREAS OF PONDING).

BASE FLOOD ELEVATION DETERMINED, AND ZONE "X", AREAS OF 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FOR

FLOOD; AREAS OF 1% ANNUAL CHANCE OF FLOOD WITH AVERAGE DEPTHS OF LESS THAN 1

FOOT OR WITH DRAINAGE AREAS LESS THAN 1 SQUARE MILE, AND AREAS PROTECTED BY

LEVEES FROM 1% ANNUAL CHANCE OF FLOOD. FLOOD ZONE DESIGNATION PROVIDED BY

THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY.

NOTES:

1. THE IMPROVEMENTS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT WILL NOT BE FULLY APPROVED BY THE CITY

AND THE CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY OF ACCEPTANCE WILL NOT BE ISSUED UNTIL THE

OVERHEAD UTILITY LINE UNDERGROUNDING REQUIREMENT HAS BEEN SATISFIED.

2. THE IMPROVEMENTS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT WILL NOT BE FULLY APPROVED BY THE CITY

AND THE CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY OF ACCEPTANCE WILL NOT BE ISSUED UNTIL THE

IRRIGATION FACILITY UNDERGROUNDING REQUIREMENT HAS BEEN SATISFIED.

3. THE FINAL PLAT FOR THIS SUBDIVISION WILL NOT BE APPROVED OR RECORDED UNTIL A

RECLAIMED WATER USE AGREEMENT IS EXECUTED BY THE DEVELOPER AND APPROVED BY

THE CITY.

4. VISIBILITY EASEMENTS RESTRICTIONS: ANY OBJECT, WALL, STRUCTURE, MOUND OR

LANDSCAPING (MATURE), OVER 24" IN HEIGHT IS NOT ALLOWED WITH THE EASEMENT

EXCEPT TREES TRIMMED TO NOT LESS THAN 6' ABOVE GROUND.  TREES SHALL BE SPACED

NOT LESS THAN 8' APART.

5. THIS SUBDIVISION IS WITHIN CHANDLER MUNICIPAL AIRPORT IMPACT OVERLAY DISTRICT.  A

AVIATION OR AVIGATION EASEMENT SHALL BE PROVIDED AT THE TIME OF FINAL PLATTING.

UTILITIES SERVICES

WATER: CITY OF CHANDLER
SEWER: CITY OF CHANDLER
ELECTRIC: SALT RIVER PROJECT
TELEPHONE: CENTURY LINK
CABLE: COX COMMUNICATIONS
GAS: SOUTHWEST GAS
RECLAIMED WATER: CITY OF CHANDLER
IRRIGATION: ROOSEVELT WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

RETENTION CALCULATIONS

VOLUME REQUIRED = 1.1 x D x A x C

D = 2.20 INCHES (100 YR - 2HR PRECIPITATION DEPTH)

A = AREA (SQUARE FEET)

C = 0.90

KEY MAP
1"=200'

2

DRAINAGE
AREA

AREA
SF

VOLUME
REQ
CF

VOLUME
PROVIDED
BASINS(CF)

862,454 156,535

1 118,908 21,581

VOLUME
PROVIDED
PIPES(CF)

VOLUME
PROVIDED
TOTAL(CF)

196,462

21,931

-

-

196,462

21,931

QUEEN CREEK ROAD

S
. M

C
 Q

U
E

E
N

 R
O

A
D

E. GERMANN RD.

S
. A

R
IZ

O
N

A
 A

V
E

E. RYAN ROAD

S
. H

A
M

IL
T

O
N

S
T

P
IO

N
E

E
R

P
K

W
Y

B
R
Z
P
D
Q
�
&
R
Q
V
X
O
W
L
Q
J
�
*
U
R
X
S
�
/
W
G

�
�
�
�
�
N
�
�
'
H
V
H
U
W
�
'
U
L
Y
H
�
�
6
W
H
�
�
�
�

7
H
P
S
H
�
�
$
U
L
]
R
Q
D
�
�
�
�
�
�

F
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
B
R
Z
P
D
Q
�
&
R
Q
V
X
O
W
L
Q
J
�
*
U
R
X
S
�
/
W
G

3
K
R
Q
H
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Z
Z
Z
�
E
R
Z
P
D
Q
�
F
R
P

3
5
(
/
I
0
I
N
$
5
<
�
3
/
$
7

&
+
$
N
'
/
(
5
�
I
N
N
2
9
$
7
I
2
N
�
&
(
N
7
(
5

&
+
$
N
'
/
(
5
�
�
$
5
I
=
2
N
$

0
$
5
I
&
2
3
$
�
&
2
8
N
7
<

&�2�&��/2*�N2��3/7��������

-65
-0B

-65

��� ���


�������������

���������

C1.0
� 2

BENCHMARK

SECTION 9, T2S, R5E FOUND. 3" BRASS CAP IN

CONCRETE 100' NORTH, 70' WEST OF INTERSECTION OF

ARIZONA AVE AND QUEEN CREEK ROAD; ON ROADSIDE

BY SRP STRUCTURE CITY OF CHANDLER CONTROL

NETWORK BM 43A

ELEVATION: 1215.57' NAVD 88

NOTES:

RETENTION VOLUME  PROVIDED IS THE GREATER OF THE 100 YEAR 2 HOUR STORM

OR THE EXISTING VOLUME OF THE STORAGE LOCATED IN FLOOD ZONE AH.  CLOMR/

LOMR TO BE SUBMITTED FOR REVISION TO THE FLOOD PLAIN.

C
.O

.C
. L

O
G

 N
O

. P
LT

 2
3-

00
39

C
.O

.C
. L

O
G

 N
O

. P
LT

 2
3-

00
39

ENGINEER
BOWMAN CONSULTING
1600 N DESERT DRIVE
SUITE 210
TEMPE, ARIZONA 85288
PH: 480.629.8830
CONTACT: JEFFREY S. RYBARCZYK
E-MAIL: JRYBARCZYK@BOWMAN.COM



A
R

IZ
O

N
A

 A
V

E
N

U
E

LOT 3

LOT 1

LOT 2

LINE DATA

B
o

w
m

a
n

 
C

o
n

s
u

l
t
i
n

g
 
G

r
o

u
p

 
L

t
d

1
6

0
0

 
N

.
 
D

e
s
e

r
t
 
D

r
i
v
e

 
 
S

t
e

 
2

1
0

T
e

m
p

e
,
 
A

r
i
z
o

n
a

 
8

5
2

8
8

c
 
 
 
2

0
2

1
 
B

o
w

m
a

n
 
C

o
n

s
u

l
t
i
n

g
 
G

r
o

u
p

 
L

t
d

P
h

o
n

e
:
 
(
4

8
0

)
 
6

2
9

-
8

8
3

0

w
w

w
.
b

o
w

m
a

n
.
c
o

m

P
R

E
L
I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
P

L
A

T

C
H

A
N

D
L
E

R
 
I
N

N
O

V
A

T
I
O

N
 
C

E
N

T
E

R

C
H

A
N

D
L

E
R

,
 
A

R
I
Z

O
N

A
M

A
R

I
C

O
P

A
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y

COC LOG# CIV------

JMB
JMB

JSR

1" = 60'

051343-01-001

2.23.2024

C1.1
2 2



ITEM  12 

City Council Memorandum      Development Services  Memo No. 24-029
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Andy Bass, Deputy City Manager & Acting Development Services Director
From: Darsy Omer, Associate Planner
Subject: PLH24-0004 The Forum
Request: Use Permit time extension for a Series 6 Bar license and an Entertainment

Use Permit for live music inside and on an outdoor patio  

Location: 2301 South Stearman Drive, generally located south of the southwest
corner of Gilbert and Germann roads  

Applicant:Robert Leavitt, Arizona Liquor Industry Consultants  

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve Use Permit and Entertainment Use Permit,
PLH24-0004 The Forum, subject to the conditions recommended by Planning and
Zoning Commission.

Background Data:
Zoned Planned Area Development (PAD) for commercial and retail uses.
Zoning code requires Use Permit approval for any bar license.
Zoning code requires Entertainment Use Permit approval for any live
entertainment or speakers provided outdoors and located 1,320 feet or less
from a residentially zoned property.
The closest residential property is approximately 900 feet to the east, across
Gilbert Road.
Liquor Use Permits (forerunner to Entertainment Use Permit) approved in
2017 and 2022 for a Series 6 bar license and live music.

Surrounding Land Use Data:



North Charter School (Great Hearts) South Daycare (Kids Incorporated
Learning Center)

East Vacant parcel zoned PAD for a
medical facility

West Industrial (Aero Zone)

Proposed Development:
Size of Business 20,214 sq ft
Size of Patio 3,361 sq ft
Seating and
Serving

221 persons

Hours of Business
Operation

Monday - Wednesday: 8 am - 9:30 pm
Thursday: 8 am - 10 pm
Friday: 8 am - 12 am
Saturday: 4 pm- 12 am
Sunday: 2 pm - 9 pm

Type of Live
Entertainment

Popular, Blues and Country Western bands (but not limited
to these genres)
Disc Jockeys (DJs)
New outdoor stage
Played through indoor and patio speakers

Hours of Live
Entertainment

Indoors:
Monday - Thursday: 8 am - 9:30 pm
Friday - Saturday: 8 am - 12 am
Sunday: 2 pm - 9 pm
Applicant requested in 2021 to extend indoor live
entertainment to 12:00 a.m., seven (7) days per week, as
needed for third-party events.

Outdoor Patio (recommendation to limit hours of live music
and entertainment):
Amplified: 10 am to 9 pm Sunday through Thursday and 10
am to 11 pm Friday and Saturday
Non-amplified: 8 am to 10 pm Sunday through Thursday and
8 am to 11 pm Friday and Saturday 

Additional
Entertainment

10 TVs on patio, pool table, 8 outdoor speakers, live musical
entertainment, disc jockeys and dancing inside and outside

Review and Recommendation:
Per Zoning Code section 35-305(4), an Entertainment Use Permit is required



Per Zoning Code section 35-305(4), an Entertainment Use Permit is required
when alcoholic beverages are sold or served; there is entertainment activity
provided outdoors with the property being located 1,320 ft. or less from a
residentially zoned property; and/or if there is entertainment provided indoors with
the property being located 600 feet or less from a residentially zoned property.
The distance is measured from the closest exterior wall or fence of any indoor or
outdoor space occupied by the subject establishment to the closest property line
of a residentially zoned property. The nearest single-family residential
development to this project is located approximately 900 feet to the east, across
Gilbert Road.

A Use Permit is also required for a Series 6 liquor license for bars to operate
within a commercially zoned district. The Forum currently operates with a Series 6
liquor license, and in 2017 and 2022 a Liquor Use Permit was approved for a
Series 6 bar license along with limited live entertainment. A time stipulation of two
years was provided upon approval.

In 2022, The Forum proposed to expand its indoor and outdoor live entertainment
including bands, DJs, and additional outdoor speakers. Business operations of
The Forum allow events to occur after regular business hours. The applicant at
that time requested the indoor live entertainment to extend until 12 am seven days
per week. To be consistent with approved Entertainment Use Permits for
establishments located in proximity to residential developments, staff
recommends all live entertainment occurring within the outdoor patio, including
dancing, speakers, and bands, conclude by 10:00 pm, Sunday through Thursday,
and by 11:00 pm on Friday and Saturday. This proposed stipulation was
presented to the applicant, who has agreed to limiting hours of live entertainment
on the outdoor patio.

In 2022, the Planning and Zoning Commission stipulated the hours of live
entertainment on the patio be modified to address the start time of amplified and
non-amplified music. Condition No. 10 was modified to address their concerns as
follows: "Amplified live music and entertainment on the patio may occur from 10
a.m. to 10 p.m. Sunday through Thursday and from 10 a.m. to 11 p.m. Friday and
Saturday. Non-amplified live music and entertainment on the patio may occur from
8 a.m. to 10 p.m. Sunday through Thursday and from 8 a.m. to 11 p.m. Friday and
Saturday."

The applicant is not proposing any changes to the 2022 conditions of approval.
Additionally, the Use Permit does not override any state liquor licensing
requirements and the applicant must comply with all State regulations that pertain
to the liquor license.



After receiving opposition letters, staff contacted the applicant, who agreed to
modify condition #10, limiting the hours of operation of amplified live music and
entertainment on the outdoor patio from Sunday-Thursday to 9pm instead of 10pm.

Planning staff has reviewed the request and finds it consistent with the General
Plan and applicable zoning.  Live entertainment is a compatible land use with the
surrounding commercial development and the residential development located to
the east with the proposed stipulations. Planning and Zoning Commission
recommends approval.

Public / Neighborhood Notification
This request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the
Chandler Zoning Code.
A neighborhood meeting sign was posted on the site and on social media via
NextDoor.
A neighborhood meeting was held on April 10, 2024; only the applicant and
staff attended the meeting.
Planning staff have received three (3) emails from residents: two (2) from the
same household and another (1) resident representing two different
homes on the east side of Gilbert Road. In response to the concerns, the
applicant agreed to reduce the outdoor amplified live music from 10 pm to 9
pm, Sunday-Thursday.
As of the writing of this memo, Planning staff aware of three (3) people in
opposition to the request.

Planning and Zoning Commission Vote Report
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, May 15, 2024
Motion to Approve

In Favor: 5     Opposed: 0     Absent: 1 (Lopez)

Recommended Conditions of Approval
Planning staff finds the request is in compliance with the General Plan and
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends City Council approve the Use
Permit/ Entertainment Use Permit, subject to the following conditions: 

Expansion or modification beyond the approved exhibits (Site Plan, Floor Plan
and Narrative) shall void the Use Permit and require a new Use Permit
application and approval.

1.

The Use Permit is non-transferable to any other location.2.



This Use Permit approval is solely for a Series 6 Bar license.3.
Expansion or modification beyond the approved exhibits (Site Plan, Floor Plan
and Narrative) shall void the Entertainment Use Permit and require a new
Entertainment Use Permit application and approval.

4.

The Entertainment Use Permit is non-transferable to any other location.5.
The site shall be maintained in a clean and orderly manner.6.
No noise shall be emitted from external speakers or live entertainment in
such a manner that exceeds the general level of noise by uses outside the
premises of the business and disturbs adjacent businesses and residential
areas.

7.

Music shall be controlled so as to not unreasonably disturb area residents and
shall not exceed the ambient noise level as measured at the commercial
property line.

8.

The establishment shall provide a contact phone number for a responsible
person (i.e. bar owner and/or manager) to any interested neighbors or
property owners to resolve complaints quickly and directly.

9.

Amplified live music and entertainment on the patio may occur from 10 a.m.
to 9 p.m. Sunday through Thursday and from 10 a.m. to 11 p.m. Friday and
Saturday. Non-amplified live music and entertainment on the patio may occur
from 8 a.m. to 10 p.m. Sunday through Thursday and from 8 a.m. to 11 p.m.
Friday and Saturday.

10.

The Entertainment Use Permit shall remain in effect from the date of Council
approval. 

11.

The Use Permit does not override any State liquor licensing requirements.
The applicant must comply with all regulations that pertain to the liquor
license.

12.

Attachments
Vicinity Maps 
Exhibits 
Letters of Concern 



S G
ILB

ER
T R

D

E GERMANN RD

E INSIGHT WY

S S
TE

AR
MA

N 
DR

E RYAN RD

S D
OU

GL
AS

 D
R

E LARK DR

E CESSNA DR

E KINGBIRD PL

S D
RA

GO
ON

 D
R E SPARROW PL

E BLUEBIRD PL

E ORIOLE WY

S R
IN

CO
N 

DR

S F
OU

R 
PE

AK
S 

WY

E GERMANN RD

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Gi
lbe

rt 
Rd

.

Proposed Project Details

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Germann Rd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH24-0004 The Forum ´

^

PAD

PAD
Peterson Farms

PAD

Town
of

Gilbert

PAD

PAD

AP-1

PAD
Paseo Trail

PAD

Ano-
2 6

0ld
n

Nois
e C

on
tou

r

Ano-1 55ldn

Noise Contour

2301 S. Stearman Dr.
Request Use Permit time extension for a
Series 6 bar license and Entertainment Use
Permit for live music inside and on an outdoor patio



S G
ILB

ER
T R

D

E GERMANN RD

E INSIGHT WY

S S
TE

AR
MA

N 
DR

E RYAN RD

S D
OU

GL
AS

 D
R

E LARK DR

E CESSNA DR

E KINGBIRD PL

S D
RA

GO
ON

 D
R E SPARROW PL

E BLUEBIRD PL

E ORIOLE WY

S R
IN

CO
N 

DR

S F
OU

R 
PE

AK
S 

WY

E GERMANN RD

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Gi
lbe

rt 
Rd

.

Proposed Project Details

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Germann Rd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH24-0004 The Forum ´

^

PAD

PAD
Peterson Farms

PAD

Town
of

Gilbert

PAD

PAD

AP-1

PAD
Paseo Trail

PAD

Ano-
2 6

0ld
n

Nois
e C

on
tou

r

Ano-1 55ldn

Noise Contour

2301 S. Stearman Dr.
Request Use Permit time extension for a
Series 6 bar license and Entertainment Use
Permit for live music inside and on an outdoor patio



 

PLH24-0004 

The Forum 
2301 S Stearman Drive, 

generally located south of 

the southwest corner of 

Gilbert Rd and Germann 

Rd. 

  



Table of Contents: 

1.  Narrative 

2. Site Plan 

3. Aerial View 

4. Existing Site 



March 12, 2024 
 
 
City of Chandler 
Planning Department 
Attn: Ms. Darsy Omner, Associate City Planner 
175 South Arizona Avenue 
Chandler, Arizona 85225 
 
Re: The Forum 
2301 South Stearman Drive 
Chandler Arizona 85386 Maricopa County Assessor Parcel: 303-31-381 
 Legal Description: VERSANTE AT CHANDLER AIRPARK LOT 2 REPLAT MCR 
1330-22 
Chandler Case: PLH24-0004 
 
Ms. Darsy Omer: 
 
Our firm is the applicant on behalf of The Forum (as referenced above) seeking 
renewal approval of the existing Chandler Entertainment Use Permit. The 
applicant holds a valid Arizona Liquor License Series 6 for a Bar (ADLLC 
06070292).   
 
The premises total three thousand three hundred eighty-one (3,361) square 
feet, with two thousand one hundred eight-one (2,181) square feet of interior 
space and one thousand one hundred eighty (1,180) square feet for the 
attached outdoor patio.  The business has a seating capacity of two hundred 
twenty-one (221) persons, with one hundred forty-six (146) persons designated 
for the interior space and seventy-five (75) persons designated for the attached 
outdoor patio area.  The attached outdoor patio has eight (8) entrances/exits 
and is in full compliance with ARS Title IV for an attached outdoor patio. 
 
The applicant’s licensed serving area includes both the interior space and the 
attached outdoor patio.  The applicant strictly enforces the policy of NO 
SMOKING anywhere on their premises, including the attached outdoor patio. 
 
The applicant employs ten (10) people, with five (5) people full-time and five (5) 
people part-time. 
 

 

                       

ARIZONA LIQUOR 

INDUSTRY CONSULTANTS 

P.O. Box 2502  

Chandler, Arizona 85244 

(480) 730-2675   Phone (480) 730-2676   Fax 



⚫  Page 2  March 19, 2024 

The business will continue its existing approved hours of operation between 
0800 – 1700 hours Monday through Friday and 0800-1500 hours on Saturday.  
The business is CLOSED on Sunday. 
 - The business has ten (10) wall mounted televisions throughout the premises. 
  - An indoor pool table within the existing licensed area  
-  Eight (8) five ½ (5 ½) inch outdoor directional speakers on the attached 
outdoor patio with all sound directed inward to minimize any ambient sound 
leaving the premises.  
-  Live musical entertainment both inside and outside which will be played 
through interior and patio speakers. 
-  Musical entertainment will be provided Thursday, Friday, and Saturday 
between 8:00 AM until 2:00 PM  
-    The musical entertainment will include but not be limited to Popular, Blues 
and Country/Western 
- Disc Jockeys (“DJ’s) both inside and outside with dancing inside and 
outside. 
 
 The business will not add, change, or remove the existing building or 
monument signage.  The business is nine hundred (nine hundred) horizontal 
feet from any surrounding residential area or religious organization. 
 
The applicant has made no changes of any type to the premises as described 
and approved in the initial Entertain Use Permit.  
 
The Chandler Police Department has received no complaints of any type 
arising from the operation of The Forum during their existence.  
 
The property at 2301 South Stearman Drive, Phoenix, Arizona 85286 is wholly 
owned by Stearman Drive, LLC, of which the principal(s) of The Forum is/are 
the sole Manager and Member of said limited liability company. As such, no 
third (third) party permission is required for the Use Permit applied for herein.  
 
The granting of this Entertainment Use Permit renewal will not cause any 
significant vehicular or pedestrian traffic in adjacent areas. The surrounding 
area contains other restaurants and stores, therefore, will not cause any 
additional nuisances such as odor, dust, gas, vibration, smoke, heat, or glare. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Jeffrey Craig Miller 



08-12-2021



AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH 

TABLE OF CONTENTS  PHX210508 

© 2021 COLLIERS INTERNATIONAL VALUATION & ADVISORY SERVICES  3 

 

 

COMPARABLE KEY



SUBJECT PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPHS 

 PHX210508 

© 2021 COLLIERS INTERNATIONAL VALUATION & ADVISORY SERVICES  4 

 
EXTERIOR PROFILE 

 

 
EXTERIOR PROFILE 

 

 
EXTERIOR PROFILE 

 

 
EXTERIOR PROFILE 

 

 
EXTERIOR PROFILE 

 

 
EXTERIOR PROFILE 

 



1

Darsy Omer

From: Angie Halfmann <angiep5mann@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, May 14, 2024 7:05 AM
To: Darsy Omer
Subject: the forum

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Darsy, 
 
I am completely opposed to the live music at the Forum.  Inside or outside.  I live in Paseo Trails community 2nd phase, 
Promontory addiƟon.  We can hear the music in the front bedrooms. The Forum is walking distance to our residenƟal 
homes (aprox 1/2 mile).   
 
Angela Halfmann 
2667 S. Santa Rita Way. 
Chandler 
 
 
 
 
CAUTION: This Email is from an EXTERNAL source. Ensure you trust this sender before clicking on any links or 
aƩachments. 
 
 
 



1

Darsy Omer

From: Deb Ruiz <deb.ruiz.jm@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, May 14, 2024 9:48 AM
To: Darsy Omer
Subject: Comments for public hearing PLH24-0004 The Forum

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Good morning Darsy, 
   I am unable to attend the upcoming Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council Meeting, but would like my 
comments to be included in the meetings for PLH24-0004 The Forum.  
 
I am a Chandler Resident with 3 children.  Our home is East of Gilbert Road and south of Ryan Road.  Please do not grant 
the Series 6 Bar/the Forum a time extension license for an Entertainment Use permit for live music on their outside 
patio.  The music volume is exorbitant and can be heard inside our homes in our childrens' bedrooms.  This is extremely 
disruptive to healthy sleep habits both during the week for school but also on the weekends for their participation in 
sports and activities in the early mornings.  If possible to grant the permit for live music inside their establishment only, I 
would have no issue, but I beg of you not to allow this on the patio as it is extremely disruptive to the families that live in 
the surrounding neighborhoods. Thank you 
 
Please verify that you have received this email and my comments will be included in the public hearings.  
 
Have a great day.  
Thank you, 
Deb 
 
 

CAUTION: This Email is from an EXTERNAL source. Ensure you trust this sender before clicking on any links or 
attachments. 

 
  
 



1

Darsy Omer

From: R. Ruiz <ro.ruiz.jr@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, May 14, 2024 11:12 AM
To: Darsy Omer
Subject: The Forum - Permit for Live Music Indoor/Outdoor

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Hi, 
 
I hope this email finds you well. I wanted to reach out regarding the Series 6 Bar License and an Entertainment Use 
Permit for live music indoor and for an outdoor patio. While I appreciate the initiative to enhance the ambiance, I have 
some concerns regarding the potential noise levels, especially during evening hours. 
 
As a resident with multiple small children, excessively loud music would pose a significant disturbance, particularly for 
families like mine who have small children and individuals who work weekends. I'm worried about the impact it may 
have on families living nearby. Living near an airport already exposes us to a considerable amount of noise, and the 
addition of loud music from the bar would only fuel the disturbance. It would be challenging for us to maintain a 
peaceful and restful environment, especially during weekends if all we hear is noise. I believe it’s essential to consider 
the impact that such noise levels into late evenings can have on the surrounding community, especially on working 
families with young children. 
 
I appreciate your understanding and willingness to listen and address these concerns. 
 
Thank you. 
Concerned Family Resident. 
 
 

CAUTION: This Email is from an EXTERNAL source. Ensure you trust this sender before clicking on any links or 
attachments. 

 
  
 



ITEM  13 

City Council Memorandum      Facilities and Fleet  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager - CFO
From: Mike Hollingsworth, Facility & Fleet Services Senior Manager
Subject:Agreement No. FS2-928-4310, Amendment No. 3, for Auto Body Repair

Services

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve Agreement No. FS2-928-4310, Amendment No.
3, with Allard Collision, LLC, for auto body repair services, for an amount not to
exceed $250,000, for the period of July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2025. 

Background/Discussion:
Body repair and painting services are important facets of automotive repair and
maintenance. These services repair collision damage as well as maintain the safe
operation and appearance of the City's fleet.  Modern vehicle bodies require
advanced shop equipment, specialized fabrication, and technical skills due to the
use of advanced materials and components.

Evaluation:
On June 21, 2021, City Council approved an agreement with Allard Collision, LLC,
for auto body repair services, for a one-year period, with the option of up to four
one-year extensions. The Contractor has agreed to extend for one additional year
at the same terms, conditions, and pricing.  

Staff recommends extension of this Agreement for the term of July 1, 2024,
through June 30, 2025. 

Financial Implications:
Funds for auto body repair services will come from Insured Liability



Funds for auto body repair services will come from Insured Liability
Claims/Self-Insurance. Funding for this agreement is contingent on City Council
adopting the FY 2024-25 budget. 

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program

Name
Dollar
Amount

CIP Funded
Y/N

737.1311.5414.0.0.0 Insured Liability Self
Insurance

N/A $250,000 N

Attachments
Amendment 3 - Allard 







ITEM  14 

City Council Memorandum      Information Technology  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager - CFO
Sandip Dholakia, Chief Information Officer

From: Kerstin Nold, IT Chief Technology Officer 
Subject:Agreement No. 4506, Amendment No. 4, with WalkMe, Inc., for the Digital

Adoption Platform

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve Agreement No. 4506, Amendment No. 4, with
WalkMe, Inc., for the Digital Adoption Platform, in an amount not to exceed or
total $161,700, for the period of one year, beginning June 30, 2024, through June
29, 2025.

Background/Discussion:
City staff previously utilized a traditional learning content creator and job
aid materials solution from Oracle called User Productivity Kit (UPK).  As of
December 31, 2022, the solution has reached end of life and is no longer
supported.

In May 2022, the city implemented a new technology called digital adoption
platform (DAP), which modernizes the overall training experience, boosts
employee productivity through real-time in application step-by-step guidance,
enables virtual assistants, and captures data analytics that drive future solution
adoption and technology investment efforts throughout the city.  This solution
provides how modern training content is developed along with future plans to
expand to other internal city technology systems beyond Oracle.

Additionally, in 2023, the city engaged with WalkMe, Inc., managed services to
complete the conversion of existing Oracle UPK training content, and content for
Electronic Document Management System, Intellitime Timekeeper and eAgenda.



The focus for FY 2024-25 is to also extend managed services for another year
to develop real-time training content for additional city enterprise systems such as
Business Registration, Lucity inventory and Ticketing, and FASTER Fleet
Management.  Utilizing the WalkMe platform coupled with management services
will assist the city in accelerating the path forward for elevating additional content
on the digital adoption platform.

Evaluation:
On June 23, 2022, City Council approved an agreement with WalkMe, Inc., for the
digital adoption platform, for a one-year period, with the option of up to four
one-year extensions. The contractor has agreed to extend for one additional year
under the same terms and conditions.

Financial Implications:
Funding for this agreement is contingent upon City Council adopting the FY
2024-25 budget.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund

Name
Program Name Dollar

Amount
CIP Funded
Y/N

101.1286.5419.0.6IC124General
Fund

Digital Adoption
Platform

$ 161,700 Y

Attachments
Agreement 



                                                                
 

 
City Clerk Document No.     

 
City Council Meeting Date: May 23, 2024  

 
 

AMENDMENT TO CITY OF CHANDLER AGREEMENT 
DIGITAL ADOPTION PLATFORM 

CITY OF CHANDLER AGREEMENT NO. 4506 
 
THIS AMENDMENT NO. 4 (Amendment No. 4) is made and entered into by and between the City of 
Chandler, an Arizona municipal corporation (City), and WalkMe, Inc., (Contractor), (City and Contractor 
may individually be referred to as Party and collectively referred to as Parties) and made        , 
2024 (Effective Date). 
 

RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties entered into an agreement for a subscription for a digital adoption platform 
(Agreement); and 
 
WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement is June 30, 2022, through June 29, 2023, with the option of up to 
four one-year extensions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties added funds to the June 30, 2022, through June 29, 2023 term of the Agreement 
through Amendment No 1; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Parties extended the term of the Agreement for the period of is June 30, 2023, through 
June 29, 2024, through Amendment No. 2; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties added funds to the current term of the Agreement through Amendment No. 3.  
 

AGREEMENT 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
1. The recitals are accurate and are incorporated and made a part of the Agreement by this 

reference.    
 
2.  Section III is amended to read as follows: The Agreement is extended for a one-year period June 

30, 2024, through June 29, 2025. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: ABB7CB29-FB0B-4402-BE99-8DF7D247128B



3. Section IV is amended to read as follows: The City will pay the Contractor the per unit cost set
forth in Exhibit B of the original Agreement, which is incorporated into and made a part of this
Amendment No. 4 by this reference. Total payments made to the Contractor during the term of
this Amendment No. 4 will not exceed $161,700.

4. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement remain unchanged and in full force and effect.
If a conflict or ambiguity arises between this Amendment No. 4 and the Agreement, the terms
and conditions in this Amendment No. 4 prevail and control.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have entered into this Amendment on the Effective Date. 

FOR THE CITY FOR THE CONTRACTOR 

By: _________________________________________ By: _________________________________________ 

Its:                             Mayor Its: _________________________________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: _________________________________________ 
City Attorney 

ATTEST: 

By: _________________________________________ 
City Clerk 

DocuSign Envelope ID: ABB7CB29-FB0B-4402-BE99-8DF7D247128B

Sales Finance



ITEM  15 

City Council Memorandum      Information Technology  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager - CFO
Sandip Dholakia, Chief Information Officer

From: Kerstin Nold, IT Chief Technology Officer 
Subject: Agreement No. 4730, for Permitting Software and Support Services

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve Agreement No. 4730, with Accela, Inc., for permitting
software and support services, for a period of five years, in an amount not to
exceed $754,654 in the first year.  

Background/Discussion:
The Accela application is the system that manages the city's permitting and
inspection services, new installations for water meters, impact fees and online
plan submittal and review.  This application is vital to city revenues and operations
and must be kept fully maintained and supported.  The maintenance and support
provide technical assistance, software fixes, security patches and application
upgrades necessary to operate and keep this system current. 

In December 2023, the city was notified by the vendor that the current version
of Accela's on-premise Civic Platform will no longer be supported after June 30,
2025.  Therefore, this request includes transitioning from the current
on-premise solution to the new Accela cloud-based solution to minimize and limit
service disruptions for critical city services. The scope of services for this project
include the Acclea Automation, Accela Citizen Access, Accela GIS and Accela
Mobile modules. Migration to the cloud-based platform is planned to kick off in
July 2024.

Evaluation:
Accela Cloud and related support and maintenance services are only available



Accela Cloud and related support and maintenance services are only available
from Accela, Inc. 

Financial Implications:
Accela Cloud Implementation Services: $200,000
Support and Maintenance Year 1: $514,520.64 plus tax
Support and Maintenance Year 2: $540,246.67 plus tax
Support and Maintenance Year 3: $567,259.01 plus tax
Support and Maintenance Year 4: $595,621.96 plus tax
Support and Maintenance Year 5: $625,403.05 plus tax

Funding for implementation services and Year 1 support and maintenance
services are contingent upon City Council adopting the FY 2024-25 budget.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program

Name
Dollar
Amount

CIP
Funded
Y/N

401.1285.5219.0.6IC144.0 General
Government
Capital Projects

Permit
Solution
SaaS
Migration

$240,133 Y

101.1286.5419.0.6IC144.0 General
Government
Capital Projects

Permit
Solution
SaaS
Migration

$514,521 Y

Attachments
Agreement 



ACCELA SUBSCRIPTION SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

This Accela Subscription Services Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of the date of the applicable 
Order, as defined below, that incorporates these terms (the “Effective Date”) by and between Accela, Inc. and the 
entity identified in such Order (“Customer”). 
 
1. DEFINITIONS 
1.1. "Accela Systems" means the information technology infrastructure used by or on behalf of Accela in 
performing the Subscriptions Services, including all computers, software (including but not limited to Accela 
Software), hardware, databases, electronic systems (including database management systems), and networks, 
whether operated directly by Accela or its third-party suppliers. 
1.2. "Aggregate Data" means data and information related to Customer's use of the Subscription Services, 
including anonymized analysis of all data processed in the Subscription Services, that is used by Accela in an 
aggregate and anonymized manner, including compiling statistical and performance information related to the 
provision and operation of the Services. 
1.3. "Authorized User" means one named employee, contractor or agent of Customer (each identified by a 
unique email address) for whom Customer has purchased a subscription to the Subscription Services and who is 
authorized by Customer to access and use the Services under the rights granted to Customer pursuant to this 
Agreement. 
1.4. “Consulting Services” means packaged or time and materials consulting, review, training or other services 
(but excluding Subscription and Support Services) delivered by Accela to Customer pursuant an Order. A description 
of the current Consulting Services Description & Policy is available at www.accela.com/terms. 
1.5. “Customer Data” means the content, materials, and data that Customer, Authorized Users, and External 
Users enter into the Subscription Services. Customer Data does not include any component of the Subscription 
Services, material provided by or on behalf of Accela, or Aggregate Data. 
1.6. “Documentation” means the then-current technical and functional user documentation in any form made 
generally available by Accela for the Subscription Services. 
1.7. “External Users” means third party users of the Subscription Services that access the public-facing interfaces 
of the Subscription Services to submit queries and requests to facilitate communications between such third party 
and Customer. 
1.8. “Intellectual Property Rights” means patent rights (including, without limitation, patent applications and 
disclosures), copyrights, trade secrets, know-how, and any other intellectual property rights recognized in any 
country or jurisdiction in the world. 
1.9. “Order” means an Accela order form or other mutually acceptable document fully executed between 
Customer and Accela that incorporates this Agreement. 
1.10.  “Service Availability Policy” means the service availability and security polices included as Exhibit C. 
1.11. “Subscription Services” means the civic administration services, comprised of the Accela System, Software, 
and Support Services, to which Customer may license access to in accordance with the terms herein. 
1.12. “Software” means any software (including client software for Authorized Users’ devices) and Documentation 
that Accela uses or makes available as part of the Subscription Services. 
1.13. “Support Services” means those technical and help services provided by Accela in accordance with the 
Support Services Policy included as Exhibit D. 
1.14.  “Subscription Period” means the duration of Customer’s authorized use of the Subscription Services as 
designated in the Order. 
 
2. USAGE AND ACCESS RIGHTS 
2.1. Right to Access. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Accela hereby grants to Customer a 
limited, non-exclusive, non-transferable right and license during the Subscription Period, to permit: (i) Authorized 
Users to access and use the internal and administrative interfaces of the Subscription Services in accordance with 
the Documentation to support Customer’s internal business purposes and (ii) its External Users the ability to access 
and use the publicly available interfaces to submit requests and information to Customer. Each instance of the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D0DECB92-EC8A-4E73-9F07-A158061E13EA



Subscription Service shall be provisioned with the amount of storage set forth in the Order and additional storage 
may be purchased at the then-current rates. 
2.2. Support Services & Availability. During the Subscription Period, Accela shall provide to Customer the Support 
Services specified in the Order and shall make all commercially reasonable efforts to attain the service levels 
specified in the applicable policies. The remedies set forth in the Support Services & Service Level Policies are the 
sole and exclusive remedies for any breach of the service levels. Customer grants Accela a royalty-free, worldwide, 
transferable, sub-licensable, irrevocable, perpetual license to use or incorporate into its software or services any 
suggestions or other feedback provided by Customer or Authorized Users relating to the operation or features 
of the Subscription Services. Provided; however, this provision does not apply nor restrict in any way Customer’s 
remedies, rights, or interests under law and equity for a breach of this Agreement, which remedies and full legal 
rights Customer expressly reserves.  
2.3. Consulting Services. Customer may purchase Consulting Services from Accela by executing an Order for such 
services. All prices are exclusive of travel and expenses, which will be invoiced at actual cost, without markup, and 
will comply with the Accela’s services policies then in effect or as otherwise agreed in the applicable Order. If 
applicable, one Consulting Services day shall be equal to eight (8) hours. 
2.4. Restrictions on Use. Customer shall not, and shall not permit others to knowingly, (i) use or access the 
Subscription Services in any manner except as expressly permitted by the Agreement, including but not limited to, 
in a manner that circumvents contractual usage restrictions set forth in this Agreement; (ii) license, sub-license, sell, 
re-sell, rent, lease, transfer, distribute, time share or otherwise make any portion of the Subscription Services 
available for access by third parties except as otherwise expressly provided herein; (iii) use the Subscription Service 
in a way that; (a) violates or infringes upon the rights of a third party; or (b) stores or transmits libelous, tortious, or 
otherwise unlawful material or malicious code or viruses; (iv) create derivative works, reverse engineer, decompile, 
disassemble, copy, or otherwise attempt to derive source code or other trade secrets from or about any of the 
Subscription Services (except to and only to the extent such rights are proscribed by law); (v) interfere with or disrupt 
the security, integrity, operation, or performance of the Subscription Services; (vi) access, use, or provide access or 
use to the Subscription Services or Documentation for the purposes of competitive analysis or the development, 
provision, or use of a competing software, SaaS or product or any other purpose that is to Accela’s detriment or 
commercial disadvantage, (vii) provide access to the Subscription Services to competitors of Accela, (viii) access or 
use components of the Subscription Service not licensed by Customer; (ix) knowingly use or allow the use of the 
Subscription Services by anyone located in, under the control of, or that is a national or resident of a U.S. embargoed 
country or territory or by a prohibited end user under Export Control Laws (as defined in Section 12.3); (x) remove, 
delete, alter or obscure any trademarks, Documentation, warranties, or disclaimers, or any copyright, trademark, 
patent or other intellectual property or proprietary rights notices from any Subscription Services; or (xi) knowingly 
access or use the Subscription Services in, or in association with, the design, construction, maintenance, or operation 
of any hazardous environments, systems or applications, any safety response systems or other safety-critical 
applications, or any other use or application in which the use or failure of the Subscription Services could lead to 
personal injury or severe physical or property damage. 
2.5. Ownership. Accela retains all Intellectual Property Rights, including all rights, title and license to the 
Subscription Service, Software, Accela System, Support Services, Consulting Services, and Aggregate Data, any 
related work product of the foregoing and all derivative works thereof by whomever produced; provided however, 
that to the extent such materials are delivered to Customer as part of the Subscription, Consulting or Support 
Services then Customer shall receive a limited license consistent with the terms of Section 2 to use such materials 
during the Subscription Period. 
2.6.  Customer’s Responsibilities. Customer will (i) be responsible for meeting Accela’s applicable minimum 
system requirements for use of the Subscription Services set forth in the Documentation; (ii) be responsible for 
Authorized Users’ compliance with this Agreement and for any other activity (whether or not authorized by 
Customer) occurring under Customer’s account; (iii) be solely responsible for the accuracy, quality, integrity and 
legality of Customer Data; (iv) use commercially reasonable efforts to prevent unauthorized access to or use of the 
Subscription Services and Customer Data under its account, and notify Accela promptly of any such unauthorized 
access or use, and; (v) use the Subscription Services only in accordance with the applicable Documentation, laws 
and government regulations. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D0DECB92-EC8A-4E73-9F07-A158061E13EA



 
3. PAYMENT TERMS 
3.1. Purchases Directly from Accela. Except as otherwise set forth in an Order, Subscription fees shall be invoiced 
annually in advance and such fees shall be due and payable on the first day of the Subscription and on each 
anniversary thereafter for each renewal, if any. All other invoices shall be due and payable net 30 from the date of 
the applicable invoice. All amounts payable to Accela under this Agreement shall be paid by Customer in full without 
any setoff, deduction, debit, or withholding for any reason. Any late payments shall be subject to an additional 
charge of the lesser of 1.5% per month or the maximum permitted by law.  
3.2. Applicable Taxes. Accela will pay all applicable taxes. The Customer is subject to all applicable state and local 
transaction privilege taxes. To the extent any state and local transaction privilege taxes apply to sales made under 
the terms of this Agreement, it is the responsibility of the Accela to collect and remit all applicable taxes to the 
proper taxing jurisdiction of authority. 
3.3. Tax Indemnification. Accela and all subcontractors will pay all Federal, state, and local taxes applicable to its 
operation and any persons employed by Accela. Accela will and require all subcontractors to hold the Customer 
harmless from any responsibility for taxes, damages, and interest, if applicable, contributions required under 
Federal, state, and local laws and regulations and any other costs including transaction privilege taxes, 
unemployment compensation insurance, Social Security, and Worker’s Compensation. 
3.4. Purchases from Authorized Resellers. In the event that Customer has purchased any products or services 
through a reseller, subject to these terms, any separate payment arrangements and terms shall be exclusively 
through such reseller and Accela is not a party to such transactions. Accela’s sole obligations are set forth herein 
and Customer acknowledges that its rights hereunder may be terminated for non-payment to such third party. 
 
4. CONFIDENTIALITY 
As used herein, "Confidential Information" means all confidential information disclosed by a one party to this 
Agreement to the other party of this Agreement whether orally or in writing, that is designated as confidential or that 
reasonably should be understood to be confidential given the nature of the information and the circumstances of 
disclosure. However, Confidential Information will not include any information that (i) is or becomes generally 
known to the public without breach of any obligation owed to the disclosing party, (ii) was known to the receiving 
party prior to its disclosure without breach of any obligation owed to the disclosing party, (iii) is received without 
restriction from a third party without breach of any obligation owed to the disclosing party, or (iv) was independently 
developed by the receiving party. Each party will use the same degree of care that it uses to protect the confidentiality 
of its own confidential information of like kind (but in no event less than reasonable care) not to disclose or use any 
Confidential Information except as permitted herein, and will limit access to Confidential Information to those of its 
employees, contractors and agents who need such access for purposes consistent with this Agreement and who 
are bound to protect such Confidential Information consistent with this Agreement. The receiving party may disclose 
Confidential Information if it is compelled by law to do so, provided the receiving party gives the Disclosing Party 
prior notice of such compelled disclosure (to the extent legally permitted) and reasonable assistance, at the 
Disclosing Party's request and cost, to contest, limit, or protect the disclosure. 

 
5. CUSTOMER DATA 
5.1. Ownership. Customer reserves all its rights, title, and interest in and to the Customer Data. No rights are 
granted to Accela hereunder with respect to the Customer Data, except as otherwise set forth explicitly in Section 
5. 
5.2 Usage. Customer shall be responsible for Customer Data as entered in to, applied or used in the Subscription 
Services. Customer acknowledges that Accela generally does not have access to and cannot retrieve lost Customer 
Data. Customer grants to Accela the non-exclusive right to process Customer Data (including personal data) for the 
sole purpose of and only to the extent necessary for Accela: (i) to provide the Subscription Services; (ii) to verify 
Customer’s compliance with the restrictions set forth in Section 2.4 (Restrictions) if Accela has a reasonable belief 
of Customer’s non-compliance; and (iii) as otherwise set forth in this Agreement. Accela may utilize the information 
concerning Customer’s use of the Subscription Services (excluding   any   use   of   Customer’s Confidential 
Information) to improve Subscription Services, to provide Customer with reports on its use of the Subscription 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D0DECB92-EC8A-4E73-9F07-A158061E13EA



Services, and to compile aggregate statistics and usage patterns by customers using the Subscription Services. 
5.3 Use of Aggregate Data. Customer agrees that Accela may collect, use and disclose Aggregate Data derived 
from the use of the Subscription Services for industry analysis, benchmarking, analytics, marketing and other 
business purposes. All Aggregate Data collected, used and disclosed will be in aggregate form only and will not 
identify Customer, its Authorized Users or any third parties utilizing the Subscription Services. 
 
6. WARRANTIES AND DISCLAIMERS 
6.1. Accela Subscription Services Warranty. During the Subscription Period, Accela warrants that Subscription 
Services shall perform materially in accordance with the applicable Documentation. As Customer’s sole and 
exclusive remedy and Accela’s entire liability for any breach of the foregoing warranty, Accela will use commercially 
reasonable efforts at its own costs to (a) repair the Subscription Services in question; (b) replace the Subscription 
Services in question with those of substantially similar functionality; or (c), after making all commercially reasonable 
attempts to do the foregoing, terminate the applicable Subscription Services and refund all unused, prepaid fees 
paid by Customer for such non-compliant Subscription Services. 
6.2. Consulting Services. For ninety (90) days from the applicable delivery, Accela warrants that Consulting 
Services shall be performed in a professional and workmanlike manner. As Customer’s sole and exclusive remedy 
and Accela’s entire liability for any breach of the foregoing warranty, Accela will use commercially reasonable efforts 
to (a) re-perform the Consulting Services in a compliant manner; or, after making all commercially reasonable 
attempts to do the foregoing (b) refund the fees paid for the non-compliant Consulting Services. 
6.3. Disclaimers. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED HEREIN, ACCELA MAKES NO WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, 
WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED, STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE, AND SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ALL IMPLIED 
WARRANTIES, INCLUDING ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, SECURITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR 
PURPOSE OR NON-INFRINGEMENT, TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW. 
6.4. Cannabis-Related Activities. If Customers purchases any Subscription Services for use with any cannabis-
related activities, the following additional disclaimers shall apply: Accela is considered a software service provider 
to its customers and not a cannabis- related business or agent thereof. In addition to the foregoing, Accela only 
retains Subscription Services fees of this Agreement from its Customer for general software services, a state or 
local government agency, and does not retain these fees from any type of External Users. It is the sole responsibility 
of the Customer to offer state law compliant services, which may be coordinated and facilitated through the use of 
the Subscription Services. Accela makes no representations, promises, or warranties with respect to the legality, 
suitability, or otherwise regarding any third-party provider, including partners, and have no responsibility or liability 
with respect to services provided to Customer by such third parties. 
 
7. INDEMNIFICATION. Accela will defend, indemnify, and hold harmless (or at Accela’s option, settle) any third-
party claim, suit or action brought against Customer to the extent that it is based upon a claim that arises out this 
Agreement  or the Subscription Services, as furnished by Accela hereunder infringes or misappropriates the 
Intellectual Property Rights of any third-party (collectively “Claims”), and will pay any costs, damages, and 
reasonable attorneys’ fees attributable to such Claims, provided that Customer provides (a) Accela notice of such 
Claims as soon practical and in no event later than would reasonably permit Accela to respond to such Claims, (b) 
reasonable cooperation to Accela, at Accela’s expense, in the defense and/or settlement of such Claims and (c) 
Accela the sole and exclusive control of the defense, litigation and settlement of such Claims. In the event that 
Accela reasonably believes, in its sole discretion, that such Claims may prevail or that the usage of the Subscription 
Services may be joined, Accela may seek to (a) modify the Subscription Services such that it will be non-infringing 
(provided such modification does not materially reduce the functionality or performance of Customer’s installed 
instance); (b) replace the Subscription Services with a service that is non-infringing and provides substantially 
similar functionality and performance; or, if the first two options are not commercially practicable, (c) terminate the 
remainder of the Subscription Period and refund any, pre-paid, unused fees received by Accela. Accela will have no 
liability under this Section 7 to the extent any claims arise from (i) any combination of the Subscription Services 
with products, services, methods of a third party; (i) a modification of the Subscription Services that were either 
implemented by anyone other than Accela or implemented by Accela in accordance with Customer specifications; 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D0DECB92-EC8A-4E73-9F07-A158061E13EA



(ii) any use of the Subscription Services in a manner that violates this Agreement or the instructions given to 
Customer by Accela; (iii) a version of the Subscription Services other than the current, fully patched version, 
provided such updated version would have avoided the infringement; (iv) Customer’s breach of this Agreement. 
THIS SECTION 7 STATES THE ENTIRE OBLIGATION OF ACCELA AND ITS LICENSORS WITH RESPECT TO ANY ALLEGED 
OR ACTUAL INFRINGEMENT OR MISAPPROPRIATION OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS RELATED TO THIS 
AGREEMENT. 
 
8. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 
EXCEPT FOR LIABILITY ARISING OUT OF EITHER PARTY’S LIABILITY FOR DEATH OR PERSONAL INJURY OR 
CUSTOMER’S BREACH OF SECTION 2, NEITHER PARTY’S AGGREGATE LIABILITY FOR DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF OR 
IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT OR FROM THE USE OF OR INABILITY TO USE THE SERVICE, WHETHER IN 
CONTRACT, TORT OR UNDER ANY OTHER THEORY OF LIABILITY, SHALL EXCEED THE TOTAL AMOUNT PAID BY 
CUSTOMER HEREUNDER IN THE THIRTY-SIX (36) MONTH PERIOD IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING THE INCIDENT. EXCEPT 
FOR LIABILITY ARISING OUT OF CUSTOMER’S BREACH OF SECTION 2 OR EITHER PARTY’S LIABILITY FOR DEATH OR 
PERSONAL INJURY, IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY OR ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY INVOLVED IN CREATING, 
PRODUCING OR DELIVERING THE SERVICE BE LIABLE FOR ANY INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY OR 
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, INCLUDING LOST PROFITS, LOSS OF DATA OR LOSS OF GOODWILL, SERVICE 
INTERRUPTION, COMPUTER DAMAGE OR SYSTEM FAILURE OR THE COST OF SUBSTITUTE PRODUCTS OR SERVICES, 
ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT OR FROM THE USE OF OR INABILITY TO USE THE 
SUBSCRIPTION SERVICES, WHETHER BASED ON WARRANTY, CONTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE), 
PRODUCT LIABILITY OR ANY OTHER LEGAL THEORY. THE FOREGOING EXCLUSIONS APPLY WHETHER OR NOT A 
PARTY HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE, AND EVEN IF A LIMITED REMEDY SET FORTH 
HEREIN IS FOUND TO HAVE FAILED OF ITS ESSENTIAL PURPOSE. 
 
9. SECURITY 
Accela has implemented commercially viable and reasonable information security processes, policies and 
technology safeguards to protect the confidentiality and integrity of Customer Data, personal data protect against 
reasonably anticipated threats. Customer acknowledges that, notwithstanding security features of the Subscription 
Services, no product, hardware, software or service can provide a completely secure mechanism of electronic 
transmission or communication and that there are persons and entities, including enterprises, governments and 
quasi- governmental actors, as well as technologies, that may attempt to breach any electronic security measure. 
Subject only to its limited warranty obligations set forth in Section 6, Accela will have no liability for any such security 
breach. Customer further acknowledges that the Subscription Services is not guaranteed to operate without 
interruptions, failures, or errors. If Customer or Authorized Users use the Subscription Services in any application 
or environment where failure could cause personal injury, loss of life, or other substantial harm, Customer assumes 
any associated risks and will indemnify Accela and hold it harmless against those risks. 
9.1  Security. Accela represents and warrants that it shall at all times adhere to and comply with, in all material 
respects, the minimum security standards to ensure that there is no unauthorized access to or use of Customer 
information described in this Section, which security standards may be mutually amended by the parties from time 
to time (the “Security Standards”). 
9.2  Security Standards. Accela will use reasonable efforts to prevent unauthorized access to restricted areas of 
its servers and any databases or other material generated from or used in conjunction with the Service. Accela will 
respond immediately to remedy any known security incidents or breaches. 

(a)  External Segment Security. Accela's external connections to the Internet will have appropriate security 
measures and controls applied to its systems and will include an Intrusion Detection System (IDS) that will 
monitor all inbound and outbound communications and information. The IDS is intended to detect, record, 
alert, and terminate unauthorized activity. 
(b)  Web Site Segment Security. All Internet accessible systems will reside behind Firewalls. The Firewalls 
will enforce secure access between all Web servers and the Internet. The Firewalls will allow only specific types 
of data to pass from the Internet to the systems on the Web Segment. An IDS device is used to scan all data 
that passes within the Web Server segment and will detect, report and terminate any unauthorized activity 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D0DECB92-EC8A-4E73-9F07-A158061E13EA



prior to it reaching the Web Servers. 
(c)  Internal Network Segment Security. All data entering the Service's internal data network from any 
external source (Web Segment and Internet) must pass through Firewalls. The Firewalls will enforce secure 
connections between internal and external systems and will only allow specific types of data to pass through. 
Access to customer data by Accela employees will be limited to authorized personnel only. All Accela 
employees will follow the security policies regarding access and use of internal systems. 
(d)  Physical Site Security. All systems containing customer or company related data will be contained in 
locked data cabinets and will reside in a secure Data Center. Only authorized personnel will have access to 
the Data Center and/or Operations area via an internal security system. The entire physical facility, internal 
and external, will be monitored 24/7/365.  
(e)  General Data Security and Network Monitoring. All printed documents containing customer, 
confidential, financial, or sensitive information that is no longer needed will be shredded. Any printed material 
of this nature that is retained will be secured in cabinets. All data backups will be locked and secure both on-
site and off-site as documented in the Security Policy Document and the Backup/Disaster Recovery Guide. 
Accela will actively monitor the IDS systems, Local Area Network/Wide Area Network, (LAN/WAN) equipment 
and all critical servers. Encryption techniques will be used for data transmissions where applicable. 
(f)  Assessments. Customer reserves the right to conduct risk assessments, vulnerability assessments, 
black box penetration tests or hire a third party to conduct risk assessments, vulnerability assessments, and 
black-box penetration tests of the Accela’s environment. Accela will be alerted in advance and arrangements 
made for an agreeable time. Accela shall respond to all Critical, High, and Medium severity vulnerabilities 
discovered by providing an acceptable timeframe to resolve the issue and/or implement compensating 
control(s). 
(g)  Audit Logging. Accela will provide to the Customer system, audit, and other logs required by the 
Customer from the Accela’s environment and service offering upon request.  
(h)  StateRAMP Authorization. Any Contractor who will be storing, processing, and/or transmitting 
Customer data in external, non-Customer environments (Cloud), are required to attain verified StateRAMP 
(www.stateramp.org) Authorized status for the cloud products the Customer will be utilizing, at the security 
category level required by the Customer. The Contractor must attain StateRAMP Ready status within 12 
months of Agreement execution and StateRAMP Authorized status within 18 months of Agreement execution. 
Any Contractor without StateRAMP Ready or Authorized status at the time of Agreement execution must 
complete a StateRAMP Security Snapshot within six months of Agreement execution and must provide 
monthly progress reporting to StateRAMP until StateRAMP Ready or StateRAMP Authorization status is 
obtained. The Contractor will be required to maintain StateRAMP authorization at the required category level 
throughout the contract term and partnership with the Customer. The Customer will provide StateRAMP 
sponsorship to the Contractor for the purpose of this contract engagement. 

9.3  Updates to Security Standards. If a change or addition to the Security Standards is required by law, rule, 
regulation, order, judgment or decree, Accela shall comply with such amended Security Standards as soon as 
possible but in no event later than the time period for compliance indicated in such law, rule, regulation, order, 
judgment or decree. If the event Accela adopts changes to the Security Standards, Accela will provide the Services in 
accordance with such new Security Standards; provided that if such new Security Standards are of a level which is 
less than the level of the Security Standards previously required by this Agreement, and if Customer does not agree 
with such new Security Standards, Customer may terminate and this Agreement upon written notice to Accela. If 
Customer accepts such new security standards, such new security standards shall be deemed to be “Security 
Standards” for purposes of this Agreement. 
9.4  Security and Supervision. Accela's personnel, when on Customer's premises or accessing Customer's 
networks or providing maintenance services hereunder, will comply with all of Customer's security, supervision, and 
other standard procedures applicable to such personnel, including, if applicable, Customer's Internet and Electronic 
Communications Usage Policy. 
9.5 Information Security Incident Management. Accela must adhere to a formally documented incident 
management process, must cooperate with Customer personnel in the diagnosis, investigation and response of any 
security incidents or faults that impact Customer data. Accela must notify the Customer within 24 hours of suspicion, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D0DECB92-EC8A-4E73-9F07-A158061E13EA



detection or confirmation of a breach or unauthorized access to Customer information that is hosted, stored, 
processed, or transmitted by the Accela. Notification will be made using Customer provided email and phone as 
identified in the Notices section of this contract. 
9.6  Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery Management. Accela must have business continuity and disaster 
recovery plans and processes in place to ensure the service for the Customer is adequately maintained in the event 
of any negative impact on the Accela´s service. Accela will regularly backup Customer data and retain such Customer 
backup data copies according to Customer data retention requirements or otherwise provide backup data to the 
Customer. 
9.7  Applicable Laws and Regulations. Accela will comply, and assist Customer to comply with, all applicable State 
and Federal laws and regulations including, but not limited to: 
Federal Information Security Modernization Act of 2014 (FISMA): 
https://csrc.nist.gov/topics/laws-and-regulations/laws/fisma 
● OMB Circular A-130: 
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2016/07/28/2016-17872/revision-of-omb-circular-n 
o-a-130-managing-information-as-a-strategic-resource 
● National Cyber Strategy of the United States of America: 
https://www.cisa.gov/executive-order-strengthening-cybersecurity-federal-networks-and-critical 
-infrastructure 
● Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) including Business Associate 
Agreement/ Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (HITECH): 
https://www.hhs.gov/hipaa/index.html 
● Tax Information Security Guidelines For Federal, State and Local Agencies: Safeguards for 
Protecting Federal Tax Returns and Return Information (IRS Publication 1075): 
https://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/p1075.pdf 
● A.R.S. 18-551 - Definitions Information Security Including PII: 
https://www.azleg.gov/ars/18/00551.htm 
● A.R.S. 18-552 - Notification of security system breaches; requirements; enforcement; civil 
penalty; preemption; exceptions: https://www.azleg.gov/ars/18/00552.htm 
● State of Arizona Library, Archives and Public Records, Records Management Division, General 
Retention Schedules https://azlibrary.gov/arm/policies 
● Payment Card Industry (PCI) Security Standards including but not limited to Supplemental 
Documents, Information Supplements and Validation Requirements: 
https://www.pcisecuritystandards.org/ 
 
10. THIRD PARTY SERVICES 
Customer may choose to obtain a product or service from a third-party that is not directly produced by Accela as a 
component of the Subscription Services (“Third Party Services”) and this may include third-party products resold 
by Accela. Accela assumes no responsibility for, and specifically disclaims any liability, warranty or obligation with 
respect to, any Third-Party Service or the performance of the Subscription Services (including Accela’s service level 
commitment) when the Subscription Services are used in combination with or integrated with Third-Party Services. 
 
11. TERM AND TERMINATION 
11.1. Agreement Term. This Agreement shall become effective on the Effective Date and shall continue in full force and effect until 
the expiration of any Subscription Periods set forth in an applicable Order governed by the Agreement. 
11.2. Subscription Periods & Renewals. Subscription Periods begin as specified in the applicable Order and, unless terminated 
earlier in accordance with this Agreement, continue for the term specified therein. Except as otherwise specified in the applicable 
Order, (a) all Subscriptions will automatically renew for additional Subscription Periods equal to the expiring Subscription Period, 
unless either party gives the other at least sixty (60) days’ notice of non-renewal before the end of the relevant Subscription Period 
and (b), Orders may only be cancelled or terminated early in accordance with Section 11.3. Subscription Services renewals may be 
subject to an annual increase, for which Accela shall provide Customer notice prior to the renewal of the Subscription Term. In the 
event of any non-renewal or other termination, Customer’s right to use the Subscription Services will terminate at the end of the 
relevant Subscription Period. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D0DECB92-EC8A-4E73-9F07-A158061E13EA



11.3  Termination for Non-Appropriation of Funds; No “Abandonment”. 
(a)  Customer may terminate this Agreement or any Schedule hereunder at any time upon thirty (30) day’s 
written notice to Accela due to the Non-Appropriation of Funds. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in 
this Agreement or any Schedule, in the event of any termination under this Section, Customer will only be 
liable to make any payments which are due hereunder to Accela for work performed in accordance with the 
terms and conditions herein up to the date of such termination.  
(b) This Agreement will commence on the Effective Date and continue in full force and effect until it is 
terminated or expires in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. The Parties recognize that the 
continuation of this Agreement after the close of the Customer's fiscal year, which ends on June 30 of each 
year, is subject to the Customer Council's approval of a budget that includes an appropriation for this item as 
expenditure. The Customer does not represent that this budget item will be actually adopted. This 
determination is solely made by the City Council at the time Council adopts the budget. 
(c)  This Agreement shall automatically expire or terminate upon expiration or termination of this 
Agreement, unless such termination occurs in conjunction with an Interruption. 

11.4 Termination or Suspension for Cause. A party may terminate this Agreement and Subscription Services 
license granted hereunder for cause upon thirty (30) days’ written notice to the other party of a material breach if 
such breach remains uncured at the expiration of such thirty (30) day period. Either party may terminate 
immediately if the other party files for bankruptcy or becomes insolvent. Accela may, at is sole option, suspend 
Customer’s or any Authorized User’s access to the Subscription Services, or any portion thereof, immediately if 
Accela: (i) suspects that any person other than Customer or an Authorized User is using or attempting to use 
Customer Data; (ii) suspects that Customer or an Authorized User is using the Subscription Services in a way that 
violates this Agreement and could expose Accela or any other entity to harm or legal liability; (iii) is or reasonably 
believes it is required to do so by law or court order or; (iv) Customer’s payment obligations are more than ninety 
(90) days past due, provided that Accela has provided at least thirty (30) days’ notice of such suspension for 
delinquent payment. Should Customer terminate this Agreement for cause, Accela will refund a pro-rata portion of 
unused, pre-paid fees. 
11.5 Effect of Termination. If this Agreement expires or is terminated for any reason: (i) within thirty (30) calendar 
days following the end of Customer’s final Subscription Period, upon Customer’s request Accela provided Customer 
Data and associated documents in a database dump file; provided that Customer pays (a) all costs of and associated 
with such copying, as calculated at Accela’s then-current time-and-materials rates, and (b) any and all unpaid 
amounts due to Accela; (ii) licenses and use rights granted to Customer with respect to Subscription Services and 
intellectual property will immediately terminate; and (ii) Accela’s obligation to provide any further services to 
Customer under this Agreement will immediately terminate, except mutually agreed. If the Subscription Services 
are nearing expiration date or are otherwise terminated, Accela will initiate its data retention processes, including 
the deletion of Customer Data from systems directly controlled by Accela. Accela’s current Data Storage Policy can 
be accessed www.accela.com/terms/. 
11.6 Survival. Sections 2.5 (Ownership and Proprietary Rights), 4 (Confidentiality), 6.3 (Disclaimer), 8 (Limitation of 
Liability), 11.4 (Effect of Termination), 11.5 (Surviving Provisions), and 12 (General Provisions) will survive any 
termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

 
12 GENERAL 
12.1 Notice. Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, all notices, permissions and approvals hereunder 
will be in writing and will be deemed to have been given upon: (i) personal delivery; (ii) three days after sending 
registered, return receipt requested, post or; (iii) one day after sending by commercial overnight carrier. Notices 
will be sent to the address specified by the recipient in writing when entering into this Agreement or establishing 
Customer’s account for the Subscription Services. 

12.2 Governing Law and Jurisdiction. This Agreement and any action related thereto will be governed by the laws 
of the State of Arizona without regard to its conflict of laws provisions. The exclusive jurisdiction and venue of any 
action related to the subject matter of this Agreement will be the state and federal courts located in Arizona and 
each of the parties hereto waives any objection to jurisdiction and venue in such courts. 

12.3 Compliance with Laws. Each party will comply with all applicable laws and regulations with respect to its 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D0DECB92-EC8A-4E73-9F07-A158061E13EA



activities under this Agreement including, but not limited to, export laws and regulations of the United States and 
other applicable jurisdictions. Further, in connection with the services performed under this Agreement and 
Customer’s use of the Subscription Services, the Parties agree to comply with all applicable anti-corruption and 
anti-bribery laws, statutes and regulations. 

12.4 Assignment. Parties may not assign or transfer this Agreement, whether by operation of law or otherwise, 
without the prior written consent of the other Party, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. Any attempted 
assignment or transfer, without such consent, will be null and void. Subject to the foregoing, this Agreement will 
bind and inure to the benefit of the parties, their respective successors and permitted assigns. 

12.5 Publicity. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, each party will have the right to publicly announce the 
existence of the business relationship between parties without disclosing the specific terms of the Agreement. 

12.6  Customer's Right of Cancellation. The parties acknowledge that this Agreement is subject to cancellation 
by Customer under the provisions of A.R.S. § 38-511. 
12.7  No Israel Boycott. By entering into this Agreement, Accela certifies that Accela is not currently engaged 
in, and agrees for the duration of the Services Agreement and this Agreement, not to engage in a boycott of 
Israel as defined by state statute. 
12.8  Legal Worker Requirements. A.R.S. § 41-4401 prohibits the Customer from awarding a contract to any 
contractor (as defined under A.R.S.) who fails, or whose subcontractors fail, to comply with A.R.S. § 23-214(A). 
Therefore, Accela agrees Accela and each subcontractor it uses warrants their compliance with all federal 
immigration laws and regulations that relate to their employees and their compliance with§ 23-214, subsection 
A. A breach of this warranty will be deemed a material breach of the parties’ agreement and may be subject 
to penalties up to and including termination of the parties’ agreement. Customer retains the legal right to 
inspect the papers of any Accela’s or subcontractor’s employee who provides services under this Agreement 
to ensure that the Accela and subcontractors comply with the warranty under this provision. 
12.9  Lawful Presence Requirement. A.R.S. §§ 1-501 and 1-502 prohibit the Customer from awarding a 
contract to any natural person who cannot establish that such person is lawfully present in the United States. 
To establish lawful presence, a person must produce qualifying identification and sign a Customer-provided 
affidavit affirming that the identification provided is genuine. This requirement will be imposed at the time of 
contract award. This requirement does not apply to business organizations such as corporations, partnerships, 
or limited liability companies. 
12.10  Forced Labor of Ethnic Uyghurs Prohibited. By entering into this Agreement, Accela certifies and agrees 
Accela does not currently use and will not use for the term of this Agreement: (i) the forced labor of ethnic 
Uyghurs in the People's Republic of China; or (ii) any goods or services produced by the forced labor of ethnic 
Uyghurs in the People's Republic of China; or (iii) any contractors, subcontractors or suppliers that use the 
forced labor or any goods or services produced by the forced labor of ethnic Uyghurs in the People's Republic 
of China. 
12.11  Covenant Against Contingent Fees. Accela warrants that no person has been employed or retained to 
solicit or secure this Agreement upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, 
brokerage, or contingent fee, and that no member of the Chandler City Council, or any Customer employee 
has any interest, financially, or otherwise, in Accela’s firm. For breach or violation of this warrant, Customer 
may annul this Agreement without liability or, at its discretion, to deduct from the Services Agreement price or 
consideration, the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee. 
12.12 Miscellaneous. No failure or delay by either party in exercising any right under this Agreement will constitute 
a waiver of that right. Other than as expressly stated herein, the remedies provided herein are in addition to, and 
not exclusive of, any other remedies of a party at law or in equity. If any provision of this Agreement is held by a 
court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, the provision will be modified by the court and interpreted so 
as best to accomplish the objectives of the original provision to the fullest extent permitted by law, and the 
remaining provisions of this Agreement will remain in effect. Accela will not be liable for any delay or failure to 
perform under this Agreement to the extent such delay or failure results from circumstances or causes beyond the 
reasonable control of Accela. This Agreement does not create a partnership, franchise, joint venture, agency, 
fiduciary or similar relationship between the parties. This Agreement, including any attachments hereto as mutually 
agreed upon by the Parties, constitute the entire agreement between the Parties concerning its subject matter and 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D0DECB92-EC8A-4E73-9F07-A158061E13EA



supersedes all prior communications, agreements, proposals or representations, written or oral, concerning its 
subject matter. No modification, amendment, or waiver of any provision of this Agreement will be effective unless 
in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative of each party against whom the modification, amendment 
or waiver is to be asserted. Notwithstanding any language to the contrary therein, no additional or conflicting 
terms or conditions stated in any of Customer’s purchase order documentation will be incorporated into or form 
any part of this Agreement, and all such terms or conditions shall be null and void. 

Exhibits, Precedence of Documents. The following exhibits are made a part of this Agreement and are 
incorporated by reference: 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work  
Exhibit B – Order Form 
Exhibit C – Service Availability and Security Policy 
Exhibit D – Software Support Services Policy 
Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements 

In the event of a conflict in the terms and conditions or a legal ambiguity arises among this Agreement and 
the attached exhibits, the documents in the following order prevail and control: (1) this Agreement; (2) Exhibit 
A – Scope of Work; (3) Exhibit B – Order Form; (4) Exhibit C – Service Availability and Security Policy; (5) Exhibit D 
– Software Support Services Policy; and (6) Exhibit E – Insurance Requirements.

In WITNESS WHERE OF, the parties have indicated their acceptance of the terms of this Agreement by their 
signatures below 

ACCELA, INC.  CUSTOMER:  __City of Chandler_______ 

Signature:  ______________________________ Signature:  ___________________________ 

Name:  ______________________________ Name:   ___________________________ 

Title: ______________________________ Title:   ____________________________ 

Date: ______________________________ Date:   ____________________________ 

Approved as to Form 

By: 
City Attorney 

Attest 

By: 
City Clerk 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D0DECB92-EC8A-4E73-9F07-A158061E13EA

Aaron Haggarty

CLO

May 1, 2024



EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF WORK 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

TABLE OF CONTENTS ........................................................................................................................................................................... 11 

DOCUMENT CONTROL ................................................................................................................ ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED. 

INTRODUCTION ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 12 

OVERVIEW .......................................................................................................................................................................................... 12 

SCOPE OF SERVICES ............................................................................................................................................................................ 12 

WORK DESCRIPTION ........................................................................................................................................................................... 12 

OUT OF SCOPE ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 13 

PROJECT ASSUMPTIONS ..................................................................................................................................................................... 13 

GENERAL PROJECT ASSUMPTIONS ...................................................................................................................................................... 13 
INTEGRATION ASSUMPTIONS ............................................................................................................................................................... 14 
PROJECT TIMELINE ............................................................................................................................................................................. 14 
PROJECT COMPLETION ....................................................................................................................................................................... 14 
PROJECTS PUT ON HOLD .................................................................................................................................................................... 14 

PAYMENT TERMS ................................................................................................................................................................................... 14 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE .......................................................................................................................................................................... 14 
EXPENSES .......................................................................................................................................................................................... 14 
CONTRACT SUM ................................................................................................................................................................................. 14 

ADMINISTRATION ................................................................................................................................................................................... 15 

CHANGE ODERS ................................................................................................................................................................................. 15 
EXPIRATION ........................................................................................................................................................................................ 15 
DISCLAIMERS ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 15 

SIGNATURES ................................................................................................................................ ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED. 

APPENDIX A: CHANGE ORDER FORM ................................................................................................................................................ 16 

SIGNATURE AND ACCEPTANCE ............................................................................................................................................................. 16 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D0DECB92-EC8A-4E73-9F07-A158061E13EA



INTRODUCTION 

OVERVIEW 
This Statement of Work (“SOW”) dated 4/11/2024 sets forth the scope and definition of the project-based professional 
services (collectively, the “Services”) to be provided by Accela, Inc., its affiliates and/or agents (“Accela”) to Chandler, 
AZ (“Agency” or “Customer”). 
 
The products and services contained herein shall be governed by the prevailing and attached agreement for 
Subscription Services.  
 
This statement of work represents a Fixed Fee based engagement.  
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
Accela will provide services to the Agency for migrating the Accela on-premise Civic Platform instance to the Accela 
Cloud based on the materials provided by the Agency in the SaaS Migration Questionnaire.  
 

• Import/upgrade of Oracle DBs (up to 3 environments: Development, Test, Production) 
• Assistance migrating 8 specific interfaces:  

o GIS (including APO load) 
o Credit Card Payment Adapter (Invoice Cloud) 
o EPlanSoft via Velosimo 
o Selectron IVR 
o General Ledger 
o Water Meters 
o Docusign 
o OnBase App Extender EDMS 

• Migration of up to 225 SSRS reports 
• Assist in integrating Azure SSO 
• Up to 40 hour of issue resolution and testing assistance during UAT 
• Go live planning and cutover assistance 

 
Products 
The following Accela products are in scope for this Project: 

• Accela Automation 

• Accela Citizen Access 

• Accela GIS 

• Accela Mobile 

TEAM MEMBERS 

WORK DESCRIPTION 
Accela will perform a migration of the customer’s on-premise Accela environments using Oracle (up to 3 
environments: Support, Test, Production) to the Accela SaaS platform. On-premises functionality will be mirrored in 
the hosted platform.  
 
Accela Team Member Roles: 

• Lead Cloud Architect 
• Data Conversion Lead 
• Reporting Lead 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D0DECB92-EC8A-4E73-9F07-A158061E13EA



• Interfaces Lead 
Steps: 

1. Customer provides an updated backup of the Oracle databases for the environments to be migrated 
2. Perform the database migration (Accela, Jetspeed, AGIS, AMO, and ADS databases as required) 

a. Copy database to Accela site 
b. Execute preparation and remediation scripts; drop any custom objects 
c. Convert database from Oracle to MS SQL 
d. Import data from the MS SQL DB into Accela SaaS SQL instance 

3. Execute validation scripts to confirm the schema 
4. Provision tenant instance in Accela SaaS 
5. Update environment specific data in the databases 
6. Load ADS documents 
7. Start Accela services and validate the system is functional i.e. login, search, create records, etc. 
8. Execute automated test tool to ensure proper system functionality 
9. Customer performs migration validation 
10. Remediate any data issues that found from the migration 
11. Provide the customer with a backup of the revised SQL DB 
12. Migrate and Test integrations 

o Repoint service endpoints to new URLs 
o Adjust firewall rules and network topologies as necessary 
o Update interface EMSE scripting dependences for Azure compatibility 
o Unit test and ensure base functionality 

13. Migrate and update SSRS reports (maximum of 225) 
o Import reports into the Accela SaaS environment 
o Convert from PL SQL to TSQL 
o Update reports to remove dependencies on custom objects (stored procedures, functions) 
o Facilitate customer testing and remediate any issues found resulting from migration 

14. Validate Ad Hoc reports 
o Remove dependencies on custom views where possible 
o Convert to SSRS as needed 

15. Develop go live plan 
16. Final go-live/roll back decision 
17. Execute go live plan 

o Four weeks of post go live support 
18. Provide four weeks of post go live support from the project team 

 
Agency and Accela will mutually agree to Agency turn around times for review of deliverables. Agency sign off at the 
completion of each step constitutes Agency acceptance. 
 
OUT OF SCOPE 
Any Coding, conversion or additional services not specifically described in this document is the responsibility of 
Agency. 
 
PROJECT ASSUMPTIONS 

GENERAL PROJECT ASSUMPTIONS 
• Agency will provide the necessary data, files, and other specified inputs to perform the work described in this 

agreement.   These items will be uploaded to secure Azure storage by the Agency.  Failure to provide these 
items in a timely fashion will result in a project delay.   Such a delay will result in a Change Order. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D0DECB92-EC8A-4E73-9F07-A158061E13EA



• Agency will ensure that Accela resources have access to a Dev or Test version of the 3rd party systems for 
interface development.  All interfaces will be developed against 1 (one), agreed upon version of the 3rd party 
system. 

• Agency will provide source code for relevant interfaces in scope.  If source code is unavailable, then the project 
may be delayed or addition cost may result from the re-development of a new interface. 

Integration Assumptions 

• Hosting of interfaces remains the responsibility of the agency unless specifically included in the Accela SaaS 
license agreement. 

• The Enhanced Reporting Database (ERD) option will be purchased with the SaaS license agreement.  If the 
ERD is not purchased, then additional cost may be incurred to redesign and redevelop interfaces that rely 
on reading directly from the database. 

PROJECT TIMELINE 
The project is estimated to take 28 weeks. The project start date and schedule will be mutually agreed upon between 
Agency and Accela. 

PROJECT COMPLETION  
Upon completion of the work defined above, this contract will be closed. 

PROJECTS PUT ON HOLD 
It is understood that sometimes Agency priorities are revised requiring the Agency to place the Accela implementation 
on hold.   The Agency must send a formal written request sent to Accela to put the project on hold. Delays of 2 weeks 
or more that have a tangible impact to Accela’s resource plan are subject to change order. 
 
If an Agency-based delay puts the project on hold for more than 90 days, Accela reserves the right to terminate the 
contract and negotiate new terms. If an Agency-based delay puts the project on hold past the termination period, 
Accela reserves the right to terminate the contract at the time of the delay. After that time, Accela can choose to cancel 
the rest of the Statement of Work. To finish the project will require a new Statement of Work at new pricing. 
 
PAYMENT TERMS 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE 
• 50% due at contract signing $100,000.  
• 25% due at conclusion of UAT $50,000 
• 25% invoiced at completion $50,000. 

EXPENSES 
There is no provision for travel expenses or travel time in this SOW because Agency does not need any onsite 
resources.  Travel to the Agency will not be conducted unless a Change Order, inclusive of travel expense terms and 
conditions, is signed prior to travel commencing to cover the cost of the travel. 

CONTRACT SUM 
The total amount payable under this SOW, as calculated from the above-mentioned fees, is $200,000. This price is 
based on the information available at time of signing and the assumptions, dependencies and constraints, and roles 
and responsibilities of the Parties, as stated in this SOW. Any additional fees will be agreed upon between the parties 
in writing. 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D0DECB92-EC8A-4E73-9F07-A158061E13EA



ADMINISTRATION 

CHANGE ODERS 
In order to make a change to the scope of Professional Services in this SOW, and subject to the Disclaimers below, 
Agency must submit a written request to Accela specifying the proposed changes in detail.  Accela will submit to 
Agency an estimate of the charges and the anticipated changes in the delivery schedule that will result from the 
proposed change in the Professional Services Change Order.  Accela will continue performing the Professional 
Services in accordance with the SOW until the parties agree in writing on the change in scope of work, scheduling, 
and fees therefore.  Any Change Order will be agreed to by the parties in writing prior to implementation of the 
Change Order. If Accela’s effort changes due to changes in timing, roles, responsibilities, assumptions, scope, etc. or 
if additional support hours are required, a change order will be created that details these changes, and impact to 
project and cost (if any).  Any change order will be signed by Accela and Agency prior to commencing any activities 
defined in the change order.  Standard blended rate for Accela resources is $250 per hour. The Change Order 
Template is attached hereto as Appendix A. 

EXPIRATION 
The scope and terms of this SOW must be agreed to before6/30/2024.  If the SOW is not agreed to, the current 
scope and terms can be renegotiated.  

DISCLAIMERS 
Accela makes no warranties in respect of the Services described in this SOW except as set out in the governing 
Subscription Services Agreement.  Any configuration of or modification to the Product that can be consistently 
supported by Accela via APIs, does not require direct database changes and is capable of being tested and maintained 
by Accela will be considered a “Supported Modification”. Accela’s obligations and warranties in respect of its Services, 
Products, and maintenance and support, as set out the agreement between Accela and Agency, does not extend 
outside the Supported Modifications or to any Agency manipulation of implemented scripts, reports, interfaces and 
adaptors.  
 
In the event Agency requires significant changes to this SOW (including cumulative revisions across any one or more 
Change Orders) which Accela reasonably determines (a) is a material modification of the nature or scope of Services 
as initially contemplated by the Parties under this SOW and/or (b) is significantly outside the Supported Modifications, 
Accela may, upon no less than thirty (30) days’ notice to Agency, suspend or terminate this SOW and/or any Change 
Order issued hereunder. In the event of any such termination or suspension, the parties will work together in finalizing 
agreed-upon Deliverables.   
 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: D0DECB92-EC8A-4E73-9F07-A158061E13EA



APPENDIX A: CHANGE ORDER FORM 
 

Agency:  CO #:  
Project Code:  Date:  

Contract ID:    
Initiating Department:  

Initiated By:  
  
A. PROJECT CHANGE DESCRIPTION/TASK SUMMARY: 

1. [Description of Change #1 – Issue details/scope impact, add as many as needed] 
• Schedule impact:  
• Resource impact:  
• Cost impact:   

 
2. Etc. 

 
Total Project Schedule Impact: [Enter] 
Total Project Resource Impact: [Enter] 
Total Project Cost Impact: [Enter] 
 
B. BILLING TERMS: 
Please describe the method by which Accela may bill the customer.  Typically for CO’s this is T&M. 
 
C. EXPIRATION: 
If this is a CO for a bucket of T&M hours there needs to be an expiration date 
 

SIGNATURE AND ACCEPTANCE 
The above Services will be performed in accordance with this Change Order/Work Authorization and the provisions of the Contract 
for the purchase, modification, and maintenance of the Accela systems. The approval of this Change Order will act as a Work 
Authorization for Accela and/or Agency to perform work in accordance with this Change Order, including any new payment terms 
identified in this Change Order. This Change Order takes precedent and supersedes all other documents and discussions regarding this 
subject matter. 
 

Accepted By:  Accepted By: 
Accela, Inc. 

 
 
By: 

 
 
By: 

Print Name: 
 

Print Name: 

Title: 
 

Title:  

Date: 
 

Date: 

 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: D0DECB92-EC8A-4E73-9F07-A158061E13EA



2633 Camino Ramon, Suite 500
San Ramon, CA, 94583

Proposed by: Matthew Donovan
Contact Phone:
Contact Email: mdonovan@accela.com
Quote ID: Q-33126
Valid Through: 6/30/2024
Currency: USD

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Order Form

Address Information

Bill To: Ship To:
City of Chandler City of Chandler 
275 East Buffalo
Chandler, Arizona 85225
United States

215 East Buffalo Street
Chandler, Arizona 85225
United States

Billing Name: Michael Rose
Billing Phone: 4807822492
Billing Email: michael.rose@chandleraz.gov

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Services Year Start Date End Date Term
(Months)

Price Qty Net Total

Multi Solution User Year 1 7/1/2024 6/30/2025 12 $2,448.00 155 $379,440.00

> Accela Building - SaaS Year 1 7/1/2024 6/30/2025 12 $0.00 155 $0.00

> Accela Planning - SaaS Year 1 7/1/2024 6/30/2025 12 $0.00 155 $0.00

Enhanced Reporting Database
(ERD)

Year 1 7/1/2024 6/30/2025 12 $49,327.20 1 $49,327.20

Preferred Support for SaaS Year 1 7/1/2024 6/30/2025 12 $85,753.44 1 $85,753.44

TOTAL: $514,520.64

Services Year Start Date End Date Term
(Months)

Price Qty Net Total

Multi Solution User Year 2 7/1/2025 6/30/2026 12 $2,570.40 155 $398,412.00

> Accela Building - SaaS Year 2 7/1/2025 6/30/2026 12 $0.00 155 $0.00

> Accela Planning - SaaS Year 2 7/1/2025 6/30/2026 12 $0.00 155 $0.00

Enhanced Reporting Database
(ERD)

Year 2 7/1/2025 6/30/2026 12 $51,793.56 1 $51,793.56

Preferred Support for SaaS Year 2 7/1/2025 6/30/2026 12 $90,041.11 1 $90,041.11

TOTAL: $540,246.67

Services Year Start Date End Date Term
(Months)

Price Qty Net Total

Multi Solution User Year 3 7/1/2026 6/30/2027 12 $2,698.92 155 $418,332.60

> Accela Building - SaaS Year 3 7/1/2026 6/30/2027 12 $0.00 155 $0.00

> Accela Planning - SaaS Year 3 7/1/2026 6/30/2027 12 $0.00 155 $0.00

Quote Number:Q-33126-1 Print Date:4/11/2024
Page 1 of 3

EXHIBIT BDocuSign Envelope ID: D0DECB92-EC8A-4E73-9F07-A158061E13EA



Services Year Start Date End Date Term
(Months)

Price Qty Net Total

Enhanced Reporting Database
(ERD)

Year 3 7/1/2026 6/30/2027 12 $54,383.24 1 $54,383.24

Preferred Support for SaaS Year 3 7/1/2026 6/30/2027 12 $94,543.17 1 $94,543.17

TOTAL: $567,259.01

Services Year Start Date End Date Term
(Months)

Price Qty Net Total

Multi Solution User Year 4 7/1/2027 6/30/2028 12 $2,833.87 155 $439,249.23

> Accela Building - SaaS Year 4 7/1/2027 6/30/2028 12 $0.00 155 $0.00

> Accela Planning - SaaS Year 4 7/1/2027 6/30/2028 12 $0.00 155 $0.00

Enhanced Reporting Database
(ERD)

Year 4 7/1/2027 6/30/2028 12 $57,102.40 1 $57,102.40

Preferred Support for SaaS Year 4 7/1/2027 6/30/2028 12 $99,270.33 1 $99,270.33

TOTAL: $595,621.96

Services Year Start Date End Date Term
(Months)

Price Qty Net Total

Multi Solution User Year 5 7/1/2028 6/30/2029 12 $2,975.56 155 $461,211.69

> Accela Building - SaaS Year 5 7/1/2028 6/30/2029 12 $0.00 155 $0.00

> Accela Planning - SaaS Year 5 7/1/2028 6/30/2029 12 $0.00 155 $0.00

Enhanced Reporting Database
(ERD)

Year 5 7/1/2028 6/30/2029 12 $59,957.52 1 $59,957.52

Preferred Support for SaaS Year 5 7/1/2028 6/30/2029 12 $104,233.84 1 $104,233.84

TOTAL: $625,403.05

Pricing Summary
 Period Net Total
 Year 1 $ 514,520.64 

 Year 2 $ 540,246.67 

 Year 3 $ 567,259.01 

 Year 4 $ 595,621.96 

 Year 5 $ 625,403.05 

 Total $ 2,843,051.33 

Additional Terms:

1. No additional or conflicting terms or conditions stated in Customer’s order documentation, including purchase orders,
will be incorporated into or form any part of this Order Form or the governing agreement, and all such terms or conditions
will be null.

Quote Number:Q-33126-1 Print Date:4/11/2024
Page 2 of 3

DocuSign Envelope ID: D0DECB92-EC8A-4E73-9F07-A158061E13EA



2. This Order Form, including any OnPrem Licenses, Maintenance and Support, and Subscription Services, Enhanced 
Reporting Database and Managed Application Services will be governed by the applicable terms and conditions. If those 
terms and conditions are non-existent, have expired, do not apply or have otherwise been terminated, the following terms 
at https://www.accela.com/terms/ will govern as applicable, based on the Customer’s purchase.

3. All Software Licenses, Maintenance, and Subscription purchases are non-cancelable and non-refundable.

4. If Customer has a prior agreement with Accela, and this purchase is co-terming with that prior agreement, if the start 
date on this Order Form is before the actual delivery date of the purchase, Accela may pro-rate this purchase so that it 
can co-term with the prior agreement.

5. If this Order Form is executed and/or returned to Accela by Customer after the Order Start Date above, Accela may 
adjust the Order Start Date and Order End Date without increasing the total price based on the date Accela activates the 
products and provided that the total term length does not change.

6. Customer has previously entered into Order(s) for Support which will be replaced by this Order. Upon delivery of the 
SaaS licenses under this Order, customer will receive prorated credit for prepaid Support from the delivery date of the 
SaaS licenses to the renewal date of the previous Support Order(s).

7. Enhanced Reporting Database pricing is based on a percentage of Customers SaaS Annual Contract Value if 
applicable. As SaaS Annual Contract Value increases/decreases based on seat count changes or annual uplift ERD 
pricing will be adjusted accordingly at contract renewal.

8. Pricing is based upon payment by ACH or check. Payment by credit card (including Purchase Cards) for product
and services in this Order Form will be subject to a service charge of 3%. There is no service charge for ACH or check 
payment.

Signatures

Accela, Inc. Customer 

Signature: Signature:

Print Name: Print Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

Quote Number:Q-33126-1 Print Date:4/11/2024
Page 3 of 3

DocuSign Envelope ID: D0DECB92-EC8A-4E73-9F07-A158061E13EA

May 1, 2024

Aaron Haggarty

CLO



EXHIBIT C 
SERVICE AVAILABILITY AND SECURITY POLICY 

Service Availability 

Accela will use commercially reasonable efforts to (a) provide bandwidth sufficient for Customer’s 
use of the Subscription Services provided hereunder and in an applicable Order Form and (b) 
operate and manage the Subscription Services with a ninety-nine and nine percent (99.9%) uptime 
goal (the “Availability SLA”) excluding situations identified as “Excluded” below.   

“Excluded" means any outage that results from any of the following:   
 

a.  Any maintenance performed by Accela during Accela’s standard maintenance windows. 
Accela will notify Customer within seven calendar days of any standard maintenance and 
within twenty-four (24) hours for other non-standard emergency maintenance (collectively 
referred to herein as “Scheduled Maintenance”). Scheduled maintenance includes off-
business-hours (agency time) deployments of major releases & service packs. Major releases 
are deployed into an agency's non-production environments well in advance, typically 4 weeks 
ahead of production, to allow for adequate user acceptance testing.   

b.  Customer’s information content or application programming, or the acts or omissions 
of Customer or its agents, including, without limitation, the following:   

1.  Any mis-configuration by Customer (as determined in Accela’s sole discretion), 
including, without limitation, configuration errors and bad or unintended usage of the 
Subscription Services.   
2.  Force majeure or other circumstances beyond Accela’s reasonable control that could 
not be avoided by its exercise of due care.   

c.  Failures of the carrier networks itself and the network by which Customer connects to 
the carrier networks any other network unavailability.   

d.  Any window of time when Customer agrees that Subscription Services 
availability/unavailability will not be monitored or counted.   

e.  Interruptions or delays in providing the Subscription Services resulting from 
telecommunication or Internet service provider failures.   

f.  Customer’s or any third party’s use of the Subscription Services in an unauthorized or 
unlawful manner.   

Remedies for Excessive Downtime:   

In the event the Availability of the Subscription Services falls below the Availability SLA in a given 
calendar month, Accela will pay Customer a service credit (“Service Credit”) equal to the percentage 
of the fees set forth in the table below corresponding to the actual Availability of the Subscription 
Services during the applicable calendar month. Such Service Credit will be issued as a credit against 
any fees owed by Customer for the next calendar month of the Subscription Period or, if Customer 
does not owe any additional fees, then Accela will pay Customer the amount of the applicable 
Service Credit within thirty (30) days after the end of the calendar month in which such credit 
accrued. Such Service Credit will be in addition to any other remedies available to Customer at law, 
in equity or under this Agreement.   

System availability is measured by the following formula: x = (n - y) *100 / n   
Notes:   
(1)  "x" is the uptime percentage; "n" is the total number of hours in the given calendar month 
minus scheduled downtime; and "y" is the total number of downtime hours in the given calendar 
month.   

DocuSign Envelope ID: D0DECB92-EC8A-4E73-9F07-A158061E13EA



(2)  Specifically excluded from "n and "y" in this calculation are the exception times on scheduled 
upgrade and maintenance windows.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Customer Account Login:   

For Accela user interface access, Accela uses TLS 1.2 with AES 256 bit or similar encryption for 
protection of data in transit, which is supported by most modern browsers. Accela will also restrict 
applicable administrative user interface access to Customer corporate networks for additional security 
on written request by Customer.   

 
Accela SaaS Service Delivery:   

Accela manages its apps and infrastructures within the industry-leading Microsoft Azure hosting 
environment, specifically designed and constructed to deliver world- class physical security, power 
availability, infrastructure flexibility and growth capacity.  Accela’s audit and compliance foundation 
includes SSAE 18 SOC 2 Type II, HIPAA, California Consumer Privacy Act (CCPA), and PCI-DSS (payment 
adapters). Accela’s partnership with Microsoft delivers multi-layered security in physical datacenters, 
infrastructure and operations, with adherence to its numerous security certifications. More 
information can be found at https://azure.microsoft.com/en- us/overview/security/.   

 
 

Service  Availability   Percentage of Monthly Service   
Fees  Credited   

>99.9%   0%   
95.0% ‐  <  99.9%   5% (max of $280)   
90.0% ‐  <  95.0%   10%    (max of $560)   
80.0% ‐  <  90.0%   20%    (max $840)   
70.0% ‐  <  80.0%   30%    (max of $1,120)   
60.0% ‐  <  70.0%   40%    (max of $1,400)   
<  < 60%   50%    (max of $2,800)   

DocuSign Envelope ID: D0DECB92-EC8A-4E73-9F07-A158061E13EA



EXHIBIT D 
SOFTWARE SUPPORT SERVICES POLICY 

 
Preferred SaaS Support Policy Dated: May 31, 2022 

(5)  Customer Cooperation: Accela must be able to reproduce errors in order to resolve them. 
Customer shall cooperate and work closely with Accela to reproduce errors, including 
conducting diagnostic or troubleshooting activities, implementation of fixes or updates 
previously provided by Accela, or providing information as reasonably requested and 
appropriate. Also, Accela may access Authorized Support Contacts account and/or an admin 
account and/or Customer’s personnel may be asked to provide remote access to their 
internal system for, without limitation, conducting diagnostic or troubleshooting activities or 
implementation of fixes or updates previously provided by Accela.   

(6)  Third-Party Product Support:  If any third‐party software is supplied by Accela, notwithstanding 
anything to the contrary, Accela disclaims all support obligations for such third‐party software 
unless expressly specified by Accela in Customer’s Agreement.   

 
(7)  Named Technical Support Advisor: Accela will provide a named technical support advisor for any 
Preferred support plan holders. The technical support advisor will have knowledge of the customer's 
system and provide oversite for any support cases created with Accela. They will also facilitate the 
following:   

1.  Scheduled calls to review open support tickets with Accela; and   
2.  A monthly service review to review overall support performance.   

(8)  Monthly APO Data Loads: The Preferred support plan includes a monthly upload of APO data to 
your hosted environment. This must be requested following the methods outlined in the case 
submission process in this document. All APO load cases will be addressed as a Sev3 severity‐level case.   

(9)  Exclusions: This Support Policy does not cover the following Support Exclusions:   
a.  Support required due to Customer’s or any End User’s or third party’s misuse of the Services;   
b.  Support during times outside of Accela’s regular business hours stated above;   
c.  Support necessitated by external factors outside of Accela’s reasonable control, including any 
force majeure event or Internet access or related problems beyond the Service demarcation point;   
d.  Support of or caused by customizations (if outside of Accela’s best practice recommendations), 
configuration changes, scripting, or data loss caused by or on behalf of Customer or any End User;   

e.  Support of or caused by Customer’s or any End User’s or third party’s equipment, 
software or other technology (other than third party equipment within Accela’s direct 
control);   
f.  Support to resolve or work‐around conditions which cannot be reproduced in Accela’s 
support environment and   
g.  Support of any software add‐ons supplied together with the Service (except where 
specified in the Agreement).   

Any support services falling within these Support Exclusions may be provided by Accela at 
its discretion and, if so provided, may be subject to additional pricing and support terms 
as specified by Accela.   

(1)  Error Classification:   

Functional Definitions:  Any major system functions required for delivery of Service to 
Customer, with Service defined as fulfillment of the Customer's business functions, as 
designed, by the SaaS product.   

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D0DECB92-EC8A-4E73-9F07-A158061E13EA



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(2)  Target Initial Response Time: Accela will use commercially reasonable efforts to respond to each 
case within the applicable response time described in the table below:   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

a Initial response times are 24x7, including weekends and holidays. Severity Level 1 and 2 
cases must be submitted via telephone as described above. Severity Level 1 and 2 target 
initial response times do not apply to cases submitted via email or electronically via the 
Accela Success Community.   

 
 
 

 

Severity   Definition   
Level 1   Supported Product is non‐functional or seriously affected and there is 

no   
         Level 2   Supported Product is affected and there is no workaround available or 

the   
workaround is impractical (e.g. Supported Product response is very 

             
   

Level 3   Supported Product is non‐functional however a convenient 
workaround exists  (e.g. non‐critical feature is unavailable or 

      Level 4   Supported Product works, but there is a minor problem (e.g. 
incorrect label, or   

    

Target Initial Response Time by Case 
   Severity Level   Target Initial Response 

   1   1 houra   
2   4 hoursa   
3   8 hoursa   
4   24 hoursa   

DocuSign Envelope ID: D0DECB92-EC8A-4E73-9F07-A158061E13EA



EXHIBIT E 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
A. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance:  Accela must provide coverage with limits of liability not less than those 

stated below.   
 

1. Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form  
Said insurance must also include coverage for products completed operations, independent contractors, personal 
injury, property damage, and advertising injury. 
   

Products – Completed Operations Aggregate  $4,000,000 
  Each Occurrence     $2,000,000 
 
The policy must be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: "The City of Chandler, its agents, 
representatives, officers, directors, officials, employees, and volunteers shall be named as an additional insured 
with respect to liability arising out of the activities performed by Accela."  This endorsement may not contain an 
exclusion or limitation of completed operations coverage as regards the additional insured except with respect to 
the stated aggregate limits of liability. 
 
The policy may not exclude the explosion/collapse/underground (“xcu”) hazard. Limits may be satisfied through 

the combination of primary CL and Umbrella/Excess liability policies.  
 

2. Worker’s Compensation and Employers' Liability 
   

Workers' Compensation     Statutory 
  Employers' Liability  
  Each Accident      $1,000,000 
  Disease – Each Employee    $1,000,000 
  Disease – Policy Limit     $1,000,000 
 
Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the City of Chandler. 

 
3. Tech E&O and Network Security & Privacy Liability Insurance (Cyber)  

In addition to the insurance requirements set forth in the Agreement, Accela agrees to provide the following 
insurance coverage and limits of coverage as part of this Agreement. 

 
 For Service Contracts over $500,001 minimum limits:  

 
Per Claim    $5,000,000 
Aggregate   $5,000,000 

  
The policy shall cover professional misconduct or lack of ordinary skill for those positions defined in the Scope 
of Services of this Agreement. In the event that the professional liability insurance required by this Agreement 
is written on a claims-made basis, Accela warrants that any retroactive date under the policy shall precede 
the effective date of this Agreement; and that either continuous coverage will be maintained for an extended 
discovery period will be exercised for a period of two (2) years beginning at the time work under this 
Agreement is completed. If such insurance is maintained on an occurrence form basis, Accela shall maintain 
such insurance for an additional period of one (1) year following termination of Agreement. If such insurance 
is maintained on a claims-made basis, Accela shall maintain such insurance for an additional period of three 
(3) years following termination of the Agreement. If Accela contends that any of the insurance it maintains 
pursuant to other sections of this clause satisfies this requirement (or otherwise insures the risks described 
in this section), then Accela shall provide proof of same. The insurance shall provide coverage for the following 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D0DECB92-EC8A-4E73-9F07-A158061E13EA



risks: 
 

3.1 Liability arising from theft, dissemination and / or use of confidential information (a defined term including 
but not limited to bank account, credit card account, personal information such as name, address, social 
security numbers, etc. information) stored or transmitted in electronic form. 

 
3.2 Network Security Liability arising from the unauthorized access to, use of or tampering with computer 

systems including hacker attacks, inability of an authorized third party, to gain access to your services 
including denial of service, unless caused by a mechanical or electrical failure. 

 
3.3 Liability arising from the introduction of a computer virus into, or otherwise causing damage to, a 

customer’s or third person’s computer, computer system, network or similar computer related property 
and the data, software, and programs thereon. 

 
3.4 Additional Requirements: Except for Tech E&O professional liability coverage, the policy shall provide a 

waiver of subrogation. 
 

B.  Additional Insurance Requirements: The Commercial General Liability policy must contain, or be endorsed to 
contain, the following provisions: Accela insurance coverage must be primary insurance and non-contributory 
with respect to the obligations that Accela has undertaken under this Agreement. The policies must contain a 
severability of interest clause and waiver of subrogation against the City, its officers, officials, agents, volunteers, 
and employees, for losses arising from work performed by the Accela under this Agreement. 

 
C. Notice of Cancellation:  Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Agreement must 

provide the required coverage and must provide notice within thirty (30) days  any such cancellation to the City 
except for non-payment of premium for which a ten (10) day notice will be provided.  Such notice must be sent 
directly to the addresses listed below and must be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested: 

 
City of Chandler 
Attention:  Purchasing Division 
P.O. Box 4008, Mail Stop 901 
Chandler, Arizona 85244-4008    
Phone: (480) 782-2400    
Email: purchasing@chandleraz.gov  

 
With a copy to: Office of the City Attorney         

  Attention: Risk Management 
   175 South Arizona Avenue 
   P.O. Box 4008 Mail Stop 602 
   Chandler, Arizona  85244-4008 
   Phone: (480) 782-4640 
   Fax: (480) 782-4652 
   Email: legal.notices@chandleraz.gov 

 
D. Acceptability of Insurers:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers duly licensed or approved unlicensed 

companies in the State of Arizona and with an "A.M. Best" rating of not less than A- VII.  City in no way warrants 
that the above-required minimum insurer rating is sufficient to protect Accela from potential insurer insolvency. 

 
E. Verification of Coverage:  Accela must furnish City with certificates of insurance (ACORD form or equivalent 

approved by City) as required by this Agreement.  The certificates for each insurance policy are to be signed by a 
person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. All certificates and endorsements are to be 
received and approved by City before work commences.  Each insurance policy required by this Agreement must 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D0DECB92-EC8A-4E73-9F07-A158061E13EA



be in effect at or prior to commencement of work under this Agreement and remain in effect for the duration of 
the Agreement.  Failure to maintain the insurance policies as required by this Agreement or to reasonably provide 
evidence of renewal is a material breach of this Agreement. All certificates required by this Agreement must be 
sent directly to the City of Chandler Information Technology Department with a copy to Risk Management as the 
addresses listed in Section C.  The Agreement number and description are to be noted on the certificate of 
insurance. Accela shall provide the applicable Endorsements, as required by this Agreement, along with the 
certificates for each insurance policy. The Endorsements shall have the policy numbers that correlate to the 
certificates of insurance along with effective dates.   

 
F. Approval: Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this Agreement must have prior 

approval from the Office of the City Attorney, whose decision will be final.  Such action will not require a formal 
contract amendment but may be made by administrative action.
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D0DECB92-EC8A-4E73-9F07-A158061E13EA



ITEM  16 

City Council Memorandum      Information Technology  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager - CFO
Sandip Dholakia, Chief Information Officer

From: Adrian Zamora, Technology Support Manager
Subject: Purchase of Upgrade for Virtual Meeting Hardware and Software 

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the purchase of Cisco Webex room kit upgrades, from
Sentinel Technologies, Inc., utilizing the 1GPA Agreement No. 22-02PV-18, in an
amount not to exceed $695,000.

Background/Discussion:
In FY 2020-21, the city used Arizona Cares Act funding to acquire create virtual
meeting rooms throughout municipal facilities. At that time, much of the meeting
room hardware and software was pre-existing and only required an upgrade to
accommodate video conferencing. Currently, the city has 31 video
conference-capable virtual meeting rooms with equipment that is out of support
and out of warranty. This proposal is to upgrade 21 existing video conference
virtual meeting rooms with supported virtual meeting hardware and software and
to expand the capabilities to host virtual meetings on various platforms.

Evaluation:
Paradise Valley Unified School District competitively solicited and awarded a
contract for technology and audio/visual solutions to Sentinel Technologies, Inc.,
on behalf of 1GPA. The city has a current agreement with 1GPA allowing for the
cooperative use of its contracts. The 1GPA contract is valid through December 8,
2024.

Fiscal Impact



Account No. Fund Name Program
Name

Dollar
Amount

CIP
Funded
Y/N

401.1287.5219.0.6IT104.0 General
Government
Capital Projects

Collaborative
Mobility

$137,526 Y

401.1287.5419.0.6IT104.0 General
Government
Capital Projects

Collaborative
Mobility

$249,368 Y

401.1287.6315.0.6IT104.0 General
Government
Capital Projects

Collaborative
Mobility

$308,106 Y



ITEM  17 

City Council Memorandum      Information Technology  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager - CFO
Sandip Dholakia, Chief Information Officer

From: Kerstin Nold, IT Chief Technology Officer 
Subject: Purchase of Information Technology Research Subscription Services

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the purchase of information technology research
subscription services, from Gartner, Inc., utilizing the State of Arizona Contract No.
CTR053240, in an amount not to exceed $244,873, for the period of one year,
beginning July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2025.

Background/Discussion:
This request enables the city to accelerate the delivery of technology solutions
through industry-recognized research, development, and analysis that focuses on
technology and fiscal health by providing recommendations and guidance.
Technology insight services include access to independent IT research, advisory,
validation, and verification services to support technology directions with tools,
templates, current analysis, and the most effective delivery of essential IT
services. These services will assist the city in writing effective IT Requests for
Information (RFI), Requests for Proposals (RFP), and Return on Investment (ROI)
statements to drive continuous improvement and meet the city departments'
business needs. These services ensure the city leverages the best
technology solutions in the marketplace to meet the city's business needs. This
item will continue the city's use of Gartner, Inc., to provide this level of technology
services.

Evaluation:
The state of Arizona competitively solicited and awarded a contract for IT



The state of Arizona competitively solicited and awarded a contract for IT
advisory, assessment, verification, and validation consulting services to Gartner,
Inc. The city has a current agreement with the State of Arizona allowing for the
cooperative use of its contracts.

Financial Implications:
Funding for this purchase is contingent upon City Council adopting the FY
2024-25 budget.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program

Name
Dollar
Amount

CIP Funded
Y/N

101.1199.6316.0.0.0 General
Fund

N/A $ 244,873 N



ITEM  18 

City Council Memorandum      Information Technology  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager - CFO
Sandip Dholakia, Chief Information Officer

From: Kerstin Nold, IT Chief Technology Officer 
Subject: Purchase of Information Technology Temporary Staffing Services

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the purchase of information technology temporary
staffing services, from Computer Aid, Inc., utilizing the Sourcewell Contract No.
071321-CAI, in an amount not to exceed $7,129,534, for a period of one year,
beginning July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2025.

Background/Discussion:
The Information Technology (IT) Department has historically hired temporary staff
to assist in special projects or backfill vacant positions by utilizing competitively
solicited and awarded temporary staffing contracts. These temporary employees
have specialized skills in specific technical areas which complement IT staff and
work on a temporary basis for a specific assignment. This request is for temporary
resources in the role of technology staffing for applications, cybersecurity,
infrastructure and project manager resources for citywide project efforts. Initiatives
covered under this agreement include Cybersecurity Services, Microsoft 365
Services, Network and Telecommunications Services, Infrastructure Services,
Accela move to SaaS, Utility Billing and Online Payment System Replacements,
Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) Replacement, Data Services, and Web
Services.  The hourly rates range from $100 to $200 per hour, depending on the
skill set required. The estimated duration of the assignment ranges from 6 to 18
months.

Evaluation:
Sourcewell competitively solicited and awarded a contract for managed service



Sourcewell competitively solicited and awarded a contract for managed service
providers specifically for specialized IT resources. The city has a current
agreement with Sourcewell allowing for the cooperative use of its contracts. The
term of the Sourcewell contract is valid through September 10, 2025.

Financial Implications:
Funding for this agreement is contingent upon City Council adopting the FY
2024-25 budget.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program

Name
Dollar
Amount

CIP
Funded
Y/N

101.1199.5219.0.0.0 General Fund N/A $1,873,580 N
101.1200.5219.0.0.0 General Fund N/A $1,312,354 N
101.1280.5219.0.0.0 General Fund N/A $ 894,400 N
625.3700.5219.0.0.0 Solid Waste

Operating
N/A $ 239,200  N

401.1285.5219.0.6IC088.0 General
Government
Capital Projects

Project
Managment
Consultants

$ 450,000 Y

401.1285.5219.0.6IC102.0 General
Government
Capital Projects

Fleet
Management
System

$ 200,000 Y

401.1285.5219.0.6IC112.0 General
Government
Capital Projects

Utility Billing
Replatform

$1,100,000 Y

401.1285.5219.0.6IC141.0 General
Government
Capital Projects

ERP
Replacement

$ 150,000 Y

401.1285.5219.0.6IC144.0 General
Government
Capital Projects

Permit Solution
SaaS Migration

$ 600,000 Y

401.1285.5219.0.6IC145.0 General
Government
Capital Projects

Integrated
Language
Assistant

$ 140,000 Y

101.1286.5219.0.6IC124.0 General
Government
Capital Projects

Digital
Adoption
Platform

$ 170,000 Y





ITEM  19 

City Council Memorandum      Information Technology  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager - CFO
Sandip Dholakia, Chief Information Officer

From: Lisa Lapp, Chief Applications Officer 
Subject: Purchase of Oracle Annual Support and Maintenance

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the purchase of Oracle annual support and
maintenance, from Mythics, Inc., utilizing the Omnia Partners Contract No.
R190801, in the amount of $408,635, for a period of one year, beginning August
1, 2024, through July 31, 2025.

Background/Discussion:
The city utilizes Oracle as the Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system,
including the E-Business Suite Applications for Finance and Human Resources
(HR). The application modules include HR, Self-Services HR, Financials, Payroll,
Time Management, Project Costing, iExpense, iProcurement, Purchasing, and
Order Management.

The city purchases maintenance and support in order to provide the system and
application upgrades necessary to operate and keep Oracle modules current, as
well as to access technical assistance resources needed to resolve system issues
and enable software fixes. The cost of the maintenance and support is based on
the number of user licenses per module needed by city employees on an annual
basis.  

Evaluation:
Region 4 ESC, on behalf of Omnia Partners, competitively solicited and awarded



Region 4 ESC, on behalf of Omnia Partners, competitively solicited and awarded
a contract for Oracle products and services. The city has a current agreement with
Omnia Partners allowing for the cooperative use of its contracts. Oracle products
and services are only available through resellers, and staff recommends the use of
this contract because the city receives competitive pricing and a high level of
service from Mythics, Inc.

Financial Implications:
Funding for this purchase is contingent upon City Council adopting the FY
2024-25 budget.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program

Name
Dollar
Amount

CIP Funded
Y/N

101.1200.5419.0.0.0 General
Fund

N/A $408,635 N



ITEM  20 

City Council Memorandum      Management Services  Memo No. MS 24-099
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Dawnn Lang, Deputy City Manager - CFO
Kristi Smith, Financial Services Director

From: Raslyn Sleet, Grants Program Manager
Subject:Resolution No. 5799 Authorizing Submittal of an Indian Gaming Revenue

Sharing Grant Application from Dignity Health Foundation - East Valley to
Ak-Chin Indian Community

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5799 authorizing the submittal
of a $206,648 pass-through Indian Gaming Revenue Sharing Grant Application
from the Dignity Health Foundation – East Valley to the Ak-Chin Indian
Community for a Pilot Behavioral Health Program.

Background:
In 2002, a coalition of Arizona Indian tribes successfully obtained passage of
Proposition 202, whereby the state was authorized to enter into gaming compacts
with individual tribes. The compacts allowed for expanded tribal use of games and
gaming devices as well as pari-mutuel wagering. In exchange, tribes agreed to
share a portion of gaming revenues with the state and its counties, cities and
towns. The law provides that 12 percent of tribal contributions pursuant to the
compacts shall be contributed by Indian tribes to cities, towns and counties for
government services that benefit the general public, including public safety,
mitigation of gaming impacts and promotion of commerce and economic
development. The Indian tribes have some discretion over how these contributions
will be made, and each tribe has different application procedures that need to be
observed to obtain funding. Additionally, it has become a common practice for
cities to submit applications for such contributions on behalf of 501(c)(3) nonprofit
organizations that are deemed to be providing government services that benefit
the general public.



The City of Chandler for many years has submitted pass-through grant
applications for numerous nonprofit organizations based on the interests of the
city and its residents. The pass-through grant applicant must be a 501(c)(3)
nonprofit organization with some nexus with the City and its residents.

Dignity Health and Chandler Regional Medical Center are responding to the
community’s mental health needs in a variety of ways. Within the hospital, they
must treat increasing numbers of patients with mental health issues seeking help
in their emergency department. In the community, they are impacting high school
students in the Chandler Unified School District (CUSD) to identify and respond to
the signs of mental distress. Over the past decade, across the United States,
hospital emergency departments (EDs) have seen a 40% increase in adult
patients presenting with acute psychiatric crises. Within the last decade, EDs
have attempted to better care for the emergent psychiatric patient population with
multiple initiatives. An effort is underway to improve the ED behavioral health
process with an emphasis on compassionate and safe care while reducing
workplace violence and staff burnout.

Should this grant be awarded, Dignity Health will establish a Director of Behavioral
Health pilot position. One of the tasks of the position is to develop a Behavioral
Emergency Response Team, which will improve the behavioral health patient
experience and the satisfaction of front-line staff caring for these patients.  Dignity
Health will also use a portion of the funding to train nurses to deliver Teen Mental
Health First Aid training in CUSD high schools.

Financial Implications:
The City, by virtue of this Resolution, is acting as a financial conduit between the
Ak-Chin Indian Community and Dignity Health Foundation-East Valley, and is in
no way agreeing or obligating itself to monitor or report on the expenditure of any
grant funding distributed to or on behalf of Dignity Health Foundation-East Valley,
guarantee the accuracy, completeness or truthfulness of the information set forth
in the application materials prepared by the Dignity Health Foundation-East Valley,
supervise or take any responsibility regarding the actions or activities undertaken
by the Dignity Health Foundation-East Valley, or represent that Dignity Health
Foundation-East Valley, either has, or does not have, other sources of funding
relating to the intended use of grant funding set forth in this Resolution, including
funding from grant applications made on behalf of Dignity Health Foundation-East
Valley, to other Indian tribes.  The City has up to 10 days to send the funds once
received.



Attachments
Resolution 5799 - Dignity Health Foundation - Ak-Chin 
Dignity Health-Ak Chin Grant Signed Application 2024 



RESOLUTION NO. 5799 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, 
ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE SUBMITTAL OF AN APPLICATION FOR 
AN INDIAN GAMING REVENUE SHARING GRANT TO THE AK-CHIN 
INDIAN COMMUNITY ON BEHALF OF DIGNITY HEALTH FOUNDATION 
IN THE AMOUNT OF $206,648. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. § 5-601.02, Indian tribes entering into a tribal-state gaming 
compact shall contribute monies to “… cities, towns and counties … for government services 
that  benefit the general public, including public safety, mitigation of impacts of gaming, and 
promotion of commerce and economic development”; and 

WHEREAS, Indian tribes entering into a tribal-state gaming compact have various grant 
application procedures for evaluating which cities, towns, and counties, and which government 
services, will receive gaming revenue sharing contributions pursuant to A.R.S. § 5-601.02; and 

WHEREAS, it is common practice for cities to authorize the submission of grant applications 
for such Indian gaming revenue sharing grants on behalf of 501(c)(3) nonprofit organizations 
that are deemed to be providing government related services that benefit the general  public; and 

WHEREAS, Dignity Health Foundation – East Valley (“Dignity Health”), a 501(c)(3) nonprofit 
organization, has requested that the City of Chandler authorize the submission of an application 
for such Indian gaming revenue sharing grant funding to the Ak-Chin Indian Community on its 
behalf in the amount of $206,648; and 

WHEREAS, the funding sought is for the purpose of supporting a pilot Behavioral Health 
Program Manager position to guide the development of a Behavioral Emergency Response 
Team in the emergency room and to support nurses to teach teen Mental Health First Aid in 
CUSD high schools, as further described in the application materials prepared by Dignity 
Health, which are incorporated by reference; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager’s Office has reviewed the application materials and believes that 
the funding request described in the application materials qualifies as being for government related 
services that benefit the general public and is consistent with the City’s Administrative Regulation 
regarding such grant applications. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, 
as follows: 

Section 1.  Authorizing Dignity Health to submit this Resolution and the grant application 
materials prepared by Dignity Health to the Ak-Chin Indian Community.  



Resolution 5799 
Page 2 

Section 2. Authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute the application form or letter 
in conjunction with the grant application to be submitted to the Ak-Chin Indian 
Community on behalf of Dignity Health. 

Section 3.  Authorizing acceptance of the grant on behalf of Dignity Health in the amount of 
$206,648 or any other lesser or greater amount awarded and directing City staff to 
mail a check to Dignity Health within ten (10) days of the City’s receipt of any 
grant funds from the Ak-Chin Indian Community pursuant to a grant application 
submitted on behalf of Dignity Health, covering one hundred percent (100%) of 
the funds received. 

Section 4.  The City, by virtue of this Resolution, is simply acting as a financial conduit 
between the Ak-Chin Indian Community and Dignity Health, and is in no way: 

a. Agreeing or obligating itself to monitor or report on the expenditure of any
grant funding distributed to or on behalf of Dignity Health; or

b. Guaranteeing or warranting the accuracy, completeness, or truthfulness of
the information set forth in the application materials prepared by the Dignity
Health; or

c. Supervising or taking any responsibility regarding the actions or activities
undertaken by the Dignity Health; or

d. Representing that Dignity Health, either has, or does not have, other sources
of funding relating to the intended use of grant funding set forth in this
Resolution, including funding from grant applications made on behalf of
Dignity Health, to other Indian tribes.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, this ___ 
day of June, 2024. 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK MAYOR 



Resolution 5799 
Page 3 

CERTIFICATION 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Resolution No. 5799 was duly passed 
and adopted by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting held 
on the ____  day of June, 2024 and that a quorum was present thereat. 

CITY CLERK 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

CITY ATTORNEY 



















ITEM  21 

City Council Memorandum      Management Services  Memo No. MS 24-103
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager - CFO
Kristi Smith, Financial Services Director

From: Danielle Wells, Revenue and Tax Senior Manager
Subject:Agreement No. IT1-918-4343, Amendment No. 3, for Business License Portal

Applications and Managed Support Services

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve Agreement No. IT1-918-4343, Amendment No. 3, with
Parsus Solutions, LLC, for business license portal applications and managed
support services, in an amount not to exceed $300,000, for the period of one year,
beginning June 15, 2024, through June 14, 2025.

Background/Discussion:
In 2019, the Management Services Department, Tax and License Division,
introduced an online customer portal to automate and enhance the experience of
doing business with the City of Chandler. This online portal allows customers to
register their business, initiate a liquor license or special event liquor license
application, and apply for specialty licenses (e.g. massage, peddler, secondhand
dealer, short term rental, etc.), as well as renew, pay, and print business
registrations without the need to visit City Hall.

The city is seeking a continuation of vendor-managed support services for
providing citizen enhancements and ongoing application support and maintenance
of this portal, as well as the critical Tax and License systems (the licensing portal
and the tax and licensing software suite) which help manage the tax and licensing
data and revenues received from the State of Arizona.

Evaluation:
On June 10, 2021, City Council approved an agreement for business license



On June 10, 2021, City Council approved an agreement for business license
portal applications and managed support services with Parsus Solutions, LLC, for
a one-year period, with the option of up to three one-year extensions. The
Contractor has agreed to extend for one year at the same terms and conditions.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program

Name
Dollar
Amount

CIP Funded
Y/N

101.1200.5418.0.0.0 General
Fund

N/A $300,000 N

Attachments
Amendment 



Page 1 of 2 
 

                                                                
 

 
City Clerk Document No.     

 
City Council Meeting Date: June 13, 2024  

 
 

AMENDMENT TO CITY OF CHANDLER AGREEMENT 
BUSINESS REGISTRATION PORTAL APPLICATIONS 

MANAGED SUPPORT SERVICES 
CITY OF CHANDLER AGREEMENT NO. IT1-918-4343 

 
THIS AMENDMENT NO. 3 (Amendment No. 3) is made and entered into by and between the City of 
Chandler, an Arizona municipal corporation (City), and Parsus Solutions, LLC (Contractor), (City and 
Contractor may individually be referred to as Party and collectively referred to as Parties) and made 
   , 2024 (Effective Date). 
 

RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties entered into an agreement for managed support services (Agreement); and 
 
WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement was June 15, 2021, through June 14, 2022, with the option of up 
to three one-year extensions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties wish to exercise the third option through this Amendment to extend the 
Agreement for one year. 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
1. The recitals are accurate and are incorporated and made a part of the Agreement by this 

reference.    
 
2. Section III is amended to read as follows: The Agreement is extended for a one-year period June 

15, 2024, through June 14, 2025. 
 
3.  Section IV is amended to read as follows: The City will pay the Contractor the per unit cost set 

forth in Revised Exhibit B of Amendment 1, which is incorporated into and made a part of this 
Amendment No. 3 by this reference. Total payments made to the Contractor during the term of 
this Amendment No. 3 will not exceed $300,000. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 934F47D3-58EF-485F-B6C7-F2B3C309523E



Page 2 of 2 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have entered into this Amendment on the Effective Date. 

FOR THE CITY FOR THE CONTRACTOR 

By: _________________________________________ By: _________________________________________ 

Its:                              Mayor Its: _________________________________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: _________________________________________ 
City Attorney 

ATTEST: 

By: _________________________________________ 
City Clerk 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 934F47D3-58EF-485F-B6C7-F2B3C309523E

Partner, Parsus Solutions, LLC



ITEM  22 

City Council Memorandum      Management Services  Memo No. 24-094
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager - CFO
Kristi Smith, Financial Services Director

From: Danielle Wells, Revenue and Tax Senior Manager
Subject:New License Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License Application for Wade Alan

Stooks, Agent, Gravity Solutions Chandler, LLC, DBA Slick City Action Park

Proposed Motion:
Move for recommendation to the State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control
for approval of the State Liquor Job No. 282704, a Series 12, Restaurant Liquor
License, for Wade Alan Stooks, Agent, Gravity Solutions Chandler, LLC, DBA
Slick City Action Park, located at 845  N. 54th Street, and approval of the City of
Chandler, Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License No. 306816.

Discussion:
This application for a liquor license was posted for hearing on June 13, 2024.

Staff requests a recommendation for this liquor license as the establishment does
not have an interim liquor license permit with the Department of Liquor Licenses
and Control (DLLC) and desires to begin serving alcohol. The DLLC allows 60
days for the City to provide a recommendation for a liquor license application. This
recommendation for approval by the Local Governing Body will be within 60 days
allowing the applicant to proceed with their new liquor license application process.

The Police Department reports no objections to the issuance of this license, and
no written protests pursuant to A.R.S. 4-201(B) have been received. With a Series
12, Restaurant Liquor License, the business may sell all liquors for on-premise
consumption only, with a minimum of 40% of the gross receipts from the sale of
food.



Attachments
A-Floor Plan 





ITEM  23 

City Council Memorandum      Neighborhood Resources   Memo No. 
NR24-018
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Tadd Wille, Assistant City Manager
Leah Powell, Neighborhood Resources Director

From: Riann Balch, Community Resources Manager
Subject:Resolution No. 5810, Approving Agreements with Two Non-Profit

Organizations for the Provision of Opioid Treatment and Prevention Services

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5810, approving and
authorizing agreements with Recovery Cafe Arizona and EMPACT-Suicide
Prevent Center, for the provision of Opioid treatment and prevention services, in
the aggregate amount of $100,000.

Background:
On February 25, 2022, manufacturer Johnson & Johnson and the “big three”
distributors - McKesson, AmerisourceBergen, and Cardinal Health - finalized a
$26 billion opioid settlement agreement to resolve their liabilities in over 3,000
opioid crisis-related suits nationwide. In March 2022, the City of Chandler entered
into the One Arizona Distribution of Opioid Settlement Funds Agreement (“One
Arizona Agreement”) to establish binding terms for the distribution and spending
of funds from the national opioid settlements.  As part of the $26 billion national
settlement agreement, Arizona and its political subdivisions will receive an
estimated $542 million over 18 years. Maricopa County’s Local Government share
in the settlement is estimated to be $80 million. Additional settlement funds will be
available as litigation is resolved. Maricopa County Department of Public Health
(MCDPH) serves as the lead agency for County funds. As of April 2024, the City
of Chandler has received just over $735,000.
 



Discussion:
As one of Arizona's 90 municipalities and 13 counties to enter into the One
Arizona Agreement, the City of Chandler is committed to implementing activities in
support of the three state-approved opioid abatement categories - treatment,
prevention, and other strategies - and twelve corresponding purposes. In pursuit of
this goal, City of Chandler staff worked with key stakeholders and the greater
community to understand how opioid misuse is impacting Chandler residents and
what actions and services are needed to treat, prevent and respond to this
national emergency. Based on this information and discussions with City Council,
staff recommends partnering with two community-based organizations to provide
treatment and prevention services to Chandler residents.

Staff recommends entering into an agreement with Recovery Café Arizona for an
amount not to exceed $50,000 to support people in recovery from Opioid Use
Disorder and other co-occurring Substance Use Disorder or Mental Health
Conditions, and/or co-addiction to support continued healing and stability, and
prevent recidivism. The Recovery Café provides a peer-recovery center
model, which offers support groups, social connection, computer access, and
other services in a supportive environment. Funds will specifically support
recovery coaching sessions, recovery circles and educational opportunities
through the School for Recovery for 200 Chandler residents.

Staff recommends entering into an agreement with EMPACT-Suicide Prevention
Center (EMPACT-SPC) for an amount not to exceed $50,000 to prevent misuse of
opioids and other drugs in Chandler youth ages 10-17. EMPACT-SPC will use two
nationally recognized evidenced-based prevention curricula, "Too Good for Drugs"
and "Operation Prevention." Both programs will be delivered in Chandler schools
and involve educational components for parents/guardians. Funds will support 625
youth.

Financial Implications:
Funds are available through the One Arizona Agreement.

Attachments
Resolution 5810 Opioid Prevention 
Agreement - Recovery Cafe 
Agreement - EMPACT-Suicide Prevention Center (SPC) 



RESOLUTION NO. 5810 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING AGREEMENTS WITH TWO NON-PROFIT 
ORGANIZATIONS FOR PROVISION OF OPIOID TREATMENT AND 
PREVENTION ACTIVITIES IN THE AGGREGATE AMOUNT OF $100,000; 
AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO TAKE ALL ACTION 
NECESSARY OR APPROPRIATE TO CARRY OUT THE PURPOSES OF THIS 
RESOLUTION. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Chandler entered into a Memorandum of Agreement (“MOU”) with the 
State of Arizona to receive funds from the One Arizona Distribution of Opioid Settlement Funds 
Agreement (“One Arizona Agreement”) to implement opioid abatement strategies; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council directed staff to develop a strategic plan for the Settlement 
funds that aligns with the city’s strategic framework; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council provided direction including the implementation of eligible 
treatment, prevention and other services; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff conducted a competitive procurement process seeking treatment and 
prevention services for Chandler residents of all ages and two non-profit organizations, 
EMPACT-Suicide Prevention Center and Recovery Café Arizona, were selected for award; and  
 
WHEREAS, each organization will receive an award of up to $50,000 of One Arizona Agreement 
funds for a total expenditure not to exceed $100,000 for a one-year period beginning July 1, 2024. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, 
as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Approves the allocation of One Arizona Agreement funds in the aggregate 

amount $100,000 to EMPACT-Suicide Prevention Center and Recovery Café 
Arizona in accordance with the recommendations of staff. 

 
Section 2.  Authorizes the City Manager, or designee, to enter into agreements with 

EMPACT-Suicide Prevention Center and Recovery Café Arizona, in a form 
approved by the City Attorney and substantially as attached hereto as Exhibits 
“A” and “B” respectfully. 

 
Section 3.  Authorizes the City Manager, or designee, to take all other action necessary or 

appropriate to carry out the purposes of this Resolution. 
 

  



Resolution 5810 
Page 2 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, this _____ day 
of ________________, 2024. 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ _______________________________ 
CITY CLERK  MAYOR 

CERTIFICATION 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Resolution No. 5810 was duly passed and 
adopted by the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting held on the _____ day of 
_______________, 2024 and that a quorum was present thereat. 

____________________________ 
CITY CLERK 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

____________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY  



EXHIBIT “A” 
  



 

EXHIBIT “B” 



Agreement No.NRD-24-OS2 Page 1 Res. No. 5810 
 

                                                                
CITY OF CHANDLER SERVICES AGREEMENT NO. NRD-24-OS2 

 
THIS AGREEMENT (Agreement) is made and entered into by and between the City of Chandler, an Arizona 
municipal corporation, (City), and Recovery Café Arizona, an Arizona Nonprofit Corporation (Contractor), (City and 
Contractor may individually be referred to as Party and collectively referred to as Parties). 
 

RECITALS 
 
A.  The City entered the One Arizona Distribution of Opioid Settlement Funds Agreement (“One Arizona 
Agreement”) with the State of Arizona to receive funds for use in implementing opioid abatement strategies to 
combat community harms caused by the opioid epidemic.  The One Arizona Agreement is attached to this 
Agreement as Exhibit “A.” 
 
B.  The Contractor provides services that qualify as Opioid Abatement Strategies pursuant to Exhibit A of the One 
Arizona Agreement.  
 
C.  City proposes for Contractor to provide services as described in Exhibit B Scope of Services. 
 
D. Contractor is ready, willing, and able to provide the services described in Exhibit B for the compensation and 
fees set forth and as described in Exhibit B, which are attached to and made a part of this Agreement by this 
reference. 
 
E. City desires to contract with the Contractor to provide these services under the terms and conditions set forth in 
this Agreement. 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual promises contained in this Agreement, City 
and Contractor agree as follows: 
 
SECTION I: DEFINITIONS 
For purposes of this Agreement, the following definitions will apply: 
Agreement means the legal agreement executed between the City and the Contractor.  
City means the City of Chandler, Arizona 
Contractor means the individual, partnership, or corporation named in the Agreement. 
Days means calendar days. 
May, Should means something that is not mandatory but permissible. 
Shall, Will, Must means a mandatory requirement.  
 
SECTION II: CONTRACTOR’S SERVICES 
Contractor must perform the services described in Exhibit B to the City’s satisfaction within the terms and conditions 
of this Agreement and within the care and skill that a person who provides similar services in Chandler, Arizona 
exercises under similar conditions. In performing these services, Contractor will also specifically comply with the 
applicable Special Conditions that are set forth in Exhibit D.  Contractor will provide progress reports to the City 
according to the schedule referenced in the Scope of Services. 
 
SECTION III: PERIOD OF SERVICE 
Contractor must perform the services described in Exhibit B during the term of this Agreement.  
 
The term of the Agreement is one year, commencing on July 1, 2024, and terminating on June 30, 2025, unless 
sooner terminated in accordance with the provisions herein. The City may, at its sole discretion and at no additional 
cost, extend the term of this Agreement for up to 60 days beyond the expiration of the term by delivering written 
notice to Contractor within 10 days of the Agreement’s expiration, provided that the City gives Contractor preliminary 
written notice of its intent to extend at least 30 days before the Agreement expires.  The preliminary notice does not 
commit the City to an extension. The Parties may mutually agree to renew the agreement for up to four additional 
one-year periods of service or portions thereof. 
  



Agreement No.NRD-24-OS2 Page 2 Res. No. 5810 
 

SECTION lV: PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION AND FEES 
4.1 Compensation and Fees. Unless amended in writing by the Parties, Contractor's compensation and fees as 
more fully described in Exhibit C for performance of the services approved and accepted by the City under this 
Agreement must not exceed $50,000.  Payment for services includes payment for all costs and expenses defined 
in the approved services budget that may be incurred by Contractor in the performance of approved services. No 
additional charges, outside of the approved services budget, will be eligible for payment. Contractor shall bear all 
responsibility and liability for any and all tax obligations that result from Contractor’s performance under this 
Agreement.  Contractor acknowledges that payment will be made from One Arizona Agreement funds and can only 
be used for Opioid Abatement Strategies approved in Exhibit A of the One Arizona Agreement.  
 
4.2 Invoices. The Contractor shall submit one legible copy of their detailed invoice before payment(s) can be 
made. Incomplete invoices will not be processed. The City will provide an invoice template upon execution of 
contract. 
 
4.3 Payments. City reserves the right to implement a cost reimbursement methodology at the beginning of a contract 
or with 30-day written notice. Cost reimbursement requires the contractor to submit requests for payment of services 
approved and accepted during the previous billing period and must include, as applicable, detailed invoices and 
receipts, a narrative description of the tasks accomplished during the billing period, a list of any deliverables 
submitted, and any subcontractor’s or supplier’s actual requests for payment plus similar narrative and listing of 
their work. Payment for those services negotiated as a lump sum will be made in accordance with the percentage 
of the work completed during the preceding billing period. Services negotiated as a not-to-exceed fee will be paid 
in accordance with the work completed on the service during the preceding month. All requests for payment must 
be submitted to the City for review and approval. The City will make payment for approved and accepted services 
within 30 days of the City’s receipt of the request for payment.  
 
SECTION V: GENERAL CONDITIONS 
5.1 Records/Audit. Records of the Contractor's direct personnel payroll, reimbursable expenses pertaining to this 
Agreement and records of accounts between the City and Contractor must be kept on the basis of generally 
accepted accounting principles and must be made available to the City and its auditors for up to five years following 
the City’s final acceptance of the services under this Agreement. The City reserves the right to audit Contractor's 
records to verify the accuracy and appropriateness of all cost and pricing data, including data used to negotiate this 
Agreement and any amendments. The City reserves the right to decrease the total amount of Agreement price or 
payments made under this Agreement or request reimbursement from the Contractor following final contract 
payment on this Agreement if, upon audit of the Contractor's records, the audit discloses the Contractor has 
provided false, misleading, or inaccurate cost and pricing data. The Contractor will include a similar provision in all 
of its contracts with subcontractors providing services under the Agreement Documents to ensure that the City, its 
authorized representative, or the appropriate federal agency, has access to the subcontractors’ records to verify 
the accuracy of all cost and pricing data. The City reserves the right to decrease Contract price or payments made 
on this Agreement or request reimbursement from the Contractor following final payment on this Agreement if the 
above provision is not included in subcontractor agreements, and one or more subcontractors refuse to allow the 
City to audit their records to verify the accuracy and appropriateness of all cost and pricing data. If, following an 
audit of this Agreement, the audit discloses the Contractor has provided false, misleading, or inaccurate cost and 
pricing data, and the cost discrepancies exceed 1% of the total Agreement billings, the Contractor will be liable for 
reimbursement of the reasonable, actual cost of the audit. 
 
5.2 Alteration in Character of Work. Whenever an alteration in the character of work results in a substantial change 
in this Agreement, thereby materially increasing or decreasing the scope of services, cost of performance, or 
schedule of services, the work will be performed as directed by the City. However, before any modified work is 
started, a written amendment must be approved and executed by the City and the Contractor. Such amendment 
must not be effective until approved by the City. Additions to, modifications, or deletions from this Agreement as 
provided herein may be made, and the compensation to be paid to the Contractor may accordingly be adjusted by 
mutual agreement of the Parties. It is distinctly understood and agreed that no claim for extra work done or materials 
furnished by the Contractor will be allowed by the City except as provided herein, nor must the Contractor do any 
work or furnish any materials on City’s behalf not covered by this Agreement unless such work is first authorized in 
writing by the City. Any such work or materials furnished by the Contractor without prior written authorization will be 
at Contractor's own risk, cost, and expense, and Contractor hereby agrees that without written authorization, 
Contractor will make no claim for compensation for such work or materials furnished. 
 
5.3 Termination.  
 

a) For Convenience. The City and the Contractor hereby agree to the full performance of the covenants 
contained herein, except that the City reserves the right, at its discretion and without cause, to 
terminate or abandon any service or portion thereof provided for in this Agreement for convenience by 



Agreement No.NRD-24-OS2 Page 3 Res. No. 5810 
 

providing sixty (60) days written notice to Contractor. In the event of termination for convenience as 
provided under this paragraph, Contractor will receive compensation in full for services performed to 
the date of such termination provided that such services are performed in accordance with the 
provisions of this Agreement. The fee shall be paid in accordance with Section Ill of this Agreement, 
and as mutually agreed upon by the Contractor and the City. If there is no mutual agreement on 
payment, the final determination will be made in accordance with the Disputes provision in this 
Agreement. However, in no event may the fee exceed the fee set forth in this Agreement nor as 
amended in accordance with Alteration in Character of Work. The City will make the final payment 
within 60 days after the Contractor has delivered the last of the partially completed items and the 
Parties agree on the final fee.  

b) For cause. The City may terminate this Agreement for cause immediately upon the occurrence of any one 
or more of the following events: (a) the Contractor fails to perform pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, 
(b) the Contractor is adjudged a bankrupt or insolvent, (c) the Contractor makes a general assignment for 
the benefit of creditors, (d) a trustee or receiver is appointed for Contractor or for any of Contractor’s 
property (e) the Contractor files a petition to take advantage of any debtor's act, or to reorganize under the 
bankruptcy or similar laws, (f) the Contractor disregards laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or orders of 
any public body having jurisdiction, or (g) the Contractor fails to cure default within the time requested. 
Where this Agreement has been terminated by City for cause under this paragraph, the termination shall 
not affect any rights of City against Contractor then existing for breach of this Agreement or which may 
thereafter accrue. 

 
5.4 Indemnification. The Contractor (lndemnitor) must indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the City and 
its officers, officials, agents and employees (lndemnitee) from any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, 
losses or expenses (including court costs, attorneys' fees and costs of claim processing, investigation and 
litigation) (Claims) caused or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the wrongful, negligent or willful 
acts, or errors or omissions of the Contractor or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, employees, or 
subcontractors in connection with this Agreement. This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of 
or recovered under workers' compensation law or on account of the failure of the Contractor to conform to any 
federal, state or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree. The Contractor must indemnify 
lndemnitee from and against any and all Claims, except those arising solely from lndemnitee's own negligent 
or willful acts or omissions. The Contractor is responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment 
costs where this indemnification applies. In consideration of the award of this Agreement, the Contractor 
agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against lndemnitee for losses arising from or related to this 
Agreement. The obligations of the Contractor under this provision survive the termination or expiration of this 
Agreement. 
 
5.5 Insurance Requirements. Contractor must procure insurance under the terms and conditions and for the 
amounts of coverage set forth in Exhibit D against claims that may arise from or relate to performance of the 
work under this Agreement by Contractor and its agents, representatives, employees, and subcontractors. 
Contractor and any subcontractors must maintain this insurance until all of their obligations have been 
discharged, including any warranty periods under this Agreement. These insurance requirements are 
minimum requirements for this Agreement and in no way limit the indemnity covenants contained in this 
Agreement. The City in no way warrants that the minimum limits stated in Exhibit D are sufficient to protect 
the Contractor from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of the work under this Agreement by the 
Contractor, the Contractor’s agents, representatives, employees, or subcontractors. Contractor is free to 
purchase such additional insurance as may be determined necessary. 
 
5.6 Cooperation and Further Documentation. The Contractor agrees to provide the City such other duly 
executed documents as may be reasonably requested by the City to implement the intent of this Agreement. 
 
5.7 Notices. Unless otherwise provided, notice under this Agreement must be in writing and will be deemed 
to have been duly given and received either (a) on the date of service if personally served on the party to 
whom notice is to be given, or (b) on the date notice is sent if by electronic mail, or (c) on the third day after 
the date of the postmark of deposit by first class United States mail, registered or certified, postage prepaid    
and properly addressed as follows: 
  



Agreement No.NRD-24-OS2 Page 4 Res. No. 5810 
 

For the City For the Contractor 
Name: Riann Balch Name: Anthony Eaton 
Title: Community Resources Senior Manager Title: Executive Director 
Address: Mail Stop 600 

    PO Box 4008 
    Chandler, AZ 85244-4008 

Address: 2992 N Alma School Road Suite 3 
Chandler, AZ 85224 
 

Phone: (480)782-4352 Phone: (480)688-7945 
Email: riann.balch@chandleraz.gov 
 

Email: anthonye.recoverycafeaz@gmail.com 
 

5.8 Successors and Assigns. City and Contractor each bind itself, its partners, successors, assigns, and legal 
representatives to the other party to this Agreement and to the partners, successors, assigns, and legal 
representatives of such other party in respect to all covenants of this Agreement. Neither the City nor the 
Contractor may assign, sublet, or transfer its interest in this Agreement without the written consent of the other 
party. In no event may any contractual relation be created between any third party and the City. 
 
5.9 Disputes. In any dispute arising out of an interpretation of this Agreement or the duties required not 
disposed of by agreement between the Contractor and the City, the final determination at the administrative 
level will be made by the City Purchasing and Materials Manager. 
 
5.10 Completeness and Accuracy of Contractor's Work. The Contractor must be responsible for the 
completeness and accuracy of Contractor's services, data, and other work prepared or compiled under 
Contractor's obligation under this Agreement and must correct, at Contractor's expense, all willful or negligent 
errors, omissions, or acts that may be discovered. The fact that the City has accepted or approved the 
Contractor's work will in no way relieve the Contractor of any of Contractor's responsibilities. 
 
5.11 Withholding Payment. The City reserves the right to withhold funds from the Contractor's payments up 
to the amount equal to the claims the City may have against the Contractor until such time that a settlement 
on those claims has been reached. 
 
5.12 City's Right of Cancellation. The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement is subject to cancellation by 
the City under the provisions of Section 38-511, Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.). 
 
5.13 Independent Contractor. For this Agreement the Contractor constitutes an independent contractor. Any 
provisions in this Agreement that may appear to give the City the right to direct the Contractor as to the details 
of accomplishing the work or to exercise a measure of control over the work means that the Contractor must 
follow the wishes of the City as to the results of the work only. These results must comply with all applicable 
laws and ordinances. 
 
5.14 Staffing. Prior to the start of any work under this Agreement, the Contractor must assign to the City the 
key personnel that will be involved in performing services prescribed in the Agreement. The City may 
acknowledge its acceptance of such personnel to perform services under this Agreement. At any time 
hereafter that the Contractor desires to change key personnel while performing under the Agreement, the 
Contractor must provide notice and submit the qualifications of the new personnel to the City. The Contractor 
will maintain an adequate and competent staff of qualified persons, as may be determined by the City, 
throughout the performance of this Agreement to ensure acceptable and timely completion of the Scope of 
Services. If the City objects, with reasonable cause, to any of the Contractor's staff, the Contractor must take 
prompt corrective action acceptable to the City and, if required, remove such personnel from the services 
assigned to this Agreement and replace with new personnel agreed to by the City. 
 
5.15 Subcontractors. Prior to beginning the work, the Contractor must furnish the City for approval the names 
of subcontractors and scope of work to be used under this Agreement. Any subsequent changes are subject 
to the City’s written prior approval. 
 
5.16 Force Majeure. If either party is delayed or prevented from the performance of any act required under 
this Agreement by reason of acts of God or other cause beyond the control and without fault of the Party 
(financial inability excepted), performance of that act may be excused, but only for the period of the delay, if 
the Party provides written notice to the other Party within ten days of such act. The time for performance of 
the act may be extended for a period equivalent to the period of delay from the date written notice is received 
by the other Party. 
  

mailto:riann.balch@chandleraz.gov


Agreement No.NRD-24-OS2 Page 5 Res. No. 5810 
 

 
5.17 Compliance with Federal Laws. Contractor understands and acknowledges the applicability of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 and the Drug Free Workplace 
Act of 1989 to it. The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable codes, ordinances and requirements in 
performing this Agreement and to permit the City to verify such compliance. 
 
5.18 No Forced Uyghur Labor. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor certifies under A.R.S. § 35-394 
that Contractor does not currently and agrees for the duration of the contract that Contractor will not use: (i) 
the forced labor of ethnic Uyghurs in the People's Republic of China; or (ii) any goods or services produced 
by the forced labor of ethnic Uyghurs in the People's Republic of China; or (iii) any contractors, subcontractors 
or suppliers that use the forced labor or any goods or services produced by the forced labor of ethnic Uyghurs 
in the People's Republic of China.    
 
5.19 No Israel Boycott. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor certifies that Contractor is not currently 
engaged in, and agrees for the duration of the Agreement, not to engage in a boycott of Israel as defined by 
state statute. 
 
5.20 Legal Worker Requirements. A.R.S. § 41-4401 prohibits the City from awarding a contract to any 
contractor who fails, or whose subcontractors fail, to comply with A.R.S. § 23-214(A). Therefore, Contractor 
agrees Contractor and each subcontractor it uses warrants their compliance with all federal immigration laws 
and regulations that relate to their employees and their compliance with § 23-214, subsection A. A breach of 
this warranty will be deemed a material breach of the Agreement and may be subject to penalties up to and 
including termination of the Agreement. City retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any Contractor’s or 
subcontractor’s employee who provides services under this Agreement to ensure that the Contractor and 
subcontractors comply with the warranty under this provision. 
 
5.21 Lawful Presence Requirement. A.R.S. §§ 1-501 and 1-502 prohibit the City from awarding a contract to 
any natural person who cannot establish that such person is lawfully present in the United States. To establish 
lawful presence, a person must produce qualifying identification and sign a City-provided affidavit affirming 
that the identification provided is genuine. This requirement will be imposed at the time of contract award. This 
requirement does not apply to business organizations such as corporations, partnerships, or limited liability 
companies. 
 
5.22 Covenant Against Contingent Fees. Contractor warrants that no person has been employed or retained 
to solicit or secure this Agreement upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, 
brokerage, or contingent fee, and that no member of the Chandler City Council, or any City employee has any 
interest, financially, or otherwise, in Contractor’s firm. For breach or violation of this warrant, the City may 
annul this Agreement without liability or, at its discretion, to deduct from the Agreement price or consideration, 
the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee. 
 
5.23 Non-Waiver Provision. The failure of either Party to enforce any of the provisions of this Agreement or to 
require performance of the other Party of any of the provisions hereof must not be construed to be a waiver 
of such provisions, nor must it affect the validity of this Agreement or any part thereof, or the right of either 
Party to thereafter enforce each and every provision. 
 
5.24 Disclosure of Information Adverse to the City’s Interests. To evaluate and avoid potential conflicts of 
interest, the Contractor must provide written notice to the City, as set forth in this Section, of any work or 
services performed by the Contractor for third parties that may involve or be associated with any real property 
or personal property owned or leased by the City. Such notice must be given 7 business days prior to 
commencement of the services by the Contractor for a third party, or 7 business days prior to an adverse 
action as defined below. Written notice and disclosure must be sent to the City’s Purchasing and Materials 
Manager. An adverse action under this Agreement includes, but is not limited to: (a) using data as defined in 
the Agreement acquired in connection with this Agreement to assist a third party in pursuing administrative or 
judicial action against the City; or (b) testifying or providing evidence on behalf of any person in connection 
with an administrative or judicial action against the City; or (c) using data to produce income for the Contractor 
or its employees independently of performing the services under this Agreement, without the prior written 
consent of the City. Contractor represents that except for those persons, entities, and projects identified to the 
City, the services performed by the Contractor under this Agreement are not expected to create an interest 
with any person, entity, or third-party project that is or may be adverse to the City’s interests. Contractor's 
failure to provide a written notice and disclosure of the information as set forth in this Section constitute a 
material breach of this Agreement. 
  



Agreement No.NRD-24-OS2 Page 6 Res. No. 5810 
 

5.25 Rights in Data. City shall have the use of data and reports resulting from this Agreement without additional 
cost or other restriction except as may be established by law or applicable regulation.  Subject to the foregoing, 
each Party shall supply to the other Party, upon request, any available information that is relevant to this 
Agreement and to the performance thereunder. 
 
5.26 Data Confidentiality and Security. Personal identifying information, protected health information, financial 
account information, or restricted City information (together “Confidential Information”), whether electronic 
format or hard copy, must be secured and protected at all times by Contractor and any of its subcontractors. 
At a minimum, Contractor must encrypt or password-protect electronic files containing Confidential 
Information. This includes data saved to laptop computers, computerized devices, or removable storage 
devices. When any Confidential Information, regardless of its format, is no longer necessary or subject to 
federal or state retention requirements, the information must be redacted or destroyed through appropriate 
and secure methods that ensure the information cannot be viewed, accessed, or reconstructed. In the event 
that Confidential Information collected or obtained by Contractor or its subcontractors in connection with this 
Agreement is believed to have been compromised, Contractor or its subcontractors must immediately notify 
the City contact. Contractor agrees to reimburse the City for any costs incurred by the City to investigate 
potential breaches of Confidential Information and, where applicable, the cost of notifying individuals who may 
be impacted by the breach. Contractor agrees that the requirements of this Section must be incorporated into 
all subcontracts entered into by Contractor. It is further agreed that a violation of this Section must be deemed 
to cause irreparable harm that justifies injunctive relief in court. A violation of this Section may result in 
immediate termination of this Agreement without notice. The obligations of Contractor or its subcontractors 
under this Section must survive the termination of this Agreement. 
 
5.27 Jurisdiction and Venue. This Agreement is made under, and must be construed in accordance with and 
governed by the laws of the State of Arizona without regard to the conflicts or choice of law provisions thereof. 
Any action to enforce any provision of this Agreement or to obtain any remedy with respect hereto must be 
brought in the courts located in Maricopa County, Arizona, and for this purpose, each Party hereby expressly 
and irrevocably consents to the jurisdiction and venue of such court. 
 
5.28 Survival. All warranties, representations, and indemnifications by the Contractor must survive the 
completion or termination of this Agreement. 
 
5.29 Modification. Except as expressly provided herein to the contrary, no supplement, modification, or 
amendment of any term of this Agreement will be deemed binding or effective unless in writing and signed by 
the Parties.  
 
5.30 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement or the application to any person or circumstance may be 
invalid, illegal or unenforceable to any extent, the remainder of this Agreement and the application will not be 
affected and will be enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. 
 
5.31 Integration. This Agreement contains the full agreement of the Parties. Any prior or contemporaneous 
written or oral agreement between the Parties regarding the subject matter is merged and superseded. 
 
5.32 Time is of the Essence. Time of each of the terms, covenants, and conditions of this Agreement is hereby 
expressly made of the essence. 
 
5.33 Date of Performance. If the date of performance of any obligation or the last day of any time period 
provided for should fall on a Saturday, Sunday, or holiday for the City, the obligation will be due and owing, 
and the time period will expire, on the first day after which is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal City holiday. 
Except as may otherwise be set forth in this Agreement, any performance provided for herein will be timely 
made if completed no later than 5:00 p.m. (Chandler time) on the day of performance. 
 
5.34 Third Party Beneficiary. Nothing under this Agreement will be construed to give any rights or benefits in 
the Agreement to anyone other than the City and the Contractor, and all duties and responsibilities undertaken 
pursuant to this Agreement will be for the sole and exclusive benefit of City and the Contractor and not for the 
benefit of any other party. 
 
5.35 Conflict in Language. All work performed must conform to all applicable City of Chandler codes, 
ordinances, and requirements as outlined in this Agreement. If there is a conflict in interpretation between 
provisions in this Agreement and those in the Exhibits, the provisions in this Agreement prevail. 
 
5.36 Document/Information Release. Documents and materials released to the Contractor, which are 
identified by the City as sensitive and confidential, are the City’s property. The document/material must be 



Agreement No.NRD-24-OS2 Page 7 Res. No. 5810 
 

issued by and returned to the City upon completion of the services under this Agreement. Contractor’s 
secondary distribution, disclosure, copying, or duplication in any manner is prohibited without the City’s prior 
written approval. The document/material must be kept secure at all times. This directive applies to all identified 
City documents, whether in photographic, printed, or electronic data format.  
 
5.37 Exhibits. The following exhibits are made a part of this Agreement and are incorporated by reference: 
 
    Exhibit A –One Arizona Agreement 

Exhibit B - Scope of Services 
Exhibit C - Compensation and Fees 
Exhibit D - Insurance Requirements 
Exhibit E - Special Conditions  
 

5.38 Special Conditions. As part of the services Contractor provides under this Agreement, Contractor agrees 
to comply with and fully perform the special terms and conditions set forth in Exhibit D, which is attached to 
and made a part of this Agreement. 
 
5.39 Compliance with School District Policies.  If required to provide services on a school district property, 
Contractor shall comply with said school district’s policies applicable to contractors on the premises, including, 
but not limited to fingerprinting policies.  The school district may conduct, and Contractor and its subcontractors 
shall agree to, a fingerprint check in accordance with A.R.S. § 41-1750 and Public Law 92-544 of all 
Contractors, subcontractors or vendors and their employees for which fingerprints are submitted to the school 
district.  Contractor, sub-contractors, vendors and their employees shall not provide services on school district 
properties until authorized by the applicable school district.  
 
5.40 Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors must comply with all 
applicable City, state, and federal non-discrimination and anti-harassment laws, rules, and regulations. 
 
5.41 Licenses and Permits. Beginning with the Effective Date and for the full term of this Agreement, 
Contractor must maintain all applicable City, state, and federal licenses and permits required to fully perform 
Contractor’s services under this Agreement. 
 
5.42 Availability of Funds. Every payment obligation under this Agreement is conditioned upon the availability 
of funds appropriated or allocated for the payment of such obligations.  If funds are not allocated or available 
for the continuance of this Agreement, this Agreement may be terminated by the City.  No liability shall accrue 
to the City in the event the foregoing provision is exercised, and the City will not be obligated or liable for any 
future payments or for any damages as a result of such termination.  
 
5.43 Emergency Purchases.  City reserves the rights to purchase from other sources those services and/or 
items, which are required on an emergency basis and cannot be supplied immediately by the Contractor. 
 
5.44 Non-Exclusive Agreement. This Agreement is for the sole convenience of the City of Chandler. The City 
reserves the right to obtain like goods or services from another source when necessary. 
 
5.45 Budget Approval Into Next Fiscal Year.  This Agreement will commence on July 1, 2024 (the “Effective Date”) 
and continue in full force and effect until it is terminated or expires in accordance with the provisions of this 
Agreement.  The Parties recognize that the continuation of this Agreement after the close of the City's fiscal year, 
which ends on June 30 of each year, is subject to the City Council's approval of a budget that includes an 
appropriation for this item as an expenditure.  The City does not represent that this budget item will be actually 
adopted. This determination is solely made by the City Council at the time Council adopts the budget. 
 
This Agreement shall be in full force and effect only when it has been approved and executed by the duly 
authorized City officials. 
  



Agreement No.NRD-24-OS2 Page 8 Res. No. 5810
 

The Parties have executed this Agreement on this  day of  , 2024 
(Executed Date). 

FOR THE CITY FOR THE CONTRACTOR 

By: _________________________________________ By: 
_________________________________________ 

Its:_________________________________________ Its: 
_________________________________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: _________________________________________ 
City Attorney 

ATTEST: 

By: _________________________________________ 
City Clerk 



Agreement No.NRD-24-OS2 Page 9 Res. No. 5810 
 

EXHIBIT A TO AGREEMENT 
ONE ARIZONA AGREEMENT 

 
  



ONE ARIZONA DISTRIBUTION OF OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUNDS 

AGREEMENT 

General Principles 

The people of the State of Arizona and Arizona communities have been harmed by the 

opioid epidemic, which was caused by entities within the Pharmaceutical Supply Chain. 

The State of Arizona, ex rel. Mark Brnovich, Attorney General (the “State”), and certain 

Participating Local Governments are separately engaged in litigation seeking to hold the 
Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participants accountable for the damage they caused. 

The State and the Participating Local Governments share a common desire to abate and 
alleviate the impacts of the Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participants’ misconduct 

throughout the State of Arizona. 

The State and the Participating Local Governments previously entered into the One 
Arizona Opioid Settlement Memorandum of Understanding for the purpose of jointly 

approaching Settlement negotiations with the Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participants. 

The State and the Participating Local Governments now enter into this One Arizona 

Distribution of Opioid Settlement Funds Agreement (“Agreement”) to establish binding 

terms for the distribution and spending of funds from Settlements with the Pharmaceutical 
Supply Chain Participants. 

A. Definitions 

As used in this Agreement: 

I. “Approved Purpose(s)” shall mean those uses identified in the agreed Opioid Abatement 
Strategies attached as Exhibit A. 

“Contingency Fee Fund” shall mean a sub fund established in a Settlement for the purpose 

of paying contingency fees, such as the Attorney Fee Fund described in Section 1.V of the 

Settlement with the Settling Distributors and the sub fund of the Attorney Fee Fund 

described in Section ILD of the Settlement with J&J.! 

“J&J” shall mean Johnson & Johnson, Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc., OrthoMcNeil- 

Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc., and Janssen Pharmaceutica, Inc. 

“Litigation” means existing or potential legal claims against Pharmaceutical Supply Chain 

Participants seeking to hold them accountable for the damage caused by their misfeasance, 

nonfeasance, and malfeasance relating to the unlawful manufacture, marketing, promotion, 

distribution, or dispensing of prescription opioids. 

  

I Text of both settlements available at https://nationalopioidsettlement.com. 
 

ONE ARIZONA DISTRIBUTION OF OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUNDS 
AGREEMENT 

General Principles 

 The people of the State of Arizona and Arizona communities have been harmed by the
opioid epidemic, which was caused by entities within the Pharmaceutical Supply Chain.

 The State of Arizona, ex rel. Mark Brnovich, Attorney General (the “State”), and certain
Participating Local Governments are separately engaged in litigation seeking to hold the
Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participants accountable for the damage they caused.

 The State and the Participating Local Governments share a common desire to abate and
alleviate the impacts of the Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participants’ misconduct
throughout the State of Arizona.

 The State and the Participating Local Governments previously entered into the One
Arizona Opioid Settlement Memorandum of Understanding for the purpose of jointly
approaching Settlement negotiations with the Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participants.

 The State and the Participating Local Governments now enter into this One Arizona
Distribution of Opioid Settlement Funds Agreement (“Agreement”) to establish binding
terms for the distribution and spending of funds from Settlements with the Pharmaceutical
Supply Chain Participants.

A. Definitions

As used in this Agreement: 

1. “Approved Purpose(s)” shall mean those uses identified in the agreed Opioid Abatement
Strategies attached as Exhibit A.

2. “Contingency Fee Fund” shall mean a sub fund established in a Settlement for the purpose
of paying contingency fees, such as the Attorney Fee Fund described in Section I.V of the
Settlement with the Settling Distributors and the sub fund of the Attorney Fee Fund
described in Section II.D of the Settlement with J&J.1

3. “J&J” shall mean Johnson & Johnson, Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc., OrthoMcNeil-
Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc., and Janssen Pharmaceutica, Inc.

4. “Litigation” means existing or potential legal claims against Pharmaceutical Supply Chain
Participants seeking to hold them accountable for the damage caused by their misfeasance,
nonfeasance, and malfeasance relating to the unlawful manufacture, marketing, promotion,
distribution, or dispensing of prescription opioids.

1  Text of both settlements available at https://nationalopioidsettlement.com. 



10. 

11. 

12. 

“Opioid Funds” shall mean monetary amounts obtained through a Settlement as defined in 
this Agreement. 

“Participating Local Government(s)” shall mean all counties, cities, and towns within the 

geographic boundaries of the State that have chosen to sign on to this Agreement and each 
applicable Settlement. The Participating Local Governments may be referred to separately 
in this Agreement as “Participating Counties” and “Participating Cities and Towns” (or 

“Participating Cities or Towns,” as appropriate). 

“Parties” shall mean the State and the Participating Local Governments. 

“Pharmaceutical Supply Chain” shall mean the process and channels through which licit 

opioids are manufactured, marketed, promoted, distributed, or dispensed. 

“Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participant” shall mean any entity that engages in or has 
engaged in the manufacture, marketing, promotion, distribution, or dispensing of licit 

opioids. 

“Settlement” shall mean the negotiated resolution of legal or equitable claims against a 
Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participant when that resolution has been jointly entered into 

by the State and the Participating Local Government and approved as final by a court of 
competent jurisdiction. 

“Settling Distributors” shall mean McKesson Corporation, Cardinal Health, Inc., and 

AmerisourceBergen Corporation. 

“Trustee” shall mean either (1) an independent trustee who shall be responsible for the 
ministerial task of releasing the Opioid Funds that are in trust as authorized herein and 

accounting for all payments into or out of the trust, or (2) a settlement fund administrator, 
in the event that the Settlement includes a fund administrator. In either case, the Trustee 

will distribute funds in accordance with this Agreement. 

B. Intrastate Regions 

I. The State of Arizona will be divided into regions, each of which will be referred to as a 
“Region” and will consist of: (1) a single Participating County and all of its Participating 

Cities and Towns; or (2) all of the Participating Cities and Towns within a non- 

Participating County. If there is only one Participating City or Town within a non- 

Participating County, that single Participating City or Town will still constitute a Region. 

Two or more Regions may at their discretion form a group (“Multicounty Region”). 

Regions that do not choose to form a Multicounty Region will be their own Region. 

Participating Cities and Towns within a non-Participating County may not form a Region 

with Participating Cities and Towns in another county. 

The LG Share funds described in Section C(1) will be distributed to each Region according 

to the percentages set forth in Exhibit B. The Regional allocation model uses three equally 

weighted factors: (1) the amount of opioids shipped to the Region; (2) the number of opioid 

deaths that occurred in that Region; and (3) the number of people who suffer opioid use 

disorder in that Region. In the event any county does not participate in this Agreement, that

2 
 

5. “Opioid Funds” shall mean monetary amounts obtained through a Settlement as defined in 
this Agreement. 

6. “Participating Local Government(s)” shall mean all counties, cities, and towns within the 
geographic boundaries of the State that have chosen to sign on to this Agreement and each 
applicable Settlement. The Participating Local Governments may be referred to separately 
in this Agreement as “Participating Counties” and “Participating Cities and Towns” (or 
“Participating Cities or Towns,” as appropriate). 

7. “Parties” shall mean the State and the Participating Local Governments. 

8. “Pharmaceutical Supply Chain” shall mean the process and channels through which licit 
opioids are manufactured, marketed, promoted, distributed, or dispensed. 

9. “Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participant” shall mean any entity that engages in or has 
engaged in the manufacture, marketing, promotion, distribution, or dispensing of licit 
opioids. 

10. “Settlement” shall mean the negotiated resolution of legal or equitable claims against a 
Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participant when that resolution has been jointly entered into 
by the State and the Participating Local Government and approved as final by a court of 
competent jurisdiction. 

11. “Settling Distributors” shall mean McKesson Corporation, Cardinal Health, Inc., and 
AmerisourceBergen Corporation. 

12. “Trustee” shall mean either (1) an independent trustee who shall be responsible for the 
ministerial task of releasing the Opioid Funds that are in trust as authorized herein and 
accounting for all payments into or out of the trust, or (2) a settlement fund administrator, 
in the event that the Settlement includes a fund administrator.  In either case, the Trustee 
will distribute funds in accordance with this Agreement. 

B. Intrastate Regions 

1. The State of Arizona will be divided into regions, each of which will be referred to as a 
“Region” and will consist of: (1) a single Participating County and all of its Participating 
Cities and Towns; or (2) all of the Participating Cities and Towns within a non-
Participating County. If there is only one Participating City or Town within a non-
Participating County, that single Participating City or Town will still constitute a Region. 
Two or more Regions may at their discretion form a group (“Multicounty Region”). 
Regions that do not choose to form a Multicounty Region will be their own Region. 
Participating Cities and Towns within a non-Participating County may not form a Region 
with Participating Cities and Towns in another county. 

2. The LG Share funds described in Section C(1) will be distributed to each Region according 
to the percentages set forth in Exhibit B. The Regional allocation model uses three equally 
weighted factors: (1) the amount of opioids shipped to the Region; (2) the number of opioid 
deaths that occurred in that Region; and (3) the number of people who suffer opioid use 
disorder in that Region. In the event any county does not participate in this Agreement, that 



county’s percentage share shall be reallocated proportionally amongst the Participating 

Counties by applying this same methodology to only the Participating Counties. 

In single-county Regions, that county’s health department will serve as the lead agency 

responsible for distributing the LG Share funds. That health department, acting as the lead 
agency, shall consult with the cities and towns in the county regarding distribution of the 
LG Share funds. 

For each Multicounty Region, an advisory council shall be formed from the Participating 

Local Governments in the Multicounty Region to distribute the collective LG Share funds. 
Each advisory council shall include at least three Participating Local Government 

representatives, not all of whom may reside in the same county. Each advisory council 
shall consult with the Participating Local Governments in the Multicounty Region 
regarding distribution of the collective LG Share funds. 

For each Region consisting of the Participating Cities and Towns within a non- 

Participating County, an advisory council shall be formed from the Participating Cities and 
Towns in the Region to distribute the LG Share funds. Each advisory council shall include 
at least three representatives from the Participating Cities and Towns in the Region, or a 

representative from each Participating City and Town if the Region consists of fewer than 

three Participating Cities and Towns. In no event may more than one individual represent 
the same city or town. To the extent any Participating Cities or Towns in the Region are 

not represented on the advisory council, the advisory council shall consult with the non- 
represented Participating Cities and Towns regarding distribution of the collective LG 
Share funds. 

C. Allocation of Settlement Proceeds 

I. 

2. 

All Opioid Funds shall be divided with 44% to the State (“State Share”) and 56% to the 

Participating Local Governments (“LG Share”). 

All Opioid Funds, except those allocated to payment of counsel and litigation expenses as 

set forth in Section E, shall be utilized in a manner consistent with the Approved Purposes 

definition. Compliance with this requirement shall be verified through reporting, as set out 

in Section F. 

Each LG Share will be distributed to each Region or Multicounty Region as set forth in 

Section B(2). Participating Counties and their constituent Participating Cities and Towns 

may distribute the funds allocated to the Region or Multicounty Region amongst 

themselves in any manner they choose. If a county and its cities and towns cannot agree on 

how to allocate the funds, the default allocation in Exhibit C will apply. The default 

allocation formula uses historical federal data showing how each county and the cities and 

towns within it have made opioids-related expenditures in the past. If a county or any cities 

or towns within a Region or Multicounty Region do not sign on to this Agreement and each 

2 This Agreement assumes that any opioid settlement for Native American Tribes and Third-Party 
Payors, including municipal insurance pools, will be dealt with separately. 

33 
 

county’s percentage share shall be reallocated proportionally amongst the Participating 
Counties by applying this same methodology to only the Participating Counties. 

3. In single-county Regions, that county’s health department will serve as the lead agency 
responsible for distributing the LG Share funds. That health department, acting as the lead 
agency, shall consult with the cities and towns in the county regarding distribution of the 
LG Share funds. 

4. For each Multicounty Region, an advisory council shall be formed from the Participating 
Local Governments in the Multicounty Region to distribute the collective LG Share funds. 
Each advisory council shall include at least three Participating Local Government 
representatives, not all of whom may reside in the same county. Each advisory council 
shall consult with the Participating Local Governments in the Multicounty Region 
regarding distribution of the collective LG Share funds. 

5. For each Region consisting of the Participating Cities and Towns within a non-
Participating County, an advisory council shall be formed from the Participating Cities and 
Towns in the Region to distribute the LG Share funds. Each advisory council shall include 
at least three representatives from the Participating Cities and Towns in the Region, or a 
representative from each Participating City and Town if the Region consists of fewer than 
three Participating Cities and Towns. In no event may more than one individual represent 
the same city or town. To the extent any Participating Cities or Towns in the Region are 
not represented on the advisory council, the advisory council shall consult with the non-
represented Participating Cities and Towns regarding distribution of the collective LG 
Share funds. 

C. Allocation of Settlement Proceeds 

1. All Opioid Funds shall be divided with 44% to the State (“State Share”) and 56% to the 
Participating Local Governments (“LG Share”).2  

2. All Opioid Funds, except those allocated to payment of counsel and litigation expenses as 
set forth in Section E, shall be utilized in a manner consistent with the Approved Purposes 
definition. Compliance with this requirement shall be verified through reporting, as set out 
in Section F. 

3. Each LG Share will be distributed to each Region or Multicounty Region as set forth in 
Section B(2). Participating Counties and their constituent Participating Cities and Towns 
may distribute the funds allocated to the Region or Multicounty Region amongst 
themselves in any manner they choose. If a county and its cities and towns cannot agree on 
how to allocate the funds, the default allocation in Exhibit C will apply. The default 
allocation formula uses historical federal data showing how each county and the cities and 
towns within it have made opioids-related expenditures in the past. If a county or any cities 
or towns within a Region or Multicounty Region do not sign on to this Agreement and each 

                                                      
2  This Agreement assumes that any opioid settlement for Native American Tribes and Third-Party 
Payors, including municipal insurance pools, will be dealt with separately. 



10. 

Settlement, and if the Participating Local Governments in the Region or Multicounty 

Region cannot agree on how to allocate the funds from that Settlement amongst 
themselves, the funds shall be reallocated proportionally by applying this same 
methodology to only the Participating Local Governments in the Region or Multicounty 

Region. 

If the LG Share for a given Participating Local Government is less than $500, then that 

amount will instead be distributed to the Region or Multicounty Region in which the 

Participating Local Government is located to allow practical application of the abatement 
remedy. If the county did not sign on to the Settlement as defined herein, the funds will be 

reallocated to the State Share. 

The State Share shall be paid by check or wire transfer directly to the State through the 

Trustee, who shall hold the funds in trust, or as otherwise required by a Settlement for the 
benefit of the State, to be timely distributed as set forth in C(1) herein. The LG Share shall 

be paid by check or wire transfer directly to the Regions or Multicounty Regions through 

the Trustee, who shall hold the funds in trust, or as otherwise required by a Settlement for 

the benefit of the Participating Local Governments, to be timely distributed as set forth in 
B(2), C(1), C(3), and C(4) herein. 

The State Share shall be used only for (1) Approved Purposes within the State or (2) grants 
to organizations for Approved Purposes within the State. 

The LG Share shall be used only for (1) Approved Purposes by Participating Local 
Governments within a Region or Multicounty Region or (2) grants to organizations for 

Approved Purposes within a Region or Multicounty Region. 

The State will endeavor to prioritize up to 30% of the State Share for opioid education and 

advertising related to awareness, addiction, or treatment; Department of Corrections and 

related prison and jail opioid uses; and opioid interdiction and abatement on Arizona’s 
southern border, including grants to assist with the building, remodeling and/or operation 

of centers for treatment, drug testing, medication-assisted treatment services, probation, 

job training, and/or counseling services, among other programs. 

If the federal Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS”) disallows any federal 

funding for the State’s Medicaid programs pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1396b as a consequence 

of sums received pursuant to resolution of any Litigation with Pharmaceutical Supply 

Chain Participants, or otherwise seeks to recover sums it regards as the federal share of any 

Settlement, the amount recovered by CMS shall first be paid from the total amount of 

Opioid Funds available to the Parties under that Settlement and the distribution to the State 

and Participating Local Governments shall thereafter be made from the remaining funds. 

The Parties acknowledge and agree that any Settlement may require Participating Local 

Governments to release all their claims against the settling Pharmaceutical Supply Chain 

Participants to receive Opioid Funds. The Parties further acknowledge and agree based on 
the terms of any such national Settlement, a Participating Local Government will not 

receive funds through this Agreement until it has complied with all requirements set forth

4 
 

Settlement, and if the Participating Local Governments in the Region or Multicounty 
Region cannot agree on how to allocate the funds from that Settlement amongst 
themselves, the funds shall be reallocated proportionally by applying this same 
methodology to only the Participating Local Governments in the Region or Multicounty 
Region.  

4. If the LG Share for a given Participating Local Government is less than $500, then that 
amount will instead be distributed to the Region or Multicounty Region in which the 
Participating Local Government is located to allow practical application of the abatement 
remedy. If the county did not sign on to the Settlement as defined herein, the funds will be 
reallocated to the State Share. 

5. The State Share shall be paid by check or wire transfer directly to the State through the 
Trustee, who shall hold the funds in trust, or as otherwise required by a Settlement for the 
benefit of the State, to be timely distributed as set forth in C(1) herein. The LG Share shall 
be paid by check or wire transfer directly to the Regions or Multicounty Regions through 
the Trustee, who shall hold the funds in trust, or as otherwise required by a Settlement for 
the benefit of the Participating Local Governments, to be timely distributed as set forth in 
B(2), C(1), C(3), and C(4) herein.  

6. The State Share shall be used only for (1) Approved Purposes within the State or (2) grants 
to organizations for Approved Purposes within the State. 

7. The LG Share shall be used only for (1) Approved Purposes by Participating Local 
Governments within a Region or Multicounty Region or (2) grants to organizations for 
Approved Purposes within a Region or Multicounty Region. 

8. The State will endeavor to prioritize up to 30% of the State Share for opioid education and 
advertising related to awareness, addiction, or treatment; Department of Corrections and 
related prison and jail opioid uses; and opioid interdiction and abatement on Arizona’s 
southern border, including grants to assist with the building, remodeling and/or operation 
of centers for treatment, drug testing, medication-assisted treatment services, probation, 
job training, and/or counseling services, among other programs. 

9. If the federal Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS”) disallows any federal 
funding for the State’s Medicaid programs pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1396b as a consequence 
of sums received pursuant to resolution of any Litigation with Pharmaceutical Supply 
Chain Participants, or otherwise seeks to recover sums it regards as the federal share of any 
Settlement, the amount recovered by CMS shall first be paid from the total amount of 
Opioid Funds available to the Parties under that Settlement and the distribution to the State 
and Participating Local Governments shall thereafter be made from the remaining funds. 

10. The Parties acknowledge and agree that any Settlement may require Participating Local 
Governments to release all their claims against the settling Pharmaceutical Supply Chain 
Participants to receive Opioid Funds. The Parties further acknowledge and agree based on 
the terms of any such national Settlement, a Participating Local Government will not 
receive funds through this Agreement until it has complied with all requirements set forth 



in that national Settlement to release its claims. This Agreement is not a promise by any 

Party that any Settlement (including any Settlement resolved through bankruptcy) will be 
finalized or executed. 

D. Participation of Cities and Towns 

1. By signing on to the Agreement and any Settlement, a Participating County will receive 

60% of its available LG Share for that Settlement when distribution under that Settlement 
occurs. Any such Participating County will receive up to an additional 40% of its available 

LG Share for that Settlement by securing the participation of its constituent cities and towns 
as signatories to this Agreement and that Settlement when distribution under that 

Settlement occurs. The sliding scale attached as Exhibit D will determine the share of funds 
available to the Participating County.’ 

If a Participating County does not achieve 100% participation of its cities and towns within 

the period of time required in a Settlement document for subdivision participation, the 
remaining portions of the LG Share that were otherwise available to the Participating 
County will be reallocated to (i) the State Share and (ii) the LG Share for the Participating 

Counties which have achieved 100% participation of their cities and towns in accordance 
with the percentages described in Sections B(2), C(1), and C(3), and set forth in Exhibits 

B and C. 

E. Payment of Counsel and Litigation Expenses 

I. The Parties anticipate that any Settlement will provide for the payment of all or a portion 
of the fees and litigation expenses of certain state and local governments. 

If the court in In Re: National Prescription Opiate Litigation, MDL No. 2804 (N.D. Ohio) 

or if a Settlement establishes a common benefit fund or similar device to compensate 

attorneys for services rendered and expenses incurred that have benefited plaintiffs 
generally in the litigation (the “Common Benefit Fund”), and requires certain 
governmental plaintiffs to pay a share of their recoveries from defendants into the Common 

Benefit Fund as a “tax,” then the Participating Local Governments shall first seek to have 

the settling defendants pay the “tax.” If the settling defendants do not agree to pay the 

“tax,” then the “tax” shall be paid from the LG Share prior to allocation and distribution of 

funds to the Participating Local Governments.* 

  

3 Population allocation of cities and towns within counties will be derived from the population 
data included in any national Settlement. If such data is not included in the respective national 

Settlement, then population allocation will be determined from those cities and towns listed in 
Exhibit C. The data in Exhibit C is derived from the U.S. Census Estimate (July 1, 2019). 

* This paragraph shall not apply to the Settlement with the Settling Distributors or the Settlement 

with J&J.

5 
 

in that national Settlement to release its claims. This Agreement is not a promise by any 
Party that any Settlement (including any Settlement resolved through bankruptcy) will be 
finalized or executed. 

D. Participation of Cities and Towns 

1. By signing on to the Agreement and any Settlement, a Participating County will receive 
60% of its available LG Share for that Settlement when distribution under that Settlement 
occurs. Any such Participating County will receive up to an additional 40% of its available 
LG Share for that Settlement by securing the participation of its constituent cities and towns 
as signatories to this Agreement and that Settlement when distribution under that 
Settlement occurs. The sliding scale attached as Exhibit D will determine the share of funds 
available to the Participating County.3 

2. If a Participating County does not achieve 100% participation of its cities and towns within 
the period of time required in a Settlement document for subdivision participation, the 
remaining portions of the LG Share that were otherwise available to the Participating 
County will be reallocated to (i) the State Share and (ii) the LG Share for the Participating 
Counties which have achieved 100% participation of their cities and towns in accordance 
with the percentages described in Sections B(2), C(1), and C(3), and set forth in Exhibits 
B and C. 

E. Payment of Counsel and Litigation Expenses 

1. The Parties anticipate that any Settlement will provide for the payment of all or a portion 
of the fees and litigation expenses of certain state and local governments.  

2. If the court in In Re: National Prescription Opiate Litigation, MDL No. 2804 (N.D. Ohio) 
or if a Settlement establishes a common benefit fund or similar device to compensate 
attorneys for services rendered and expenses incurred that have benefited plaintiffs 
generally in the litigation (the “Common Benefit Fund”), and requires certain 
governmental plaintiffs to pay a share of their recoveries from defendants into the Common 
Benefit Fund as a “tax,” then the Participating Local Governments shall first seek to have 
the settling defendants pay the “tax.” If the settling defendants do not agree to pay the 
“tax,” then the “tax” shall be paid from the LG Share prior to allocation and distribution of 
funds to the Participating Local Governments.4 

                                                      
3  Population allocation of cities and towns within counties will be derived from the population 
data included in any national Settlement. If such data is not included in the respective national 
Settlement, then population allocation will be determined from those cities and towns listed in 
Exhibit C. The data in Exhibit C is derived from the U.S. Census Estimate (July 1, 2019). 
 
4  This paragraph shall not apply to the Settlement with the Settling Distributors or the Settlement 
with J&J. 
 



3. Any governmental entity that seeks attorneys’ fees and expenses from the Litigation shall 

seek those fees and expenses first from the national Settlement.’ In addition, the Parties 
agree that the Participating Local Governments will create a supplemental attorney’s fees 

and costs fund (the “Backstop Fund”). 

4. In the event that any Settlement imposes additional limitations or obligations on the 

payment of counsel and litigation expenses, those limitations and obligations take 
precedence over this Agreement. 

5. The Backstop Fund is to be used to compensate counsel for Participating Local 
Governments that filed opioid lawsuits by September 1, 2020 (“Litigating Participating 

Local Governments”). Payments out of the Backstop Fund shall be determined by a 
committee consisting of one representative from each of the Litigating Participating Local 

Governments (the “Opioid Fee and Expense Committee”). 

6. The amount of the Backstop Fund shall be determined as follows: From any national 

Settlement, the funds in the Backstop Fund shall equal 14.25% of the LG Share for that 
Settlement. No portion of the State Share shall be used for the Backstop Fund or in any 

other way to fund any Participating Local Government’s attorney’s fees and costs. If 

required to do so by any Settlement, Participating Local Governments must report to the 

national Settlement Fund Administrator regarding contributions to, or payments from, the 
Backstop Fund. 

7. The maximum percentage of any contingency fee agreement permitted for compensation 

shall be 25% of the portion of the LG Share attributable to the Litigating Participating 

Local Government that is a party to the contingency fee agreement, plus expenses 

attributable to that Litigating Participating Local Government, unless a Settlement or other 

court order imposes a lower limitation on contingency fees. Under no circumstances may 

counsel collect more for its work on behalf of a Litigating Participating Local Government 
than it would under its contingency agreement with that Litigating Participating Local 

Government. 

8. Payments to counsel for Participating Local Governments shall be made from the Backstop 

Fund in the same percentages and over the same period of time as the national Contingency 

Fee Fund for each settlement. The Attorneys’ Fees and Costs schedule for the Settling 
Distributors is listed in Exhibit R §(II)(S)(1) of the Settlement with the Settling 

5 The State retained outside counsel in the Purdue litigation and if it is unable to secure payment 

of attorneys’ fees and expenses from the bankruptcy proceedings in an amount sufficient to 

compensate outside counsel consistent with the terms of the State’s contract with that outside 
counsel, any remaining attorneys’ fees and expenses related to the representation of the State will 

first be paid directly from the total amount of Opioid Funds available to the Parties under that 

Settlement, up to the agreed amount in the outside counsel contract, and the distribution to the 

State and Participating Local Governments shall thereafter be made from the remaining funds.

6 
 

3. Any governmental entity that seeks attorneys’ fees and expenses from the Litigation shall 
seek those fees and expenses first from the national Settlement.5 In addition, the Parties 
agree that the Participating Local Governments will create a supplemental attorney’s fees 
and costs fund (the “Backstop Fund”).  

4. In the event that any Settlement imposes additional limitations or obligations on the 
payment of counsel and litigation expenses, those limitations and obligations take 
precedence over this Agreement. 

5. The Backstop Fund is to be used to compensate counsel for Participating Local 
Governments that filed opioid lawsuits by September 1, 2020 (“Litigating Participating 
Local Governments”). Payments out of the Backstop Fund shall be determined by a 
committee consisting of one representative from each of the Litigating Participating Local 
Governments (the “Opioid Fee and Expense Committee”). 

6. The amount of the Backstop Fund shall be determined as follows: From any national 
Settlement, the funds in the Backstop Fund shall equal 14.25% of the LG Share for that 
Settlement. No portion of the State Share shall be used for the Backstop Fund or in any 
other way to fund any Participating Local Government’s attorney’s fees and costs. If 
required to do so by any Settlement, Participating Local Governments must report to the 
national Settlement Fund Administrator regarding contributions to, or payments from, the 
Backstop Fund. 

7. The maximum percentage of any contingency fee agreement permitted for compensation 
shall be 25% of the portion of the LG Share attributable to the Litigating Participating 
Local Government that is a party to the contingency fee agreement, plus expenses 
attributable to that Litigating Participating Local Government, unless a Settlement or other 
court order imposes a lower limitation on contingency fees. Under no circumstances may 
counsel collect more for its work on behalf of a Litigating Participating Local Government 
than it would under its contingency agreement with that Litigating Participating Local 
Government. 

8. Payments to counsel for Participating Local Governments shall be made from the Backstop 
Fund in the same percentages and over the same period of time as the national Contingency 
Fee Fund for each settlement. The Attorneys’ Fees and Costs schedule for the Settling 
Distributors is listed in Exhibit R §(II)(S)(1) of the Settlement with the Settling 

                                                      
5  The State retained outside counsel in the Purdue litigation and if it is unable to secure payment 
of attorneys’ fees and expenses from the bankruptcy proceedings in an amount sufficient to 
compensate outside counsel consistent with the terms of the State’s contract with that outside 
counsel, any remaining attorneys’ fees and expenses related to the representation of the State will 
first be paid directly from the total amount of Opioid Funds available to the Parties under that 
Settlement, up to the agreed amount in the outside counsel contract, and the distribution to the 
State and Participating Local Governments shall thereafter be made from the remaining funds.  
 
 



Distributors.® The Attorneys’ Fees and Costs schedule for J&J is listed in Exhibit R 

§(IN)(A)(1) of the Settlement with J&J.” For future Settlements with other defendants in the 
Pharmaceutical Supply Chain, any necessary payments to counsel for Participating Local 

Governments shall be made from the Backstop Fund in the same percentages and over the 
same periods of time as the fee funds for those Settlements, if applicable, subject to the 
limitations set forth in this Agreement set form in paragraph E(7) above. 

Any funds remaining in the Backstop Fund in excess of the amounts needed to cover 

private counsel’s representation agreements shall revert to the Participating Local 
Governments according to the percentages set forth in Exhibits B and C, to be used for 
Approved Purposes as set forth herein and in Exhibit A. 

F. Compliance Reporting and Accountability 

I. If the State and Participating Local Governments use a Trustee for purposes of distributing 
funds pursuant to any Settlement, the Trustee shall be requested to provide timely an up- 

to-date accounting of payments into or out of any trust established to hold such funds and/or 
its subaccounts upon written request of the State or a Participating Local Government. 

The State, Regions, and Participating Local Governments may object to an allocation or 
expenditure of Opioid Funds solely on the basis that the allocation or expenditure at issue 
(1) is inconsistent with provision C(1) hereof with respect to the amount of the State Share 

or LG Share; (2) is inconsistent with an agreed-upon allocation, or the default allocations 

in Exhibits B and C, as contemplated by Section C(3); or (3) violates the limitations set 
forth in F(3) with respect to compensation of the Trustee. The objector shall have the right 

to bring that objection within two years of the date of its discovery to a superior court in 
Maricopa County, Arizona. 

In the event that the State and Participating Local Governments use a Trustee, 
compensation for Trustee’s expenses of fund administration may be paid out of the Opioid 
Funds for reasonable expenses; provided that, reasonable expenses do not exceed the 
administrative expenses allowed under the terms of the relevant Settlement. 

The Parties shall maintain, for a period of at least five years, records of abatement 

expenditures and documents underlying those expenditures, so that it can be verified that 

funds are being or have been utilized in a manner consistent with the Approved Purposes 

definition. This requirement supersedes any shorter period of time specified in any 

applicable document retention or destruction policy. 

Atleast annually, by July 31 of each year, each Region or Multicounty Region shall provide 

to the State a report detailing for the preceding fiscal year (1) the amount of the LG Share 

received by each Participating Local Government within the Region or Multicounty 

Region, (2) the allocation of any awards approved (listing the recipient, the amount 

awarded, the program to be funded, and disbursement terms), and (3) the amounts 

  

¢ Text of settlement available at https://nationalopioidsettlement.com. 
  

7 Text of settlement available at https://nationalopioidsettlement.com. 
  

77 
 

Distributors.6  The Attorneys’ Fees and Costs schedule for J&J is listed in Exhibit R 
§(II)(A)(1) of the Settlement with J&J.7 For future Settlements with other defendants in the 
Pharmaceutical Supply Chain, any necessary payments to counsel for Participating Local 
Governments shall be made from the Backstop Fund in the same percentages and over the 
same periods of time as the fee funds for those Settlements, if applicable, subject to the 
limitations set forth in this Agreement set form in paragraph E(7) above.  

9. Any funds remaining in the Backstop Fund in excess of the amounts needed to cover 
private counsel’s representation agreements shall revert to the Participating Local 
Governments according to the percentages set forth in Exhibits B and C, to be used for 
Approved Purposes as set forth herein and in Exhibit A. 

F. Compliance Reporting and Accountability 

1. If the State and Participating Local Governments use a Trustee for purposes of distributing 
funds pursuant to any Settlement, the Trustee shall be requested to provide timely an up-
to-date accounting of payments into or out of any trust established to hold such funds and/or 
its subaccounts upon written request of the State or a Participating Local Government. 

2. The State, Regions, and Participating Local Governments may object to an allocation or 
expenditure of Opioid Funds solely on the basis that the allocation or expenditure at issue 
(1) is inconsistent with provision C(1) hereof with respect to the amount of the State Share 
or LG Share; (2) is inconsistent with an agreed-upon allocation, or the default allocations 
in Exhibits B and C, as contemplated by Section C(3); or (3) violates the limitations set 
forth in F(3) with respect to compensation of the Trustee. The objector shall have the right 
to bring that objection within two years of the date of its discovery to a superior court in 
Maricopa County, Arizona. 

3. In the event that the State and Participating Local Governments use a Trustee, 
compensation for Trustee’s expenses of fund administration may be paid out of the Opioid 
Funds for reasonable expenses; provided that, reasonable expenses do not exceed the 
administrative expenses allowed under the terms of the relevant Settlement. 

4. The Parties shall maintain, for a period of at least five years, records of abatement 
expenditures and documents underlying those expenditures, so that it can be verified that 
funds are being or have been utilized in a manner consistent with the Approved Purposes 
definition.  This requirement supersedes any shorter period of time specified in any 
applicable document retention or destruction policy. 

5. At least annually, by July 31 of each year, each Region or Multicounty Region shall provide 
to the State a report detailing for the preceding fiscal year (1) the amount of the LG Share 
received by each Participating Local Government within the Region or Multicounty 
Region, (2) the allocation of any awards approved (listing the recipient, the amount 
awarded, the program to be funded, and disbursement terms), and (3) the amounts 

                                                      
6  Text of settlement available at https://nationalopioidsettlement.com.  
 
7  Text of settlement available at https://nationalopioidsettlement.com. 



disbursed on approved allocations. In order to facilitate this reporting, each Participating 
Local Government within a Region or Multicounty Region shall provide information 
necessary to meet these reporting obligations to a delegate(s) selected by the Region or 

Multicounty Region to provide its annual report to the State. Any Participating Local 
Government shall also comply with any reporting requirements imposed by any 

Settlement. 

. No later than September 30 of each year, the State shall publish on its website a report 

detailing for the preceding fiscal year (1) the amount of the State Share received, (2) the 
allocation of any awards approved (listing the recipient, the amount awarded, the program 

to be funded, and disbursement terms), and (3) the amounts disbursed on approved 
allocations. In addition, the State shall publish on its website the reports described in F(5) 
above. The State shall also comply with any reporting requirements imposed by any 
Settlement. 

If it appears to the State, a Region, or a Multicounty Region that the State or another 
Region or Multicounty Region is using or has used Settlement funds for non-Approved 

Purposes, the State, Region, or Multicounty Region may on written request seek and 

obtain the documentation underlying the report(s) described in F(5) or F(6), as applicable, 

including documentation described in F(4). The State, Region, or Multicounty Region 
receiving such request shall have 14 days to provide the requested information. The 

requesting party and the State, Region, or Multicounty Region receiving such request 
may extend the time period for compliance with the request only upon mutual agreement. 

Following a request made pursuant to F(7) and when it appears that LG Share funds are 
being or have been spent on non-Approved Purposes, the State may seek and obtain in an 
action in a court of competent jurisdiction in Maricopa County, Arizona an injunction 
prohibiting the Region or Multicounty Region from spending LG Share funds on non- 
Approved Purposes and requiring the Region or Multicounty Region to return the monies 

that it spent on non-Approved Purposes after notice as is required by the rules of civil 

procedure. So long as the action is pending, distribution of LG Share funds to the Region 

or Multicounty Region temporarily will be suspended. Once the action is resolved, the 

suspended payments will resume, less any amounts that were ordered returned but have 
not been returned by the time the action is resolved. 

Following a request made pursuant to F(7) and when it appears to at least eight 

Participating Counties that have signed on to this Agreement and a subsequent Settlement 

that the State Share funds are being or have been spent on non-Approved Purposes, the 

Participating Counties may seek and obtain in an action in a superior court of Maricopa 

County, Arizona an injunction prohibiting the State from spending State Share funds on 

non-Approved Purposes and requiring the State to return the monies it spent on non- 

Approved Purposes after notice as is required by the rules of civil procedure. So long as 
the action is pending, distribution of State Share funds to the State temporarily will be 

suspended. Once the action is resolved, the suspended payments will resume, less any 
monies that were ordered returned but have not been returned by the time the action is 

resolved.

8 
 

disbursed on approved allocations. In order to facilitate this reporting, each Participating 
Local Government within a Region or Multicounty Region shall provide information 
necessary to meet these reporting obligations to a delegate(s) selected by the Region or 
Multicounty Region to provide its annual report to the State.  Any Participating Local 
Government shall also comply with any reporting requirements imposed by any 
Settlement.   

6. No later than September 30 of each year, the State shall publish on its website a report 
detailing for the preceding fiscal year (1) the amount of the State Share received, (2) the 
allocation of any awards approved (listing the recipient, the amount awarded, the program 
to be funded, and disbursement terms), and (3) the amounts disbursed on approved 
allocations. In addition, the State shall publish on its website the reports described in F(5) 
above.  The State shall also comply with any reporting requirements imposed by any 
Settlement. 

7. If it appears to the State, a Region, or a Multicounty Region that the State or another 
Region or Multicounty Region is using or has used Settlement funds for non-Approved 
Purposes, the State, Region, or Multicounty Region may on written request seek and 
obtain the documentation underlying the report(s) described in F(5) or F(6), as applicable, 
including documentation described in F(4). The State, Region, or Multicounty Region 
receiving such request shall have 14 days to provide the requested information. The 
requesting party and the State, Region, or Multicounty Region receiving such request 
may extend the time period for compliance with the request only upon mutual agreement. 

8. Following a request made pursuant to F(7) and when it appears that LG Share funds are 
being or have been spent on non-Approved Purposes, the State may seek and obtain in an 
action in a court of competent jurisdiction in Maricopa County, Arizona an injunction 
prohibiting the Region or Multicounty Region from spending LG Share funds on non-
Approved Purposes and requiring the Region or Multicounty Region to return the monies 
that it spent on non-Approved Purposes after notice as is required by the rules of civil 
procedure. So long as the action is pending, distribution of LG Share funds to the Region 
or Multicounty Region temporarily will be suspended. Once the action is resolved, the 
suspended payments will resume, less any amounts that were ordered returned but have 
not been returned by the time the action is resolved. 

9. Following a request made pursuant to F(7) and when it appears to at least eight 
Participating Counties that have signed on to this Agreement and a subsequent Settlement 
that the State Share funds are being or have been spent on non-Approved Purposes, the 
Participating Counties may seek and obtain in an action in a superior court of Maricopa 
County, Arizona an injunction prohibiting the State from spending State Share funds on 
non-Approved Purposes and requiring the State to return the monies it spent on non-
Approved Purposes after notice as is required by the rules of civil procedure. So long as 
the action is pending, distribution of State Share funds to the State temporarily will be 
suspended. Once the action is resolved, the suspended payments will resume, less any 
monies that were ordered returned but have not been returned by the time the action is 
resolved.  



10. In an action brought pursuant to F(8) or F(9), attorney’s fees and costs shall not be 

recoverable. 

G. Settlement Negotiations 

1. The State and the Participating Local Governments agree to inform each other in advance 

of any negotiations relating to an Arizona-only settlement with a Pharmaceutical Supply 

Chain Participant that includes both the State and the Participating Local Governments and 

shall provide each other the opportunity to participate in all such negotiations. 

2. The State and the Participating Local Governments further agree to keep each other 

reasonably informed of all other global settlement negotiations with Pharmaceutical 

Supply Chain Participants. Neither this provision, nor any other, shall be construed to state 

or imply that either the State or the Participating Local Governments (collectively, the 

“Arizona Parties”) are unauthorized to engage in settlement negotiations with 

Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participants without prior consent or contemporaneous 

participation of the other, or that either party is entitled to participate as an active or direct 

participant in settlement negotiations with the other. Rather, while the State’s and the 

Participating Local Government’s efforts to achieve worthwhile settlements are to be 

collaborative, incremental stages need not be so. 

3. The State or any Participating Local Government may withdraw from coordinated 

Settlement discussions detailed in this Section upon 10 business days’ written notice to the 

other Arizona Parties and counsel for any affected Pharmaceutical Supply Chain 

Participant. The withdrawal of any Arizona Party releases the remaining Arizona Parties 

from the restrictions and obligations in this Section. 

4. The obligations in this Section shall not affect any Party’s right to proceed with trial or, 

within 30 days of the date upon which a trial involving that Party’s claims against a specific 

Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participant is scheduled to begin, reach a case-specific 

resolution with that particular Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participant. 

H. Amendments 

1. The Parties agree to make such amendments as necessary to implement the intent of this 

Agreement. 

One Arizona Distribution Qf Opioid Settlement Funds Agreement ACCEPTED by the undersigned 

and executed this \ day of Ad Al ¢ 2022. 
  

  

     ARJZONA ATT 

  

\ 
  

Mark Brnovich

10. In an action brought pursuant to F(8) or F(9), attorney's fees and costs shall not be
recoverable.

G. Settlement Negotiations

1 . The State and the Participating Local Governments agree to inform each other in advance

of any negotiations relating to an Arizona-only settlement with a Pharmaceutical Supply

Chain Participant that includes both the State and the Participating Local Governments and

shall provide each other the opportunity to participate in all such negotiations.

2. The State and the Participating Local Governments further agree to keep each other

reasonably informed of all other global settlement negotiations with Pharmaceutical

Supply Chain Participants. Neither this provision, nor any other, shall be construed to state

or imply that either the State or the Participating Local Governments (collectively, the
"Arizona Parties") are unauthorized to engage in settlement negotiations with

Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participants without prior consent or contemporaneous

participation of the other, or that either party is entitled to participate as an active or direct

participant in settlement negotiations with the other. Rather, while the State's and the

Participating Local Government's efforts to achieve worthwhile settlements are to be

collaborative, incremental stages need not be so.

3. The State or any Participating Local Government may withdraw from coordinated

Settlement discussions detailed in this Section upon 10 business days' written notice to the

other Arizona Parties and counsel for any affected Pharmaceutical Supply Chain

Participant. The withdrawal of any Arizona Party releases the remaining Arizona Parties

from the restrictions and obligations in this Section.

4. The obligations in this Section shall not affect any Party's right to proceed with trial or,

within 30 days of the date upon which a trial involving that Party's claims against a specific

Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participant is scheduled to begin, reach a case-specific

resolution with that particular Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participant.

H. Amendments

1 . The Parties agree to make such amendments as necessary to implement the intent of this

Agreement.

One Arizona Distribution of Opioid Settlement Funds Agreement ACCEPTED by the undersigned

and executed this \	day of C/v\ , 2022.

ARJZONA ATT GENERAL

Mark Brnovich

9



APACHE COUNTY 

APACHE COUNTY 

  

SPRINGERVILLE TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

10 

EAGER TOWN 

ST JOHNS CITY 

By: 

Its: 

 

APACHE COUNTY

APACHE COUNTY EAGER TOWN

gy^ ft? cA oxi g> . Cj |4i /ttj By:

Its: Its:

SPRINGERVILLE TOWN ST JOHNS CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

10



APACHE COUNTY 

  

  

APACHE COUNTY EAGER TOWN 

By: By 7 
_ 

Its: Its dP 

SPRINGERVILLE TOWN ST JOHNS CITY 

By: By: 

Its: 

10 

Its: 

  

 

APACHE COUNTY

APACHE COUNTY EAGER TOWN

By: /ylpjar<?

A /ylvx <XQ^ I

By:

Its: Its:

SPRINGERVILLE TOWN ST JOHNS CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

10



APACHE COUNTY 

By: 
  

Its: 
  

SPRINGERVILLE TOWN 

  

APACHE COUNTY 

  10 

EAGER TOWN 

  

By: 
  

Its: 
  

ST JOHNS CITY 

  

By: 
  

Its: 
 

APACHE COUNTY

APACHE COUNTY EAGER TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

SPRINGERVILLE TOWN ST JOHNS CITY

1
£

By: By:

Its: i ouv\_ c Its:

10



APACHE COUNTY 

By: 

Its: 

SPRINGERVILLE TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

APACHE C 

  
10 

OUNTY 

EAGER TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

ST JOHNS CITY 

i. 

 

APACHE COUNTY

APACHE COUNTY EAGER TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

SPRINGERVILLE TOWN ST JOHNS CITY

By:By:
/•

Its: Its:

10



APACHE COUNTY 

By: 

Its: 

SPRINGERVILLE TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

APACHE COUNTY 

10 

EAGER TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

ST JOHNS CITY 

By: Ss Spence UL 

Mu NN Its: 

 

APACHE COUNTY

APACHE COUNTY EAGER TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

SPRINGERVILLE TOWN ST JOHNS CITY

U

V

By: 6' Spcsl [{(!<* K
Its: 	

By:

Its:

10



COCHISE COUNTY 

    

  

    

  

  

  

    

  

COCHISE COUNTY BENSON CITY 

By: 

Its: 

BISBEE CITY DOUGLAS CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN SIERRA VISTA CITY 

  

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

TOMBSTONE CITY WILLCOX CITY 

  

By: By: 
  

  

Its: Its: 

11

COCHISE COUNTY

COCHISE COUNTY BENSON CITY

& c By:By:

coIts: Its:

BISBEE CITY DOUGLAS CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN SIERRA VISTA CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

TOMBSTONE CITY WILLCOX CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

11



COCHISE COUNTY CITIES & TOWNS 

BENSON CITY 

Q 
~rad 
Its: Mayor 

BISBEE CITY 

By: __________ ~ 
Its: _ _________ _ 

DOUGLAS CITY 

By: _______ _ _ _ 
Its: __________ _ 

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN 

SIERRA VISTA CITY 

TOMBSTONE CITY 

WILLCOX CITY 

12 
• 



COCHISE COUNTY 

  
  

  
  

  

COCHISE COUNTY BENSON CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

BISBEE CITY DOUGLAS CITY 

Its: May 

  

By: 
  

Its: 
  

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN 

  

Its: 

TOMBSTONE CITY 

SIERRA VISTA CITY 

  

  

By: 

Its: 
  

  

By: 
  

Its: 

  

WILLCOX CITY 

  

  

Its: 
  

 

COCHISE COUNTY 

COCHISE COUNTY BENSON C ITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

BISBEE CITY DOUGLAS CITY 

fl;~ 
By: Keo Budge. By: 

Its: f'icup< Its: 

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN SIERRA VISTA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: lts: 

TOMBSTONE CITY WILLCOX CITY 

By: By: 

lts: Its: 

11 



COCHISE COUNTY 

  
  

COCHISE COUNTY BENSON CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

BISBEE CITY DOUGLAS CITY 

By: By: Lois Pedroz 

Its: Its: Tufenm City Mana 9cr 

  

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN SIERRA VISTA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its 

TOMBSTONE CITY WILLCOX CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

11

COCHISE COUNTY

COCHISE COUNTY BENSON CITY

By: By:

Its:Its:

BISBEE CITY DOUGLAS CITY

As
By: LvlS PeJlfO^Cj	

JtfteriM Ctiyf Manager
By:

Its:Its:

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN SIERRA VISTA CITY

By:By:

Its: Its:

TOMBSTONE CITY WILLCOX CITY

By: By:

Its:Its:

11



COCHISE COUNTY 

By: 

BISBEE CITY 

By: 

Its: 

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN 

NAR, 
By: Soh anes va Wallace 

Its: WAY of 

TOMBSTONE CITY 

By: 

Its: 

  

    

COCHISE COUNTY 

BENSON CITY 

By: 

Its: 
  

DOUGLAS CITY 

By: 

Its: 

SIERRA VISTA CITY 

WILLCOX CITY 

  

By: 

Its:

COCHISE COUNTY

COCHISE COUNTY BENSON CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

BISBEE CITY DOUGLAS CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN SIERRA VISTA CITY

By-' ~SoV\«v^ LXUdrl

\/A or	

TOMBSTONE CITY

By:&

Its: Its:

WILLCOX CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

II



COCHISE COUNTY 

  

  

  

    

    

  

COCHISE COUNTY BENSON CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

BISBEE CITY DOUGLAS CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN SIERRA VISTA CITY 

  

By: 
  

Its: 
  

  

TOMBSTONE CITY WILLCOX CITY 

  

By: By: 
    

Its: Its:

COCHISE COUNTY

COCHISE COUNTY BENSON CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

BISBEE CITY DOUGLAS CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

SIERRA VISTA CITYHUACHUCA CITY TOWN

'
'

By:By:

£Its:Its:

WILLCOX CITYTOMBSTONE CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

1 I



COCHISE COUNTY 

  

COCHISE COUNTY BENSON CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

BISBEE CITY DOUGLAS CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN SIERRA VISTA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

TOMBSTONE CITY WILLCOX CITY 

By: DUSTIN ESCAPULE By: 

Its: MAYOR Its: 

11 

 

COCHISE COUNTY

BENSON CITYCOCHISE COUNTY

By:By:

Its:Its:

DOUGLAS CITYBISBEE CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN SIERRA VISTA CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

TOMBSTONE CITY WILLCOX CITY

By: DUSTIN ESCAPULE By:

Its: ^OR Its:

11



COCHISE COUNTY 

  

  

  

  

COCHISE COUNTY BENSON CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

BISBEE CITY DOUGLAS CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN SIERRA VISTA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: [ts: 

TOMBSTONE CITY WILLCOX CITY 

By: By: (a le b Blaschke 

Its: Its: L thy M r 
  

11

COCHISE COUNTY

BENSON CITYCOCHISE COUNTY

By: By:

Its:Its:

DOUGLAS CITYBISBEE CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN SIERRA VISTA CITY

By: By:

Its:Its:

TOMBSTONE CITY WILLCOX CITY

By; CA

C 	M*; a 4,^

By:

Its:Its:

11



COCONINO COUNTY 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

COCONINO COU FLAGSTAFF CITY 

Lotham © Tw NE By: 

Its: Cov 4) Its: 

FREDONIA TOWN PAGE CITY 

By: i By: 

Its: Its: 

SEDONA CITY TUSAYAN TOWN 

-— 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

WILLIAMS CITY 

By: 

Its: 

12 

  

  

 

COCONINO COUNTY

FLAGSTAFF CITYCOCONINO COU

Qx)rvV

\Aj By:By:

Its:Its:

PAGE CITYFREDONIA TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

TUSAYAN TOWNSEDONA CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

WILLIAMS CITY

By:

Its:

12



COCONINO COUNTY 

COCONINO COUNTY FLAGSTAFF CITY 

  

  

    

By: By: Greg” C £Lton 

Its: Its: City . Ha Hagel” 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

FREDONIA TOWN PAGE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SEDONA CITY TUSAYAN TOWN 

By: By: 
  

  

Its: Its: 
  

WILLIAMS CITY 

By: 
  

Its: 

12

COCONINO COUNTY

COCONINO COUNTY FLAGSTAFF CITY

dfrty ^ Cfj -/Vs>By: By: JA

Its: Its:

FREDONIA TOWN PAGE CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

SEDONA CITY TUSAYAN TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

WILLIAMS CITY

By:

Its:

12



COCONINO COUNTY 

COCONINO COUNTY FLAGSTAFF CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

FREDONIA TOWN PAGE CITY 

  

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SEDONA CITY TUSAYAN TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

WILLIAMS CITY 

By: 

Its:

COCONINO COUNTY

COCONINO COUNTY FLAGSTAFF CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

FREDONIA TOWN PAGE CITY

LABy: By:

CtatrVL.Its: Its:

SEDONA CITY TUSAYAN TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

WILLIAMS CITY

By:

Its:

12



COCONINO COUNTY 

COCONINO COUNTY FLAGSTAFF CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

FREDONIA TOWN PAGE CITY 

  

By: 

Its: 

SEDONA CITY TUSAYAN TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

WILLIAMS CITY 

By: 

Its:

COCONINO COUNTY

FLAGSTAFF CITYCOCONINO COUNTY

By:By:

Its:Its:

PAGE CITYFREDONIA TOWN

By:By:

Its: V 1Its:

SEDONA CITY TUSAYAN TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

WILLIAMS CITY

By:

Its:

12



COCONINO COUNTY 

COCONINO COUNTY FLAGSTAFF CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

FREDONIA TOWN PAGE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SEDONA CITY TUSAYAN TOWN 

By: Kuck W. Chrshanson By: 

Its: _ City Al forney Its: 

WILLIAMS CITY 

By: 

Its: 

12

COCONINO COUNTY

COCONINO COUNTY FLAGSTAFF CITY

By: By:

Its:Its:

PAGE CITYFREDONIA TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

SEDONA CITY TUSAYAN TOWN

By: Kufl W. CUrfehcoifc By:on

AHdmlvIts: Its:

WILLIAMS CITY

By:

Its:

12



COCONINO COUNTY 
! 
| 

COCONINO COUNTY 

  

By: 

  

Its: FE 

FREDONIA TOWN 

[FRNS—————————————————————— AE 

By: 

  

Its: 

  

SEDONA CITY 

————————— OE AA SS 

By: 

  

Its: 

  

WILLIAMS CITY 

By: 

Its: 

FLAGSTAFF CITY 

  

By: 

  

Its: 

  

PAGE CITY 

  

By: 

  

Its: 

  

TUSAYAN TOWN 

  
12 

By: 

  

Clarindo. Vail 

Its: Mayor 

 

COCONINO COUNTY

FLAGSTAFF CITYCOCONINO COUNTY

By:By:

Its:Its:

PAGE CITYFREDONIA TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

TUSAYAN TOWNSEDONA CITY

£

By: CBy:

M fl- yo rIts:Its:

WILLIAMS CITY

By:

Its:

12



  

COCONINO COUNTY 

COCONINO COUNTY FLAGSTAFF CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

FREDONIA TOWN PAGE CITY 

By: ~~ By: 

Its: Its: 

SEDONA CITY TUSAYAN TOWN 

By: BN By: } Co 

Its: Its: 

WILLIAMS CITY

COCONINO COUNTY

COCONINO COUNTY FLAGSTAFF CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

FREDONIA TOWN PAGE CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

SEDONA CITY TUSAYAN TOWN

By: By:

Its; Its:

WILLIAMS CITY

£L7TJ/ ah 10 tLL t rtmS
By:

C-fTy	/y)AO*^e£Its:

I a



GILA COUNTY 

GILA COUNTY GLOBE CITY 

  

By: “Tie ¥ Humphno By. _. 

its: Chaivman of the Beard Its: 

HAYDEN CITY MIAMI TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PAYSON TOWN STAR VALLEY TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

WINKELMAN TOWN 

By: 

Its:

GILA COUNTY

GILA COUNTY GLOBE CITY

02-
7

S VWnphAi^By: By.

C^awman of 4V& "fecor-AIts: Its:

HAYDEN CITY MIAMI TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

PAYSON TOWN STAR VALLEY TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

WINKELMAN TOWN

By:

Its:

13



GILA COUNTY 

By: 

Its: 

HAYDEN CITY 

By: 

Its: 

PAYSON TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

WINKELMAN TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

GILA COUNTY 

13 

GLOBE CITY 

MIAMI TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

STAR VALLEY TOWN 

By: 

Its:

GILA COUNTY

GILA COUNTY GLOBE CITY

^3
^tilBy: By-

Its: Its:

HAYDEN CITY MIAMI TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

PAYSON TOWN STAR VALLEY TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

WINKELMAN TOWN

By:

Its:

13

i



GILA COUNTY 

GILA COUNTY 

By: 

Its: 

HAYDEN CITY 

By A J 
Its: AAAYOL_ 

PAYSON TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

WINKELMAN TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

13 

GLOBE CITY 

By: 

Its: 

MIAMI TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

STAR VALLEY TOWN 

By: 

Its:

GILA COUNTY

GILA COUNTY GLOBE CITY

By: By:

Its:Its:

MIAMI TOWNHAYDEN CITY

/
(

By: By:
JL

Its:Its:

STAR VALLEY TOWNPAYSON TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

WINKELMAN TOWN

By:

Its:

13



GILA COUNTY 

    

    

GILA COUNTY GLOBE CITY 

By: By: oo 

Its: Its: 

HAYDEN CITY MIAMI TOWN 

SS @ - 
By: DD [anZalea 
  

  

  
  

    

    

  
    

By: 

hy 
Its: Its: Ma lov 

PAYSON TOWN STAR VALLEY TOWN 

By: BN By: 

Its: Its: 

WINKELMAN TOWN 

By: 
  

Its: 
  

13

GILA COUNTY

GILA COUNTY GLOBE CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

HAYDEN CITY MIAMI TOWN

S G ^ "r-Gj*
By: By:

Its: Its:

PAYSON TOWN STAR VALLEY TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

WINKELMAN TOWN

By:

Its:

13



  

GILA COUNTY 

GILA COUNTY GLOBE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

HAYDEN CITY MIAMI TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PAYSON TOWN STAR VALLEY TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

  

WINKELMAN TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

13 

 

GILA COUNTY

GILA COUNTY GLOBE CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

HAYDEN CITY MIAMI TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

PAYSON TOWN STAR VALLEY TOWN

->

By: By:4

Its: Its:

WINKELMAN TOWN

By:

Its:

13



GILA COUNTY 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
  

  

  

  

  

  

GILA COUNTY GLOBE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

HAYDEN CITY MIAMI TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PAYSON TOWN STAR VALLEY Lili 

    

  

  
  

By: 
  
  

Its: 
  

  

WINKELMAN TOWN 

  

By: 

Its: 

13

GILA COUNTY

GLOBE CITYGILA COUNTY

By:By:

Its:Its:

MIAMI TOWNHAYDEN CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

STAR VALLEYPAYSON TOWN

By:By:

Its:

WINKELMAN TOWN

By:

Its:

13



IMPLEMENTATION UNDERSTANDING CONCERNING THE 
ONE ARIZONA DISTRIBUTION OF OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUNDS AGREEMENT 

PARTIES: This Implementation Understanding Concerning the of One Arizona Distribution of Opioid Settlement 
Funds Agreement (the “Understanding”) is between Gila County (the “County”) and the City/Town of Winkelman 
(the “City/Town”) (collectively, the “Parties). 

RECITALS: The Attorney General of Arizona and the fifteen Arizona County Attorneys have executed the One 
Arizona Distribution of Opioid Settlement Funds Agreement (the “Distribution Agreement’), which is a mechanism 
for allocating funds received from any Settlement' among the State and the Participating Local Governments; and 

The Distribution Agreement (at 9 C.3) provides that Participating Counties and their constituent Participating Cities 
and Towns may distribute the funds allocated to the County amongst themselves in any manner they choose, and that 
if the Participating Counties and their constituent Participating Cities and Towns cannot reach such an agreement, 
Ex. C to the Distribution Agreement sets out a default allocation that will apply; and 

The Distribution Agreement also provides that any Participating Local Government which does receive Settlement 
funds must use those funds only for certain Approved Purposes and maintain certain records concerning the 
expenditure of the funds; and 

The County accepts these requirements of the Distribution Agreement concerning its use of Settlement funds and the 
keeping of records, but the City/Town does not wish to be burdened by these requirements; however 

The City/Town nevertheless wishes to execute the Distribution Agreement and be a Participating Local Government 
under the Distribution Agreement to maximize the recovery of Settlement funds to the County and Arizona; 

NOW THEREFORE: The County and the City/Town agree, as Participating Local Governments, to this 
Understanding to implement the Distribution Agreement pursuant to its provisions as follows: 

1. City/Town Assignment of Funds: All funds that otherwise would have been received by the City/Town under 
the default allocation set out in Ex. C to the Distribution Agreement are hereby assigned to the County. 

2. City/Town Assignment of Related Powers: The City/Town also assigns to the County the authority to take all 
necessary acts and execute all necessary documents to effectuate the goals of this Understanding, including 
appropriate action with respect to registration with NationalOpioidSettlement.com and the execution of 
participation agreements, bankruptcy proofs of claim, or similar documents. 

3. County Responsibility: The County will be responsible for using Settlement funds received pursuant to § 1 only 
for Approved Purposes and for maintaining the appropriate records as required by the Distribution Agreement. 

ACCEPTED by the undersigned and executed this i day of Novembef{] December) 202 1. 

COUNTY CITY/TOWN 

   
           i 

ed Official 
— 

Inbdes 7 

Authoriz 
Vala BIH IL 

[2yor or Other 
  

  

pr 
County Attorney 

  

' Non-italicized capitalized terms used in this Understanding have the meanings ascribed to them in the Distribution Agreement.

IMPLEMENTATION UNDERSTANDING CONCERNING THE

ONE ARIZONA DISTRIBUTION OF OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUNDS AGREEMENT

PARTIES: This Implementation Understanding Concerning the of One Arizona Distribution of Opioid Settlement

Funds Agreement (the "Understanding") is between Gila County (the "County") and the City/Town of Winkelman
(the "City/Town") (collectively, the "Parties).

RECITALS: The Attorney General of Arizona and the fifteen Arizona County Attorneys have executed the One

Arizona Distribution of Opioid Settlement Funds Agreement (the "Distribution Agreement"), which is a mechanism

for allocating funds received from any Settlement1 among the State and the Participating Local Governments; and

The Distribution Agreement (at ^ C.3) provides that Participating Counties and their constituent Participating Cities

and Towns may distribute the funds allocated to the County amongst themselves in any manner they choose, and that

if the Participating Counties and their constituent Participating Cities and Towns cannot reach such an agreement,

Ex. C to the Distribution Agreement sets out a default allocation that will apply; and

The Distribution Agreement also provides that any Participating Local Government which does receive Settlement

funds must use those funds only for certain Approved Purposes and maintain certain records concerning the

expenditure of the funds; and

The County accepts these requirements of the Distribution Agreement concerning its use of Settlement funds and the

keeping of records, but the City/Town does not wish to be burdened by these requirements; however

The City/Town nevertheless wishes to execute the Distribution Agreement and be a Participating Local Government

under the Distribution Agreement to maximize the recovery of Settlement funds to the County and Arizona;

NOW THEREFORE: The County and the City/Town agree, as Participating Local Governments, to this

Understanding to implement the Distribution Agreement pursuant to its provisions as follows:

1 . City/Town Assignment of Funds: All funds that otherwise would have been received by the City/Town under

the default allocation set out in Ex. C to the Distribution Agreement are hereby assigned to the County.

2. City/Town Assignment of Related Powers: The City/Town also assigns to the County the authority to take all

necessary acts and execute all necessary documents to effectuate the goals of this Understanding, including

appropriate action with respect to registration with NationalOpioidSettlement.com and the execution of

participation agreements, bankruptcy proofs of claim, or similar documents.

3. County Responsibility: The County will be responsible for using Settlement funds received pursuant to 1 1 only

for Approved Purposes and for maintaining the appropriate records as required by the Distribution Agreement.

rd
ACCEPTED by the undersigned and executed this N day of November^ecember)202 1 .

COUNTY CITY/TOWN

Aday^I. or Other Authorized Official

V"

County Attorney

Non-italicized capitalized terms used in this Understanding have the meanings ascribed to them in the Distribution Agreement.



GRAHAM COUNTY 

GRAHAM COUNTY PIMA TOWN 

  

By: 

Its: 

SAFFORD CITY THATCHER TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

14

GRAHAM COUNTY

GRAHAM COUNTY PIMA TOWN

\jj.	&OQ&JABy: _TD By:

Its: Its:

SAFFORD CITY THATCHER TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

14



GRAHAM COUNTY 

  

  

  

  

  

  

GRAHAM COUNTY PIMA TOWN 

Via 
By: By: VERMon faq] y 
Its: Its: TObMU MANA fe 

SAFFORD CITY THATCHER TOWN 

By: By: 
  

Its: 

  

Its: 
  

  

14

GRAHAM COUNTY 

GRAHAM COUNTY 

  

By: 

Its: 

    

SAFFORD CITY 

  

14 

PIMA TOWN 

WY 
By: /1 AM 11 

Its: TOK, 

    

THATCHER TOWN

GRAHAM COUNTY

GRAHAM COUNTY PIMA TOWN

By: W^/SoaI
Its: "TOM/U Wb/JAKff

By:

Its:

SAFFORD CITY THATCHER TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

14



GRAHAM COUNTY 

GRAHAM COUNTY PIMA TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SAFFORD C ) THATCHER TOWN 

By: VONAL \ O\eas By: 
\ 

its: Vv \ Lee Mowe Its:

GRAHAM COUNTY

PIMA TOWNGRAHAM COUNTY

By: By:

Its: Its:

THATCHER TOWNSAFFORD C

;Z -1

By: ' \i\CM QrW 6. By:

\l\Cjt- r Its:Its:

14



  
GRAHAM COUNTY 

  

  
  

  
  

GRAHAM COUNTY PIMA TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SAFFORD CITY THATCHER TOWN 

Ao — 
  

By: 
  

By: Neath N= Browwa   

Its: 
  

  
Its: “Towa Man AAR 

14  

GRAHAM COUNTY 

GRAHAM COUNTY 

PIMA TOWN 

  

By: 
  

Its: 
  

SAFFORD CITY 

      

By: 
  

Its: 
  

14 

By: 
  

Its: 

THATCHER TOWN 

  

  

  

  

 

GRAHAM COUNTY

. GRAHAM COUNTY PIMA TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

SAFFORD CITY THATCHER TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

14



GREENLEE COUNTY 

GREENLEE COUNTY CLIFTON TOWN 

  

DUNCAN TOWN 

- By: 

Its: 

  
15

GREENLEE COUNTY

GREENLEE COUNTY CLIFTON TOWN

By: By:

Its: f k a. oa.'t'A' Its:c5

DUNCAN TOWN

By:

Its:

15



- GREENLEE COUNTY 

GREENLEE COUNTY CLIFTON TOWN 

       

  

‘By: 3 py: Lats M, Montoya 

Its: Its: Mayor 

DUNCAN TOWN 

By: 
  

Its: 

15 

  

 

GREENLEE COUNTY

GREENLEE COUNTY CLIFTON TOWN

/

By: /hf/rtotf

	

By:

Its: Its:

DUNCAN TOWN

By:

Its:

15



GREENLEE COUNTY 

GREENLEE COUNTY CLIFTON TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: } Its: 

DUNCAN TOWN 

15

GREENLEE COUNTY

GREENLEE COUNTY CLIFTON TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

DUNCAN TOWN

U
By: u\

Its:

15



LA PAZ COUNTY 

  

LA PAZ COUNTY PARKER TOWN 

-_.an, 

By: _DUCE MINOR By: 
  

Its; CHAIRMAN 
  

QUARTZITE TOWN 

  

By: 
  

Its: 
  

16 

  

Its: 
 

LA PAZ COUNTY 

4 

By: _DUCE MINOR 

Its: CHAIRMAN 

QUARTZITE TOWN 

LA PAZ COUNTY 

  

PARKER TOWN 

 

LA PAZ COUNTY

LA PAZ COUNTY PARKER TOWN

By: DCJCE MINOR By:

Its: CHAIRMAN Its:

QUARTZITE TOWN

By:

Its:

16



LA PAZ COUNTY 

By: 

Its: 

QUARTZITE TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

LA PAZ COUNTY 

  16 

PARKER TOWNLA PAZ COUNTY 

LA PAZ COUNTY 

PARKER TOWN 

a 

By:   By: 

Its: Its: ibwvt  MM t Ct Or 
t 

QUARTZITE TOWN 

By:  

Its: 

16 



  

LA PAZ COUNTY 

LA PAZ COUNTY PARKER TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

QUARTZITE TOWN 

By: ’ [e 5 or— 

16

LA PAZ COUNTY

PARKER TOWNLA PAZ COUNTY

By:By:

Its:Its:

QUARTZITE TOWN

By: ^5^

zIts:

16



MARICOPA COUNTY 

MARICOPA COUNTY APACHE JUNCTION CITY 

  

    

By: THemss PF. Liev By: 

Its: Chief, Civil Sere Py, Mcp Its: 

  

  

AVONDALE CITY BUCKEYE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

CAREFREE TOWN CAVE CREEK TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

CHANDLER CITY EL MIRAGE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN GILA BEND TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

17 

  
 

MARICOPA COUNTY

MARICOPA COUNTY APACHE JUNCTION CITY

By: F. l-t &t>\ By:

Its: Oth Citfil Pj\ Its:
-t-

AVONDALE CITY BUCKEYE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

CAREFREE TOWN CAVE CREEK TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

CHANDLER CITY EL MIRAGE CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN GILA BEND TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

17



MARICOPA COUNTY 

By: 

Its: 

AVONDALE CITY 

By: 

Its: 

CAREFREE TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

CHANDLER CITY 

By: 

Its: 

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

MARICOPA COUNTY 

APACHE JUNCTION CITY 

  

BUCKEYE TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

CAVE CREEK TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

EL MIRAGE CITY 

By: 

Its: 

GILA BEND TOWN 

By: 

Its:

MARICOPA COUNTY

MARICOPA COUNTY APACHE JUNCTION CITY

P^s\n*\ £,h M>
^l&Izo2\

By:By:

ecto%Its: Its:

AVONDALE CITY BUCKEYE TOWN

By:By:

Its: Its:

CAVE CREEK TOWNCAREFREE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

EL MIRAGE CITYCHANDLER CITY

By:By:

Its: Its:

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN GILA BEND TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

17



  

MARICOPA COUNTY 

  

    

  

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

MARICOPA COUNTY APACHE JUNCTION CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

AVONDALE CITY BUCKEYE TOWN 

Nicholle Harris 
Nicholle Harris (Nov 3, 2021 08:26 PDT) 

. Nicholle Harris 
By: By: 

1. City Attorney ts: 

CAREFREE TOWN CAVE CREEK TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

CHANDLER CITY EL MIRAGE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN GILA BEND TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its:

By:    By:      

Its:    Its:      

17 

 

MARICOPA COUNTY 

 
MARICOPA COUNTY APACHE JUNCTION CITY 

 
 
 
 
 

By:    By:      
 

Its:    Its:      
 
 

AVONDALE CITY BUCKEYE TOWN 
 

Nicholle Harris  
Nicholle Harris (Nov 3, 2021 08:26 PDT) 

 
By: 

Its: 

Nicholle Harris 

City Attorney 

 
 

 

By: 

Its: 

 

CAREFREE TOWN CAVE CREEK TOWN 
 
 
 
 
 

By:    By:      
 

Its:    Its:      
 
 

CHANDLER CITY EL MIRAGE CITY 
 
 
 
 
 

By:    By:      
 

Its:    Its:      
 
 

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN GILA BEND TOWN 



MARICOPA COUNTY 

By: 
  

Its: 

AVONDALE CITY 

By: 

Its: 

CAREFREE TOWN 

By: 

Its: 
  

CITY 

By: 
  

Its: 

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN 

  

By: 

Its: 
  

MARICOPA COUNTY 

APACHE JUNCTION CITY 

By: 
  

Its: 

BUCKEYE CITY 

pa 

By: Eric W. Orsborn 

Its: Mayor 
  

CAVE CREEK TOWN 

By: 

Its: CHANDLER 
  

EL MIRAGE CITY 

By: 

Its: 

GILA BEND TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

Ad*b S$") T-a).ac/$*) NO(b -V CBJCHBCAABAAG#cUOQ#H" N#EQUD#R1K" UpE3$425d%+0d 

 

MARICOPA COUNTY 
 

MARICOPA COUNTY APACHE JUNCTION CITY 

 
 
 

By:    By: 

Its:      Its:       

 
AVONDALE CITY BUCKEYE CITY 

 
 
 
 
 

By: 

Its: Its: 

 
Eric W. Orsborn 

Mayor  

 

CAREFREE TOWN CAVE CREEK TOWN 

 
 
 

By: By:      

Its:      Its:     CHANDLER 

CITY  EL MIRAGE CITY 

 
 
 
 

   By: 

Its:     Its: 

 
FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN GILA BEND TOWN 

 
 
 

By:    

Its:    Its: 

17 
 
 

Ad*b  S$") T‐a).ac/$*) N0(b ‐ѷ CBJCHBCAABAAф#cц0Q#"N#EQцD#Ҕ1K"UрE3$4ZSd%+0d 



MARICOPA COUNTY 

By: 

Its: 

AVONDALE CITY 

  

CHANDLER CITY 

By: 

Its: 

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

MARICOPA COUNTY 

APACHE JUNCTION CITY 

By: 

Its: 

BUCKEYE TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

CAVE CREEK TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

EL MIRAGE CITY 

By: 

Its: 

GILA BEND TOWN 

By: 

Its:  

MARICOPA COUNTY

MARICOPA COUNTY APACHE JUNCTION CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

AVONDALE CITY BUCKEYE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

CAREFREE TOWN CAVE CREEK TOWN

h

/
I

5By: By:

Its: Its:

CHANDLER CITY EL MIRAGE CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN GILA BEND TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

17



MARICOPA COUNTY 

    

  

  

  

    

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

MARICOPA COUNTY APACHE JUNCTION CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

AVONDALE CITY BUCKEYE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

CAREFREE TOWN CAVE CREEK TOWN 

By: By: Fes fA 

Its: Its: VU a oS 77 

CHANDLER CITY EL MIRAGE CITY 

By: By: 
  

Its: 
  

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN 

  

Its: 
  

GILA BEND TOWN 

  

By: 
  

Its: 
  

By: 
  

 

MARICOPA COUNTY

MARICOPA COUNTY APACHE JUNCTION CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

AVONDALE CITY BUCKEYE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

CAREFREE TOWN CAVE CREEK TOWN

By:

l/VI <? ^

By:

Its: Its:

CHANDLER CITY EL MIRAGE CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN GILA BEND TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

17



  

MARICOPA COUNTY 

  

  
  

    

  
  

  

  

  

  

  
  

  

  

  

  

  
  

MARICOPA COUNTY APACHE JUNCTION CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

AVONDALE CITY BUCKEYE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

CAREFREE TOWN CAVE CREEK TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

CHANDLER CITY EL MIRAGE CITY 

By: Kelly Y. Schwab By: 

Its: City Attorney Its: 

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN GILA BEND TOWN 

By: By: 
  

Its: 
  

  

Its: 
 

MARICOPA COUNTY 

17 

MARICOPA COUNTY APACHE JUNCTION CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

AVONDALE CITY BUCKEYE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

CAREFREE TOWN CAVE CREEK TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

CHANDLER CITY EL MIRAGE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN GILA BEND TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

Kelly Y. Schwab

City Attorney



MARICOPA COUNTY 

    

  
  

  
  

      

  
  

  
  

      

  
    

    

MARICOPA COUNTY APACHE JUNCTION CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

AVONDALE CITY BUCKEYE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

CAREFREE TOWN CAVE CREEK TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

CHANDLER CITY EL MIRAGE C 

  
  

    

      

  

    

By: 

Its: 

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN GILA BEND TOWN 

By: By: 
    

Its: [ts: 
   

MARICOPA COUNTY

MARICOPA COUNTY APACHE JUNCTION CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

AVONDALE CITY BUCKEYE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

CAREFREE TOWN CAVE CREEK TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

CHANDLER CITY EL MIRAGE

f

Clus-fio fjfvvBy: By>

(YMvj MW/^)Its: Its:

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN GILA BEND TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

17



MARICOPA COUNTY 

By: 

Its: 

AVONDALE CITY 

By: 

Its: 

CAREFREE TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

CHANDLER CITY 

By: 

Its: 

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN 

By: Ginny Dickey 

Its: Mavor 

MARICOPA COUNTY 

APACHE JUNCTION CITY 

By: 

Its: 

BUCKEYE TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

CAVE CREEK TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

EL MIRAGE CITY 

By: 

Its: 

GILA BEND TOWN 

By: 

Its:

MARICOPA COUNTY

MARICOPA COUNTY APACHE JUNCTION CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

AVONDALE CITY BUCKEYE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

CAREFREE TOWN CAVE CREEK TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

CHANDLER CITY EL MIRAGE CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN GILA BEND TOWN

By: Ginny Dickey By:

Its: Its:Mayor

17



APACHE JUNCTION CITY 

  

By: 

Its: 

  

AVONDALE CITY 

  

By: 

Its: 

  

BUCKEYE TOWN 

  

By: 

Its: 

  

CAREFREE TOWN 

  

By: 
Its: 

  

CAVE CREEK TOWN 

  

By: 

Its: 

  

CHANDLER CITY 

  

By: 

Its: 

    

EL MIRAGE CITY 

By: 

Its: 

              

MARICOPA COUNTY CITIES & TOWNS 

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN 

  

By: 

    

   

7 fal    
GILBERT TOWN 

  

By: 

Its: 

    

GLENDALE CITY 

  

By: 
Its: 

    

GOODYEAR CITY 

    

y: 

Its: 

  

GUADALUPE TOWN 

  

By: 

Its: 

    

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY 

  

By: 

Its: 

    
 

MARICOPA COUNTY CITIES & TOWNS

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN
APACHE JUNCTION CITY

By:By:
Tts:Its:

/GILA BENAVONDALE CITY

VUm-b-J '
		yAA<sf^7jr**r

By:

1
?< s. Zf

By: v

Its: Trjn^yi 4-7^Its:
/
/

c/

GILBERT TOWNBUCKEYE TOWN

By:By:
Its:Its:

GLENDALE CITYCAREFREE TOWN

By:By:
Its:Its:

GOODYEAR CITYCAVE CREEK TOWN

By:By:
Its:Its:

GUADALUPE TOWNCHANDLER CITY

By:By:
Its:Its:

LITCHFIELD PARK CITYEL MIRAGE CITY

By; By:

Its: Its:



MARICOPA COUNTY 

GILBERT TOWN 

  

GOODYEAR CITY 

      

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY 

      

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN 

  

By: 

    

PHOENIX CITY 

By: 

GLENDALE CITY 

  

GUADALUPE TOWN 

  

Its: 

MESA CITY 

  

Its: 

PEORIA CITY 

  

By: 

  

QUEEN CREEK TOWN 

Its:

MARICOPA COUNTY

GLENDALE CITYGILBERT TOWN

By: fongefe "pg-faeescn

Maupr			

GOODYEAR CITY

By:

Its:Its:

GUADALUPE TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

MESA CITYLITCHFIELD PARK CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

PEORIA CITYPARADISE VALLEY TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

QUEEN CREEK TOWNPHOENIX CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

18



MARICOPA COUNTY 

  

  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

  

  
  

    
  

  
    

    

  

    

  
  

  
    

    

  

GILBERT TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOW] 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PHOENIX CITY QUEEN CREEK TOWN 

By: By: 
  

  

Its: Its: 

18 

    

 

MARICOPA COUNTY

GILBERT TOWN :nda Y

"sS: Vp \Z*Z. IS-By: By:

Its:Its:

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TO

By: By:

Its: Its:

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

PHOENIX CITY QUEEN CREEK TOWN

By: By:

Its:Its:

18



MARICOPA COUNTY 

    

GILBERT TOWN GLENDALE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOWN 

         

    

  

    

  

  

  

  

  

    
  

By: Rovie By: 

Its: 

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PHOENIX CITY QUEEN CREEK TOWN 

By: By: 
  

  

Its: Its: 
  

  

18

MARICOPA COUNTY

GILBERT TOWN GLENDALE CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOWN

By: 'KeY£ ï*598 By:

Its: Ùl?/AKocnej Its:

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

PHOENIX CITY QUEEN CREEK TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

18



MARICOPA COUNTY 

    

    

GILBERT TOWN GLENDALE CITY 

By: ~~ By: 

Its: Its: 

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOWN 

Clee rule   

Valerie Molina 
    

      

  

  

    

      

    

  

    

  

By: BN BN By: 

Its: Its: Mayor 

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY 

By: B ~~ By: 

Its: Its: 

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY 

By: } By: I ea BN 

Its: Its: ~ 

PHOENIX CITY QUEEN CREEK TOWN 

By: ~~ Bw: BN 

  

Its: } Its: 

18 

 

MARICOPA COUNTY

GLENDALE CITYGILBERT TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOWN

)

Valerie Molina
By:By:

Its: MayorIts:

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY

By: By:

Its:Its:

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

QUEEN CREEK TOWNPHOENIX CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

18



MARICOPA COUNTY 

  
  

  

  
  

  

  

  
  

    

  

    
  

  

  

GILBERT TOWN GLENDALE CITY 

By: B By: BN 

Its: Its: 

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Mayor Its: } 

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY 

By: B ) By: 

Its: Its: 

PHOENIX CITY QUEEN CREEK TOWN 

By: By: 
    

Its: Its: 
    

18

MARICOPA COUNTY

GLENDALE CITYGILBERT TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOWN

By: By:

Its:Its:

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY

By: By:

Its: Mayor Its:

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

PHOENIX CITY QUEEN CREEK TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

18



MARICOPA COUNTY 

  

GILBERT TOWN GLENDALE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY 

     

  

rte” 

By: By: Awe S A Sic 

Its: Its: vl 77 A 7p NE rH 
  

  

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PHOENIX CITY QUEEN CREEK TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its:

MARICOPA COUNTY

GLENDALE CITYGILBERT TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

GUADALUPE TOWNGOODYEAR CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

MESA CITYLITCHFIELD PARK CITY

XL
By:By:

C'XTIts:Its:

PEORIA CITYPARADISE VALLEY TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

QUEEN CREEK TOWNPHOENIX CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

18



MARICOPA COUNTY 

  
  

  
  

  

  
  

    

  

GILBERT TOWN GLENDALE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY 

  

  

  

  

  

By: 

Its: 

PHOENIX CITY QUEEN CREEK TOWN 

By: By: 
  

  

Its: Its: 
  
 

MARICOPA COUNTY

GILBERT TOWN GLENDALE CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY

By: ry"\\ Kevwv^cVv

its: "toxjo a wvflhAay^r

By:

Its:

PHOENIX CITY QUEEN CREEK TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

18



DocuSign Envelope ID: C203B64A-884B-4DFE-B340-CDFA871D5F48 

ONE ARIZONA DISTRIBUTION OF OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUNDS AGREEMENT 

MARICOPA COUNTY 

Town of Paradise Valley 

DocuSigned by: 

CE1DC3AT7429445A. 

Jill Keimach, Town Manager 

Attest: 

DocuSigned by: 

Duncan Miller 

  

Duncan Miller, Town Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

DocuSigned by: 

| Andee MCwie 

D29F046BCAE 1440... 

Andrew McGuire, Town Attorney

 

ONE ARIZONA DISTRIBUTION OF OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUNDS AGREEMENT 

 

MARICOPA COUNTY 

 

 

 

 

 

Town of Paradise Valley 

 

 

 

_________________________ 

Jill Keimach, Town Manager 

 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

__________________________ 

Duncan Miller, Town Clerk  

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

 

 

____________________________ 

Andrew McGuire, Town Attorney 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C203B64A-884B-4DFE-B340-CDFA871D5F48



MARICOPA COUNTY 

  

  
  

  
  

  

  

  

  

GILBERT TOWN GLENDALE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY 

  

By: By’ anes . by devman 

Its: Its: City A He Vv J 

PHOENIX CITY QUEEN CREEK TOWN 

  
  

  
  

  

  

By: a By 

Its: Its: 

18 

  

 

MARICOPA COUNTY 

GILBERT TOWN GLENDALE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY 

By: 

Its: 

PHOENIX CITY QUEEN CREEK TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

18 



  

  

MARICOPA COUNTY 

GILBERT TOWN GLENDALE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PHOENIX CITY QUEEN CREEK TOWN 

By: C¥\D MEZE. By: 

Its: Ch “gq Asc ORE JY Its: 

18 

  
 

MARICOPA COUNTY

GLENDALE CITYGILBERT TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOWN

By: By:

Its:Its:

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY

By:By:

Its: Its:

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

QUEEN CREEK TOWNPHOENIX CITY

By: C fryggggL

Its:

By:

Its:

18



  

MARICOPA COUNTY 

  

    

    

    

  

  

  

  

    

  

  

  

  

  

    

GILBERT TOWN GLENDALE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PHOENIX CITY QUEEN CREEK TOWN 

By: By: Scott A. Holcomb 
  

Its: 
  

  

Its: Town Attorney 
 

MARICOPA COUNTY 

18 

GILBERT TOWN GLENDALE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PHOENIX CITY QUEEN CREEK TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

Scott A. Holcomb

Town Attorney



MARICOPA COUNTY Contract No. 2021-171-COS 

SCOTTSDALE CITY SURPRISE CITY 

  uid AN 
By: Dowd D. Orteg co By: 

Its: | loo SFTEST Its: 

  

    

    

    

TEMPE CITY Wr ies TOLLESON CITY 
| aaa EE. 

: CITY CLERK 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

WICKENBURG TOWN YOUNGTOWN TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

19 

Page 19 of 48  

MARICOPA COUNTY Contract No. 2021-171-COS 

SCOTTSDALE CITY SURPRISE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

TEMPE CITY TOLLESON CITY 

CITYCLERK 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

WICKENBURG TOWN YOUNGTOWN TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

19 

Page 19 of 48 



MARICOPA COUNTY 

  

  

  

  

    

SCOTTSDALE CITY SURPRISE CITY 

By: By: ) 

Its: Its: 7 7 FF 2 

TEMPE CITY TOLLESON CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

WICKENBURG TOWN YOUNGTOWN TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: 
  

19 

  

Its:

MARICOPA COUNTY

SURPRISE CITYSCOTTSDALE CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

TEMPE CITY TOLLESON CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

WICKENBURG TOWN YOUNGTOWN TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

19



SCOTTSDALE CITY 

By: 
  

Its: 

TEMPE CITY 

By: 
  

Its: 

WICKENBURG TOWN 

By: 
  

Its: 

MARICOPA COUNTY 

SURPRISE CITY 

By: 
  

Its: 

TOLLESON CITY 

ih 
By: Reyes Medrano, Jr. 
  

Its: City Manager 

YOUNGTOWN TOWN 

By: 
  

Its:

MARICOPA COUNTY 

19 
 

SCOTTSDALE CITY  SURPRISE CITY 
 
 
 
 

  

 
By: 

 
 

  
By: 

 

 
Its: 

   
Its: 

 

 
 

    

TEMPE CITY  TOLLESON CITY 
 
 
 
 

  

 
By: 

 
 

  
By: 

 

 
Its: 

   
Its: 

 

 
 

    

WICKENBURG TOWN  YOUNGTOWN TOWN 
 
 
 
 

  

 
By: 

 
 

  
By: 

 

 
Its: 

   
Its: 

 

 
 

    

 
 

Reyes Medrano, Jr.

City Manager



SCOTTSDALE CITY 

Its: 

TEMPE CITY 

MARICOPA COUNTY 

SURPRISE CITY 

  
19 

By: 

Its: 

TOLLESON CITY 

By: 

Its: 

YOUNGTOWN TOWN 

By: 

Its: 
 

MARICOPA COUNTY

SCOTTSDALE CITY SURPRISE CITY

By:By:

Its: Its:

TEMPE CITY TOLLESON CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

WI< BURG TOWN YOUNGTOWN TOWN

> vBy: By:

Its:Its:

19



  

  

  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

MARICOPA COUNTY 

SCOTTSDALE CITY SURPRISE CITY 

By: i ~ By: a 

Its: ~ oo Its: 

TEMPE CITY TOLLESON CITY 

By: By: 

Its: } Its: 

WICKENBURG TOWN YOUNGTOWN TOWN 

By: 

Its: 
  

19 

  

  

 

MARICOPA COUNTY

SCOTTSDALE CITY SURPRISE CITY

By:By:

Its: Its:

TOLLESON CITYTEMPE CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

YOUNGTOWN TOWNWICKENBURG TOWN

By:By:

(AIts:Its:

19



MOHAVE COUNTY 

      

BULLHEAD CITY 

  

  

| PA 
=8% 
  

      
  

  

IN 
COLORADO CITY TOWN, ONA »# KINGMAN CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 
  

LAKE HAVASU CITY 

  

By: 
  

Its: 

20 

 

MOHAVE COUNTY

BULLHEAD CITYMOHAVE COUNTY/

gwisoS

£o.\ yes
&Q,By: Buster Johjhsoi

Its: Chairman, t3os

m
:<sC

^\0«TAT °EUS/

KINGMAN CITYCOLORADO CITY TOWN

isrmb

By:By:

Its:Its:

LAKE HAVASU CITY

By:

Its:

20



MOHAVE COUNTY 

By: 

Its: 

COLORADO CITY TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

LAKE HAVASU CITY 

By: 

Its: 

MOHAVE COUNTY 

BULLHEAD CITY 

Travis Pruitt, Actir i anager ____ 

il A —m., 2 

Wf Toby Cotter 

City Manager 

KINGMAN CITY 

By: 

Its: 

20

MOHAVE COUNTY

BULLHEAD CITYMOHAVE COUNTY

Travis Pruitt, Acti anager

Toby Cotter
-Hv:By:

City Manager
Its:Its:

KINGMAN CITYCOLORADO CITY TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

LAKE HAVASU CITY

By:

Its:

20



MOHAVE COUNTY 

    

  

MOHAVE COUNTY BULLHEAD CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

COLORADO CITY TOWN KINGMAN CITY 

  

  

LAKE HAVASU CITY 

  

By: 

Its: 

20 

   

MOHAVE COUNTY

MOHAVE COUNTY BULLHEAD CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

COLORADO CITY TOWN KINGMAN CITY

L

nBy: By:

yh-rIts: Its:

LAKE HAVASU CITY

By:

Its:

20



MOHAVE COUNTY 

  

By: 

Its: 

COLORADO CITY TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

LAKE HAVASU CITY 

  

By: 

Its: 

MOHAVE COUNTY 

BULLHEAD CITY 

By: 

Its: 

KINGMAN CITY 

  

  

20

MOHAVE COUNTY

MOHAVE COUNTY BULLHEAD CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

COLORADO CITY TOWN KINGMAN CITY

vkjd iAy.UBy: r- A.

Ms: vi:

LAKE HAVASU CITY

By.

Its

20



MOHAVE COUNTY 

By: 

Its: 

COLORADO CITY TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

LAKE HAVASU CITY 

By: Do ~ Sheehy 

Its: Lake Havasu City, Mayor 

MOHAVE COUNTY 

BULLHEAD CITY 

By: 

Its: 

KINGMAN CITY 

By: 

Its: --------------

20 



NAVAJO COUNTY 

NAVAJO COUNTY HOLBROOK CITY 

? = > \ 
7) 22 US 

J 24 Xr 777 

¢ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

By: Daryl Seymore By: 

Its: Chairman Its: 

PINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN SHOW LOW CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SNOWFLAKE TOWN TAYLOR TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

WINSLOW CITY 

By: 
  

Its: 

21

NAVAJO COUNTY 

21 

NAVAJO COUNTY HOLBROOK CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN SHOW LOW CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SNOWFLAKE TOWN TAYLOR TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

WINSLOW CITY 

By: 

Its: 

Daryl Seymore

Chairman



NAVAJO COUNTY 

NAVAJO COUNTY HOLBROOK CITY 

  

  

  

  

By: 

Its: 

PINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN SHOW LOW CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SNOWFLAKE TOWN TAYLOR TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

WINSLOW CITY 

By: 

Its: 

2]

NAVAJO COUNTY

NAVAJO COUNTY HOLBROOK CITY

?"1,

WkBy: By:

Its: Its:

PINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN SHOW LOW CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

SNOWFLAKE TOWN TAYLOR TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

WINSLOW CITY

By:

Its:

21



NAVAJO COUNTY 

NAVAJO COUNTY 

  

By: 

Its: 

  

PINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN 

Af Kone Nuvi     
By: 
  

Its: 
  

SNOWFLAKE TOWN 

By: 
  

Its: 

  

WINSLOW CITY 

  

By: 

Its: 

21 

HOLBROOK CITY 

  

By: 
  

Its: 

  

SHOW LOW CITY 

      

TAYLOR TOWN 

  

    

Its:

NAVAJO COUNTY

HOLBROOK CITYNAVAJO COUNTY

By: By:

Its: Its:

SHOW LOW CITYPINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN

By: By:

Its:Its:

TAYLOR TOWNSNOWFLAKE TOWN

By: By:

Its:Its:

WINSLOW CITY

By:

Its:

21



TOWN OF PINETOP-LAKESIDE 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-1594 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF PINETOP- 
LAKESIDE, ARIZONA APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO 
EXECUTE THE ONE ARIZONA DISTRIBUTION OF OPIOID SETTLEMENT 
FUNDS AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE STATE OF ARIZONA AND THE TOWN OF 
PINETOP-LAKESIDE PROPOSED BY ARIZONA ATTORNEY GENERAL MARK 
BRNOVICH 

WHEREAS, the Arizona Attorney General transmitted a request to cities and towns requesting 
cities and towns to approve the One Arizona Distribution of Opioid Settlement Funds Agreement 
(“Agreement”) between the state of Arizona and the Town of Pinetop-Lakeside resulting from 
negotiations with defendants (the “Opioid Defendants”) involved with manufacturing, 
marketing, promoting, distributing, and dispensing opioids and the expansion of the opioid crisis; 

WHEREAS, the Arizona Attorney General has imposed a November 10, 2021, deadline for 
approval of the Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, although the Agreement limits the power of a town to disapprove the allocations of 
settlement proceeds among the state, cities, towns, and counties, the Agreement allows the Town to 
review and approve or disapprove any final settlement plan regarding amounts paid to the State of 
Arizona by the Opioid Defendants, but disapproval results in lower settlement proceeds disbursed to 
local jurisdictions. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town Council of the Town of 
Pinetop-Lakeside, Arizona hereby approves the One Arizona Opioid Settlement Funds Agreement 
between and among the Town of Pinetop-Lakeside, other Arizona cities and towns, Arizona counties 
and the State of Arizona and authorizes the Mayor to execute the Agreement. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Pinetop-Lakeside, Arizona this 
21% day of October 2021. 

TOWN OF PINETOP-LAKESIDE 

AK Ao nd Xn 

Stephanie Irwin 

  

    

Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Jill Akins, MMC William J. Sims, III 
Town Clerk Town Attorney

TOWN OF PINETOP-LAKESIDE

RESOLUTION NO. 21-1594

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF PINETOP-

LAKESIDE, ARIZONA APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO

EXECUTE THE ONE ARIZONA DISTRIBUTION OF OPIOID SETTLEMENT

FUNDS AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE STATE OF ARIZONA AND THE TOWN OF

PINETOP-LAKESIDE PROPOSED BY ARIZONA ATTORNEY GENERAL MARK

BRNOVICH

WHEREAS, the Arizona Attorney General transmitted a request to cities and towns requesting

cities and towns to approve the One Arizona Distribution of Opioid Settlement Funds Agreement

("Agreement") between the state of Arizona and the Town of Pinetop-Lakeside resulting from

negotiations with defendants (the "Opioid Defendants") involved with manufacturing,

marketing, promoting, distributing, and dispensing opioids and the expansion of the opioid crisis;

WHEREAS, the Arizona Attorney General has imposed a November 10, 2021, deadline for

approval of the Agreement; and

WHEREAS, although the Agreement limits the power of a town to disapprove the allocations of

settlement proceeds among the state, cities, towns, and counties, the Agreement allows the Town to

review and approve or disapprove any final settlement plan regarding amounts paid to the State of

Arizona by the Opioid Defendants, but disapproval results in lower settlement proceeds disbursed to

local jurisdictions.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town Council of the Town of

Pinetop-Lakeside, Arizona hereby approves the One Arizona Opioid Settlement Funds Agreement

between and among the Town of Pinetop-Lakeside, other Arizona cities and towns, Arizona counties

and the State of Arizona and authorizes the Mayor to execute the Agreement.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Town Council ofthe Town ofPinetop-Lakeside, Arizona this

2 1 st day of October 202 1 .

TOWN OF PINETOP-LAKESIDE

ri/vP

Stephanie Irwin

Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

73

I*
s

Jill Akins, MMC

Town Clerk

William J. Sims, III

Town Attorney

ipHk



NAVAJO COUNTY 

  

  

  

NAVAJO COUNTY HOLBROOK CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN SHOW LOW CITY 

  
  

  

  

  

By: 

Its: 

SNOWFLAKE TOWN TAYLOR TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

WINSLOW CITY 

By: 

Its: 

21

NAVAJO COUNTY

HOLBROOK CITYNAVAJO COUNTY

By:By:

Its:Its:

SHOW LOW CITYPINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN

^^By:By:

Its:Its:

TAYLOR TOWNSNOWFLAKE TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

WINSLOW CITY

By:

Its:

21



NAVAJO COUNTY 

  

    

    

  

    

    

NAVAJO COUNTY HOLBROOK CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN SHOW LOW CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SNOWFLAKE TOWN TAYLOR TOWN 

res 

By: [Br re V4 Chott ss wy 

  

  

  

  

Its: / Jen MANA 6 He Its: 

WINSLOW CITY 

  

By: 
  

Its: 
  

21 

 

NAVAJO COUNTY

HOLBROOK CITYNAVAJO COUNTY

By:By:

Its:Its:

PINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN SHOW LOW CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

TAYLOR TOWNSNOWFLAICE TOWN

	 its:

By:By:

Its:

WINSLOW CITY

By:

Its:

21



NAVAJO COUNTY 

NAVAJO COUNTY 

  

By: 
  

Its: 
  

PINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN 

By: 
  

Its: 
  

SNOWFLAKE TOWN 

By: 

HOLBROOK CITY 

  

By: 
  

Its: 
  

SHOW LOW CITY 

By: 

Its: 
  

TAYLOR TOWN 

  

  

Its: 

WINSLOW CITY 

  

By: 
  

Its: 
  

21 

  

 

NAVAJO COUNTY

NAVAJO COUNTY HOLBROOK CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

PINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN SHOW LOW CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

SNOWFLAKE TOWN TAYLOR TOWN

By: By:

vies- -	
T7*5<5>m C. 5 P-V&AiZgfi- Jl//t/z/

Its: Its:

WINSLOW CITY

By:

Its:

21



NAVAJO COUNTY 

    

NAVAJO COUNTY HOLBROOK CITY 

BY: a Bys 

Its: Its: 

PINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN SHOW LOW CITY 

By: . By 

Its: Its: 

SNOWFLAKE TOWN TAYLOR TOWN 

BY: a By: 

Its: Its: 

WINSLOW CITY 

Hel Coy 
By: ANTE Lo . Can 

Its: YN AMbY -— 

 

NAVAJO COUNTY

HOLBROOK CITYNAVAJO COUNTY

By:By:

Its:Its:

SHOW LOW CITYPINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

TAYLOR TOWNSNOWFLAKE TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

WINSLOW CITY

By: ffiaWHlL. LL^ » C-tiLnQ
Its: YfiftMhV""	

21



PIMA COUNTY 

PIMA COUNTY MARANA TOWN 

Sharon Benen 

  
  

  
  

By: Supervisor Sharon Bronson, Chair By: 

Its: BY) Its: 

ORO VALLEY TOWN SAHUARITA TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SOUTH TUCSON CITY TUCSON CITY 

By: By: 
  

  

Its: Its: 

22

PIMA COUNTY 

22 

PIMA COUNTY MARANA TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

ORO VALLEY TOWN SAHUARITA TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SOUTH TUCSON CITY TUCSON CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

Supervisor Sharon Bronson, Chair

�
 



PIMA COUNTY 

PIMA COUNTY 

  

By: 

Its: 

ORO VALLEY TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

  

SOUTH TUCSON CITY 

By: 

Its: 

MARANA TOWN 

  

i, / Sls Mm MALY 

SAHUARITA TOWN 

  

By: 

Its: 

TUCSON CITY 

  

By: 

Its: 

22

PIMA COUNTY

MARANA TOWNPIMA COUNTY

By:By:

Its:Its:

SAHUARITA TOWNORO VALLEY TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

TUCSON CITYSOUTH TUCSON CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

22



PIMA COUNTY 

By: 

PIMA COUNTY 

  

Its: 

ORO VALLEY TOWN 

ba 

By: Mary Jacobs 
  

Its: Town Manager 

September 22, 2021 8:35am 

SOUTH TUCSON CITY 

By: 
  

Its: 

22 

MARANA TOWN 

By: 
  

Its: 

SAHUARITA TOWN 

By: 
  

Its: 

TUCSON CITY 

By: 
  

Its:

PIMA COUNTY 

22 
 

PIMA COUNTY  MARANA TOWN 
 
 
 
 

  

 
By: 

   
By: 

 

 
Its: 

   
Its: 

 

 
 

    

ORO VALLEY TOWN  SAHUARITA TOWN 
 
 
 
 

  

 
By: 

   
By: 

 

 
Its: 

   
Its: 

 

 
 

    

SOUTH TUCSON CITY  TUCSON CITY 
 
 
 
 

  

 
By: 

   
By: 

 

 
Its: 

   
Its: 

 

 
 

    

Town Manager
September 22, 2021 8:35am

Mary Jacobs



PIMA COUNTY 

By: 

Its: 

ORO VALLEY TOWN 

PIMA COUNTY 

  

By: 

Its: 

SOUTH TUCSON CITY 

By: 

Its: 

22 

MARANA TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

SAHUARITA TOWN 

Nem 
By: Tom Murph 

  

  

Its: Mayor 

TUCSON CITY 

By: 

Its:

PIMA COUNTY

MARANA TOWNPIMA COUNTY

By:By:

Its:Its:

SAHUARJTA TOWNORO VALLEY TOWN

i

By: Tom MurphyBy:

MayorIts:Its:

TUCSON CITYSOUTH TUCSON CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

22



PIMA COUNTY 

By: 

Its: 

ORO VALLEY TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

SOUTH TUCSON CITY 

  

PIMA COUNTY 

MARANA TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

SAHUARITA TOWN 

By: 

Its: 
  

TUCSON CITY 

22

PIMA COUNTY

PIMA COUNTY MARANA TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

ORO VALLEY TOWN SAHUARITA TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

SOUTH TUCSON CITY TUCSON CITY

By: M By:

Its: Its:

22



PIMA COUNTY 

  
  

  

  

  

  

  
  

  

  

  

  

PIMA COUNTY MARANA TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

ORO VALLEY TOWN SAHUARITA TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SOUTH TUCSON CITY TUCSON YA 

Vi 3 di . } SE 
i ———————— eee eee tele ff ) Zo io 

By: By: A wf fon i 

/ -             

  

Its: Its: 
  

22

PIMA COUNTY

PIMA COUNTY MARANA TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

ORO VALLEY TOWN SAHUARITA TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

SOUTH TUCSON CITY TUCSON CITY

	~	7	

/^// cAj&^yIfyZSlbtBy: By: /L

d?/y fad/-Its: Its:

22



PINAL 

PINAL COUNTY 

1 
By: VET VouemE I 

Its: Court ATO AE 

COOLIDGE CITY 

  

By: 

Its: 

FLORENCE TOWN 

  

By: 

Its: 

  

MAMMOTH TOWN 

      

SUPERIOR TOWN 

  

COUNTY 

CASA GRANDE CITY 

Its: 

ELOY CITY 

By: 

Its: 

KEARNY TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

MARICOPA CITY 

By: 

Its: 

23

PINAL COUNTY

PINAL COUNTY CASA GRANDE CITY

By: VOUPHtlL

CoonW

By:

Its: Its:

COOLIDGE CITY ELOY CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

FLORENCE TOWN KEARNY TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

MAMMOTH TOWN MARICOPA CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

SUPERIOR TOWN

By:

Its:

23



PINAL COUNTY 

PINAL COUNTY 

CASA GRANDE CITY 

OS 
By: 

Its: 

COOLIDGE CITY 

By: 

Its: 

FLORENCE TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

MAMMOTH TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

SUPERIOR TOWN 

By: 

By: _Larry Rains 

Its: _City Manager 

ELOY CITY 

By: 

Its: 

KEARNY TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

MARICOPA CITY 

By:

PINAL COUNTY

CASA GRANDE CITYPINAL COUNTY

By: Larry Rains

Its: City Manager

By:

Its:

COOLIDGE CITY ELOY CITY

By: By:

Its:Its:

FLORENCE TOWN KEARNY TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

MARICOPA CITYMAMMOTH TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

SUPERIOR TOWN

By:

Its:

23



PINAL COUNTY 

By: 

Its: 

COOLIDGE CITY 

By: 

PINAL COUNTY 

CASA GRANDE CITY 

By: 

Its: 

ELOY CITY 

By: 

Its: Aur Its: 

FLORENCE TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

MAMMOTH TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

SUPERIOR TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

KEARNY TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

MARICOPA CITY 

By: 

23

PINAL COUNTY

By:

Its:

COOLIDGE CITY

By:

Its: \C-

FLORENCE TOWN

By:

Its:

MAMMOTH TOWN

By:

Its:

SUPERIOR TOWN

By:

Its:

PINAL COUNTY

CASA GRANDE CITY

By:

Its:

ELOY CITY

By:

Its:

KEARNY TOWN

By:

Its:

MARICOPA CITY

By:

Its:

23



PINAL COUNTY CITIES & TOWNS 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

CASA GRANDE CITY KEARNY TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

COOLIDGE CITY MAMMOTH TOWN 

By: By: 
Its: Its: 

ELOY CITY MARICOPA CITY 

——7 

By: _[\\\ CA el) By: 
Its: IN ae C Its: 

FLORENCE TOWN SUPERIOR TOWN 

  

By: By: 

Its: Its: 
 

PINAL COUNTY CITIES & TOWNS

CASA GRANDE CITY KEARNY TOWN

By: By:
Its: Its:

COOLIDGE CITY MAMMOTH TOWN

By: By:
Its: Its:

ELOY CITY MARICOPA CITY

By:
Its:

FLORENCE TOWN SUPERIOR TOWN

By: By:
Its: Its:



PINAL COUNTY 

PINAL COUNTY 

By: 

Its: 

COOLIDGE CITY 

  

By: 

Its: 
    

FLORENCE TOWN 

ay: lava (Date 
Its: Ma, Oo 

MAMMOTH TOWN 

By: 

Its: 
  

SUPERIOR TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

CASA GRANDE CITY 

  

By: 

  

Its: 

  

ELOY CITY 

  

By: 

  

Its: 
  

KEARNY TOWN 

  

By: 

  

Its: 

  

MARICOPA CITY 

  

Its: 
  

23

PINAL COUNTY

PINAL COUNTY CASA GRANDE CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

COOLIDGE CITY ELOY CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

FLORENCE TOWN KEARNY TOWN

'OUNCN

lam tOalleu
PGauor

By: By:

Its: Its:

MAMMOTH TOWN MARICOPA CITY

By: By:

Its:Its:

SUPERIOR TOWN

By:

Its:

23'



PINAL COUNTY 

PINAL COUNTY 

  

By: 

Its: 

COOLIDGE CITY 

By: 

Its: 

FLORENCE TOWN 

  

Its: 

MAMMOTH TOWN 

  

SUPERIOR TOWN 

      

CASA GRANDE CITY 

  

By: 

Its: 

ELOY CITY 

  

By: 

Its: 

KEARNY TOWN 

  

MARICOPA CITY 

  

By: 

lis:

PINAL COUNTY

PINAL COUNTY CASA GRANDE CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

COOLIDGE CITY El<OY CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

KEARNY TOWNFLORENCE TOWN

By: L . ftaAo 1 1 Q-QeBy:

Its:Its:

MARICOPA CITYMAMMOTH TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

SUPERIOR TOWN

By:

Its:

23



PINAL COUNTY 

Its: 

COOLIDGE CITY 

By: 

Its: 

FLORENCE TOWN 

By: 

[ts: 

MAMMOTH TOWN 

x 

ov Patsy Armeunta 
Its: r 

  

  

PINAL COUNTY 

CASA GRANDE CITY 

ELOY CITY 

By: 

Its: 

  

KEARNY TOWN 

By: 

{ts: 

  

MARICOPA CITY 

SUPERIOR TOWN 

By: 

Its:

PINAL COUNTY

PINAL COUNTY CASA GRANDE CI FY

By: By:

Its: Its

COOLIDGE CITY ELOY CITY

By: By;

Its: Its:

FLORENCE TOWN KEARNY TOWN

By: By

Its: Its:

MAMMOTH TOWN MARICOPA CITY

By: By:

lrIts: „s

SUPERIOR TOWN

By:

Its:

23



PINAL COUNTY 

PINAL COUNTY CASA GRANDE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

COOLIDGE CITY ELOY CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

FLORENCE TOWN KEARNY TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

MAMMOTH TOWN MARICOPA CITY 

By: By: vennifer Brown 

Is: 1. Assistant City Manager 

SUPERIOR TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

23

PINAL COUNTY

PINAL COUNTY CASA GRANDE CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

COOLIDGE CITY ELOY CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

FLORENCE TOWN KEARNY TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

MARICOPA CITYMAMMOTH TOWN

ennifer Brown
By: By:

Assistant City Manager
Its: Its:

SUPERIOR TOWN

By:

Its:

23



PINAL COUNTY 

PINAL COUNTY 

  

By: 

  

Its: 

  

COOLIDGE CITY 

  

By: 

  

Its: 

  

FLORENCE TOWN 

  

By: 

  

Its: 

  

MAMMOTH TOWN 

  

By: 

  

Its: 

  

SUPERIOR TOWN 

CASA GRANDE CITY 

    

Its: 

ELOY CITY 

  

Its: 

  

KEARNY TOWN 

  

Its: 

  

MARICOPA CITY 

  
 

PINAL COUNTY

.!•
PINAL COUNTY CASA GRANDE CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

COOLIDGE CITY ELOY CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

FLORENCE TOWN KEARNY TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

!

MAMMOTH TOWN MARICOPA CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

SUPERIOR TOWN

1 sic) ftBy:
	

Its: 1 0u3y\

23



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY NOGALES CITY 

By: Manuel Ruiz 

Its: Chairman, Board of Supervisors Its: Aering Luby Ma NEGer 

PATAGONIA TOWN 

ols [17 
By: A nde a \W JOA 

Its: Kou ao 

    

    

24

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY NOGALES CITY

K7^/aj^

Acn*jjj g,jy Ma/Jfflzrz*

By: Manuel Ruiz By:

its: Chairman, Board of Supervisors Its:

PATAGONIA TOWN

By: V/nJOQ c\

Its:

24



YAVAPAI COUNTY 

YAVAPAI COUNTY CAMP VERDE TOWN 

  24% A 
  

By: Lang | Bana By: 

    

  

  

  

    

  

  

  

  

  

  
  

  

  

    

  

Its: Lhaeman Its: 

CHINO VALLEY TOWN CLARKDALE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

COTTONWOOD CITY DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

JEROME TOWN PRESCOTT CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN 

By: 
  

Its: 
  

25

YAVAPAI COUNTY

YAVAPAI COUNTY CAMP VERDE TOWN

LQLL&. | SfiiUOBy: By:

Its: Its;

CHINO VALLEY TOWN CLARKDALE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

COTTONWOOD CITY DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

JEROME TOWN PRESCOTT CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN

By:

Its:

25



YAVAPAI COUNTY 

YAVAPAI COUNTY 

  

By: 

  

Its: 

  

CHINO VALLEY TOWN 

  

By: 

  

Its: 
    

COTTONWOOD CITY 

  

By: 

  

Its: 

  

JEROME TOWN 

  

By: 

  

Its: 

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN 

  

25 

CAMP VERDE TOWN 

By: _ DEE JENKINS 

MAYOR 

X 

Its: 

CLARKDALE TOWN 

  

Its: 
  

DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWN 

  

By: 

  

Its: 

  

PRESCOTT CITY 

  

Its: 
 

YAVAPAI COUNTY

YAVAPAI COUNTY CAMP VERDE TOWN

/

X

By: By: DEE IENKINS

Its: MAYORIts:

CHINO VALLEY TOWN CLARKDALE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

COTTONWOOD CITY DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

JEROME TOWN PRESCOTT CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN

By:

Its:

25



YAVAPAI COUNTY 

  

{ Wine Valley CAMP VERDE TOWN 
TOWN 

leet ww. LLC 
  

       

  

  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  
  

  

By: By: 
Ta 

Its: i AYO Its: 

CHINO VALLEY TOWN CLARKDALE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

COTTONWOOD CITY DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

JEROME TOWN PRESCOTT CITY 

By: By: 

Its: tse 

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN 

By: 
    

Its: 

25

YAVAPAI COUNTY

CAMP VERDE TOWNYAVAPAI COUNTY
TlA-OlA

. (JU' M ) iLic f Ẑ
By:By:

Mmotz. Its:Its:

CLARKDALETOWNCHINO VALLEY TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWNCOTTONWOOD CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

PRESCOTT CITYJEROME TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN

By:

Its:

25



YAVAPAI COUNTY 

  

  

YAVAPAI COUNTY CAMP VERDE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

CHINO VALLEY TOWN CLARKDALE TOWN 

  

  

By: 

Its: 

COTTONWOOD CITY DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

JEROME TOWN PRESCOTT CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

25

YAVAPAI COUNTY

YAVAPAI COUNTY CAMP VERDE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

CHINO VALLEY TOWN CLARKDALE TOWN

Kpbijn ttud1 homrYierrBauer
Maijtr	

By: By:

Its: Its:

COTTONWOOD CITY DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

JEROME TOWN PRESCOTT CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN

By:

Its:

25



YAVAPAI COUNTY 

YAVAPAI COUNTY CAMP VERDE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

CHINO VALLEY TOWN CLARKDALE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

COTTONWOOD CITY DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWN 

By: Tim Elinski By: 

Its: Mayor Its: 

JEROME TOWN PRESCOTT CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

25

YAVAPAI COUNTY

YAVAPAI COUNTY CAMP VERDE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

CHINO VALLEY TOWN CLARKDALE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

COTTONWOOD CITY DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWN

By: Tim Elinski By:

Its: Mayor Its:

JEROME TOWN PRESCOTT CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN

By:

Its:

25



YAVAPAI COUNTY 

YAVAPAI COUNTY 

CAMP VERDE TOWN 

  

By: 

Its: 

CHINO VALLEY TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

COTTONWOOD CITY 

By: 
  

[ts: 
  

CLARKDALE TOWN 

  

By: 
  

Its: 

DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWN 

    
By: ohn ua his 

  

By: 

Its: Its: J / / A0 9 \ / J . LOC 

JEROME TOWN PRESCOTT CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 
    

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

25

YAVAPAI COUNTY

YAVAPAI COUNTY CAMP VERDE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

CHINO VALLEY TOWN CLARKDALE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

COTTONWOOD CITY DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWN

it hifSIo r\ u1
By: By:

Its: Its:

JEROME TOWN PRESCOTT CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN

By:

Its:

25



YAVAPAI COUNTY 

    

YAVAPAI COUNTY CAMP VERDE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

CHINO VALLEY TOWN CLARKDALE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

COTTONWOOD CITY DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

JEROME TOWN PRESCOTT CITY 

By: 

Its: 

  

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

25

YAVAPAI COUNTY

CAMP VERDE TOWNYAVAPAI COUNTY

By:By:

Its:Its:

CLARKDALE TOWNCHINO VALLEY TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWNCOTTONWOOD CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

PRESCOTT CITYJEROME TOWN

By: jAtk PlllglA.frgfj

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN

By:

Its:Its:

By:

Its:

25



YAVAPAI COUNTY 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
  

YAVAPAI COUNTY CAMP VERDE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

CHINO VALLEY TOWN CLARKDALE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

COTTONWOOD CITY DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWN 

By: By: 
  

  

Its: 
  

JEROME TOWN 

  

By: 

Its: 
  
  

  

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN 

  

By: 

Its: 
  

25 

 

YAVAPAI COUNTY

CAMP VERDE TOWNYAVAPAI COUNTY

By:By:

Its:Its:

CLARKDALE TOWNCHINO VALLEY TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWNCOTTONWOOD CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

PRESGOTT CiTJEROME TOWN

MgM6AK£LUBy:By:

Its:Its:

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN

By:

Its:

25



YAVAPAI COUNTY 

  

    
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

YAVAPAI COUNTY CAMP VERDE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

CHINO VALLEY TOWN CLARKDALE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

COTTONWOOD CITY DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

JEROME TOWN PRESCOTT CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 
  

  

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN 

  

    

By: _ Koll guts 

Its: WA gy Ov 

| Approved As le Form ’ 25 

Li 
lo wan OY hu 

HTBST: Tole Font), Ton Qn 

   

YAVAPAI COUNTY

YAVAPAI COUNTY CAMP VERDE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

CHINO VALLEY TOWN CLARKDALE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

COTTONWOOD CITY DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

JEROME TOWN PRESCOTT CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN

By: \Cj? 11 fir Uv.uVa
W\<yN/C>v-Its:

AuTo P<b>r <
Lz-v"~

25

/Pn<1 <s> UJ y\ O irvy«u/

CUrl/feST-^ /



YUMA COUNTY 

YUMA COUNTY SAN LUIS CITY 

  
    

  

  

  
  

  

  

  

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SOMERTON CITY WELLTON TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

YUMA CITY 

By: 
  

Its: 
  

26

YUMA COUNTY

SAN LUIS CITYYUMA COUNTY

CUr A By:By:

imrin ol TVv I Its:Its:

WELLTON TOWNSOMERTON CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

YUMA CITY

By:

Its:

26



YUMA COUNTY 

By: 

Its: 

SOMERTON CITY 

By: 

Its: 

YUMA CITY 

By: 

Its: 

YUMA COUNTY 

26 

SAN LUIS CITY 

AE. al 
By: Gerardo Sanchez 

Its: M 4 Yor 

WELLTON TOWN 

By: 

Its:

YUMA COUNTY

SAN LUIS CITYYUMA COUNTY

By: Qevmrdo Sanchez.

Major	

By:

Its:Its:

WELLTON TOWNSOMERTON CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

YUMA CITY

By:

Its:

26



YUMA COUNTY 

  

  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

YUMA COUNTY SAN LUIS CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SOMERTON CITY WELLTON TOWN 

By: / Mayor Gevavdo Prnayor By: 

Its: Mauor Its: 
t 

YUMA CITY 

By: 
  

Its: 
  

26

YUMA COUNTY 

          

YUMA COUNTY SAN LUIS CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SOMERTON CITY WELLTON TOWN 

  

  

  

Its: Ya Yar Its: 

YUMA CITY 

    

Its: 

26 

 

YUMA COUNTY

SAN LUIS CITYYUMA COUNTY

By:By:

Its:Its:

WELLTON TOWNSOMERTON CITY

\/Ktx^for Gy-evoYdo by;

VWujrur

By:

Its:Its:

YUMA CITY

By:

Its:

26



YUMA COUNTY 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

YUMA COUNTY SAN LUIS CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SOMERTON CITY WELLTON TOWN 

By: By: Cecilia McCollough 

Its: Its: Mayor 

YUMA CITY 

By: 
  

Its: 
  

26 

  

  

 

YUMA COUNTY 

26 

YUMA COUNTY SAN LUIS CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SOMERTON CITY WELLTON TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

YUMA CITY 

By: 

Its: 

Cecilia McCollough

Mayor



YUMA COUNTY 

  

YUMA COUNTY SAN LUIS CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SOMERTON CITY WELLTON TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

YUMA CITY 

       By: /L A. EoDRIGUEZ 

Its: City 4 mips strad or

YUMA COUNTY

YUMA COUNTY SAN LUIS CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

SOMERTON CITY WELLTON TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

YUMA CITY

I

By: PHIL/P /}. KoTXtlQULZ,

Cij-u idrtiNrh'A'iafIts:

26



Exhibit AExhibit A

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A 

 
 
  



A. 

OPIOID ABATEMENT STRATEGIES 

  

PART ONE: TREATMENT 

    
  

TREAT OPIOID USE DISORDER (OUD) 

Support treatment of Opioid Use Disorder (OUD) and any co-occurring Substance Use 

Disorder or Mental Health (SUD/MH) conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction through 

evidence-based, evidence-informed, or promising programs or strategies that may include, 

but are not limited to, the following: 

1. Expand availability of treatment for OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, 
co-usage, and/or co-addiction, including all forms of Medication-Assisted Treatment 

(MAT) approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration. 

Support and reimburse services that include the full American Society of Addiction 

Medicine (ASAM) continuum of care for OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, including but not limited to: 

a. Medication-Assisted Treatment (MAT); 

b. Abstinence-based treatment; 

c. Treatment, recovery, or other services provided by states, subdivisions, 
community health centers; non-for-profit providers; or for-profit providers; 

d. Treatment by providers that focus on OUD treatment as well as treatment by 
providers that offer OUD treatment along with treatment for other SUD/MH 

conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction; or 

e. Evidence-informed residential services programs, as noted below. 

Expand telehealth to increase access to treatment for OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, including MAT, as well as 

counseling, psychiatric support, and other treatment and recovery support services. 

Improve oversight of Opioid Treatment Programs (OTPs) to assure evidence-based, 

evidence-informed, or promising practices such as adequate methadone dosing. 

Support mobile intervention, treatment, and recovery services, offered by qualified 

professionals and service providers, such as peer recovery coaches, for persons with 

OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction and 
for persons who have experienced an opioid overdose. 

Support treatment of mental health trauma resulting from the traumatic experiences of 

the opioid user (e.g., violence, sexual assault, human trafficking, or adverse childhood 
experiences) and family members (e.g., surviving family members after an overdose

 

 
 

O P I O I D   A B A T E M E N T   S T R A T E G I E S 
 

PART ONE: TREATMENT 

 
A. TREAT OPIOID USE DISORDER (OUD) 

Support treatment of Opioid Use Disorder (OUD) and any co-occurring Substance Use 
Disorder or Mental Health (SUD/MH) conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction through 
evidence-based, evidence-informed, or promising programs or strategies that may include, 
but are not limited to, the following: 

1. Expand availability of treatment for OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, 
co-usage, and/or co-addiction, including all forms of Medication-Assisted Treatment 
(MAT) approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration. 

2. Support and reimburse services that include the full American Society of Addiction 
Medicine (ASAM) continuum of care for OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, including but not limited to: 

a. Medication-Assisted Treatment (MAT); 

b. Abstinence-based treatment; 

c. Treatment, recovery, or other services provided by states, subdivisions, 
community health centers; non-for-profit providers; or for-profit providers; 

d. Treatment by providers that focus on OUD treatment as well as treatment by 
providers that offer OUD treatment along with treatment for other SUD/MH 
conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction; or 

e. Evidence-informed residential services programs, as noted below. 

3. Expand telehealth to increase access to treatment for OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, including MAT, as well as 
counseling, psychiatric support, and other treatment and recovery support services. 

4. Improve oversight of Opioid Treatment Programs (OTPs) to assure evidence-based, 
evidence-informed, or promising practices such as adequate methadone dosing. 

5. Support mobile intervention, treatment, and recovery services, offered by qualified 
professionals and service providers, such as peer recovery coaches, for persons with 
OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction and 
for persons who have experienced an opioid overdose. 

6. Support treatment of mental health trauma resulting from the traumatic experiences of 
the opioid user (e.g., violence, sexual assault, human trafficking, or adverse childhood 
experiences) and family members (e.g., surviving family members after an overdose 



10. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

B. 

or overdose fatality), and training of health care personnel to identify and address such 

trauma. 

Support detoxification (detox) and withdrawal management services for persons with 

OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, 
including medical detox, referral to treatment, or connections to other services or 

supports. 

Support training on MAT for health care providers, students, or other supporting 

professionals, such as peer recovery coaches or recovery outreach specialists, 

including telementoring to assist community-based providers in rural or underserved 

areas. 

Support workforce development for addiction professionals who work with persons 

with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction. 

Provide fellowships for addiction medicine specialists for direct patient care, 

instructors, and clinical research for treatments. 

Provide funding and training for clinicians to obtain a waiver under the federal Drug 

Addiction Treatment Act of 2000 (DATA 2000) to prescribe MAT for OUD, and 
provide technical assistance and professional support to clinicians who have obtained 
a DATA 2000 waiver. 

Support the dissemination of web-based training curricula, such as the American 
Academy of Addiction Psychiatry’s Provider Clinical Support Service-Opioids web- 

based training curriculum and motivational interviewing. 

Support the development and dissemination of new curricula, such as the American 

Academy of Addiction Psychiatry’s Provider Clinical Support Service for Medication- 

Assisted Treatment. 

SUPPORT PEOPLE IN TREATMENT AND RECOVERY 

Support people in treatment for and recovery from OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 

conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction through evidence-based, evidence-informed, or 

promising programs or strategies that may include, but are not limited to, the following: 

1. Provide the full continuum of care of recovery services for OUD and any co-occurring 

SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, including supportive housing, 
residential treatment, medical detox services, peer support services and counseling, 

community navigators, case management, and connections to community-based 

services. 

Provide counseling, peer-support, recovery case management and residential 

treatment with access to medications for those who need it to persons with OUD and 

any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction.

 

 
 

or overdose fatality), and training of health care personnel to identify and address such 
trauma. 

7. Support detoxification (detox) and withdrawal management services for persons with 
OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, 
including medical detox, referral to treatment, or connections to other services or 
supports. 

8. Support training on MAT for health care providers, students, or other supporting 
professionals, such as peer recovery coaches or recovery outreach specialists, 
including telementoring to assist community-based providers in rural or underserved 
areas. 

9. Support workforce development for addiction professionals who work with persons 
with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction. 

10. Provide fellowships for addiction medicine specialists for direct patient care, 
instructors, and clinical research for treatments. 

11. Provide funding and training for clinicians to obtain a waiver under the federal Drug 
Addiction Treatment Act of 2000 (DATA 2000) to prescribe MAT for OUD, and 
provide technical assistance and professional support to clinicians who have obtained 
a DATA 2000 waiver. 

12. Support the dissemination of web-based training curricula, such as the American 
Academy of Addiction Psychiatry’s Provider Clinical Support Service-Opioids web-
based training curriculum and motivational interviewing. 

13.  Support the development and dissemination of new curricula, such as the American 
Academy of Addiction Psychiatry’s Provider Clinical Support Service for Medication-
Assisted Treatment. 

B. SUPPORT PEOPLE IN TREATMENT AND RECOVERY 

Support people in treatment for and recovery from OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction through evidence-based, evidence-informed, or 
promising programs or strategies that may include, but are not limited to, the following: 

1. Provide the full continuum of care of recovery services for OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, including supportive housing, 
residential treatment, medical detox services, peer support services and counseling, 
community navigators, case management, and connections to community-based 
services. 

2. Provide counseling, peer-support, recovery case management and residential 
treatment with access to medications for those who need it to persons with OUD and 
any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction.  



10. 

Provide access to housing for people with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 

conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, including supportive housing, recovery 
housing, housing assistance programs, or training for housing providers. 

Provide community support services, including social and legal services, to assist in 

deinstitutionalizing persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co- 

usage, and/or co-addiction. 

Support or expand peer-recovery centers, which may include support groups, social 

events, computer access, or other services for persons with OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction. 

Provide employment training or educational services for persons in treatment for or 
recovery from OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co- 
addiction. 

Identify successful recovery programs such as physician, pilot, and college recovery 

programs, and provide support and technical assistance to increase the number and 
capacity of high-quality programs to help those in recovery. 

Engage non-profits, faith-based communities, and community coalitions to support 
people in treatment and recovery and to support family members in their efforts to 
manage the opioid user in the family. 

Provide training and development of procedures for government staff to appropriately 

interact and provide social and other services to current and recovering opioid users, 
including reducing stigma. 

Support stigma reduction efforts regarding treatment and support for persons with 

OUD, including reducing the stigma on effective treatment. 

CONNECT PEOPLE WHO NEED HELP TO THE HELP THEY NEED 

(CONNECTIONS TO CARE) 

Provide connections to care for people who have — or are at risk of developing — OUD and 

any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction through evidence- 

based, evidence-informed, or promising programs or strategies that may include, but are not 
limited to, the following: 

1. Ensure that health care providers are screening for OUD and other risk factors and 

know how to appropriately counsel and treat (or refer if necessary) a patient for OUD 

treatment. 

Support Screening, Brief Intervention and Referral to Treatment (SBIRT) programs 

to reduce the transition from use to disorders. 

Provide training and long-term implementation of SBIRT in key systems (health, 

schools, colleges, criminal justice, and probation), with a focus on youth and young 

adults when transition from misuse to opioid disorder is common.

 

 
 

3. Provide access to housing for people with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, including supportive housing, recovery 
housing, housing assistance programs, or training for housing providers. 

4. Provide community support services, including social and legal services, to assist in 
deinstitutionalizing persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-
usage, and/or co-addiction. 

5. Support or expand peer-recovery centers, which may include support groups, social 
events, computer access, or other services for persons with OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction. 

6. Provide employment training or educational services for persons in treatment for or 
recovery from OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-
addiction. 

7. Identify successful recovery programs such as physician, pilot, and college recovery 
programs, and provide support and technical assistance to increase the number and 
capacity of high-quality programs to help those in recovery. 

8. Engage non-profits, faith-based communities, and community coalitions to support 
people in treatment and recovery and to support family members in their efforts to 
manage the opioid user in the family. 

9. Provide training and development of procedures for government staff to appropriately 
interact and provide social and other services to current and recovering opioid users, 
including reducing stigma. 

10. Support stigma reduction efforts regarding treatment and support for persons with 
OUD, including reducing the stigma on effective treatment. 

C. CONNECT PEOPLE WHO NEED HELP TO THE HELP THEY NEED 
(CONNECTIONS TO CARE) 

Provide connections to care for people who have – or are at risk of developing – OUD and 
any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction through evidence-
based, evidence-informed, or promising programs or strategies that may include, but are not 
limited to, the following: 

1. Ensure that health care providers are screening for OUD and other risk factors and 
know how to appropriately counsel and treat (or refer if necessary) a patient for OUD 
treatment. 

2. Support Screening, Brief Intervention and Referral to Treatment (SBIRT) programs 
to reduce the transition from use to disorders. 

3. Provide training and long-term implementation of SBIRT in key systems (health, 
schools, colleges, criminal justice, and probation), with a focus on youth and young 
adults when transition from misuse to opioid disorder is common. 



10. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

14. 

15. 

16. 

Purchase automated versions of SBIRT and support ongoing costs of the technology. 

Support training for emergency room personnel treating opioid overdose patients on 

post-discharge planning, including community referrals for MAT, recovery case 
management or support services. 

Support hospital programs that transition persons with OUD and any co-occurring 

SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, or persons who have experienced 
an opioid overdose, into community treatment or recovery services through a bridge 
clinic or similar approach. 

Support crisis stabilization centers that serve as an alternative to hospital emergency 

departments for persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co- 
usage, and/or co-addiction or persons that have experienced an opioid overdose. 

Support the work of Emergency Medical Systems, including peer support specialists, 
to connect individuals to treatment or other appropriate services following an opioid 

overdose or other opioid-related adverse event. 

Provide funding for peer support specialists or recovery coaches in emergency 

departments, detox facilities, recovery centers, recovery housing, or similar settings; 
offer services, supports, or connections to care to persons with OUD and any co- 

occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction or to persons who have 
experienced an opioid overdose. 

Provide funding for peer navigators, recovery coaches, care coordinators, or care 

managers that offer assistance to persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 

conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction or to persons who have experienced on 
opioid overdose. 

Create or support school-based contacts that parents can engage with to seek 
immediate treatment services for their child; and support prevention, intervention, 

treatment, and recovery programs focused on young people. 

Develop and support best practices on addressing OUD in the workplace. 

Support assistance programs for health care providers with OUD. 

Engage non-profits and the faith community as a system to support outreach for 

treatment. 

Support centralized call centers that provide information and connections to 

appropriate services and supports for persons with OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction. 

Create or support intake and call centers to facilitate education and access to treatment, 

prevention, and recovery services for persons with OUD and any co-occurring 

SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction.

 

 
 

4. Purchase automated versions of SBIRT and support ongoing costs of the technology. 

5. Support training for emergency room personnel treating opioid overdose patients on 
post-discharge planning, including community referrals for MAT, recovery case 
management or support services. 

6. Support hospital programs that transition persons with OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, or persons who have experienced 
an opioid overdose, into community treatment or recovery services through a bridge 
clinic or similar approach. 

7. Support crisis stabilization centers that serve as an alternative to hospital emergency 
departments for persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-
usage, and/or co-addiction or persons that have experienced an opioid overdose. 

8. Support the work of Emergency Medical Systems, including peer support specialists, 
to connect individuals to treatment or other appropriate services following an opioid 
overdose or other opioid-related adverse event. 

9. Provide funding for peer support specialists or recovery coaches in emergency 
departments, detox facilities, recovery centers, recovery housing, or similar settings; 
offer services, supports, or connections to care to persons with OUD and any co-
occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction or to persons who have 
experienced an opioid overdose. 

10. Provide funding for peer navigators, recovery coaches, care coordinators, or care 
managers that offer assistance to persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction or to persons who have experienced on 
opioid overdose. 

11. Create or support school-based contacts that parents can engage with to seek 
immediate treatment services for their child; and support prevention, intervention, 
treatment, and recovery programs focused on young people. 

12. Develop and support best practices on addressing OUD in the workplace. 

13. Support assistance programs for health care providers with OUD. 

14. Engage non-profits and the faith community as a system to support outreach for 
treatment. 

15. Support centralized call centers that provide information and connections to 
appropriate services and supports for persons with OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction. 

16. Create or support intake and call centers to facilitate education and access to treatment, 
prevention, and recovery services for persons with OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction. 



17. Develop or support a National Treatment Availability Clearinghouse — a 

D. 

multistate/nationally accessible database whereby health care providers can list 
locations for currently available in-patient and out-patient OUD treatment services 

that are accessible on a real-time basis by persons who seek treatment. 

ADDRESS THE NEEDS OF CRIMINAL-JUSTICE-INVOLVED PERSONS 

Address the needs of persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, 
and/or co-addiction who are involved — or are at risk of becoming involved — in the criminal 
justice system through evidence-based, evidence-informed, or promising programs or 
strategies that may include, but are not limited to, the following: 

1. Support pre-arrest or post-arrest diversion and deflection strategies for persons with 

OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, 
including established strategies such as: 

a. Self-referral strategies such as the Angel Programs or the Police Assisted 
Addiction Recovery Initiative (PAARI); 

b. Active outreach strategies such as the Drug Abuse Response Team (DART) 

model; 

c. “Naloxone Plus” strategies, which work to ensure that individuals who have 

received naloxone to reverse the effects of an overdose are then linked to treatment 
programs or other appropriate services; 

d. Officer prevention strategies, such as the Law Enforcement Assisted Diversion 
(LEAD) model; 

e. Officer intervention strategies such as the Leon County, Florida Adult Civil 
Citation Network or the Chicago Westside Narcotics Diversion to Treatment 
Initiative; 

f. Co-responder and/or alternative responder models to address OUD-related 911 
calls with greater SUD expertise and to reduce perceived barriers associated with 

law enforcement 911 responses; or 

g. County prosecution diversion programs, including diversion officer salary, only 
for counties with a population of 50,000 or less. Any diversion services in matters 

involving opioids must include drug testing, monitoring, or treatment. 

Support pre-trial services that connect individuals with OUD and any co-occurring 

SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction to evidence-informed treatment, 

including MAT, and related services. 

Support treatment and recovery courts for persons with OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, but only if these courts provide 

referrals to evidence-informed treatment, including MAT.

 

 
 

17. Develop or support a National Treatment Availability Clearinghouse – a 
multistate/nationally accessible database whereby health care providers can list 
locations for currently available in-patient and out-patient OUD treatment services 
that are accessible on a real-time basis by persons who seek treatment. 

D. ADDRESS THE NEEDS OF CRIMINAL-JUSTICE-INVOLVED PERSONS 

Address the needs of persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, 
and/or co-addiction who are involved – or are at risk of becoming involved – in the criminal 
justice system through evidence-based, evidence-informed, or promising programs or 
strategies that may include, but are not limited to, the following: 

1. Support pre-arrest or post-arrest diversion and deflection strategies for persons with 
OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, 
including established strategies such as: 

a. Self-referral strategies such as the Angel Programs or the Police Assisted 
Addiction Recovery Initiative (PAARI); 

b. Active outreach strategies such as the Drug Abuse Response Team (DART) 
model; 

c. “Naloxone Plus” strategies, which work to ensure that individuals who have 
received naloxone to reverse the effects of an overdose are then linked to treatment 
programs or other appropriate services; 

d. Officer prevention strategies, such as the Law Enforcement Assisted Diversion 
(LEAD) model; 

e. Officer intervention strategies such as the Leon County, Florida Adult Civil 
Citation Network or the Chicago Westside Narcotics Diversion to Treatment 
Initiative;  

f. Co-responder and/or alternative responder models to address OUD-related 911 
calls with greater SUD expertise and to reduce perceived barriers associated with 
law enforcement 911 responses; or 

g. County prosecution diversion programs, including diversion officer salary, only 
for counties with a population of 50,000 or less. Any diversion services in matters 
involving opioids must include drug testing, monitoring, or treatment. 

2. Support pre-trial services that connect individuals with OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction to evidence-informed treatment, 
including MAT, and related services. 

3. Support treatment and recovery courts for persons with OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, but only if these courts provide 
referrals to evidence-informed treatment, including MAT. 



Provide evidence-informed treatment, including MAT, recovery support, or other 

appropriate services to individuals with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction who are incarcerated in jail or prison. 

Provide evidence-informed treatment, including MAT, recovery support, or other 
appropriate services to individuals with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 

conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction who are leaving jail or prison have recently 
left jail or prison, are on probation or parole, are under community corrections 

supervision, or are in re-entry programs or facilities. 

Support critical time interventions (CTI), particularly for individuals living with dual- 

diagnosis OUD/serious mental illness, and services for individuals who face 
immediate risks and service needs and risks upon release from correctional settings. 

Provide training on best practices for addressing the needs of criminal-justice- 
involved persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, 

and/or co-addiction to law enforcement, correctional, or judicial personnel or to 
providers of treatment, recovery, case management, or other services offered in 

connection with any of the strategies described in this section. 

ADDRESS THE NEEDS OF PREGNANT OR PARENTING WOMEN AND 

THEIR FAMILIES. INCLUDING BABIES WITH NEONATAL ABSTINENCE 

SYNDROME 

  

Address the needs of pregnant or parenting women with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, and the needs of their families, including babies 

with neonatal abstinence syndrome, through evidence-based, evidence-informed, or 
promising programs or strategies that may include, but are not limited to, the following: 

1. Support evidence-based, evidence-informed, or promising treatment, including MAT, 

recovery services and supports, and prevention services for pregnant women — or 
women who could become pregnant — who have OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, and other measures to educate and provide 

support to families affected by Neonatal Abstinence Syndrome. 

Provide training for obstetricians or other healthcare personnel that work with 

pregnant women and their families regarding treatment of OUD and any co-occurring 

SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction. 

Provide training to health care providers who work with pregnant or parenting women 

on best practices for compliance with federal requirements that children born with 

Neonatal Abstinence Syndrome get referred to appropriate services and receive a plan 
of safe care. 

Provide enhanced support for children and family members suffering trauma as a 

result of addiction in the family; and offer trauma-informed behavioral health 

treatment for adverse childhood events.

 

 
 

4. Provide evidence-informed treatment, including MAT, recovery support, or other 
appropriate services to individuals with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction who are incarcerated in jail or prison. 

5. Provide evidence-informed treatment, including MAT, recovery support, or other 
appropriate services to individuals with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction who are leaving jail or prison have recently 
left jail or prison, are on probation or parole, are under community corrections 
supervision, or are in re-entry programs or facilities. 

6. Support critical time interventions (CTI), particularly for individuals living with dual-
diagnosis OUD/serious mental illness, and services for individuals who face 
immediate risks and service needs and risks upon release from correctional settings. 

7. Provide training on best practices for addressing the needs of criminal-justice-
involved persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, 
and/or co-addiction to law enforcement, correctional, or judicial personnel or to 
providers of treatment, recovery, case management, or other services offered in 
connection with any of the strategies described in this section. 

E. ADDRESS THE NEEDS OF PREGNANT OR PARENTING WOMEN AND 
THEIR FAMILIES, INCLUDING BABIES WITH NEONATAL ABSTINENCE 
SYNDROME  

Address the needs of pregnant or parenting women with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, and the needs of their families, including babies 
with neonatal abstinence syndrome, through evidence-based, evidence-informed, or 
promising programs or strategies that may include, but are not limited to, the following: 

1. Support evidence-based, evidence-informed, or promising treatment, including MAT, 
recovery services and supports, and prevention services for pregnant women – or 
women who could become pregnant – who have OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, and other measures to educate and provide 
support to families affected by Neonatal Abstinence Syndrome. 

2. Provide training for obstetricians or other healthcare personnel that work with 
pregnant women and their families regarding treatment of OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction. 

3. Provide training to health care providers who work with pregnant or parenting women 
on best practices for compliance with federal requirements that children born with 
Neonatal Abstinence Syndrome get referred to appropriate services and receive a plan 
of safe care. 

4. Provide enhanced support for children and family members suffering trauma as a 
result of addiction in the family; and offer trauma-informed behavioral health 
treatment for adverse childhood events. 



5. 

F. 

Offer enhanced family supports and home-based wrap-around services to persons with 

OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, 
including but not limited to parent skills training. 

Support for Children’s Services — Fund additional positions and services, including 
supportive housing and other residential services, relating to children being removed 
from the home and/or placed in foster care due to custodial opioid use. 

  

PART TWO: PREVENTION 

    
  

PREVENT OVER-PRESCRIBING AND ENSURE APPROPRIATE 

PRESCRIBING AND DISPENSING OF OPIOIDS 

Support efforts to prevent over-prescribing and ensure appropriate prescribing and dispensing 

of opioids through evidence-based, evidence-informed, or promising programs or strategies 

that may include, but are not limited to, the following: 

1. Training for health care providers regarding safe and responsible opioid prescribing, 
dosing, and tapering patients off opioids. 

. Academic counter-detailing to educate prescribers on appropriate opioid prescribing. 

Continuing Medical Education (CME) on appropriate prescribing of opioids. 

Support for non-opioid pain treatment alternatives, including training providers to 

offer or refer to multi-modal, evidence-informed treatment of pain. 

Support enhancements or improvements to Prescription Drug Monitoring Programs 

(PDMPs), including but not limited to improvements that: 

a. Increase the number of prescribers using PDMPs; 

b. Improve point-of-care decision-making by increasing the quantity, quality, or 
format of data available to prescribers using PDMPs or by improving the 
interface that prescribers use to access PDMP data, or both; or 

c. Enable states to use PDMP data in support of surveillance or intervention 
strategies, including MAT referrals and follow-up for individuals identified 
within PDMP data as likely to experience OUD. 

Development and implementation of a national PDMP — Fund development of a 
multistate/national PDMP that permits information sharing while providing 
appropriate safeguards on sharing of private health information, including but not 
limited to: 

a. Integration of PDMP data with electronic health records, overdose episodes, 

and decision support tools for health care providers relating to OUD.

 

 
 

5. Offer enhanced family supports and home-based wrap-around services to persons with 
OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, 
including but not limited to parent skills training. 

6. Support for Children’s Services – Fund additional positions and services, including 
supportive housing and other residential services, relating to children being removed 
from the home and/or placed in foster care due to custodial opioid use. 

PART TWO: PREVENTION 

 
F. PREVENT OVER-PRESCRIBING AND ENSURE APPROPRIATE 

PRESCRIBING AND DISPENSING OF OPIOIDS 

Support efforts to prevent over-prescribing and ensure appropriate prescribing and dispensing 
of opioids through evidence-based, evidence-informed, or promising programs or strategies 
that may include, but are not limited to, the following: 

1. Training for health care providers regarding safe and responsible opioid prescribing, 
dosing, and tapering patients off opioids. 

2. Academic counter-detailing to educate prescribers on appropriate opioid prescribing. 

3. Continuing Medical Education (CME) on appropriate prescribing of opioids. 

4. Support for non-opioid pain treatment alternatives, including training providers to 
offer or refer to multi-modal, evidence-informed treatment of pain. 

5. Support enhancements or improvements to Prescription Drug Monitoring Programs 
(PDMPs), including but not limited to improvements that: 

a. Increase the number of prescribers using PDMPs; 

b. Improve point-of-care decision-making by increasing the quantity, quality, or 
format of data available to prescribers using PDMPs or by improving the 
interface that prescribers use to access PDMP data, or both; or 

c. Enable states to use PDMP data in support of surveillance or intervention 
strategies, including MAT referrals and follow-up for individuals identified 
within PDMP data as likely to experience OUD. 

6. Development and implementation of a national PDMP – Fund development of a 
multistate/national PDMP that permits information sharing while providing 
appropriate safeguards on sharing of private health information, including but not 
limited to: 

a. Integration of PDMP data with electronic health records, overdose episodes, 
and decision support tools for health care providers relating to OUD. 



7. 

8. 

G. 

b. Ensuring PDMPs incorporate available overdose/naloxone deployment data, 

including the United States Department of Transportation’s Emergency 
Medical Technician overdose database. 

Increase electronic prescribing to prevent diversion or forgery. 

Educate Dispensers on appropriate opioid dispensing. 

PREVENT MISUSE OF OPIOIDS 

Support efforts to discourage or prevent misuse of opioids through evidence-based, evidence- 
informed, or promising programs or strategies that may include, but are not limited to, the 
following: 

1. Corrective advertising or affirmative public education campaigns based on evidence. 

2. Public education relating to drug disposal. 

3. Drug take-back disposal or destruction programs. 

4. Fund community anti-drug coalitions that engage in drug prevention efforts. 

5. Support community coalitions in implementing evidence-informed prevention, such 

as reduced social access and physical access, stigma reduction — including staffing, 
educational campaigns, support for people in treatment or recovery, or training of 

coalitions in evidence-informed implementation, including the Strategic Prevention 

Framework developed by the U.S. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services 
Administration (SAMHSA). 

6. Engage non-profits and faith-based communities as systems to support prevention. 

7. Support evidence-informed school and community education programs and 

campaigns for students, families, school employees, school athletic programs, parent- 
teacher and student associations, and others. 

8. School-based or youth-focused programs or strategies that have demonstrated 
effectiveness in preventing drug misuse and seem likely to be effective in preventing 

the uptake and use of opioids. 

9. Support community-based education or intervention services for families, youth, and 

adolescents at risk for OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, 

and/or co-addiction. 

10. Support evidence-informed programs or curricula to address mental health needs of 

young people who may be at risk of misusing opioids or other drugs, including 

emotional modulation and resilience skills. 

11. Support greater access to mental health services and supports for young people, 

including services and supports provided by school nurses or other school staff, to

 

 
 

b. Ensuring PDMPs incorporate available overdose/naloxone deployment data, 
including the United States Department of Transportation’s Emergency 
Medical Technician overdose database. 

7. Increase electronic prescribing to prevent diversion or forgery. 

8. Educate Dispensers on appropriate opioid dispensing.  

G. PREVENT MISUSE OF OPIOIDS 

Support efforts to discourage or prevent misuse of opioids through evidence-based, evidence-
informed, or promising programs or strategies that may include, but are not limited to, the 
following: 

1. Corrective advertising or affirmative public education campaigns based on evidence. 

2. Public education relating to drug disposal. 

3. Drug take-back disposal or destruction programs. 

4. Fund community anti-drug coalitions that engage in drug prevention efforts. 

5. Support community coalitions in implementing evidence-informed prevention, such 
as reduced social access and physical access, stigma reduction – including staffing, 
educational campaigns, support for people in treatment or recovery, or training of 
coalitions in evidence-informed implementation, including the Strategic Prevention 
Framework developed by the U.S. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services 
Administration (SAMHSA). 

6. Engage non-profits and faith-based communities as systems to support prevention. 

7. Support evidence-informed school and community education programs and 
campaigns for students, families, school employees, school athletic programs, parent-
teacher and student associations, and others. 

8. School-based or youth-focused programs or strategies that have demonstrated 
effectiveness in preventing drug misuse and seem likely to be effective in preventing 
the uptake and use of opioids. 

9. Support community-based education or intervention services for families, youth, and 
adolescents at risk for OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, 
and/or co-addiction. 

10. Support evidence-informed programs or curricula to address mental health needs of 
young people who may be at risk of misusing opioids or other drugs, including 
emotional modulation and resilience skills. 

11. Support greater access to mental health services and supports for young people, 
including services and supports provided by school nurses or other school staff, to 



H. 

address mental health needs in young people that (when not properly addressed) 
increase the risk of opioid or other drug misuse. 

PREVENT OVERDOSE DEATHS AND OTHER HARMS 

Support efforts to prevent or reduce overdose deaths or other opioid-related harms through 
evidence-based, evidence-informed, or promising programs or strategies that may include, 
but are not limited to, the following: 

1. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

Increase availability and distribution of naloxone and other drugs that treat overdoses 

for first responders, overdose patients, opioid users, families and friends of opioid 
users, schools, community navigators and outreach workers, drug offenders upon 
release from jail/prison, or other members of the general public. 

Provision by public health entities of free naloxone to anyone in the community, 

including but not limited to provision of intra-nasal naloxone in settings where other 
options are not available or allowed. 

Training and education regarding naloxone and other drugs that treat overdoses for 
first responders, overdose patients, patients taking opioids, families, schools, and other 

members of the general public. 

Enable school nurses and other school staff to respond to opioid overdoses, and 
provide them with naloxone, training, and support. 

Expand, improve, or develop data tracking software and applications for 

overdoses/naloxone revivals. 

Public education relating to emergency responses to overdoses. 

Public education relating to immunity and Good Samaritan laws. 

Educate first responders regarding the existence and operation of immunity and Good 
Samaritan laws. 

Expand access to testing and treatment for infectious diseases such as HIV and 
Hepatitis C resulting from intravenous opioid use. 

Support mobile units that offer or provide referrals to treatment, recovery supports, 

health care, or other appropriate services to persons that use opioids or persons with 
OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction. 

Provide training in treatment and recovery strategies to health care providers, students, 
peer recovery coaches, recovery outreach specialists, or other professionals that 

provide care to persons who use opioids or persons with OUD and any co-occurring 

SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction. 

Support screening for fentanyl in routine clinical toxicology testing.

 

 
 

address mental health needs in young people that (when not properly addressed) 
increase the risk of opioid or other drug misuse. 

H. PREVENT OVERDOSE DEATHS AND OTHER HARMS 

Support efforts to prevent or reduce overdose deaths or other opioid-related harms through 
evidence-based, evidence-informed, or promising programs or strategies that may include, 
but are not limited to, the following: 

1. Increase availability and distribution of naloxone and other drugs that treat overdoses 
for first responders, overdose patients, opioid users, families and friends of opioid 
users, schools, community navigators and outreach workers, drug offenders upon 
release from jail/prison, or other members of the general public. 

2. Provision by public health entities of free naloxone to anyone in the community, 
including but not limited to provision of intra-nasal naloxone in settings where other 
options are not available or allowed. 

3. Training and education regarding naloxone and other drugs that treat overdoses for 
first responders, overdose patients, patients taking opioids, families, schools, and other 
members of the general public. 

4. Enable school nurses and other school staff to respond to opioid overdoses, and 
provide them with naloxone, training, and support. 

5. Expand, improve, or develop data tracking software and applications for 
overdoses/naloxone revivals. 

6. Public education relating to emergency responses to overdoses. 

7. Public education relating to immunity and Good Samaritan laws. 

8. Educate first responders regarding the existence and operation of immunity and Good 
Samaritan laws. 

9. Expand access to testing and treatment for infectious diseases such as HIV and 
Hepatitis C resulting from intravenous opioid use. 

10. Support mobile units that offer or provide referrals to treatment, recovery supports, 
health care, or other appropriate services to persons that use opioids or persons with 
OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction. 

11. Provide training in treatment and recovery strategies to health care providers, students, 
peer recovery coaches, recovery outreach specialists, or other professionals that 
provide care to persons who use opioids or persons with OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction. 

12. Support screening for fentanyl in routine clinical toxicology testing. 



I. 

PART THREE: OTHER STRATEGIES 

FIRST RESPONDERS 

  

In addition to items C8, D1 through D7, H1, H3, and HS, support the following: 

1. 

2. 

J. 

Current and future law enforcement expenditures relating to the opioid epidemic. 

Educate law enforcement or other first responders regarding appropriate practices and 

precautions when dealing with fentanyl or other drugs. 

LEADERSHIP, PLANNING AND COORDINATION 

Support efforts to provide leadership, planning, and coordination to abate the opioid epidemic 
through activities, programs, or strategies that may include, but are not limited to, the 
following: 

1. 

K. 

Community regional planning to identify goals for reducing harms related to the 

opioid epidemic, to identify areas and populations with the greatest needs for treatment 
intervention services, or to support other strategies to abate the opioid epidemic 

described in this opioid abatement strategy list. 

A government dashboard to track key opioid-related indicators and supports as 
identified through collaborative community processes. 

Invest in infrastructure or staffing at government or not-for-profit agencies to support 

collaborative, cross-system coordination with the purpose of preventing 
overprescribing, opioid misuse, or opioid overdoses, treating those with OUD and any 

co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, supporting them in 
treatment or recovery, connecting them to care, or implementing other strategies to 

abate the opioid epidemic described in this opioid abatement strategy list. 

Provide resources to staff government oversight and management of opioid abatement 
programs. 

TRAINING 

In addition to the training referred to in various items above, support training to abate the 

opioid epidemic through activities, programs, or strategies that may include, but are not 
limited to, the following: 

1. Provide funding for staff training or networking programs and services to improve the 

capability of government, community, and not-for-profit entities to abate the opioid 

crisis.

 

 
 

 

PART THREE: OTHER STRATEGIES 

 
I. FIRST RESPONDERS  

In addition to items C8, D1 through D7, H1, H3, and H8, support the following: 

1. Current and future law enforcement expenditures relating to the opioid epidemic. 

2. Educate law enforcement or other first responders regarding appropriate practices and 
precautions when dealing with fentanyl or other drugs. 

J. LEADERSHIP, PLANNING AND COORDINATION 

Support efforts to provide leadership, planning, and coordination to abate the opioid epidemic 
through activities, programs, or strategies that may include, but are not limited to, the 
following: 

1. Community regional planning to identify goals for reducing harms related to the 
opioid epidemic, to identify areas and populations with the greatest needs for treatment 
intervention services, or to support other strategies to abate the opioid epidemic 
described in this opioid abatement strategy list. 

2. A government dashboard to track key opioid-related indicators and supports as 
identified through collaborative community processes. 

3. Invest in infrastructure or staffing at government or not-for-profit agencies to support 
collaborative, cross-system coordination with the purpose of preventing 
overprescribing, opioid misuse, or opioid overdoses, treating those with OUD and any 
co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, supporting them in 
treatment or recovery, connecting them to care, or implementing other strategies to 
abate the opioid epidemic described in this opioid abatement strategy list. 

4. Provide resources to staff government oversight and management of opioid abatement 
programs. 

K. TRAINING  

In addition to the training referred to in various items above, support training to abate the 
opioid epidemic through activities, programs, or strategies that may include, but are not 
limited to, the following: 

1. Provide funding for staff training or networking programs and services to improve the 
capability of government, community, and not-for-profit entities to abate the opioid 
crisis. 



2. 

L. 

Invest in infrastructure and staffing for collaborative cross-system coordination to 

prevent opioid misuse, prevent overdoses, and treat those with OUD and any co- 
occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, or implement other 

strategies to abate the opioid epidemic described in this opioid abatement strategy list 
(e.g., health care, primary care, pharmacies, PDMPs, etc.). 

RESEARCH 

Support opioid abatement research that may include, but is not limited to, the following: 

1. Monitoring, surveillance, and evaluation of programs and strategies described in this 
opioid abatement strategy list. 

Research non-opioid treatment of chronic pain. 

Research on improved service delivery for modalities such as SBIRT that demonstrate 
promising but mixed results in populations vulnerable to opioid use disorders. 

Research on innovative supply-side enforcement efforts such as improved detection 

of mail-based delivery of synthetic opioids. 

Expanded research on swift/certain/fair models to reduce and deter opioid misuse 
within criminal justice populations that build upon promising approaches used to 

address other substances (e.g. Hawaii HOPE and Dakota 24/7). 

. Research on expanded modalities such as prescription methadone that can expand 
access to MAT.

 

 
 

2. Invest in infrastructure and staffing for collaborative cross-system coordination to 
prevent opioid misuse, prevent overdoses, and treat those with OUD and any co- 
occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, or implement other 
strategies to abate the opioid epidemic described in this opioid abatement strategy list 
(e.g., health care, primary care, pharmacies, PDMPs, etc.). 

L. RESEARCH  

Support opioid abatement research that may include, but is not limited to, the following: 

1. Monitoring, surveillance, and evaluation of programs and strategies described in this 
opioid abatement strategy list. 

2. Research non-opioid treatment of chronic pain. 

3. Research on improved service delivery for modalities such as SBIRT that demonstrate 
promising but mixed results in populations vulnerable to opioid use disorders. 

4. Research on innovative supply-side enforcement efforts such as improved detection 
of mail-based delivery of synthetic opioids. 

5. Expanded research on swift/certain/fair models to reduce and deter opioid misuse 
within criminal justice populations that build upon promising approaches used to 
address other substances (e.g. Hawaii HOPE and Dakota 24/7). 

6 .  Research on expanded modalities such as prescription methadone that can expand 
access to MAT. 

  



Exhibit BExhibit B

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit B 
 



  

Exhibit B 

Allocation to Arizona Counties/Regions 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

County/Region Percentage of LG Share 

APACHE 0.690% 

COCHISE 1.855% 

COCONINO 1.688% 

GILA 1.142% 

GRAHAM 0.719% 

GREENLEE 0.090% 

LA PAZ 0.301% 

MARICOPA 57.930% 

MOHAVE 4.898% 

NAVAJO 1.535% 

PIMA 18.647% 

PINAL 3.836% 

SANTA CRUZ 0.370% 

YAVAPAI 4.291% 

YUMA 2.008%   
  

  
 

 
 

Exhibit B 
Allocation to Arizona Counties/Regions 

County/Region Percentage of LG Share 

APACHE  0.690% 
COCHISE  1.855% 
COCONINO  1.688% 
GILA  1.142% 
GRAHAM  0.719% 
GREENLEE  0.090% 
LA PAZ  0.301% 
MARICOPA  57.930% 
MOHAVE  4.898% 
NAVAJO  1.535% 
PIMA  18.647% 
PINAL  3.836% 
SANTA CRUZ  0.370% 
YAVAPAI  4.291% 
YUMA  2.008% 

 
  



Exhibit CExhibit C

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit C 
 



Government Name County Name State Name Government Type Census ID Intra-county Allocation (%) 

Based on Past Spending 

            

  

  

  

  

  

    
            

APACHE COUNTY Apache County ARIZONA County 3100100100000 56.63% 

EAGAR TOWN Apache County ARIZONA City 3200100100000 20.66% 

SPRINGERVILLE TOWN Apache County ARIZONA City 3200100300000 10.73% 

ST JOHNS CITY Apache County ARIZONA City 3200100200000 11.98% 

COCHISE COUNTY Cochise County ARIZONA County 3100200200000 63.47% 

BENSON CITY Cochise County ARIZONA City 3200200100000 3.52% 

BISBEE CITY 547% 
DOUGLAS CITY Cochise County ARIZONA City 3200200300000 8.44% 

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN Cochise County ARIZONA City 3200250100000 0.91% 

SIERRA VISTA CITY Cochise County ARIZONA City 3200200400000 16.63% 

TOMBSTONE CITY Cochise County ARIZONA City 3200200500000 1.16% 

WILLCOX CITY Cochise County ARIZONA City 3200200600000 2.39% 

COCONINO COUNTY Coconino County | ARIZONA County 3100300300000 71.16% 

FLAGSTAFF CITY Coconino County | ARIZONA City 3200300100000 18.45% 

FREDONIA TOWN Coconino County | ARIZONA City 3200300300000 0.31% 

PAGE CITY Coconino County | ARIZONA City 3200390100000 3.41% 

SEDONA CITY Coconino County | ARIZONA City 3201340200000 4.09% 

TUSAYAN TOWN Coconino County | ARIZONA City 3200310100000 0.67% 

WILLIAMS CITY Coconino County | ARIZONA City 3200300200000 1.92% 

~~ _6emacoNwv:. 
GILA COUNTY Gila County ARIZONA County 3100400400000 68.13% 

GLOBE CITY Gila County ARIZONA City 3200400100000 10.23%   
 

 

 
 

 
 

Exhibit C 
Government Name County Name State Name Government Type Census ID Intra-county Allocation (%) 

Based on Past Spending 

APACHE COUNTY 

APACHE COUNTY Apache County ARIZONA County 3100100100000 56.63% 

EAGAR TOWN Apache County ARIZONA City 3200100100000 20.66% 

SPRINGERVILLE TOWN Apache County ARIZONA City 3200100300000 10.73% 

ST JOHNS CITY Apache County ARIZONA City 3200100200000 11.98% 

COCHISE COUNTY 

COCHISE COUNTY Cochise County ARIZONA County 3100200200000 63.47% 

BENSON CITY Cochise County ARIZONA City 3200200100000 3.52% 

BISBEE CITY Cochise County ARIZONA City 3200200200000 3.47% 

DOUGLAS CITY Cochise County ARIZONA City 3200200300000 8.44% 

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN Cochise County ARIZONA City 3200250100000 0.91% 

SIERRA VISTA CITY Cochise County ARIZONA City 3200200400000 16.63% 

TOMBSTONE CITY Cochise County ARIZONA City 3200200500000 1.16% 

WILLCOX CITY Cochise County ARIZONA City 3200200600000 2.39% 

COCONINO COUNTY 

COCONINO COUNTY Coconino County ARIZONA County 3100300300000 71.16% 

FLAGSTAFF CITY Coconino County ARIZONA City 3200300100000 18.45% 

FREDONIA TOWN Coconino County ARIZONA City 3200300300000 0.31% 

PAGE CITY Coconino County ARIZONA City 3200390100000 3.41% 

SEDONA CITY Coconino County ARIZONA City 3201340200000 4.09% 

TUSAYAN TOWN Coconino County ARIZONA City 3200310100000 0.67% 

WILLIAMS CITY Coconino County ARIZONA City 3200300200000 1.92% 

GILA COUNTY 

GILA COUNTY Gila County ARIZONA County 3100400400000 68.13% 

GLOBE CITY Gila County ARIZONA City 3200400100000 10.23% 



  

  

  

    
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

      

HAYDEN TOWN Gila County ARIZONA City 3200450100000 2.31% 

MIAMI TOWN Gila County ARIZONA City 3200400200000 2.71% 

PAYSON TOWN Gila County ARIZONA City 3200490100000 16.17% 

STAR VALLEY TOWN Gila County ARIZONA City 3200410100000 0.35% 

WINKELMAN TOWN Gila County ARIZONA City 3200400300000 0.10% 

GRAHAM COUNTY 

GRAHAM COUNTY Graham County ARIZONA County 3100500500000 62.26% 

PIMA TOWN Graham County ARIZONA City 3200500100000 2.22% 

SAFFORD CITY Graham County ARIZONA City 3200500200000 26.83% 

THATCHER TOWN Graham County ARIZONA City 3200500300000 8.68% 

GREENLEE COUNTY 

GREENLEE COUNTY Greenlee County ARIZONA County 3100600600000 88.29% 

CLIFTON TOWN Greenlee County ARIZONA City 3200600100000 11.43% 

DUNCAN TOWN Greenlee County ARIZONA City 3200600200000 0.28% 

LA PAZ COUNTY 

LA PAZ COUNTY La Paz County ARIZONA County 3101501500000 88.71% 

PARKER TOWN La Paz County ARIZONA City 3201560100000 5.19% 

QUARTZSITE TOWN La Paz County ARIZONA City 3201540100000 6.11% 

MARICOPA COUNTY 

MARICOPA COUNTY Maricopa County ARIZONA County 3100700700000 51.53% 

APACHE JUNCTION CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3201160100000 0.38% 

AVONDALE CITY Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200700100000 0.98% 

BUCKEYE TOWN Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200700200000 0.46% 

CAREFREE TOWN Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200740100000 0.04% 

CAVE CREEK TOWN Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200740200000 0.06% 

CHANDLER CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200700300000 2.86% 

EL MIRAGE CITY Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200700400000 0.39% 

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200740400000 0.17% 

GILA BEND TOWN Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200770100000 0.03%               
  

 

 

 
 

HAYDEN TOWN Gila County ARIZONA City 3200450100000 2.31% 

MIAMI TOWN Gila County ARIZONA City 3200400200000 2.71% 

PAYSON TOWN Gila County ARIZONA City 3200490100000 16.17% 

STAR VALLEY TOWN Gila County ARIZONA City 3200410100000 0.35% 

WINKELMAN TOWN Gila County ARIZONA City 3200400300000 0.10% 

GRAHAM COUNTY 

GRAHAM COUNTY Graham County ARIZONA County 3100500500000 62.26% 

PIMA TOWN Graham County ARIZONA City 3200500100000 2.22% 

SAFFORD CITY Graham County ARIZONA City 3200500200000 26.83% 

THATCHER TOWN Graham County ARIZONA City 3200500300000 8.68% 

GREENLEE COUNTY 

GREENLEE COUNTY Greenlee County ARIZONA County 3100600600000 88.29% 

CLIFTON TOWN Greenlee County ARIZONA City 3200600100000 11.43% 

DUNCAN TOWN Greenlee County ARIZONA City 3200600200000 0.28% 

LA PAZ COUNTY 

LA PAZ COUNTY La Paz County ARIZONA County 3101501500000 88.71% 

PARKER TOWN La Paz County ARIZONA City 3201560100000 5.19% 

QUARTZSITE TOWN La Paz County ARIZONA City 3201540100000 6.11% 

MARICOPA COUNTY 

MARICOPA COUNTY Maricopa County ARIZONA County 3100700700000 51.53% 

APACHE JUNCTION CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3201160100000 0.38% 

AVONDALE CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200700100000 0.98% 

BUCKEYE TOWN Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200700200000 0.46% 

CAREFREE TOWN Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200740100000 0.04% 

CAVE CREEK TOWN Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200740200000 0.06% 

CHANDLER CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200700300000 2.86% 

EL MIRAGE CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200700400000 0.39% 

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200740400000 0.17% 

GILA BEND TOWN Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200770100000 0.03% 



  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

GILBERT TOWN Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200700500000 1.71% 

GLENDALE CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200700600000 2.63% 

GOODYEAR CITY Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200700700000 0.76% 

GUADALUPE TOWN Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200790100000 0.00% 

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200740300000 0.04% 

MESA CITY Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200700800000 6.06% 

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN | Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200750100000 0.34% 

PEORIA CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200700900000 1.51% 

PHOENIX CITY Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200701000000 21.28% 

QUEEN CREEK TOWN Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200740500000 0.11% 

SCOTTSDALE CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200701100000 3.99% 

SURPRISE CITY Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200750200000 0.98% 

TEMPE CITY Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200701200000 3.27% 

TOLLESON CITY Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200701300000 0.27% 

WICKENBURG TOWN Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200701400000 0.10% 

YOUNGTOWN TOWN Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200750300000 0.05% 

MOHAVE COUNTY 

MOHAVE COUNTY Mohave County ARIZONA County 3100800800000 62.51% 

BULLHEAD CITY CITY Mohave County ARIZONA City 3200840100000 13.10% 

COLORADO CITY TOWN Mohave County ARIZONA City 3200840200000 0.61% 

KINGMAN CITY Mohave County ARIZONA City 3200800100000 9.91% 

LAKE HAVASU CITY CITY | Mohave County ARIZONA City 3200860100000 13.87% 

NAVAJO COUNTY 

NAVAJO COUNTY Navajo County ARIZONA County 3100900900000 70.29% 

HOLBROOK CITY Navajo County ARIZONA City 3200900100000 3.75% 

PINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN | Navajo County ARIZONA City 3200940100000 4.75% 

SHOW LOW CITY Navajo County ARIZONA City 3200900200000 9.39% 

SNOWFLAKE TOWN Navajo County ARIZONA City 3200900300000 2.94% 

TAYLOR TOWN Navajo County ARIZONA City 3200980100000 2.68%                 
  

 

 

 
 

GILBERT TOWN Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200700500000 1.71% 

GLENDALE CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200700600000 2.63% 

GOODYEAR CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200700700000 0.76% 

GUADALUPE TOWN Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200790100000 0.00% 

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200740300000 0.04% 

MESA CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200700800000 6.06% 

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200750100000 0.34% 

PEORIA CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200700900000 1.51% 

PHOENIX CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200701000000 21.28% 

QUEEN CREEK TOWN Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200740500000 0.11% 

SCOTTSDALE CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200701100000 3.99% 

SURPRISE CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200750200000 0.98% 

TEMPE CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200701200000 3.27% 

TOLLESON CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200701300000 0.27% 

WICKENBURG TOWN Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200701400000 0.10% 

YOUNGTOWN TOWN Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200750300000 0.05% 

MOHAVE COUNTY 

MOHAVE COUNTY Mohave County ARIZONA County 3100800800000 62.51% 

BULLHEAD CITY CITY Mohave County ARIZONA City 3200840100000 13.10% 

COLORADO CITY TOWN Mohave County ARIZONA City 3200840200000 0.61% 

KINGMAN CITY Mohave County ARIZONA City 3200800100000 9.91% 

LAKE HAVASU CITY CITY Mohave County ARIZONA City 3200860100000 13.87% 

NAVAJO COUNTY 

NAVAJO COUNTY Navajo County ARIZONA County 3100900900000 70.29% 

HOLBROOK CITY Navajo County ARIZONA City 3200900100000 3.75% 

PINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN Navajo County ARIZONA City 3200940100000 4.75% 

SHOW LOW CITY Navajo County ARIZONA City 3200900200000 9.39% 

SNOWFLAKE TOWN Navajo County ARIZONA City 3200900300000 2.94% 

TAYLOR TOWN Navajo County ARIZONA City 3200980100000 2.68% 



  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

                  

WINSLOW CITY Navajo County ARIZONA City 3200900400000 6.19% 

PIMA COUNTY 

PIMA COUNTY Pima County ARIZONA County 3101001000000 72.19% 

MARANA TOWN Pima County ARIZONA City 3201090200000 2.06% 

ORO VALLEY TOWN Pima County ARIZONA City 3201090100000 1.72% 

SAHUARITA TOWN Pima County ARIZONA City 3201020100000 0.81% 

SOUTH TUCSON CITY Pima County ARIZONA City 3201000100000 0.31% 

TUCSON CITY Pima County ARIZONA City 3201000200000 22.91% 

PINAL COUNTY 

PINAL COUNTY Pinal County ARIZONA County 3101101100000 53.01% 

CASA GRANDE CITY Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201100100000 5.54% 

COOLIDGE CITY Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201100200000 1.68% 

ELOY CITY Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201100300000 34.98% 

FLORENCE TOWN Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201100400000 1.19% 

KEARNY TOWN Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201150100000 0.28% 

MAMMOTH TOWN Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201150200000 0.16% 

MARICOPA CITY Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201110100000 2.73% 

SUPERIOR TOWN Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201190100000 0.44% 

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY Santa Cruz County | ARIZONA County 3101201200000 76.78% 

NOGALES CITY Santa Cruz County | ARIZONA City 3201200100000 22.55% 

PATAGONIA TOWN Santa Cruz County | ARIZONA City 3201200200000 0.67% 

YAVAPAI COUNTY 

YAVAPAI COUNTY Yavapai County ARIZONA County 3101301300000 69.31% 

CAMP VERDE TOWN Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201340100000 0.97% 

CHINO VALLEY TOWN Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201380100000 0.68% 

CLARKDALE TOWN Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201350100000 0.72% 

COTTONWOOD CITY Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201350200000 4.89% 
  

 

 

 
 

WINSLOW CITY Navajo County ARIZONA City 3200900400000 6.19% 

PIMA COUNTY 

PIMA COUNTY Pima County ARIZONA County 3101001000000 72.19% 

MARANA TOWN Pima County ARIZONA City 3201090200000 2.06% 

ORO VALLEY TOWN Pima County ARIZONA City 3201090100000 1.72% 

SAHUARITA TOWN Pima County ARIZONA City 3201020100000 0.81% 

SOUTH TUCSON CITY Pima County ARIZONA City 3201000100000 0.31% 

TUCSON CITY Pima County ARIZONA City 3201000200000 22.91% 

PINAL COUNTY 

PINAL COUNTY Pinal County ARIZONA County 3101101100000 53.01% 

CASA GRANDE CITY Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201100100000 5.54% 

COOLIDGE CITY Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201100200000 1.68% 

ELOY CITY Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201100300000 34.98% 

FLORENCE TOWN Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201100400000 1.19% 

KEARNY TOWN Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201150100000 0.28% 

MAMMOTH TOWN Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201150200000 0.16% 

MARICOPA CITY Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201110100000 2.73% 

SUPERIOR TOWN Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201190100000 0.44% 

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY Santa Cruz County ARIZONA County 3101201200000 76.78% 

NOGALES CITY Santa Cruz County ARIZONA City 3201200100000 22.55% 

PATAGONIA TOWN Santa Cruz County ARIZONA City 3201200200000 0.67% 

YAVAPAI COUNTY 

YAVAPAI COUNTY Yavapai County ARIZONA County 3101301300000 69.31% 

CAMP VERDE TOWN Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201340100000 0.97% 

CHINO VALLEY TOWN Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201380100000 0.68% 

CLARKDALE TOWN Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201350100000 0.72% 

COTTONWOOD CITY Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201350200000 4.89% 



  

  

  

  

  

                

DEWEY-HUMBOLDT Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201310100000 1.54% 
TOWN 

JEROME TOWN Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201300100000 0.03% 

PRESCOTT CITY Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201300200000 13.79% 

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN | Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201360100000 8.09% 

YUMA COUNTY 

YUMA COUNTY Yuma County ARIZONA County 3101401400000 66.03% 

SAN LUIS CITY Yuma County ARIZONA City 3201460100000 4.80% 

SOMERTON CITY Yuma County ARIZONA City 3201400200000 2.24% 

WELLTON TOWN Yuma County ARIZONA City 3201480100000 0.61% 

YUMA CITY Yuma County ARIZONA City 3201400300000 26.32% 
  

 

 

 
 

DEWEY-HUMBOLDT 
TOWN 

Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201310100000 1.54% 

JEROME TOWN Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201300100000 0.03% 

PRESCOTT CITY Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201300200000 13.79% 

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201360100000 8.09% 

YUMA COUNTY 

YUMA COUNTY Yuma County ARIZONA County 3101401400000 66.03% 

SAN LUIS CITY Yuma County ARIZONA City 3201460100000 4.80% 

SOMERTON CITY Yuma County ARIZONA City 3201400200000 2.24% 

WELLTON TOWN Yuma County ARIZONA City 3201480100000 0.61% 

YUMA CITY Yuma County ARIZONA City 3201400300000 26.32% 



Exhibit DExhibit D

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit D 



Percent 

Participation of Award 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

(@513 (2 

0 0% 

5 2% 

10 4%, 

15 6% 

20 8% 

25 10% 

30 12% 

35 14% 

40 16% 

45 18% 

50 20% 

55 22% 

60 24% 

65 26% 

70 28% 

75 30% 

80 32% 

85 34% 

90 36% 

95 38% 

100 40%        

 

 
 

Exhibit D 

Percent 
Participation of 

Cities 

Award 

0 0% 
5 2% 
10 4% 
15 6% 
20 8% 
25 10% 
30 12% 
35 14% 
40 16% 
45 18% 
50 20% 
55 22% 
60 24% 
65 26% 
70 28% 
75 30% 
80 32% 
85 34% 
90 36% 
95 38% 
100 40% 

 
 



Agreement No.NRD-24-OS2 Page 147 Res. No. 5810
 

EXHIBIT B TO AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

SCOPE OF WORK 
Recovery Café Arizona opened in 2019 to help meet a gap in care for those who suffer with addiction and 
trauma with an emphasis on decreasing recidivism. Recovery Café Arizona provides three key programs 
to participants.  

Recovery Coaching Sessions:  
Recovery Coaching Sessions which are one-on-one weekly sessions with a certified Connecticut 
Community for Addition Recovery (CCAR) recovery coach. The client and Recovery Coach create a plan 
with an objective outcome of meeting goals which are made by both the recovery coach and the client. 
Once goals are met, the recovery coach and client work together to establish new goals and work towards 
a positive outcome.  

Recovery Circles:  
Recovery Circles are led by either Connecticut Community for Action Recovery (CCAR) Certified 
Recovery Coach or Member Leaders act as facilitators leading open discussion groups to allow clients to 
express themselves. These circles typically start by discussion what is something that they are celebrated 
during that week, and something that the client struggled with that week. Then a recovery related topic is 
chosen to discuss amongst the group.  The Recovery Circles are held weekly with the same individuals in 
each circle, allowing for individuals to grow their community and build strong healthy relationships with 
like-minded individuals.  

School for Recovery:  
School for Recovery provides educational opportunities and interactive workshops for program members. 
Workshops provided by outside facilitators include but are not limited to Yoga for Recovery, Meditation for 
Recovery, Tai Chi, Somatic Practices, Sound Healing, Art Therapy, and Music Therapy. Additionally, 
outside facilitators provide educational classes which include but are not limited to Understanding 
Addiction and the Brain, Nutrition and Wellness Practices for Trauma and Addiction Recovery, 
Boundaries, Family Relationship Dysfunction, How to Regulate Your Nervous System, Relationships in 
Recovery, and Emotional Freedom Technique. The School for Recovery builds community and provides 
techniques to assist in maintaining long-term recovery. 

OUTCOMES 
During the period of service, Recovery Café Arizona will serve 200 individuals recovering from Opioid 
addiction. By utilizing this model, recidivism is tracked by the two-year mark reaching at least 90% for 
individuals in recovery. Most insurance companies only support recovery services for 30, 60, and 90 days 
leading to increased recidivism. Through Recovery Café approach to services, recidivism is reduced by 
providing resources for as long as the member needs. 

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
Prior to implementation, contractor shall develop and/or share the projects evaluation plan with the city that 
should include metrics for how success will be measured and opportunities for improvement. 

Prior to implementation, Contractor will submit any training or educational materials to the city for review 
and approval. 

Contactor shall provide quarterly and annual reports using a template to be provided by the city, which will 
include: 

A. Narrative description of project activities achieved during specified timeframe
B. Accomplishments/success stories and challenges
C. Staffing changes
D. Current budget and description of any over or underspending
E. Evaluation metrics (e.g. actual numbers served)

All underlying documentation for the reporting shall be retained for a minimum of five years, notwithstanding 
any other applicable documentation retention or destruction policy, in order to facilitate verification that funds 
have been used for the approved purpose for which funds have been awarded. 

Additional reporting requirements may be required by the city at any time. 



Agreement No.NRD-24-OS2 Page 148 Res. No. 5810
 

MONITORING 
The primary purpose of monitoring is to ensure that One Arizona Agreement funds are being invested in the 
manner stated in this Scope of Services and Exhibit B, and confirm that Contractor is otherwise in compliance 
with this Agreement. City staff monitor Contractors through reporting and onsite visits. Onsite visits may include 
an agency visit demonstrating Contractor’s performance of the services and providing an opportunity for City 
staff to observe operations.  

City staff will coordinate with Contractor to schedule onsite monitoring at a mutually agreed upon time.  City 
staff will let agencies know the number of participants in advance. In the event that Contractor chooses to 
include program participants in the tour, Contractor must ensure participant consent in accordance with state 
and federal laws, as applicable. Photographs and/or video may be taken only with permission of all participants 
and in accordance with Contractor’s policy. 

Should significant concerns be identified during a monitoring visit, City staff will notify the Contractor contact by 
phone and follow-up with a written report outlining concerns. Contractor must respond in writing as directed in 
the written report. The City reserves the right to perform follow-up visits to ensure concerns have been rectified. 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES  
The Contractor may provide other related services upon request from the City. 



Agreement No.NRD-24-OS2 Page 149 Res. No. 5810
 

EXHIBIT C TO AGREEMENT 
COMPENSATION AND FEES 

SERVICES BUDGET 

(A) Cost Component (B) Chandler Costs
Salaries & Wages 30,000.00$  
Fringe Benefits

TOTAL PERSONNEL 30,000.00$  
Professional Services 20,000.00$  
Phone / Internet
Rent
Utilities
Insurance
Maintenance
Travel/Mileage
Fingerprinting
License / Fees
Education / Training
Commodities (Materials & Supplies)
Program / Office Supplies
Printing
PPE and Disinfection
Other
Other
Other

TOTAL OPERATIONS 20,000.00$  
TOTAL BUDGET 50,000.00$  

SERVICES BUDGET NARRATIVE 

SALARIES & WAGES 
Recovery Coach staff provides mentorship for one-on-one sessions to program participants. Funding will 
support 10 coaches.  
- Program Cost: $20,000

Circle Facilitators provide staffing for weekly Recovery Circle discussion groups. Funding will support 8-10 
facilitators.  
- Program Cost: $10,000

Total Salaries & Wages: $30,000 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
Contracted outside instructors to provide educational and interactive opportunities for program participants 
participating in the School of Recovery.  
- Program Cost: $20,000

ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS 
No more than 10% of the Agency’s requested funds will be used for program administration and/or 
evaluation. 



Agreement No.NRD-24-OS2 Page 150 Res. No. 5810
 

EXHIBIT D TO AGREEMENT 
INSURANCE 

INSURANCE 
General. 

A. At the same time as execution of this Agreement, the Contractor shall furnish the City a certificate
of insurance on a standard insurance industry ACORD form.  The ACORD form must be issued
by an insurance company authorized to transact business in the State of Arizona possessing a
current A.M. Best, Inc. rating of A-7, or better and legally authorized to do business in the State
of Arizona with policies and forms satisfactory to City.  Provided, however, the A.M. Best rating
requirement shall not be deemed to apply to required Workers’ Compensation coverage.

B. The Contractor and any of its subcontractors shall procure and maintain, until all of their
obligations have been discharged, including any warranty periods under this Agreement are
satisfied, the insurances set forth below.

C. The insurance requirements set forth below are minimum requirements for this Agreement and
in no way limit the indemnity covenants contained in this Agreement.

D. The City in no way warrants that the minimum insurance limits contained in this Agreement are
sufficient to protect Contractor from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of the
Agreement services under this Agreement by Contractor, its agents, representatives, employees,
subcontractors, and the Contractor is free to purchase any additional insurance as may be
determined necessary.

E. Failure to demand evidence of full compliance with the insurance requirements in this Agreement
or failure to identify any insurance deficiency will not relieve the Contractor from, nor will it be
considered a waiver of its obligation to maintain the required insurance at all times during the
performance of this Agreement.

F. Use of Subcontractors:  If any work is subcontracted in any way, the Contractor shall execute a
written contract with Subcontractor containing the same Indemnification Clause and Insurance
Requirements as the City requires of the Contractor in this Agreement. The Contractor is
responsible for executing the Agreement with the Subcontractor and obtaining Certificates of
Insurance and verifying the insurance requirements.

Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance.  The Contractor shall provide coverage with limits of liability not less 
than those stated below. 

A. Commercial General Liability-Occurrence Form.  Contractor must maintain “occurrence” form
Commercial General Liability insurance with a limit of not less than $2,000,000 for each
occurrence, $4,000,000 aggregate.  Said insurance must also include coverage for products and
completed operations, independent contractors, personal injury and advertising injury. If any
Excess insurance is utilized to fulfill the requirements of this paragraph, the Excess insurance
must be “follow form” equal or broader in coverage scope than underlying insurance.

B. Automobile Liability-Any Auto or Owned, Hired and Non-Owned Vehicles
Vehicle Liability:  Contractor must maintain Business/Automobile Liability insurance with a limit
of $1,000,000 each accident on Contractor owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles assigned to
or used in the performance of the Contractor’s work or services under this Agreement.  If any
Excess or Umbrella insurance is utilized to fulfill the requirements of this paragraph, the Excess
or Umbrella insurance must be “follow form” equal or broader in coverage scope than underlying
insurance.

C. Workers Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance:  Contractor must maintain Workers
Compensation insurance to cover obligations imposed by federal and state statutes having
jurisdiction of Contractor employees engaged in the performance of work or services under this
Agreement and must also maintain Employers’ Liability insurance of not less than $1,000,000 for
each accident and $1,000,000 disease for each employee.



Agreement No.NRD-24-OS2 Page 151 Res. No. 5810
 

Additional Policy Provisions Required. 

A. Self-Insured Retentions or Deductibles.  Any self-insured retentions and deductibles must be
declared and approved by the City.  If not approved, the City may require that the insurer reduce or
eliminate any deductible or self-insured retentions with respect to the City, its officers, officials,
agents, employees, and volunteers.

1. The Contractor’s insurance must contain broad form contractual liability coverage.

2. The Contractor's insurance coverage must be primary insurance with respect to the City, its
officers, officials, agents, and employees.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the
City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees shall be in excess of the coverage provided
by the Contractor and must not contribute to it.

3. The Contractor's insurance must apply separately to each insured against whom claim is
made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.

4. Coverage provided by the Contractor must not be limited to the liability assumed under the
indemnification provisions of this Agreement.

5. The policies must contain a severability of interest clause and waiver of subrogation against
the City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, for losses arising from Work performed
by the Contractor for the City.

6. The Contractor, its successors and or assigns, are required to maintain Commercial General
Liability insurance as specified in this Agreement for a minimum period of 3 years following
completion and acceptance of the Work.  The Contractor must submit a Certificate of
Insurance evidencing Commercial General Liability insurance during this 3 year period
containing all the Agreement insurance requirements, including naming the City of Chandler,
its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials and employees as Additional Insured
as required.

7. If a Certificate of Insurance is submitted as verification of coverage, the City will reasonably
rely upon the Certificate of Insurance as evidence of coverage but this acceptance and
reliance will not waive or alter in any way the insurance requirements or obligations of this
Agreement.

B. Insurance Cancellation During Term of Contract/Agreement.

1. If any of the required policies expire during the life of this Contract/Agreement, the Contractor
must forward renewal or replacement Certificates to the City within 10 days after the renewal
date containing all the required insurance provisions.

2. Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Contract/Agreement shall
provide the required coverage and shall not be suspended, voided or canceled except after
thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the City, except when cancellation is
for non-payment of premium, then ten (10) days prior notice may be given.  Such notice shall
be sent directly to Chandler Law-Risk Management Department, Post Office Box 4008,
Mailstop 628, Chandler, Arizona  85244-4008. If any insurance company refuses to provide
the required notice, the Contractor or its insurance broker shall notify the City of any
cancellation, suspension, non-renewal of any insurance within seven (7) days of receipt of
insurers’ notification to that effect.

C. City as Additional Insured.  The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following
provisions:

1. The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policies are to contain, or be
endorsed to contain, the following provisions:  The City, its officers, officials, agents, and
employees are additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of activities performed
by, or on behalf of, the Contractor including the City's general supervision of the Contractor;
Products and Completed operations of the Contractor; and automobiles owned, leased,
hired, or borrowed by the Contractor.



Agreement No.NRD-24-OS2 Page 152 Res. No. 5810
 

2. The City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees must be additional insureds to the full
limits of liability purchased by the Contractor even if those limits of liability are in excess of
those required by this Agreement.



Agreement No.NRD-24-OS2 Page 153 Res. No. 5810
 

EXHIBIT E 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

Contractor and Subcontractor Worker Background Screening. Contractor agrees that all contract workers and 
subcontractors (collectively Contract Worker(s)) that Contractor furnishes to the City pursuant to this Agreement 
shall be subject to background and security checks and screening (collectively Background Screening) at 
Contractor's sole cost and expense as set forth in this Section. The Background Screening provided by Contractor 
shall comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations. Contractor further agrees that the Background 
Screening required in this Section is necessary to preserve and protect public health, safety and welfare. The 
Background Screening requirements set forth in this Section are the minimum requirements for this Agreement. 
The City in no way warrants that these minimum requirements are sufficient to protect Contractor from any 
liabilities that may arise out of Contractor's services under this Agreement or Contractor's failure to comply with 
this Section. Therefore, in addition to the specific measures set forth below, Contractor and its Contract Workers 
shall take such other reasonable, prudent and necessary measures to further preserve and protect public health, 
safety and welfare when providing services under this Agreement. 

Background Screening Requirements and Criteria.  Before offering or scheduling any services under this 
Agreement, Contractor agrees that all Contract Workers, including the Contractor, if the Contractor is an individual 
or sole proprietorship, must have successfully passed a Background Screening in accordance with this Section. 
Contractor warrants that no person will be permitted to substitute for a Contract Worker who has satisfied the 
Background Screening requirements until the proposed substitute has also satisfied the Background Screening 
requirements in this Section. For review and approval, Contractor must submit to a person designated by the City 
proof of a completed Background Screening for each Contract Worker over the age of 18 performing services 
under this Agreement no fewer than two (2) weeks before the proposed start date of such Contract Worker’s 
services. The Background Screening must have been completed within the 12-month period preceding the 
Contract Worker’s start date under this Agreement and must include the results of a national criminal databased 
check with source verification, and a sex offender database search.  Contract Workers who work directly with 
children or vulnerable adults as defined in A.R.S. § 46-451A.12 are subject to fingerprint verification through the 
Arizona Department of Public Safety pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-1750(G)(23). 

Additional City Rights Regarding Security Inquiries. In addition to the foregoing, the City reserves the right but not 
the obligations to: (1) have a Contract Worker be required to provide fingerprints and execute such other 
documentation as may be necessary to obtain criminal justice information pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-1750(G) (4); 
(2) act on newly acquired information whether or not such information should have been previously discovered;
(3) unilaterally change its standards and criteria relative to the acceptability of Contract Workers; and (4) object,
at any time and for any reason, to a Contract Worker performing work (including supervision and oversight) under
this Contract.

Contractor Certification. By executing this Agreement, Contractor certifies and warrants that Contractor has read 
the Background Screening requirements and criteria in this Section, understands them and that all Background 
Screening information furnished to the City is accurate and current. Also, by executing this Agreement, Contractor 
further certifies and warrants that Contractor has satisfied all such Background Screening requirements as 
required. A Contract Worker rejected for work under this Agreement shall not be proposed to perform work under 
other City contracts or engagements without the City's prior written approval. 

Terms of This Section Applicable to all of Contractor's Contracts and Subcontracts. Contractor shall include the 
terms of this Section for Contract Worker Background Screening in all contracts and subcontracts for services 
furnished under this Agreement including, but not limited to, supervision and oversight services. 

Materiality of Background Screening Requirements: Indemnity. The Background Screening requirements of this 
Section are material to the City's entry into this Agreement and any breach of this Section by Contractor shall be 
deemed a material breach of this Agreement. In addition to the indemnity provisions set forth in Section VII, 
Paragraph D, Indemnification Clause of the General Conditions, Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless the City for any and all Claims arising out of this Background Screening Section including, but not limited 
to, the disqualification of a Contract Worker by Contractor or the City for failure to satisfy this Section. 

Continuing Duty: Audit. Contractor's obligations and requirements that Contract Workers satisfy this Background 
Screening Section shall continue throughout the entire term of this Agreement. Contractor shall notify the City 
immediately of any change to a Background Screening of a Contract Worker previously approved by the City. 
Contractor shall maintain all records and documents related to all Background Screenings and the City reserves 
the right to audit Contractor's compliance with this Section pursuant to Section VII, Paragraph A, "Records/Audit" 
of the General Conditions. 



Agreement No.NRD-24-OS1 Page 1 Res. No. 5810 
 

                                                                
CITY OF CHANDLER SERVICES AGREEMENT NO. NRD-24-OS1 

 
THIS AGREEMENT (Agreement) is made and entered into by and between the City of Chandler, an Arizona 
municipal corporation, (City), and EMPACT-Suicide Prevention Center (SPC), an Arizona Nonprofit Corporation 
(Contractor), (City and Contractor may individually be referred to as Party and collectively referred to as Parties). 
 

RECITALS 
 
A.  The City entered the One Arizona Distribution of Opioid Settlement Funds Agreement (“One Arizona 
Agreement”) with the State of Arizona to receive funds for use in implementing opioid abatement strategies to 
combat community harms caused by the opioid epidemic.  The One Arizona Agreement is attached to this 
Agreement as Exhibit “A.” 
 
B.  The Contractor provides services that qualify as Opioid Abatement Strategies pursuant to Exhibit A of the One 
Arizona Agreement.  
 
C.  City proposes for Contractor to provide services as described in Exhibit B Scope of Services. 
 
D. Contractor is ready, willing, and able to provide the services described in Exhibit B for the compensation and 
fees set forth and as described in Exhibit B, which are attached to and made a part of this Agreement by this 
reference. 
 
E. City desires to contract with the Contractor to provide these services under the terms and conditions set forth in 
this Agreement. 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual promises contained in this Agreement, City 
and Contractor agree as follows: 
 
SECTION I: DEFINITIONS 
For purposes of this Agreement, the following definitions will apply: 
Agreement means the legal agreement executed between the City and the Contractor.  
City means the City of Chandler, Arizona 
Contractor means the individual, partnership, or corporation named in the Agreement. 
Days means calendar days. 
May, Should means something that is not mandatory but permissible. 
Shall, Will, Must means a mandatory requirement.  
 
SECTION II: CONTRACTOR’S SERVICES 
Contractor must perform the services described in Exhibit B to the City’s satisfaction within the terms and conditions 
of this Agreement and within the care and skill that a person who provides similar services in Chandler, Arizona 
exercises under similar conditions. In performing these services, Contractor will also specifically comply with the 
applicable Special Conditions that are set forth in Exhibit D.  Contractor will provide progress reports to the City 
according to the schedule referenced in the Scope of Services. 
 
SECTION III: PERIOD OF SERVICE 
Contractor must perform the services described in Exhibit B during the term of this Agreement.  
 
The term of the Agreement is one year, commencing on July 1, 2024, and terminating on June 30, 2025, unless 
sooner terminated in accordance with the provisions herein. The City may, at its sole discretion and at no additional 
cost, extend the term of this Agreement for up to 60 days beyond the expiration of the term by delivering written 
notice to Contractor within 10 days of the Agreement’s expiration, provided that the City gives Contractor preliminary 
written notice of its intent to extend at least 30 days before the Agreement expires.  The preliminary notice does not 
commit the City to an extension. The Parties may mutually agree to renew the agreement for up to four additional 
one-year periods of service or portions thereof. 
  



Agreement No.NRD-24-OS1 Page 2 Res. No. 5810 
 

SECTION lV: PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION AND FEES 
4.1 Compensation and Fees. Unless amended in writing by the Parties, Contractor's compensation and fees as 
more fully described in Exhibit C for performance of the services approved and accepted by the City under this 
Agreement must not exceed $50,000.  Payment for services includes payment for all costs and expenses defined 
in the approved services budget that may be incurred by Contractor in the performance of approved services. No 
additional charges, outside of the approved services budget, will be eligible for payment. Contractor shall bear all 
responsibility and liability for any and all tax obligations that result from Contractor’s performance under this 
Agreement. Contractor acknowledges that payment will be made from One Arizona Agreement funds and can only 
be used for Opioid Abatement Strategies approved in Exhibit A of the One Arizona Agreement. 
 
4.2 Invoices. The Contractor shall submit one legible copy of their detailed invoice before payment(s) can be 
made. Incomplete invoices will not be processed. The City will provide an invoice template upon execution of 
contract. 
 
4.3 Payments. City reserves the right to implement a cost reimbursement methodology at the beginning of a contract 
or with 30-day written notice. Cost reimbursement requires the contractor to submit requests for payment of services 
approved and accepted during the previous billing period and must include, as applicable, detailed invoices and 
receipts, a narrative description of the tasks accomplished during the billing period, a list of any deliverables 
submitted, and any subcontractor’s or supplier’s actual requests for payment plus similar narrative and listing of 
their work. Payment for those services negotiated as a lump sum will be made in accordance with the percentage 
of the work completed during the preceding billing period. Services negotiated as a not-to-exceed fee will be paid 
in accordance with the work completed on the service during the preceding month. All requests for payment must 
be submitted to the City for review and approval. The City will make payment for approved and accepted services 
within 30 days of the City’s receipt of the request for payment.  
 
SECTION V: GENERAL CONDITIONS 
5.1 Records/Audit. Records of the Contractor's direct personnel payroll, reimbursable expenses pertaining to this 
Agreement and records of accounts between the City and Contractor must be kept on the basis of generally 
accepted accounting principles and must be made available to the City and its auditors for five years following the 
City’s final acceptance of the services under this Agreement. The City reserves the right to audit Contractor's 
records to verify the accuracy and appropriateness of all cost and pricing data, including data used to negotiate this 
Agreement and any amendments. The City reserves the right to decrease the total amount of Agreement price or 
payments made under this Agreement or request reimbursement from the Contractor following final contract 
payment on this Agreement if, upon audit of the Contractor's records, the audit discloses the Contractor has 
provided false, misleading, or inaccurate cost and pricing data. The Contractor will include a similar provision in all 
of its contracts with subcontractors providing services under the Agreement Documents to ensure that the City, its 
authorized representative, or the appropriate federal agency, has access to the subcontractors’ records to verify 
the accuracy of all cost and pricing data. The City reserves the right to decrease Contract price or payments made 
on this Agreement or request reimbursement from the Contractor following final payment on this Agreement if the 
above provision is not included in subcontractor agreements, and one or more subcontractors refuse to allow the 
City to audit their records to verify the accuracy and appropriateness of all cost and pricing data. If, following an 
audit of this Agreement, the audit discloses the Contractor has provided false, misleading, or inaccurate cost and 
pricing data, and the cost discrepancies exceed 1% of the total Agreement billings, the Contractor will be liable for 
reimbursement of the reasonable, actual cost of the audit.  
 
5.2 Alteration in Character of Work. Whenever an alteration in the character of work results in a substantial change 
in this Agreement, thereby materially increasing or decreasing the scope of services, cost of performance, or 
schedule of services, the work will be performed as directed by the City. However, before any modified work is 
started, a written amendment must be approved and executed by the City and the Contractor. Such amendment 
must not be effective until approved by the City. Additions to, modifications, or deletions from this Agreement as 
provided herein may be made, and the compensation to be paid to the Contractor may accordingly be adjusted by 
mutual agreement of the Parties. It is distinctly understood and agreed that no claim for extra work done or materials 
furnished by the Contractor will be allowed by the City except as provided herein, nor must the Contractor do any 
work or furnish any materials on City’s behalf not covered by this Agreement unless such work is first authorized in 
writing by the City. Any such work or materials furnished by the Contractor without prior written authorization will be 
at Contractor's own risk, cost, and expense, and Contractor hereby agrees that without written authorization, 
Contractor will make no claim for compensation for such work or materials furnished. 
 
5.3 Termination.  
 

a) For Convenience. The City and the Contractor hereby agree to the full performance of the covenants 
contained herein, except that the City reserves the right, at its discretion and without cause, to 
terminate or abandon any service or portion thereof provided for in this Agreement for convenience by 



Agreement No.NRD-24-OS1 Page 3 Res. No. 5810 
 

providing sixty (60) days written notice to Contractor. In the event of termination for convenience as 
provided under this paragraph, Contractor will receive compensation in full for services performed to 
the date of such termination provided that such services are performed in accordance with the 
provisions of this Agreement. The fee shall be paid in accordance with Section Ill of this Agreement, 
and as mutually agreed upon by the Contractor and the City. If there is no mutual agreement on 
payment, the final determination will be made in accordance with the Disputes provision in this 
Agreement. However, in no event may the fee exceed the fee set forth in this Agreement nor as 
amended in accordance with Alteration in Character of Work. The City will make the final payment 
within 60 days after the Contractor has delivered the last of the partially completed items and the 
Parties agree on the final fee.  

b) For cause. The City may terminate this Agreement for cause immediately upon the occurrence of any one 
or more of the following events: (a) the Contractor fails to perform pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, 
(b) the Contractor is adjudged a bankrupt or insolvent, (c) the Contractor makes a general assignment for 
the benefit of creditors, (d) a trustee or receiver is appointed for Contractor or for any of Contractor’s 
property (e) the Contractor files a petition to take advantage of any debtor's act, or to reorganize under the 
bankruptcy or similar laws, (f) the Contractor disregards laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or orders of 
any public body having jurisdiction, or (g) the Contractor fails to cure default within the time requested. 
Where this Agreement has been terminated by City for cause under this paragraph, the termination shall 
not affect any rights of City against Contractor then existing for breach of this Agreement or which may 
thereafter accrue. 

 
5.4 Indemnification. The Contractor (lndemnitor) must indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the City and 
its officers, officials, agents and employees (lndemnitee) from any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, 
losses or expenses (including court costs, attorneys' fees and costs of claim processing, investigation and 
litigation) (Claims) caused or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the wrongful, negligent or willful 
acts, or errors or omissions of the Contractor or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, employees, or 
subcontractors in connection with this Agreement. This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of 
or recovered under workers' compensation law or on account of the failure of the Contractor to conform to any 
federal, state or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree. The Contractor must indemnify 
lndemnitee from and against any and all Claims, except those arising solely from lndemnitee's own negligent 
or willful acts or omissions. The Contractor is responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment 
costs where this indemnification applies. In consideration of the award of this Agreement, the Contractor 
agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against lndemnitee for losses arising from or related to this 
Agreement. The obligations of the Contractor under this provision survive the termination or expiration of this 
Agreement. 
 
5.5 Insurance Requirements. Contractor must procure insurance under the terms and conditions and for the 
amounts of coverage set forth in Exhibit C against claims that may arise from or relate to performance of the 
work under this Agreement by Contractor and its agents, representatives, employees, and subcontractors. 
Contractor and any subcontractors must maintain this insurance until all of their obligations have been 
discharged, including any warranty periods under this Agreement. These insurance requirements are 
minimum requirements for this Agreement and in no way limit the indemnity covenants contained in this 
Agreement. The City in no way warrants that the minimum limits stated in Exhibit D are sufficient to protect 
the Contractor from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of the work under this Agreement by the 
Contractor, the Contractor’s agents, representatives, employees, or subcontractors. Contractor is free to 
purchase such additional insurance as may be determined necessary. 
 
5.6 Cooperation and Further Documentation. The Contractor agrees to provide the City such other duly 
executed documents as may be reasonably requested by the City to implement the intent of this Agreement. 
 
5.7 Notices. Unless otherwise provided, notice under this Agreement must be in writing and will be deemed 
to have been duly given and received either (a) on the date of service if personally served on the party to 
whom notice is to be given, or (b) on the date notice is sent if by electronic mail, or (c) on the third day after 
the date of the postmark of deposit by first class United States mail, registered or certified, postage prepaid    
and properly addressed as follows: 
  



Agreement No.NRD-24-OS1 Page 4 Res. No. 5810 
 

For the City For the Contractor 
Name: Riann Balch Name: Sandra McNally 
Title: Community Resources Senior Manager Title: Prevention Manager 
Address: Mail Stop 600 

    PO Box 4008 
    Chandler, AZ 85244-4008 

Address: 618 S. Madison Dr 
Tempe, AZ 85281 
 

Phone: (480)782-4352 Phone: (480)784-1514x1219 
Email: riann.balch@chandleraz.gov 
 

Email: sandra.mcnally@lafrontera-empact.org  
 

5.8 Successors and Assigns. City and Contractor each bind itself, its partners, successors, assigns, and legal 
representatives to the other party to this Agreement and to the partners, successors, assigns, and legal 
representatives of such other party in respect to all covenants of this Agreement. Neither the City nor the 
Contractor may assign, sublet, or transfer its interest in this Agreement without the written consent of the other 
party. In no event may any contractual relation be created between any third party and the City. 
 
5.9 Disputes. In any dispute arising out of an interpretation of this Agreement or the duties required not 
disposed of by agreement between the Contractor and the City, the final determination at the administrative 
level will be made by the City Purchasing and Materials Manager. 
 
5.10 Completeness and Accuracy of Contractor's Work. The Contractor must be responsible for the 
completeness and accuracy of Contractor's services, data, and other work prepared or compiled under 
Contractor's obligation under this Agreement and must correct, at Contractor's expense, all willful or negligent 
errors, omissions, or acts that may be discovered. The fact that the City has accepted or approved the 
Contractor's work will in no way relieve the Contractor of any of Contractor's responsibilities. 
 
5.11 Withholding Payment. The City reserves the right to withhold funds from the Contractor's payments up 
to the amount equal to the claims the City may have against the Contractor until such time that a settlement 
on those claims has been reached. 
 
5.12 City's Right of Cancellation. The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement is subject to cancellation by 
the City under the provisions of Section 38-511, Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.). 
 
5.13 Independent Contractor. For this Agreement the Contractor constitutes an independent contractor. Any 
provisions in this Agreement that may appear to give the City the right to direct the Contractor as to the details 
of accomplishing the work or to exercise a measure of control over the work means that the Contractor must 
follow the wishes of the City as to the results of the work only. These results must comply with all applicable 
laws and ordinances. 
 
5.14 Staffing. Prior to the start of any work under this Agreement, the Contractor must assign to the City the 
key personnel that will be involved in performing services prescribed in the Agreement. The City may 
acknowledge its acceptance of such personnel to perform services under this Agreement. At any time 
hereafter that the Contractor desires to change key personnel while performing under the Agreement, the 
Contractor must provide notice and submit the qualifications of the new personnel to the City. The Contractor 
will maintain an adequate and competent staff of qualified persons, as may be determined by the City, 
throughout the performance of this Agreement to ensure acceptable and timely completion of the Scope of 
Services. If the City objects, with reasonable cause, to any of the Contractor's staff, the Contractor must take 
prompt corrective action acceptable to the City and, if required, remove such personnel from the services 
assigned to this Agreement and replace with new personnel agreed to by the City. 
 
5.15 Subcontractors. Prior to beginning the work, the Contractor must furnish the City for approval the names 
of subcontractors and scope of work to be used under this Agreement. Any subsequent changes are subject 
to the City’s written prior approval. 
 
5.16 Force Majeure. If either party is delayed or prevented from the performance of any act required under 
this Agreement by reason of acts of God or other cause beyond the control and without fault of the Party 
(financial inability excepted), performance of that act may be excused, but only for the period of the delay, if 
the Party provides written notice to the other Party within ten days of such act. The time for performance of 
the act may be extended for a period equivalent to the period of delay from the date written notice is received 
by the other Party. 
  

mailto:riann.balch@chandleraz.gov
mailto:sandra.mcnally@lafrontera-empact.org


Agreement No.NRD-24-OS1 Page 5 Res. No. 5810 
 

 
5.17 Compliance with Federal Laws. Contractor understands and acknowledges the applicability of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 and the Drug Free Workplace 
Act of 1989 to it. The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable codes, ordinances and requirements in 
performing this Agreement and to permit the City to verify such compliance. 
 
5.18 No Forced Uyghur Labor. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor certifies under A.R.S. § 35-394 
that Contractor does not currently and agrees for the duration of the contract that Contractor will not use: (i) 
the forced labor of ethnic Uyghurs in the People's Republic of China; or (ii) any goods or services produced 
by the forced labor of ethnic Uyghurs in the People's Republic of China; or (iii) any contractors, subcontractors 
or suppliers that use the forced labor or any goods or services produced by the forced labor of ethnic Uyghurs 
in the People's Republic of China.    
 
5.19 No Israel Boycott. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor certifies that Contractor is not currently 
engaged in, and agrees for the duration of the Agreement, not to engage in a boycott of Israel as defined by 
state statute. 
 
5.20 Legal Worker Requirements. A.R.S. § 41-4401 prohibits the City from awarding a contract to any 
contractor who fails, or whose subcontractors fail, to comply with A.R.S. § 23-214(A). Therefore, Contractor 
agrees Contractor and each subcontractor it uses warrants their compliance with all federal immigration laws 
and regulations that relate to their employees and their compliance with § 23-214, subsection A. A breach of 
this warranty will be deemed a material breach of the Agreement and may be subject to penalties up to and 
including termination of the Agreement. City retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any Contractor’s or 
subcontractor’s employee who provides services under this Agreement to ensure that the Contractor and 
subcontractors comply with the warranty under this provision. 
 
5.21 Lawful Presence Requirement. A.R.S. §§ 1-501 and 1-502 prohibit the City from awarding a contract to 
any natural person who cannot establish that such person is lawfully present in the United States. To establish 
lawful presence, a person must produce qualifying identification and sign a City-provided affidavit affirming 
that the identification provided is genuine. This requirement will be imposed at the time of contract award. This 
requirement does not apply to business organizations such as corporations, partnerships, or limited liability 
companies. 
 
5.22 Covenant Against Contingent Fees. Contractor warrants that no person has been employed or retained 
to solicit or secure this Agreement upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, 
brokerage, or contingent fee, and that no member of the Chandler City Council, or any City employee has any 
interest, financially, or otherwise, in Contractor’s firm. For breach or violation of this warrant, the City may 
annul this Agreement without liability or, at its discretion, to deduct from the Agreement price or consideration, 
the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee. 
 
5.23 Non-Waiver Provision. The failure of either Party to enforce any of the provisions of this Agreement or to 
require performance of the other Party of any of the provisions hereof must not be construed to be a waiver 
of such provisions, nor must it affect the validity of this Agreement or any part thereof, or the right of either 
Party to thereafter enforce each and every provision. 
 
5.24 Disclosure of Information Adverse to the City’s Interests. To evaluate and avoid potential conflicts of 
interest, the Contractor must provide written notice to the City, as set forth in this Section, of any work or 
services performed by the Contractor for third parties that may involve or be associated with any real property 
or personal property owned or leased by the City. Such notice must be given 7 business days prior to 
commencement of the services by the Contractor for a third party, or 7 business days prior to an adverse 
action as defined below. Written notice and disclosure must be sent to the City’s Purchasing and Materials 
Manager. An adverse action under this Agreement includes, but is not limited to: (a) using data as defined in 
the Agreement acquired in connection with this Agreement to assist a third party in pursuing administrative or 
judicial action against the City; or (b) testifying or providing evidence on behalf of any person in connection 
with an administrative or judicial action against the City; or (c) using data to produce income for the Contractor 
or its employees independently of performing the services under this Agreement, without the prior written 
consent of the City. Contractor represents that except for those persons, entities, and projects identified to the 
City, the services performed by the Contractor under this Agreement are not expected to create an interest 
with any person, entity, or third-party project that is or may be adverse to the City’s interests. Contractor's 
failure to provide a written notice and disclosure of the information as set forth in this Section constitute a 
material breach of this Agreement. 
  



Agreement No.NRD-24-OS1 Page 6 Res. No. 5810 
 

5.25 Rights in Data. City shall have the use of data and reports resulting from this Agreement without additional 
cost or other restriction except as may be established by law or applicable regulation.  Subject to the foregoing, 
each Party shall supply to the other Party, upon request, any available information that is relevant to this 
Agreement and to the performance thereunder. 
 
5.26 Data Confidentiality and Security. Personal identifying information, protected health information, financial 
account information, or restricted City information (together “Confidential Information”), whether electronic 
format or hard copy, must be secured and protected at all times by Contractor and any of its subcontractors. 
At a minimum, Contractor must encrypt or password-protect electronic files containing Confidential 
Information. This includes data saved to laptop computers, computerized devices, or removable storage 
devices. When any Confidential Information, regardless of its format, is no longer necessary or subject to 
federal or state retention requirements, the information must be redacted or destroyed through appropriate 
and secure methods that ensure the information cannot be viewed, accessed, or reconstructed. In the event 
that Confidential Information collected or obtained by Contractor or its subcontractors in connection with this 
Agreement is believed to have been compromised, Contractor or its subcontractors must immediately notify 
the City contact. Contractor agrees to reimburse the City for any costs incurred by the City to investigate 
potential breaches of Confidential Information and, where applicable, the cost of notifying individuals who may 
be impacted by the breach. Contractor agrees that the requirements of this Section must be incorporated into 
all subcontracts entered into by Contractor. It is further agreed that a violation of this Section must be deemed 
to cause irreparable harm that justifies injunctive relief in court. A violation of this Section may result in 
immediate termination of this Agreement without notice. The obligations of Contractor or its subcontractors 
under this Section must survive the termination of this Agreement. 
 
5.27 Jurisdiction and Venue. This Agreement is made under, and must be construed in accordance with and 
governed by the laws of the State of Arizona without regard to the conflicts or choice of law provisions thereof. 
Any action to enforce any provision of this Agreement or to obtain any remedy with respect hereto must be 
brought in the courts located in Maricopa County, Arizona, and for this purpose, each Party hereby expressly 
and irrevocably consents to the jurisdiction and venue of such court. 
 
5.28 Survival. All warranties, representations, and indemnifications by the Contractor must survive the 
completion or termination of this Agreement. 
 
5.29 Modification. Except as expressly provided herein to the contrary, no supplement, modification, or 
amendment of any term of this Agreement will be deemed binding or effective unless in writing and signed by 
the Parties.  
 
5.30 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement or the application to any person or circumstance may be 
invalid, illegal or unenforceable to any extent, the remainder of this Agreement and the application will not be 
affected and will be enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. 
 
5.31 Integration. This Agreement contains the full agreement of the Parties. Any prior or contemporaneous 
written or oral agreement between the Parties regarding the subject matter is merged and superseded. 
 
5.32 Time is of the Essence. Time of each of the terms, covenants, and conditions of this Agreement is hereby 
expressly made of the essence. 
 
5.33 Date of Performance. If the date of performance of any obligation or the last day of any time period 
provided for should fall on a Saturday, Sunday, or holiday for the City, the obligation will be due and owing, 
and the time period will expire, on the first day after which is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal City holiday. 
Except as may otherwise be set forth in this Agreement, any performance provided for herein will be timely 
made if completed no later than 5:00 p.m. (Chandler time) on the day of performance. 
 
5.34 Third Party Beneficiary. Nothing under this Agreement will be construed to give any rights or benefits in 
the Agreement to anyone other than the City and the Contractor, and all duties and responsibilities undertaken 
pursuant to this Agreement will be for the sole and exclusive benefit of City and the Contractor and not for the 
benefit of any other party. 
 
5.35 Conflict in Language. All work performed must conform to all applicable City of Chandler codes, 
ordinances, and requirements as outlined in this Agreement. If there is a conflict in interpretation between 
provisions in this Agreement and those in the Exhibits, the provisions in this Agreement prevail. 
 
5.36 Document/Information Release. Documents and materials released to the Contractor, which are 
identified by the City as sensitive and confidential, are the City’s property. The document/material must be 



Agreement No.NRD-24-OS1 Page 7 Res. No. 5810 
 

issued by and returned to the City upon completion of the services under this Agreement. Contractor’s 
secondary distribution, disclosure, copying, or duplication in any manner is prohibited without the City’s prior 
written approval. The document/material must be kept secure at all times. This directive applies to all identified 
City documents, whether in photographic, printed, or electronic data format.  
 
5.37 Exhibits. The following exhibits are made a part of this Agreement and are incorporated by reference: 
 
    Exhibit A - One Arizona Agreement 

Exhibit B - Scope of Services 
Exhibit B - Compensation and Fees 
Exhibit C - Insurance Requirements 
Exhibit D - Special Conditions  
 

5.38 Special Conditions. As part of the services Contractor provides under this Agreement, Contractor agrees 
to comply with and fully perform the special terms and conditions set forth in Exhibit D, which is attached to 
and made a part of this Agreement. 
 
5.39 Compliance with School District Policies.  If required to provide services on a school district property, 
Contractor shall comply with said school district’s policies applicable to contractors on the premises, including, 
but not limited to fingerprinting policies.  The school district may conduct, and Contractor and its subcontractors 
shall agree to, a fingerprint check in accordance with A.R.S. § 41-1750 and Public Law 92-544 of all 
Contractors, subcontractors or vendors and their employees for which fingerprints are submitted to the school 
district.  Contractor, sub-contractors, vendors and their employees shall not provide services on school district 
properties until authorized by the applicable school district.  
 
5.40 Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors must comply with all 
applicable City, state, and federal non-discrimination and anti-harassment laws, rules, and regulations. 
 
5.41 Licenses and Permits. Beginning with the Effective Date and for the full term of this Agreement, 
Contractor must maintain all applicable City, state, and federal licenses and permits required to fully perform 
Contractor’s services under this Agreement. 
 
5.42 Availability of Funds. Every payment obligation under this Agreement is conditioned upon the availability 
of funds appropriated or allocated for the payment of such obligations.  If funds are not allocated or available 
for the continuance of this Agreement, this Agreement may be terminated by the City.  No liability shall accrue 
to the City in the event the foregoing provision is exercised, and the City will not be obligated or liable for any 
future payments or for any damages as a result of such termination.  
 
5.43 Emergency Purchases.  City reserves the rights to purchase from other sources those services and/or 
items, which are required on an emergency basis and cannot be supplied immediately by the Contractor. 
 
5.44 Non-Exclusive Agreement. This Agreement is for the sole convenience of the City of Chandler. The City 
reserves the right to obtain like goods or services from another source when necessary. 
 
5.45 Budget Approval Into Next Fiscal Year.  This Agreement will commence on July 1, 2024 (the “Effective Date”) 
and continue in full force and effect until it is terminated or expires in accordance with the provisions of this 
Agreement.  The Parties recognize that the continuation of this Agreement after the close of the City's fiscal year, 
which ends on June 30 of each year, is subject to the City Council's approval of a budget that includes an 
appropriation for this item as an expenditure.  The City does not represent that this budget item will be actually 
adopted. This determination is solely made by the City Council at the time Council adopts the budget. 
 
This Agreement shall be in full force and effect only when it has been approved and executed by the duly 
authorized City officials. 
  



Agreement No.NRD-24-OS1 Page 8 Res. No. 5810
 

The Parties have executed this Agreement on this  day of  , 2024 
(Executed Date). 

FOR THE CITY FOR THE CONTRACTOR 

By: _________________________________________ By: 
_________________________________________ 

Its:_________________________________________ Its: 
_________________________________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: _________________________________________ 
City Attorney 

ATTEST: 

By: _________________________________________ 
City Clerk 



Agreement No.NRD-24-OS1 Page 9 Res. No. 5810 
 

EXHIBIT A TO AGREEMENT 
ONE ARIZONA AGREEMENT 

  



ONE ARIZONA DISTRIBUTION OF OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUNDS 

AGREEMENT 

General Principles 

The people of the State of Arizona and Arizona communities have been harmed by the 

opioid epidemic, which was caused by entities within the Pharmaceutical Supply Chain. 

The State of Arizona, ex rel. Mark Brnovich, Attorney General (the “State”), and certain 

Participating Local Governments are separately engaged in litigation seeking to hold the 
Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participants accountable for the damage they caused. 

The State and the Participating Local Governments share a common desire to abate and 
alleviate the impacts of the Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participants’ misconduct 

throughout the State of Arizona. 

The State and the Participating Local Governments previously entered into the One 
Arizona Opioid Settlement Memorandum of Understanding for the purpose of jointly 

approaching Settlement negotiations with the Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participants. 

The State and the Participating Local Governments now enter into this One Arizona 

Distribution of Opioid Settlement Funds Agreement (“Agreement”) to establish binding 

terms for the distribution and spending of funds from Settlements with the Pharmaceutical 
Supply Chain Participants. 

A. Definitions 

As used in this Agreement: 

I. “Approved Purpose(s)” shall mean those uses identified in the agreed Opioid Abatement 
Strategies attached as Exhibit A. 

“Contingency Fee Fund” shall mean a sub fund established in a Settlement for the purpose 

of paying contingency fees, such as the Attorney Fee Fund described in Section 1.V of the 

Settlement with the Settling Distributors and the sub fund of the Attorney Fee Fund 

described in Section ILD of the Settlement with J&J.! 

“J&J” shall mean Johnson & Johnson, Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc., OrthoMcNeil- 

Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc., and Janssen Pharmaceutica, Inc. 

“Litigation” means existing or potential legal claims against Pharmaceutical Supply Chain 

Participants seeking to hold them accountable for the damage caused by their misfeasance, 

nonfeasance, and malfeasance relating to the unlawful manufacture, marketing, promotion, 

distribution, or dispensing of prescription opioids. 

  

I Text of both settlements available at https://nationalopioidsettlement.com. 
 

ONE ARIZONA DISTRIBUTION OF OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUNDS 
AGREEMENT 

General Principles 

 The people of the State of Arizona and Arizona communities have been harmed by the
opioid epidemic, which was caused by entities within the Pharmaceutical Supply Chain.

 The State of Arizona, ex rel. Mark Brnovich, Attorney General (the “State”), and certain
Participating Local Governments are separately engaged in litigation seeking to hold the
Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participants accountable for the damage they caused.

 The State and the Participating Local Governments share a common desire to abate and
alleviate the impacts of the Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participants’ misconduct
throughout the State of Arizona.

 The State and the Participating Local Governments previously entered into the One
Arizona Opioid Settlement Memorandum of Understanding for the purpose of jointly
approaching Settlement negotiations with the Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participants.

 The State and the Participating Local Governments now enter into this One Arizona
Distribution of Opioid Settlement Funds Agreement (“Agreement”) to establish binding
terms for the distribution and spending of funds from Settlements with the Pharmaceutical
Supply Chain Participants.

A. Definitions

As used in this Agreement: 

1. “Approved Purpose(s)” shall mean those uses identified in the agreed Opioid Abatement
Strategies attached as Exhibit A.

2. “Contingency Fee Fund” shall mean a sub fund established in a Settlement for the purpose
of paying contingency fees, such as the Attorney Fee Fund described in Section I.V of the
Settlement with the Settling Distributors and the sub fund of the Attorney Fee Fund
described in Section II.D of the Settlement with J&J.1

3. “J&J” shall mean Johnson & Johnson, Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc., OrthoMcNeil-
Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc., and Janssen Pharmaceutica, Inc.

4. “Litigation” means existing or potential legal claims against Pharmaceutical Supply Chain
Participants seeking to hold them accountable for the damage caused by their misfeasance,
nonfeasance, and malfeasance relating to the unlawful manufacture, marketing, promotion,
distribution, or dispensing of prescription opioids.

1  Text of both settlements available at https://nationalopioidsettlement.com. 



10. 

11. 

12. 

“Opioid Funds” shall mean monetary amounts obtained through a Settlement as defined in 
this Agreement. 

“Participating Local Government(s)” shall mean all counties, cities, and towns within the 

geographic boundaries of the State that have chosen to sign on to this Agreement and each 
applicable Settlement. The Participating Local Governments may be referred to separately 
in this Agreement as “Participating Counties” and “Participating Cities and Towns” (or 

“Participating Cities or Towns,” as appropriate). 

“Parties” shall mean the State and the Participating Local Governments. 

“Pharmaceutical Supply Chain” shall mean the process and channels through which licit 

opioids are manufactured, marketed, promoted, distributed, or dispensed. 

“Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participant” shall mean any entity that engages in or has 
engaged in the manufacture, marketing, promotion, distribution, or dispensing of licit 

opioids. 

“Settlement” shall mean the negotiated resolution of legal or equitable claims against a 
Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participant when that resolution has been jointly entered into 

by the State and the Participating Local Government and approved as final by a court of 
competent jurisdiction. 

“Settling Distributors” shall mean McKesson Corporation, Cardinal Health, Inc., and 

AmerisourceBergen Corporation. 

“Trustee” shall mean either (1) an independent trustee who shall be responsible for the 
ministerial task of releasing the Opioid Funds that are in trust as authorized herein and 

accounting for all payments into or out of the trust, or (2) a settlement fund administrator, 
in the event that the Settlement includes a fund administrator. In either case, the Trustee 

will distribute funds in accordance with this Agreement. 

B. Intrastate Regions 

I. The State of Arizona will be divided into regions, each of which will be referred to as a 
“Region” and will consist of: (1) a single Participating County and all of its Participating 

Cities and Towns; or (2) all of the Participating Cities and Towns within a non- 

Participating County. If there is only one Participating City or Town within a non- 

Participating County, that single Participating City or Town will still constitute a Region. 

Two or more Regions may at their discretion form a group (“Multicounty Region”). 

Regions that do not choose to form a Multicounty Region will be their own Region. 

Participating Cities and Towns within a non-Participating County may not form a Region 

with Participating Cities and Towns in another county. 

The LG Share funds described in Section C(1) will be distributed to each Region according 

to the percentages set forth in Exhibit B. The Regional allocation model uses three equally 

weighted factors: (1) the amount of opioids shipped to the Region; (2) the number of opioid 

deaths that occurred in that Region; and (3) the number of people who suffer opioid use 

disorder in that Region. In the event any county does not participate in this Agreement, that

2 
 

5. “Opioid Funds” shall mean monetary amounts obtained through a Settlement as defined in 
this Agreement. 

6. “Participating Local Government(s)” shall mean all counties, cities, and towns within the 
geographic boundaries of the State that have chosen to sign on to this Agreement and each 
applicable Settlement. The Participating Local Governments may be referred to separately 
in this Agreement as “Participating Counties” and “Participating Cities and Towns” (or 
“Participating Cities or Towns,” as appropriate). 

7. “Parties” shall mean the State and the Participating Local Governments. 

8. “Pharmaceutical Supply Chain” shall mean the process and channels through which licit 
opioids are manufactured, marketed, promoted, distributed, or dispensed. 

9. “Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participant” shall mean any entity that engages in or has 
engaged in the manufacture, marketing, promotion, distribution, or dispensing of licit 
opioids. 

10. “Settlement” shall mean the negotiated resolution of legal or equitable claims against a 
Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participant when that resolution has been jointly entered into 
by the State and the Participating Local Government and approved as final by a court of 
competent jurisdiction. 

11. “Settling Distributors” shall mean McKesson Corporation, Cardinal Health, Inc., and 
AmerisourceBergen Corporation. 

12. “Trustee” shall mean either (1) an independent trustee who shall be responsible for the 
ministerial task of releasing the Opioid Funds that are in trust as authorized herein and 
accounting for all payments into or out of the trust, or (2) a settlement fund administrator, 
in the event that the Settlement includes a fund administrator.  In either case, the Trustee 
will distribute funds in accordance with this Agreement. 

B. Intrastate Regions 

1. The State of Arizona will be divided into regions, each of which will be referred to as a 
“Region” and will consist of: (1) a single Participating County and all of its Participating 
Cities and Towns; or (2) all of the Participating Cities and Towns within a non-
Participating County. If there is only one Participating City or Town within a non-
Participating County, that single Participating City or Town will still constitute a Region. 
Two or more Regions may at their discretion form a group (“Multicounty Region”). 
Regions that do not choose to form a Multicounty Region will be their own Region. 
Participating Cities and Towns within a non-Participating County may not form a Region 
with Participating Cities and Towns in another county. 

2. The LG Share funds described in Section C(1) will be distributed to each Region according 
to the percentages set forth in Exhibit B. The Regional allocation model uses three equally 
weighted factors: (1) the amount of opioids shipped to the Region; (2) the number of opioid 
deaths that occurred in that Region; and (3) the number of people who suffer opioid use 
disorder in that Region. In the event any county does not participate in this Agreement, that 



county’s percentage share shall be reallocated proportionally amongst the Participating 

Counties by applying this same methodology to only the Participating Counties. 

In single-county Regions, that county’s health department will serve as the lead agency 

responsible for distributing the LG Share funds. That health department, acting as the lead 
agency, shall consult with the cities and towns in the county regarding distribution of the 
LG Share funds. 

For each Multicounty Region, an advisory council shall be formed from the Participating 

Local Governments in the Multicounty Region to distribute the collective LG Share funds. 
Each advisory council shall include at least three Participating Local Government 

representatives, not all of whom may reside in the same county. Each advisory council 
shall consult with the Participating Local Governments in the Multicounty Region 
regarding distribution of the collective LG Share funds. 

For each Region consisting of the Participating Cities and Towns within a non- 

Participating County, an advisory council shall be formed from the Participating Cities and 
Towns in the Region to distribute the LG Share funds. Each advisory council shall include 
at least three representatives from the Participating Cities and Towns in the Region, or a 

representative from each Participating City and Town if the Region consists of fewer than 

three Participating Cities and Towns. In no event may more than one individual represent 
the same city or town. To the extent any Participating Cities or Towns in the Region are 

not represented on the advisory council, the advisory council shall consult with the non- 
represented Participating Cities and Towns regarding distribution of the collective LG 
Share funds. 

C. Allocation of Settlement Proceeds 

I. 

2. 

All Opioid Funds shall be divided with 44% to the State (“State Share”) and 56% to the 

Participating Local Governments (“LG Share”). 

All Opioid Funds, except those allocated to payment of counsel and litigation expenses as 

set forth in Section E, shall be utilized in a manner consistent with the Approved Purposes 

definition. Compliance with this requirement shall be verified through reporting, as set out 

in Section F. 

Each LG Share will be distributed to each Region or Multicounty Region as set forth in 

Section B(2). Participating Counties and their constituent Participating Cities and Towns 

may distribute the funds allocated to the Region or Multicounty Region amongst 

themselves in any manner they choose. If a county and its cities and towns cannot agree on 

how to allocate the funds, the default allocation in Exhibit C will apply. The default 

allocation formula uses historical federal data showing how each county and the cities and 

towns within it have made opioids-related expenditures in the past. If a county or any cities 

or towns within a Region or Multicounty Region do not sign on to this Agreement and each 

2 This Agreement assumes that any opioid settlement for Native American Tribes and Third-Party 
Payors, including municipal insurance pools, will be dealt with separately. 

33 
 

county’s percentage share shall be reallocated proportionally amongst the Participating 
Counties by applying this same methodology to only the Participating Counties. 

3. In single-county Regions, that county’s health department will serve as the lead agency 
responsible for distributing the LG Share funds. That health department, acting as the lead 
agency, shall consult with the cities and towns in the county regarding distribution of the 
LG Share funds. 

4. For each Multicounty Region, an advisory council shall be formed from the Participating 
Local Governments in the Multicounty Region to distribute the collective LG Share funds. 
Each advisory council shall include at least three Participating Local Government 
representatives, not all of whom may reside in the same county. Each advisory council 
shall consult with the Participating Local Governments in the Multicounty Region 
regarding distribution of the collective LG Share funds. 

5. For each Region consisting of the Participating Cities and Towns within a non-
Participating County, an advisory council shall be formed from the Participating Cities and 
Towns in the Region to distribute the LG Share funds. Each advisory council shall include 
at least three representatives from the Participating Cities and Towns in the Region, or a 
representative from each Participating City and Town if the Region consists of fewer than 
three Participating Cities and Towns. In no event may more than one individual represent 
the same city or town. To the extent any Participating Cities or Towns in the Region are 
not represented on the advisory council, the advisory council shall consult with the non-
represented Participating Cities and Towns regarding distribution of the collective LG 
Share funds. 

C. Allocation of Settlement Proceeds 

1. All Opioid Funds shall be divided with 44% to the State (“State Share”) and 56% to the 
Participating Local Governments (“LG Share”).2  

2. All Opioid Funds, except those allocated to payment of counsel and litigation expenses as 
set forth in Section E, shall be utilized in a manner consistent with the Approved Purposes 
definition. Compliance with this requirement shall be verified through reporting, as set out 
in Section F. 

3. Each LG Share will be distributed to each Region or Multicounty Region as set forth in 
Section B(2). Participating Counties and their constituent Participating Cities and Towns 
may distribute the funds allocated to the Region or Multicounty Region amongst 
themselves in any manner they choose. If a county and its cities and towns cannot agree on 
how to allocate the funds, the default allocation in Exhibit C will apply. The default 
allocation formula uses historical federal data showing how each county and the cities and 
towns within it have made opioids-related expenditures in the past. If a county or any cities 
or towns within a Region or Multicounty Region do not sign on to this Agreement and each 

                                                      
2  This Agreement assumes that any opioid settlement for Native American Tribes and Third-Party 
Payors, including municipal insurance pools, will be dealt with separately. 



10. 

Settlement, and if the Participating Local Governments in the Region or Multicounty 

Region cannot agree on how to allocate the funds from that Settlement amongst 
themselves, the funds shall be reallocated proportionally by applying this same 
methodology to only the Participating Local Governments in the Region or Multicounty 

Region. 

If the LG Share for a given Participating Local Government is less than $500, then that 

amount will instead be distributed to the Region or Multicounty Region in which the 

Participating Local Government is located to allow practical application of the abatement 
remedy. If the county did not sign on to the Settlement as defined herein, the funds will be 

reallocated to the State Share. 

The State Share shall be paid by check or wire transfer directly to the State through the 

Trustee, who shall hold the funds in trust, or as otherwise required by a Settlement for the 
benefit of the State, to be timely distributed as set forth in C(1) herein. The LG Share shall 

be paid by check or wire transfer directly to the Regions or Multicounty Regions through 

the Trustee, who shall hold the funds in trust, or as otherwise required by a Settlement for 

the benefit of the Participating Local Governments, to be timely distributed as set forth in 
B(2), C(1), C(3), and C(4) herein. 

The State Share shall be used only for (1) Approved Purposes within the State or (2) grants 
to organizations for Approved Purposes within the State. 

The LG Share shall be used only for (1) Approved Purposes by Participating Local 
Governments within a Region or Multicounty Region or (2) grants to organizations for 

Approved Purposes within a Region or Multicounty Region. 

The State will endeavor to prioritize up to 30% of the State Share for opioid education and 

advertising related to awareness, addiction, or treatment; Department of Corrections and 

related prison and jail opioid uses; and opioid interdiction and abatement on Arizona’s 
southern border, including grants to assist with the building, remodeling and/or operation 

of centers for treatment, drug testing, medication-assisted treatment services, probation, 

job training, and/or counseling services, among other programs. 

If the federal Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS”) disallows any federal 

funding for the State’s Medicaid programs pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1396b as a consequence 

of sums received pursuant to resolution of any Litigation with Pharmaceutical Supply 

Chain Participants, or otherwise seeks to recover sums it regards as the federal share of any 

Settlement, the amount recovered by CMS shall first be paid from the total amount of 

Opioid Funds available to the Parties under that Settlement and the distribution to the State 

and Participating Local Governments shall thereafter be made from the remaining funds. 

The Parties acknowledge and agree that any Settlement may require Participating Local 

Governments to release all their claims against the settling Pharmaceutical Supply Chain 

Participants to receive Opioid Funds. The Parties further acknowledge and agree based on 
the terms of any such national Settlement, a Participating Local Government will not 

receive funds through this Agreement until it has complied with all requirements set forth

4 
 

Settlement, and if the Participating Local Governments in the Region or Multicounty 
Region cannot agree on how to allocate the funds from that Settlement amongst 
themselves, the funds shall be reallocated proportionally by applying this same 
methodology to only the Participating Local Governments in the Region or Multicounty 
Region.  

4. If the LG Share for a given Participating Local Government is less than $500, then that 
amount will instead be distributed to the Region or Multicounty Region in which the 
Participating Local Government is located to allow practical application of the abatement 
remedy. If the county did not sign on to the Settlement as defined herein, the funds will be 
reallocated to the State Share. 

5. The State Share shall be paid by check or wire transfer directly to the State through the 
Trustee, who shall hold the funds in trust, or as otherwise required by a Settlement for the 
benefit of the State, to be timely distributed as set forth in C(1) herein. The LG Share shall 
be paid by check or wire transfer directly to the Regions or Multicounty Regions through 
the Trustee, who shall hold the funds in trust, or as otherwise required by a Settlement for 
the benefit of the Participating Local Governments, to be timely distributed as set forth in 
B(2), C(1), C(3), and C(4) herein.  

6. The State Share shall be used only for (1) Approved Purposes within the State or (2) grants 
to organizations for Approved Purposes within the State. 

7. The LG Share shall be used only for (1) Approved Purposes by Participating Local 
Governments within a Region or Multicounty Region or (2) grants to organizations for 
Approved Purposes within a Region or Multicounty Region. 

8. The State will endeavor to prioritize up to 30% of the State Share for opioid education and 
advertising related to awareness, addiction, or treatment; Department of Corrections and 
related prison and jail opioid uses; and opioid interdiction and abatement on Arizona’s 
southern border, including grants to assist with the building, remodeling and/or operation 
of centers for treatment, drug testing, medication-assisted treatment services, probation, 
job training, and/or counseling services, among other programs. 

9. If the federal Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS”) disallows any federal 
funding for the State’s Medicaid programs pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1396b as a consequence 
of sums received pursuant to resolution of any Litigation with Pharmaceutical Supply 
Chain Participants, or otherwise seeks to recover sums it regards as the federal share of any 
Settlement, the amount recovered by CMS shall first be paid from the total amount of 
Opioid Funds available to the Parties under that Settlement and the distribution to the State 
and Participating Local Governments shall thereafter be made from the remaining funds. 

10. The Parties acknowledge and agree that any Settlement may require Participating Local 
Governments to release all their claims against the settling Pharmaceutical Supply Chain 
Participants to receive Opioid Funds. The Parties further acknowledge and agree based on 
the terms of any such national Settlement, a Participating Local Government will not 
receive funds through this Agreement until it has complied with all requirements set forth 



in that national Settlement to release its claims. This Agreement is not a promise by any 

Party that any Settlement (including any Settlement resolved through bankruptcy) will be 
finalized or executed. 

D. Participation of Cities and Towns 

1. By signing on to the Agreement and any Settlement, a Participating County will receive 

60% of its available LG Share for that Settlement when distribution under that Settlement 
occurs. Any such Participating County will receive up to an additional 40% of its available 

LG Share for that Settlement by securing the participation of its constituent cities and towns 
as signatories to this Agreement and that Settlement when distribution under that 

Settlement occurs. The sliding scale attached as Exhibit D will determine the share of funds 
available to the Participating County.’ 

If a Participating County does not achieve 100% participation of its cities and towns within 

the period of time required in a Settlement document for subdivision participation, the 
remaining portions of the LG Share that were otherwise available to the Participating 
County will be reallocated to (i) the State Share and (ii) the LG Share for the Participating 

Counties which have achieved 100% participation of their cities and towns in accordance 
with the percentages described in Sections B(2), C(1), and C(3), and set forth in Exhibits 

B and C. 

E. Payment of Counsel and Litigation Expenses 

I. The Parties anticipate that any Settlement will provide for the payment of all or a portion 
of the fees and litigation expenses of certain state and local governments. 

If the court in In Re: National Prescription Opiate Litigation, MDL No. 2804 (N.D. Ohio) 

or if a Settlement establishes a common benefit fund or similar device to compensate 

attorneys for services rendered and expenses incurred that have benefited plaintiffs 
generally in the litigation (the “Common Benefit Fund”), and requires certain 
governmental plaintiffs to pay a share of their recoveries from defendants into the Common 

Benefit Fund as a “tax,” then the Participating Local Governments shall first seek to have 

the settling defendants pay the “tax.” If the settling defendants do not agree to pay the 

“tax,” then the “tax” shall be paid from the LG Share prior to allocation and distribution of 

funds to the Participating Local Governments.* 

  

3 Population allocation of cities and towns within counties will be derived from the population 
data included in any national Settlement. If such data is not included in the respective national 

Settlement, then population allocation will be determined from those cities and towns listed in 
Exhibit C. The data in Exhibit C is derived from the U.S. Census Estimate (July 1, 2019). 

* This paragraph shall not apply to the Settlement with the Settling Distributors or the Settlement 

with J&J.

5 
 

in that national Settlement to release its claims. This Agreement is not a promise by any 
Party that any Settlement (including any Settlement resolved through bankruptcy) will be 
finalized or executed. 

D. Participation of Cities and Towns 

1. By signing on to the Agreement and any Settlement, a Participating County will receive 
60% of its available LG Share for that Settlement when distribution under that Settlement 
occurs. Any such Participating County will receive up to an additional 40% of its available 
LG Share for that Settlement by securing the participation of its constituent cities and towns 
as signatories to this Agreement and that Settlement when distribution under that 
Settlement occurs. The sliding scale attached as Exhibit D will determine the share of funds 
available to the Participating County.3 

2. If a Participating County does not achieve 100% participation of its cities and towns within 
the period of time required in a Settlement document for subdivision participation, the 
remaining portions of the LG Share that were otherwise available to the Participating 
County will be reallocated to (i) the State Share and (ii) the LG Share for the Participating 
Counties which have achieved 100% participation of their cities and towns in accordance 
with the percentages described in Sections B(2), C(1), and C(3), and set forth in Exhibits 
B and C. 

E. Payment of Counsel and Litigation Expenses 

1. The Parties anticipate that any Settlement will provide for the payment of all or a portion 
of the fees and litigation expenses of certain state and local governments.  

2. If the court in In Re: National Prescription Opiate Litigation, MDL No. 2804 (N.D. Ohio) 
or if a Settlement establishes a common benefit fund or similar device to compensate 
attorneys for services rendered and expenses incurred that have benefited plaintiffs 
generally in the litigation (the “Common Benefit Fund”), and requires certain 
governmental plaintiffs to pay a share of their recoveries from defendants into the Common 
Benefit Fund as a “tax,” then the Participating Local Governments shall first seek to have 
the settling defendants pay the “tax.” If the settling defendants do not agree to pay the 
“tax,” then the “tax” shall be paid from the LG Share prior to allocation and distribution of 
funds to the Participating Local Governments.4 

                                                      
3  Population allocation of cities and towns within counties will be derived from the population 
data included in any national Settlement. If such data is not included in the respective national 
Settlement, then population allocation will be determined from those cities and towns listed in 
Exhibit C. The data in Exhibit C is derived from the U.S. Census Estimate (July 1, 2019). 
 
4  This paragraph shall not apply to the Settlement with the Settling Distributors or the Settlement 
with J&J. 
 



3. Any governmental entity that seeks attorneys’ fees and expenses from the Litigation shall 

seek those fees and expenses first from the national Settlement.’ In addition, the Parties 
agree that the Participating Local Governments will create a supplemental attorney’s fees 

and costs fund (the “Backstop Fund”). 

4. In the event that any Settlement imposes additional limitations or obligations on the 

payment of counsel and litigation expenses, those limitations and obligations take 
precedence over this Agreement. 

5. The Backstop Fund is to be used to compensate counsel for Participating Local 
Governments that filed opioid lawsuits by September 1, 2020 (“Litigating Participating 

Local Governments”). Payments out of the Backstop Fund shall be determined by a 
committee consisting of one representative from each of the Litigating Participating Local 

Governments (the “Opioid Fee and Expense Committee”). 

6. The amount of the Backstop Fund shall be determined as follows: From any national 

Settlement, the funds in the Backstop Fund shall equal 14.25% of the LG Share for that 
Settlement. No portion of the State Share shall be used for the Backstop Fund or in any 

other way to fund any Participating Local Government’s attorney’s fees and costs. If 

required to do so by any Settlement, Participating Local Governments must report to the 

national Settlement Fund Administrator regarding contributions to, or payments from, the 
Backstop Fund. 

7. The maximum percentage of any contingency fee agreement permitted for compensation 

shall be 25% of the portion of the LG Share attributable to the Litigating Participating 

Local Government that is a party to the contingency fee agreement, plus expenses 

attributable to that Litigating Participating Local Government, unless a Settlement or other 

court order imposes a lower limitation on contingency fees. Under no circumstances may 

counsel collect more for its work on behalf of a Litigating Participating Local Government 
than it would under its contingency agreement with that Litigating Participating Local 

Government. 

8. Payments to counsel for Participating Local Governments shall be made from the Backstop 

Fund in the same percentages and over the same period of time as the national Contingency 

Fee Fund for each settlement. The Attorneys’ Fees and Costs schedule for the Settling 
Distributors is listed in Exhibit R §(II)(S)(1) of the Settlement with the Settling 

5 The State retained outside counsel in the Purdue litigation and if it is unable to secure payment 

of attorneys’ fees and expenses from the bankruptcy proceedings in an amount sufficient to 

compensate outside counsel consistent with the terms of the State’s contract with that outside 
counsel, any remaining attorneys’ fees and expenses related to the representation of the State will 

first be paid directly from the total amount of Opioid Funds available to the Parties under that 

Settlement, up to the agreed amount in the outside counsel contract, and the distribution to the 

State and Participating Local Governments shall thereafter be made from the remaining funds.

6 
 

3. Any governmental entity that seeks attorneys’ fees and expenses from the Litigation shall 
seek those fees and expenses first from the national Settlement.5 In addition, the Parties 
agree that the Participating Local Governments will create a supplemental attorney’s fees 
and costs fund (the “Backstop Fund”).  

4. In the event that any Settlement imposes additional limitations or obligations on the 
payment of counsel and litigation expenses, those limitations and obligations take 
precedence over this Agreement. 

5. The Backstop Fund is to be used to compensate counsel for Participating Local 
Governments that filed opioid lawsuits by September 1, 2020 (“Litigating Participating 
Local Governments”). Payments out of the Backstop Fund shall be determined by a 
committee consisting of one representative from each of the Litigating Participating Local 
Governments (the “Opioid Fee and Expense Committee”). 

6. The amount of the Backstop Fund shall be determined as follows: From any national 
Settlement, the funds in the Backstop Fund shall equal 14.25% of the LG Share for that 
Settlement. No portion of the State Share shall be used for the Backstop Fund or in any 
other way to fund any Participating Local Government’s attorney’s fees and costs. If 
required to do so by any Settlement, Participating Local Governments must report to the 
national Settlement Fund Administrator regarding contributions to, or payments from, the 
Backstop Fund. 

7. The maximum percentage of any contingency fee agreement permitted for compensation 
shall be 25% of the portion of the LG Share attributable to the Litigating Participating 
Local Government that is a party to the contingency fee agreement, plus expenses 
attributable to that Litigating Participating Local Government, unless a Settlement or other 
court order imposes a lower limitation on contingency fees. Under no circumstances may 
counsel collect more for its work on behalf of a Litigating Participating Local Government 
than it would under its contingency agreement with that Litigating Participating Local 
Government. 

8. Payments to counsel for Participating Local Governments shall be made from the Backstop 
Fund in the same percentages and over the same period of time as the national Contingency 
Fee Fund for each settlement. The Attorneys’ Fees and Costs schedule for the Settling 
Distributors is listed in Exhibit R §(II)(S)(1) of the Settlement with the Settling 

                                                      
5  The State retained outside counsel in the Purdue litigation and if it is unable to secure payment 
of attorneys’ fees and expenses from the bankruptcy proceedings in an amount sufficient to 
compensate outside counsel consistent with the terms of the State’s contract with that outside 
counsel, any remaining attorneys’ fees and expenses related to the representation of the State will 
first be paid directly from the total amount of Opioid Funds available to the Parties under that 
Settlement, up to the agreed amount in the outside counsel contract, and the distribution to the 
State and Participating Local Governments shall thereafter be made from the remaining funds.  
 
 



Distributors.® The Attorneys’ Fees and Costs schedule for J&J is listed in Exhibit R 

§(IN)(A)(1) of the Settlement with J&J.” For future Settlements with other defendants in the 
Pharmaceutical Supply Chain, any necessary payments to counsel for Participating Local 

Governments shall be made from the Backstop Fund in the same percentages and over the 
same periods of time as the fee funds for those Settlements, if applicable, subject to the 
limitations set forth in this Agreement set form in paragraph E(7) above. 

Any funds remaining in the Backstop Fund in excess of the amounts needed to cover 

private counsel’s representation agreements shall revert to the Participating Local 
Governments according to the percentages set forth in Exhibits B and C, to be used for 
Approved Purposes as set forth herein and in Exhibit A. 

F. Compliance Reporting and Accountability 

I. If the State and Participating Local Governments use a Trustee for purposes of distributing 
funds pursuant to any Settlement, the Trustee shall be requested to provide timely an up- 

to-date accounting of payments into or out of any trust established to hold such funds and/or 
its subaccounts upon written request of the State or a Participating Local Government. 

The State, Regions, and Participating Local Governments may object to an allocation or 
expenditure of Opioid Funds solely on the basis that the allocation or expenditure at issue 
(1) is inconsistent with provision C(1) hereof with respect to the amount of the State Share 

or LG Share; (2) is inconsistent with an agreed-upon allocation, or the default allocations 

in Exhibits B and C, as contemplated by Section C(3); or (3) violates the limitations set 
forth in F(3) with respect to compensation of the Trustee. The objector shall have the right 

to bring that objection within two years of the date of its discovery to a superior court in 
Maricopa County, Arizona. 

In the event that the State and Participating Local Governments use a Trustee, 
compensation for Trustee’s expenses of fund administration may be paid out of the Opioid 
Funds for reasonable expenses; provided that, reasonable expenses do not exceed the 
administrative expenses allowed under the terms of the relevant Settlement. 

The Parties shall maintain, for a period of at least five years, records of abatement 

expenditures and documents underlying those expenditures, so that it can be verified that 

funds are being or have been utilized in a manner consistent with the Approved Purposes 

definition. This requirement supersedes any shorter period of time specified in any 

applicable document retention or destruction policy. 

Atleast annually, by July 31 of each year, each Region or Multicounty Region shall provide 

to the State a report detailing for the preceding fiscal year (1) the amount of the LG Share 

received by each Participating Local Government within the Region or Multicounty 

Region, (2) the allocation of any awards approved (listing the recipient, the amount 

awarded, the program to be funded, and disbursement terms), and (3) the amounts 

  

¢ Text of settlement available at https://nationalopioidsettlement.com. 
  

7 Text of settlement available at https://nationalopioidsettlement.com. 
  

77 
 

Distributors.6  The Attorneys’ Fees and Costs schedule for J&J is listed in Exhibit R 
§(II)(A)(1) of the Settlement with J&J.7 For future Settlements with other defendants in the 
Pharmaceutical Supply Chain, any necessary payments to counsel for Participating Local 
Governments shall be made from the Backstop Fund in the same percentages and over the 
same periods of time as the fee funds for those Settlements, if applicable, subject to the 
limitations set forth in this Agreement set form in paragraph E(7) above.  

9. Any funds remaining in the Backstop Fund in excess of the amounts needed to cover 
private counsel’s representation agreements shall revert to the Participating Local 
Governments according to the percentages set forth in Exhibits B and C, to be used for 
Approved Purposes as set forth herein and in Exhibit A. 

F. Compliance Reporting and Accountability 

1. If the State and Participating Local Governments use a Trustee for purposes of distributing 
funds pursuant to any Settlement, the Trustee shall be requested to provide timely an up-
to-date accounting of payments into or out of any trust established to hold such funds and/or 
its subaccounts upon written request of the State or a Participating Local Government. 

2. The State, Regions, and Participating Local Governments may object to an allocation or 
expenditure of Opioid Funds solely on the basis that the allocation or expenditure at issue 
(1) is inconsistent with provision C(1) hereof with respect to the amount of the State Share 
or LG Share; (2) is inconsistent with an agreed-upon allocation, or the default allocations 
in Exhibits B and C, as contemplated by Section C(3); or (3) violates the limitations set 
forth in F(3) with respect to compensation of the Trustee. The objector shall have the right 
to bring that objection within two years of the date of its discovery to a superior court in 
Maricopa County, Arizona. 

3. In the event that the State and Participating Local Governments use a Trustee, 
compensation for Trustee’s expenses of fund administration may be paid out of the Opioid 
Funds for reasonable expenses; provided that, reasonable expenses do not exceed the 
administrative expenses allowed under the terms of the relevant Settlement. 

4. The Parties shall maintain, for a period of at least five years, records of abatement 
expenditures and documents underlying those expenditures, so that it can be verified that 
funds are being or have been utilized in a manner consistent with the Approved Purposes 
definition.  This requirement supersedes any shorter period of time specified in any 
applicable document retention or destruction policy. 

5. At least annually, by July 31 of each year, each Region or Multicounty Region shall provide 
to the State a report detailing for the preceding fiscal year (1) the amount of the LG Share 
received by each Participating Local Government within the Region or Multicounty 
Region, (2) the allocation of any awards approved (listing the recipient, the amount 
awarded, the program to be funded, and disbursement terms), and (3) the amounts 

                                                      
6  Text of settlement available at https://nationalopioidsettlement.com.  
 
7  Text of settlement available at https://nationalopioidsettlement.com. 



disbursed on approved allocations. In order to facilitate this reporting, each Participating 
Local Government within a Region or Multicounty Region shall provide information 
necessary to meet these reporting obligations to a delegate(s) selected by the Region or 

Multicounty Region to provide its annual report to the State. Any Participating Local 
Government shall also comply with any reporting requirements imposed by any 

Settlement. 

. No later than September 30 of each year, the State shall publish on its website a report 

detailing for the preceding fiscal year (1) the amount of the State Share received, (2) the 
allocation of any awards approved (listing the recipient, the amount awarded, the program 

to be funded, and disbursement terms), and (3) the amounts disbursed on approved 
allocations. In addition, the State shall publish on its website the reports described in F(5) 
above. The State shall also comply with any reporting requirements imposed by any 
Settlement. 

If it appears to the State, a Region, or a Multicounty Region that the State or another 
Region or Multicounty Region is using or has used Settlement funds for non-Approved 

Purposes, the State, Region, or Multicounty Region may on written request seek and 

obtain the documentation underlying the report(s) described in F(5) or F(6), as applicable, 

including documentation described in F(4). The State, Region, or Multicounty Region 
receiving such request shall have 14 days to provide the requested information. The 

requesting party and the State, Region, or Multicounty Region receiving such request 
may extend the time period for compliance with the request only upon mutual agreement. 

Following a request made pursuant to F(7) and when it appears that LG Share funds are 
being or have been spent on non-Approved Purposes, the State may seek and obtain in an 
action in a court of competent jurisdiction in Maricopa County, Arizona an injunction 
prohibiting the Region or Multicounty Region from spending LG Share funds on non- 
Approved Purposes and requiring the Region or Multicounty Region to return the monies 

that it spent on non-Approved Purposes after notice as is required by the rules of civil 

procedure. So long as the action is pending, distribution of LG Share funds to the Region 

or Multicounty Region temporarily will be suspended. Once the action is resolved, the 

suspended payments will resume, less any amounts that were ordered returned but have 
not been returned by the time the action is resolved. 

Following a request made pursuant to F(7) and when it appears to at least eight 

Participating Counties that have signed on to this Agreement and a subsequent Settlement 

that the State Share funds are being or have been spent on non-Approved Purposes, the 

Participating Counties may seek and obtain in an action in a superior court of Maricopa 

County, Arizona an injunction prohibiting the State from spending State Share funds on 

non-Approved Purposes and requiring the State to return the monies it spent on non- 

Approved Purposes after notice as is required by the rules of civil procedure. So long as 
the action is pending, distribution of State Share funds to the State temporarily will be 

suspended. Once the action is resolved, the suspended payments will resume, less any 
monies that were ordered returned but have not been returned by the time the action is 

resolved.

8 
 

disbursed on approved allocations. In order to facilitate this reporting, each Participating 
Local Government within a Region or Multicounty Region shall provide information 
necessary to meet these reporting obligations to a delegate(s) selected by the Region or 
Multicounty Region to provide its annual report to the State.  Any Participating Local 
Government shall also comply with any reporting requirements imposed by any 
Settlement.   

6. No later than September 30 of each year, the State shall publish on its website a report 
detailing for the preceding fiscal year (1) the amount of the State Share received, (2) the 
allocation of any awards approved (listing the recipient, the amount awarded, the program 
to be funded, and disbursement terms), and (3) the amounts disbursed on approved 
allocations. In addition, the State shall publish on its website the reports described in F(5) 
above.  The State shall also comply with any reporting requirements imposed by any 
Settlement. 

7. If it appears to the State, a Region, or a Multicounty Region that the State or another 
Region or Multicounty Region is using or has used Settlement funds for non-Approved 
Purposes, the State, Region, or Multicounty Region may on written request seek and 
obtain the documentation underlying the report(s) described in F(5) or F(6), as applicable, 
including documentation described in F(4). The State, Region, or Multicounty Region 
receiving such request shall have 14 days to provide the requested information. The 
requesting party and the State, Region, or Multicounty Region receiving such request 
may extend the time period for compliance with the request only upon mutual agreement. 

8. Following a request made pursuant to F(7) and when it appears that LG Share funds are 
being or have been spent on non-Approved Purposes, the State may seek and obtain in an 
action in a court of competent jurisdiction in Maricopa County, Arizona an injunction 
prohibiting the Region or Multicounty Region from spending LG Share funds on non-
Approved Purposes and requiring the Region or Multicounty Region to return the monies 
that it spent on non-Approved Purposes after notice as is required by the rules of civil 
procedure. So long as the action is pending, distribution of LG Share funds to the Region 
or Multicounty Region temporarily will be suspended. Once the action is resolved, the 
suspended payments will resume, less any amounts that were ordered returned but have 
not been returned by the time the action is resolved. 

9. Following a request made pursuant to F(7) and when it appears to at least eight 
Participating Counties that have signed on to this Agreement and a subsequent Settlement 
that the State Share funds are being or have been spent on non-Approved Purposes, the 
Participating Counties may seek and obtain in an action in a superior court of Maricopa 
County, Arizona an injunction prohibiting the State from spending State Share funds on 
non-Approved Purposes and requiring the State to return the monies it spent on non-
Approved Purposes after notice as is required by the rules of civil procedure. So long as 
the action is pending, distribution of State Share funds to the State temporarily will be 
suspended. Once the action is resolved, the suspended payments will resume, less any 
monies that were ordered returned but have not been returned by the time the action is 
resolved.  



10. In an action brought pursuant to F(8) or F(9), attorney’s fees and costs shall not be 

recoverable. 

G. Settlement Negotiations 

1. The State and the Participating Local Governments agree to inform each other in advance 

of any negotiations relating to an Arizona-only settlement with a Pharmaceutical Supply 

Chain Participant that includes both the State and the Participating Local Governments and 

shall provide each other the opportunity to participate in all such negotiations. 

2. The State and the Participating Local Governments further agree to keep each other 

reasonably informed of all other global settlement negotiations with Pharmaceutical 

Supply Chain Participants. Neither this provision, nor any other, shall be construed to state 

or imply that either the State or the Participating Local Governments (collectively, the 

“Arizona Parties”) are unauthorized to engage in settlement negotiations with 

Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participants without prior consent or contemporaneous 

participation of the other, or that either party is entitled to participate as an active or direct 

participant in settlement negotiations with the other. Rather, while the State’s and the 

Participating Local Government’s efforts to achieve worthwhile settlements are to be 

collaborative, incremental stages need not be so. 

3. The State or any Participating Local Government may withdraw from coordinated 

Settlement discussions detailed in this Section upon 10 business days’ written notice to the 

other Arizona Parties and counsel for any affected Pharmaceutical Supply Chain 

Participant. The withdrawal of any Arizona Party releases the remaining Arizona Parties 

from the restrictions and obligations in this Section. 

4. The obligations in this Section shall not affect any Party’s right to proceed with trial or, 

within 30 days of the date upon which a trial involving that Party’s claims against a specific 

Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participant is scheduled to begin, reach a case-specific 

resolution with that particular Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participant. 

H. Amendments 

1. The Parties agree to make such amendments as necessary to implement the intent of this 

Agreement. 

One Arizona Distribution Qf Opioid Settlement Funds Agreement ACCEPTED by the undersigned 

and executed this \ day of Ad Al ¢ 2022. 
  

  

     ARJZONA ATT 

  

\ 
  

Mark Brnovich

10. In an action brought pursuant to F(8) or F(9), attorney's fees and costs shall not be
recoverable.

G. Settlement Negotiations

1 . The State and the Participating Local Governments agree to inform each other in advance

of any negotiations relating to an Arizona-only settlement with a Pharmaceutical Supply

Chain Participant that includes both the State and the Participating Local Governments and

shall provide each other the opportunity to participate in all such negotiations.

2. The State and the Participating Local Governments further agree to keep each other

reasonably informed of all other global settlement negotiations with Pharmaceutical

Supply Chain Participants. Neither this provision, nor any other, shall be construed to state

or imply that either the State or the Participating Local Governments (collectively, the
"Arizona Parties") are unauthorized to engage in settlement negotiations with

Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participants without prior consent or contemporaneous

participation of the other, or that either party is entitled to participate as an active or direct

participant in settlement negotiations with the other. Rather, while the State's and the

Participating Local Government's efforts to achieve worthwhile settlements are to be

collaborative, incremental stages need not be so.

3. The State or any Participating Local Government may withdraw from coordinated

Settlement discussions detailed in this Section upon 10 business days' written notice to the

other Arizona Parties and counsel for any affected Pharmaceutical Supply Chain

Participant. The withdrawal of any Arizona Party releases the remaining Arizona Parties

from the restrictions and obligations in this Section.

4. The obligations in this Section shall not affect any Party's right to proceed with trial or,

within 30 days of the date upon which a trial involving that Party's claims against a specific

Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participant is scheduled to begin, reach a case-specific

resolution with that particular Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Participant.

H. Amendments

1 . The Parties agree to make such amendments as necessary to implement the intent of this

Agreement.

One Arizona Distribution of Opioid Settlement Funds Agreement ACCEPTED by the undersigned

and executed this \	day of C/v\ , 2022.

ARJZONA ATT GENERAL

Mark Brnovich

9



APACHE COUNTY 

APACHE COUNTY 

  

SPRINGERVILLE TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

10 

EAGER TOWN 

ST JOHNS CITY 

By: 

Its: 

 

APACHE COUNTY

APACHE COUNTY EAGER TOWN

gy^ ft? cA oxi g> . Cj |4i /ttj By:

Its: Its:

SPRINGERVILLE TOWN ST JOHNS CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

10



APACHE COUNTY 

  

  

APACHE COUNTY EAGER TOWN 

By: By 7 
_ 

Its: Its dP 

SPRINGERVILLE TOWN ST JOHNS CITY 

By: By: 

Its: 

10 

Its: 

  

 

APACHE COUNTY

APACHE COUNTY EAGER TOWN

By: /ylpjar<?

A /ylvx <XQ^ I

By:

Its: Its:

SPRINGERVILLE TOWN ST JOHNS CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

10



APACHE COUNTY 

By: 
  

Its: 
  

SPRINGERVILLE TOWN 

  

APACHE COUNTY 

  10 

EAGER TOWN 

  

By: 
  

Its: 
  

ST JOHNS CITY 

  

By: 
  

Its: 
 

APACHE COUNTY

APACHE COUNTY EAGER TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

SPRINGERVILLE TOWN ST JOHNS CITY

1
£

By: By:

Its: i ouv\_ c Its:

10



APACHE COUNTY 

By: 

Its: 

SPRINGERVILLE TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

APACHE C 

  
10 

OUNTY 

EAGER TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

ST JOHNS CITY 

i. 

 

APACHE COUNTY

APACHE COUNTY EAGER TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

SPRINGERVILLE TOWN ST JOHNS CITY

By:By:
/•

Its: Its:

10



APACHE COUNTY 

By: 

Its: 

SPRINGERVILLE TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

APACHE COUNTY 

10 

EAGER TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

ST JOHNS CITY 

By: Ss Spence UL 

Mu NN Its: 

 

APACHE COUNTY

APACHE COUNTY EAGER TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

SPRINGERVILLE TOWN ST JOHNS CITY

U

V

By: 6' Spcsl [{(!<* K
Its: 	

By:

Its:

10



COCHISE COUNTY 

    

  

    

  

  

  

    

  

COCHISE COUNTY BENSON CITY 

By: 

Its: 

BISBEE CITY DOUGLAS CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN SIERRA VISTA CITY 

  

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

TOMBSTONE CITY WILLCOX CITY 

  

By: By: 
  

  

Its: Its: 

11

COCHISE COUNTY

COCHISE COUNTY BENSON CITY

& c By:By:

coIts: Its:

BISBEE CITY DOUGLAS CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN SIERRA VISTA CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

TOMBSTONE CITY WILLCOX CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

11



COCHISE COUNTY CITIES & TOWNS 

BENSON CITY 

Q 
~rad 
Its: Mayor 

BISBEE CITY 

By: __________ ~ 
Its: _ _________ _ 

DOUGLAS CITY 

By: _______ _ _ _ 
Its: __________ _ 

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN 

SIERRA VISTA CITY 

TOMBSTONE CITY 

WILLCOX CITY 

12 
• 



COCHISE COUNTY 

  
  

  
  

  

COCHISE COUNTY BENSON CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

BISBEE CITY DOUGLAS CITY 

Its: May 

  

By: 
  

Its: 
  

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN 

  

Its: 

TOMBSTONE CITY 

SIERRA VISTA CITY 

  

  

By: 

Its: 
  

  

By: 
  

Its: 

  

WILLCOX CITY 

  

  

Its: 
  

 

COCHISE COUNTY 

COCHISE COUNTY BENSON C ITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

BISBEE CITY DOUGLAS CITY 

fl;~ 
By: Keo Budge. By: 

Its: f'icup< Its: 

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN SIERRA VISTA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: lts: 

TOMBSTONE CITY WILLCOX CITY 

By: By: 

lts: Its: 

11 



COCHISE COUNTY 

  
  

COCHISE COUNTY BENSON CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

BISBEE CITY DOUGLAS CITY 

By: By: Lois Pedroz 

Its: Its: Tufenm City Mana 9cr 

  

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN SIERRA VISTA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its 

TOMBSTONE CITY WILLCOX CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

11

COCHISE COUNTY

COCHISE COUNTY BENSON CITY

By: By:

Its:Its:

BISBEE CITY DOUGLAS CITY

As
By: LvlS PeJlfO^Cj	

JtfteriM Ctiyf Manager
By:

Its:Its:

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN SIERRA VISTA CITY

By:By:

Its: Its:

TOMBSTONE CITY WILLCOX CITY

By: By:

Its:Its:

11



COCHISE COUNTY 

By: 

BISBEE CITY 

By: 

Its: 

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN 

NAR, 
By: Soh anes va Wallace 

Its: WAY of 

TOMBSTONE CITY 

By: 

Its: 

  

    

COCHISE COUNTY 

BENSON CITY 

By: 

Its: 
  

DOUGLAS CITY 

By: 

Its: 

SIERRA VISTA CITY 

WILLCOX CITY 

  

By: 

Its:

COCHISE COUNTY

COCHISE COUNTY BENSON CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

BISBEE CITY DOUGLAS CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN SIERRA VISTA CITY

By-' ~SoV\«v^ LXUdrl

\/A or	

TOMBSTONE CITY

By:&

Its: Its:

WILLCOX CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

II



COCHISE COUNTY 

  

  

  

    

    

  

COCHISE COUNTY BENSON CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

BISBEE CITY DOUGLAS CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN SIERRA VISTA CITY 

  

By: 
  

Its: 
  

  

TOMBSTONE CITY WILLCOX CITY 

  

By: By: 
    

Its: Its:

COCHISE COUNTY

COCHISE COUNTY BENSON CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

BISBEE CITY DOUGLAS CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

SIERRA VISTA CITYHUACHUCA CITY TOWN

'
'

By:By:

£Its:Its:

WILLCOX CITYTOMBSTONE CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

1 I



COCHISE COUNTY 

  

COCHISE COUNTY BENSON CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

BISBEE CITY DOUGLAS CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN SIERRA VISTA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

TOMBSTONE CITY WILLCOX CITY 

By: DUSTIN ESCAPULE By: 

Its: MAYOR Its: 

11 

 

COCHISE COUNTY

BENSON CITYCOCHISE COUNTY

By:By:

Its:Its:

DOUGLAS CITYBISBEE CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN SIERRA VISTA CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

TOMBSTONE CITY WILLCOX CITY

By: DUSTIN ESCAPULE By:

Its: ^OR Its:

11



COCHISE COUNTY 

  

  

  

  

COCHISE COUNTY BENSON CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

BISBEE CITY DOUGLAS CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN SIERRA VISTA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: [ts: 

TOMBSTONE CITY WILLCOX CITY 

By: By: (a le b Blaschke 

Its: Its: L thy M r 
  

11

COCHISE COUNTY

BENSON CITYCOCHISE COUNTY

By: By:

Its:Its:

DOUGLAS CITYBISBEE CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN SIERRA VISTA CITY

By: By:

Its:Its:

TOMBSTONE CITY WILLCOX CITY

By; CA

C 	M*; a 4,^

By:

Its:Its:

11



COCONINO COUNTY 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

COCONINO COU FLAGSTAFF CITY 

Lotham © Tw NE By: 

Its: Cov 4) Its: 

FREDONIA TOWN PAGE CITY 

By: i By: 

Its: Its: 

SEDONA CITY TUSAYAN TOWN 

-— 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

WILLIAMS CITY 

By: 

Its: 

12 

  

  

 

COCONINO COUNTY

FLAGSTAFF CITYCOCONINO COU

Qx)rvV

\Aj By:By:

Its:Its:

PAGE CITYFREDONIA TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

TUSAYAN TOWNSEDONA CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

WILLIAMS CITY

By:

Its:

12



COCONINO COUNTY 

COCONINO COUNTY FLAGSTAFF CITY 

  

  

    

By: By: Greg” C £Lton 

Its: Its: City . Ha Hagel” 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

FREDONIA TOWN PAGE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SEDONA CITY TUSAYAN TOWN 

By: By: 
  

  

Its: Its: 
  

WILLIAMS CITY 

By: 
  

Its: 

12

COCONINO COUNTY

COCONINO COUNTY FLAGSTAFF CITY

dfrty ^ Cfj -/Vs>By: By: JA

Its: Its:

FREDONIA TOWN PAGE CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

SEDONA CITY TUSAYAN TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

WILLIAMS CITY

By:

Its:

12



COCONINO COUNTY 

COCONINO COUNTY FLAGSTAFF CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

FREDONIA TOWN PAGE CITY 

  

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SEDONA CITY TUSAYAN TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

WILLIAMS CITY 

By: 

Its:

COCONINO COUNTY

COCONINO COUNTY FLAGSTAFF CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

FREDONIA TOWN PAGE CITY

LABy: By:

CtatrVL.Its: Its:

SEDONA CITY TUSAYAN TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

WILLIAMS CITY

By:

Its:

12



COCONINO COUNTY 

COCONINO COUNTY FLAGSTAFF CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

FREDONIA TOWN PAGE CITY 

  

By: 

Its: 

SEDONA CITY TUSAYAN TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

WILLIAMS CITY 

By: 

Its:

COCONINO COUNTY

FLAGSTAFF CITYCOCONINO COUNTY

By:By:

Its:Its:

PAGE CITYFREDONIA TOWN

By:By:

Its: V 1Its:

SEDONA CITY TUSAYAN TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

WILLIAMS CITY

By:

Its:

12



COCONINO COUNTY 

COCONINO COUNTY FLAGSTAFF CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

FREDONIA TOWN PAGE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SEDONA CITY TUSAYAN TOWN 

By: Kuck W. Chrshanson By: 

Its: _ City Al forney Its: 

WILLIAMS CITY 

By: 

Its: 

12

COCONINO COUNTY

COCONINO COUNTY FLAGSTAFF CITY

By: By:

Its:Its:

PAGE CITYFREDONIA TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

SEDONA CITY TUSAYAN TOWN

By: Kufl W. CUrfehcoifc By:on

AHdmlvIts: Its:

WILLIAMS CITY

By:

Its:

12



COCONINO COUNTY 
! 
| 

COCONINO COUNTY 

  

By: 

  

Its: FE 

FREDONIA TOWN 

[FRNS—————————————————————— AE 

By: 

  

Its: 

  

SEDONA CITY 

————————— OE AA SS 

By: 

  

Its: 

  

WILLIAMS CITY 

By: 

Its: 

FLAGSTAFF CITY 

  

By: 

  

Its: 

  

PAGE CITY 

  

By: 

  

Its: 

  

TUSAYAN TOWN 

  
12 

By: 

  

Clarindo. Vail 

Its: Mayor 

 

COCONINO COUNTY

FLAGSTAFF CITYCOCONINO COUNTY

By:By:

Its:Its:

PAGE CITYFREDONIA TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

TUSAYAN TOWNSEDONA CITY

£

By: CBy:

M fl- yo rIts:Its:

WILLIAMS CITY

By:

Its:

12



  

COCONINO COUNTY 

COCONINO COUNTY FLAGSTAFF CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

FREDONIA TOWN PAGE CITY 

By: ~~ By: 

Its: Its: 

SEDONA CITY TUSAYAN TOWN 

By: BN By: } Co 

Its: Its: 

WILLIAMS CITY

COCONINO COUNTY

COCONINO COUNTY FLAGSTAFF CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

FREDONIA TOWN PAGE CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

SEDONA CITY TUSAYAN TOWN

By: By:

Its; Its:

WILLIAMS CITY

£L7TJ/ ah 10 tLL t rtmS
By:

C-fTy	/y)AO*^e£Its:

I a



GILA COUNTY 

GILA COUNTY GLOBE CITY 

  

By: “Tie ¥ Humphno By. _. 

its: Chaivman of the Beard Its: 

HAYDEN CITY MIAMI TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PAYSON TOWN STAR VALLEY TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

WINKELMAN TOWN 

By: 

Its:

GILA COUNTY

GILA COUNTY GLOBE CITY

02-
7

S VWnphAi^By: By.

C^awman of 4V& "fecor-AIts: Its:

HAYDEN CITY MIAMI TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

PAYSON TOWN STAR VALLEY TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

WINKELMAN TOWN

By:

Its:

13



GILA COUNTY 

By: 

Its: 

HAYDEN CITY 

By: 

Its: 

PAYSON TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

WINKELMAN TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

GILA COUNTY 

13 

GLOBE CITY 

MIAMI TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

STAR VALLEY TOWN 

By: 

Its:

GILA COUNTY

GILA COUNTY GLOBE CITY

^3
^tilBy: By-

Its: Its:

HAYDEN CITY MIAMI TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

PAYSON TOWN STAR VALLEY TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

WINKELMAN TOWN

By:

Its:

13

i



GILA COUNTY 

GILA COUNTY 

By: 

Its: 

HAYDEN CITY 

By A J 
Its: AAAYOL_ 

PAYSON TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

WINKELMAN TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

13 

GLOBE CITY 

By: 

Its: 

MIAMI TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

STAR VALLEY TOWN 

By: 

Its:

GILA COUNTY

GILA COUNTY GLOBE CITY

By: By:

Its:Its:

MIAMI TOWNHAYDEN CITY

/
(

By: By:
JL

Its:Its:

STAR VALLEY TOWNPAYSON TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

WINKELMAN TOWN

By:

Its:

13



GILA COUNTY 

    

    

GILA COUNTY GLOBE CITY 

By: By: oo 

Its: Its: 

HAYDEN CITY MIAMI TOWN 

SS @ - 
By: DD [anZalea 
  

  

  
  

    

    

  
    

By: 

hy 
Its: Its: Ma lov 

PAYSON TOWN STAR VALLEY TOWN 

By: BN By: 

Its: Its: 

WINKELMAN TOWN 

By: 
  

Its: 
  

13

GILA COUNTY

GILA COUNTY GLOBE CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

HAYDEN CITY MIAMI TOWN

S G ^ "r-Gj*
By: By:

Its: Its:

PAYSON TOWN STAR VALLEY TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

WINKELMAN TOWN

By:

Its:

13



  

GILA COUNTY 

GILA COUNTY GLOBE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

HAYDEN CITY MIAMI TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PAYSON TOWN STAR VALLEY TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

  

WINKELMAN TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

13 

 

GILA COUNTY

GILA COUNTY GLOBE CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

HAYDEN CITY MIAMI TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

PAYSON TOWN STAR VALLEY TOWN

->

By: By:4

Its: Its:

WINKELMAN TOWN

By:

Its:

13



GILA COUNTY 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
  

  

  

  

  

  

GILA COUNTY GLOBE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

HAYDEN CITY MIAMI TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PAYSON TOWN STAR VALLEY Lili 

    

  

  
  

By: 
  
  

Its: 
  

  

WINKELMAN TOWN 

  

By: 

Its: 

13

GILA COUNTY

GLOBE CITYGILA COUNTY

By:By:

Its:Its:

MIAMI TOWNHAYDEN CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

STAR VALLEYPAYSON TOWN

By:By:

Its:

WINKELMAN TOWN

By:

Its:

13



IMPLEMENTATION UNDERSTANDING CONCERNING THE 
ONE ARIZONA DISTRIBUTION OF OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUNDS AGREEMENT 

PARTIES: This Implementation Understanding Concerning the of One Arizona Distribution of Opioid Settlement 
Funds Agreement (the “Understanding”) is between Gila County (the “County”) and the City/Town of Winkelman 
(the “City/Town”) (collectively, the “Parties). 

RECITALS: The Attorney General of Arizona and the fifteen Arizona County Attorneys have executed the One 
Arizona Distribution of Opioid Settlement Funds Agreement (the “Distribution Agreement’), which is a mechanism 
for allocating funds received from any Settlement' among the State and the Participating Local Governments; and 

The Distribution Agreement (at 9 C.3) provides that Participating Counties and their constituent Participating Cities 
and Towns may distribute the funds allocated to the County amongst themselves in any manner they choose, and that 
if the Participating Counties and their constituent Participating Cities and Towns cannot reach such an agreement, 
Ex. C to the Distribution Agreement sets out a default allocation that will apply; and 

The Distribution Agreement also provides that any Participating Local Government which does receive Settlement 
funds must use those funds only for certain Approved Purposes and maintain certain records concerning the 
expenditure of the funds; and 

The County accepts these requirements of the Distribution Agreement concerning its use of Settlement funds and the 
keeping of records, but the City/Town does not wish to be burdened by these requirements; however 

The City/Town nevertheless wishes to execute the Distribution Agreement and be a Participating Local Government 
under the Distribution Agreement to maximize the recovery of Settlement funds to the County and Arizona; 

NOW THEREFORE: The County and the City/Town agree, as Participating Local Governments, to this 
Understanding to implement the Distribution Agreement pursuant to its provisions as follows: 

1. City/Town Assignment of Funds: All funds that otherwise would have been received by the City/Town under 
the default allocation set out in Ex. C to the Distribution Agreement are hereby assigned to the County. 

2. City/Town Assignment of Related Powers: The City/Town also assigns to the County the authority to take all 
necessary acts and execute all necessary documents to effectuate the goals of this Understanding, including 
appropriate action with respect to registration with NationalOpioidSettlement.com and the execution of 
participation agreements, bankruptcy proofs of claim, or similar documents. 

3. County Responsibility: The County will be responsible for using Settlement funds received pursuant to § 1 only 
for Approved Purposes and for maintaining the appropriate records as required by the Distribution Agreement. 

ACCEPTED by the undersigned and executed this i day of Novembef{] December) 202 1. 

COUNTY CITY/TOWN 

   
           i 

ed Official 
— 

Inbdes 7 

Authoriz 
Vala BIH IL 

[2yor or Other 
  

  

pr 
County Attorney 

  

' Non-italicized capitalized terms used in this Understanding have the meanings ascribed to them in the Distribution Agreement.

IMPLEMENTATION UNDERSTANDING CONCERNING THE

ONE ARIZONA DISTRIBUTION OF OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUNDS AGREEMENT

PARTIES: This Implementation Understanding Concerning the of One Arizona Distribution of Opioid Settlement

Funds Agreement (the "Understanding") is between Gila County (the "County") and the City/Town of Winkelman
(the "City/Town") (collectively, the "Parties).

RECITALS: The Attorney General of Arizona and the fifteen Arizona County Attorneys have executed the One

Arizona Distribution of Opioid Settlement Funds Agreement (the "Distribution Agreement"), which is a mechanism

for allocating funds received from any Settlement1 among the State and the Participating Local Governments; and

The Distribution Agreement (at ^ C.3) provides that Participating Counties and their constituent Participating Cities

and Towns may distribute the funds allocated to the County amongst themselves in any manner they choose, and that

if the Participating Counties and their constituent Participating Cities and Towns cannot reach such an agreement,

Ex. C to the Distribution Agreement sets out a default allocation that will apply; and

The Distribution Agreement also provides that any Participating Local Government which does receive Settlement

funds must use those funds only for certain Approved Purposes and maintain certain records concerning the

expenditure of the funds; and

The County accepts these requirements of the Distribution Agreement concerning its use of Settlement funds and the

keeping of records, but the City/Town does not wish to be burdened by these requirements; however

The City/Town nevertheless wishes to execute the Distribution Agreement and be a Participating Local Government

under the Distribution Agreement to maximize the recovery of Settlement funds to the County and Arizona;

NOW THEREFORE: The County and the City/Town agree, as Participating Local Governments, to this

Understanding to implement the Distribution Agreement pursuant to its provisions as follows:

1 . City/Town Assignment of Funds: All funds that otherwise would have been received by the City/Town under

the default allocation set out in Ex. C to the Distribution Agreement are hereby assigned to the County.

2. City/Town Assignment of Related Powers: The City/Town also assigns to the County the authority to take all

necessary acts and execute all necessary documents to effectuate the goals of this Understanding, including

appropriate action with respect to registration with NationalOpioidSettlement.com and the execution of

participation agreements, bankruptcy proofs of claim, or similar documents.

3. County Responsibility: The County will be responsible for using Settlement funds received pursuant to 1 1 only

for Approved Purposes and for maintaining the appropriate records as required by the Distribution Agreement.

rd
ACCEPTED by the undersigned and executed this N day of November^ecember)202 1 .

COUNTY CITY/TOWN

Aday^I. or Other Authorized Official

V"

County Attorney

Non-italicized capitalized terms used in this Understanding have the meanings ascribed to them in the Distribution Agreement.



GRAHAM COUNTY 

GRAHAM COUNTY PIMA TOWN 

  

By: 

Its: 

SAFFORD CITY THATCHER TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

14

GRAHAM COUNTY

GRAHAM COUNTY PIMA TOWN

\jj.	&OQ&JABy: _TD By:

Its: Its:

SAFFORD CITY THATCHER TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

14



GRAHAM COUNTY 

  

  

  

  

  

  

GRAHAM COUNTY PIMA TOWN 

Via 
By: By: VERMon faq] y 
Its: Its: TObMU MANA fe 

SAFFORD CITY THATCHER TOWN 

By: By: 
  

Its: 

  

Its: 
  

  

14

GRAHAM COUNTY 

GRAHAM COUNTY 

  

By: 

Its: 

    

SAFFORD CITY 

  

14 

PIMA TOWN 

WY 
By: /1 AM 11 

Its: TOK, 

    

THATCHER TOWN

GRAHAM COUNTY

GRAHAM COUNTY PIMA TOWN

By: W^/SoaI
Its: "TOM/U Wb/JAKff

By:

Its:

SAFFORD CITY THATCHER TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

14



GRAHAM COUNTY 

GRAHAM COUNTY PIMA TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SAFFORD C ) THATCHER TOWN 

By: VONAL \ O\eas By: 
\ 

its: Vv \ Lee Mowe Its:

GRAHAM COUNTY

PIMA TOWNGRAHAM COUNTY

By: By:

Its: Its:

THATCHER TOWNSAFFORD C

;Z -1

By: ' \i\CM QrW 6. By:

\l\Cjt- r Its:Its:

14



  
GRAHAM COUNTY 

  

  
  

  
  

GRAHAM COUNTY PIMA TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SAFFORD CITY THATCHER TOWN 

Ao — 
  

By: 
  

By: Neath N= Browwa   

Its: 
  

  
Its: “Towa Man AAR 

14  

GRAHAM COUNTY 

GRAHAM COUNTY 

PIMA TOWN 

  

By: 
  

Its: 
  

SAFFORD CITY 

      

By: 
  

Its: 
  

14 

By: 
  

Its: 

THATCHER TOWN 

  

  

  

  

 

GRAHAM COUNTY

. GRAHAM COUNTY PIMA TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

SAFFORD CITY THATCHER TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

14



GREENLEE COUNTY 

GREENLEE COUNTY CLIFTON TOWN 

  

DUNCAN TOWN 

- By: 

Its: 

  
15

GREENLEE COUNTY

GREENLEE COUNTY CLIFTON TOWN

By: By:

Its: f k a. oa.'t'A' Its:c5

DUNCAN TOWN

By:

Its:

15



- GREENLEE COUNTY 

GREENLEE COUNTY CLIFTON TOWN 

       

  

‘By: 3 py: Lats M, Montoya 

Its: Its: Mayor 

DUNCAN TOWN 

By: 
  

Its: 

15 

  

 

GREENLEE COUNTY

GREENLEE COUNTY CLIFTON TOWN

/

By: /hf/rtotf

	

By:

Its: Its:

DUNCAN TOWN

By:

Its:

15



GREENLEE COUNTY 

GREENLEE COUNTY CLIFTON TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: } Its: 

DUNCAN TOWN 

15

GREENLEE COUNTY

GREENLEE COUNTY CLIFTON TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

DUNCAN TOWN

U
By: u\

Its:

15



LA PAZ COUNTY 

  

LA PAZ COUNTY PARKER TOWN 

-_.an, 

By: _DUCE MINOR By: 
  

Its; CHAIRMAN 
  

QUARTZITE TOWN 

  

By: 
  

Its: 
  

16 

  

Its: 
 

LA PAZ COUNTY 

4 

By: _DUCE MINOR 

Its: CHAIRMAN 

QUARTZITE TOWN 

LA PAZ COUNTY 

  

PARKER TOWN 

 

LA PAZ COUNTY

LA PAZ COUNTY PARKER TOWN

By: DCJCE MINOR By:

Its: CHAIRMAN Its:

QUARTZITE TOWN

By:

Its:

16



LA PAZ COUNTY 

By: 

Its: 

QUARTZITE TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

LA PAZ COUNTY 

  16 

PARKER TOWNLA PAZ COUNTY 

LA PAZ COUNTY 

PARKER TOWN 

a 

By:   By: 

Its: Its: ibwvt  MM t Ct Or 
t 

QUARTZITE TOWN 

By:  

Its: 

16 



  

LA PAZ COUNTY 

LA PAZ COUNTY PARKER TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

QUARTZITE TOWN 

By: ’ [e 5 or— 

16

LA PAZ COUNTY

PARKER TOWNLA PAZ COUNTY

By:By:

Its:Its:

QUARTZITE TOWN

By: ^5^

zIts:

16



MARICOPA COUNTY 

MARICOPA COUNTY APACHE JUNCTION CITY 

  

    

By: THemss PF. Liev By: 

Its: Chief, Civil Sere Py, Mcp Its: 

  

  

AVONDALE CITY BUCKEYE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

CAREFREE TOWN CAVE CREEK TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

CHANDLER CITY EL MIRAGE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN GILA BEND TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

17 

  
 

MARICOPA COUNTY

MARICOPA COUNTY APACHE JUNCTION CITY

By: F. l-t &t>\ By:

Its: Oth Citfil Pj\ Its:
-t-

AVONDALE CITY BUCKEYE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

CAREFREE TOWN CAVE CREEK TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

CHANDLER CITY EL MIRAGE CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN GILA BEND TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

17



MARICOPA COUNTY 

By: 

Its: 

AVONDALE CITY 

By: 

Its: 

CAREFREE TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

CHANDLER CITY 

By: 

Its: 

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

MARICOPA COUNTY 

APACHE JUNCTION CITY 

  

BUCKEYE TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

CAVE CREEK TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

EL MIRAGE CITY 

By: 

Its: 

GILA BEND TOWN 

By: 

Its:

MARICOPA COUNTY

MARICOPA COUNTY APACHE JUNCTION CITY

P^s\n*\ £,h M>
^l&Izo2\

By:By:

ecto%Its: Its:

AVONDALE CITY BUCKEYE TOWN

By:By:

Its: Its:

CAVE CREEK TOWNCAREFREE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

EL MIRAGE CITYCHANDLER CITY

By:By:

Its: Its:

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN GILA BEND TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

17



  

MARICOPA COUNTY 

  

    

  

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

MARICOPA COUNTY APACHE JUNCTION CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

AVONDALE CITY BUCKEYE TOWN 

Nicholle Harris 
Nicholle Harris (Nov 3, 2021 08:26 PDT) 

. Nicholle Harris 
By: By: 

1. City Attorney ts: 

CAREFREE TOWN CAVE CREEK TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

CHANDLER CITY EL MIRAGE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN GILA BEND TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its:

By:    By:      

Its:    Its:      

17 

 

MARICOPA COUNTY 

 
MARICOPA COUNTY APACHE JUNCTION CITY 

 
 
 
 
 

By:    By:      
 

Its:    Its:      
 
 

AVONDALE CITY BUCKEYE TOWN 
 

Nicholle Harris  
Nicholle Harris (Nov 3, 2021 08:26 PDT) 

 
By: 

Its: 

Nicholle Harris 

City Attorney 

 
 

 

By: 

Its: 

 

CAREFREE TOWN CAVE CREEK TOWN 
 
 
 
 
 

By:    By:      
 

Its:    Its:      
 
 

CHANDLER CITY EL MIRAGE CITY 
 
 
 
 
 

By:    By:      
 

Its:    Its:      
 
 

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN GILA BEND TOWN 



MARICOPA COUNTY 

By: 
  

Its: 

AVONDALE CITY 

By: 

Its: 

CAREFREE TOWN 

By: 

Its: 
  

CITY 

By: 
  

Its: 

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN 

  

By: 

Its: 
  

MARICOPA COUNTY 

APACHE JUNCTION CITY 

By: 
  

Its: 

BUCKEYE CITY 

pa 

By: Eric W. Orsborn 

Its: Mayor 
  

CAVE CREEK TOWN 

By: 

Its: CHANDLER 
  

EL MIRAGE CITY 

By: 

Its: 

GILA BEND TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

Ad*b S$") T-a).ac/$*) NO(b -V CBJCHBCAABAAG#cUOQ#H" N#EQUD#R1K" UpE3$425d%+0d 

 

MARICOPA COUNTY 
 

MARICOPA COUNTY APACHE JUNCTION CITY 

 
 
 

By:    By: 

Its:      Its:       

 
AVONDALE CITY BUCKEYE CITY 

 
 
 
 
 

By: 

Its: Its: 

 
Eric W. Orsborn 

Mayor  

 

CAREFREE TOWN CAVE CREEK TOWN 

 
 
 

By: By:      

Its:      Its:     CHANDLER 

CITY  EL MIRAGE CITY 

 
 
 
 

   By: 

Its:     Its: 

 
FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN GILA BEND TOWN 

 
 
 

By:    

Its:    Its: 

17 
 
 

Ad*b  S$") T‐a).ac/$*) N0(b ‐ѷ CBJCHBCAABAAф#cц0Q#"N#EQцD#Ҕ1K"UрE3$4ZSd%+0d 



MARICOPA COUNTY 

By: 

Its: 

AVONDALE CITY 

  

CHANDLER CITY 

By: 

Its: 

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

MARICOPA COUNTY 

APACHE JUNCTION CITY 

By: 

Its: 

BUCKEYE TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

CAVE CREEK TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

EL MIRAGE CITY 

By: 

Its: 

GILA BEND TOWN 

By: 

Its:  

MARICOPA COUNTY

MARICOPA COUNTY APACHE JUNCTION CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

AVONDALE CITY BUCKEYE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

CAREFREE TOWN CAVE CREEK TOWN

h

/
I

5By: By:

Its: Its:

CHANDLER CITY EL MIRAGE CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN GILA BEND TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

17



MARICOPA COUNTY 

    

  

  

  

    

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

MARICOPA COUNTY APACHE JUNCTION CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

AVONDALE CITY BUCKEYE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

CAREFREE TOWN CAVE CREEK TOWN 

By: By: Fes fA 

Its: Its: VU a oS 77 

CHANDLER CITY EL MIRAGE CITY 

By: By: 
  

Its: 
  

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN 

  

Its: 
  

GILA BEND TOWN 

  

By: 
  

Its: 
  

By: 
  

 

MARICOPA COUNTY

MARICOPA COUNTY APACHE JUNCTION CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

AVONDALE CITY BUCKEYE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

CAREFREE TOWN CAVE CREEK TOWN

By:

l/VI <? ^

By:

Its: Its:

CHANDLER CITY EL MIRAGE CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN GILA BEND TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

17



  

MARICOPA COUNTY 

  

  
  

    

  
  

  

  

  

  

  
  

  

  

  

  

  
  

MARICOPA COUNTY APACHE JUNCTION CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

AVONDALE CITY BUCKEYE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

CAREFREE TOWN CAVE CREEK TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

CHANDLER CITY EL MIRAGE CITY 

By: Kelly Y. Schwab By: 

Its: City Attorney Its: 

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN GILA BEND TOWN 

By: By: 
  

Its: 
  

  

Its: 
 

MARICOPA COUNTY 

17 

MARICOPA COUNTY APACHE JUNCTION CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

AVONDALE CITY BUCKEYE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

CAREFREE TOWN CAVE CREEK TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

CHANDLER CITY EL MIRAGE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN GILA BEND TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

Kelly Y. Schwab

City Attorney



MARICOPA COUNTY 

    

  
  

  
  

      

  
  

  
  

      

  
    

    

MARICOPA COUNTY APACHE JUNCTION CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

AVONDALE CITY BUCKEYE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

CAREFREE TOWN CAVE CREEK TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

CHANDLER CITY EL MIRAGE C 

  
  

    

      

  

    

By: 

Its: 

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN GILA BEND TOWN 

By: By: 
    

Its: [ts: 
   

MARICOPA COUNTY

MARICOPA COUNTY APACHE JUNCTION CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

AVONDALE CITY BUCKEYE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

CAREFREE TOWN CAVE CREEK TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

CHANDLER CITY EL MIRAGE

f

Clus-fio fjfvvBy: By>

(YMvj MW/^)Its: Its:

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN GILA BEND TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

17



MARICOPA COUNTY 

By: 

Its: 

AVONDALE CITY 

By: 

Its: 

CAREFREE TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

CHANDLER CITY 

By: 

Its: 

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN 

By: Ginny Dickey 

Its: Mavor 

MARICOPA COUNTY 

APACHE JUNCTION CITY 

By: 

Its: 

BUCKEYE TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

CAVE CREEK TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

EL MIRAGE CITY 

By: 

Its: 

GILA BEND TOWN 

By: 

Its:

MARICOPA COUNTY

MARICOPA COUNTY APACHE JUNCTION CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

AVONDALE CITY BUCKEYE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

CAREFREE TOWN CAVE CREEK TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

CHANDLER CITY EL MIRAGE CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN GILA BEND TOWN

By: Ginny Dickey By:

Its: Its:Mayor

17



APACHE JUNCTION CITY 

  

By: 

Its: 

  

AVONDALE CITY 

  

By: 

Its: 

  

BUCKEYE TOWN 

  

By: 

Its: 

  

CAREFREE TOWN 

  

By: 
Its: 

  

CAVE CREEK TOWN 

  

By: 

Its: 

  

CHANDLER CITY 

  

By: 

Its: 

    

EL MIRAGE CITY 

By: 

Its: 

              

MARICOPA COUNTY CITIES & TOWNS 

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN 

  

By: 

    

   

7 fal    
GILBERT TOWN 

  

By: 

Its: 

    

GLENDALE CITY 

  

By: 
Its: 

    

GOODYEAR CITY 

    

y: 

Its: 

  

GUADALUPE TOWN 

  

By: 

Its: 

    

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY 

  

By: 

Its: 

    
 

MARICOPA COUNTY CITIES & TOWNS

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN
APACHE JUNCTION CITY

By:By:
Tts:Its:

/GILA BENAVONDALE CITY

VUm-b-J '
		yAA<sf^7jr**r

By:

1
?< s. Zf

By: v

Its: Trjn^yi 4-7^Its:
/
/

c/

GILBERT TOWNBUCKEYE TOWN

By:By:
Its:Its:

GLENDALE CITYCAREFREE TOWN

By:By:
Its:Its:

GOODYEAR CITYCAVE CREEK TOWN

By:By:
Its:Its:

GUADALUPE TOWNCHANDLER CITY

By:By:
Its:Its:

LITCHFIELD PARK CITYEL MIRAGE CITY

By; By:

Its: Its:



MARICOPA COUNTY 

GILBERT TOWN 

  

GOODYEAR CITY 

      

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY 

      

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN 

  

By: 

    

PHOENIX CITY 

By: 

GLENDALE CITY 

  

GUADALUPE TOWN 

  

Its: 

MESA CITY 

  

Its: 

PEORIA CITY 

  

By: 

  

QUEEN CREEK TOWN 

Its:

MARICOPA COUNTY

GLENDALE CITYGILBERT TOWN

By: fongefe "pg-faeescn

Maupr			

GOODYEAR CITY

By:

Its:Its:

GUADALUPE TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

MESA CITYLITCHFIELD PARK CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

PEORIA CITYPARADISE VALLEY TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

QUEEN CREEK TOWNPHOENIX CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

18



MARICOPA COUNTY 

  

  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

  

  
  

    
  

  
    

    

  

    

  
  

  
    

    

  

GILBERT TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOW] 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PHOENIX CITY QUEEN CREEK TOWN 

By: By: 
  

  

Its: Its: 

18 

    

 

MARICOPA COUNTY

GILBERT TOWN :nda Y

"sS: Vp \Z*Z. IS-By: By:

Its:Its:

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TO

By: By:

Its: Its:

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

PHOENIX CITY QUEEN CREEK TOWN

By: By:

Its:Its:

18



MARICOPA COUNTY 

    

GILBERT TOWN GLENDALE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOWN 

         

    

  

    

  

  

  

  

  

    
  

By: Rovie By: 

Its: 

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PHOENIX CITY QUEEN CREEK TOWN 

By: By: 
  

  

Its: Its: 
  

  

18

MARICOPA COUNTY

GILBERT TOWN GLENDALE CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOWN

By: 'KeY£ ï*598 By:

Its: Ùl?/AKocnej Its:

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

PHOENIX CITY QUEEN CREEK TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

18



MARICOPA COUNTY 

    

    

GILBERT TOWN GLENDALE CITY 

By: ~~ By: 

Its: Its: 

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOWN 

Clee rule   

Valerie Molina 
    

      

  

  

    

      

    

  

    

  

By: BN BN By: 

Its: Its: Mayor 

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY 

By: B ~~ By: 

Its: Its: 

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY 

By: } By: I ea BN 

Its: Its: ~ 

PHOENIX CITY QUEEN CREEK TOWN 

By: ~~ Bw: BN 

  

Its: } Its: 

18 

 

MARICOPA COUNTY

GLENDALE CITYGILBERT TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOWN

)

Valerie Molina
By:By:

Its: MayorIts:

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY

By: By:

Its:Its:

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

QUEEN CREEK TOWNPHOENIX CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

18



MARICOPA COUNTY 

  
  

  

  
  

  

  

  
  

    

  

    
  

  

  

GILBERT TOWN GLENDALE CITY 

By: B By: BN 

Its: Its: 

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Mayor Its: } 

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY 

By: B ) By: 

Its: Its: 

PHOENIX CITY QUEEN CREEK TOWN 

By: By: 
    

Its: Its: 
    

18

MARICOPA COUNTY

GLENDALE CITYGILBERT TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOWN

By: By:

Its:Its:

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY

By: By:

Its: Mayor Its:

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

PHOENIX CITY QUEEN CREEK TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

18



MARICOPA COUNTY 

  

GILBERT TOWN GLENDALE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY 

     

  

rte” 

By: By: Awe S A Sic 

Its: Its: vl 77 A 7p NE rH 
  

  

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PHOENIX CITY QUEEN CREEK TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its:

MARICOPA COUNTY

GLENDALE CITYGILBERT TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

GUADALUPE TOWNGOODYEAR CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

MESA CITYLITCHFIELD PARK CITY

XL
By:By:

C'XTIts:Its:

PEORIA CITYPARADISE VALLEY TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

QUEEN CREEK TOWNPHOENIX CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

18



MARICOPA COUNTY 

  
  

  
  

  

  
  

    

  

GILBERT TOWN GLENDALE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY 

  

  

  

  

  

By: 

Its: 

PHOENIX CITY QUEEN CREEK TOWN 

By: By: 
  

  

Its: Its: 
  
 

MARICOPA COUNTY

GILBERT TOWN GLENDALE CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY

By: ry"\\ Kevwv^cVv

its: "toxjo a wvflhAay^r

By:

Its:

PHOENIX CITY QUEEN CREEK TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

18



DocuSign Envelope ID: C203B64A-884B-4DFE-B340-CDFA871D5F48 

ONE ARIZONA DISTRIBUTION OF OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUNDS AGREEMENT 

MARICOPA COUNTY 

Town of Paradise Valley 

DocuSigned by: 

CE1DC3AT7429445A. 

Jill Keimach, Town Manager 

Attest: 

DocuSigned by: 

Duncan Miller 

  

Duncan Miller, Town Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

DocuSigned by: 

| Andee MCwie 

D29F046BCAE 1440... 

Andrew McGuire, Town Attorney

 

ONE ARIZONA DISTRIBUTION OF OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUNDS AGREEMENT 

 

MARICOPA COUNTY 

 

 

 

 

 

Town of Paradise Valley 

 

 

 

_________________________ 

Jill Keimach, Town Manager 

 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

__________________________ 

Duncan Miller, Town Clerk  

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

 

 

____________________________ 

Andrew McGuire, Town Attorney 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C203B64A-884B-4DFE-B340-CDFA871D5F48



MARICOPA COUNTY 

  

  
  

  
  

  

  

  

  

GILBERT TOWN GLENDALE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY 

  

By: By’ anes . by devman 

Its: Its: City A He Vv J 

PHOENIX CITY QUEEN CREEK TOWN 

  
  

  
  

  

  

By: a By 

Its: Its: 

18 

  

 

MARICOPA COUNTY 

GILBERT TOWN GLENDALE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY 

By: 

Its: 

PHOENIX CITY QUEEN CREEK TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

18 



  

  

MARICOPA COUNTY 

GILBERT TOWN GLENDALE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PHOENIX CITY QUEEN CREEK TOWN 

By: C¥\D MEZE. By: 

Its: Ch “gq Asc ORE JY Its: 

18 

  
 

MARICOPA COUNTY

GLENDALE CITYGILBERT TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOWN

By: By:

Its:Its:

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY

By:By:

Its: Its:

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

QUEEN CREEK TOWNPHOENIX CITY

By: C fryggggL

Its:

By:

Its:

18



  

MARICOPA COUNTY 

  

    

    

    

  

  

  

  

    

  

  

  

  

  

    

GILBERT TOWN GLENDALE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PHOENIX CITY QUEEN CREEK TOWN 

By: By: Scott A. Holcomb 
  

Its: 
  

  

Its: Town Attorney 
 

MARICOPA COUNTY 

18 

GILBERT TOWN GLENDALE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

GOODYEAR CITY GUADALUPE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY MESA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN PEORIA CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PHOENIX CITY QUEEN CREEK TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

Scott A. Holcomb

Town Attorney



MARICOPA COUNTY Contract No. 2021-171-COS 

SCOTTSDALE CITY SURPRISE CITY 

  uid AN 
By: Dowd D. Orteg co By: 

Its: | loo SFTEST Its: 

  

    

    

    

TEMPE CITY Wr ies TOLLESON CITY 
| aaa EE. 

: CITY CLERK 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

WICKENBURG TOWN YOUNGTOWN TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

19 

Page 19 of 48  

MARICOPA COUNTY Contract No. 2021-171-COS 

SCOTTSDALE CITY SURPRISE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

TEMPE CITY TOLLESON CITY 

CITYCLERK 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

WICKENBURG TOWN YOUNGTOWN TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

19 

Page 19 of 48 



MARICOPA COUNTY 

  

  

  

  

    

SCOTTSDALE CITY SURPRISE CITY 

By: By: ) 

Its: Its: 7 7 FF 2 

TEMPE CITY TOLLESON CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

WICKENBURG TOWN YOUNGTOWN TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: 
  

19 

  

Its:

MARICOPA COUNTY

SURPRISE CITYSCOTTSDALE CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

TEMPE CITY TOLLESON CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

WICKENBURG TOWN YOUNGTOWN TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

19



SCOTTSDALE CITY 

By: 
  

Its: 

TEMPE CITY 

By: 
  

Its: 

WICKENBURG TOWN 

By: 
  

Its: 

MARICOPA COUNTY 

SURPRISE CITY 

By: 
  

Its: 

TOLLESON CITY 

ih 
By: Reyes Medrano, Jr. 
  

Its: City Manager 

YOUNGTOWN TOWN 

By: 
  

Its:

MARICOPA COUNTY 

19 
 

SCOTTSDALE CITY  SURPRISE CITY 
 
 
 
 

  

 
By: 

 
 

  
By: 

 

 
Its: 

   
Its: 

 

 
 

    

TEMPE CITY  TOLLESON CITY 
 
 
 
 

  

 
By: 

 
 

  
By: 

 

 
Its: 

   
Its: 

 

 
 

    

WICKENBURG TOWN  YOUNGTOWN TOWN 
 
 
 
 

  

 
By: 

 
 

  
By: 

 

 
Its: 

   
Its: 

 

 
 

    

 
 

Reyes Medrano, Jr.

City Manager



SCOTTSDALE CITY 

Its: 

TEMPE CITY 

MARICOPA COUNTY 

SURPRISE CITY 

  
19 

By: 

Its: 

TOLLESON CITY 

By: 

Its: 

YOUNGTOWN TOWN 

By: 

Its: 
 

MARICOPA COUNTY

SCOTTSDALE CITY SURPRISE CITY

By:By:

Its: Its:

TEMPE CITY TOLLESON CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

WI< BURG TOWN YOUNGTOWN TOWN

> vBy: By:

Its:Its:

19



  

  

  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

MARICOPA COUNTY 

SCOTTSDALE CITY SURPRISE CITY 

By: i ~ By: a 

Its: ~ oo Its: 

TEMPE CITY TOLLESON CITY 

By: By: 

Its: } Its: 

WICKENBURG TOWN YOUNGTOWN TOWN 

By: 

Its: 
  

19 

  

  

 

MARICOPA COUNTY

SCOTTSDALE CITY SURPRISE CITY

By:By:

Its: Its:

TOLLESON CITYTEMPE CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

YOUNGTOWN TOWNWICKENBURG TOWN

By:By:

(AIts:Its:

19



MOHAVE COUNTY 

      

BULLHEAD CITY 

  

  

| PA 
=8% 
  

      
  

  

IN 
COLORADO CITY TOWN, ONA »# KINGMAN CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 
  

LAKE HAVASU CITY 

  

By: 
  

Its: 

20 

 

MOHAVE COUNTY

BULLHEAD CITYMOHAVE COUNTY/

gwisoS

£o.\ yes
&Q,By: Buster Johjhsoi

Its: Chairman, t3os

m
:<sC

^\0«TAT °EUS/

KINGMAN CITYCOLORADO CITY TOWN

isrmb

By:By:

Its:Its:

LAKE HAVASU CITY

By:

Its:

20



MOHAVE COUNTY 

By: 

Its: 

COLORADO CITY TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

LAKE HAVASU CITY 

By: 

Its: 

MOHAVE COUNTY 

BULLHEAD CITY 

Travis Pruitt, Actir i anager ____ 

il A —m., 2 

Wf Toby Cotter 

City Manager 

KINGMAN CITY 

By: 

Its: 

20

MOHAVE COUNTY

BULLHEAD CITYMOHAVE COUNTY

Travis Pruitt, Acti anager

Toby Cotter
-Hv:By:

City Manager
Its:Its:

KINGMAN CITYCOLORADO CITY TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

LAKE HAVASU CITY

By:

Its:

20



MOHAVE COUNTY 

    

  

MOHAVE COUNTY BULLHEAD CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

COLORADO CITY TOWN KINGMAN CITY 

  

  

LAKE HAVASU CITY 

  

By: 

Its: 

20 

   

MOHAVE COUNTY

MOHAVE COUNTY BULLHEAD CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

COLORADO CITY TOWN KINGMAN CITY

L

nBy: By:

yh-rIts: Its:

LAKE HAVASU CITY

By:

Its:

20



MOHAVE COUNTY 

  

By: 

Its: 

COLORADO CITY TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

LAKE HAVASU CITY 

  

By: 

Its: 

MOHAVE COUNTY 

BULLHEAD CITY 

By: 

Its: 

KINGMAN CITY 

  

  

20

MOHAVE COUNTY

MOHAVE COUNTY BULLHEAD CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

COLORADO CITY TOWN KINGMAN CITY

vkjd iAy.UBy: r- A.

Ms: vi:

LAKE HAVASU CITY

By.

Its

20



MOHAVE COUNTY 

By: 

Its: 

COLORADO CITY TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

LAKE HAVASU CITY 

By: Do ~ Sheehy 

Its: Lake Havasu City, Mayor 

MOHAVE COUNTY 

BULLHEAD CITY 

By: 

Its: 

KINGMAN CITY 

By: 

Its: --------------

20 



NAVAJO COUNTY 

NAVAJO COUNTY HOLBROOK CITY 

? = > \ 
7) 22 US 

J 24 Xr 777 

¢ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

By: Daryl Seymore By: 

Its: Chairman Its: 

PINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN SHOW LOW CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SNOWFLAKE TOWN TAYLOR TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

WINSLOW CITY 

By: 
  

Its: 

21

NAVAJO COUNTY 

21 

NAVAJO COUNTY HOLBROOK CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN SHOW LOW CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SNOWFLAKE TOWN TAYLOR TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

WINSLOW CITY 

By: 

Its: 

Daryl Seymore

Chairman



NAVAJO COUNTY 

NAVAJO COUNTY HOLBROOK CITY 

  

  

  

  

By: 

Its: 

PINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN SHOW LOW CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SNOWFLAKE TOWN TAYLOR TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

WINSLOW CITY 

By: 

Its: 

2]

NAVAJO COUNTY

NAVAJO COUNTY HOLBROOK CITY

?"1,

WkBy: By:

Its: Its:

PINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN SHOW LOW CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

SNOWFLAKE TOWN TAYLOR TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

WINSLOW CITY

By:

Its:

21



NAVAJO COUNTY 

NAVAJO COUNTY 

  

By: 

Its: 

  

PINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN 

Af Kone Nuvi     
By: 
  

Its: 
  

SNOWFLAKE TOWN 

By: 
  

Its: 

  

WINSLOW CITY 

  

By: 

Its: 

21 

HOLBROOK CITY 

  

By: 
  

Its: 

  

SHOW LOW CITY 

      

TAYLOR TOWN 

  

    

Its:

NAVAJO COUNTY

HOLBROOK CITYNAVAJO COUNTY

By: By:

Its: Its:

SHOW LOW CITYPINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN

By: By:

Its:Its:

TAYLOR TOWNSNOWFLAKE TOWN

By: By:

Its:Its:

WINSLOW CITY

By:

Its:

21



TOWN OF PINETOP-LAKESIDE 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-1594 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF PINETOP- 
LAKESIDE, ARIZONA APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO 
EXECUTE THE ONE ARIZONA DISTRIBUTION OF OPIOID SETTLEMENT 
FUNDS AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE STATE OF ARIZONA AND THE TOWN OF 
PINETOP-LAKESIDE PROPOSED BY ARIZONA ATTORNEY GENERAL MARK 
BRNOVICH 

WHEREAS, the Arizona Attorney General transmitted a request to cities and towns requesting 
cities and towns to approve the One Arizona Distribution of Opioid Settlement Funds Agreement 
(“Agreement”) between the state of Arizona and the Town of Pinetop-Lakeside resulting from 
negotiations with defendants (the “Opioid Defendants”) involved with manufacturing, 
marketing, promoting, distributing, and dispensing opioids and the expansion of the opioid crisis; 

WHEREAS, the Arizona Attorney General has imposed a November 10, 2021, deadline for 
approval of the Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, although the Agreement limits the power of a town to disapprove the allocations of 
settlement proceeds among the state, cities, towns, and counties, the Agreement allows the Town to 
review and approve or disapprove any final settlement plan regarding amounts paid to the State of 
Arizona by the Opioid Defendants, but disapproval results in lower settlement proceeds disbursed to 
local jurisdictions. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town Council of the Town of 
Pinetop-Lakeside, Arizona hereby approves the One Arizona Opioid Settlement Funds Agreement 
between and among the Town of Pinetop-Lakeside, other Arizona cities and towns, Arizona counties 
and the State of Arizona and authorizes the Mayor to execute the Agreement. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Pinetop-Lakeside, Arizona this 
21% day of October 2021. 

TOWN OF PINETOP-LAKESIDE 

AK Ao nd Xn 

Stephanie Irwin 

  

    

Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Jill Akins, MMC William J. Sims, III 
Town Clerk Town Attorney

TOWN OF PINETOP-LAKESIDE

RESOLUTION NO. 21-1594

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF PINETOP-

LAKESIDE, ARIZONA APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO

EXECUTE THE ONE ARIZONA DISTRIBUTION OF OPIOID SETTLEMENT

FUNDS AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE STATE OF ARIZONA AND THE TOWN OF

PINETOP-LAKESIDE PROPOSED BY ARIZONA ATTORNEY GENERAL MARK

BRNOVICH

WHEREAS, the Arizona Attorney General transmitted a request to cities and towns requesting

cities and towns to approve the One Arizona Distribution of Opioid Settlement Funds Agreement

("Agreement") between the state of Arizona and the Town of Pinetop-Lakeside resulting from

negotiations with defendants (the "Opioid Defendants") involved with manufacturing,

marketing, promoting, distributing, and dispensing opioids and the expansion of the opioid crisis;

WHEREAS, the Arizona Attorney General has imposed a November 10, 2021, deadline for

approval of the Agreement; and

WHEREAS, although the Agreement limits the power of a town to disapprove the allocations of

settlement proceeds among the state, cities, towns, and counties, the Agreement allows the Town to

review and approve or disapprove any final settlement plan regarding amounts paid to the State of

Arizona by the Opioid Defendants, but disapproval results in lower settlement proceeds disbursed to

local jurisdictions.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town Council of the Town of

Pinetop-Lakeside, Arizona hereby approves the One Arizona Opioid Settlement Funds Agreement

between and among the Town of Pinetop-Lakeside, other Arizona cities and towns, Arizona counties

and the State of Arizona and authorizes the Mayor to execute the Agreement.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Town Council ofthe Town ofPinetop-Lakeside, Arizona this

2 1 st day of October 202 1 .

TOWN OF PINETOP-LAKESIDE

ri/vP

Stephanie Irwin

Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

73

I*
s

Jill Akins, MMC

Town Clerk

William J. Sims, III

Town Attorney

ipHk



NAVAJO COUNTY 

  

  

  

NAVAJO COUNTY HOLBROOK CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN SHOW LOW CITY 

  
  

  

  

  

By: 

Its: 

SNOWFLAKE TOWN TAYLOR TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

WINSLOW CITY 

By: 

Its: 

21

NAVAJO COUNTY

HOLBROOK CITYNAVAJO COUNTY

By:By:

Its:Its:

SHOW LOW CITYPINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN

^^By:By:

Its:Its:

TAYLOR TOWNSNOWFLAKE TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

WINSLOW CITY

By:

Its:

21



NAVAJO COUNTY 

  

    

    

  

    

    

NAVAJO COUNTY HOLBROOK CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN SHOW LOW CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SNOWFLAKE TOWN TAYLOR TOWN 

res 

By: [Br re V4 Chott ss wy 

  

  

  

  

Its: / Jen MANA 6 He Its: 

WINSLOW CITY 

  

By: 
  

Its: 
  

21 

 

NAVAJO COUNTY

HOLBROOK CITYNAVAJO COUNTY

By:By:

Its:Its:

PINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN SHOW LOW CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

TAYLOR TOWNSNOWFLAICE TOWN

	 its:

By:By:

Its:

WINSLOW CITY

By:

Its:

21



NAVAJO COUNTY 

NAVAJO COUNTY 

  

By: 
  

Its: 
  

PINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN 

By: 
  

Its: 
  

SNOWFLAKE TOWN 

By: 

HOLBROOK CITY 

  

By: 
  

Its: 
  

SHOW LOW CITY 

By: 

Its: 
  

TAYLOR TOWN 

  

  

Its: 

WINSLOW CITY 

  

By: 
  

Its: 
  

21 

  

 

NAVAJO COUNTY

NAVAJO COUNTY HOLBROOK CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

PINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN SHOW LOW CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

SNOWFLAKE TOWN TAYLOR TOWN

By: By:

vies- -	
T7*5<5>m C. 5 P-V&AiZgfi- Jl//t/z/

Its: Its:

WINSLOW CITY

By:

Its:

21



NAVAJO COUNTY 

    

NAVAJO COUNTY HOLBROOK CITY 

BY: a Bys 

Its: Its: 

PINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN SHOW LOW CITY 

By: . By 

Its: Its: 

SNOWFLAKE TOWN TAYLOR TOWN 

BY: a By: 

Its: Its: 

WINSLOW CITY 

Hel Coy 
By: ANTE Lo . Can 

Its: YN AMbY -— 

 

NAVAJO COUNTY

HOLBROOK CITYNAVAJO COUNTY

By:By:

Its:Its:

SHOW LOW CITYPINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

TAYLOR TOWNSNOWFLAKE TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

WINSLOW CITY

By: ffiaWHlL. LL^ » C-tiLnQ
Its: YfiftMhV""	

21



PIMA COUNTY 

PIMA COUNTY MARANA TOWN 

Sharon Benen 

  
  

  
  

By: Supervisor Sharon Bronson, Chair By: 

Its: BY) Its: 

ORO VALLEY TOWN SAHUARITA TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SOUTH TUCSON CITY TUCSON CITY 

By: By: 
  

  

Its: Its: 

22

PIMA COUNTY 

22 

PIMA COUNTY MARANA TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

ORO VALLEY TOWN SAHUARITA TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SOUTH TUCSON CITY TUCSON CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

Supervisor Sharon Bronson, Chair

�
 



PIMA COUNTY 

PIMA COUNTY 

  

By: 

Its: 

ORO VALLEY TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

  

SOUTH TUCSON CITY 

By: 

Its: 

MARANA TOWN 

  

i, / Sls Mm MALY 

SAHUARITA TOWN 

  

By: 

Its: 

TUCSON CITY 

  

By: 

Its: 

22

PIMA COUNTY

MARANA TOWNPIMA COUNTY

By:By:

Its:Its:

SAHUARITA TOWNORO VALLEY TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

TUCSON CITYSOUTH TUCSON CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

22



PIMA COUNTY 

By: 

PIMA COUNTY 

  

Its: 

ORO VALLEY TOWN 

ba 

By: Mary Jacobs 
  

Its: Town Manager 

September 22, 2021 8:35am 

SOUTH TUCSON CITY 

By: 
  

Its: 

22 

MARANA TOWN 

By: 
  

Its: 

SAHUARITA TOWN 

By: 
  

Its: 

TUCSON CITY 

By: 
  

Its:

PIMA COUNTY 

22 
 

PIMA COUNTY  MARANA TOWN 
 
 
 
 

  

 
By: 

   
By: 

 

 
Its: 

   
Its: 

 

 
 

    

ORO VALLEY TOWN  SAHUARITA TOWN 
 
 
 
 

  

 
By: 

   
By: 

 

 
Its: 

   
Its: 

 

 
 

    

SOUTH TUCSON CITY  TUCSON CITY 
 
 
 
 

  

 
By: 

   
By: 

 

 
Its: 

   
Its: 

 

 
 

    

Town Manager
September 22, 2021 8:35am

Mary Jacobs



PIMA COUNTY 

By: 

Its: 

ORO VALLEY TOWN 

PIMA COUNTY 

  

By: 

Its: 

SOUTH TUCSON CITY 

By: 

Its: 

22 

MARANA TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

SAHUARITA TOWN 

Nem 
By: Tom Murph 

  

  

Its: Mayor 

TUCSON CITY 

By: 

Its:

PIMA COUNTY

MARANA TOWNPIMA COUNTY

By:By:

Its:Its:

SAHUARJTA TOWNORO VALLEY TOWN

i

By: Tom MurphyBy:

MayorIts:Its:

TUCSON CITYSOUTH TUCSON CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

22



PIMA COUNTY 

By: 

Its: 

ORO VALLEY TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

SOUTH TUCSON CITY 

  

PIMA COUNTY 

MARANA TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

SAHUARITA TOWN 

By: 

Its: 
  

TUCSON CITY 

22

PIMA COUNTY

PIMA COUNTY MARANA TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

ORO VALLEY TOWN SAHUARITA TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

SOUTH TUCSON CITY TUCSON CITY

By: M By:

Its: Its:

22



PIMA COUNTY 

  
  

  

  

  

  

  
  

  

  

  

  

PIMA COUNTY MARANA TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

ORO VALLEY TOWN SAHUARITA TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SOUTH TUCSON CITY TUCSON YA 

Vi 3 di . } SE 
i ———————— eee eee tele ff ) Zo io 

By: By: A wf fon i 

/ -             

  

Its: Its: 
  

22

PIMA COUNTY

PIMA COUNTY MARANA TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

ORO VALLEY TOWN SAHUARITA TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

SOUTH TUCSON CITY TUCSON CITY

	~	7	

/^// cAj&^yIfyZSlbtBy: By: /L

d?/y fad/-Its: Its:

22



PINAL 

PINAL COUNTY 

1 
By: VET VouemE I 

Its: Court ATO AE 

COOLIDGE CITY 

  

By: 

Its: 

FLORENCE TOWN 

  

By: 

Its: 

  

MAMMOTH TOWN 

      

SUPERIOR TOWN 

  

COUNTY 

CASA GRANDE CITY 

Its: 

ELOY CITY 

By: 

Its: 

KEARNY TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

MARICOPA CITY 

By: 

Its: 

23

PINAL COUNTY

PINAL COUNTY CASA GRANDE CITY

By: VOUPHtlL

CoonW

By:

Its: Its:

COOLIDGE CITY ELOY CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

FLORENCE TOWN KEARNY TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

MAMMOTH TOWN MARICOPA CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

SUPERIOR TOWN

By:

Its:

23



PINAL COUNTY 

PINAL COUNTY 

CASA GRANDE CITY 

OS 
By: 

Its: 

COOLIDGE CITY 

By: 

Its: 

FLORENCE TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

MAMMOTH TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

SUPERIOR TOWN 

By: 

By: _Larry Rains 

Its: _City Manager 

ELOY CITY 

By: 

Its: 

KEARNY TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

MARICOPA CITY 

By:

PINAL COUNTY

CASA GRANDE CITYPINAL COUNTY

By: Larry Rains

Its: City Manager

By:

Its:

COOLIDGE CITY ELOY CITY

By: By:

Its:Its:

FLORENCE TOWN KEARNY TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

MARICOPA CITYMAMMOTH TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

SUPERIOR TOWN

By:

Its:

23



PINAL COUNTY 

By: 

Its: 

COOLIDGE CITY 

By: 

PINAL COUNTY 

CASA GRANDE CITY 

By: 

Its: 

ELOY CITY 

By: 

Its: Aur Its: 

FLORENCE TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

MAMMOTH TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

SUPERIOR TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

KEARNY TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

MARICOPA CITY 

By: 

23

PINAL COUNTY

By:

Its:

COOLIDGE CITY

By:

Its: \C-

FLORENCE TOWN

By:

Its:

MAMMOTH TOWN

By:

Its:

SUPERIOR TOWN

By:

Its:

PINAL COUNTY

CASA GRANDE CITY

By:

Its:

ELOY CITY

By:

Its:

KEARNY TOWN

By:

Its:

MARICOPA CITY

By:

Its:

23



PINAL COUNTY CITIES & TOWNS 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

CASA GRANDE CITY KEARNY TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

COOLIDGE CITY MAMMOTH TOWN 

By: By: 
Its: Its: 

ELOY CITY MARICOPA CITY 

——7 

By: _[\\\ CA el) By: 
Its: IN ae C Its: 

FLORENCE TOWN SUPERIOR TOWN 

  

By: By: 

Its: Its: 
 

PINAL COUNTY CITIES & TOWNS

CASA GRANDE CITY KEARNY TOWN

By: By:
Its: Its:

COOLIDGE CITY MAMMOTH TOWN

By: By:
Its: Its:

ELOY CITY MARICOPA CITY

By:
Its:

FLORENCE TOWN SUPERIOR TOWN

By: By:
Its: Its:



PINAL COUNTY 

PINAL COUNTY 

By: 

Its: 

COOLIDGE CITY 

  

By: 

Its: 
    

FLORENCE TOWN 

ay: lava (Date 
Its: Ma, Oo 

MAMMOTH TOWN 

By: 

Its: 
  

SUPERIOR TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

CASA GRANDE CITY 

  

By: 

  

Its: 

  

ELOY CITY 

  

By: 

  

Its: 
  

KEARNY TOWN 

  

By: 

  

Its: 

  

MARICOPA CITY 

  

Its: 
  

23

PINAL COUNTY

PINAL COUNTY CASA GRANDE CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

COOLIDGE CITY ELOY CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

FLORENCE TOWN KEARNY TOWN

'OUNCN

lam tOalleu
PGauor

By: By:

Its: Its:

MAMMOTH TOWN MARICOPA CITY

By: By:

Its:Its:

SUPERIOR TOWN

By:

Its:

23'



PINAL COUNTY 

PINAL COUNTY 

  

By: 

Its: 

COOLIDGE CITY 

By: 

Its: 

FLORENCE TOWN 

  

Its: 

MAMMOTH TOWN 

  

SUPERIOR TOWN 

      

CASA GRANDE CITY 

  

By: 

Its: 

ELOY CITY 

  

By: 

Its: 

KEARNY TOWN 

  

MARICOPA CITY 

  

By: 

lis:

PINAL COUNTY

PINAL COUNTY CASA GRANDE CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

COOLIDGE CITY El<OY CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

KEARNY TOWNFLORENCE TOWN

By: L . ftaAo 1 1 Q-QeBy:

Its:Its:

MARICOPA CITYMAMMOTH TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

SUPERIOR TOWN

By:

Its:

23



PINAL COUNTY 

Its: 

COOLIDGE CITY 

By: 

Its: 

FLORENCE TOWN 

By: 

[ts: 

MAMMOTH TOWN 

x 

ov Patsy Armeunta 
Its: r 

  

  

PINAL COUNTY 

CASA GRANDE CITY 

ELOY CITY 

By: 

Its: 

  

KEARNY TOWN 

By: 

{ts: 

  

MARICOPA CITY 

SUPERIOR TOWN 

By: 

Its:

PINAL COUNTY

PINAL COUNTY CASA GRANDE CI FY

By: By:

Its: Its

COOLIDGE CITY ELOY CITY

By: By;

Its: Its:

FLORENCE TOWN KEARNY TOWN

By: By

Its: Its:

MAMMOTH TOWN MARICOPA CITY

By: By:

lrIts: „s

SUPERIOR TOWN

By:

Its:

23



PINAL COUNTY 

PINAL COUNTY CASA GRANDE CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

COOLIDGE CITY ELOY CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

FLORENCE TOWN KEARNY TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

MAMMOTH TOWN MARICOPA CITY 

By: By: vennifer Brown 

Is: 1. Assistant City Manager 

SUPERIOR TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

23

PINAL COUNTY

PINAL COUNTY CASA GRANDE CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

COOLIDGE CITY ELOY CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

FLORENCE TOWN KEARNY TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

MARICOPA CITYMAMMOTH TOWN

ennifer Brown
By: By:

Assistant City Manager
Its: Its:

SUPERIOR TOWN

By:

Its:

23



PINAL COUNTY 

PINAL COUNTY 

  

By: 

  

Its: 

  

COOLIDGE CITY 

  

By: 

  

Its: 

  

FLORENCE TOWN 

  

By: 

  

Its: 

  

MAMMOTH TOWN 

  

By: 

  

Its: 

  

SUPERIOR TOWN 

CASA GRANDE CITY 

    

Its: 

ELOY CITY 

  

Its: 

  

KEARNY TOWN 

  

Its: 

  

MARICOPA CITY 

  
 

PINAL COUNTY

.!•
PINAL COUNTY CASA GRANDE CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

COOLIDGE CITY ELOY CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

FLORENCE TOWN KEARNY TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

!

MAMMOTH TOWN MARICOPA CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

SUPERIOR TOWN

1 sic) ftBy:
	

Its: 1 0u3y\

23



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY NOGALES CITY 

By: Manuel Ruiz 

Its: Chairman, Board of Supervisors Its: Aering Luby Ma NEGer 

PATAGONIA TOWN 

ols [17 
By: A nde a \W JOA 

Its: Kou ao 

    

    

24

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY NOGALES CITY

K7^/aj^

Acn*jjj g,jy Ma/Jfflzrz*

By: Manuel Ruiz By:

its: Chairman, Board of Supervisors Its:

PATAGONIA TOWN

By: V/nJOQ c\

Its:

24



YAVAPAI COUNTY 

YAVAPAI COUNTY CAMP VERDE TOWN 

  24% A 
  

By: Lang | Bana By: 

    

  

  

  

    

  

  

  

  

  

  
  

  

  

    

  

Its: Lhaeman Its: 

CHINO VALLEY TOWN CLARKDALE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

COTTONWOOD CITY DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

JEROME TOWN PRESCOTT CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN 

By: 
  

Its: 
  

25

YAVAPAI COUNTY

YAVAPAI COUNTY CAMP VERDE TOWN

LQLL&. | SfiiUOBy: By:

Its: Its;

CHINO VALLEY TOWN CLARKDALE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

COTTONWOOD CITY DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

JEROME TOWN PRESCOTT CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN

By:

Its:

25



YAVAPAI COUNTY 

YAVAPAI COUNTY 

  

By: 

  

Its: 

  

CHINO VALLEY TOWN 

  

By: 

  

Its: 
    

COTTONWOOD CITY 

  

By: 

  

Its: 

  

JEROME TOWN 

  

By: 

  

Its: 

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN 

  

25 

CAMP VERDE TOWN 

By: _ DEE JENKINS 

MAYOR 

X 

Its: 

CLARKDALE TOWN 

  

Its: 
  

DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWN 

  

By: 

  

Its: 

  

PRESCOTT CITY 

  

Its: 
 

YAVAPAI COUNTY

YAVAPAI COUNTY CAMP VERDE TOWN

/

X

By: By: DEE IENKINS

Its: MAYORIts:

CHINO VALLEY TOWN CLARKDALE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

COTTONWOOD CITY DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

JEROME TOWN PRESCOTT CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN

By:

Its:

25



YAVAPAI COUNTY 

  

{ Wine Valley CAMP VERDE TOWN 
TOWN 

leet ww. LLC 
  

       

  

  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  
  

  

By: By: 
Ta 

Its: i AYO Its: 

CHINO VALLEY TOWN CLARKDALE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

COTTONWOOD CITY DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

JEROME TOWN PRESCOTT CITY 

By: By: 

Its: tse 

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN 

By: 
    

Its: 

25

YAVAPAI COUNTY

CAMP VERDE TOWNYAVAPAI COUNTY
TlA-OlA

. (JU' M ) iLic f Ẑ
By:By:

Mmotz. Its:Its:

CLARKDALETOWNCHINO VALLEY TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWNCOTTONWOOD CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

PRESCOTT CITYJEROME TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN

By:

Its:

25



YAVAPAI COUNTY 

  

  

YAVAPAI COUNTY CAMP VERDE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

CHINO VALLEY TOWN CLARKDALE TOWN 

  

  

By: 

Its: 

COTTONWOOD CITY DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

JEROME TOWN PRESCOTT CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

25

YAVAPAI COUNTY

YAVAPAI COUNTY CAMP VERDE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

CHINO VALLEY TOWN CLARKDALE TOWN

Kpbijn ttud1 homrYierrBauer
Maijtr	

By: By:

Its: Its:

COTTONWOOD CITY DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

JEROME TOWN PRESCOTT CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN

By:

Its:

25



YAVAPAI COUNTY 

YAVAPAI COUNTY CAMP VERDE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

CHINO VALLEY TOWN CLARKDALE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

COTTONWOOD CITY DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWN 

By: Tim Elinski By: 

Its: Mayor Its: 

JEROME TOWN PRESCOTT CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

25

YAVAPAI COUNTY

YAVAPAI COUNTY CAMP VERDE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

CHINO VALLEY TOWN CLARKDALE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

COTTONWOOD CITY DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWN

By: Tim Elinski By:

Its: Mayor Its:

JEROME TOWN PRESCOTT CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN

By:

Its:

25



YAVAPAI COUNTY 

YAVAPAI COUNTY 

CAMP VERDE TOWN 

  

By: 

Its: 

CHINO VALLEY TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

COTTONWOOD CITY 

By: 
  

[ts: 
  

CLARKDALE TOWN 

  

By: 
  

Its: 

DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWN 

    
By: ohn ua his 

  

By: 

Its: Its: J / / A0 9 \ / J . LOC 

JEROME TOWN PRESCOTT CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 
    

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

25

YAVAPAI COUNTY

YAVAPAI COUNTY CAMP VERDE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

CHINO VALLEY TOWN CLARKDALE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

COTTONWOOD CITY DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWN

it hifSIo r\ u1
By: By:

Its: Its:

JEROME TOWN PRESCOTT CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN

By:

Its:

25



YAVAPAI COUNTY 

    

YAVAPAI COUNTY CAMP VERDE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

CHINO VALLEY TOWN CLARKDALE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

COTTONWOOD CITY DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

JEROME TOWN PRESCOTT CITY 

By: 

Its: 

  

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN 

By: 

Its: 

25

YAVAPAI COUNTY

CAMP VERDE TOWNYAVAPAI COUNTY

By:By:

Its:Its:

CLARKDALE TOWNCHINO VALLEY TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWNCOTTONWOOD CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

PRESCOTT CITYJEROME TOWN

By: jAtk PlllglA.frgfj

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN

By:

Its:Its:

By:

Its:

25



YAVAPAI COUNTY 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
  

YAVAPAI COUNTY CAMP VERDE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

CHINO VALLEY TOWN CLARKDALE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

COTTONWOOD CITY DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWN 

By: By: 
  

  

Its: 
  

JEROME TOWN 

  

By: 

Its: 
  
  

  

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN 

  

By: 

Its: 
  

25 

 

YAVAPAI COUNTY

CAMP VERDE TOWNYAVAPAI COUNTY

By:By:

Its:Its:

CLARKDALE TOWNCHINO VALLEY TOWN

By:By:

Its:Its:

DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWNCOTTONWOOD CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

PRESGOTT CiTJEROME TOWN

MgM6AK£LUBy:By:

Its:Its:

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN

By:

Its:

25



YAVAPAI COUNTY 

  

    
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

YAVAPAI COUNTY CAMP VERDE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

CHINO VALLEY TOWN CLARKDALE TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

COTTONWOOD CITY DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

JEROME TOWN PRESCOTT CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 
  

  

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN 

  

    

By: _ Koll guts 

Its: WA gy Ov 

| Approved As le Form ’ 25 

Li 
lo wan OY hu 

HTBST: Tole Font), Ton Qn 

   

YAVAPAI COUNTY

YAVAPAI COUNTY CAMP VERDE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

CHINO VALLEY TOWN CLARKDALE TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

COTTONWOOD CITY DEWEY-HUMBOLDT TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

JEROME TOWN PRESCOTT CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN

By: \Cj? 11 fir Uv.uVa
W\<yN/C>v-Its:

AuTo P<b>r <
Lz-v"~

25

/Pn<1 <s> UJ y\ O irvy«u/

CUrl/feST-^ /



YUMA COUNTY 

YUMA COUNTY SAN LUIS CITY 

  
    

  

  

  
  

  

  

  

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SOMERTON CITY WELLTON TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

YUMA CITY 

By: 
  

Its: 
  

26

YUMA COUNTY

SAN LUIS CITYYUMA COUNTY

CUr A By:By:

imrin ol TVv I Its:Its:

WELLTON TOWNSOMERTON CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

YUMA CITY

By:

Its:

26



YUMA COUNTY 

By: 

Its: 

SOMERTON CITY 

By: 

Its: 

YUMA CITY 

By: 

Its: 

YUMA COUNTY 

26 

SAN LUIS CITY 

AE. al 
By: Gerardo Sanchez 

Its: M 4 Yor 

WELLTON TOWN 

By: 

Its:

YUMA COUNTY

SAN LUIS CITYYUMA COUNTY

By: Qevmrdo Sanchez.

Major	

By:

Its:Its:

WELLTON TOWNSOMERTON CITY

By:By:

Its:Its:

YUMA CITY

By:

Its:

26



YUMA COUNTY 

  

  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

YUMA COUNTY SAN LUIS CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SOMERTON CITY WELLTON TOWN 

By: / Mayor Gevavdo Prnayor By: 

Its: Mauor Its: 
t 

YUMA CITY 

By: 
  

Its: 
  

26

YUMA COUNTY 

          

YUMA COUNTY SAN LUIS CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SOMERTON CITY WELLTON TOWN 

  

  

  

Its: Ya Yar Its: 

YUMA CITY 

    

Its: 

26 

 

YUMA COUNTY

SAN LUIS CITYYUMA COUNTY

By:By:

Its:Its:

WELLTON TOWNSOMERTON CITY

\/Ktx^for Gy-evoYdo by;

VWujrur

By:

Its:Its:

YUMA CITY

By:

Its:

26



YUMA COUNTY 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

YUMA COUNTY SAN LUIS CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SOMERTON CITY WELLTON TOWN 

By: By: Cecilia McCollough 

Its: Its: Mayor 

YUMA CITY 

By: 
  

Its: 
  

26 

  

  

 

YUMA COUNTY 

26 

YUMA COUNTY SAN LUIS CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SOMERTON CITY WELLTON TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

YUMA CITY 

By: 

Its: 

Cecilia McCollough

Mayor



YUMA COUNTY 

  

YUMA COUNTY SAN LUIS CITY 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

SOMERTON CITY WELLTON TOWN 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 

YUMA CITY 

       By: /L A. EoDRIGUEZ 

Its: City 4 mips strad or

YUMA COUNTY

YUMA COUNTY SAN LUIS CITY

By: By:

Its: Its:

SOMERTON CITY WELLTON TOWN

By: By:

Its: Its:

YUMA CITY

I

By: PHIL/P /}. KoTXtlQULZ,

Cij-u idrtiNrh'A'iafIts:

26



Exhibit AExhibit A

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A 

 
 
  



A. 

OPIOID ABATEMENT STRATEGIES 

  

PART ONE: TREATMENT 

    
  

TREAT OPIOID USE DISORDER (OUD) 

Support treatment of Opioid Use Disorder (OUD) and any co-occurring Substance Use 

Disorder or Mental Health (SUD/MH) conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction through 

evidence-based, evidence-informed, or promising programs or strategies that may include, 

but are not limited to, the following: 

1. Expand availability of treatment for OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, 
co-usage, and/or co-addiction, including all forms of Medication-Assisted Treatment 

(MAT) approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration. 

Support and reimburse services that include the full American Society of Addiction 

Medicine (ASAM) continuum of care for OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, including but not limited to: 

a. Medication-Assisted Treatment (MAT); 

b. Abstinence-based treatment; 

c. Treatment, recovery, or other services provided by states, subdivisions, 
community health centers; non-for-profit providers; or for-profit providers; 

d. Treatment by providers that focus on OUD treatment as well as treatment by 
providers that offer OUD treatment along with treatment for other SUD/MH 

conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction; or 

e. Evidence-informed residential services programs, as noted below. 

Expand telehealth to increase access to treatment for OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, including MAT, as well as 

counseling, psychiatric support, and other treatment and recovery support services. 

Improve oversight of Opioid Treatment Programs (OTPs) to assure evidence-based, 

evidence-informed, or promising practices such as adequate methadone dosing. 

Support mobile intervention, treatment, and recovery services, offered by qualified 

professionals and service providers, such as peer recovery coaches, for persons with 

OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction and 
for persons who have experienced an opioid overdose. 

Support treatment of mental health trauma resulting from the traumatic experiences of 

the opioid user (e.g., violence, sexual assault, human trafficking, or adverse childhood 
experiences) and family members (e.g., surviving family members after an overdose

 

 
 

O P I O I D   A B A T E M E N T   S T R A T E G I E S 
 

PART ONE: TREATMENT 

 
A. TREAT OPIOID USE DISORDER (OUD) 

Support treatment of Opioid Use Disorder (OUD) and any co-occurring Substance Use 
Disorder or Mental Health (SUD/MH) conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction through 
evidence-based, evidence-informed, or promising programs or strategies that may include, 
but are not limited to, the following: 

1. Expand availability of treatment for OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, 
co-usage, and/or co-addiction, including all forms of Medication-Assisted Treatment 
(MAT) approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration. 

2. Support and reimburse services that include the full American Society of Addiction 
Medicine (ASAM) continuum of care for OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, including but not limited to: 

a. Medication-Assisted Treatment (MAT); 

b. Abstinence-based treatment; 

c. Treatment, recovery, or other services provided by states, subdivisions, 
community health centers; non-for-profit providers; or for-profit providers; 

d. Treatment by providers that focus on OUD treatment as well as treatment by 
providers that offer OUD treatment along with treatment for other SUD/MH 
conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction; or 

e. Evidence-informed residential services programs, as noted below. 

3. Expand telehealth to increase access to treatment for OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, including MAT, as well as 
counseling, psychiatric support, and other treatment and recovery support services. 

4. Improve oversight of Opioid Treatment Programs (OTPs) to assure evidence-based, 
evidence-informed, or promising practices such as adequate methadone dosing. 

5. Support mobile intervention, treatment, and recovery services, offered by qualified 
professionals and service providers, such as peer recovery coaches, for persons with 
OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction and 
for persons who have experienced an opioid overdose. 

6. Support treatment of mental health trauma resulting from the traumatic experiences of 
the opioid user (e.g., violence, sexual assault, human trafficking, or adverse childhood 
experiences) and family members (e.g., surviving family members after an overdose 



10. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

B. 

or overdose fatality), and training of health care personnel to identify and address such 

trauma. 

Support detoxification (detox) and withdrawal management services for persons with 

OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, 
including medical detox, referral to treatment, or connections to other services or 

supports. 

Support training on MAT for health care providers, students, or other supporting 

professionals, such as peer recovery coaches or recovery outreach specialists, 

including telementoring to assist community-based providers in rural or underserved 

areas. 

Support workforce development for addiction professionals who work with persons 

with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction. 

Provide fellowships for addiction medicine specialists for direct patient care, 

instructors, and clinical research for treatments. 

Provide funding and training for clinicians to obtain a waiver under the federal Drug 

Addiction Treatment Act of 2000 (DATA 2000) to prescribe MAT for OUD, and 
provide technical assistance and professional support to clinicians who have obtained 
a DATA 2000 waiver. 

Support the dissemination of web-based training curricula, such as the American 
Academy of Addiction Psychiatry’s Provider Clinical Support Service-Opioids web- 

based training curriculum and motivational interviewing. 

Support the development and dissemination of new curricula, such as the American 

Academy of Addiction Psychiatry’s Provider Clinical Support Service for Medication- 

Assisted Treatment. 

SUPPORT PEOPLE IN TREATMENT AND RECOVERY 

Support people in treatment for and recovery from OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 

conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction through evidence-based, evidence-informed, or 

promising programs or strategies that may include, but are not limited to, the following: 

1. Provide the full continuum of care of recovery services for OUD and any co-occurring 

SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, including supportive housing, 
residential treatment, medical detox services, peer support services and counseling, 

community navigators, case management, and connections to community-based 

services. 

Provide counseling, peer-support, recovery case management and residential 

treatment with access to medications for those who need it to persons with OUD and 

any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction.

 

 
 

or overdose fatality), and training of health care personnel to identify and address such 
trauma. 

7. Support detoxification (detox) and withdrawal management services for persons with 
OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, 
including medical detox, referral to treatment, or connections to other services or 
supports. 

8. Support training on MAT for health care providers, students, or other supporting 
professionals, such as peer recovery coaches or recovery outreach specialists, 
including telementoring to assist community-based providers in rural or underserved 
areas. 

9. Support workforce development for addiction professionals who work with persons 
with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction. 

10. Provide fellowships for addiction medicine specialists for direct patient care, 
instructors, and clinical research for treatments. 

11. Provide funding and training for clinicians to obtain a waiver under the federal Drug 
Addiction Treatment Act of 2000 (DATA 2000) to prescribe MAT for OUD, and 
provide technical assistance and professional support to clinicians who have obtained 
a DATA 2000 waiver. 

12. Support the dissemination of web-based training curricula, such as the American 
Academy of Addiction Psychiatry’s Provider Clinical Support Service-Opioids web-
based training curriculum and motivational interviewing. 

13.  Support the development and dissemination of new curricula, such as the American 
Academy of Addiction Psychiatry’s Provider Clinical Support Service for Medication-
Assisted Treatment. 

B. SUPPORT PEOPLE IN TREATMENT AND RECOVERY 

Support people in treatment for and recovery from OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction through evidence-based, evidence-informed, or 
promising programs or strategies that may include, but are not limited to, the following: 

1. Provide the full continuum of care of recovery services for OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, including supportive housing, 
residential treatment, medical detox services, peer support services and counseling, 
community navigators, case management, and connections to community-based 
services. 

2. Provide counseling, peer-support, recovery case management and residential 
treatment with access to medications for those who need it to persons with OUD and 
any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction.  



10. 

Provide access to housing for people with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 

conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, including supportive housing, recovery 
housing, housing assistance programs, or training for housing providers. 

Provide community support services, including social and legal services, to assist in 

deinstitutionalizing persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co- 

usage, and/or co-addiction. 

Support or expand peer-recovery centers, which may include support groups, social 

events, computer access, or other services for persons with OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction. 

Provide employment training or educational services for persons in treatment for or 
recovery from OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co- 
addiction. 

Identify successful recovery programs such as physician, pilot, and college recovery 

programs, and provide support and technical assistance to increase the number and 
capacity of high-quality programs to help those in recovery. 

Engage non-profits, faith-based communities, and community coalitions to support 
people in treatment and recovery and to support family members in their efforts to 
manage the opioid user in the family. 

Provide training and development of procedures for government staff to appropriately 

interact and provide social and other services to current and recovering opioid users, 
including reducing stigma. 

Support stigma reduction efforts regarding treatment and support for persons with 

OUD, including reducing the stigma on effective treatment. 

CONNECT PEOPLE WHO NEED HELP TO THE HELP THEY NEED 

(CONNECTIONS TO CARE) 

Provide connections to care for people who have — or are at risk of developing — OUD and 

any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction through evidence- 

based, evidence-informed, or promising programs or strategies that may include, but are not 
limited to, the following: 

1. Ensure that health care providers are screening for OUD and other risk factors and 

know how to appropriately counsel and treat (or refer if necessary) a patient for OUD 

treatment. 

Support Screening, Brief Intervention and Referral to Treatment (SBIRT) programs 

to reduce the transition from use to disorders. 

Provide training and long-term implementation of SBIRT in key systems (health, 

schools, colleges, criminal justice, and probation), with a focus on youth and young 

adults when transition from misuse to opioid disorder is common.

 

 
 

3. Provide access to housing for people with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, including supportive housing, recovery 
housing, housing assistance programs, or training for housing providers. 

4. Provide community support services, including social and legal services, to assist in 
deinstitutionalizing persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-
usage, and/or co-addiction. 

5. Support or expand peer-recovery centers, which may include support groups, social 
events, computer access, or other services for persons with OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction. 

6. Provide employment training or educational services for persons in treatment for or 
recovery from OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-
addiction. 

7. Identify successful recovery programs such as physician, pilot, and college recovery 
programs, and provide support and technical assistance to increase the number and 
capacity of high-quality programs to help those in recovery. 

8. Engage non-profits, faith-based communities, and community coalitions to support 
people in treatment and recovery and to support family members in their efforts to 
manage the opioid user in the family. 

9. Provide training and development of procedures for government staff to appropriately 
interact and provide social and other services to current and recovering opioid users, 
including reducing stigma. 

10. Support stigma reduction efforts regarding treatment and support for persons with 
OUD, including reducing the stigma on effective treatment. 

C. CONNECT PEOPLE WHO NEED HELP TO THE HELP THEY NEED 
(CONNECTIONS TO CARE) 

Provide connections to care for people who have – or are at risk of developing – OUD and 
any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction through evidence-
based, evidence-informed, or promising programs or strategies that may include, but are not 
limited to, the following: 

1. Ensure that health care providers are screening for OUD and other risk factors and 
know how to appropriately counsel and treat (or refer if necessary) a patient for OUD 
treatment. 

2. Support Screening, Brief Intervention and Referral to Treatment (SBIRT) programs 
to reduce the transition from use to disorders. 

3. Provide training and long-term implementation of SBIRT in key systems (health, 
schools, colleges, criminal justice, and probation), with a focus on youth and young 
adults when transition from misuse to opioid disorder is common. 



10. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

14. 

15. 

16. 

Purchase automated versions of SBIRT and support ongoing costs of the technology. 

Support training for emergency room personnel treating opioid overdose patients on 

post-discharge planning, including community referrals for MAT, recovery case 
management or support services. 

Support hospital programs that transition persons with OUD and any co-occurring 

SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, or persons who have experienced 
an opioid overdose, into community treatment or recovery services through a bridge 
clinic or similar approach. 

Support crisis stabilization centers that serve as an alternative to hospital emergency 

departments for persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co- 
usage, and/or co-addiction or persons that have experienced an opioid overdose. 

Support the work of Emergency Medical Systems, including peer support specialists, 
to connect individuals to treatment or other appropriate services following an opioid 

overdose or other opioid-related adverse event. 

Provide funding for peer support specialists or recovery coaches in emergency 

departments, detox facilities, recovery centers, recovery housing, or similar settings; 
offer services, supports, or connections to care to persons with OUD and any co- 

occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction or to persons who have 
experienced an opioid overdose. 

Provide funding for peer navigators, recovery coaches, care coordinators, or care 

managers that offer assistance to persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 

conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction or to persons who have experienced on 
opioid overdose. 

Create or support school-based contacts that parents can engage with to seek 
immediate treatment services for their child; and support prevention, intervention, 

treatment, and recovery programs focused on young people. 

Develop and support best practices on addressing OUD in the workplace. 

Support assistance programs for health care providers with OUD. 

Engage non-profits and the faith community as a system to support outreach for 

treatment. 

Support centralized call centers that provide information and connections to 

appropriate services and supports for persons with OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction. 

Create or support intake and call centers to facilitate education and access to treatment, 

prevention, and recovery services for persons with OUD and any co-occurring 

SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction.

 

 
 

4. Purchase automated versions of SBIRT and support ongoing costs of the technology. 

5. Support training for emergency room personnel treating opioid overdose patients on 
post-discharge planning, including community referrals for MAT, recovery case 
management or support services. 

6. Support hospital programs that transition persons with OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, or persons who have experienced 
an opioid overdose, into community treatment or recovery services through a bridge 
clinic or similar approach. 

7. Support crisis stabilization centers that serve as an alternative to hospital emergency 
departments for persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-
usage, and/or co-addiction or persons that have experienced an opioid overdose. 

8. Support the work of Emergency Medical Systems, including peer support specialists, 
to connect individuals to treatment or other appropriate services following an opioid 
overdose or other opioid-related adverse event. 

9. Provide funding for peer support specialists or recovery coaches in emergency 
departments, detox facilities, recovery centers, recovery housing, or similar settings; 
offer services, supports, or connections to care to persons with OUD and any co-
occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction or to persons who have 
experienced an opioid overdose. 

10. Provide funding for peer navigators, recovery coaches, care coordinators, or care 
managers that offer assistance to persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction or to persons who have experienced on 
opioid overdose. 

11. Create or support school-based contacts that parents can engage with to seek 
immediate treatment services for their child; and support prevention, intervention, 
treatment, and recovery programs focused on young people. 

12. Develop and support best practices on addressing OUD in the workplace. 

13. Support assistance programs for health care providers with OUD. 

14. Engage non-profits and the faith community as a system to support outreach for 
treatment. 

15. Support centralized call centers that provide information and connections to 
appropriate services and supports for persons with OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction. 

16. Create or support intake and call centers to facilitate education and access to treatment, 
prevention, and recovery services for persons with OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction. 



17. Develop or support a National Treatment Availability Clearinghouse — a 

D. 

multistate/nationally accessible database whereby health care providers can list 
locations for currently available in-patient and out-patient OUD treatment services 

that are accessible on a real-time basis by persons who seek treatment. 

ADDRESS THE NEEDS OF CRIMINAL-JUSTICE-INVOLVED PERSONS 

Address the needs of persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, 
and/or co-addiction who are involved — or are at risk of becoming involved — in the criminal 
justice system through evidence-based, evidence-informed, or promising programs or 
strategies that may include, but are not limited to, the following: 

1. Support pre-arrest or post-arrest diversion and deflection strategies for persons with 

OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, 
including established strategies such as: 

a. Self-referral strategies such as the Angel Programs or the Police Assisted 
Addiction Recovery Initiative (PAARI); 

b. Active outreach strategies such as the Drug Abuse Response Team (DART) 

model; 

c. “Naloxone Plus” strategies, which work to ensure that individuals who have 

received naloxone to reverse the effects of an overdose are then linked to treatment 
programs or other appropriate services; 

d. Officer prevention strategies, such as the Law Enforcement Assisted Diversion 
(LEAD) model; 

e. Officer intervention strategies such as the Leon County, Florida Adult Civil 
Citation Network or the Chicago Westside Narcotics Diversion to Treatment 
Initiative; 

f. Co-responder and/or alternative responder models to address OUD-related 911 
calls with greater SUD expertise and to reduce perceived barriers associated with 

law enforcement 911 responses; or 

g. County prosecution diversion programs, including diversion officer salary, only 
for counties with a population of 50,000 or less. Any diversion services in matters 

involving opioids must include drug testing, monitoring, or treatment. 

Support pre-trial services that connect individuals with OUD and any co-occurring 

SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction to evidence-informed treatment, 

including MAT, and related services. 

Support treatment and recovery courts for persons with OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, but only if these courts provide 

referrals to evidence-informed treatment, including MAT.

 

 
 

17. Develop or support a National Treatment Availability Clearinghouse – a 
multistate/nationally accessible database whereby health care providers can list 
locations for currently available in-patient and out-patient OUD treatment services 
that are accessible on a real-time basis by persons who seek treatment. 

D. ADDRESS THE NEEDS OF CRIMINAL-JUSTICE-INVOLVED PERSONS 

Address the needs of persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, 
and/or co-addiction who are involved – or are at risk of becoming involved – in the criminal 
justice system through evidence-based, evidence-informed, or promising programs or 
strategies that may include, but are not limited to, the following: 

1. Support pre-arrest or post-arrest diversion and deflection strategies for persons with 
OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, 
including established strategies such as: 

a. Self-referral strategies such as the Angel Programs or the Police Assisted 
Addiction Recovery Initiative (PAARI); 

b. Active outreach strategies such as the Drug Abuse Response Team (DART) 
model; 

c. “Naloxone Plus” strategies, which work to ensure that individuals who have 
received naloxone to reverse the effects of an overdose are then linked to treatment 
programs or other appropriate services; 

d. Officer prevention strategies, such as the Law Enforcement Assisted Diversion 
(LEAD) model; 

e. Officer intervention strategies such as the Leon County, Florida Adult Civil 
Citation Network or the Chicago Westside Narcotics Diversion to Treatment 
Initiative;  

f. Co-responder and/or alternative responder models to address OUD-related 911 
calls with greater SUD expertise and to reduce perceived barriers associated with 
law enforcement 911 responses; or 

g. County prosecution diversion programs, including diversion officer salary, only 
for counties with a population of 50,000 or less. Any diversion services in matters 
involving opioids must include drug testing, monitoring, or treatment. 

2. Support pre-trial services that connect individuals with OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction to evidence-informed treatment, 
including MAT, and related services. 

3. Support treatment and recovery courts for persons with OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, but only if these courts provide 
referrals to evidence-informed treatment, including MAT. 



Provide evidence-informed treatment, including MAT, recovery support, or other 

appropriate services to individuals with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction who are incarcerated in jail or prison. 

Provide evidence-informed treatment, including MAT, recovery support, or other 
appropriate services to individuals with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 

conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction who are leaving jail or prison have recently 
left jail or prison, are on probation or parole, are under community corrections 

supervision, or are in re-entry programs or facilities. 

Support critical time interventions (CTI), particularly for individuals living with dual- 

diagnosis OUD/serious mental illness, and services for individuals who face 
immediate risks and service needs and risks upon release from correctional settings. 

Provide training on best practices for addressing the needs of criminal-justice- 
involved persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, 

and/or co-addiction to law enforcement, correctional, or judicial personnel or to 
providers of treatment, recovery, case management, or other services offered in 

connection with any of the strategies described in this section. 

ADDRESS THE NEEDS OF PREGNANT OR PARENTING WOMEN AND 

THEIR FAMILIES. INCLUDING BABIES WITH NEONATAL ABSTINENCE 

SYNDROME 

  

Address the needs of pregnant or parenting women with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, and the needs of their families, including babies 

with neonatal abstinence syndrome, through evidence-based, evidence-informed, or 
promising programs or strategies that may include, but are not limited to, the following: 

1. Support evidence-based, evidence-informed, or promising treatment, including MAT, 

recovery services and supports, and prevention services for pregnant women — or 
women who could become pregnant — who have OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, and other measures to educate and provide 

support to families affected by Neonatal Abstinence Syndrome. 

Provide training for obstetricians or other healthcare personnel that work with 

pregnant women and their families regarding treatment of OUD and any co-occurring 

SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction. 

Provide training to health care providers who work with pregnant or parenting women 

on best practices for compliance with federal requirements that children born with 

Neonatal Abstinence Syndrome get referred to appropriate services and receive a plan 
of safe care. 

Provide enhanced support for children and family members suffering trauma as a 

result of addiction in the family; and offer trauma-informed behavioral health 

treatment for adverse childhood events.

 

 
 

4. Provide evidence-informed treatment, including MAT, recovery support, or other 
appropriate services to individuals with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction who are incarcerated in jail or prison. 

5. Provide evidence-informed treatment, including MAT, recovery support, or other 
appropriate services to individuals with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction who are leaving jail or prison have recently 
left jail or prison, are on probation or parole, are under community corrections 
supervision, or are in re-entry programs or facilities. 

6. Support critical time interventions (CTI), particularly for individuals living with dual-
diagnosis OUD/serious mental illness, and services for individuals who face 
immediate risks and service needs and risks upon release from correctional settings. 

7. Provide training on best practices for addressing the needs of criminal-justice-
involved persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, 
and/or co-addiction to law enforcement, correctional, or judicial personnel or to 
providers of treatment, recovery, case management, or other services offered in 
connection with any of the strategies described in this section. 

E. ADDRESS THE NEEDS OF PREGNANT OR PARENTING WOMEN AND 
THEIR FAMILIES, INCLUDING BABIES WITH NEONATAL ABSTINENCE 
SYNDROME  

Address the needs of pregnant or parenting women with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, and the needs of their families, including babies 
with neonatal abstinence syndrome, through evidence-based, evidence-informed, or 
promising programs or strategies that may include, but are not limited to, the following: 

1. Support evidence-based, evidence-informed, or promising treatment, including MAT, 
recovery services and supports, and prevention services for pregnant women – or 
women who could become pregnant – who have OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, and other measures to educate and provide 
support to families affected by Neonatal Abstinence Syndrome. 

2. Provide training for obstetricians or other healthcare personnel that work with 
pregnant women and their families regarding treatment of OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction. 

3. Provide training to health care providers who work with pregnant or parenting women 
on best practices for compliance with federal requirements that children born with 
Neonatal Abstinence Syndrome get referred to appropriate services and receive a plan 
of safe care. 

4. Provide enhanced support for children and family members suffering trauma as a 
result of addiction in the family; and offer trauma-informed behavioral health 
treatment for adverse childhood events. 



5. 

F. 

Offer enhanced family supports and home-based wrap-around services to persons with 

OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, 
including but not limited to parent skills training. 

Support for Children’s Services — Fund additional positions and services, including 
supportive housing and other residential services, relating to children being removed 
from the home and/or placed in foster care due to custodial opioid use. 

  

PART TWO: PREVENTION 

    
  

PREVENT OVER-PRESCRIBING AND ENSURE APPROPRIATE 

PRESCRIBING AND DISPENSING OF OPIOIDS 

Support efforts to prevent over-prescribing and ensure appropriate prescribing and dispensing 

of opioids through evidence-based, evidence-informed, or promising programs or strategies 

that may include, but are not limited to, the following: 

1. Training for health care providers regarding safe and responsible opioid prescribing, 
dosing, and tapering patients off opioids. 

. Academic counter-detailing to educate prescribers on appropriate opioid prescribing. 

Continuing Medical Education (CME) on appropriate prescribing of opioids. 

Support for non-opioid pain treatment alternatives, including training providers to 

offer or refer to multi-modal, evidence-informed treatment of pain. 

Support enhancements or improvements to Prescription Drug Monitoring Programs 

(PDMPs), including but not limited to improvements that: 

a. Increase the number of prescribers using PDMPs; 

b. Improve point-of-care decision-making by increasing the quantity, quality, or 
format of data available to prescribers using PDMPs or by improving the 
interface that prescribers use to access PDMP data, or both; or 

c. Enable states to use PDMP data in support of surveillance or intervention 
strategies, including MAT referrals and follow-up for individuals identified 
within PDMP data as likely to experience OUD. 

Development and implementation of a national PDMP — Fund development of a 
multistate/national PDMP that permits information sharing while providing 
appropriate safeguards on sharing of private health information, including but not 
limited to: 

a. Integration of PDMP data with electronic health records, overdose episodes, 

and decision support tools for health care providers relating to OUD.

 

 
 

5. Offer enhanced family supports and home-based wrap-around services to persons with 
OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, 
including but not limited to parent skills training. 

6. Support for Children’s Services – Fund additional positions and services, including 
supportive housing and other residential services, relating to children being removed 
from the home and/or placed in foster care due to custodial opioid use. 

PART TWO: PREVENTION 

 
F. PREVENT OVER-PRESCRIBING AND ENSURE APPROPRIATE 

PRESCRIBING AND DISPENSING OF OPIOIDS 

Support efforts to prevent over-prescribing and ensure appropriate prescribing and dispensing 
of opioids through evidence-based, evidence-informed, or promising programs or strategies 
that may include, but are not limited to, the following: 

1. Training for health care providers regarding safe and responsible opioid prescribing, 
dosing, and tapering patients off opioids. 

2. Academic counter-detailing to educate prescribers on appropriate opioid prescribing. 

3. Continuing Medical Education (CME) on appropriate prescribing of opioids. 

4. Support for non-opioid pain treatment alternatives, including training providers to 
offer or refer to multi-modal, evidence-informed treatment of pain. 

5. Support enhancements or improvements to Prescription Drug Monitoring Programs 
(PDMPs), including but not limited to improvements that: 

a. Increase the number of prescribers using PDMPs; 

b. Improve point-of-care decision-making by increasing the quantity, quality, or 
format of data available to prescribers using PDMPs or by improving the 
interface that prescribers use to access PDMP data, or both; or 

c. Enable states to use PDMP data in support of surveillance or intervention 
strategies, including MAT referrals and follow-up for individuals identified 
within PDMP data as likely to experience OUD. 

6. Development and implementation of a national PDMP – Fund development of a 
multistate/national PDMP that permits information sharing while providing 
appropriate safeguards on sharing of private health information, including but not 
limited to: 

a. Integration of PDMP data with electronic health records, overdose episodes, 
and decision support tools for health care providers relating to OUD. 



7. 

8. 

G. 

b. Ensuring PDMPs incorporate available overdose/naloxone deployment data, 

including the United States Department of Transportation’s Emergency 
Medical Technician overdose database. 

Increase electronic prescribing to prevent diversion or forgery. 

Educate Dispensers on appropriate opioid dispensing. 

PREVENT MISUSE OF OPIOIDS 

Support efforts to discourage or prevent misuse of opioids through evidence-based, evidence- 
informed, or promising programs or strategies that may include, but are not limited to, the 
following: 

1. Corrective advertising or affirmative public education campaigns based on evidence. 

2. Public education relating to drug disposal. 

3. Drug take-back disposal or destruction programs. 

4. Fund community anti-drug coalitions that engage in drug prevention efforts. 

5. Support community coalitions in implementing evidence-informed prevention, such 

as reduced social access and physical access, stigma reduction — including staffing, 
educational campaigns, support for people in treatment or recovery, or training of 

coalitions in evidence-informed implementation, including the Strategic Prevention 

Framework developed by the U.S. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services 
Administration (SAMHSA). 

6. Engage non-profits and faith-based communities as systems to support prevention. 

7. Support evidence-informed school and community education programs and 

campaigns for students, families, school employees, school athletic programs, parent- 
teacher and student associations, and others. 

8. School-based or youth-focused programs or strategies that have demonstrated 
effectiveness in preventing drug misuse and seem likely to be effective in preventing 

the uptake and use of opioids. 

9. Support community-based education or intervention services for families, youth, and 

adolescents at risk for OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, 

and/or co-addiction. 

10. Support evidence-informed programs or curricula to address mental health needs of 

young people who may be at risk of misusing opioids or other drugs, including 

emotional modulation and resilience skills. 

11. Support greater access to mental health services and supports for young people, 

including services and supports provided by school nurses or other school staff, to

 

 
 

b. Ensuring PDMPs incorporate available overdose/naloxone deployment data, 
including the United States Department of Transportation’s Emergency 
Medical Technician overdose database. 

7. Increase electronic prescribing to prevent diversion or forgery. 

8. Educate Dispensers on appropriate opioid dispensing.  

G. PREVENT MISUSE OF OPIOIDS 

Support efforts to discourage or prevent misuse of opioids through evidence-based, evidence-
informed, or promising programs or strategies that may include, but are not limited to, the 
following: 

1. Corrective advertising or affirmative public education campaigns based on evidence. 

2. Public education relating to drug disposal. 

3. Drug take-back disposal or destruction programs. 

4. Fund community anti-drug coalitions that engage in drug prevention efforts. 

5. Support community coalitions in implementing evidence-informed prevention, such 
as reduced social access and physical access, stigma reduction – including staffing, 
educational campaigns, support for people in treatment or recovery, or training of 
coalitions in evidence-informed implementation, including the Strategic Prevention 
Framework developed by the U.S. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services 
Administration (SAMHSA). 

6. Engage non-profits and faith-based communities as systems to support prevention. 

7. Support evidence-informed school and community education programs and 
campaigns for students, families, school employees, school athletic programs, parent-
teacher and student associations, and others. 

8. School-based or youth-focused programs or strategies that have demonstrated 
effectiveness in preventing drug misuse and seem likely to be effective in preventing 
the uptake and use of opioids. 

9. Support community-based education or intervention services for families, youth, and 
adolescents at risk for OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, 
and/or co-addiction. 

10. Support evidence-informed programs or curricula to address mental health needs of 
young people who may be at risk of misusing opioids or other drugs, including 
emotional modulation and resilience skills. 

11. Support greater access to mental health services and supports for young people, 
including services and supports provided by school nurses or other school staff, to 



H. 

address mental health needs in young people that (when not properly addressed) 
increase the risk of opioid or other drug misuse. 

PREVENT OVERDOSE DEATHS AND OTHER HARMS 

Support efforts to prevent or reduce overdose deaths or other opioid-related harms through 
evidence-based, evidence-informed, or promising programs or strategies that may include, 
but are not limited to, the following: 

1. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

Increase availability and distribution of naloxone and other drugs that treat overdoses 

for first responders, overdose patients, opioid users, families and friends of opioid 
users, schools, community navigators and outreach workers, drug offenders upon 
release from jail/prison, or other members of the general public. 

Provision by public health entities of free naloxone to anyone in the community, 

including but not limited to provision of intra-nasal naloxone in settings where other 
options are not available or allowed. 

Training and education regarding naloxone and other drugs that treat overdoses for 
first responders, overdose patients, patients taking opioids, families, schools, and other 

members of the general public. 

Enable school nurses and other school staff to respond to opioid overdoses, and 
provide them with naloxone, training, and support. 

Expand, improve, or develop data tracking software and applications for 

overdoses/naloxone revivals. 

Public education relating to emergency responses to overdoses. 

Public education relating to immunity and Good Samaritan laws. 

Educate first responders regarding the existence and operation of immunity and Good 
Samaritan laws. 

Expand access to testing and treatment for infectious diseases such as HIV and 
Hepatitis C resulting from intravenous opioid use. 

Support mobile units that offer or provide referrals to treatment, recovery supports, 

health care, or other appropriate services to persons that use opioids or persons with 
OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction. 

Provide training in treatment and recovery strategies to health care providers, students, 
peer recovery coaches, recovery outreach specialists, or other professionals that 

provide care to persons who use opioids or persons with OUD and any co-occurring 

SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction. 

Support screening for fentanyl in routine clinical toxicology testing.

 

 
 

address mental health needs in young people that (when not properly addressed) 
increase the risk of opioid or other drug misuse. 

H. PREVENT OVERDOSE DEATHS AND OTHER HARMS 

Support efforts to prevent or reduce overdose deaths or other opioid-related harms through 
evidence-based, evidence-informed, or promising programs or strategies that may include, 
but are not limited to, the following: 

1. Increase availability and distribution of naloxone and other drugs that treat overdoses 
for first responders, overdose patients, opioid users, families and friends of opioid 
users, schools, community navigators and outreach workers, drug offenders upon 
release from jail/prison, or other members of the general public. 

2. Provision by public health entities of free naloxone to anyone in the community, 
including but not limited to provision of intra-nasal naloxone in settings where other 
options are not available or allowed. 

3. Training and education regarding naloxone and other drugs that treat overdoses for 
first responders, overdose patients, patients taking opioids, families, schools, and other 
members of the general public. 

4. Enable school nurses and other school staff to respond to opioid overdoses, and 
provide them with naloxone, training, and support. 

5. Expand, improve, or develop data tracking software and applications for 
overdoses/naloxone revivals. 

6. Public education relating to emergency responses to overdoses. 

7. Public education relating to immunity and Good Samaritan laws. 

8. Educate first responders regarding the existence and operation of immunity and Good 
Samaritan laws. 

9. Expand access to testing and treatment for infectious diseases such as HIV and 
Hepatitis C resulting from intravenous opioid use. 

10. Support mobile units that offer or provide referrals to treatment, recovery supports, 
health care, or other appropriate services to persons that use opioids or persons with 
OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction. 

11. Provide training in treatment and recovery strategies to health care providers, students, 
peer recovery coaches, recovery outreach specialists, or other professionals that 
provide care to persons who use opioids or persons with OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction. 

12. Support screening for fentanyl in routine clinical toxicology testing. 



I. 

PART THREE: OTHER STRATEGIES 

FIRST RESPONDERS 

  

In addition to items C8, D1 through D7, H1, H3, and HS, support the following: 

1. 

2. 

J. 

Current and future law enforcement expenditures relating to the opioid epidemic. 

Educate law enforcement or other first responders regarding appropriate practices and 

precautions when dealing with fentanyl or other drugs. 

LEADERSHIP, PLANNING AND COORDINATION 

Support efforts to provide leadership, planning, and coordination to abate the opioid epidemic 
through activities, programs, or strategies that may include, but are not limited to, the 
following: 

1. 

K. 

Community regional planning to identify goals for reducing harms related to the 

opioid epidemic, to identify areas and populations with the greatest needs for treatment 
intervention services, or to support other strategies to abate the opioid epidemic 

described in this opioid abatement strategy list. 

A government dashboard to track key opioid-related indicators and supports as 
identified through collaborative community processes. 

Invest in infrastructure or staffing at government or not-for-profit agencies to support 

collaborative, cross-system coordination with the purpose of preventing 
overprescribing, opioid misuse, or opioid overdoses, treating those with OUD and any 

co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, supporting them in 
treatment or recovery, connecting them to care, or implementing other strategies to 

abate the opioid epidemic described in this opioid abatement strategy list. 

Provide resources to staff government oversight and management of opioid abatement 
programs. 

TRAINING 

In addition to the training referred to in various items above, support training to abate the 

opioid epidemic through activities, programs, or strategies that may include, but are not 
limited to, the following: 

1. Provide funding for staff training or networking programs and services to improve the 

capability of government, community, and not-for-profit entities to abate the opioid 

crisis.

 

 
 

 

PART THREE: OTHER STRATEGIES 

 
I. FIRST RESPONDERS  

In addition to items C8, D1 through D7, H1, H3, and H8, support the following: 

1. Current and future law enforcement expenditures relating to the opioid epidemic. 

2. Educate law enforcement or other first responders regarding appropriate practices and 
precautions when dealing with fentanyl or other drugs. 

J. LEADERSHIP, PLANNING AND COORDINATION 

Support efforts to provide leadership, planning, and coordination to abate the opioid epidemic 
through activities, programs, or strategies that may include, but are not limited to, the 
following: 

1. Community regional planning to identify goals for reducing harms related to the 
opioid epidemic, to identify areas and populations with the greatest needs for treatment 
intervention services, or to support other strategies to abate the opioid epidemic 
described in this opioid abatement strategy list. 

2. A government dashboard to track key opioid-related indicators and supports as 
identified through collaborative community processes. 

3. Invest in infrastructure or staffing at government or not-for-profit agencies to support 
collaborative, cross-system coordination with the purpose of preventing 
overprescribing, opioid misuse, or opioid overdoses, treating those with OUD and any 
co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, supporting them in 
treatment or recovery, connecting them to care, or implementing other strategies to 
abate the opioid epidemic described in this opioid abatement strategy list. 

4. Provide resources to staff government oversight and management of opioid abatement 
programs. 

K. TRAINING  

In addition to the training referred to in various items above, support training to abate the 
opioid epidemic through activities, programs, or strategies that may include, but are not 
limited to, the following: 

1. Provide funding for staff training or networking programs and services to improve the 
capability of government, community, and not-for-profit entities to abate the opioid 
crisis. 



2. 

L. 

Invest in infrastructure and staffing for collaborative cross-system coordination to 

prevent opioid misuse, prevent overdoses, and treat those with OUD and any co- 
occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, or implement other 

strategies to abate the opioid epidemic described in this opioid abatement strategy list 
(e.g., health care, primary care, pharmacies, PDMPs, etc.). 

RESEARCH 

Support opioid abatement research that may include, but is not limited to, the following: 

1. Monitoring, surveillance, and evaluation of programs and strategies described in this 
opioid abatement strategy list. 

Research non-opioid treatment of chronic pain. 

Research on improved service delivery for modalities such as SBIRT that demonstrate 
promising but mixed results in populations vulnerable to opioid use disorders. 

Research on innovative supply-side enforcement efforts such as improved detection 

of mail-based delivery of synthetic opioids. 

Expanded research on swift/certain/fair models to reduce and deter opioid misuse 
within criminal justice populations that build upon promising approaches used to 

address other substances (e.g. Hawaii HOPE and Dakota 24/7). 

. Research on expanded modalities such as prescription methadone that can expand 
access to MAT.

 

 
 

2. Invest in infrastructure and staffing for collaborative cross-system coordination to 
prevent opioid misuse, prevent overdoses, and treat those with OUD and any co- 
occurring SUD/MH conditions, co-usage, and/or co-addiction, or implement other 
strategies to abate the opioid epidemic described in this opioid abatement strategy list 
(e.g., health care, primary care, pharmacies, PDMPs, etc.). 

L. RESEARCH  

Support opioid abatement research that may include, but is not limited to, the following: 

1. Monitoring, surveillance, and evaluation of programs and strategies described in this 
opioid abatement strategy list. 

2. Research non-opioid treatment of chronic pain. 

3. Research on improved service delivery for modalities such as SBIRT that demonstrate 
promising but mixed results in populations vulnerable to opioid use disorders. 

4. Research on innovative supply-side enforcement efforts such as improved detection 
of mail-based delivery of synthetic opioids. 

5. Expanded research on swift/certain/fair models to reduce and deter opioid misuse 
within criminal justice populations that build upon promising approaches used to 
address other substances (e.g. Hawaii HOPE and Dakota 24/7). 

6 .  Research on expanded modalities such as prescription methadone that can expand 
access to MAT. 

  



Exhibit BExhibit B

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit B 
 



  

Exhibit B 

Allocation to Arizona Counties/Regions 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

County/Region Percentage of LG Share 

APACHE 0.690% 

COCHISE 1.855% 

COCONINO 1.688% 

GILA 1.142% 

GRAHAM 0.719% 

GREENLEE 0.090% 

LA PAZ 0.301% 

MARICOPA 57.930% 

MOHAVE 4.898% 

NAVAJO 1.535% 

PIMA 18.647% 

PINAL 3.836% 

SANTA CRUZ 0.370% 

YAVAPAI 4.291% 

YUMA 2.008%   
  

  
 

 
 

Exhibit B 
Allocation to Arizona Counties/Regions 

County/Region Percentage of LG Share 

APACHE  0.690% 
COCHISE  1.855% 
COCONINO  1.688% 
GILA  1.142% 
GRAHAM  0.719% 
GREENLEE  0.090% 
LA PAZ  0.301% 
MARICOPA  57.930% 
MOHAVE  4.898% 
NAVAJO  1.535% 
PIMA  18.647% 
PINAL  3.836% 
SANTA CRUZ  0.370% 
YAVAPAI  4.291% 
YUMA  2.008% 

 
  



Exhibit CExhibit C

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit C 
 



Government Name County Name State Name Government Type Census ID Intra-county Allocation (%) 

Based on Past Spending 

            

  

  

  

  

  

    
            

APACHE COUNTY Apache County ARIZONA County 3100100100000 56.63% 

EAGAR TOWN Apache County ARIZONA City 3200100100000 20.66% 

SPRINGERVILLE TOWN Apache County ARIZONA City 3200100300000 10.73% 

ST JOHNS CITY Apache County ARIZONA City 3200100200000 11.98% 

COCHISE COUNTY Cochise County ARIZONA County 3100200200000 63.47% 

BENSON CITY Cochise County ARIZONA City 3200200100000 3.52% 

BISBEE CITY 547% 
DOUGLAS CITY Cochise County ARIZONA City 3200200300000 8.44% 

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN Cochise County ARIZONA City 3200250100000 0.91% 

SIERRA VISTA CITY Cochise County ARIZONA City 3200200400000 16.63% 

TOMBSTONE CITY Cochise County ARIZONA City 3200200500000 1.16% 

WILLCOX CITY Cochise County ARIZONA City 3200200600000 2.39% 

COCONINO COUNTY Coconino County | ARIZONA County 3100300300000 71.16% 

FLAGSTAFF CITY Coconino County | ARIZONA City 3200300100000 18.45% 

FREDONIA TOWN Coconino County | ARIZONA City 3200300300000 0.31% 

PAGE CITY Coconino County | ARIZONA City 3200390100000 3.41% 

SEDONA CITY Coconino County | ARIZONA City 3201340200000 4.09% 

TUSAYAN TOWN Coconino County | ARIZONA City 3200310100000 0.67% 

WILLIAMS CITY Coconino County | ARIZONA City 3200300200000 1.92% 

~~ _6emacoNwv:. 
GILA COUNTY Gila County ARIZONA County 3100400400000 68.13% 

GLOBE CITY Gila County ARIZONA City 3200400100000 10.23%   
 

 

 
 

 
 

Exhibit C 
Government Name County Name State Name Government Type Census ID Intra-county Allocation (%) 

Based on Past Spending 

APACHE COUNTY 

APACHE COUNTY Apache County ARIZONA County 3100100100000 56.63% 

EAGAR TOWN Apache County ARIZONA City 3200100100000 20.66% 

SPRINGERVILLE TOWN Apache County ARIZONA City 3200100300000 10.73% 

ST JOHNS CITY Apache County ARIZONA City 3200100200000 11.98% 

COCHISE COUNTY 

COCHISE COUNTY Cochise County ARIZONA County 3100200200000 63.47% 

BENSON CITY Cochise County ARIZONA City 3200200100000 3.52% 

BISBEE CITY Cochise County ARIZONA City 3200200200000 3.47% 

DOUGLAS CITY Cochise County ARIZONA City 3200200300000 8.44% 

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN Cochise County ARIZONA City 3200250100000 0.91% 

SIERRA VISTA CITY Cochise County ARIZONA City 3200200400000 16.63% 

TOMBSTONE CITY Cochise County ARIZONA City 3200200500000 1.16% 

WILLCOX CITY Cochise County ARIZONA City 3200200600000 2.39% 

COCONINO COUNTY 

COCONINO COUNTY Coconino County ARIZONA County 3100300300000 71.16% 

FLAGSTAFF CITY Coconino County ARIZONA City 3200300100000 18.45% 

FREDONIA TOWN Coconino County ARIZONA City 3200300300000 0.31% 

PAGE CITY Coconino County ARIZONA City 3200390100000 3.41% 

SEDONA CITY Coconino County ARIZONA City 3201340200000 4.09% 

TUSAYAN TOWN Coconino County ARIZONA City 3200310100000 0.67% 

WILLIAMS CITY Coconino County ARIZONA City 3200300200000 1.92% 

GILA COUNTY 

GILA COUNTY Gila County ARIZONA County 3100400400000 68.13% 

GLOBE CITY Gila County ARIZONA City 3200400100000 10.23% 



  

  

  

    
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

      

HAYDEN TOWN Gila County ARIZONA City 3200450100000 2.31% 

MIAMI TOWN Gila County ARIZONA City 3200400200000 2.71% 

PAYSON TOWN Gila County ARIZONA City 3200490100000 16.17% 

STAR VALLEY TOWN Gila County ARIZONA City 3200410100000 0.35% 

WINKELMAN TOWN Gila County ARIZONA City 3200400300000 0.10% 

GRAHAM COUNTY 

GRAHAM COUNTY Graham County ARIZONA County 3100500500000 62.26% 

PIMA TOWN Graham County ARIZONA City 3200500100000 2.22% 

SAFFORD CITY Graham County ARIZONA City 3200500200000 26.83% 

THATCHER TOWN Graham County ARIZONA City 3200500300000 8.68% 

GREENLEE COUNTY 

GREENLEE COUNTY Greenlee County ARIZONA County 3100600600000 88.29% 

CLIFTON TOWN Greenlee County ARIZONA City 3200600100000 11.43% 

DUNCAN TOWN Greenlee County ARIZONA City 3200600200000 0.28% 

LA PAZ COUNTY 

LA PAZ COUNTY La Paz County ARIZONA County 3101501500000 88.71% 

PARKER TOWN La Paz County ARIZONA City 3201560100000 5.19% 

QUARTZSITE TOWN La Paz County ARIZONA City 3201540100000 6.11% 

MARICOPA COUNTY 

MARICOPA COUNTY Maricopa County ARIZONA County 3100700700000 51.53% 

APACHE JUNCTION CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3201160100000 0.38% 

AVONDALE CITY Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200700100000 0.98% 

BUCKEYE TOWN Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200700200000 0.46% 

CAREFREE TOWN Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200740100000 0.04% 

CAVE CREEK TOWN Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200740200000 0.06% 

CHANDLER CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200700300000 2.86% 

EL MIRAGE CITY Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200700400000 0.39% 

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200740400000 0.17% 

GILA BEND TOWN Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200770100000 0.03%               
  

 

 

 
 

HAYDEN TOWN Gila County ARIZONA City 3200450100000 2.31% 

MIAMI TOWN Gila County ARIZONA City 3200400200000 2.71% 

PAYSON TOWN Gila County ARIZONA City 3200490100000 16.17% 

STAR VALLEY TOWN Gila County ARIZONA City 3200410100000 0.35% 

WINKELMAN TOWN Gila County ARIZONA City 3200400300000 0.10% 

GRAHAM COUNTY 

GRAHAM COUNTY Graham County ARIZONA County 3100500500000 62.26% 

PIMA TOWN Graham County ARIZONA City 3200500100000 2.22% 

SAFFORD CITY Graham County ARIZONA City 3200500200000 26.83% 

THATCHER TOWN Graham County ARIZONA City 3200500300000 8.68% 

GREENLEE COUNTY 

GREENLEE COUNTY Greenlee County ARIZONA County 3100600600000 88.29% 

CLIFTON TOWN Greenlee County ARIZONA City 3200600100000 11.43% 

DUNCAN TOWN Greenlee County ARIZONA City 3200600200000 0.28% 

LA PAZ COUNTY 

LA PAZ COUNTY La Paz County ARIZONA County 3101501500000 88.71% 

PARKER TOWN La Paz County ARIZONA City 3201560100000 5.19% 

QUARTZSITE TOWN La Paz County ARIZONA City 3201540100000 6.11% 

MARICOPA COUNTY 

MARICOPA COUNTY Maricopa County ARIZONA County 3100700700000 51.53% 

APACHE JUNCTION CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3201160100000 0.38% 

AVONDALE CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200700100000 0.98% 

BUCKEYE TOWN Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200700200000 0.46% 

CAREFREE TOWN Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200740100000 0.04% 

CAVE CREEK TOWN Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200740200000 0.06% 

CHANDLER CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200700300000 2.86% 

EL MIRAGE CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200700400000 0.39% 

FOUNTAIN HILLS TOWN Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200740400000 0.17% 

GILA BEND TOWN Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200770100000 0.03% 



  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

GILBERT TOWN Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200700500000 1.71% 

GLENDALE CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200700600000 2.63% 

GOODYEAR CITY Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200700700000 0.76% 

GUADALUPE TOWN Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200790100000 0.00% 

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200740300000 0.04% 

MESA CITY Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200700800000 6.06% 

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN | Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200750100000 0.34% 

PEORIA CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200700900000 1.51% 

PHOENIX CITY Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200701000000 21.28% 

QUEEN CREEK TOWN Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200740500000 0.11% 

SCOTTSDALE CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200701100000 3.99% 

SURPRISE CITY Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200750200000 0.98% 

TEMPE CITY Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200701200000 3.27% 

TOLLESON CITY Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200701300000 0.27% 

WICKENBURG TOWN Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200701400000 0.10% 

YOUNGTOWN TOWN Maricopa County | ARIZONA City 3200750300000 0.05% 

MOHAVE COUNTY 

MOHAVE COUNTY Mohave County ARIZONA County 3100800800000 62.51% 

BULLHEAD CITY CITY Mohave County ARIZONA City 3200840100000 13.10% 

COLORADO CITY TOWN Mohave County ARIZONA City 3200840200000 0.61% 

KINGMAN CITY Mohave County ARIZONA City 3200800100000 9.91% 

LAKE HAVASU CITY CITY | Mohave County ARIZONA City 3200860100000 13.87% 

NAVAJO COUNTY 

NAVAJO COUNTY Navajo County ARIZONA County 3100900900000 70.29% 

HOLBROOK CITY Navajo County ARIZONA City 3200900100000 3.75% 

PINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN | Navajo County ARIZONA City 3200940100000 4.75% 

SHOW LOW CITY Navajo County ARIZONA City 3200900200000 9.39% 

SNOWFLAKE TOWN Navajo County ARIZONA City 3200900300000 2.94% 

TAYLOR TOWN Navajo County ARIZONA City 3200980100000 2.68%                 
  

 

 

 
 

GILBERT TOWN Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200700500000 1.71% 

GLENDALE CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200700600000 2.63% 

GOODYEAR CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200700700000 0.76% 

GUADALUPE TOWN Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200790100000 0.00% 

LITCHFIELD PARK CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200740300000 0.04% 

MESA CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200700800000 6.06% 

PARADISE VALLEY TOWN Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200750100000 0.34% 

PEORIA CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200700900000 1.51% 

PHOENIX CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200701000000 21.28% 

QUEEN CREEK TOWN Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200740500000 0.11% 

SCOTTSDALE CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200701100000 3.99% 

SURPRISE CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200750200000 0.98% 

TEMPE CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200701200000 3.27% 

TOLLESON CITY Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200701300000 0.27% 

WICKENBURG TOWN Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200701400000 0.10% 

YOUNGTOWN TOWN Maricopa County ARIZONA City 3200750300000 0.05% 

MOHAVE COUNTY 

MOHAVE COUNTY Mohave County ARIZONA County 3100800800000 62.51% 

BULLHEAD CITY CITY Mohave County ARIZONA City 3200840100000 13.10% 

COLORADO CITY TOWN Mohave County ARIZONA City 3200840200000 0.61% 

KINGMAN CITY Mohave County ARIZONA City 3200800100000 9.91% 

LAKE HAVASU CITY CITY Mohave County ARIZONA City 3200860100000 13.87% 

NAVAJO COUNTY 

NAVAJO COUNTY Navajo County ARIZONA County 3100900900000 70.29% 

HOLBROOK CITY Navajo County ARIZONA City 3200900100000 3.75% 

PINETOP-LAKESIDE TOWN Navajo County ARIZONA City 3200940100000 4.75% 

SHOW LOW CITY Navajo County ARIZONA City 3200900200000 9.39% 

SNOWFLAKE TOWN Navajo County ARIZONA City 3200900300000 2.94% 

TAYLOR TOWN Navajo County ARIZONA City 3200980100000 2.68% 



  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

                  

WINSLOW CITY Navajo County ARIZONA City 3200900400000 6.19% 

PIMA COUNTY 

PIMA COUNTY Pima County ARIZONA County 3101001000000 72.19% 

MARANA TOWN Pima County ARIZONA City 3201090200000 2.06% 

ORO VALLEY TOWN Pima County ARIZONA City 3201090100000 1.72% 

SAHUARITA TOWN Pima County ARIZONA City 3201020100000 0.81% 

SOUTH TUCSON CITY Pima County ARIZONA City 3201000100000 0.31% 

TUCSON CITY Pima County ARIZONA City 3201000200000 22.91% 

PINAL COUNTY 

PINAL COUNTY Pinal County ARIZONA County 3101101100000 53.01% 

CASA GRANDE CITY Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201100100000 5.54% 

COOLIDGE CITY Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201100200000 1.68% 

ELOY CITY Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201100300000 34.98% 

FLORENCE TOWN Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201100400000 1.19% 

KEARNY TOWN Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201150100000 0.28% 

MAMMOTH TOWN Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201150200000 0.16% 

MARICOPA CITY Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201110100000 2.73% 

SUPERIOR TOWN Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201190100000 0.44% 

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY Santa Cruz County | ARIZONA County 3101201200000 76.78% 

NOGALES CITY Santa Cruz County | ARIZONA City 3201200100000 22.55% 

PATAGONIA TOWN Santa Cruz County | ARIZONA City 3201200200000 0.67% 

YAVAPAI COUNTY 

YAVAPAI COUNTY Yavapai County ARIZONA County 3101301300000 69.31% 

CAMP VERDE TOWN Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201340100000 0.97% 

CHINO VALLEY TOWN Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201380100000 0.68% 

CLARKDALE TOWN Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201350100000 0.72% 

COTTONWOOD CITY Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201350200000 4.89% 
  

 

 

 
 

WINSLOW CITY Navajo County ARIZONA City 3200900400000 6.19% 

PIMA COUNTY 

PIMA COUNTY Pima County ARIZONA County 3101001000000 72.19% 

MARANA TOWN Pima County ARIZONA City 3201090200000 2.06% 

ORO VALLEY TOWN Pima County ARIZONA City 3201090100000 1.72% 

SAHUARITA TOWN Pima County ARIZONA City 3201020100000 0.81% 

SOUTH TUCSON CITY Pima County ARIZONA City 3201000100000 0.31% 

TUCSON CITY Pima County ARIZONA City 3201000200000 22.91% 

PINAL COUNTY 

PINAL COUNTY Pinal County ARIZONA County 3101101100000 53.01% 

CASA GRANDE CITY Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201100100000 5.54% 

COOLIDGE CITY Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201100200000 1.68% 

ELOY CITY Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201100300000 34.98% 

FLORENCE TOWN Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201100400000 1.19% 

KEARNY TOWN Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201150100000 0.28% 

MAMMOTH TOWN Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201150200000 0.16% 

MARICOPA CITY Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201110100000 2.73% 

SUPERIOR TOWN Pinal County ARIZONA City 3201190100000 0.44% 

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY Santa Cruz County ARIZONA County 3101201200000 76.78% 

NOGALES CITY Santa Cruz County ARIZONA City 3201200100000 22.55% 

PATAGONIA TOWN Santa Cruz County ARIZONA City 3201200200000 0.67% 

YAVAPAI COUNTY 

YAVAPAI COUNTY Yavapai County ARIZONA County 3101301300000 69.31% 

CAMP VERDE TOWN Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201340100000 0.97% 

CHINO VALLEY TOWN Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201380100000 0.68% 

CLARKDALE TOWN Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201350100000 0.72% 

COTTONWOOD CITY Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201350200000 4.89% 



  

  

  

  

  

                

DEWEY-HUMBOLDT Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201310100000 1.54% 
TOWN 

JEROME TOWN Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201300100000 0.03% 

PRESCOTT CITY Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201300200000 13.79% 

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN | Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201360100000 8.09% 

YUMA COUNTY 

YUMA COUNTY Yuma County ARIZONA County 3101401400000 66.03% 

SAN LUIS CITY Yuma County ARIZONA City 3201460100000 4.80% 

SOMERTON CITY Yuma County ARIZONA City 3201400200000 2.24% 

WELLTON TOWN Yuma County ARIZONA City 3201480100000 0.61% 

YUMA CITY Yuma County ARIZONA City 3201400300000 26.32% 
  

 

 

 
 

DEWEY-HUMBOLDT 
TOWN 

Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201310100000 1.54% 

JEROME TOWN Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201300100000 0.03% 

PRESCOTT CITY Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201300200000 13.79% 

PRESCOTT VALLEY TOWN Yavapai County ARIZONA City 3201360100000 8.09% 

YUMA COUNTY 

YUMA COUNTY Yuma County ARIZONA County 3101401400000 66.03% 

SAN LUIS CITY Yuma County ARIZONA City 3201460100000 4.80% 

SOMERTON CITY Yuma County ARIZONA City 3201400200000 2.24% 

WELLTON TOWN Yuma County ARIZONA City 3201480100000 0.61% 

YUMA CITY Yuma County ARIZONA City 3201400300000 26.32% 



Exhibit DExhibit D

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit D 



Percent 

Participation of Award 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

(@513 (2 

0 0% 

5 2% 

10 4%, 

15 6% 

20 8% 

25 10% 

30 12% 

35 14% 

40 16% 

45 18% 

50 20% 

55 22% 

60 24% 

65 26% 

70 28% 

75 30% 

80 32% 

85 34% 

90 36% 

95 38% 

100 40%        

 

 
 

Exhibit D 

Percent 
Participation of 

Cities 

Award 

0 0% 
5 2% 
10 4% 
15 6% 
20 8% 
25 10% 
30 12% 
35 14% 
40 16% 
45 18% 
50 20% 
55 22% 
60 24% 
65 26% 
70 28% 
75 30% 
80 32% 
85 34% 
90 36% 
95 38% 
100 40% 

 
 



Agreement No.NRD-24-OS1 Page 147 Res. No. 5810
 

EXHIBIT B TO AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

SCOPE OF WORK 
EMPACT-SPC’s “Youth Opioid Prevention Program" addresses youth substance abuse prevention, 
including the prevention of opioid use/abuse. The target population for this project will be youth, ages 10-
17, within the City of Chandler, and their parents/guardians. Major risk factors include drug availability, drug-
using peers, and lack of parental supervision. Major protective factors include good coping and problem-
solving skills, strong community attachment, and positive norms. A minimum of 625 youth will be served. 

Two evidenced-based curricula, Two Good for Drugs and Operation Prevention will be used to provide 
alcohol and drug prevention and opioid education. Too Good for Drugs is a school-based prevention 
program that focuses on building resiliency in students by teaching social competencies that reduce risk 
factors and build protective factors. Risk factors include drug-using peers and norms favoring alcohol and 
drug use. Protective factors include good coping and problem-solving skills, and positive norms. The 
program educates youth about the negative effects of drug use and the benefits of being drug-free while 
developing skills to increase positive decision-making, goal setting, self-respect, and how to resist peer 
pressure. Too Good for Drugs consists of 10 lessons presented in weekly, 1-hour sessions, to students in a 
classroom/group setting. The Too Good for Drugs curriculum also has a parent component, which includes 
a newsletter for parents, to extend prevention skills and messages into the home environment. Parents will 
be invited to participate in an educational workshop at each school/program site to increase their knowledge 
about the negative effects of drug/alcohol use, and how to support a message of ‘non-use’ in the home. 
Lack of parental supervision is a major risk factor addressed in this program component, while parental 
support will be the major protective factor to be fostered. 

The Operation Prevention curricula is a national program developed by the Drug Enforcement Administration 
(DEA) and Discovery Education. The program is designed for you grades 6-12 to address substance misuse 
in schools and communities, and the opioid health crisis. The use of this curriculum meets Strategy 4 from 
the Arizona’s Prescription Drug Misuse and Abuse Initiative, which focuses on increasing public awareness 
about prescription drug misuse and abuse. Built for a 45-60-minute time block, Operation Prevention 
complements other substance abuse prevention programs such as Too Good for Drugs, or it can be a stand-
alone presentation. 

OUTCOMES 
EMPACT will provide 6,250 hours of service. The program objectives/outcomes include the following: 
1. Participants will demonstrate a 15% increase in knowledge about the harmful effects of alcohol and

other drugs of abuse, including opioids, using a program pre/post-test.
2. Participants will demonstrate a 15% increase in knowledge of pro-social attitudes and resistance skills,

using a program pre/post-test.

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
Prior to implementation, contractor shall develop and/or share the projects evaluation plan with the city that 
should include metrics for how success will be measured and opportunities for improvement. 

Prior to implementation, Contractor will submit any training or educational materials to the city for review 
and approval. 

Contactor shall provide quarterly and annual reports using a template to be provided by the city, which will 
include: 

A. Narrative description of project activities achieved during specified timeframe
B. Accomplishments/success stories and challenges
C. Staffing changes
D. Current budget and description of any over or underspending
E. Evaluation metrics (e.g. actual numbers served)

All underlying documentation for the reporting shall be retained for a minimum of five years, notwithstanding 
any other applicable documentation retention or destruction policy, in order to facilitate verification that funds 
have been used for the approved purpose for which funds have been awarded. 

Additional reporting requirements may be required by the city at any time. 



Agreement No.NRD-24-OS1 Page 148 Res. No. 5810
 

MONITORING 
The primary purpose of monitoring is to ensure that One Arizona Agreement funds are being invested in the 
manner stated in this Scope of Services and Exhibit B, and confirm that Contractor is otherwise in compliance 
with this Agreement. City staff monitor Contractors through reporting and onsite visits. Onsite visits may include 
an agency visit demonstrating Contractor’s performance of the services and providing an opportunity for City 
staff to observe operations.  

City staff will coordinate with Contractor to schedule onsite monitoring at a mutually agreed upon timeCity staff 
will let agencies know the number of participants in advance. In the event that Contractor chooses to include 
program participants in the tour, Contractor must ensure participant consent in accordance with state and 
federal laws, as applicable. Photographs and/or video may be taken only with permission of all participants and 
in accordance with Contractor’s policy. 

Should significant concerns be identified during a monitoring visit, City staff will notify the Contractor contact by 
phone and follow-up with a written report outlining concerns. Contractor must respond in writing as directed in 
the written report. The City reserves the right to perform follow-up visits to ensure concerns have been rectified. 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES  
The Contractor may provide other related services upon request from the City. 



Agreement No.NRD-24-OS1 Page 149 Res. No. 5810
 

EXHIBIT C TO AGREEMENT 
COMPENSATION AND FEES 

SERVICES BUDGET 

(A) Cost Component (B) Chandler Costs
Salaries & Wages 32,751.00$  
Fringe Benefits 9,079.00$  

TOTAL PERSONNEL 41,830.00$  
Professional Services 1,086.00$  
Phone / Internet 211.00$  
Rent
Utilities 13.00$  
Insurance 159.00$  
Maintenance 13.00$  
Travel/Mileage 2,500.00$  
Fingerprinting
License / Fees
Education / Training
Commodities (Materials & Supplies)
Program / Office Supplies 1,499.00$  
Printing
PPE and Disinfection
Other - Depreciation 78.00$  
Other - Overhead 2,611.00$  
Other

TOTAL OPERATIONS 8,170.00$  
TOTAL BUDGET 50,000.00$  

SERVICES BUDGET NARRATIVE 

Salaries & Wages 
Prevention Specialist, 0.625 FTE 
The prevention specialist will provide opioid prevention and education services to youth and their parents 
across the City of Chandler.  

The remaining budget categories serve to support the .625 FTEs: 

Professional Services include service and contracts provided by outside vendors.  

Phone/Internet is the agency-wide telephone and internet systems, and mobile phones for the staff while in the 
field.  

Utilities are the water, electricity, and trash service for the building where staff are located.  

Insurance is the general, cyber, and D&O insurance for the agency.  

Maintenance includes the cost of general repairs and ongoing maintenance to EMPACT's facility. 

Travel/Mileage is to cover the mileage for staff when traveling around Chandler.  

Program/Office Supplies includes the cost of incentives for the youth in their participation.  



Agreement No.NRD-24-OS1 Page 150 Res. No. 5810
 

Other includes Depreciation and Overhead which are normal costs of doing business. 

ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS 
No more than 10% of the Agency’s requested funds will be used for program administration and/or 
evaluation. 



Agreement No.NRD-24-OS1 Page 151 Res. No. 5810
 

EXHIBIT D TO AGREEMENT 
INSURANCE 

INSURANCE 
General. 

A. At the same time as execution of this Agreement, the Contractor shall furnish the City a certificate
of insurance on a standard insurance industry ACORD form.  The ACORD form must be issued
by an insurance company authorized to transact business in the State of Arizona possessing a
current A.M. Best, Inc. rating of A-7, or better and legally authorized to do business in the State
of Arizona with policies and forms satisfactory to City.  Provided, however, the A.M. Best rating
requirement shall not be deemed to apply to required Workers’ Compensation coverage.

B. The Contractor and any of its subcontractors shall procure and maintain, until all of their
obligations have been discharged, including any warranty periods under this Agreement are
satisfied, the insurances set forth below.

C. The insurance requirements set forth below are minimum requirements for this Agreement and
in no way limit the indemnity covenants contained in this Agreement.

D. The City in no way warrants that the minimum insurance limits contained in this Agreement are
sufficient to protect Contractor from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of the
Agreement services under this Agreement by Contractor, its agents, representatives, employees,
subcontractors, and the Contractor is free to purchase any additional insurance as may be
determined necessary.

E. Failure to demand evidence of full compliance with the insurance requirements in this Agreement
or failure to identify any insurance deficiency will not relieve the Contractor from, nor will it be
considered a waiver of its obligation to maintain the required insurance at all times during the
performance of this Agreement.

F. Use of Subcontractors:  If any work is subcontracted in any way, the Contractor shall execute a
written contract with Subcontractor containing the same Indemnification Clause and Insurance
Requirements as the City requires of the Contractor in this Agreement. The Contractor is
responsible for executing the Agreement with the Subcontractor and obtaining Certificates of
Insurance and verifying the insurance requirements.

Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance.  The Contractor shall provide coverage with limits of liability not less 
than those stated below. 

A. Commercial General Liability-Occurrence Form.  Contractor must maintain “occurrence” form
Commercial General Liability insurance with a limit of not less than $2,000,000 for each
occurrence, $4,000,000 aggregate.  Said insurance must also include coverage for products and
completed operations, independent contractors, personal injury and advertising injury. If any
Excess insurance is utilized to fulfill the requirements of this paragraph, the Excess insurance
must be “follow form” equal or broader in coverage scope than underlying insurance.

B. Automobile Liability-Any Auto or Owned, Hired and Non-Owned Vehicles
Vehicle Liability:  Contractor must maintain Business/Automobile Liability insurance with a limit
of $1,000,000 each accident on Contractor owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles assigned to
or used in the performance of the Contractor’s work or services under this Agreement.  If any
Excess or Umbrella insurance is utilized to fulfill the requirements of this paragraph, the Excess
or Umbrella insurance must be “follow form” equal or broader in coverage scope than underlying
insurance.

C. Workers Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance:  Contractor must maintain Workers
Compensation insurance to cover obligations imposed by federal and state statutes having
jurisdiction of Contractor employees engaged in the performance of work or services under this
Agreement and must also maintain Employers’ Liability insurance of not less than $1,000,000 for
each accident and $1,000,000 disease for each employee.



Agreement No.NRD-24-OS1 Page 152 Res. No. 5810
 

Additional Policy Provisions Required. 

A. Self-Insured Retentions or Deductibles.  Any self-insured retentions and deductibles must be
declared and approved by the City.  If not approved, the City may require that the insurer reduce or
eliminate any deductible or self-insured retentions with respect to the City, its officers, officials,
agents, employees, and volunteers.

1. The Contractor’s insurance must contain broad form contractual liability coverage.

2. The Contractor's insurance coverage must be primary insurance with respect to the City, its
officers, officials, agents, and employees.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the
City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees shall be in excess of the coverage provided
by the Contractor and must not contribute to it.

3. The Contractor's insurance must apply separately to each insured against whom claim is
made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.

4. Coverage provided by the Contractor must not be limited to the liability assumed under the
indemnification provisions of this Agreement.

5. The policies must contain a severability of interest clause and waiver of subrogation against
the City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, for losses arising from Work performed
by the Contractor for the City.

6. The Contractor, its successors and or assigns, are required to maintain Commercial General
Liability insurance as specified in this Agreement for a minimum period of 3 years following
completion and acceptance of the Work.  The Contractor must submit a Certificate of
Insurance evidencing Commercial General Liability insurance during this 3 year period
containing all the Agreement insurance requirements, including naming the City of Chandler,
its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials and employees as Additional Insured
as required.

7. If a Certificate of Insurance is submitted as verification of coverage, the City will reasonably
rely upon the Certificate of Insurance as evidence of coverage but this acceptance and
reliance will not waive or alter in any way the insurance requirements or obligations of this
Agreement.

B. Insurance Cancellation During Term of Contract/Agreement.

1. If any of the required policies expire during the life of this Contract/Agreement, the Contractor
must forward renewal or replacement Certificates to the City within 10 days after the renewal
date containing all the required insurance provisions.

2. Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Contract/Agreement shall
provide the required coverage and shall not be suspended, voided or canceled except after
thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the City, except when cancellation is
for non-payment of premium, then ten (10) days prior notice may be given.  Such notice shall
be sent directly to Chandler Law-Risk Management Department, Post Office Box 4008,
Mailstop 628, Chandler, Arizona 85244-4008. If any insurance company refuses to provide
the required notice, the Contractor or its insurance broker shall notify the City of any
cancellation, suspension, non-renewal of any insurance within seven (7) days of receipt of
insurers’ notification to that effect.

C. City as Additional Insured.  The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following
provisions:

1. The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policies are to contain, or be
endorsed to contain, the following provisions:  The City, its officers, officials, agents, and
employees are additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of activities performed
by, or on behalf of, the Contractor including the City's general supervision of the Contractor;
Products and Completed operations of the Contractor; and automobiles owned, leased,
hired, or borrowed by the Contractor.



Agreement No.NRD-24-OS1 Page 153 Res. No. 5810
 

2. The City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees must be additional insureds to the full
limits of liability purchased by the Contractor even if those limits of liability are in excess of
those required by this Agreement.



Agreement No.NRD-24-OS1 Page 154 Res. No. 5810
 

EXHIBIT E 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

Contractor and Subcontractor Worker Background Screening. Contractor agrees that all contract workers and 
subcontractors (collectively Contract Worker(s)) that Contractor furnishes to the City pursuant to this Agreement 
shall be subject to background and security checks and screening (collectively Background Screening) at 
Contractor's sole cost and expense as set forth in this Section. The Background Screening provided by Contractor 
shall comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations. Contractor further agrees that the Background 
Screening required in this Section is necessary to preserve and protect public health, safety and welfare. The 
Background Screening requirements set forth in this Section are the minimum requirements for this Agreement. 
The City in no way warrants that these minimum requirements are sufficient to protect Contractor from any 
liabilities that may arise out of Contractor's services under this Agreement or Contractor's failure to comply with 
this Section. Therefore, in addition to the specific measures set forth below, Contractor and its Contract Workers 
shall take such other reasonable, prudent and necessary measures to further preserve and protect public health, 
safety and welfare when providing services under this Agreement. 

Background Screening Requirements and Criteria.  Before offering or scheduling any services under this 
Agreement, Contractor agrees that all Contract Workers, including the Contractor, if the Contractor is an individual 
or sole proprietorship, must have successfully passed a Background Screening in accordance with this Section. 
Contractor warrants that no person will be permitted to substitute for a Contract Worker who has satisfied the 
Background Screening requirements until the proposed substitute has also satisfied the Background Screening 
requirements in this Section. For review and approval, Contractor must submit to a person designated by the City 
proof of a completed Background Screening for each Contract Worker over the age of 18 performing services 
under this Agreement no fewer than two (2) weeks before the proposed start date of such Contract Worker’s 
services. The Background Screening must have been completed within the 12-month period preceding the 
Contract Worker’s start date under this Agreement and must include the results of a national criminal databased 
check with source verification, and a sex offender database search.  Contract Workers who work directly with 
children or vulnerable adults as defined in A.R.S. § 46-451A.12 are subject to fingerprint verification through the 
Arizona Department of Public Safety pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-1750(G)(23). 

Additional City Rights Regarding Security Inquiries. In addition to the foregoing, the City reserves the right but not 
the obligations to: (1) have a Contract Worker be required to provide fingerprints and execute such other 
documentation as may be necessary to obtain criminal justice information pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-1750(G) (4); 
(2) act on newly acquired information whether or not such information should have been previously discovered;
(3) unilaterally change its standards and criteria relative to the acceptability of Contract Workers; and (4) object,
at any time and for any reason, to a Contract Worker performing work (including supervision and oversight) under
this Contract.

Contractor Certification. By executing this Agreement, Contractor certifies and warrants that Contractor has read 
the Background Screening requirements and criteria in this Section, understands them and that all Background 
Screening information furnished to the City is accurate and current. Also, by executing this Agreement, Contractor 
further certifies and warrants that Contractor has satisfied all such Background Screening requirements as 
required. A Contract Worker rejected for work under this Agreement shall not be proposed to perform work under 
other City contracts or engagements without the City's prior written approval. 

Terms of This Section Applicable to all of Contractor's Contracts and Subcontracts. Contractor shall include the 
terms of this Section for Contract Worker Background Screening in all contracts and subcontracts for services 
furnished under this Agreement including, but not limited to, supervision and oversight services. 

Materiality of Background Screening Requirements: Indemnity. The Background Screening requirements of this 
Section are material to the City's entry into this Agreement and any breach of this Section by Contractor shall be 
deemed a material breach of this Agreement. In addition to the indemnity provisions set forth in Section VII, 
Paragraph D, Indemnification Clause of the General Conditions, Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless the City for any and all Claims arising out of this Background Screening Section including, but not limited 
to, the disqualification of a Contract Worker by Contractor or the City for failure to satisfy this Section. 

Continuing Duty: Audit. Contractor's obligations and requirements that Contract Workers satisfy this Background 
Screening Section shall continue throughout the entire term of this Agreement. Contractor shall notify the City 
immediately of any change to a Background Screening of a Contract Worker previously approved by the City. 
Contractor shall maintain all records and documents related to all Background Screenings and the City reserves 
the right to audit Contractor's compliance with this Section pursuant to Section VII, Paragraph A, "Records/Audit" 
of the General Conditions. 



ITEM  24 

City Council Memorandum      Neighborhood Resources   Memo No. 
NR24-016
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Tadd Wille, Assistant City Manager
Leah Powell, Neighborhood Resources Director
Riann Balch, Community Development and Resources Senior Manager

From: Dylan Raymond, Senior Management Analyst 
Subject:Resolution No. 5814 Amendment No. 1 to Intergovernmental Agreement No.

CC-22-24-037-X-00 between Maricopa County Administered and the City of
Chandler to Accept Community Services Block Grant Funds in the Amount of
$150,000 for Delivery of Housing Stability Services

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5814 approving Amendment
No. 1 to Intergovernmental Agreement No. CC-22-24-037-X-00 between Maricopa
County, administered by its Human Services Department, and the City of
Chandler to accept Community Services Block Grant funds in the amount of
$150,000 for Housing Stability Services; authorizing the City Manager to assign all
related documents and assurances on behalf of the City of Chandler; and
authorizing the City Manager to take all action necessary or prudent to implement
the grant.

Background:
In June 2023, the Maricopa County Human Services Department (MCHSD)
released a Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) for Community Services Block
Grant (CSBG) funds to support safe and affordable housing, safe temporary
shelter, and food and nutrition security. The CSBG Act, which was reauthorized in
1998, provides assistance to states and local communities through a network of
community action agencies and other neighborhood-based organizations to focus
on the reduction of poverty, the revitalization of low-income communities, and the
empowerment of families and individuals with low incomes to become fully



self-supportive. In November 2023, MCHSD awarded the City of Chandler
Neighborhood Resources Department $125,000 of CSBG funding to support
Housing Stability Services from November 1, 2023, through June 30, 2024, with
options to renew for three additional one-year terms. Each additional term allows
maximum funding of $150,000. 

Discussion:
In December 2024, the Chandler City Council approved and authorized IGA No.
CC-22-24-037-X-00 via Resolution No. 5758 to provide Housing Stability Services
through June 30, 2024. Based on positive performance, MCHSD notified the
Neighborhood Resources Department of its intent to amend the IGA to continue
services for one additional year beginning July 1, 2024, and ending June 30, 2025.
This funding supports two 0.5 FTE Housing Stability Senior Specialists and
accompanying programmatic and operating costs. The funding will also support
landlord engagement, housing search and selection, and ongoing case
management services for seventy-five individuals experiencing or at-risk of
homelessness in Chandler.

Financial Implications:
The grant requires a 25% match of $37,500, which is available in the General
Fund portion of funding for the two positions.

Attachments
Resolution No. 5814 - Amendment No. 1 to IGA No. CC-22-24-037-X-00 
Exhibit A - Amendment No. 1 Community Services Block Grant 



RESOLUTION NO.  5814 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
AGREEMENT NO. CC-22-24-037-X-00 BETWEEN MARICOPA COUNTY 
ADMINISTERED BY ITS HUMAN SERVICES DEPARTMENT AND THE 
CITY OF CHANDLER TO ACCEPT COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK 
GRANT FUNDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $150,000; AND AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY MANAGER TO TAKE ALL ACTION NECESSARY OR PRUDENT TO 
IMPLEMENT THE GRANT. 
 

WHEREAS, Maricopa County, acting by and through the Maricopa County Human Services 
Department (“MCHSD”), notified the City of Chandler that it would receive $150,000 of U.S. 
Department of Health and Human Services Community Services Block Grant (“CSBG”) funds for 
fiscal year 2024-2025 to be used in support of Housing Stability Services; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Chandler and MCHSD desire to increase safe and affordable housing in 
the City of Chandler through the continued provision of Housing Stability Services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Chandler and MCHSD wish to execute Amendment No. 1 to 
Intergovernmental Agreement No. CC-22-24-037-X-00 (the “IGA”) to provide for use of the 
CSBG funds for the purpose of providing Housing Stability Services to low-income Chandler 
residents in accordance with CSBG requirements.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona 
as follows: 

 
Section 1.   Accepts the CSBG funds in an amount up to $150,000 from Maricopa County acting 

by and through the MCHSD. 
 
Section 2.  Authorizes the Mayor of the City of Chandler, or his designee, to execute Amendment 

No. 1 to the IGA in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

 
Section 3.   Authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the City, 

appropriate certifications and other documents and take such other actions as are 
necessary or appropriate to carry out the intent of this Resolution, administer the 
CSBG funds in accordance with program requirements and implement the City’s 
Housing Stability Services. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, this _____ day 
of ____________ 2024. 
 
  



Resolution No. 5814 
Page 2 

ATTEST: 

___________________________________ ____________________________________ 
CITY CLERK  MAYOR 

CERTIFICATION 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above foregoing Resolution No. 5814 was duly passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona at a regular meeting held on the 
____day of __________ 2024, and that a quorum was present thereat. 

______________________________  
CITY CLERK 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

______________________________  
CITY ATTORNEY  



EXHIBIT “A” 
 



Contract No. C-22-24-037-X-01 Amendment No. 1 

City of Chandler FY25 Page 1 of 3 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 
MARICOPA COUNTY 

ADMINISTERED BY ITS 
HUMAN SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

AND 
CITY OF CHANDLER  

I. Maricopa County (“County”), administered by its Human Services Department, and the
City of Chandler, (“Subrecipient”) entered into a financial Intergovernmental Agreement
(“Agreement”), which was fully executed on or about November 15, 2023. The purpose of
the Agreement is to support the City’s Housing Stability Services Initiative (the “Initiative”)
to increase safe and affordable housing in the Chandler area. The Agreement term is
November 1, 2023, through June 30, 2024. The County provided the Subrecipient with
$125,000 in Community Service Block Grant (CSBG) Funds under Assistance Listing
Number (ALN) 93.569 provided to the County through an Intergovernmental Agreement with
Arizona Department of Economic Security (ADES) for Initiative activities. The County and
the Subrecipient collectively are referred to as the “Parties.”

II. The Parties agree to enter into this Amendment No. 1 to amend the Agreement as follows:

A. Extend the Agreement term from July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2025.

B. Revise Paragraph 6 (Funding) attached Operating Budget by removing in its
entirety and replacing with the attached Operating Budget. The County shall
provide the Subrecipient with a not to exceed amount of $150,000 in CSBG funds
under Assistance Listing Number (ALN) 93.569 provided to the County through an
Intergovernmental Agreement with Arizona Department of Economic Security
(ADES). The funding period of availability is July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2025,
fiscal year 2025. Unexpended funds from fiscal year 2024 shall not be available
for expenditures in the fiscal year 2025.

C. Revise Paragraph 13.0 (Notices) for Maricopa County Representative and replace
it with the following:

Maricopa County
Human Services Department
TJ Reed, Assistant Director
Community Resilience Division
234 N. Central Avenue, 3rd Floor
Phoenix, AZ 85004
602-506-4841
tj.reed@maricopa.gov

III. Each and every provision of law and any clause required by law to be in this Agreement
will be read and enforced as though it were included herein and, if through mistake or
otherwise any such provision is not inserted, or is not correctly inserted, then upon the
application of either party, this Agreement will promptly be physically amended to make
such insertion or correction.



Contract No. C-22-24-037-X-01 Amendment No. 1 

City of Chandler FY25 Page 2 of 3 

IV. This Amendment No. 1 is subject to and incorporates the provisions of A.R.S. § 38-511.
The Agreement is amended to incorporate the changes contained in this Amendment No.
1. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement remain in full force and effect as
executed by the Parties.

V. The Parties have authorized the undersigned to execute this Amendment No. 1 on their
behalf and it shall be effective upon approval and signature by both Parties.

IN WITNESS, the Parties have approved and signed this Amendment No. 1: 

APPROVED BY: 
CITY OF CHANDLER 

APPROVED BY:  
MARICOPA COUNTY 

___________________________________ 
City Manager                                        Date 

____________________________________ 
Jack Sellers                                             Date 
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors 

Attested To: 

___________________________________ 
City Clerk                                           Date 

Attested To: 

____________________________________ 
Juanita Garza, Clerk of the Board           Date 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH A.R.S. §§ 9-240, 
11-952, THIS AMENDMENT NO. 1 HAS
BEEN REVIEWED BY THE UNDERSIGNED
ATTORNEY WHO HAS DETERMINED IT IS
PROPER IN FORM AND WITHIN THE
POWERS AND AUTHORITY GRANTED TO
THE CITY OF CHANDLER UNDER THE
LAWS OF THE STATE OF ARIZONA.

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

BY: ________________________________ 
Attorney for the City          Date 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH A.R.S. §§ 11-201, 
11-251, AND 11-952, THIS AMENDMENT
NO. 1 HAS BEEN REVIEWED BY THE
UNDERSIGNED ATTORNEY WHO HAS
DETERMINED IT IS PROPER IN FORM AND
WITHIN THE POWERS AND AUTHORITY
GRANTED TO MARICOPA COUNTY UNDER
THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF ARIZONA.

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

BY: _________________________________ 
Deputy County Attorney                    Date 



Contract No. C-22-24-037-X-01   Amendment No. 1 

City of Chandler FY25  Page 3 of 3 

City of Chandler 
Operating Budget 

FY2025 
 

    

City of Chandler Operating Budget – CSBG Service Initiatives  
Contact Period - July 1st, 2024, through June 30th, 2025  

    
 

    
 

 Funding  
 

 County Funds $150,000   
 

 Cash Match Contributions $93,606   
 

 Total $243,606   
 

    
 

Budget Category Direct Cost Administration Cost Total  

Total Expenses $240,930  $2,676  $243,606   

     
 

 

 



ITEM  25 

City Council Memorandum      Police  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Tadd Wille, Assistant City Manager
Bryan Chapman, Police Chief

From: Melanie Smith, Senior Management Analyst 
Subject: Purchase of TruNarc Handheld Narcotics Analyzers

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the purchase of handheld narcotics analyzers, from
Thermo Scientific Portable Analytical Instruments, Inc., in the amount of
$152,527.49.

Background/Discussion:
The Chandler Police Department was awarded $152,527.49 from the State of
Arizona through the Department of Public Safety (DPS) FY24 Fentanyl
Prosecution, Diversion and Testing Fund, and City Council approved accepted
these grant dollars via Resolution No. 5808 on May 23, 2024. The grant award
provides funding to assist eligible state, local units of government, and tribes
responding to the fentanyl crisis. The Police Department applied for the funds to
purchase four handheld drug analyzers. The analyzers will extend the current field
drug testing program, reducing the overall requests for drug analysis and allowing
for a greater capacity of fentanyl cases to be analyzed in the laboratory. 

TruNarc analyzers identify more than 530 of the highest priority illicit and abused
narcotics in a single drug test.  They can also scan directly through plastic or glass
for most drug test samples to minimize contamination, reduce exposure and
preserve evidence. The Police Department was previously awarded grant funds
from the Gila River Indian Community in June 2023 for purchase of TruNarc
devices and has been satisfied with their performance.  Currently, the department
has two TruNarc analyzers, one for field use and one in the laboratory. This
purchase will increase the total number of field analyzers to five.



purchase will increase the total number of field analyzers to five.

Evaluation:
The Chandler Police Department has utilized TruNarc narcotics analyzers supplied
by Thermo Scientific Portable Analytical Instruments, Inc., for more than five
years. Staff recommends purchase of the TruNarc devices, as it will allow
continuity of process and reliable results that have been accepted by the Maricopa
County Attorney's Office for charging purposes, streamlining of ongoing software
updates, and standardization of processes and equipment.

Financial Implications:
There are no matching dollars required for this grant.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund

Name
Program
Name

Dollar
Amount

CIP Funded
Y/N

217.2021.5322.0000.3PD214Grant
Fund

N/A $152,527.49 N



ITEM  26 

City Council Memorandum      Public Works & Utilities  Memo No. RE24-103
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Andy Bass, Deputy City Manager
John Knudson, Public Works and Utilities Director
Daniel Haskins, Capital Projects Division Manager

From: Erich Kuntze, Real Estate Administrator
Subject: Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 5098 Granting a Non-Exclusive Underground

High Voltage Power Easement to Salt River Project Agricultural Improvement
and Power District (SRP) to Accommodate the Installation of Electric Vehicle
Charging Stations

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve final adoption of Ordinance No. 5098 granting a
Non-Exclusive Underground High Voltage Power Easement to SRP, in
consideration for the payment of $18,500.00 to accommodate the installation of
electric vehicle charging stations on the Amazon site at 3405 S. McQueen Road,
Chandler, Arizona.

Background:
Amazon plans to install electric vehicle charging stations at its Chandler facility
located at 3405 S. McQueen Road. To accommodate the installation of these
facilities, it is necessary for the City of Chandler to grant SRP a non-exclusive
underground high-power easement along and across portions of Airport Boulevard
south of Queen Creek Road, allowing additional power capacity to the site.
Amazon has agreed to pay the City $18,500 for the easement. The value of the
easement was determined by an appraisal performed by SRP. 

Staff has reviewed and approved the easement document, valuation, and legal
descriptions.

This Ordinance was introduced and tentatively adopted on May 23, 2024.



Attachments
Ordinance No, 5098 
Location Map 
Exhibit B - Easement 

























































ITEM  27 

City Council Memorandum      Public Works & Utilities  Memo No. RE24-105
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Andy Bass, Deputy City Manager
John Knudson, Public Works and Utilities Director
Daniel Haskins, Capital Projects Division Manager

From: Erich Kuntze, Real Estate Administrator
Subject: Introduction of Ordinance No. 5100 Authorizing a Contract and Grant of

Easement with the United States of America for Irrigation Facilities Located at
the Northwest Corner of Dobson Road and Pecos Road

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 5100 authorizing
the City of Chandler to enter into a Contract and Grant of Easement with the
United States of America for irrigation facilities located at the northwest corner of
Dobson Road and Pecos Road in consideration for payment of the market value
of the property from CRP/Sparrow Chandler Owner, LLC.

Background:
The city has been working with developer CRP/Sparrow Chandler Owner, LLC
("Sparrow"), for several years on the development of their project located at the
northwest corner of Dobson and Pecos roads. During this time, Sparrow learned
that the United States Bureau of Reclamation ("United States") owns irrigation
facilities along the north side of Pecos Road, and in order to complete their project
and receive a final certificate of occupancy, Sparrow would need to relocate the
irrigation facilities as well as complete off-site improvements to Pecos Road.

In order to finalize this process, the United States is asking the city to enter into a
Contract and Grant of Easement ("Contract") providing for the relocation of the
irrigation facilities and granting an easement over approximately 838 square feet
of city land to the United States. The Contract also provides for the exchange of
some of the existing United States land to the adjacent property owner. Sparrow



has agreed to pay the city the market value of the property as consideration for
granting the easement to the United States in order to facilitate their development.
This amount is based upon the estimated market value of the city’s property.

The city is withholding delivery of the final certificate of occupancy to Sparrow
pending completion of off-site improvements by Sparrow pursuant to a deferral
agreement entered into by Sparrow and the city in 2023. The easement granted
by this ordinance will allow Sparrow to commence construction of its off-site
improvements to Pecos Road, which were delayed because of the need to get
approval from the United States Bureau of Reclamation.

Staff has reviewed and approved the contract, easement, property valuation, and
legal descriptions.

Financial Implications:
The city will receive payment for the easement area based upon market value of
the property.

Attachments
Location Map 
Ordinance No. 5100 
Exhibit B - Contract and Grant of Easement 





































ITEM  28 

City Council Memorandum      Public Works & Utilities  Memo No. ST24-020
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Andy Bass, Deputy City Manager
John Knudson, Public Works and Utilities Director

From: John McFarland, Transportation Manager
Subject:Agreement No. PW0-745-4183, Amendment No. 9, with M.R. Tanner

Development and Construction, Inc., for Street Maintenance Repaving,
Surface Seal, and Repair Services

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve Agreement No. PW0-745-4183, Amendment No. 9,
with M.R. Tanner Development and Construction, Inc., for street maintenance
repaving, surface seal, and repair services, increasing the spending limit by
$400,000. 

Background/Discussion:
The Transportation Division has an established pavement management
restoration and repaving program that addresses the preventative maintenance
and rehabilitation needs for the city-maintained roadways. Left untreated, the life
expectancy of a newly constructed or re-paved roadway is between 20 and 30
years and is dependent upon a variety of factors, including quality of construction,
traffic loads, types of traffic, weather, oxidation, and exposure to sun. The
Transportation Division's pavement management restoration and repaving
program includes asphalt repaving, surface seals, and repair work on roadway
sections that are in need of various preventative maintenance based on a recent
roadway assessment of the city's Pavement Quality Index. This agreement will
provide asphalt maintenance on approximately 140 lane miles of pavement.

Evaluation:
On April 23, 2020, City Council approved an agreement with M.R. Tanner



On April 23, 2020, City Council approved an agreement with M.R. Tanner
Development and Construction, Inc., for street maintenance repaving, surface
seal, and repair services, for a one-year period, with the option of up to four (4)
additional one-year extensions. The agreement was renewed through April 30,
2025, and the current term is still in effect. However, staff is requesting an
increase to the spending limit that was previously approved by City Council.  All
other terms of the original agreement remain the same.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program

Name
Dollar
Amount

CIP
Funded
Y/N

401.3310.6513.0.6ST248General
Government
Capital Projects

Street
Repaving

$400,000 Y

Attachments
Amendment No. 9 



Page 1 of 2 
 

                                                                
 

 
City Clerk Document No.     

 
City Council Meeting Date: June 13, 2024  

 
 

AMENDMENT TO CITY OF CHANDLER AGREEMENT 
STREET MAINTENANCE REPAVING, SURFACE SEAL AND REPAIR SERVICES 

CITY OF CHANDLER AGREEMENT NO. PW0-745-4183 
 
THIS AMENDMENT NO. 9 (Amendment No. 9) is made and entered into by and between the City of 
Chandler, an Arizona municipal corporation (City), and M.R. Tanner Development & Construction, Inc., 
(Contractor), (City and Contractor may individually be referred to as Party and collectively referred to 
as Parties) and made _______________, 2024 (Effective Date). 
 

RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties entered into an agreement for street maintenance repaving, surface seal and 
repair services (Agreement); and 
 
WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement was May 1, 2020, through April 30, 2021, with the option of up to 
four one-year extensions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties wish to add additional funds to the current term of the Agreement.  
 

AGREEMENT 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
1. The recitals are accurate and are incorporated and made a part of the Agreement by this 

reference.    
 
2. Section IV is amended to read as follows: The City will pay the Contractor the per unit cost set 

forth in Exhibit B of the original Agreement, which is incorporated into and made a part of this 
Amendment No. 9 by this reference. Total payments made to the Contractor during the term of 
this Amendment No. 9 will not exceed $400,000. 

 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6DE9A13D-19C9-41F6-990E-71FE2AB64913



Page 2 of 2 

3. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement remain unchanged and in full force and effect.
If a conflict or ambiguity arises between this Amendment No. 9 and the Agreement, the terms
and conditions in this Amendment No. 9 prevail and control.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have entered into this Amendment on the Effective Date. 

FOR THE CITY FOR THE CONTRACTOR 

By: _________________________________________ By: _________________________________________ 

Its: _________Mayor__________________________ Its: _________________________________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: _________________________________________ 
City Attorney 

ATTEST: 

By: _________________________________________ 
City Clerk 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6DE9A13D-19C9-41F6-990E-71FE2AB64913

President



ITEM  29 

City Council Memorandum      Public Works & Utilities  Memo No. CP24-151
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Andy Bass, Deputy City Manager
John Knudson, Public Works and Utilities Director
Daniel Haskins, Capital Projects Division Manager

From: Sandra Story, Engineering Project Manager 
Subject:Professional Services Agreement No. WA2103.452, Amendment No. 1, with

Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc., for the Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant
SCADA Upgrades - Programming

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. WA2103.452,
Amendment No.1, to Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc., for the Pecos Surface
Water Treatment Plant SCADA Upgrades - Programming, increasing the
agreement amount by $1,398,805.

Background/Discussion:
The PSWTP, located at 1475 East Pecos Road, was put into service in 1989 and
produces drinking water for the city’s residents and businesses. The plant's
automation technology, commonly called the Supervisory Control and Data
Acquisition (SCADA) system, controls and monitors the PSWTP and
approximately 50 remote facilities. Operational control for the water system relies
heavily on automation to reliably communicate within the PSWTP and remote
water facilities. Beyond system control, SCADA also captures numerous data
points for system analysis and regulatory reporting. The SCADA system has
approximately 3,200 inputs and outputs, otherwise known as I/O. The 2019
SCADA Master Plan identified the need to replace the outdated control system
that was installed during the original plant construction with modern technologies,
bringing it up to current industry standards.

On August 17, 2023, City Council approved Professional Services Agreement No.



WA2103.452 with Jacobs Engineering Group for the Pecos Surface Water
Treatment Plant (PSWTP) SCADA Upgrades Programming Services.  Amendment
No. 1 is a planned increase to the original contract and includes the programming
and commissioning of the SCADA system, training for city operations staff, and
development of an Electronic Operations and Maintenance Manual. An additional
726 calendar days have been added, for a revised total of 1,091 calendar days to
final completion, following the Notice to Proceed.   

Evaluation:
The selection process was conducted in accordance with city policy and
procedure and state law for Professional Services. On August 17, 2023, City
Council awarded Professional Services Agreement No. WA2103.452, to Jacobs
Engineering Group, Inc., for the PSWTP SCADA Upgrades - Programming. Staff
reviewed the scope of work, billing rates, and total fee for the project and
determined them to be reasonable.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund

Name
Program Name Dollar

Amount
CIP
Funded
Y/N

601.3820.6814.6WA210Water
Bonds

Water Treatment
Plant Improvements

$1,398,805 Y

Attachments
Location Map 
Amendment - Jacobs Engineering 



ELLIOT RD

WARNER RD

RAY RD

CHANDLER BL

PECOS RD

GERMANN RD

QUEEN CREEK RD

OCOTILLO RD

CHANDLER HEIGHTS RD

RIGGS RD

HUNT HWVAL VISTA DR

LINDSAY RD

GILBERT RD

COOPER RD

MCQUEEN RD

ARIZONA AV

ALMA SCHOOL RD

DOBSON RD

PRICE RD

MCCLINTOCK DR

RURAL RD

KYRENE RD

56TH ST

PECOS SURFACE WATER
TREATMENT PLANT SCADA UPGRADES

PROJECT NO. WA2103.452

°
NTS

PECOS RD

MC
QU

EE
N R

D

WILLIS RD

SANTAN - SR202L FW

12
4T

H S
T

SE
NA

TE
 ST

CA
NA

L D
R

SE
NA

TE
 ST

PROJECT SITE

MEMO NO. CP24-151

F:\ENGINEER\GENSERV\_ArcMap_Shared\Map Requests\Capital Projects\CP22-033 PECOS SURFACE WATER TREATMENT PLANT SCADA UPGRADES\CP22-033.mxd 8/9/2021 MARICELAH



Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant SCADA Upgrades – Programming - Amendment No. 1 Page 1 

Project No.: WA2103.452 
Rev. 3/12/2024 

 
 

 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO  

CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

PECOS SURFACE WATER TREATMENT PLANT SCADA UPGRADES - PROGRAMMING 

Project No. WA2103.452 

 

Council Date: June 13, 2024              

 

 

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 1 (“Amendment No. 1”) to the professional services agreement dated 

August 22, 3023, (the “Agreement”) is made by and between the City of Chandler, an Arizona 

municipal corporation, (“City”) and Jacobs Engineering Group Inc., a Delaware corporation, 

(“Consultant”), on this ______ day of ___________________, 2024, (“Effective Date” by Clerk).  (City and 

Consultant may individually be referred to as “Party” and collectively referred to as “Parties”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

A. The Parties entered into the Agreement for: Consultant Services (“Services”) for the 

Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant SCADA Upgrades - Programming project. 

 

B. The Parties have determined that it is necessary and desirable for the Consultant to 

perform services for the City under the terms and conditions set forth in this Amendment No. 1 

and the Agreement. 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual promises contained in the 

Agreement and this Amendment No. 1, the Parties agree to amend and modify the Agreement 

as follows. 

 

SECTION I – CONSULTANT’S SERVICES 

 

The Consultant’s Services are modified as described in the Exhibit "A" attached to and made 

part of this amendment by reference.  

 

  

DonnaRy
Text Box
August 22, 2023,



Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant SCADA Upgrades – Programming - Amendment No. 1 Page 2 

Project No.: WA2103.452 
Rev. 3/12/2024 

 

SECTION II – PERIOD OF SERVICE 

 

The Period of Service is increased by 685 calendar days for a revised total of 1,050 calendar days. 

 

SECTION III – PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION AND FEES 

 

The Fees are increased by $1,398,805 and will be payable in accordance with Exhibit "B" attached 

to and made part of this amendment by reference, for a revised total not to exceed $4,118,905. 

 

SECTION IV – NOTICES 

 

Parties to whom notice is to be given as set forth in the Agreement are revised as follows:  
 

To City: City of Chandler - Public Works & Utilities Department 

Attn:  CIP City Engineer: Daniel Haskins, P.E. 

P.O. Box 4008, Mail Stop 407 

Chandler, AZ 85244-4008 

Phone:  480-782-3335         Email:  daniel.haskins@chandleraz.gov 
 

With a copy to: City of Chandler - Public Works & Utilities Department 

Attn: Russ Slotnick, Project Manager 

P.O. Box 4008, Mail Stop 407, Chandler, AZ 85244-4008 

Phone: 480-782-3411          Email: russ.slotnick@chandleraz.gov 

To Consultant: 
LEGAL COMPANY NAME: Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. 

Mailing Address:  1501 W. Fountainhead Pkwy., Ste. 401, Tempe, AZ 85282 

Physical Address:   1501 W. Fountainhead Pkwy., Ste. 401, Tempe, AZ 85282 

Statutory Agent Name: CT Corporation System 

Statutory Agent Mailing Address: 

3800 N. Central Ave., Ste. 460 

Phoenix, AZ 85012 

Statutory Agent Physical Address: 

3800 N. Central Ave., Ste. 460 

Phoenix, AZ 85012 

CONSULTANT’S AUTHORIZED PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE  

Name: Fair Yeager, P.E. 

Title: AZ Water Market Client Account Manager 

Phone:  Office: 480-377-6249; Mobile: 480-225-4102 

Email: fair.yeager@jacobs.com 

DonnaRy
Text Box
The Period of Service is increased by 726 calendar days for a revised total of 1,091 calendar days.



Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant SCADA Upgrades – Programming - Amendment No. 1 Page 3 

Project No.: WA2103.452 
Rev. 3/12/2024 

 
CONSULTANT’S PROJECT MANAGER 

 
Name: Teresa Smith-DeHesus, P.E., DBIA 

 
Title: Project Manager 

 
Phone:  Office: 480-377-6233; Mobile: 480-331-0005 

 
Email: teresa.smithdehesus@jacobs.com 

 

 

SECTION V – CONFLICT AMONG DOCUMENTS 

 

The Agreement, this amendment, and any previous amendments constitute the complete 

agreement between the Parties concerning the subject matter of the Agreement and replace 

any prior oral or written communications between the Parties.  If a conflict or ambiguity arises 

between the Agreement and this amendment, the instrument in the following order prevails 

and controls: (1) this amendment; (2) any previous Amendments from most recent to oldest; 

and (3) the Agreement. 

 

 

 

 

 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW 

 

 

 

 

  



Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant SCADA Upgrades – Programming - Amendment No. 1 Page 4 

Project No.: WA2103.452

Rev. 3/12/2024 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Amendment No. 1 to be duly 

executed.  Each Party warrants and represents that its respective signatories whose signatures 

appear below have been and are on the date of signature duly authorized to execute this 

Amendment No. 1. 

“CITY” CITY OF CHANDLER 

MAYOR 

RECOMMENDED BY: 

Daniel Haskins, P.E. 

CIP City Engineer   

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

City Attorney 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk  Seal 

“CONSULTANT” 

JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC. 

Signature      Date 

Print Name 

Title 

Signer Email Address 

15 May 2024

Fair Yeager

Client Account Manager

fair.yeager@jacobs.com

DanielH
Snapshot



Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant SCADA Upgrades – Programming - Amendment No. 1 Page 5 

Project No.: WA2103.452 
Rev. 3/12/2024 

 

Amendment No. 1 (cont.) 

Project No. WA2103.452 

 

 

These changes result in the following adjustments of Agreement amount and/or time: 

 

Amendment authorized by Owner name: Danny Sargent   Date: 4/11/24 

Consultant email:  fair.yeager@jacobs.com 

Original Agreement amount: $2,720,100 

Previous Amendment(s) total: n/a 

Last Agreement amount approved by Council: $2,720,100 

This Amendment: $1,398,805 

This Amendment + previous Amendment(s) not approved by 

Council total: 
$1,398,805 

Revised Agreement total: $4,118,905 

Council Approval Required (yes indicates approval required) Yes No 

Amendment(s) total over $100,000: ☒ ☐ 

Amendment(s) total causes Agreement to exceed $100,000:  ☐ ☒ 

Agreement Time 

Agreement time prior to this Amendment (including previous 

amendments): 

365 

Calendar Days 

Net change resulting from this Amendment: 
685 

Calendar Days 

Revised Agreement time (including this Amendment): 
1,050 

Calendar Days 

Council Approval (if applicable) 

Council Approval Date: June 13, 2024 Item No. Pending 

 
cc:  Project Manager, Consultant, Owner, File 

 

 

 

DonnaRy
Text Box
726

DonnaRy
Text Box
1,091



Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant SCADA Upgrades - Programming - Amendment No. 1 Page A-1 

Project No.: WA2103.452 
Rev 3/12/2024 

 

EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF WORK 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
Chandler Pecos SCADA Jacobs Programming Services Amendment 1 - Scope (Exhibit A) 2024-05-03 

EXHIBIT “A” 

CITY OF CHANDLER  

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

PECOS SURFACE WATER TREATMENT PLANT SCADA UPGRADES 

Project No. WA2103.452 

AMENDMENT 1 - Programming Services 

SCOPE OF WORK 

May 3, 2024 

 

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING AND BACKGROUND 

 

The City of Chandler Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant (PSWTP), located at 1475 East Pecos 

Road, was put into service in 1989 and  PSWTP produces drinking water for the City’s residental and 

commercial customers.  Additionally, the control of the City’s potable water distribution network is 

also housed at PSWTP. In order to protect the health and safety of the water customers, City staff 

relies heavily on automation to reliably communicate with water facilities. This automation is in the 

form of the Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system. SCADA controls and monitors 

PSWTP equipment and 55 remote potable production facilities. The SCADA system also includes 

remote monitoring capabilities for 21 remote wastewater sites. Beyond system control, SCADA also 

captures numerous data points for system analysis and regulatory reporting. The City’s 2019 SCADA 

Master Plan identified a project to replace the existing Foxboro system. 

 

The PSWTP SCADA Upgrade project will modernize and improve the City’s existing system and will 

include upgrades to legacy hardware and software. The project will replace the existing Foxboro I/A 

Distributed Control System (DCS) with Modicon PLCs and Wonderware HMI. This effort will entail 

hardware replacement, upgrades to operational technology (OT) (i.e. the systems that control and 

monitor treatment plant functions), integration with remote facilities, and possible replacement of 

other obsolete equipment, such as power supplies or radio components. The project will include 

procurement and installation of new virtual machine servers, software packages, Win911 

applications with cellular modem and domain servers, and creation of SCADA software screens. No 

treatment process upgrades are contemplated. The project will use a Construction Manager at Risk 

(CMAR) delivery approach and is expected to be completed on a fixed budget and schedule.  

 

This document describes the scope of work for services to be provided by Jacobs Engineering Group 

Inc. (CONSULTANT) for the City of Chandler (City and OWNER) for the Pecos SWTP SCADA Upgrade 

Construction Management Project WA2103.451 for execution of the work covered in Amendment 1 

for Programming. Tasks include:  

• Commissioning of the SCADA System (Programming remaining focused on the field 

testing and programming/software cut-over after all hardware upgrades are installed by 

the CMAR) 

• SCADA Training for City Operations Staff (To ensure the plant operators are trained on 

the new SCADA system prior to cutover)  

• Plant Electronic O&M Manual (Replacement of defunct overall plant operations manual 

using new cloud-based software) 
  



2 
Chandler Pecos SCADA Jacobs Programming Services Amendment 1 - Scope (Exhibit A) 2024-05-03 

PROJECT TASKS 

 

1. PROGRAMMING AND COMMISSIONING 

Programming tasks being done under a separate project were removed. Remaining 

programming tasks herein are for work during construction for field testing and 

commissioning which will be completed after hardware upgrades are installed by the CMAR. 

In addition, commissioning tasks are included for coordination with information provided by 

the CMAR on any field changes and performing the software cut-over for the system.  

A. Task 4.1.1 – Configuration Management 

i. Cutover Meetings bi-weekly for 78 weeks 

B. Cutover and Startup Plan 

C. Task 4.1.7 HMI and PLC Commissioning 

Commissioning of the newly installed and modified control cabinets and motor 

starters, networking equipment, and HMI servers will be performed by the 

Consultant. 

i. Combined effort between CMAR and CONSULTANT to confirm that Process 

Control System, including applications software, is ready for operation. 

a. Prerequisite: Completion of hardware testing by CMAR. 

b. Joint test with CONSULTANT. Repeat of CONSULTANT’s Factory Aceptance 

Test (FAT), except using real field sensors and equipment. Plant 

interlocking and communications with PLCs and HMI shall be tested on 

loop-by-loop basis. 

c. Test procedures provided by CONSULTANT based on Loop specifications. 

ii. Performance Acceptance Tests (PAT): 

a. Once a facility area has been started up, perform a witnessed PAT on 

complete Process Control System and software to demonstrate that it is 

operating as required by the Contract Documents and software loop 

descriptions. Demonstrate each required function on a paragraph-by-

paragraph, loop-by-loop basis. 

b. Loop-specific and non-loop-specific tests same as required for FAT except 

that entire installed SCADA system will be tested using actual process 

variables and all functions demonstrated. 

c. Perform local and manual tests for each loop before proceeding to remote 

and automatic modes. 

d. Where possible, verify test results using visual confirmation of process 

equipment and actual process variable. Unless otherwise directed, 

exercise and observe devices supplied by others, as needed to verify 

correct signals to and from such devices and to confirm overall system 

functionality. Test verification by means of disconnecting wires or 

measuring signal levels is acceptable only where direct operation of plant 

equipment is not possible. 

e. Make updated versions of documentation required for PAT available to 

Owner at Site, both before and during tests. 

 

 



3 
Chandler Pecos SCADA Jacobs Programming Services Amendment 1 - Scope (Exhibit A) 2024-05-03 

2. SCADA TRAINING FOR CITY OPERATIONS STAFF 

This work is focused on bringing the City plant operations staff up to speed on the new 

SCADA system. This work is traditionally included as part of construction costs, but is 

included in CM services as it is being performed by Jacobs as the SCADA designer and system 

integrator.  

A. Task 4.2.1 Training Workshops 

i. The CONSULTANT will prepare and lead 1 workshop to train the City staff on 

the new system.  

ii. Training will be recorded and materials provided to the City for their use.  

 

3. PLANT ELECTRONIC O&M (EOM) MANUAL 

Maintaining an overall Plant O&M manual is a regulatory requirement of MCESD. Pecos 

SWTP had an electronic plant O&M manual developed during the 2006 60-mgd expansion 

project and this manual is now defunct as the software it was provided in is obsolete.  A new 

and plant EOM will be provided with updated content using new software.  

A. Task 4.3.1 Plant EOM Manual Development 

i. The CONSULTANT will prepare an electronic O&M manual for the PSWTP using 

a modern cloud-based web development software. The EOM Manual 

development will be utilize the historic files from the previous outdated plant 

EOM as much as practical, and updated content incorporating the new P&IDs, 

SCADA HMI, SOPs, etc.  

B. Task 4.3.2 Plant EOM Training 

i. The CONSULTANT will prepare materials and host  training sessions for the 

general plant O&M staff on the use and maintenance of the EOM. One on one 

training for select O&M staff will be provided for the responsible for editing 

future content.    

 

4. PROJECT MANAGEMENT  

A. Task 4.4.1 Monthly Progress Reports, Schedule Updates, and Invoices 

i. The CONSULTANT’s Project Manager will prepare monthly progress reports 

each calendar month. The report will contain progress against schedule and 

scope, as well as relevant budget information. The Project Manager will 

oversee the preparation and submission of monthly invoices. 

ii. Consultant assumes a maximum of 24 progress reports and invoices  

B. Task 4.4.2 Management Coordination Calls 

i. The CONSULTANT’s Project Manager will conduct weekly progress calls of up 

to 1 hour in length with the OWNER’s staff to discuss any delivery issues that 

might impact the scope, schedule, or budget of this Project. Notes will be taken 

during the meeting and posted for the team. 

ii. Consultant assumes 104 weekly meetings will be held. 

 

5. ALLOWANCES 

A. Allowances 

i. The allowances below are estimates for optional work to be done at the 

direction and approval of the City.  The following allowances are included:  



4 
Chandler Pecos SCADA Jacobs Programming Services Amendment 1 - Scope (Exhibit A) 2024-05-03 

1. Re-tagging Allowance -  for incorporating the new utility-wide tagging 

syntax into the work, including updating control narratives, HMI and 

PLC programming.Updates to drawings will be covered in the As-built 

task for the CM contract. 

2. Owner’s Contingency Allowance – for additional services as directed by 

the Owner. 

ii. Work done under the allowances will be on a time and material basis. 

Additional scope definition may be necessary to confirm the level of effort and 

fee for additional work under these allowances. 

iii. Work done under the allowances may require an adjustment to the delivery 

schedule. 

 

SCHEDULE 

Work will be performed in alignment with the construction schedule developed by the CMAR. The 

target CMAR NTP is July 1, 2024 and construction is anticipated to take 18 months. It is anticipated 

that an additional 6 months after construction completion will be needed to complete the 

professional services included herein, for a total duration of 24 months.   

 

COMPENSATION 

The work will be done on a time and material basis with a not to exceed (NTE) upper limit as 

indicated in the attached Level of Effort and Fee spreadsheet. Allowances are provided for optional 

work to be done at the direction and approval of the City.   

 

ASSUMPTION, CLARIFICATIONS, AND EXCLUSIONS 

1. Scope of Services represents Jacobs professional services for programming and 

commissioning for the Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrade based on the completed design from 

Project WA2103.201. 

2. All Allowances will only be utilized with prior written approval from the City representative. 

3. Direct Reimbursable Expenses are included for normal reimbursable expenses on the 

project. Items must be billed at cost and backup must be provided with pay applications. 

4. Budgets will be managed at the Phase and Main Task level. Jacobs will track task budget 

overruns and underruns and reconcile funds for tasks as needed within the overall project 

NTE budget. Any scope changes will be accommodated within the overall project budget to 

the extent possible; Jacobs will inform the City on any changes that may require additional 

funds via use of an allowance or a change order. 

5. To facilitate rapid distribution of information, deliverables will be furnished electronically 

wherever possible. Unless otherwise indicated, final deliverables will be provided as native 

electronic files (Microsoft Word®, Microsoft Excel ®, Microsoft Access ®, and AutoCAD ® as 

appropriate). Reproduction of any additional required copies shall be performed by the 

OWNER. 

6. The CONSULTANT will use a project site as a repository for all electronic deliverables to be 

shared with the OWNER and CMAR team via file transfer protocol (FTP), SharePoint, or 

Microsoft® Teams.  

7. The Project Manager, Design Manager, subject matter experts (SMEs) and discipline staff will 

attend meetings as appropriate for the specific topic or type of meeting per the LOE. 



5 
Chandler Pecos SCADA Jacobs Programming Services Amendment 1 - Scope (Exhibit A) 2024-05-03 

8. Travel for commissioning activities is estimated in the Direct Reimbursable Expenses 

estimate provided with the LOE attached. 

9. The OWNER will conduct the scheduling and coordination of necessary participants of City 

staff as well as contractor and operations staff necessary to have efficient meetings and 

coordination. The OWNER's Project Manager and Plant Manager will coordinate with City’s 

staff to ensure optimal participation at meetings and in site activities. 

10. The OWNER will provide access to facilities and will assist the CONSULTANT with any 

necessary entry permits, scheduling, notification, and other requirements to gain access to 

perform the work.  

11. Programming and commissioning assumptions: 

a. PLC and HMI programming will be developed with Schneider Electric 

EcoStruxure control expert software utilizing the GPL (General Purpose 

Library)  

b. Total I/O = 3761 based on the final design documents prepared by Jacobs: 

1. Remote Facilities I/O = 563 

a. Santan Vist I/O = 396 

b. Water and Waterwater Remotes = 167 (representing 5 example 

sites as selected by the OWNER) 

2. Pecos WTP I/O = 3198 

c. Effort for programming and commissioning is based on the detailed build up 

for each panel as provided in the attached spreadsheet Pecos SCADA 

Upgrades Configuring and Programming Fee Backup (Task 4.6).xls. 

d. HMI and PLC programming hours were calculated at 0.75 hours  per IO point  

e. HMI and PLC programming hours for VFDs were calculated at 4.0 hours per 

VFD 

f. HMI programming hours for TeSysT were calculated at 0.5 hours per TeSysT  

g. PLC programming hours for TeSysT were calculated at 1.0 hours per TeSysT 

h. Hours for configuration of field devices were calculated at 2 hours per field 

device.  

 



Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant SCADA Upgrades - Programming - Amendment No. 1 Page B-1 

Project No.: WA2103.452 
Rev. 3/12/2024 

EXHIBIT B 

FEE SCHEDULE 



EXHIBIT B
Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades
Professional Services - Amendment 1 for Programming Services
Phase 4: Implementation and Commissioning
LEVEL OF EFFORT

Task Description

Teresa Smith-

Dehesus Jay Hardison Hong Zhang Nick Edgett Various Getnet Ali Josh Blume  Navneet Jat Naitik Shah Ryan/Talitha

Joseph Chang 

(Various) Total Subtotal Expenses TOTAL

Principal/ 

Project 

Manager

SCADA 

Design 

Manager

Technical 

Advisor 

(Modicon) 

Technical 

Advisor 

(Wonderware) 

HMI 

Programmers

PLC 

Programmers

Cybersecurity / 

Operational 

Technology

CM SCADA/ I&C 

Designer 

Staff I&C 

Engineer

Process / Digitial 

Solutions Engineer

Labor 

Hours

Labor

Bill Rate 280.00$         270.00$         205.00$             205.00$              205.00$            205.00$            250.00$              125.00$       150.00$         125.00$         175.00$                   

4.1 Programing and Comissioning

4.1.1 Configuration Management (78 weeks and 50 cutover plans) 95 95 201 351 201 251 1194 $237,990 $237,990

4.1.2 Not Used 0 $0 $0

4.1.3 Not Used 0 $0 $0

4.1.4 Not Used 0 $0 $0

4.1.5 Not Used 0 $0 $0

4.1.6 Not Used 0 $0 $0

4.1.7 Commissioning (1896 hours calculated in backup spreadsheet) 171 268 136 250 315 192 200 364 1896 $368,315 $72,000 $440,315

Subtotal 95 266 469 487 250 516 192 0 200 615 0 3090 $606,305 $72,000 $678,305

4.2 SCADA Training for City Operations Staff

4.2.1 Training Workshop 4 6 10 10 4 34 $7,840 $10,000 $17,840

Subtotal 4 6 10 10 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 34 $7,840 $10,000 $17,840

4.3 Plant Electronic O&M (EOM) Manual

4.3.1 EOM Development 40 40 160 200 200 200 460 1300 $215,300 $6,000 $221,300

4.3.2 EOM Training 8 8 8 40 80 144 $25,040 $25,040

Subtotal 48 48 168 0 0 0 0 240 200 200 540 1444 $240,340 $6,000 $246,340

4.4 Project Management

4.4.1 Monthly Progress Reports, Schedule Updates, and Invoices (24mo) 96 96 96 288 $64,800 $64,800

4.4.2 Management Coordination Calls 104 104 104 104 416 $91,520 $91,520

Subtotal 200 200 0 104 0 0 0 200 0 0 0 704 $156,320 $0 $156,320

4.5 OWNERS ALLOWANCES

4.5.1 Re-tagging Allowance 0 $0 $250,000

4.5.2 Owner’s Contingency Allowance 0 $0 $50,000

Subtotal 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $300,000

TOTAL 347 520 647 601 250 516 196 440 400 815 540 5,272 $1,010,805 $88,000 $1,398,805

No.

Chandler Pecos SCADA Jacobs Programming Services Amendment 1 - LOE 2024-05-03 1



ITEM  30 

City Council Memorandum      Public Works & Utilities  Memo No. CP24-150
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Andy Bass, Deputy City Manager
John Knudson, Public Works and Utilities Director
Daniel Haskins, Capital Projects Division Manager

From: Sandra Story, Engineering Project Manager 
Subject:Professional Services Agreement No. WA2103.451, Amendment No. 4, with

Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc., for the Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant
SCADA Upgrades Construction Management Services

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. WA2103.451,
Amendment No. 4, to Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc., for the Pecos Surface
Water Treatment Plant SCADA Upgrades Construction Management Services,
increasing the agreement amount by $1,286,450.

Background/Discussion:
The Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant (PSWTP), located at 1475 East Pecos
Road, was put into service in 1989 and produces drinking water for the city’s
residents and businesses. The plant's automation technology, commonly called
the Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system, controls and
monitors the PSWTP and approximately 50 remote facilities. Operational control
for the water system relies heavily on automation to reliably communicate within
the PSWTP and remote water facilities. Beyond system control, SCADA also
captures numerous data points for system analysis and regulatory reporting.
The SCADA system has approximately 3,200 inputs and outputs, otherwise
known as I/O. The 2019 SCADA Master Plan identified the need to replace the
outdated control system that was installed during the original plant construction
with modern technologies, bringing it up to current industry standards.

On November 7, 2022, City Council approved Professional Services Agreement



No. WA2103.451 with Jacobs Engineering Group in the amount of $230,295 for
the PSWTP SCADA upgrades construction management services. This original
agreement covered assistance with long lead time procurement items, and a
subsequent Amendment No. 1 facilitated a no-cost time extension to
accommodate procurement delays. Amendment No. 2 covered additional
costs related to planning the construction phase of the project (also known as
Guaranteed Maximum Price No. 2, or GMP-2) at a cost of $98,520, the timeline
for which was subsequently extended at no cost to the city via Amendment No. 3. 

Amendment No. 4 is for pre-construction assistance, construction management,
inspection services, materials testing, record drawings, and maintenance of plant
operations coordination and review. An additional 551 calendar days have been
added, for a revised total of 1,184 calendar days to final completion, following the
Notice to Proceed.

A related Construction Manager at Risk Construction Services Agreement with
Archer Western Construction, LLC, for the PSWTP SCADA Upgrades GMP-2, is
also scheduled for this City Council meeting.

Evaluation:
The selection process was conducted in accordance with city policy and
procedure and state law for Professional Services. On November 7, 2022, City
Council awarded Professional Services Agreement No. WA2103.451 to Jacobs
Engineering Group, Inc., for the PSWTP SCADA Upgrades. Staff reviewed the
scope of work, billing rates, and total fee for the project and determined them to
be reasonable.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund

Name
Program Name Dollar

Amount
CIP
Funded
Y/N

601.3820.6814.6WA210Water
Bond

Water Treatment
Plant Improvements

$1,286,450 Y

Attachments
Location Map 
Amendment - Jacobs Engineering 



ELLIOT RD

WARNER RD

RAY RD

CHANDLER BL

PECOS RD

GERMANN RD

QUEEN CREEK RD

OCOTILLO RD

CHANDLER HEIGHTS RD

RIGGS RD

HUNT HWVAL VISTA DR

LINDSAY RD

GILBERT RD

COOPER RD

MCQUEEN RD

ARIZONA AV

ALMA SCHOOL RD

DOBSON RD

PRICE RD

MCCLINTOCK DR

RURAL RD

KYRENE RD

56TH ST

PECOS SURFACE WATER
TREATMENT PLANT SCADA UPGRADES

PROJECT NO. WA2103.451

°
NTS

PECOS RD

MC
QU

EE
N R

D

WILLIS RD

SANTAN - SR202L FW

12
4T

H S
T

SE
NA

TE
 ST

CA
NA

L D
R

SE
NA

TE
 ST

PROJECT SITE

MEMO NO. CP24-150

F:\ENGINEER\GENSERV\_ArcMap_Shared\Map Requests\Capital Projects\CP22-033 PECOS SURFACE WATER TREATMENT PLANT SCADA UPGRADES\CP22-033.mxd 8/9/2021 MARICELAH



Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant SCADA Upgrade – Amendment No. 4 Page 1 

Project No.: WA2103.451 
Rev. 3/12/2024 

 
 

 

AMENDMENT NO. 4 TO  

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

PECOS SURFACE WATER TREATMENT PLANT SCADA UPGRADE 

Project No. WA2103.451 

 

Council Date: June 13, 2024              

 

 

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 4 (“Amendment No. 4”) to the professional services agreement dated 

December 5, 2022, (the “Agreement”) is made by and between the City of Chandler, an Arizona 

municipal corporation, (“City”) and Jacobs Engineering Group Inc., a Delaware corporation, 

(“Consultant”), on this ______ day of ___________________, 2024, (“Effective Date” by Clerk).  (City and 

Consultant may individually be referred to as “Party” and collectively referred to as “Parties”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

A. The Parties entered into the Agreement for: Construction Management Services 

(“Services”) for the Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant SCADA Upgrade project. 

 

B. The Parties have determined that it is necessary and desirable for the Consultant to 

perform services for the City under the terms and conditions set forth in this Amendment No. 4 

and the Agreement. 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual promises contained in the 

Agreement and this Amendment No. 4, the Parties agree to amend and modify the Agreement 

as follows. 

 

SECTION I – CONSULTANT’S SERVICES 

 

The Consultant’s Services are modified as described in the Exhibit "A" attached to and made 

part of this amendment by reference.  

 

  



Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant SCADA Upgrade – Amendment No. 4 Page 2 

Project No.: WA2103.451 
Rev. 3/12/2024 

 

SECTION II – PERIOD OF SERVICE 

 

The Period of Service is increased by 509 calendar days for a revised total of 1,142 calendar days. 

 

SECTION III – PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION AND FEES 

 

The Fees are increased by $1,286,450 and will be payable in accordance with Exhibit "B" attached 

to and made part of this amendment by reference, for a revised total not to exceed $1,615,265. 

 

SECTION IV – NOTICES 

 

Parties to whom notice is to be given as set forth in the Agreement are revised as follows:  
 

To City: City of Chandler - Public Works & Utilities Department 

Attn:  CIP City Engineer: Daniel Haskins, P.E. 

P.O. Box 4008, Mail Stop 407 

Chandler, AZ 85244-4008 

Phone:  480-782-3335         Email:  daniel.haskins@chandleraz.gov 
 

With a copy to: City of Chandler - Public Works & Utilities Department 

Attn: Russ Slotnick, Project Manager 

P.O. Box 4008, Mail Stop 407, Chandler, AZ 85244-4008 

Phone: 480-782-3411               Email: russ.slotnick@chandleraz.gov 

To Consultant: 
LEGAL COMPANY NAME: Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. 

Mailing Address:  1501 W. Fountainhead Pkwy., Ste. 401, Tempe, AZ 85282 

Physical Address:   1501 W. Fountainhead Pkwy., Ste. 401, Tempe, AZ 85282 

Statutory Agent Name: CT Corporation System 

Statutory Agent Mailing Address: 

3800 N. Central Ave., Ste. 460 

Phoenix, AZ 85012 

Statutory Agent Physical Address: 

3800 N. Central Ave., Ste. 460 

Phoenix, AZ 85012 

CONSULTANT’S AUTHORIZED PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE  

Name: Fair Yeager, P.E. 

Title: AZ Water Market Client Account Manager 

Phone:  Office: 480-377-6249; Mobile: 480-225-4102 

Email: fair.yeager@jabocs.com 

DonnaRy
Text Box
fair.yeager@jacobs.com

DonnaRy
Text Box
The Period of Service is increased by 551 calendar days for a revised total of 1,184 calendar days.



Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant SCADA Upgrade – Amendment No. 4 Page 3 

Project No.: WA2103.451 
Rev. 3/12/2024 

 
CONSULTANT’S PROJECT MANAGER 

 
Name: Teresa Smith-DeHesus, P.E., DBIA 

 
Title: Project Manager 

 
Phone:  Office: 480-377-6233; Mobile: 480-331-0005 

 
Email: teresa.smithdehesus@jacobs.com 

 

 

SECTION V – CONFLICT AMONG DOCUMENTS 

 

The Agreement, this amendment, and any previous amendments constitute the complete 

agreement between the Parties concerning the subject matter of the Agreement and replace 

any prior oral or written communications between the Parties.  If a conflict or ambiguity arises 

between the Agreement and this amendment, the instrument in the following order prevails 

and controls: (1) this amendment; (2) any previous Amendments from most recent to oldest; 

and (3) the Agreement. 

 

 

 

 

 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW 

 

 

 

 

  



Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant SCADA Upgrade – Amendment No. 4 Page 4 

Project No.: WA2103.451

Rev. 3/12/2024 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Amendment No. 4 to be duly 

executed.  Each Party warrants and represents that its respective signatories whose signatures 

appear below have been and are on the date of signature duly authorized to execute this 

Amendment No. 4. 

“CITY” CITY OF CHANDLER 

MAYOR 

RECOMMENDED BY: 

Daniel Haskins, P.E. 

CIP City Engineer   

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

City Attorney 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk  Seal 

“CONSULTANT” 

JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC. 

Signature      Date 

Print Name 

Title 

Signer Email Address 

Fair Yeager

Client Account Manager

fair.yeager@jacobs.com

15 May 2024

DanielH
Snapshot



Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant SCADA Upgrade – Amendment No. 4 Page 5 

Project No.: WA2103.451 
Rev. 3/12/2024 

 

Amendment No. 4 (cont.) 

Project No. WA2103.451 

 

 

These changes result in the following adjustments of Agreement amount and/or time: 

 

Amendment authorized by Owner name: Danny Sargent   Date: 4/11/24 

Consultant email:  fair.yeager@jacobs.com 

Original Agreement amount: $230,295 

Previous Amendment(s) total: $98,520 

Last Agreement amount approved by Council: $230,295 

This Amendment: $1,286.450 

This Amendment + previous Amendment(s) not approved by 

Council total: 
$1,384,970 

Revised Agreement total: $1,615,265 

Council Approval Required (yes indicates approval required) Yes No 

Amendment(s) total over $100,000: ☒ ☐ 

Amendment(s) total causes Agreement to exceed $100,000:  ☐ ☒ 

Agreement Time 

Agreement time prior to this Amendment (including previous 

amendments): 

633 

Calendar Days 

Net change resulting from this Amendment: 
509 

Calendar Days 

Revised Agreement time (including this Amendment): 
1,142 

Calendar Days 

Council Approval (if applicable) 

Council Approval Date: June 13, 2024 Item No. Pending 

 
cc:  Project Manager, Consultant, Owner, File 

 

 

 

DonnaRy
Text Box
551

DonnaRy
Text Box
1,184



Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant SCADA Upgrade - Amendment No. 4 Page A-1 

Project No.: WA2103.451 
Rev 3/12/2024 

 

EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF WORK 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
Chandler Pecos SCADA Jacobs CM Services Amendment 4 for GMP2 - Scope (Exhibit A) 2024-05-03 

EXHIBIT “A” 

CITY OF CHANDLER  

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Construction Management Services 

PECOS SURFACE WATER TREATMENT PLANT SCADA UPGRADES 

Project No. WA2103.451 

AMENDMENT 4 - GMP2 CM Services 

SCOPE OF WORK 

May 3, 2024 

 

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING AND BACKGROUND 

 

The City of Chandler Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant (PSWTP), located at 1475 East Pecos 

Road, was put into service in 1989 and  PSWTP produces drinking water for the City’s residental and 

commercial customers.  Additionally, the control of the City’s potable water distribution network is 

also housed at PSWTP. In order to protect the health and safety of the water customers, City staff 

relies heavily on automation to reliably communicate with water facilities. This automation is in the 

form of the Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system. SCADA controls and monitors 

PSWTP equipment and 55 remote potable production facilities. The SCADA system also includes 

remote monitoring capabilities for 21 remote wastewater sites. Beyond system control, SCADA also 

captures numerous data points for system analysis and regulatory reporting. The City’s 2019 SCADA 

Master Plan identified a project to replace the existing Foxboro system. 

 

The PSWTP SCADA Upgrade project will modernize and improve the City’s existing system and will 

include upgrades to legacy hardware and software. The project will replace the existing Foxboro I/A 

Distributed Control System (DCS) with Modicon PLCs and Wonderware HMI. This effort will entail 

hardware replacement, upgrades to operational technology (OT) (i.e. the systems that control and 

monitor treatment plant functions), integration with remote facilities, and possible replacement of 

other obsolete equipment, such as power supplies or radio components. The project will include 

procurement and installation of new virtual machine servers, software packages, Win911 

applications with cellular modem and domain servers, and creation of SCADA software screens.  No 

treatment process upgrades are contemplated. The project will use a Construction Manager at Risk 

(CMAR) delivery approach and is expected to be completed on a fixed budget and schedule.  

 

This document describes the scope of work for services to be provided by Jacobs Engineering Group 

Inc. (CONSULTANT) for the City of Chandler (City and OWNER) for the Pecos SWTP SCADA Upgrade 

Construction Management Project WA2103.451 for execution of the work covered in Amendment 4 

for GMP2 being constructed by Archer Western (CONTRACTOR/CMAR). Tasks include:  

• Pre-Construction Assistance 

• Construction Management 

• Construction Inspection 

• Materials Testing  

• Record Drawings 

• Maintenance of Plant Operations (MOPO) Coordination and Review  
  



2 
Chandler Pecos SCADA Jacobs CM Services Amendment 4 for GMP2 - Scope (Exhibit A) 2024-05-03 

PROJECT TASKS 

 

1. PRE-CONSTRUCTION ASSISTANCE 

A. Task 4.1.1 Preconstruction Assistance  

i. Consultant must attend the pre-construction meeting to be coordinated and 

led by the City.  

 

2. CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT  

A. Task 4.2.1 Weekly Construction Meetings 

i. Consultant must conduct weekly construction meetings.  Each meeting 

includes an agenda and minutes; Shop Drawing; Request for Information (RFI); 

Field Directive (FD); Material Certification; and Allowance Logs. Consultant 

assumes 78 weekly meetings will be held. 

B. Task 4.2.2 CPM Schedule 

i. Consultant must review and evaluate Contractor’s initial CPM schedule and 

provide recommendations for acceptance.  

ii. Consultant must review Contractor’s monthly CPM schedule updates 

submitted with each payment application, identify CPM tasks behind schedule 

that may affect critical path items, project substantial and final completion 

dates and initiate correspondence to City regarding those tasks. Consultant 

assumes 18 reviews of updated CPM schedule in alignment with the CMAR 

construction schedule of 18 months.  

C. Task 4.2.3 Requests for Information (RFI’s) 

i. Consultant must review, evaluate, and respond to Contractor RFI’s; and 

prepare and maintain a submittal log of all RFI’s. Consultant assumes a 

maximum of 30 RFI responses. 

D. Task 4.2.4 Shop Drawing Submittals 

i. Consultant must review, evaluate, and respond to Contractor shop drawing 

submittals; and prepare and maintain a submittal log of all shop drawing 

submittals. Consultant assumes a maximum of 20 reviews, not including 

MOPOs. Submittals will be primarily for testing and commissioning plans 

prepared by the subconsultants doing the work as required by the 

specifications, rather than for materials, as most materials have been 

procured under GMP1. MOPO submittals are included in section 6.  

E. Task 4.2.5 Requests for Proposal (RFP) 

i. Consultant must prepare Requests for Proposal (RFP) documents detailing 

requested additional work tasks; review and evaluate Contractor RFP 

responses (cost derivations) with approval recommendations; and prepare 

and maintain a submittal log list of all RFP’s. Consultant assumes 10 RFPs due 

to the amount of allowances being used and needing to be tracked.   

F.  Task 4.2.6 Field Directives (FD’s) 

i. Consultant must prepare FD documents detailing requested additional work 

tasks or changes in work; review and evaluate Contractor FD responses with 

approval recommendations; and prepare and maintain a submittal log list of 

all FD’s. Consultant assumes not more than 9 FD’s to process CMAR allowances 



3 
Chandler Pecos SCADA Jacobs CM Services Amendment 4 for GMP2 - Scope (Exhibit A) 2024-05-03 

and contingency. One FD is assumed approximately every 2 months and items 

will be consolidated and combined as needed. 

G. Task 4.2.7 Contractor Payment Applications 

i. Consultant must review and evaluate Contractor monthly payment 

applications and make recommendations for payment; maintain a weekly 

record of constructed pay quantities and compile monthly totals; and 

coordinate payment application with the City quantity report and the 

inspectors’ daily logs. Consultant assumes a maximum of 18 payment 

applications, with 1 review each, and half having a second review in alignment 

with the CMAR construction schedule of 18 months.  

ii. Consultant will administer the project including weekly coordination with the 

City Project Manager (PM), status reporting, and monthly invoices.  

 

3. CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION 

A. Task 4.3.1 Inspection Services 

i. Consultant must provide weekly construction inspection to verify materials 

and installations conform to construction documents; prepare daily inspection 

reports documenting Contractor construction activities and progress during 

field inspection visits.Consultant assumes 20 hours per week on average for 

78 weeks. Approximatey 1 to 4 Jacobs team members will participate in on-site 

inspection of construction depending of the nature of the work.  

B. Task 4.3.3 Project Closeout    

i. Consultant must compile non-conformance list before Substantial 

Completion; schedule and conduct Substantial Completion inspection; 

prepare Substantial Completion punch list generated from Substantial 

Completion inspection; track items on punch list and note completed items; 

and complete and distribute Substantial Completion certificates. 

ii. Consultant must schedule and conduct Final Completion inspection; and 

complete and distribute Final Completion certificates. 

 

4. MATERIALS TESTING  

A. Task 4.4.1 Quality Control (QC) Test Program 

i. Consultant must review and verify Contractor’s Quality Control material test 

type and frequencies are consistent with City and Maricopa Association of 

Governments(MAG); review and evaluate Contractor’s QC test schedule and 

provide recommendations on acceptance; and review and evaluate all 

Contractor sampling, test, and inspection results for conformance with 

construction documents. This applies to fiber optic and wire testing only as 

specified.  

B. Task 4.4.2 Quality Assurance (QA) Test Program – N/A 

i. Consultant must prepare and maintain a materials Quality Assurance plan per 

City and MAG. 

ii. Consultant must coordinate with Contractor’s testing representative to obtain 

required QA tests and sample; complete sampling and compaction testing of 

subgrade (including lime-stabilized subgrade base), aggregate base, and 



4 
Chandler Pecos SCADA Jacobs CM Services Amendment 4 for GMP2 - Scope (Exhibit A) 2024-05-03 

asphalt concrete materials in new asphalt concrete pavement areas; complete 

sampling and compaction testing of subgrade, aggregate base (where 

required) and concrete for new curbs, gutters, sidewalks, and concrete 

pavement and structures; and complete sampling and compaction testing of 

backfill for new irrigation, sewer, water, storm drain pipe, and dry utilities. 

 

5. RECORD DRAWINGS  

A. Task 4.5.1 Record Drawings with Asset Retagging 

i. Maintain updated redlines of drawings throughout implementation phase.  

Update all drawings (approximately 800 sheets) to create record drawings 

after implementation is completed. Record drawing update will also include 

the retagging all of the assets with the updated tagging syntax.  

ii. Provide resident Consultant and/or architect and/or landscape architect 

stamp/certification on record drawings cover sheet. Ensure all required 

signatures are on the cover sheet. 

iii. Provide and deliver Final record drawings in digital pdf and CAD format to the 

City.  

iv. CONSULTANT will prepare the Approval of Construction (AOC) documentation 

required by Maricopa County Environmental Services Department (MCESD). 

 

6. MOPO DEVELOPMENT COLLABORATION 

This task is Owner-Requested Additional Services During Construction. Due to the critical 

nature of the SCADA upgrades and the need to minimize operational downtime, detailed 

coordination and oversight of MOPO development by the CMAR is required. This task 

includes highly focused collaboration on SCADA hardware cut-over preparation by the 

CMAR, as a majority of work will need to be done with the plant in operation since shutdowns 

are very limited. Consultant assumes 20 hours per week on average for 78 weeks.  

A. Task 4.6.1 MOPO Coordination 

i. Participate in weekly coordination meetings for MOPO development led by the 

CMAR team. 

ii. Monitor status and progress of the MOPO activities. 

iii. Coordinate commissioning activities with MOPO activities planned by the 

CMAR team. 

B. Task 4.6.2 MOPO Submittal Review and Oversight 

i. Review contractor MOPO submittals and coordinate approval process. 

ii. Participate in pre-work MOPO walk-throughs. 

 

7. ALLOWANCES  

A. Allowances 

i. The allowances below are estimates for optional work to be done at the 

direction and approval of the City. The following Allowances are included:  

1. Design Coordination Allowance – for additional design of 

Administration Building UPS and new Filter Sump and Sample Pump 

cabinets. 



5 
Chandler Pecos SCADA Jacobs CM Services Amendment 4 for GMP2 - Scope (Exhibit A) 2024-05-03 

2. CMAR Additional Work Allowance – for additional CM or design work as 

required to align with the CMAR construction requirements for 

unknowns, contingency use and schedule delays. 

3. Owner’s Contingency Allowance -  for additional services as directed by 

the Owner. 

 

ii. Work done under the allowances will be on a time and material basis. 

Additional scope definition may be necessary to confirm the level of effort and 

fee for additional work under these allowances. 

iii. Work done under the allowances may require an adjustment to the delivery 

schedule.   

 

SCHEDULE 

Work will be performed per the construction schedule developed by the CMAR. The target NTP is 

July 1, 2024 and construction is anticipated to take 18 months. 

 

COMPENSATION 

The work will be done on a time and material basis with a not to exceed (NTE) upper limit as 

indicated in the attached Level of Effort and Fee spreadsheet. Allowances are provided for optional 

work to be done at the direction and approval of the City.   

 

ASSUMPTION, CLARIFICATIONS, AND EXCLUSIONS 

1. Scope of Services represents Jacobs construction management services during construction 

for the Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrade GMP2 based on the completed design from Project 

WA2103.201. 

2. Application fees for City reviews and permits will be paid by CITY. 

3. Allowances will only be utilized with prior written approval from the City representative. 

4. Direct Reimbursabe Expenses are included in the LOE for normal reimbursable expenses on 

the project. Items must be billed at cost and backup must be provided with pay applications. 

5. Budgets will be managed at the Phase and Main Task level. Jacobs will track task budget 

overruns and underruns and reconcile funds for tasks as needed within the overall project 

NTE budget. Any scope changes will be accommodated within the overall project budget to 

the extent possible; Jacobs will inform the City on any changes that may require additional 

funds via use of an allowance or a change order. 

6. To facilitate rapid distribution of information, deliverables will be furnished electronically 

wherever possible. Unless otherwise indicated, final deliverables will be provided as native 

electronic files (Microsoft Word®, Microsoft Excel ®, Microsoft Access ®, and AutoCAD ® as 

appropriate). Reproduction of any additional required copies shall be performed by the 

OWNER. 

7. The CONSULTANT will use a project site as a repository for all electronic deliverables to be 

shared with the OWNER and CMAR team via file transfer protocol (FTP), SharePoint, or 

Microsoft® Teams.  

8. The Construction Manager will attend all meetings. The Project Manager, Design Manager, 

subject matter experts (SMEs) and discipline staff will attend as appropriate for the specific 

topic or type of meeting per the LOE. 



6 
Chandler Pecos SCADA Jacobs CM Services Amendment 4 for GMP2 - Scope (Exhibit A) 2024-05-03 

9. Travel for site visits, inspections, meetings, and workshops is estimated in the Direct 

Reimbursable Expenses estimate provided with the LOE attached. 

10. The OWNER will conduct the scheduling and coordination of necessary participants of City 

staff as well as contract operations staff necessary to have efficient meetings and 

coordination. The OWNER's Project Manager and Plant Manager will coordinate with City’s 

staff to ensure optimal participation at meetings and in site activities. 

11. The OWNER will contract directly with a CMAR contractor and will coordinate with the 

contractor on their involvement on the project.  

12. The OWNER will provide access to facilities and will assist the CONSULTANT and CMAR with 

any necessary entry permits, scheduling, notification, and other requirements to gain access 

to perform the work.  



Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant SCADA Upgrade - Amendment No. 4 Page B-1 

Project No.: WA2103.451 
Rev. 3/12/2024 

EXHIBIT B 

FEE SCHEDULE 



EXHIBIT B
Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades
CM Services - Amendment 4 for GMP2
Phase 4: Implementation and Commissioning
LEVEL OF EFFORT

Task Description

Teresa Smith-

Dehesus Jay Hardison Hong Zhang Josh Blume  Navneet Jat Naitik Shah Ryan/Talitha Various Total Subtotal Expenses TOTAL

Principal/ 

Project 

Manager

SCADA 

Design 

Manager

Technical 

Advisor 

(Modicon) 

Cybersecurity / 

Operational 

Technology

CM SCADA/ I&C 

Designer 

Staff I&C 

Engineer

Technician / CAD Office Support Labor 

Hours

Labor

Bill Rate 280.00$         270.00$         205.00$             250.00$             125.00$       150.00$         125.00$         110.00$                        100.00$            

4.1 PRE-CONSTRUCTION ASSISTANCE

4.1.1 Preconstruction Assistance  (based upon 1 meeting) 4 4 4 4 4 4 0 24 $5,020 $1,000 $6,020

Subtotal 4 4 4 4 4 0 4 0 0 24 $5,020 $1,000 $6,020

4.2 CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT 

4.2.1 Weekly Construction Meetings (weekly for 78 weeks) 39 78 0 156 0 273 $51,480 $0 $51,480

4.2.2 CPM Schedule (18 months) 17 26 44 87 $17,280 $17,280

4.2.3 Requests for Information (RFI’s) (Based upon 30 RFIs) 15 30 60 15 60 30 210 $38,850 $38,850

4.2.4 Shop Drawing Submittals (based upon 20 reviews) 10 20 40 40 20 130 $23,400 $23,400

4.2.5 Requests for Proposal (RFP) (Based upon 10) 5 10 20 20 40 40 135 $22,200 $22,200

4.2.6 Field Directives (FD’s) (based upon 9) 9 9 18 18 72 18 144 $23,940 $23,940

4.2.7 Contractor Payment Applications (18 months ) 36 72 216 216 540 $78,120 $78,120

Contract Administration (Jacobs invoicing and mgmt meetings) 108 90 144 342 $72,540 $72,540

Subtotal 239 335 138 53 772 0 0 0 324 1861 $327,810 $0 $327,810

4.3 CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION

4.3.1 Inspection Services (based upon 78 weeks) 78 78 78 156 624 624 1638 $253,500 $6,000 $259,500

4.3.2 N/A 0 $0 $0

4.3.3 Project Closeout  40 40 8 40 8 8 144 $31,200 $31,200

Subtotal 118 118 0 86 196 632 632 0 0 1782 $284,700 $6,000 $290,700

4.4 MATERIALS TESTING 

4.4.1 Quality Control (QC) Test Program 8 8 40 80 136 $24,400 $24,400

4.4.2 Quality Assurance (QA) Test Program (N/A) 0 $0 $0

Subtotal 8 8 0 40 80 0 0 0 0 136 $24,400 $0 $24,400

4.5 RECORD DRAWINGS 

4.5.1 Record Drawings with Asset Retagging (800 sheets) 80 80 400 1200 1760 $226,000 $226,000

4.5.1 MCESD AOC 20 40 60 $10,600 $10,600

Subtotal 100 80 0 0 440 0 0 1200 0 1820 $236,600 $0 $236,600

4.6 MOPO DEVELOPMENT  (assume 20 hours for 78 weeks)

4.6.1 MOPO Coordination 78 156 234 234 702 $122,460 $6,000 $128,460

4.6.2 MOPO Submittal Review and Oversight 78 156 234 234 702 $122,460 $122,460

Subtotal 156 312 0 0 468 0 468 0 0 1404 $244,920 $6,000 $250,920

OWNERS ALLOWANCES

Design Coordination Allowance $25,000

CMAR Additional Work Allowance $25,000

Owner’s Contingency Allowance $100,000

Subtotal 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $150,000

TOTAL 625 857 142 183 1960 632 1104 1200 324 7,027 $1,123,450 $13,000 $1,286,450

No.

Chandler Pecos SCADA Jacobs CM Services Amendment 4 for GMP2 - LOE 2024-05-03 1



ITEM  31 

City Council Memorandum      Public Works & Utilities  Memo No. CP24-149
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Andy Bass, Deputy City Manager
John Knudson, Public Works and Utilities Director
Daniel Haskins, Capital Projects Division Manager

From: Sandra Story, Engineering Project Manager 
Subject:Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR) Construction Services Agreement No.

WA2103.402, with Archer Western Construction, for the Pecos Surface Water
Treatment Plant SCADA Upgrades GMP-2

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council award CMAR Construction Services Agreement No.
WA2103.402, to Archer Western Construction, for the Pecos Surface Water
Treatment Plant SCADA Upgrades GMP-2, in an amount not to exceed
$8,360,342.

Background/Discussion:
The Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant (PSWTP), located at 1475 East Pecos
Road, was put into service in 1989 and produces drinking water for the city’s
residents and businesses. The plant's automation technology, commonly called
the Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system, controls, and
monitors the PSWTP and approximately 50 remote facilities. Operational control
for the water system relies heavily on automation to reliably communicate within
the PSWTP and remote water facilities. Beyond system control, SCADA also
captures numerous data points for system analysis and regulatory reporting.
The SCADA system has approximately 3,200 inputs and outputs, otherwise
known as I/O. The 2019 SCADA Master Plan identified the need to replace the
outdated control system that was installed during the original plant construction
with modern technologies, bringing it up to current industry standards.

On November 10, 2022, City Council approved Guaranteed Maximum Price No. 1



(also known as GMP-1) for the first phase of this project in the amount of
$2,766,254.46 with Quantum Integrated Solutions, Inc. GMP-1 included the
procurement of long lead time items. Upon conclusion of GMP-1, Quantum and
the City mutually agreed to part ways rather than partner on GMP-2, which
includes the (final) construction phase of the project. A Request for Qualifications
(RFQ) process was conducted and Archer Western Construction was selected as
the recommended vendor to continue the project.

The project scope of work consists of upgrades to the legacy SCADA hardware
and software systems at the PSWTP and remote locations and unifying the control
hardware across all networks, as well as replacement of control panels and
controllers with standardized programmable logic controllers, cabinet
replacements, new servers and software, cellular modems, ethernet devices,
electrical supply and backup, digital input modules, switches, fiber optic cables
and conduit, equipment racks, and mounts. Work also includes routing wiring
inside existing conduit, trenching for new conduit, and restoration of affected
existing improvements and facilities. The agreement completion time is 600
calendar days following Notice to Proceed.

A related Professional Services Agreement with Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc.,
for the Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant SCADA Upgrade GMP-2
Construction Management Services, is also scheduled for this City Council
meeting.

Evaluation:
The selection process was followed in accordance with city policy and procedure
and state law. Staff recommends agreement award to Archer Western
Construction based on qualifications, relevant firm experience, team experience,
project understanding, and project approach. Staff reviewed the Guaranteed
Maximum Price proposal and determined it to be reasonable. 

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund

Name
Program Name Dollar

Amount
CIP
Funded
Y/N

601.3820.6814.6WA210Water
Bonds

Water Treatment
Plant Improvements

$8,360,342 Y

Attachments
Location Map 



Agreement - Archer Western 



ELLIOT RD

WARNER RD

RAY RD

CHANDLER BL

PECOS RD

GERMANN RD

QUEEN CREEK RD

OCOTILLO RD

CHANDLER HEIGHTS RD

RIGGS RD

HUNT HWVAL VISTA DR

LINDSAY RD

GILBERT RD

COOPER RD

MCQUEEN RD

ARIZONA AV

ALMA SCHOOL RD

DOBSON RD

PRICE RD

MCCLINTOCK DR

RURAL RD

KYRENE RD

56TH ST

PECOS SURFACE WATER
TREATMENT PLANT SCADA UPGRADES

PROJECT NO. WA2103.402

°
NTS

PECOS RD

MC
QU

EE
N R

D

WILLIS RD

SANTAN - SR202L FW

12
4T

H S
T

SE
NA

TE
 ST

CA
NA

L D
R

SE
NA

TE
 ST

PROJECT SITE

MEMO NO. CP24-149

F:\ENGINEER\GENSERV\_ArcMap_Shared\Map Requests\Capital Projects\CP22-033 PECOS SURFACE WATER TREATMENT PLANT SCADA UPGRADES\CP22-033.mxd 8/9/2021 MARICELAH



  

Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant (SWTP) SCADA Upgrades GMP 2  Page  i 

Project No.: WA2103.402 

Rev 1-16-2024 

 

 

CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA 
 

 

 

 

PECOS SURFACE WATER TREATMENT PLANT (SWTP) 

SCADA UPGRADES GMP 2 
 

CITY PROJECT NO. WA2103.402 
 
 

 

 

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES AGREEMENT 

(CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________________________ 

Daniel Haskins, P.E. 

CIP City Engineer 
 
 
 

DanielH
Snapshot



  

Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant (SWTP) SCADA Upgrades GMP 2  Page  ii 

Project No.: WA2103.402 

Rev 1-16-2024 

CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA 

 

PECOS SURFACE WATER TREATMENT PLANT (SWTP) 

SCADA UPGRADES GMP 2 

CITY PROJECT NO.: WA2103.402 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 

 PARTICIPANTS AND PROJECT........................................................................................ 1 

 AGREEMENT DOCUMENTS ............................................................................................ 3 

 PRE-CONSTRUCTION SERVICES ..................................................................................... 3 

 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES ............................................................................................ 3 

 CITY RESPONSIBILITIES ................................................................................................. 5 

 AGREEMENT TIME .......................................................................................................... 5 

 AGREEMENT PRICE ......................................................................................................... 8 

 FORCED LABOR OF ETHNIC UYGHURS PROHIBITED ................................................. 8 

 

 

EXHIBIT A – PROJECT SPECIFIC SPECIAL PROVISIONS ................................................................ SP-1 

EXHIBIT B – GENERAL CONDITIONS ........................................................................................... GC-1 

EXHIBIT C – TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS.................................................................................... TS-1 

EXHIBIT D – ACCEPTED GMP/PRICE PROPOSAL ...................................................................... GMP-1 

EXHIBIT E – SUBCONTRACTOR’S LIST FORM ............................................................................ SUB-1 

EXHIBIT F – GIS / GPS DATA DELIVERY REQUIREMENTS (IF APPLICABLE) ............................... GIS-1 

EXHIBIT G – SUBCONTRACTOR DOCUMENTS WITH CM@RISK ............................................. SUBS-1 

 



 

  

Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant (SWTP) SCADA Upgrades GMP 2  Page 1 

Project No.: WA2103.402 

Rev. 1/16/2024 

CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK 

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES AGREEMENT 

PROJECT NO.: WA2103.402 

 

This Agreement (the “AGREEMENT”)  is made and entered into on the ______day of _______________, 

2024, (“Effective Date”) by and between City of Chandler, an Arizona municipal corporation, 

hereinafter called “City” and Archer Western Construction the “Construction Manager at Risk” 

or “CM@Risk” designated below (City and CM@Risk may individually be referred to as “Party” 

and collectively referred to as “Parties”). 
 

City and CM@Risk agree as follows: 
 

 PARTICIPANTS AND PROJECT 

 

CITY:  CIP City Engineer: Daniel Haskins, P.E. 

 Public Works & Utilities Department 

 P.O. Box 4008, Mail Stop 407   Chandler, AZ  85244-4008 

 Phone:  480-782-3335     Email:    daniel.haskins@chandleraz.gov 
 

CITY:  Construction Project Manager: Russ Slotnick 

 Public Works & Utilities Department 

 P.O. Box 4008, Mail Stop 407  Chandler, AZ  85244-4008 

 Phone:  480-782-3411     Email:    russ.slotnick@chandleraz.gov 
 

 

CM@RISK: Legal Company Name:   Archer Western Construction 

 
Mailing Address:   4710 E. Elwood Street, Suite 6, Phoenix, AZ 85040 

 
Physical Address:   4710 E. Elwood Street, Suite 6, Phoenix, AZ 85040 

 
Arizona Roc No.:   275896 & 275897 

 
Federal Tax Id No.:    27-0887868 

 
State Where Organized:    Arizona 

 
Business Organization:    General Contractor 

 
Statutory Agent Name:    Brad Sanders 

 

Statutory Agent Mailing Address:  

4710 E. Elwood Street, Suite 6 

Phoenix, AZ 85040 

 

Statutory Agent Physical Address:    

4710 E. Elwood Street, Suite 6 

Phoenix, AZ 85040 

 
CM@Risk’s Authorized Project Representative:   

 

  
Name: Kyle Ledbetter 

 

  
Title: Project Executive 

 

  

Phone: 602-293-7835 
 

  
Email: kledbetter@walshgroup.com 

 



 

  

Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant (SWTP) SCADA Upgrades GMP 2  Page 2 

Project No.: WA2103.402 

Rev. 1/16/2024 

  

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

 

This project will upgrade hardware and software for control and data capture for the Pecos 

Surface Water Treatment Plant as well as all remote water facilities. 

 

PROJECT LOCATION: 

 

Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant, 1475 East Pecos Road, Chandler, Arizona.  
 
 

  



 

  

Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant (SWTP) SCADA Upgrades GMP 2  Page 3 

Project No.: WA2103.402 

Rev. 1/16/2024 

 AGREEMENT DOCUMENTS 

 

2.1 AGREEMENT DOCUMENTS 

 The Agreement between City and CM@Risk will consist of the following Agreement 

Documents: 

 

1. This Construction Services Agreement and all of its Exhibits, including Project 

Plans and Technical Specifications. 

2. General Conditions and General Conditions Appendices, incorporated by 

reference. 

3. Project Specific Special Provisions as set forth in Exhibit A, incorporated by 

reference. 

4. Accepted GMP/Price Proposal as set forth in Exhibit D, incorporated by reference. 

 

2.2 In the event of any inconsistency, conflict, or ambiguity between or among the 

Agreement Documents, the Agreement Documents will take precedence as described in 

Section 14.1.4 of the General Conditions. 

 

2.3 DEFINITIONS 

 The definitions in Sections 2 and 15 of the General Conditions apply to all the 

Agreement Documents, including this Agreement.   

 

 PRE-CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 

 

Although CM@Risk has performed Pre-Construction Services pursuant to a separate 

Agreement between City and CM@Risk, the completion, quality and accuracy of those services 

and the deliverables provided by City thereunder directly impact CM@Risk’s performance of 

its obligations under this Agreement. Therefore, all of CM@Risk’s obligations, duties, and 

warranties in relation to Pre-Construction Services and deliverables survive completion of the 

Pre-Construction Services Agreement and are incorporated herein. Any breach of any of 

CM@Risk’s duties, obligations, or warranties under the Pre-Construction Services Agreement 

will likewise be considered a breach of this Agreement. 

 

 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 

 

4.1 GENERAL 

 

4.1.1 CM@Risk agrees at its own cost and expense, to do all work necessary and required to 

fully, timely and properly complete the construction of the Project in strict accordance 

with the Agreement Documents in a good and workmanlike manner, free and clear of 

all claims, liens, and charges whatsoever, in the manner and under the conditions 

specified, and within the schedule, stated in attached Exhibit A. 

 



 

  

Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant (SWTP) SCADA Upgrades GMP 2  Page 4 

Project No.: WA2103.402 

Rev. 1/16/2024 

4.1.2 CM@Risk must provide all of the labor and materials, and perform the Work in 

accordance with Section 4 of the General Conditions. Some, but not all, of the major 

components of the Construction Services and the corresponding subsections of Section 

4 of the General Conditions are set forth below. 

 

4.1.3 This is an Agreement for complete construction services in accordance with the 

Construction Manager at Risk method of delivery of construction services.  CM@RISK has 

participated in the design process and been an active member of the Project Design 

Team and is fully aware of any issues and constraints involved in this Construction 

Project.   

 

4.1.4 CM@RISK is the CITY’s fiduciary responsible for undertaking all necessary action 

contemplated under the Agreement documents to construct the Project and ensure 

timely and quality completion of the Project at a cost within the Guaranteed Maximum 

Price (GMP).   

 

4.1.5 At all times relevant to this Agreement and performance of the Work, the CM@Risk must 

fully comply with all Laws, Regulations, or Legal Requirements applicable to City, the 

Project and the Agreement, including, without limitation, those set forth on attached 

Exhibit A. 

 

4.1.6 CM@Risk must perform the Work under this Agreement using only those firms, team 

members and individuals designated by CM@Risk consistent with the Statement of 

Qualifications dated December 3, 2023, the GMP Proposal, or otherwise approved by City 

pursuant to the General Conditions. No other entities or individuals may be used without 

prior approval of the Project Manager 

 

4.1.7 CM@Risk will comply with all terms and conditions of the General Conditions. 

 

4.1.8 In the event of a conflict between this Agreement and the General Conditions or an exhibit 

hereto or appendix thereto, the terms of this Agreement will control. 

 

4.1.9 Ownership of Work Product.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this 

Agreement, all Work Product prepared or otherwise created in connection with the 

performance of this Agreement, including the Work, are to be and remain the property 

of City. For purposes of this provision, “Work Product” will include all designs, drawings, 

plans, specifications, ideas, renderings and other information or matter, in whatever form 

created (e.g., electronic or printed) and in all media now known or hereinafter created. 

All Work Product will be considered Work Made for Hire as defined in the United States 

Copyright Act 17 U.S.C. § 101 (Copyright Act). If for any reason, any such Work is found 

not to be a Work Made for Hire, CM@Risk hereby transfers and assigns ownership of the 

copyright in such Work to City. The rights in this Section are exclusive to City in perpetuity. 



 

  

Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant (SWTP) SCADA Upgrades GMP 2  Page 5 

Project No.: WA2103.402 

Rev. 1/16/2024 

 

4.2 CM@RISK’S PRE-AGREEMENT AND PRE-WORK DELIVERABLES 

 

4.2.1 The CM@Risk must provide the Deliverables in accordance with Section 4.2 of the 

General Conditions.   
 

4.3 PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE 

Refer to Section 4.3 of the General Conditions. 

 

4.4 PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK (INCLUDING FIELD MEASUREMENTS, 

SUBCONTRACTORS, AND SUPPLIERS) 

Refer to Section 4.4 of the General Conditions. 

 

4.5 CONTROL OF THE PROJECT SITE 

Refer to Section 4.5 of the General Conditions. 

 

4.6 PROJECT SAFETY 

Refer to Section 4.6 of the General Conditions. 

 

4.7 MATERIALS QUALITY, SUBSTITUTIONS AND SHOP DRAWINGS 

Refer to Section 4.7 of the General Conditions. 

 

4.8 PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS 

Refer to Section 4.8 of the General Conditions. 

 

4.9 WARRANTY AND CORRECTION OF DEFECTIVE WORK 

Refer to Section 4.9 of the General Conditions. 

 

 CITY RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

5.1 City will have the responsibilities, and provide the information specified in, and subject 

to the conditions set forth in, Section 5 of the General Conditions. 

 

 AGREEMENT TIME 

 

6.1 GENERAL 

 

6.1.1 The Agreement Duration is 600 Calendar Days. 

 

6.1.2 The Agreement Time will start with the Notice to Proceed (NTP) and end with Final 

Acceptance, as set forth in Article 6.4 below. The Notice to Proceed cannot be issued until 

approval and acceptance by City of the GMP or Fixed Price. 

 



 

  

Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant (SWTP) SCADA Upgrades GMP 2  Page 6 

Project No.: WA2103.402 

Rev. 1/16/2024 

6.1.3 The Agreement Time will be as set forth in the Project Schedule. CM@Risk agrees that 

it will commence performance of the Work and complete the Project through Final 

Acceptance within the Agreement Time. 

 

6.1.4 Time is of the essence of this Agreement for the Project, and for each phase and 

designated Milestone thereof. 

 

6.2 PROJECT SCHEDULE 

 

6.2.1 The Project Schedule approved as part of the GMP Proposal and incorporated herein as 

part of the attached Exhibit D  must be updated and maintained throughout CM@Risk’s 

performance under this Agreement in accordance with Section 6.2 of the General 

Conditions. 

 

6.2.2 Failure on the part of CM@Risk to adhere to the approved Project Schedule will be 

deemed a material breach and sufficient grounds for termination of this Agreement by 

City. 

 

6.2.3 Work must be completed to meet the following milestones after the Notice to Proceed: 
 

 Milestone  Time Liquidated damages for delay 

 

1. n/a within n/a n/a per calendar day 

6.3 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 

 Substantial Completion must be achieved no later than the Substantial Completion Date 

set forth in the Project Schedule.  Substantial Completion will be determined in 

accordance with Section 6.3 of the General Conditions. 

 

6.4 FINAL ACCEPTANCE 

 

6.4.1 Final Acceptance will be obtained within the time period set forth in the Project Schedule. 

 

6.4.2 Final Acceptance will be issued pursuant to Section 6.5 of the General Conditions. 

 

6.5 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 

 

6.5.1 Substantial Completion Liquidated Damages. CM@Risk acknowledges and agrees that 

if CM@Risk fails to obtain Substantial Completion of the Work within the Agreement 

Time, City will sustain extensive damages and serious loss as a result of such failure. The 

exact amount of such damages will be extremely difficult to ascertain. Therefore, City 

and CM@Risk agree that if CM@Risk fails to achieve Substantial Completion of the Work 

within the Agreement Time, City will be entitled to retain or recover from CM@Risk, as 



 

  

Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant (SWTP) SCADA Upgrades GMP 2  Page 7 

Project No.: WA2103.402 

Rev. 1/16/2024 

liquidated damages and not as a penalty, the sum per calendar day as indicated in MAG 

§ 108.9. 

 

6.5.2 Final Acceptance Liquidated Damages. For the same reasons set forth in Article 6.5.1 

above, City and CM@Risk further agree that if CM@Risk fails to achieve Final Acceptance 

of the Work within the Agreement Time, City will be entitled to retain or recover from 

CM@Risk, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, the sum per calendar day as 

indicated in MAG § 108.9 commencing from the actual date of Substantial Completion or 

Final Acceptance as required under the Agreement. 

 

6.5.3 MAG Liquidated Damages. If no liquidated damages are specified in Articles 6.5.1 or 6.5.2 

above, then the liquidated damages provisions in MAG § 108.9 will apply. 

 

6.5.4 City may deduct liquidated damages described in this Article 6.5 from any unpaid 

amounts then or thereafter due CM@Risk under this Agreement. Any liquidated damages 

not so deducted from any unpaid amounts due CM@Risk will be payable to City at the 

demand of City, together with interest from the date of the demand at the highest lawful 

rate of interest payable by CM@Risk. 

 

6.6 MUTUAL WAIVER OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ONLY 

 

6.6.1 CM@Risk and City waive claims against each other for consequential damages arising 

out of or relating to this Agreement. This mutual waiver includes: 

 

6.6.1.1 Damages incurred by City for rental expenses, for losses of use, income, profit, financing, 

business and reputation, and for loss of management or employee productivity or of 

the services of such persons; and 

 

6.6.1.2 Damages incurred by CM@Risk for principal office expenses including the compensation 

of personnel stationed there, for losses of financing, business and reputation, and for loss 

of profit except anticipated profit arising directly from the Work. 

 

6.6.2 This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential damages due 

to either Party’s termination of this Agreement. Nothing contained in this Article 6 .6 

will be deemed to preclude an award of liquidated damages, when applicable, in 

accordance with Article 6.5 above. 

 

6.6.3 Nothing herein will be deemed to constitute a waiver of any other remedy available to 

City in the event of CM@Risk’s default under this Agreement prior to full performance of 

the Work including, as applicable, specific performance or completion of the Work on 

behalf of CM@Risk, the cost and expense of which will be offset against any monies 

then or thereafter due to CM@Risk (if any) and otherwise immediately reimbursed to 

City by CM@Risk. 

 



 

  

Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant (SWTP) SCADA Upgrades GMP 2  Page 8 

Project No.: WA2103.402 

Rev. 1/16/2024 

 AGREEMENT PRICE 

 

7.1 AGREEMENT PRICE 

 

7.1.1 In exchange for CM@Risk’s full, timely, and acceptable performances and construction of 

the Work under this Agreement, and subject to all of the terms of this Agreement, City 

will pay CM@Risk the “Agreement Price,” which:  

 

The sum of the CM@Risk’s Fee and reimbursable Cost of the Work, as defined in Section 

15 of the General Conditions, which the CM@Risk guarantees will not exceed the GMP 

set forth in Exhibit D in the amount of $8,360,342.  Costs which would cause the GMP 

to be exceeded must be paid by CM@Risk without reimbursement from City. 

 

7.1.2 The Agreement Price is all-inclusive and specifically includes all fees, cost, insurance and 

bond premiums, allowances, construction contingency, owner’s contingency, and taxes 

of any type necessary to fully, properly and timely perform and construct Work. 

 

7.2 CHANGES TO AGREEMENT PRICE 

Shall be determined under Section 9 of the General Conditions. 

 

 FORCED LABOR OF ETHNIC UYGHURS PROHIBITED 

 

8.1 FORCED LABOR OF ETHNIC UYGHURS PROHIBITED.  By entering into this 

Agreement, Contractor certifies and agrees Contractor does not currently use and 

will not use for the term of this Agreement: (i) the forced labor of ethnic Uyghurs in 

the People's Republic of China; or (ii) any goods or services produced by the forced 

labor of ethnic Uyghurs in the People's Republic of China; or (iii) any contractors, 

subcontractors or suppliers that use the forced labor or any goods or services 

produced by the forced labor of ethnic Uyghurs in the People's Republic of China. 

 

 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW 
 

  



DanielH
Snapshot



EXHIBIT A 

 

Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant (SWTP) SCADA Upgrades GMP 2  Page SP-1 

Project No.: WA2103.402 

Rev. 1/16/2024 

 
 

PROJECT SPECIFIC 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

 
 

 

4.2.7 Aerial Construction Photography 

General Conditions Section 4 Subsections 4.2.7.1 & 4.2.7.2 are not applicable to this 

project. 

 

4.2.8 Government Approvals and Permits 

General Conditions Section 4 Subsection 4.2.8.1, City permit fees will be paid internally 

by the City and all other fees will be the responsibility of the Contractor. 

 

The following Supplementary Provisions amend or supplement the Standard General 

Conditions of the Construction Contract as indicated below. All provisions that are 

not so amended or supplemented remain in full force and effect. 

 

The terms used in these Supplementary Provisions have the meanings stated in the 

General Conditions. Additional terms used in these Supplementary Conditions have 

the meanings stated below, which are applicable to both the singular and plural 

thereof. The address system used in these Supplementary provisions is the same as 

the address system used in the General Conditions, with the prefix “SP” added 

thereto. 

 

SECTION 2 - GENERAL DEFINITIONS 

 

SP-SECTION 2. Delete definitions for Consultant, Contractor, Final Acceptance, and Project 

Specific Condition in their entirety and insert the following in their place:  

 

Consultant: Person or firm that provides professional services. For the purposes of 

this contract the terms Consultant, Engineer and Design Professional all refer to 

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. (Jacobs)   

 

Contractor: The person or business association with whom City has entered into an 

agreement for construction related Work or Services in relation to the Project at issue. 

For the purposes of this contract the terms Contractor, Construction Manager at Risk 

(CMAR or CM@Risk) all refer to Archer Western Construction.   

 

Final Acceptance and Warranty: The City’s acceptance of the facility or project from 

the Contractor after all Work is completed, tested, inspected and Warranties provided 

in accordance with the Agreement requirements. Final Acceptance results in a Letter 

of Acceptance (LOA). 



EXHIBIT A 

 

Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant (SWTP) SCADA Upgrades GMP 2  Page SP-1 

Project No.: WA2103.402 

Rev. 1/16/2024 

 

Project Specific Conditions:  Additional conditions which apply to the specific Project 

and Scope of Work which are set forth in GMP Agreement. 

 

SP-SECTION 2. Add the following definitions: 

 

Construction Project Manager: The Construction Project Manager is considered the 

Project Manager for this contract. 

 

Final Substantial Completion: The last Substantial Completion for a building or 

process area in the case of multiple Substantial Completions.  

 

 

SECTION 4 - CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR CONSTRUCTION SERVICES  

 

4.1. GENERAL 

 

SP-4.1. Delete Subsections 4.1.10, 4.1.11 and 4.1.12 in their entirety as they are not applicable 

to this project.  

 

4.2. CONTRACTOR’S PRE-AGREEMENT AD PRE-WORK DELIVERABLES 

 

SP-4.2. Delete Subsections 4.2.7, 4.2.7.1, 4.2.7.2, 4.2.7.4, 4.2.7.5, 4.2.7.6 & 4.2.7.7 in their 

entirety as they are not applicable to this project. 

 

4.4. PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK (INCLUDING FIELD MEASUREMENTS,  

SUBCONTRACTORS, AND SUPPLIERS) 

 

SP-4.4.10. Add the following new paragraph immediately after 4.4.10.1. 
 

4.4.10.1.1  Contractor will be responsible for hiring their own private utility locator 
onsite. Work is Not in the Right of Way (ROW) where 811 applies. 

 

4.8 PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS 

 

SP-4.8. Delete Subsection 4.8.8 in its entirety and insert the following in its place:  

 

4.8.8  Consultant will review the Project Record Drawings monthly prior to the 
date established for the Payment Request and will be the sole judge of 
acceptance of these Drawings. 

 

SECTION 6 – AGREEMENT TIME 

 

SP-6.5.1. Delete Subsection 6.5.1 in its entirety and insert the following in its place: 



EXHIBIT A 

 

Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant (SWTP) SCADA Upgrades GMP 2  Page SP-1 

Project No.: WA2103.402 

Rev. 1/16/2024 

 
6.5.1  Unless otherwise expressly agreed to in writing by City, Final Acceptance 

must be obtained by no later than 30 Days (60 Days for federally funded 
agreements) after the date of Final Substantial Completion. Failure to 
timely obtain Final Acceptance will be a material breach of the Agreement. 

 

SECTION 9 - CHANGES TO THE AGREEMENT 

 

SP-9.1. Delete Section 9.1 Field Orders in its entirety and insert the following in its place:  

 

9.1  FIELD DIRECTIVES:  

City may authorize minor changes in the Work not involving an adjustment in 

the Agreement Price or the Agreement Times, which are consistent with the 

overall intent of the Agreement Documents.  These may be accomplished by 

a written Field Directives on the standard form approved and executed by City 

with Engineer’s clarification. Such Field Directives must be binding, and 

Contractor must perform the change promptly. If Contractor believes that a 

Field Directives justifies an increase in the Agreement Price or Agreement 

Time, Contractor may make a claim therefor as provided in Section 7.2. 

 

SECTION 15 - PROVISIONS APPLICABLE SOLELY TO GMP AND COST-BASED AGREEMENTS, 

CHANGE ORDERS, AND JOB ORDERS 

 

SP 15.4 Delete Subsection 15.4.1 in its entirety and insert the following in its place:  

 

15.4.1  Construction Contingency. This GMP includes a dollar amount listed as a 
Construction Contingency which will be readily available for increased 
costs for subcontractors, material, and equipment subject to prior 
approval of City, which approval will not be withheld unreasonably. 
Subcontractors shall not include their contingencies within their scope of 
work. The Construction Contingency may also be used, at the discretion 
of City, to reimburse CM@Risk for unexpected costs due to (a) scope gaps 
between trade subcontractors; (b) agreement default by trade 
subcontractors; (c) unforeseen field conditions, but only as defined in 
Section 9.5 above; (d) work completed to meet the intent of the design, 
but which was not indicated on the plans; (e) costs overruns not covered 
by allowances. Cost for which CM@Risk desires to be paid from the 
Construction Contingency must be documented by CM@Risk on a time 
and materials basis and are subject to verification by City. If agreed to by 
City, a “Use of Contingency” form will be executed by both parties 
authorizing the actual cost of the work to be paid and included in the Work 
Item Direct Costs.  The Construction Contingency is not allocated to any 
particular item of the Project but may be used for any portion of the work 
as determined above.  Any amount not used in the Construction 
Contingency will belong to City and will reduce the GMP. 

 



EXHIBIT A 

 

Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant (SWTP) SCADA Upgrades GMP 2  Page SP-1 

Project No.: WA2103.402 

Rev. 1/16/2024 

 

SECTION 16 - PROVISIONS APPLICABLE SOLELY TO JOB ORDER AGREEMENTS (JOC) 

 

SP-16. Delete Section 16 in its entirety as it is not applicable to this project.  

 

SECTION 2 – COSTS NOT TO BE REIMBURSED 

 

SP-2.1.9. Add the following new paragraph immediately after 2.1.8 of General Conditions 
Appendix 9 – Cost of the Work (Applicable solely to Construction Manager at Risk and  
Job Order Contracting) 

 
2.1.9.  Cost of Contractor’s safety equipment and small hand tools will be 

considered overhead and general expense.  

 

 

 



EXHIBIT B 

 
Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant (SWTP) SCADA Upgrades GMP 2  Page GC-1 

Project No.: WA2103.402 

Rev. 10/23/23 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approved date: July 20, 2022 
 



Revised: 7/20/2022  GC-2 of 75 

 
 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
SECTION 1 - SCOPE OF THESE GENERAL CONDITIONS ............................................................................... 3 

SECTION 2 - GENERAL DEFINITIONS ............................................................................................................ 3 

SECTION 3 - STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND DETAILS ........................................................................... 7 

SECTION 4 - CONT R ACT OR’S R ES PONS IBILIT IES FOR CONST RUCT ION SE RVIC ES .................................. 8 

SECTION 5 - CITY RESPONSIBILITIES .......................................................................................................... 27 

SECTION 6 - AGREEMENT TIME ................................................................................................................... 29 

SECTION 7 - AGREEMENT PRICE .................................................................................................................. 35 

SECTION 8 - PAYMENT ................................................................................................................................. 35 

SECTION 9 - CHANGES TO THE AGREEMENT ............................................................................................. 40 

SECTION 10 - SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION ...................................................................................... 43 

SECTION 11 - INSURANCE AND BONDS ..................................................................................................... 44 

SECTION 12 - INDEMNIFICATION ............................................................................................................... 49 

SECTION 13 - DISPUTE RESOLUTION .......................................................................................................... 49 

SECTION 14 - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS ............................................................................................ 50 

SECTION 15 - PROVISIONS APPLICABLE SOLELY TO GMP AND COST-BASED AGREEMENTS, CHANGE 
ORDERS, AND JOB ORDERS ......................................................................................................................... 57 

SECTION 16 - PROVISIONS APPLICABLE SOLELY TO JOB ORDER AGREEMENTS (JOC) ........................ 61 

SECTION 17 - PROVISIONS APPLICABLE SOLELY TO PRE-CONSTRUCTION SERVICES FOR 
CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK .......................................................................................................... 66 

SECTION 18 - APPENDICES ...................................................................................................... APP-1 of 30 

 

Appendix 1 – Policy Statement for Calculating Delays and Damages 
Appendix 2 – Cost Reduction Incentive Proposals for Design Bid Build Agreements  
Appendix 3 – Contractor’s Affidavit Regarding Settlement of Claims 
Appendix 4 – Forms of Performance Bond 
Appendix 5 – Forms of Payment Bond 
Appendix 6 – Dispute Resolution 
Appendix 7 – Certificate of Completion 
Appendix 8 – Construction Sign Detail 
Appendix 9 – Cost of the Work (Applicable solely to Construction Manager at Risk and 
Job Order Contracting) 
Appendix 10 Landscape Establishment Period 

 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-3 of 75  

SECTION 1 - SCOPE OF THESE GENERAL CONDITIONS 

These General Conditions encompass provisions that apply, and are incorporated into all 
construction Agreements entered into by the City of Chandler, unless otherwise specifically excluded in 
the executed Agreement.  
 

SECTION 2 - GENERAL DEFINITIONS 
 
Allowance :  A specific amount for a specific item of Work, if any, that City agrees has not been sufficiently 
designed, detailed, or selected (including design changes from 90% to 100% as authorized by and at 
the discretion of the City) at the time the Agreement Price is agreed to for Contractor to provide a definitive 
price.  
 
Alternate Systems Evaluations or Alternative Analysis:  Alternatives for design, means and methods or 
other scope considerations that are evaluated using value analysis principles and have the potential to 
reduce construction costs while still delivering a quality and functional Project that meets City 
requirements. 
 
Change Order:  A written instrument issued after execution of the Agreement Documents signed by 
City and Contractor, stating their agreement upon all of the following: the addition, deletion or revision 
in the scope of services or deliverables; the amount of the adjustment to the Agreement Price, the 
extent of the adjustment to the Agreement Time, or modifications of other agreement terms. The 
Agreement Price and the Agreement Time may be changed only by Change Order. 
 
Consultant:  Person or firm that provides professional services. 
 
City (Owner or OWNER):  City of Chandler, a municipal corporation, with whom Contractor has entered 
into the Agreement and for whom the Work or Services are to be provided pursuant to the Agreement(s). 
 
Contingent Bid Items:  This is a minor bid item which is likely, but not certain, to occur during the course 
of work. If the Engineer determines that this work is required, the Contractor will accomplish the work 
and payment will be made based on the contingent unit bid price included in the proposal. Since the 
quantity listed in the proposal is primarily for bid comparison, the amount of work required by the 
Engineer may vary materially from this. 
 
Agreement:  The written agreement executed between City and Contractor, including all of the Agreement 
Documents. 
 
Agreement Documents:  The documents which together form the Agreement between City and 
Contractor, as identified in Article 2 of the Agreement, or are otherwise incorporated into the 
Agreement, including the Agreement, the exhibits thereto, these General Conditions, any Notice to 
Proceed, and any Job Order (if applicable), the Plans and Specifications, Project Schedule, written 
and properly executed Change Orders, MAG Specifications and City’s amendments thereto, and any 
other documents so designated in the Agreement. 
 
Agreement Price:  The agreed-upon price to be paid to Contractor for full, timely, and acceptable 
completion of the Work or Services under the terms of the Agreement. 
 
Agreement Time(s):  The number of calendar days or the dates related to the applicable phase, 
Substantial Completion, or Final Acceptance as stated in Agreement Documents. Agreement Time starts 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-4 of 75  

with the Notice to Proceed (NTP) and ends with Final Acceptance. The Agreement Time is set forth in 
the Agreement and is based upon the Project Schedule agreed to by City in writing. 
 
Contractor:  The person or business association with whom City has entered into an agreement for 
construction related Work or Services in relation to the Project at issue.  
 
Contractor Payment Request:  The form that is accepted by City and used by Contractor in requesting 
progress payments or final payment and which must include such supporting documentation as is 
required by the Agreement Documents or City. 
 
Construction Budget:  The City’s budget for construction of the Project. 
 
Construction Documents:  The Plans, Specifications, and Drawings prepared and issued by the Design 
Professional and approved by City for construction, meaning the documents are sealed by the 
Design Professional (as required), acceptable for permitting and incorporated into the Agreement by 
this reference. All amendments and modifications to the Construction Documents must be approved in 
writing by City prior to incorporation into the Agreement. 
 
Cost of the Work:  The term Cost of the Work will mean costs necessarily incurred by Contractor in the 
proper performance of the Work. Such costs will be at rates not higher than the standard paid at the 
place of the Project except with prior consent of City. 
 
Critical Path Method (CPM):  A scheduling technique which identifies the logical sequence of the activities 
occurring in a Construction Project, the anticipated time required to complete each activity in the 
Project, and the activities that must be completed on schedule to finish the Project within the anticipated 
time. Typically, activities are arranged in a network that shows both activities and their dependencies. 
CPM is also used as a management technique which enables contracting parties to predict when 
activities may occur so that resources can be effectively used and limitations can be identified.  
 
Critical Path:  Critical Path is the sequence of project network activities which add up to the longest overall 
duration. Once established in the Project Schedule, the Critical Path for the Project must not be 
changed without prior written approval of City. 
 
Day:  Calendar day(s) unless otherwise specifically stated in the Agreement Documents. 
 
Design Professional:  The qualified, licensed person, firm or corporation who furnishes design and 
construction administration services required under the Agreement Documents. These services may 
include, but are not limited to: development of Construction Drawings and Documents, review of 
Contractor Submittal(s), review of and response to Requests for Information, approval and 
certification of progress payment applications, construction administration, and construction 
agreement close out. 
 
Differing Site Conditions:  Concealed or latent physical conditions or subsurface conditions at the Site 
that, (i) materially differ from the conditions indicated in the Agreement Documents, or (ii) are of an 
unusual nature, differing materially from the conditions ordinarily encountered and generally recognized 
as inherent in the Work at the general area of the Site. Caliche, rock, hard-digging or sandy/silty soil 
encountered on a project is not considered a “Differing Site Condition.” 
 
Drawings (Plans):  Documents, which visually represent the scope, extent and character of the Work to 
be furnished and performed by Contractor during the construction phase and which have been prepared 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-5 of 75  

or approved by the Design Professional and City.  These documents include Drawings that have reached 
a sufficient state of completion and released by Design Professional solely for the purposes of review 
and use in performing constructability or bid-ability reviews by Contractor and in preparing cost 
estimates (e.g. Master Planning and Programming, Schematic Design, Design Development, and 
Construction Drawings), but “not for construction.” Shop Drawings are not Drawings as so defined. 
 
Final Acceptance:  The City’s acceptance of the facility or project from the Contractor after all Work is 
completed, tested, and inspected in accordance with the Agreement requirements. Final Acceptance 
results in a Letter of Acceptance (LOA). 
 
Fixed Price:  A fixed price or amount for an Agreement Price, Scope of Work, materials, or other item 
under an Agreement, Change Order, or other agreement, which City agrees, in writing, to pay instead 
of the actual cost.  
 
Float:  The number of Days by which an activity can be delayed without lengthening the Critical Path and 
extending the Agreement Time. Unless otherwise expressly agreed in writing, all Float belongs to City. 
 
Laws, Regulations, or Legal Requirements:  Any and all applicable laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, 
codes and orders applicable to the Project of any and all governmental bodies, agencies, authorities 
and courts having jurisdiction and any applicable provisions of the Development Agreement for the 
Project (if any), including, without limitation, those provisions relating to the design and construction 
of the Project. 
 
Line Item:  The individual elements of Work identified on a bid or other schedule and associated with a 
price or a unit price and quantity particular to that individual element of the Work. Also refers to 
individual items of work within the Schedule of Values. 
 
Liquidated Damages:  Designated damages for the City to collect as compensation upon a specific breach 
(example: late delivery). 
 
Long-Lead Item:  Long-lead item refers to the equipment, product, or system that is identified at the 
earliest stage of a project to have a delivery time long enough to affect directly the Critical Path/the overall 
lead time of the project. 
 
MAG:  The Maricopa Association of Governments. 
 
MAG Specifications:  The most current version of the Uniform Standard Specifications for Public Works 
Construction published by MAG. 
 
MAG Standard Details:  The most current version of the Uniform Standard Details as published by MAG. 
 
Minor change:  A change in the Work having no impact on cost or time or the City-approved design intent, 
as determined by City. 
 
Notice to Proceed (NTP):  A written notice given by City to Contractor fixing the date on which 
Contractor will start to perform Contractor’s obligations under the Agreement. 
 
Project:  The Project specified in the Agreement (including a Job Order). 
 
Project Manager:  The Project Manager designated in Article 1 of the Agreement, or any successor thereto 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-6 of 75  

designated by City. The Project Manager has the authority to act on behalf of City, as delineated and 
limited by the Agreement Documents and applicable law. And City will communicate with Contractor 
through the Project Manager. However, the Project Manager has no authority to bind City or City 
Council in contravention of any City code, State or Federal statute or regulation, or these General 
Conditions. 
 
Project Schedule:  The schedule for the completion of the Project agreed to and required by City. 
 
Project Specific Conditions:  Additional conditions which apply to the specific Project and Scope of Work 
which are set forth in Exhibit D of the Agreement. 
 
Project Team:  The Project Team consisting of the Design Professional, Contractor, Project Manager, and 
such others as City may designate. 
 
Punch List:  The list initially prepared by Contractor pursuant to the Agreement Documents, reviewed 
and supplemented by the Project Manager (and at the sole option of the Project Manager, the Design 
Professional) and approved by City containing items of incomplete work not impacting Substantial 
Completion, if allowed for under the Agreement, and to be completed or corrected by Contractor after 
Substantial Completion and before Final Acceptance in accordance with the Agreement Documents. 
 
Quality Assurance (QA) Testing:  Testing performed to verify the accuracy and applicability of the QC 
testing results and to ascertain that the materials installed meet the specified levels of quality in 
accordance with the Agreement Documents. 
 
Quality Control (QC) Testing:  Testing performed to assure that the materials installed comply with the 
requirements in the Agreement Documents. 
 
Requests for Information (RFIs):  Formal written request from Contractor to City or Design Professional 
for the Project seeking clarification or additional information needed for Contractor to properly 
complete the Work or Services under the Agreement. City may require RFI’s to be submitted on a specific 
form or in a specified format. 
 
Schedule of Values (SOV):  The specified document prepared by Contractor, and approved and accepted 
by City, which divides the Agreement Price into pay items, such that the sum of all pay items equals 
the Agreement Price for the construction phase Work, or for any portion of the Work having a separate 
specified Agreement Price. 
 
Scope of Work:  The scope of work agreed to or required by City and incorporated into the Agreement as 
Exhibit A. 
 
Shop Drawings:  All drawings, diagrams, schedules and other data specifically prepared for the Work 
by Contractor or a Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor, manufacturer, supplier or distributor to 
illustrate some portion of the Work. 
 
Site:  The land or premises on which the Project is located. 
 
Specifications:  The part(s) of the Agreement Documents for the construction phase consisting of written 
technical descriptions of materials, equipment, construction systems, standards and workmanship as 
applied to the Work and certain administrative details applicable thereto. Where specified, the Project 
must be constructed using the current Uniform Standard Specifications and Details for Public Works 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-7 of 75  

Construction as furnished by the Maricopa Association of Governments, as amended by City. 
 
Subconsultant:  A person, firm or corporation having an Agreement with Consultant/Contractor to 
furnish services required as its independent professional associate or consultant with respect to the 
Project. 
 
Subcontractor:  An individual or firm having a direct Agreement with Contractor or any other individual or 
firm having an Agreement with the aforesaid contractors at any tier, who undertakes to perform a part 
of pre-construction services or construction phase Work at the Site for which Contractor is responsible. 
Subcontractors must be selected through the Subcontractor selection process described in the 
Agreement Documents, if any. 
 
Substantial Completion:  The date when the City determines that the Work (or separable units of Phases 
as provided in the Agreement Documents) is essentially and satisfactorily complete in accordance with 
the Agreement Documents such that the Project is ready for use by the City for its intended purpose, 
opening to the general public, full occupancy or use by City (including, without limitation, all separate 
units, or rooms, facilities, access, income-generating areas, and all areas serving the general public, as 
applicable, must be ready for full operation without material inconvenience or discomfort), including, to 
the extent applicable to the Work, the following: all materials, equipment, systems, controls, features, 
facilities, accessories, and similar elements are installed in the proper manner and in operating 
condition, inspected, and approved; surfaces have been painted; masonry and concrete cleaned with 
any sealer or other finish applied; utilities and systems connected and functioning; site work 
complete; permanent heating, ventilation, air conditioning, vertical transportation, and other systems 
properly operating with proper controls; lighting and electrical systems installed, operable and 
controlled; paving completed, signage installed, and other work as applicable, has been performed to 
a similar state of essential and satisfactory completion. 
 
Supplier:  A manufacturer, fabricator, distributor, or vendor having a direct Agreement with Contractor 
or with any Subcontractor to furnish materials or equipment to be incorporated in the construction 
phase Work by Contractor or any Subcontractor. 
 
Total Float:  Number of Days by which pre-construction services or construction phase Work or any part 
of the same may be delayed without necessarily extending a pertinent Agreement Time or schedule 
milestone in the Project Schedule. 
 
Work:  The entire completion of construction or the various separately identifiable parts thereof, 
required to be furnished during the construction phase. Work includes and is the result of performing 
or furnishing labor and furnishing and incorporating materials, resources and equipment into the 
construction, and performing or furnishing services and documents as required by the Agreement 
Documents for the construction phase. 
 
Writing:  Typing, printing, photography and other modes of representing or reproducing words in a 
visible form, including email, and expressions. 
 
SECTION 3 - STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND DETAILS 

3.1 City operates under the latest revision of the MAG Specifications and MAG Standard 
Detai ls  as amended by City.  City’s current amendment to the MAG Specifications, part of 
the City’s Unified Development Manual, may be found and downloaded from City’s website 
at http://www.chandleraz.gov.   



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-8 of 75  

3.2 Copies of the MAG Specifications and MAG Standard Details are available at the 

Maricopa Association of Governments office, 302 N. 1st Avenue, Suite 300, Phoenix, 
Arizona.  They may also be downloaded from their website at: 
http://www.azmag.gov/Newsroom/Publications 

3.3 The MAG Specifications and Standard Details and City’s amendments thereto are 
incorporated into the Agreement by this reference. 

 
SECTION 4 - CONT R ACT OR’S R ES PONS IBILIT IES FOR CONST RUCT ION SE RVIC ES  

4.1 GENERAL 

4.1.1 Contractor must construct the Work in accordance with the Agreement Documents and as 
outlined in Exhibit A of the Agreement to the satisfaction of City, exercising the degree of 
professional care, skill, diligence, quality and judgment that a professional construction 
manager engaged, experienced and specializing in the construction management of 
construction and facilities of similar scope, function, size, quality, complexity and detail in 
urban areas throughout the United States comparable to Chandler, Arizona would exercise 
at such time, under similar conditions. Contractor must, at all times, perform the Work in 
conformance with sound and generally accepted engineering principles and construction 
management and construction contracting practices. 

4.1.2 If Contractor observes errors, discrepancies or omissions in the Agreement Documents, 
Contractor must promptly notify the Design Professional and City and request clarification. 
If Contractor, with the exercise of reasonable care, should have recognized such error, 
inconsistency, omission, or difference and fails to report it to City, and if Contractor 
proceeds with the Work affected by such observed errors, discrepancies or omissions, 
without receiving such clarifications, Contractor does so at its own risk and will be liable to 
City for damages resulting from proceeding without clarification. 

4.1.3 Project Team and agents of each of them, testing agencies and governmental agencies with 
jurisdictional interests will be provided access to the Work at reasonable times for their 
observation, inspection, and testing.  Contractor must provide proper and safe conditions 
for such access. 

4.1.4 Contractor must comply with, and require all Subcontractors to comply with, the Arizona 
Contractors’ license laws, including all requirements with respect to being duly registered 
and licensed. 

4.1.5 Contractor must ensure that all employees performing any Work for which Contractor is 
responsible have a legal right to live and work in the United States. In addition, all 
compensation of any such employee must meet all applicable requirements of the Fair Labor 
Standards Act (FLSA) and Federal Minimum Wage laws. 

4.1.6 Contractor must comply with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (IRCA).  
Contractor understands and acknowledges the applicability of the IRCA activities.  
Contractor agrees to comply with the IRCA while performing their work and to permit City 
inspection of Contractor personnel records to verify such compliance. 

4.1.7 Pursuant to MAG Specifications §§ 107.4, Contractor must report immediately any discovery 
of archeological ruins or artifacts.  Excavation must stop immediately so that City can decide 
on the pertinent steps to follow such discovery. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-9 of 75  

4.1.8 All property owners that may be affected by the proposed construction activities must be 
notified of the scope, duration of the construction activities and possible interference with 
their day-to-day activities by Contractor prior to start of construction.  In addition, individual 
residential or commercial interferences, such as driveway restrictions, water outages, and 
all other Work adjacent to residence/business, require 48-hour notification in advance of 
specific adjoining Work.  Notification may be through door hangers or other procedures 
approved by the City. 

4.1.9 Access must be maintained to adjacent properties at all times during construction. Where 
property has more than one point of access, no more than one access will be restricted or 
closed at any one time. Access to adjacent private driveways will be maintained during all 
non-working hours. 

4.1.10 Contractor must furnish and erect construction signs in accordance with Project 
Specifications. The signs must be professionally prepared and subject to approval by City, 
must be maintained by Contractor for the duration of the project, and must be removed by 
Contractor during the final project clean up.  

4.1.11 The number of signs required, the size, shape, installation requirements and information to 
be included for construction signs is established on the detail sheet, provided, however, 
signs must be a minimum of 4 foot by 8 foot and must be installed so that the bottom of 
the sign is at least 4 foot above grade.  No direct payment will be made for furnishing and 
erecting construction signs. The cost thereof must be included in other items for which 
direct payment is made. Sign locations will be determined by City. 

4.1.12 All required construction signs must be installed by Contractor within 7 Days of Notice to 
Proceed.   

4.1.13 The Work to be accomplished under these Agreement Documents has been designed for 
City by a Design Professional retained by City for this purpose.  It is understood that normal 
construction Administration for the purpose of interpretation of the Agreement Documents 
is provided by City. Should any services of the Design Professional be required to assist in 
the corrections of errors or omissions by Contractor, or services of the Design Professional 
be required because of changes in structure or equipment where Contractor has requested 
approval of substitute methods or material, or any other items detailed herein below, those 
services will be provided by the Design Professional at the standard hourly rates previously 
negotiated with City and must be paid for by the Contractor. 

4.1.14 Contractor must reimburse City for costs incurred by the Design Professional for additional 
services to the Project through no fault of City or the Design Professional including, but not 
limited to, the following conditions: 

a. Additional Site visits, investigations, inspections, design work or reports by 
the Design Professional which are required due to damages to existing 
facilities or completed Work caused by the Contractor in his performance, 
Contractor’s negligence, or Contractor’s Work which is rejected as defective 
or as failing to conform to the Agreement Documents; 

b. Design Professional construction phase services rendered on the project 
during the time the project remains incomplete after the Agreement date of 
final completion will be charged to Contractor at a rate previously negotiated 
City; and 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-10 of 75  

c. All retesting required due to the failure of Contractor’s Work to meet the 
requirements of the Agreement Documents will be at Contractor’s expense.  
All standby and travel time by the City’s testing lab, the Design Professional 
or City due to Contractor’s inability to be prepared for testing at the agreed 
upon time will be at the Contractor’s expense. 

4.1.15 City may withhold from any payment otherwise due to Contractor any amounts necessary 
to pay the Design Professional for such additional services as provided herein above.   

4.1.16 Contractor will not be required to bear additional costs incurred by City due to errors by the 
Design Professional. 

4.2  CONTRACTOR’S PRE-AGREEMENT AND PRE-WORK DELIVERABLES 

4.2.1 Prior to award of the Agreement, Contractor must execute Agreement and deliver to City.  
Failure to do so may delay Agreement award.  Contractor must a l s o  provide to City its 
Contractor’s License classification and number and its Federal Tax I.D. number. 

4.2.2 Before beginning any Work under the Agreement, Agreement must be fully executed by 
City.  

4.2.3 After Agreement award, City will issue to Contractor an award letter.  At that time Contractor 
must deliver to City such bonds and certificates of insurance with endorsements in such 
amounts (and other evidence of insurance requested by City) required under Section 11 of 
these General Conditions, and as the Agreement requires. 

4.2.4 As evidence of Workmen’s Compensation Insurance, Contractor must, upon request, 
provide a letter of certification from the Industrial Commission of Arizona that Contractor 
is insured by the State Compensation Fund or is an authorized self-insurer or a certificate 
of insurance issued by an insurance company authorized by the Insurance Department 
of Arizona to write Workmen’s Compensation and Occupational Disease Insurance in the 
State of Arizona. 

4.2.5 Within 10 Days of the date of the executed Agreement letter issued by City, Contractor must 
submit to City for review and acceptance the following items: 

4.2.5.1 Comprehensive construction Project Schedule including a Critical Path Method (CPM) 
diagram schedule as described in Section 6.2.  Project Schedule must be in Microsoft Project 
standard file format.  Within 10 Days of receipt of City’s comments, Contractor must make 
all required corrections, adjustments, and additions to complete the Project Schedule and 
resubmit to City for review.   

4.2.5.2 Preliminary schedule of submittals and Shop Drawings.  Within 10 Days of receipt of City’s 
comments, Contractor must submit the corrected and completed schedule of Shop 
Drawings submissions for approval.  Contractor’s schedule of Shop Drawings and sample 
submittals will be acceptable to City if it provides a workable arrangement for reviewing and 
processing the required submittals.   

4.2.5.3 Schedule of Values in a form specified by City reflecting the subcontracts and other 
categories that will be used to submit Pay Applications for the Work. The total amount of 
the Schedule of Values must not be greater than the Agreement Price. The Schedule of 
Values will be reviewed at the Pre-Construction Conference and revised by Contractor within 
10 Days after Pre-Construction Conference in response to comments and questions from 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-11 of 75  

City. Once accepted by City in writing, the Schedule of Values for the Project must not be 
changed without the prior written approval of City. 

4.2.6 Video Recording Requirement. Prior to performing any Work, Contractor must document 
the existing conditions of the Site, all other areas where Work will occur and all adjacent 
areas that may be impacted by the Work via digital video format.  Contractor must video 
record and index all areas, features, buildings and other public and private improvements 
that could potentially be impacted by the Work.  Video recording must be coordinated with 
City.  When video recording private property, Contractor must also coordinate the video 
recording with the private property owner, if possible.  Contractor must provide City with a 
copy of said digital video format prior to performing any Work. 

4.2.7 Aerial Drone Construction Photography. 

4.2.7.1 If Agreement duration is greater than 90 calendar days, Contractor must engage a 
professional unmanned aerial vehicle (UAV) aerial pilot to photograph the Site prior to 
construction mobilization, at three-month intervals during construction, and following final 
inspection.  Drone camera specifications must meet the following minimum requirements:  

a. 1-inch CMOS 

b. Pixels: 20M 

c. FOV 84  8.8 mm/24 mm (35 mm format equivalent) f/2.8-f/11 auto focus at 1 m-   

d. For photographing: 16.9 Aspect Ratio: 5472x3078 

e. For video shooting: MP4/MOV/H.264 

f. FHD: 1920x1080 120p @100Mbps 

g. File format: High Definition (HD) JPEG for digital photos and HD MPEG 4 for 
digital video. 

h. All metadata to be recorded including GPS data and preserved with photographs 
provided.   

 

Interval JPEG 
3 month intervals At an altitude (AGL) between 

70-90 ft. 
3 month intervals Images to be taken every 50-

100 ft. to be determined based 
on project scope. 

4.2.7.2 Drone photos to be taken in sequential geographical order and then organized and provided in 
the same manner unless otherwise specified.   

4.2.7.3 Photos to be provided digitally via an online file share service and/or by a USB drive to contractor. 

4.2.7.4 Drone pilots to obey ALL local (city, county, state) UAV regulations as well as FAA UAV 
guidelines including, but not limited to, conducting all flights during daylight hours, not exceeding 
maximum altitude ceilings (depending on area), not flying over people, yielding to other aircraft. 

4.2.7.5 Drone pilots must fly drone within visual line of sight (VSOL) and have visual spotter when 
needed. Drone pilots only to operate in favorable weather conditions when minimum visibility is 
3 miles or greater. 

4.2.7.6 Drone pilots to conduct a preflight checklist and visually inspect the entire flight path prior to flying 
to ensure a safe flight. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-12 of 75  

4.2.7.7 Airspace Authorizations. Operations in Class G airspace are allowed without air traffic control 
(ATC) permission. Operations in Class B, C, D and E airspace need ATC authorization. Drone 
pilots to schedule each flight in advance and based on airspace if required will notify nearby 
airports/control towers, etc. 

4.2.8 Government Approvals and Permits. 

4.2.8.1 Contractor must obtain all necessary permits for the Work and pay all applicable fees, 
unless otherwise noted on the Plans and in the Specifications. City permit fees will be paid 
internally by City. For bidding purposes, an allowance for all permit fees is included in the 
bid schedule under the item “allowance for permit fees.” The Contractor will be paid for 
the actual cost of the permit fees upon submitting a receipt showing the fee Contractor 
has paid. Excluded from the above allowance are items such as all costs incurred by the 
Contractor in securing the permit except for the actual permit fee established by the 
agency, cost for all shutdowns or outages, cost for pole bracing, cost of permits for 
construction water, cost of construction water, cost for any additional insurance 
requirements, cost for any licenses, and other similar type costs. Contractor is specifically 
notified of the need to obtain the necessary environmental permits or file the necessary 
environmental and regulatory permit notices. 

4.2.8.2 Copies of all permits and the associated notices must be provided to City prior to starting 
the permitted activity. 

4.3 PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE 

4.3.1 Prior to the commencement of any Work, City will schedule a Pre-Construction Conference. 

4.3.2 The purpose of this Conference is to establish a working relationship between Contractor, 
the utility firms, and various City agencies. The agenda will include critical elements of the 
Work schedule, submittal schedule, cost breakdown of major lump sum items, Payment 
Requests and processing, coordination with the involved utility firms, and emergency 
telephone numbers for all representatives involved in the course of construction. 

4.3.3 Minimum attendance by Contractor at any mandatory meeting with City must be (1) 
Contractor’s Representative, who is authorized to execute and sign documents on behalf 
of the firm, (2) Contractor’s on-site Superintendent, and (3) Contractor’s Safety Office, 
or other employee responsible for safety. 

4.4 PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK (INCLUDING FIELD MEASUREMENTS, 
SUBCONTRACTORS, AND SUPPLIERS) 

4.4.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Agreement Documents to be the responsibility of City or a 
separate Contractor, Contractor must provide through itself or Subcontractors the 
necessary supervision, labor, inspection, testing, start-up, material, equipment, machinery, 
temporary utilities and other temporary facilities to permit Contractor to complete the 
Work consistent with the Agreement Documents. 

4.4.2 Contractor must perform all construction activities efficiently and with the requisite 
expertise, skill and competence to satisfy the requirements of the Agreement Documents. 
Contractor must at all times exercise complete and exclusive control over the means, 
methods, safety, sequences and techniques of construction. 

4.4.3 Contractor’s Superintendent must be present at the Site at all times that material Work 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-13 of 75  

under this Agreement is taking place. Contractor’s Superintendent or designee must be 
present at the Site at all times any other Work under this Agreement is taking place.  
Superintendent must not be replaced without written notice to City.  Whenever the 
Superintendent is not present at a particular part of the Work where the City or Design 
Professional may desire to inform the Contractor relative to interpretation of the Drawings 
and Specifications or to disapproval or rejection of materials or Work performed, the City 
or Design Professional may provide such information in writing to the foreman or other 
worker in charge of the particular part of the Work in reference to which the information is 
given.  Information so given will be as binding as if given to the Superintendent. 

4.4.4 All elements of the Work must be under the direct supervision of a foreman or his 
designated representative on the Site who must have the authority to take actions required 
to properly carry out that particular element of the Work. 

4.4.5 Working Hours.  Except in connection with the safety or protection of persons or the Work 
or property at the Site or adjacent thereto, and except as otherwise indicated, all Work at 
the Site must be performed during regular working hours, and Contractor will not permit 
overtime work or the performance of Work on Saturday, Sunday or any legal holiday without 
City’s written consent given after prior written notice to City.  If it will become absolutely 
necessary to perform Work at night or on Saturdays, Sundays or legal holidays, the City 
must be informed at least 24 hours in advance of the beginning of performance of such 
Work.  Only such Work will be done at night as can be done satisfactorily as determined by 
the City.  Good lighting and all other necessary facilities for carrying out and inspecting the 
Work must be provided and maintained at all points where such Work is being done.  
Further, unless such non-normal work hours are performed at City’s request or required by 
the Agreement Documents, Contractor must pay to City all additional costs incurred by City 
by reason of such non-normal working hours.  Expenses incurred by City for overtime 
compensation must be reimbursed by Contractor as follows: (i) City staff at the rate set forth 
in current City Fee Schedule as published on City website, (ii) Design Professional and staff 
at the standard hourly rates previously negotiated with City, and (iii) all others at actual cost 
plus ten percent administrative overhead.  Such costs may be deducted by City from any 
payments due to Contractor.  Provided, however, if overtime work or work during other 
than normal hours is at the request of City and not due to Contractor delay, City will pay the 
cost of City overtime expenses. 

4.4.6 Where the Agreement Documents require that a particular product be installed or applied 
by an applicator approved by the manufacturer, it is Contractor’s responsibility to ensure 
the Subcontractor employed for such work is approved by the manufacturer.  All materials 
and equipment must be stored, applied, installed, connected, erected, used, cleaned and 
conditioned in accordance with the instructions of the applicable manufacturer, fabricator, 
supplier or distributor, except as otherwise provided in the Agreement Documents; but no 
provisions of any such instructions will be effective to impose on City of Design Professional 
responsibility for the means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of 
construction or for safety precautions incident thereto. 

4.4.7 Before starting the Work, Contractor must carefully study and compare the various 
Plans, Drawings, other Agreement Documents, and Specifications relative to that portion 
of the Work, as well as the information furnished by City, must take field measurements of 
any existing conditions related to that portion of the Work and must observe any conditions 
at the Site affecting it. The exactness of grades, elevations, dimensions, or locations given 
on any Drawings, or the Work installed by other contractors, is not guaranteed by City. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-14 of 75  

4.4.8 Before ordering materials or doing Work, Contractor and each Subcontractor must verify 
measurements at the Site and will be responsible for the correctness of such 
measurements. No extra charge or compensation will be allowed because of differences 
between actual dimensions and the dimensions indicated on the Agreement Documents, 
including the Drawings. 

4.4.9 Ground Level Construction Photography. 

4.4.9.1 The Contractor must furnish progress photographs of the project.  The photographer 
selected by the Contractor must be approved by the City and must be either a commercial 
photographer or an individual experienced and equipped for such photography.   

4.4.9.2 The Contractor must deliver to City all photographs taken during that period with each 
application for payment.  If the current photographs do not accompany the application, the 
application will not be reviewed and will be returned to the Contractor as incomplete. 

4.4.9.3 Photographs must be identified by use of typewritten labels affixed to the back of the 
photograph.  The label must provide a description of the view, the direction from which the 
photograph was taken, the name of the project, City’s project number, the name of 
Contractor and the date of the photography.  The stationing must also be included for all 
pipeline installations.   

4.4.9.4 Photographs must be taken during the construction period and must be of aesthetic 
composition and depict the progress of the Work from the beginning of construction 
through and including the finished product.  City may vary the specified frequency so that 
significant progress or changes can be recorded on the photographs.  

4.4.10 Underground Facilities. 

4.4.10.1 The existence and number of facilities as shown on the Plans are estimated from 
information furnished by the particular utility.  Contractor is responsible for field verification 
and location of all utilities prior to the start of construction.  No field work will be allowed to 
start until Contractor has contacted Arizona 811 and all affected utilities have been located.  
In addition, Contractor must expose and physically locate all potentially conflicting utilities 
prior to construction.  The actual locations of the utilities must be compared to locations 
shown on the Plans and any required changes in alignment and grade must be made at the 
time of construction in consultation with Project Manager.  It is generally recognized and 
Contractor should anticipate that information from Arizona 811 or information from utility 
companies during project design, frequently fails to disclose all underground facilities.  The 
fact that more utility lines or other underground facilities are located in the Project Site than 
shown on the Project Plans does not constitute an “unforeseen Condition” and such 
undisclosed underground facilities do not differ materially from the conditions which 
Contractor should expect. The provisions of Sections 105.4, 105.6, 107.11 and 109.8.1 of the 
MAG Uniform Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction apply and are 
incorporated herein by this reference.   

4.4.10.2 Contractor is responsible for all coordination with utility companies.  The provisions of 
Sections 105.4, 105.6, 107.11 and 109.8.1 of the MAG Uniform Standard Specifications for 
Public Works Construction strictly apply and no additional compensation will be paid to 
Contractor for delays due to utility work on the project.  

4.4.11 Relocation of Existing Water Meters.  When a service line has been extended and a line 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-15 of 75  

setter installed in a meter box, City forces will re-install meter.  No compression fittings will 
be utilized. 

4.4.12 Water Turn-On or Turn-Off. 

4.4.12.1 Contractor must coordinate all water line turn-ons and turn-offs through the City.  
Application must be made to the Municipal Utility Division and Contractor must pay the 
established charges.  The City will close existing valves, but will not guarantee a bone-dry 
Shutdown. 

4.4.12.2 Contractor must notify all customers affected by the turn-off not less than 48 hours in 
advance.  Notification must be in writing, must give the reason for the turn-off and must 
give the estimated time and duration that water service will be interrupted. Contractor is 
also notified that water turn-off will not be permitted on the Day before and after 
Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. 

4.4.12.3 No direct payment will be made to Contractor for turn-ons or turn-offs. Costs associated 
therewith will be included in other items for which direct payment is made. 

4.4.13 Tests and Inspections. 

4.4.13.1 Contractor must give City timely (at a minimum, twenty-four hours) notice of readiness of 
the Work for all required inspections, tests or approvals.  Contractor must give timely notice 
to City in advance of backfilling or otherwise covering any part of the Work so that city 
representative may, if desired, observe such part of the Work before it is concealed.  
Whenever Contractor varies the normal period during which Work or any portion of it is 
carried on each Day, Contractor must give timely notice to City so that city representative 
may, if desired, be present to observe the Work in progress.  If Contractor fails to give such 
timely notice, any Work done in the absence of city representative will be subject to 
rejection.  If Contractor gives such notice to City, but then is not ready for such inspections, 
tests, approvals or observations at the time so noticed, Contractor must reimburse City for 
all costs incurred by the attendance of city representatives.   

4.4.13.2 If any law, ordinance, rule, regulation, code, or orders of any public body having jurisdiction 
requires any Work (or part thereof) to be inspected, tested or approved, Contractor (unless 
another party is specified in the Agreement Documents) must assume full responsibility 
therefor, pay all costs in connection therewith and furnish City the required certificates of 
inspection, testing, or approval. Contractor must also be responsible for and must pay all 
costs in connection with any inspection or testing required by the Specifications in 
connection with City's acceptance of a manufacturer, fabricator, supplier or distributor of 
materials or equipment proposed to be incorporated in the Work, or of materials or 
equipment submitted for approval prior to Contractor's purchase thereof for incorporation 
in the Work. The cost of all other inspections, tests and approvals required by the 
Agreement Documents will be paid by City (unless otherwise specified). 

4.4.13.3 All inspections, tests or approvals other than those required by law, ordinance, rule, 
regulation, code or order of any public body having jurisdiction must be performed by 
organizations acceptable to City and by the Design Professional if so specified. 

4.4.13.4 Neither observations by City, the Design Professional nor inspections, tests or approvals by 
others will relieve Contractor from their obligations to perform the Work in accordance with 
the Agreement Documents. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-16 of 75  

4.4.14 Uncovering Work.  If any Work that is to be observed, inspected, tested or approved is 
covered without written concurrence of City, it must, if requested by City be uncovered for 
observation. Unless Contractor has given City timely notice of Contractor's intention to 
cover such Work and City has not acted with reasonable promptness in response to such 
notice, Contractor must furnish all necessary labor, material and bear all the expenses of 
such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection and testing and of satisfactory 
reconstruction, including compensation for additional professional services, and an 
appropriate deductive Change Order will be issued. 

4.4.15 In all cases of interconnection of its Work with existing or other Work, Contractor must verify 
at the Site all dimensions relating to such existing or other Work.  Any errors due to 
Contractor’s failure to so verify all such grades, elevations, locations or dimensions must 
be promptly rectified by Contractor without any increase in the Agreement Price. Any 
design errors or omissions noted by Contractor during this review must be reported 
promptly to City. 

4.4.16 Contractor must establish and maintain all construction grades, lines, levels, and 
benchmarks, and will be responsible for accuracy and protection of same. This Work 
must be performed or supervised by a licensed civil engineer or surveyor in the State of 
Arizona. 

4.4.17 Contractor must photograph all buried piping of greater than four (4) inches in diameter 
prior to backfill.   

4.4.18 Contractor is responsible for the proper performance of the work of Subcontractors and any 
acts and omissions in connection with such performance. Nothing in the Agreement 
Documents is intended or deemed to create any legal or contractual relationship 
between City and any Subcontractor or Sub-Subcontractor, including but not limited to any 
third-party beneficiary rights. 

4.4.19 Contractor must coordinate the activities of all Subcontractors. Contractor must 
coordinate performance of the Work with City’s Public Works & Utilities Department and 
other departments or agencies within City. The Design Professional and other contractors 
or parties involved in the Project. If City performs other work on the Project or at the Site with 
separate contractors under City’s control, Contractor agrees to cooperate and coordinate 
its activities with those of such separate contractors so that the Project can be completed 
in an orderly and coordinated manner without unreasonable disruption. 

4.4.20 Contractor will not substitute or change any Subcontractor or Supplier without the prior 
written approval of City. Any substitute or replacement Subcontractor or Supplier must 
be required to meet the same qualifications and selection criteria and process as the 
original Subcontractor or Supplier. If a Subcontract/Supplier selection plan has been 
approved by City, Contractor will follow that plan unless otherwise approved by City in 
writing. 

4.4.21 Contractor must not change or replace any members of its Project team, including 
Contractor’s Representative, Project Manager, or Superintendent, without an explanation for 
the change being given to City, and receiving prior written approval of the change from City, 
which approval will not be unreasonably withheld. 

4.4.22 Subcontractors whose scope of work has a value greater than 15% of the total Agreement 
Price are required to furnish performance and payment bonds to Contractor, unless 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-17 of 75  

otherwise approved in writing by City. 

4.4.23 Contractor must comply with MAG Specification § 108.2 (E) unless otherwise specified in 
Agreement Documents. 

4.5 CONTROL OF THE PROJECT SITE 

4.5.1 Throughout all phases of construction, including suspension of Work, Contractor must keep 
the Site reasonably free from debris, trash and construction wastes to permit Contractor to 
perform its construction services efficiently, safely and without interfering with the use of 
adjacent land areas. Prior to Final Acceptance of the Work, or a portion of the Work, 
Contractor must remove all debris, trash, construction wastes, materials, equipment, 
machinery and tools arising from the Work or applicable portions thereof to permit City 
to occupy the Project or a portion of the Project for its intended use. 

4.5.2 Contractor must take whatever steps, procedures or means necessary to prevent dust 
nuisance due to construction operations. The dust control measures must be maintained 
at all times to the satisfaction of City and in accordance with the requirements of the 
Maricopa County Bureau of Air Pollution Control Rules and Regulations. 

4.5.3 Contractor must maintain Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and American National 
Standards Institute (ANSI) accessibility requirements during construction activities, 
including without limitation compliance with the 2010 regulations governing 
implementation of the ADA to the extent applicable. ADA and ANSI accessibility 
requirements must include, but not be limited to, parking, building access, areas of refuge, 
and emergency exit paths of travel. Contractor i s  responsible for the coordination of all 
Work to minimize disruption to residents and the public. 

4.5.4 Only materials and equipment used directly in the Work will be brought to and stored on the 
Site by Contractor. When equipment is no longer required for Work, it must be removed 
promptly from the Site. Protection of construction materials and equipment stored at the 
Site from weather, theft, damage and all other adversity is solely the responsibility of the 
Contractor. 

4.5.5 Contractor agrees all persons working on the Site must act at all times in the best interest 
of the Project and will comply with all applicable rules and regulations reasonably set forth 
by City related to the Site. Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything in this Agreement to 
the contrary, City may remove from the Site any individual who City deems in their 
reasonable discretion to be creating a disturbance or causing any problem on the Site. 

4.5.6 Contractor will be responsible to City for the acts and omissions of Contractor’s employees, 
Subcontractors and their agents and employees, and any other person performing any of 
the Work under an Agreement with Contractor, or claiming by, through or under Contractor, 
for all damages, losses, costs and expenses resulting from such acts or omissions. 

4.5.7 City may conduct criminal, drive history, and all other requested background checks of 
Contractor and Subcontractor personnel performing Work or who have access to City’s 
information, data, or facilities in accordance with City’s current background check policies, 
or the provisions of the Project Specific Conditions. Any officer, employee or agent that 
fails to background check must be replaced immediately. 

4.5.8 City will have a final authority, based upon security reasons: (i) to determine when 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-18 of 75  

security clearance of Contractor’s and Subcontractor’s personnel is required; (ii) to determine 
the nature of the security clearance, up to and including fingerprinting personnel; and 
(iii) to determine whether or not any individual or entity may provide Services or perform 
Work under the Agreement. 

4.5.9 If City objects to any personnel for any reasonable cause, then Contractor must, upon notice 
from City, remove such individual from the Project. 

4.6 PROJECT SAFETY 

4.6.1 The Project and all Work performed in relation thereto is governed by applicable provisions 
of the federal laws, including but not limited to, the latest amendments of the following: 

a. Williams-Steiger Occupational Safety & Health Act of 1970, Public Law, 91-596. 

b. Part 1910 and Part 1926 – Occupational Safety and Health Standards, 
Chapter XVII of Title 29, Code of Federal Regulations. 

c. Part 1518 – Safety and Health Regulations for Construction, Chapter XIII of 
Title 29, Code of Federal Regulations. 

4.6.2 Contractor is responsible for safety of the job Site for employees of Contractor as well 
as for members of the general public and others who may drive or walk through or be at 
the Site.  

4.6.3 Contractor recognizes the importance of performing the Work in a safe manner so as to 
prevent damage, injury or loss to: (i) all individuals at the Site, whether working or visiting; 
(ii) the Work, including materials and equipment incorporated into the Work and stored On-
Site or Off-Site; and (iii) all other property at the Site or adjacent thereto, including trees, 
shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, structures and utilities not designated for 
removal, relocation or replacement in the course of construction; and (iv) the owners or 
tenants of adjacent property and their patrons, employees and invitees. 

4.6.4 Contractor assumes responsibility for implementing and monitoring all safety precautions 
and programs related to the performance of the Work. 

4.6.5 Contractor must provide a “competent person’ as required by O.S.H.A regulations. The 
“competent person” must be identified at the Pre-Construction Conference with City 
advised in writing of any changes. 

4.6.6 The “competent person” must make routine daily inspections of the Site and must hold 
weekly safety meetings with Contractor’s personnel, Subcontractors and others as 
applicable. 

4.6.7 Contractor and Subcontractors must comply with all legal and regulatory requirements 
relating to safety, as well as any City specific safety requirements set forth in the Agreement 
Documents, provided that such City-specific requirements do not violate any applicable 
legal and regulatory requirements. 

4.6.8 Contractor will immediately report in writing any safety-related injury, loss, damage or 
accident arising from the Work to Project Manager and, to the extent mandated by Legal 
Requirements, to all government or quasi-government authorities having jurisdiction over 
safety-related matters involving the Project or the Work. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-19 of 75  

4.6.9 Contractor’s responsibility for safety under this Section is not intended in any way to 
relieve Subcontractors and Sub-Subcontractors of their own contractual and legal 
obligations and responsibility for (i) complying with all Legal Requirements, including those 
related to health and safety matters, and (ii) taking all necessary measures to implement 
and monitor all safety precautions and programs to guard against injury, losses, damages 
or accidents resulting from their performance of the Work. 

4.6.10 As between City and Contractor, Contractor is responsible to City for any and all the safety 
issues relating to the Work on the Project. Contractor must administer and manage the 
safety program. This will include, but not necessarily be limited to review of the safety 
programs of each Subcontractor. Contractor must monitor the establishment and 
execution of compliance with all applicable regulatory and advisory agency construction 
safety standards. Contractor’s responsibility for review, monitoring, and coordination of the 
Subcontractor’s safety programs will not extend to direct control over execution of the 
Subcontractors’ safety programs. Notwithstanding Contractor’s safety obligations to City, 
it is agreed and understood that each individual Subcontractor will remain controlling 
employer responsible for the safety programs and precautions applicable to its own work 
and the activities of other’s work in areas designated to be controlled by such Subcontractor 
for purposes of workers compensation insurance coverage. 

4.6.11 Nothing in this agreement will relieve Contractor of his responsibility to maintain traffic, 
structures, etc., as noted on the Plans, Specifications, and Project Specific Conditions. 
Contractor is responsible to provide all necessary shoring, bracing and trench support as 
is necessary to maintain traffic structures, etc., as stipulated in the Plans, Specifications, and 
Special Provisions. If the stability of adjoining building, walls, roadways, etc., is endangered 
by Contractor’s excavation, shoring, bracing, or under pinning must be provided as 
necessary to ensure project safety. Cost for shoring, bracing, underpinnings, and trench 
support will be included in the appropriate items listed in the Agreement Price, and no 
additional payment will be made for this work. 

4.7 MATERIALS QUALITY, SUBSTITUTIONS, AND SHOP DRAWINGS 

4.7.1 Quality Control and Quality Assurance Testing. 

4.7.1.1 All construction materials to be used or incorporated in the Project are subject to 
inspection, Quality Control & Quality Assurance Testing, and approval or rejection by City. 
Any material rejected by City must be removed immediately and replaced in an acceptable 
manner to City at no additional cost to City. When QC/QA tests indicate noncompliance 
with the Agreement Documents, retesting must be performed by the same testing 
laboratory that performed the tests that indicated noncompliance. 

4.7.1.2 The Contractor must establish, provide, and maintain an effective Quality Control Testing 
Program (QCTP). The Contractor must develop his own program or procure the services of 
a consultant. In either case, the party performing the tests must be currently certified by the 
National Bureau of Standards in the National Voluntary Laboratory Accreditation Program 
(NVLAP) for construction services or the AASHTO Accreditation Plan (AAP) for Soils, 
Asphalt and Concrete. The Contractor must provide all support necessary to perform QC 
and QA testing and sampling (i.e. shoring for testing trench backfill, backhoes, motor 
graders, loaders, etc. to facilitate testing and sampling). The City will perform the QA testing. 

4.7.1.3 The Contractor must submit a written QCTP to the City as a required submittal. The 
Contractor must not begin Work until the Quality Control Program has been reviewed and 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-20 of 75  

accepted by the City. Resumes of all personnel that will be associated directly or indirectly 
with the QCTP must be included. 

4.7.1.4 The QCTP must include, but not be limited to, on-site/field and laboratory testing of all 
material delivered to the Site and any existing materials or conditions pertinent to the 
project. 

4.7.1.5 All testing must be under the direction of a Professional Engineer registered in the State of 
Arizona, knowledgeable in Materials Testing. All “Test Report” forms must be stamped by 
said Engineer. 

4.7.1.6 The written QCTP will set forth the responsibilities of the engineer, project manager, 
supervisory personnel and each technician assigned to this project. Substitutions or 
replacement of personnel must require prior written approval by the City. All personnel must 
be proficient within their assigned duties and possess certification(s) commensurate with 
their position and responsibilities. The minimum certification(s) for each technician must 
be NICET Level II, Arizona Technical Testing Institute, American Concrete Institute, or other 
nationally recognized program applicable to the project and approved by the City of 
Chandler. The written QCTP must include a description of the required field and 
construction materials laboratory tests, including required frequencies that meet the 
minimums established herein. 

4.7.1.7 The Contractor must establish a system to record and report all material test results.  The 
daily test reports must include, but not be limited to: 

a. Test designation; 

b. Date of test; 

c. Name of tester; 

d. Location of test/sample (station and offset); 

e. Product suppliers and product codes (as applicable); 

f. Depth/elevation of test/sample; 

g. Test result; 

h. Control requirement(s); 

i. Cause of rejection (if applicable); 

j. Results of retests (if applicable); and 

k. Remedial action (if applicable). 

4.7.1.8 The Contractor must submit test results to the designated City representative.   

4.7.1.9 The Contractor must also submit a weekly report to the City summarizing the testing 
and construction activities completed by emailing the report to the email addresses noted 
above. All weekly reports must be submitted simultaneously to the Contractor and the 
City of Chandler. The report must include individual summary sheets for each utility line, 
structure, and portion of the pavement section. Cores must be numbered sequentially 
throughout the Project. Re-cores must reference the original core by number and must 
contain the averaged values for thickness and density. Total pavement thickness must be 
reported. Vertical location of tests for underground utilities must indicate the depth of the 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-21 of 75  

excavation at the location of the test (i.e., cut to flow line [if applicable], depth to bottom 
or top of pipe, etc.). Density tests must be numbered sequentially. If the minimum number 
of tests has not been performed per the written QCTP, this must be stated in the weekly 
summary report with an explanation of the circumstances. 

4.7.1.10 The City will maintain a copy of the Project test results and weekly reports in the Project 
file. In cases where quality control activities do not comply with the Agreement provisions, 
the City may: 

a. Order the Contractor to replace ineffective or unqualified quality control 
personnel. 

b. Order the Contractor to stop operations until appropriate corrective action is 
taken. 

4.7.1.11 Although minimum testing requirements are specified herein, the Contractor bears full 
responsibility for the quality of the materials and their installation and may elect to 
perform additional testing beyond the requirements set forth herein to ensure compliance. 

4.7.1.12 The Quality Control requirements contained in this Section are in addition to and separate 
from Quality Assurance Testing, which will be performed by the City of Chandler or its 
representative. If the Quality Assurance test results are not in agreement with the Quality 
Control test results, the Contractor will have the option to retain a third party consultant for 
referee tests. The third party consultant must meet the same requirements as the 
consultant performing the Quality Control Testing. The results of the third party will be 
binding. All cost incurred by the referee testing will be the Contractor’s expense. If the 
Contractor elects not to retain a third party for referee testing, the City of Chandler test 
results will prevail. 

4.7.1.13 Except as otherwise noted within this Section, Work or materials required by this Section are 
non- pay items. Per MAG Section 101, a non-pay item is an item of Work for which no 
separate payment will be made, the cost of which is to be included as an incidental cost 
for associated item(s) included on the Bid Schedule or Schedule of Values. 

4.7.2 Trade Names and Substitutions. 

4.7.2.1 Substitutions prior to bid will only be considered if in compliance with Arizona Revised 
Statute § 34-104. 

4.7.2.2 Contractor, if requested by City, must submit Samples or any additional information that 
may be necessary to evaluate the acceptability of the substitution. 

4.7.2.3 City will make the final decision and will notify Contractor in writing as to whether the 
substitution has been accepted or rejected. 

4.7.2.4 If City does not respond within 15 working days, Contractor must continue to perform the 
Work in accordance with the Agreement Documents and the substitution will be considered 
rejected. 

4.7.3 Shop Drawings. 

4.7.3.1 Contractor must prepare and submit Shop Drawings which show details of all Work to insure 
proper installation of the Work using those materials and equipment specified under the 
approved Plans and Specifications. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-22 of 75  

4.7.3.2 Contractor must submit a schedule of Shop Drawing submissions, which avoids bulk 
submissions to the extent reasonably possible, with the Project Schedule for City approval.  
The schedule of Shop Drawing submissions must include all of the items for which Shop 
Drawings are required by the Agreement Documents, including the Specifications. Unless 
otherwise noted, Shop Drawings will not be required for items specified or detailed in 
the Uniform Standard Specifications and Details or the Technical Specifications.  

4.7.3.3 Shop Drawings must be numbered consecutively for each Specification section and must 
accurately and distinctly present the following: 

a. All working and erection dimensions. 

b. Arrangements and sectional views. 

c. Necessary details, including complete information for making connections 
between work under this Agreement and work under other Agreements. 

d. Kinds of materials and finishes. 

e. Parts list and description thereof. 

4.7.3.4 Each Drawing or page must include: 

a. Project Name, City of Chandler Project Number and descriptions. 

b. Submittal date and space for revision dates. 

c. Identification of equipment, product or material. 

d. Name of Contractor and Subcontractor. 

e. Name of Supplier and Manufacturer. 

f. Relation to adjacent structure of material. 

g. Physical dimensions clearly identified. 

h. ASTM and Federal Specifications references. 

i. Identification of and justification for deviations from the Agreement 
Documents. 

j. Contractor’s stamp, initialed or signed, dated and certifying the review 
of submittal, certification of field measurements and compliance with 
Agreement. 

k. Location at which the equipment or materials are to be installed. 

4.7.3.5 Location will mean both physical location and location relative to other connected or 
attached material. City will return unchecked any submittal, which does not contain 
complete data on the Work and full information on related matters. 

4.7.3.6 Stock or standard drawings will not be accepted for review unless full identification and 
supplementary information is shown thereon in ink or typewritten form. 

4.7.3.7 Contractor must schedule, prepare and submit all Shop Drawings in accordance with a time-
table that will allow its suppliers and manufacturers sufficient time to fabricate, 
manufacture, inspect, test and deliver their respective products to the project Site in a 
timely manner so as to not delay the complete performance of the Work. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-23 of 75  

4.7.3.8 If the Shop Drawings show departures from the Agreement requirements, Contractor 
must make specific mention thereof in the Letter of Transmittal; otherwise review of such 
submittals by City will not constitute review of the departure. Review of the Drawings will 
constitute review of the specific subject matter for which the Drawings were submitted 
and not of any other structure, material, equipment, or apparatus shown on the Drawings. 

4.7.3.9 The review of Shop Drawings will be general and will not relieve Contractor of responsibility 
for the accuracy of such Drawings, nor for the proper fitting and construction of the Work, 
nor for the furnishing of materials or Work required by the Agreement. No construction 
called for by Shop Drawings will be initiated until such Drawings have been reviewed and 
approved by City. 

4.7.3.10 The procedure in seeking review of the Shop Drawings will be as follows: 

a. Contractor must submit complete sets of Shop Drawings and other 
descriptive data as specified in this Section. 

b. After Contractor’s submittal or resubmittal of Shop Drawings, if Contractor 
has submitted Shop Drawings in accordance with the City-approved 
submittal schedule, or upon resubmission, City will be provided with three 
(3) calendar weeks for review. Should City require additional review time 
above and beyond the three (3) calendar weeks, Contractor may ask for a 
time extension or monetary compensation, if they can present valid, factual 
evidence that actual damages were incurred by Contractor. City will 
determine the amount of the time extension or the monetary 
compensation to be awarded Contractor, if any, in accordance with City’s 
Policy Statement for Calculating Delays and Damages, Appendix 1. 

4.7.3.11 Contractor will be responsible for all extra costs incurred by City caused by Contractor’s 
failure to comply with the procedure outline above. 

4.7.4 Long Lead Time Items. Contractor must submit Shop Drawings, as required by the Engineer, 
on all long lead items to be furnished and installed as part of the project within 10 Days 
after the date of the executed Agreement letter issued by City. In addition, 
Contractor must order all long lead items to be furnished and installed as part of this 
Project within 3 Days after receiving approved Shop Drawings. For all long lead times for 
which Shop Drawings are not required, Contractor must order said long lead items within 
15 Days after the date of the executed Agreement letter issued by City. Within 2 Days 
after ordering long lead items, Contractor must supply copies of all purchase orders, 
along with an accurate delivery schedule from the supplier. 

4.7.5 Construction Water. If Contractor uses water from City’s water system for construction 
water, Contractor must obtain a fire hydrant meter from City of Chandler Utility Services 
(480-782-2280) and all construction water must be obtained through the hydrant meter. 
Contractor must pay all fees related to the hydrant meter and all water bills for construction 
water. All cost for meters and construction water will be included in the Agreement Price. 

4.8 PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS 

4.8.1 During the construction period, Contractor must maintain at the jobsite a full-size set of 
prints of the Construction Document Drawings and Shop Drawings for Project Record 
Document purposes. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-24 of 75  

4.8.2 Contractor must mark these Drawings to indicate the actual installation where the installation 
varies from the original Construction Documents. Contractor must give particular attention 
to information on elements that will be concealed, which would be difficult to identify or 
measure and record later. Items required to be marked include but are not limited to: 

a. Dimensional changes to the Drawings. 

b. Revisions to details shown on Drawings. 

c. Locations and depths of underground utilities. 

d. Revisions to routing of piping and conduits. 

e. Actual equipment locations. 

f. Changes made by Change Order or Addendum. 

g. Details not on original Agreement Drawings. 

4.8.3 Contractor must mark completely and accurately Project Record Drawing sets of 
Construction Documents. 

4.8.4 Contractor must mark Project Record Drawings sets with red erasable colored pencil. 

4.8.5 Contractor must note Request for Information (RFI) Numbers and Change Order numbers, 
etc., as required to identify the source of the change to the Construction Documents. 

4.8.6 Contractor must submit Project Record Drawing sets and Shop Drawings to City or its 
representative for review and comment. 

4.8.7 Upon receipt of the reviewed Project Record Drawings from City, Contractor must correct 
any deficiencies and omissions to the Drawings and submit the final original of the Project 
Record Drawings to City prior to Final Payment. 

4.8.8 Project Manager will review the Project Record Drawings monthly prior to the date 
established for the Payment Request and will be the sole judge of acceptance of these 
Drawings. 

4.9 WARRANTY AND CORRECTION OF DEFECTIVE WORK 

4.9.1 Contractor warrants to City that the construction, including all materials and equipment 
furnished as part of the Work, will be new unless otherwise specified in the Agreement 
Documents, of good quality, and free of defects in materials and workmanship.  Contractor’s 
warranty obligation excludes defects caused by abuse, alterations, or unreasonable failure 
to maintain the construction by persons other than Contractor, subcontractors, or others 
under Contractor’s control.  Nothing in this warranty will limit any manufacturer’s warranty 
which provides City with greater warranty rights than set forth herein or in the Agreement.  
Contractor will provide City with all manufacturers’ warranties and operation and 
maintenance manuals upon substantial completion of the Work.  Contractor’s warranty 
must be for one (1) year, in accordance with MAG Specification § 108.8, and will commence 
for all portions of the Work upon Final Acceptance of the entire Work as determined by City 
under the Agreement.  All statutory or other warranties, express or implied, related to latent 
defects will remain in force and are not limited by this provision. 

4.9.2 City May Stop the Work.  If the Work is defective, or Contractor fails to supply sufficient 
skilled workmen or suitable materials or equipment, City may order Contractor to stop the 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-25 of 75  

Work without cost to City, or any portion thereof, until the cause for such order has been 
eliminated; however, this right of City to stop the Work will not give rise to any duty on the 
part of City to exercise this right for the benefit of Contractor or any other party. 

4.9.3 Correction or Removal of Defective Work. 

4.9.3.1 If required by City, Contractor must promptly, without cost to City and as specified by City, 
either correct any defective Work, whether or not fabricated, installed or completed, or, if 
the Work has been rejected by City, remove it from the Site and replace it with non-defective 
Work. Contractor must correct any Work which may be displaced in correcting, removing or 
replacing defective Work. No compensation will be allowed Contractor for such removal, 
replacement or remedial Work.  Contractor must reimburse City for costs incurred by City 
due to such correction or removal including but not limited to additional expenses for 
inspection, testing or observation and for repeated reviews by the City or Design 
Professional.   

4.9.3.2 Upon failure on the part of the Contractor to comply within a reasonably prompt time with 
any written order of City to correct or remove defective Work, City has authority to cause 
nonconforming materials or rejected Work to be remedied, removed, or replaced at the 
Contractor's expense and to deduct the costs from any moneys due or to become due the 
Contractor. 

4.9.4 City May Correct Defective Work.  If Contractor fails within a reasonable time after written 
notice of City to proceed to correct defective Work or to remove and replace rejected Work 
as required by City or if Contractor fails to perform the Work in accordance with the 
Agreement Documents (including any requirements of the progress schedule), City may, 
after 7 Days' written notice to Contractor, correct and remedy any such deficiency.  To the 
extent necessary to complete corrective and remedial action, City may exclude Contractor 
from all or part of the Work, and suspend Contractor's services related thereto, take 
possession of Contractor's tools, appliances, construction equipment and machinery at the 
Site and incorporate in the Work all materials and equipment stored at the Site or for which 
City has paid Contractor, but which are stored elsewhere. Contractor must allow City, city 
representatives, agents and employees such access to the Site as may be necessary to 
enable City to exercise City’s rights under this Section.  All direct and indirect costs of City in 
exercising such rights will be charged against Contractor in an amount verified by City 
representative, and a Change Order will be issued incorporating the necessary revisions in 
the Agreement Documents and a reduction in the Agreement Price.  Such direct and indirect 
costs will include, in particular but without limitation, compensation for additional 
professional services required and all costs of repair and replacement of Work or others 
destroyed or damaged by correction, removal or replacement of Contractor's defective 
Work. Contractor will not be allowed an extension of the Agreement Time because of any 
delay in Contractor’s performance of the Work attributable to the exercise by City or City's 
rights hereunder. 

4.9.5 Correction or Removal of Unauthorized Work. 

4.9.5.1 Any Work done beyond the lines and grades shown on the Drawings or established by the 
Design Professional or any changes in, additions to, or deductions from the Work done 
without written authority will be considered as unauthorized and will not be paid for. Work 
so done may be ordered remedied, removed, or replaced at the Contractor's expense. 

4.9.5.2 Upon failure on the part of the Contractor to comply promptly with any order of the City, 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-26 of 75  

City will have authority to cause unauthorized Work to be remedied, removed, or replaced 
at the Contractor's expense and to deduct the costs from any moneys due or to become 
due the Contractor. 

4.9.6 Correction Period - One Year Guarantee. 

4.9.6.1 If, within one year after the date of Final Acceptance, or such longer period of time as may 
be prescribed by law or by the terms of any applicable special guarantee required by the 
Agreement Documents, or by any specific provision of the Agreement Documents, any Work 
is found to be defective, Contractor must promptly, without cost to City and in accordance 
with City's written instructions, either correct such defective Work, or, if it has been rejected 
by City, remove it from the Site and replace it with non-defective Work. If Contractor does 
not promptly comply with the terms of such instructions, or in an emergency where delay 
would cause serious risk of loss or damage, City may have the defective Work corrected or 
the rejected Work removed and replaced, and all direct and indirect costs of such removal 
and replacement, including compensation for additional professional services, must be paid 
by Contractor. Such action by the City will not relieve the Contractor of the guarantees 
required by this Section or elsewhere in the Agreement Documents.  

4.9.6.2 If, in the opinion of the City, defective Work creates a dangerous condition or requires 
immediate correction or attention to prevent further loss to the City or to prevent 
interruption of operation of the City, the City will attempt to give the notice required by this 
Section.  If the Contractor cannot be contacted or does not comply with the City's request 
for correction within a reasonable time as determined by the City, the City may, 
notwithstanding the provisions of this Section, proceed to make such correction or provide 
such attention; and the costs of such correction or attention will be charged against the 
Contractor.  Such action by the City will not relieve the Contractor of the guarantees 
required by this Section or elsewhere in the Agreement Documents. 

4.9.6.3 This Section does not in any way limit the guarantee on any items for which a longer 
guarantee is specified or on any items for which a manufacturer or supplier gives a 
guarantee for a longer period. The Contractor agrees to act as co-guarantor with such 
manufacturer or supplier and must furnish the City all appropriate guarantee or warranty 
certificates upon completion of the Project.  No guarantee period, whether provided for in 
this Section or elsewhere, will in any way limit the liability of Contractor or their sureties or 
insurers under the indemnity or insurance provisions of these General Conditions and the 
Project Specific Special Conditions. 

4.9.7 Acceptance of Defective Work. 

4.9.7.1 If, instead of requiring correction or removal and replacement of defective Work, City may 
accept Work when in the best interest of the City to do so with appropriate monetary credit 
from Contractor.  If any such acceptance occurs prior to final payment, a Change Order will 
be issued incorporating the necessary revisions in the Agreement Documents, including 
appropriate reduction in the Agreement Price; or, if the acceptance occurs after final 
payment, an appropriate amount must be paid by Contractor to City. 

4.9.7.2 Alternatively, City may require Contractor to furnish at Contractor's expense, a special 
performance guarantee or other surety prior to acceptance of defective work. 

4.9.8 The Warranty period begins on the Final Acceptance date noted in the Certificate of 
Completion, irrespective of early completion by some Subcontractors of their work. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-27 of 75  

4.9.9 Contractor’s warranty obligation must be in accordance with MAG Specifications. 

4.9.10 Nothing in the warranties contained in the Agreement Documents are intended to limit any 
manufacturer’s warranty which provides City with greater warranty rights than set forth 
in this Section or the Agreement Documents. Contractor must provide City with all 
manufacturers’ warranties prior to Substantial Completion, if applicable, or Final 
Acceptance. 

4.9.11 Contractor agrees that it will be responsible to manage and administer the correction of any 
Work that is not in conformance with the Agreement Documents during the warranty 
periods set forth in this Section, or during any longer periods to the extent required by the 
Agreement Documents. A progress payment, or partial or entire use or occupancy of the 
Project by City, will not constitute acceptance of Work not in accordance with the Agreement 
Documents. 

4.9.12 When notified of a warranty issue, Contractor must respond in writing within 48-hours and 
must perform warranty Work as soon as material for said repairs are available (as judged 
solely by City), and in any event Contractor must, take immediate steps to commence and 
complete correction of nonconforming Work no later than the time period set forth in 
City’s written notification in accordance with the Agreement Documents. This includes the 
correction, removal or replacement of the nonconforming Work and any damage caused 
to other parts of the Work affected by the nonconforming Work. If defects develop which 
are determined by City to be an emergency, City will notify Contractor, via the most 
expeditious means regarding the nature and condition of the defects. In turn, Contractor 
must immediately dispatch necessary forces to correct the defect or the emergency 
condition in accordance with Agreement Documents. 

4.9.13 The time periods referenced in this Section apply only to Contractor’s obligation to 
correct nonconforming Work and is not intended to constitute a period of limitations for any 
other rights or remedies that City may have regarding Contractor’s other obligations under 
the Agreement Documents. 

4.9.14 Without limiting the foregoing or anything in these General Conditions or the Agreement 
to the contrary, Contractor must obtain and provide to City all warranties for any portion 
of the Project offered by the manufacturer, installer or provider thereof. City and the user 
of the facility will have the right to the full value and benefit of all such warranties. 
Contractor must ensure all such warranties are fully transferrable to facilitate the full value 
of this Section. 

4.9.15 Contractor’s warranty excludes damages or defects caused by abuse, alterations to the Work 
not executed by or through Contractor, improper or insufficient maintenance, improper 
operation, or normal wear and tear and normal usage. 

4.9.16 In the event of any noncompliance with this entire Section 4, City may require Contractor to 
stop or suspend the Work in whole or in part. 

  
SECTION 5 - CITY RESPONSIBILITIES 

5.1 CITY PROJECT MANAGER AND INSPECTORS 

5.1.1 Project Manager is responsible for providing City-supplied information and approvals in a 
timely manner to assist Contractor to fulfill its obligations under the Agreement Documents. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-28 of 75  

5.1.2 Project Manager will also provide Contractor with prompt notice when it observes any 
failure on the part of Contractor to fulfill its contractual obligations, including any default 
or defect in the Project or non-conformance with the Drawings and Specifications. 

5.1.3 City may utilize Field Inspectors to assist Project Manager during construction in 
observing performance of Contractor. City’s use of Inspectors is for the purpose of assisting 
Project Manager. 

5.1.4 The Inspectors are authorized to inspect all Work and materials furnished. Such inspections 
may extend to all or part of the Work and to preparation, fabrication or manufacture of the 
materials to be used.  The Inspectors have the authority to issue instructions contrary to 
the Construction Documents if approved and coordinated with the directions of Project 
Manager. 

5.1.5 The Inspectors have the authority to reject work or materials until any questions at issue can 
be decided by Project Manager. 

5.1.6 The use of Inspectors by City will not make City responsible for or give City control 
over construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures or for safety 
precautions or programs or responsibility for Contractor’s failure to perform the Work in 
accordance with Agreement Documents. The Inspectors are not authorized to direct any of 
Contractor’s activities, employees or Subcontractors. 

5.2 DESIGN PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
City may contract separately with one or more Design Professionals to provide 
construction administration of the Project. The Design Professional’s Agreement, as well as 
other firms hired by City may be furnished to Contractor. Contractor does not have the right 
to limit or restrict or reject any Agreement modifications that are mutually acceptable to City 
and Design Professional. 

5.3  CIT Y ’S SEP AR AT E CONT R ACT ORS 
City is responsible for all work performed on the Project or at the Site by separate 
contractors retained by City. City will contractually require its separate contractors to 
reasonably cooperate with, and reasonably coordinate their activities so as not to interfere 
with Contractor in order to enable Contractor to timely complete the Work consistent with 
the Agreement Documents. Contractor must immediately notify the Project manager, 
and address the matter in the next monthly status report, if any activities of such separate 
contractors are expected to interfere, or are interfering, with Contractor and such 
interference will or could result in any delay in Contractor’s performance of the Work. 

5.4 PERMIT REVIEW AND INSPECTIONS 

5.4.1 If requested by Contractor, Project Manager will provide assistance and guidance in 
obtaining necessary reviews, permits and inspections. 

5.4.2 The regulating agencies of City, such as Development and Sustainability, Fire and 
Planning Departments, enforce legal requirements. The enforcement activities of City are 
independent and separate from this Agreement. 

5.5 PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS TO THE CONTRACTOR.   
Contractor will be provided up to five copies of the Agreement Documents as are 
reasonably necessary for the execution of the Work.  Additional copies will be furnished, 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-29 of 75  

upon request, at the cost of reproduction.   
 
SECTION 6 - AGREEMENT TIME 

6.1 AGREEMENT TIME 

6.1.1 The Agreement Time will start with the Notice to Proceed (“NTP”) and end with Final 
Acceptance.  

6.1.2 Beginning on the date of the NTP, Contractor must begin to fulfill Contractor’s obligations 
under the Agreement. Contractor’s obligations include providing City and other 
agencies with any submittals required by the Project Specific Special Provisions, including 
but not limited to, an approved Project Schedule, Traffic Control Plans, and a Stormwater 
Pollution Prevention Plan. Contractor must submit all such required submittals before 
any physical construction work commences on the Site. NTP does not authorize 
construction work until all a greement insurance, bonds, and schedules are submitted to 
and accepted by the City. 

6.1.3 The Agreement Time will be as set forth in the Project Schedule. Contractor agrees that 
it will commence performance of the Work and complete the Project through both 
Substantial Completion and Final Acceptance within the Agreement Time. 

6.1.4 Time is of the essence of this Agreement, for the Project, for the Work, and for each phase 
and designated Milestone thereof. 

6.1.5 Failure of Contractor to perform any covenant or condition contained in the Agreement 
Documents within the time periods specified herein, will constitute a material breach of this 
Agreement entitling City to terminate the Agreement unless Contractor applies for and 
receives an extension of time, in accordance with the procedures set forth in the Agreement 
Documents. 

6.1.6 Failure of City to insist upon the performance of any covenant or condition within the time 
periods specified herein, will not constitute a waiver of Contractor’s duty to perform every 
other covenant or condition within the designated periods, unless a specific waiver is 
granted in writing for each such covenant or condition. 

6.1.7 City’s agreement to waive a specific time provision or to extend the time for performance 
will not constitute a waiver of any other time provisions contained in the Agreement 
Documents.  Failure of Contractor to complete performance promptly within the additional 
time authorized in the waiver or extension of time agreement constitutes a material breach 
of this Agreement entitling City to all the remedies set forth herein or provided by law. 

6.2 PROJECT SCHEDULE 

6.2.1 The Project Schedule must be in Microsoft Project standard file format, must be updated and 
maintained throughout the Agreement Time, and must contain the following: 

6.2.1.1 Detailed representation of all activities for the project, both on-site construction and major 
procurement.  All significant activities together with the resource loading requirements for 
each and all items appearing on the schedule of values or bid schedule for progress 
payments must be shown on the Project Schedule or in attached transmittal letter as 
described in Section 6.2.8. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-30 of 75  

6.2.1.2 Dependencies between activities must be indicated so that it may establish as to the effect 
the progress of any one activity would have on other activities and on the Schedule. 

6.2.1.3 Activities for submission, review, and approval of all required submittals. 

6.2.1.4 An amount of time will be established prior to the final completion date for “punch list and 
cleanup”.  No other activities will be scheduled during this period.  Punch list and cleanup 
must be shown on the Project Schedule and must be entirely completed prior to the 
expiration of the Agreement Time. 

6.2.2 Within 10 Days of receipt of City’s comments, Contractor must make all required 
corrections, adjustments, and additions to complete the Project Schedule and resubmit to 
City for review.  City’s review of and response to the Project Schedule is for the purpose of: 
(1) City planning and staffing for the Project as may be required from time to time; (2) 
ensuring Contractor’s general conformance with the scheduling requirements of the 
Agreement Documents and completion of the Project within the Agreement Time; and (3) 
monitoring and evaluating the construction status for purposes of approving monthly 
progress payments. Acceptance of a submitted schedule by City should in no way be 
construed as an affirmation or admission that the schedule is reasonable or workable by 
Contractor. The responsibility for completing the Work on the Project within the 
Agreement Time remains the obligation of Contractor. City’s review  does not relieve 
Contractor from compliance with the requirements of the Agreement Documents or 
be construed as relieving Contractor of its complete and exclusive control over the 
means, methods, sequences and techniques for executing the work. 

6.2.3 The Project Schedule must show milestones, including milestones for City-furnished 
information, and must include activities for City-furnished material and construction by 
other contractors when those activities are interrelated with Contractor activities. 

6.2.4 The Project Schedule must be revised as required by conditions and progress of the Work, 
but such revisions do not relieve Contractor of its obligations to complete the Work 
within the Agreement Time, as adjusted in accordance with the Agreement Documents. 
No modification to the Agreement Documents or the Agreement Time will be effective 
unless approved in advance by City. 

6.2.5 For all items of materials and equipment that are critical or may require long lead times to 
acquire, the Project Schedule must show dates for submission, review and approval of 
submittals, ordering, and delivery. 

6.2.6 An updated Project Schedule must be submitted monthly to City as part of the Payment 
Request. The monthly submittal must include one full size plot of the entire schedule and 
one electronic copy containing the schedule in Microsoft Project standard file format. In 
addition, Contractor must, upon request by City, provide a copy of all submitted schedule 
data in electronic format which must be clearly labeled with the Project description, 
scheduling program name and version number, and schedule print/data date. 

6.2.7 Contractor must provide City with a monthly status report with each Project Schedule 
detailing the progress of the Work, including: (i) if the Work is proceeding according to 
schedule, (ii) any discrepancies, conflicts, or ambiguities found to exist in the Agreement 
Documents that require resolution, and (iii) other information detailing items that require 
resolution so as not to jeopardize the ability to complete the Work in the Agreement Time. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-31 of 75  

6.2.8 With each Project Schedule submittal, Contractor must include a transmittal letter 
including the following: 

a. Description of problem tasks, referenced to field instructions or requests 
for information (RFI’s), as appropriate. 

b. Current and anticipated delays including: 

(i) Cause of the delay. 

(ii) Corrective action and schedule adjustments to correct the delay. 

(iii) Known or potential impacts and their delay on other activities, 
milestones, and their impact on the Substantial Completion and 
Final Acceptance dates. 

(iv) Changes in construction sequence. 

c. Pending items and status thereof including but not limited to: 

(i) Time Extension requests; 

(ii) Substantial Completion date status; 

(iii) Final Acceptance date status. 

d. If ahead of schedule, the number of calendar Days ahead. 

e. If behind schedule, the number of calendar Days behind. 

f. Other Project or scheduling concerns. 

6.2.9 Critical Path Method (CPM). 

6.2.9.1 Unless otherwise specified in the Agreement, the Project Schedule must include a Critical 
Path Method (CPM) diagram schedule showing the sequence of activities, the 
interdependence of each activity and identifies the Critical Path. 

6.2.9.2 The CPM diagram schedule must be in calendar Days and indicate duration, earliest and 
latest start and finish dates for all activities, and total Float Times for all activities except 
critical activities. The CPM diagram must be presented in a time scaled graphical format for 
the Project as a whole. 

6.2.9.3 The CPM diagram schedule must indicate all relationships between activities. 

6.2.9.4 The activities making the Project Schedule must contain sufficient detail to assure that 
adequate planning has been done for proper execution of the Work and such that it provides 
an appropriate basis for monitoring and evaluation the progress of the Work. Individual 
activities must not exceed 30 Days in length, in most cases. 

6.2.9.5 The CPM diagram schedule must be based upon activities, which coincide with the Schedule 
of Values. 

6.2.9.6 The CPM diagram schedule must show all submittals associated with each work activity and 
the review time for each submittal. 

6.2.10 Float Time. 

6.2.10.1 The total Float Time within the overall schedule is for the exclusive use of City, but City 
may approve Contractor’s use of Float as needed to meet Agreement Milestones and 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-32 of 75  

the Project completion date. 

6.2.10.2 Contractor will not be allowed to sequence, hide, or reallocate Float Time through 
such strategies, as extending activity duration estimates to consume available Float, using 
preferential logic, or using extensive crew/resource sequencing, tec. No time extensions 
will be granted nor delay damages paid until a delay occurs which extends the Work beyond 
the Agreement Time. 

6.2.11 City-Caused Delays.  City-caused delays on the Project, if any, may be offset by City-caused 
time savings (i.e., Critical Path submittals returned in less time than allowed by the 
Agreement, approval of substitution requests and credit changes which result in savings of 
time to Contractor, etc.) In such an event, Contractor will not be entitled to receive a time 
extension or delay damages until all City-caused time savings are exceeded and the 
Agreement Time is also exceeded. 

6.2.12 Rain-Related Delays.  Contractor is required, in preparing the Project Schedule to take into 
account all relevant weather conditions, including normal rainfall and distribution. No 
additional compensation will be given for any rain-related delays or impacts on the Work 
or the Project Schedule. No time extension will be granted in the Project Schedule unless 
the rainfall during the construction of Work is unusually severe, was not reasonably 
anticipated, and the total rainfall was significantly in excess of the normal rainfall for the 
Project Site location. Normal rainfall for the Project will be determined from the 10-year 
average rainfall for the Site as measured by the National Oceanic and Atmospheric 
Administration or comparable source of reliable information for rainfall in Chandler, 
Arizona. In addition, the excessive rainfall must have actually impacted Work activities on 
the Critical Path and caused delay beyond any remaining Float at the time of the rain- caused 
delay. The burden of documenting normal rainfall, the excessive rainfall and the impact on 
Critical Path activities is on Contractor. All other provisions in the Agreement Documents 
relating to claims, including without limitation notice requirements, apply to any claim by 
Contractor for a rain delay. 

6.2.13 City’s “Policy Statement for Calculating Delays and Damages,” Appendix 1  to these 
General Conditions, will apply to all claims of delay and delay damages. 

6.2.14 Force Majeure.  If Contractor is delayed or prevented from the performance of any Work 
required under this Agreement by reason of acts of God or other causes beyond the control 
and without fault of Contractor (financial inability excepted), performance of that Work will 
be excused, but only for the period of the delay.  The time for performance of the Work will 
be extended for a period equivalent to the period of delay. In addition, the parties agree if 
Contractor’s delayed or suspended performance directly arises out of or directly results 
from the COVID-19 pandemic, Contractor’s delayed or suspended performance may be 
excused as set forth in this clause. Provided, however; Contractor must give the City written 
notice within 30 days of the occurrence of the event giving rise to COVID-19 pandemic 
related delayed or suspended performance. For COVID-19 pandemic related delay or 
suspended performance, the parties must agree in writing to the length of the excused 
delay or suspended performance. Further, Contractor must obtain the City’s written 
approval to use any allowance established as part of the project for delays and costs related 
to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

6.3 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 

6.3.1 When Contractor considers that the Work, phase or a portion thereof, which City agrees in 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-33 of 75  

writing to accept separately, is substantially complete, City will prepare and submit to 
Contractor a comprehensive Punch List of items to be completed or corrected prior to Final 
Acceptance and Final Payment. Failure to include an item on such Punch List does not alter 
the responsibility of Contractor to complete all Work in accordance with the Agreement 
Documents. 

6.3.2 Upon receipt of Contractor’s Punch List, Project Manager will make an inspection to 
determine whether the Work or designated portion thereof is substantially complete. 
Project Manager may, at Project Manager’s sole option, be assisted in such inspection by 
the Design Professional for the Project. If the inspection by the Project Manager discloses 
any item, whether or not included on Contractor’s Punch List, which is not sufficiently 
completed in accordance with the Agreement Documents so that City can occupy or utilize 
the Work, phase or designated portion thereof for its intended use, Contractor must, 
before issuance of the Certificate of Substantial Completion, complete or correct such 
item upon notification by Project Manager. In such case, Contractor must then submit a 
request for another inspection by Project Manager to determine Substantial Completion. 

6.3.3 Certificate of Substantial Completion. 

6.3.3.1 The Project Manager will not issue a Certificate of Substantial Completion unless and until 
the Work (or separable units or Phases as provided in the Agreement Documents) is 
essentially and satisfactorily complete in accordance with the Agreement Documents, such 
that the Project is ready for use by City for its intended purpose, opening to the general 
public, full occupancy or use by City (including, without limitation, all separate units, or 
rooms, facilities, access, income-generating areas, and all areas serving the general public, 
as applicable, must be ready for full-operation without material inconvenience or 
discomfort), including, to the extent applicable to the Work, the following: all materials, 
equipment, systems, controls, features, facilities, accessories and similar elements are 
installed in the proper manner and in operating condition, inspected and approved; 
surfaces have been painted; masonry and concrete cleaned with any sealer or other finish 
applied; utilities and systems connected and functioning; site work complete; permanent 
heating, ventilation, air condition, vertical transportation and other systems properly 
operating with proper controls; lighting and electrical systems installed, operable and 
controlled; paving completed, signage installed, and other Work as applicable, has 
been performed to a similar state of essential and satisfactory completion. A minor 
amount of Work, as determined by and at the discretion of the Project Manager, such 
as installation of minor accessories or items, a minor amount of painting, minor 
replacement of defective work, minor adjustment of controls or sound systems, or 
completion or correction of minor exterior work that cannot be completed as a result of 
weather conditions, will not delay determination of Substantial Completion. If prior 
written approval is obtained from City for purposes of Substantial Completion, specified 
areas of the entire Work or Project may be individually certified as Substantially 
Complete. In no event will Substantial Completion be deemed to have occurred unless 
and until: (i) a temporary certificate of occupancy has been issued by the appropriate 
Governmental Authorities (as applicable) and (ii) all terms and Work required under this 
Agreement have been fulfilled by Contractor and same will have also been approved and 
accepted by City, subject only to the Punch List items. 

6.3.3.2 If requested by City, Contractor must complete and turn-over to City the Project on a phased 
basis. Each phase will have a separate inspection by the Project Manager, a Punch List 
generated, and then an inspection by City with final approval and acceptance only after the 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-34 of 75  

Project Manager’s Punch List. 

6.4 PARTIAL UTILIZATION 

6.4.1 City at City’s option may use and occupy any substantially completed parts of the Work 
which has specifically been identified in the Agreement Documents, or which City, the 
Design Professional and Contractor agree constitutes a separately functioning and usable 
part of the Work that can be used by City for its intended purpose, without significant 
interference with Contractor’s performance of the remainder of the Work, provided, 
however, if the portion of the Work to be used or occupied has not been found to be 
substantially complete, City must do so in accordance with Section 6.3 prior to such 
occupancy.   

6.4.2 In lieu of the issuance of a Certificate of Substantial Completion as to part of the Work, City 
may take over operation of a facility constituting part of the Work whether or not it is 
substantially complete if such facility is functionally and separately usable; provided that 
prior to any such takeover, City and Contractor agree in writing as to the division of 
responsibilities between City and Contractor for security, operation, safety, maintenance, 
correction period, heat, utilities and insurance with respect to such facility. 

6.4.3 Substantial Completion of or City's beneficial occupancy of a part of the Project will not alter 
the fact that the one-year warranty for the whole Project starts at the date of Final 
Completion of the whole Project. 

6.5 FINAL ACCEPTANCE 

6.5.1 Unless otherwise expressly agreed to in writing by City, Final Acceptance must be obtained 
by no later than 30 Days (60 Days for federally funded agreements) after the date of Substantial 
Completion. Failure to timely obtain Final Acceptance will be a material breach of the 
Agreement. 

6.5.2 Upon receipt of written notice that the Work is ready for final inspection and acceptance, City 
and Contractor will jointly inspect to verify that the remaining items of Work have been 
completed. There will be no partial acceptance. Final Acceptance will not occur until all 
items of Work, including Punch List Items, have been completed to City’s satisfaction as 
reflected in the written Final Acceptance. 

6.5.3 Final Payment will not be due, owing, or paid by City until Final Acceptance is issued. 

6.5.4 Landscape Establishment Period. Unless otherwise expressly agreed to in writing by City, the 
Landscape Establishment Period will begin on the date of Final Acceptance of the Project and 
will run 90 Calendar Days thereafter. Landscape Establishment Period requirements are 
detailed in General Conditions Appendices, attached herein. 

6.6 CONTINUATION OF WORK 

6.6.1 Permitting Contractor to continue and finish the Work or any part of it after the time fixed 
for its completion (whether milestone, phase, Substantial Completion or Final Acceptance) 
or after the date to which the time fixed for any completion may have been extended, does 
not operate as a waiver by City of any rights under the Agreement Documents, law or equity. 

6.6.2 Furthermore, the timely completion of the Work being of the utmost importance under 
this Agreement, notwithstanding the existence of one or more disputes between the parties 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-35 of 75  

concerning the scope of the Work, the Project Schedule, Agreement Time, payments or any 
other matter, and further notwithstanding a party’s invocation of the Dispute Resolution 
provisions specified in Appendix 6  of these General Conditions, unless City suspends 
the Agreement or Contractor’s performance pursuant to Section 10 of these General 
Conditions, Contractor will continue to prosecute the Work, including any Change Order 
work or Extra Work Orders, in a diligent and timely manner and not stop, slow down or 
impede by action or inaction the progress of the Work, including commencing performance 
of and thereafter completing any additional work called out in any Change Order or Extra 
Work Order issued by Project Manager with the approval of City, so long as City makes 
payment to Contractor in accordance with Section 8 of these General Conditions. 

 
SECTION 7 - AGREEMENT PRICE 

7.1 UNIT PRICE AGREEMENTS 

7.1.1 The Agreement Price for all Unit Price Agreements will be the amount set forth in the 
Agreement or Change Order multiplied by the verified quantity provided. 

7.1.2 Measurements of quantities to determine the total Agreement Price must be in accordance 
with MAG Specification §§ 109.1 and 109.2. 

7.1.3 The Unit Price may only be changed as set forth in Section 9 below. 

7.2 CHANGE ORDERS 

7.2.1 Unit Price Change Orders.  The Change Order Price for all Unit Price Change Orders will be 
the amount set forth in the Change Order multiplied by the verified quantity provided. 

7.2.2 Measurements of quantities to determine the total Change Order Price must be in 
accordance with MAG Specifications §§ 109.1 and 109.2. 

7.2.3 The Unit Price may only be changed as set forth in Section 9 below. 
 
7.2.4 MAG Specification § 109.4.1 is modified as follows: Before § 109.4.1, the following is added:  

Any deduction or increase in the Agreement Price must be supported by a signed, 
written Change Order fully executed by City, and supported by such backup as the Project 
Manager may require.  

7.3 SALES TAX 
Contractor is required to pay all applicable sales tax in accordance with the law of the state of 
Arizona and this cost must be included in all Agreement Prices.  When equipment, materials 
or supplies generally taxable to Contractor are eligible for a tax exemption due to the nature 
of the Project, Contractor must assist City in applying for and obtaining such tax credits and 
exemptions which will be paid or credited to City.   

 
SECTION 8 - PAYMENT 

8.1 PAYMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 

8.1.1 Payment for the Work will be made in accordance with MAG Standard Specification § 109 
as amended below.  

8.1.2 Contractor must submit to City for review a completed Contractor Payment Request signed 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-36 of 75  

by Contractor, covering the Work completed as of the date of the Request and accompanied 
by such supporting documentation as is required by the Agreement Documents and also 
as City may reasonably require.  A Contractor Payment Request will not be considered 
complete unless it is accompanied by an updated Project Schedule and a certification that 
the on-site, red lined, as built Drawings are up to date.  If payment is requested on the basis 
of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work but delivered and suitably, 
securely stored at the Site or at another location (such as a bonded warehouse) agreed to 
in writing, the Contractor Payment Request must also be accompanied by such data, 
satisfactory to City, as will establish City's title to the material and equipment and protect 
City's interest therein, including applicable insurance. Each subsequent Contractor Payment 
Request must include an affidavit of Contractor stating that all previous progress payments 
received on account of the Work have been applied to discharge in full all of Contractor's 
obligations reflected in prior Contractor Payment Requests.  

8.1.3 Except for Work performed under a JOC Agreement, the Contracting Agency will retain 10 
percent of all estimates as a guarantee for complete performance of the Agreement in 
accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes Section 34-221 or 34-607.  The Contractor may 
elect to deposit securities in lieu of retention in accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes 
Section 34-221, Paragraph C.5. or 34-607, Paragraph B.5. 

8.1.4 The payment process functions as follows: Prior to the payment cycle date, Contractor must 
send a draft Contractor Payment Request to Project Manager.  The Project Team will review 
the Request and agree upon any necessary adjustments.  Contractor must certify the final 
Request by signing and returning to Project Manager. 

8.1.5 When construction of the Project is fifty percent (50%) completed, Contractor may 
request payment of one-half of the retention pursuant to A.R.S. § 34-609(B)(3), subject to all 
of City’s rights to withhold or offset payments, and other rights of City, under the Agreement. 

8.1.6 City reserves the right under A.R.S. § 34-609(B)(3) to reinstate the ten percent (10%) retention 
if City determines that satisfactory progress is not being made. 

8.1.7 Contractor’s Warranty of Title. 

8.1.7.1 Contractor warrants and guarantees that title to all Work, materials and equipment covered 
by any Contractor Payment Request, whether incorporated in the Project or not, will pass 
to City at the time of payment, free and clear of all liens, claims, security interests, and 
encumbrances, provided that this will not preclude the Contractor from installing metering 
devices or other equipment of utility companies or municipalities, the title of which is 
commonly retained by the utility company or municipality. 

8.1.7.2 No materials, supplies, or equipment for the Work under this Agreement will be purchased 
subject to any chattel mortgage or under a conditional sale contract or other agreement by 
which an interest therein, or any part thereof, is retained by the seller or supplier. 

8.1.7.3 Nothing contained in this Section will defeat or impair the right of such persons furnishing 
materials or labor under any bond given by the Contractor for their protection, or any right 
under any law permitting such persons to look to funds due the Contractor in the hands of 
the City. The provisions of this Section must be inserted in all subcontracts and material 
agreements, and notices of its provision must be given to all persons furnishing materials 
for the Work when no formal agreement is entered into for such materials. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-37 of 75  

8.2 PAYMENT UPON SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 

8.2.1 No payment will be made upon Substantial Completion, except for a regularly-scheduled 
monthly progress payment, as allowed by Section 8.2.2. 

8.2.2 No further payments will be made to Contractor until Final Acceptance. 

8.3 FINAL PAYMENT 

8.3.1 Subject to all of City’s rights to withhold or offset payment, and other rights under the 
Agreement, Final Payment including remaining retainage will be paid only after: 

a. Work has been fully completed (including completion of all incorrect or 
incomplete work items) and the written Final Acceptance has been issued by 
City; 

b. Necessary operating manuals, any excess materials and supplies necessary 
for matching materials and supplies incorporated into the Work, 
acceptable sewer video results (if applicable), and complete “as-built” 
Drawings (including the Building Information Model, if required by the 
Agreement Documents) have been delivered to City, as specified in this 
Section 8.3; 

c. Full and unconditional lien waivers and releases by Contractor and any 
person performing labor or supplying material, machinery, fixtures, or tools 
for the Work have been delivered to Contractor; 

d. All conditions and requirements imposed by City or any financing entity 
for the corresponding disbursement have been met; and 

e. Contractor delivers to City a Contractor Payment Request requesting Final 
Payment. 

8.3.2 Contractor must also submit a signed copy of Contractor’s Affidavit Regarding Settlement 
of Claims, Appendix 3 to these General Conditions, and Certificate of Completion, Appendix 7 
to these General Conditions, prior to Final Payment. 

8.3.3 In addition, if required under the Project Specific Special Provisions, Contractor must 
compile a complete equipment list and maintenance manual to be submitted to City 
as a precondition to Final Payment. The list must include the following items for all 
equipment supplied under the Plumbing, Electrical, Air Conditioning, Elevator, and other 
Special Equipment Specifications: 

a. Name, Model and Manufacturer. 

b. Complete parts lists and Drawings. 

c. Local source of supply for replacement parts along with suppliers’ telephone 
numbers. 

d. Local service organizations serving the equipment and their telephone 
numbers. 

e. All tags, inspection slips, instruction packages, etc., removed from 
equipment must be properly identified as to pieces of equipment from 
which they were taken. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-38 of 75  

8.3.4 Contractor must also deliver to City, prior to Final Payment, one (1) digital (in the format 
specified by City), and if requested by City, one (1) hard copy, of any applicable 
Maintenance manuals. Each manual must include all manufacturer’s operation and 
maintenance instructions and “as-built” Drawings with the list herein specified. It must also 
include all other diagrams and instructions necessary to properly operate and maintain the 
equipment, the name, address and telephone number of Contractor and all Subcontractors 
involved. 

8.4  CIT Y ’S RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT 
City may withhold payment to such extent as may be necessary in City’s opinion to protect 
City from loss for which Contractor is responsible, including, without limitation, if any of 
the following conditions exist: 

a. Defective Work not remedied; 

b. Third party claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of 
such claims unless security acceptable to City is provided by Contractor; 

c. Failure of Contractor to make payments properly to Subcontractors or for 
labor, materials or equipment; 

d. Reasonable evidence that the Work cannot be completed for the unpaid 
balance of the Agreement Price; 

e. Damage to City or another Contractor; 

f. Reasonable evidence that the Work will not be completed within the 
Agreement Time, and that the unpaid balance would not be adequate to 
cover actual or liquidated damages for the anticipated delay; 

g. Failure to carry out the Work in accordance with the Agreement Documents; 
or 

h. Contractor is in default of any of its other obligations under the Agreement 
Documents. 

8.5 JOINT/DIRECT CHECKS 
To promote the timely completion and progress of the Work or when appropriate and 
necessary, payments to Contractor may be made jointly to Contractor and its employees, 
agents, Subcontractors and suppliers, or any of them.  For federally funded agreements, 
see federal provisions for additional requirements for the joint check process. 

8.6 PAYMENT NOT A WAIVER 
No payment (nor use or occupancy of the Project by City) will be deemed acceptance or 
approval of the Work or as a waiver of any claims, rights, or remedies of City. 

8.7 LIENS AND BOND CLAIMS 
Contractor must make all payments, in the time required, of all labor and materials 
furnished to Contractor in the course of the Work and must promptly furnish evidence of 
such payments as City may require. Contractor must pay when due all claims arising out of 
performance of the Work covered by this Agreement for which a lien may be filed either 
against the real estate or leasehold interest of City, or against payments due from City to 
Contractor, or for which a claim may be made against any payment or performance bond 
or both. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor agrees that no liens or other 
claims in the nature of a lien against the real estate, leasehold, or other interest of City, 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-39 of 75  

against payment due from City to Contractor, or against any payment or performance 
bond, must be filed or made in connection with the Work by any party who has supplied 
professional services, labor, materials, machinery, fixtures, tools, or equipment used in or 
in connection with the performance of this Agreement, and Contractor agrees to remove or 
to cause to be removed any such liens or claims in the nature of a lien or bond claim within 
10 Days upon receiving notice or obtaining actual knowledge of the existence of such liens 
or claim. In addition, Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless City 
from and against any and all such liens and claims. This paragraph does not apply to claims 
and liens of Contractor due to non-payment for work performed. 

8.8  FIN AN CI AL R ECORDKE EPI NG AND C IT Y ’S AUD I T RIGHT  

8.8.1 Records for all Agreements between City and Contractor must, upon reasonable notice, be 
open to inspection and subject to audit, scanning, and reproduction during normal 
business working hours. Such audits may be performed by any City’s representative or any 
outside representative engaged by City for the purpose of examining such records. City or 
its designee may conduct such audits or inspections throughout the term of this Agreement 
and for a period of five years after Final Payment or longer if required by law. City’s 
representatives may (without limitation) conduct verifications such as counting employees 
at the Site, witnessing the distribution of payroll, verifying information and amounts through 
interviews and written confirmations with Contractor employees, field and agency labor, 
Subcontractors, and vendors. 

8.8.2 Contractor’s “records” must include any and all information, materials and data of every kind 
and character, including without limitation, records, books, papers, documents, 
subscriptions, recordings, agreements, purchase orders, leases, contracts, commitments, 
arrangements, notes daily diaries, superintendent reports, drawings, receipts, vouchers and 
memoranda, and any and all other agreements, sources of information and matters that 
may in City’s judgment have any bearing on or pertain to any matters, rights, duties or 
obligations under or covered by any Agreement Document. Such records must include (hard 
copy, as well as computer readable data if it can be made available), written policies and 
procedures; time sheets; payroll registers; payroll records; cancelled payroll checks; 
subcontract files (including proposals of successful and unsuccessful bidders, bid recaps, 
negotiation notes, etc.); original bid estimates; estimating work sheets; correspondence; 
Change Order files (including documentation covering negotiated settlements); back-
charge logs and supporting documentation; invoices and related payment documentation; 
general ledger, information detailing cash and trade discounts earned, insurance rebates 
and dividends; and any other Contractor records which may have a bearing on matters of 
interest to City or the Project in connection with Contractor’s dealings with City or the 
Project (all foregoing hereinafter referred to as “records”) to the extent necessary to 
adequately permit evaluation and verification of any or all of the following: 

a. Compliance with Agreement requirements for deliverables; 

b. Compliance with approved Plans and Specifications; 

c. Compliance with § 14.9 below; 

d. Compliance with Agreement provisions regarding the pricing of Change 
Orders; 

e. Accuracy of Contractor representations regarding the pricing of invoices; or 

f. Accuracy of Contractor representations related to claims submitted by 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-40 of 75  

Contractor or any of their employees. 

8.8.3 Contractor must require all payees (examples of payees include Subcontractors, Suppliers, 
Insurance Carriers, etc.) to comply with the provisions of this Section by including the 
requirements hereof in a written agreement between Contractor and payee. Contractor will 
ensure that all payees (including those entering into lump sum agreements) have the same 
right to audit provisions contained in this Agreement included in their agreements with 
Contractor. 

8.8.4 City’s authorized representative(s) (including, without limitation, Project Manager) must have 
reasonable access to Contractor’s facilities, must be allowed to interview all current or former 
employees to discuss matters pertinent to the performance of this Agreement and must be 
provided adequate and appropriate work space, in order to conduct audits in compliance 
with this Section. 

8.8.5 If an audit inspection or examination in accordance with this Section, discloses overpricing 
or overcharges to City (of any nature) by Contractor or Contractor’s Subcontractors in excess 
of $100,000 in addition to making adjustments for the overcharges, the reasonable actual 
cost of City’s audit must be reimbursed to City by Contractor. Any adjustments or payments 
which must be made as a result of any such audit or inspection of Contractor’s invoices or 
records must be made within a reasonable amount of time (not to exceed 90 Days) from 
presentation of City’s findings to Contractor. 

8.8.6 In addition to the normal paperwork documentation Contractor typically furnishes to City, 
Contractor agrees to furnish, upon written request from City, any of the documentation 
necessary for City to exercise its audit rights under this Section 8.8 in computer readable file 
formats (Word, Excel, or .pdf), as City may designate. 

8.8.7 City, its authorized representative, and the appropriate agency, reserve the right to 
audit Contractor’s records in compliance with local, state or federal policies, statutes 
or at City’s discretion, within three (3) years of Final Acceptance of the Work. 

 
SECTION 9 - CHANGES TO THE AGREEMENT 

9.1 FIELD ORDERS 
City may authorize minor changes in the Work not involving an adjustment in the 
Agreement Price or the Agreement Times, which are consistent with the overall intent of 
the Agreement Documents.  These may be accomplished by a written Field Order on the 
standard form approved and executed by City.  Such Field Orders must be binding and 
Contractor must perform the change promptly. If Contractor believes that a Field Order 
justifies an increase in the Agreement Price or Agreement Time, Contractor may make a 
claim therefor as provided in Section 7.2. 

9.2 EXTRA WORK/CHANGES IN THE WORK 

9.2.1 City reserves the right to make such changes in the Plans and Specifications for the Work, 
as it may deem appropriate and any such change as set forth in a written Change Order 
must be deemed a part of this Agreement as if originally incorporated herein. 

9.2.2 In the event City and Contractor cannot agree on the terms of a Change Order, or 
when circumstances otherwise require, the Project Manager has the authority to direct the 
Contractor to perform extra work, if the work in question is an item not provided for in the 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-41 of 75  

Agreement as awarded. The Project Manager will have the authority to determine, based 
upon factual evidence presented by the Contractor, whether the work in question is an 
item not provided for in the Agreement as awarded. If the Project Manager directs the 
Contractor to perform extra work, the Project Manager’s instructions will include a price 
that the Contractor cannot exceed in charging the City for the extra work. Upon receipt of 
the Project Manager’s directions to perform extra work, the Contractor must promptly 
proceed with the extra work and document the actual cost thereof. Contractor’s right to 
payment for extra work will be determined under Subsection 9.2.4 below. The Contractor is 
responsible to manage the extra work to ensure that the price limits set by the Project 
Manager are not exceeded. Contractor must perform the extra work and submit 
documentation for the actual cost of the extra work to the City. A Change Order will be 
issued to cover this work. 

9.2.3 Contractor will not be entitled to payment for extra work unless a written Change Order, in 
form and content prescribed by City, has been executed by City. On all requests for Change 
Orders, Contractor must specify the increased or decreased costs and whether it 
believes any extensions of time will be necessary to complete its Work as modified by the 
Change Order. If extra work is performed under Subsection 9.2.2 above, a corresponding 
Change Order will be prepared, approved and processed by City before payment can be 
made to Contractor. 

9.2.4 In general, pricing for Change Orders will include the same mark-up percentages that were 
in effect when the Agreement was awarded. The cost or credit to the City resulting from a 
change in the Work is subject to Appendix 1 (Policy Statement for Calculating Delays and 
Damages) and will be determined, based on the type of pricing for the Agreement involved, 
as follows: 

a. By mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized in a form acceptable 
to City; 

b. By unit prices stated in the Agreement Documents; 

c. When the City determines that a Unit Price Book Job Order associated with 
a Job Order Agreement requires a Change Order, by using the same Total 
Cost Data and CCI that are in effect when the Change Order is anticipated to 
be issued; or 

d. By actual cost and a percentage fee covering overhead and profit, as follows: 

(i) Contractor will perform the extra work and be compensated for actual 
cost of labor, materials and equipment. 

(ii) Contractor will have the right to add the fee percentage applicable 
to the Work under the Agreement, or if no such fee has been agreed 
to by the parties, not more than five percent (5%) to the 
Subcontractor’s prices for authorized extra work performed solely 
by Subcontractors. Such percentage will include all of Contractor’s 
charges for overhead, profit, administration and supervision. 

(iii) Contractor or Subcontractor will have the right to add the fee 
percentage applicable to Work under the Agreement for self-
performed extra work, or if no such fee has been agreed to by the 
parties, Contractor’s or Subcontractor’s maximum total allowable 
additions for overhead, profit, administration and supervision will 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-42 of 75  

not exceed ten percent (10%) of actual verifiable labor, materials 
and equipment for such self- performed extra work. 

9.2.5 Any agreement which modifies the terms of the Agreement (including Change Orders) 
will be approved in writing by the Project Manager. Once properly executed by both 
parties, these modifications to the Agreement will have the same effect as if they had been 
included in the original Agreement. 

9.3 ACCURACY OF CHANGE ORDER PRICING INFORMATION 

9.3.1 Subject to Sections 9.3.2 through 9.3.4, signature by the contracting parties constitutes full 
accord and satisfaction between City and Contractor for all costs, damages, and expenses 
of whatever kind of nature, including delay, impact or acceleration damages, which may be 
occasioned by a Change Order of other modification of the Agreement agreed to in writing. 

9.3.2 Accurate Change Order Pricing Information: Contractor agrees that it is responsible for 
submitting accurate cost and pricing data to City to support its Fixed Price, Unit Price, or 
Cost Plus Change Order Proposals or other Agreement Price adjustments under the 
Agreement. Contractor further agrees to submit Change Order proposals with cost and 
pricing data which is accurate, complete, current, and in accordance with the terms of 
the Agreement with respect to pricing of change orders. Contractor agrees that any “buy-
out savings” on Change Orders will accrue 100% to Owner. “Buy-out savings” are defined 
as any savings negotiated by the Contractor with a Subcontractor or a Material Supplier 
after receiving approval of a Change Order amount that was designated to be paid to a 
specific Subcontractor or Supplier for the Approved Change Order work. 

9.3.3 Right to Verify Change Order Pricing Information: Contractor agrees that City, through 
its designated representative, will have the right to examine, copy, and scan the records 
of the Contractor, Subcontractor or Sub-Subcontractor’s records (during the Agreement 
period and up to three years after final payment is made on the Agreement) to verify 
the accuracy and appropriateness of the pricing data used to price all Change Order 
proposals or claims. Contractor agrees that if City determines the cost and pricing data 
submitted (whether approved or not) was inaccurate, incomplete, not current, or not in 
compliance with the terms of the Agreement regarding pricing of Change Orders, an 
appropriate Agreement Price adjustment will be made. Such post-approval Contact Price 
adjustments will apply to all levels of contractors and Subcontractors and to all types of 
Change Order proposals, specifically including Fixed Price, Unit Price, and Cost Plus Change 
Orders. 

9.3.4 Requirements for Detailed Change Order Pricing Information: Contractor agrees to 
provide a detailed breakdown of allowable labor and labor burden cost (i.e., base wage 
rate of applicable classifications of workers, payroll taxes, and insurance and benefits 
costs).  This information will be used to evaluate the potential cost of labor and labor burden 
related to Change Order work. It is intended that this information represent an accurate 
estimate of the Contractor’s actual labor and labor burden cost components. Information 
is not intended to establish fixed billing or Change Order pricing labor rates. However, at the 
time Change Orders are priced, the submitted cost data for labor rates may be used to price 
Change Order work. The accuracy of any such agreed upon labor rate cost components 
used to price Change Orders will be subject to later audit. Approved Change Order 
amounts may be adjusted later to correct the impact of inaccurate labor cost 
components if the agreed upon labor cost components are determined to be inaccurate. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-43 of 75  

9.4 EMERGENCIES 
In any emergency affecting the safety of persons or property, Contractor will act, at its 
discretion, to prevent threatened damage, injury or loss. Any change in the Agreement Price 
or Agreement Time resulting from emergency work will be determined as provided in this 
Section. 

9.5 DIFFERING SITE CONDITIONS 

9.5.1 If Differing Site Conditions are encountered at the Project Site, then notice by the observing 
party must be given to the other party promptly before conditions are disturbed (to the extent 
practicable) and in no event later than 14 Days after first observance of the conditions. 
City will promptly investigate such conditions and, if City determines that Differing Site 
Conditions exist and they materially cause an increase in the cost of, or time required for, 
performance of any part of the Work, Contractor will be entitled to equitable adjustment 
in the Agreement Price or Construction Schedule (and other time requirements), or both. 
If it is determined by City that the conditions at the Project Site are not Differing Site 
Conditions and no change is justified, then City will so notify Contractor in writing, stating the 
reasons. Claims in opposition to such determination must be made within 14 Days after 
City has given notice of its decision. If City and Contractor cannot agree on an adjustment 
in the Agreement Price or Construction Schedule (and other time requirements), the 
adjustment may be submitted to dispute resolution as provided these General Conditions. 

9.6 CHANGES IN LAWS, REGULATIONS, OR LEGAL REQUIREMENTS OR TAXES 
In the event of a material change in applicable Laws, Regulations, or Legal Requirements, or 
taxes subsequent to the date of the Agreement by the parties, Contractor may be entitled 
to a Change Order, in City’s discretion, to the extent Contractor can document to the 
satisfaction of City that such change significantly increases Contractor’s actual cost of 
performance of the Work. 

 

SECTION 10 -SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION 

10.1 SUSPENSION 
City may suspend the Agreement and Contractor’s performance in accordance with MAG 
Specifications § 105.1 and 108.7. 

10.2 TERMINATION BY THE CITY FOR CAUSE 

10.2.1 MAG Specifications § 108.11 applies to the Agreement. 

10.2.2 City may also terminate the Agreement if City determines, in its sole discretion that 
Contractor has: 

a. After prior written notice, refused or failed to supply enough properly skilled 
workers or proper materials; 

b. After prior written notice, failed to make payment to Subcontractors for 
materials or labor in accordance with the respective agreements between 
Contractor and the Subcontractors; 

c. After prior written notice, disregards laws, ordinances, or rules, regulations or 
orders of a public authority having jurisdiction;  

d. After prior written notice, repeatedly failed to comply with written directives 
from City; 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-44 of 75  

e. Is adjudged as bankrupt or insolvent; 

f. Made a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; 

g. Appointed a trustee or receiver for itself or any of its property; 

h. Filed a petition to take advantage of any debtor's act, or to reorganize under 
the bankruptcy or similar laws; or 

i. Otherwise breached a provision of the Agreement Documents or any other 
Agreement between City and Contractor. 

10.2.3 When any of the above reasons exist, City may terminate the Agreement, without prejudice 
to any other rights or remedies of City, after giving Contractor and Contractors’ surety, if 
any, 7 Days written notice of City’s intent to terminate the Agreement and Contractor’s 
failure to cure any such reasons. Upon such termination, City may: (1) take possession of 
the Site and of all materials thereon owned by Contractor; or (2) finish the Work by whatever 
reasonable method City may deem expedient. When City terminates the Agreement for one 
of the reasons state above, Contractor will not be entitled to receive further payment until 
the Work is finished. If the unpaid balance of the Agreement Price existing at the time of 
such termination exceeds the costs and expenses of finishing the Work and any other 
damages incurred by City, such excess will be paid to Contractor. If such costs, expenses 
and damages exceed such unpaid balance, Contractor must pay the difference to City. This 
obligation for payment will survive termination of the Agreement. 

10.3 TERMINATION BY CITY FOR CONVENIENCE 
City may also terminate the Agreement at any time for its convenience upon 7 Days written 
notice to Contractor specifying the termination date. In the event of termination which is 
not the fault, in whole or in part, of Contractor, City will pay to Contractor only such 
compensation, including reimbursable expenses, due for Work properly performed on 
the Project prior to the termination date. Upon any termination of the Agreement, no 
further payments will be due from City to Contractor. 

10.4 A.R.S. § 38-511 
The Agreement is subject to, and may be terminated by City in accordance with, the 
provisions of A.R.S. § 38-511. 

 

SECTION 11 -INSURANCE AND BONDS 

11.1 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

11.1.1 After Agreement award, the Contractor must furnish the City a certificate of insurance on a 
standard insurance industry ACORD form.  The ACORD form must be issued by an insurance 
company authorized to transact business in the State of Arizona possessing a current A.M. 
Best, Inc. rating of A-7, or better and legally authorized to do business in the State of Arizona 
with policies and forms satisfactory to City.  Provided, however, the A.M. Best rating 
requirement may not be deemed to apply to required Worker’s Compensation coverage. 

11.1.2 The Contractor and any of its Subcontractors must procure and maintain, until all of their 
obligations have been discharged, including any warranty periods under this Agreement are 
satisfied, the insurances set forth below. 

11.1.3 The insurance requirements set forth below are minimum requirements for this Agreement 
and in no way limit the indemnity covenants contained in this Agreement. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-45 of 75  

11.1.4 The City in no way warrants that the minimum insurance limits contained in this Agreement 
are sufficient to protect Contractor from liabilities that might arise out of the performance 
of the Agreement services under this Agreement by Contractor, its agents, representatives, 
employees, or Subcontractors and the Contractor is free to purchase any additional 
insurance as may be determined necessary. 

11.1.5 Failure to demand evidence of full compliance with the insurance requirements in this 
Agreement or failure to identify any insurance deficiency will not relieve the Contractor 
from, nor will it be considered a waiver of its obligation to maintain the required insurance 
at all times during the performance of this Agreement. 

11.1.6 Use of Subcontractors:  If any Work is subcontracted in any way, the Contractor must 
execute a written agreement with Subcontractor containing the same Indemnification 
Clause and Insurance Requirements as the City requires of the Contractor in this 
Agreement.  The Contractor is responsible for executing the Agreement with the 
Subcontractor and obtaining Certificates of Insurance and verifying the insurance 
requirements. 

11.2 MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE 

11.2.1 The Contractor must provide coverage with limits of liability not less than those stated 
below. 

11.2.1.1 Commercial General Liability-Occurrence Form.  Contractor must maintain “occurrence” 
form Commercial General Liability insurance with a limit of not less than $2,000,000 for each 
occurrence, $4,000,000 aggregate.  Said insurance must also include coverage for products 
and completed operations, independent contractors, personal injury and advertising injury. 
If any Excess insurance is utilized to fulfill the requirements of this paragraph, the Excess 
insurance must be “follow form” equal or broader in coverage scope than underlying 
insurance. 

11.2.1.2 Automobile Liability-Any Automobile or Owned, Hired and Non-Owned Vehicles.  Contractor 
must maintain Business/Automobile Liability insurance with a limit of $1,000,000 each 
accident on Contractor owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles assigned to or used in the 
performance under this Agreement.  If any Excess or Umbrella insurance is utilized to fulfill 
the requirements of this paragraph, the Excess  or Umbrella insurance must be “follow 
form” equal or broader in coverage scope than underlying insurance. 

11.2.1.3 Workers Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance.  Contractor must maintain 
Workers Compensation insurance to cover obligations imposed by federal and state 
statutes having jurisdiction of Contractor employees engaged in the performance of Work 
under this Agreement and must also maintain Employers’ Liability insurance of not less than 
$1,000,000 for each accident and $1,000,000 disease for each employee.  

11.2.1.4 Builders’ Risk/Installation Floater Insurance.  The Contractor bears all responsibility for loss 
to all equipment or Work under construction.  Unless waived in writing by the City the 
Contractor will purchase and maintain in force Builders’ Risk/Installation Floater insurance 
on the entire Work until completed and accepted by the City.  This insurance will be Special 
Causes of Loss policy form, (minimally including perils of fire, flood, lightning, explosion, 
windstorm and hail, smoke, aircraft and vehicles, riot and civil commotion, theft, vandalism, 
malicious mischief, and collapse), completed value, replacement cost policy form equal to 
the Agreement Price and all subsequent modifications.  The Contractor’s Builders’ 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-46 of 75  

Risk/Installation Floater insurance must be primary and not contributory. 

a. Builders’ Risk/Installation Floater insurance must cover the entire Work 
including reasonable compensation for architects and engineers’ services 
and expenses and other “soft costs” made necessary by an insured loss.  
Builders’ Risk/Installation Floater insurance must provide coverage from the 
time any covered property comes under the Contractor’s control and or 
responsibility, and continue without interruption during course of 
construction, renovation and or installation, including any time during which 
any Project property or equipment is in transit, off Site, or while on Site for 
future use or installation.  Insured property must include, but not be limited 
to, scaffolding, false work, and temporary buildings at the Site.  This 
insurance must also cover the cost of removing debris, including demolition 
as may be legally required by operation of any law, ordinance, regulation or 
code. 

b. The Contractor must also purchase and maintain Boiler and Machinery 
insurance with the same requirements as Builders’ Risk/Installation Floater 
insurance cited above if the Work to be performed involves any exposures 
or insurable property normally covered under a Boiler and Machinery 
insurance policy or made necessary as required by law or testing 
requirements in the performance of this Agreement.  The Contractor will be 
responsible for any and all deductibles under these policies and the 
Contractor waives all rights of recovery and subrogation against the City 
under the Contractor- Builders’ Risk/Installation Floater insurance described 
herein. 

c. Builders’ Risk/Installation Floater Insurance must be maintained until 
whichever of the following first occurs: (i) final payment has been made; or, 
(ii) until no person or entity, other than the City, has an insurable interest in 
the property required to be covered. 

d. The Builders’ Risk/Installation Floater insurance must be endorsed so that 
the insurance will not be canceled or lapse because of any partial use or 
occupancy by the City. 

e. The Builders Risk/Installation Floater insurance must include as named 
insureds, the City, the Contractor, and all tiers of Subcontractors and others 
with an insurable interest in the Work who will be named as additional 
insureds unless they are able to provide the same level of coverage with the 
City and Contractor named as additional insureds. Certificates must contain 
a provision that the insurance will not be canceled or materially altered 
without at least 30 Days advance notice to the City.  The City must also be 
named as a Loss Payee under the Builders’ Risk/Installation Floater coverage. 

f. The Builders Risk/Installation Floater insurance must be written using the 
Special Causes of Loss policy form, replacement cost basis. 

g. All rights of subrogation under the Builders Risk/Installation Floater 
insurance are, by this Agreement, waived against the City, its officers, 
officials, agents and employees. 

h. The Contractor is responsible for payment of all deductibles under the 
Builders’ Risk/Installation Floater insurance policy. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-47 of 75  

11.2.1.5 Pollution Liability Insurance (Including Errors and Omissions).  For Job Orders, Pollution 
Liability Insurance is only required if applicable and determined on a project specific basis.  
Contractor must maintain Pollution Liability Insurance with a limit of not less than 
$5,000,000 per loss, $5,000,000 aggregate for losses caused by pollution conditions 
including coverage for bodily injury, property damage, defense costs, clean-up costs, and 
completed operations that arise from the operations of Contractor as described in this 
Agreement.  

a. The policy must provide for complete professional service coverage, 
including coverage for pollution liability that is a result of a breach of 
professional duties. 

b. The policy must provide for protection again claims for third-party bodily 
injury, property damage, or environmental damage caused for pollution 
conditions resulting from general contracting activities for which Contractor 
is legally liable. 

c. The policy must provide for cleanup costs when mandated by governmental 
entities, when required by law, or as a result of third-party claims. 

d. Completed Operations Coverage must be kept in place for up to the statute 
of repose. 

e. The policy must be endorsed to include the following additional insured 
language: “City, its elected officials, trustees, employees, agents, and 
volunteers must be named as additional insureds with respect to liability 
arising out of the activities performed by, or on behalf of Contractor”.   

f. If Work under this Agreement requires the transportation of any hazardous 
material or regulated substances, Contractor must carry Auto Liability with a 
CA 9948 endorsement or equivalent.   

g. If Work under this Agreement requires the disposal of any hazardous 
materials from the job site, Contractor must obtain a certificate of insurance 
for Pollution Legal Liability from the disposal site operator with a limit of not 
less than $5,000,000 per loss, $5,000,000 aggregate. 

11.3 ADDITIONAL POLICY PROVISIONS REQUIRED 

11.3.1 Self-Insured Retentions or Deductibles.  Any self-insured retentions and deductibles must 
be declared and approved by the City.  If not approved, the City may require that the insurer 
reduce or eliminate any deductible or self-insured retentions with respect to the City, its 
officers, officials, agents, employees, and volunteers. 

11.3.2 The Contractor’s insurance must contain broad form contractual liability coverage. 

11.3.3 The Contractor's insurance coverage must be primary insurance with respect to the City, its 
officers, officials, agents, and employees.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by 
the City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees will be in excess of the coverage 
provided by the Contractor and must not contribute to it. 

11.3.4 The Contractor's insurance must apply separately to each insured against whom claim is 
made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability. 

11.3.5 Coverage provided by the Contractor must not be limited to the liability assumed under the 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-48 of 75  

indemnification provisions of this Agreement. 

11.3.6 The policies must contain a severability of interest clause and waiver of subrogation against 
the City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, for losses arising from Work 
performed by the Contractor for the City. 

11.3.7 The Contractor, its successors and or assigns, are required to maintain Commercial General 
Liability insurance as specified in this Agreement for a minimum period of 3 years following 
completion and acceptance of the Work.  The Contractor must submit a Certificate of 
Insurance evidencing Commercial General Liability insurance during this 3 year period 
containing all the Agreement insurance requirements, including naming the required 
Additional Insureds set forth herein. 

11.3.8 If a Certificate of Insurance is submitted as verification of coverage, the City will reasonably 
rely upon the Certificate of Insurance as evidence of coverage but this acceptance and 
reliance will not waive or alter in any way the insurance requirements or obligations of this 
Agreement.   

11.3.9 Insurance Cancellation During Agreement Term.   

11.3.9.1 If any of the required policies expire during the life of this Agreement, the Contractor must 
forward renewal or replacement Certificates to the City within 10 Days after the renewal 
date containing all the required insurance provisions. 

11.3.9.2 Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Agreement must provide 
the required coverage and must not be suspended, voided or canceled except after 30 Days 
prior written notice has been given to the City, except when cancellation is for non-payment 
of premium, then 10 Days prior notice may be given.  Such notice must be sent directly to 
Chandler Law-Risk Management Department, Post Office Box 4008, Mailstop 628, Chandler, 
Arizona  85225. If any insurance company refuses to provide the require notice, the 
Contractor or its insurance broker must notify the City of any cancellation, suspension, non-
renewal of any insurance within 7 Days of receipt of insurers’ notification to that effect. 

11.3.10 City as Additional Insured.  The above-referenced policies are to contain, or be endorsed to 
contain, the following provisions: 

11.3.10.1 The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policies are to contain, or be 
endorsed to contain, the following provisions:  The City, its officers, officials, agents, and 
employees are additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of activities performed 
by, or on behalf of, the Contractor including the City's general supervision of the Contractor; 
Products and Completed Operations of the Contractor; and automobiles owned, leased, 
hired, or borrowed by the Contractor. 

11.3.10.2 The City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees must be additional insureds to the full 
limits of liability purchased by the Contractor even if those limits of liability are in excess of 
those required by this Agreement. 

11.4 BONDS AND OTHER PERFORMANCE SECURITY 

11.4.1 After Agreement award, Contractor must provide a Performance Bond and a Payment 
Bond, each in an amount equal to the full amount of the Agreement Price. 

11.4.2 Each such bond must be executed by a surety company or companies holding a Certificate 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-49 of 75  

of Authority to transact surety business in the State of Arizona, issued by the Director of the 
Arizona Department of Insurance and must be named in the current list of "Companies 
Holding Certificates of Authority as Acceptable Sureties on Federal Bonds and as Acceptable 
Reinsuring Companies" as published in Circular 570 (amended) by the Audit Staff Bureau of 
Accounts, U.S. Treasury Department. A copy of the Certificate of Authority must accompany 
the bonds. The Certificate must have been issued or updated within two (2) years prior to 
the execution of this Agreement. The bonds must be written or countersigned by an 
authorized representative of the surety who is either a resident of the state of Arizona or 
whose principal office is maintained in this state, as by law required. 

11.4.3 The bonds must be made payable and be acceptable to City. The bond forms for the 
performance and payment bonds must be in the forms required under A.R.S. § 34-221, et. 
Seq., as in Appendices 4  and 5 of these General Conditions. 

11.4.4 Upon the request of any person or entity appearing to be a potential beneficiary of bonds 
covering payment of obligations arising under the Agreement Documents, Contractor must 
promptly furnish a copy of the bonds or must permit a copy to be made. 

11.4.5 All bonds submitted for this Project must be provided by a company which has been rated AM 
Best rating of A- or better for the prior four quarters by the latest edition of the ‘Results 
Best’s Key Rating Guide (Property/Casualty)” published by the A.M. Best Company. 

11.4.6 Personal or individual bonds are not acceptable. 

11.4.7 If the surety on any Bond furnished by Contractor is declared a bankrupt or becomes 
insolvent, or Contractor’s right to do business is terminated in any state where any part of 
the Project is located, or it ceases to meet the requirements of this Section 11.4, Contractor 
must within 5 Days thereafter substitute another Bond and surety, both of which must be 
acceptable to City. 

 

SECTION 12 - INDEMNIFICATION 

12.1 To the extent permitted by law, the Contractor and its owners, officers, directors, agents, 
employees, and subconsultants (collectively "lndemnitor") must indemnify, save, and hold 
harmless the City and its officers, officials, agents, and employees (collectively "lndemnitee") 
from any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses (including court 
costs, attorneys' fees, and costs of claim processing, investigation, and litigation) (collectively 
"Claims") caused or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent, reckless, 
wrongful, or willful acts, errors, or omissions of Indemnitor in connection with this 
Agreement. This indemnity includes any Claim or amount arising out of or recovered under 
workers' compensation laws or on account of Indemnitor's failure to conform to any federal, 
state, or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation, or court decree. Indemnitor must 
indemnify lndemnitee from and against any and all Claims, except those arising solely from 
lndemnitee's own negligent, reckless, wrongful, or willful acts, errors, or omissions. 
Indemnitor is responsible for primary loss investigation, defense, and judgment costs where 
this indemnification applies. In consideration of the award of this Agreement, Indemnitor 
agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against lndemnitee for losses arising from or 
related to this Agreement. Indemnitor's obligations under this provision survive the 
termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

 
SECTION 13 -DISPUTE RESOLUTION 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-50 of 75  

13.1 All disputes arising out of or relating to the Agreement, the Work or the Project, other than 
termination under Section 10, will be resolved pursuant to the Dispute Resolution 
process set forth in Appendix 6 of these General Conditions, and not pursuant to MAG 
Specifications § 110. 

13.2 Contractor agrees that during any dispute between the parties, Contractor will continue to 
perform its obligations under the Agreement until such dispute is resolved. 

13.3 Notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement, City has the right to immediately file 
in court and pursue an action for a temporary restraining order and injunctive relief against 
Contractor if City determines that such action is necessary to protect its interests under the 
Agreement, to obtain specific performance of any provision of the Agreement, to advance 
the completion of the Project, or to protect health, welfare and safety. 

 
 

SECTION 14 - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

14.1 AGREEMENT DOCUMENTS 

14.1.1 The Agreement Documents are intended to permit the parties to complete the Work 
and all obligations required by the Agreement Documents within the Agreement Times for 
the Agreement Price. The Agreement Documents are intended to be complementary and 
interpreted in harmony so as to avoid conflict, with words and phrases interpreted in a 
manner consistent with construction and design industry standards. 

14.1.2 It is the intent of the Agreement Documents to describe a functionally complete Project (or 
part thereof) to be constructed in accordance with the Agreement Documents.  Any labor, 
documentation, services, materials, or equipment that may reasonably be inferred from the 
Agreement Documents or from prevailing custom or trade usage as being required to 
produce the intended result must be provided by Contractor whether or not specifically 
called for at no additional cost to City.   

14.1.3 The Agreement Documents establish the rights and obligations of the parties and include 
the Agreement, Addenda (which pertain to the Agreement Documents), Contractor's Bid or 
Proposal (including documentation accompanying the Bid and any post-Bid documentation 
submitted prior to Agreement award) when attached as an exhibit to the Agreement, the 
accepted Project Schedule, the Notice to Proceed, the Performance Bond, the Payment 
Bond, Project Design, Engineering and Specifications, these General Conditions, the Project 
Specific Special Provisions, Technical Specifications, Agreement Drawings, as the same may 
be more specifically identified in the Agreement, Change Orders, Work Change Directives, 
Field Orders and the written interpretations and clarifications of the Design Professional or 
City representative and Modifications issued after execution of the Agreement.  Approved 
Shop Drawings and the reports and drawings of subsurface and physical conditions are not 
Agreement Documents.   

14.1.4 In the event of any inconsistency, conflict, or ambiguity between or among the Agreement 
Documents, the Agreement Documents will take precedence as follows from highest to 
lowest: Change Orders, Addenda, Agreement, Project Specific Special Provisions, General 
Conditions, Technical Specifications, Drawings/Plans, Chandler Amendments to MAG 
Standard Specifications and Chandler Standard Details, and MAG Uniform Standard 
Specifications and Details for Public Works Construction.  If applicable to this Agreement, 
Federal Provisions prevail. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-51 of 75  

14.1.5 On the Drawings, given dimensions will take precedence over scaled measurements and 
large scale drawings over small-scale drawings.  

14.1.6 Clarifications and interpretations of the Agreement Documents will be issued by the Design 
Professional through the City. 

14.1.7 The headings used in this Agreement or any other Agreement Documents, are for ease of 
reference only and must not in any way be construed to limit or alter the meaning of any 
provision. 

14.1.8 The Agreement Documents form the entire agreement between City and Contractor. 
No oral representations or other agreements have been made by the parties except as 
specifically stated in the Agreement Documents. 

14.1.9 The Agreement Documents may not be changed, altered, or amended in any way except in 
writing signed by a duly authorized representative of each party in the form of a Change 
Order. 

14.1.10 Re-Use of Documents.  Neither Contractor nor any Subcontractor, manufacturer, fabricator, 
supplier or distributor will have or acquire any title to or ownership rights in any of the 
Drawings, Specifications or other documents (or copies of any thereof) prepared by or 
bearing the seal of the Design Professional; and they must not re-use any of them on 
extensions of the Project or any other project without written consent of City and the Design 
Professional and specific written verification or adaptation by the Design Professional. 

14.2 REFERENCE STANDARDS 

14.2.1 Reference to standards, specifications, manuals, or codes of any technical society, 
organization, or association, or to Laws or Regulations, whether such reference be specific 
or by implication, will mean the standard, specification, manual, code, or Laws or 
Regulations in effect at the time of opening of Bids (or on the Effective Date of the 
Agreement if there were no Bids), except as may be otherwise specifically stated in the 
Agreement Documents. 

14.2.2 The provisions of any such standard, specification, manual or code, or any instruction of a 
Supplier will not change the duties or responsibilities of City, Contractor, Design 
Professional or Project Manager, or any of their Subcontractors, consultants, agents, or 
employees from those set forth in the Agreement Documents, nor will any such provision 
or instruction assign to City, Contractor, Design Professional, or any of their agents, or 
employees any duty or authority to supervise or direct the performance of the Work or any 
duty or authority to undertake responsibility inconsistent with the provisions of the 
Agreement Documents. 

14.3 COMPLIANCE WITH ARIZONA LAW AND FEDERAL LAW 

14.3.1 Compliance with A.R.S. § 41-4401.  Pursuant to the provisions of A.R.S. § 41-4401, the 
Contractor hereby warrants to the City that the Contractor and each of its subcontractors 
(“Subcontractors”) must comply with all Federal Immigration laws and regulations that 
relate to the immigration status of their employees and the requirement to use E-Verify set 
forth in A.R.S. §23-214(A).   

14.3.2 A breach of the Contractor Immigration Warranty constitutes a material breach of this 
Agreement and subject to penalties up to and including termination of this Agreement. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-52 of 75  

14.3.3 The City retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any Contractor or Subcontractor 
employee who works on this Agreement to ensure that the Contractor or Subcontractor is 
complying with the Contractor Immigration Warranty.  The Contractor agrees to assist the 
City in the conduct of any such inspections.  

14.3.4 The City may, at its sole discretion, conduct random verifications of the employment records 
of the Contractor and any Subcontractors to ensure compliance with Contractors 
Immigration Warranty.  The Contractor agrees to assist the City in performing any such 
random verifications.  

14.3.5 The provisions of this Article must be included in any agreement the Contractor enters into 
with any and all of its subcontractors who provide services under this Agreement or any 
subcontract.  “Services” are defined as furnishing labor, time or effort in the State of Arizona 
by a contractor or subcontractor.  Services include construction or maintenance of any 
structure, building or transportation facility or improvement to real property.  

14.4 HAZARDOUS ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS 

14.4.1 Contractor will not be responsible for any Hazardous Environmental Condition uncovered 
or revealed at the Site which was not shown or indicated in Drawings or Specifications or 
identified in the Agreement Document to be within the scope of the Work.  Contractor will 
be responsible for a Hazardous Environmental Condition created with any materials 
brought to the Site by Contractor, Subcontractors, Suppliers, or anyone else for whom 
Contractor is responsible. 

14.4.2 If Contractor encounters a Hazardous Environmental Condition or if Contractor or anyone 
for whom Contractor is responsible creates a Hazardous Environmental Condition. 
Contractor must immediately:  

a. Secure or otherwise isolate such condition; 

b. Stop all Work in connection with such condition and in any area affected 
thereby; and 

c. Notify City and promptly thereafter confirm such notice in writing. 

14.4.3 City will promptly retain a qualified expert to evaluate such condition or take corrective 
action, if any. 

14.4.4 Contractor will be responsible for any and all civil or criminal penalties, fines, damages, or 
other charges imposed by any regulatory agency or court for sewage discharges that are in 
violation of applicable statutes and laws and that are a result, direct or indirect, of work 
performed under this Agreement.  Contractor will also be responsible for reimbursement 
to City for administration, reporting, and tracking expenses required as a result of any spill 
event.  In the event the regulatory agency or court imposes a probationary period, 
Contractor must post bond for the probationary period to ensure that all such costs are 
reimbursed to City.  This responsibility will apply whether penalties are imposed directly on 
Contractor or any of its Subcontractors, or the City of Chandler.  Contractor must defend 
and indemnify City against such penalties.  Regulatory agencies may include, but are not 
limited to, the Arizona Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) and the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA). 

14.5 COOPERATION AND FURTHER DOCUMENTATION 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-53 of 75  

Contractor agrees to provide City such other duly executed documents as may be 
reasonably requested by City to implement the intent of the Agreement Documents. 

14.6 ASSIGNMENT 
Neither Contractor nor City will, without the written consent of the other assign, transfer or 
sublet any portion of this Agreement or part of the Work or the obligations required by 
the Agreement Documents, any such assignment will be void, will transfer no rights to the 
purported assignee, and would be a material breach of the Agreement. 

14.7 SUCCESSORS 
Contractor and City intend that the provisions of the Agreement Documents are binding 
upon the parties, their employees, agents, heirs, successors and assigns. 

14.8 LAWFUL PRESENCE 
Pursuant to A.R.S. §§ 1-501 and 1-502, City is prohibited from awarding an agreement to any 
natural person who cannot establish that such person is lawfully present in the United 
States.  To establish lawful presence, a person must produce qualifying identification and 
sign a City-provided affidavit affirming the identification provided is genuine.  This 
requirement will be imposed at the time of agreement award.  This requirement does not 
apply to business organizations such as corporations, partnerships, or limited liability 
companies. 

14.9 NO BOYCOTT OF ISRAEL CERTIFICATION 
By Contractor's signature on this Agreement, Contractor certifies under A.R.S. § 35-393.01 
that Contractor is not currently engaged in and for the duration of this Agreement will not 
engage in a boycott of Israel. 

14.10 NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY 
Nothing under the Agreement Documents will be construed to give any rights or benefits 
in the Agreement Documents to anyone other than City and Contractor, and all duties and 
responsibilities undertaken pursuant to the Agreement Documents will be for the sole and 
exclusive benefit of City and Contractor and not for the benefit of any other party, unless 
otherwise expressly set forth in the Agreement Documents. 

14.11 GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE 
The Agreement and all Agreement Documents will be deemed to be made under, and will 
be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Arizona without 
regard to the conflicts or choice of law provisions thereof.  Any court action to enforce any 
provision of the Agreement or to obtain any remedy with respect hereto must be brought 
in the Superior Court, Maricopa County, Arizona, and for this purpose, each party hereby 
expressly and irrevocably consents to the jurisdiction and venue of such Court. 

14.12 SEVERABILITY 
If any provision of the Agreement Documents or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance will be invalid, illegal or unenforceable to any extent, the remainder of the 
affected provision, the remainder of the Agreement Documents, and the application 
thereof will not be affected and will be enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

14.13 LEGAL REQUIREMENTS 
At all times relevant to its entry into this Agreement and performance of the Services and 
the Work, Contractor must fully comply with all Laws, Regulations, or Legal Requirements 
applicable to City, the Project, and the Agreement, including, without limitation, those set 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-54 of 75  

forth on Exhibit C of the Agreement. 

14.14 PARTIAL INVALIDITY 
If any provision of the Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, 
void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will nevertheless continue in full force 
without being impaired or invalidated in any way. 

14.15 ATTORNEYS' FEES 
Should either party to the Agreement bring an action to enforce any provision of the 
Agreement, the prevailing party will be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys' fees and 
costs in connection therewith. 

14.16 CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

14.16.1 Contractor agrees to disclose any financial or economic interest with the Project property, 
or any property affected by the Project, existing prior to the execution of the Agreement. 
Further, Contractor agrees to disclose any financial or economic interest with the Project 
property, or any property affected by the Project, if Contractor gains such interest during 
the course of this Agreement. If Contractor gains financial or economic interest in the 
Project during the course of this Agreement, this may be grounds for terminating this 
Agreement. Any decision to terminate the Agreement must be at the sole discretion of City. 

14.16.2 Contractor will not engage the services on this Agreement of any present City employee who 
was involved as a decision maker in the selection or approval processes, or who negotiated 
or approved billings or Agreement Modifications for this Agreement. 

14.16.3 Contractor agrees that it will not perform services on this Project for a contractor, 
subcontractor, or any supplier, not covered under this Agreement. 

14.17 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
Contractor is and must be an independent contractor. Any provisions in the Agreement 
Documents that may appear to give City the right to direct Contractor as to the details of 
accomplishing the Work or to exercise a measure of control over the Work means that 
Contractor must follow the wishes of City as the results of the Work only. These results 
must comply with all applicable laws and ordinances. 

14.18 NOTICE OF INJURY 
Should City or Contractor suffer injury or damage to their person or property because of 
any error, omission or act of the other party or of any of the other party's employees or 
agents or others for whose acts the other party is legally liable, claim must be made in 
writing to the other party within 7 Days of the first observance of such injury or damage. 

14.19 CONFIDENTIALITY 
Contractor, for the benefit of City, hereby agrees it will not release or cause or permit 
to be released to the public any press notices, publicity (oral or written) or advertising 
promotion relating to, any statement regarding, or any other public announcement or 
disclosure or cause or permit to be publicly announced or disclosed, in any manner 
whatsoever, the specific terms and conditions of this Agreement or any comment relating 
to the Project or the Site. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Contractor will be entitled to 
disclose the terms of the Agreement to the extent required by law or in the course of 
enforcing or defending a claim or action hereunder. Contractor must give City reasonably 
prompt notice of any disclosure or statement made pursuant to this provision. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-55 of 75  

14.20 DATA CONFIDENTIALITY 

14.20.1 As used in the Agreement, “data” means all information, whether written or verbal, including 
plans, specifications, renderings, photographs, studies, investigations, audits, analyses, 
samples, reports, calculations, internal memos, meeting minutes, data field notes, work 
product, proposals, correspondence and any other similar documents or information 
prepared by, obtained by, or transmitted to the City in the performance of this Agreement. 

14.20.2 Contractor agrees that all data, regardless of form, including originals, images, and 
reproductions, prepared by, obtained by, or transmitted to City in connection with the 
Contractor’s performance of this Agreement is confidential and proprietary information 
belonging to City. 

14.20.3 Except as specifically provided in this Agreement, Contractor or its Subcontractors must not 
divulge data to any third party without prior written consent of City.  Contractor or its 
Subcontractors must not use data for any purposes except to perform Work required under 
this Agreement.  These prohibitions will not apply to the following data provided Contractor 
has first given the required notice to City: 

a. Data which was known to Contractor or its Subcontractors prior to its 
performance under this Agreement unless such data was acquired in 
connection with Work performed for City; 

b. Data which was acquired by Contractor or its Subcontractors in its 
performance under this Agreement and which was disclosed to Contractor 
or its Subcontractors by a third party, who to the best of Contractor’s or its 
Subcontractor’s knowledge and belief, had the legal right to make such 
disclosure and Contractor or its Subcontractors are not otherwise required 
to hold such data in confidence; or  

c. Data which is required to be disclosed by virtue of law, regulation, or court 
order, to which the Contractor or its Subcontractors are subject. 

14.20.4 In the event the Contractor or its Subcontractors are required or requested to disclose data 
to a third party, or any other information to which the Contractor or its Subcontractors 
became privy as a result of any other agreement with City, the Contractor must first notify 
City as set forth in this Section of the request or demand for the data.  The Contractor or its 
Subcontractors must give City sufficient facts so that City can be given an opportunity to 
first give its consent or take such action that City may deem appropriate to protect such 
data or other information from disclosure. 

14.20.5 Unless prohibited by law, within 10 Days after completion of services for a third party on 
real or personal property owned or leased by City, the Contractor must promptly deliver, as 
set forth in this Section, a copy of all data to City.  All data will continue to be subject to the 
confidentiality agreements of this Agreement.  

14.20.6 Contractor or its Subcontractors assume all liability for maintaining the confidentiality of 
the data in its possession and agree to compensate City if any of the provisions of this 
Section are violated by Contractor, its employees, agents, or Subcontractors.  Solely for the 
purposes of seeking injunctive relief, it is agreed that a breach of this Section will be deemed 
to cause irreparable harm that justified injunctive relief in court.  Contractor agrees that the 
requirements of this Section will be incorporated into all subcontracts entered into by 
Contractor.  A violation of this Section may result in immediate termination of this 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-56 of 75  

Agreement without notice.   

14.21 SURVIVAL 
All warranties, representations and indemnifications by Contractor must survive the 
completion or termination of this Agreement. 

14.22 COVENANTS AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES 
Contractor warrants that no person has been employed or retained to solicit or secure 
this Agreement upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, 
brokerage, or contingent fee, and that no member of City Council, or any employee of 
City has any interest, financially, or otherwise, in the firm. For breach or violation of this 
warrant, City will have the right to annul the Agreement without liability or at its discretion 
to deduct from the Agreement Price or consideration, the full amount of such commission, 
percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee. 

14.23 NO WAIVER 
The failure of either party to enforce any of the provisions of the Agreement Documents or 
to require performance of the other party of any of the provisions hereof must not be 
construed to be a waiver of such provisions, nor will it affect the validity of the Agreement 
Documents or any part thereof, or the right of either party to thereafter enforce each and 
every provision. 

14.24 NONEXCLUSIVE REMEDIES 
The remedies set forth in this Agreement are cumulative and not exclusive, and failure to 
exercise any remedy (including, without limitation, any right to terminate) will not preclude 
any party from exercising any other right in seeking any other remedy available to it at law 
or in equity. 

14.25 PROJECT COMMUNICATIONS 

14.25.1 All communications concerning the performance of the Work or the Project will be provided 
to the designated Project Manager and Contractor’s Representative set forth in Article 1 
of the Agreement. City may change the designated Project Manager and, subject to 
Section 4.4.20 of these General Conditions, Contractor may change Contractor 
Representative, by written notice to the other. 

14.25.2 Project communications may be exchanged by e-mail, but email communications cannot 
change the terms of the Agreement or the Scope of Work, or effectuate any change that 
requires a written Change Order. 

14.25.3 When any provisions of the Agreement Documents requires Contractor or the Design 
Professional to give written notice to City, it will be deemed to have been validly given if 
delivered in person or if delivered at or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, 
to the Parties indicated in Agreement Article 1, incorporated by reference.   

14.25.4 When any provisions of the Agreement Documents requires City, Project Manager, or the 
Design Professional to give written notice to Contractor, it will be deemed to have been 
validly given if delivered in person to the person designated in the Agreement Documents 
as Contractor’s Resident Superintendent, or if delivered at or sent by registered or certified 
mail, postage prepaid, to Contractor at the last address in the Agreement Documents or 
such substitute address which Contractor designates in writing, or to the business address 
known to the giver of notice. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-57 of 75  

14.26 DRUG FREE WORKPLACE PROGRAM 

14.26.1 City has adopted a policy establishing a drug free workplace for itself and as a requirement 
for Contractors doing business with City, to ensure the safety and health of employees 
working on City projects. 

14.26.2 Contractor must require a drug free workplace for all employees working under the 
Agreement. Specifically, all employees of Contractor who are working under an 
agreement with City must be notified, in writing, by Contractor that they are prohibited 
from the manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or unlawful use of a 
controlled substance in the workplace. 

14.27 Failure to require a drug free workplace in accordance with the City’s policy may result 
in termination of the Agreement and possible debarment form bidding on future City 
projects. 

SECTION 15 - PROVISIONS APPLICABLE SOLELY TO GMP AND COST-BASED AGREEMENTS, 
CHANGE ORDERS, AND JOB ORDERS 

15.1 ADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS 
The definitions set forth in Section 2 apply to GMP and Cost-Based Agreements, Change 
Orders, and Job Orders, together with the additional definitions set forth below. 

 
Baseline Cost Model – 
A breakdown and estimate of the scope of the Project developed by CM@Risk pursuant to Section 17.5 
of these General Conditions. 

 

CM@Risk or Construction Manager at Risk – 
The person or firm selected by City to provide pre-construction and/or construction services as 
detailed in a Construction Manager at Risk Agreement with City. In these General Conditions, the 
term “Contractor” includes CM@Risk under both Pre-Construction and Construction Services 
Agreements. 
CM@Risk Fee or Contractor’s Fee – 
An agreed to percentage in an accepted GMP that represents the Contractor’s fee for performance of 
the Work. 

 

Agreement Documents – 
Where compensation under the Agreement is based upon a GMP accepted by City, the term 
“Agreement Documents” also includes the accepted GMP Proposal. 

 

Agreement Price – 
Where compensation under the Agreement based upon a GMP accepted by City, the term 
“Agreement Price” refers to the GMP. 

 

Cost-Based Agreement, Change Order, or Job Order – 
A Agreement, Change Order, or Job Order where the Agreement Price is based upon the actual 
cost of performing the Work, subject to the terms of the Agreement Documents, including this 
Section 15. These would include those generally referred to as “Cost of the Work plus a Fee with 
a GMP,” “Time and Materials,” or “Cost Plus a Fee.” 

 

Cost of the Work – 
The direct costs necessarily incurred by Contractor in the proper, timely, and complete performance 
on the Work. The Cost of the Work will include only those costs set forth in Section 15.2 of these 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-58 of 75  

General Conditions. 
 

Deliverables – 
The work products prepared by Contractor in performing the scope of work described in the 
Agreement. Some of the major deliverables to be prepared and provided by Contractor during pre-
construction may include but are not limited to: the Baseline Cost Model and Schedule that validate 
City’s plan and budget, Construction Management Plan, Detailed Project Schedule, Schedule of Values, 
alternative system evaluations, procurement strategies and plans, Detailed Cost Estimates, 
construction market surveys, cash flow projections, GMP Proposals, Subcontractor procurement plan, 
Subcontractor agreements, Subcontractor bid packages, Supplier agreements, Constructability 
Review, Cost Control Log, Traffic control and phasing plans and others as indicated in this Agreement 
or required by the Project Team. 
 
Pre-Construction Services Agreement – 
The Agreement entered into between City and the CM@Risk for Pre-Construction Services to be 
provided by the CM@Risk, including, without limitation, the generation of a GMP Proposal. If the GMP 
Proposal is accepted by City and a Construction Agreement is entered into between City and CM@Risk, 
the duties, obligations and warranties of the CM@Risk under the Pre-Construction Services 
Agreement survive and are incorporated into the resulting Construction Agreement. 
 
Pre-Construction Services – 
The services to be provided under the Pre-Construction Services Agreement, including Section 17 of 
these General Conditions. 
 
Detailed Project Schedule – 
The Detailed Project Schedule developed by the CM@Risk for the review and approval of the Project 
Manager in accordance with Section 17.3 of these General Conditions, if applicable. 
 
General Conditions Costs – 
Those costs set forth in Section 4 of Appendix 9 to these General Conditions. 
 
GMP Plans and Specifications – 
The plan and specifications upon which the Guaranteed Maximum price Proposal is based. 
 
GMP Proposal – 
The proposal of Contractor submitted pursuant to Section 17.7 of these General Conditions for the 
entire Work and/or portion (phases) of the Work. 
 
Guaranteed Maximum Price or GMP – 
The Guaranteed Maximum Price set forth in the Agreement, Change Order, or Job Order if applicable. 

15.2 AGREEMENT PRICE 

15.2.1 The Agreement Price for all Agreements, Change Orders, and Job Orders based upon 
payment of the Cost of the Work plus a Fee with a GMP, time and materials, or cost-plus a 
fee will be the Cost of the Work incurred plus the Fee agreed to in writing by City, limited to 
the amount of the GMP, if agreed to. Unless otherwise expressly provided in the Agreement, 
Change Order, or Job Order, all Cost Based pricing will be subject to and limited to GMP. 

15.2.2 The Agreement Price may only be changed as set forth in Section 9 above. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-59 of 75  

15.2.3 Only costs specifically designated as reimbursable costs are eligible for payment by City or 
may be charged against the Agreement Price. All other costs will not be paid by City and will 
not be chargeable against the Agreement Price. 

15.2.4 Cost-Based Agreements. For Agreements, Change Orders, or Job Orders, reimbursable 
costs must be determined pursuant to Appendix 9 to these General Conditions, Cost of the 
Work, and not by MAG Specifications §109.5. 

15.3 ALLOWANCES 

15.3.1 Contractor must include in the Agreement Price all Allowances stated in the Agreement 
Documents and agreed to in writing by City. Items covered by these Allowances must be 
supplied for such amounts and by such persons as City may direct, provided Contractor will 
not be required to employ persons against whom Contractor makes a reasonable objection. 
Materials, labor, and equipment under an Allowance will be selected by City in accordance 
with a schedule to be mutually agreed upon by City, Design Professional and Contractor or 
otherwise in reasonably sufficient time to avoid delay in the Work. 

15.3.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Agreement Documents: 

15.3.2.1 These Allowances must cover the cost to Contractor, less any applicable trade discount, of 
the materials, labor, and equipment required by the Allowances, delivered at the Site, and 
all applicable taxes; 

15.3.2.2 Contractor’s costs for unloading and handling on the Site, labor, installation costs, overhead, 
profit and other expenses relating to materials, labor, and equipment required by the 
Allowance must be included in the Agreement Sum and not in the Allowance; and 

15.3.2.3 Whenever the cost is more or less than the Allowance, the Agreement Sum must be 
adjusted accordingly by Change Order, the amount of which will recognize the difference 
between actual costs for an Allowance item and the amount of the Allowance item and 
changes, if any, in handling costs on the Site, labor, installation costs, overhead, profit and 
other expenses. 

15.4 CONTINGENCY 
An agreed to amount in the GMP that may only be used in accordance with the terms set 
forth in these General Conditions and with prior written approval by the City. 

15.4.1 Construction Contingency.  This GMP includes a dollar amount listed as a Construction 
Contingency which will be readily available for increased costs for subcontractors, material, 
and equipment subject to prior approval of City, which approval will not be withheld 
unreasonably.  The Construction Contingency may also be used, at the discretion of City, to 
reimburse CM@Risk for unexpected costs due to (a) scope gaps between trade 
subcontractors; (b) agreement default by trade subcontractors; (c) unforeseen field 
conditions, but only as defined in Section 9.5 above; (d) work completed to meet the intent 
of the design, but which was not indicated on the plans; (e) costs overruns not covered by 
allowances; (f) costs of corrective work not provided for elsewhere; and (g) implementation 
of any Recovery Plan.  Cost for which CM@Risk desires to be paid from the Construction 
Contingency must be documented by CM@Risk on a time and materials basis and are 
subject to verification by City.  If agreed to by City, a “Use of Contingency” form will be 
executed by both parties authorizing the actual cost of the work to be paid and included in 
the Work Item Direct Costs.  The Construction Contingency is not allocated to any particular 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-60 of 75  

item of the Project but may be used for any portion of the work as determined above.  Any 
amount not used in the Construction Contingency will belong to City and will reduce the 
GMP.  

15.4.2 Owner’s Contingency.  This GMP also includes a dollar amount listed as an Owner’s 
Contingency which may be used only by the City (owner department) for upgrades and 
changes in scope or other changes not already included within the intent of the Project 
Program.  City will provide CM@Risk with a Work Change Directive authorizing CM@Risk to 
perform the additional work and to transfer funds from the Owner’s Contingency to the 
Work Item Direct Costs category to be paid with such direct costs.  These additional costs 
will be in an amount mutually agreed upon by CM@Risk and City or will be documented by 
CM@Risk on a time and materials basis and are subject to verification by City.  Any amount 
not used in the Owner’s Contingency will belong to the City and will reduce the GMP. 

15.5 REDUCTION IN RETENTION 
If the Agreement Price is based upon a GMP, in order to receive payment of one-half of the 
retention as set forth in Section 8.1.5 above, Contractor must also submit to the Project 
Manager a complete accounting of the Actual Reimbursable Cost of the Work to date, 
including all such documentation (including, without limitation, invoices, subcontract, 
subcontractor change orders, purchase orders, records of payment, etc.) as City may require, 
to establish whether the payments made to Contractor equal, exceed, or are less than the 
actual reimbursable Cost of the Work to date. Any excess payments by City, as determined 
by the Project Manager, will be deducted from the one-half retention payment to be made 
to Contractor, and any additional excess amounts paid to Contractor will be refunded by 
Contractor to City. The Project Manager’s determinations as to Actual Reimbursable Cost 
of the Work will be the basis of payment until final Project Closeout and Final Payment 
under the Agreement. 

15.6 FINAL PAYMENT 
If the Agreement Price is based upon a GMP, as a further condition precedent to Final 
Payment by City, Contractor must submit to the Project Manager a complete final 
accounting of the Actual Reimbursable Cost of the Work, including all such documentation 
(including, without limitation, invoices, subcontracts, subcontractor change orders, 
purchase orders, records of payment, etc.) as City may require, to establish whether the 
payments made to Contractor equal, exceed, or are less than the Actual Reimbursable Cost 
of the Work to date. Any excess payments by City, as determined by the Project Manager, 
will be deducted from the one-half retention payment to be made to Contractor, and any 
additional excess amounts paid to Contractor will be refunded by Contractor to City. 
Disputes relating to the Final Cost of the Work will be subject to City’s audit rights under 
Sections 8.8 above and 15.7 below, and the dispute resolution process under Section 13 
above. 

15.7 OPEN BOOK 
On any GMP-based or Cost-Based Agreement, Job Order, or Change Order, City may attend 
any and all meetings or discussions pertaining to the Project, including bid openings, and 
must have access to all books, invoices, accounts, memoranda, correspondence, and 
written communications or records of any kind pertaining to the Project, including without 
limitation, those stored in electronic format. 

15.8 DIFFERING SITE CONDITIONS AND/OR CHANGE IN LAWS 
A Change Order for increased costs under Section 9.5 or 9.6 above will only be considered 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-61 of 75  

or granted by City to the extent such actual, documented costs are justified. 
 

SECTION 16 - PROVISIONS APPLICABLE SOLELY TO JOB ORDER AGREEMENTS (JOC) 

16.1 ADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS 
The definitions set forth in Sections 2 and below will apply to all Job Order Agreements and 
Job Orders. In addition, the definitions set forth in Section 15.1 above will apply to all Cost-
Based Job Orders. 

 
Agreement – 
Includes the Job Order Master Agreement and Job Order Project Agreements issued and agreed to by City 
and JOC Contractor. 

 
JOC Contractor’s Coefficient – 
A numerical factor that represents JOC Contractor total costs (indirect and direct costs, sales tax, 
profit, etc.) and other adjustments for market conditions. 
 
Job Order Request for Proposal (RFP) – 
The Request for Proposals issued by City for each Job Order Project Agreement relating to a specific 
Project. 
 
Job Order Cost Proposal – 
The Proposal submitted by JOC Contractor in response to a Job Order Request for Proposal (RFP) issued 
by City to develop a Job Order Project Agreement for a specific Project. 
 
Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) Job Order – 
Job Order under which JOC Contractor is compensated for actual costs incurred. 
 
Job Order Project Agreement (Job Order) – 
The agreement for a specific project, as it may be modified by all Change Orders, executed by the 
Parties, which incorporates the terms and conditions of the Job Order Master Agreement.  

16.2 ORDERING AND PROCESSING PROCEDURES FOR JOB ORDERS 

16.2.1 The process for developing and issuing a Job Order for a particular Project consists of three 
(3) procedures: (1) issuance of a RFP by City; (2) JOC Contractor’s response to the RFP in the 
form of JOC Contractor’s Job Order Cost Proposal; and (3) Issuance of a Job Order by City, as 
set for below. 

16.2.2 RFP’s For Job Orders 

16.2.2.1 City will provide to JOC Contractor RFP with a Scope of Work (SOW) describing the Work to 
be performed, which may include special instructions and conditions, material submittal 
requirements, and, if applicable, a complete set of sketches, construction drawings and 
specifications for the Job Order. 

16.2.2.2 Some Job Order RFP’s will be issued by City without detailed sketches, drawing and 
specifications and will rely on JOC Contractor to produce them for City review and approval 
and is considered to be Pre-Construction and incidental design services included in JOC 
Contractor’s overhead for GMP Job Orders. In addition JOC Contractor will not be 
reimbursed for any Pre-Job Order costs, including proposal preparation, attendance during 
negotiations, or site visits. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-62 of 75  

16.2.3 JOC Contractor’s Job Order Cost Proposal 

16.2.3.1 JOC Contractor must respond within ten (10) calendar days of the RFP date or site visit, 
whichever is later or as otherwise indicated on a case-by-case basis, by submitting JOC 
Contractor’s Job Order Cost Proposal to the City representative. 

16.2.3.2 Unless otherwise required under the terms of the RFP, JOC Contractor’s Job Order Cost 
Proposal must include the following. 

a. JOC Contractor’s Job Order Cost Proposal in PDF and electronic format; 

b. A Project Schedule and schedule of values that reflects the costs of each work 
element on the schedule. The schedule must show all milestones (e.g., 
permits, submittals, ordering materials, demolition, work phases, closeout 
and completion date); and 

c. Necessary documentation will be required to indicate that adequate scoping, 
layout, setup and planning to accomplish the Work has been done. 
Examples of documentation that might reasonably be expected include 
sketches, drawings, calculations, catalog cuts and specifications produced 
to a level of detail and skill that could be expected of experienced, 
competent Project Managers with five or more periods experience in their 
respective trade. 

16.2.3.3 JOC Contractor must select Subcontractors based on qualifications alone or on a 
combination of qualifications and price and must not select Subcontractors based on 
price alone. A qualifications and price selection may be a one-step selection based on 
a combination of qualifications and price or two-step selection. In a two-step selection, 
the first step must be based on qualifications alone and the second step may be based or 
a combination of qualifications and price or on price alone. 

16.2.3.4 Upon request, JOC Contractor must provide City with copies of Subcontractor quotes and 
the basis for selection of each Subcontractor. 

16.2.3.5 If City objects to a selected Subcontractor, City will make the objection and the reasons for 
the objection known to the JOC Contractor. JOC Contractor must then present an 
acceptable Subcontractor for the applicable discipline. City will not unreasonably object 
to or withhold approval of a Subcontractor. 

16.2.3.6 For self-performed work, the City retains the right to have the JOC Contractor establish JOC 
Contractor’s costs by bidding their costs against at least three (3) other interested trade 
Contractors. No self- performed work will be allowed to be performed on a lump sum basis. 

16.2.4 Issuance of Job Order 

16.2.4.1 City Representative will compare the JOC Contractor’s Job Order Cost Proposal with the City’s 
estimate, schedules and other requirements, and then, if the City Representative 
determines it is in the best interest of City, arrange a meeting with JOC Contractor, at which 
time the JOC Contractor’s Job Order Cost Proposal will be discussed and negotiated. 

16.2.4.2 If the City Representative determines that it is in the best interest of the City, City will then 
issue a Job Order to JOC Contractor for execution. 

16.2.4.3 Specific Job Orders may vary, but unless agreed to by City in writing otherwise, the content 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-63 of 75  

of Job Orders under the Agreement will generally be as follow, all of which will be signed 
and/or initialed by JOC Contractor’s designated representative: 

a. The description of the Scope of the Work and Project Schedule (attached as 
Exhibit A to the Job Order); 

b. The address or location of the Work; 

c. The Agreement Price for Work (Construction) included in the Project 
(attached as Exhibit B to the Job Order); 

d. The name of the JOC Contractor representative for the Project; 

e. The Drawings and Specifications for the Project; 

f. If any shop drawings, project date and/or samples are required for the Job 
Order, the date for delivery of each required item (included in the Project 
Schedule, Exhibit A to the Job order); and 

g. Project Specific Provisions, if any, in Exhibit A  to the Job Order, 
including, without limitation, whether any of the following are required: 
Pre-Construction Conference, weekly progress meetings, field office, 
storage enclosure, materials and equipment handling facility, submittals, 
shop drawings, product data, equipment list, samples, project manual, 
schedule of values, Construction progress schedule, narrative reports, 
progress report, progress charts, progress photographs, materials status 
report, Construction diagram, Construction status report, operation and 
maintenance data, operating maintenance instructions and parts list, and 
as-build drawings. 

16.2.5 Job Order Intent. Each Job Order will be interpreted to include all items reasonably 
necessary to complete the Project under that Job Order as described in the scope of the 
Work in that Job Order. All Work must be performed in a professional manner and all 
materials used must be new and of the highest quality and of the type best adapted to 
their purpose, unless otherwise specified. The Notice to Proceed date, and the award date 
established therein, will be deemed an integral part of the Job Order the same as if set forth 
therein. 

16.3 INCIDENTAL DESIGN SERVICES 

16.3.1 This effort includes all “extensions of design” for systems that are typically specified in 
a performance oriented manner by consultants and designers. Examples include: fire 
sprinkler systems, fire alarm and sprinkler systems, DDC controls, control systems, 
prefabricated metal building and similar situations. These designs are normally provided 
under submittals as a shop drawing with engineering backup and as appropriate, seals of 
registered engineers specializing in the particular system. 

16.3.2 Incidental design includes all documents, sketches, schematic diagrams, floor plan 
layouts, equipment schedules and other documents produced by the JOC Contractor to 
define the work required for projects that the City does not develop formal or abbreviated 
designs requiring a seal by a registered engineer. Incidental design does not include 
preparation of designs requiring an architect or engineer seal. 

16.3.3 JOC Contractor represents, covenants, and agrees, and contractually assumes the 
obligation to furnish, all of the required Design Services through properly licensed and 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-64 of 75  

experienced Design Professionals in complete accordance with all of the duties imposed 
on a Design Professional under the Agreement Documents, Laws, Regulations, or Legal 
Requirements, and the common law. 

16.3.4 All Design Documents (and all other Project-related documents, models, computer 
drawings and other electronic expression, photographs and other expressions CADD, and 
BIM files and images included) that JOC Contractor and/or JOC Contractor’s Design 
Professional(s) prepare in connection with a Job Order and the copyrights therein 
(collectively, the “Instruments of Service”) will be the property of City. JOC Contractor 
covenants and agrees to execute any additional document reasonably requested by City 
to confirm such assignment without any additional compensation. 

16.4 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 

16.4.1 The following subsections of this Section 16.4 set forth requirements beyond those set forth 
in Section 4 above which apply to Construction Services performed under a Job Order. 

16.4.2 JOC Contractor must perform the Work using only those firms, team members and 
individuals designated by JOC Contractor consistent with each Job Order or otherwise 
approved by City pursuant to the General Conditions. No other entities or individuals may 
be used without the prior written approval of the Project Manager. 

16.4.3 Construction Phasing 

16.4.3.1 City use of the facilities is anticipated while the Work is being performed. The Work must 
be planned and accomplished so that there will be a minimum of interference and 
inconvenience to occupants in the building and agencies in the vicinity and to other 
craftsmen who may have to do work in the affected facilities. Any blockage of building 
exits or driveways must be coordinated in advance. 

16.4.3.2 If applicable, furniture, portable office equipment and wall appurtenances not rigidly 
fastened to the walls must be moved by JOC Contractor, protected from damage and 
replaced to the original position upon completion of the work. If the work required by 
the Job Order will not allow furniture and portable office equipment to be replaced to its 
original position, new locations will be designated by City. Incidental costs associated with 
moving one-piece furnishings up to approximately 150 pounds to perform such tasks as 
painting, carpet or tile replacement, etc., are considered a general cost of building 
renovation and must be included in the JOC Contractor’s Coefficient. Costs for large scale 
or wholesale removal and replacement of large quantities of desks or modular 
workstations, copiers, multiple full file cabinets, etc. to another location or storage outside 
the work space, or disassembly and reassembly of modular furniture is not considered 
part of the JOC Contractor’s Coefficient and will be priced separately. 

16.4.3.3 The work must, so far as practicable, be done in definite sections or divisions and confined 
to limited areas which must be completed before work in other sections or divisions are 
begun. 

16.4.4 Work Site Conflicts. In the event of a conflict between JOC Contractor and others in an 
occupied facility or where other Contractors are performing work on the same facility 
under other Agreements, City will decide to dispute and that decision will be final. 

16.4.5 Ownership of Work Product. Work Product prepared or otherwise created in connection 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-65 of 75  

with the performance of this Agreement, including the Work, are to be and remain the 
property of City. For purposes of this provision, “Work Product” will include all designs, 
drawings, plans, specifications, ideas, renderings and other information or matter, in 
whatever form created (e.g., electronic or printed) and in all media now known or 
hereinafter created. All Work Product will be considered Work Made for Hire as defined 
in the United States Copyright Act 17 U.S.C. §101 (Copyright Act). If for any reason any such 
Work is found not to be a work for hire, JOC Contractor hereby transfers and assigns 
ownership of the copyright in such Work to City. The rights in this Section are exclusive to 
City in perpetuity. 

16.5 OPTIONAL LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 

16.5.1 Specific Job Orders. City will have the right to assess liquidated damages in relation to 
any specific JOC Project Agreement as set forth below. 

16.5.2 Substantial Completion Liquidated Damages. JOC Contractor acknowledges and agrees 
that if JOC Contractor fails to obtain Substantial Completion of the Work within the 
Agreement Time, City will sustain extensive damages and serious loss as a result of such 
failure. The exact amount of such damages will be extremely difficult to ascertain. 
Therefore, City and JOC Contractor agree that if JOC Contractor fails to achieve Substantial 
Completion of the Work within the Agreement Time, City will be entitled to retain or 
recover from JOC Contractor, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, the sum per 
calendar day as indicated in MAG § 108.9. 

16.5.3 Final Acceptance Liquidated Damages. For the same reasons set forth in Section 16.5.2 
above, City and JOC Contractor further agree that if JOC Contractor fails to achieve Final 
Acceptance of the Work within the Agreement Time, City will be entitled to retain or recover 
from JOC Contractor, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, the sum per calendar 
day as indicated in MAG § 108.9 commencing from the actual date of Substantial 
Completion or Final Acceptance as required under any specific JOC Project Agreement. 

16.5.4 MAG Liquidated Damages. Liquidated damages provisions in MAG § 108.9 may apply to any 
specific JOC Project Agreement.   

16.5.5 City may deduct liquidated damages assessed pursuant to this Section 16.5 from any 
unpaid amounts then or thereafter due JOC Contractor under the Agreement or any 
specific JOC Project Agreement between JOC Contractor and City. Any liquidated damages 
not so deducted from any unpaid amounts due JOC Contractor must be payable to City 
at the demand of City, together with interest from the date of the demand at the highest 
lawful rate of interest payable to JOC Contractor. 

16.6 PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT 

16.6.1 Performance Assessment. After the Final Acceptance of Work under each Job Order, City 
will complete a written evaluation of the performance of JOC Contractor on the Job Order. 

16.6.2 Consideration in Assignment of Work. JOC Contractor’s record of cost, schedule and 
quality performance and comparative assessments will be significant considerations in 
City’s determination whether to award future Job Orders. JOC Contractor agrees that any 
determination by City not to not award future Job Orders or Option periods based on 
performance will be at the sole discretion of City. 

 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-66 of 75  

SECTION 17 - PROVISIONS APPLICABLE SOLELY TO PRE-CONSTRUCTION SERVICES FOR 
CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK 

17.1 ADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS 

The definitions set forth in Section 2 and 15.1 above will apply to all Pre-Construction 
Services Agreements. 

17.2 GENERAL 

17.2.1 CM@Risk must perform the  Services required by, and in accordance with the Agreement 
Documents and as outlined in Exhibit A of the Agreement to the satisfaction of the 
Project Manager, exercising the degree of care, skill, diligence and judgment a professional 
construction manager experienced in the performance of such services for construction 
and/or facilities of similar scope, function, size, quality, complexity and detail to the 
Project in urban areas throughout the United States, would exercise at such time, under 
similar conditions. CM@Risk must, at all times, perform the required services consistent 
with sound and generally accepted engineering principles and construction management 
and construction contracting practices. 

17.2.2 As a participating member of the Project Team, CM@Risk must provide to City and Design 
Professional a written evaluation of City’s Project Program and budget, each in terms of 
the other, with recommendations as to the appropriateness of each. CM@Risk must 
prepare a Baseline Cost Model that validates City’s budget. The Baseline Cost Model must 
include all assumptions and basis of estimates in enough detail so that the Project Team 
can compare future detail estimates to the Baseline Cost model for variances. City and 
Design Professional will provide all the reasonably required data that is available in 
order to reach agreement between the team members that the Baseline Cost Model is an 
accurate projection of the costs of the Project. 

17.2.3 CM@Risk must attend Project Team meetings, which may include, but are not limited to, 
bi- weekly Project management meetings, Project workshops, special Project meetings, 
construction document rolling reviews, public meetings and partnering sessions. CM@Risk 
attendance at design or other meetings in which CM@Risk is provided the opportunity but 
does not actively participate and/or is not properly prepared is not acceptable. Repeated 
instances of non-participation and/or lack of preparedness will be grounds for termination 
of CM@Risk Agreement for default. 

17.2.4 CM@Risk must provide Pre-Construction Services, described herein, in a timely manner 
and consistent with the intent of the most current Drawings and Specifications. CM@Risk 
must promptly notify City in writing whenever CM@Risk determines any Drawings or 
Specifications are inappropriate for the Project and/or cause changes in the scope of Work 
that deviates more than the allowed contingencies within the Baseline Cost Model or 
requires an adjustment in the Baseline Cost Model, Detailed Cost Estimate, Detailed 
Project Schedule, GMP Proposals and/or in the Agreement Time for the Work, to the extent 
such as established. 

17.2.5 CM@Risk when requested by City, must attend, make presentations and participate as may 
be appropriate in public agency and or community meetings, relevant to the Project. 
CM@Risk must provide drawings, schedule diagrams, budget charges and other materials 
describing the Project when their use is required or appropriate in any such public agency 
meetings. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-67 of 75  

17.2.6 Ownership of Work Product. All Work Product prepared or otherwise created in connection 
with the performance of this Agreement, including the Work, are to be and remain the 
property of City. For purposes of this provision, “Work Product” will include all designs, 
drawings, plans, specifications, ideas, renderings and other information or material, in 
whatever form created (e.g., electronic or printed) and in all media now know or hereinafter 
created. All Work Product will be considered Work Made for Hire as defined in the United 
States Copyright Act 17 U.S.C. 

§101 (Copyright Act). If for any reason any such Work is found not to be a work for 
hire, Contractor hereby transfers and assigns ownership of the copyright in such Work to 
City. The rights in this Section are exclusive to City in perpetuity. 

17.2.7 CM@Risk represents to City in completing Pre-Construction Services and providing the 
reports and analysis required thereunder, that Work can be properly and timely 
constructed within the GMP Proposal, if accepted. CM@Risk does not assume any design 
responsibilities unless specifically called for in the scope of work, but CM@Risk will be 
responsible for their errors, omissions or inconsistencies included in the Work. 

17.3 DETAILED PROJECT SCHEDULE 

17.3.1 The fundamental purpose of the Detailed Project Schedule is to identify, coordinate and 
record the tasks and activities to be performed by all of the Project Team members and 
then for the Project Team to utilize that Deliverable as a basis for managing and 
monitoring all member’s compliance with the schedule requirements of the Project. 
Each Project Team member is responsible for its compliance with the Detailed Project 
Schedule requirements. CM@Risk must, however, develop and maintain the Detailed 
Project Schedule on behalf of and to be used by the Project Team based on input from the 
other Project Team members. The Baseline Project Schedule must be developed as part 
of the Baseline Cost Model. The Detailed Project Schedule must use the Critical Path 
method (“CPM”) technique, unless required otherwise, in writing by City. CM@Risk must 
use scheduling software acceptable to City to develop the Detailed Project Schedule. 
The Detailed Project Schedule must be presented in graphical and tabular reports as 
agreed upon by the Project Team. If Project phasing as described below is required, the 
Detailed Project Schedule must indicate milestone dates for the phases once 
determined. As part of construction phase, City may require CM@Risk to prepare a 
“resource loaded” schedule for all work, including work performed by Subcontractors, 
detailing each of the project tasks and the required/anticipated number of personnel per 
day for each task. CM@Risk must also indicate on the schedule its ability to meet said 
required/anticipated personnel requirements. 

17.3.2 CM@Risk must include and integrate in the Detailed Project Schedule the services and 
activities required of City, Design Professional and CM@Risk including all construction 
phase activities based on the input received from City and the Design Professional. 
The Detailed Project Schedule must define activities as determined by City to the extent 
required to show: (a) the coordination between preliminary design and various pre-
construction documents, (b) any separate long-lead procurements, (c) any permitting 
issues, (d) any land, right-of-way, or easement acquisition, (e) bid packaging strategy and 
awards to Subcontractors and Suppliers, (f) major stages of construction, (g) start-up and 
commissioning, and (h) occupancy of the completed Work by City. The Detailed Project 
Schedule must include by example and not limitation, proposed activity sequences and 
durations for design, procurement, construction and testing activities, milestone dates for 
actions and decisions by the Project Team, preparation and processing of shop drawings 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-68 of 75  

and samples, delivery of materials or equipment requiring long-lead time procurement (if 
any), milestone dates for various construction phases, Total Float for all activities to the 
extent authorized by City, relationships between the activities, City’s occupancy 
requirements showing portions of the Project having occupancy priority, and proposed 
dates for Final Acceptance. 

17.3.3 A Baseline Project Schedule must be initiated with the project Baseline Cost Model and 
agreed to by the project team at the same time. CM@Risk must update and maintain a 
detailed Project Schedule throughout pre-construction such that it will not require major 
changes at the start of the construction phase to incorporate CM@Risk’s plan for the 
performance of the construction phase Work. CM@Risk must provide updates and/or 
revisions to the Detailed Project Schedule for use by the Project Team, whenever required, 
but no less often than at the Project Team meetings. CM@Risk must include with such 
submittals a narrative describing its analysis of the progress achieved to-date vs. the 
Baseline Project Schedule, including any concerns regarding delays or potential delays, and 
any recommendations regarding mitigating actions. 

17.3.4 If phased construction is deemed appropriate at the time of developing the Baseline Cost 
Model or during the development of the Detailed Project Schedule, and City approves, 
CM@Risk must review the design and make recommendations regarding the phased 
issuance of Construction Documents to facilitate phased construction of the Work, with 
the objective of reducing the Project Schedule and/or Cost of the Work. CM@Risk must take 
into consideration such factors as natural and practical lines of work severability, 
sequencing effectiveness, access and availability constraints, total time for completion, 
construction market conditions, labor and materials availability, and any other factors 
pertinent to saving time and cost. 

17.3.5 Long Lead Time Items. As part of developing the Detailed Project Schedule, CM@Risk must 
identify all long lead time materials, fabrications, equipment, or other items which may 
impact the Project Schedule and may require early action on the part of the Project Team. 
Dates for selecting and ordering long lead time items will be included and highlighted 
in the Detailed Project Schedule 

17.3.6 Equipment Plan. Contractor must develop an Equipment Plan that addresses all rental 
and owned equipment, regardless of whether such equipment will be provided by 
CM@Risk or subcontractor(s), that will be necessary to construct the Project and the cost 
of which will be included as a Cost of the Work in the GMP Proposal. The Equipment Plan 
will seek to minimize the cost of the equipment to City and maximize the efficient and 
coordinated use of the equipment for completion of the Project. The Equipment Plan will 
not only include the costs and allowable lease rates for the equipment, but will also include 
an equipment schedule that will be incorporated into the Detailed Project Schedule and the 
Schedule of Values submitted with the GMP Proposal. 

17.4 DESIGN DOCUMENT REVIEWS 

17.4.1 CM@Risk must evaluate periodically the availability of labor, materials/equipment, cost- 
sensitive aspects of the design; and other factors that may create an unacceptable variance 
to the Baseline Cost Model and/or Baseline Project Schedule. 

17.4.2 CM@Risk must recommend, in conjunction with the Project Team, those additional surface 
and subsurface investigations that, in its professional opinion, are required to provide the 
necessary information for CM@Risk to construct the Project. These additional 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-69 of 75  

investigations, if agreed to be necessary by the Project Manager and the Design 
Professional, will be acquired by City and copies of the reports will be provided to CM@Risk. 

17.4.3 CM@Risk must meet with the Project Team as required to review designs during their 
development. CM@Risk must familiarize itself with the evolving documents through 
pre- construction. CM@Risk must proactively advise the Project Team and make 
recommendations on factors related to construction costs, and concerns pertaining to the 
feasibility and practicality of any proposed means and methods, selected materials, 
equipment and building systems, and, labor and material availability. CM@Risk must 
furthermore advise the Project Team on proposed site improvements, excavation and 
foundation considerations, as well as, concerns that exist with respect to coordination of 
the Drawings and Specifications. CM@Risk must use established value analysis principles 
in recommending cost effective alternatives. 

17.4.4 CM@Risk must routinely conduct constructability and bid-ability reviews of the Drawings 
and Specifications as necessary to satisfy the needs of the Project Team. The reviews must 
attempt to identify all discrepancies and inconsistencies in the Construction Documents 
especially those related to clarity, consistency, completeness and coordination of Work of 
Subcontractors and Suppliers. 

17.4.4.1 CM@Risk must evaluate whether: (a) the Drawings and Specifications are configured to 
enable efficient construction; (b) design elements are standardized; (c) construction 
efficiency is properly considered in the Drawings and Specifications; (d) 
module/preassembly design is prepared to facilitate fabrication, transport and installation; 
(e) sequences of Work required by or inferable from the Drawings and Specifications are 
practicable; (f) the design has taken into consideration efficiency issues concerning access 
and entrance to the site, laydown and storage of materials, staging of site facilities, 
construction parking, and other similar pertinent issues; and (g) the design maintains 
continued operation of the existing City systems and maintains traffic on adjacent 
roadways. CM@Risk must also review the Drawings and Specifications to ensure that what 
is depicted therein can be constructed as designed and must promptly inform the Project 
Team of any issues. 

17.4.4.2 CM@Risk must check cross-reference and complementary Drawings and sections within 
the Specifications and in general evaluate whether: (a) the Drawings and Specifications 
are sufficiently clear and detailed to minimize ambiguity and to reduce scope interpretation 
discrepancies; (b) named materials and equipment are commercially available and are 
performing well, or otherwise, in similar installations; (c) Specifications include alternatives 
in the event a requirement cannot be met in the field; and (d) in its professional opinion, the 
Project is likely to be subject to Differing Site Conditions. 

17.4.4.3 The results of the reviews must be provided to Project Team in formal, written reports 
clearly identifying all reviewed documents and the discovered discrepancies and 
inconsistencies in the Drawings and Specifications with notations and recommendations 
made on the Drawings, Specifications and other documents. CM@Risk must meet with 
Project Team to discuss any findings and review reports. 

17.4.4.4 CM@Risk’s reviews must be from a Contractor’s perspective, and though it will serve to 
eliminate/reduce the number of RFIs) and changes during the construction phase, 
responsibility for the Drawings and Specifications will remain with the Design Professional 
and not CM@Risk. 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-70 of 75  

17.4.5 It is CM@Risk’s responsibility to assist the Design Professional in ascertaining that, in 
CM@Risk’s professional opinion, the Construction Documents are in accordance with 
applicable Laws, Regulations, or Legal Requirements, building codes, sound engineering 
principle’s rules and regulations. If CM@Risk recognizes that portions of the Construction 
Documents are at variance with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, building codes, 
sound engineering principle’s rules and regulations, it must promptly notify the Project Team 
in writing, describing the apparent variance of deficiency. However, the Design Professional 
is ultimately responsible for the compliance of the Drawings and Specifications with those 
laws, statutes, ordinances, building codes, rules and regulations. 

17.4.6 The Project Team will routinely identify and evaluate using value analysis principles and 
alternate systems, approaches, design changes that have the potential to reduce Project 
costs while still delivering a high quality and fully functional Project consistent with 
the Project Program. If the Project Team agrees, CM@Risk in cooperation with the Design 
Professional, will perform a cost/benefit analysis of the alternatives and submit such in 
writing to the Project Team. City, through the Project Manager, will direct which alternatives 
will be incorporated into the Project. The Design Professional will have full design 
responsibility for the review and incorporation of CM@Risk suggested alternatives into 
the Drawings and Specifications. CM@Risk must analyze the costs and schedule impacts of 
the alternatives against the Baseline Cost Model and Schedule and provide a 
recommendation for the Project Team’s consideration and City’s approval prior to the 
establishment of the GMP. 

17.5 BASELINE COSTS MODEL, DETAILED COST ESTIMATES, AND SCHEDULE OF VALUES 

17.5.1 At the conclusion of the Master Planning and Programming, if required, CM@Risk will 
review all available information regarding the design and scope of the Project using 
CM@Risk’s experience in performing similar work, knowledge of similar projects and 
current and projected construction costs and, based upon that review, must develop a 
Baseline Cost Model for review by the Project Team and approval by City.  Once approved 
by City, the Baseline Cost Model will be continually referenced as detailed estimates are 
created as the design progresses throughout Pre-Construction until the final GMP for the 
entire Project is established.  A final GMP for the entire Project must be established and 
approved by City prior to the start of construction. It is the responsibility of CM@Risk 
to ensure City has sufficient information to evaluate  and  approve  a  final  GMP  prior  to  
the  time  necessary to  start  construction  so construction can be completed within the 
Agreement Time.  The Project Detailed Cost Estimate will be the best representation from 
CM@Risk of what the complete functional Project’s construction costs will be as indicated 
by the most current available documents and will be constantly checked against the 
Baseline Cost Model. CM@Risk must communicate to the Project Team and assumptions 
made in preparing the Baseline Cost Model. The Baseline Cost Model must support 
CM@Risk’s Detailed Cost Estimates and may be broken down initially as dictated by the 
available information, as required by City. 

17.5.2 After receipt of the Design Professional’s most current documents from certain specified 
pre- construction milestones, CM@Risk must provide a draft Detailed Cost Estimate 
including a detailed written report detailing any variances to the Baseline Cost Model and 
Baseline Project Schedule. The Design Professional and CM@Risk will reconcile any 
disagreements on the estimate to arrive at an agreed upon Detailed Cost Estimate for the 
construction costs based on the scope of the Project through that specified pre-
construction milestone. Pre-Construction milestones applicable to this paragraph are: 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-71 of 75  

Master Planning and Programming, Schematic Design, 50% Design Development, 100% 
Design Development, and 50% Construction Drawings, If no consensus is reached, City will 
make the final determination. If the Project Team requires additional updates of the 
Detailed Cost Estimate beyond that specified in this paragraph, CM@Risk must provide the 
requested information in a timely manner. 

17.5.3 If at any point the Detailed Cost Estimate submitted to City exceeds the previously 
accepted Baseline Cost Model or previously approved Detailed Cost Estimate agreed to as 
set forth in Section 17.5.2 above, CM@Risk must make appropriate recommendations to 
project Team on means/methods, materials, and or other design elements that it 
believes will reduce the estimated construction costs, such that it is equal to or less than 
the established Project Team’s Baseline Cost Model. 

17.5.4 Unless other levels of completion are agreed to in writing in the Construction Documents, 
at 50% Construction Drawings and included with the associated report, CM@Risk must 
also submit to the Project Team for review and approval a Schedule of Values that complies 
with the following requirements. The Schedule of Values must be based on City standard 
bid schedule and highlight significant variances from any previously submitted Schedule 
of Values. The Schedule of Values must be directly related to the breakdowns reflected in 
the Detailed Project Schedule and CM@Risk’s Detailed Cost Estimate.  In addition, the 
Schedule of Values must:  (a) detail unit prices and quantity take-offs, (b) detail all other 
contingencies and unit price Work shown and specified in the detailed design documents. 

17.5.5 CM@Risk is to track, estimate/price and address the Project Team’s overall project cost issues 
that arise outside of the Baseline Cost Model and the latest approved Detailed Cost 
Estimate such as: City generated changes, Project Team proposed changes, alternate 
system analysis, constructability items and value engineering analysis. The system used 
to implement this process will be referred to as the Design Evolution Log. This is to be 
addressed between the Baseline Cost Model and the Master Planning and Programming 
Detailed Cost Estimate, and then (unless other levels of completion are agreed to in writing 
in the Construction Documents) between the Detailed Cost Estimates for each of the pre-
construction milestones thereafter, Schematic Design, 50% Design Development, 100% 
Design Development, and 50% Construction Documents, and the bid packages for all 
Phases. 

17.5.6 Upon request by City, CM@Risk must submit to City a cash flow projection for the Project 
based on the current updated/revised Detailed Project Schedule and the anticipated level of 
payments for CM@Risk during the design and construction phases. In addition, if requested 
by City and based on information provided by City, CM@Risk must prepare a cash flow 
projection for the entire Project based on historical records for similar types of projects 
to assist City in the financing process. 

17.5.7 Construction Water. CM@Risk must estimate the quantity of water to be used and include 
the cost thereof in each Detailed Cost Estimate and GMP Proposal provided by City. 

17.6 SUBCONTRACTOR AND MAJOR SUPPLIER SELECTIONS 

17.6.1 There are two ways to select Subcontractors and major Suppliers prior to submission of a 
GMP Proposal: (1) qualifications-based selection; or (2) a combination of qualifications 
and price. Except as noted below, the selection of Subcontractors/Suppliers is the sole 
responsibility of CM@Risk. In any case, CM@Risk is solely responsible for the performance 
of the selected Subcontractors/Suppliers, and for compliance with the requirements of 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-72 of 75  

Title 34 of the Arizona Revised Statutes in the selection of a Subcontractors/Suppliers, 
to the extent applicable. CM@Risk must comply with its Subcontractor Selection Plan 
submitted with its Statement of Qualifications. 

17.6.2 City may approve the selection of a Subcontractor(s) or Suppliers(s) based only on their 
qualifications when CM@Risk can demonstrate it is in the best interest of the Project. All 
Work that is performed, after such a qualifications-based selection, for a price that is 
negotiated by CM@Risk will be billed in accordance with the GMP for actual costs and may 
be subject to audit by City. 

17.6.2.1 Qualifications based selection of a Subcontractor(s)/Supplier(s) should only occur prior to 
the submittal of the GMP Proposal. 

17.6.2.2 If a Subcontractor/Supplier selection plan was submitted and agreed to by City, CM@Risk 
must apply the plan in the evaluation of the qualifications of a Subcontractor(s) or 
Supplier(s) and provide City with its review and recommendations. 

17.6.2.3 CM@Risk must receive written City approval for each selected Subcontractor(s) and 
Supplier(s). 

17.6.2.4 CM@Risk must negotiate costs for services/supplies from each Subcontractor/Supplier 
selected under this method. 

17.6.3 All Work must be competitively bid unless a Subcontractor or Supplier was selected pursuant 
to Section 17.6.2 above. 

17.6.3.1 CM@Risk must develop Subcontractor and Supplier interest, submit the names of a 
minimum of three qualified Subcontractors or Suppliers for each trade in the Project for 
approval by City and solicit bids for the various Work categories. If there are not three 
qualified Subcontractors/Suppliers available for a specific trade or there are extenuating 
circumstances warranting such, CM@Risk may request approval by City to submit less 
than three names. Without prior written notice to City, no change in the recommended 
Subcontractors/Supplies will be allowed. 

17.6.3.2 If City objects to any nominated Subcontractor/Supplier or to any self-performed Work for 
good reason, CM@Risk must nominate a substitute Subcontractor/Supplier that is 
acceptable to City. 

17.6.3.3 CM@Risk must distribute Drawings and Specifications, and when appropriate, conduct a 
Pre- Bid Conference with prospective Subcontractors and Suppliers. 

17.6.3.4 If CM@Risk desires to self-perform certain portions of the Work, it must request to be one of 
the approved Subcontractor bidders for those specific bid packages. CM@Risk’s bid will 
be evaluated in accordance with the process identified below. If events warrant and City 
concurs that it is necessary in order to ensure compliance with the Project Schedule 
and/or the most recent Detailed Cost Estimate, CM@Risk may be authorized to self-
perform Work without bidding or rebidding the Work. When CM@Risk self-performs work 
without bidding, only the actual costs associated with performing the Work in accordance 
with the approved GMP will be billed and may be subject to audit by City. 

17.6.3.5 CM@Risk must receive, open, record and evaluate the bids; provided, however, that if 
CM@Risk or one of its affiliates is bidding to self-perform the Work that is the subject of the 
bid, then the bids must be received, opened, recorded and evaluated by Project Manager 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-73 of 75  

instead of CM@Risk. Bids for each category of Work must be opened and recorded at a 
pre-determined time. The apparent low bidders must be interviewed to determine the 
responsiveness of their proposals. In evaluating the responsiveness of bid proposals 
CM@Risk, in addition to bid price, may consider the following factors: past performance 
on similar projects, qualifications and experience of personnel assigned, quality 
management plan, approach or understanding of the Work to be performed, and 
performance schedule to complete the Work. The final evaluation of 
Subcontractor/Supplier bids must be done with Project Manager in attendance to observe 
and witness the process. CM@Risk must resolve any Subcontractor/Supplier bid withdrawal, 
protest or disqualification in connection with the award at no increase in the Cost of Work. 

17.6.4 CM@Risk will be required to prepare two different reports on the subcontracting process. 

17.6.4.1 Within fifteen days after each major Subcontractor/Supplier bid opening process; 
CM@Risk must prepare a report for City’s review and approval identifying the 
recommended Subcontractors/Supplier for each category of Work. The report must detail: 
(a) the name of the recommended Subcontractor/Supplier and the amount of the 
Subcontractor/Supplier bid for each sub-agreement; (b) the sum of all recommended 
Subcontractor/Supplier bids received; (c) and trade work and its cost that CM@Risk intends 
to self-perform, if any. 

17.6.4.2 Upon completion of the Subcontractor/Supplier bidding process, CM@Risk must submit 
a summary report to City of the entire Subcontractor/Supplier selection process. The report 
must indicate, by bid process, all Subcontractors/Suppliers contacted to determine 
interest, the Subcontractors/Suppliers solicited, the bids received and costs negotiated, 
and the recommended Subcontractors/Suppliers for each category of Work. 

17.6.5 The approved Subcontractors/Suppliers will provide a Schedule of Values with their bid 
proposals, which will be used to create the overall Project Schedule of Values. 

17.6.6 If after receipt of sub-bids or after award to Subcontractors and Suppliers, City objects to 
any nominated Subcontractor/Supplier or to any self-performed Work without any 
reasonable basis, CM@Risk must nominate a substitute Subcontractor or Supplier, 
preferably if such option is still available, from those who submitted Subcontractor bids 
for the Work affected.  Once such substitute Subcontractors and Suppliers are consented 
to by City, CM@Risk’s proposed GMP for the Work or portion thereof must be 
correspondingly adjusted to reflect any higher or lower costs form any such substitution. 

17.7 GMP PROPOSAL 

17.7.1 When a GMP Proposal is submitted for a phase of the Work, the GMP will have a Detailed Cost 
Estimate of the Costs of the Work (as set forth in Section 15.2) in each phase of the Work 
that is being proposed plus the current estimate for all other Work. City will not approve 
the GMP for the phase of work without a total estimate for the complete Project. City may 
request a GMP Proposal for all or any portion of the Project and at any time during pre-
construction. Any GMP Proposals submitted by CM@Risk must be based on and consistent 
with Baseline Cost Model and the current update/revised Detailed Cost Estimate at the 
time of the request and include any clarifications or assumptions upon which the GMP 
Proposal(s) are based. 

17.7.2 A GMP Proposal for the entire Project will be the sum of the Cost of the Work, CM@Risk Fee, 
and General Conditions Cost. CM@Risk guarantees to complete the Project at or less than 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-74 of 75  

the final GMP Proposal amount plus approved Change Orders. CM@Risk will be responsible 
for any costs for expenses that would cause the Cost of the Work actually incurred, 
including the Construction Fee and General Conditions Costs, to exceed the GMP. 

17.7.3 CM@Risk must prepare its GMP Proposal in accordance with City’s request for GMP Proposal 
requirements based on the most current completed Drawings and Specifications at that 
time, which unless otherwise directed by City in writing, will be at 100% Construction 
Drawings. CM@Risk must mark the face of each document of each set upon which its GMP 
Proposal is based. These documents must be identified as the GMP Plans and 
Specifications. CM@Risk must send one set of those documents to the Project Manager, 
keep one set and return the third set to the Design Professional. 

17.7.4 An updated/revised Detailed Project Schedule, Equipment Plan, and Schedule of Values 
must be included in any GMP Proposal(s), all of which must reflect the GMP Plans and 
Specifications the Detailed Project Schedule must be shown in relationship to the Project 
Schedule and identify any variance to the Baseline Project Schedule. Any such Detailed 
Project Schedule updates/revisions must continue to comply with the requirements of 
Section 17.3.1 through 17.3.5. 

17.7.5 GMP Proposals(s) Review and Approval 

17.7.5.1 CM@Risk must meet with the Project Team to review the GMP Proposal(s) and the written 
statement of its basis. In the event the Project Team discovers inconsistencies or 
inaccuracies in the information presented, CM@Risk must make adjustments as 
necessary to the GMP Proposal. 

17.7.5.2 If during the review and negotiation of GMP Proposals design changes are required, City 
may authorize and cause the Design Professional to revise the GMP Plans and Specifications 
to the extent necessary to reflect the agreed-upon assumptions and clarifications contained 
in the final approved GMP Proposal. Such revised GMP Plans and Specification will be 
furnished to CM@Risk. CM@Risk must promptly notify the Project Team in writing if any 
such revised GMP Plans and Specifications are inconsistent with the agreed upon 
assumptions and clarifications. 

17.7.6 All portions of or items comprising the GMP Proposal are subject to audit by City, as 
deemed appropriate by City, including, without limitation, any based upon unit prices or 
Work to be self- performed by CM@Risk, or its affiliates. 

17.8 PAYMENT PROCEDURE FOR PRE-CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 

17.8.1 Requests for monthly payments by CM@Risk for Pre-Construction Services must be 
submitted monthly and must be accompanied by a progress report, detailed invoices 
and receipts, if applicable. Any requests for payment must include, as a minimum, a 
narrative description of the tasks accomplished during the billing period, a listing of any 
Deliverables submitted, and copies of any Subconsultants’ requests for payment, plus 
similar narrative and listings of Deliverables associated with their Work. Payment for 
services negotiated as a lump sum will be made in accordance with the percentage of work 
completed during the preceding month. 

17.8.2 In no event will City pay more than seventy-five (75%) of the Agreement Price until 
acceptance of ALL Pre-Construction Services and award of the final approved Construction 
Services Agreement for the entire Project by City Council. If CM@Risk does not prepare a 



General Conditions 
 

Revised: 7/20/22  GC-75 of 75  

GMP Proposal that is acceptable to City, or the GMP Proposal exceeds the City’s 
Construction Budget, then CM@Risk understands and acknowledges that it will forfeit any 
right to receive the 25% of the Agreement Price being retained by City. 

17.8.3 CM@Risk agrees that no charges or claims for costs or damages of any type will be made by 
it for any delays or hindrances beyond the reasonable control of City during the progress of 
any portion of Pre-Construction Services specified in this Agreement. Such delays or 
hindrances, if any, will be solely compensated for by an extension of time for such 
reasonable period and may be mutually agreed between the parties. It is understood 
and agreed, however, that permitting CM@Risk to proceed to complete any such Services, 
in whole or in part after the date to which the time of completion may have been extended, 
will in no way act as a waiver on the part of City of any of their respective legal rights herein. 

17.8.4 No compensation to CM@Risk will be allowed contrary to Article I, Chapter I, Title 34 of the 
Arizona Revised Statutes. 

17.8.5 If any service(s) executed by CM@Risk is abandoned or suspended in whole or in part, for 
a period of more than 180 days through no fault of CM@Risk, CM@Risk is to be paid for 
the services performed prior to the abandonment or suspension. 

17.9 SURVIVAL OF THE DESIGN SERVICES AGREEMENT, DUTIES, OBLIGATIONS AND 
WARRANTIES 
If the GMP Proposal is accepted by City and a Construction Agreement is entered into 
between City and CM@Risk, the duties, obligations and warranties of CM@Risk under the 
Pre- Construction Services Agreement survive and are incorporated into the resulting 
Construction Agreement. 

 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-1 of 33 

 

General Conditions Appendices 
 

 
 

SECTION 15 – APPENDICES 
 

The following Appendices attached hereto are referenced in the General Conditions and 
are incorporated herein. 
 

 
Appendix 1 – Policy Statement for Calculating Delays and Damages 
Appendix 2 – Cost Reduction Incentive Proposals for Design Bid Build Agreements 
Appendix 3 – Contractor’s Affidavit Regarding Settlement of Claims 
Appendix 4 – Forms of Performance Bond 
Appendix 5 – Forms of Payment Bond 
Appendix 6 – Dispute Resolution 
Appendix 7 – Certificate of Completion 
Appendix 8 – Construction Sign Detail 
Appendix 9 – Cost of the Work (Applicable solely to Construction Manager at Risk and 

Job Order Contracting) 
Appendix 10 Landscape Establishment Period 
 

 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-2 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 1  

 

 
CALCULATING DELAYS AND DAMAGES 

 
 
The purpose of this policy statement is to establish guidelines and procedures for negotiation 
between the Contractor and City of Chandler relating to compensation for delays pursuant to 
Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) 34-221(F). This policy statement contains notice requirements in 
addition to those set forth in the Agreement Documents, and will be the Agreement Provision 
contemplated by that statute. 

 
NOTE: As used herein, the term “Engineer” will refer to the City of Chandler City Engineer or 
his/her designated representative. Nothing in this Policy Statement will be construed to void any 
provision in the Agreement which requires timely notice of delays or provides for arbitration or 
any other procedure for settlement or provides for liquidated damages. 

 
I. TYPES OF DELAYS: 

 
For the purposes of this document, there are essentially four types of delays encountered by 
City of Chandler Construction Contractors; excusable/compensable, excusable/non-
compensable, non- excusable, and concurrent. Only delays that extend Agreement 
Completion Time set forth in the Agreement Document will be considered for issues 
relating to Agreement extensions or additional compensation. All other delays are 
considered to be activity delays and do not entitle the Contractor to either time 
extensions or additional compensation. Agreement Completion Time will be defined as the 
date set forth in Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) Uniform Standard Specification 
Section 101 and as may be modified by the Agreement Documents. 

 
A. Excusable/Compensable: 

 
These are delays caused solely by the City’s actions or inactions, are unreasonable 
under the circumstances, and which were not within the contemplation of the 
parties to the Agreement at or prior to the time of execution of the 
Agreement. Since the Contractor presumably has no control over the events 
causing the delay, he may be entitled to both Agreement time extensions and 
additional compensation for delay damages. Further, he/she may be entitled to 
additional compensation from the impact of that delay on other work. Examples of 
excusable/compensable (E/C) delays include: failure to properly locate an 
underground City-owned utility within 2 feet of the actual location; failure to 
relocate City-owned utilities far enough in advance of construction in an area 
where the Contractor is scheduled to work that it delays start or completion of 
the Contractor’s regularly scheduled work; failure to provide City-furnished 
equipment or materials in a timely manner if required by the Agreement; failure 
to acquire necessary Right-of-Way or Public Utility Easements prior to the Contractor 
beginning Work in the area; failure to timely return Shop Drawings or other 
Agreement Submittals in accordance with the Agreement; unreasonable delay by 
the City in making decisions which affect critical activities; surveying errors when the 
City is contractually responsible for providing Project Surveying. This list is not meant 
to be all inclusive, but is intended merely as examples of the type of City action or 
inaction which can result in a Contractor’s claim for additional time and 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-3 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 1  

 

compensation. 
 
 

B. Excusable/Non-compensable: 
 

These are delays over which neither the City nor the Contractor had control. Since 
both parties to the Agreement have been potentially damaged by the delay, but 
neither have caused it, only Time Extensions are warranted. Examples of excusable, 
non-compensable (E/N) delays include: unusually severe weather; fire; acts of God; 
failure of non-City owned utilities (SRP, CenturyLink, Cable TV, Southern Pacific 
Railroad, and Southwest Gas, etc.) to properly or timely locate accurately; failure of 
non-City owned utilities to relocate in advance of construction; the voluntary or 
involuntary filing for Bankruptcy protection by a Supplier or Subcontractor which 
causes the Supplier/Subcontractor to fail to meet a contractual deadline provided 
the Contractor can provide documentation that he/she executed the required 
Purchase Orders/Subcontract Agreements and received delivery schedules which, 
if met, would have eliminated the delay; delays as a result of an incomplete 
shutdown of a City or non-City owned utility main (the City does not guarantee a 
complete shutdown). This list also is not necessarily all inclusive but merely 
indicative of type and class of E/N delays. 

 
C. Non-excusable/Non-compensable: 

 
These are delays caused by the actions or inactions of Contractor or an officer, 
employee, agent, Subcontractor, Supplier or any other party for whom the 
Contractor is responsible. Since the Contractor has assumed responsibility for the 
risks associated with the events that caused the delay, he/she are not entitled to 
either time extensions or monetary delay damages. All non-excusable delays are 
also non-compensable. Examples of non- excusable, non-compensable (N/N) 
delays include: failure to perform by the Contractor, its Subcontractors and/or 
Suppliers (except as noted in section I.B above); failure to provide adequate 
labor, materials, and/or equipment on the Project; failure to perform 
contractually-required coordination with utilities, agencies and other Contractors; 
failure to notify the Engineer, in writing, of delay impacts within two working days, 
as required by MAG 104.2.3, or the next work day, as required by MAG 109.8.2; 
failure to timely submit Shop Drawings; failure to pothole or otherwise visually locate 
utilities sufficiently ahead of the Work to allow the Engineer to direct corrective 
action when necessary; delays due to retesting of previously failed work, re-
inspection, and/or restaking resulting from faulty workmanship, poor quality 
control, or lack of compliance with Agreement Specifications. Again, this list is not 
necessarily all inclusive. 

 
D. Concurrent: 

 
When two or more delays occur simultaneously or overlap, each delay is 
analyzed separately to determine its impact on the overall project completion date 
based on when that delay started. Once again, only those delays which actually 
extend the Agreement completion time are considered as delays. The 
concurrent delay is considered an additional delay only to the extent it prolongs 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-4 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 1  

 

the delay to the Agreement Completion Time beyond the date that the one it is 
concurrent with had already delayed that date. For example, if two delays are 
concurrent, and one is five days long and the second is seven days long, the second 
concurrent delay will only extend the Agreement Completion Time by two days. The 
same method of analysis is used when there are multiple concurrent delays. Only 
those extending the Project Completion Date are considered to be delays for the 
purposes of this policy. The portion of each concurrent delay that delays the 
completion of the work is classified in the same manner as described previously for 
individual delays and being either E/C, E/N or N/N. 

 

An example of a concurrent delay is where the City delays furnishing material, 
but the Contractor could not have installed it anyway due to unusually severe 
weather. The effect of the first delaying activity will extend for the full duration 
and will be considered controlling on the Contractor’s schedule. A subsequent, 
concurrent delay will thereafter only be considered to effect the project completion 
(if at all) once the first delaying activity has ceased to impact the project completion. 
In this case, if the unusually severe weather continued and delayed the work after 
the material was delivered, the first portion of the delay would be classified E/C 
(delay for material) and the second as E/N (delay due to unusually severe weather). 
Using the procedure set forth above, the entire concurrent portion would be 
considered E/C as shown in the chart which follows. 

 
Example of a Concurrent Delay: 

 
 
 
 

E/C Delay E/N Delay 
 
 
 

City Related Material Delay 
 

 
 

Rain Delay 
 
 
 
 
 
II. ANALYZING THE DELAY: 

 
The Contractor must provide all documents required or requested by the Engineer to analyze the 
delay(s). It is important to understand that, prior to the delay analysis, delays and their impacts are 
alleged issues. The information the Contractor provides will be compared with the Inspector’s Daily 
Log, Schedules and other available Project information and together they will support or refute that 
delays occurred and, if so, how they impact other work and the overall project completion. The 
Contractor’s delay in providing these documents will be considered prima facie evidence that either 
the delay did not occur or it did not impact the Project Completion Date and any claim for time 
extension or damages will be denied. 

 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-5 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 1  

 

The Engineer will accept delay analyses in CPM format, as these may demonstrate to his/her 
satisfaction whether or not Project Completion has been impacted by a specific event. If the 
Contractor chooses not to use CPM scheduling procedures, then the burden will be on the 
Contractor to prove to the Engineer’s satisfaction that the Project Completion has been 
impacted. The procedures below assume that the Contractor is using CPM scheduling methods. 
As a minimum the Contractor must provide the following materials to the Engineer: 

 
A. As-Planned Schedule. The initial construction schedule, required by the Agreement 

Documents, will be considered the baseline schedule. It is to the Contractor’s 
advantage that the As-Planned (baseline) Schedule be as detailed as possible in 
order for delays, as they occur, to be incorporated into the schedule in 
representative locations. It is also to the Contractor’s advantage to use a computer 
software program to generate the schedule since updated schedules are required 
monthly by the Agreement Documents and since updated schedules are 
required to support delays and requests for additional compensation for delays. 
The As-Planned (baseline) Schedule must be presented in network format which 
clearly shows the interrelationships of the activities. The Contractor must also 
provide a printout of the activities showing early start, early finish, late start, late 
finish, duration and float. The activity list printout must also indicate predecessor 
and successor activities. 

 
B. As-Built Schedules. The as planned (baseline) schedule must be updated with 

complete progress-to-date information (actualized) up to the date of the start of the 
alleged delay. Each updated schedule will serve as the as-built schedule for analyzing 
the alleged delay and provide a new baseline as-planned schedule for the next delay. 
This process must be repeated for each alleged delay as it occurs. In updating the 
baseline schedule, the alleged delay must be treated as an activity and inserted into 
the schedule as a predecessor to the impacted activity (ies). When an activity that 
has already started is impacted, it is preferable to divide this activity into two 
parts and show the impact affecting the second part. For schedules which 
incorporate a time line (or data date), the delay activity must be inserted at the time 
it actually occurred. Some software scheduling programs have a PAUSE-RESUME 
feature that can be used to facilitate the requirements. The updated schedule must 
also be accompanied by a listing of activities as with the baseline schedule. This 
activities list must contain the alleged delay as an activity showing the duration and 
the activities which are predecessors and successors to it. When computer 
generated schedules are used, the Contractor must provide, in electronic media 
format, the complete data files for the updated schedule that included the delay 
activity, preferably either in Suretrak or in Microsoft Project. Each electronic media 
must contain a label identifying the Project name, Contractor’s name, program 
name and version number, data date and project finish date. 

 
C. Other Documents: In order to determine the amount of the alleged delay and if 

it is compensable, the Contractor must provide all backup documentation relevant to 
the issue and as required by the Engineer. This documentation must include copies 
of such items as: purchase orders; delivery schedules; correspondence; memoranda 
of telephone calls; force account daily worksheets (initialed by the Inspector); 
payroll data; estimating (bid) worksheets; and any other materials which may be 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-6 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 1  

 

requested by the Engineer. 
 

D. Procedure: Only after receipt of sufficient documentation will the Engineer analyze 
each alleged delay and determine if it is supported or refuted. If supported, the 
Engineer will determine if it is excusable or non-excusable, compensable or non-
compensable. If the Engineer determines that the delay did not affect the Project 
Completion, the as-planned schedule, which has been updated to the date of the 
alleged delay, must be revised to indicate this. If the Engineer determines the delay 
did occur but was N/N, then no time extension will be granted. It is imperative that 
an actualized schedule be submitted as soon as the occurrence of the alleged delay 
is known. In no event will the Contractor submit an actualized updated schedule 
later than 60 days after the occurrence of the alleged delay becomes known. 

 
If the Engineer determines the delay did occur and was excusable but, due to a 
reason listed in section I.B. is non-compensable, he/she will determine the length 
of the E/N delay and prepare a Change Order to add that time to the Agreement. 
The Engineer’s decision will be final. 

 
If the Engineer determines the delay was excusable and compensable, he/she will 
determine the length of the E/C delay and proceed to review the Contractor’s 
damage calculations in accordance with Section III. The Engineer will check the 
Contractor’s calculations, review the backup documentation provided, and prepare a 
Change Order to cover both the additional compensation and the time extension. 
The Engineer’s decision on both the time extension and additional compensation for 
the delay will be final. 

 
If the issue involves a concurrent delay, the Engineer will analyze available data 
to determine the portions which are E/C, E/N, and/or N/N as described above. The 
Engineer will proceed to determine the length of E/C delay and verify the Contractor’s 
delay damage calculations, if any are provided. Upon completion of this review, the 
Engineer will prepare a Change Order for the Contractor’s review and signature. 
The Engineer’s decision regarding excusable delay and additional compensation for 
the delay is final. 

 
The amount of time the Engineer will require to analyze the alleged delay(s) will 
depend upon the Engineer’s workload, the complexity of the delay analysis, 
availability of supporting data, extent of cooperation by the Contractor, and other 
factors beyond the Engineer’s control. It is entirely possible other delay(s) may 
occur while the Engineer is analyzing particular claim for delay(s). The Engineer’s 
failure to respond to the Contractor in a set period of time will not be used as the 
basis for a further delay claim or as justification for extending and existing delay 
claim. The time required for delay analysis by the Engineer will not be counted 
against the time allotted for processing Final Payment as required by (MAG Section 
109.7(B)) or the release of retention and Final Payment as prescribed by A.R.S. 
Arizona Revised Statutes §34-221. 

 
III. CALCULATING MONETARY DELAY DAMAGES: 

 
Additional compensation for delay, when authorized by the Engineer, will be calculated in accordance 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-7 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 1  

 

with MAG Section 109.5 ACTUAL COST WORK with the following exceptions: 
 

A. No additional compensation or other monetary damages will be awarded or paid for 
any loss of anticipated profits by the Contractor, Subcontractors or Suppliers. 

 
B. No additional compensation or other monetary damages will be awarded for home 

office overhead or non-project general conditions of the Contractor, Subcontractors 
or Suppliers. 

 
C. Equipment: 

 
1. Contractor-owned equipment rate calculations must be computed in 

accordance with Section 109.04(D)(3), Arizona Department of Transportation 
“Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction,” 2008 or latest 
edition and as modified herein. Year and regional adjustment factors must 
be based on the most recent publications of the Rental Rate Blue Book for 
Construction Equipment, published by the Equipment Guide-Book 
Company, San Jose, CA, same as provided by ADOT and in print as of the 
date of alleged delay. In no event will the compensation for Contractor-
owned equipment exceed the purchase price, including tax, paid by the 
Contractor for the equipment. Compensation will not be allowed for small 
tools or equipment that show a daily equipment rental rate of less than $5.00 
per day or for unlisted equipment that has a value of less than for 
hundred dollars ($400.00). 

2. For leased and rented equipment or equipment not otherwise listed in the 
Blue Book, rental contracts, or other supporting data will be used to establish 
the hourly rate. No hourly operating expense will be allowed for delay on 
standby equipment. In no case will equipment be considered for rental which 
exceeds the hourly rate for the first eight hours and the daily rate 
divided by eight for all additional hours as compared with similar 
equipment listed in the Blue Book. The hourly standby rate must be 
computed as the lesser of: 

 
a. Dividing the monthly invoice or rental value by 176 hours 

per month when the equipment is utilized by the Contractor 
for more than three weeks; 

 
b. Dividing the monthly invoice or rental value by 40 hours per 

week when the equipment is utilized by the Contractor for 
more than three days. 

 
In no event will compensation be paid for delay at more than 
8 hours per day or 40 hours per week. 

 
3. Except for vehicles used by supervisory personnel, all equipment will be paid 

at the “standby” rate during the delay period. 
 

4. Equipment brought solely to mitigate the delay (such as pumps, light plants, 
etc.) may be paid in accordance with ADOT section 109.04(D) (3). 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-8 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 1  

 

 
5. The Blue Book regional adjustment will apply in determining rental rates. 

 
D. Material: 

 
Allowable material charges may include, in addition to material incorporated in the 
work material used to mitigate the delay such as barricades, plates, shoring, cold 
mix, etc. Except in emergencies the Contractor will not employ such material 
without the prior written approval of the Engineer. 

 
E. Labor: 

 
1. Except for Supervisory Personnel (Superintendent, Project Engineer, and 

Foremen), labor wages will not be paid after the first one-half day of 
claimed delay or impact. It is expected the Contractor will reassign or 
layoff unneeded employees. 

 
2. For Foreman wages to be included, that Foreman must have been 

actively employed on the project prior to the commencement of the delay 
and be directly responsible for the activity being delayed. 

 
3. Labor burden must be actual amounts incurred but must not exceed the 

ADOT approved rate. 
 

F. All costs (equipment, material, and labor) must be substantiated by the City of 
Chandler’s Daily Work Reports. 

 
IV. DOCUMENT REQUIRED FOR CLAIM ANALYSIS: 

 
For purposes of reviewing the Contractor’s request for additional compensation, it will be required 
that the Contractor submit the following listed information. Information requested must be prepared 
on forms which are substantially similar to the City of Chandler’s Daily Work Report form, a copy of 
which is attached as an exhibit. 

 
A. Labor: 

 
For each employee, laborer, and foreman, for which compensation is requested: 
Name, classification, dates of work performed, daily hours worked, total hours worked, 
labor rates, labor burden rates, overtime or premium time charges. Further, the 
Contractor must make available for inspection and copying to the Engineer the 
following listed documentation. 

 
1. Certified payroll reports for the period of work claimed. 
2. Accounting of Fringe Benefits – certified by a CPA. 
3. Contractor’s and Subcontractor’s daily field reports and daily diaries. 

 
B. Materials: 

 
For all materials for which compensation is requested, if any, total quantities of 
materials, prices, extensions and transportation costs must be provided on a daily 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-9 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 1  

 

basis. Further, the Contractor must make available for inspection and copying to the 
Engineer the following listed documentation. 

 
1. Invoices for all materials incorporated. 
2. Weigh tickets. 
3. Purchase orders. 
4. Delivery schedules. 
5. Quotes or proposals from manufacturers or supplier. 
6. Freight bills, Bills of Lading, or other documentation to show transportation 

costs. 
7. Restocking charges-invoices from vendor. 

 
C. Equipment: 

 
For all equipment, the Contractor must provide the Engineer with the designation, 
dates and hours of usage, dates and hours of standby, if any, daily hours, total hours, 
rental rates and extension for each unit of equipment and machinery. Rental 
rates will be as established in Section III. Further, the Contractor must make 
available for inspection and copying to the Engineer the following listed 
documentation. 

 
1. Owned: 

a. Purchase contracts(s). 
b. Depreciation schedule(s). 
c. Invoices for fuel, lube, repairs and other operating costs. 

 
2. Leased: 

a. Lease agreement with hourly rate, overtime rate, double shift rate, etc. 
b. Invoices or other documentation showing hours worked on a daily 

basis. 
 

D. Subcontractors/Owner-Operators: 
 

In the event the Contractor submits a claim which includes requests for 
compensation for Subcontractors of Owner-Operators, the same information 
requested of the Contractor must be provided by the Subcontractor/Owner-
Operator. Further, the Contractor must make available for inspection and copying 
to the Engineer the following listed documentation. 

 
1. Bid/Estimate work sheets and/or spreadsheets. 
2. Subcontract Agreements or Agreements with Owner-Operator. 
3. All invoices and billing statements received from the Subcontractor/Owner- 

Operator which relates to the amount requested. 
 

E. Miscellaneous: 
 

Further, the Contractor must make available for inspection and copying to the 
Engineer the following listed documentation. 

 
1. Evidence of payment for bonds and insurance premiums (MAG 109.5.6). 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-10 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 1  

 

2. Taxes – unless the Contractor can show otherwise, taxes are reimbursable at 
65% of the total cost (less bonds and insurance). 

 
V. TIME LIMIT ON SUBMISSIONS OF CLAIM FOR DELAY OR IMPACT DAMAGES: 

 
No claims for delay or impact damages will be considered or allowed more than 45 days after the 
event or occurrence which the Contractor claims gives rise to the delay or impact. In no event will 
a claim for delay or impact damages be considered after submission by the Contractor of the Final 
Payment Request. 

 
 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-11 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 2 
 

 

 

 
COST REDUCTION INCENTIVE PROPOSALS 

FOR DESIGN BID BUILD AGREEMENTS 
 

 
The Contractor may submit to the Engineer proposals for modifying the Plans, Specifications, or 
other requirements of the Agreement for the sole purpose of reducing the total cost of Project 
construction. The proposals must not impair in any manner the essential functions or characteristics 
of the project; including but not limited to service life, economy of operations, ease of maintenance, 
desired appearance, compatibility with existing or planned equipment, standardization of 
systems, or  design and safety standards. 

 
It must not be inferred from this Policy that the Engineer is required to consider any proposal 
submitted. 

 

Submissions that propose changes in the basic design of a bridge, propose changes in pipe line 
size, materials, bedding conditions, pipe specifications; or that propose any change in pavement 
design will not be considered. 

 
Proposals submitted pursuant to this Policy will be identified as Cost Reduction Incentive Proposals. 
They must be submitted in writing and, at a minimum, contain the following. 

 
1. Complete the attached or similar cost reduction incentive proposal form. 

 

2. A description of both the existing Agreement Requirements for performing the work 
and the proposed changes. 

 
3. All Engineering Drawings and computations necessary for the thorough and 

expeditious evaluation. 
 

4. An itemization of the existing Agreement Requirements that must be changed if the 
Proposal is adopted and a recommendation as to the manner in which the change 
should be made. 

 
5. A detailed estimate of the cost of performing the Work under the existing 

Agreement and under the proposed changes, including the cost of developing 
and implementing the changes. 

 
6. The Agreement items affected by the proposed changes and any variations in 

quantities resulting from the changes. 
 

7. An objective estimate of any effects the proposal will have on collateral cost to the 
City, costs of related items, and cost of maintenance and operation. 

 
8. A statement as to the effect that the Proposal will have on the time for the 

completion of the Project. 
 

9. A statement as to the time by which a Change Order adopting the Proposal must 
be executed or when the Engineer must have given verbal approval. 

 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-12 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 2 
 

 

 

Proposals will be processed expeditiously; however, the City will not be liable for any delay in acting 
upon any Proposal nor for any failure to accept any Proposal pursuant to this Special Provision. 

 
The Engineer will be the sole judge of the acceptability of a Proposal and of the estimated net 
savings in construction costs from the adoption of all or any part of the Proposal. The Contractor 
will be notified in writing by the Engineer as to whether his/her Proposal has been accepted. The 
decision by the Engineer is final. 

 

When the City deems such action to be appropriate, it reserves the right to require the Contractor to 
share equally in the cost to the City of investigating, evaluating, and processing the proposal as a 
condition for the consideration of such Proposal. Such cost must be shared whether the Proposal is 
accepted or rejected. When such a condition is imposed, the City will estimate these costs and the 
Contractor must indicate his acceptance thereof in writing. Such acceptance will authorize the City 
to deduct the Contractor’s share of the costs from any monies due or that may become due to the 
Contractor under the Agreement. 

 
If the Contractor’s Proposal is accepted in whole or in part, the necessary Agreement 
Modifications and Agreement Price Adjustments will be affected by the execution of a Change Order 
which will specifically state that it is executed pursuant to this Special Provision. 

 
The Contractor must continue to perform the work in accordance with the requirements of the 
Agreement until a Change Order incorporating the Proposal has been executed or until he/she 
has been given verbal approval by the Engineer that his/her Proposal has been accepted. If the 
Change Order has not been executed or he/she has not been given verbal approval on or before the 
date specified on the attached cost reduction incentive proposal form or on or before such other date 
as the Contractor may have subsequently specified in writing, the Proposal may be deemed to be 
rejected. 

 
The executed Change Order will incorporate the changes in the Plans, Specifications, or other 
requirements of the Agreement which are necessary to permit the Proposal, or such part of it which 
has been accepted, to be put into effect, and will include any condition – upon which the City’s 
approval thereof is based, if such approval is conditional. The executed Change Order may also 
extend the time for the completion of the Agreement if such an extension has been deemed to be 
warranted by the Engineer as a result of his evaluation of the Proposal. 

 
The executed Change Order will also establish the estimated net savings in the cost of performing 
the Work attributable to the Proposal effectuated by the Change Order. In determining the net 
savings, the right is reserved to the Engineer to disregard the Agreement bid prices if, in his/her 
judgment, such prices do not represent a fair measure of the value of the Work to be performed or 
to be deleted. The net savings will be established by determining the Contractor’s cost of performing 
the Work, taking into account his/her cost of developing the Proposal and implementing the 
change, and reducing  this amount by any ascertainable collateral costs to the City. The executed 
Change Order may provide that the Contractor be paid 50 percent of the estimated net savings 
amount. 

 
The executed Change Order may also provide for the adjustment in Agreement prices. Agreement 
prices may be adjusted by subtracting the City’s share of the accrued net savings. 

 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-13 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 2 
 

 

 

The amount specified to be paid to the Contractor in the executed Change Order which effectuates a 
Cost Reduction Proposal will constitute full compensation to the Contractor for the Cost Reduction 
Proposal and the performance of the work thereof pursuant to the said Change Order. 

 
Upon acceptance of a Cost Reduction Incentive Proposal, any restrictions imposed by the 
Contractor on its use or on disclosure of the information will become void, and the City thereafter 
will have the right to use all or any part of the Proposal without obligation or compensation of any 
kind to the Contractor. 

 
 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-14 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 2 
 

 

 

 
 

COST REDUCTION INCENTIVE PROPOSAL FORM 
 
 
 TO: CIP City Engineer 
 
 FROM:  
 
 PROJECT NAME: [TITLE] 
 
 CITY PROJECT NUMBER: [####] 
 
 DATE:  
 

Summary of Change (Brief description of proposed change including advantages and disadvantages): 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ESTIMATED COST SUMMARY (Attached detailed estimate): 
 

 
 
A. 

 
 

Original Cost: 

   
 

$    
B. Proposed Cost:   $    
C. Construction Savings (A-B):   $    
D. Gross Savings (Included OH %, Bond %) $    
E. Contractor Implementing 

 
  $_   

F. City Implementing Cost:   $_   
Reduction in Agreement Price (C+D-E-F) x 50%: $    

 
 
 
 

Date by which a Change Order must be issued so as to obtain maximum cost reduction: 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-15 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 3 

 

 

 
 

 

CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA 
PUBLIC WORKS & UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 

 
CONTRACTOR'S AFFIDAVIT REGARDING SETTLEMENT OF CLAIMS 

 
 

________________________, Arizona 
Date ____________________________ 

 
Project Name:  [TITLE] 
City Project No.:  [####] 

To the City of Chandler, Arizona 

Gentlemen: 

This is to certify that all lawful claims for materials, rental of equipment and labor used in connection 
with the construction of the above project, whether by subcontractor or claimant in person, have been 
duly discharged. 
 
The undersigned, for the total compensation of $________________________, as set out in the final pay 
application, as full and complete payment under the terms of the Agreement, hereby waives and 
relinquishes any and all further claims or right of lien under, in connection with, or as a result of the 
above described project.  The undersigned further agrees to indemnify and save harmless the City of 
Chandler against any and all liens, claims or liens, suits, actions, damages, charges and expenses 
whatsoever, which said City may suffer arising out of the failure of the undersigned to pay for all labor 
performances and materials furnished for the performance of said installation. 
 
Signed and dated at ________________, this _________ day of _______________ 20_____. 
 
 

__________________________________ 
CONTRACTOR 

 
By _______________________________ 

STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF MARICOPA ) 
 
The foregoing instrument was subscribed and sworn to before me this __________ day of 
__________________ 20 _________. 
 

___________________________________ 
     Notary Public 
 

___________________________________ 
     My Commission Expires 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-16 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 4 

 

 

 
 

PERFORMANCE BOND 
 

ARIZONA STATUTORY PERFORMANCE BOND 
PURSUANT TO TITLES 28, 34, AND 41, ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES 

(Penalty of this bond must be 100% of the Agreement amount) 
 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS THAT:___________________________________________________ 
 
(hereinafter "Principal"), and __________________________________________________________ (hereinafter "Surety"), a 
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of ______________ with its principal office in the City 
of _____________________________, holding a certificate of authority to transact surety business in Arizona issued by 
the Director of Insurance pursuant to Title 20, Chapter 2, Article 1, as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto 
__________________________(hereinafter "Obligee") in the amount of __________________________________________ 
(Dollars) ($___________), for the payment whereof, Principal and Surety bind themselves, and their heirs, 
administrators, executors, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 
 

WHEREAS, the Principal has entered into a certain written Agreement with the Obligee, dated  
 
the ____________ day of _______________________, 20___ for construction of [TITLE], [####] which Agreement is hereby 
referred to and made a part hereof as fully and to the same extent as if copies at length herein. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that if the Principal faithfully performs 
and fulfills all the undertakings, covenants, terms, and conditions of the Agreement during the original term of the 
Agreement and any extension of the Agreement, with or without notice of the Surety, and during the life of any 
guaranty required under the Agreement, and also performs and fulfills all the undertakings, covenants, terms, 
conditions, and agreements of all duly authorized modifications of the Agreement that may hereafter be made, 
notice of which modifications to the Surety being hereby waived, the above obligation is void.  Otherwise it 
remains in full force and effect. 
 

PROVIDED, HOWEVER that this bond is executed pursuant to the provisions of Title 34, Chapter 2, Article 2, 
Arizona Revised Statutes, and all liabilities on this bond will be determined in accordance with the provisions of 
Title 34, Chapter 2, Article 2, Arizona Revised Statutes, to the same extent as if it were copied at length in this 
Agreement. 
 

The prevailing party in a suit on this bond may recover as part of the judgment reasonable attorney fees 
that may be fixed by a judge of the court. 
 

Witness our hands this ________________ day of ____________________, 20__. 
  

 
 
 
____________________________________ 
PRINCIPAL          SEAL 

___________________________________ 
              AGENT OF RECORD 

  
 
By _________________________________ 
 
 
____________________________________ 
SURETY   SEAL 

 
___________________________________ 
                AGENT ADDRESS 
 

  
 

 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-17 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 5  

 

 
PAYMENT BOND 

 
 

ARIZONA STATUTORY PAYMENT BOND 
PURSUANT TO TITLES 28, 34, AND 41, OF THE ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES 

(Penalty of this Bond must be 100% of the Agreement amount) 
 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS THAT:________________________________________________  
 
(hereinafter "Principal"), as Principal, and _________________________________________(hereinafter "Surety"), a 
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of __________________   with its principal office in the 
City of __________________, holding a certificate of authority to transact surety business in Arizona issued by the 
Director of the Department of Insurance pursuant to Title 20, Chapter 2, Article 1, as Surety, are held and firmly 
bound unto ________________________  (hereinafter "Obligee") in the amount of 
______________________________________________ (Dollars) ($___________), for the payment whereof, the Principal and 
Surety bind themselves, and their heirs, administrators, executors, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, 
firmly by these presents. 
 
WHEREAS, the Principal has entered into a certain written Agreement with the Obligee, dated the _________ day of 
_______________________, 20___ for construction of [TITLE], [####] which Agreement is hereby referred to and made 
a part hereof as fully and to the same extent as if copied at length herein. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that if the Principal promptly pays all 
moneys due to all persons supplying labor or materials to the Principal or the Principal's subcontractors in the 
prosecution of the work provided for in said Agreement, this obligation is void. Otherwise it remains in full force 
and effect. 
 

PROVIDED, HOWEVER that this bond is executed pursuant to the provisions of Title 34, Chapter 2, Article 2 
Arizona Revised Statutes, and all liabilities on this bond will be determined in accordance with the provisions, 
conditions and limitations of Title 34, Chapter 2, Article 2, Arizona Revised Statutes, to the same extent as if it were 
copied at length in this Agreement. 
 

The prevailing party in a suit on this bond may recover as part of the judgment reasonable attorney fees 
that may be fixed by a judge of the court. 
 

Witness our hands this ________________ day of ____________________, 20__. 
   

 
____________________________________ 
PRINCIPAL          SEAL 

___________________________________ 
                  AGENT OF RECORD 

  
 
By _________________________________ 
 
 
____________________________________ 
SURETY   SEAL 

 
___________________________________ 
                   AGENT ADDRESS 

  
 

 
 
 
 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-18 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 6 

 

 

 
 

DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 

A. INFORMAL DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 

The parties to the Agreement agree that time is of the essence in relation to 
performance of the Agreement and completion of the Project, therefore any and all 
disputes in relation to the Agreement will initially be referred to the Project 
Manager, the Design Professional Representative and/or the Contractor 
Representative as applicable to the dispute, for immediate resolution. If, after 
good faith efforts to reach a resolution, none is reached, any party to the dispute 
may submit the dispute to the Dispute Resolution Representative (“DRR”) process 
set forth below, which is intended to be an expedited process. 

 
B. DISPUTE RESOLUTION REPRESENTATIVE (“DRR”) PROCESS 

 
1. The Parties under the Agreement agree that all claims and disputes in relation 

to the Project which are not resolved in the ordinary course of the Project 
(“Claim” or “Claims”) will, as a prerequisite to any mediation, or litigation of 
the Claim, first be submitted for resolution between the designated 
Dispute Resolution Representatives of the Parties as set forth herein (the 
“DRR Process”). 

 
2. The DRR Process will be initiated through service of a DRR Notice as set 

forth below: 
 

a. For claims by the Contractor or the Design Professional, the DRR 
Process will be initiated by the party asserting the claim serving 
written notice on the City setting forth in detail: (i) the basis for the 
claim; (ii) the effect of the Claim upon the construction of, and/or 
Project Schedule for, the Project; 
(iii) the specific relief requested, the amount thereof, and how such 
was calculated; (iv) the parties involved in the Claim, and how 
they are involved; (v) the specific Agreement provisions in the 
Agreement Documents (including, if applicable, drawings and 
specifications) which apply; and (vi) efforts made to date to resolve 
the Claim. 

 
b. For claims by the City, the DRR process will be initiated by the 

City providing written notice to the other parties of the basis and 
amount of its claim, the parties involved in the Claim, and how they 
are involved, the provisions in the Agreement Documents that apply, 
and the relief requested. 

 
c. The DRR Notice will be hand-delivered and e-mailed to the other 

parties’ designated Dispute Resolution Representatives. 
 

3. The other parties will respond in writing to the DRR Notice (“DRR 
Response”) within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of the DRR Notice, setting 
forth those items set forth in the DRR Notice that they agree with, dispute, 
and/or have questions concerning. The DRR Response will be hand-delivered 
and e-mailed to the other parties’ Dispute Resolution Representatives. 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-19 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 6 

 

 

 
4. The designated Dispute Resolution Representatives for the Parties to the 

claim will then meet as soon as possible and in any event within twenty (20) 
calendar days of submission of the DRR Notice (regardless of whether a 
DRR Response has been submitted by all parties involved in the dispute), at 
a mutually agreed upon time and place, to attempt to resolve the Claim 
based upon the DRR Notice and DRR Response. 

 
5. At any time after the first meeting required above, either party may 

terminate the DRR Process by written notice to the other party. 
 

6. The parties may agree, in writing, to extend or modify the time limits or 
other provisions of the DRR process in relation to a specific pending Claim. 

 
7. Unless otherwise designated in a written notice to the other parties, the City 

and the representatives of the Contractor and of the Design Professional will 
act as the parties’ designated Dispute Resolution Representatives. 

 
8. If a resolution of the Claim is reached, that resolution must be set forth in 

writing and must be signed by the Parties’ designated Dispute Resolution 
Representative. If the resolution involves a change in any Agreement 
Documents, the Agreement Price, the Project Schedule, or any other change 
requiring a written Change Order or Amendment, the parties must execute 
an appropriate written Change Order or Amendment pursuant to the terms 
of the Agreement Documents. 

 
C. MEDIATION 

 
1. Unless extended by written agreement of the parties involved in the dispute, 

any Claim not resolved through the DRR process set forth above within 
five (5) calendar days after the meeting required under B (4) above, or after 
the DRR is terminated pursuant to B (5) above, whichever is earlier, will be 
submitted to mediation as a condition precedent to litigation by either party. 

 
2. The mediation will be commenced by written demand upon the other party 

for mediation. If the parties cannot agree upon a mediator within ten (10) 
calendar days of the written demand, either party may make a request to the 
Civil Presiding Judge of the Maricopa County Superior  Court to appoint a 
mediator. The mediation will occur within forth (40) calendar days of the 
written demand for mediation, unless the parties agree, in writing, to a 
longer period of time. 

 
3. The qualifications for the mediator will be that he/she be: (a) an 

experienced mediator, arbitrator or litigator of construction disputes; and (b) 
having engaged a significant portion of his/her time involving and/or 
resolving construction disputes for at least the past five (5) years. 

 
4. Each party will provide to the other party and the mediator all of the 

information and documentation required under B(1) and (2) above, together 
with any additional information and documentation which the party believes 
relevant. In addition, the parties will exchange, and provide to the mediator 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-20 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 6 

 

 

such additional memoranda, information and/or documentation, as the 
mediator may request, and in the form and at such times, as the mediator 
may direct. 

 
5. The parties will share the mediator’s fee and any filing fees equally. The 

mediation will be held in Chandler, Arizona, unless another location is 
mutually agreed upon.  Agreements reached in mediation will be specifically 
enforceable in any court having jurisdiction thereof. 

 
D. LITIGATION 

 
Any claim arising out of or related to the Agreement, except Claims relating to 
aesthetic effect and except those claims waived as provided for in the Agreement 
Documents, must be resolved through litigation in the Maricopa County, Arizona 
Superior Court. 

 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-21 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 7 

 

 

 
 

CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA 
PUBLIC WORKS & UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 

 
CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION 

 
 

PROJECT NAME: [TITLE] 

CITY PROJECT NO.: [####] 

If Federally Funded:  

FEDERAL NO.:  ADOT NO:  

 
 (This section to be completed by Prime) 
I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT ALL GOODS AND/OR SERVICES REQUIRED BY CITY OF CHANDLER FOR THIS 
PROJECT HAVE BEEN DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE AGREEMENT DOCUMENTS AND BID 
SPECIFICATIONS AND ALL ACTIVITIES REQUIRED BY THE AGREEMENTOR UNDER THE AGREEMENT 
HAVE BEEN COMPLETED AS OF THE COMPLETION DATE LISTED HERE: 
 

FINAL ACCEPTANCE DATE:  

 
PRIME CONTRACTOR: 

FIRM NAME:  

PRINCIPAL:  

TITLE:  

SIGNATURE:  DATE:  

 
 
 
CERTIFIED BY [INSERT NAME AND TITLE OF PARTY THAT OVERSEES CONSTRUCTION]: 

FIRM NAME:  

SIGNATURE:  DATE:  

 
 
 
 
PROJECT ACCEPTED BY CITY OF CHANDLER: 

NAME:  

SIGNATURE:  DATE:  

 

 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-22 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 8 

 

 

 
CONSTRUCTION SIGN DETAIL 

 

 8' 

     3"    

  CITY OF CHANDLER   5"   

     3"   

  PUTTING YOUR FUNDS TO WORK   5"   

     3"   

  PROJECT TITLE:   5"   

 4'     3"   

  PROJECT NUMBER:   3"   

     2"   

  PROJECT COST:   3"   

     2"   

  CONTRACTOR:   3"   

     2"   

  MANAGED BY: PUBLIC WORKS & UTILITIES DEPARTMENT   3"   

   CAPITAL PROJECTS DIVISION   3"   

     
 
 

 
 

 
                               <--- 4" X 4" POSTS ---> 

 
 

 
 
NOTES: 
 
SIGN(S) MUST BE FURNISHED AND ERECTED PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION.  POSTS 
MUST BE ANCHORED A MINIMUM OF TWO FEET INTO THE GROUND. BOTTOM OF SIGN MUST BE A 
MINIMUM OF FOUR FEET ABOVE THE GROUND. 
 
TYPICAL PROJECT IDENTIFICATION SIGN FOR GENERAL PROJECTS MUST BE NON-REFLECTORIZED 
GREEN BACKGROUND, AND NON-REFLECTORIZED WHITE LETTERS AND NUMERALS. 
 
ONE SIGN MUST BE ERECTED FOR BUILDINGS AND OTHER LIMITED AREA SINGLE SITES.  FOR MULTIPLE 
SITES, ONE SIGN MUST BE ERECTED AT EACH SITE. 
 
FOR LINEAR PROJECTS ONE HALF MILE OR LONGER, PLACE ONE SIGN AT EACH END OF THE PROJECT. 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-23 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 9 – CM@Risk & JOC 

 

 

 
COST OF THE WORK 

(APPLICABLE SOLELY TO CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK AND JOB ORDER CONTRACTING) 

SECTION 1 – COSTS TO BE REIMBURSED 

1.1 Cost of the Work 

The term Cost of the Work will mean costs necessarily incurred by Contractor in the proper 
performance of the Work. Such costs must be at rates not higher than the standard paid at the place 
of the Project except with prior consent of City. The Cost of the Work will include only the items set 
forth in this Section 1. 

 
1.2 Labor Costs 

1.2.1 Wages of construction workers directly employed by the Contractor to perform the 
construction of the Work at the site or, with City’s approval, at off-site workshops. Cost to 
be reimbursed will be the actual wages paid to the individuals performing the work. 

 
1.2.2 Wages or salaries of the Contractor’s supervisory and administrative personnel when 

stationed at the site with City’s approval. No Contractor personnel stationed at the 
Contractor’s home or branch offices will be charged to the Cost of the Work. Non-field 
office based Contractor management and support personnel are expected to provide 
service and advice from time to time throughout the job and his/her time devoted to 
Project matters is considered to be covered by the Contractor’s Fee. 

 
1.2.3 Wages and salaries of Contractor’s supervisory or administrative personnel who would 

normally be stationed at the field office in accordance with Section 1.2.2 but who become 
engaged, at factories, workshops or on the road, in expediting the production or 
transportation of materials or equipment required for the Work, but only for that portion 
of his/her time required for the Work. Employee bonuses and/or costs associated with 
Employee Stock Ownership Plans (“ESOP”) will not be considered reimbursable labor or 
labor burden costs and will be considered non-reimbursable costs considered to be covered 
by the Contractor’s Fee. 

 
1.2.4 Costs paid or incurred by Contractor for taxes, insurance, contributions, assessments and 

benefits required by law or collective bargaining agreements and, for personnel not 
covered by such agreements, customary benefits such as sick leave, medical and health 
benefits, holiday, vacations and pensions, provided such costs are based on wages and 
salaries included in the Cost of the Work under Subparagraphs 1.2.1 through 1.2.3. 

 
1.2.4.1 Cost of the Work will include the actual net cost to Contractor for worker’s 

compensation insurance attributable to the wages chargeable to the Cost of Work per this 
Agreement. The actual net cost of worker’s compensation must take into consideration 
all cost adjustments due to experience modifiers, premium discounts, policy dividends, 
retrospective rating plan premium adjustments, assigned risk pool rebates, any 
applicable weekly maximums, etc. Contractor may charge an estimated amount for 
worker’s compensation insurance costs, but will make appropriate cost adjustments to 
actual costs within 45 days of receipt of actual cost adjustments from the insurance 
carrier. 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-24 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 9 – CM@Risk & JOC 

 

 

 
1.2.4.3 Overtime wages paid to salaried personnel (if approved in advance in writing by City) 

will be reimbursed at the actual rate of overtime pay paid to the individual. No time 
charges for overtime hours worked on the Project will be allowed if the individual is not paid 
for the overtime worked. 

 
1.2.4.4 Any overtime premium or shift differential expense to be incurred by Contractor for hourly 

workers will require City’s advance written approval before the incremental cost of the 
overtime premium or shift differential will be considered a reimbursable cost. If the 
Contractor is required to work overtime as a result of an inexcusable delay or other 
coordination problems caused by the Contractor or anyone he/she is responsible for, 
the overtime premium and/or shift differential expense portion of the payroll expense 
and related labor burden costs will be considered as cost not to be reimbursed. 

 
1.2.4.5 Reimbursable labor burden costs will be limited to payroll taxes, worker’s compensation 

insurance, the employer’s portion of union benefit costs for union employees working on the 
Project, and the actual verifiable fringe benefit costs incurred by Contractor for non-union 
individuals working on the Project subject to the following maximum percentages for the 
following reimbursable non-union fringe benefit costs. The following maximums (as a 
percentage of reimbursable actual wages by individual) will apply for each of the following 
types of fringe benefit costs specifically attributable to each of the non-union personnel 
working on the Project: 

 

• Medical Insurance, Dental, Life & AD&D Insurance: 12.00% 
• Holiday, vacation and other paid time not worked: 10.00% 
• Pension Plan Contributions to Vested Employee Account, 

Simplified Employee Pension Plans, or 401K matching plans 
(Note: ESOP related costs are covered by the Contractor Fee) 

 
 

10.00% 

For non-union personnel, no other fringe benefit costs (other than the three specific 
categories listed immediately above, will be considered reimbursable Cost of Work. Any 
labor burden costs that are in excess of the amounts considered reimbursable or are 
otherwise not considered reimbursable under the terms of this agreement are intended to 
be covered by the Contractor Fee. 

 
1.3 Subcontract Costs 

1.3.1 Payments made by Contractor to Subcontractors in accordance with the requirements of 
the subcontracts. 

 
1.3.2 For Scope of Work Bid Packages typically performed by Subcontractors, Contractor may 

“self- perform” such work on an actual cost basis subject to an agreed upon Guaranteed 
Maximum Price for the “self-performed work”. The Contractor must, unless agreed to by City 
in writing, bid his/her proposed guaranteed Maximum Price for the work to be “self-
performed” against at least three other interested trade Contractors. All savings under 
any such Subcontract for “self-performed work” must be applied to reduce the Cost of Work 
under the Agreement and the Guaranteed Maximum Price. For purposes of defining “self-
performed work” subject to this provision, any division of Contractor, or any separate 
Contractor or Subcontractor that is partially owned or wholly owned by the Contractor or 
any of his/her employees or employee’s relatives will be considered a related party entity 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-25 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 9 – CM@Risk & JOC 

 

 

and will be subject to this provision regarding “self-performed work”. No self-performed work 
will be allowed to be performed on a Fixed Price basis. 

 
1.3.3 Contractor (with respect to its Suppliers, Subcontractors and all lower tier Subcontractors) 

must provide City advance written notice and must obtain City’s approval for any proposed 
Subcontract Change Order, Material Purchase Order, or other financial commitment in an 
amount in excess of $5,000 prior to placing such order or entering into such agreement 
(regardless of whether or not any such commitment will affect the prime Agreement 
Guaranteed Maximum Cost). It is agreed that sums applicable to any Subcontract Change 
Order, Purchase Order or other financial commitment entered into in violation of the above 
notice and approval requirement will not be included in the amounts owning to Contractor, 
Subcontractors or Suppliers whether as Costs of the Work or as reasonable termination 
costs in the event of termination. 

 
1.4 Costs of Material and Equipment Incorporated in the Completed Construction 

1.4.1 Costs, including transportation and storage, of materials and equipment incorporated or 
to be incorporated in the completed construction. 

 
1.4.2 Costs of materials described in the preceding Subparagraph 1.4.1 in excess of those 

actually installed to allow for reasonable waste and spoilage. Unused excess materials, in 
any, will become City’s property at the completion of the Work or, at City’s option, may be 
sold by the Contractor. Any amounts realized from such sales must be credited to City as a 
deduction from the Cost of Work. 

 
1.4.3 Proceeds from the sale of recyclable materials, scrap, waste, etc. will be credited to job cost. 

 
1.5 Costs of Other materials and Equipment, Temporary Facilities and Related Items 

1.5.1 Costs, including transportation and storage, installation, maintenance, dismantling and 
removal of materials, supplies, temporary facilities, machinery, equipment and hand tools 
not customarily owned by construction workers, that are provided by the Contractor at the 
site and fully consumed in the performance of the Work; and cost (less salvage value) of such 
items if not fully consumed, whether sold to others or retained by Contractor. Cost for 
items previously used by Contractor will mean fair market value. 

 
1.5.2 Rental charges for temporary facilities, machinery, equipment, and hand tools not 

customarily owned by construction workers that are provided by Contractor at the site, 
whether rented from Contractor or others, and costs of transportation, installation, minor 
repairs and replacements, dismantling and removal thereof. Rates and quantities of 
equipment rented will be subject to City’s prior written approval. 

 
1.5.2.1 The Projected usage for each piece of equipment to be rented for use on the Project and 

the estimated total rentals must be considered by Contractor before the piece of 
equipment is rented so that an appropriate rent versus buy decision can be made. 
Purchased equipment must be considered “job owned”. At the completion of the Project, 
Contractor must transfer title and possession of all remaining job-owned equipment to 
City, or Contractor may keep any such equipment for an appropriate fair market value 
credit to job cost, which will be mutually agreed to by City and Contractor. 

 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-26 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 9 – CM@Risk & JOC 

 

 

1.5.2.2 Each piece of equipment to be rented must have hourly, daily, weekly and monthly rates 
and the most economical rate available will be reimbursed based on the circumstances of 
actual need and usage of the piece of equipment while it is stationed at the jobsite. 
When the piece of equipment is no longer needed for the work, no rental charges will be 
reimbursed if the piece of equipment remains at the jobsite for the convenience of 
Contractor. 

 
1.5.2.3 Equipment Rental Rates 

1.5.2.3.1 Compensation for equipment used on the Project will be paid in accordance with the 
Equipment Plan submitted by Contractor in the accepted GMP Proposal and no payments 
will be made in excess of the rates set forth in the Equipment Plan, or actual 
documented costs, whichever is less. 

 
1.5.2.3.2 All equipment rental rates and costs are subject to City’s right to audit when submitted as 

part of Equipment Plan and/or at any time during the Project. 
 
1.5.2.4 The aggregate rentals chargeable for each piece of Contractor owned tools or equipment 

must not exceed 50% of the fair market value of such equipment at the time of its 
commitment to the Work. The original purchase price and date of purchase of the equipment 
will be documented with a copy of the purchase invoice for the piece of equipment. Such 
aggregate limitations will apply and no further rentals will be charged even if a piece of 
equipment is taken off the job and is later replaced by a similar piece of equipment. For 
purposes of computing the aggregate rentals applicable to aggregate rental limitations, 
rental charges for similar pieces of equipment will be combined if the pieces of equipment 
were not used at the same time. 

 
1.5.2.5 Fair market value for used material and equipment as referred to in the Agreement 

Documents will mean the estimated price a reasonable purchaser would pay to purchase 
the used material or equipment at the time it was initially needed for the job. Note: This is 
usually lower than the price a reasonable purchaser would pay for similar new construction 
material or construction equipment. 

 
1.5.2.6 All losses resulting from lost, damaged or stolen tools and equipment will be the sole 

responsibility of Contractor, and not City, and the cost of such losses will not be 
reimbursable under the Agreement. 

 
1.5.2.7 Contractor will be required to maintain a detailed equipment inventory of all job-owned 

equipment (either purchased and charged to job cost or job-owned through aggregate 
rentals) and such inventory must be submitted to City each month. For each piece of 
equipment, such inventory should contain at a minimum (1) original purchase price or 
acquisition cost (2) acquisition date (3) approved Fair Market Value at the time the piece of 
equipment was first used on the job and (4) final disposition. 

 
1.5.2.8 All costs incurred for minor maintenance and repairs will be reimbursed at actual cost. Such 

costs include routine and preventative maintenance, minor repairs and other incidental 
costs. Repairs and/or replacement of a capital nature are considered to be covered by the 
rental rates. Major repairs and overhauls are not considered routine and ordinary; 
consequently such costs are not reimbursable and are intended to be covered by the rental 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-27 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 9 – CM@Risk & JOC 

 

 

rates. 
 
1.5.3 Costs of removal of debris from the Site. 

 
1.5.4 Costs of document reproductions, facsimile transmissions and long-distance telephone 

calls, postage and parcel delivery charges, telephone service at the site and reasonable 
petty cash expenses of the site office. 

 
1.5.5 That portion of the reasonable expenses of Contractor’s personnel incurred while 

traveling in discharge of duties connected with the Work. 
 
1.5.5.1 No travel expenses will be reimbursed to Contractor’s representatives unless Project related 

travel required them to travel to a destination more than 100 miles from the Project 
location. Any travel involving airfare will require advance written approval by an authorized 
City’s representative. 

 
1.5.6 Costs of materials and equipment suitably stored off the site at a mutually acceptable 

location, if approved in advance by the City. 
 
1.5.7 Reproduction costs will be the actual costs of reproduction subject to a maximum of five 

cents ($.05) per square foot for prints and a maximum of five cents ($.05) per 8 ½ by 11-
inch page for offset print or photo copied agreement documents, specifications, etc. 
Telephone costs will be the actual costs paid to the third party telephone company for the 
field office telephone. 

 
1.6 Miscellaneous Costs 

1.6.1 That portion of insurance and bond premiums that can be directly attributed to the 
Agreement. The City will reimburse Contractor for contractually required bond at time of first 
pay application for GMP and Cost-Based Agreements upon receipt of proof of payment 
from the Contractor. If the Contractor completes Work for less than the Agreement Price, 
Contractor must credit the City a pro- rated amount for the unused portion of the bond 
payment 

 
1.6.1.1 Contractor’s actual cost for insurance will be considered to be included within the Maximum 

limit for General Conditions Costs. All premiums for any insurance and bonds required for 
the Project must reflect the net actual costs to Contractor after taking into consideration cost 
adjustments due to experience modifiers, premium discounts, policy dividends, 
retrospective rating plan premium adjustments, assigned risk pool rebates, refunds, etc. 

 
1.6.1.2 The amount to be reimbursed to Contractor for all contractually required insurance will be 

actual costs not to exceed a total of 2% of the Agreement Value, unless Contractor 
establishes to City’s satisfaction that the actual cost is higher and City agrees to such actual 
higher cost in writing. If Contractor’s cost of contractually required insurance is greater 
than the amount agreed to be reimbursed per this Agreement Provision, the difference 
will be considered to be covered by the Contractor’s Fee.  The City will reimburse 
Contractor for contractually required insurance on a monthly basis for GMP and Cost-
Based Agreements. If Contractor can demonstrate substantial savings by paying for all 
insurance in advance, the City may agree to reimburse all insurance costs at time of first pay 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-28 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 9 – CM@Risk & JOC 

 

 

application for GMP and Cost-Based Agreements with proof of payment from Contractor. 
 
1.6.2 Sales, use or similar taxes imposed by a governmental authority that are related to the Work. 

 
1.6.3 Fees and assessments for the building permit and for other permits, licenses and 

inspections for which Contractor is required by the Agreement Documents to pay. 
 
1.6.4 Fees of laboratories for tests required by the Agreement Documents, except those related to 

defective or nonconforming Work and which do not fall within the scope of ¶ 1.7.3 below. 
 
1.6.5 Royalties and license fees paid for the use of a particular design, process or product 

required by the Agreement Documents; the cost of defending suites or claims for 
infringement of patent rights arising from such requirement of the Agreement Documents; 
and payments made in accordance with legal judgments against Contractor resulting from 
such suites or claims and payments of settlements made with City’s consent. However, 
such costs of legal defenses, judgments and settlements must not be included in the 
calculation of the Contractor’s Fee or subject to the Guaranteed Maximum Price. 

 
1.6.6 Data processing costs related to the Work. However, any such data processing costs will be 

limited to the cost of personal computer hardware used at the field office in the 
normal day to day administration, management and control of the Project. The 
aggregate charges for any such hardware must not exceed the Fair Market Value of the 
hardware at the time it was brought to the field office. If the total charges for any particular 
piece of hardware reach an amount equal to the Fair Market Value, that particular piece of 
hardware must be turned over to City whenever it is no longer needed for the Project. If 
Contractor elects to keep the particular piece of hardware, the job costs must be credited 
with a mutually agreeable amount which will represent the Fair Market Value of the 
particular piece of hardware at the time it was no longer needed for the job. Software or 
other costs associated with the use of computer programs will not be considered to be a 
reimbursable cost and will be considered to be covered by the Contractor’s Fee. 

 
1.6.7 Deposits lost for causes other than Contractor’s negligence or failure to fulfill a specific 

responsibility to City as set forth in the Agreement Documents. 
 
1.6.8 Legal, mediation and arbitration costs, including attorneys’ fees, other than those arising 

from disputes between City and Contractor, reasonably incurred by Contractor in the 
performance of the Work and with City’s prior written approval; which approval will not be 
unreasonably withheld. 

 
1.6.9 Expenses incurred in accordance with Contractor’s standard personnel policy for relocation 

and temporary living allowances of personnel required for the Work, if pre-approved by City 
in writing. If City authorizes the reimbursement of relocation costs, the reimbursable 
relocation expenses will be limited to a maximum of $50,000 per person. Any relocation 
cost incurred by Contractor in excess of the amount reimbursed by City will be considered to 
be covered by the Contractor’s Fee. 

 
1.7 Other Costs and Emergencies 

1.7.1 Other costs incurred in the performance of the Work if and to the extent approved in 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-29 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 9 – CM@Risk & JOC 

 

 

advance in writing by City. 
 
1.7.2 Costs due to emergencies incurred in taking action to prevent threatened damage, injury or 

loss in case of an emergency affecting the safety of persons and property. 
 
1.7.3 Costs of repairing or correcting damaged or nonconforming Work executed by Contractor, 

Subcontractors or Suppliers, provided that such damaged or nonconforming Work was not 
caused by negligence or failure to fulfill a specific responsibility of Contractor and only to the 
extent that the cost of repair or correction is not recoverable by Contractor from 
insurance, sureties, Subcontractors or Suppliers. 

 
1.8 Related Party Transactions 

1.8.1 The term “related party” will mean a parent, subsidiary, affiliate or other entity having 
common ownership or management with Contractor; any entity in which any stockholder in, 
or management employee of, Contractor owns any interest in excess of ten percent in the 
aggregate; or any person or entity which has the right to control the business or affairs of 
Contractor. The term “related party” includes any member of the immediate family of any 
person identified above. 

 
1.8.2 If any of the costs to be reimbursed arise from a transaction between Contractor and a 

related party, Contractor must notify City in writing of the specific nature of the 
contemplated transaction, including the identity of the related party and the anticipated 
cost to be incurred, before any such transaction is consummated or cost incurred. If City, 
after such notification, authorizes in writing the proposed transaction, then the cost 
incurred will be included as a cost to be reimbursed, and Contractor must procure the Work, 
equipment, goods or service from the related party, as a Subcontractor. If City fails to 
authorize the transaction, Contractor must procure the Work, equipment, goods or 
service from some person or entity other than a related party. 

 
SECTION 2 – COSTS NOT TO BE REIMBURSED 

 

2.1 The Cost of Work must not include: 
 

2.1.1 Salaries and other compensation of Contractor’s personnel stationed at Contractor’s principal 
office or offices other than the site office, except as specifically provided in Subparagraphs 
1.2.2 and 1.2.3. 

 
2.1.2 Expenses of Contractors’ principal office and offices other than the site office. 

 
2.1.3 Overhead and general expenses, except as may be expressly included in Section 1. 

 
2.1.3.1 Costs of Contractor’s home office computer services or other outside computer processing 

services will be considered overhead and general expense. Accordingly, Contractor should 
not plan to perform any such computer related services or alternatives at the field office 
when such services or functions can be performed at Contractor’s home or branch offices, 
or other outside service locations. 

 
2.1.4 Contractor’s capital expenses, including interest on Contractor’s capital employed for the Work. 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-30 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 9 – CM@Risk & JOC 

 

 

 
2.1.5 Rental costs of machinery and equipment, except as specifically provided in subparagraph 

1.5.2. 
 
2.1.6 Except as provided in Subparagraph 1.7.3 of the Agreement, costs due to the negligence or 

failure to fulfill a specific responsibility of Contractor, Subcontractors and Suppliers or 
anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts of them may be 
liable. 

 
2.1.7 Any cost not specifically and expressly described in Section 1. 

 
2.1.8 Costs, other than costs included in Change Orders approved by City that would cause the 

GMP to be exceeded. 
 
SECTION 3 – DISCOUNTS, REBATES, REFUNDS AND SAVINGS 

 

3.1 Cash discounts obtained on payments made by Contractor will accrue to City if (1) before 
making the payment, Contractor included them in an Application for Payment and 
received payment therefore from City, or (2) City has deposited funds with Contractor with 
which to make payments; otherwise, cash discounts will accrue to Contractor. Trade 
discounts, rebates, refunds and amounts received from sales or surplus materials and 
equipment wil l  accrue to City, and Contractor must make provisions so that they can be 
secured. 

 
3.1.1 Cost of the Work will be credited with all insurance policy discounts, performance and 

payment bond rebates or refunds, refunds or return premiums from any Subcontractor 
default insurance, refunds or rebates from any Contractor controlled insurance programs 
applicable to the Project, merchandise rebates of any nature, refunds of any nature, 
insurance dividends; and a portion of any volume rebates or free material credits earned 
with purchase of material or other goods and services charged to the job. 

 
3.1.2 “Cash” discounts which may accrue to Contractor will be limited to a maximum of 1.5% of 

invoice cost. Any portion of “Cash” discounts greater than 1.5% will automatically accrue 
to City if Contractor is eligible to take advantage of the discounts. 

 
3.2 Amounts that accrue to City in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 3.1 will be 

credited to City as a deduction from the Cost of the Work. 
 
3.3 Any and all savings on the GMP, or any separately guaranteed items comprising the GMP, 

will belong to City, subject to any express right in the Agreement for Contractor to share 
in savings. Savings are subject to City’s right to audit, and may be audited separately. 

 
SECTION 4 – GENERAL CONDITIONS COSTS 

 

4.1 General Conditions Costs may include, but are not limited to, the following types of costs 
incurred by Contractor during construction of the Work to the extent they are reimbursable 
Costs of the Work as delineated above: payroll costs for Work conducted at the site, payroll 
costs for the superintendent and full-time general foremen, payroll costs for management 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-31 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 9 – CM@Risk & JOC 

 

 

personnel resident and working on the site workers not included as direct labor costs 
engaged in support (e.g. loading/unloading, clean-up, etc.), administrative office personnel, 
costs of offices and temporary facilities including office materials, office supplies, office 
equipment, minor expenses, utilities, fuel, sanitary facilities and telephone services at the 
site, costs of liability insurance premiums not included in labor burdens for direct labor 
costs, costs of bond premiums, costs of consultants not in the direct employ of Contractor 
or Subcontractors, fees for permits and licenses. 

 
4.2 General Conditions Costs may be paid on a percentage of the Agreement Price or on a 

lump/stipulate sum basis as set forth in the Agreement. All costs included in the General 
Conditions Costs will not be separately invoiced to or paid by City. 

 
4.3 The total amount of General Conditions Costs for the Work may be divided by the number of 

days allowed for performance of the Work, to determine a fixed daily rate for General 
Conditions Costs that may be used in computing the General Conditions Costs allocated to 
any period of time, or for any adjustments in the General Conditions Costs agreed to in  

 writing by City.



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-32 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 10 

 

 

LANDSCAPE ESTABLISHMENT PERIOD 
 
Section 1 – Description and General 

Contractor is in direct control of work performed under the Landscape Establishment Period. If work 
is subcontracted, a representative of the Contractor will be present at the site of the work for all 
hours that the subcontractor works. Subcontracting of Landscape Establishment work will be 
permitted for weed eradication with herbicides, because of special licensing. A licensed temporary 
service may be used to supply labor to Contractor if Contractor has received approval from City 
Representatives.  Contractor will submit the required subcontract documentation. 
 
Contractor must provide adequate personnel to accomplish the required maintenance of the plant 
materials at intervals acceptable to City Representatives. 
 
If not healthy at the end of the maintenance period, the maintenance must be continued until the 
plant material is approved by City. 
 
1.1 Time and Schedule 
Unless otherwise expressly agreed to in writing by City, the Landscape Establishment Period will be 
per General Conditions Section 6.5.4.   

 
1.2 Planted Stock and Seeding Establishment 

1.2.1 Tree planting and staking must be per City of Chandler Standard Detail C-801.  

1.2.2 All trees will stand erect on their own without stakes when brought to this site. If the tree 
cannot stand on its own when nursery stakes are removed, the tree will be removed and 
replaced. 

 
1.3 Pre-Emergent Herbicide and Weed Control 

1.3.1 Contractor will provide three applications of an approved pre-emergent herbicide on all 
unpaved areas of the project, as directed by City Representatives, to control weed growth in 
all areas of the project. The number of applications may be increased as directed by the City 
Representative, and at no additional cost to City, if the City Representative deems additional 
applications are required to control weed growth. 

1.3.2 Application sequence will be approved in advance by City. The first application of pre-
emergent will be completed prior to the application of Decomposed Granite and will be 
included with the cost of the Decomposed Granite as specified and part of the Construction 
Phase portion of work. The second application of pre-emergent will be completed after 
installation of the Decomposed Granit and no later than half-way through the Landscape 
Establishment Period. The third and final application of pre-emergent will be applied 15 
days prior to completion of the Landscape Establishment portion of the project. The second 
and third pre-emergent applications will be included with the cost of Landscape 
Establishment. Watering will be completed in accordance with the manufacturer’s 
recommendations, as included and as related to each application. 

1.3.3 The pre-emergent herbicide will be applied in accordance with the Technical Specifications 
and the recommendations of the pre-emergent herbicide manufacturer, as approved by 
City Representatives. 



App’d 7/20/2022 APP-33 of 33 

General Conditions  
Appendix 10 

 

 

1.3.4 The control of weeds will be accomplished by the use of herbicides. Manual removal of 
weeds will be required, after herbicides have taken affect. 

1.3.5 Contractor is responsible for the removal and disposal of all trash and debris that during 
the Landscape Establishment Period. Contractor will keep the project in a neat and orderly 
manner during the duration of the Landscape Establishment Period. 

 
1.4 Water 
The water used during Landscape Establishment to properly maintain the plant material will be 
furnished by City, at designated sources from within the project limits, at no charge to Contractor. 
Contractor will be responsible for all equipment, materials and labor necessary to load, transport and 
unload water for watering purposes. 

 

1.5 Plant Material Replacements 
The plant material replacement will be considered as included in the work for Landscape 
Establishment, and will be made at no charge to the City. 

1.5.1 Shrub and Plant Replacement - During the second half of the Landscaping Establishment 
period, Contractor will provide, where required, plant replacements as follows: 

 

Original Size Replacement Size 

1 gallon 5 gallon 

5 gallon 15 gallon 

15 gallon 24-inch box 

36-inch box 48-inch box 

 

1.5.2 Tree Replacement – During the second half of the Landscape Establishment Period, 
Contractor will provide plant material replacements for existing plants that die as follows: 

 

Existing Plant Material Sizes Replacement Size 

Trees:  

2-inch Caliper 24-inch box 

4-inch Caliper 36-inch box 

6-inch Caliper and greater 54-inch box 

Shrubs:  

All Existing Shrubs 15 gallon 
 

1.6 Measurement and Payment 
See Technical Specifications for Measurement Payment provisions. 



EXHIBIT C 

 
Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant (SWTP) SCADA Upgrades GMP 2  Page TS-1 

Project No.: WA2103.402 

Rev. 1/16/2024 

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 

DonnaRy
Text Box
See Separate Documentpending name and date from cover of document

DonnaRy
Highlight

DonnaRy
Highlight

DonnaRy
Text Box
 See the following separate documents:100% Technical Specifications  July 10, 2023, and July 12, 2023Volumes 1 and 2



EXHIBIT D 

 
Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant (SWTP) SCADA Upgrades GMP 2  Page GMP-1 

Project No.: WA2103.402 

Rev. 1/16/2024 

ACCEPTED GMP/PRICE PROPOSAL 



SUBMITTAL

CITY OF CHANDLER
PECOS SURFACE WATER TREATMENT PLANT 

SCADA UPGRADE
CITY PROJECT NO WA2103.402

SUBMITTAL TASK #17.7
GMP PROPOSAL

SUBMITTED BY: ARCHER WESTERN CONSTRUCTION, LLC
PHOENIX, AZ 

DATE SUBMITTED: MAY 9, 2024
REVISION #7



SECTION A

TABLE OF CONTENTS

4/16/24

Page 2



Bookmark Summary

COVER PAGE
A. TABLE OF CONTENTS
B. PROJECT DESCRIPTION
C. GMP PROPOSAL

C.1. EXHIBIT D GMP SUMMARY
C.2 DETAILED COST ESTIMATE
C.3 BACK UP QUOTES

C.3.1. FELIX CONSTRUCTION
C.3.2. TELTECH
C.3.3. WILLSCOT

C.4. YARD SET UP
C.5 LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS

D. SCHEDULE OF VALUES
E. PROJECT SCHEDULE
F. CONSTRUCTION PHASING
G. LIST OF GMP PLANS AND SPECS
H. ASSUMPTIONS AND CLARIFICATIONS

4/16/24

Page 3



SECTION B

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

4/16/24

Page 4



 
 

1. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant SCADA Upgrade project will involve replacing inefficient traditional motor 

controllers with advanced models capable of handling increased data processing demands. This upgrade will enhance 

the control and monitoring capabilities of the SCADA system, resulting in improved process automation and data 

acquisition accuracy.  

Additionally, the project entails optimizing the performance of the MCC starters. The existing starters were assessed by 

Jacobs Engineering, and where necessary, will be upgraded with modern and efficient smart starters. This will ensure 

smoother operation, reduced downtime, and improved control over the facility's motors and associated equipment.  

Furthermore, the installation of a single mode fiber optic cable network is a crucial aspect of the project. The fiber optic 

cables will provide high-speed, secure, and reliable communication between the various PLCs and the central SCADA 

system. This upgrade transforms the current star topology to a ring topology will enhance data transmission capabilities, 

minimize signal interference, and increase the overall network capacity.  

The GMP-2, in addition to the GMP-1 long lead items, for this project will encompass all necessary materials, labor, 

equipment, and contingencies required for the successful execution of the upgrade. The project team will work diligently 

to ensure minimal disruptions to the facility's operations during the implementation phase, while adhering to industry 

best practices and safety standards. 

Overall, the project for upgrading the SCADA network, including PLCs, LCP’s, MCC starters, and the installation of a 

single-mode fiber optic cable network, will significantly enhance the facility's control and monitoring capabilities, 

leading to improved operational efficiency and system reliability.  

• Objectives  

o Improve operational efficiency  

o Enhance system reliability  

o Leverage modern automation technology   

• Anticipated Milestones  

o Construction NTP (date TBD) 

o Submittals Completion (date TBD) 

o Material Procurement Completion (date TBD) 

o Substantial Completion (date TBD) 

o Final Completion (date TBD) 

2. SCOPE OF WORK 

The scope of work for the GMP-2 effort is defined by the 100% drawing and specification package. The project involves 

the following tasks, assumptions, and clarifications:  

1. Fiber Infrastructure:  

• Perform trenching and boring activities to install fiber optic cable.  

• Install approximately 7,000 feet of single-mode fiber optic cable.  

• Establish a new RING topology for the single-mode fiber optic cable.  

• Utilize and repurpose around 65-70% of existing spare conduit.  

4/16/24

Page 5



 
 

• New conduit run for approximately 30-35% of remaining fiber requirement.  

2. Communication Cards:  

• Addition of communication cards to equipment according to project requirements.  

3. Conduit Subsystems:  

• Install new CAT6 and power conduits and cable as needed on-site.  

4. Decommissioning:  

• Decommission the existing Foxboro DCS system.  

• Salvage Foxboro parts for potential use as spares at AWRF or OWRF.  

5. Modifications:  

• Install M580 PLC units based on 100% drawing package.  

• Incorporate TeSysT Smart Overloads for motor control.  

• Install power monitors for monitoring purposes.  

• Set up new network panels as required for the project.  

6. I/O Verification:  

• Conduct point-to-point IO checks for all new and modified enclosures  

Please note that this scope of work provides a general outline of the tasks and activities involved in the GMP-2 project. 

Specific details, timelines, and deliverables may be further refined and documented in the project plan and associated 

project documentation. 

  

4/16/24

Page 6



 
 

3. ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 

The following individuals and their reporting system will be used during the construction phase of the project: 

 

 

 Felix Construction Employee – Assigned   AWC Employee – Assigned 

 Teltech Employee – Assigned    AWC Employee – General Oversight (Overhead) 

 

4. ROLES & RESPONSIBILITIES 

Several supervision staff are included in the project. Descriptions of their roles and responsibilities are provided below. 

1.1 Project Manager 

1.1.1 Purpose:  

Responsible for the overall direction, completion, financial outcome, technical success and quality of a construction 

project or a portion of a large complex project. The Project Manager also establishes and maintains positive relationships 

with owners, subcontractors, design partners and trades. 

4/16/24

Page 7



 
 

1.1.2 Major Responsibilities:  

• Plans, organizes, coordinates and controls project(s) in accordance with established policies, procedures, systems 

and requirements approved by the Company. Reviews and approves preliminary project and equipment schedules, 

financial projections, cost-to-complete and project status reports for the duration of the project.  

• Directs and supervises work of project administration staff and engineers, as well as works in partnership with 

project superintendents to establish operational priorities. Establishes the site organizational plan and responsibility 

matrix. Ensures that construction site rules and procedures are implemented and that best practices and customer 

focus is achieved in an efficient and effective manner. Provides leadership, guidance, direction and positive attitude 

to the project team members.  

• Maintains exceptional relationships with owners, subcontractors, and design partners. Responsible for day-to-day 

contact and communications with customers, as well as subcontractor partners. Ensures creation and maintenance 

of subcontractor partner contracts. 

• Responsible for forecasting, tracking/reporting project costs/revenue and adherence to project estimates. Provides 

leadership for multiple aspects of controls including costs/revenue, planning, scheduling and 

architecture/engineering.  

• Develops strategy for staffing, personnel development, performance management and training. Ensures delivery of 

project training programs and compliance to all corporate, federal and state regulations. Coordinates with company 

EEO Compliance Officer to ensure that projects are completed, tracked and reported on in accordance with 

mandated policies and project EEO goals. Conducts or approves Performance Reviews of subordinate staff.  

• Responsible for problem resolution involving labor disputes, staffing, materials, equipment and 

contracts/subcontracts administration.  

• Provides feedback to BGL, PGM and/or ROM on a regular basis. Notifies management of significant project events 

such as project successes, issues, client relations, potential losses/claims, etc.  

• Coordinates with the Regional Safety Manager to ensure that projects are completed in accordance with established 

safety goals. 

• Coordinates with the Regional Quality Manager to ensure that projects are completed in accordance with established 

quality goals. 

1.2 Assistant Project Manager 

1.2.1 Purpose:  

Responsible for assisting the Project Manager with the overall direction, completion and financial outcome of a 

construction project. 

1.2.2 Major Responsibilities:  

• Prepare, review and negotiate project contracts, subcontractor agreements, subcontractor services agreements, 

purchase orders, quality acceptance agreements, etc.  

• Responsible for procurement of materials. From contract execution, through submittal phase, release for fabrication, 

and tracking of deliveries to ensure schedule of the project is maintained. 

• Review owner contracts. Draft and articulate argument/positions on owner contracts. Negotiate owner change orders 

and claims for extra work. Develop change management and allowance/contingency controls. Review and prepare 

time and material allowance/contingency usage for execution. Aid in preparation of revenue forecasts.  

• Records equipment and material deliveries to ensure accuracy and to ensure that project remains on schedule.  

4/16/24

Page 8



 
 

• Coordinate the purchase/renewal of insurance policies on the project. Pursue or aid in pursuing insurance claims on 

the projects.  

• Establish and administer document control procedures.  

• Work with Operations team on a daily basis on risk management, and contractual and commercial issues. 

• Plans, organizes, coordinates and controls project(s) in accordance with established policies, procedures, systems 

and requirements approved by the Company.  

• Supervises work of project administration, superintendents, and engineers to ensure that work is accomplished in an 

efficient, effective, profitable and safe manner and meets all quality standards.  

• Reviews cost-coding of timesheets and invoices, reviews daily production reports and supervises forecasted final 

cost/revenue reporting to ensure that profitability goals are met.  

• Reviews submittal of change orders and analyzes impact on project schedules. Participates in work planning of self-

performed activities.  

• Gathers and records subcontractor log and weather conditions and makes recommendations accordingly. May 

coordinate and schedule subcontractors.   

• May coordinate with owners and engineers for project scheduling and issue resolution.  

• Assists with the development and review of detailed MOPO plans. 

• Manages allowance and contingency tracking and gathering supporting documentation. 

• Attend weekly owner progress meetings and support the Project Manager as required. 

1.3 Project Superintendent 

1.3.1 Purpose:  

In conjunction with Project Management, responsible for the direct supervision of field forces, and the efficient 

scheduling of the physical completion of all project work. 

1.3.2 Major Responsibilities:  

• The superintendent will be the day to day contact on the project for any site activities taking place under the 

contract. 

• Coordinates subcontracts, drawings, and specifications to ensure conformity. Examines drawings and specifications 

for various work tasks and ensures current information is passed down to front line supervision and trades 

personnel. Carries out inspections as needed.  

• Responsible for daily planning, creation and maintenance of project schedules, including subcontractor specialty 

schedules and short interval schedules. Involved in creating work plans for each specific work activity.  

• Supervises and organizes workers; ensures workers are available and fully qualified to perform assigned duties. 

Reports on labor and materials. Schedules crews according to available work packages for the project and all 

required equipment and materials necessary to complete tasks. Monitors timely delivery of necessary materials to 

assure continued productivity.  

• Responsible for controlling costs, adhering to budgets and managing equipment-related expenses. Ensures staff is 

aware of production rates for assigned items of work.  

• Conducts regular safety meetings; maintains a safe work environment with the goal of keeping accidents and 

injuries to a minimum and complying with company and regulatory safety procedures. Complies with EPA 

requirements for hazardous materials.  

• Coordinates subcontractors through a regular and disciplined series of meetings, questioning and verifying their 

plans and efforts, changing or augmenting as needed.  

4/16/24

Page 9



 
 

• Assists project management team ensuring compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements of the city, state 

and federal government applicable to the project. Alerts management to any potential concerns.  

• Participates in the development and implementation of appropriate portions of the jobsite quality, safety and 

production plans; ensures maintenance of all records in accordance with project standards.  

• Coordinates with internal staff to build professional and productive relationships with owners, architects, engineers 

and subcontractors. 

4/16/24

Page 10



SECTION C

GMP PROPOSAL

4/16/24

Page 11



EXHIBIT D
CM@RISK GMP SUMMARY

4/16/24

Page 12



EXHIBIT D

CMAR GMP SUMMARY

Date: 4/16/2024
Project Location: 1475 E Pecos Rd
City of Chandler Project No WA2103.252

A. Cost of Work
A.1 Cost of Work (self-perform, no mark-ups) $448,800
A.2. Cost of Work - Subcontracts

A.2.1. Cost of Work - Felix Electrical Base Scope $4,524,186
A.2.2. Cost of Work - Felix Electrical Additional Control Panels $275,605
A.2.3. Cost of Work - TelTech 48-strand fiber $220,821
A.2.4. Cost of Work - TelTech 12-strand fiber $21,504

TOTAL COST OF WORK: $5,490,916

B. General Conditions $488,447

SUBTOTAL 1 (Cost of Work) (A+B) $5,979,363

C. CMAR's Fee (8.75%) $523,194

SUBTOTAL 2 (A+B+C): $6,502,557

D. Bonds and Insurance
D.1. Bonds (Payment and Performance) $51,690
D.2. Insurance $117,045

TOTAL BONDS & INSURANCE: $168,735

SUBTOTAL 3 (SUBTOTAL 2 + BONDS & INS): $6,671,292

E. Sales Tax
E.1. Sales Tax (5.07%) $423,869
E.2. Tax Credits -$20,596

TOTAL SALES TAX: $403,273

TOTAL GMP WITHOUT ALLOWANCES/CONTINGENCIES: $7,074,565

F. Approved Allowances

F.1. Temp Generator and Fuel (MOPO assistance if required) $252,300
F.2. Cost Codes 300, Cable, Wire, Conduit, Risk Events (Felix pass through) $54,239
F.3. Cost Codes 600, Bucket Modifications Risk Events (Felix pass through) $54,239
F.4. Price Escalation Commodities Risk Events $30,000
F.5. Potholing, Private Locator, Asphalt, Compact Testing for Fiber $50,000
F.6. Field Work Additional Support/Commissioning $25,000
F.7. Construction Yard Conduit / Setup Additional Scope $15,000

TOTAL ALLOWANCES: $480,777

G. Contingencies
G.1. Contractor MOPO Durations $15,000
G.2. Contractor Schedule Duration $15,000
G.3. Contractor Cost for Missing/Damaged/Incompatible GMP-1 Goods $50,000
G.4. Contractor Cybersecurity Insurance Cost $25,000
G.5. Owner Contingency $700,000

TOTAL CONTINGENCIES: $805,000

TOTAL GMP PROPOSAL: $8,360,342

Establishment of Values:
a. Cost of Work (A) and Allowances (F) to be submitted with GMP Proposal.
b. General Conditions Cost (B) to be established in Baseline Cost Model.
c. CMAR Fee as set forth in Section 3.7.3. of this Agreement.

Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant SCADA Upgrade

4/16/24

Page 13

WA2103.402



 
 

1. ALLOWANCE DESCRIPTIONS 

F.1. Temp Generator and Fuel 

This allowance is recommended to pay for temporary power systems during MOPO outages in the event a system needs to 

continue operation. The allowance cost will cover labor, material, subcontractor, and equipment costs. Established labor 

and equipment rates will be used for Archer Western and Felix Construction personnel. Back-up quotes for all material, 

subcontract, and additional equipment not pre-defined will be provided with the written request to use the allowance. 

F.2. Cost Codes 300, Cable, Wire, Conduit, Risk Events 

This allowance will be used to pay for cable, wire, conduit, and risk events associated with cost code 300 activities in the 

Felix proposal. This allowance cost will cover labor, material, subcontractor, and equipment costs. Established labor and 

equipment rates will be used for Archer Western and Felix Construction personnel. Back-up quotes for all material, 

subcontract, and additional equipment not pre-defined will be provided with the written request to use the allowance. 

F.3. Cost Codes 600, Bucket Modifications Risk Events 

This allowance is recommending to pay for bucket modifications and risk events associated with cost code 600 activities 

in the Felix proposal. This allowance cost will cover labor, material, subcontractor, and equipment costs. Established 

labor and equipment rates will be used for Archer Western and Felix Construction personnel. Back-up quotes for all 

material, subcontract, and additional equipment not pre-defined will be provided with the written request to use the 

allowance. 

F.4. Price Escalation Commodities  

This allowance is recommended for price escalation to account for material and subcontract escalation between the GMP 

proposals and actual procurement of materials or subcontracts. Back-up quotes for all material and subcontracts will be 

provided with the written request to use the allowance. 

F.5. Potholing, Private Locator, Asphalt, Compact Testing for Fiber 

Due to the expedited nature of the project’s preconstruction phase the site investigation activities recommended by 

Archer Western have been deferred to construction phase. Archer Western is recommending an allowance be established 

to account for site investigation activities that include potholing, private utility locating, asphalt replacement, and fiber 

compact testing. Established labor and equipment rates will be used for Archer Western, TelTech, and Felix Construction 

personnel. Back-up quotes for all material, subcontract, and additional equipment not pre-defined will be provided with 

the written request to use the allowance. 

F.6. Field Work Additional Support/Commissioning 

Archer Western’s contract work ends when the areas of work have established continuity between power and control 

cabinets, and Jacobs’ is responsible for programming / integration of the project scope. Due to the typical challenges of 

starting up facilities after making modifications, we are recommending an allowance to assist Jacobs with any labor, 

material, and equipment needs during their programming / integration step for issues not related to original contracted 

scope of work. Established labor and equipment rates will be used for Archer Western, TelTech, and Felix Construction 

personnel. Back-up quotes for all material, subcontract, and additional equipment not pre-defined will be provided with 

the written request to use the allowance. 

4/16/24

Page 14



 
 

F.7. Construction Yard Conduit / Setup Additional Scope 

Site investigation of the blocked conduit that is planned to feed wire for the temporary construction yard was inconclusive 

and additional site investigation is required. Once the problem is identified (using allowance F.5.), the recommended 

allowance is to provide a solution for powering the temporary construction yard. Established labor and equipment rates 

will be used for Archer Western and Felix Construction personnel. Back-up quotes for all material, subcontract, and 

additional equipment not pre-defined will be provided with the written request to use the allowance. 

2. CONTINGENCY DESCRIPTIONS 

G.1. Contractor MOPO Durations 

During each MOPO, it may be necessary to extend the planned duration for unexpected events. The recommended 

contingency accounts for unplanned events within each MOPO activity and will be used to pay for extended labor, 

subcontract, and rental equipment that may include adding total duration to the schedule and accounting for overtime 

and weekend pay premiums for hourly employees per local, state, and federal laws. Established labor and equipment 

rates will be used for Archer Western and Felix Construction personnel. Back-up quotes for subcontracted labor and 

additional equipment not pre-defined will be provided with the written request to use the contingency. 

G.2. Contractor Schedule Duration 

The overall schedule has been developed using the recommended sequence of work which accounts for seasonal work 

during non-peak water demand time periods. The MOPO specification shows windows of work that are planned for the 

project. This contingency will account for unexpected delays the project could experience due to the critical nature of the 

power and control panels operating nearly all components of the facility. This may result from plant demands or 

unexpected events at PSWTP that result in not being able to accommodate the planned schedule events and timeframes, 

which lead to an overall schedule delay. While mitigating activities will first be explored if the schedule is delayed, costs 

related to extended overheads (supervision and general conditions) may be a result. If this occurs, established labor, 

subcontract, and equipment rates will be used for Archer Western and Felix Construction personnel. Back-up quotes for 

subcontracted labor and additional equipment not pre-defined will be provided with the written request to use the 

contingency. 

G.3. Contractor Cost for Missing/Damaged/Incompatible GMP-1 Goods 

The vast majority of materials to be installed and commissioned for GMP-2 were purchased under a separate contract 

using GMP-1 by others. This contingency is to account for unexpected costs related to these materials such as: missing 

parts, incompatible parts, and incorrect sizes or materials, etc. This contingency will cover costs for materials that are 

required to be replaced, refurbished, repaired and labor, subcontracts, and equipment tied to these activities. 

Established labor and equipment rates will be used for Archer Western, TelTech, and Felix Construction personnel. Back-

up quotes for subcontracted labor and additional equipment not pre-defined will be provided with the written request to 

use the contingency. 

G.4. Contractor Cybersecurity Insurance Cost 

The City has requested that Archer Western provide a 3-yr Cybersecurity insurance coverage. The cost for the coverage 

has been budgeted without a firm quote at 0.3% of the contract ($19,635). Insurance requirements and language has 

not been provided yet to Archer Western and overall scope of the requirements (subcontractor compliance) has not been 

verfied at the time of GMP. If the quoted coverage exceeds this value, it will be paid for using this contingency. 

4/16/24

Page 15



 
 

G.5. Owner Contingency 

The City has requested that Archer Western provide a 10% project contingency to use for owner-directed changes. 

Accordingly, an owner-contingency of $700,000 has been provided. 

3. GENERAL NOTE 

The GMP Worksheet includes bonds, insurance, and taxes for the full value of the project. Any allowance and contingency 

usage will only have fee added beyond the cost of work shown. 

4/16/24

Page 16



DETAILED COST ESTIMATE

4/16/24

Page 17



Spreadsheet Report Page 2

Chandler Pecos SCADA 4/16/2024 11:42 AM

BID ITEM AREA Description Takeoff Quantity
Labor

Quantity

Labor

Amount
Material Price

Material

Amount
Sub Price

Sub

Amount
Equip Price

Equip

Amount

Total

Amount

19010 GENERAL EXPENSE

01000 Site Preparation 1.00 LS 40 hrs 1,759 1,759

01001 Site Preparation - Trailer

Waterline

325.00 LF 116 hrs 6,235 6,082 87 543 12,948

01002 Site Restoration and Demob 1.00 LS 120 hrs 8,335 2,000 10,335

01003 Construction Equipment 1.00 LS hrs 1,200 13,320 14,520

02000 Subcontractors 1.00 LS hrs 5,042,116 5,042,116

99.19010.0 General Conditions

Project Manager 22.00 wk 22 wk 117,920 - - - - - - 117,920

General Super 85.00 wk 85 wk 448,800 - - - - - - 448,800

Assistant Project Manager 43.00 wk 43 wk 194,360 - - - - - - 194,360

Temporary Storage Connex 0.00 mo 0 mh 0 1,100.00 /mo 0 0.00 /mo 0 0.00 /mh 0 0

Single Wide Trailer (AWC and

Quantum)

18.00 mo 18 mo /mo 1,800.00 /mo 32,400 /mo 32,400

Office - Cleaning 18.00 mo mh 400.00 /mo 7,200 - - - - 7,200

Water - Hook Up at Trailer 1.00 ls 32 mh 2,315 1,500.00 /ls 1,500 - - /mh 3,815

Water - Drinking 18.00 mo 18 mo 150.00 /mo 2,700 - - /mo 2,700

Sewer - Hook Up at Trailer 1.00 ls 32 mh 2,315 2,000.00 /ls 2,000 - - /mh 4,315

Telephone/Internet - Install 1.00 ls 1 ls /ls 2,500.00 /ls 2,500 - - 2,500

Telephone/Internet - Equipment 1.00 ls 1 ls 2,800.00 /ls 2,800 /ls - - 2,800

Telephone/Internet - Bills 18.00 mo 18 mo 925.00 /mo 16,650 /mo - - 16,650

Rubbish -Boxes 18.00 mo - - - - 600.00 /mo 10,800 - - 10,800

Sanitary Holding Tanks (2x Monthly

Service)

18.00 mo 18 mo /mo 630.00 /mo 11,340 - - 11,340

Temporary Toilets and Handwash

Stations (3 EA)

18.00 mo 18 mo /mo 735.00 /mo 13,230 - - 13,230

Survey Equipment and Supplies 18.00 mo - - 175.00 /mo 3,150 - - - - 3,150

Signs 5.00 ea 24 mh 1,736 250.00 /ea 1,250 /ea - - 2,986

Pre-Construction Photos 1.00 LS 1 LS /LS 150.00 /LS 150 - - 150

Supplies - Office 18.00 mo 18 mo 75.00 /mo 1,350 - - /mo 1,350

Copy Machine 1.00 ea 1 ea 5,400.00 /ea 5,400 - - /ea 5,400

Postage 18.00 mo 18 mo 40.00 /mo 720 - - /mo 720

Furniture - Office 18.00 mo 18 mo 200.00 /mo 3,600 - - /mo 3,600

Permit - Dust/SWPPP 1.00 ls 1 ls 1,500.00 /ls 1,500 /ls - - 1,500

Construction Water 18.00 mo 18 mo 0.00 /mo 0 /mo - -

Anchorage/Supports Calculations 1.00 ls 1 ls 10,000.00 /ls 10,000 /ls - - 10,000

Permit - Water Meter 1.00 ls 1 ls 0.00 /ls 0 /ls - -

see next page for
descriptions of work

Values Provided and Reviewed by the City/Jacobs = $761,080

Cost of Work

Cost of Work

Cost of Work

Cost of Work

Cost of Work - Subcontract

COW = $488,447; GC = $272,633

GENERAL CONDITIONS

Page 18



Spreadsheet Report Page 3

Chandler Pecos SCADA 4/16/2024 11:42 AM

Estimate Totals

Description Amount Totals Hours Rate Cost Basis Cost per Unit Percent of Total

Labor 783,775 6,363.500 hrs 9.37%

Material 65,902 0.79%

Subcontract 5,115,823 61.19%

Equipment 13,863 128.000 hrs 0.17%

Other

5,979,363 5,979,363 71.52% 71.52%

PROJECT FEE 523,194 8.750 % T 6.26%

523,194 6,502,557 6.26% 77.78%

BUILDER'S RISK INSURANCE 25,081 0.300 $ / 100 T 0.30%

GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE 66,883 0.008 $ / 1 T 0.80%

CYBERSECURITY INSURANCE 25,081 0.300 % T 0.30%

CLASS B BOND RATE(BUILDINGS) 51,690 B 0.62%

168,735 6,671,292 2.02% 79.80%

ARIZONA GROSS REICIPTS TAX 423,869 5.070 % T 5.07%

Tax Exemptions (20,596) L -0.25%

403,273 7,074,565 4.82% 84.62%

Allowances (See Proposal for Details) 480,777 L 5.75%

Contingency (See Proposal for Details) 805,000 L 9.63%

1,285,777 8,360,342 15.38% 100.00%

Total 8,360,342

SELF PERFORM ACTIVITY DESCRIPTIONS:

Site Preparation activities include:

- Clearing and grading site as needed to install temporary construction yard components.

Site Preparation / Trailer Water Line includes:

- Temporary 2-inch water line buried < 24-in to trailer.

Site Restoration & Demob:

- Final clean up / demob labor and subcontact costs (trucking).

- Site restoration (grading and respreading decomposed granite).

Construction Equipment:

- Mobilize equipment subcontact cost (trucking).

- Fork lift for mobilization and demobilization, back hoe for digging temporary water line, and gannon for grading for mobilization and demobilization. Includes operating costs.

Page 19



YARD SET UP

4/16/24

Page 108



���������	�
����������������������������

���

����������������������������
������������������������

����� �����
�

������!
����
������
�"�!��

4/16/24

Page 109



���������	�
������������������������������

����������
������
������

���������������

�������������
����������
������

	������

	������

AWC & Felix TrailersBreak
Area

Felix
Storage
&
Laydown

4/16/24

Page 110



LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS

4/16/24

Page 111



 
 

3. LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS 

Archer Western will utilize the following subcontractors: 

• Fiberoptic material supply and installation: TelTech Networks Inc. 

• Electrical material supply and installation: Felix Construction Company 

• Construction Yard Trailers: Willscot 

4/16/24

Page 112



SECTION D

SCHEDULE OF VALUES

4/16/24

Page 113



Item # Task No. Description Total To Date Total Previous Qty GMP Qty Unit Total Unit Price
Original Contract 

Amount
Current Cost Previous Cost Total to Date Notes

1.0 Cost of Work
1.1 AWC Self-Perform  $                                     -   0.0 19.5  MO 23,015$                       448,800$                             $                                   -    $                                     -    $                                     -   Monthly billing
1.2 AWC Mobilization Activities  $                                     -   0.0 1.0  LS 29,227$                       29,227$                               $                                   -    $                                     -    $                                     -   Lump sum when work is complete
1.3 AWC Demobilization Activities  $                                     -   0.0 1.0  LS 10,335$                       10,335$                               $                                   -    $                                     -    $                                     -   Lump sum when work is complete
1.4 Felix Electric Base Scope  $                                     -   0.0 1.0  LS 4,799,791$                  4,799,791$                          $                                   -    $                                     -    $                                     -   Billed per Felix progress payment billing
1.5 Teltech Base Scope  $                                     -   0.0 1.0  LS 242,325$                     242,325$                             $                                   -    $                                     -    $                                     -   Billed per TelTech progress payment billing

2.0 Indirect Costs

2.1 General Conditions  $                                     -   0.0 18.0  MO 24,938$                       448,885$                             $                                   -    $                                     -    $                                     -   Monthly billing
2.2 CMAR Fee  $                                     -   0.0 1.0  LS 523,194$                     523,194$                             $                                   -    $                                     -    $                                     -   Percent complete on project
2.3 Bonds  $                                     -   0.0 1.0 LS 51,690$                       51,690$                               $                                   -    $                                     -    $                                     -   Lump sum when billed near start of the project
2.4 General Liability Insurance  $                                     -   0.0 1.0 LS 66,883$                       66,883$                               $                                   -    $                                     -    $                                     -   Percent complete on project
2.5 Builder's Risk Insurance  $                                     -   0.0 1.0 LS 25,081$                       25,081$                               $                                   -    $                                     -    $                                     -   Lump sum when billed near start of the project
2.6 Cyber Security Insurance  $                                     -   0.0 1.0 LS 25,081$                       25,081$                               $                                   -    $                                     -    $                                     -   Lump sum when billed near start of the project
2.7 Tax  $                                     -   0.0 1.0 LS 403,273$                     403,273$                             $                                   -    $                                     -    $                                     -   Percent complete on project

3.0 Allowances

3.1 Temp Generator and Fuel  $                                     -   0.0 1.0  LS 252,300$                     252,300$                             $                                   -    $                                     -    $                                     -   As allowance is used
3.2 Cable/Wire/Conduit Existing Conditions  $                                     -   0.0 1.0  LS 54,239$                       54,239$                               $                                   -    $                                     -    $                                     -   As allowance is used
3.3 Bucket Modifications Existing Conditions  $                                     -   0.0 1.0 LS 54,239$                       54,239$                               $                                   -    $                                     -    $                                     -   As allowance is used
3.4 Price Escalations  $                                     -   0.0 1.0 LS 30,000$                       30,000$                               $                                   -    $                                     -    $                                     -   As allowance is used
3.5 Potholing, Private Locate, Asphalt, Compaction Testing  $                                     -   0.0 1.0 LS 50,000$                       50,000$                               $                                   -    $                                     -    $                                     -   As allowance is used
3.6 Field Work Additional Support/Commissioning  $                                     -   0.0 1.0 LS 25,000$                       25,000$                               $                                   -    $                                     -    $                                     -   As allowance is used
3.7 Construction Yard Conduit Setup Additional Scope  $                                     -   0.0 1.0 LS 15,000$                       15,000$                               $                                   -    $                                     -    $                                     -   As allowance is used

4.0 Contingencies

4.1 MOPO Durations Risk  $                                     -   0.0 1.0  LS 15,000$                       15,000$                               $                                   -    $                                     -    $                                     -   As contingency is used
4.2 Scheudle Duration Risk  $                                     -   0.0 1.0  LS 15,000$                       15,000$                               $                                   -    $                                     -    $                                     -   As contingency is used
4.3 GMP-1 Materials Procured by others Risk  $                                     -   0.0 1.0 LS 50,000$                       50,000$                               $                                   -    $                                     -    $                                     -   As contingency is used
4.4 Cybersecurity Insurance Increases  $                                     -   0.0 1.0 LS 25,000$                       25,000$                               $                                   -    $                                     -    $                                     -   As contingency is used
4.5 Owner Contingency  $                                     -   0.0 1.0 LS 700,000$                     700,000$                             $                                   -    $                                     -    $                                     -   As contingency is used

Chandler SCADA Total -$                                          8,360,342$                      -$                              -$                                -$                               

PECOS SURFACE WATER TREATMENT PLANT SCADA UPGRADE GMP-2

CITY PROJECT NUMBER: WA2103.402

SCHEDULE OF VALUES

4/16/24

Page 114



SECTION E

PROJECT SCHEDULE

4/16/24

Page 115



Activity ID Activity Name Original
Duration

Remaining
 Duration

Start Finish Total
Float

Chandler Baseline Schedule In Calendar DaysChandler Baseline Schedule In Calendar Days 600 600 01-Jul-24 20-Feb-26 0

GeneralGeneral 419 419 01-Jul-24 20-Feb-26 0

A1190 Notice to Proceed (Coordination of Documents to Issue NTP) 0 0 01-Jul-24 1

A1200 Mobilization 20 20 01-Jul-24 29-Jul-24 36

A1120 First Phase Start 0 0 06-Aug-24* 31

A1130 Second Phase Start 0 0 04-Sep-24* 42

A1140 Third Phase Start 0 0 08-Jan-25* 11

A4600 Low Flow Period Phase Start (1/8/25 - 2/5/25) 0 0 08-Jan-25* 0

A1150 Fourth Phase Start 0 0 03-Mar-25* 44

A1160 Fifth Phase Start 0 0 01-Apr-25* 34

A1170 Sixth Phase Start 0 0 01-Aug-25* 3

A1180 Seventh Phase Start 0 0 01-Oct-25* 0

A1210 Substantial Completion 22 22 22-Jan-26 20-Feb-26 0

A1220 Punchlist 10 10 22-Jan-26 04-Feb-26 12

A1230 Final Completion 0 0 20-Feb-26 0

ProcurementProcurement 145 145 01-Jul-24 24-Jan-25 174

ContractsContracts 10 10 01-Jul-24 15-Jul-24 1

A1700 Felix Electrical Contract 10 10 01-Jul-24 15-Jul-24 1

A1710 Teltech Fiber Contract 10 10 01-Jul-24 15-Jul-24 1

SubmittalSubmittal 120 120 16-Jul-24 03-Jan-25 174

A1690 Electrical Commodities Submittal 5 5 16-Jul-24 22-Jul-24 16

A1740 Fiber Submittal 5 5 16-Jul-24 22-Jul-24 11

A3350 Concrete Submittal 10 10 16-Jul-24 29-Jul-24 73

A3360 Rebar/Dowel Submittal 10 10 16-Jul-24 29-Jul-24 73

A3370 Misc Concrete Accessories Submittal (Cure/Bonding Agent/Etc) 5 5 16-Jul-24 22-Jul-24 78

A3390 Aggregate Submittal 10 10 16-Jul-24 29-Jul-24 11

A3400 Ductbank Layout Submittal 15 15 16-Jul-24 05-Aug-24 21

A3410 Pre-Cast Concrete Vault Submittal 20 20 16-Jul-24 12-Aug-24 1

A3420 Electrical Panel Drawings Submittal 23 23 16-Jul-24 15-Aug-24 1

A3430 MCC Parts Submittal 32 32 16-Jul-24 28-Aug-24 1

A3440 Electrical Conduit and Cabinet Support Submittal 30 30 16-Jul-24 26-Aug-24 21

A4380 First Phase MOPOs Submittal 5 5 16-Jul-24 22-Jul-24 31

A4390 Second Phase MOPOs Submittal 5 5 06-Aug-24 12-Aug-24 42

A4400 Third Phase MOPOs Submittal 5 5 04-Sep-24 10-Sep-24 78

A4410 Fourth Phase MOPOs Submittal 5 5 02-Oct-24 08-Oct-24 120

A4420 Fifth Phase MOPOs Submittal 5 5 30-Oct-24 05-Nov-24 120

A4430 Sixth Phase MOPOs Submittal 5 5 27-Nov-24 04-Dec-24 155

A4440 Seventh Phase MOPOs Submittal 5 5 27-Dec-24 03-Jan-25 174

Submittal ResponseSubmittal Response 125 125 23-Jul-24 17-Jan-25 174

A1680 Electrical Commodities Submittal Response 10 10 23-Jul-24 05-Aug-24 16

A1750 Fiber Submittal Response 20 20 23-Jul-24 19-Aug-24 11

A3470 Misc Concrete Accessories Submittal Response 20 20 23-Jul-24 19-Aug-24 78

A4450 First Phase MOPOs Submittal Response 5 5 23-Jul-24 29-Jul-24 31

A3450 Concrete Submittal Response 20 20 30-Jul-24 26-Aug-24 73

A3460 Rebar/Dowel Submittal Response 20 20 30-Jul-24 26-Aug-24 73

A3490 Aggregate Submittal Response 20 20 30-Jul-24 26-Aug-24 11

A3500 Ductbank Submittal Response 20 20 06-Aug-24 03-Sep-24 21

A3510 Pre-Cast Concrete Vault Submittal Response 20 20 13-Aug-24 10-Sep-24 1

A4460 Second Phase MOPOs Submittal Response 10 10 13-Aug-24 26-Aug-24 42

May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb

2024 2025 2026

Notice to Proceed (Coordination of Documents to Issue NTP)

Mobilization

First Phase Start

Second Phase Start

Third Phase Start

Low Flow Period Phase Start (1/8/25 - 2/5/25)

Fourth Phase Start

Fifth Phase Start

Sixth Phase Start

Seventh Phase Start

Punchlist

24-Jan-25, Procurement

15-Jul-24, Contracts

Felix Electrical Contract

Teltech Fiber Contract

03-Jan-25, Submittal

Electrical Commodities Submittal

Fiber Submittal

Concrete Submittal

Rebar/Dowel Submittal

Misc Concrete Accessories Submittal (Cure/Bonding Agent/Etc)

Aggregate Submittal

Ductbank Layout Submittal

Pre-Cast Concrete Vault Submittal

Electrical Panel Drawings Submittal

MCC Parts Submittal

Electrical Conduit and Cabinet Support Submittal

First Phase MOPOs Submittal

Second Phase MOPOs Submittal

Third Phase MOPOs Submittal

Fourth Phase MOPOs Submittal

Fifth Phase MOPOs Submittal

Sixth Phase MOPOs Submittal

Seventh Phase MOPOs Submittal

17-Jan-25, Submittal Response

Electrical Commodities Submittal Response

Fiber Submittal Response

Misc Concrete Accessories Submittal Response

First Phase MOPOs Submittal Response

Concrete Submittal Response

Rebar/Dowel Submittal Response

Aggregate Submittal Response

Ductbank Submittal Response

Pre-Cast Concrete Vault Submittal Response

Second Phase MOPOs Submittal Response

Chandler Baseline Schedule In Calendar Days Classic Schedule Layout 07-May-24 09:03

Actual Work

Remaining Work

Critical Remaining Work

Milestone

Summary Page 1 of 8 TASK filter: All Activities

© Oracle Corporation



Activity ID Activity Name Original
Duration

Remaining
 Duration

Start Finish Total
Float

A3520 Electrical Panel Drawings Submittal Response 24 24 16-Aug-24 19-Sep-24 1

A3540 Electrical Conduit and Cabinet Support Submittal Response 20 20 27-Aug-24 24-Sep-24 21

A3530 MCC Parts Submittal Response 23 23 29-Aug-24 01-Oct-24 1

A4470 Third Phase MOPOs Submittal Response 10 10 11-Sep-24 24-Sep-24 78

A4480 Fourth Phase MOPOs Submittal Response 10 10 09-Oct-24 22-Oct-24 120

A4490 Fifth Phase MOPOs Submittal Response 10 10 06-Nov-24 19-Nov-24 120

A4500 Sixth Phase MOPOs Submittal Response 10 10 05-Dec-24 18-Dec-24 155

A4510 Seventh Phase MOPOs Submittal Response 10 10 06-Jan-25 17-Jan-25 174

Release for FabricationRelease for Fabrication 125 125 30-Jul-24 24-Jan-25 174

A4520 First Phase MOPOs Lead Time 5 5 30-Jul-24 05-Aug-24 31

A1730 Electrical Commodities Lead Time 5 5 06-Aug-24 12-Aug-24 16

A1760 Fiber Lead Time 10 10 20-Aug-24 03-Sep-24 11

A3570 Misc Concrete Accessories Lead Time 5 5 20-Aug-24 26-Aug-24 78

A3550 Concrete Lead Time 5 5 27-Aug-24 03-Sep-24 73

A3560 Rebar/Dowel Lead Time 5 5 27-Aug-24 03-Sep-24 73

A3590 Aggregate Lead Time 5 5 27-Aug-24 03-Sep-24 11

A4530 Second Phase MOPOs Lead Time 5 5 27-Aug-24 03-Sep-24 42

A3600 Ductbank Lead Time 5 5 04-Sep-24 10-Sep-24 21

A3610 Pre-Cast Concrete Vault Lead Time 20 20 11-Sep-24 08-Oct-24 1

A3620 Electrical Panels Lead Time 60 60 20-Sep-24 13-Dec-24 1

A3640 Electrical Conduit and Cabinet Support Lead Time 20 20 25-Sep-24 22-Oct-24 21

A4540 Third Phase MOPOs Lead Time 5 5 25-Sep-24 01-Oct-24 78

A3630 MCC Parts Lead Time 40 40 02-Oct-24 26-Nov-24 1

A4550 Fourth Phase MOPOs Lead Time 5 5 23-Oct-24 29-Oct-24 120

A4560 Fifth Phase MOPOs Lead Time 5 5 20-Nov-24 26-Nov-24 120

A4570 Sixth Phase MOPOs Lead Time 5 5 19-Dec-24 26-Dec-24 155

A4580 Seventh Phase MOPOs Lead Time 5 5 20-Jan-25 24-Jan-25 174

ConstructionConstruction 527 527 13-Aug-24 21-Jan-26 0

SiteSite 155 155 13-Aug-24 21-Mar-25 49

A1080 Fiber Optic Ductbanks Boring 10 10 13-Aug-24 26-Aug-24 16

A3650 Electrical Ductbanks 20 20 11-Sep-24 08-Oct-24* 21

A3660 Fiber Optics - 48 Strand Install 15 15 18-Sep-24 08-Oct-24* 1

A3670 Fiber Optics - 48 Strand Splice and Test 5 5 09-Oct-24 15-Oct-24 46

A3680 Fiber Optics - 12 Strand Install 15 15 09-Oct-24 29-Oct-24* 1

A3690 Fiber Optics - 12 Strand Splice and Test 5 5 30-Oct-24 05-Nov-24* 1

A4590 Install and Start Up VFD Ethernet Comm Cards 20 20 08-Jan-25 04-Feb-25* 1

A4790 Move Date from Transfer Station and Upload New Program MOPO - Jacobs 15 15 03-Mar-25 21-Mar-25* 49

Raw WaterRaw Water 100 100 23-Oct-24 14-Mar-25 11

MOPOsMOPOs 85 85 06-Nov-24 07-Mar-25 11

A3700 INF-MET-CPL01 New Panel MOPO 1 1 06-Nov-24 06-Nov-24 83

A3710 INF-MIX-CPL01 New Panel MOPO 1 1 27-Dec-24 27-Dec-24 57

A3720 BSS-2201-PPL01 MCC MOPO 1 1 08-Jan-25 08-Jan-25 11

A3730 BSS-2202-PPL01 MCC MOPO 1 1 16-Jan-25 16-Jan-25 11

A3750 P2201-PPL01 RW Sample Pump MOPO 1 1 24-Jan-25 24-Jan-25 11

A3760 P2201-PPL02 RW Sample Pump MOPO 1 1 03-Feb-25 03-Feb-25 11

A3740 MX-2230 Raw Water Mixers MOPO 1 1 07-Mar-25 07-Mar-25 11

ControlsControls 17 17 16-Dec-24 09-Jan-25 57

A2350 INF-MET-CPL01 New Panel Install 5 5 16-Dec-24 20-Dec-24 57

A2360 INF-MET-CPL01 Terminations 2 2 23-Dec-24 24-Dec-24 57

A2370 INF-MET-CPL01 Start-Up 1 1 26-Dec-24 26-Dec-24 57

May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb

2024 2025 2026

Electrical Panel Drawings Submittal Response

Electrical Conduit and Cabinet Support Submittal Response

MCC Parts Submittal Response

Third Phase MOPOs Submittal Response

Fourth Phase MOPOs Submittal Response

Fifth Phase MOPOs Submittal Response

Sixth Phase MOPOs Submittal Response

Seventh Phase MOPOs Submittal Response

24-Jan-25, Release for Fabrication

First Phase MOPOs Lead Time

Electrical Commodities Lead Time

Fiber Lead Time

Misc Concrete Accessories Lead Time

Concrete Lead Time

Rebar/Dowel Lead Time

Aggregate Lead Time

Second Phase MOPOs Lead Time

Ductbank Lead Time

Pre-Cast Concrete Vault Lead Time

Electrical Panels Lead Time

Electrical Conduit and Cabinet Support Lead Time

Third Phase MOPOs Lead Time

MCC Parts Lead Time

Fourth Phase MOPOs Lead Time

Fifth Phase MOPOs Lead Time

Sixth Phase MOPOs Lead Time

Seventh Phase MOPOs Lead Time

21-Jan-26, Construction

21-Mar-25, Site

Fiber Optic Ductbanks Boring

Electrical Ductbanks

Fiber Optics - 48 Strand Install

Fiber Optics - 48 Strand Splice and Test

Fiber Optics - 12 Strand Install

Fiber Optics - 12 Strand Splice and Test

Install and Start Up VFD Ethernet Comm Cards

Move Date from Transfer Station and Upload New Program MOPO - Jacobs

14-Mar-25, Raw Water

07-Mar-25, MOPOs

INF-MET-CPL01 New Panel MOPO

INF-MIX-CPL01 New Panel MOPO

BSS-2201-PPL01 MCC MOPO

BSS-2202-PPL01 MCC MOPO

P2201-PPL01 RW Sample Pump MOPO

P2201-PPL02 RW Sample Pump MOPO

MX-2230 Raw Water Mixers MOPO

09-Jan-25, Controls

INF-MET-CPL01 New Panel Install

INF-MET-CPL01 Terminations

INF-MET-CPL01 Start-Up

Chandler Baseline Schedule In Calendar Days Classic Schedule Layout 07-May-24 09:03

Actual Work

Remaining Work

Critical Remaining Work

Milestone

Summary Page 2 of 8 TASK filter: All Activities

© Oracle Corporation



Activity ID Activity Name Original
Duration

Remaining
 Duration

Start Finish Total
Float

A2380 INF-MIX-CPL01 New Panel Install 5 5 30-Dec-24 06-Jan-25 57

A2390 INF-MIX-CPL01 Terminations 2 2 07-Jan-25 08-Jan-25 57

A2400 INF-MIX-CPL01 Start-Up 1 1 09-Jan-25 09-Jan-25* 57

PowerPower 100 100 23-Oct-24 14-Mar-25 11

A2410 MET-PLCAT6 Conduit 5 5 23-Oct-24 29-Oct-24 88

A2420 MIX-PLCAT6 Conduit 5 5 23-Oct-24 29-Oct-24 97

A2740 BSS-2201-PPL01 MCC Modifications 2 2 09-Jan-25 10-Jan-25 11

A2750 BSS-2201-PPL01 Terminations 2 2 13-Jan-25 14-Jan-25 11

A2760 BSS-2201-PPL01 Start-Up 1 1 15-Jan-25 15-Jan-25 11

A2770 BSS-2202-PPL01 MCC Modifications 2 2 17-Jan-25 20-Jan-25 11

A2780 BSS-2202-PPL01 Terminations 2 2 21-Jan-25 22-Jan-25 11

A2790 BSS-2202-PPL01 Start-Up 1 1 23-Jan-25 23-Jan-25 11

A3140 P2201-PPL01 RW Sample Pump Modifications 2 2 27-Jan-25 28-Jan-25 11

A3150 P2201-PPL01 RW Sample Pump Terminations 2 2 29-Jan-25 30-Jan-25 11

A3160 P2201-PPL01 RW Sample Pump Start-Up 1 1 31-Jan-25 31-Jan-25 11

A3170 P2201-PPL02 RW Sample Pump Modifications 2 2 04-Feb-25 05-Feb-25 11

A3180 P2201-PPL02 RW Sample Pump Terminations 2 2 06-Feb-25 07-Feb-25 11

A3190 P2201-PPL02 RW Sample Pump Start-Up 1 1 10-Feb-25 10-Feb-25 11

A3080 MX-2230 Raw Water Mixers Modifications 2 2 10-Mar-25 11-Mar-25 11

A3090 MX-2230 Raw Water Mixers Terminations 2 2 12-Mar-25 13-Mar-25 11

A3100 MX-2230 Raw Water Mixers Start-Up 1 1 14-Mar-25 14-Mar-25* 11

Pre-Sedimentation and FlocculationPre-Sedimentation and Flocculation 294 294 04-Sep-24 28-Oct-25 3

MOPOsMOPOs 199 199 08-Jan-25 16-Oct-25 3

A3770 BFL-CPL01 Control Panel MOPO 1 1 08-Jan-25 08-Jan-25 47

A3830 PSD-CPL01 New Panel MOPO 1 1 08-Jan-25 08-Jan-25 50

A3840 BF-PLCAT6 and PWR Conduit and Power Monitoring MOPO 1 1 08-Jan-25 08-Jan-25 15

A3780 BFL-CPL02 Control Panel MOPO 1 1 16-Jan-25 16-Jan-25 47

A3930 PSD2251-PPL01 Pre-sed basin 1 Collectors 1&2 MOPO 1 1 11-Feb-25 11-Feb-25 11

A3940 PSD2252-PPL01 Pre-sed basin 2 Collectors 1&2 MOPO 1 1 19-Feb-25 19-Feb-25 11

A3920 PO141-PPL01 Pre Sed Sludge Pump MOPO 1 1 27-Feb-25 27-Feb-25 11

A3890 MCC-SB1 MCC MOPO 1 1 23-May-25 23-May-25 39

A3800 PRE-CPL01 Control Panel MOPO 1 1 01-Aug-25 01-Aug-25 3

A3810 PRE-CPL02 Control Panel MOPO 1 1 11-Aug-25 11-Aug-25 3

A3790 BFL-PLY3401-CPL01 Control Panel MOPO 1 1 19-Aug-25 19-Aug-25 3

A3900 BFL-PLY3401-PPL01 MOPO 1 1 19-Aug-25 19-Aug-25 33

A3850 MCC-BF MCC MOPO 1 1 26-Aug-25 26-Aug-25 3

A3860 MCC-PCB1-MCD MCC MOPO 1 1 08-Sep-25 08-Sep-25 3

A3870 MCC-PCB2-MCD MCC MOPO 1 1 18-Sep-25 18-Sep-25 3

A3880 MCC-PCB3-MCD MCC MOPO 1 1 30-Sep-25 30-Sep-25 3

A3910 CBN-SUP-P0481-PPL01 MOPO 1 1 08-Oct-25 08-Oct-25 3

A3820 FLC-CPL01 New Panel MOPO 1 1 16-Oct-25 16-Oct-25 3

ControlsControls 206 206 09-Jan-25 28-Oct-25 3

A1770 BFL-CPL01 Control Panel Modifications 2 2 09-Jan-25 10-Jan-25 47

A2450 PSD-CPL01 New Panel Install 5 5 09-Jan-25 15-Jan-25 50

A1780 BFL-CPL01 Terminations 2 2 13-Jan-25 14-Jan-25 47

A1790 BFL-CPL01 Start-Up 1 1 15-Jan-25 15-Jan-25 47

A2460 PSD-CPL01 Terminations 2 2 16-Jan-25 17-Jan-25 50

A1800 BFL-CPL02 Control Panel Modifications 2 2 17-Jan-25 20-Jan-25 47

A2470 PSD-CPL01 Start-Up 1 1 20-Jan-25 20-Jan-25* 50

A1810 BFL-CPL02 Terminations 2 2 21-Jan-25 22-Jan-25 47

May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb

2024 2025 2026

INF-MIX-CPL01 New Panel Install

INF-MIX-CPL01 Terminations

INF-MIX-CPL01 Start-Up

14-Mar-25, Power

MET-PLCAT6 Conduit

MIX-PLCAT6 Conduit

BSS-2201-PPL01 MCC Modifications

BSS-2201-PPL01 Terminations

BSS-2201-PPL01 Start-Up

BSS-2202-PPL01 MCC Modifications

BSS-2202-PPL01 Terminations

BSS-2202-PPL01 Start-Up

P2201-PPL01 RW Sample Pump Modifications

P2201-PPL01 RW Sample Pump Terminations

P2201-PPL01 RW Sample Pump Start-Up

P2201-PPL02 RW Sample Pump Modifications

P2201-PPL02 RW Sample Pump Terminations

P2201-PPL02 RW Sample Pump Start-Up

MX-2230 Raw Water Mixers Modifications

MX-2230 Raw Water Mixers Terminations

MX-2230 Raw Water Mixers Start-Up

28-Oct-25, Pre-Sedimentation and Flocculation

16-Oct-25, MOPOs

BFL-CPL01 Control Panel MOPO

PSD-CPL01 New Panel MOPO

BF-PLCAT6 and PWR Conduit and Power Monitoring MOPO

BFL-CPL02 Control Panel MOPO

PSD2251-PPL01 Pre-sed basin 1 Collectors 1&2 MOPO

PSD2252-PPL01 Pre-sed basin 2 Collectors 1&2 MOPO

PO141-PPL01 Pre Sed Sludge Pump MOPO

MCC-SB1 MCC MOPO

PRE-CPL01 Control Panel MOPO

PRE-CPL02 Control Panel MOPO

BFL-PLY3401-CPL01 Control Panel MOPO

BFL-PLY3401-PPL01 MOPO

MCC-BF MCC MOPO

MCC-PCB1-MCD MCC MOPO

MCC-PCB2-MCD MCC MOPO

MCC-PCB3-MCD MCC MOPO

CBN-SUP-P0481-PPL01 MOPO

FLC-CPL01 New Panel MOPO

28-Oct-25, Controls

BFL-CPL01 Control Panel Modifications

PSD-CPL01 New Panel Install

BFL-CPL01 Terminations

BFL-CPL01 Start-Up

PSD-CPL01 Terminations

BFL-CPL02 Control Panel Modifications

PSD-CPL01 Start-Up

BFL-CPL02 Terminations

Chandler Baseline Schedule In Calendar Days Classic Schedule Layout 07-May-24 09:03

Actual Work

Remaining Work

Critical Remaining Work

Milestone

Summary Page 3 of 8 TASK filter: All Activities

© Oracle Corporation



Activity ID Activity Name Original
Duration

Remaining
 Duration

Start Finish Total
Float

A1820 BFL-CPL02 Start-Up 1 1 23-Jan-25 23-Jan-25* 47

A1980 PRE-CPL01 Control Panel Modifications 2 2 04-Aug-25 05-Aug-25 3

A1990 PRE-CPL01 Terminations 2 2 06-Aug-25 07-Aug-25 3

A2000 PRE-CPL01 Start-Up 1 1 08-Aug-25 08-Aug-25 3

A2010 PRE-CPL02 Control Panel Modifications 2 2 12-Aug-25 13-Aug-25 3

A2020 PRE-CPL02 Terminations 2 2 14-Aug-25 15-Aug-25 3

A2030 PRE-CPL02 Start-Up 1 1 18-Aug-25 18-Aug-25 3

A1950 BFL-PLY3401-CPL01 Control Panel Modifications 2 2 20-Aug-25 21-Aug-25 3

A1960 BFL-PLY3401-CPL01 Terminations 1 1 22-Aug-25 22-Aug-25 3

A1970 BFL-PLY3401-CPL01 Start-Up 1 1 25-Aug-25 25-Aug-25 3

A2270 FLC-CPL01 New Panel Install 5 5 17-Oct-25 23-Oct-25 3

A2280 FLC-CPL01 Terminations 2 2 24-Oct-25 27-Oct-25 3

A2290 FLC-CPL01 Start-Up 1 1 28-Oct-25 28-Oct-25* 3

PowerPower 285 285 04-Sep-24 15-Oct-25 3

A2300 BF-PLCAT6 Conduit 5 5 04-Sep-24 10-Sep-24 98

A2480 PSD-PLCAT6 Conduit 5 5 23-Oct-24 29-Oct-24 63

A2440 PRE-PLCAT6 and PWR Conduit and Power Monitoring 5 5 30-Oct-24 05-Nov-24* 63

A2220 BF-PLCAT6 and PWR Conduit and Power Monitoring 5 5 09-Jan-25 15-Jan-25* 15

A3200 PSD2251-PPL01 Pre-sed basin 1 Collectors 1&2 Modifications 2 2 12-Feb-25 13-Feb-25 11

A3210 PSD2251-PPL01 Pre-sed basin 1 Collectors 1&2 Terminations 2 2 14-Feb-25 17-Feb-25 11

A3220 PSD2251-PPL01 Pre-sed basin 1 Collectors 1&2 Start-Up 1 1 18-Feb-25 18-Feb-25 11

A3230 PSD2252-PPL01 Pre-sed basin 2 Collectors 1&2 Modifications 2 2 20-Feb-25 21-Feb-25 11

A3240 PSD2252-PPL01 Pre-sed basin 2 Collectors 1&2 Terminations 2 2 24-Feb-25 25-Feb-25 11

A3250 PSD2252-PPL01 Pre-sed basin 2 Collectors 1&2 Start-Up 1 1 26-Feb-25 26-Feb-25 11

A3110 PO141-PPL01 Pre Sed Sludge Pump Modifications 2 2 28-Feb-25 03-Mar-25 11

A3120 PO141-PPL01 Pre Sed Sludge Pump Terminations 2 2 04-Mar-25 05-Mar-25 11

A3130 PO141-PPL01 Pre Sed Sludge Pump Start-Up 1 1 06-Mar-25 06-Mar-25 11

A2650 MCC-SB1 MCC Modifications 2 2 27-May-25 28-May-25 39

A2660 MCC-SB1 Terminations 2 2 29-May-25 30-May-25 39

A3040 MCC-SB1 Power Monitoring Demo/Install New 2 2 02-Jun-25 03-Jun-25 39

A2670 MCC-SB1 Start-Up 1 1 04-Jun-25 04-Jun-25* 39

A3050 MCC-SB2 Power Monitoring Demo/Install New 3 3 05-Jun-25 09-Jun-25 83

A2710 BFL-PLY3401-PPL01 Modifications 2 2 20-Aug-25 21-Aug-25 33

A2720 BFL-PLY3401-PPL01 Terminations 2 2 22-Aug-25 25-Aug-25 33

A2730 BFL-PLY3401-PPL01 Start-Up 1 1 26-Aug-25 26-Aug-25 33

A2500 MCC-BF MCC Modifications 2 2 27-Aug-25 28-Aug-25 3

A2510 MCC-BF Terminations 2 2 29-Aug-25 02-Sep-25 3

A2980 MCC-BF Power Monitoring Demo/Install New 2 2 03-Sep-25 04-Sep-25 3

A2520 MCC-BF Start-Up 1 1 05-Sep-25 05-Sep-25 3

A2560 MCC-PCB1-MCD MCC Modifications 2 2 09-Sep-25 10-Sep-25 3

A2570 MCC-PCB1-MCD Terminations 2 2 11-Sep-25 12-Sep-25 3

A3020 MCC-PCB1-MCD Power Monitoring Install New 2 2 15-Sep-25 16-Sep-25 3

A2580 MCC-PCB1-MCD Start-Up 1 1 17-Sep-25 17-Sep-25 3

A2590 MCC-PCB2-MCD MCC Modifications 2 2 19-Sep-25 22-Sep-25 3

A2600 MCC-PCB2-MCD Terminations 2 2 23-Sep-25 24-Sep-25 3

A3030 MCC-PCB2-MCD Power Monitoring Install New 2 2 25-Sep-25 26-Sep-25 3

A2610 MCC-PCB2-MCD Start-Up 1 1 29-Sep-25 29-Sep-25 3

A2620 MCC-PCB3-MCD MCC Modifications 2 2 01-Oct-25 02-Oct-25 3

A2630 MCC-PCB3-MCD Terminations 2 2 03-Oct-25 06-Oct-25 3

A2640 MCC-PCB3-MCD Start-Up 1 1 07-Oct-25 07-Oct-25* 3

May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb

2024 2025 2026

BFL-CPL02 Start-Up

PRE-CPL01 Control Panel Modifications

PRE-CPL01 Terminations

PRE-CPL01 Start-Up

PRE-CPL02 Control Panel Modifications

PRE-CPL02 Terminations

PRE-CPL02 Start-Up

BFL-PLY3401-CPL01 Control Panel Modifications

BFL-PLY3401-CPL01 Terminations

BFL-PLY3401-CPL01 Start-Up

FLC-CPL01 New Panel Install

FLC-CPL01 Terminations

FLC-CPL01 Start-Up

15-Oct-25, Power

BF-PLCAT6 Conduit

PSD-PLCAT6 Conduit

PRE-PLCAT6 and PWR Conduit and Power Monitoring

BF-PLCAT6 and PWR Conduit and Power Monitoring

PSD2251-PPL01 Pre-sed basin 1 Collectors 1&2 Modifications

PSD2251-PPL01 Pre-sed basin 1 Collectors 1&2 Terminations

PSD2251-PPL01 Pre-sed basin 1 Collectors 1&2 Start-Up

PSD2252-PPL01 Pre-sed basin 2 Collectors 1&2 Modifications

PSD2252-PPL01 Pre-sed basin 2 Collectors 1&2 Terminations

PSD2252-PPL01 Pre-sed basin 2 Collectors 1&2 Start-Up

PO141-PPL01 Pre Sed Sludge Pump Modifications

PO141-PPL01 Pre Sed Sludge Pump Terminations

PO141-PPL01 Pre Sed Sludge Pump Start-Up

MCC-SB1 MCC Modifications

MCC-SB1 Terminations

MCC-SB1 Power Monitoring Demo/Install New

MCC-SB1 Start-Up

MCC-SB2 Power Monitoring Demo/Install New

BFL-PLY3401-PPL01 Modifications

BFL-PLY3401-PPL01 Terminations

BFL-PLY3401-PPL01 Start-Up

MCC-BF MCC Modifications

MCC-BF Terminations

MCC-BF Power Monitoring Demo/Install New

MCC-BF Start-Up

MCC-PCB1-MCD MCC Modifications

MCC-PCB1-MCD Terminations

MCC-PCB1-MCD Power Monitoring Install New

MCC-PCB1-MCD Start-Up

MCC-PCB2-MCD MCC Modifications

MCC-PCB2-MCD Terminations

MCC-PCB2-MCD Power Monitoring Install New

MCC-PCB2-MCD Start-Up

MCC-PCB3-MCD MCC Modifications

MCC-PCB3-MCD Terminations

MCC-PCB3-MCD Start-Up

Chandler Baseline Schedule In Calendar Days Classic Schedule Layout 07-May-24 09:03

Actual Work

Remaining Work

Critical Remaining Work

Milestone

Summary Page 4 of 8 TASK filter: All Activities

© Oracle Corporation



Activity ID Activity Name Original
Duration

Remaining
 Duration

Start Finish Total
Float

A2800 CBN-SUP-P0481-PPL01 Modifications 2 2 09-Oct-25 10-Oct-25 3

A2810 CBN-SUP-P0481-PPL01 Terminations 2 2 13-Oct-25 14-Oct-25 3

A2820 CBN-SUP-P0481-PPL01 Start-Up 1 1 15-Oct-25 15-Oct-25 3

High Pressure Booster Pump StationHigh Pressure Booster Pump Station 7 7 16-Oct-24 22-Oct-24 66

MOPOsMOPOs 1 1 16-Oct-24 16-Oct-24 46

A3950 HPP-CPL01 Control Panel MOPO 1 1 16-Oct-24 16-Oct-24 46

ControlsControls 4 4 17-Oct-24 22-Oct-24 46

A1890 HPP-CPL01 Control Panel Modifications 1 1 17-Oct-24 17-Oct-24 46

A1900 HPP-CPL01 Terminations 2 2 18-Oct-24 21-Oct-24 46

A1910 HPP-CPL01 Start-Up 1 1 22-Oct-24 22-Oct-24* 46

PowerPower 0 0 0

FiltersFilters 265 265 08-Jan-25 21-Jan-26 0

MOPOsMOPOs 230 230 08-Jan-25 01-Dec-25 30

A3960 FLT01-CPL01 Control Panel MOPO 1 1 08-Jan-25 08-Jan-25 0

A4610 FLT01-P2101-1-PPL01 FW Sample Pump 1 MOPO 1 1 08-Jan-25 08-Jan-25 3

A3980 FLT01-CPL03 Control Panel MOPO 1 1 16-Jan-25 16-Jan-25 0

A4620 FLT01-P2101-2-PPL01 FW Sample Pump 2 MOPO 1 1 16-Jan-25 16-Jan-25 3

A4000 FLT01-CPL05 Control Panel MOPO 1 1 23-Jan-25 23-Jan-25 0

A4690 Poly Valve and Flow Meter (FLT Control Panels 1 & 3) MOPO 1 1 24-Jan-25 24-Jan-25 3

A4020 FLT01-CPL07 Control Panel MOPO 1 1 30-Jan-25 30-Jan-25 0

A4040 FLT01-CPL09 Control Panel MOPO 1 1 01-Oct-25 01-Oct-25 0

A4080 FLT-CPL01 New Panel Install MOPO 1 1 01-Oct-25 01-Oct-25 34

A4050 FLT01-CPL10 Control Panel MOPO 1 1 09-Oct-25 09-Oct-25 0

A4800 Poly Valve and Flow Meter (FLT Control Panels 2 & 4) MOPO 1 1 14-Oct-25 14-Oct-25 34

A4060 FLT01-CPL11 Control Panel MOPO 1 1 17-Oct-25 17-Oct-25 0

A4130 FLT09-P2109-PPL01 Filter Gallery Sump Pump MOPO 1 1 21-Oct-25 21-Oct-25 34

A4070 FLT01-CPL12 Control Panel MOPO 1 1 27-Oct-25 27-Oct-25 0

A4090 FLT02-P2102-PPL01 Filtration Sump Pump MOPO 1 1 29-Oct-25 29-Oct-25 34

A3970 FLT01-CPL02 Control Panel MOPO 1 1 04-Nov-25 04-Nov-25 0

A4100 FLT08-P2108-3-PPL01 Settled Water Sump Pump MOPO 1 1 06-Nov-25 06-Nov-25 34

A3990 FLT01-CPL04 Control Panel MOPO 1 1 12-Nov-25 12-Nov-25 0

A4110 FLT08-P2108-4-PPL01 Settled Water Sump Pump MOPO 1 1 14-Nov-25 14-Nov-25 34

A4010 FLT01-CPL06 Control Panel MOPO 1 1 20-Nov-25 20-Nov-25 0

A4120 FLT08-P2108-PPL01 Filtrations Sump Pump MOPO 1 1 24-Nov-25 24-Nov-25 34

A4030 FLT01-CPL08 Control Panel MOPO 1 1 01-Dec-25 01-Dec-25 0

ControlsControls 264 264 09-Jan-25 21-Jan-26 0

A1040 FLT01-CPL01 Control Panel Modifications 2 2 09-Jan-25 10-Jan-25 0

A1110 FLT01-CPL01 Terminations 2 2 13-Jan-25 14-Jan-25 0

A1100 FLT01-CPL01 Start-Up 1 1 15-Jan-25 15-Jan-25 0

A1380 FLT01-CPL03 Control Panel Modifications 2 2 17-Jan-25 20-Jan-25 0

A1390 FLT01-CPL03 Terminations 1 1 21-Jan-25 21-Jan-25 0

A1400 FLT01-CPL03 Start-Up 1 1 22-Jan-25 22-Jan-25 0

A1440 FLT01-CPL05 Control Panel Modifications 2 2 24-Jan-25 27-Jan-25 0

A4700 Poly Valve and Flow Meter (FLT Control Panels 1 & 3) Terminate 4 4 27-Jan-25 30-Jan-25 3

A1450 FLT01-CPL05 Terminations 1 1 28-Jan-25 28-Jan-25 0

A1460 FLT01-CPL05 Start-Up 1 1 29-Jan-25 29-Jan-25 0

A1500 FLT01-CPL07 Control Panel Modifications 2 2 31-Jan-25 03-Feb-25 0

A4710 Poly Valve and Flow Meter (FLT Control Panels 1 & 3) Start-Up 1 1 31-Jan-25 31-Jan-25* 3

A1510 FLT01-CPL07 Terminations 1 1 04-Feb-25 04-Feb-25 0

A1520 FLT01-CPL07 Start-Up 1 1 05-Feb-25 05-Feb-25* 0

May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb

2024 2025 2026

CBN-SUP-P0481-PPL01 Modifications

CBN-SUP-P0481-PPL01 Terminations

CBN-SUP-P0481-PPL01 Start-Up

22-Oct-24, High Pressure Booster Pump Station

16-Oct-24, MOPOs

HPP-CPL01 Control Panel MOPO

22-Oct-24, Controls

HPP-CPL01 Control Panel Modifications

HPP-CPL01 Terminations

HPP-CPL01 Start-Up

21-Jan-26, Filters

01-Dec-25, MOPOs

FLT01-CPL01 Control Panel MOPO

FLT01-P2101-1-PPL01 FW Sample Pump 1 MOPO

FLT01-CPL03 Control Panel MOPO

FLT01-P2101-2-PPL01 FW Sample Pump 2 MOPO

FLT01-CPL05 Control Panel MOPO

Poly Valve and Flow Meter (FLT Control Panels 1 & 3) MOPO

FLT01-CPL07 Control Panel MOPO

FLT01-CPL09 Control Panel MOPO

FLT-CPL01 New Panel Install MOPO

FLT01-CPL10 Control Panel MOPO

Poly Valve and Flow Meter (FLT Control Panels 2 & 4) MOPO

FLT01-CPL11 Control Panel MOPO

FLT09-P2109-PPL01 Filter Gallery Sump Pump MOPO

FLT01-CPL12 Control Panel MOPO

FLT02-P2102-PPL01 Filtration Sump Pump MOPO

FLT01-CPL02 Control Panel MOPO

FLT08-P2108-3-PPL01 Settled Water Sump Pump MOPO

FLT01-CPL04 Control Panel MOPO

FLT08-P2108-4-PPL01 Settled Water Sump Pump MOPO

FLT01-CPL06 Control Panel MOPO

FLT08-P2108-PPL01 Filtrations Sump Pump MOPO

FLT01-CPL08 Control Panel MOPO

21-Jan-26, Controls

FLT01-CPL01 Control Panel Modifications

FLT01-CPL01 Terminations

FLT01-CPL01 Start-Up

FLT01-CPL03 Control Panel Modifications

FLT01-CPL03 Terminations

FLT01-CPL03 Start-Up

FLT01-CPL05 Control Panel Modifications

Poly Valve and Flow Meter (FLT Control Panels 1 & 3) Terminate

FLT01-CPL05 Terminations

FLT01-CPL05 Start-Up

FLT01-CPL07 Control Panel Modifications

Poly Valve and Flow Meter (FLT Control Panels 1 & 3) Start-Up

FLT01-CPL07 Terminations

FLT01-CPL07 Start-Up

Chandler Baseline Schedule In Calendar Days Classic Schedule Layout 07-May-24 09:03

Actual Work

Remaining Work

Critical Remaining Work

Milestone

Summary Page 5 of 8 TASK filter: All Activities

© Oracle Corporation



Activity ID Activity Name Original
Duration

Remaining
 Duration

Start Finish Total
Float

A1560 FLT01-CPL09 Control Panel Modifications 2 2 02-Oct-25 03-Oct-25 0

A2310 FLT-CPL01 New Panel Install 5 5 02-Oct-25 08-Oct-25 34

A1570 FLT01-CPL09 Terminations 2 2 06-Oct-25 07-Oct-25 0

A1580 FLT01-CPL09 Start-Up 1 1 08-Oct-25 08-Oct-25 0

A2320 FLT-CPL01 Terminations 2 2 09-Oct-25 10-Oct-25 34

A1590 FLT01-CPL10 Control Panel Modifications 2 2 10-Oct-25 13-Oct-25 0

A2330 FLT-CPL01 Start-Up 1 1 13-Oct-25 13-Oct-25 34

A1600 FLT01-CPL10 Terminations 2 2 14-Oct-25 15-Oct-25 0

A4810 Poly Valve and Flow Meter (FLT Control Panels 2 & 4) Terminate 4 4 15-Oct-25 20-Oct-25 34

A1610 FLT01-CPL10 Start-Up 1 1 16-Oct-25 16-Oct-25 0

A1620 FLT01-CPL11 Control Panel Modifications 2 2 20-Oct-25 21-Oct-25 0

A1630 FLT01-CPL11 Terminations 2 2 22-Oct-25 23-Oct-25 0

A1640 FLT01-CPL11 Start-Up 1 1 24-Oct-25 24-Oct-25 0

A1650 FLT01-CPL12 Control Panel Modifications 2 2 28-Oct-25 29-Oct-25 0

A1660 FLT01-CPL12 Terminations 2 2 30-Oct-25 31-Oct-25 0

A1670 FLT01-CPL12 Start-Up 1 1 03-Nov-25 03-Nov-25 0

A1350 FLT01-CPL02 Control Panel Modifications 2 2 05-Nov-25 06-Nov-25 0

A1360 FLT01-CPL02 Terminations 2 2 07-Nov-25 10-Nov-25 0

A1370 FLT01-CPL02 Start-Up 1 1 11-Nov-25 11-Nov-25 0

A1410 FLT01-CPL04 Control Panel Modifications 2 2 13-Nov-25 14-Nov-25 0

A1420 FLT01-CPL04 Terminations 2 2 17-Nov-25 18-Nov-25 0

A1430 FLT01-CPL04 Start-Up 1 1 19-Nov-25 19-Nov-25 0

A1470 FLT01-CPL06 Control Panel Modifications 2 2 21-Nov-25 24-Nov-25 0

A1480 FLT01-CPL06 Terminations 2 2 25-Nov-25 26-Nov-25 0

A1490 FLT01-CPL06 Start-Up 1 1 28-Nov-25 28-Nov-25 0

A1530 FLT01-CPL08 Control Panel Modifications 2 2 02-Dec-25 03-Dec-25 0

A1540 FLT01-CPL08 Terminations 2 2 04-Dec-25 05-Dec-25 0

A1550 FLT01-CPL08 Start-Up 1 1 08-Dec-25 08-Dec-25* 0

A4830 Phase 7 Existing Wire/Cable Repairs or Replacments 30 30 09-Dec-25 21-Jan-26* 0

PowerPower 231 231 08-Jan-25 02-Dec-25 34

A1280 FLT1-8-PLCAT6 New Conduit 5 5 08-Jan-25 14-Jan-25 217

A2340 FLT9-12-PLCAT6 New Conduit 5 5 08-Jan-25 14-Jan-25 217

A4630 FLT01-P2101-1-PPL01 FW Sample Pump 1 Modifications 2 2 09-Jan-25 10-Jan-25 3

A4640 FLT01-P2101-1-PPL01 FW Sample Pump 1 Terminations 2 2 13-Jan-25 14-Jan-25 3

A4650 FLT01-P2101-1-PPL01 FW Sample Pump 1 Start-Up 1 1 15-Jan-25 15-Jan-25 3

A4660 FLT01-P2101-2-PPL01 FW Sample Pump 2 Modifications 2 2 17-Jan-25 20-Jan-25 3

A4670 FLT01-P2101-2-PPL01 FW Sample Pump 2 Terminations 2 2 21-Jan-25 22-Jan-25 3

A4680 FLT01-P2101-2-PPL01 FW Sample Pump 2 Start-Up 1 1 23-Jan-25 23-Jan-25 3

A2950 FLT09-P2109-PPL01 Modifications Filter Gallery Sump Pump 2 2 22-Oct-25 23-Oct-25 34

A2960 FLT09-P2109-PPL01 Terminations 2 2 24-Oct-25 27-Oct-25 34

A2970 FLT09-P2109-PPL01 Start-Up 1 1 28-Oct-25 28-Oct-25 34

A2830 FLT02-P2102-PPL01 Modifications Filtration Sump Pump 2 2 30-Oct-25 31-Oct-25 34

A2840 FLT02-P2102-PPL01 Terminations 2 2 03-Nov-25 04-Nov-25 34

A2850 FLT02-P2102-PPL01 Start-Up 1 1 05-Nov-25 05-Nov-25 34

A2860 FLT08-P2108-3-PPL01 Modifications Settled Water Sump Pump 2 2 07-Nov-25 10-Nov-25 34

A2870 FLT08-P2108-3-PPL01 Terminations 2 2 11-Nov-25 12-Nov-25 34

A2880 FLT08-P2108-3-PPL01 Start-Up 1 1 13-Nov-25 13-Nov-25 34

A2890 FLT08-P2108-4-PPL01 Modifications Settled Water Sump Pump 2 2 17-Nov-25 18-Nov-25 34

A2900 FLT08-P2108-4-PPL01 Terminations 2 2 19-Nov-25 20-Nov-25 34

A2910 FLT08-P2108-4-PPL01 Start-Up 1 1 21-Nov-25 21-Nov-25 34

May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb

2024 2025 2026

FLT01-CPL09 Control Panel Modifications

FLT-CPL01 New Panel Install

FLT01-CPL09 Terminations

FLT01-CPL09 Start-Up

FLT-CPL01 Terminations

FLT01-CPL10 Control Panel Modifications

FLT-CPL01 Start-Up

FLT01-CPL10 Terminations

Poly Valve and Flow Meter (FLT Control Panels 2 & 4) Terminate

FLT01-CPL10 Start-Up

FLT01-CPL11 Control Panel Modifications

FLT01-CPL11 Terminations

FLT01-CPL11 Start-Up

FLT01-CPL12 Control Panel Modifications

FLT01-CPL12 Terminations

FLT01-CPL12 Start-Up

FLT01-CPL02 Control Panel Modifications

FLT01-CPL02 Terminations

FLT01-CPL02 Start-Up

FLT01-CPL04 Control Panel Modifications

FLT01-CPL04 Terminations

FLT01-CPL04 Start-Up

FLT01-CPL06 Control Panel Modifications

FLT01-CPL06 Terminations

FLT01-CPL06 Start-Up

FLT01-CPL08 Control Panel Modifications

FLT01-CPL08 Terminations

FLT01-CPL08 Start-Up

Phase 7 Existing Wire/Cable Repairs or Replacments

02-Dec-25, Power

FLT1-8-PLCAT6 New Conduit

FLT9-12-PLCAT6 New Conduit

FLT01-P2101-1-PPL01 FW Sample Pump 1 Modifications

FLT01-P2101-1-PPL01 FW Sample Pump 1 Terminations

FLT01-P2101-1-PPL01 FW Sample Pump 1 Start-Up

FLT01-P2101-2-PPL01 FW Sample Pump 2 Modifications

FLT01-P2101-2-PPL01 FW Sample Pump 2 Terminations

FLT01-P2101-2-PPL01 FW Sample Pump 2 Start-Up

FLT09-P2109-PPL01 Modifications Filter Gallery Sump Pump

FLT09-P2109-PPL01 Terminations

FLT09-P2109-PPL01 Start-Up

FLT02-P2102-PPL01 Modifications Filtration Sump Pump

FLT02-P2102-PPL01 Terminations

FLT02-P2102-PPL01 Start-Up

FLT08-P2108-3-PPL01 Modifications Settled Water Sump Pump

FLT08-P2108-3-PPL01 Terminations

FLT08-P2108-3-PPL01 Start-Up

FLT08-P2108-4-PPL01 Modifications Settled Water Sump Pump

FLT08-P2108-4-PPL01 Terminations

FLT08-P2108-4-PPL01 Start-Up

Chandler Baseline Schedule In Calendar Days Classic Schedule Layout 07-May-24 09:03

Actual Work

Remaining Work

Critical Remaining Work

Milestone

Summary Page 6 of 8 TASK filter: All Activities

© Oracle Corporation



Activity ID Activity Name Original
Duration

Remaining
 Duration

Start Finish Total
Float

A2920 FLT08-P2108-PPL01 Modifications Filtrations Sump Pump 2 2 25-Nov-25 26-Nov-25 34

A2930 FLT08-P2108-PPL01 Terminations 2 2 28-Nov-25 01-Dec-25 34

A2940 FLT08-P2108-PPL01 Start-Up 1 1 02-Dec-25 02-Dec-25* 34

DisinfectionDisinfection 111 111 08-Jan-25 12-Jun-25 34

MOPOsMOPOs 106 106 08-Jan-25 05-Jun-25 34

A4180 PST-PLCAT6 and PWR Conduit and Power Monitoring MOPO 1 1 08-Jan-25 08-Jan-25 12

A4190 MCC-DIS MCC MOPO 1 1 01-Apr-25 01-Apr-25 34

A4160 PST-NaOCl-CPL01 Control Panel MOPO 1 1 11-Apr-25 11-Apr-25 34

A4140 FLT-BLR2151-CPL01 Control Panel MOPO 1 1 21-Apr-25 21-Apr-25 34

A4150 FLT-BLR2171-CPL01 Control Panel MOPO 1 1 29-Apr-25 29-Apr-25 34

A4170 PST-CPL01 Control Panel MOPO 1 1 05-Jun-25 05-Jun-25 34

ControlsControls 43 43 14-Apr-25 12-Jun-25 34

A1920 PST-NaOCl-CPL01 Control Panel Modifications 2 2 14-Apr-25 15-Apr-25 34

A1930 PST-NaOCl-CPL01 Terminations 2 2 16-Apr-25 17-Apr-25 34

A1940 PST-NaOCl-CPL01 Start-Up 1 1 18-Apr-25 18-Apr-25 34

A1830 FLT-BLR2151-CPL01 Control Panel Modifications 2 2 22-Apr-25 23-Apr-25 34

A1840 FLT-BLR2151-CPL01 Terminations 2 2 24-Apr-25 25-Apr-25 34

A1850 FLT-BLR2151-CPL01 Start-Up 1 1 28-Apr-25 28-Apr-25 34

A1860 FLT-BLR2171-CPL01 Control Panel Modifications 2 2 30-Apr-25 01-May-25 34

A1870 FLT-BLR2171-CPL01 Terminations 2 2 02-May-25 05-May-25 34

A1880 FLT-BLR2171-CPL01 Start-Up 1 1 06-May-25 06-May-25* 34

A2130 PST-CPL01 Control Panel Modifications 2 2 06-Jun-25 09-Jun-25 34

A2140 PST-CPL01 Terminations 2 2 10-Jun-25 11-Jun-25 34

A2150 PST-CPL01 Start-Up 1 1 12-Jun-25 12-Jun-25* 34

PowerPower 66 66 09-Jan-25 10-Apr-25 34

A2490 PST-PLCAT6 and PWR Conduit and Power Monitoring 5 5 09-Jan-25 15-Jan-25 12

A4200 PST-PLCAT6 and PWR Conduit and Power Monitoring Terminations 2 2 16-Jan-25 17-Jan-25 12

A4210 PST-PLCAT6 and PWR Conduit and Power Monitoring Start-Up 1 1 20-Jan-25 20-Jan-25* 12

A2530 MCC-DIS MCC Modifications 2 2 02-Apr-25 03-Apr-25 34

A2540 MCC-DIS Terminations 2 2 04-Apr-25 07-Apr-25 34

A3010 MCC-DIS Power Monitoring Demo/Install New 2 2 08-Apr-25 09-Apr-25 34

A2550 MCC-DIS Start-Up 1 1 10-Apr-25 10-Apr-25 34

Solids HandlingSolids Handling 107 107 04-Sep-24 04-Feb-25 1

MOPOsMOPOs 104 104 04-Sep-24 30-Jan-25 1

A4270 TSS-Coll775-PPL01 Gravity Thickener 1 MOPO 1 1 04-Sep-24 04-Sep-24 42

A4280 TSS-Coll875-PPL01 Gravity Thickener 2 MOPO 1 1 12-Sep-24 12-Sep-24 42

A4290 TSS-SUP9003-PPL01 Thickened Sludge Sump Pump MOPO 1 1 20-Sep-24 20-Sep-24 42

A4240 MCC-SLG MCC MOPO 1 1 30-Sep-24 30-Sep-24 42

A4220 SLG-CPL01 Control Panel MOPO 1 1 05-Dec-24 05-Dec-24 1

A4230 SLG-CPL03 New Panel Install MOPO 1 1 13-Dec-24 13-Dec-24 1

A4250 MCC-SH-01 Power Monitoring Demo/Install MOPO 1 1 24-Jan-25 24-Jan-25 1

A4260 MCC-SH-02 Power Monitoring Demo/Install MOPO 1 1 30-Jan-25 30-Jan-25 1

ControlsControls 14 14 06-Dec-24 26-Dec-24 1

A2040 SLG-CPL01 Control Panel Modifications 2 2 06-Dec-24 09-Dec-24 1

A2050 SLG-CPL01 Terminations 2 2 10-Dec-24 11-Dec-24 1

A2060 SLG-CPL01 Start-Up 1 1 12-Dec-24 12-Dec-24 1

A2160 SLG-CPL03 New Panel Install 5 5 16-Dec-24 20-Dec-24 1

A2170 SLG-CPL03 Terminations 2 2 23-Dec-24 24-Dec-24 1

A2180 SLG-CPL03 Start-Up 1 1 26-Dec-24 26-Dec-24* 1

PowerPower 106 106 05-Sep-24 04-Feb-25 1

May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb

2024 2025 2026

FLT08-P2108-PPL01 Modifications Filtrations Sump Pump

FLT08-P2108-PPL01 Terminations

FLT08-P2108-PPL01 Start-Up

12-Jun-25, Disinfection

05-Jun-25, MOPOs

PST-PLCAT6 and PWR Conduit and Power Monitoring MOPO

MCC-DIS MCC MOPO

PST-NaOCl-CPL01 Control Panel MOPO

FLT-BLR2151-CPL01 Control Panel MOPO

FLT-BLR2171-CPL01 Control Panel MOPO

PST-CPL01 Control Panel MOPO

12-Jun-25, Controls

PST-NaOCl-CPL01 Control Panel Modifications

PST-NaOCl-CPL01 Terminations

PST-NaOCl-CPL01 Start-Up

FLT-BLR2151-CPL01 Control Panel Modifications

FLT-BLR2151-CPL01 Terminations

FLT-BLR2151-CPL01 Start-Up

FLT-BLR2171-CPL01 Control Panel Modifications

FLT-BLR2171-CPL01 Terminations

FLT-BLR2171-CPL01 Start-Up

PST-CPL01 Control Panel Modifications

PST-CPL01 Terminations

PST-CPL01 Start-Up

10-Apr-25, Power

PST-PLCAT6 and PWR Conduit and Power Monitoring

PST-PLCAT6 and PWR Conduit and Power Monitoring Terminations

PST-PLCAT6 and PWR Conduit and Power Monitoring Start-Up

MCC-DIS MCC Modifications

MCC-DIS Terminations

MCC-DIS Power Monitoring Demo/Install New

MCC-DIS Start-Up

04-Feb-25, Solids Handling

30-Jan-25, MOPOs

TSS-Coll775-PPL01 Gravity Thickener 1 MOPO

TSS-Coll875-PPL01 Gravity Thickener 2 MOPO

TSS-SUP9003-PPL01 Thickened Sludge Sump Pump MOPO

MCC-SLG MCC MOPO

SLG-CPL01 Control Panel MOPO

SLG-CPL03 New Panel Install MOPO

MCC-SH-01 Power Monitoring Demo/Install MOPO

MCC-SH-02 Power Monitoring Demo/Install MOPO

26-Dec-24, Controls

SLG-CPL01 Control Panel Modifications

SLG-CPL01 Terminations

SLG-CPL01 Start-Up

SLG-CPL03 New Panel Install

SLG-CPL03 Terminations

SLG-CPL03 Start-Up

04-Feb-25, Power

Chandler Baseline Schedule In Calendar Days Classic Schedule Layout 07-May-24 09:03

Actual Work

Remaining Work

Critical Remaining Work

Milestone

Summary Page 7 of 8 TASK filter: All Activities

© Oracle Corporation



Activity ID Activity Name Original
Duration

Remaining
 Duration

Start Finish Total
Float

A3260 TSS-Coll775-PPL01 Gravity Thickener 1 Modifications 2 2 05-Sep-24 06-Sep-24 42

A3270 TSS-Coll775-PPL01 Gravity Thickener 1 Terminations 2 2 09-Sep-24 10-Sep-24 42

A3280 TSS-Coll775-PPL01 Gravity Thickener 1  Start-Up 1 1 11-Sep-24 11-Sep-24 42

A3290 TSS-Coll875-PPL01 Gravity Thickener 2 Modifications 2 2 13-Sep-24 16-Sep-24 42

A3300 TSS-Coll875-PPL01 Gravity Thickener 2 Terminations 2 2 17-Sep-24 18-Sep-24 42

A3310 TSS-Coll875-PPL01 Gravity Thickener 2  Start-Up 1 1 19-Sep-24 19-Sep-24 42

A3320 TSS-SUP9003-PPL01 Thickened Sludge Sump Pump Modifications 2 2 23-Sep-24 24-Sep-24 42

A3330 TSS-SUP9003-PPL01 Thickened Sludge Sump Pump Terminations 2 2 25-Sep-24 26-Sep-24 42

A3340 TSS-SUP9003-PPL01 Thickened Sludge Sump Pump Start-Up 1 1 27-Sep-24 27-Sep-24* 42

A1310 SLG-PLCAT6 Conduit 5 5 23-Oct-24 29-Oct-24 21

A2680 MCC-SLG MCC Modifications 2 2 27-Nov-24 29-Nov-24 1

A2690 MCC-SLG Terminations 2 2 02-Dec-24 03-Dec-24 1

A2700 MCC-SLG Start-Up 1 1 04-Dec-24 04-Dec-24 1

A3060 MCC-SH-01 Power Monitoring Demo/Install New 3 3 27-Jan-25 29-Jan-25 1

A3070 MCC-SH-02 Power Monitoring Demo/Install New 3 3 31-Jan-25 04-Feb-25* 1

AdministrationAdministration 121 121 16-Dec-24 05-Jun-25 39

MOPOsMOPOs 121 121 16-Dec-24 05-Jun-25 39

A4820 Cutover ADM-CPL01 (Control Building) - Temp or New Ethernet Switch MOPO 5 5 16-Dec-24 20-Dec-24* 4

A4350 NTW-FOPP and RACK Tie Ins MOPO 1 1 08-Jan-25 08-Jan-25 8

A4360 MCC-CB1 Power Monitoring Install MOPO 1 1 08-Jan-25 08-Jan-25 1

A4370 MCC-CB2 Power Monitoring Install MOPO 1 1 13-Jan-25 13-Jan-25 1

A4330 ADM-PLCAT6 and PWR Conduit and Power Monitoring MOPO 1 1 16-Jan-25 16-Jan-25 1

A4720 Ethernet and Firewall Components at San Tan Vista MOPO 1 1 16-Jan-25 16-Jan-25 8

A4340 ELE-PLCAT6 and PWR Conduit and Power Monitoring MOPO 1 1 21-Jan-25 21-Jan-25 1

A4760 Start Remote Transfers (Foxboro to Wonderware) Low Flow Period - Jacobs 1 1 24-Jan-25 24-Jan-25* 8

A4770 Start Remote Transfers (Foxboro to Wonderware) Phase 4 - Jacobs 20 20 03-Mar-25 28-Mar-25* 44

A4300 ELE-CPL01 Control Panel MOPO 1 1 07-May-25 07-May-25 34

A4310 ELE-CPL03 Control Panel MOPO 1 1 15-May-25 15-May-25 34

A4320 ELE-CPL04 New Panel Install MOPO 1 1 05-Jun-25 05-Jun-25* 39

A4780 Start Remote Transfers (Foxboro to Wonderware) Phase 5 - Jacobs 1 1 05-Jun-25 05-Jun-25* 39

ControlsControls 98 98 17-Jan-25 04-Jun-25 34

A4730 Ethernet and Firewall Components at San Tan Vista Modifications 2 2 17-Jan-25 20-Jan-25 8

A4740 Ethernet and Firewall Components at San Tan Vista Terminate 2 2 21-Jan-25 22-Jan-25 8

A4750 Ethernet and Firewall Components at San Tan Vista Start-Up 1 1 23-Jan-25 23-Jan-25* 8

A2070 ELE-CPL01 Control Panel Modifications 2 2 08-May-25 09-May-25 34

A2080 ELE-CPL01 Terminations 2 2 12-May-25 13-May-25 34

A2090 ELE-CPL01 Start-Up 1 1 14-May-25 14-May-25 34

A2100 ELE-CPL03 Control Panel Modifications 2 2 16-May-25 19-May-25 34

A2110 ELE-CPL03 Terminations 2 2 20-May-25 21-May-25 34

A2120 ELE-CPL03 Start-Up 1 1 22-May-25 22-May-25 34

A2240 ELE-CPL04 New Panel Install 5 5 23-May-25 30-May-25 34

A2250 ELE-CPL04  Terminations 2 2 02-Jun-25 03-Jun-25 34

A2260 ELE-CPL04 Start-Up 1 1 04-Jun-25 04-Jun-25 34

PowerPower 11 11 09-Jan-25 23-Jan-25 2

A2430 NTW-FOPP and RACK Tie Ins 5 5 09-Jan-25 15-Jan-25 8

A2990 MCC-CB1 Power Monitoring Install New 2 2 09-Jan-25 10-Jan-25 1

A3000 MCC-CB2 Power Monitoring Install New 2 2 14-Jan-25 15-Jan-25 1

A2190 ADM-PLCAT6 and PWR Conduit and Power Monitoring 2 2 17-Jan-25 20-Jan-25 1

A2230 ELE-PLCAT6 and PWR Conduit and Power Monitoring 2 2 22-Jan-25 23-Jan-25* 1

May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb

2024 2025 2026

TSS-Coll775-PPL01 Gravity Thickener 1 Modifications

TSS-Coll775-PPL01 Gravity Thickener 1 Terminations

TSS-Coll775-PPL01 Gravity Thickener 1  Start-Up

TSS-Coll875-PPL01 Gravity Thickener 2 Modifications

TSS-Coll875-PPL01 Gravity Thickener 2 Terminations

TSS-Coll875-PPL01 Gravity Thickener 2  Start-Up

TSS-SUP9003-PPL01 Thickened Sludge Sump Pump Modifications

TSS-SUP9003-PPL01 Thickened Sludge Sump Pump Terminations

TSS-SUP9003-PPL01 Thickened Sludge Sump Pump Start-Up

SLG-PLCAT6 Conduit

MCC-SLG MCC Modifications

MCC-SLG Terminations

MCC-SLG Start-Up

MCC-SH-01 Power Monitoring Demo/Install New

MCC-SH-02 Power Monitoring Demo/Install New

05-Jun-25, Administration

05-Jun-25, MOPOs

Cutover ADM-CPL01 (Control Building) - Temp or New Ethernet Switch MOPO

NTW-FOPP and RACK Tie Ins MOPO

MCC-CB1 Power Monitoring Install MOPO

MCC-CB2 Power Monitoring Install MOPO

ADM-PLCAT6 and PWR Conduit and Power Monitoring MOPO

Ethernet and Firewall Components at San Tan Vista MOPO

ELE-PLCAT6 and PWR Conduit and Power Monitoring MOPO

Start Remote Transfers (Foxboro to Wonderware) Low Flow Period - Jacobs

Start Remote Transfers (Foxboro to Wonderware) Phase 4 - Jacobs

ELE-CPL01 Control Panel MOPO

ELE-CPL03 Control Panel MOPO

ELE-CPL04 New Panel Install MOPO

Start Remote Transfers (Foxboro to Wonderware) Phase 5 - Jacobs

04-Jun-25, Controls

Ethernet and Firewall Components at San Tan Vista Modifications

Ethernet and Firewall Components at San Tan Vista Terminate

Ethernet and Firewall Components at San Tan Vista Start-Up

ELE-CPL01 Control Panel Modifications

ELE-CPL01 Terminations

ELE-CPL01 Start-Up

ELE-CPL03 Control Panel Modifications

ELE-CPL03 Terminations

ELE-CPL03 Start-Up

ELE-CPL04 New Panel Install

ELE-CPL04  Terminations

ELE-CPL04 Start-Up

23-Jan-25, Power

NTW-FOPP and RACK Tie Ins

MCC-CB1 Power Monitoring Install New

MCC-CB2 Power Monitoring Install New

ADM-PLCAT6 and PWR Conduit and Power Monitoring

ELE-PLCAT6 and PWR Conduit and Power Monitoring

Chandler Baseline Schedule In Calendar Days Classic Schedule Layout 07-May-24 09:03

Actual Work

Remaining Work

Critical Remaining Work

Milestone

Summary Page 8 of 8 TASK filter: All Activities

© Oracle Corporation



SECTION F

CONSTRUCTION PHASING

4/16/24

Page 124



�

�

�����������	
��������	����������������������������
����������������������

�

�

��������� ������
������	���!������	��������������������

"������
��	��#���

�������	
���
���������

������������������#��$�

%�&�'�������$�(���������)�����������������*�������������
�����	��!�������+�

,-./01232145/561-7819:;.5/1<0=0781

�

��#�����������*>�
�����?@A�B��B��B�CB�D+�*A�����E@������C+

�����

�A���������>� ������
>�
�����?@A� "	��#���>�
�����?@A�

"	��#���>F'�?@��A�?@
��F�A�*�����>�
����G�

��$�

�	����	���A+

�����

�A���������>� ������
>�
������B�BCBD "��#����>�
������B�BCBD

"��#����>F'��@��A��@
��F�A�*>�
���������	���

�	���+

"��#����>F'�D@��A�D@H@
��F�A�*����
���������
����
���	���A+

"��#����>F'�D@��A�D@�@
��F�A�*����
���������
����
���	����+

"��#����>F'�D@��A�D@
��F�A*>�
�����	����	��+

'���������)�����������
$�
#�
#�������
�)������

��I���������*""�+�*�D����E@A�����E+

"	��#����J(@"�F�A�*""��K	�
���!+ "	��#����""@�"KA�*AA�K	�����+ "	��#����""@�"K��*��K	�����+
"	��#���"K�@�L�@���DA@��F�A�*"�� ���

�	��+ �����

�A����������� ������>F"��(M�K���� "	��#���>F"@"�F�A�*>
������+

>�����������*K>+�*������E@������E+

�)����	��'�����"�����
�)������

"	��#�����'@"�F�A�
*M������������K
�!+

"	��#����""@M���*��
K	�����+

"	��#�����'@���"F@
"�F�A�*���"F�����
+

"	��#���>F'@KFJ�AEA@
"�F�A�*K
�)���A+

"	��#���>F'@KFJ�A�A@
"�F�A�*K
�)����+

>�
����������J��
N�
���O���

"	��#���(F(@"�F�A�
*�KA+

"	��#���(F(@"�F�H�
*�KH+

"	��#����""@�KA�
*K���)�����	���+

J������'����������
�#��������

>�	����������*�)����!���+�*�H����E@�E����E+

��#�����������'��������������� J������'�����������#��������

'�����������*M��+�*�A����E@H����E+

"	��#���K>F@"�F�A�
*K>�K	�
���!+

"	��#���K>F@
�FPH��A@"�F�A�*K>�

��
$���+

"	��#���K>F@"�F���
*�����
�+

"	��#����""@K>�*A��
K	�����+

"	��#���K����A@
��F�A�*��������
"�����
�A+

"	��#���K�����@
��F�A�*��������
"�����
��+

"	��#�������A@
��F�A�*J������
��

�	���A+�

"	��#��������@
��F�A�*J������
��

�	����+�

"	��#�����M��EA@
��F�A�*���@����K�����

A�"�

+

"	��#�����M��E�@
��F�A�*���@����K�����

A�"�

+

"	��#�����A�A@
��F�A�*���@����
�
	�!���	���+

"	��#����Q��H�@
��F�A�*J����I��+

�����"���
�����M	���!�F�)�>
�)��������*�A��D����E@����E����E+

�����

���)���
��������

�����

�R>M�(��������
"����"����

�����

���)�"���	���
���(
�������
�
(	������

�
���������F� �
�����
>��
�������

��������$�����
� �
�
������)����

�����

�A���������
>� ���>�
�����ABHBEB�

"	��#���>�
�����
ABHBEB��%

"	��#���>F'�A@
��A�A@A@��F�A�*>��
����
���	���A+

"	��#���>F'�A@
��A�A@�@��F�A�*>��
����
���	����+

'���������)���������
��
$�#�
#�������
�)�

�����
���'���R����

������J�������
'�����������#������

��

�������������*'�������$�(���������)������+�*�D�AC�����@A���D�����+

"	��#���S��@"�F�A�
*S�!�������	����	��+%

"	��#����FG@
"�F�AT��F�A�*�
	�!��

K	�
���!+%

"	��#����""@�FG�*��
K	�����+

"	��#���'��@"�FF��E@
��F�A�*'���������A+

"	��#���'��@"�FFD�E@
��F���*'����������+

"	��#���'��@�L�?��H@
��F�A�*�	����	��+

"	��#����M�@"�F�A�
*"�����
�K	�
���!+%

�����

�A���������>� ���
���K�
��������"�����
�

����


"���������)�K�
��
�������"�����
�����


�����

����)����
��������������
�

�����

�A������������
>� �������J�)�������

����

>�����������*����A�����@�D�AE�����+

�����

�S�����
�� �����

���)�M	�� ���� �����

�>F'@"�F�A�*>�
����J(��J��!+% �	

��D������������� �� '�������������'�����D��������>� ��

09/30/2024

4/16/24

Page 125



SECTION G

LIST OF GMP PLANS &
SPECIFICATIONS

4/16/24

Page 126



 

 

4. LIST OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

Archer Western utilized the following plans and specifications issued by Jacobs to complete this GMP Proposal. All files 

resided on the Jacobs SharePoint site (100% DESIGN BINDER). 

• 100% TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS DATED JULY 10, 2023 AND JULY 12, 2023 

o Volumes 1 and 2 

• 100% DESIGN DRAWINGS DATED JULY 14, 2023 

o Volumes 3 through 6 

• ADDENDA DRAWINGS DATED AUGUST 15, 2023 

4/16/24

Page 127

https://jacobsengineering.sharepoint.com/:f:/r/sites/CP_ChandlerPecosSCADA/Shared%20Documents/Phase%203%20Detailed%20Design/100%25%20DESIGN%20BINDER?csf=1&web=1&e=fCUsSc


SECTION H

ASSUMPTIONS AND
CLARIFICATIONS

4/16/24

Page 128



 
 

1. ASSUMPTIONS AND CLARIFICATIONS 

We recognize the desire to receive unqualified proposals for greater cost certainty. As such, Archer Western has attempted 

to minimize the assumptions and clarifying information in this GMP Proposal. However, at this time we do have the 

following assumptions and clarifications to qualify our Proposal. The potential cost impact of these items has largely 

been captured in the recommended allowances and contingencies and will only be applied for unplanned and 

unmitigated events with cost impacts to the project. 

Item Description 

1 Section 01 91 14 Equipment Testing and Facility Start-Up is by the City/Engineer. Archer Western will confirm 

installations by verifying continuity of new installations, the City/Engineer will perform start-ups of systems 

and facility performance. Section 1.02 A is excluded. Additional labor beyond continuity is out of the scope. 

2 Administration Building new UPS system has been quoted based on the March 25, 2024 site walk discussion 

with City of Chandler personnel and includes routing the new conduit above the suspended ceiling of the 

main floor, prior to suspended ceiling installation, and not routed through the basement level. 

3 Archer Western will be self-performing less than 50% of the total cost of the work which does not meet the 

requirement described in section 4.2.8 of the contract. 

 

4/16/24

Page 129



EXHIBIT E 

Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant (SWTP) SCADA Upgrades GMP 2  Page SUB-1 

Project No.: WA2103.402 

Rev. 1/16/2024 

SUBCONTRACTOR DOCUMENTS WITH CM@RISK 

 
Any subcontractor assumptions, clarifications, exclusions, terms & conditions, signature blocks, etc. included are strictly between the CM@RISK 

and their subcontractors, and do not apply to the Agreement between the CM@RISK and the City. 

 

SUBCONTRACTOR’S LIST FORM 

If CM@Risk intends to subcontract any portion of this Agreement, the CM@Risk must submit the name, address, and contractor’s license number (if 

applicable) of each subcontractor, including the work component of such subcontracting.  Include the form with the bid submittal documents.  CM@Risk 

may make multiple copies of this form as needed.

Company Name:  

Contact Name:  

Contact Email:  

Contact Phone:  

Work Component:  

Percentage of Total 

Work Performed: 

 

  

Company Name:  

Contact Name:  

Contact Email:  

Contact Phone:  

Work Component:  

Percentage of Total 

Work Performed: 

 

  

Company Name:  

Contact Name:  

Contact Email:  

Contact Phone:  

Work Component:  

Percentage of Total 

Work Performed: 

 

Company Name:  

Contact Name:  

Contact Email:  

Contact Phone:  

Work Component:  

Percentage of Total 

Work Performed: 

 

  

Company Name:  

Contact Name:  

Contact Email:  

Contact Phone:  

Work Component:  

Percentage of Total 

Work Performed: 

 

  

Company Name:  

Contact Name:  

Contact Email:  

Contact Phone:  

Work Component:  

Percentage of Total 

Work Performed: 

 



EXHIBIT F 

  
Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant (SWTP) SCADA Upgrades GMP 2  Page GIS-1 

Project No.: WA2103.402 

Rev 1/16/2024 

GIS / GPS DATA DELIVERY REQUIREMENTS 

 

N/A 

 

  



EXHIBIT G 

  
Project Name: Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant (SWTP) SCADA Upgrades GMP 2  Page SUBS-1 

Project No.: WA2103.402 

Rev 1/16/2024 

 

 

SUBCONTRACTOR DOCUMENTS WITH CM@RISK 

 

Any subcontractor assumptions, clarifications, exclusions, terms & conditions, 

signature blocks, etc. included are strictly between the CM@Risk and their 

subcontractors, and do not apply to the Agreement between the CM@Risk and the City. 

 

 

DonnaRy
Text Box
N/A

DonnaRy
Text Box



BACK-UP
QUOTES

4/16/24

Page 20



Felix Construction Company

License # L11 - 172036

Project City of Chandler - Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 Date 3/25/2024

By By
Felix E/I&C Others

1

NOTE 1: This bid is based on City of Chandler - Pecos SCADA Upgrades  

100% Plans & Specifications.

NOTE 2: Commodities, such as Copper Wire, are quoted based on 3/25/2024 

pricing.

NOTE NOTE

2

CIVIL (100) - Felix Construction GC to Provide Duct bank Excavation & Backfill, 

Asphalt Cut / Removal / Replacement, & Concrete Encased Duct Banks w/ out 

Rebar for the Following Runs: Raw Water Metering and Control Structure - To - 

Building E, Raw Water Mixing and Distribution Structure - To - Building E, 

Presedimentation Basin Area - To - Building E, Building E - To - Basin Area, 

and FW Pump Station No. 2 Buildings. Concrete Pads for Control Panels and 

UPS (Vendor Supplied). As Required Concrete Coring & Patching. Private 

Locator for Each of the Above Runs.  

√ N/A

3

CONDUIT (200) - Felix Construction EI&C to Provide and Install PVC SCH 40 

Conduit Underground, EMT Conduit, GRC Conduit, PVC Coated Conduit, & 

Anaconda Flex Conduit (UA) in Above Ground Applications, and Manholes w/ 

Extensions & Lids.

UG (2"): PVC SCH 40 Conduit, PVC SCH 40 Couplings, PVC SCH 40 Female 

Adapter, PVC-CTD GRC 90-Degree Elbows, PVC SCH 40 End Bells, Base 

Chairs & Spacers.

AG (2", 1"): EMT Conduit, EMT Couplings, EMT 90-Degree Elbows, EMT 

Connectors, GRC Conduit, GRC Couplings, GRC 90-Degree Elbows, GRC 

Myers Hub w/ Ground, GRC LB Conduit Body F-7, PVC-CTD GRC Conduit, 

PVC-CTD GRC Couplings, PVC-CTD GRC 90-Degree Elbows, PVC-CTD GRC 

Myers Hub w/ Ground, PVC-CTD GRC LB Conduit Body F-7, Anaconda Flex 

Conduit (UA), 45-Degree Flex Connector, Sealing Washer & Sealing Locknut, 

PVC-CTD GRC Conduit Straps. 

Handholes, Extensions, & Lids: Two (2) 13" X 12" X 20" T15 Handholes w/ 

Extension & Lids (Electrical) & Two (2) 24" X 24" X 36" T15 Handholes w/ 

Extension & Lids (Electrical). 

√ N/A

4

CABLE & WIRE (300) - Felix Construction EI&C to Provide and Install XHHW-2 

for all Power and Non-Signal Control Wire, Belden TSP for All Signal Wire, 

Belden CAT6 Cable.

Feeders: #1/0 AWG XHHW CU (STR), #10 AWG XHHW CU (STR). Machine 

Coded Sleeves for All Cable. 

Branch Circuits: #14 AWG XHHW CU (STR), Belden 9318 (#18AWG/2 + 

Shield), Belden CAT6 Ethernet Cable w/ RJ45 Connectors. Machine Coded 

Sleeves for All Cable. 

Grounding: #4/0 AWG Bare CU (STR), Cadweld Plus - #150 Weld Cups, 3/4" 

X 10" Copper Ground Rod, Ground Wells & Lids. 

√ N/A

Quoted Scope of Work

Number Description

1

4/16/24

Page 21



By By
Felix E/I&C Others

Number Description

5

GEAR (500) - Felix Construction EI&C to Modify/Add to the following MCC 

Buckets with a Mixture of Felix Construction Provided Parts (Miscellaneous 

Parts Outside of Comms Module & Overload) and Quantum Provided Parts 

(Comms Module & Overload): BF-MX-2351, BF-MX-2371, BF-MX-2352, BF-P-

2351, BF-P-2352, BF-MX-2372, BF-P-2371, BF-P-2372, RW-P-2211, RW-P-

2212, RW-P-2310, RW-P-2320, AA-BL-2151, AA-BL-2171, AA-BL-2630, AA-BL-

2640, P-2814, MIX-0493/MIX-0498, MIX-2330, P-341, MIX-0483, Sed Basin 2 

Sludge Collector, Sed Basin 2 Sludge Collector B, Sed Basin 2 Sludge 

Collector C, Sed Basin 3 Sludge Collector A, Sed Basin 3 Sludge Collector B, 

Sed Basin 3 Sludge Collector C, MIX-0482, P-2815, MIX-2340, Sed Basin 1 

Sludge Collector A, Sed Basin 1 Sludge Collector B, Sed Basin 1 Sludge 

Collector C, WA-P-205, WA-P-206, BF Mixer, Thickened Sludge Pump M/Pump 

#1, Thickened Sludge Pump M/Pump #2, & Thickened Sludge Pump M/Pump 

#3.

UPS SOW: Felix Construction EI&C to Provide and Install One (1) 100A MTS 

and Two (2) 100A Feeder Buckets. 

√ N/A

6

INSTRUMENTATION (600) - Felix Construction EI&C to Provide & Install: 

Three (3) 20A Bolt on Circuit Breakers for New Power Circuits. Felix EI&C to 

Install (Only) Nine (9) New Power Quality Meter (PQM) & Filler Plates for the 

Following MCC's: PWTP-MCC-BF, PWTP-MCC-CB1, PWTP-MCC-CB2, PWTP-

MCC-DIS, PWTP-MCC-PCB1, PWTP-MCC-PCB2, PWTP-MCC-SB1, PWTP-

MCC-SB2, & PWTP-MCC-SH. 

Felix Construction EI&C to Modify/Add to the following Control Panel with a 

Mixture of Felix Construction Provided Parts (Miscellaneous Parts Outside of 

GMP-1 Components Provided by Quantum ) and Quantum Provided Parts 

(GMP-1 Provided Components): PWTP-BS2201-PPL01 Controller 1, PWTP-

BS2201-PPL01 Controller 2, PWTP-MX2230-PPL01, PWTP-P0141-PPL01, 

PWTP-P2201-PPL01, PWTP-P2202-PPL01, PWTP-PSD2251-PPL01, PWTP-

PSD2252-PPL01, PWTP-FLT01-CPL01, PWTP-FLT02-CPL01, PWTP-FLT03-

CPL01, PWTP-FLT04-CPL01, PWTP-FLT05-CPL01, PWTP-FLT06-CPL01, 

PWTP-FLT07-CPL01, PWTP-FLT08-CPL01, PWTP-FLT09-CPL01, PWTP-

FLT10-CPL01, PWTP-FLT11-CPL01, PWTP-FLT12-CPL01, PWTP-ADM-

CPL01, PWTP-BFL-CPL01, PWTP-BFL-PLY3401-CPL01, PWTP-BFL-

PLY3401-PPL01, PWTP-ELE-CPL01, PWTP-ELE-CPL03, PWTP-PRE-CPL01, 

PWTP-PST-CPL01, PWTP-PST-NCL-CPL01, PWTP-SLG-CPL01, PWTP-FLT-

BLR2151-CPL01, PWTP-FLT-BLR2171-CPL01, PWTP-BFL-CPL01, PWTP-

HPP-CPL01, PMP-0342, TSS-COLL775, TSS-COLL875, & Thickened Sludge 

Building Sump Pump.

√ N/A

7

CONTROL AND PUMP PANELS (600) - Felix Construction EI&C to Provide 

and Install: Twenty Five (25) or As Required N4/N4X Junction & Pull Boxes w/ 

Associated Accessories for Terminations. Eight (8) New Network Panels: 

PWTP-ELE-CPL04, PWTP-FLC-CPL01, PWTP-FLT-CPL01, PWTP-PRE-

CPL02, PWTP-PSD-CPL01, PWTP-SLG-CPL03, PWTP-INF-MET-CPL01, & 

PWTP-INF-MIX-CPL01. GMP-1 Components are Provided by Quantum for 

New Network Panels. 

√ N/A

8
FABRICATION (700) - Felix Construction EI&C to Provide and Install 316 SS 

Strut and Hardware As-Required to Complete Electrical Installation.
√ N/A

1

4/16/24

Page 22



By By
Felix E/I&C Others

Number Description

9

OTHER MISC. (800) - Felix Construction EI&C to Provide DEMO per Plans. 

Felix EI&C to Provide Wire Coordination for All Control Panels. Felix EI&C to 

Provide and Install Conduit Tags, Equipment Tags, and New Wire Labels. Felix 

EI&C to Provide Contractor Start-Up and Owner/Engineer Start-Up Per 

Specifications. Felix EI&C to Provide Electronic Submittals and O&M's for All 

Felix EI&C Provided Equipment, Tests, MOPO's, and Field Reports. General 

Conditions Provided Equipment: Crane, Scissor Lift, Forklift, Two (2) 20' 

Storage Container, Project Manager Truck, & Supervisor Truck w/ Tools.  

√ N/A

10 Programming - Not Included in Bid. Jacobs to Provide All Programming. N/A N/A

11 Spare Parts - Not included in bid. Quantum to Provide All Spare Parts. N/A N/A

12 Private Locating and Blue Stake √

13 Painting and Coatings √

14 Shade Structures SES or other Exterior Locations √

15 Coordination / Arc Flash Study Excluded Excluded

16 As-Built / Red Lines √

17 Start-up/Calibrate Felix supplied Controls and Instruments √

18 Testing and Commissioning √

19 Plant MOPO's √

20 Owner Site Training √

21 Concrete Pad's, Foundations, Curb's √

22 Concrete embed sill's and custom specialty items √

23 Concrete Coring, Saw cutting and Surface Restoration √

24 Painting and Surface Restorations √

25 Accelerated Schedules / Off Shift and Overtime Work Excluded Excluded

26 Trash Receptacles √

27 Sanitary Facilities √

28 Temporary Power √

29 Construction Water √

30 Permits / Permit Fees √

31 Utility & Utility Fees √

32 Taxes √

100 CIVIL  $       916,907.89 

200 CONDUIT SYSTEMS  $       762,201.48 

300 CABLE  $       148,513.18 

500 SWITCHGEAR/GENERATOR  $       135,785.81 

600 INSTRUMENTATION (PANELS & INSTRUMENT)  $       936,258.12 

700 - FABRICATION  $         36,691.73 

1

4/16/24

Page 23



By By
Felix E/I&C Others

Number Description

800 MISC (DEMO/EQUIPMENT/SUBMITTALS/TESTING)  $    1,467,792.58 

Total Including Insurance, & Bond  $    4,514,254.56 

Contingency - 10% of 300 & 600:  $       108,477.14 
Contingency - Temporary Generator and Fuel:  $       252,300.00 
Contingency - Additional New Control Panels or Enclosures - Labor, Materials, 

and Installation Included: 

PWTP-CBN-SUP-P0481-PPL01: (New Control Panel) Includes: NEMA 4X 

Disconnect Enclosure, Subpanel, Disconnect, Two (2) MCPs, Two (2) 

Contactors, Auxiliary Contacts, Two (2) Transformer, 3-Position Selector 

Switch's, Reset Push Buttons, Pilot Lights, Alarm Bell, Control Relays, Terminal 

Blocks, Ground Bar, Din-Rail, and Wireway. Control Panel Design/Plans 

Included.   

PWTP-FLT01-P2101-1/2-PPL01: (New Enclosure) One (1) NEMA 4X 

Disconnect Enclosure. Utilize Existing Controls and Subpanel. 

PWTP-FLT02-P2102-1/2-PPL01: (New Control Panel) Includes: NEMA 4X 

Disconnect Enclosure, Subpanel, Disconnect, Two (2) MCPs, Two (2) 

Contactors, Auxiliary Contacts, Two (2) Transformer, 3-Position Selector 

Switch's, Reset Push Buttons, Pilot Lights, Alarm Bell, Control Relays, Terminal 

Blocks, Ground Bar, Din-Rail, and Wireway. Control Panel Design/Plans 

Included.

PWTP-FLT08-P2108-3/4-PPL01: (New Enclosure) One (1) NEMA 4X 

Disconnect Enclosure. Utilize Existing Controls and Subpanel. 

PWTP-FLT08-P2108-PPL01: (New Control Panel) Includes: NEMA 4X 

Disconnect Enclosure, Subpanel, Disconnect, Two (2) MCPs, Two (2) 

Contactors, Auxiliary Contacts, Two (2) Transformer, 3-Position Selector 

Switch's, Reset Push Buttons, Pilot Lights, Alarm Bell, Control Relays, Terminal 

Blocks, Ground Bar, Din-Rail, and Wireway. Control Panel Design/Plans 

Included.

PWTP-FLT09-P2109-1/2-PPL01: (New Enclosure) One (1) NEMA 4X 

Disconnect Enclosure. Utilize Existing Controls and Subpanel. 

 $       275,000.00 

Signature:  Date: 

Estimator: Zachary Watts (602) 814-3877
zachw@felixconstruction.com

1

4/16/24

Page 24



Project:

Date:

Revision:

#

1

2

3

4

5

6

8

9

Felix Construction EI&C to Modify/Add to the following MCC Buckets with a Mixture of Felix Construction Provided Parts (Miscellaneous Parts Outside 

of Comms Module & Overload) and Quantum Provided Parts (Comms Module & Overload): BF-MX-2351, BF-MX-2371, BF-MX-2352, BF-P-2351, BF-P-

2352, BF-MX-2372, BF-P-2371, BF-P-2372, RW-P-2211, RW-P-2212, RW-P-2310, RW-P-2320, AA-BL-2151, AA-BL-2171, AA-BL-2630, AA-BL-2640, P-

2814, MIX-0493/MIX-0498, MIX-2330, P-341, MIX-0483, Sed Basin 2 Sludge Collector, Sed Basin 2 Sludge Collector B, Sed Basin 2 Sludge Collector C, 

Sed Basin 3 Sludge Collector A, Sed Basin 3 Sludge Collector B, Sed Basin 3 Sludge Collector C, MIX-0482, P-2815, MIX-2340, Sed Basin 1 Sludge 

Collector A, Sed Basin 1 Sludge Collector B, Sed Basin 1 Sludge Collector C, WA-P-205, WA-P-206, BF Mixer, Thickened Sludge Pump M/Pump #1, 

Thickened Sludge Pump M/Pump #2, & Thickened Sludge Pump M/Pump #3.

UPS SOW: Felix Construction EI&C to Provide and Install One (1) 100A MTS and Two (2) 100A Feeder Buckets. 

Felix Construction EI&C to Provide & Install: Three (3) 20A Bolt on Circuit Breakers for New Power Circuits. Felix EI&C to Install (Only) Nine (9) New 

Power Quality Meter (PQM) & Filler Plates for the Following MCC's: PWTP-MCC-BF, PWTP-MCC-CB1, PWTP-MCC-CB2, PWTP-MCC-DIS, PWTP-MCC-

PCB1, PWTP-MCC-PCB2, PWTP-MCC-SB1, PWTP-MCC-SB2, & PWTP-MCC-SH. 

Felix Construction EI&C to Modify/Add to the following Control Panel with a Mixture of Felix Construction Provided Parts (Miscellaneous Parts Outside 

of GMP-1 Components Provided by Quantum ) and Quantum Provided Parts (GMP-1 Provided Components): PWTP-BS2201-PPL01 Controller 1, PWTP-

BS2201-PPL01 Controller 2, PWTP-MX2230-PPL01, PWTP-P0141-PPL01, PWTP-P2201-PPL01, PWTP-P2202-PPL01, PWTP-PSD2251-PPL01, PWTP-

PSD2252-PPL01, PWTP-FLT01-CPL01, PWTP-FLT02-CPL01, PWTP-FLT03-CPL01, PWTP-FLT04-CPL01, PWTP-FLT05-CPL01, PWTP-FLT06-CPL01, PWTP-

FLT07-CPL01, PWTP-FLT08-CPL01, PWTP-FLT09-CPL01, PWTP-FLT10-CPL01, PWTP-FLT11-CPL01, PWTP-FLT12-CPL01, PWTP-ADM-CPL01, PWTP-BFL-

CPL01, PWTP-BFL-PLY3401-CPL01, PWTP-BFL-PLY3401-PPL01, PWTP-ELE-CPL01, PWTP-ELE-CPL03, PWTP-PRE-CPL01, PWTP-PST-CPL01, PWTP-PST-

NCL-CPL01, PWTP-SLG-CPL01, PWTP-FLT-BLR2151-CPL01, PWTP-FLT-BLR2171-CPL01, PWTP-BFL-CPL01, PWTP-HPP-CPL01, PMP-0342, TSS-COLL775, 

TSS-COLL875, & Thickened Sludge Building Sump Pump.

Feeders: #1/0 AWG XHHW CU (STR), #10 AWG XHHW CU (STR). Machine Coded Sleeves for All Cable. 

Branch Circuits: #14 AWG XHHW CU (STR), Belden 9318 (#18AWG/2 + Shield), Belden CAT6 Ethernet Cable w/ RJ45 Connectors. Machine Coded 

Sleeves for All Cable. 

Grounding: #4/0 AWG Bare CU (STR), Cadweld Plus - #150 Weld Cups, 3/4" X 10" Copper Ground Rod, Ground Wells & Lids.

Proposal Clarifications

Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - Revised GMP2

3/25/2024

Rev 6

Includes:

Felix Construction GC to Provide Duct bank Excavation & Backfill, Asphalt Cut / Removal / Replacement, & Concrete Encased Duct Banks w/ out Rebar 

for the Following Runs: Raw Water Metering and Control Structure - To - Building E, Raw Water Mixing and Distribution Structure - To - Building E, 

Presedimentation Basin Area - To - Building E, Building E - To - Basin Area, and FW Pump Station No. 2 Buildings. Concrete Pads for Control Panels and 

UPS. As Required Concrete Coring & Patching. Private Locator for Each of the Above Runs.

UG (2"): PVC SCH 40 Conduit, PVC SCH 40 Couplings, PVC SCH 40 Female Adapter, PVC-CTD GRC 90-Degree Elbows, PVC SCH 40 End Bells, Base Chairs 

& Spacers.

AG (2", 1"): EMT Conduit, EMT Couplings, EMT 90-Degree Elbows, EMT Connectors, GRC Conduit, GRC Couplings, GRC 90-Degree Elbows, GRC Myers 

Hub w/ Ground, GRC LB Conduit Body F-7, PVC-CTD GRC Conduit, PVC-CTD GRC Couplings, PVC-CTD GRC 90-Degree Elbows, PVC-CTD GRC Myers Hub 

w/ Ground, PVC-CTD GRC LB Conduit Body F-7, Anaconda Flex Conduit (UA), 45-Degree Flex Connector, Sealing Washer & Sealing Locknut, PVC-CTD 

GRC Conduit Straps.

Felix Construction EI&C to Provide and Install Two (2) 13" X 12" X 20" T15 Manholes w/ Extension & Lids (Electrical) & Two (2) 24" X 24" X 36" T15 

Manholes w/ Extension & Lids (Electrical).

Felix Construction EI&C Provide and Install 316 SS Strut and Hardware As-Required to Complete Electrical Installation.

Felix Construction EI&C to Provide and Install: Twenty Five (25) or As Required N4/N4X Junction & Pull Boxes w/ Associated Accessories for 

Terminations. Eight (8) New Network Panels: PWTP-ELE-CPL04, PWTP-FLC-CPL01, PWTP-FLT-CPL01, PWTP-PRE-CPL02, PWTP-PSD-CPL01, PWTP-SLG-

CPL03, PWTP-INF-MET-CPL01, & PWTP-INF-MIX-CPL01. GMP-1 Components are Provided by Quantum for New Network Panels. 

4/16/24

Page 25



10

11

12

#

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

#

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

#

1

2

3

Felix Construction EI&C Provide Demolition on the Following Panels & Buckets: PWTP-MCC-BF PQM, PWTP-MCC-CB1 PQM, PWTP-MCC-CB2 PQM, 

PWTP-MCC-PCB1 PQM, PWTP-MCC-PCB2 PQM, PWTP-MCC-SB1 PQM, PWTP-MCC-SB2 PQM, PWTP-MCC-SH PQM, BF-MX-2351 MCC BUCKET, BF-

MX-2371 MCC BUCKET, BF-MX-2352 MCC BUCKET, BF-P-2351 MCC BUCKET, BF-P-2352 MCC BUCKET, BF-MX-2372 MCC BUCKET, BF-P-2371 MCC 

BUCKET, BF-P-2372 MCC BUCKET, RW-P-2211 MCC BUCKET, RW-P-2212 MCC BUCKET, RW-P-2310 MCC BUCKET, RW-P-2320 MCC BUCKET, AA-BL-

2151 MCC BUCKET, AA-BL-2171 MCC BUCKET, AA-BL-2630 MCC BUCKET, AA-BL-2640 MCC BUCKET, P-2814 MCC BUCKET, MIX-0493/0498 MCC 

BUCKET, MIX-2330 MCC BUCKET, P-341 MCC BUCKET, MIX-0483 MCC BUCKET, SED BASIN 2 SLUDGE COLLECTOR A, SED BASIN 2 SLUDGE COLLECTOR 

B, SED BASIN 2 SLUDGE COLLECTOR C, SED BASIN 3 SLUDGE COLLECTOR A, SED BASIN 3 SLUDGE COLLECTOR B, SED BASIN 3 SLUDGE COLLECTOR C, 

MIX-0482 MCC BUCKET, P-2815 MCC BUCKET, MIX-2340 MCC BUCKET, SED BASIN 1 SLUDGE COLLECTOR A, SED BASIN 1 SLUDGE COLLECTOR B, SED 

BASIN 1 SLUDGE COLLECTOR C, WA-P-205 MCC BUCKET, WA-P-206 MCC BUCKET, BF MIXER MOTOR MCC BUCKET, THICKENED SLUDGE PUMP 

M/PUMP #1, THICKENED SLUDGE PUMP M/PUMP #2, THICKENED SLUDGE PUMP M/PUMP #3, PWTP-BS2201-PPL01, PWTP-BS2201-PPL01, PWTP-

MX2230-PPL01, PWTP-P0141-PPL01, PWTP-P2201-PPL01, PWTP-P2202-PPL01, PWTP-PSD2251-PPL01, PWTP-PSD2252-PPL01, PWTP-FLT01-CPL01, 

PWTP-FLT02-CPL01, PWTP-FLT03-CPL01, PWTP-FLT04-CPL01, PWTP-FLT05-CPL01, PWTP-FLT06-CPL01, PWTP-FLT07-CPL01, PWTP-FLT08-CPL01, 

PWTP-FLT09-CPL01, PWTP-FLT10-CPL01, PWTP-FLT11-CPL01, PWTP-FLT12-CPL01, PWTP-ADM-CPL01, PWTP-BFL-CPL01, PWTP-BFL-PLY3401-CPL01, 

PWPT-BFL-PLY3401-PPL01, PWTP-ELE-CPL01, PWTP-ELE-CPL03, PWTP-PRE-CPL01, PWTP-PST-CPL01, PWTP-PST-NCL-CPL01, PWPT-SLG-CPL01, PWTP-

FLT-BLR2151-CPL01, PWTP-FLT-BLR2171-CPL01, PWTP-BFL-CPL01, & PWTP-HPP-CPL01, PMP-0342, TSS-COLL775, TSS-COLL875, & Thickened Sludge 

Building Sump Pump.  

Felix Construction EI&C to Provide DEMO per Plans. Felix EI&C to Provide Wire Coordination for All Control Panels. Felix EI&C to Provide and Install 

Conduit Tags, Equipment Tags, and New Wire Labels. Felix EI&C to Provide Contractor Start-Up and Owner/Engineer Start-Up Per Specifications. Felix 

EI&C to Provide Electronic Submittals and O&M's for All Felix EI&C Provided Equipment, Tests, MOPO's, and Field Reports. General Conditions 

Provided Equipment: Crane, Scissor Lift, Forklift, Two (2) 20' Storage Container, Project Manager Truck, & Supervisor Truck w/ Tools.

Insurance & Bond included in Proposal.

Excludes:

New MCC Buckets & New Control Panels that were Labeled Modified. 

Felix Construction GC Exclusions: Dust Control, Slurry, Material Testing, & Construction Site Walk. 

Periodic Billing. 

Any Additional Civil Work Not Listed in Construction Plans or Quantum's Scope of Work. 

Office Trailer - Provided by Archer Western. 

Temporary Power for Two (2) Office Trailers - This Scope of Work to be Provided as an Allowance by Archer Western. 

Temporary Power for Two (2) Office Trailers to be Provided in an Allowance. 

All/Any Process Instrumentation Such As: LIT's, FIT's, PIT's, AIT's, Level/Pressure Switch's, Etc. Instrumentation Not Part of Project. 

New MCC's, MCC Buckets, Power Distribution Panels, & Low Voltage Panels. 

SCADA, PLC, OIT, & Communication will be Programmed by Jacobs. 

Construction Plans are Intended to be Utilized as New Drawings for Existing Control Panels & MCC Buckets 

Price Assumes:

Other Project Partners, Contractors, and Sub-Contractors Such As Jacobs, Archer Western, and Tel-Tech to Provide Their Contracted Scope of Work. 

All Provided Material from GMP1 is Accounted for, Stored in Climate Controlled and Dry Environment, Staged in Organized Fashion, and Ready for 

Installation. 

ALL GMP1 Components and Spare Parts will be Provided by Quantum. 

Sanitary Facilities - Provided by Archer Western. 

ALL Fiber Work will be Completed by Others. 

Sales Tax - Provided by Archer Western. 

New UPS - Provided by Others, Felix Construction to Provide Installation. 

UL Services will be Provided for New Control Panels - Existing Control Panels and MCC Buckets will NOT be Re-UL'ed, UL Compliant Components will 

be Provided. 

Clarifications:

Due to current market volatility, material pricing is subject to the terms stated on the included material quotes, some of which may establish that final 

pricing will be determined at the time of shipment. 

Any Additional Demolition Not Listed in Construction Plans. 

Modicon PLC Components, Cisco Ethernet Components, Schneider Smart Overloads, and VFD Communications Card - Provided by Quantum. 

UL Services for Existing/Modified Control Panels and Buckets - Utilizing UL Compliant Components. 

New Drawings for Existing Control Panel or MCC Buckets - New Drawings will be Provided with New Control Panel. 

ALL Fiber Work - Provided by Others: Trenching, Encased Duct Bank, Handholes, UG Conduit, Fiber Cable, and Connections. 

Permit fee's (we will treat them as a pass-thru)

ALL PLC/OIT/SCADA Software, Licenses, and Programming - Provided by Jacobs.

ALL Spare Parts - Provided by Quantum.

New Temporary Power Panel Board - Should be Existing and in Good Shape. 

Anything Not Listed Includes or Quoted Scope of Work. 

4/16/24

Page 26



#

1

#

1

2

3

4

# 

1

10% of Cost Code 300 - Cable & Wire - Contingency Carried by Archer Western.

Assumes Owner to Provide:

Access to the site

Project Contingency Usage:

Project Allowance Details:

Temporary Power for Two (2) Office Trailers - Allowance Carried by Archer Western. 

10% of Cost Code 600 - Control Panels (Including Additional Control Panels) - Contingency Carried by Archer Western. 

Previously Excluded Control Panels: Felix Construction EI&C to Provide and Install New Control Panels or New Enclosures for the Following Panels: 

PWTP-CBN-SUP-P0481-PPL01,PWTP-FLT01-P2101-1/2-PPL01, PWTP-FLT02-P2102-1/2-PPL01,PWTP-FLT08-P2108-3/4-PPL01, PWTP-FLT08-P2108-

PPL01,& PWTP-FLT09-P2109-1/2-PPL01 - Contingency Carried by Archer Western. 

Temporary Generator and Fuel - Contingency Carried by Archer Western. 

4/16/24

Page 27



Project:

Job ID: JOB-0119

Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6

City of Chandler

Chandler AZ

25 Mar 2024  20:16:09

Bid Phase Totals

Tax Rate status: Default Bid Name: DEFAULT BID Bid Template: BASIC (EXPANDED O&P) V5

Material $ Labor Hrs Quotes $ Equip. $ Sub-Con. $Labor $ Phase Total $

100 - CIVIL > EXCAVATION  184,368.36  -   -   -   -   -   184,368.36

100 - CIVIL > GRAVEL / ABC  305,392.51  -   -   -   -   -   305,392.51

100 - CIVIL > CONCRETE  243,169.17  366.00  47,533.92  -   -   -   290,703.09

100 - CIVIL > RENTAL  130,906.59  17.00  2,207.89  -   -   -   133,114.48

100 - CIVIL > PRIVATE LOCATOR  2,680.07  5.00  649.38  -   -   -   3,329.45

Subtotal:  100 - CIVIL  866,516.70  388.00  50,391.18  -   -   -   916,907.89

200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS > UG  17,816.28  176.82  22,964.65  -   -   -   40,780.93

200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS > ABOVE GRADE  323,721.18  3,062.15  397,699.37  -   -   -   721,420.55

Subtotal:  200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS  341,537.46  3,238.97  420,664.02  -   -   -   762,201.48

300 - CABLE > FEEDERS  16,708.06  143.80  18,676.15  -   -   -   35,384.21

300 - CABLE > BRANCH-CTRL-INST  29,391.11  545.00  70,781.69  -   -   -   100,172.80

300 - CABLE > GROUNDING  8,865.08  31.50  4,091.09  -   -   -   12,956.17

Subtotal:  300 - CABLE  54,964.25  720.30  93,548.93  -   -   -   148,513.18

500 - SWITCHGEAR > SWITCHGEAR  80,848.33  423.00  54,937.49  -   -   -   135,785.81

Subtotal:  500 - SWITCHGEAR  80,848.33  423.00  54,937.49  -   -   -   135,785.81

600 - INSTRUMENTATION > PANELS  285,533.88  369.00  47,924.19  -   -   -   333,458.07

600 - INSTRUMENTATION > INSTRUMENTS  474,094.37  990.99  128,705.68  -   -   -   602,800.05

Subtotal:  600 - INSTRUMENTATION  759,628.25  1,359.99  176,629.87  -   -   -   936,258.12

700 - FABRICATION > MOUNTING RACKS  18,103.25  143.13  18,588.48  -   -   -   36,691.73

Subtotal:  700 - FABRICATION  18,103.25  143.13  18,588.48  -   -   -   36,691.73

800 - OTHER / MISC. > DEMO  -   761.00  98,835.53  -   -   -   98,835.53

800 - OTHER / MISC. > EQUIPMENT  11,090.99  2.00  259.49  -   347,103.92  -   358,454.40

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 1 of 2ConEst Software Systems

4/16/24

Page 28



25 Mar 2024  8:16PMBid Phase Totals: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6

Material $ Labor Hrs Quotes $ Equip. $ Sub-Con. $Labor $ Phase Total $

800 - OTHER / MISC. > O&M MANUALS  5,955.71  200.00  25,975.17  -   -   -   31,930.89

800 - OTHER / MISC. > AS-BUILTS  -   3,294.00  427,811.09  -   -   -   427,811.09

800 - OTHER / MISC. > TESTING  159,795.37  2,610.30  339,014.96  -   -   -   498,810.33

800 - OTHER / MISC. > SUBMITTALS  -   400.00  51,950.34  -   -   -   51,950.34

Subtotal:  800 - OTHER / MISC.  176,842.08  7,267.30  943,846.59  -   347,103.92  -   1,467,792.58

 2,298,440.31  13,540.67  1,758,606.57  -   347,103.92  -   4,404,150.79Bid Total:

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 2 of 2ConEst Software Systems

As-Built Includes:  
- Construction Plans & Work Package Red-Lines for Jacobs As-Built. 
- Wire, Process, & Hot Work Coordination.  

Testing Includes:  
- Contractor Testing
- Client and Engineer Start-Up
- MOPO Development, Review, and Implementation
- Overtime Hours

Additional As-Built & MOPO Clarification:  
As-Built, MOPO, and Testing – Red-Line Plan Set Drawings, Provide
UL508A As-Built of Felix Provided Control Panels, Process
Coordination with City of Chandler, Jacobs, and Archer Western –
Identify affected processes and develop plan to maintain plant
operations, and Wire Coordination – Identify all conductors and devices
for IO testing and Conductor Labeling. Create MOPO based on
information gathered, review with team, rehearse with City personnel,
implement MOPO, conduct IO Checked as identified previously, apply
labeling, and verify Functionality of Hardware/Programming
Modifications.

4/16/24

Page 29



Project:

Job ID:

Takeoff

JOB-0119

Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6

City of Chandler

Chandler AZ

25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 100 - CIVIL

SubPhase: EXCAVATION

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 0.00 QUOTED BY FELIX GC

 1.00 DUCT BANK EX/BACKFILL448 M  154,782.76  0.00 154,782.7600  0.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 154,782.76  0.00Phase Totals:

Phase: 100 - CIVIL

SubPhase: GRAVEL / ABC

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 0.00 QUOTED BY FELIX GC

 1.00 ASPHALT CUT/REMOVE/REPLACE449 M  256,386.16  0.00 256,386.1600  0.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 256,386.16  0.00Phase Totals:

Phase: 100 - CIVIL

SubPhase: CONCRETE

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 0.00 ENCASEMENT 1: OVERALL ENCASEMENT

 0.00  W X D X L = CF             CF/27 = CY

 0.00 2 X 3 X 600 = 3600 CF      3600CF/27 = 133.33CY

 134.00 CONC DB REDEA Concrete Encasement - DB Red CY849 M  40,066.00  66.00 299.0000  0.4925 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00

 0.00 CONCRETE CORING

 50.00 CONCRETE CORING417 M  48,750.00  155.00 975.0000  3.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 CONCRETE CORE PATCH

 0.00 CONCRETE CORE FILLER/SEALANT

 50.00 GRAY CONCRETE/MORTAR FILLER/SEALANT650 M  375.00  50.00 7.5000  1.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 50.00 CONCRETE PATCHING COMPOUND651 M  500.00  50.00 10.0000  1.0000 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 1 of 61

4/16/24

Page 30



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 100 - CIVIL

SubPhase: CONCRETE

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 0.00

 0.00 CONTROL PANEL CONCRETE PAD - QUOTED BY FELIX 

GC

 9.00 CONTROL PANEL CONCRETE PAD450 M  103,011.12  0.00 11,445.6800  0.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 One (1) Concrete House Keeping Pad - Additional Scope 

for New UPS

 1.00 CONTROL PANEL CONCRETE PAD450 M  11,445.68  0.00 11,445.6800  0.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 One (1) New UPS House Keeping Pad - Additional Labor 

for Difficult Location

 1.00 Concrete Labor - UPS House Keeping Pad682 M  0.00  45.00 0.0000  45.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 204,147.80  366.00Phase Totals:

Phase: 100 - CIVIL

SubPhase: RENTAL

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 0.00 Scissor Lift Rental

 1.00 SCISSOR LIFT641 M  5,000.00  0.00 5,000.0000  0.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 PICK UP & DROP OFF646 M  800.00  2.00 400.0000  1.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 Felix Owned Flat Bed Truck - New Panel Delivery

 9.00 FLAT BED TRUCK - RATE644 M  13,500.00  9.00 1,500.0000  1.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 Storage Container Rental and Pickup - 20' Container X 2

 36.00 20' 20' STORAGE CONTAINER (X2) (MONTHLY)645 M  27,000.00  0.00 750.0000  0.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 PICK UP & DROP OFF646 M  1,600.00  4.00 400.0000  1.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 19' Telehandler Forklift - Herc Rental - Monthly

 9.00 19' TELEHANDLER FORKLIFT647 M  61,200.00  0.00 6,800.0000  0.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 PICK UP & DROP OFF646 M  800.00  2.00 400.0000  1.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 109,900.00  17.00Phase Totals:

Phase: 100 - CIVIL

SubPhase: PRIVATE LOCATOR

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 5.00 Private Locator45 M  2,250.00  5.00 450.0000  1.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 2,250.00  5.00Phase Totals:

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 2 of 61

4/16/24

Page 31



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS

SubPhase: UG

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 0.00 NEW POWER RUNS IDENTIFIED BY QUANTUM

 1,200.00 2FT PVC SCH 4010168 M  3,312.00  96.00 2.7600  0.0800 1.0000  1.0000

 120.00 2EA PVC COUPLING31408 M  253.20  36.00 2.1100  0.3000 1.0000  1.0000

 12.00 2EA PVC FEMALE ADAPTER31356 M  22.80  3.60 1.9000  0.3000 1.0000  1.0000

 12.00 2EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20965 M  1,113.60  14.40 92.8000  1.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 12.00 2EA PVC END BELLS31353 M  69.12  2.76 5.7600  0.2300 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 Accessories

 120.00 BASE CHAIRS - SPACERS44 M  282.00  2.40 2.3500  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 5.00 3000  2500lbEA MULE TAPE737 M  776.55  0.00 155.3100  0.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 5.00 6500EA JET LINE738 M  260.00  0.00 52.0000  0.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 5.00 OUNCEOZ PVC (GLUE) CEMENT40043 M  88.60  0.06 17.7200  0.0120 1.0000  1.0000

 5.00 QUARTQT PVC PRIMER779 M  80.65  0.00 16.1300  0.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1,500.00 3"FT RED ELECTRIC LINE CAUTION TAPE4000288 M  345.00  5.40 0.2300  0.0036 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 HANDHOLE - HUBBELL - PG1118BA12

 0.00 SECOND HANDHOLE USED AS AN EXTENSION.

 4.00 13.38"X12"X20.25" HANDHOLE - PG1118BA12397 M  1,644.00  8.00 411.0000  2.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 11" X 18" X 1.75" HANDHOLE - PG1118HH0017398 M  813.78  0.10 406.8900  0.0500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 Handhole - Hubbell - PG2436BA24

 2.00 HANDHOLE - PG2436BA24402 M  2,742.38  4.00 1,371.1900  2.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 EXTENSION - PG2436ED04403 M  1,392.26  4.00 696.1300  2.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 LID - PG2436HA0083404 M  1,761.36  0.10 880.6800  0.0500 1.0000  1.0000

 14,957.30  176.82Phase Totals:

Phase: 200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS

SubPhase: ABOVE GRADE

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 0.00 PWTP-ADM-CB2 TO PWTP-ADM-CB1 - CAT6

 30.00 1FT GRC10002 M  180.26  2.10 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  10.38  0.06 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.60 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ADM-CB1 TO PWTP-ADM-CPL01 - CAT6

 150.00 1FT GRC10002 M  901.32  10.50 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 3 of 61

4/16/24

Page 32



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS

SubPhase: ABOVE GRADE

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 15.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  51.90  0.30 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  24.31  0.80 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 15.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  3.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ADM-CB2 TO PWTP-ADM-CPL01 - CAT6

 150.00 1FT GRC10002 M  901.32  10.50 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 15.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  51.90  0.30 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  24.31  0.80 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 15.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  3.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ADM-CB1 TO PWTP-ADM-CPL01 - POWER

 150.00 1FT GRC10002 M  901.32  10.50 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 15.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  51.90  0.30 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  24.31  0.80 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 15.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  3.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ADM-CB2 TO PWTP-ADM-CPL01 - POWER

 150.00 1FT GRC10002 M  901.32  10.50 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 15.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  51.90  0.30 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  24.31  0.80 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 15.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  3.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01 TO AFD-BSL-P-2383 - CAT6

 30.00 1FT GRC10002 M  180.26  2.10 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  10.38  0.06 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  48.62  1.60 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.60 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01 TO AFD-BSL-P-2382 - CAT6

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 4 of 61

4/16/24

Page 33



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS

SubPhase: ABOVE GRADE

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 30.00 1FT GRC10002 M  180.26  2.10 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  10.38  0.06 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  48.62  1.60 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.60 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO AFD-BSL-P-2381 - CAT6

 40.00 1FT GRC10002 M  240.35  2.80 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  13.84  0.08 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  48.62  1.60 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.80 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO AFD-RW-P-2305 - CAT6

 30.00 1FT GRC10002 M  180.26  2.10 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  10.38  0.06 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  48.62  1.60 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.60 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO AFD-RW-P-2306 - CAT6

 20.00 1FT GRC10002 M  120.18  1.40 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  6.92  0.04 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.40 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO AFD-RW-2307 - CAT6

 30.00 1FT GRC10002 M  180.26  2.10 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  10.38  0.06 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  48.62  1.60 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.60 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO BFTRAIN5MM - CAT6

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 5 of 61

4/16/24

Page 34



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS

SubPhase: ABOVE GRADE

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 50.00 1FT GRC10002 M  300.44  3.50 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 5.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  17.30  0.10 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  32.12  1.50 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  72.93  2.40 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 5.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  1.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO BFTRAIN4MM - CAT6

 60.00 1FT GRC10002 M  360.53  4.20 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 6.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  20.76  0.12 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  32.12  1.50 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  72.93  2.40 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 6.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  1.20 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-MCC-BF-CPP01 - 

CAT6 (1)

 40.00 1FT GRC10002 M  240.35  2.80 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  13.84  0.08 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  32.12  1.50 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  72.93  2.40 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.80 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-MCC-BF-CPP01 - 

CAT6 (2)

 40.00 1FT GRC10002 M  240.35  2.80 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  13.84  0.08 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  32.12  1.50 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  72.93  2.40 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.80 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-MCC-BF-CPP02 - 

CAT6

 60.00 1FT GRC10002 M  360.53  4.20 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 6.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  20.76  0.12 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  32.12  1.50 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  72.93  2.40 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 6 of 61

4/16/24

Page 35



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS

SubPhase: ABOVE GRADE

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 6.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  1.20 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO BFTRAIN5SS - CAT6

 70.00 1FT GRC10002 M  420.62  4.90 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 7.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  24.22  0.14 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  32.12  1.50 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  72.93  2.40 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 7.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  1.40 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO BFTRAIN4SS - CAT6

 70.00 1FT GRC10002 M  420.62  4.90 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 7.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  24.22  0.14 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  32.12  1.50 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  72.93  2.40 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 7.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  1.40 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-BFL-CPL02-CPP01 - 

CAT6 (1)

 20.00 1FT GRC10002 M  120.18  1.40 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  6.92  0.04 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.40 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-BFL-CPL02-CPP01 - 

CAT6 (2)

 20.00 1FT GRC10002 M  120.18  1.40 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  6.92  0.04 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.40 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-BFL-PLY-CPL01-CPP01 - CAT6 (1)

 60.00 1FT GRC10002 M  360.53  4.20 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 6.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  20.76  0.12 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  32.12  1.50 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 7 of 61

4/16/24

Page 36



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS

SubPhase: ABOVE GRADE

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 3.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  72.93  2.40 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 6.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  1.20 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-BFL-PLY-CPL01-CPP01 - CAT6 (2)

 60.00 1FT GRC10002 M  360.53  4.20 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 6.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  20.76  0.12 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  32.12  1.50 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  72.93  2.40 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 6.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  1.20 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-BFL-PLY-CPL01-CPP01 - CAT6 (3)

 60.00 1FT GRC10002 M  360.53  4.20 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 6.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  20.76  0.12 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  32.12  1.50 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  72.93  2.40 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 6.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  1.20 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-MCC-BF-CPP01 TO PWTP-MCC-BF-CPP02 - CAT6

 10.00 1FT GRC10002 M  60.09  0.70 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  3.46  0.02 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.20 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-MCC-BF-WEST TO PWTP-BFL-CPL01 - POWER

 50.00 1FT GRC10002 M  300.44  3.50 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 5.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  17.30  0.10 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  32.12  1.50 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  72.93  2.40 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 5.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  1.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL03-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE-CPL01-CPP01 - 

CAT6

 70.00 2FT GRC10005 M  870.86  7.70 12.4408  0.1100 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 8 of 61

4/16/24

Page 37



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS

SubPhase: ABOVE GRADE

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 7.00 2EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30005 M  43.46  0.21 6.2084  0.0300 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 2EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20026 M  52.59  2.00 26.2928  1.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 2EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830215 M  153.14  4.00 76.5700  2.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 2EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30158 M  57.17  1.70 28.5854  0.8500 1.0000  1.0000

 7.00 2EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10565 M  0.00  2.80 0.0000  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL03-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE-MCC02-CPP01 - 

CAT6

 30.00 1FT GRC10002 M  180.26  2.10 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  10.38  0.06 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  32.12  1.50 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.60 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL03-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE-MCC01-CPP01 - 

CAT6

 50.00 2FT GRC10005 M  622.04  5.50 12.4408  0.1100 1.0000  1.0000

 5.00 2EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30005 M  31.04  0.15 6.2084  0.0300 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 2EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20026 M  78.88  3.00 26.2928  1.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 2EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30158 M  57.17  1.70 28.5854  0.8500 1.0000  1.0000

 5.00 2EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10565 M  0.00  2.00 0.0000  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL03-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE-CPL04-CPP01 - 

CAT6

 40.00 2FT GRC10005 M  497.63  4.40 12.4408  0.1100 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 2EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30005 M  24.83  0.12 6.2084  0.0300 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 2EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20026 M  78.88  3.00 26.2928  1.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 2EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30158 M  57.17  1.70 28.5854  0.8500 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 2EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10565 M  0.00  1.60 0.0000  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-MCC01-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE-CPL04-CPP01 - 

CAT6

 60.00 1FT GRC10002 M  360.53  4.20 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 6.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  20.76  0.12 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  32.12  1.50 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 6.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  1.20 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL04-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE (ITEM 11) - 

CAT6

 40.00 1FT GRC10002 M  240.35  2.80 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 9 of 61

4/16/24

Page 38



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS

SubPhase: ABOVE GRADE

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 4.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  13.84  0.08 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  48.62  1.60 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.80 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL04-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE (ITEM 12) - 

CAT6

 30.00 1FT GRC10002 M  180.26  2.10 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  10.38  0.06 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  48.62  1.60 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.60 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL04-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE (ITEM 13) - 

CAT6

 30.00 1FT GRC10002 M  180.26  2.10 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  10.38  0.06 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  48.62  1.60 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.60 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL04-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE (ITEM 14) - 

CAT6

 30.00 1FT GRC10002 M  180.26  2.10 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  10.38  0.06 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  48.62  1.60 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.60 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL04-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE (ITEM 15) - 

CAT6

 10.00 1FT GRC10002 M  60.09  0.70 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  3.46  0.02 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.20 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 10 of 61

4/16/24

Page 39



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS

SubPhase: ABOVE GRADE

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL04-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE (ITEM 16) - 

CAT6

 10.00 1FT GRC10002 M  60.09  0.70 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  3.46  0.02 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.20 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL04-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE (ITEM 17) - 

CAT6

 10.00 1FT GRC10002 M  60.09  0.70 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  3.46  0.02 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.20 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL04-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE (ITEM 18) - 

CAT6

 50.00 1FT GRC10002 M  300.44  3.50 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 5.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  17.30  0.10 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  32.12  1.50 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 5.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  1.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL04-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE (ITEM 19) - 

CAT6

 40.00 1FT GRC10002 M  240.35  2.80 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  13.84  0.08 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  32.12  1.50 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.80 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL04-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE (ITEM 20) - 

CAT6

 50.00 1FT GRC10002 M  300.44  3.50 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 5.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  17.30  0.10 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  48.62  1.60 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 5.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  1.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 11 of 61

4/16/24

Page 40



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS

SubPhase: ABOVE GRADE

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL04-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE (ITEM 21) - 

CAT6

 30.00 1FT GRC10002 M  180.26  2.10 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  10.38  0.06 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  32.12  1.50 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.60 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL04-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE (ITEM 22) - 

CAT6

 30.00 1FT GRC10002 M  180.26  2.10 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  10.38  0.06 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  32.12  1.50 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.60 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL04 TO PP-SB2A - POWER

 70.00 1FT GRC10002 M  420.62  4.90 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 7.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  24.22  0.14 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  32.12  1.50 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 7.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  1.40 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL03 TO PWTP-ELE-MCC02 - POWER (1)

 60.00 1FT GRC10002 M  360.53  4.20 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 6.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  20.76  0.12 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  48.62  1.60 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 6.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  1.20 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL03 TO PWTP-ELE-MCC02 - POWER (2)

 20.00 1FT GRC10002 M  120.18  1.40 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  6.92  0.04 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  32.12  1.50 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.40 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT01-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-FLT01-P2101-1-PPL01 - CAT6

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 12 of 61

4/16/24

Page 41



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS

SubPhase: ABOVE GRADE

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 100.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  629.49  10.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  219.90  4.00 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  146.64  2.10 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  831.00  2.40 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  300.00  2.20 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  2.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1 1" ANACONDA FLEX CONDUIT409 M  55.20  2.00 5.5200  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1 1" 45-DEG FLEX CONNECTOR410 M  67.94  0.40 33.9700  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1 1" SEALING WASHER411 M  1.74  0.04 0.8700  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1 1" SEALING LOCKNUT412 M  6.24  0.04 3.1200  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT01-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-FLT01-P2101-2-PPL01 - CAT6

 100.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  629.49  10.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  219.90  4.00 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  146.64  2.10 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  831.00  2.40 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  300.00  2.20 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  2.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1 1" ANACONDA FLEX CONDUIT409 M  55.20  2.00 5.5200  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1 1" 45-DEG FLEX CONNECTOR410 M  67.94  0.40 33.9700  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1 1" SEALING WASHER411 M  1.74  0.04 0.8700  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1 1" SEALING LOCKNUT412 M  6.24  0.04 3.1200  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT01-P2101-1-PPL01 TO 

PWTP-FLT01-P2101-2-PPL01 - CAT6

 20.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  125.90  2.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  43.98  0.80 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.40 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT02-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-FLT02-P2102-PPL01 - CAT6

 100.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  629.49  10.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  219.90  4.00 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  146.64  2.10 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  831.00  2.40 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 13 of 61

4/16/24

Page 42



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS

SubPhase: ABOVE GRADE

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 4.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  300.00  2.20 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  2.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1 1" ANACONDA FLEX CONDUIT409 M  55.20  2.00 5.5200  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1 1" 45-DEG FLEX CONNECTOR410 M  67.94  0.40 33.9700  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1 1" SEALING WASHER411 M  1.74  0.04 0.8700  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1 1" SEALING LOCKNUT412 M  6.24  0.04 3.1200  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT02-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-FLT02-P2102-PPL01 - CAT6

 100.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  629.49  10.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  219.90  4.00 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  146.64  2.10 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  831.00  2.40 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  300.00  2.20 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  2.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1 1" ANACONDA FLEX CONDUIT409 M  55.20  2.00 5.5200  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1 1" 45-DEG FLEX CONNECTOR410 M  67.94  0.40 33.9700  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1 1" SEALING WASHER411 M  1.74  0.04 0.8700  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1 1" SEALING LOCKNUT412 M  6.24  0.04 3.1200  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT08-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-FLT08-P2108-3-PPL01 - CAT6

 100.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  629.49  10.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  219.90  4.00 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  146.64  2.10 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  831.00  2.40 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  300.00  2.20 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  2.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1 1" ANACONDA FLEX CONDUIT409 M  55.20  2.00 5.5200  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1 1" 45-DEG FLEX CONNECTOR410 M  67.94  0.40 33.9700  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1 1" SEALING WASHER411 M  1.74  0.04 0.8700  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1 1" SEALING LOCKNUT412 M  6.24  0.04 3.1200  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT08-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-FLT08-P2108-PPL01 - CAT6

 100.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  629.49  10.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  219.90  4.00 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  146.64  2.10 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 14 of 61

4/16/24

Page 43



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS

SubPhase: ABOVE GRADE

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  831.00  2.40 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  300.00  2.20 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  2.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1 1" ANACONDA FLEX CONDUIT409 M  55.20  2.00 5.5200  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1 1" 45-DEG FLEX CONNECTOR410 M  67.94  0.40 33.9700  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1 1" SEALING WASHER411 M  1.74  0.04 0.8700  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1 1" SEALING LOCKNUT412 M  6.24  0.04 3.1200  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT08-P2108-4-PPL01 TO 

PWTP-FLT08-P2108-PPL01 - CAT6

 20.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  125.90  2.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  43.98  0.80 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.40 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT08-P2108-4-PPL01 TO 

PWTP-FLT08-P2108-PPL01 - CAT6

 30.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  188.85  3.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  65.97  1.20 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  146.64  2.10 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.60 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT09-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-FLT09-P2109-PPL01 - CAT6 (1)

 140.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  881.29  14.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 14.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  307.86  5.60 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  146.64  2.10 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  831.00  2.40 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 14.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  2.80 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1 1" ANACONDA FLEX CONDUIT409 M  55.20  2.00 5.5200  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1 1" 45-DEG FLEX CONNECTOR410 M  67.94  0.40 33.9700  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1 1" SEALING WASHER411 M  1.74  0.04 0.8700  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1 1" SEALING LOCKNUT412 M  6.24  0.04 3.1200  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT09-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-FLT09-P2109-PPL01 - CAT6 (2)

 140.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  881.29  14.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 15 of 61

4/16/24

Page 44



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS

SubPhase: ABOVE GRADE

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 14.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  307.86  5.60 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  146.64  2.10 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  831.00  2.40 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 14.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  2.80 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1 1" ANACONDA FLEX CONDUIT409 M  55.20  2.00 5.5200  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1 1" 45-DEG FLEX CONNECTOR410 M  67.94  0.40 33.9700  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1 1" SEALING WASHER411 M  1.74  0.04 0.8700  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1 1" SEALING LOCKNUT412 M  6.24  0.04 3.1200  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-INF-MET-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-BS-2201-CP - 

CAT6

 80.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  503.59  8.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 8.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  175.92  3.20 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  554.00  1.60 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 8.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  1.60 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BS-2201-CP TO PWTP-BS-2202-CP - CAT6

 30.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  188.85  3.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  65.97  1.20 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.60 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BS-2202-CP TO PWTP-RWP-2201 - CAT6

 50.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  314.75  5.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 5.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  109.95  2.00 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  146.64  2.10 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  831.00  2.40 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 5.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  1.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-RWP-2201 TO PWTP-RWP-2202 - CAT6

 30.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  188.85  3.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  65.97  1.20 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  554.00  1.60 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 16 of 61

4/16/24

Page 45



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS

SubPhase: ABOVE GRADE

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.60 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-INF-MET-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-RWP-2202 - 

CAT6

 100.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  629.49  10.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  219.90  4.00 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  146.64  2.10 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  831.00  2.40 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  2.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 

- CAT6 (1)

 90.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  566.54  9.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 9.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  197.91  3.60 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  831.00  2.40 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 9.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  1.80 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 

- CAT6 (2)

 90.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  566.54  9.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 9.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  197.91  3.60 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  831.00  2.40 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 9.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  1.80 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-PRE-MCC01-CPP01 

- CAT6

 140.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  881.29  14.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 14.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  307.86  5.60 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  146.64  2.10 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  831.00  2.40 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 14.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  2.80 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-PRE-MCC02-CPP01 

- CAT6 (1)

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 17 of 61

4/16/24

Page 46



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS

SubPhase: ABOVE GRADE

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 100.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  629.49  10.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  219.90  4.00 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  831.00  2.40 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  2.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-PRE-MCC02-CPP01 

- CAT6 (2)

 100.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  629.49  10.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  219.90  4.00 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  831.00  2.40 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  2.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO P-2816 - CAT6

 20.00 1FT GRC10002 M  120.18  1.40 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  6.92  0.04 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  32.12  1.50 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.40 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO P-2817 - CAT6

 30.00 1FT GRC10002 M  180.26  2.10 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  10.38  0.06 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  32.12  1.50 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.60 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO P2818 - CAT6

 40.00 1FT GRC10002 M  240.35  2.80 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  13.84  0.08 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  32.12  1.50 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.80 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO FLC-CP-033 (ITEM 9) - 

CAT6

 50.00 1FT GRC10002 M  300.44  3.50 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 18 of 61

4/16/24

Page 47



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS

SubPhase: ABOVE GRADE

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 5.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  17.30  0.10 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  48.62  1.60 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 5.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  1.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO FLC-CP-033 (ITEM 10) - 

CAT6

 50.00 1FT GRC10002 M  300.44  3.50 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 5.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  17.30  0.10 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  48.62  1.60 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 5.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  1.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO FLC-CP-033 (ITEM 11) - 

CAT6

 50.00 1FT GRC10002 M  300.44  3.50 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 5.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  17.30  0.10 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  48.62  1.60 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 5.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  1.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO FLC-CP-043 (ITEM 12) - 

CAT6

 30.00 1FT GRC10002 M  180.26  2.10 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  10.38  0.06 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  32.12  1.50 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.60 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO FLC-CP-043 (ITEM 13) - 

CAT6

 30.00 1FT GRC10002 M  180.26  2.10 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  10.38  0.06 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  32.12  1.50 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.60 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 19 of 61

4/16/24

Page 48



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS

SubPhase: ABOVE GRADE

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO FLC-CP-043 (ITEM 14) - 

CAT6

 30.00 1FT GRC10002 M  180.26  2.10 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  10.38  0.06 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  32.12  1.50 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.60 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO FLC-CP-053 (ITEM 15) - 

CAT6

 30.00 1FT GRC10002 M  180.26  2.10 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  10.38  0.06 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  48.62  1.60 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.60 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO FLC-CP-053 (ITEM 16) - 

CAT6

 30.00 1FT GRC10002 M  180.26  2.10 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  10.38  0.06 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  48.62  1.60 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.60 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO FLC-CP-053 (ITEM 17) - 

CAT6

 30.00 1FT GRC10002 M  180.26  2.10 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  10.38  0.06 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  48.62  1.60 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.60 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO PWTP-PRE-MCC01-CPP01 

(ITEM 18) - CAT6

 40.00 1FT GRC10002 M  240.35  2.80 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  13.84  0.08 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 20 of 61

4/16/24

Page 49



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS

SubPhase: ABOVE GRADE

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.80 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO RW-P-104 (ITEM 19) - 

CAT6

 40.00 1FT GRC10002 M  240.35  2.80 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  13.84  0.08 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  48.62  1.60 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.80 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO RW-P-103 (ITEM 20) - 

CAT6

 40.00 1FT GRC10002 M  240.35  2.80 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  13.84  0.08 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  48.62  1.60 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.80 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO RW-P-102 (ITEM 21) - 

CAT6

 40.00 1FT GRC10002 M  240.35  2.80 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  13.84  0.08 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  48.62  1.60 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.80 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO RW-P-101 (ITEM 22) - 

CAT6

 40.00 1FT GRC10002 M  240.35  2.80 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  13.84  0.08 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  48.62  1.60 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.80 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-MCC01-CPP01 TO PWTP-PRE-MCC02-CPP01 

(ITEM 23) - CAT6

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 21 of 61

4/16/24

Page 50



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS

SubPhase: ABOVE GRADE

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 50.00 1FT GRC10002 M  300.44  3.50 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 5.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  17.30  0.10 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  48.62  1.60 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 5.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  1.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-MCC01 TO PWTP-PRE-CPL02 - POWER

 40.00 1FT GRC10002 M  240.35  2.80 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  13.84  0.08 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  48.62  1.60 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.80 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02 TO PP-RW - POWER

 30.00 1FT GRC10002 M  180.26  2.10 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  10.38  0.06 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.60 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02 TO PWTP-PRE-MCC02 - POWER

 40.00 1FT GRC10002 M  240.35  2.80 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  13.84  0.08 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC LB CONDUIT BODY FORM 830212 M  48.62  1.60 24.3100  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.80 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-MCC02 TO PP-RW - POWER

 20.00 1FT GRC10002 M  120.18  1.40 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  6.92  0.04 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.40 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PP-RW TO NEW PULL BOX - POWER

 70.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  440.64  7.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 22 of 61

4/16/24

Page 51



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS

SubPhase: ABOVE GRADE

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 7.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  153.93  2.80 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  554.00  1.60 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 7.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  1.40 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PST-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-PST-MCC01-CPP01 

(ITEM 1) - CAT6

 20.00 1FT GRC10002 M  120.18  1.40 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  6.92  0.04 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.40 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PST-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-PST-MCC01-CPP01 

(ITEM 2) - CAT6

 20.00 1FT GRC10002 M  120.18  1.40 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  6.92  0.04 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.40 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PST-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-PST-MCC01-CPP01 

(ITEM 3) - CAT6

 20.00 1FT GRC10002 M  120.18  1.40 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  6.92  0.04 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.40 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PST-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-PST-NCLCPL01-CPP01 (ITEM 4) - CAT6

 70.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  440.64  7.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 7.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  153.93  2.80 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 7.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  1.40 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PST-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-PST-NCLCPL01-CPP01 (ITEM 5) - CAT6

 70.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  440.64  7.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 23 of 61

4/16/24

Page 52



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS

SubPhase: ABOVE GRADE

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 7.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  153.93  2.80 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 7.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  1.40 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PST-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-FLT-BLW2171 

(ITEM 6) - CAT6

 50.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  314.75  5.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 5.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  109.95  2.00 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  277.00  0.80 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 50.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  10.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PST-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-FLT-BLW2171 

(ITEM 7) - CAT6

 50.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  314.75  5.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 5.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  109.95  2.00 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  277.00  0.80 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 5.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  1.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PST-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-FLT-BLW2151 

(ITEM 8) - CAT6

 40.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  251.80  4.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  87.96  1.60 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.80 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PST-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-FLT-BLW2151 

(ITEM 9) - CAT6

 40.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  251.80  4.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  87.96  1.60 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.80 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT-BLW2151 TO PWTP-FLT-BLW2171 (ITEM 

10) - CAT6

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 24 of 61

4/16/24

Page 53



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS

SubPhase: ABOVE GRADE

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 30.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  188.85  3.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  65.97  1.20 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  554.00  1.60 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.60 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PST-MCC01 TO PWTP-PST-CPL01 - POWER

 20.00 1FT GRC10002 M  120.18  1.40 6.0088  0.0700 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC/IMC COUPLING30002 M  6.92  0.04 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA GRC 90-DEG ELBOW20023 M  21.41  1.00 10.7064  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA MYERS THREADED GROUNDING HUB30155 M  36.80  1.10 18.4000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.40 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PSD-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-P0141-PPL01 

(ITEM 1) - CAT6

 350.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  2,203.22  35.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 35.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  769.65  14.00 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  195.52  2.80 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  1,108.00  3.20 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  300.00  2.20 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 35.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  7.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PSD-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-PSD2252-PPL01 

(ITEM 2) - CAT6

 350.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  2,203.22  35.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 35.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  769.65  14.00 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  195.52  2.80 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  1,108.00  3.20 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  300.00  2.20 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 35.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  7.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-P0141-PPL01 TO PWTP-PSD2251-PPL01 (ITEM 

3) - CAT6

 350.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  2,203.22  35.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 35.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  769.65  14.00 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  195.52  2.80 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  1,108.00  3.20 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  300.00  2.20 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 25 of 61

4/16/24

Page 54



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS

SubPhase: ABOVE GRADE

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 35.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  7.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PSD2251-PPL01 TO PWTP-PSD2252-PPL01 

(ITEM 4) - CAT6

 350.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  2,203.22  35.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 35.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  769.65  14.00 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  195.52  2.80 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  1,108.00  3.20 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  300.00  2.20 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 35.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  7.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 Fiber/Power Runs Coming Into the Buildings.

 1,500.00 2FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10277 M  44,565.00  270.00 29.7100  0.1800 1.0000  1.0000

 150.00 2EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30855 M  3,742.50  105.00 24.9500  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 75.00 2EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31048 M  8,405.25  75.00 112.0700  1.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 75.00 2EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730894 M  44,625.00  150.00 595.0000  2.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 64.00 2EA PVC FEMALE ADAPTER31356 M  121.60  19.20 1.9000  0.3000 1.0000  1.0000

 150.00 2EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10565 M  0.00  60.00 0.0000  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 750.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  4,721.18  75.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 75.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  1,649.25  30.00 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 40.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  3,000.00  22.00 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 40.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  11,080.00  32.00 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 32.00 1EA PVC FEMALE ADAPTER31353 M  77.44  5.76 2.4200  0.1800 1.0000  1.0000

 20.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  4.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLC-CPL01-CPP01 TO SLUDGE BASIN DRAW OFF 

1

 550.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  3,462.20  55.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 55.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  1,209.45  22.00 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  277.00  0.80 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 55.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  11.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLC-CPL01-CPP01 TO SLUDGE BASIN DRAW OFF 

2

 550.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  3,462.20  55.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 55.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  1,209.45  22.00 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 26 of 61

4/16/24

Page 55



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS

SubPhase: ABOVE GRADE

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 1.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  277.00  0.80 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 55.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  11.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLC-CPL01-CPP01 TO SLUDGE BASIN DRAW OFF 

3

 500.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  3,147.45  50.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 50.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  1,099.50  20.00 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  277.00  0.80 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 50.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  10.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLC-CPL01-CPP01 TO SLUDGE BASIN DRAW OFF 

4

 500.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  3,147.45  50.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 50.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  1,099.50  20.00 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  277.00  0.80 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 50.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  10.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLC-CPL01-CPP01 TO SLUDGE BASIN DRAW OFF 

5

 400.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  2,517.96  40.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 40.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  879.60  16.00 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  277.00  0.80 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 40.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  8.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLC-CPL01-CPP01 TO SLUDGE BASIN DRAW OFF 

6

 400.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  2,517.96  40.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 40.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  879.60  16.00 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  277.00  0.80 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 40.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  8.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 27 of 61

4/16/24

Page 56



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS

SubPhase: ABOVE GRADE

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 0.00 PWTP-FLC-CPL01-CPP01 TO SLUDGE BASIN DRAW OFF 

7

 350.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  2,203.22  35.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 350.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  7,696.50  140.00 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  277.00  0.80 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 35.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  7.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLC-CPL01-CPP01 TO SLUDGE BASIN DRAW OFF 

8

 300.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  1,888.47  30.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 30.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  659.70  12.00 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  277.00  0.80 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 30.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  6.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLC-CPL01-CPP01 TO SLUDGE BASIN DRAW OFF 

9

 250.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  1,573.73  25.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 25.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  549.75  10.00 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  277.00  0.80 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 25.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-SHA-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-SHA-MCC01-CPP01 

(ITEM 1/2)

 40.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  251.80  4.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  87.96  1.60 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  277.00  0.80 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.80 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-SHA-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWPT-TSS-COLL875-PPL01 (ITEM 3/5)

 140.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  881.29  14.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 14.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  307.86  5.60 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 28 of 61

4/16/24

Page 57



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS

SubPhase: ABOVE GRADE

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  831.00  2.40 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 14.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  2.80 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-SHA-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-TSS-COLL775-PPL01 (ITEM 6/7)

 90.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  566.54  9.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 9.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  197.91  3.60 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  554.00  1.60 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 9.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  1.80 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-SHA-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-TSS-SUPXXXX-PPL01 (ITEM 4)

 90.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  566.54  9.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 9.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  197.91  3.60 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  554.00  1.60 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 9.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  1.80 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-SHA-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-TSS-SUPXXXX-PPL01 (ITEM 8)

 100.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  629.49  10.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  219.90  4.00 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  831.00  2.40 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  2.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-INF-MIX-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-LCP-MX-2230 

(ITEM 1/2)

 40.00 1FT PVC-CTD GRC 40MIL10274 M  251.80  4.00 6.2949  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC COUPLING30852 M  87.96  1.60 21.9900  0.4000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC 90-ELBOW20962 M  97.76  1.40 48.8800  0.7000 1.0000  1.0000

 3.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC LB COND-BODY F-730891 M  831.00  2.40 277.0000  0.8000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 1EA PVC-CTD GRC (MYERS) HUB W/G31045 M  150.00  1.10 75.0000  0.5500 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  0.80 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 29 of 61

4/16/24

Page 58



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 200 - CONDUIT SYSTEMS

SubPhase: ABOVE GRADE

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 0.00

 0.00 Additional Scope: New UPS Conduit - EMT

 300.00 1FT EMT10055 M  771.75  16.50 2.5725  0.0550 1.0000  1.0000

 30.00 1EA EMT STEEL-SS COUPLING30543 M  34.50  1.80 1.1500  0.0600 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1EA EMT 90-ELBOW20750 M  69.70  2.50 6.9700  0.2500 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1EA EMT STEEL SS CONNECTOR30668 M  16.00  1.20 1.6000  0.1200 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1"EA Sealing Washer - 1"776 M  19.54  0.20 1.9541  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 10.00 1"EA Sealing Locknut - 1"777 M  34.60  0.20 3.4600  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 30.00 1EA CONDUIT CUT/THREAD/REAM10562 M  0.00  6.00 0.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 Accessories - PVC-GRC

 175.00 1" Strut Conduit Strap - 316SS759 M  3,445.75  8.75 19.6900  0.0500 1.0000  1.0000

 80.00 2" Strut Conduit Strap - 316SS757 M  2,351.20  4.00 29.3900  0.0500 1.0000  1.0000

 271,773.62  3,062.15Phase Totals:

Phase: 300 - CABLE

SubPhase: FEEDERS

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 0.00 Power Coming Into Buildings

 2,000.00 1/0FT XHHW CU (STR)70288 M  8,328.40  48.00 4.1642  0.0240 1.0000  1.0000

 60.00 1/0EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100574 M  0.00  21.60 0.0000  0.3600 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ADM-CB1 TO PWTP-ADM-CPL01

 540.00 10FT XHHW CU (STR)70281 M  248.49  4.32 0.4602  0.0080 1.0000  1.0000

 6.00 10EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100566 M  0.00  1.08 0.0000  0.1800 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ADM-CB2 TO PWTP-ADM-CPL01

 540.00 10FT XHHW CU (STR)70281 M  248.49  4.32 0.4602  0.0080 1.0000  1.0000

 6.00 10EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100566 M  0.00  1.08 0.0000  0.1800 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-MCC-BF-WEST TO PWTP-BFL-CPL01

 240.00 10FT XHHW CU (STR)70281 M  110.44  1.92 0.4602  0.0080 1.0000  1.0000

 6.00 10EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100566 M  0.00  1.08 0.0000  0.1800 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL04 TO PP-SB2A

 300.00 10FT XHHW CU (STR)70281 M  138.05  2.40 0.4602  0.0080 1.0000  1.0000

 6.00 10EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100566 M  0.00  1.08 0.0000  0.1800 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL03 TO PWTP-ELE-MCC02 (1)

 270.00 10FT XHHW CU (STR)70281 M  124.24  2.16 0.4602  0.0080 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 30 of 61

4/16/24

Page 59



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 300 - CABLE

SubPhase: FEEDERS

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 6.00 10EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100566 M  0.00  1.08 0.0000  0.1800 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL03 TO PWTP-ELE-MCC02 (2)

 150.00 10FT XHHW CU (STR)70281 M  69.02  1.20 0.4602  0.0080 1.0000  1.0000

 6.00 10EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100566 M  0.00  1.08 0.0000  0.1800 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-MCC01 TO PWTP-PRE-CPL02

 210.00 10FT XHHW CU (STR)70281 M  96.63  1.68 0.4602  0.0080 1.0000  1.0000

 6.00 10EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100566 M  0.00  1.08 0.0000  0.1800 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02 TO PP-RW

 180.00 10FT XHHW CU (STR)70281 M  82.83  1.44 0.4602  0.0080 1.0000  1.0000

 6.00 10EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100566 M  0.00  1.08 0.0000  0.1800 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02 TO PWTP-PRE-MCC02

 210.00 10FT XHHW CU (STR)70281 M  96.63  1.68 0.4602  0.0080 1.0000  1.0000

 6.00 10EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100566 M  0.00  1.08 0.0000  0.1800 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-MCC02 TO PP-RW

 150.00 10FT XHHW CU (STR)70281 M  69.02  1.20 0.4602  0.0080 1.0000  1.0000

 6.00 10EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100566 M  0.00  1.08 0.0000  0.1800 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PP-RW TO NEW PULL BOX

 300.00 10FT XHHW CU (STR)70281 M  138.05  2.40 0.4602  0.0080 1.0000  1.0000

 6.00 10EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100566 M  0.00  1.08 0.0000  0.1800 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PST-MCC01 TO PWTP-PST-CPL01

 150.00 10FT XHHW CU (STR)70281 M  69.02  1.20 0.4602  0.0080 1.0000  1.0000

 6.00 10EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100566 M  0.00  1.08 0.0000  0.1800 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00

 0.00 Additional Scope: New Feeders for New Ups

 1,000.00 1/0FT XHHW CU (STR)70288 M  4,164.20  24.00 4.1642  0.0240 1.0000  1.0000

 12.00 1/0EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100574 M  0.00  4.32 0.0000  0.3600 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00

 140.00 EA MACHINE CODED SLEEVE100840 M  43.40  7.00 0.3100  0.0500 1.0000  1.0000

 14,026.92  143.80Phase Totals:

Phase: 300 - CABLE

SubPhase: BRANCH-CTRL-INST

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 0.00 Fiber Optic Pull In Labor (From J-Box to End Point)

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 31 of 61

4/16/24

Page 60



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 300 - CABLE

SubPhase: BRANCH-CTRL-INST

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 1.00 Fiber Labor675 M  0.00  180.00 0.0000  180.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 Miscellaneous Signal/Comm Cable.

 2,500.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  563.70  15.00 0.2255  0.0060 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 500'EA Belden 9318 (18/2 + Shield)753 M  2,563.14  6.00 1,281.5700  3.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 2,500.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  1,800.00  17.50 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ADM-CB2 TO PWTP-ADM-CB1

 110.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  79.20  0.77 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 110.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  18.77  0.39 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ADM-CB1 TO PWTP-ADM-CPL01

 230.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  165.60  1.61 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 230.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  39.24  0.81 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ADM-CB2 TO PWTP-ADM-CPL01

 230.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  165.60  1.61 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 230.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  39.24  0.81 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO AFD-BSL-P-2383

 110.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  79.20  0.77 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 110.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  18.77  0.39 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO AFD-BSL-P-2382

 110.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  79.20  0.77 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 110.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  18.77  0.39 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO AFD-BSL-P-2381

 120.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  86.40  0.84 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 120.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  20.48  0.42 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 32 of 61

4/16/24

Page 61



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 300 - CABLE

SubPhase: BRANCH-CTRL-INST

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO AFD-RW-P-2305

 110.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  79.20  0.77 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 110.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  18.77  0.39 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO AFD-RW-P-2306

 80.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  57.60  0.56 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 80.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  13.65  0.28 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO AFD-RW-P-2307

 110.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  79.20  0.77 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 110.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  18.77  0.39 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO BFTRAIN5MM

 130.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  93.60  0.91 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 130.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  22.18  0.46 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO BFTRAIN4MM

 140.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  100.80  0.98 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 140.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  23.89  0.49 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-MCC-BF-CPP01 (1)

 120.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  86.40  0.84 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 120.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  20.48  0.42 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-MCC-BF-CPP01 (2)

 120.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  86.40  0.84 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 33 of 61

4/16/24

Page 62



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 300 - CABLE

SubPhase: BRANCH-CTRL-INST

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 120.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  20.48  0.42 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-MCC-BF-CPP02

 140.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  100.80  0.98 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 140.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  23.89  0.49 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO BFTRAIN5SS

 150.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  108.00  1.05 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 150.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  25.59  0.53 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO BFTRAIN4SS

 150.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  108.00  1.05 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 150.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  25.59  0.53 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-BFL-CPL02-CPP01 - 

(1)

 100.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  72.00  0.70 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 100.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  17.06  0.35 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-BFL-CPL02-CPP01 - 

(2)

 100.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  72.00  0.70 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 100.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  17.06  0.35 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-BFL-PLY-CPL01-CPP01 - (1)

 140.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  100.80  0.98 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 140.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  23.89  0.49 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 34 of 61

4/16/24

Page 63



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 300 - CABLE

SubPhase: BRANCH-CTRL-INST

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-BFL-PLY-CPL01-CPP01 - (2)

 140.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  100.80  0.98 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 140.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  23.89  0.49 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-BFL-PLY-CPL01-CPP01 - (3)

 140.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  100.80  0.98 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 140.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  23.89  0.49 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-MCC-BF-CPP01 TO PWTP-MCC-BF-CPP02

 90.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  64.80  0.63 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 90.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  15.36  0.32 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL03-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE-CPL01-CPP01

 600.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  432.00  4.20 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 8.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  19.60  1.60 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 600.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  102.38  2.10 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 8.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  1.20 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL03-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE-MCC02-CPP01

 110.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  79.20  0.77 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 110.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  18.77  0.39 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL03-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE-MCC01-CPP01

 210.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  151.20  1.47 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  9.80  0.80 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 210.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  35.83  0.74 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.60 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL03-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE-CPL04-CPP01

 190.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  136.80  1.33 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  9.80  0.80 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 35 of 61

4/16/24

Page 64



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 300 - CABLE

SubPhase: BRANCH-CTRL-INST

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 190.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  32.42  0.67 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.60 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-MCC01-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE-CPL04-CPP01

 140.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  100.80  0.98 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 140.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  23.89  0.49 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL04-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE (ITEM 11)

 120.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  86.40  0.84 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 120.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  20.48  0.42 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL04-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE (ITEM 12)

 110.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  79.20  0.77 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 110.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  18.77  0.39 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL04-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE (ITEM 13)

 110.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  79.20  0.77 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 110.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  18.77  0.39 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL04-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE (ITEM 14)

 110.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  79.20  0.77 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 110.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  18.77  0.39 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL04-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE (ITEM 15)

 90.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  64.80  0.63 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 90.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  15.36  0.32 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL04-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE (ITEM 16)

 90.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  64.80  0.63 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 36 of 61

4/16/24

Page 65



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 300 - CABLE

SubPhase: BRANCH-CTRL-INST

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 90.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  15.36  0.32 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL04-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE (ITEM 17)

 90.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  64.80  0.63 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 90.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  15.36  0.32 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL04-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE (ITEM 18)

 130.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  93.60  0.91 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 130.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  22.18  0.46 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL04-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE (ITEM 19)

 120.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  86.40  0.84 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 120.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  20.48  0.42 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL04-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE (ITEM 20)

 130.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  93.60  0.91 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 130.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  22.18  0.46 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL04-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE (ITEM 21)

 110.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  79.20  0.77 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 110.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  18.77  0.39 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL04-CPP01 TO PWTP-ELE (ITEM 22)

 110.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  79.20  0.77 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 110.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  18.77  0.39 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT01-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-FLT01-P2101-1-PPL01

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 37 of 61

4/16/24

Page 66



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 300 - CABLE

SubPhase: BRANCH-CTRL-INST

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 210.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  151.20  1.47 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 210.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  35.83  0.74 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT01-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-FLT01-P2101-2-PPL01

 210.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  151.20  1.47 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 210.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  35.83  0.74 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT01-P2101-1-PPL01 TO 

PWTP-FLT01-P2101-2-PPL01

 100.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  72.00  0.70 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 100.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  17.06  0.35 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT02-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-FLT02-P2102-PPL01

 210.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  151.20  1.47 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 210.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  35.83  0.74 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT02-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-FLT02-P2102-PPL01

 210.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  151.20  1.47 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 210.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  35.83  0.74 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT08-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-FLT08-P2108-3-PPL01

 210.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  151.20  1.47 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 210.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  35.83  0.74 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT08-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-FLT08-P2108-PPL01

 210.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  151.20  1.47 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 38 of 61

4/16/24

Page 67



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 300 - CABLE

SubPhase: BRANCH-CTRL-INST

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 210.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  35.83  0.74 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT08-P2108-3-PPL01 TO 

PWTP-FLT08-P2108-4-PPL01

 100.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  72.00  0.70 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 100.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  17.06  0.35 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT08-P2108-4-PPL01 TO 

PWTP-FLT08-P2108-PPL01

 110.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  79.20  0.77 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 110.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  18.77  0.39 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT09-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-FLT09-P2109-PPL01 - (1)

 220.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  158.40  1.54 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 220.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  37.54  0.77 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT09-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-FLT09-P2109-PPL01 - (2)

 220.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  158.40  1.54 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 220.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  37.54  0.77 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-INF-MET-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-BS-2201-CP

 160.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  115.20  1.12 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 160.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  27.30  0.56 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BS-2201-CP TO PWTP-BS-2202-CP

 110.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  79.20  0.77 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 110.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  18.77  0.39 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 39 of 61

4/16/24

Page 68



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 300 - CABLE

SubPhase: BRANCH-CTRL-INST

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BS-2202-CP TO PWTP-RWP-2201

 130.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  93.60  0.91 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 130.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  22.18  0.46 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-RWP-2201 TO PWTP-RWP-2202

 110.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  79.20  0.77 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 110.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  18.77  0.39 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-INF-MET-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-RWP-2202

 180.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  129.60  1.26 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 180.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  30.71  0.63 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 

- (1)

 170.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  122.40  1.19 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 170.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  29.01  0.60 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 

- (2)

 170.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  122.40  1.19 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 170.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  29.01  0.60 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-PRE-MCC01-CPP01

 220.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  158.40  1.54 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 220.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  37.54  0.77 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-PRE-MCC02-CPP01 

- (1)

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 40 of 61

4/16/24

Page 69



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 300 - CABLE

SubPhase: BRANCH-CTRL-INST

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 180.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  129.60  1.26 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 180.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  30.71  0.63 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-PRE-MCC02-CPP01 

- (2)

 180.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  129.60  1.26 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 180.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  30.71  0.63 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO P-2816

 100.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  72.00  0.70 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 100.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  17.06  0.35 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO P-2817

 110.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  79.20  0.77 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 110.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  18.77  0.39 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO P2818

 120.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  86.40  0.84 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 120.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  20.48  0.42 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO FLC-CP-033 (ITEM 9)

 130.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  93.60  0.91 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 130.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  22.18  0.46 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO FLC-CP-033 (ITEM 10)

 130.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  93.60  0.91 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 130.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  22.18  0.46 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 41 of 61

4/16/24

Page 70



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 300 - CABLE

SubPhase: BRANCH-CTRL-INST

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO FLC-CP-033 (ITEM 11)

 130.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  93.60  0.91 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 130.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  22.18  0.46 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO FLC-CP-043 (ITEM 12)

 110.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  79.20  0.77 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 110.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  18.77  0.39 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO FLC-CP-043 (ITEM 13)

 110.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  79.20  0.77 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 110.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  18.77  0.39 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO FLC-CP-043 (ITEM 14)

 110.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  79.20  0.77 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 110.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  18.77  0.39 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO FLC-CP-053 (ITEM 15)

 110.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  79.20  0.77 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 110.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  18.77  0.39 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO FLC-CP-053 (ITEM 16)

 110.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  79.20  0.77 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 110.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  18.77  0.39 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO FLC-CP-053 (ITEM 17)

 110.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  79.20  0.77 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 110.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  18.77  0.39 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 42 of 61

4/16/24

Page 71



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 300 - CABLE

SubPhase: BRANCH-CTRL-INST

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO PWTP-PRE-MCC01-CPP01 

(ITEM 18)

 120.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  86.40  0.84 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 120.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  20.48  0.42 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO RW-P-104 (ITEM 19)

 120.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  86.40  0.84 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 120.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  20.48  0.42 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO RW-P-103 (ITEM 20)

 120.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  86.40  0.84 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 120.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  20.48  0.42 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO RW-P-102 (ITEM 21)

 120.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  86.40  0.84 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 120.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  20.48  0.42 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02-CPP01 TO RW-P-101 (ITEM 22)

 120.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  86.40  0.84 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 120.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  20.48  0.42 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-MCC01-CPP01 TO PWTP-PRE-MCC02-CPP01 

(ITEM 23)

 130.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  93.60  0.91 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 130.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  22.18  0.46 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PST-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-PST-MCC01-CPP01 

(ITEM 1)

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 43 of 61

4/16/24

Page 72



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 300 - CABLE

SubPhase: BRANCH-CTRL-INST

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 100.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  72.00  0.70 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 100.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  17.06  0.35 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PST-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-PST-MCC01-CPP01 

(ITEM 2)

 100.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  72.00  0.70 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 100.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  17.06  0.35 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PST-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-PST-MCC01-CPP01 

(ITEM 3)

 100.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  72.00  0.70 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 100.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  17.06  0.35 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PST-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-PST-NCL-CPL01-CPP01 (ITEM 4)

 150.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  108.00  1.05 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 150.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  25.59  0.53 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PST-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-PST-NCL-CPL01-CPP01 (ITEM 5)

 150.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  108.00  1.05 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 150.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  25.59  0.53 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PST-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-FLT-BLW2171 

(ITEM 6)

 130.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  93.60  0.91 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 130.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  22.18  0.46 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PST-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-FLT-BLW2171 

(ITEM 7)

 130.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  93.60  0.91 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 44 of 61

4/16/24

Page 73



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 300 - CABLE

SubPhase: BRANCH-CTRL-INST

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 130.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  22.18  0.46 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PST-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-FLT-BLW2151 

(ITEM 8)

 120.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  86.40  0.84 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 120.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  20.48  0.42 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PST-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-FLT-BLW2151 

(ITEM 9)

 120.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  86.40  0.84 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 120.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  20.48  0.42 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT-BLW2151 TO PWTP-FLT-BLW2171 (ITEM 

10)

 110.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  79.20  0.77 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 110.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  18.77  0.39 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PSD-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-P0141-PPL01 

(ITEM 1)

 500.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  360.00  3.50 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 500.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  85.32  1.75 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PSD-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-PSD2252-PPL01 

(ITEM 2)

 500.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  360.00  3.50 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 500.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  85.32  1.75 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-P0141-PPL01 TO PWTP-PSD2251-PPL01 (ITEM 

3)

 500.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  360.00  3.50 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 45 of 61

4/16/24

Page 74



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 300 - CABLE

SubPhase: BRANCH-CTRL-INST

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 500.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  85.32  1.75 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PSD2251-PPL01 TO PWTP-PSD2252-PPL01 

(ITEM 4)

 500.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  360.00  3.50 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 500.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  85.32  1.75 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLC-CPL01-CPP01 TO SLUDGE BASIN DRAW OFF 

1

 750.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  540.00  5.25 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 750.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  127.97  2.63 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLC-CPL01-CPP01 TO SLUDGE BASIN DRAW OFF 

2

 710.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  511.20  4.97 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 710.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  121.15  2.49 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLC-CPL01-CPP01 TO SLUDGE BASIN DRAW OFF 

3

 650.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  468.00  4.55 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 650.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  110.91  2.28 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLC-CPL01-CPP01 TO SLUDGE BASIN DRAW OFF 

4

 610.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  439.20  4.27 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 610.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  104.08  2.14 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLC-CPL01-CPP01 TO SLUDGE BASIN DRAW OFF 

5

 530.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  381.60  3.71 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 530.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  90.43  1.86 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 46 of 61

4/16/24

Page 75



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 300 - CABLE

SubPhase: BRANCH-CTRL-INST

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLC-CPL01-CPP01 TO SLUDGE BASIN DRAW OFF 

6

 500.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  360.00  3.50 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 500.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  85.32  1.75 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLC-CPL01-CPP01 TO SLUDGE BASIN DRAW OFF 

7

 440.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  316.80  3.08 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 440.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  75.08  1.54 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLC-CPL01-CPP01 TO SLUDGE BASIN DRAW OFF 

8

 400.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  288.00  2.80 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 400.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  68.25  1.40 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLC-CPL01-CPP01 TO SLUDGE BASIN DRAW OFF 

9

 350.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  252.00  2.45 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 350.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  59.72  1.23 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-SHA-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-SHA-MCC01-CPP01 

(ITEM 1/2)

 240.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  172.80  1.68 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  9.80  0.80 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 240.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  40.95  0.84 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.60 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-SHA-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWPT-TSS-COLL875-PPL01 (ITEM 3/5)

 440.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  316.80  3.08 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  9.80  0.80 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 440.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  75.08  1.54 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.60 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 47 of 61

4/16/24

Page 76



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 300 - CABLE

SubPhase: BRANCH-CTRL-INST

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 0.00 PWTP-SHA-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-TSS-COLL775-PPL01 (ITEM 6/7)

 340.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  244.80  2.38 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  9.80  0.80 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 340.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  58.01  1.19 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.60 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-SHA-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-TSS-SUPXXXX-PPL01 (ITEM 4)

 170.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  122.40  1.19 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 170.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  29.01  0.60 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-SHA-CPL01-CPP01 TO 

PWTP-TSS-SUPXXXX-PPL01 (ITEM 8)

 190.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  136.80  1.33 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 190.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  32.42  0.67 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-INF-MIX-CPL01-CPP01 TO PWTP-LCP-MX-2230 

(ITEM 1/2)

 190.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  136.80  1.33 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  9.80  0.80 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 190.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  32.42  0.67 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 4.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.60 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 IO-NAOCL (PLC) TO EZ1000 (Instrument) - CAT6

 500.00 Ethernet Cable - CAT6760 M  360.00  3.50 0.7200  0.0070 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 RJ45 Connectors761 M  4.90  0.40 2.4500  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 500.00 14FT XHHW CU (STR)70279 M  85.32  1.75 0.1706  0.0035 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 14EA WIRE TERMINATION LBR100564 M  0.00  0.30 0.0000  0.1500 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00

 400.00 EA MACHINE CODED SLEEVE100840 M  124.00  20.00 0.3100  0.0500 1.0000  1.0000

 24,674.72  545.00Phase Totals:

Phase: 300 - CABLE

SubPhase: GROUNDING

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 48 of 61

4/16/24

Page 77



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 300 - CABLE

SubPhase: GROUNDING

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 0.00 Grounding for New Generator

 1,000.00 4/0FT BARE CU (STR)70401 M  4,470.00  20.00 4.4700  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 20.00 #150EA Cadweld Plus - #150 Weld Cups742 M  500.00  4.00 25.0000  0.2000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 Grounding

 5.00 3/4"EA Ground Rod - 3/4" x 10'743 M  432.75  2.50 57.7000  0.5000 1.5000  1.0000

 5.00 B1017 - ChristyEA Christy - #B1017 Ground Well344 M  1,032.05  2.50 206.4100  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 5.00 B51JH - ChristyEA Christy - #B51JH (Ground - Lid)345 M  1,007.70  2.50 201.5400  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 7,442.50  31.50Phase Totals:

Phase: 500 - SWITCHGEAR

SubPhase: SWITCHGEAR

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 0.00 BF-MX-2351 MCC BUCKET MODIFICATION:

 1.00 BF-MX-2351467 M  528.92  9.00 528.9200  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 BF-MX-2371 MCC BUCKET MODIFICATION

 1.00 BF-MX-2371468 M  528.92  9.00 528.9200  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 BF-MX-2352 MCC BUCKET MODIFICATION

 1.00 BF-MX-2352469 M  528.92  9.00 528.9200  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 BF-P-2351 MCC BUCKET MODIFICATION

 1.00 BF-P-2351470 M  528.92  9.00 528.9200  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 BF-P-2352 MCC BUCKET MODIFICATION

 1.00 BF-P-2352471 M  528.92  9.00 528.9200  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 BF-MX-2372 MCC BUCKET MODIFICATION

 1.00 BF-MX-2372472 M  528.92  9.00 528.9200  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 BF-P-2371 MCC BUCKET MODIFICATION

 1.00 BF-P-2371473 M  528.92  9.00 528.9200  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 BF-P-2372 MCC BUCKET MODIFICATION

 1.00 BF-P-2372474 M  528.92  9.00 528.9200  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 RW-P-2211 MCC BUCKET MODIFICATION

 1.00 RW-P-2211475 M  528.92  9.00 528.9200  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 RW-P-2212 MCC BUCKET MODIFICATION

 1.00 RW-P-2212476 M  528.92  9.00 528.9200  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 RW-P-2310 MCC BUCKET MODIFICATION

 1.00 RW-P-2310477 M  815.45  9.00 815.4500  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 49 of 61

4/16/24

Page 78



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 500 - SWITCHGEAR

SubPhase: SWITCHGEAR

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 0.00 RW-P-2320 MCC BUCKET MODIFICATION

 1.00 RW-P-2320478 M  815.45  9.00 815.4500  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 AA-BL-2151 MCC BUCKET MODIFICATION

 1.00 AA-BL-2151479 M  815.45  9.00 815.4500  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 AA-BL-2171 MCC BUCKET MODIFICATION

 1.00 AA-BL-2171480 M  815.45  9.00 815.4500  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 AA-BL-2630 MCC BUCKET MODIFICATION

 1.00 AA-BL-2630481 M  528.92  9.00 528.9200  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 AA-BL-2640 MCC BUCKET MODIFICATION

 1.00 AA-BL-2640482 M  528.92  9.00 528.9200  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 P-2814 MCC BUCKET MODIFICATION

 1.00 P-2814483 M  2,374.45  9.00 2,374.4500  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 MIX-0493/MIX-0498 MCC BUCKET MODIFICATION

 1.00 MIX-0493/MIX-0498484 M  1,057.84  9.00 1,057.8400  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 MIX-2330 MCC BUCKET MODIFICATION

 1.00 MIX-2330485 M  528.92  9.00 528.9200  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 P-341 MCC BUCKET MODIFICATION

 1.00 P-341486 M  528.92  9.00 528.9200  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 MIX-0483 MCC BUCKET MODIFICATION

 1.00 MIX-0483487 M  1,057.84  9.00 1,057.8400  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 SED BASIN 2 SLUDGE COLLECTOR A MCC BUCKET 

MODICATION

 1.00 SED BASIN 2 SLUDGE COLLECTOR488 M  1,223.28  9.00 1,223.2800  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 SED BASIN 2 SLUDGE COLLECTOR B MCC BUCKET 

MODIFICATION

 1.00 SED BASIN SLUDGE COLLECTOR B489 M  1,223.28  9.00 1,223.2800  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 SED BASIN 2 SLUDGE COLLECTOR C MCC BUCKET 

MODIFICATION

 1.00 SED BASIN 2 SLUDGE COLLECTOR C490 M  3,444.35  9.00 3,444.3500  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 SED BASIN 3 SLUDGE COLLECTOR A MCC BUCKET 

MODIFICATION

 1.00 SED BASIN 3 SLUDGE COLLECTOR A491 M  1,444.35  9.00 1,444.3500  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 SED BASIN 3 SLUDGE COLLECTOR B MCC BUCKET 

MODIFICATION

 1.00 SED BASIN SLUDGE COLLECTOR B492 M  1,444.35  9.00 1,444.3500  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 SED BASIN 3 SLUDGE COLLECTOR C MCC BUCKET 

MODIFICATION

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 50 of 61

4/16/24

Page 79



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 500 - SWITCHGEAR

SubPhase: SWITCHGEAR

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 1.00 SED BASIN 3 SLUDGE COLLECTOR C493 M  1,444.35  9.00 1,444.3500  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 MIX-0482 MCC BUCKET MODIFICATION

 1.00 MIX-0482494 M  1,444.35  9.00 1,444.3500  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 P-2815 MCC BUCKET MODIFICATION

 1.00 P-2815495 M  2,374.45  9.00 2,374.4500  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 MIX-2340 MCC BUCKET MODIFICATION

 1.00 MIX-2340496 M  528.92  9.00 528.9200  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 SED BASIN 1 SLUDGE COLLECTOR A MCC BUCKET 

MODIFICATION

 1.00 SED BASIN 1 SLUDGE COLLECTOR A497 M  1,444.35  9.00 1,444.3500  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 SED BASIN 1 SLUDGE COLLECTOR B MCC BUCKET 

MODIFICATION

 1.00 SED BASIN  SLUDGE COLLECTOR B498 M  1,223.28  9.00 1,223.2800  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 SED BASIN 1 SLUDGE COLLECTOR C MCC BUCKET 

MODIFICATION

 1.00 SED BASIN 1 SLUDGE COLLECTOR C499 M  1,444.35  9.00 1,444.3500  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 WA-P-205 MCC BUCKET MODIFICATION

 1.00 WA-P-205501 M  1,110.41  9.00 1,110.4100  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 WA-P-206 MCC BUCKET MODIFICATION

 1.00 WA-P-206500 M  1,110.41  9.00 1,110.4100  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 BF MIXER MCC BUCKET MODIFICATION

 1.00 BF MIXER502 M  631.65  9.00 631.6500  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 THICKENED SLUDGE PUMP M THICKENED PUMP #1 MCC 

BUCKET MODIFICATION

 1.00 THICKENED SLUDGE PUMP M/PUMP #1503 M  631.65  9.00 631.6500  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 THICKENED SLUDGE PUMP M THICKENED PUMP #2 MCC 

BUCKET MODIFICATION

 1.00 THICKENED SLUDGE PUMP M/PUMP #2504 M  631.65  9.00 631.6500  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 THICKENED SLUDGE PUMP M THICKENED PUMP #3 MCC 

BUCKET MODIFICATION

 1.00 THICKENED SLUDGE PUMP M/PUMP #3505 M  631.35  9.00 631.3500  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00

 0.00 One (1) 100A MTS - Additional Scope for New UPS - 

(2031)

 1.00 100A MTS678 M  6,000.00  36.00 6,000.0000  36.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 Two (2) 100A MCC Feeder Buckets - Additional Scope 

for New UPS - (2019-004)

 2.00 100A MCC Feeder Buckets679 M  23,287.00  36.00 11,643.5000  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 51 of 61

4/16/24

Page 80



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

 67,874.59  423.00Phase Totals:

Phase: 600 - INSTRUMENTATION

SubPhase: PANELS

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 0.00 Junction & Pull Boxes

 30.00 Junction/Pull Box674 M  40,774.50  135.00 1,359.1500  4.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 30.00 400A PDBEA Accessory ITP - PDB379 M  8,139.00  45.00 271.3000  1.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 30.00 Accessory ITPEA Accessory ITP - Terminals, Din-Rail, etc380 M  7,500.00  45.00 250.0000  1.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00

 0.00 New Control Panels:

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL04 Network Interface Panel

 1.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL04451 M  21,609.63  18.00 21,609.6300  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLC-CPL01 Network Interface Panel

 1.00 PWTP-FLC-CPL01452 M  20,925.66  18.00 20,925.6600  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT-CPL01 Network Interface Panel

 1.00 PWTP-FLT-CPL01453 M  24,915.57  18.00 24,915.5700  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02 Network Interface Panel

 1.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL02454 M  23,813.16  18.00 23,813.1600  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PSD-CPL01 Network Interface Panel

 1.00 PWTP-PSD-CPL01455 M  23,813.16  18.00 23,813.1600  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-SLG-CPL03 Network Interface Panel

 1.00 PWTP-SLG-CPL03456 M  26,068.96  18.00 26,068.9600  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-INF-MET-CPL01 Network Interface Panel

 1.00 PWTP-INF-MET-CPL01642 M  23,813.16  18.00 23,813.1600  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-INF-MIX-CPL01 Network Interface Panel

 1.00 PWTP-INF-MIX-CPL01643 M  18,341.44  18.00 18,341.4400  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00

 239,714.24  369.00Phase Totals:

Phase: 600 - INSTRUMENTATION

SubPhase: INSTRUMENTS

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 0.00 20A Circuit Breakers for New Circuits: PP-SB2A (1),

 3.00 QOB120HM - 20A CIRCUIT BREAKER447 M  150.93  13.50 50.3100  4.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00

 0.00 New Power Quality Monitor for MCC Buckets

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 52 of 61

4/16/24

Page 81



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 600 - INSTRUMENTATION

SubPhase: INSTRUMENTS

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 0.00 PWTP-MCC-BF

 1.00 PWTP-MCC-BF665 M  1,250.00  6.61 1,250.0000  6.6100 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-MCC-CB1

 1.00 PWTP-MCC-CB1666 M  1,250.00  6.61 1,250.0000  6.6100 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-MCC-CB2

 1.00 PWTP-MCC-CB2667 M  1,250.00  6.61 1,250.0000  6.6100 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-MCC-DIS

 1.00 PWTP-MCC-DIS668 M  1,250.00  6.61 1,250.0000  6.6100 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-MCC-PCB1

 1.00 PWTP-MCC-PCB1669 M  1,250.00  6.61 1,250.0000  6.6100 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-MCC-PCB2

 1.00 PWTP-MCC-PCB2671 M  1,250.00  6.61 1,250.0000  6.6100 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-MCC-SB1

 1.00 PWTP-MCC-SB1672 M  1,250.00  6.61 1,250.0000  6.6100 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-MCC-SB2

 1.00 PWTP-MCC-SB2670 M  1,250.00  6.61 1,250.0000  6.6100 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-MCC-SH

 1.00 PWTP-MCC-SH673 M  1,250.00  6.61 1,250.0000  6.6100 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00

 0.00 FILTER CONTROL PANEL MODIFICATIONS

 0.00 PWTP-FLT01-CPL01 FILTER CONTROL PANEL 

MODIFICATIONS

 1.00 PWTP-FLT01-CPL01583 M  8,802.30  18.00 8,802.3000  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT02-CPL01 FILTER CONTROL PANEL 

MODIFICATIONS

 1.00 PWTP-FLT02-CPL01584 M  8,802.30  18.00 8,802.3000  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT03-CPL01 FILTER CONTROL PANEL 

MODIFICATIONS

 1.00 PWTP-FLT03-CPL01585 M  8,743.75  18.00 8,743.7500  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT04-CPL01 FILTER CONTROL PANEL 

MODIFICATIONS

 1.00 PWTP-FLT04-CPL01586 M  8,743.75  18.00 8,743.7500  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT05-CPL01 FILTER CONTROL PANEL 

MODIFICATIONS

 1.00 PWTP-FLT05-CPL01587 M  8,743.75  18.00 8,743.7500  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT06-CPL01 FILTER CONTROL PANEL 

MODIFICATIONS

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 53 of 61

4/16/24

Page 82



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 600 - INSTRUMENTATION

SubPhase: INSTRUMENTS

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 1.00 PWTP-FLT06-CPL01588 M  8,743.75  18.00 8,743.7500  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT07-CPL01 FILTER CONTROL PANEL 

MODIFICATIONS

 1.00 PWTP-FLT07-CPL01589 M  8,743.75  18.00 8,743.7500  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT08-CPL01 FILTER CONTROL PANEL 

MODIFICATIONS

 1.00 PWTP-FLT09-CPL01590 M  8,862.10  18.00 8,862.1000  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT09-CPL01 FILTER CONTROL PANEL 

MODIFICATIONS

 1.00 PWTP-FLT09-CPL01591 M  8,862.10  18.00 8,862.1000  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT10-CPL01 FILTER CONTROL PANEL 

MODIFICATIONS

 1.00 PWTP-FLT10-CPL01592 M  8,743.75  18.00 8,743.7500  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT11-CPL01 FILTER CONTROL PANEL 

MODIFICATIONS

 1.00 PWTP-FLT11-CPL01593 M  8,743.75  18.00 8,743.7500  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT12-CPL01 FILTER CONTROL PANEL 

MODIFICATIONS

 1.00 PWTP-FLT12-CPL01594 M  8,743.75  18.00 8,743.7500  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00

 0.00 CONTROL ROOM / BUILDINGS/ CONTROL ROOM 

CONTROL PANEL MODIFICATIONS

 0.00 PWTP-ADM-CPL01 CONTROL ROOM / BUILDING 

CONTROL PANEL MODIFICATIONS

 1.00 PWTP-ADM-CPL01608 M  12,948.47  18.00 12,948.4700  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01 CONTROL ROOM / BUILDING 

CONTROL PANEL MODIFICATIONS

 1.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01609 M  13,365.53  18.00 13,365.5300  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-PLY3401-CPL01 CONTROL ROOM / 

BUILDING CONTROL PANEL MODIFICATIONS

 1.00 PWTP-BFL-PLY3401-CPL01610 M  11,135.41  18.00 11,135.4100  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-PLY3401-PPL01 CONTROL ROOM / 

BUILDING CONTROL PANEL MODIFICATIONS

 1.00 PWTP-BFL-PLY3401-PPL01611 M  17,108.83  18.00 17,108.8300  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL01 CONTROL ROOM / BUILDING 

CONTROL PANEL MODIFICATIONS

 1.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL01612 M  12,018.77  18.00 12,018.7700  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL03 CONTROL ROOM / BUILDING 

CONTROL PANEL MODIFICATIONS

 1.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL03613 M  21,372.20  18.00 21,372.2000  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 54 of 61

4/16/24

Page 83



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 600 - INSTRUMENTATION

SubPhase: INSTRUMENTS

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 0.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL01 CONTROL ROOM / BUILDING 

CONTROL PANEL MODIFICATIONS

 1.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL01614 M  13,411.98  18.00 13,411.9800  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PST-CPL01 CONTROL ROOM / BUILDING 

CONTROL PANEL MODIFICATIONS

 1.00 PWTP-PST-CPL01615 M  24,228.26  18.00 24,228.2600  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PST-NCL-CPL01 CONTROL ROOM / BUILDING 

CONTROL PANEL MODIFICATIONS

 1.00 PWTP-PST-NCL-CPL01616 M  25,427.69  36.00 25,427.6900  36.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-SLG-CPL01 CONTROL ROOM / BUILDING 

CONTROL PANEL MODIFICATIONS

 1.00 PWTP-SLG-CPL01617 M  15,909.72  18.00 15,909.7200  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT-BLR2151-CPL01 CONTROL ROOM / 

BUILDING CONTROL PANEL MODIFICATIONS

 1.00 PWTP-FLT-BLR2151-CPL01618 M  10,912.07  18.00 10,912.0700  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-FLT-BLR2171-CPL01 CONTROL ROOM / 

BUILDING CONTROL PANEL MODIFICATIONS

 1.00 PWTP-FLT-BLR2171-CPL01619 M  10,912.07  18.00 10,912.0700  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01 CONTROL ROOM / BUILDING 

CONTROL PANEL MODIFICATIONS

 1.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01620 M  10,912.07  18.00 10,912.0700  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-HPP-CPL01 CONTROL ROOM / BUILDING 

CONTROL PANEL MODIFICATIONS

 1.00 PWTP-HPP-CPL01621 M  10,912.07  18.00 10,912.0700  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00

 0.00 100% Construction Plans Added Panels

 0.00 PMP-0342 SLUDGE PUMP #2

 1.00 PMP-0342656 M  2,275.32  18.00 2,275.3200  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 TSS-COLL775 GRAVITY THICKENER - 1

 1.00 TSS-COLL775657 M  2,437.69  18.00 2,437.6900  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 TSS-COLL875 GRAVITY THICKENER - 2

 1.00 TSS-COLL875658 M  2,437.69  18.00 2,437.6900  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 THICKENED SLUDGE BUILDING SUMP PUMP

 1.00 THICKENED SLUDGE BUILDING SUMP PUMP659 M  2,370.77  18.00 2,370.7700  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00

 0.00 PUMP CONTROL PANEL & SINGLE PAGE 

MODIFICATIONS

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 55 of 61

4/16/24

Page 84



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 600 - INSTRUMENTATION

SubPhase: INSTRUMENTS

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 0.00 PWTP-BS2201-PPL01 SCREEN CONTROLLER 1 

MODIFIED PUMP CONTROL PANEL

 1.00 PWTP-BS2201-PPL01546 M  1,405.01  18.00 1,405.0100  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-BS2201-PPL01 SCREEN CONTROLLER 2 

MODIFIED PUMP CONTROL PANEL

 1.00 PWTP-BS2201-PPL01547 M  1,405.01  18.00 1,405.0100  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-MX2230-PPL01 MODIFIED PUMP CONTROL 

PANEL

 1.00 PWTP-MX2230-PPL01558 M  1,405.01  18.00 1,405.0100  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-P0141-PPL01 MODIFIED PUMP CONTROL PANEL

 1.00 PWTP-P0141-PPL01559 M  1,405.01  18.00 1,405.0100  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-P2201-PPL01 MODIFIED PUMP CONTROL PANEL

 1.00 PWTP-P2201-PPL01560 M  1,405.01  18.00 1,405.0100  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-P2202-PPL01 MODIFIED PUMP CONTROL PANEL

 1.00 PWTP-P2202-PPL01561 M  1,405.01  18.00 1,405.0100  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PSD2251-PPL01 MODIFIED PUMP CONTROL 

PANEL

 1.00 PWTP-PSD2251-PPL01562 M  1,405.01  18.00 1,405.0100  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 PWTP-PSD2252-PPL01 MODIFIED PUMP CONTROL 

PANEL

 1.00 PWTP-PSD2252-PPL01563 M  1,405.01  18.00 1,405.0100  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00

 0.00 Seperating 120VAC & 480VAC in Seperate Enclosure - 

Provide Enclosures and Labor

 0.00 Re-Use Existing Equipment or Provided by Others.

 1.00 Materials & Labor676 M  50,000.00  216.00 50,000.0000  216.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 398,016.42  990.99Phase Totals:

Phase: 700 - FABRICATION

SubPhase: MOUNTING RACKS

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 450.00 1 5/8" x 1  5/8"HFT STN-STL 316 STRUT 14G SLOTTED240789 M  10,566.00  55.13 23.4800  0.1225 1.0000  1.0000

 6.00 3.5EA STN-STL 316 Strut Base768 M  482.88  6.00 80.4800  1.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 6.00 3/8EA STN-STL 316 4 Hole 90770 M  625.80  3.00 104.3000  0.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 200.00 3/8EA STN-STL 316 Spring Nut769 M  2,192.00  5.00 10.9600  0.0250 1.0000  1.0000

 200.00 STN-STL 316 3/8 X 1 Hex Head771 M  200.00  5.00 1.0000  0.0250 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 56 of 61

4/16/24

Page 85



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 700 - FABRICATION

SubPhase: MOUNTING RACKS

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 2.00 3/8EA STN-STL 316 3/8" Washer (100)772 M  24.92  3.00 12.4600  1.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 3/8EA STN-STL 316 3/8" Lock Washer773 M  23.10  3.00 11.5500  1.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 2.00 3/8EA STN-STL 316 Nut (Hex)774 M  30.16  3.00 15.0800  1.5000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 CONCRETE ANCHORS 3/8" - 3" 316SS

 400.00 3/8 x 1 1/2 - 3"EA HAMMER DRILLED HOLE161321 M  0.00  56.00 0.0000  0.1400 1.0000  1.0000

 400.00 3/8" x 3" CONCRETE 316SS WEDGE ANCHORS775 M  1,053.36  4.00 2.6334  0.0100 1.0000  1.0000

 15,198.22  143.13Phase Totals:

Phase: 800 - OTHER / MISC.

SubPhase: DEMO

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 0.00 POWER QUALITY MONITOR DEMOLITION

 1.00 PWTP-MCC-BF PQM DEMO458 M  0.00  3.00 0.0000  3.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-MCC-CB1 PQM DEMO459 M  0.00  3.00 0.0000  3.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-MCC-CB2 PQM DEMO460 M  0.00  3.00 0.0000  3.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-MCC-DIS PQM DEMO461 M  0.00  3.00 0.0000  3.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-MCC-PCB1 PQM DEMO462 M  0.00  3.00 0.0000  3.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-MCC-PCB2 PQM DEMO463 M  0.00  3.00 0.0000  3.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-MCC-SB1 PQM DEMO464 M  0.00  3.00 0.0000  3.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-MCC-SB2 PQM DEMO465 M  0.00  3.00 0.0000  3.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-MCC-SH PQM DEMO466 M  0.00  3.00 0.0000  3.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00

 0.00 MCC BUCKET MODIFICATION DEMOLITION

 1.00 BF-MX-2351 MCC BUCKET DEMO506 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 BF-MX-2371 MCC BUCKET DEMO507 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 BF-MX-2352 MCC BUCKET DEMO508 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 BF-P-2351 MCC BUCKET DEMO509 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 BF-P-2352 MCC BUCKET DEMO510 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 BF-MX-2372 MCC BUCKET DEMO511 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 BF-P-2371 MCC BUCKET DEMO512 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 BF-P-2372 MCC BUCKET DEMO513 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 RW-P-2211 MCC BUCKET DEMO514 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 RW-P-2212 MCC BUCKET DEMO515 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 RW-P-2310 MCC BUCKET DEMO516 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 57 of 61

4/16/24

Page 86



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 800 - OTHER / MISC.

SubPhase: DEMO

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 1.00 RW-P-2320 MCC BUCKET DEMO517 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 AA-BL-2151 MCC BUCKET DEMO518 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 AA-BL-2171 MCC BUCKET DEMO519 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 AA-BL-2630 MCC BUCKET DEMO520 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 AA-BL-2640 MCC BUCKET DEMO521 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 P-2814 MCC BUCKET DEMO522 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 MIX-0493/0498 MCC BUCKET DEMO523 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 MIX-2330 MCC BUCKET DEMO524 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 P-341 MCC BUCKET DEMO525 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 MIX-0483 MCC BUCKET DEMO526 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 SED BASIN 2 SLUDGE COLLECTOR A DEMO527 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 SED BASIN 2 SLUDGE COLLECTOR B DEMO528 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 SED BASIN 2 SLUDGE COLLECTOR C DEMO529 M  0.00  4.00 0.0000  4.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 SED BASIN 3 SLUDGE COLLECTOR A DEMO530 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 SED BASIN 3 SLUDGE COLLECTOR B DEMO531 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 SED BASIN 3 SLUDGE COLLECTOR C DEMO532 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 MIX-0482 MCC BUCKET DEMO533 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 P-2815 MCC BUCKET DEMO534 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 MIX-2340 MCC BUCKET DEMO535 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 SED BASIN 1 SLUDGE COLLECTOR A DEMO536 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 SED BASIN 1 SLUDGE COLLECTOR B DEMO537 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 SED BASIN 1 SLUDGE COLLECTOR C DEMO538 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 WA-P-205 MCC BUCKET DEMO539 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 WA-P-206 MCC BUCKET DEMO540 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 BF MIXER MOTOR MCC BUCKET DEMO541 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 THICKENED SLUDGE PUMP M/PUMP #1 DEMO542 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 THICKENED SLUDGE PUMP M/PUMP #2 DEMO543 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 THICKENED SLUDGE PUMP M/PUMP #3 DEMO544 M  0.00  5.00 0.0000  5.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00

 0.00 PUMP CONTROL PANEL & SINGLE PAGE 

MODIFICATIONS DEMOLITION

 1.00 PWTP-BS2201-PPL01 DEMO564 M  0.00  3.00 0.0000  3.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-BS2201-PPL01 DEMO565 M  0.00  3.00 0.0000  3.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-MX2230-PPL01 DEMO577 M  0.00  2.00 0.0000  2.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-P0141-PPL01 DEMO578 M  0.00  2.00 0.0000  2.0000 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 58 of 61

4/16/24

Page 87



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 800 - OTHER / MISC.

SubPhase: DEMO

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 1.00 PWTP-P2201-PPL01 DEMO579 M  0.00  2.00 0.0000  2.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-P2202-PPL01 DEMO580 M  0.00  2.00 0.0000  2.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-PSD2251-PPL01 DEMO581 M  0.00  2.00 0.0000  2.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-PSD2252-PPL01 DEMO582 M  0.00  2.00 0.0000  2.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00

 0.00 FILTER CONTROL PANEL MODIFICATION DEMOLITION

 1.00 PWTP-FLT01-CPL01 DEMO595 M  0.00  9.00 0.0000  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-FLT02-CPL01 DEMO597 M  0.00  9.00 0.0000  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-FLT03-CPL01 DEMO598 M  0.00  9.00 0.0000  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-FLT04-CPL01 DEMO599 M  0.00  9.00 0.0000  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-FLT05-CPL01 DEMO600 M  0.00  9.00 0.0000  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-FLT06-CPL01 DEMO601 M  0.00  9.00 0.0000  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-FLT07-CPL01 DEMO602 M  0.00  9.00 0.0000  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-FLT08-CPL01 DEMO603 M  0.00  9.00 0.0000  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-FLT09-CPL01 DEMO604 M  0.00  9.00 0.0000  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-FLT10-CPL01 DEMO605 M  0.00  9.00 0.0000  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-FLT11-CPL01 DEMO606 M  0.00  9.00 0.0000  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-FLT12-CPL01 DEMO607 M  0.00  9.00 0.0000  9.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00

 0.00 CONTROL ROOM & BUILDING CONTROL PANEL 

MODIFICATION

 1.00 PWTP-ADM-CPL01 DEMO622 M  0.00  18.00 0.0000  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01 DEMO624 M  0.00  18.00 0.0000  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-BFL-PLY3401-CPL01 DEMO625 M  0.00  18.00 0.0000  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWPT-BFL-PLY3401-PPL01 DEMO626 M  0.00  18.00 0.0000  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL01 DEMO628 M  0.00  18.00 0.0000  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-ELE-CPL03 DEMO629 M  0.00  18.00 0.0000  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-PRE-CPL01 DEMO630 M  0.00  18.00 0.0000  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-PST-CPL01 DEMO631 M  0.00  18.00 0.0000  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-PST-NCL-CPL01 DEMO632 M  0.00  18.00 0.0000  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWPT-SLG-CPL01 DEMO633 M  0.00  18.00 0.0000  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-FLT-BLR2151-CPL01 DEMO634 M  0.00  18.00 0.0000  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-FLT-BLR2171-CPL01 DEMO635 M  0.00  18.00 0.0000  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-BFL-CPL01 DEMO636 M  0.00  18.00 0.0000  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 PWTP-HPP-CPL01 DEMO637 M  0.00  18.00 0.0000  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 59 of 61

4/16/24

Page 88



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 800 - OTHER / MISC.

SubPhase: DEMO

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 0.00

 0.00 100% Construction Plans Added Panels

 1.00 PMP-0342 DEMO660 M  0.00  18.00 0.0000  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 TSS-COLL775 DEMO661 M  0.00  18.00 0.0000  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 TSS-COLL875 DEMO662 M  0.00  18.00 0.0000  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 1.00 THICKENED SLUDGE BUILDING SUMP PUMP DEMO663 M  0.00  18.00 0.0000  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00

 0.00 4-20mA DEMO - Pull Back In with New CAT6

 1.00 4-20mA DEMO677 M  0.00  90.00 0.0000  90.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00  761.00Phase Totals:

Phase: 800 - OTHER / MISC.

SubPhase: EQUIPMENT

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 0.00 Generator Rental - 320KW Towable Generator 22.5 

Gal/Hr - 4 Month Rental

 0.00 Generator Moved to Contingency

 0.00 320KW TOWABLE GENERATOR - 6 MONTH648 M  0.00  0.00 33,600.0000  0.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 FUEL - ONE (1) DAY - 22.5 GAL/HR ($9)649 M  0.00  0.00 4,860.0000  0.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00

 0.00 Two (2) Weeks of Scissor Lift - Additional Scope for 

New UPS - Felix Owned

 180.00 Scissor Lift680 M  3,027.60  2.00 16.8200  0.0111 1.0000  1.0000

 3,027.60  2.00Phase Totals:

Phase: 800 - OTHER / MISC.

SubPhase: O&M MANUALS

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 100.00 VOLUMEEA O&M MANUALS784 U  5,000.00  200.00 50.0000  2.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 5,000.00  200.00Phase Totals:

Phase: 800 - OTHER / MISC.

SubPhase: AS-BUILTS

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 60 of 61

4/16/24

Page 89



Takeoff Report: Chandler Pecos SCADA Upgrades - GMP2 - REV6 25 Mar 2024  20:17:25

Phase: 800 - OTHER / MISC.

SubPhase: AS-BUILTS

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 183.00 WIRE COORDINATION545 M  0.00  3,294.00 0.0000  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00  3,294.00Phase Totals:

Phase: 800 - OTHER / MISC.

SubPhase: TESTING

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 30.00 PRE-STARTEA TESTING CONTRACTOR788 M  750.00  540.00 25.0000  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 15.00 START-UPEA TESTING START-UP788 U  375.00  270.00 25.0000  18.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 352.00 LABEL-CONDEA LABELS CONDUIT793 U  2,640.00  35.20 7.5000  0.1000 1.0000  1.0000

 140.00 EQUIP TAGEA LABELS EQUIPMENT TAGS795 U  2,800.00  19.60 20.0000  0.1400 1.0000  1.0000

 100.00 WIRE LABELS (MATERIAL)639 M  20,719.00  0.00 207.1900  0.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 14,925.00 WIRE LABELS (LABOR)640 M  0.00  298.50 0.0000  0.0200 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 MOPO's/Submittal Review(s) - Required for Switch 

Gear and RVSS

 100.00 MOPO DevelopmentEA MOPO Development321 M  3,623.00  289.00 36.2300  2.8900 1.0000  1.0000

 100.00 MOPO ReviewEA MOPO Review - Assume 2X Each322 M  3,623.00  579.00 36.2300  5.7900 1.0000  1.0000

 100.00 MOPO PrepEA MOPO Prep - Walk, Implement Pre-Tasks323 M  3,623.00  579.00 36.2300  5.7900 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00 Second Crew for Accelerated Schedule - End of Second 

Phase/Work During Outage

 0.00 60-Days Total for Second Crew

 600.00 Foremen652 M  36,000.00  0.00 60.0000  0.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 600.00 Journeymen653 M  36,000.00  0.00 60.0000  0.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 480.00 Apprentice654 M  24,000.00  0.00 50.0000  0.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 134,153.00  2,610.30Phase Totals:

Phase: 800 - OTHER / MISC.

SubPhase: SUBMITTALS

Qty Size DescriptionItem # U/M Q/M

Material

Unit

Material

Result

Labor

Unit

Labor

Result

Mat

Factor

Labor

Factor

 100.00 VOLUMEEA SUBMITTALS785 U  0.00  400.00 0.0000  4.0000 1.0000  1.0000

 0.00  400.00Phase Totals:

 1,923,325.85  13,540.67Job Totals:

,   

!Enter Company Name! Phone: 

Web: 

Page 61 of 61

4/16/24

Page 90



Schedule of Values: 

 

• 100 – Excava�on: 1600LF 

 

• 100 – Gravel/ABC: 267SY 

 

 

• 100 – Concrete Pad: 360SF 

 

• 200 – Conduit Systems: 

o Under Ground: 2880LF 

o Above Ground: 12730LF 

 

• 300 – Cable: 

o Copper Cable: 27800LF 

o CAT6 Ethernet Cable: 15000LF 

 

4/16/24

Page 91



Labor Rate Schedule: 

 

• Project Manager: 

o $125.00 

• Superintendent: 

o $125.00 

• Foremen: 

o $90.00 

• Journeymen: 

o $75.00 

• Laborer:  

o $55.00 

 

Equipment Rate Schedule: 

 

• Forkli' – Felix Construc,on Owned 

o $124.91 (Per Hour) 

• Scissor Li' – Felix Construc,on Owned 

o $16.82 (Per Hour) 

• Two (2) Storage Containers – Felix Construc,on Owned 

o $750.00 (Monthly) 

• Crane – Felix Construc,on Owned 

o $331.95 (Per Hour) 

• Light Duty Truck – Felix Owned 

o $19.00 (Per Hour) 

• Heavy Duty Truck w/ Tools: 

o $25.43 (Per Hour) 

 

 

 

 

4/16/24

Page 92



MOPO / Submi:als / O&M Schedule: 

 

• MOPO:  

o QTY. 100 

• Submi:als: 

o QTY. 100 

• O&M’s: 

o QTY. 100 

 

 

4/16/24

Page 93



Quote NO.

DATE

CUSTOMER STATE CONTRACT #'S

    CA - ROC 815116 Commercial

ITEM # TOTAL

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

MATERIAL 199,960.46$    

LABOR 20,376.00$      

TOTAL 220,336.46$    

Scope Acceptance - Authorized Signature Date

www.teltechnetworks.com

810 E. Hammond Lane SERST62522-0267A

Phoenix, Arizona  85034 March 20, 2024

Ph: 602-431-9399     Fax: 602-431-9780

PROJECT NAME SITE LOCATION

Arizona State Contract # CTR-62464

Nathan Antonneau/Archer Western     AZ - CTR-62464

Walsh Group     AZ - ROC 167082 Residential

(City of Chandler)

NM - 362237

Customer Provide Material

Pecos SCADA Upgrade 48F Chandler

LABOR DESCRIPTION

Aguilar Consrtuction

Bore/Trench and place 2000 FT of two 2-inch conduits

Place 3 new #9 vaults

Fiber Install

Provide and install 5500 FT of 48 SMFO between multiple locations

Provide and install 250 FT of (2)48 SMFO Armored cable from MPOE to Server Room

Terminate, Test, and Label

is considered to be open and assessable. Coring, surface raceway and fire sleeves are excluded 

from quote.

Termination will be done with customer provide materials(Cassettes and LIUs)

Change Orders

Hours may be added do to scheduling restraints and changes

Unless otherwise stated, all work will be performed during normal business hours.

Access without delay is the responsibility of others.  All work above grid ceiling

SCOPE STATEMENT

Tel Tech Networks, Inc.
Your Full Service Communications Company

This Scope Statement is confidential between Tel Tech Networks 
and the intended recipients.  Any duplication or changes need to 
be done by a Tel Tech authorized estimator.  Scope Statement is 
valid for 30 days.

*PAYMENT TERMS ARE PROGRESSIVE UPON COMPLETION; NET 30 
DAYS

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS!

4/16/24

Page 94

http://www.teltechnetworks.com/
http://www.teltechnetworks.com/


Bill of Materials Work Sheet Date 3/20/24
PROJECT: 

Class Item/ Product Part Number Description UOM QTY Cost Cost Plus PRICE BID EXT.PRICE Labor Hrs Labor Rate Labor Unit Total

1 CORNING 048ZU4-T4F22D20 48 OSP Fiber SM FT 5500 $0.63 17.00% 0.74$              0.80$              4,402.70$       0.00 69.50$       0.00 4,402.70$      

1 CORNING 048E88-61131-A3 48 ISP Armored Fiber SM FT 500 $6.35 17.00% 7.43$              8.07$              4,034.22$       0.00 69.50$       0.00 4,034.22$      

1 NEPTCO DT2500P/5000 Toneable Mule Tape 5000FT EA 1 $365.00 17.00% 427.05$           463.78$           463.78$          0.00 69.50$       0.00 463.78$         

1 EA 0 $0.00 17.00% -$                -$                -$               0.00 69.50$       0.00 -$              

1 EA 0 $0.00 17.00% -$                -$                -$               0.00 69.50$       0.00 -$              

1 AGUILAR AGUILAR Trench/Bore/Conduit EA 1 $142,740.00 17.00% 167,005.80$     181,368.30$    181,368.30$   0.00 69.50$       0.00 181,368.30$   

1 EA 0 $0.00 17.00% -$                -$                -$               0.00 69.50$       0.00 -$              

1 Price per foot fiber install EA 6000 $1.20 17.00% 1.40$              1.52$              9,148.46$       0.00 69.50$       0.00 9,148.46$      

1 EA 0 $0.00 17.00% -$                -$                -$               0.00 69.50$       0.00 -$              

1 EA 0 $0.00 17.00% -$                -$                -$               0.00 69.50$       0.00 -$              

1 EA 0 $0.00 17.00% -$                -$                -$               0.00 69.50$       0.00 -$              

EA 0 $0.00 17.00% -$                -$                -$               0.00 69.50$       0.00 -$              

-$              

3 TTN TTN LEAD FORMAN JOB 1 $0.00 0.00% -$                -$                -$               80.00 72.55$       5804.00 5,804.00$      

3 TTN TTN TECHNICIAN JOB 1 $0.00 0.00% -$                -$                -$               176.00 69.50$       12232.00 12,232.00$     

3 TTN TTN MISC. MATERAL JOB 1 $500.00 0.00% 500.00$           543.00$           543.00$          0.00 69.50$       0.00 543.00$         

5 TTN TTN CAD/DOCUMINTATION/MRU'S JOB 1 $0.00 0.00% -$                -$                -$               75.62$       0.00 -$              

4 TTN TTN PM/ENGINEERING JOB 1 $0.00 0.00% -$                -$                -$               30.00 78.00$       2340.00 2,340.00$      

TOTAL 199,960.46$   20376.00 220,336.46$   

Tel Tech Networks, Inc.

Prime Contracting Changes

Effective January 1, 2015, non-construction, or service contactors, are exempted from prime contracting on both the state 

and city levels. Contractors who only enter into contracts with owners of real property to maintain, repair, replace, or 

alter their property will be subject to tax at the point of purchase on the building materials used in those projects. Taxes 

for this project have been paid for at the point of purchase by your vendor.

The percent of tax paid at the point of purchase is 8.6%.

HORIZONTAL CABLING AND CONNECTING HARDWARE

ON-SITE LEAD LABOR

PROJECT SUPPORT

4/16/24

Page 95



Quote NO.

DATE

CUSTOMER STATE CONTRACT #'S

    CA - ROC 815116 Commercial

ITEM # TOTAL

1

2

3

4

5

MATERIAL 6,605.54$    

LABOR 14,850.80$  

TOTAL 21,456.34$  

Scope Acceptance - Authorized Signature Date

www.teltechnetworks.com

810 E. Hammond Lane SERST62522-0267B

Phoenix, Arizona  85034 February 19, 2024

Ph: 602-431-9399     Fax: 602-431-9780

PROJECT NAME SITE LOCATION

Arizona State Contract # CTR-62464

Nathan Antonneau/Archer Western     AZ - CTR-62464

Walsh Group     AZ - ROC 167082 Residential

(City of Chandler)

NM - 362237

Install 12 provided 24F LC SM Cassettes

Pecos SCADA Upgrade 12 Chandler

LABOR DESCRIPTION

Fiber Install

Provide and install 3000 FT of 12 SMFO between multiple locations

Install 12 provided Wall Mount LIU various sizes

is considered to be open and assessable. Coring, surface raceway and fire sleeves are excluded 

from quote.

Terminate, Test, and label

Change Orders

Hours may be added do to scheduling restraints and changes

Unless otherwise stated, all work will be performed during normal business hours.

Access without delay is the responsibility of others.  All work above grid ceiling

SCOPE STATEMENT

Tel Tech Networks, Inc.
Your Full Service Communications Company

This Scope Statement is confidential between Tel Tech Networks 
and the intended recipients.  Any duplication or changes need to 
be done by a Tel Tech authorized estimator.  Scope Statement is 
valid for 30 days.

*PAYMENT TERMS ARE PROGRESSIVE UPON COMPLETION; NET 30 
DAYS

4/16/24

Page 96

http://www.teltechnetworks.com/
http://www.teltechnetworks.com/


Bill of Materials Work Sheet Date 2/19/24
PROJECT: 

Class Item/ Product Part Number Description UOM QTY Cost Cost Plus PRICE BID EXT.PRICE Labor Hrs Labor Rate Labor Unit Total

1 CORNING 012ZU4-T4F22D20 12 Strand SM OSP Fast Access FT 3000 $0.34 17.00% 0.40$      0.43$       1,296.03$     0.00 69.50$       0.00 1,296.03$      

1 NEPTCO DT2500P/5000 Toneable Mule Tape 5000FT EA 1 $365.00 17.00% 427.05$   463.78$    463.78$        0.00 69.50$       0.00 463.78$        

1 EA 0 $0.00 17.00% -$        -$         -$             0.00 69.50$       0.00 -$              

1 EA 0 $0.00 17.00% -$        -$         -$             0.00 69.50$       0.00 -$              

1 EA 0 $0.00 17.00% -$        -$         -$             0.00 69.50$       0.00 -$              

1 Price per foot of installing 12 Strand Fiber EA 3000 $1.20 17.00% 1.40$      1.52$       4,574.23$     0.00 69.50$       0.00 4,574.23$      

1 EA 0 $0.00 17.00% -$        -$         -$             0.00 69.50$       0.00 -$              

1 EA 0 $0.00 17.00% -$        -$         -$             0.00 69.50$       0.00 -$              

1 EA 0 $0.00 17.00% -$        -$         -$             0.00 69.50$       0.00 -$              

1 EA 0 $0.00 17.00% -$        -$         -$             0.00 69.50$       0.00 -$              

1 EA 0 $0.00 17.00% -$        -$         -$             0.00 69.50$       0.00 -$              

EA 0 $0.00 17.00% -$        -$         -$             0.00 69.50$       0.00 -$              

-$              

3 TTN TTN LEAD FORMAN JOB 1 $0.00 0.00% -$        -$         -$             56.00 72.55$       4062.80 4,062.80$      

3 TTN TTN TECHNICIAN JOB 1 $0.00 0.00% -$        -$         -$             144.00 69.50$       10008.00 10,008.00$    

3Provide and install 2000 FT of 12 SMFO between multiple locationsTTN MISC. MATERAL JOB 1 $250.00 0.00% 250.00$   271.50$    271.50$        0.00 69.50$       0.00 271.50$        

5 TTN TTN CAD/DOCUMINTATION/MRU'S JOB 1 $0.00 0.00% -$        -$         -$             0.00 75.62$       0.00 -$              

4 TTN TTN PM/ENGINEERING JOB 1 $0.00 0.00% -$        -$         -$             10.00 78.00$       780.00 780.00$        

TOTAL 6,605.54$     14850.80 21,456.34$    

Tel Tech Networks, Inc.

Prime Contracting Changes

Effective January 1, 2015, non-construction, or service contactors, are exempted from prime contracting on both the state 

and city levels. Contractors who only enter into contracts with owners of real property to maintain, repair, replace, or alter 

their property will be subject to tax at the point of purchase on the building materials used in those projects. Taxes for this 

project have been paid for at the point of purchase by your vendor.

The percent of tax paid at the point of purchase is 8.6%.

HORIZONTAL CABLING AND CONNECTING HARDWARE

ON-SITE LEAD LABOR

PROJECT SUPPORT

4/16/24

Page 97



4/16/24

Page 98



One time charges highlighted. Will have
same cost from Wilscot to remove trailer

Total = $5,975.9 + $5975.9 (demobilization) = $11,951.8 / 18 months
Total mobilization and demobilization divided over 18 months = $663.99

4/16/24

Page 99



Total = $5,975.9 + $5975.9 (demobilization) = $11,951.8 / 18 months
Total mobilization and demobilization divided over 18 months = $775.99

4/16/24

Page 100



4/16/24

Page 101



4/16/24

Page 102



4/16/24

Page 103



4/16/24

Page 104



Total for Trailers (per month) = 1,054.82
Total for Mob/Demob (per month) = $775.99 (see next page for detail)
Total Per Month = $1,831 per month

4/16/24

Page 105



One time charges highlighted. Will have
same cost from Wilscot to remove trailer

4/16/24

Page 106



Total = $5,975.9 + $5975.9 (demobilization) = $11,951.8 / 18 months
Total mobilization and demobilization divided over 18 months = $775.99

One time charges highlighted. Will have
same cost from Wilscot to remove trailer

4/16/24

Page 107



ITEM  32 

City Council Memorandum      Public Works & Utilities  Memo No. CP24-163
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, City Manager

Andy Bass, Deputy City Manager
John Knudson, Public Works and Utilities Director
Daniel Haskins, Capital Projects Division Manager

From: Melanie Sikes, Senior Engineer
Subject:Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR) Construction Services Agreement No.

WW2210.401, Change Order No. 1, with B&F Contracting, Inc., for the Price
Road Frontage Road Sewer Rehabilitation

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council award CMAR Construction Services Agreement No.
WW2210.401, Change Order No. 1, to B&F Contracting, Inc., for the Price Road
Frontage Road Sewer Rehabilitation, in an amount not to exceed $1,064,143.72.

Background/Discussion:
The Public Works and Utilities Department administers an ongoing Wastewater
Sewer Assessment Program to evaluate, prioritize, and repair deteriorated
sanitary sewer pipes and manholes within the city’s wastewater collection system.
On September 18, 2023, City Council approved a contract in the amount of
$14,255,102.98 for the Price Road Frontage Sewer Rehabilitation project.
The original scope of work for this project included the rehabilitation of sanitary
sewer pipe, manholes, and siphons along the Price Road Frontage Road from
Elliot to Frye roads. Notice to Proceed was issued on November 11, 2023. 

During construction, the contractor inspected approximately 1,500 linear feet of
48-inch pipe located adjacent to the construction area between Frye Road and the
Loop 202 Santan Freeway. Similar to the 42-inch pipe in the construction area,
this pipe was found to also be in poor condition, with a number of failed joints no
longer protecting the concrete pipe from hydrogen sulfide gases and corrosion.
Large amounts of debris were also found in the pipe left from the deterioration of



the upstream manhole structures in the construction area. Due to these
conditions, the project team recommends extending the scope of the project to
include the relining of the 1,500 feet of 48-inch pipe between Frye Road and Loop
202.  This segment of 48-inch pipe was installed at the same time as the 42-inch
pipe and was not assessed as part of two previous projects upstream and
downstream due to its inaccessibility.

The benefits of rehabilitating this segment of 48-inch pipe now include a lower
overall linear foot rehabilitation cost, an extension of only approximately 700 linear
feet of temporary sewer bypass, and a shorter project duration (weeks versus
months) than if the work were completed as a standalone project. This additional
work to rehabilitate the 48-inch pipe can be completed within the existing traffic
control setups already in place with no extension to the overall project duration. By
completing this additional pipe rehabilitation, all the T-lock-lined reinforced
concrete pipe (RCP) on northbound Price Frontage Road will now be rehabilitated.

The project scope of work for Change Order No. 1 consists of CIPP lining the
existing 48-inch T-lock lined RCP pipe from Frye Road to the Loop 202 diversion
structure along northbound Price Frontage Road. The agreement completion time
does not change and remains at 340 calendar days. This change order represents
a 7.5% increase from the original cost. Construction is anticipated to be completed
by October 2024. 

Evaluation:
The selection process was followed in accordance with city policy and procedure
and state law. Staff recommends agreement award to B&F Contracting, Inc.,
based on qualifications, relevant firm experience, team experience, project
understanding, and project approach. Staff reviewed the GMP proposal and
determined it to be reasonable.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program Name Dollar

Amount
CIP
Funded
Y/N

615.3910.6817.6WW266Wastewater
Operating

Sewer
Assessment &
Rehabilitation

$1,064,143.72 Y

Attachments
Location Map 



Change Order - B&F Contracting 



ELLIOT RD

WARNER RD

RAY RD

CHANDLER BL

PECOS RD

GERMANN RD

QUEEN CREEK RD

OCOTILLO RD

CHANDLER HEIGHTS RD

RIGGS RD

HUNT HWV
A

L V
IS

TA
 D

R

LIN
D

S
A

Y
 R

D

G
ILB

E
R

T
 R

D

C
O

O
P

E
R

 R
D

M
C

Q
U

E
E

N
 R

D

A
R

IZ
O

N
A

 A
V

A
LM

A
 S

C
H

O
O

L R
D

D
O

B
S

O
N

 R
D

P
R

IC
E

 R
D

M
C

C
LIN

T
O

C
K

 D
R

R
U

R
A

L R
D

K
Y

R
E

N
E

 R
D

56T
H

 S
T

SANTAN - SR202L FW

AN
DE

RS
EN

 B
L

EL
LI

S 
ST

TULSA ST

PECOS RD

ROSS DR

DRAKE ST

KEN
W

O
O

D LN

BUTLER ST

BE
NS

ON
 L

N

BU
TT

E 
AV

H
O

M
E 

PL

TYSON PL

CO
U

N
TRY CLU

B W
Y

WHITTEN ST

CINDY ST

SI
CI

LY
 D

R

M
CL

EA
N

 D
R

LO
S ALTO

S DR

BINNER DR

VENUS WY

IVANHOE ST

LO
S 

FE
LI

Z 
DR CARRIAG

E LN

GERONIMO ST

TYSON ST

LISBON DR

M
ON

TE
RE

Y 
ST

AL
DE

R 
DR SAN

TA AN
N

A ST

LA
VE

EN
 D

R

CARLA VISTA DR

MORELOS ST

95
TH

 P
L

DUBLIN ST

EN
TR

AD
A 

ST

TOLEDO PL

DETROIT PL

CR
IS

S 
ST

HE
AR

TH
ST

ON
E 

W
Y

FLINT ST

PR
IC

E 
- S

R1
01

L 
FW

BUTLER DR

CO
RS

IC
A 

PL

GARY DR

CO
RDO

BA AV

FAIRVIEW ST

GOLDEN KEYS WY

95
TH

 S
T

SATURN WY

CO
RO

N
AD

O
 S

T

DUBLIN LN

GALVESTON ST

YU
CC

A 
ST

ELGIN ST

LINDA LN

M
ETRO BL

M
AD

RI
D 

LN

HARRISON ST

ERIE ST

CH
AN

DLER VILLAG
E DR

MEGAN ST

FEDERAL ST

LAREDO ST

SARAGOSA ST

SHANNON ST

BOSTON ST
BR

AC
KE

N
 L

N

OAKLAND ST

GERONIMO PL

FRYE RD

RA
IN

TR
EE

 W
Y

PRICE RD

94
TH

 S
T

TA
M

AR
IS

K 
ST

BULLM
OOSE CR

GALL
ER

IA
 W

Y

FRONTAGE RD

CHANDLER BL

DO
BS

O
N

 R
D

M
CC

LI
N

TO
CK

 D
R

RAY RD

PECOS RD

PROJECT AREA

MEMO NO. CP24-163

PRICE ROAD FRONTAGE ROAD
SEWER REHABILITATION

PROJECT NO. WW2210.401
CHANGE ORDER NO. 1

NTS

F:\ENGINEER\GENSERV\_ArcGISPro_Shared\Map Requests\Capital Projects\2024\CP24-163\CP24-163\CP24-163.aprx 5/17/2024 RandyE



Project Name: Price Road Frontage Road Sewer Rehabilitation – Change Order No. 1 Page 1 

Project No.: WW2210.401 
Rev. 1/16/2024 

 
 

Amendment authorized by Owner name: Jermaine Swinton   Date: 5/16/2024 

Original Agreement amount: $14,255,102.98 

Previous Change Order total: n/a 

Last Agreement amount approved by Council: $14,255,102.98 

This Change Order: $1,064,143.72 

This Change Order + previous Change Order(s) not approved by 

Council total: 
$1,064,143.72 

Revised Agreement total: $15,319,246.70 

Council Approval Required (yes indicates approval required) Yes No 

Change Order(s) total over $100,000: ☒ ☐ 

Change Order(s) total causes Agreement to exceed $100,000:  ☐ ☒ 

Agreement Time 

Agreement time prior to this Change Order (including previous 

change order(s): 

340 

Calendar Days 

Net change resulting from this Change Order: 
0 

Calendar Days 

Revised Agreement time (including this Change Order): 
340 

Calendar Days 

Council Approval (if applicable) 

Council Approval Date:      6/13/24  

CHANGE ORDER NO. 1  

DATE 5/16/24  
 

This Change Order No. 1 (“Change Order No. 1”) to the construction services agreement is made by 

and between the City of Chandler, an Arizona municipal corporation, (“City”) and B&F Contracting, 

Inc., (“Contractor”), on this ______ day of ___________________, 2024 (“Effective Date” by Clerk).   

Change Order not valid until signed by both the City and the Contractor.  Contractor’s signature indicates 

Agreement herewith, including any adjustments in the Agreement Price or Agreement Time.   
 

Project Name: Price Road Frontage Road Sewer Rehabilitation 

Project No.: WW2210.401 

User Dept.: Public Works & Utilities NTP Date: 11/27/2023 
 

 

TO: B&F Contracting, Inc.  11011 N. 23rd Ave. Phoenix, AZ 85029 

 (CONTRACTOR)  (Mailing Address) 

   jonstott@bfcontracting.com 

   (Email Address) 

Contractor must make the following changes to this Agreement: (Detail scope change (Exh. A) / cost 

breakdown (Exh. B), if needed) 

See the attached Exhibit A and B for the additional scope of work to cured-in-place pipe (CIPP) line the existing 

48-inch T-lock lined RCP pipe from Frye Road to the Diversion Structure along northbound Price Frontage Road.    



DanielH
Snapshot



 

 

 

ROC-089744   |   BFCONTRACTING.COM   |   11011 N. 23rd Avenue|   Phoenix, AZ 85029 

P: 623.582.1170   |   F: 623.582.3761 

 

August 10, 2023  
 
Scott Riter – Construction Project Manager 
City of Chandler – Public Works & Utilities  
215 E Buffalo Street 
Chandler, AZ 85225 
 
RE: Name:  Price Road Frontage Road Sewer Rehab  

Project No.: WW2210.401 

 
 
SUBJECT:  Construction Manager at Risk – Change Order  
 

Dear Mr. Riter, 

 

B&F Contracting, Inc. respectfully submits, for your review, our Proposal for additional CIPP lining of 48-

inch & 27-inch pipe on the Price Road Frontage Road Sewer Rehabilitation. B&F proposes to complete this 

work on directly after the contract work is complete utilizing the same equipment to convey flow an 

addition 750 LF downstream of the current discharge to complete the 48-inch pipelining from Frye Road 

to the Price Diversion Structure. To accommodate this, work the bypass will need to be extended and the 

Frye Road Bypass run time will be extended beyond the original duration in the GMP-001. Also included 

in this proposal is pricing to complete CIPP lining of the 27-inch line at Frye Road. The line was CCTV 

inspected and has buried manhole under ADOT concrete pavement that would need rehabilitated 80 lf 

off the price 42” main. This proposal would CIPP line from the new upstream manhole through this buried 

manhole to the new polymer downstream manhole and completely cut off corrosive gases to the manhole 

on the ADOT property and eliminate the need to abandon or rehabilitate the manhole. The price includes 

all labor, equipment, material, and services to complete this additional work. See the attached schedule 

of values for reference.  

 

Included in this package are the following documents: 

 

• COC GMP Work Sheet 

• Schedule of Values  

• Cost Detail  

• Scope of Work 

• Subcontractor Quotes 

 

 

We are excited about the opportunity to work with the City of Chandler and look forward to discussing 

this soon. If you or your team have any questions or comments regarding the above items, please 

contact Josh Onstott at (623)238-3792 

 

Sincerely, 

Josh Onstott 
 

Josh Onstott – Executive Director 

JOnstott@bfcontracting.com 

B&F Contracting, Inc. 

DonnaRy
Text Box
Exhibit A



Date: 5/16/2024

Amount

A. Cost of Work

     A1 Cost of Work (self perform, no mark-up) $408,636.98

     A2 Cost of Work (subcontractors, suppliers, materialmen) $937,356.00

TOTAL COST OF WORK: $1,345,992.98

B. General Conditions $0.00

$1,345,992.98

C. CM@Risk's Fee $114,409.40

SUBTOTAL 2 (A + B + C): $1,460,402.38

D. Bonds and Insurance (on Subtotal 1) 

     D1 Bonds (Payment and Performance) $13,459.93

     D2 Insurance $14,805.92

$28,265.85

SUBTOTAL 3 (SUBTOTAL 2 + BONDS & INS): $1,488,668.24

E. Sales Tax 

     E1 Sales Tax $75,475.48

     E2 Tax Credits $0.00

$75,475.48

F. Approved Allowances

$0.00

G. Contingencies

    G1 Owner Contingency  $                            -   

    G2 Contractors Contigency  $                            -   

$0.00

Current GMP Allocation to Proposal -$500,000.00

$1,064,143.72

Establishment of Values:

a. Cost of Work (A) and Allowances (F) to be submitted with GMP Proposal.

b. General Conditions Cost (B) to be established in Baseline Cost Model.

c. CM@Risk Fee as set forth in Section 3.7.3 of this Contract

EXHIBIT D

TOTAL BONDS & INSURANCE:

TOTAL SALES TAX:

TOTAL GMP PROPOSAL:

TOTAL ALLOWANCES:

TOTAL CONTINGENCIES:

CM@RISK GMP SUMMARY (PAGE 2 of 2)

Project Name:

Project Location:

City of Chandler Project No.:

Price Frontage Road Sewer Rehabiliatation 48 & 27 Inch Lining

Price Frontage Road (Ray Road to Frye Road)

WW2210.401

SUBTOTAL 1 (Cost of Work) (A + B):

ScottRit
Typewritten Text
Exhibit B

ScottRit
Rectangle

ScottRit
Rectangle



Exhibit D3: City of Chandler - Price Road Frontage Road Sewer Rehabiliation - 48-Inch and 27-Inch Lining Proposal COC Project Number: WW2201.401

B F Project Number: 23-3304-01

A B C

WW2210.401

1 Remove And Replace PCCP Between Joints 223.00 SY 384.11  $                      85,656.53 

2 Provide Operate And Remove Bypass Pumping & Piping System 1.00 EACH 209,219.59  $                     209,219.59 

3 Clean Existing 48-inch Diameter Sanitary Sewer Pipe 1,530.00 LF 22.38  $                      34,241.40 

4 42-inch, 36-inch, 12-inch And 8-inch Pre & Post Pipe Rehabilitation CCTV Inspection 1,858.00 LF 7.86  $                      14,603.88 

5 Install 27-inch CIPP Liner 328.00 LF 180.13  $                      59,082.64 

6 Install 48-inch CIPP Liner 1,538.00 LF 580.13  $                     892,239.94 

7 Trench And Install Bypass Crossing Pipes 100.00 LF 509.49  $                      50,949.00 

Subtotal of CMAR Direct Work  $                  1,345,992.98 

SCHEDULED VALUEITEM

No.

DESCRIPTION OF WORK

QTY Unit of Measure Unit Price



Exhibit D3: City of Chandler - Price Road Frontage Road Sewer Rehabiliation - 48-Inch and 27-Inch Lining Proposal COC Project Number: WW2201.401

B F Project Number: 23-3304-01

A B C

WW2210.401

SCHEDULED VALUEITEM

No.

DESCRIPTION OF WORK

QTY Unit of Measure Unit Price

General Conditions

33 General Conditions 0 MO 102,792.23  $                                   -   

Subtotal with General Conditions  $                  1,345,992.98 

8.5% Markup  $                     114,409.40 

Total with OH&P  $                  1,460,402.38 

Insurance and Bond on Subtotal of CMAR Direct Work + Overhead & Profit

Insurance Cost (1.1%)  $                      14,805.92 

Bond Cost (1%)  $                      13,459.93 

Subtotal  Bond and Insurance  $                      28,265.85 

Subtotal  Bond and Insurance+ CMAR Direct Work + Overhead & Profit  $                  1,488,668.24 

Sales Tax (5.07%) 

Sales Tax (5.07%) (Includes Cost of Insurance and Bond * .0507)  $                      75,475.48 

Combined Total with Insurance, Bonds, & Tax  $                  1,564,143.72 

Current GMP Allocation to Proposal  $                   (500,000.00)

ORIGINAL CONTRACT TOTALS  $                  1,064,143.72 



Cost Detail

Project Name: Price Road Frontage Road Sewer Rehabilitation Project Customer: City of Chandler

Mail Stop 407, P.O. Box 4008Job Number: 22-3304-01 Bid Number: WW2210.401 Billing Address:

Bid As: B&F Contracting, Inc. Chandler, AZ 85244  USA

4807823310Estimator: Joshua Onstott Phone:

Project Address: Price Road From Frye, Chandler, AZ Contact: Scott Riter

12/20/2022Completion Date:

Pay Items

Description Quantity UM Direct Cost

Unit

Direct Cost

Total

Unit Price Total Price
Markup
Percent

1 - Remove And Replace PCCP Between Joints 223.00 SY $85,657.66$384.12 $384.11 -0.00%$85,656.53

Remove And Replace PCCP ADOT Joint To Joint 223.00 SY $85,657.66$384.12

Demo PCCP (74.33 SY/DY, 3.00 DY) 223.00 SY $20,782.56$93.20

CP-Concrete Replace Crew (37.17 SY/DY, 6.00 DY) 223.00 SY $18,852.96$84.54

Misc. Concrete Materials (Forms, Dowels, Stakes, Cure, 
Etc.)

1.00 LS $2,000.00$2,000.00

Aggregate - ABC MAG Spec  (Vulcan Materials 
Company)

145.20 TON $4,472.16$30.80

Ready Mix Concrete - MAG AA 4000  (Arizona Materials 

LLC)

77.70 YARD $13,908.30$179.00

Fine Grade (74.33 SY/DY, 3.00 DY) 223.00 SY $13,850.40$62.11

Trucking (3.00 DY, 0.66 Trucks, 9.29 SY/HR) 223.00 SY $2,150.36$9.64

Dump Fee - Concrete 6.00 LOAD $750.00$125.00

Sawcut 223.00 SY $6,440.93$28.88

CP-Sawcutting Large Crew (104.00 SY/DY, 2.14 DY) 223.00 SY $6,440.93$28.88

Drill And Dowell 1.00 LS $2,450.00$2,450.00

5/16/2024 1:32:34 PM Page 1 of 6



Description Quantity UM Direct Cost

Unit

Direct Cost

Total

Unit Price Total Price
Markup
Percent

2 - Provide Operate And Remove Bypass Pumping & 
Piping System

1.00 EACH $209,220.71$209,220.71 $209,219.59 -0.00%$209,219.59

Additional Bypass For 48-inch Pipe CIPP 2.00 EACH $209,220.71$104,610.35

Bypass Setup 2.00 EACH $58,870.94$29,435.47

Fuse Pipe 1,500.00 LF $25,972.82$17.32

Fuse Stringer 1,500.00 LF $14,617.44$9.74

RH-Bypass Fusion 18in< Crew (500.00 LF/DY, 

3.00 DY)

1,500.00 LF $14,617.44$9.74

Misc Fuse Flange Adapters / Fitting 17.00 EACH $11,355.38$667.96

RH-Bypass Fusion 12-18in Crew (8.00 EACH/DY, 
1.13 DY)

9.00 EACH $4,858.74$539.86

RH-Bypass Fusion 18in< Crew (6.00 EACH/DY, 
1.33 DY)

8.00 EACH $6,496.64$812.08

Plumb Pump Station 4.00 EACH $19,358.40$4,839.60

RH-Bypass Sewer Setup Crew (1.00 EACH/DY, 4.00 
DY)

4.00 EACH $18,358.40$4,589.60

Bolts / Gaskets 1.00 EACH $1,000.00$1,000.00

Road X-ing Delays 2.00 EACH $2,378.44$1,189.22

RH-Bypass Fusion 12-18in Crew (4.00 EACH/DY, 
0.50 DY)

2.00 EACH $2,378.44$1,189.22

Test Discharge Piping 1,500.00 LF $4,164.56$2.78

GC-Chlorine & Pressure Test Crew (1,500.00 LF/DY, 

1.00 DY)

1,500.00 LF $4,164.56$2.78

Install And Remove Plugs 2.00 EACH $6,996.72$3,498.36

RH-Bypass Sewer Setup Crew (1.00 EACH/DY, 2.00 

DY)

2.00 EACH $6,996.72$3,498.36

Bypass Removal 2.00 EACH $25,766.60$12,883.30

RH-Bypass Sewer Takedown Crew (0.67 EACH/DY, 
3.00 DY)

2.00 EACH $14,299.68$7,149.84

RH-Pipe Pigging Crew (4.00 EACH/DY, 0.50 DY) 2.00 EACH $2,016.56$1,008.28

Chlorine And Dechlorine 2.00 EACH $850.00$425.00

Plug Removal 1.00 EACH $3,600.36$3,600.36

RH-Bypass Sewer Setup Crew (1.00 EACH/DY, 1.00 

DY)

1.00 EACH $3,600.36$3,600.36

Repair Fence 1.00 EACH $5,000.00$5,000.00

Price Road Frontage Road Sewer Rehabilitation Project5/16/2024 1:32:34 PM Page 2 of 6



Description Quantity UM Direct Cost

Unit

Direct Cost

Total

Unit Price Total Price
Markup
Percent

Pump Watch 24.00 DY $47,372.16$1,973.84

RH-Bypass Sewer Pump Watch Crew (1.00 DY/DY, 

24.00 DY)

24.00 DY $46,652.16$1,943.84

Consumables 24.00 LS $720.00$30.00

Bypass Equipment 30.00 DY $11,986.05$399.53

Mobilization 1.00 EACH $6,188.48$6,188.48

GC-Mobilization Crew (2.00 EACH/DY, 2.00 DY) 4.00 EACH $2,676.00$669.00

GC-Unload & String Pipe Crew (2.00 EACH/DY, 2.00 
DY)

4.00 EACH $3,512.48$878.12

Demobilization 1.00 EACH $6,188.48$6,188.48

GC-Mobilization Crew (2.00 EACH/DY, 2.00 DY) 4.00 EACH $2,676.00$669.00

GC-Unload & String Pipe Crew (2.00 EACH/DY, 2.00 
DY)

4.00 EACH $3,512.48$878.12

Frye Existing Bypass 24.00 DY $52,848.00$2,202.00

3 - Clean Existing 48-inch Diameter Sanitary Sewer 

Pipe

1,530.00 LF $34,237.64$22.38 $22.38 0.01%$34,241.40

48" Heavy Cleaning 1,530.00 LF $14,382.24$9.40

Heavy Cleaning (510.00 LF/DY, 3.00 DY) 1,530.00 LF $7,746.24$5.06

GC-CCTV Crew (510.00 LF/DY, 3.00 DY) 1,530.00 LF $5,286.00$3.45

Dump Fees 3.00 EACH $1,350.00$450.00

27" Cleaning 328.00 LF $2,617.60$7.98

3 Pass Cleaning (328.00 LF/DY, 1.00 DY) 328.00 LF $2,617.60$7.98

Remove T-Lock (No Grout Placement) 1,530.00 LF $9,385.00$6.13

RH-CIPP Lining Support Crew (510.00 LF/DY, 3.00 DY) 1,530.00 LF $8,385.00$5.48

Consumables (Tyvek, Gloves, Blades, Sanitation) 1.00 EACH $500.00$500.00

Dump Fee - Concrete 1.00 LOAD $500.00$500.00

Dewatering Downstream Pipe 3.00 DY $7,852.80$2,617.60

GC-Combo Hydro Truck Crew (1.00 DY/DY, 3.00 DY) 3.00 DY $7,852.80$2,617.60

4 - 42-inch, 36-inch, 12-inch And 8-inch Pre & Post 
Pipe Rehabilitation CCTV Inspection

1,858.00 LF $14,613.22$7.87 $7.86 -0.06%$14,603.88

Pre Pipe CCTV Inspection 1,858.00 LF $7,181.22$3.87

GC-CCTV Crew (895.13 LF/DY, 4.15 DY) 3,716.00 LF $7,181.22$1.93

Post Pano 1,858.00 LF $7,432.00$4.00

Price Road Frontage Road Sewer Rehabilitation Project5/16/2024 1:32:34 PM Page 3 of 6



Description Quantity UM Direct Cost

Unit

Direct Cost

Total

Unit Price Total Price
Markup
Percent

5 - Install 27-inch CIPP Liner 328.00 LF $59,082.96$180.13 $180.13 -0.00%$59,082.64

CIPP Lining 27" DIP  (Insituform Technologies, Inc.) 328.00 LF $54,120.00$165.00

RH-CIPP Lining Support Crew (164.00 LF/DY, 2.00 DY) 328.00 LF $4,962.96$15.13

6 - Install 48-inch CIPP Liner 1,538.00 LF $892,246.42$580.13 $580.13 -0.00%$892,239.94

CIPP Lining 48" DIP  (Insituform Technologies, Inc.) 1,538.00 LF $868,970.00$565.00

RH-CIPP Lining Support Crew (310.00 LF/DY, 4.96 DY) 1,538.00 LF $8,276.42$5.38

CIPP Mobe 1.00 EACH $15,000.00$15,000.00

7 - Trench And Install Bypass Crossing Pipes 100.00 LF $50,949.15$509.49 $509.49 -0.00%$50,949.00

Dig Temp Trench 100.00 LF $19,792.43$197.92

SL-PVC SDR 17 18in Res Extra Large Diameter Crew 
(100.00 LF/DY, 1.00 DY)

100.00 LF $7,284.32$72.84

CP-Sawcutting Small Crew (100.00 LF/DY, 2.00 DY) 200.00 LF $4,372.96$21.86

Plate 10.00 UNIT $3,600.00$360.00

Backfill Materials 68.00 TON $1,564.00$23.00

ABC 68.00 TON $1,564.00$23.00

Trucking (1.00 DY, 2.40 Trucks, 12.50 LF/HR) 100.00 LF $2,596.15$25.96

Dump Fee - Dirt 5.00 LOAD $375.00$75.00

Backfill Trench 100.00 LF $18,039.75$180.40

SL-PVC SDR 17 18in Res Extra Large Diameter Crew 
(100.00 LF/DY, 1.00 DY)

100.00 LF $7,800.64$78.01

Backfill Materials 120.00 TON $3,270.00$27.25

ABC 120.00 TON $2,820.00$23.50

Dump Fee - Dirt 6.00 LOAD $450.00$75.00

Trucking (1.00 DY, 2.40 Trucks, 12.50 LF/HR) 100.00 LF $2,596.15$25.96

CP-Sawcutting Small Crew (100.00 LF/DY, 2.00 DY) 200.00 LF $4,372.96$21.86

Concrete Repairs 2.00 EACH $9,641.52$4,820.76

CP-Concrete Curb & Gutter Crew (1.00 EACH/DY, 2.00 

DY)

2.00 EACH $7,731.36$3,865.68

Ready Mix Concrete - MAG AA 4000  (Arizona Materials 
LLC)

8.40 YARD $1,503.60$179.00

Aggregate - ABC MAG Spec  (Vulcan Materials 
Company)

13.20 TON $406.56$30.80

GC-Pothole 4.00 EACH $3,475.44$868.86

Price Road Frontage Road Sewer Rehabilitation Project5/16/2024 1:32:34 PM Page 4 of 6



Description Quantity UM Direct Cost

Unit

Direct Cost

Total

Unit Price Total Price
Markup
Percent

GC-Utility Potholing Crew (4.00 EACH/DY, 1.00 DY) 4.00 EACH $3,475.44$868.86

Price Road Frontage Road Sewer Rehabilitation Project5/16/2024 1:32:34 PM Page 5 of 6



Direct Cost Totals

Amount

Equipment Rented:

Direct Cost
Percent of

Equipment Owned:

Materials Owned:

Materials Purchased:

Labor:

Subcontracted:

Trucking Owned:

Trucking Hired:

Miscellaneous:

Plug:

Direct Cost:

$151,663.18

$139,401.69

$8,610.60

$20,290.62

$937,356.00

$0.00

$7,342.66

$6,145.00

$75,198.00

$0.00

$1,346,007.76

11.27%

0.64%

0.00%

69.64%

0.00%

0.55%

0.46%

5.59%

10.36%

1.51%

Bid Price

$1,345,992.98

($14.78)

Pay Item Summary

Amount

Total Bond:

Total Indirect Cost:

Total Overhead:

Total Profit:

Total Direct Cost:

Total Bid Price:

$1,346,007.76

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

Total DC Adds/Cuts: $0.00

100.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

-0.00%

$1,346,007.76Total Overall Cost:

($14.78)Total Margin:

100.00%

-0.00%

Percent of

Price Road Frontage Road Sewer Rehabilitation Project5/16/2024 1:32:34 PM Page 6 of 6



EXHIBIT F 

Project Name: [TITLE]  F-1 
City Project No.: [####]  

Rev. 10/23/23 

SUBCONTRACTOR DOCUMENTS WITH CM@RISK 

 

 

Any subcontractor assumptions, clarifications, exclusions, terms & conditions, signature 

blocks, etc. included are strictly between the CM@Risk and their subcontractors, and do 

not apply to the Agreement between the CM@Risk and the City. 
 

DonnaRy
Text Box
Exhibit C

DonnaRy
Text Box
Project Name: Price Road Frontage Road Sewer Rehabilitation – Change Order No. 1Project No.: WW2210.401Rev. 1/16/2024



 

 

Technologies, LLC. 
 

Worldwide Pipeline Rehabilitation 

 

645 W 24th St 
Tempe, AZ, 85282 
Tel:  (480) 446-0620 
Fax: (480) 446-0349 
 
 

 
www.insituform.com 

May 8, 2024 
 
Mr. Josh Onstott 
Executive Director  
B&F Contracting 
 
Re: Change Order Proposal # 3 for Project WW2210.401 – City of Chandler Price Rd Rehab 
 
Dear Mr. Onstott: 
 
COP # 3 below includes two options for CIPP lining 27”.   
- Option 1 is 82 LF of 27” assuming lining from MH 756006977 to buried MH 756005854 (Manhole needs 

exposed).  
- Option 2 is 328 LF of 27” assuming lining from MH 756006977 to New MH 01.  

 
CHANGE ORDER PROPOSAL 3 – Option 1 

Item  Description Unit Price Qty  TOTAL 

1 Price and Frye Rd 27” CIPP – Option 1 $360 82 LF $29,520.00 

  TOTAL CO3 – Option 1      $29,520.00 

 
CHANGE ORDER PROPOSAL 3 – Option 2 

Item  Description Unit Price Qty  TOTAL 

1 Price and Frye Rd 27” CIPP – Option 2 $165 328 LF $54,120.00 

  TOTAL CO3 – Option 2      $54,120.00 

 
All assumptions, inclusions and exclusions remain same per the original contract. Please do not hesitate to 
contact me with any further questions. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
Insituform Technologies, Inc. 

 
Seth Ganesan 







 

 

Technologies, LLC. 
 

Worldwide Pipeline Rehabilitation 

 

645 W 24th St 
Tempe, AZ, 85282 
Tel:  (480) 408-9203 
Fax: (480) 446-0349 
 
 

 
www.insituform.com 

May 14, 2024 
 
Mr. Josh Onstott 
Executive Director  
B&F Contracting 
 
Re: Change Order Proposal # 4 for Project WW2210.401 – City of Chandler Price Rd Rehab 
 
Dear Mr. Onstott: 
 
The proposal below includes CIPP lining of approximately 1,530 LF of 48” segments at Price and Frye Road.  
 
CHANGE ORDER PROPOSAL 4 

Item 
# 

Description Unit Price Qty  TOTAL 

1 Mobilization $15,000 1 $15,000.00 

2 Price and Frye Rd 48” OTH CIPP $565 1,530 LF $864,450.00 

  TOTAL CO4      $879,450.00 

 
Assumptions specific to this project: 
- Insituform will continue these installations with minimum gap (approximately a month) from finishing the 

current Chandler Over the Hole installations, so we can keep most of the OTH equipment in Tempe 
- Designs are based on following MH depths measured: 21 feet at Frye Rd, 15 feet at Fairview Rd and 10 feet 

at MH with bend 
- We will install two OTH shots from Fairview St manhole, one to Frye Rd and other to the Structure 

 
All other assumptions, inclusions and exclusions remain same per the original contract. Please do not hesitate to 
contact me with any further questions. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
Insituform Technologies, Inc. 

 
Seth Ganesan 
Project Director 
Insituform Technologies 



ITEM  33 

City Council Memorandum      Management Services  Memo No. 
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor and Council

Thru:
Joshua H. Wright, City Manager
Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager – CFO
 

From: Matthew Dunbar, Budget and Policy Director
Subject:Public Hearing on Adoption of the FY 2024-25 Annual Budget, 2025-2034

Capital Improvement Program (CIP), and setting the FY 2024-25 Property Tax
Levies

Proposed Motion:
1. Open Public Hearing
2. Staff Presentation
3. Council Discussion
4. Discussion from the Audience
5. Close Public Hearing

Background/Discussion
On May 23, 2024, Council adopted Resolution No. 5800, which approved the FY
2024-25 Tentative Budget in the amount of $1,629,072,684 and set June 13,
2024, as the date for a public hearing to allow taxpayers to comment and provide
input on the Budget, Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and Property Tax Levies.  A
Notice of Public Hearing for “Adoption of the FY 2024-25 Annual Budget and
2025-2034 Capital Improvement Program, and Setting of Property Tax Levies”
has been posted on the official City website since May 29, 2024, and was
published in the Arizona Republic on May 29 and June 5, 2024, as required by
state statute.  The notice includes a summary of the Tentative Budget, with State
Auditor General schedules A and B budget forms (a complete set of budget forms
is attached to the Resolution No. 5801 agenda item) and provides a general
description of the 10-Year CIP. 

Council action on the Budget and CIP is scheduled immediately following this



Public Hearing on the Budget, CIP and Property Tax Levies.  Action on the
Property Tax Levies is scheduled for tentative adoption June 24, 2024, and final
adoption June 27, 2024.

Attachments
Public Hearing & Special Meeting_Final Budget Adoption and Property Tax Levy
presentation 



Council Chambers
Friday, April 26, 2024Public Hearing

Council Chambers | Thursday, June 13, 2024

FY 2024-25 Proposed Budget
2025-2034 Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
2024-25 Property Tax Levy



1.6% decrease
overall all Funds

$752.5M operating (-5.9%)
$876.5M capital (+2.3%)

5.4% decrease in
General Fund

$577.8M operating (-9.1%)
$139M capital (+8.6%)

FY 2024-25 Proposed Budget

Total Budget $1,629,072,684 | Total General Fund: $577,776,840

Proposed Budget
• Adheres to financial policies and is structurally balanced

• Ongoing for ongoing and one-time for one-time
• Uses Strategic Framework to guide decisions
• Provides for cost-effective, quality services
• Maintains long-term financial sustainability
• Resident engagement through input opportunities

• Kickoff, Resident Budget Survey & Three Workshops
• All-day Budget Briefing
• Tentative and Final Adoption in May/June

“Making it Happen”



FY 2024-25 Proposed Budget Drivers (all funds)

Revenues
• Revenues reflect actual economic environment with additional analysis on sustainable level
• Increases coming from continued development & decrease from Residential Rental revenue
• State Shared revenues updated with latest projections using State and League forecasts

Expenditures

• Funding to convert one-time funded positions to ongoing, maintain service delivery after adjusting for
inflation, and ensure enhancements are in strategic focus areas

• Personnel costs increasing to invest in city workforce and retain employees; market, merit, and
healthcare.  Reflects ongoing savings from PSPRS employer contribution

• Capital projects increased to address aging infrastructure, inflation and new infrastructure

Grants

Debt &
Actions
Reducing
Cost

• Continued focus on finding Grant opportunities and having “shovel ready” projects that may qualify

• Maintain AAA bond rating to minimize cost of borrowing for capital projects
• Maintain funded status of Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) to ensure unfunded

liability does not grow
• Solar energy investment for utility cost savings
• Turf to Xeriscape capital project for utility cost savings



Operating Budget Highlights

Reduces city primary property
tax rate, no change to

Transaction Privilege Tax (TPT)
rates

No planned Water, Wastewater,
or Solid Waste rate changes in

the new Fiscal Year

Budget maintains existing
service levels and enhances
programs tied to Strategic

Framework

Adds funding for new labor
association commitments and
general employee merit/market

Continues debt elimination:
$7M in one-time funding for pay

-off maintenance of Public
Safety Personnel Retirement

System (PSPRS) liability

Maintains strong reserves
including 15% General Fund

contingency and $10M budget
stabilization reserve



2025-2034 CIP Highlights
• 2025-2034 CIP total is $2,488,884,031

($525M more than the 2024-2033 CIP)

• Updated to reflect additional utility
projects and project costs to current
values

• Increased focus on aging infrastructure

• Voter Bond authorization to support
capital plan is shortened by inflation

$2.49B- Total 10-Year CIP
$876.5M – Total FY 2024-25 CIP



Public Hearing
FY 2024-25 Property Tax Levy



Breakdown of $1 of Typical Chandler Property Tax Bill

City of Chandler
11 cents

Public Schools and
Community College

Districts
70 cents

Maricopa County &
Special Districts

19 cents

*Based on 2023 Tax Bill
information. Exact split will

vary depending on the
school district and any other

special taxing districts on
the bill.



FY 2023-24 LPV
$3.900B

2023-24 Levy
$42,612,435

FY 2024-25 LPV
$4.108B

2024-25 Levy
$44,473,791

+5.3% increase
0.9% New Property
4.4% Appreciation

Levy Increase
$1,861,356

FY 2024-25 Property Tax Levy

Tax rate reduction from $1.0926 to $1.0826
reduces impact of Limited Property Value (LPV) increase

Reduces property tax rate for the 9th consecutive year



9

Impact of City Tax Rate Reduction 
on Median Value Homeowner



Budget Event  Date
Council Budget Kickoff Completed Oct.
Citizen Budget Survey Completed Nov. - Jan.
Council Workshop #1 Completed Feb.

Council Workshop #2 Completed early Mar.
Council Workshop #3 Completed late Mar.
All Day Budget Briefing Completed Apr.

Council Meetings and
Statutory
Requirements

Tentative Budget/CIP Adoption Completed May
Budget Public Hearing and Final
Adoption Tonight

Adoption of Tax Levies 06/27/2024

Key Budget Dates



Questions?
For your consideration:

Res. #5801 Adopts the FY 2024-25 Annual
Budget, sets the amounts proposed to be

raised by direct property taxation, and adopts
the 2025-2034 Capital Improvement Program

(CIP)
Tentative and final adoption of the

Ordinance No. 5095, setting Property Tax
Levies will be June 24 and 27, 2024

For more information visit chandleraz.gov/budget
or call the Budget Office at (480) 782-2254



ITEM  34 

City Council Memorandum      Management Services  Memo No. 24-095
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor and Council

Thru:
Joshua H. Wright, City Manager
Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager - CFO
Kristi Smith, Financial Services Director

From: Danielle Wells, Revenue and Tax Senior Manager
Subject:Special Event Liquor Licenses and Temporary and Permanent Extensions of

Liquor License Premises Administratively Approved

Background/Discussion
Staff works directly with the requestor and the Arizona Department of Liquor
Licenses and Control (DLLC) on liquor licenses for Special Events, Temporary
Extensions of Premises, and Permanent Extensions of Premises. All requirements
for Special Events and Temporary Extensions of Premises are reviewed by staff
through the applicable committee (Special Events Committee for Special Events
on City property or the Temporary Sales and Promotional Events (TSPE)
Committee for Special Events on private property), and Code requirements for
Permanent Extension of Premises are reviewed by the Planning Division for
Council action.  Related Planning City Code requirements that require City Council
action include: Permanent Extension of a Bar Series 6 or 7 requires a Use Permit
to expand the footprint and any Permanent Extension with entertainment added or
expanded requires an Entertainment Use Permit (EUP)

Attachments
Administrative Approvals 



                              June 13, 2024
Special Event Liquor and Extensions of Liquor Premises Approvals
Permanent Extensions of Liquor License Premises
Business Name: Si Senor Restaurant of Arizona, LLC, DBA Si Senor Restaurant
Applicant: Irene Castillo
Extension Purpose: To add additional seating area on outside patio
Location: Si Senor Restaurant, 600 N. Alma School Road

Temporary Extensions of Liquor License Premises
N/A

Special Event Liquor Licenses

N/A



ITEM  35 

City Council Memorandum      Development Services  Memo No. 
       

Date: June 10, 2024
To: Mayor  and Council
From: Development Services Department
Subject: May 1, 2024, Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes

Attachments
May 1, 2024 Study Session Minutes 
May 1, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes 






























	Agenda
	1 City Project NO. AI2206.401; FAA Project NO.: 3-04-0008-033-2023 - Automated Weather Observing System (AWOS) Replacement – Construction Agreement
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Contract
	2 Approval of Minutes
	       ATT_Minutes of the Special Meeting - Budget Briefing of April 26, 2024
	       ATT_Minutes of the Special Meeting of May 20,2024
	       ATT_Minutes of the Study Session of May 20, 2024
	       ATT_Minutes of the Work Session of May 23, 2024
	       ATT_Minutes of the Regular Meeting of May 23, 2024
	       ATT_Minutes of the Special Meeting of June 3, 2024
	3 SRP License Agreement for Frye Rd. Improvements
	       ATT_1. Existing Conditions
	       ATT_2. Proposed Improvements
	       ATT_3. Resolution 5813
	CERTIFICATION

	       ATT_4. Agreement with Salt River Project
	4 PR2205.451 Dibble CM, LLC – Professional Services Agreement
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Agreement - Dibble CM
	5 Resolution No. 5811 Intergovernmental Agreement with Chandler Unified School District No. 80
	       ATT_Resolution 5811_IGA CUSD Fees_Facility Use
	       ATT_IGA CUSD Fees_Facility Use
	a. CoC Personnel

	6 PR2205.401 DNG Construction, LLC – Job Order Project Agreement
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Brooks Crossing Park JOC Contract
	7 PLH23-0056 Viviendo 
	       ATT_Ordinance No. 5099
	ORDINANCE NO.  5099

	       ATT_Vicinity Maps
	       ATT_2004 Approved Geneva Estates Plan
	       ATT_Viviendo- Site Plan
	Project Narrative- Viviendo 4-16-24.pdf
	Introduction
	Request
	Existing Site Conditions
	General Plan Designation
	Section 23 Area Plan Amendment
	Residential Development Standards
	Entry, walls, signage
	Amenities & Open Space
	Landscaping
	Development Standards
	Housing Product Architecture
	Conclusion

	Density Tables.pdf
	RVi-3921-5TH-VIVIENDO PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT-SITE PLAN - COLOR.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	SITE PLAN - COLOR


	RVi-3921-5TH-VIVIENDO PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT-SITE PLAN -B&W.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	SITE PLAN -B&W


	RVi-3921-5TH-VIVIENDO PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT-LS PLAN - COLOR.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	LS PLAN - COLOR


	RVi-3921-5TH-VIVIENDO PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT-LS PLAN - B&W.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	LS PLAN - B&W


	RVi-3921-5TH-VIVIENDO PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT-WALL PLAN.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	WALL PLAN


	Viviendo -5TH-VIVIENDO PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT-WALL DETAILS 1.pdf
	Viviendo -5TH-VIVIENDO PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT-SITE FURNISHINGS EXHIBIT.pdf
	Viviendo - DR Booklet.pdf

	       ATT_Development Booklet 
	Project Narrative- Viviendo 4-16-24.pdf
	Introduction
	Request
	Existing Site Conditions
	General Plan Designation
	Section 23 Area Plan Amendment
	Residential Development Standards
	Entry, walls, signage
	Amenities & Open Space
	Landscaping
	Development Standards
	Housing Product Architecture
	Conclusion

	Density Tables.pdf
	RVi-3921-5TH-VIVIENDO PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT-SITE PLAN - COLOR.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	SITE PLAN - COLOR


	RVi-3921-5TH-VIVIENDO PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT-SITE PLAN -B&W.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	SITE PLAN -B&W


	RVi-3921-5TH-VIVIENDO PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT-LS PLAN - COLOR.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	LS PLAN - COLOR


	RVi-3921-5TH-VIVIENDO PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT-LS PLAN - B&W.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	LS PLAN - B&W


	RVi-3921-5TH-VIVIENDO PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT-WALL PLAN.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	WALL PLAN


	Viviendo -5TH-VIVIENDO PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT-WALL DETAILS 1.pdf
	Viviendo -5TH-VIVIENDO PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT-SITE FURNISHINGS EXHIBIT.pdf
	Viviendo - DR Booklet.pdf
	Renderings
	Final PRELIMINARY PLAT VIVIENDO_

	       ATT_Public Comments 
	Peggy
	Support
	Against

	8 Introduction and Tentative Adoption of Ordinance 5101, PLH23-0057 Guerrero
	       ATT_Ordinance 5101
	ORDINANCE NO.  5101

	       ATT_Vicinity Maps 
	       ATT_Narrative
	       ATT_Site Plan
	9 Introduction and Tentative Adoption of Ordinance No. 5102, PLH23-0070 Chandler Palms Medical Offices
	       ATT_Ordinance No. 5102
	ORDINANCE NO.  5102

	       ATT_Vicinity Maps
	       ATT_Narrative and Exhibits
	       ATT_Ordinance No, 1968
	       ATT_PDP05-0009 Chandler Corporate Center Development Booklet
	202405021528
	202405021536
	202405021545

	10 Ordinance 5103 Annexation ANX23-0003- South of the Southeast Corner of Arizona Avenue and Germann Road
	       ATT_Ordinance No. 5103
	Untitled

	       ATT_Vicinity Maps
	       ATT_Approved Design
	ADR BOOKLET CHANDLER INNOVATION CENTER _compressed
	00 Coversheet
	01 Index
	02 Narrative
	02.1 Planning Comments Response 10-20-23
	03 Site Aerial Context
	03.1 Parcel Map for Annexation
	04 Architectural Site Plan Prelim_1.12.24
	05 Architectural Site Details_1.12.24
	06 Civil Plans Prelim_12.21.23
	Sheets and Views
	PP01 PRELIMINARY PLAT COVER
	PP02 PRELIMINARY PLAT
	GD01 PRELIMINARY GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN
	GD02 PRELIMINARY GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN
	GD03 PRELIMINARY GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN
	GD04 PRELIMINARY GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN


	06.1 Civil Retention Diagram_12.21.23
	07 Landscape Plans Prelim_12.27.23
	La 01
	La 02
	La 03

	08 Building 1 Rendering
	09 Building 1 Color Elevations
	10 Building 2 Rendering
	11 Building 2 Color Elevations
	12 Building 3 Color Elevations
	13 Material Board Buildings 1-2-3
	14 Signed LOA and Legal Description
	15 Sign Posting Affidavit


	11 Preliminary Plat PLT23-0039 Chandler Innovation Center
	       ATT_Vicinity Maps
	       ATT_Preliminary Plat 
	051343 Boundary Exhibit-EXHIBIT.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	EXHIBIT



	12 PLH24-0004 The Forum
	       ATT_Vicinity Maps
	       ATT_Exhibits
	       ATT_Letters of Concern
	13 Agreement No. FS2-928-4310, Amendment No. 3, for Auto Body Repair Services
	       ATT_Amendment 3 - Allard
	14 Agreement No. 4506, Amendment No. 4
	       ATT_Agreement
	15 Agreement No. 4730, for Permitting Software and Support Services
	       ATT_Agreement
	16 Purchase of Cisco Webex Room Kit Upgrades
	17 Purchase of Information Technology Research Subscription Services
	18 Purchase of Information Technology Temporary Staffing Services
	19 Purchase of Oracle Annual Support and Maintenance
	20 Resolution No. 5799 Authorizing Submittal of an Indian Gaming Revenue Sharing Grant Application from Dignity Health Foundation - East Valley to Ak-Chin Indian Community
	       ATT_Resolution 5799 - Dignity Health Foundation - Ak-Chin
	       ATT_Dignity Health-Ak Chin Grant Signed Application 2024
	21 Agreement No. IT1-918-4343, Amendment No. 3, for Business License Portal Applications and Managed Support Services
	       ATT_Amendment
	22 Liquor License Series 12 Slick City Action Park 845 N 54th Street
	       ATT_A-Floor Plan
	23 Opioid Treatment and Prevention Services
	       ATT_Resolution 5810 Opioid Prevention
	       ATT_Agreement - Recovery Cafe
	       ATT_Agreement - EMPACT-Suicide Prevention Center (SPC)
	24 Amendment No. 1 to IGA No. CC-22-24-037-X-00 for Housing Stability Services
	       ATT_Resolution No. 5814 - Amendment No. 1 to IGA No. CC-22-24-037-X-00
	       ATT_Exhibit A - Amendment No. 1 Community Services Block Grant
	25 Purchase of TruNarc Handheld Narcotics Analyzers
	26 Final Adoption - Ordinance 5098
	       ATT_Ordinance No, 5098
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Exhibit B - Easement
	27 Ordinance 5100
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Ordinance No. 5100
	       ATT_Exhibit B - Contract and Grant of Easement
	28 Agreement No. PW0-745-4183, Amendment No. 9, with M.R. Tanner Development and Construction, Inc., for Street Maintenance Repaving, Surface Seal, and R
	       ATT_Amendment No. 9
	29 Professional Services Agreement No. WA2103.452, Amendment No. 1 with Jacobs Engineering Group Inc., for Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant SCADA Upgrades - Programming.
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Amendment - Jacobs Engineering
	30 Professional Services Agreement No. WA2103.451, Amendment No. 4 with Jacobs Engineering Group Inc., for Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant SCADA Upgrades Construction Management Services.
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Amendment - Jacobs Engineering
	31 WA2103.402 Archer Western Construction – CMAR Construction Services Agreement
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Agreement - Archer Western
	32 WW2210.401, Change Order No. 1, B&F Contracting, Inc. – CMAR Construction Services Agreement
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Change Order - BandF Contracting
	33 Public Hearing on Adoption of the FY 2024-25 Annual Budget, 2025-2034 CIP, and setting the FY 2024-25 Property Tax Levies
	       ATT_Public Hearing and Special Meeting_Final Budget Adoption and Property Tax Levy presentation
	34 Special Event Liquor and Extensions of Liquor License Premises
	       ATT_Administrative Approvals
	35 May 1, 2024, Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes
	       ATT_May 1, 2024 Study Session Minutes
	       ATT_May 1, 2024  Regular Meeting Minutes

		2024-05-14T11:35:25-0700
	Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com




